

United States Department of Agriculture

National Agricultural Library

Cooperative State Research Service

Miscellaneous Publication 1432

Aquaculture Research

 \mathbf{O}

0

A Directory of USDA and State Projects in CRIS

Sta

NVP

O

N

Aquaculture Research

A Directory of USDA and State Projects in CRIS

Compiled by Current Research Information System Cooperative State Research Service for National Agricultural Library U.S. Department of Agriculture

January 1983

PREFACE

This directory of aquaculture research was prepared in support of Departmental initiatives related to implementation of the National Aquaculture Act of 1980 (P.L. 96-362) and Subtitle L of the National Agricultural Research, Extension, and Teaching Policy Act of 1977, as amended by the Agriculture and Food Act of 1981 (P.L. 97-98). Specific reference in the legislation is made to the development and implementation of aquaculture research programs and the conduct of "...research and extension to facilitate or expand promising advances in the production and marketing of aquacultural food species and products." It is the intent of this directory to bring into sharper focus current aquaculture research activities of the Department and the States and to serve as a guide to the scope and direction of these efforts.

A second objective was to demonstrate the feasibility of and to develop the means for rapid and inexpensive preparation of classified and indexed listings of research projects in camera-ready format directly from the computer file of the Current Research Information System (CRIS). Initially targeted as a part of aquaculture program objectives of the Technical Information Systems (TIS), Science and Education Administration (SEA), this first directory is the product of a cooperative effort of the Current Research Information System, Cooperative State Research Service, and the Information Systems Division, National Agricultural Library.

Included here are ongoing and recently completed projects conducted or sponsored by agencies and institutions within the USDA-State agricultural research system. Components of the system are chiefly the USDA research agencies, the State agricultural experiment stations and land-grant colleges, Tuskegee Institute, State forestry schools, and other cooperating State institutions. The source of project information was the Current Research Information System, USDA's documentation and reporting system for publicly supported agricultural and forestry research. CRIS is operated by the Cooperative State Research Service, U. S. Department of Agriculture.

Projects listed are those contained in CRIS as of January 1982. Selection of projects was based on the presence of aquaculture as a major component of the research as determined from CRIS narrative project descriptions. Projects in related areas, such as those dealing with sedimentation and erosion, water quality, and pollution were generally not included unless aquaculture was clearly within the scope of the objectives. Except for minor editing, information appearing on each project was taken directly from the research summary as received for entry in the CRIS system. Index terms listed in the Keyword/Title Index are the keywords assigned to the projects by CRIS staff for use in computer retrieval. They appear in the printed index as single or multiple-word terms and as originally assigned during indexing. Titles have been added to provide context. Chapter headings within the main entry section are based on internal CRIS special classifications for aquaculture research. In instances where a project was assigned more than one classification, the same project is repeated in all applicable chapters. Repeat entries are identified by an asterisk in both the main entry section and indexes. Arrangement of projects within chapters is by State, followed in order by performing institution, department, and investigator name.

Publication of this directory coincides with the compilation of (1) a directory of information resources in aquaculture, by contract with Aspen System Corporation, under direction of the National Agricultural Library, and (2) a directory of primary contacts at Federal, State, and county levels for assistance and information on programs for aquaculturists, being prepared in cooperation with Auburn University, Alabama. For information on these and other projects in support of the aquaculture effort, contact Wallace C. Olsen, Chief, Field and Special Programs Division, National Agricultural Library, Beltsville, Maryland 20705.

Camera-ready copy for this directory was compiled through use of the SAMANTHA software system. (SAMANTHA is a registered service mark of CORDATUM, Inc., Bethesda, Maryland.) CRIS project information in machine-readable form served as the sole source of input. Initially, CRIS projects were retrieved on computer magnetic tape through a search of the CRIS file on the DIALOG online retrieval system, operated by DIALOG Information Services, Inc., Palo Alto, California. From the DIALOG tape, an online working file was created at the USDA Washington Computer Center to provide capability for onling editing. The edited file was then read directly into SAMANTHA, which compiled both the main entry section and indexes in camera-ready format.

Special acknowledgment is due CRIS staff member Richard M. Sparks, who identified and performed the final selection, review, and editing of projects included in the directory, and Philip A. Turner and Edward A. Warnick of the National Agricultural Library, who designed and developed SAMANTHA application programs for executing format, sort, and print conventions on which this directory was based. Philip L. Dopkowski, Head, Technical Products and Services Unit, Current Research Information System, was responsible for overall direction, planning, and coordination of the project.

Comments on the content, format, and usefulness of this directory as well as suggestions of other topics for similar treatment are welcome and should be sent to: Current Research Information System, National Agricultural Library Building, Beltsville, Maryland 20705.

CONTENTS

	Page
PREFACE	iii
RESEARCH PROJECT DESCRIPTIONS	
Biology and Behavior	1
Breeding and Genetics	34
Diseases, Parasites, Pests, Weeds	44
Ecology and Environment	78
Feeding and Nutrition	149
Production Management Systems	169
Harvesting and Handling	201
Processing and Product Development	206
Product Quality, Nutritive Value, Consumption	222
Marketing and Economics	237
INVESTIGATOR INDEX	255
PERFORMING INSTITUTION INDEX	259
KEYWORD/TITLE INDEX	263

January 1983

RESEARCH PROJECT DESCRIPTIONS

1. Biology and Behavior

001.001 CRIS0081713 NEURAL CONTECL OF SWINNING IN CRAYFISEES

MULLONEY B; AGRI ZOOLOGY; UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, DAVIS, CALIFCENIA. 95616. Proj. No.: CA-DX-AZO-4013-B Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSES Period: 24 JUN 80 To 30 SEP 83

OBJECTIVES: Describe the structure and properties of the neurons that control the movements of crustacean swimmerets, describe and interpret their synaptic organization, examine the connections and modes of action of command fihers tht either drive or inhihit these neurons and analyze the connections and dynamics of the proprioceptive sensory neurons which monitor the position of each swimmeret. The significance of this analysis may be profound for our understanding of many nervous systems which drive cyclic movements of limbs.

APFECACE: We will combine intracellular recording of synaptic activity from selected neurons with careful analysis of their structure and biophysical properties and with existing information about the dynamic performance of the entire system.

001.002 CRISO081746 CREMICALS THAT DIFFUSE FROM PREDATORY ASTEROIDS & TRIGGER DEFENSIVE BEEAVIORS IN MARINE INVERTEBRATES

PBILLIPS D W; AGRI ZOCLOGY; UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, DAVIS, CALIFCENIA. 95616. Proj. No.: CA-D*-AZO-4005-E Project Type: HATCH

Agency ID: CSES Period: 27 JUN 80 To 30 SEP 83 OBJECTIVES: To isolate and identify the chemicals

that diffuse from predatory asteroids and trigger defensive hetaviors in marine invertehrates.

APPEGACE: Waterborne chemicals diffusing from living predatory asteroids will be isolated from seawater hy adsorption on to a column of macroreticular non-ionic exchange resin. After elution from the resin, the concentrated eluate will he tested for effectiveness in stimulating defensive bebavior in moluses and other marine invertehrates. Stimulatory chemicals will he purified and identified using standard techniques. The specificity of defensive responses will be examined hy isolating waterborne chemicals diffusing frem a variety of stimulatory and non-stimulatory asteroids.

PROGRESS: 80/06 TO 80/12. Steroid saponins have heen proposed as the chemicals eliciting defensive hehavior by the prey of seastars. Non-ionic exchange resin has heen used to concentrate low levels of saponin directly from seawater surrounding living specimens of the seastars Pycnopodia helianthoides and Patiria miniata. The total amount of saponin released into the water hy Pycnopodia, a seastar known to elicit defensive responses hy many of its prey, and Patiria, a seastar which rarely elicits such responses, was similar. Bowever, thin-layer chromatograpty revealed differences between the steroids of the seastars. These differences may he the key to understanding the specificity of defensive responses--why responses are elicited hy some species of seastar and not by others. Preliminary gel filtration experiments have heen conducted on the chemical diffusing from Pycnopodia and eliciting defensive hehavior by the sea urchin Strongylocentrotus purpuratus. The hiologically active chemical elutes near the end of a column of Bio-Gel, P-6 (fractionation range 1000- 6000MW), suggesting an active molecule on the order of 1500 mW.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/06 TO 80/12

- MOITOZA, D.J. and PHILLIPS, D.W. 1979. Frey Defense, Predator Preference, and Nonrandom Diet: The Interactions Between Pycnopodia helianthoides and Two Species of Sea Urchine. Marine Biology 53:299-34.
- PHILLIPS, D.W. 1980. Steroid Saponing Concentrated from Water Surrounding Living Specimens of the Seastars Pycnopodia helianthoides and Patiria miniata. American Zoologist 20:846.
- FISELYN, D.A. and PEILLIPS, D.W. 1980. Chemical Camouflaging and Behavioral Defenses Against a Predatory Seastar hy Three Species of Gastropods from the Surfgrass Phyllospadix Community. Biological Bulletin 158:34-45.

001.003 CRIS0066346 OSNOREGULATORY RESPONSES OF DESERT PUPPISE: A STUDY MODEL OF PHYSIOLOGICAL ADAPTATION TO ENVIRONMENT

BODA J M; ANIMAL PHYSIOLOGY; UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, DAVIS, CALIFORNIA. 95616. Proj. No.: CA-D*-AFH-3225-B Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 10 SEP 74 To 30 DEC 80

CEJECTIVES: Investigate the physiological mechanisms of adaptation by fishes with emphasis on the maintenance of osmotic and ionic halances.

APPROACE: Two species of desert pupfish, one adapted to extreme and variable conditions of environmental temperature and salinity (C. maculorius), the other restricted to fresh waters (C. radiosus will be employed as laboratory models. Initially, mechanistic differences in the abilities of the eggs and embryos of the two species to tolerate environmental extremes will be investigated in detail. Later, developing fry and adults will be studied.

PROGRESS: 74/10 TO 80/12. This project was terminated July 1979. The major results of this project include: Establishment of hushandry techniques and environmental requirements for the maintenance of two populations of desert pupfish (Cyprinodon macularius and C. radiosus) in a laboratory situation for several generations. C. manularius is a particularly suitable experimental animal model for the study of embryogenesis. C. radiosus is a difficult species to maintain in the lah heause of low reproductive capacity. Comparisons of tolerances to environmental salinity and other environmental variables for the two species (and hybrids) have demonstrated such tolerances (or their lack) is inberent within the specific population as measured by the success and nature of embryogenesis and hatching of viable larvae. Environmental salinity, temperature, specific organic ions (especially sodium and calcium) bave important influences on the rates of embryogenesis and the development of hody form. There are interactions hetween these three environmental

variables and there are differences between the two species in their responsee to such factors. For example, the quantitative requirement for calcium ion is greater at high salinity, at excessively low salinity (near distilled water), at high temperature, and for C. radiosus for the several environmental conditions.

PUBLICATIONS: 74/10 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED FINAL REPORT PERICD.

001.004 CFIS0078835 PHYSIOLOGY AND BCOLOGY OF THE ASIATIC CLAN, CORDICULA SP., IN THE SACRAMENTO-SAN JOAQUIN DELTA

BODA J M; ANIMAL PHYSIOLOGY; UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, LAVIS, CALIFCENIA. 95616. Proj. No.: CA-D*-APH-3716 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 FEE 79 To 30 OCT 84

OBJECTIVES: Frovide detailed physiological and ecological information on the asiatic clam, Corbicula sp., as a basic for management or economic exploitation of the species.

APPEGACE: Lahoratory studies of individual changes of hody composition, growth, and metabolism and field studies of population changes and productivity will be used to evaluate the ecology of Corhicula in the Sacramento-San Joaquin delta.

FROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Caged populations of freshwater clams (Corbicula manilensis) consisting of labeled individuals of known size and estimated tiesue composition (based upon tiesue analysis of other individuals collected at the same time and location) have heen placed in several microenvironments of the San Joaquin Delta. Samples of the caged populations, as well as clams from the same areas, are being collected periodically throughout the year for an evaluation of growth ratee and changes of tissue composition (wet and dry weights, tissue calories, total nitrogen, glycogen concentration). The purpose is to establish baseline values and potentially useful procedures to allow the see of these clams as bioindicators of the quality of the Delta waters. Tissue composition of lyophylized tiseues collected from reeident populatione during 1978 and 1978 are being analysed to establish equations for the prediction of tissue compositions from simple field measurements

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

001.005 CRISO080277 NOLECULAR ENEOCRIMOLOGY OF MOLTING AND REPRODUCTION IN CRUSTACEANS

CHANG E S; ANIMAL SCIENCE; UNIVERSITY CF CALIFORNIA, DAVIS, CALIFCENIA. 95616. Proj. No.: CA-D*-ASC-3896-B Project Type: HATCE Agency ID: CES Period: 01 NOV 79 To 30 SEP 83

OBJECTIVES: Characterize hormone receptors in a crustacean cell line; define the interactions between molting and ovarian maturation at the molecular level; purify and characterize hormones involved in egg maturation and spawning; accurately measure the titer of the molting hormone during the course of the molt cycle in various crustacean species.

APPEOACE: The establishment of a crustacean cell line would involve classical tissue explantation and dissociation methods. Once established, the cell line would be examined for molting hormone (ecdysone) receptors and cell-specific products. Bormone-receptor interactions would he examined in terms of nuclear translocation and differential gene expression. Extracts of various tissues such as the crustacean eyestalks would he tested for lipid mobilization in the hepatopancreas and for vitellogenesis in the ovary in the search for gonadotrophic hormones. Extracts of tiesues of free-spawing penaeid shrimps will be examined for a spawning factor. Various crustacean species will be assayed for molting hormine titer using an existing radio-immunoassay. Comparison of the resulting data will permit the formulation of molt-stage criteria based on hormal titers.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. The objectives of this project are to elucidate the endocrine events involved in the processes of molting and reproduction in crustacean species of aquaculture importance. By means of a specific radio immunoassay, the molting hormone (ecdysteroid) titers have been determined during the first three larval stages of the lobster, Homarus americanus. Cyclic changes in the hormone titers indicate that larval molting is most likely under a hormonal control that is similar to that operating in juvenile and adult animale. In addition, this larval molting hormone has been identified as 20-hydroxyecdysone hy means of thin-layer chromatography. Studies are also continuing on the effects of changes of the molting hormone titer on reproduction in the female lobster. Samples of blood are being collected to see if there is a correlation between egg development, egg extrusion, and molting.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

STEVENSCN, J.R., ARMSTRONG, P.W., CHANG, E.S. and O'CONNOR, J.D. 1979. Ecdysone Titere During the Molt Cycle of the Crayfish Orconectes sanborni. General and Comparative Endocrinology 39:20-25. CHANG, E.S. and ERUCE, M.J. 1980. Ecdyeteroid Titers of Juvenile Lobsters Following Molt Induction. Journal of Experimental Zoology 214:157-160.

001.006 CRISO080242 PENABIDAE GAMETES, THEIR STRUCTURE, ACTIVATION AND FUSION

CLARK W H; ANIMAL SCIENCE; UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, DAVIS, CALIFORNIA. 85616. Proj. No.: CA-D*-ASC-3852-H Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSSS Period: 01 NOV 78 To 30 SEP 83

OBJECTIVES: Characterize the gametes, gamete activation and gamete fusion in selected members of Penaeidae. This work is prerequieite to the ultimate goal--the development of in vitro fertilization techniquee.

APPROACH: Using microscopic, histo- and cytochemical, and biochemical techniques, gametogenesis, gamete activation, and gamete fusion (fertilization) will be studied in Sicyonia sp. and Penaeld sp. These etudies should define gamete stages capable of fertilization and the microenvironment necessary for fertilization. Using this information, in vitro fertilization techniques will be developed.

PECGRESS: 80/01 TC 80/12. Control of fag Extrusion and Fertilization in Shrimp. We conducted preliminary studies on the hormonal control of spawning in the rock shrimp, Sicyonia ingentis. Initial experiments indicate that eyestalk extracts may mediate the breakdown of the germinal vesicle and release of the eggs from their surrounding matrix of follicle cells. Detailed studies of the fertilization process as well as the male and female gametes have been carried out over the last year in various speciee of shrimp. Following egg extrusion in ebrimp the next critical event is the cortical reaction (jelly release) of the eggs. This cortical reaction of the egge from both S. ingentis and Penaeus aztecus has been morphologically characterized, and we have blochemically identified the jelly component produced during these reactions. We have also made significant progrese in understanding the fertilization events associated with the sperm. The acrosome of Sicyonia ingentis sperm has been characterized, and the acrosomal reaction has been successfully induced in vitro with the ionpohore A23187. We have sequenced and characterized many of the events of fertilization in S. ingentis. Other studies have shown that Macrobrachium rosenbergii, the fresh water prawn, possesses gametes identical to marine epeciee of Palaemon. This type of sperm has also been structurally characterized, and the events of fertilization in N. rosenbergii have been documented.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- WHEELEK, R., YUDIN, A.I. and CLAKE JE., W.H. 1979. Hatching Events in the Cysts of Arteria salina. Aquaculture 18:55-67.
- KLEVE, M.G. and CLARE JR., W.E. 1980. Association of Actin with Sperm Centrioles: Isolation of Centriolar Complexes and Immunofluorescent Localization of Actin. Journal of Cell Hiology 86:87-55.
- KLEVE, M.G., YUDIN, A.I. and CLARK JF., W.E. 1980. Fine Structure of the Unistellate Sperm of the Shrimp, Sicyonia ingentis (Natantia). Tissue and Cell 12(1):28-45.
- CLARK JR., W.H., LYNN, J.W., YUDIN, A.I. and PERSYN, E.C. 1980. Morphology of the Cortical Reaction in the Eggs of Penaeus aztecus. Fiology Fulletin 158:175-186.
- YUDIN, A.I., KLEVE, M.G. and CLARE JR., W.H. 1981. Sperm of the Ridgeback Prawn, Sicyonia ingentis (Natantia). In: Advances in Invertebrate Reproduction, Editors: Clark Jr., W.H. and Adams, T.S. Elsevier/North-Bolland

001.007 CRISO080268 SVINELADDER INFLATION IN LARVAE OF PERSOCILISTOUS FISEES

DOBCSHOV S I; CLARE W B; ANIMAL SCIENCE; UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, DAVIS, CALIFORNIA. 95616. Proj. No.: CA-D÷-ASC-3893-B Froject Type: HATCH Agancy ID: CSRS Period: 01 NOV 79 To 30 SEP 83

CBJECTIVES: Determine the effect of oxygen tension and water temperature on the inflation of swimbladder in larvae of physoclistous fish; study tha development and fine structure of larval swimbladder; increase survival rate in culture of physoclistous fish larvae.

APPEGACH: Larvae of physoclistous species widely used in aquaculture (Tilaria, striped bass, mullet or croaker) will be tested for: Correlation between percentage ard time of the initial swimbladder inflation and oxygen tension and temperature monitored in rearing containers; bistolgical and fine structure of swimbladder development prior to, during and after initial inflation. This should illucidate a mechanism of larval swimbladder inflation and hydrostatic requlation of critical stage of development and provide a means of monitoring normal inflation and high survival rate in larvae culture technology.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. It has been shown that initial swim bladder inflation in physoclisous larvae, if delayed, is the major cause of hatchery mortality. Water quality conditions (e.g., dissolved oxygen and turbulence) have been correlated with both cytomorphological changes in the primordial swim bladders epithelium and with embryonic and larval organogenesis. Two major mechanisms for bladder inflation have been proposed and are being examined for Sarotherondon mossambleg and Morone saxatilis. In recent experiments, we have found that water salinity is also a critical factor regulating swim bladder inflation and organogenesis in the pelagic estuarine larvae of striped bass. Larvae held for five days posthatch in brackish water (5-12 ppt) exhibit superior blacder inflation, more advanced development of the primordial swim bladder, higher efficiency of yolk sac utilization, and, in general greater survival as compared to larvae held in fresh water. This phenomenen is probably related to the specific patterns of larval osmoregulation which is under investigation at the present time.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

001.008 STUDIES OF RELATIONSWIPS BETWEEN MARINE AND TERRESTRIAL FACTERIA EALMANN P; BACTERICLOGY; UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, DAVIS, CALIFORNIA. 95616.

 Proj. No.:
 CA-D*-BAC-3642-H
 Project Type:
 BATCH

 Agency ID:
 CS#S
 Period:
 23
 MAR 78
 To 30
 SEP 82

CEJECTIVES: Determination of relationships between marine and terrestrial bacteria by means of comparisons of glutamine synthetases from a number of marine and terrestrial spacies.

APPROACE: We propose to obtain purified glutamine synthetase, inject rabbits with this preparation and study relationships by means of the quantitative micro-complement fixation method. This technique gives an estimate of the % amino acid sequence difference between the studied proteins.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. We have completed studies of the evolution of alkaline phosphatase in species of Vibrio and the results have been submitted for publication. The amino acid sequence divergence of this enzyme confirmed and extended our past speciation. In addition we have completed our studies on the evaluation of glutamine synthetase in species of marine and terrestrial enterobacteria. The results of these studies have allowed a definition of Vibrio and Photohacterium based on evolutionary relationships. We are currently pursuing studies of evolution of superoxide dismutase in these two genera and have purified antigens from four reference strains and obtained antisera. At the present we are measuring the amino acid sequence divergence of the SCE from species of Vibrio and Photohacterium using the quantitative microcomplement fixation technique.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERICD.

001.009 CFIS0075881 ENVIRONMENTAL AND ECOLOGICAL INFLUENCES ON GENETIC VARIABILITY

FOIN T C: ECOLOGY: UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, DAVIS, CALIFORNIA: 95616. Proj. No.: CA-D*-ECL-3669-B Project Type: EATCE Agency IE: CSRS Period: 20 JUL 78 To 30 SEP 83

OBJECTIVES: This project is intended to identify the ecclogical and environmental correlates of genetic variability in grassland and marine ecosystems. This will help us to identify the role of genetic variation in mediating population response to environmental and ecological conditions. If the results are similar, analysis of two widely different to accsystems should produce generalizations applicable both to agricultural and natural eccsystems.

APPROACE: In both systems we shall routinely measure levels of genetic variation in enzymes using gel electrophoresis; the ecological structure of the community; and relative environmental and trophic stability. With these data we can identify what conditions are most closely associated with high genetic variability. This long-term (several years) study is principally located in the northern California coastal grassland and in the tropical Pacific. The project is currently coordinated with personnel at the University of Hawaii, the University of Washington, and the Departments of Genetics and Agronomy and Range Science at U.C. Davis.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. This program currently consists of two parts. Cne is the direct measurement of genetic variability in a family of tropical marine gastropods. By and large, little work in research has been undertaken in this past year, although two manuscripts bearing on this work have been completed and submitted within the year. The other part of the program is the ecological assessment of a perennial grass species. Anthoxanthum odoratum. The program currently emphasizes the ecological aspects of increase of this species in a coastal grassland at Sea Ranch, Sonoma County, to define the limits of adaptability of a species well-known for its genetic variability. Three students are now working on this program: two abstracts and one paper have been produced in the past year. The principal result to

emerge is that Anthoxanthum is highly successful along the coast in a variety of environments. There appears to be a strong correlation hetween Anthoxanthum abundance and soil water availability, conditioned on the presence of other perennial species which are potential competitors.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NC PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

001.010 CFIS0076425 EFFECTS OF STAMPEDE RESERVOIR ON UPSTREAM PISE POPULATIONS CF SAGEHEN CREEK

BENAN D C; FCREST RESEARCE UNIT; UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, EERKELEY, CALIFCRNIA. 94720. Proj. No.: CA-F*-FEU-5649-B Project Type: BATCE Agency ID: CERS Period: 07 SEP 78 To 30 SEP 80

CEJECTIVES: Determine the cause of upstream movement of suckers in Sagehen Creek following impoundment and determine if other changes in fish composition are occurring, particularly trout populations in areas formerly uninhabited by suckers.

APPEGACE: Seasonally, we will sample fish by electrofishing from the reservoir upstream. Density and standing crop estimates will be compared to pre-impoundment baselines data (1952 to 1961). Suckers will be tagged to determine movement patterns. Physiological condition will be assessed to see if upstream fish are under more stress than those downstream. An underwater observation tank will be used to observe behavior of trout and suckers in case suckers have an adverse effect on trout distribution.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Taboe sucker in Webber Lake were found in different depth and habitat zones depending on their size (age). They also fed on different benthic invertebrates depending on size. Juvenile sucker were gregarious by day in shallow water but at night fed as individuals. Adult fish lived in deep zones by day and migrated to shallow water at night to feed. Food of sucker in Webber Lake was mostly chironomid larvae, an amphipod and molluscs while in Stampede Reservoir they ate mostly chironomid larvae and pupae and some zooplankton (from the besthos). The difference in diet between systems was a function of didfferences in food availability. In Sageben Creek, sucker confined to a section at the underwater observation tank fed actively only in mid afternoon. The action of their feeding cleared away fine sediment and organic matter from bottom substrates. Invertebrate drift seemed increased by their feeding although further tests are needed for verification.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

MARRIN, D.L. 1980. Food Selectivity and Babitat Utilization by Introduced Trouts and Native Non-game Fishes in Subalpine Lakes. M.S. Thesis.

001.011 CFIS0067534 THE EFFECT OF STREAM CUPPENT UPON FISE BEBAVICE, GROWTE AND MICROHABITAT SELECTION

LI B W; WILDLIFE & FISHERIES FICLOGY; UNIVERSITY OF CALIFCENIA, DAVIS, CALIFORNIA. 95616. Proj. No.: CA-D*-WFE-3209-B Agency ID: CSES Period: 18 MAR 75 To 31 DEC 78

OBJECTIVES: Determine the effect of stream current speed upon growth, habitat selection, aggressive behavior.

APPECACE: Latoratory streams were set at three speeds. Four replicates of four fish of eact of the three species were tagged and placed into a stream of the appriate current. Growth was measured, aggressive behavior recorded, and individual fish mapped.

PROGRESS: 78/01 TO 78/12. The work completed has four major findings: Broad distibutional patterns of fishes living in streams are governed by physiological response to environmental gradients. Microhabitat selection and resource partitioning is also affected by physiological capacities of individual species; optimal swimming speed was found to approximate twice the standard metabolic rate; habitat selection sway from this optimum is explainable in terms of benefit-cost relationships; if the return in terms of reduced predation or greater forage is high enough fish will change their velocity preferences. Traditional models of behavioral regulation of body temperature are inadequate to explain habitat choice of stream fishes; fishes in Sagehen Creek experience a diel fluctation of 15°C during the day; yet many of these fishes are highly territorial or they have very restricted and circumscribed home ranges. The interspecific aggressive interactions have been found to be more frequent in newly formed communities (i.e., experimental populations) than in those which have been observed in natural states. Thus in colonies which are being recolonized, interactions may be extremely important. Maintenance of the bierachies both within and between populations may require less frequent displays in stable areas. Species examined in these studies are Salmo gairdneri, Oncorbynchus tsyhawytscha, Mylophargdon conocephalus, Ptychocheilus grandis, Catostomus occidentalis, C. tahoensis.

PUBLICATIONS: 78/01 TO 78/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

001.012 CRIS0067184 CLEAR LARE ECOSYSTEM ANALYSIS: THE FISHES

LI H W; MCYLE P B; WILDLIFE & FISBEFIES BIOLOGY; UNIVEESITY OF CALIFORNIA, DAVIS, CALIFCRNIA, 95616. Proj. No.: CA-D*-WFE-3205-H Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSFS Period: 13 JAN 75 To 31 DEC 79

OBJECTIVES: Study the ecology of game and nongame fishes of Clear Lake, centering around the recently introduced Menidia and device a fisheries management plan for the lake.

APPEGACE: Determine the ecological significance of Clear Lake tributaries, especially ephemeral ones, by comparative population analyses. Froduction of Menidia will be estimated by the method of Hamilton (1969). The effectiveness of Menidia as a biocontrol agent will be evaluated by studying its prey electivity.

PRCGRESS: 79/01 TC 79/12. This project was terminated this year, although analysis of data concerning the hiology of th recently (1967) introduced Mississipps silversides in t be lake is still proceding by H. W. Li (now at Oregon State Univ.) and by W. W. Wurtsbaugh (Ph.D. thesis). Overall we have found that the silvesides may be baving some controlling impact on the populations of the prestiferous Clear Lake gnat but that its impact on gamefish populations and those of native nongame fishes has been negative or neutral. Similar effects, or worse, are expected in the Sacramento- San Joaquin Delta where the fish has just become established, and in numerous reservoirs.

PUELICATIONS: 79/01 TO 79/12 MOYLE, PETER E. and N. J. ECLZEAUSEE. 1978. Effects of the introduction of Mississippi silverside (Menidia audens) and Florida largemouth bass (Micropterus salmoides floridanus). EROADWAY, J.E. and P. B. MOYLE 1978. Aspects of the

ecology of the prickly sculpin, Cottus asper Richardson, a persistent native species in Clear Lake, California. Env. Biol. Fish. 3(4):337-343.

001.013 INSTREAM FLOW REQUIREMENTS OF CALFORNIA FISBES

MOYLE P B; WILDLIFE & FISHERIES BIOLOGY; UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, DAVIS, CALIFORNIA. 95616. Proj. No.: CA-D*-WFH-3206-B Project Type: BATCE Agency ID: CSES Period: 23 JUN 75 To 30 SEP 84 OBJECTIVES: fetermine the requirements of the different life history stages of California fishes in relation to water velocity, substrate and depth. Show how thes requirements wary in different stream types and in relation to temperature regimes and other fish speckes present. Determine if squawfish predation on salmon is increased by changed flow regimes and erection of diversionary structures.

APPEOACH: Following the USFWS-IFG methodology, representative sections of streams are selected and subjected to intensive hydrological studies that allow the section to be simulated on a computer. Measurements of depth, velocity, substrate and other variables are then recorded for individual fish of all species present. When the two sets of data are combined, predictions can be made as to how much suitable babitat is available to each species, under different flow regimes. Samples of squawfish collected at different localities, times of the year and habitats are being examined for food habits. the results will be used in conjunction with data collected.

PROGRESS: 79/01 TO 79/12. This project has been terminated in favor of the more specific project WFB 3884-B. Mucb of what was learned in this project is summarized in Moyle and Li (1979) and Moyle (in press). Essentially, these studies document the distribution patterns of freshwater fishes in major portions of the Sacramento-San Joaquin drainage system in relation to the changing patterns of water use by man. Specific studies have also concentrated on the unique trout fishery of the McCloud Eiver (Sturgess and Moyle 1978, Tippetts and Moyle 1978) and on the threatened fishes of the Pit Eiver system (Daniels and Moyle 1978; Daniels 1978).

PUBLICATIONS: 79/01 TO 79/12

- MCYLE, P.B., 1980 (Ed.). Studies on the distribution and ecology of fishes of the Sacramento-San Joaquin drainage system. I. Fishes of the Pit River system (Noyle and Daniels). II. Pishes of the Pajaro River system (Smith). III. Stream
- DANIELS, R.A. 1979. Distribution and status of crayfishes in the Pit River dra Inage, California. Crustaceana. 20:1-8.
- STURGESS, J. and MOYLE, P.E. 1978. Biology of rainbow trout, brown trout and interior Dolly Varden in the McCloud River, California, in relation to management. Cal-Neva Wildlife. pp. 232-250.
- TIPPETS, W.E. and MOYLE, P.B. 1978. Epibenthic feeding by rainbow trout (Salmo gairdneri) in the McCloud Liver, California. J. Anim. Ecol. 97:549-559.
- DANIELS, E.A. and MOTLE, P.B. 1978. Biology, distribution and status of rough sculpin, Cottus asperrimus, in the Pit River drainage, Northeastern California. Copeia. p. 673-675.

001.014 CFIS0079437 PRODUCTION OF IDENTIFICATION CIRCULARS ON THE LARVAE OF COLOFADO FISHES

CABLSON C A; FISBERY & WILDLIFE BICLOGY; CCLCRADO STATE UNIVERSITY, FORT COLLINS, COLCRADC. 80523. Proj. No.: CCL00062 Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 79 To 30 JUN 82

CBJECTIVES: Determine and provide aquatic biologists with criteria for the identification of the larvae of Colorado's fishes and provide initial financial support for the research activities of CSU's Larval Fish Laboratory.

APPEGACE: Specimens will be acquired, literature reviewed, and developmental series assembled for selected important species. Morphometric and meristic data will be summarized, and embryos, larvae and juveniles will be illustrated. Brief identification circulars will be prepared for each species for dissemination to aquatic biologists and assemblage in notebooks. Keys will be prepared for identification of larvae of Colorado Species.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Preparation of larval fist Identification Circulars is underway for 16 species of Colorado's west-slope cyprinid and catostomid fishes, including three endangered forms. Eight of these species are also common to east-slope streams. Much of this information will appear in a Guide to the Cypriniform Fish Larvae of the Upper Colorado River System in Colorado. Identification Circulars for some of the 16 species will be published or at least ready for publication by the end of June 1581. The remainder will be completed and others initiated during the 1981 and 1982 fiscal years. As they represent the largest order of fishes in Colcrado, emphasis will continue to be placed on the cypriniform fishes, but work on other groups will be initiated during the next few years, possibly even this spring. Numerous water-storage and transmountain and local water diversion projects, for agricultural and other purposes, are planned for west-slope streams. Accordingly, the identification aids being prepared are anxiously awaited by various government agencies, universities, and private firms concerned with impacts on fish reproduction, early life history, and spawning and nursery grounds. The information being assembled has already been applied hy the CSU Larval Fish Laboratory and Colorado Division of Wildlife in fish distribution and habitat studies. As more east-slope species are covered, similar applications can be made there.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

001.015 CRISOU77533 ANALYSIS AND MODELING LAKE MICHIGAN FISE POPULATION

VANDYNE G; FISBERY & WILDLIFE BIOLOGY; COLCRADC STATE UNIVERSITY, FORT COLLINS, COLCRADC. 80523. Agency ID: CSVM05500 Period: 01 JAN 76 To 31 DEC 78

OEJECTIVES: Assement of power plant erfects such as enterinment, impingement and relatively small thermal increments on Lake Michigan implies a need for a systems analysis approach. Proposed is a modelling effort to examine and interrelate the data from the fishery and related investigations in the vicinity of the Donald C. Cook Nuclear Power Plant to determine power plant effluent pollution effects on commercial and sports fish in Lake Michigan.

APPROACE: The model will examine changes over time on a multispecies population sector. Climatic variables, plant operations and seasonal effects will be used as driving variables in the model to change the values of elements in the transition matrices. The model, after development and revisions, will be used to make predictions of impacts of alternative power plant operational stages on the population vector of the lake ecosystem.

001.016 ECOLOGY OF SALT WAPSEES IN RELATION TO ESTUARIES AND ENERGY FLOW

SUBRAHMANYAM C E; BIOLOGY; FLCRIDA AGRIC 6 MECH UNIVERSITY, TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA. 32307. Proj. No.: FLAX79004 Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 CCT 78 To 30 SEP 83

OBJECTIVES: Study community structure and seasonal variations in marsh and estuarles; study breeding cycles of individual species; study nutritional needs of species in terms calorie intake study energy utilization of species in terms of oxygen consumption; determine the energy content of species in terms of caloric values and study activity patterns in field and laboratory to understand movements of species.

APPROACE: Collect animals with trawl, plankton nets, corer and grabs. Sort and identify species. Follow the seasonal distribution of larvae in plankton to assess breeding patterns. Conduct feecing experiments in laboratory, and evaluate food intake and assimilation. Study the oxygen consumption rates by continuous flow techniques, and determine diurnal and tidal rhythms of metabolism by 24-br experiments. Eurn the organisms in Cxygen bomb calorimeter and determine caloric values. Tag fish species in field and follow movements by recapture. Release tagged fish in enclosures and follow activity. Perform laboratory experiments.

PROGRESS: 79/09 TO 80/08. The abundance patterns of fish and invertebrates in St. Marks coastal estuarine-marsh system were summarized in a published paper. Preliminary experiments on the metabolism of estuarine fish showed that the two resident species, Fundulus grandis and F. similis consumed 0.036 -0.047 mlo(2)/gm/hr, which was lower than 0.071 -0.112 miO(2)/gm/br consumed by the migratory species Leiostomus xanthurus and Lagodon rhomboides. All the four species showed metabolism dependent on ambient oxygen tension in the range of 20 - 90 mmHg. Plankton collections and water quality study in St. Marks estuary and Apalachee Eay were started in April 1979 and will be completed in May 1981. Differences between surface and hottom salinity in one tidal cycle were as high as 5-8 pp.t., but between surface and bottom oxygen (0.5-1.0 m1/1) and temperature (1-2degrees C) were negligible. Summer temperatures were higher in contrast to salinities because of rainfall. Plankton volume varied from 5m1/tow (8 minutes) to 300 ml/tow between cool and warm months. Phytoplanktor maxima were observed in fall and early winter, and zooplankton peaks in late spring and late summer. When stations are compared, Apalachee Bay stations generally showed larger volume of plankton, and mesohalize estuarine stations showed less. Crustacean larvae such as crab zoea and megalopa penaeld postlarvae, and fish larvae were ahundant from spring through fall.

PUFLICATIONS: 79/09 TO 80/08

SUBBAEWANYAW, C.E. Oxygen Consumption of Estuarine Fish in Felation to External Tension. Comparative Elochemistry and Physiology 67A:129-133. SUBBAHWANYAW, C.E. Studies on the Animal Communities in Two North Florida Salt Warstes. Pt. III. Seasonal Fluctuations of Fish and Macroinvertebrates. Bulletin of Marine Science 30:790-818.

001.017 CEIS0033144 PBOTOSYNTHESIS AND PBOTOBESPIRATION IN AQUATIC PLANTS

EOWES G E; ECTANY; UNIVEPSITY OF FLORIDA, GAINESVILLE, FLORIDA. 32601. Proj. No.: 7800459 Agency ID: CEGO Period: 11 SEP 78 To 30 SEP 80

OEJECTIVES: Identify the environmental factors that induce a change in the photosynthesis photorespiration ratio; develop a biochemical explanation for the ratio chang e; identify major biochemical differences between marine and freshwater angiosperms; determine the role of dark CO(2) fixation in aquatic plants; determine if there is any compartmentation of function between different photosynthetic cell types.

APPEOACE: Einetic measurements of photosynthesis, photorespiration and respiration using infrared CO(2) gas exchange analysis, ¹⁴CO(2) feeding, and C(2) electrode techniques; photosynthetic studies of isolated cells and chloroplasts; analyses of photosynthetic products; organic excretion studies; and kinetics and activity measurements of photosynthetic and photorespiratory enzymes.

PROGRESS: 79/09 TO 80/09. All submersed, freshwater macrophytes examined, including algae, bryophytes, and angiosperms, had the ahility to alter their photosynthesis/photorespiration (PS/PE) ratio (as measured by several parameters including CO(2) compensation points or Gamma) in response to artificial and seasonal environmental changes. At 100 NuM CO(2), Hydrilla in the low, but not the intermediate to high, Gamma state was capable of net dark CO(2) uptake during the night period, but not during the day. In these plants PEP carboxylase and C(4) acids (malate and aspartate) predominated, but in the high Gamma state RuBP carboxylase and sugar phosphates were predominant. Bydrilla was able to decarboxylate 14-C-malate in the light, which provides circumstantial evidence for the role of malate as a photosynthetic intermediate. Incuhation in ethephon, an ethylene precursor, increased Gamma Sydrilla with high and low values. Whether ethylene has an in vivo role in regulating the PS/PK ratio is under investigation. Myriophyllum also exhibited variation in its FS/PR ratio, hut suBP carboxylase predomitated even in the low Gamma state. A HCO(3)pumping mechanism could not explain the low Gamma state, as it was measurable in air and at low pH, where HCO(3)-lons are virtually absent. This suggests that photorespiration may be reduced in certain angiosperms without resorting to increased PEF carboxylase activity. Whether submerged rice varieties exhibit similar characteristics to other aquatic plants is under study.

PUBLICATIONS: 79/09 TO 80/09

- EOWES, G., BOLADAY, A.S. and BALLER, W.T. 1979. Seasonal Variation in the Binmass, Tuber Density, and Photosynthetic Metabolism of Hydrilla in Three Florida Lakes. J. Aquat. Plant Manage. 17:61-65.
- BOLADAY, A.S. and BOWES, G. 1986. C(4) Acid Metaholism and Dark CO(2) Fixation in a Submerged Aquatic Macrophyte (Hydrilla verticillata). Plant Physiol. 65:331-335.
- BLICKENSTAFF, J. and BOWES, G. 1980. An Organic Acid Induced Efflux From Low Gamma Bydrilla Plants. Plant Physiol. 65:S86.
- SALVUCCI, M. and HOWES, G. 1980. Photosynthesis and Photorespiration in Amphibious Plants. Plant Physicl. 65:S86.
- SALVUCCI, N.E. 1980. Biochemical and Physiological Characteristics Associated With the Variable CC(2) Compensation Foints of Certain Aquatic Angiosperms. N.S. Thesis. Univ. Florida, Gainsville, 88 pp.

001.018 CRISO068632 EASELINE STUDIES FOR EVALUATING THE RESPONSE OF AN ECOSYSTEN TO THE INTRODUCTION OF WRITE ANUR

EVEL & C; FOE RES 6 CONSERV; UNIVERSITY OF FLORIDA, GAINESVILLE, FLORIDA. 32601. Proj. No.: FLA-FY-01765 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 75 To 30 DEC 80

OBJECTIVES: Determine the forcing functions, main energy flows, and variations in the important components in an aquatic ecosystem; construct and similate a model which will incorporate these variables and which will include the possible effects of the introduction of white amur to the ecosystem; monitor the changes that actually do take place in an ecosystem when the fish is introduced, revising the model until it is a reasonable generalization of the ecosystem.

APPROACE: Baseline ecological data will be collected by state agencies on a lake into which the white amur will be introduced in the second year of the study. Models incorporating these data will predict the effects of the fish, and these models will be verified hy continued data collection.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. A model of Lake Conway, FL. was simulated with and without white asur present. If rates used in the model are accurate, the grazing food chain in this lake is slightly more important than the detritus food chain, and 10% of the gross primary productivity is grazed. One-quarter of the annual phosphorus input to the epilimnion comes from leaching and decay of submersed macrophytes. Similated ranges of state variables were close to values measured in most cases. The model was stable during a simulation representing ten years. After two years, simulated addition of white amur (7000 fisb, each weighting 458g) decreased submersed macrophyte biomass to 60% of its normal peak biomass. Water quality improved, gross primary productivity and community respiration decreased, and the relative importance of the grazing fond chain increased. Biomass of benthic invertebrates and secondary predator fish increased. Addition of half as many

fish five years efter the first introduction brought about the same degree of macrophyte control, but recovery wes more repid.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERICD.

001.019 EIOLOGICAL STUDIES OF THE SPINY LOBSTER IN SOUTH FLORIDA

LABISKY R F; CCMBS C L; GFEGCRY D F; FOF RES & CONSERV; UNIVERSITY OF FLORIDA, KEY WEST, FLORIDA. 33040. Proj. No.: FLA-FY-01745 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JAN 75 To 31 DEC 80

OBJECTIVES: Letermine distribution, abundence, end seasonal movements of juveniles and adults, and their reletion to lobster fishery. Determine impact of harvest rates on populetions. Develop monitoring procedures.

APPROACE: Field studies in the Florida Keys, and close coordinetion with other stete end federal lobster studies and the fisbing industry.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. No progress report this period.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 GEEGGEY, D.E., JE. 1979. Reproductive dynamice of

- the spiny lobeter, Penulirus argus (Latreille), in south Florida. Sea Grant '70's £(12):14-15. GEEGOEY, D.R., JR. 1980. Reproductive dynamics of the spiny lobster, Panulirue argus (Letreille), in south Floride. N.S. Thesis. University of Floride, Geinesville. 50 pp.
- LABISKY, R.F., GEEGGRY, D.R., JR., end J.A. CONTI. 1980. Floride's spiny lobster fishery: a bistorical perspective. Fisheries 5(4):28-37.

001.020 CFIS0065219 CHARACTERIZATION OF GONAD-STINULATING SUBSTANCES IN MARINE ANIMALS

CAEDEILHAC P T; VETERINARY SCIENCE; UNIVERSITY OF FLORIDA, GAINESVILLE, FLORIDA. 32601. Proj. No.: FLA-VY-01673 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 14 MAR 74 To 31 DEC 80

OEJECTIVES: fevelor assay for goned-stimulating substances. Isolate and cheracterize substances involved in the regulation of spawning and gamete maturation. Identify and characterize neuroendocrine mechanisms involved in spawinig end gemete maturation. fetermine patterns of similarity among gonad-stimulating substances from different enimels.

APPEOACE: An assay system for gonadotrophins, similar to the one used for starfish, will be developed. Purification of the gonadotrophine will be eccomplished by chromatography. The mechanism of action will be studied using purified substances. Petterns of similarity emong isolated gonedotrophins will be investigated by determining emino acid sequences, physical and chemical properties and mode of action.

PECGRESS: 74/03 TO 80/12. Narm water merine teleosts which lay pelagie eggs, (enapper, grouper, mackerel, trout, drum, etc.), are a group of fieb of major importence to mericulture, sport fishing and connerciel fisheries. The pinfish, Lagodon rhombbides, wes selected from this group es e model for the study of toxins, hormonee, etc. which effect gamete maturation and spewning. Photoperiod end several mammalien hormones were found to be bighly stimulatory. The development of mature occytes to ripe ease could be induced, stripped from the fish, fertilized and normal yolk-sac lervae produced. Culture of overian follicles and follicle cells in vitro wes investigated to determine the action of hormones and toxins directly on the ovary. A defined medium was developed to further simplify these studiee and reduce complex interactions end metabolic conversions. Stem cells in the follicle appears to differentiate to organia following LB stimulation. Estrediol-17-B is the primary stimulator for vitellogenin production, end a primary and secondary response to estrogen wee independent of salinity but dependent on water tempereture. Toxicity of copper to the fish and the reproductive process was investigated because of the hezard presented hy environmentel copper poisoning end the importance of copper in disease control. A potassium intoxicetion follows copper poisoning caused by cell damage and failure of osmoregulation by the gills end kidneys.

PUBLICATIONS: 74/03 TO 80/12

- YOSHA, S. 1980. Detection and Induction of Fetrogen Effecte in e Merine Teleost. Ph.D. Theeis University of Florida, Gainesville, FL. 185 pp.
- CARDEILEAC, P.T. 1980. Mechanisms of Copper Toxicity to Merine Fish in Aquatic Animal Medicine: A State of the Art. Florida Sea Grant Report 32:101. Jenkens, R.L. and Eelusky, J.G. (Hds.).
- CARDEILEAC, P.T., SIMPSON, C.F., LOVELOCK, R.L., YOSHA, S.F., CALDERWOOD, H.W. and GUDAT, J.C. 1979. Failure of Osmoregulation With Apperent Potassium Intoxication in Marine Teleosts: A Primery Toxic Effect of Copper.
- WILEY, A.A. and CARDEILHAC, P.T. 1977. Possible Memmalian Induced Differentietion of Follicle Cells to Oogonic. The Physiologist 20(4):102. CARDEILEAC, P.T. 1976. Induced Meturation end
- Development of Pinfish Eggs. Aquaculture 8:389-393.

MORPHOLOGY AND TAXONOMY OF NEWATODES

001-021

 TARJAN A C; UNIVERSITY OF FLOWIDA, LAKE ALFWED,

 FLCRIDA. 33850.

 Proj. No.: FLA-CS-01532

 Project Type: STATE

 Agency ID: SAES

 Period: 09 OCT 70 To 31 DEC 80

CRIS0059266

OEJECTIVES: To collect, mount, and identify plant, soil, and equetic nematodes. To etudy nemetode morphology for determing possible strain and population differences. To describe new taxa of nematodes.

APPRCACH: To collect epecimens by culture in greenhouse or external acquisition. To prepare specimens for microscopic study using a variety of techniques. To study such preparations under the compound microscope, employing the camera lucida and photomicography. To store prepared specimens in slide file cehinets. To accumulate taxonomic data from these studies; such data to be used in the preparation of taxonomic revisions. Finally, to prepare publications of a morphological and taxonomic nature.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TC 80/12. Meloidogyne cruciani garcie-martinez N. sp. is from tomato roots in the U.S. Virgin Islands. The new species is distinguiehed from other species hy having punctations eround the female anus and hy juveniles possessing extremely long tri-lobed esophageel glands. During the ten ysars this project has been active, three compendia were published deeling with the genera monochoides, tylenchorhynchus and xiphinema. One methods paper concerned the preparation of rermanent nematode slides, while another described e new xiphinema speciee. Two publications have been on morphological verietions occurring with pratylenchus coffeee end P. brachyurus, and with xiphinese krugi. A book "nomenclatorial compilation of plant and soil nemetodes" and the 1972 and 1973 supplements to the book elso were published. The most recent publication has been "an illustrated guide to the marine nematodes." In ell, the project has produced 2 hooks, 13 erticles, and 4 abstracts. Although this project is terminated with this report, e replecement project, ET-02024 "Taxonomy and Norphology of Nematodes" has been started.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- TARJAN, A.C. 1980. An Illustrated Guide to the Marine Nematodes. Inst. Food Agr. Sci., Univ. Florida, 212 pp.
- EARTCN, J.S. and TARJAN, A.C. 1980. A Taxonomic Survey of Marine Nematodes in Coastal Waters of the Lower Florida Keys. (Abstr.). Nematropica 10(2):64.

001.022 CFIS0081957 IMMUNOLOGIC EESPONSE OF CHANNEL CATFISE, ICTALUBUS FUNCTATUS, TO BETEROLOGOUS ANTIPROTOZOAN IMMUNIZATION

DAWE D L; GRATZEK J H; VETERINAKY MEDICAL FESEARCE INSTITUTE; UNIVERSITY OF GEORGIA, ATBENS, GEORGIA. 30662. Proj. No.: GEO-V-X103 Project Type: GEANT Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 JUL 80 To 30 JUN 83

OBJECTIVES: To determine whether immunization of channel catfish with cilia of Tetrahymena pyriformis, cilia administered orally or topically, can induce protection against infection by Ichthyophthirius multifiliis. To determine duration of immunity induced by beterologous immunization by various routes of administration . To determine the nature of the immune response of fish to the ciliary antigen.

APPROACE: Channel catfish will be immunized with T. pyriformis cilia by injection, oral drench and immersion. Groups of fish will be challenged at various time intervals with I. multifilis. Mucus, serum, and anterior kidney cells will be collected from immunized fisb and tested for presence of antibody and cell mediated inmune response. Cell populations in the immune response will be studied by double fluorescent antibody staining.

001.023 CFIS0083102 GENETIC ASSESSMENT OF MACEOBRACHIUM ON GUAM

MATLOCK D B; AGRI & LIFE SCIENCES; UNIVERSITY OF GUAN, AGANA, GUAN, 96913. Proj. No:: GLA00032 Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 17 NCV 80 To 30 SEP 83

OBJECTIVES: To identify and characterize isozymes from Macrobrachium for use as genetic markers: To assess the intraspecific and interspecific variability cf isolated populations of N. lar and M. rossenbergii on Guem: To attempt hybridization of M. lar and M. rosenbergii: To dstermins if there has been a loss of genetic variability in stocks of M. rosenbergii.

APPEOACE: Electrophoretic mobility of various isozymes will be used as genetic markers. Between 50 and 100 prawns from each location will be screened for all markers. Allelic frequencies will be recorded and genstic variability calculated as the index of hetsrozygosity across all loci..Hybridization of N. rossnbergii and M. lar will be attempted by natural mating and artificial insemination.

001.024 CRIS0069627 CARRYING CAPACITY OF STREAMS FOR REARING SALMONIDS AS AFFECTED BY SEDIMENT & OTHER COMPONENTS

BJOENN T C; FOREST WILLLIFE & FANGE EXP ST; UNIVERSITY OF IDABO, MCSCOW, IDABO. 83843. Proj. No: ILA-CPU-0031 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: OCI Period: 01 JUN 74 To 30 SEP 78

OEJECTIVES: Assess the density $(\#/m^2)$ of juvenile anadromous salmonids in selected forsst streams of central Idaho; relats stream morphometry, cover, tempsraturs, inssct drift, numbers of cohabiting fish species, seeding rats (stock recruiment), and fish growth to numbers of juvenile anadromous salmonids; determine effects of a point influx of sediment on fish density; svaluate the usefulness of fall wsir counts in determination of fish abundance.

APFROACE: Artificial channels will be employed in assessing the effect of seeding rate on salmonid abundance. Estimation of stream variables and fish abundance and growth will be made on Narsh Creed, Caps Horn Creek, Knapp Creek end Middle Fork on the Salmon Hiver. Nodels for explaining fish abundance will be formulated and tested.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. During 1974, 1975, and 1976, we sampled Beaver, Cape Horn, Elk, Knapp and Marsh Creeks in the Central Idaho batholith and conducted experiments in artificial stream channels at Bayden Creek Research Station, Idaho, to determine their carrying capacity for rearing juvenile spring chinook salmon (Cncorhynchus tsbawytscha) and related factors. We utilized a transact method to measure stream physical parameters, snorkeling gear to facilitate counting of fish, fish weirs to enumerate pre-smolt chinook migrating downstream, and 30 m 3 of granitic sand dumped into Knapp Creek to assess sediment effects on fish abundance. We released juvenile chinock from Rapid Eiver Hatchery into Cape Born, Knapp, and Marsh creeks after various treatments of predator and resident chinock population removal to help define carrying capacity. We also placed chinook population removal to help defins carrying capacity. We also placed chinook fry into artificial stream channels to help assess the effects of weeding rate (egg deposition or juvenile plants) and water temperature on fish abundance. Numerical and biomass densities of age 0 chinook salmon in stream sites averaged 0.42 fish/m 2 and 1.51 g/m 2. The maximum average densities observed in naturally seeded streams were 0.48 fish/m 2 and 2.29 g/m 2, compared to 1.38 fish/m 2 and 5.42 g/m 2 in sitss of Cape Horn Cresk, where I stocked juvenile chinook salmon.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- SEKULICB, P.T. 1980. The Carrying Capacity of Infertile Forest Streams for Rearing Juvenile Chinook Salmon. University of Idaho. Ph.D. Dissertation, 156 pp.
- SEKULICB, P.T. and HJORNN, T.C. 1977. The Carrying Capacity of Streams for Rearing Salmonids as Affected by Components of the Babitat. Completion Report to Nemo of Understanding No. 12-11-204-11 to U.S. Forest Service, 75 pp.

001.025 CRIS0074675 EVALUATION OF VARIOUS HATCHERY REAFING CONDITIONS ON SEAWARD MIGRATION OF STERLEBAD TROUT

BJORNN T C; FOREST WILDLIFE 6 RANGE EXP ST; UNIVERSITY OF IDAHC, WOSCOW, IDAHO. 83843. Proj. No.: IDA-CFU-0054 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: OCI Period: 01 SFP 76 To 31 DEC 80

OBJECTIVES: Evaluate the seaward migration (and eventual adult return for some groups) of steelhead trout at Dworshak National Fish Batchery. The following variables are to be evaluated diets, cool water conditioning prior to release, length of rearing for fish from late egg takes, size of smolt, location of release, method of release, date of release, and pond and water reuse system at Dworshak National Fish Batchery.

APPROACE: We will mark 10,000 fish with brands in each test group which will be monitored only as smolts at the dams. Sixty thousand fish will be marked with brand, adipose clip and wire nose tags in each group that will be monitored at dams as smolts and returning adults. Only 30,000 fish will be marked in groups hauled to estuary. The seaward migration and quality of steelhead smolts produced at Dworshak National Fish Eatchery will be evaluated as to fish health assessment at hatchery prior to release by hatchery staff; voluntary migration from ponds; recovery of marked smolts at Snake and Columbia Fiver dams and recovery of marked adults from sport and commercial fisheries in Columbia drainage and at hatchery when they return to spame.

FROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Selected procedures for rearing and releasing steelhead trout (Salmo gairdneri) at Dworshak National Fish Batchery (DNFB) were evaluated in 1977. Initial evaluation entailed recapturing tranded fish from each test group at Lower Granite Dam. Final evaluation will occur when binary coded nose tags are removed from returning adults captured in the fisheries and at the hatchery. Length at release was tested again in 1977 hut results were inconsistent. Conditioning fish in cold water (less than 10C) for up to 12 weeks appeared to have some henefits, hut again the results are questionable because of the fieb health prchlems. Seaward migration of hatchery steelhead occurred from early April to early June in 1977. A significant proportion of the smolts were ready to migrate seaward by mid-April. Smaller fisb did not migrate in large numbers until May. Salt treatment hefore release did not result in more migrants reaching Lower Granite Dam, but malachite treatment after handling and marking did improve a fish's chance of migrating successfully. Steelhead trout reared for two years and released in 1977 were hetter smolts than the one-year old fish released in 1977. More of the two-year fieh were recaptured at the dam and they had a lower fungus infection rate than the one-year fish. Many Snake River drainage steelhead (wild and hatchery) were not ready to live in seawater in April or early May even though they were migrating seaward.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TC 80/12

BJORNN, T.C., BIEBERT, P. and BINGE, R.R. 1979. Seaward Migration of Eworshak Batchery Steelhead Trout in 1977 as Related to Rearing Bistory. Completion Report Contract No. 14-16-0601-2144, Dworshak National Fish Batchery,

001.026 WILD VERSUS BATCHERY THOUT

CRIS0082659

BJOENN T C; FOREST WILDLIFE & RANGE EXP SI; UNIVERSITY OF IDABC, MOSCCW, ILABC. &3843. Proj. No.: IDA-CFU-0066 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: OCI Period: 01 JAN 79 To 30 JUN 81

OBJECTIVES: Letermine effect of stocking catchable-size trout on the avundance of wild trout. Investigate competition and survival under predation of wild and hatcheryfry, over-winter eurvival and hehavior and length of hatchery experience repquired to alter fry hehavior.

APPEOACH: Plants of rainhow trout will be made for 2 years into several sections of a stream and wild trout abundance and movement will be assessed. Short-term abundance and hehavior of wild and hatchery trout will be observed in a second stream. Experiments with fry will be conducted in artificial stream channels.

PEOGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. For the past two years we have heen etudying interactions of wild and hatchery trout in two Idaho streame; the infertile St. Joe River and the productive Fig Springe Creek, trihutary to the Lemhi River. To date, we have found nc evidence that single plants of hatchery-reared, catchable-eize rainbow trout dieplace wild reeident trout. Study of effects of repeated plante is in progress. Behavioral differencee of wild and hatchery rainbow trout are heing studies in experimental etream channels.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TC 80/12 NC PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

001.027 CFIS0084239 HABITAT SELECTION AND SPECIES INTERACTIONS OF JUVENILE TROUT IN FLATERAD RIVER TELEDIARIES

BJOENN T C; FOREST WILDLIFE & FANGE EXF ST; UNIVERSITY CF IDABC, MCSCOW, IDABO. 83843. Proj. No.: IDA-CFU-007S Project Type: STATE Agency ID: OCI Period: 01 MAY 80 To 30 JUN 82 OBJECTIVES: Determine habitat utilized hy juvenile hull trout and cutthroat trout. Evaluate species interactions between juvenile hull trcut and cutthroat trout.

AFFEOACH: Utilized babitat will be quantified at 2 levels, macro and micro. Macro refers to the babitat unit, pool riftle or run, that juvenile fish are using. Micro refers to the exact location within the habitat unit an individual fish has chosen. Halitat units will be examined in large and small streams. Allopatric and sympatric situations will be sought.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TC 80/12. Nigratory populations of cutthorat and bull trout utilize the upper portion of the Flathead River drainage for spawning and rearing. Many of the major tributaries to the upper forks of the river drain National Forest or British Columbi forest lands. These public lands are teing investigated for coak, oil, and gas development. The potential impacte of these developments on the adjacent waters and ensuing effects on the Flathead fishery is of concern to the Montana Dept. of Fish, Wildlife and Parks. Although habitat assessments, fish dietribution and fieh abundance data is available, the question of habitat selection remains unclear. The etudy is heing conducted to hetter define the habitat eelection of cutthroat and bull trout. Study has not heen completed nor has data been compiled and processed.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TC 80/12 NO PUELICATIONS SEPORTED THIS PERIOD.

0C1.028 CEIS0084240 ROLE OF SHOPT DISTANCE MIGRATION CF THE BOMING OF SALMON AND STEELBEAD

BJCENN'T C; FOREST WILDLIFE & FANGE EXP ST; UNIVERSITY OF IDAHC, MOSCCW, IDAHC. 83843. Proj. No.: IDA-CFU-0080 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: OCI Period: 01 AUG 80 To 31 DEC 80

OBJECTIVES: To determine if a short distance voluntary migration prior to transport to the lower Columbia River will increase the homing of salmon and steelbead.

APPEGACE: Salmon and steelhead trout smolts were marked and released to migrate normally to the ocean (control groups) or were allowed to migrate a short distance (a few meters to 5 km) before being collected and transported to the lower Columbia River via truck or barge.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Eight groups of salmon and eteelhead emolts were marked and released in 1980 to evaluate the effect of a short distance sequard migration on homing. Four of the groups migrated normally from their respective hatcheries or usual release points and the other four were allowed to voluntarily migrate a short distance from the hatchery ponde hefore heing collected; marked (if not already) and transported to the Lowere Columbia River. The shortest distance voluntary migration amounted to merely migrating out of a raceway at Lower Granite Dam. Cther groups migrated across the hatcheries in discharge flumes and then entered trape. The Rapid River chinook migrated out of the hatchery ponds and down Rapid River about three miles hefore they were trapped; marked; and transported. More of the ehort distance migration-transport fish of all etocke wee recaptured by national marine Fisheries Service personnel near the estuary compared to the anormal migration fish. Fish were collected near the esturary by purse and beach seining. Adult returns from the 1980 and prior year releases will be monitored through 1984 to evaluate the number of adults produced and the ability of those adults to return to their natal area. Cownriver fisheries, Idaho sport fisheries and returns to hatcheries or dame will he monitored for marked adult fist.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

EJORNN, T.C., E.K. BINGE, and J.KING. 1881. Note of ehort distance migration on the heating of salmon and etechhead. Completion report to National marine Fisheries Service on contract 001.025 FISH AND AQUATIC MACEOINVEETBERATE FAUNA IN SCUTH FORE BOISE RIVER BELOW ANDERSON RANCE DAN

WHITE R G; FCREST WILDLIFE 6 FANGE EXP SI; UNIVERSITY OF IDABC, MCSCCW, IDABC. 83843. Proj. No.: ILA-CFU-0055 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: OCI Period: 01 SEP 76 To 31 DEC 78

OBJECTIVES: Evaluate the status of fish populations in the South Fork of the Eoise River below Anderson Ranch Dam by assessing species composition, relative abundance, age structure, distribution, movement, food habits; evaluate the status of aquatic macroinvertebrate populations by assessing generic composition, relative abundance, distribution and availability to the fish populations; assess spawning and rearing habitat for rainbow trout and mountain wbitefish.

APPECACH: We will assess species composition, relative abundance and distribution of fish by use of electrofishing gear and/or angling. We will assess aquatic macrcinvertebrate populations seasonally by use of artificial substrate samplers. We will determine approximate spawning period of mountain whitefish collected by electrofishing and/or angling.

PROGRESS: 79/01 TO 79/12. Data sere analyzed and a report is in progress. The aquatic insects in the South Fork Brise River, Idaho, serve as the food base for a trophy rainbow trout, Salmo gaircneri Fichardson, fishery. A series of test flows were conducted below Anderson Ranch Dam in the Winters of 1977 and 1978 to determine the impact of fluctuating hydro-electric flows on that food supply. Immature aquatic insect samples were collected with modified Bess and drift net samplers. Catastrophic insect drift was correlated with increased discharge and occurred irrespective of the timing of higher flows The Diptera Chironomidae and the mayflies Ephemerella spp. and Baetis spp. were the major contributors to catastrophic drift. There was no statistical difference in bentbic insect standing crop before and after fluctuating flows. Echavioral drift after high flows is hypothesized as a compensating mechanism to counteract displacment during catastrophic drift. A final report and master's thesis will be completed in 1580.

PUBLICATIONS: 79/01 TO 79/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

001.030 EVALUATION OF JUVENILE SALMON AND STEELHEAD DENSITY AS BELATED TO DENSITY OF SPANNERS AND FBY BELEASE

BJOENN T C; FORESTRY 6 WILDLIFF; UNIVERSITY OF IDABO, MOSCOW, IDABC. 83843. Proj. No:: IDA-CFU-0047 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: OCI Period: 01 JAN 77 To 30 MAY 79

OBJECTIVES: Evaluate data collected on the density of juvenile salmon and steelhead in good and marginal nursery streams following small spawning escapements (such as 1974, 1975, and 1976) and with larger escapements. Evaluate data on the impacts and success of releasing large numbers of steelbead fry into nursery streams and compare with survival obtained in other streams.

APPEOACE: Select transect areas in good and marginal areas were counted in 1975 and 1976 with snorkel gear. The data was analyzed and a report is in preparation. Steelhead fry were released in selected study streams to evaluate movements, growth, survival, competition with natural fry. Data on this segment of study will be analyzed and a report prepared.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Juvenile steelhead densities decreased from 1975-77 and increased in 1978. Age I and O steelhead densities for the four years correlated (r = .62 to .99) with the respective adult ascapements. Densities of fry in tributaries in August ranged from 0.0 to 92.0/100 m². Streams that did not receive hatchery fry had the largest (92.0 fry/100 π^2) and also the smallest densities (0.0 fry/100 m²). Highest mean densities (44.1 fry/100 m(2)) were associated with streams that had both hatchery and wild fry. Streams with only wild fry had mean densities of $33.8 \text{ fry}/100 \text{ m}^2$ and streams (2) that had only hatchery fry had densities of 7.3 fry/100 m². Steelhead fry densities of 20-40/100 m(2) and prohably higher may be expected in fully seeded rearing areas. Tributaries in 1978 that bad hatchery fry introduction o 520 fry/100 m² were below fry densities needed to fully seed the reariing areas. If stellhead fry are available, stocking at a rate of 100 fry/100 x^2 may be needed to insure full seeding of the rearing areas. Fisb movement through traps in Post Office and Weir Creeks, 1977-78, was highest when traps were installed in early July, then decreased near the end of July and through August. Nearly all movement of age I and clder steelhead ceased in August with the exception of fish movement associated with freshets.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

MAEGOTT, L. BRENT. 1981. Density and habitat of wild and introduced juvenile steelhead trout in the Lochsa Biver Drainage, Idaho. Masters Thesis. University of Idaho. 94 pp.

001.031 CFIS0073360 Investigation of aquatic ecosystems in small fonds

LIBEY G S; FORESTRY 6 NATURAL RESOURCES; PURDUE UNIVERSITY, LAFAYETTE, INDIANA. 47907. Proj. No.: IND059044 Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 OCT 77 To 30 SEP 82

OBJECTIVES: Determine the interactions in the Plankton community of small impoundments; investigate the relationship of plankton to young fish; evaluate the effect on fish populations of ecosystem changes.

APPROACE: Ecosystem measurements will be made in the field. A time series of population data will be used to evaluate interactions in the plankton community. Fish population on plankton will be determined by comparing populations from ponds containing no fish with populations from ponds with young fish. Adult fish populations status will be monitored and changes resulting from natural or induced disruptions measured.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. The farm pond is an important aquatic ecosystem in the midwestern United States. Fish population imbalances in ponds are often caused hy wide variations in the size of predator or prey year classes. These variations can be the result of fluctuations in larval mortality. Food availability and competition for food are the primary determinants of larval mortality and growth. Experiments conducted at varios prey levels showed survival as a function of prey density was different for bluegill, green sunfish, and large mouth bass. Green sunfish survival was superior to either bluegill or bass. Bluegill survival improved as prey density increased, but hass had a low survival at most prey levels. The influence of competition between bluegill and green sunfish on their natural diet was investigated in a series of partitioned areas in a local pond. The presence of interspecific competition did not alter the diet of either species, but competition with older individuals produced major dietary shifts. In a study on the genetics of channel catfish, triploidy was induced by cold-shocking fertilized eggs. The triploid catfish are as viable as their diploid full sibs and tolerate the ployploidy condition well. Evidence for an increased growth rate due to triploidy and due to the lack of sexual maturation in sterile triploids was noted.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

BOLLAND, L.E. and LIBEY, G.S. 1980. Inexpensive Egg-Eatching Jar. Prog. Fish-Cult. 42(2):112. LIEEY, G.S. and BELTZ, J.E. 1980. Method for Monitoring Downstream-Migrating Alewives. Prog. Fish-Cult. 42(3):172-173. LIBEY, G.S. and HOLLAND, L.E. 1980. The Use of Periodic Light Applications of Rotencne as a Management Technique for Small Impoundments. Purdue Univ., Water Resources Research Center, Tech. Report No. 132. 30 pp.

001.032 CRIS0074624 The use of fish heeavice in toxicity testing

ATCHISON G J; ANIMAL ECCLOGY; ICWA STATE UNIVERSITY, AMES, ICWA. 50011. Proj. No.: ICW02284 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 77 To 30 JUN 82

OEJECTIVES: Letermine the relative sensitivities of a variety of behaviors of fish (such as coughing, feeding, mating and hierarchy formation) to toxic substances. Letermine the effect of a variety of toxic substances on specific behavior patterns of fish. Compare the utility of behavioral toxicity tests and standard EPA chronic exposure tests in establishing safe levels of toxicarts in aquatic eccepystems.

APPECACE: Cbserve and quantify the behavior patterns of fish exposed to varying levels of toxicants compared to the behavior patterns of control fish.

PECGRESS: 80/01 TC 80/12. Research this past year centered on the effects of copper and methyl parathion on bluegill hehavior. The methyl parathion tests are completed, except for statistical analysis. The copper work will continue through this spring and early summer. Eight populations of five bluegill (ranging from 11.5 to 14.0 cm in total length) were maintained in separate 315 liter flow through aquaria. After an acclimation period of sufficient time to allow establishment of stable social heirarchies and territories, nine hehaviors were monitored for 96 hours before treatment and 96 hours during exposure to methyl parathion. Treatments consisted of two replicates of a control tank and tanks receiving 0.35, 0.035, and 0.0035 mg/l methyl parathion. Statistically, unanalyzed trends from these two runs of the experiment indicate that low levels of methyl parathion increased the frequency of "flinches" and "fin flickering, " both of which are maintenance behaviors and behavioral manifestations of nervous system effects. General activity levels appeared to become elevated during the early stages of toxicant administration and were followed by subsequent increases in aggression. After approximately 15 hours these increased activity levels hegan to subside in all but the lowest exposure concentration. Feeding behavior was also affected by methyl parathion. Dominant individual feeding success rates dropped as these fish became less successful at capturing the fathead minnows that were used as prey.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NG PUBLICATIONS & PORTED THIS PERIOD.

001.033 CRIS0064201 ORGANIZATION AND RETRIEVAL OF FRESEVATER FISHERY DATA

CARLANDER E D; ANIWAL ECOLOGY; IOWA STATE UNIVERSITY, AMES, ICWA. 50011. Froj. ho.: ICWJ2002 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 73 To 30 JUN 79

CHJECTIVES: Compile all available data on life bistories of freshwater fishes for United States and Canada; coordinate for comparison; publish summaries; maintain bibliography, cross-incexed.

APFECACE: A cross-indexed filing system and standardized tabulation have been developed. Much of the data have to be transformed to metric system and uniform definition of parameters. Manuscript summaries will be made available in special order as they are prepared for publication in Volume II of "Handbook of Freshwater Fisheries Hiology". PROGRESS: 73/07 TO 79/06. Volume II of Bandbook of Freshwater Fishery Biology. Life History data of the centrarchid fishes of United States and Canada was published by Iowa State University Press in 1977, and 1955 copies had been sold as of April 30, 1879. The Handbook is frequently cited in publication and reportedly is widely used as a reterence, saving much research time and permitting more effective use of the data. Prior to publication, sections of the manuscript were provided upon request and payment of expenses of copying to other scientists for use on on-going projects or on environmental impact studies. The cross-indexes library is used quite extensively by the graduate students and staff of Iowa State University in their research. Data on species other than centrarchid fishes have been cross-indexed for use in Volume III, and in possible future revisions or supplements. The new literature on the species covered in Volume I is prohably at least one-third that covered in the 1969 publication.

PUPLICATIONS: 73/07 TO 79/06 NG PUBLICATIONS REPORTED FINAL REPORT PERICD.

CO1.034 CRISO081304 Adult Paddlefise novement in pool 13, upper Mississippi River

HUBERT W A; ANIMAL ECOLOGY; ICWA STATE UNIVERSITY, AMES, IOWA. 50011. Proj. No.: IOW02421 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 Max 80 To 28 FEE 82

OBJECTIVES: Determine the spring and summer movement patterns of sexually mature paddlefish. Identify staging areas, spawing sites and post-spawning dispersal of sexually mature paddlefish. Describe the physical characteristics of habitat utilized by baddlefish. Identify the associations of paddlefish with specific types of habitat or navigation improvement structures.

APPROACH: Radio telemetry will be utilized to monitor the movement of sexually mature fish from mid-Warch through August. Selected physical features of the areas where paddlefish are located will be described. Indirect identification of spawing sites will be achieved by the location of paddlefist when environmental conditions associated with spawning occur in Pool 13.

PROGRESS: 80/03 TC 80/12. The paddlefish is an important commercial and sport species in the Mississippi River drainage, but many aspects of its biology are unknown. Effective management of paddlefish requires investigation into the behavior and habitat requirements of the animal. A radio telemetry study was initiated in 1880 to determine movement patterns, habitat characteristics, and spawning sites. Radio transmitters were surgically implanted in the body cavities of seven fish in 1980. The fish were monitored daily throughout the summer and several physical parameters were measured. Ten sexually mature paddlefish will he tagged prior to spawning in 1981.

PUELICATIONS: 80/03 TC 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

001.035 FISE MOVEMENT IN POOL 9, UPPER MISSISSIPPI RIVER

HUBERT W A; ANIMAL ECOLOGY; ICWA STATE UNIVERSITY, AMES, ICWA. 50011. Proj. No.: ICWU2455 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUN 80 To 01 CCT 82

OBJECTIVES: To define the fish community of the main channel and to select two species for study. To determine the movement of the two study species in response to passage of vessels. To define the association of the two study species with definable habitat types. APPROACE: Traditional fish sampling gears will be used to describe the community. Radiotelemetry will be employed to monitor fish movement.

PROGRESS: 80/11 TO 81/01. Literature review of the influence of water level fluctuations on littoral plant and fish communities was initiated. Procurement of equipment and supplies for the 1981 field season was initiated.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/11 TO 81/01 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

001.036 CRIS0073096 BERAVICE OF IOWA SPORT FISES

MENZEL H W; ANIMAL ECCLOGY; ICWA STATE UNIVERSITY, AMES, IOWA. 50011. Proj. No.: ICW02236 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 77 To 30 JUN 82

OBJECTIVES: The research program will involve long term behavioral studies of Iowa sport fishes in nature using ultrasonic tagging techniques. For each species studied, the major objectives shall be: Determine size and nature of home ranges, including physical features of the preferred habitat, determine daily and seasonal activity patterns and effects of natural environmental variation upon these patterns, and ascertaic the effects of human influences upon hebavior.

APPEGACE: Ultrasonic transmitters will be surgically implanted into the abdominal cavity of experimental fish. The fish will be released into nature and tracked using a boat-mounted hydrophone and receiver. Observation locations will be determined by triangulation and plotted on a map. Fish movements will be compared with babitat features and other environmental parameters.

PECGEESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. During 1980, data were analysed from a 2 year telemetry study of the movements and hehavior of adult maskellunge in Lake West Okoboji, Iowa. These analyses confirm the preliminary findings reported last year. The hasic elements of the populations' seasonal behavioral patterns are: reproductive activities along shallow shoreline areas in early spring, active foraging in pelagic areas during late spring and early summer, feeding as ambush predators in the outer littoral zone in late summer and early fall, overwintering in deeper areas. During the growing season, the fish occupy well-defined home ranges averaging about 10% of the lake's surface area. Some fish maintain two disjunct home areas and travel back and forth hetween them. There is no evidence of territorial behavior, however. Throughout this time. the fish are primarily suspended in the upper and middle portions of the water column. All 9 study fish exhibited these general hebavioral patterns although there were individual differences in home ranges and timing of the major behavioral shifts. Because of the seasonally changing fish behaviors, there is a marked seasonality in angling success for muskellunge in the lake. A M.S. thesis on the research will be completed in spring 1981.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

001.037 CLIS0073098 GBNETICS OF KATURAL FISH POPULATIONS

MENZEL H W; ANIMAL ECOLOGY; IOWA STATE UNIVERSITY, AMES, IOWA. 50011. Proj. No.: I(W02235 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 77 To 30 JUN 82

OBJECTIVES: Develop biochemical/genetic approaches to flab taxonomy and to certain problems of fisheries management by electrophorisis by hody tiesue proteins. Several subprograms are recognized. Survey and compare catural populations of fishes with respect to levels of electrophonetically detectable genetic diversity, determine taxonomic relationships of selected fish species on the hasis of biochemical/genetic characters, compare wild and batchery stocks of sport fishes on a genetic basis in order to evaluate the genetic impact of stocking programs.

APPROACH: Fish populations will be sampled by seines, nets and electrofishing, as appropriate. Blood and tissue samples will be analyzed by starch and acryLamide gel electrophoresis. Histochemical staining procedures will be used to identify specific proteins. Protein patterns will be analyzed and qualitatively and quantitatively, based on allelic frequencies of polymorphic loci.

PROGRESS: 78/01 TO 78/12. Two manuscripts were prepared on an investigation of the genetic impact of stocking upon wild brook trout populations. Wild trout were collected from nine streams in central Wisconsin and domesticated fish were sampled from the Osceola State Trout Hatchery, Wisconsin. Over many years, the study streams had varicusly received light to heavy stocking of Osceola trout. Elood plasma and whole-eye homogenate samples from the trout were analyzed electrophoretically for genetic variation in the transferrin and lactate dehydrogenase systems. The hatchery stock was genetically distinctive from most wild populations at two genetic loci. There were significant correlations between stream stocking histories and allelic frequencies at the Ldh-B(2) locus, the wild type allele decreasing in frequency as stocking intensity increased. This relationship does not seem to reflect interbreeding between wild and hatchery trout, however. Eather, it may indicate alteration of selective pressures induced by ecological interactions between the two stocks.

PUBLICATIONS: 78/01 TO 78/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

001.038 ECOLOGY OF LAEVAL STREAM FISHES CRIS0073106

MENZLI B W; ANIMAL ECOLOGY; ICWA STATE UNIVERSITY, AMES, IOWA. 50011. Proj. No.: IOW02234 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 77 To 30 JUN 78

OBJECTIVES: Develor methods for collecting larval fishes io lows warmwater streams and rivers, develop procedures for the identification of such larval fishes, determine species composition, distribution, and abundance of larval fishes in selected rivers, and compare the above parameters with reference to various forms of habitat, stream alteration and water use.

APPROACE: Larval stream fishes will be collected by drift nets and a water pumping apparatus. Collecting will be done at several stations io a stream which represent different habitat conditions and at various times of day. Species identification will be accomplished by standard morphological methods and by electrophoresis of tissue proteine.

PROGRESS: 77/07 IC 79/06. A study was completed on the taxonomy and ecology of drifting larval fishes in the upper Skunk River, Iowa. Collections were made in Spring 1977 using stationary drift nets at eight river stations in the vicinity of Ameg. Larvae of more than 20 fish species were collected, minnows (Cyprinidae) being the most ahundant group. Taxonomic descriptions were made for larvae of nice minnow species: stoneroller, brassy minnow, common shiner, bigmouth shiner, red shiner, sand shiner, hluntnose minnow, fathead minnow and creek chub. Larval fish drift was greatest at night and consisted primarily of prolarval and early post-larval stages. Numbers of drifting larvae were not associated with either river discharge or turbidity. Occurrence and abundance of larvae was similar over the 30 km leogth of river sampled and was not related to local habitat characteristics. Phenological patterns of larvae abundance exhibited a close correlatico with the known spawning periodicity of Skunk River fishes. A purpose of drifting behavior may be to transport larvae from low order spawning streams to higher order streams where planktonic food organisms are

more abundant.

- PUBLICATIONS: 77/07 TO 79/06 PER&Y, L.G. 1979. I. Identification of nine larval cyprinids inhabiting small northern rivers. II. Spatial and temporal patterns of larval tish drift in the upper Skuck River. N.S. Thesis. Iowa State University, Ames. 73 pp.
 - PERRY, L.G. and MENZEL, E.W. 1979. Identification of nine larval cyprinids inhabiting small northern rivers, pp. 141-173. In: Wallus, R. and Voightlander (eds.), Proceedings of a workshop on freshwater larval fishes, Tennessee Valley

001.039 FACTORS AFFECTING FISE POPULATIONS OF IOWA STREAMS

 MUNCY R J; BULKLEY N V; ANIMAL ECOLOGY: IGWA STATE

 UNIVERSITY, AMES, IGWA. 50011.

 Proj. No.: ICW02225

 Froject Type: STATE

 Agency ID: SAES

 Period: 01 MAR 77 To 30 JUN 80

OBJECTIVES: Determine fluctuations in shundance of selected populations of stream fishes and factors affecting these fluctuations. Identify man-made habitat alterations that can enhance eovironmental conditions for aquatic life. Increase knowledge of environmental pollutants transport and dynamics in flowing and impounded waters.

APPROACE: Research will consist of field investigation on length, weight and distribution of fish species in several Iowa rivers in relation to selected environmental parameters. Date on pesticide and polychlorinated bighenyls concentration in muscle tissue will be obtained by gas chromatography on fish inhabiting the Des Moines Eiver and Ked Fock Lake.

PROGRESS: 77/03 TO 80/06. Common carp were used to sonitor orgacochlorine pesticide residues in fish from the Des Moines River. Residues were below U.S. Food and Drug Administration allowable levels in food fish. Keservoir sampling locations, Red Rock and Saylorville, tended to have higher dieldrin levels than riverine locations. This trend was not observed for DDI residues. Missouri river environmental gap evaluation-- notches cut in rock revetments to increase habitat density were evaluated. Species composition and sizes of fish associated with notches were described. Smallmouth hass in the Skunk Fiver--during the 1976-77 drought, the population was decimated by winter kill. Survival, growth, production, sovement, and habitat associations of fingerlings tocked following the drought was assessed.

- PUELICATIONS: 77/03 TO 80/06
 - BUBERI, W.A. 1980. Aldrin and DDT Residues in Carp from Impounded and Riverine Segments of the Des Moines River, 1979. In: Proceedings of the Seminar on the Water Quality in the Corps of Engineers' Reservoirs in Iowa. U.S. Army Corps

001.04C CRIS0082533 FACTORS AFFECTING FISE POPULATIONS IN IOVA WATERS

NICLUM J G; EUBERT W A; ANIMAL ECOLOGY; ICWA STATE UNIVERSITY, ANES, IOWA. 50011. Proj. No.: ICW02465 Agency ID: SAES Period: 31 JUL 80 To 30 SEP 85

OBJECTIVES: To determine the factors influencing fluctuations in abundance of selected populations. To identify man-made habitat alterations that impact or enhance environmental conditions for aquatic life. To increase understanding of environmental contaminants transport and dynamics. To evaluate fishery management techniques aimed at enhancing fishery quality or productivity.

APFECACE: Research will consist of field and laboratory studies on the life history, environmental requirements, and population dynamics of fish species in Iowa waters. Data on environmental contaminants in fish and their habitats will be obtained by standard analytical procedures. Established methods for population assessment will be used to determine the effects of various management techniques.

PROGRESS: 80/07 TO 80/12. Two individual studies were conducted within the scope of this project: one dealing with pesticide residues in the Des Moines River and another concerned with the propagation of walleyes, Stizostedion vitreum, (propagated walleyes may be stocked so as to manipulate resident fish populations). Concentrations of dieldrin and DDT in muscle tissue of carp, Cyprinus carpio, from the Des Moines River, Iowa, were compared relative to month of collection, age of fish, and sampling location. Satistically significant differences were observed for all three factors. Expression of pesticide levels on the basis of wet weight of flesh often produced different results than when comparisons were made on a fat basis. Samples from reservoir locations tended to have higher dielorin levels than samples from riverine locations. However, no similar trend was detected for DDT levels. Walleye fry fec a mixture of a diatom (Welosira sp.), decarsulated brine shrimp eggs, and dry feed (W~7) exhibited higher survival rates than those fed any of these items alone or in pairs. Walleye fingerlings were reared in ponds to a length of 35 mm and successfully transferred to hatchery production units. Substantial mortality occurred later, apparently due to stress from subsequent handling. Acceptance of dry feeo by walleye fingerlings was highest in those rearing units in which water flow patterns held the feed in suspension for the longest times. Research in the coming year will proceed along similar lines for each study.

PUELICATIONS: 80/07 TO 80/12

HUBERT, W.A. 1980. Aldrin and DDT Residues in Carp from Impounded and Elverine Segments of the Des Noines River 1979. In: Proceedings of a Seminar on the Water Quality in Corps of Engineers Reservoirs in Iowa. U.S. Army Corps of

001.041 CFIS0078926 TEE ROLE OF SILTS AND CLAYS IN THE NUTRITION OF ZOOPLANKTON

MARZOLF G R: BIOLOGY; KANSAS STATE UNIVERSITY, MANEATTAN, KANSAS. 66506. Proj. No.: KAN-05-691 Project 1ype: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 15 JAN 78 To 30 JUN 80

OEJECTIVES: Evaluate role of suspended silts and clays in zooplackton nutrition and filter feeding zooplankton in fate of particulate materials exported by rivers into reservoirs. Present knowledge of organic matter synthesis and downstream material export by river ecosystems (particulary in the Grand Plains rivers U.S. Present understanding of dissolved and particulate detritus in lakes, importance of resource utilization in controlling composition of zooplankton communities. Influence of impoundment on biological processing of suspended materials is little known hut present knowlege cf zooplankton feeding and production can be hrought to bear on several aspects of the fate of these particles.

APPRCACE: Laboratory experiments to identify causal relationships between particulate food and zooplankton responses to it; ascertain which elements of resource control zooplankton filtering rates. Observe specific field conditions with more refined measurements than was used before; e.g., in situ filtering rate measurements, specific identification, birth rate estimation, size frequency measurement of filter feeding zooplankton and more precise evaluation of resource quality and quantity two. Evaluation of resource quality and quantity. Evaluate assimilation of potential food resources by investigating growth, survivorshir and egg production of laboratory populations. 001.042 CRIS0055844 ECOLOGICAL SIUDIES WITH RED SWAMP CRAWFISE AND WBITE EIVER CRAWFISE

AVAULT J W; FORESTRY & WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT; LOUISIANA STATE UNIVERSITY, EATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA. 70803. Proj. ho: LAB01192 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 11 AUG 64 To J1 CCT 80

OBJECTIVES: Study factors intluencing ecology of crawfish, such as temperature, season, water quality and depth, vegetation, soil type, and agricultural practices, in relation to feeding, growth, reproduction, behavior, populations, diseases, predators, and competitors.

APFECACB: Experiments will be set up in aquaria to determine temperature tolerance of crawfieb. Past crawflsb production records for certain areas will be compared to weather records. Small ponds will he stocked witb crawfish and effecte of water level fluctuations studied. Crawfish movements will be studied in laboratory and in the field. Wethods for food habits studies will be developed and applied in the laboratory. Water from natural crawfish habitats will be analyzed. Natural crawfish populations will he studied ir relation to soil fertility. Population dynamics of crawfish will be studied, including mortality and predators. Crawfish carrying capacity will be determined from small ponds.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 30/10. Studiee conducted during reporting period on influence of pesticides, rice residue, and planted rice on crawfish production indicated: No differencee in growth, survival and yield of crawfish in tanke planted with untreated rice, planted with untreated rice, or planted with treated rice plus receiving Propanil, Crdram and Furadan. No pesticide residues were detected in flesh. In lat studies, a combination of Propanil, Ordram and Furadan was more toxic to crawfish than any single pesticide. After rice was harvested in crawfish ponde the stubble was left standing (S), baled (B) and added back to ponds periodically, or disked (D) into the soil. Balf the ponds were flooded early (E), Sept. 20, and half late (L), Cct. 10. Crawfish in S, B and D ponds grew to 19, I8, and 17 g respectively. Crawfish in E and L flooded ponds grew to 92 and 83 mm in length, respectively. Rice straw decomposed fastest in B ponds, followed by S and D ponds, with weight loss of 77, 67, and 49%, respectively, after 5-months. Dissolved oxygen was consistently higher in E flooded ponds than in L flooded ponds: 18 weeks after flooding, periphyton in g/m 2 was E 337, L 216, S 358, E 333, C 307. Ponds containing crawfish were planted with or without rice. Ponds with no rice receiving range pellets (crude protein 9.0%) from Sept. 25 to May 3 produced 881 kg of crawfish/ha. Ponds with rice receiving range pellets from March 1 through May 3 produced 2016 kg.

- PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/10
 - WITZIG, J.F. 1980. Spatial and Temporal Patterns of Macroinvertebrate Communities in a Small Drawfieb Pond. M.S. Thesis. LSU, 113 pp.
 - CBIEN, Y.H. 1980. Effects of Flooding Datee and Disposale of Rice Straw on Crayfish, Procambarue clarkii (Girard), Culture in Rice Fields. Ph.D. Disser. LSU, 120 pp.
 - WITZIG, J.F., AVAULT JR., J.W. and CCNNEF, J.V. 1980. Insect Dynamics in a Crawfish Pond with Emphasic on Predaceous Insects (Abstract Only). In Abetr. of Fich Culture Sect. of the Amer. Fich. Soc. 14.
 - CBIEN, Y.H. and AVAULT JR., J.N. 1980. Effects of Flooding Dates and Type Disposal of Rice Oryza sativa, Straw on the Crawfish, Procambarus clarkii (Girard), Culture in Rice Fielde, In: Abstr. of Fish Culture Sect. of the
 - JOBNSON, W.B. and AVAULT JR., J.W. 1980. Some Effecte of Poultry Manures Supplementation to Bice/Crawfish Experimental Earthern Ponds. In Abetr. of Fish Culture Sect. of the Amer. Fleh. Soc. 15. (Abstract Only).

001.043 CRISO055055 UTILIZATION OF AQUATIC PLANTS FOR WASTE TREATMENT AND ANIMAL FREDS

CULLEY D D JE; FORESTEY & WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT; LOUISIAND STATE UNIVERSITY, FATCN GOUGE, iCUISIANA. 70803. Proj. No.: LAB01559 Project Type: STATE Agency IJ: SAES Period: 01 FEB 71 To 15 MAR 80

OBJECTIVES: To determine the feasibility of utilizing aquatic plants for treatment of agricultural and domestic waste by removing nitrogen compounds, phosphates, and various inorganic salte. To determine if plants grown on waste waters have sufficient nutrient value and can be produced in large enough quantities to warrant use as a feed supplement for poultry, swine, cattle, catfish, etc.

APPROACH: Nutrient value will be determined for various aquatic plants growing under natural conditions. Plants of acceptable nutrient levels will be fed to poultry, swine, catfish, etc. to check for toxic as well as growth responses. Plants that show no signs of toxicity will be placed on water containing agricultural and domeetic eewage to see if they will grow. Nutrient analysis will be made for any plants that do grow, and the plants will again he fed to domestic animals (5-10% of regular rations), to determine if the plants are usable as a food supplement. Water quality changes will be recorded and related to the usefulness of aquatic plants to reduce pollution levele in waste waters.

PROGRESS: 71/02 IC 80/03. Clones of duckweed Spirodela polyrbiza, S. punctata, Lemna glbba and Wolffia columbiana cultured on dairy waste lagoone gave a mean yield of 23,310 kg/ha/yr dry weight when harvested daily, or 2.3 kg/m²/yr. Maximum yields obtained outdoore in .14 g² tanks was 44,330 kg/ha (4.4m²/yr) dry wt. Daily harvests (25-35% removed/day) gave higher yields than weekly harvests (50% removal). Optimum standing crop density was about $500g/m^2$. Loading rates of freeh manure 10 to 20g/1 of water gave maximum growth and higheet proximate analyels in the plants. Mixed duckweed cultures gave higher yields than monocultures due to eeasonality of growth. Crude protein averaged 38% dry wt. with a maximum value of over 44%; fate 3-6%, NFE 25-35%, fiber 7-13%, P 2%, K 2.5-5%, Ca 1-2%. The amino acid content was equal or superior to most high protein crops. Annual removal (kg/ha) of plant nutrients by duckweed from waete lagoone wae: N. 1379; P, 347; K, 441. Removal efficiency was greater in shallow lagoons. 5.3 ha of duckweed would provide total protein requirements of 200 lactating cowe. Preliminary studies on feeding cows (up to 75% of diet) and ewine (up to 25% of diet) showed no adverse effects of duckweed, wet or dry. Feeding of poultry broilers and layere showed no adverse effects, equal or improved growth, meat and egg color, and egg production and quality. In vitro digestibility ranged from 70 to 97%.

PUELICATIONS: 71/02 TO 80/03

- TRAUX, R.E., D.D. Culley, Jr., M. GEIFFITE, W.A. JOHNSCN, and J.F. WOOD. 1972. Duckweed for chick feed. Louisiana Agriculture 16(1):8-9.
- CULLEY, D.D., Jr. and E.A. Epps. 1973. Use of duckweed for waste treatment and animal feed. Journal Water Pollution Control 45(2):337-347.
- LAWSON, T.B., H.J, BRAUD, and F.T. WRATTEN. 1974. Methods of drying duckweed, Lemnaceae. In American Society of Agricultural Engineers. Paper No. 74-3531.
- CULLEY, D.D., Jr., J.B. GBOLSON, T.S. CHISECLM, L.C.STANDIFER, and E.A. EPPS. 1978. Water quality renovation of animal waete lagoone utilizing aquatic plante. U.S. EPA Off. Res. 6 Dev. EPA-600/2-78-153.

001.044 CFIS0076507 THE RELATIONSHIP OF SALINITY AND DISTANCE FROM THE SEA, TO THE DISTRIBUTION OF JUVENILE FISHES BERKE W H; FCEESTRY & WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT; LOUISIANA STATE UNIVERSITY, PATON RCUGE, LCUISIANA, 70803. Froj. No.: LAB02008 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SIES Period: 01 AUG 78 To 31 DEC 80

OBJECTIVES: Determine how far inland the young menhaden, genus Brevoortia, Atlantic croaker, Micropogonundulatus, and spot, Leiostomus xanthurus, move in the Earataria Bay drainage. Correlate their abundance and size with the salinities, and the location, where they are caught.

APPEGACE: A transact about 75 km long contains 15 sample sites. Salinity declines in a northerly direction, from saline or trackish to pure fresh water. Samples will be taken every 2 weeks with a 4.9-m otter travl. On alternate trips each site will also be sampled witb Surface travl and higb speed sampler, or 1.8-m beam travl and plankton net. Salinity, temperature & water depth will be recorded for each sample. Total biomass, total number, and length of individuals will be recorded for every sample, for renhaden, spot and croaker. Length-frequencies will be analyzed. Abundance at the stations will be analyzed to determine the inland entent of peretration of each species.

PECGRESS: 78/01 TO 80/12. Inshore shrimp trawling was the primary cause for a rapid decline in abundance of Atlantic croaker, Micropogon undulatus, after May. No relationship between salinity and croaker size was found. Trawl catches of creaker were an order of magnitude greater at night than during the day. Gulf menhaden, Brevoortia patronus, and blue crabs, Callinectes sapidus, were also taken in significantly greater numbers in nighttime travls. The surface trawl was more efficient on 5-25 mm crabs than the otter trawl: researchers on small crabs should consider its use. Menhaden and crabs were taken in greater numbers in shallow, protected waters than in larger, open waters within the margh. All three species were taken well above the trackish/freshwater line; menhaden were taken in numbers at several stations 20 km above. The entire coastal marsh, including the freshwater zone, is an important nursery and should be protected from environmental degradation

PUBLICATIONS: 78/01 TO 80/12

- POGEES, B.D. 1975. The Spatial and Temporal Distribution of Atlantic Croaker, Micropogan undulatus, and Spot, Leiostomus xanthurus, in the Upper Drainage Basin of Barataria Bay, Louisiana, M.S. Thesis, La. State Univ., Baton Rouge
- SIMONEAUX, L.F. 1979. The Distribution of Menhaden, Genus Erevoortia, with Respect to Salinity, in the Upper Drainage Easin of Earataria Bay, Louisians. M.S. Thesis, La. State Univ., Baton Rouge, 96 pp.
- DAUD, N.M. 1979. Distribution and Recruitment of Juvenile Elue Crabs, Callinectes sapidus, in a Louisiana Estuarine System. N.S. Thesis, La. State Univ., Baton Rouge, 83 pp.

001.045 CRIS0080171 FRESENCE, ADUNDANCE, NOVEMENTS, AND HABITAT USAGE OF ESTUADINE-DEFENDENT FISHES AND CRUSTACEANS.

HERKE W E; RCGERS E D: FORESTRY 6 WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT: LCUISIANA STATE UNIVERSITY, BATON ECUGE, LOUISIANA. 76803. Proj. No.: LAB02076 Agency ID: SAES Period: 20 AUG 79 To 15 AUG 83

OBJECTIVES: To determine: seasonal presence and relative aburdance of important larvaland juvenile organisms entering and leaving Sabine National Wildlife Refuge; their ingress and egress routes; the relative use made of several habitat types, and to search literature for allied information.

APPROACE: Traps and plankton nets will be fished 1 to 3 times/week on all (6) major possible migration cbannels for 3 years. The shallow habitat within the Refuge will be sampled monthly using an airboat for transportation, and whatever gear can be found to work satisfactorily in very shallow water. (Gear type to be determined in preliminary work.) Movements will be studied using fluorescent marking techniques. All catches will be recorded by species, numbers, lengths, and habitat types, and searched for marks.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Field work began in March 1980. Twenty-six traps have been installed and are now in operation. Trapping and trawling is being conducted on established schedules. Nearly 1/2 million organisms were processed by end of July; about 1/2 were fishes (39 families, 88 species) and the rest were crustaceans (5 families, 10 species). Ingress and egress appears to be mainly from Caleasieu Lake side. Much of the marsh was used as nursery at different times.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED TBIS PERIOD.

001.046 CRISO058808 EARLY LIFE BISTORY ECOLOGY AND GEOWTH OF THE FIVED SHEINP MACROBEACHIUM OBIONE IN LOUISIANA

TRUESDALE F M: FORESTRY & WILLLIFE MANAGEMENT; LOUISIANA STATE UNIVERSITY, EATON ROUGE, LCUISIANA. 70803. Proj. No.: LAB01542 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 SEP 70 To 30 JUN 81

OBJECTIVES: Describe larval development and post-embryonic growth and molting frequency of river shrimp. Investigate importance of river shrimp in river plankton, as food for human consumption , as fisb bait, and as forage.

APPEOACE: Shrimp larvae will be picked from monthly plankton samples taken in the Mississippi and Atchafalaya Bivers. Descriptions will be made of developmental stages. River shrimp will be reared from eggs through postlarvae in the laboratory under controlled conditions. Representatives of developmental instars will be described and compared with sbriap larvae from plankton. Data will be gathered on molting frequency and growth. Juvenile river shrimp from the wild will be stocked in laboratory aquaria and monitored under controlled conditions. A shrimp landing census of Louisiana shrimpers and fish markets will be conducted.

PROGRESS: 75/01 TO 81/06. Macrobrachium obione. N. Acanthurus and N. clfersii, were reared from egg through postlarva in the laboratory. Eggs were obtained from females which mated and snawned in laboratory aquaria. All three species carried their eggs for 14-17 days befor hatching and, eggs off each hatched successfully in freshwater but survival past zoeal stage I occurred only in salinities greater than 5 ppt. Larvae were reared in individual containers, in various salinitles and temperatures under a photoperiod of 12 hours daylight. Larvae were fed fresh brine shrimp nauplil. For all species survival to premetamorphic astage was high (40%) but throught metamorphosis less than 10% survived. One lab-batched male and female N. acanthurus survived to maturity and mated. The egg to egg time for the female was 11 months. A field survey of river shrimp (N. obione) in the Mississippi River from Baton Rouge to St. Francisville, Louisiana yielded data on river shrimp ecology consistent with our data on the species from the Atchafalaya River basin. River shrimp are most abundant in the late summer and early fall (August, September, Cctober). Length frequency data over 13 months indicated that one year olo female and male shrimp were 65-70 mm total length (II) and 40-55 mm IL respectively. Iotal counts of eggs on ovigerous females ranged from 6,300-24,800. Only the first stage larvae and juvenile river shrimp have been taken in plankton collections in the Mississippi and Atchafalava rivers.

PUBLICATIONS: 75/01 TO 81/06
MERMILLICD, W.J. and TEUESDALE, F.M. 1976. Eiver shrimp something special. Aquanotes 5(3):3-4.
MERMILLICD, W.J. 1976 Life history and ecology of the large river shrimp macrobracbium ohione (Smith). M.S. thesis. Louisiara State University, Baton Rouge. 87 pp.

- TRUESDALF, F.N. and MERMILLICD, W.J. 1977. some o bservations on the host-parasite relationship of Macrobrachium ohione (Decapoda palaemonidae) and Probopyrus bithynis (Isopoda, Bopyridae). Crustaceana 32(2):216-220.
- TRUESDALE, F.N. and NERWIILICD, N.J. 1979. The river shrimp Macrobrachium oblone (Decapoda, Palaemonidae): It's abundance, reproduction and growth ir the Atchafalaya River Basin of Louisiana. Crustaceana. 1979. 36(1):61-73.

001.047 CFIS0067236 SURVEY OF LAEVAL FISRES IN THE NEARSHOPE GULF WATERS OF LOUISIARA

 TRUESDALE F M; FORESTRY & WILDLIPE NANAGEMENT;

 LOUISIANA STATE UNIVERSITY, BATON ROUGE, LCUISIANA.

 70803.

 Proj. Nno:: LAE01728

 Project Type: STATE

 Agency ID: SAES

 Period: 01 JAN 75 To 30 JUN 80

OBJECTIVES: Letermine seasonal species composition of the ichthyoplankton. Determine seasonal, temporal and spatial distribution of eggs and larvae of commercial Sciaenidae particularly croaker. Determine probable areas of major croaker spawning activity and transport routes of croaker larvae. Felate abundances of fish eggs and larvae and selected invertebrate plankters to hydrographic variables.

APPEOACE: Plankton samples will be taken seasonally on transects off the Iouisiana coast. Standard collecting gear and techniques will be employed. Fish eggs and larvae will be sorted from the samples, identified, and enumerated. Select invertebrate plankters will also be identified and counted. Catches will be expressed as number of organisms under 1 M^2 of sea surface. Correlations will he sought between organismal abundances and bydrographic variables.

PROGRESS: 75/01 TO 80/06. Bongo net (0.505mm) samples were collected on 9 cruises of National Marine Fisheries Service research vessel Gregon II. Collections were made on continental shelf hetween Nobile Bay and Atchafalaya Bay, Louisiana. Winter (Jan, Feb, Mar) collections yielded more than 38 kinds. Early life history stages of croaker, spot, spotted seatrout and sand seatrout were described. November was the peak spawning month for croaker. Approximately the same number of croaker larvae (1500) were taken in Nov 1974, as in Nov 1975 although only half as many samples were taken in 1975. During both years croaker larvae 2.00-3.99mm standard length (SI) were most abundant approximately 30 km SV of Southwest Pass of the Mississippi River. Larger larvae 4.00-6.99mm SL were most ahundant nearer the Louisiana coast during both years. Sand seatrout larvae and two specimens of silver seatrout were taken in a survey of waters 5-74 km from shore during July 1976; spotted seatrout larvae were probably concentrated in unsampled zone within 5km nf shore. Larval flatfishes were surveyed during Nov. 1974, Nov. 1875, Jan. 1976, and July 1976. Flatfish larvae occurred at 72% of the stations, but comprised a small portion, from less than 1.0% to 4.1% of the total numbers of ichthyoplankton. Larval reptant decapod crustaceans were surveyed in July 1976. From 33 stations, 60 kinds of macurans, anomurans and brachyurans representing at least 20 families were recorded.

PUBLICATIONS: 75/01 TO 80/06

- ANDRYSZAK, B.L. 1979. Abundance, distribution, and partial description foreptant decapod crustacean larvae collected from neritic Iouisiana waters in July, 1976. M.S. Thesis La. State Univ. Baton Rouge. 1(2 p.
- ANDEYSZAK, B.L. and F.M. TEUFSDALE. 1979. Abundance and distribution of larval reptant decapod crustaceans in neritic waters of the northern Gulf of Mexico, July 1976. ASB Bull. 26(2):54(Abstr.).
- KUHN, N.A. 1979. Occurrence and distribution of larval flatfish (Pleuronectiformes) off the southeastern Louisiana coast during four cruises including brief degc. of larval states. N.S. Thesis, Ia. State Univ. B.R.

WALKER, B.J., and P.M. TRUESDALE. 1979. Ichtbyoplankton survey of nearsbore Gulf waters off southeastern Louisiana, July, August, and December, 1973. ASB Bull. 26(2):67 (Abstr.)

FRUGE, E.J. and F.M. TRUESDALE. 1978. Comparative larval development of Micropogon undulatus and Leiostomus xanthurus (Pisces: Sciaenidae) from the northern Gulf of Mexico. Copeia 1978. (4):643-648.

001.048 CRIS0083515 LABORATORY CULTURE FOR RESEARCE PURPOSES OF ESTUARINE AND MARINE LOBSTERS, CRABS AND SHRINPS

TRUESDALE P M; PORESTRY & WILDLIFF MANAGEMENT; LOUISIANA STATE UNIVERSITY, EATON ROUGE, LCUISIANA. 70803. Proj. No.: LAB02159 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 MAR 81 To 30 JUN 86

OEJECTIVES: Bear decapod larvae (lobsters, crabs and sbrimps) of as many Louisiana species as possible, from egg through postlarval stages under defined laboratory conditions. Describe and illustrate the developmental stages of each species reared. Compare laboratory reared larvae with corresponding larvae taken in the plankton.

APFROACH: Egg-bearing crabs and strimps will be collected at coast-wide Louisiana sites. In the laboratory most specimens will be isolated in aquaria under simulated field conditions until eggs hatch; for large species eggs will be removed and hatched in vitro. Rearing procedures will allow the developmental sequence of each larva to be traced; this will entail isolating individual larvae within plastic tray compartments and examining each daily for evidence of molting. Emough larvae will be reared to investigate three salinity/temperature combinations with replication. Daily data on survival, molting, behavior and morphology will be recorded. Larvae will be transferred to compartments with clean water and fresh fond (Artemianauplii) each day. Detailed descriptions and drawings of each developmental stage will be made. Comparative descriptions of closely related species will be made tn elucidate difference. Laboratory-reared specimens will he compared with plankton-caught larvae in order tn develop diagnostic guides for fishery researchers.

001.049 CRIS0078594 MOVEMENTS OF SONIC-TAGGED FISHES IN RELATICE TO WATER QUALITY IN LOWER ATCHAFALATA SIVEE BASIN

BRYAN C F; BANGE SCIENCE; LOUISIANA STATE UNIVERSITY, BATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA. 70803. Proj. No.: LAB02023 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAAS Period: 01 NOV 78 Tn 31 DEC 82

OEJECTIVES: To develop, from the diversity of systems available, a radio tracking system suitable for the study of largemouth hass, Wicropterus salmides (Lacepede), black drappie, Pomoxis nigrammoculatus (lesuer) and white crappie, Pomoxis annularis Rafinesque. To relate movements of largemouth hass and crappies to changes in physiocochemical characteristics of water and hydrographic regime in lower Basis gibitats. To compare home range dimensions of the largemouth hass and crappies in various habitats. To gain insight into seasonal and diel patterns of movements of the above sport fishes insofar as these movents may be related to water quality variations in the annual hydrographic cycle.

APPEOACH: Bass will be electrofished from at least two habitat types in the Atchafalya River Basin. Badio tags will be implanted surgically and fish will be released immediately. Fish and a physicochemical description of their home ranges will be munitored on a diel and seasonal basis, to gain insight into possible relationships between a changing water quality and fish movements.

PSCGRESS: SU/01 TO S0/12. The role of water quality in selection of microhabitets and home ranges of sport fishes has been inferred from laboratory experiments whereir most variables (except one) are held constant. Bowever, a better way to gain insight into water quality preferences may be th follow fishes tagged with telemetry devices while monitoring the water quality in their natural habitat. We surgically ignlanted radio transmitters in 15 largemouth bass in the Atchafalaya Elver Basin and tracked them for as many as 117 days. Water temperature, dissolved oxygen, pH, specific conductance, and oxidation-reduction potential were recorded at each release site and subsequently, at the previous, and at each new location for each tracking day until the fish was no longer detected. We found that bass preferred a water temperature of 27 degrees C and made significantly more movements toward increasing dissolved oxygen. Other water quality characteristics measured did nct appear to influence movements. Nost locations of bass were made near shore in water less than 1.5 m deep and neither movements nor home range sizes were associated with river stage unless stages were sufficiently high to inundate the swamp floor.

- PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12
 - DOERZEACBER, J.F. 1980. Novement and Bome Range of Largemouth Base (Micropterus salmoides) in Relation to Water Quality of the Atchafalaya River Easin, Louislana. M.S. Thesis, La. State Univ., Baton Rouge, Lnuisiana.

001.050 CRISO062633 CRAWFISH CULTURE STUDIES IN SMALL PONDS: BUREOWING, POLYCULTURE AND NATURAL POND FLOCDING

HUNER J V; CCLLEGE OF AGRICULTUBE; SOUTHEEN UNIVERSITY, EATON FOUGE, LCUISIANA. 70813. Proj. No.: LA.X-8i-2005-2044 Project Type: 1890/T Agency ID: CSES Period: 01 OCT 80 To 30 SEP 85

OEJECTIVES: fetermine the spatial and seasonal burrowing patterns of crawfish in small, open crawfish ponds. Assess the effectiveness of various techniques fcr facilitating successful burrowing of crawfish in crawfish ponds. Determine the effects of soil tilling practices on crawfish burrows in crawfish ponds. Determine the commercial feasibility of cultivating channel catfish and crawfish together in small, open south Lcuisiana crawfish ponds. Determine the commercial feasibility of using rainfall to flood crawfish ponds in south Louisiana.

APPRCACE: Cbjectives 1, 2, 4 and 5 will be pursued in the four, one acre crawfish ponds located at Southern University. Chjective 3 will be pursued in a nearby connercial pend. During the first two years, burrows will be marked and mapped on a biweekly basis and several types of materials will be tested to determine their effectiveness as burrowing facilitators. Also, during the first two years, marked burrows will be subjected to disking and tractor-bush hog compaction early and late during the dry season to determine their impact on the occupants. Ir years 2 and 3, channel catfish will be stocked in test ponds after they have been filled with water in the fall. Catfish production and catfish impact on cawfish production will be recorded. In years 4 and 5, test ponds will be permitted to fill naturally in the fall and winter. The impact on this action on crawfish production will te measured.

001.051 CF1S0060712 METABOLISM AND FUNCTION OF CELLULAE LIFIDS

DESIEEVO A J; AGRICULTURAL EXPER. STATION; UNIVERSITY CF MAINE, CRCNC, MAINE. 04469. Proj. No:: ME08752 Project Type: EATCB Agency ID: CSES Period: 01 FEE 78 To 30 SEP 86 GEJECTIVES: Analysis of lipid and lipid enzymes in detergent-resistant and pigmentation mutants of M. lysndeikticus. Studies of lipid composition and lipid identification in marine caulobacter species. The effect of herpesvirus infection on the lipid metabolism of cultured animal and human cells.

APPROACE: Comparative studies between wild-type and detergent resistant mutants are planned to elucidate the mechanism of ressistance and the relationship between resistance and the lipid composition by analyzing the changes in lipid composition during growth in the presence of different levels of detergent. Pigmentation mutants will be compared with respect to lipid composition and fatty acid analysis. Evidence has accumulated which indicates that Caulobacter halobacteroides and other marine caulnbacters have an unusual lipid composition. We propuse to identify the glycolipids of these organisms, analyze isolated membranes, and determine if typical phospholipid biosynthetic pathways play a rcle in the metabolism of these organisms. A study nf the effects of NDV infection on cellular lipid composition and the breakdown and synthesis of cbolesterol ester in an in vitro, primary cell system is planned. Vascular smooth muscle and cardiac muscle cell cultures will be infected with MDV and HVT cell-associated viruses.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. In studies of Triton X-100 (TX) resistant mutants of N. lysodeikticus, comparison of the release of label from wild-type and mutant cells suggested that it was not the penetratinn of the detergent through the cell walls that was responsible for resistance. The lipid compnsitions of the wild-type and mutant were different when grown in the absence of TX. The lipid alterations during growth nf the sutant in the presence and absence of TI were significantly different, indicating that the presence of TI does affect the regulation of lipid composition and metabolism. Experiments designed to determine differences between two pigmented mutants and the wild-type of M. lysodeikticus were undertaken. The wild-type contains derivatives of the yellow carotenoid, neurosporene; the pink mutant was shown to have large amounts of lycopene; and the white mutants has only trace amounts of visible pigments. Since it had been suggested that carotenoids may act to reinforce the membrane bilayer, we compared the growth rates of these three cultures at different temperatures. All three cultures had the same optimal growth temperature, 35C. The pink mutants, however, had a more narrow temperature growth range. Studies of the lipid composition of the marine bacterium, Caulobacter halobacteroides, indicate that this organism contains little, if any, phospholipid; most of the extractable lipid being glycolipid. The nature of this glycolipid is currently being investigated.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

CE SIERVC, A.J. and BONOLA, A.D. 1980. Analysis of Caulotacter cresentus Lipids. J. Eacteriol. 143:1215-1222.

DE SIERVO, A.J. and BOMCLA, A.D. 1980. Growth and Lipid Changes of Detergent Resistant Isolates of Micrococcus Lysodeikticus. Abt. Ann. Ntg. Amer. Soc. Microbiol. K217:162.

001.052 CRISO064835 DISTRIBUTION, ABUNDANCE AND ECOLOGY OF ASCOPEYLLUM NODOSUM (1) LE JOIS

VADAS & L; BCTANY & PLANT PATBOLOGY; UNIVERSITY OF MAINE, ORONO, MAINE. C4469. Proj. No.: ME08459 Agency ID: CSRS Period: 13 FEB 74 Tc 30 SEP 82

OBJECTIVES: Determine: Distribution and abundance patterns of A. nodosum in Main, growth, reproductive, age and biomass patterns on exposed, semi-exposed and sheltered shores; biomass of Fucus spp., value of aerial photography and infrared film for A. nodosum surveys; methods to enhance colonization of A. nodosum; harvestable yields of A. nodosum. APPEGACB: fermant and radnomy selected sites will be utilized to survey the algal resource and study growth patterns. Samples will be taken seasonally. Experimental studies on colonization will be conducted in situ and in simulated tide cycles in running seawater tanks.

PROGRESS: £0/01 TO 80/12. Four study areas were established in 1980 making a total of six in two major areas (Northeast and Southeast) of the coast. The percent cover and biomass of Ascophyllum and Fucus spp. were determined in belt transects and in 10 x 100 cm quadrats, respectively. Samples were stratified by intertidal height. Biomass and growth and density of plants and apical growing points were measured to determine growth and productivity potentials. Feproductive output was measured in Fall 1980 for plants at the six sites. Data measurements are nearly complete for these sites (through Fall 1980). Computer programming and analysis will be initiated in spring 1981. Field colonization studies involving Ascophyllum during 1980 were not successful. Cnly a few recruits developed (to 2-5 mm) from approximately 130 experimental plots involving millions of fertilized eggs. Some promising leads will be followed up during 1981. Colonization experiments in running sea water from these same eggs showed excellent growth and survival for 1 to 2 months until adversely affected by sedimentation.

- PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12
 - LARSCN, B.F., VADAS, R.L. and KESE&, M. 1980. Feeding and Nutritional Ecology of the Sea Urchin Strongylccentrotus bracachiensis in Maine, USA. Mar. Biol. 59:49-62.
 - KESER, M., VADAS, R.I. and IAESCN, B.F. 1981. Fegrowth of Ascophyllum nodosum and Fucus vesiculosus Under Barvesting Regimes in Waine, USA. Bot. Mar. 24:29-38.

001.053 CFIS0074202 MATBEMATICAL MODEL OF OYSTEE POPULATION IN THE CHESAPEAKE EAY

 WBEATON F W; CABRAAL A; AGRI ENGINEEFING; UNIVERSITY

 OF WARYLAND, COLLEGE PARK, MARYLAND. 20742.

 Proj. No.: MD-E-057

 Project Type: HATCB

 Agency ID: CSRS

 Period: 01 CCT 77 To 30 SEP 80

OBJECTIVES: Develop a bank of pertinent data to study oyster productivity in the Maryland portion of the Chesapeake Bay. Develop a mathematical model for describing the production function of oysters, this model will incorporate economic and management factors affecting the productivity of an oyster bar. Evaluate the effectiveness of the oyster repletion program in Maryland and suggest means of optimizing the operatior.

APPROACE: A data bank will be established incorporating oyster catch, effort and spatfall data, and seed and shell planting data. This data will be stored on computer tape and coded so data is available by bar and is accessable by river basin code, oyster bar code, Davis code, NCAA code, by latitude and longitude or by official or common bar name. This and other data will be used to develor an oyster demand equation, catch effort equation and production function. The effects of existing catch limits will be determined. Existing oyster population size will be estimated and management alternatives determined.

PROGRESS: 77/11 TO 80/09. A computerized data bank was developed which contains Waryland oyster seed and shell plantings by bar from 1964 to 1975, natural oyster spatfall for 1955 to 1975, barvest and effort for 1964 to 1975 and several more general economic statistics such as ex-vessel price of oysters. The Maryland portion of the Chesapeake Bay was divided into 6 general areas. Production functions relating catch to effort, lagged spatfall, seed and stell plantings, were developed for each area. Fresh shell was the most successful cultch material with dredge shell being less efficient in catching spat. Seed plantings produced 12 to 19 bushels of marketable oysters per 100 bushels of seed planted depending on the area planted. The State run oyster repletion program returned about 300,000 bushels of marketable oysters per year for the approximately \$1,000,000 annual expenditure. Estimates of oyster population were made for each of the six areas for the beginning of the 1575-76 harvest year using the Leslie and DeLury equations. Calculated rates of resource exploitation varied from 17 to 31 percent, depending on the area. Demand equations developed indicated oysters had an unitary demand elacticity. Effort equations developed showed that the boat-days of harvesting effort were stable over time for most river systems.

- PUBLICATIONS: 77/11 TO 80/09
- CABRAAL, E.A. 1978. Systems Analysis of the Maryland Oyster Fishery: Froduction Management and Economics. Ph.D. Theeis. University of Maryland, College Park. 318 pp. CABRAAL, R.A. and WHEATON, F.W. 1975. A Fredictor Wodel for Chesapeake Bay Cyster Productivity.
- Paper No. 75-5036. American Society of Agricultural Engineers. St. Joseph, Nichigan.

001.054 CRIS0067887 PHISIOLOGY OF CEESAPEAKE BAY PETTCPLANETON

KARLANDER E P; BOTANY; UNIVERSITY CF MARYIAND, CCILLGE PARK, MARYIAND. 20742. Proj. No.: ND-K-013 Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 MAY 75 To 30 SEP 80

OBJECTIVES: Characterization of the major food and oxygen producing plants supporting the seafood industry of Maryland is the major objective. Environmental factors including light, nutrients, temperature, energy, and interspecific interactions will be measured.

APPEOACE: The research will be carried out primarily from the University of Maryland. Some work on the Chesapeake Bay will be necessary to obtain samples. Controlled natural, and possible variations in the environment will be introduced in naturally occurring and cultured communities. Initial investigations will concentrate on growth, production, and pigmentation. Absorbance, spectrophotometry, oxygen determination, and carbon uptake techniques will be used with cultured phytoplankton.

PROGRESS: 75/05 TO 80/09. Three algae from the Chesapeake Bay were characterized in terms of their gravel rate response to various environmental conditions of light, temperature, nutrition and saliuity. The effects of grazing at various phases of growth was measured in a fourth algae. Results of the grazing work showed that as net primary production decreased from exponential phase to declining phase to stationary phase that an equal level of grazing removed an increasing proportion of net primary production from each phase. The golden-brown planktivid alga, Pseudopedinella pyriforme grew best between 2 1/2 and 5 g/kg salinity. Mychozastes ruminatus, a unicellular alga grew best between 10 and 20 g/kg salinity at 0.78 m \Re/cm white light, and 25C. The phytoplankter, Nannochloris oculata had a maximal growth rate at 30 C, 15 g/kg salinity, and 1.35 m W/cm white light on ammonium. The nitrogen source showing the best growth was dependent on interactions among the physical parameters of the environment. It is concluded that the production of Chesapeake Bay and the species composition of the primary plants will depend on the management of the environmental parameters affected by nutritional pollution, sedimentation, temperature manipulation and salinity control.

PUBLICATIONS: 75/05 TO 80/09

- OSTROFF, C.R., KARLANDER, F. P., VAN VALWENBURG, S.D. 1980. Growth rates of Pseudopedinella pyriforme (Chrysophyceae) in response to 75 combinations of light, temperature, and salinity. J. Phycol. 16:421-423.
- TERLIZZI, D.E. and E.P. KARLANDER. 1978. The role of light, temperature, salinity, and nitrogen source, in factorial combination on the growth of Nannochloris oculata Droop. Paper 42 Ann. Mtg. Am. Soc. Limnol. Cceanogr.

- TERLIZZI, C. E. and E.P. KALLANDER. 1979. Soil algae from a Maryland Serpentine Formation. Soil Biol. Bicchem. 11:205-207.
- SPEARING, 4.M. and E.P. KAFLANDEF. 1979. Effects of light on the low temperature autotrophic metabolism of Cblorella sorokiniana. Shihira and Krauss. Environ. Exptl. Botany 19:237-243.
- SIMPSON, P.D., KARLANDEL, E.P., and S.D. VAN VALKENBURG. 1978. The growth rate of Mychonastes ruminatus Simpson et Van Valkenburg under various light, temperature and salinity regimes. Fr. Phycol. J. 13:291-298.

001.055 CRIS0083163 BIOSYNTEESIS OF STEROLS IN THE OYSTER AND CORPELATION OF STEROL COMPOSITION TO CYSTER PRODUCTIVITY

 PATTERSON G %; BOTANY; UNIVERSITY CF MARYLAND,

 COLLEGE PAFK, MARYLAND. 20742.

 Proj. No.: ME-J-114
 Froject Type: HATCE

 Agency ID: CSKS
 Period: 01 JAN 81 To 31 DEC 81

OBJECTIVES: Lata from several sources indicate that oysters synthesize only a fraction of their total sterol. Analysis of fast growing oysters from Cape Batteras indicates that the Chesapeake Bay oyster could, in some cases, be deficient in total stercl composition. Inadequate algae or the wrong king of algae in the diet could cause this deficiency. The extent of sterol biosynthesis in the oyster will be determined. Cysters from different bars with different degrees of success will be compared with respect to their sterol content. "Good food" algae will also be examined to determine which sterols they contribute tc the cyster's diet.

APPEGACE: Cyster samples will be analyzed by standard methods for sterol composition. These samples will be taken from oyster bars showing a great diversity of characteristics with respect to growth rate, spat set, shell growth, and general health of the oyster. An attempt will be made to correlate sterol composition with these characteristics. To determine if the oyster can synthesize sterols, oyster tissue cultures will be incubated with labeled acetate and the sterols isolated and examined. Algae will be examined for sterol composition to determine if sterols correlate with the desirability of certain algae as oyster focd.

001.056 MORPEOLOGICAI, ULTEASTRUCTURAL, AND BIOCEBNICAL CHARACTERIZATION OF NANOPLANKION FECH CEESAPEARE BAY

PATTERSON G W; VAN VALKENEUEG S D; ECTANY; UNIVERSITY CF MAEYLAND, COLLEGE PARK, MARVLAND, 20742. Proj. No.: MD-K-016 Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 CCT 77 To 30 SEF 80

OBJECTIVES: Screen various nanoplankton organisms already brought into culture from theChesapeake Bay, in order to select for "new" organisms--those which cannot be identified through use of standard keys. Study in detail the morphologyand microanatomy of the organisms selected as above in crder to determine their taxonomic affinities. Characterize the photosynthetic pigments of these organisms, particularly the chlorophylls, the presence or absence of phycobilins, and the xanthophylls, in order to determine their taxonomic affinities. Characterize the hiochemical composition of these organisms, especially the protein and lipid composition, in order to evaluate the organism as food for Chesapeake Bay shellfish.

APPEOACE: Screening procedures involve morphological description by light microscopy, a scan of the major pigments by acetone-extraction techniques and a cursory examination by transmission electron microscopy, sufficient to determine the basic cytological condition of the organism. In-depth studies by light, scanning electron and transmission electron microscopy will be done in order to produce definitive descriptions of these organisms. Pigments will be studied by photospectrophometric scaning of acetone extract, and by hoththin layer and column separation and extraction procedures. Total protein composition will be determined by Kjeldahl analysis and lipid analysis willbe performed by standard extraction methods followed by thin layer and gas chromatography.

P&CGRESS: 77/10 TC 80/09. Over thirty species of Chlorella have been examined for sterol and fatty acid composition. The major fatty acids were palmitic, oleic, linoleic and linolenic. Some strains had major quantities of palmitoleic as well as diand triunsaturated sixteen carbon acids. Tetra-unsaturated acids with 16 and 18 carbons were found in a few strains. Chlorella could be divided into 3 major groups based on sterol compositions: Delta 5-sterols Delta 7-sterols Delta 5, 7-sterols. One strain contained Delta 5, 8-sterols, which are extremely rare in living organisms. These lipid constituents show promise as blochemical markers for taxonomic groupings. Most of the Chlorella species and strains would appear to be unlikely as oyster food based on their sterol composition and that of the oyster. Several diatoms which are of the proper size for injestion by the oyster, appear to have the same sterol composition as the oyster, indicating that they could be the oyter's food source.

PUBLICATIONS: 77/10 TO 80/09 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED FINAL REPORT PERIOD.

001.057 CFIS0064213 ACTIVITY REVIEWS OF THE NOFTHEEN FOCK CRAE IN RELATION TO ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL FACTORS

REEACE S; UNIVERSITY OF MARYLAND FASTERN SECRE, PRINCESS ANN, MARYLAND. 21853. Proj. No.: MDX-PR-0001-URP31/73

Project Type: GRANT Agency ID: CSRS Period: 25 MAY 73 To 24 MAY 78

OBJECTIVES: Develop a simple and accurate way to measure activity rhythms in Cancer borealis and determine the importance and effect of photoperiod, tidal cycle, temperature, salinity, age, sex and stage of the reproductive and molting cycles on its activity and movements.

APPROACE: Crabs will be maintained under varying regimes of temperature, salinity, photoperiod and tidal cycle. The crabs will be tested in aquaria utilizing photocells connected to a recording device to measure activity under these different conditions. Observations will be made on crabs of both sexes, various ages and different physiological states, such as molt phase and reproductive condition, determine how these factors effect responses to solar and lunar rhythms. A knowledge of these factors and periods of optimum activity should provide basic information to the crabbing industry in relation to the timing and techniques of harvesting this species. This study might also lead to the ability to advance the reproductive season or increase the number of annual reproductive periods in C. horealis and, therefore, make commercial aquaculture of crabs a profitable venture.

PRCGRESS: 79/01 TO 79/12. Data obtained from measurements of locomotor activity of Cancer irroratus held under varying photoperidos is presently being reanalyzed to determine if size or stage of the molt cycle influenced the amplitude or periodicity of activity

PUELICATIONS: 79/01 TO 79/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

001.058 CRISO075003 BEHAVIOR ECOLOGY AND REYTENICITY IN THE ROCK CRAES, CANCER IRFORATUS AND CANCER ECREALIS, PRASE II

REBACE S; UNIVERSITY OF MARYLAND EASTERN SECRE, PRINCESS ANN, MARYLAND, 21853. Proj. No.: MDX-PR-0001-URP53 Project Type: GRANT Agency ID: CSRS Period: 27 FEB 78 To 26 FEB 83

OBJECTIVES: Determine influence of tidal and/or geophysical rhythms or activity of rock crabs. Determine relative influences of photophase & scotophase on molting of rock crabs. Determine effect of short & long day photoperiods on growth, molting & reproduction. Record seasonal dietribution of age classes, sexes & molt stage individuals. Develop optimum diet for growth & maintenance & develop a delivery system for diet.

APFEOACE: Encourage local utilization of rock crab as an alternate or supplement to blue crab. Correlate observed activity rhythms with tidal, barometic, humidity, magnetic flux cycles. Varying length & proportions of light & dark periode to determine influence on molting. Utilizing less than or greater than 24 hour days in laboratory environment. Utilizing tag and recaptire studies at monthly intervals aboard a coastal vessel. Automated system for delivery of optimum protein, fiber 6 mineral content of presently used nutritional pellets will be developed. Interviews, free samples 6 information on location 6 abundance of rock crabs might increase local utilization of rock crab meat.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Previoue work (Rebach, 1977, and in preparation) indicates that length of photoperiod and light: dark ratios are controlling factors in courtsbip, reproduction and molting of the rock crab, Cancer irroratus. The newly opened Crab Lab, a converted 70 foot house trailer, has a water treatment facility and 5 laboratories with running seawater and computer-controlled photoperiods. Tanks and electronic instrumentation have been designed, constructed and tested to allow the test animal to select the duration of light and dark in ore laboratory. Total hours of light and dark and light: dark ratios are monitored. Another laboratory allows the animal to control the intensity of illumination. In 1980, after correcting many problems and improving the water delivery and treatment facilities (to produce adequate flow rates to maintain the animals), we were able to introduce our first group of animals. Pilot studies led to further refinement of light control mechanisms in the test tanks. These studies indicated that the animals were able to control the photoperiod and intensity in their respective laboratories. We are now ready to initiate full-scale testing. In order to determine the locations of marketable numbers of animals, a tag-recapture program is planned. Bowever, spaghetti tags injected into the crabs' muscle resulted in a 40% mcrtality rate in the laboratory. This level is too high for a successful tag and recapture program.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERICD.

001.059 CRISO070148 BERAVIOR, ECCLOGY AND RETTENICITY IN THE COMMON FOCK CRAB

REEACE S: NATUFAL RESOURCES: UNIVERSITY OF MARYLAND EASTERN SBORF, PRINCESS ANN, MAEYLAND. 21853. Proj. No: MDJ-PR-0001-UEP45 Project Type: GRANT Agency ID: CSES Period: 15 MAK 76 To 14 DEC 80

OBJECTIVES: Develop a method to maintain crabs under lahoratory conditions for prolonged periods. Develop a simple and accurate method to measure activity rbythms. Determine the importance and effect of photoperiod, tidal cycle, temperature, salinity, age, sex and stage of reproductive and molt cycles on activity and movement. Study population structure and the distribution of Cancer irroratus. Determine the nutritional requirements of experimental animals.

APPEGACE: Design and construct a recirculating, temperature-controlled activity testing facility. Design infrared photoelectric cell sensors, amplify singnal, record and collect data. Measure activity rbythms under varying conditions of photoperiod, tidal cycle, temperature, salinity, age, sex, reproductive and molt cycles. Develop a high-protein pelletized diet and compare to other feeds that might be used in commercial mariculture of crustacea. Analyze population structure utilizing catch data on size, sex ratio, and distribution in various local areas.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. In studies of the ecology and behavior of the common rock crab (Canier irroratus) (Rebach, 1977, 1978) conducted in the laboratory, it was neceesary to maintain 20 to 50 animals for periods in excess of one year. A pelletized diet developed by the principal investigator was compared to other diets fed to the crabs and resulted in greater weight gain, lower mortality and greater molt success in the laboratory. The high levels of calcium and phosphate maythion diet may contribute to molt success and survival. It has been hypothesized that the physical form and high water stability of the pellets were especially suited to benthic decapod crustaceans. The pellets can be stored intbe laboratory for indefinite periods, are easy to handle and can be adapted to mechnical delivery eustems.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 REBACH, S. 1981. A Pelletized Diet for Captive Benthic Crustaceans. See Grant Publication UM-SG-TS-81-01. 8 pp.

001.060 ECOLOGY OF PISHES AND LIMNOLOGY OF UPPEP GREAT LAKES AND TRIEDTAPIES IN RELATION TO ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS

LISTON C R; FISHERIES 6 WILDLIPE; NICHIGAN STATE UNIVERSITY, EAST LANSING, NICHIGAN. 48824. Proj. No.: WICL01312 Project Type: BATCH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 JUL 78 To 30 JUN 83

OEJECTIVES: Understand the biology and ecology of fiehes in near-shore waters of Lake Michigan near Ludington, Michigan, and in selected tributaries of Lake Michigan. Examine limological aspects in these waters including temperature, water transparency, turbidity, disolved oxygen, and henthos. Relate findings to impacts of resource utilization, and to agencies responsible for the management of important sport and commercial fish species.

APPROACE: Sample adult, juvenile, and larval fishes using etandard gill nete, trawls, eeivee, and meter nets during ice-free periods. Identify epecies and record total numbers and weights for each method. Record length, weight, sex and age for individuals of all species and determine food habits and fecundity for eelected species. Determine limnological parametere at location of fish sampling sitee.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Studies continued in four areas: impacts on Lake Michigan fisheries from the Ludington Pumped Storage Power Plant; ecology of connecting waters between Lakes Superior and Buron (St. Mary's River) in relation to winter navigation; fish stock assessment in Whitefish Bay, Lake Superior; ecology of fisb in the Red Cedar River. Losses of larval, juvenile, and adult fishes (mainly alewives, smelt, and salmonids) were greater at ludington than for any other existing power plants on Lake Michigan. Regulatory agencies are now using results to determine a mitigation policy for Michigan. Forty-seven fish species use the St. Mary's River, and young of important sport fish depend upon aquatic plants in shallow water fcr focd and protection. Shallow areas are most likely to be impacted from winter shipping. Adult fish were dominated by lake herring, yellow perch, smelt, northern pike, and white sucker. At least 18 species spawn successfully in the St. Mary's hiver. Conmercial catches of whitefish in Whitefish Bay were comprised mainly of Ages V, VI, and VII Fish. Average catch was 69.7 kg. Results are used by the U.S. Department of Interior to aseess stockeize.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

LISTON, C.R., BEAZO, D.C., BOER, J., LIGMAN, R., ONEAL, R. and FETERSON, G. 1980. Studies of Entrainment of Fish and Invertebrates, Turbine Mortalities, Netting and Bydroacoustic Surveys, and Water Currents at the Ludington Pumped

- EOER, J.R. 1980. Abundance, Distribution and Community Interactions of Demersal Fishes Inbabiting a new Pumped Storage Reservoir on Lake Michigan M.S. Thesis, Mich. State Univ. 62 pp.
- LISTON, C.S., DUFFY, W., ASHICN, D., MCNAEF, C. and Evaluation of the St. Mary's River &CEELER, F. 1980. Environmental Baseline and Evaluation of the St. Mary's River Dredging. Mich. State Univ. Dept. Fish Wildl., Ker to U.S. Fist. Wildl. Servi ce. 295 FF.
- PETERSON, G.P., ERAZO, E.C. and IISICN, C.F. 1980. Food Habits of Predatory Fish in Lake Michigan Near the Tailrace of the Ludington Pumped Storage Power Plant. Mich. Acad. Sci., Arts, Letters. Vol. 10.

001.061 CRISJ064874 ECOLOGY AND MANAGEMENT OF SIFEAM AND SIFEAN FISBES

WHITE & J; FISHERIES & WILDLIFE; MICHIGAN STATE UNIVERSITY, FAST LANSING, WICEIGAN, 48824. Proj. No.: MICL01169 Agency ID: CSRS Period: 24 JAN 74 Tc 23 JAN 84

CBJECTIVES: Identify physical features of microhabitat for stream dwelling fishes, e.g. trout, salmon, smallmouth bass and various forage fishes. Test microhabitat selection by stream fishes. Analyse effects of channel morphometry and stream flow on carrying capacity and production of fish. Develop information on the relationship of habitat heterogeneity and biotic diversity in flowing water environments. Analyse and publieh etream research data collected during the last 19 years.

APPROACE: Physical and biotic measurements will be conducted on natural streams. Artificial channels will be built and in them the results from natural streams tested under controlled conditions.

PROGRESS: 80/01 IO 80/12. In a study of competition between juverile salmonids for stream microhabitat, we tested the relationship between water velocity differential (difference in velocity the fish faces and the greatest velocity within 60 cm) and body growth for coho salmon. The relation was linear. By modeling energy needs for maintaining position at various water velocitiee and energy available as invertebrate food at various surrounding water velocities, we found that abundance of drifting food affects affects poeition quality. Therefore, experiments to measure net energy gain were done separately for cobo salmon and brown trout by comparing positions held by the fish in tems of water velocity differential, abundance of drifting food, and body growth. The recults will provide a basis for three eete of ecological-release experimente involving pairs of speciee (coho-brown, coho-brook, brook-brown). In a study of the effects of suddenly and maeeively increasing instance cover for brook trout by felling brush into five 200m test sectione in a etream, physical measuremente ebowed channel narrowing of 11-35% (n=10 subsections), 5.8% avg increase in water depth, 25% avg increase in water velocity, and substantial scouring of sand off of streambed gravel. The effects on the trout population are being monitored. A study of effects of installing eimple overhead coverts on another trout stream is aleo being done.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERICD.

001.062 CFIS0076400 COMPARATIVE FHYSIOLOGICAL STUDIES OF VERTEBRATE EYES

BOFFERT J R; PHYSIOLOGY; MICBIGAN STATE UNIVERSITY, EAST LANSING, MICBIGAN. 48824. Agency ID: CSVMV-0012 Period: 01 DEC 77 To 30 NCV 82

OBJECTIVES: Provide an anatomical description of the teleost chroldal rete mirabile, to determine the influence of hyper- and hypobaric oxygen tensions on teleost retiras and investigate the regulation of the countercurront multiplier, and investigate the phenomenon of oxygen toxicity. APPROACE: Test tissue fixation techniques to obtain bigher quality photomicrographs and extend studies of the ultrastructure of the chroidal rete to species other than rainbow trout. Develop an askay for superoxide dismutase (SCD) in polkilothermic ocular tissues and investigate the influence of hypertaric oxygen on Na-K-Mg ATPase activity from retinal homoganates and oetermine the effect of altired respiratory perfusion on the maclaumocular FO(2) generated in vivo and the critical PO(2) necessary to maintain the EsG of in vitro retinal preparations.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TC 80/12. The overall objectives for the total project are as follows: (a) identify cellular and metabolic sites of oxgen toxicity in the retina, (b) identify mechanisms of protection against oxygen toxicity; and (c) continue studies on the intraocular oxygen gradients in the teleost, A comparative study of the distribution of superoxide dismutase (SOD) as it relates to oxygen partial pressure and oxidative metabolism of retinal tissue will allow us to speculate on the importance of this enzyme in protection against oxygen toxicity. In order to correlate the Na-K-Mg ATPase and SCD data, precise intraretinal oxygen profiles will have to be determined. To further verify the role of SCD as a protective agent against C(2) toxicity studies on enzyme induction in retinal tissue following hyperharic oxygen expoeure will be undertaken. Photoinduced free radical formation has been implicated in cataractogenesis in some species. A comparative study of the effects of sunlight on lens function and metabolism will be undertaken, with specific emphasie on the role of superoxide free radicals. Recent evidence links organophospnate defoliants to lenticular dysfunction and other neuropathies. The exact nature and pharmacological mechanism of this toxicity is unknown and will be investigated.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TC 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

001.063 CRIS0080081 ECOLOGY, POPULATION DYNAMICS AND WANAGEMENT OF MULTI-SPECIES FISE RESOURCES OF LARGE LARES

 SPANGLER G R; ENTOMOLOGY, FISHERIES & WLDLIFE;

 UNIVERSITY OF MINNESOTA, ST PAUL, MINNESCTA. 55108.

 Proj. No.: MIN-17-077
 Froject Type: HATCH

 Agency ID: CSES
 Period: 01 CCT 79 To 30 SEP 82

OEJECTIVES: To develop an improved biological basis for the management of the fish communities of large lakes through an increased understanding of interspecific relationships; analysis of the role of fishery exploitation in the dynamics of fish communities; and use of simulation modelling to explore the impact of management measures on the structure and productivity of fish communities.

APPECACE: The response of lake whitefish to predation by sea lampreys will be estimated by analysis of etock dynamics prevailing during the years preceding and following lamprey control. The role of fishery exploitation will be examined with respect to its effects in competition with lampreye for available whitefieh and as a singult force of mortality on smelt. Besulte of these etudiee will be synthesized into simulation models for the exploration of management strategies appropriate to multi-species fish communitiee.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. During 1880 the biological basis for management of lake whitefish (Coregonus clupeaformie) was examined with respect to stock discreteness in Canadian waters of Lake Buron. Data from tagging studies together with electrophoretic, morphometric and meristic data were analyzed to determine the utility of these approaches in defining stock discreteness. Recoveries of tagged fish indicated the existence of at least 11 stocks differing eufficiently in their population characterietice that yield to the fishery cculd be significantly influenced by etock-specific management. Electrophoretic analyses indicated that genetic differences between lake Huron stocks were fewer than those detected between Lake Buron and inland lake populations. Norphological characteristics were relatively insensitive indicators of stock discreteness. Estimates of the influence of lamprey predation on one of these stocks and a preliminary analysis of lamprey stock structure in the Great Lakes were published in 1580. An analysis of the effects of exploitation on smelt (Comerus moroax) was initiated in 1580 with an examination of gillnet selectivity. Comparison of length distribution from graded mesh experimental nets indicated that mesh sizes greater than 38 cm. (stretched measure) were relatively unselective with respect to smelt size. Tabulation of historical data and verification of ages from scale samples will he completed in 1581.

- PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12
- SFANGLER, G.R. and CCLLINS, J.J. 1580. Sesponse of Lake Whitefish (Coregonus clupeaformis) to the Control of Sea Lamprey (Petromyzon marinus) in Lake Huron. Can. J. Fish. Aquat. Sci. 37(11):2039-2046.
- SFANGLER, G.R., EOBSCN, D.S and REGIER, H.A. 1980. Estimates of Lamprey-Induced Nortality in Lake Whitefist, Coregonus clupeaformis. Can. J. Fish. Aquat. Sci. 37(11):2146-2150.
- WALTERS, C.J., STEER, G. and SPANGLEF, G. 1980. Responses of Lake Trout (Salvelinus namaycush) to Harvesting, Stocking, and Lamprey Meduction. Can. J. Fist. Aquat. Sci. 37(11):2133-2145.
- KKUEGER, C.C. 1980. Detection of Variability at Isozyme loci in Sea Lamprey, Petromyzon marinus. Can. J. Fish. Aquat. Scl. 37(11):1630-1634.

001.004 CFIS0075751 LIFE EISTORY AND POPULATION DYNAMICS OF THEFISE, IOPBOLATILUS CHAMAELCNTICUP

GRIMES C; AELE &: ENVIRCNMENTAL BESCURCES; FUIGEES UNIVERSITY, NEW BRUNSWICK, NEW JERSEY. 08803. Proj. No:: NJ12403 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 MAE 78 To 30 JUN 83

OBJECTIVES: Levelop the biological basis for management of the tilefish Lopholatilis chamaeleonticips.

APPROACH: We will identify stocks and study life history of populations of the Middle Atlantic Bight and determine population dynamics. Specimens will be obtained from the New Jersey recreational and commercial fisheries and research cruises. Electrophoretic examination of eye, liver and muscle proteins and meristic and morphometric data will be used to delineate stocks. scales, otoliths, vertebrae and fin spines will be used for studies of age and growth. Length frequency data from the commercial fishery and derived age/length keys - '` be used to be used to construct catch curves and estimat lity rates. Catch and angler effort data for t' V G recreational fishery will be obtained from essel operators. Genad samples for studies of reproduction will he collected from the commerical and recreational fishery.

FECGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. We have completed the basic analysis of age and growth. The maximum age of females was 36 years for an 87 cm individual, while the oldest male was 28 years of age at 108 cm. The largest female was 95 cm at 29 years, and the largest male was 112 cm at 22 years. Growth of approximately 10 cm per year was observed for the first five years, after which it slowed. An investigation of most aspects of reproduction was initiated. Analysis of visual maturity staging, ovum diameter distributions and gonosomatic indices indicate that serial spawning occurs from May to October. Ova are matured (1.30 mm diameter) and released in several hatches per season; a typical (600 mm) female may release 1-2 million ova per year. Large numbers of small developing ova have been observed in the ovary after final spawning. Most females mature at 520-570 mm, while most males reach 620-710 mm before maturing. Sex distribution is skewed toward males at large size, apparently due to early maturation and subsequent slowing of growth hy females, but sex ratio does not differ from 1:1 for the population. Predorsal adipose flap size becomes sexually dimorphic in adult fish, with mature males

developing enlarged flaps.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- KATZ, S.J., GRIMES, C.B. and ABLE, K.W. 1979. Identification of Tilefish Stocks, Lopholatilus chamaeleonticeps, Along the U.S. East Coast. Bull. New Jersey Acad. Sci. 24(2):99-100. (abstract).
- GRIMES, C.E., ABLE, K.W., TURNER, S.C. and KATZ, S.J. 1980. Tilefish and Their Cuter Continental Shelf Babitat. Underwater Naturalist 12(4):34-39.

001.065 CRIS0079854 FEEDING ECOLOGY OF FISHES UTILIZING MARSEES ALTERED FOF CONTROL OF SALT MARSE NOSQUITOES

SHISLEF J; NOSQUITC RES & CONTECL; RUIGERS UNIVERSITY, NEW BELNSWICK, NEW JESSEY. 08503. Prcj. ho:: NJ40503 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 70 To 30 JUN 80

OEJECTIVES: To study the feeding ecology ot salt marsh fishes with emphasis on their role as mosquito predators.

APPROACH: Survey of fishes utilizing salt marsh altered for mosquito control. Study the food habits of the dominant species as determined from the survey in order to determine the most effective mosquito predator. Identification of larval fishes which occur in mosquito breeding areas because these may be important predators on the early mosquito instars.

PECGRESS: 80/01 TC 80/12. Fish populations were sampled throughout the year in hoth natural marshes and marshes that have been altered for mosquito control. Fish epecies composition varied between study sites with a typical freshwater assemblage common at sites with freshwater or lower salinities and typical estuarine assemblage at high salinities. Fundulus heteroclitus, F. luciae and Cyprinodon variegatus were dominant estuarine fish while freshwater dominate species were F. daphanus, Gamhusia affin1s, Lepomis gihbosus and Notemigonus crysoleucas. Seasonal changes in hoth salinity and faunal populations were noted in impoundments.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- ABLE, K.W., SHISLER, J.K. and TALBOT, C.W. 1979. Preliminary Survey of Fishes Utilizing New Jersey Marshes Altered for Control of Salt Marsh Mosquitoes. Proc. N.J. Mosq. Control Assoc. 66:103-115.
- TALBOT, C.W., ABLE, K.W., SHISLER, J.K. and COOREY, D. 1980. Seasonal Variation in Composition of Fresh and Brackish Water Fishes of New Jersey Mosquito Control Impoundments. Proc. N.J. Mosq. Control Assoc. 67:50-63.

001.066 Overboard disposal study

CRIS0078908

BASKIN B B; DURAND J; OYSTEE CULTUEE; BUTGERS UNIVERSITY, NEW BRUNSWICE, NEW JESSEY. 08203. Proj. No.: NJ32501 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 77 To 30 JUN 82

OEJECTIVES: Determine the effects of overboard disposal of dredge spoil on the benthic macroinvertebrate community with particular emphasis on the hard clam, Mercenaria mercenaris.

APPROACH: In Absecon Creek, where channel dredging is required for navigation purposes, two study areas have heen selected. Following an initial baseline study of both areas, one area has been partially covered hy dredge spoil; the second has heen hald largely undisturhed as a control area. Follow-up studies will he centered largely on recolonization of the spoil area. At selecte d stations a minimum of 7 Peterson or ponar grabs will be taken and sieved. All + 1 mm organisms will be sorted out, identified and counted to enable description of community structure, diversity and hiomass. Complete sampling of all areas will he done quarterly. Experimental plantings of small clams hefore and periodically after dredging will permit detailed studies of the effect of dredging on motalities, growth and condition. Invertebrate data will be supplemented by water quality studies and geological studies designed to determine effects of dredging distrubance on nutrient releases from the bottom and stability of bottom as it affects survival and growth of clam.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Cverboard disposal of dredge spoil has resulted in a dramatic effect on benthic infaunal polychaetes. Water chemistry (nutrients), bentbic nutrient cycling, sediment structure, and benthic invertebrate communities all were affected. Some effects were transitory. Effects upon nutrient regeneration from bottom sediments, structure of bottom sediments, and henthic invertebrates in the dredge spoil have persisted. The Control Site and the Dredged Channel Site showed marked differences in nutrient cycling and in the benthic invertebrate community following dredging. Both have since returned to pre-dredge levels. The Dredge Spoil Site remains in a disturbed condition with respect to the sediments, nutrient cycling, and the invertebrate community. Regeneration of ammonium-N from bottom muds is suppressed below the rates observed in the Control Site and in the Dredged Channel Site. Counts of bentbic invertebrates remain high and the dominant organisms exhibit both wide fluctuations in numbers and higher counts than during the pre-dredge time. Species make-up at the Dredge Spoil Site is unstable. Different species have shown explosive growth in numbers at different times but not according to a particular sequence. At this time it is not possible to estimate when stability will be reached.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REFORTED THIS PERICD.

001.067 A NULTI-INSTITUTIONAL APPROACE TO THE IDENTIFICATION OF BIVALVE LARVAE

LUTZ E A; OYSTER COLTURE; RUIGEES UNIVEESITY, NEW BRUNSWICK, NEW JEESEY. 08903. Proj. No.: NJ32401 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 MAY 80 To 30 JUN 81

OBJECTIVES: Fublish a comprehensive scientific monograph/practical manual for the identification of bivalve larvae (through routine optical microscopid examination of the larval hinge apparatus) in estuaries and coastal marine waters of the North Atlantic.

APPROACE: Bavalve larvae will be reared in the laboratory. Specimens will be sacrifced daily during all stages of larval and early post-larval development. Detailed photographic sequences of larval hinge development will be prepared using optical and scanning electron microscopic techniques.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Samples of bivalve larvae cultured under hatchery conditions have been obtained for the following species: the American oyster. Crassostrea virginica, the hard clas, Mercenaria mercenaria, the ocean quahog, Arctica islandica, and the ribbed mussel, Geukensia demissa. We are presently in the process of mounting these larval specimens on platforms for scanning electron microscopic examination. Complete photographic growth sequences of these are being assembled and will he included in the larval identification manual which we are proposing to prepare. A formal proposal entitled Identification of Bivalve Larvae: A Multi-Institutional Approach has been prepared and submitted to the Office of Sea Grant for funding commencing May 1, 1981. Cooperative efforts have been initiated with Dr. Roger Mann of Woods Hole Cceanographic Institution and Mr. Michael Castagna of the Virginia Institute of Marine Science. We are working closely with these individuals in our larval rearing work and will continue to obtain larval specimens of various species from their batchery and laboratory culture operations.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

JABLONSKI, D. and LUTZ, R.A. 1980. Molluscan Larval Shell Morphology: Ecological and Faleontological Applications. In: Skeletal Growth of Aquatic Organisms (Eds. Rhoads, D.C. and Lutz, R.A.). pp. 323-377. Flenum Frees: New

001.068 AGE AND GROWTE OF FISE; A FIELD AND LABORATORY APPROACE

BROTHERS E B; ECOLOGY AND SYSTEMATICS SEC; CORNELLUNIVERSITY, ITEACA, NEW YCEK. 14853.Proj. No.: NYC-183312Project Type: STATEAgency iD: SAESPeriod: 01 JUL 75 To 30 SEP 78

OBJECTIVES: Develop and refine an improved technique to analyze the growth history of larval and adult fish; and secondly apply this method in studies of the life history and population ecology of fish.

AFFROACE: Examine the fine structure of fish otcliths; i.e. for daily growth increments. The approach will include a detailed study of the mechanics of otolith growth, using histological preparations, the scanning election microscope, and chemical analysis. The second aspect of the project will compare results from natural populations and laboratory reared individuals maintained in a variety of photoperiod, termal, and feeding regimes.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Age and growth data derived from measurements of otolith microstructure have been applied in the following studies: Spawning and recruitment periodicity was studied in the french grunt (Haemulon flavolineatum) in St. Croix, U.S.V.I. Daily otolith ages of post-larval grunts revealed a distinct lunar periodicity for spawning and the early life history. These data are to he compared with detailed recruitment surveys carried out by Dr. William McFarland (Cornell Univ.) Age determination of newly recruiting sirago gobies (Sicydium plumieri) to Puerto Rican rivers has demonstrated spawning periodicity tightly synchronized with the occurrence of the full and new moon. Larvae spawned in the rivers then spend 50 to over 50 days at sea before mass migrating upstream (with Dr, Donald Erdman, Univ. of Puerto Rico). An age and growth study of Lake Ontario freshwater eels was completed with S. Pearse) and new studies were initiated on Georgia eels (with Dr. Gene Belfman, Univ. of Georgia). Processing of tropical maring fish larvae and juveniles continued in ongoing studies of reproductive biology. Additional samples of larval and juvenile gag (Mycteroperca microlepis) were processed to complete data collection and analysis. A paper is in preparation describing the early growth. reproductive timing and juvenile ecology of this species (with D. Johnson, Institute of Marine Resources, and M. Leiby, Florida Dept. of Nat. Resources).

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUELICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

001.069 CRIS0069991 THE FINE STRUCTURE OF FISE OTCLITES: ENDOGENOUS AND ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS

BROTHERS E B; ECOLOGY AND SYSTEMATICS SEC; CCENELL UNIVERSITY, IIBACA, NEW YCEK. 14853. Proje No:: NYC-183409 Project Type: BATCE Agency IC: CSES Period: 10 MAR 76 To 30 SEP 80

OBJECTIVES: Examine the fine structure of fish otcliths, particularly for larvae and juveniles; determine the internal and external factors controlling the pattern of daily growth increment formation, and develop methods for collecting data on the early life history of fish by means of otolith examination. This combined laboratory and field approach will provice important insight into a critical aspect of fisheries management.

APPROACE: See Item No. 24.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Studies of otolith microstructure heve been applied in several studies of natural populations. These studies ettempt to relate laboratory findinge on the effects to endogenous factors, euch as tempereture, to observed otolith growth patterns. The data are analyzed to obtein information on emall and large scale movements of the fish during their life history. Salmonid fiehes from controlled flow, hottom-release reservoir fed rivers were examined to determine the effects of "unnatural" water temperature on these fishes. It was found thet the human controlled temperature regime made a clear imprint on otolith microstructure, and thet reeident fishes vereue those migratory from feeder etreame could be distinguished. Ctolith microstructure was exemined for a series of tidepool populations of the three spine eticklebeck (Gasterosteus aculeatus) on Appledore Islend, Maine. Temperature of these highly variable pools was monitored and initial lahoratory work is attempting to correlate subdaily microstructure patterns between individual fish end with patterns of eoler werming and tidal inundation. Preliminary surveys of Pacific coast ealmon (genus Oncorhynchus) is attempting to relate otolith microetructure to etock identification of natural and stocked fishes. Preliminary results have demonstrated our ability to determine time and age at stocking for silver salmon.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

001.070 CFIS0081838 APPLICATION CF OTOLITE NICROSTFUCTURAL DATA TO STUDIES OF THE RAPLY LIFE HISTORY CF FISHES

BROTBERS E B; ECOLOGY AND SYSTEMATICS SEC; CORNELL UNIVERSITY, ITBACA, NEW YORK. 14853. Proj. No.: NYC-183416 Project Type: BATCE Agency ID: CSMS Period: 01 JUL 80 To 30 SEP 83

OBJECTIVES: To analyze and determine the significance of subdaily growth increments in the otoliths of larval and juvenile fishes; to apply this knowledge to understanding the ecology and behavior of these early life stages; to describe and interpret the microstructural otolith patterns with respect to age, growth history, and timing of reproduction and recruitment in coral reef fishes.

APPROACE: Correlation of microscopic examination of otoliths with direct observation, environmental measurement, and laboratory manipulation of larval and juveniule fishes.

001.071 CFIS0068972 FUNCTIONAL MCRPHOLOGY OF INVERTEBRATE OFGAD SYSTEMS

ANDERSON J N; FACTOR J R; GENETICS DEV AND PEYSIOL SEC; CORNELL UNIVERSITY, ITEACA, NEW YCFE. 14853. Proj. No.: NYC-185315 Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 OCT 75 To 30 SEP 79

CEJECTIVES: Elucidation of the relationship of structure to function in varioue organ-systems of selected invertebrete animals; supply structural details hasic to an understanding of fundemental hiological processes in poorly-studied groups.

APPSCACE: Anatomical, bistological, and electron microscopical techniques are epplied as appropriate in moving from the gross, through the microscopical, to the ultrastructural level, and structural details so revealed are correlated with functional aepects where these are known. Subjects in which such an approach has been used include feeding and digestion in several species of seastare (asteroidea), and the reproductive system in several other asteroids; a further current project involves study of progressive changes in feeding and digestive organs through several successive early larvai stages of lobsters. PRCGRESS: 79/01 TO 79/09. See-ster digestive systems: This study involved an exemination of functional anatomy in the digestive system of the lrge tropicel sea-star Oreester reticulatus, not previously etudied from this stendpoint. The grose structure of all the component organs was described in detail end compared with thet of other species in related families. The general features suggest adeptetion to a variety of feeding techniques, including collection of euspended particulete matter as well as extra- and intre-corporeel digestion of macroscopic food. Histological and histochemical studies concentrating on charecteristics of the lining epithelium in all parts other than the cerdiac stomach reveeled specific, consistent patterns in the distribution of various types of eecretory cells that tended to confirm functional conclusions based on comparetive studies of groee morphology. Lervel loheters. Deteled studies, involving light and scenning electron microscopy, produced a painstaking description of changee in the mouth-parte of the 1st 4 stages of Bormarus americanus. Structural changes in these externel feeding appendages, especially elterations in the types and distribution of the several types of setee, could in general be seen as correlated with changee in habitat and types of food during development from stage to stage.

PUBLICATIONS: 79/01 TC 79/09

- ANDERSON, J. N. 1979. Bistological studies on the pyloric stomech and its appendages in Creaster reticulatue (1) (Aeteroidea). Biol. Bull. 156: 1-19.
- FACTOR, J.F. 1978. Preliminary report on the development of the digestive system in larvel lobstere, Bomarue americanus. Amer. Zool., 18: 586 (Abetract).

001.072 CRISOC76313 ANTIEACTERIAL MECEANICS IN CLAMS; CONTRIBUTION OF THE WATER STREAM

TIMONEY J F; MICEOBIOLOGY; COFNELL UNIVERSITY, ITBACA, NEW YCEE. 14853. Proj. No.: NYC-433379 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JAN 78 To 31 DEC 80

OEJECTIVES: Determine the rate of removal in the weterstream of Salmonella typhimurium, Sbigella flexneri, Escherichia coli, and Vibrio parahemalyticas from hard clams. Examine the hinding properties of clam mucus for these test bacteria.

APPROACE: Clams will be exposed to the test bacteria for one hour and then removed for u/v irridation of their outer surfaces to inactivate bacterie on their shells. The clame will then he placed in a model depuration tank which is designed for removal of all bacteria from the water. The rate of disappearance of the test organisms from the clam tissues will then he measured by timed samplings of randomly chosen clams. Mucus will be collected using a euitable irritant. The homogenized mucus will then be mixed with the test bacteria incubated at 200 end timed samples taken and centrifuged. Bacterial counts will he peformed on the supernatant and sediment.

PEOGRESS: 79/01 IC 80/12. The uptake and clearance of Salmonella typhimurium and Escherichia coli by actively siphoning clams was studied. The following conclusions are possible from the experiments performed. Enteric bacteria are rapidly concentreted 100X within actively siphoning cleas. Accumulated bacteria are then rapidly cleared. Counts of becteria are reduced 1,000X within 8 hours. A further 10X reduction occure hy 24 hours. Bacteria are cleared in the form of mucus-fecal aggregates which rapidly sediment in the water. Very few free bacteria are released. Clams which are prevented from eluphoning dc not clear themselves of becterie within 24 hours. Ionic phenomena are not important in binding of bacteria to mucus-fecal aggregatee.

PUELICATIONS: 79/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOC. FGENEY J L; NATURAL BESOURCES; CORNELL UNIVERSITY, ITBACA, NEW YORK. 14853. Proj. No:: NYC-147331 Froject Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 30 MAR 79 To 30 SEP 92

CRIS0077773

OBJECTIVES: Lefine the role of interspecific competition and predation in governing walleye recruitment from an analysis of fish community structures.

APPROACE: Reproductive success of walleye as measured by abundance of young and age composition of the population will be compared with size distribution and species composition of fisb communities in a wide spectrum of lakes. Information on community structure will be gathered primarily from the catch in gillnets and trawls. More specific information on the nature of interspecific competition and predation will be generated by following the fate of larval and fingerling walleye stocked in lakes with different densities and assemblages of potential predators or competitors. Role of walley in restructuring fish communites wall be assessed from pre-and post-surveys of lakes where walleye populations are established by stocking.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Beginning with a strong year-class in 1962, the walleye population in Chautauqua Lake, New York expanded from an occasional adult to over 50,000 mature fish in 1979. Analysis of scale samples, tagging records and other data showed that recruitment stabilized while growth and survival of walleye declined during the period of population expansion. Recruitment was initially highly variable with three year classes contributing 91% of the adult stock from 1862-1973, but subsequent cohorts were more uniform in size. Average length of a 5-year old male decreased from 515 mm in 1966-1973 to 436 mm in 1980 while adult survival declined from near 100% to about 70%. As walleye stocks expanded numbers of adult muskellunge decreased in the 1970s to about one-fourth the levels which prevailed in earlier years. The timing of events suggests the increase in walleye may have contributed to the collapse of suskellunge but analysis of historical data did not reveal any evidence of direct interactions. Feduced growth and survival may limit further expansion of walleye stock and favor development of a new equilibrius with muskellunge.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

001.074 CFIS0062657 INTEODUCTION OF WALLEYE AND MORLUNGE FINGERLINGS INTO A LAKE DOMINATED BY PREY SPECIES

YOUNGS W D: GREEN D M; NATURAL RESCURCES; CCENELL UNIVERSITY, ITHACA, NEW YORK. 14853. Proj. No.: NYC-147310 Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 APR 78 To 31 MAR 78

OBJECTIVES: Letermine survival and growth of walleye and norlunge (northern pike X muskellunge) fingerlings stocked in a lake dominated by prey species. Measure abundance of yellow perch and other prey species. Measure effect of walleye and norlunge populations on angling effort, catch and traits. Determine the suitability of stocking these fingerlings in other New York waters with similar predator-prey composition.

APPEOACE: Stock fingerling walleye and norlunge for 4 falls. Determine survival by population estimates in successive years. Determine growth by periodic capture of fish. Base prey species abundance on gill net indices compared to indices for 1972-76. Determine fishing effort, catch and angler trait changes by creel census, compared to 1973-76 census results.

FECGEESS: 79/01 TO 79/03. Project discontinued. Probably will be reinstated in 1981. Canadarago Lake bas been stocked with walleye and tiger musky (northern pike X muskellunge) fingerlings each fall

since 1577. In 1977 16508 walleye, mean size Somm and $5.8_{\pm},$ were stocked. Mean size of survivors was 250mm and 1.31_{\pm} in Fall 1978 and 365mm and 474_{\pm} in Fall 1979. Survival to Fall 1978 was 13.5% (10.7-12.3%). A preliminary estimate of survival From fall 1978 to Fall 1979 was 70%. Survival of fingerlings raisec on an artificial diet in hatchery troughs (101mm and 8.2g at stocking) was similar to pend raised fish. One male stocked in 1977 was mature in Spring 1979. Survival of 7025 fingerlings (raised on artificial diet) stocked in 1978 (78mm, 3.9g) to Fall 1979 was 0-1%. In late July 1979, 7255 pond raised fist (74mm, 2.6g) and in Sept. 1979, 3735 artificial diet fish (96mm, 6.7g) sere stocked. Recaptures of both of these groups in the fall was higher than in 1977 and 1978 (0.99/hr. and 0.36/hr., respectively, vs 0.02/hr. in 1978 and 0.38/hr. in 1977). In 1977 12500 tiger musky fingerlings were stocked (179mm, 27g). Mean size of survivors was 422mm and 400g in Fall 1978 and 620mm and 13945 in Fall 1979. Survival to Fall 1978 was 18% (11.1-100%). A preliminary estimate of survival from 1978 to 1979 was 50%. Survival of the 12500 stocked in 1978 (173mm, 26g) was on the order of 5% and they had grown 395mm and 287g.

PUBLICATIONS: 79/01 TO 79/03

EARK, T.E., FUHS, G.W., GREEN, D.M., BETLING, I.J., SWITE, S.E. and ALLEN, S.F. 1980. Lumnology of Canadarago Lake. In: Eloomfield, J. A. (ed.). Lakes of New York State. Vol. III. Ecology of the Lakes of East-Central New York State.

001.075 CF ISOU72691 POFULATION DYNAMICS OF LAEGENCUTE AND SMALLHOUTE EASS IN 16 NEW YORK LAKES

YOUNGS W D; GREEN D M; NATURAL RESOURCES; CCRNELL UNIVERSITY, ITHACA, NEW YCRK. 14853. Proj. No.: NYC-147324 Agency ID: SACES Period: 01 APR 77 To 31 MAE 82

OBJECTIVES: Determine growth, survival, population size and exploitation of bass in 16 New York lakes. Develop models to assess impact of present and potential fishing mortality and effectiveness of current management techni2ues on bass populations in the study lakes. Determine differential growth, survival and retention of mandible ring and disk dangler tags on bass in Canadarago Lake.

APFECACE: Study lakes will be electrofished in May. Bass collected will be processed for age and growth data and will be tagged. Trained volunteer anglers will maintain diaries relating fish caught and released as well as tag recaptures. Population statistics will be derived from both sources of data.

PEOGRESS: 80/01 TC 80/12. The third and final year of the collection of data by diary cooperators and by standard fishery sampling methods was completed in fall 1980. Data analysis and report preparation is expected to be completed late in 1982. Population estimates have been made for several of the study waters during 2 - 3 successive years. Population size of bass is greater than or equal to 254 mm has been variable in some lakes, with increases of 3 to 14 fold occurring in 1 year. Electro-fishing recaptures of bass tagged and released following capture by angling (artificial lures only) and those tagged and released following capture by electrofishing were compared. There were 103 smallmouth and 35 largemouth bass tagged after angling capture and 442 smallmouth and 111 largemouth tagged after capture by electrofishing. There was no significant difference in the recapture rate of bass originally captured by the two methods suggesting that anglers released bass do not suffer increased mortality due to being hocked and released. Actual participation by anglers volunteering to maintain diaries has been constant over 3 years (48 - 54%). Response rate (number of volunteers accounted for) at the end of the season increased to 70% in 1979 compared to 66% in 1977 and 1978.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

GREEN, D.M. and SCHONBOFF, B.J. 1980. Population Dynamics of Largemouth and Smallmouth Bass in New York Waters. New York Federal Aid Project F-35-R-3 (Annual Performance Report). N.Y.S. Dept. Environ. Cons., Albany, N.Y. 46 pp.

001.076 CRISO083084 Neueotransmitters, neueomodulatces, and loccmoticn

HARRIS-WARRICK R N; NEUROBICLOGY & EEHAVICI; COENELL UNIVERSITY, ITHACA, NEW YORK. 14853. Proj. No.: NYC-191410 Project Type: BATCH Agency ID: CSES Period: 01 NCV 80 To 30 SEP 83

OBJECTIVES: To study the roles of biogenic amines as long-term modulators of neuronal activity controlling posture and movement in the lotster, Bomarus americanus, and the sea lamprey, Petromyzon marinus.

APPROACH: The biochemical events that occur in the central nervous system to direct or modify ongoing behaviou are largely unknown. We have shown that two blogenic asires, octopamine and serotonin, appear to act as long-term modulators of central nervous activity controlling posture in the lotster. Using electrophysiclogical and biochemical approaches, we will study the detailed effects of these compounds on the activity and synaptic interactions of single identified neurons in the lobster CNS in an attempt to determine the molecular mechanisms of modulation of neural activity. We will seek similar effects of biogenic amines in the lamprey to see if these amines affect motor output in vertebrates (and perhaps man) as well as invertebrates.

001.077 CFIS0080411 VISUAL PIGMENT CHANGES DURING THE LIFE CYCLE OF THE AMERICAN EEL, ANGUILLA FOSTRATA

LOEW E E; PHYSIOLOGY; CORNELL UNIVERSITY, ITBACA, NEW YOSE. 14853. Proj. No.: NYC-195401 Project Type: HATCH

Agency ID: CSRS Period: 10 OCT 79 To 30 SEP 82 OBJECTIVES: Chromophore and opsin "type" will be

assertained for upstream, downstream migrant and resident eels, using the technique of microspectrophotometry (MSP). This allows direct examination of cones. The visual pigment composition for a given animal will be correlated with its age and other parameters such as color and eye diameter/body length. Since the visual pigment in other migrating species appear to "pre-adapt" them for their future environment, it may be possible to predict when and if a particular eel will migrate. These data will be correlated to those obtained for the European eel perhaps shedding some light on the question of speciation in eels.

APPRCACB: All analyses will be made using techniques standard to NSP. Exact visual rigment composition will be determined using two techniques. The first is by partial bleaching and the second is to bleach all pigment and regenerate new visual pigment using pure A1 and A2. Animals will be obtained in several ways. The first is to seine them personally during migration. Alternately, they will be obtained from "commercial sources". The last source will be from Prof. E.Brothers (CU). Correlations with European eel data will be made via an already ongoing collaboration with Dr. J. Lythgoe (U.Bristol). Any study invoking eyes of a species that undergoes dramatic physical changes during its life cycle demands backup histology to confirm the photoreceptor types present and their distribution within the retina. Little is known of retinal changes during metamorphosis.

001.078 AN INVESTIGATION OF THE ADAPTIVE SIGNIFICANCE OF MELANISM IN THE MALE MOSQUITOFISH, GAMBUSIA AFFINIS

MARTIN R G; BIOLOGY; AGRIC & TECB UNIVERSITY OF N C, GREENSBURG, NCEIB CARCLINA. 27412. Proj. No.: NC.X-003-5-79-221-1 Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 CCI 78 To 30 SEP 81

OBJECTIVES: Determine the following aspects of melanism in male mosquitofish: The mechanism of inheritance, competition with normal males for some resource or resources, vulnerability to predation compared with normal males, frequency of mating success compared with normal males.

APPROACE: For the 4 areas of investigation, the following approaches will be used: Mechanism of inheritance -- mating experiments; large scale collections from known sites, competition -- genetic size differences, competition for food, and competition for space experiments, prediction -predator perference in the laboratory, microhabitat investigation in the field, sexual selection -examination of female urogenital tracts for the presence of sperm.

PROGRESS: 80/03 TO 81/02. This year we completed analyzing the length and weight of melanistic mole mosquitofish compared to normal male mosquitofish from a large scale fish collection conducted on a Central Florida lake in the mid 1970's. The results showed conclusively that the average length of melanistic males was greater than that of normal males (23.3 vs i9.4 mm), and their average weight was also greater (202 wg. vs i35 mg.). Also analyzed were the results of a mating preference study, in which it was concluded that female mosquitofish do not demonstrate a mating preference for either melanistic or normal males when given a 50:50 choice regardless of whether or not a female had previous exposure to melanistic males. Finally, analyzed were the results of a breeding program between normal females and melanistic males, and discovered that in seven separate matings, 54 percent of the adult male offspring turned out to be melanistic. The appearance of the pattern of melanism in these males did not occur until the onset of sexual maturity. Also, only 9.67 percent of the F(i) generation adults were females, a rather serious sex ratio imbalance in these matings. In summary, although we still are not close to an answer to whatever the adaptive value of melaniam might be in male mosquitofish. Progress has been made in laying the groundwork to he able to arrive at an answer.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/03 TO 81/02

- MARTIN, E.G. 1980. Evidence Against Sexual Selection as a Factor in Maintaining Two Male Color Morphs in Populations of Nosquitofish, Gambusia affinis holbrooki. Bull. Ecol. Soc. America 61:80. (Abst.).
- MARTIN, R.G. and BONNER, M.J. 1980. The Proportion of Melanic Male Offspring Born to Melanic Male M Normal Female Mosquitofish, Gambusia affinis holbrooki. Abst. Papers Third Biennial Research Symp., Atlanta, GA. 1980. (Abst.)

001.079 ESTUARINE INVERTEERATE BEHAVIOP; AN INDEX OF SUBACUTE TORICITY OF AQUATIC BERHICIDES

BARTHALMUS G T; 200LOGY; N CAEOLINA STATE UNIVERSITY, BALEIGH, NORTE CAECLINA. 27650. Proj. No.: NC05397 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 15 JUN 77 To 31 DEC 78

OBJECTIVES: Determine the chronic, subacute bebavioral effects of 2,4-D herbicide on grass shrimp, Palaemonetes puglo Eclthuis; to explore the feasibility of assessing xenobiotic-induced behavioral dysfunctions of aquatic vertebrates and invertebrates by application of behavioral toxicology techniques. APPENACE: Dosages of 2,4-D which produce no lethality or locomotor dyefunction for 7 days following a 3 day post-collection period will be determined for adults and larvae. Then, the phototactic behavioral reflexes of dark adapted and dosed shring will be teeted daily in compartmentalized chambers illuminated by a horizontally directed, intensity controlled monocromatic light stimulus with a duration of 5s at 15e intervals for 5 replications. Sprimp in the compartment nearest the light will be designated photo-positive. Swimming speeds of larvae will be determined ir Petri disbes by measuring distances traveled per unit time.

PROGRESS: 77/07 TO 78/12. The effect on adult females, three larval stages, and eggs of the grass sbrimp, Palaemonetes pugio, exposed to eubacute doses of the herbicide Weedar-64 (registered trademark) (Am. Chem., Inc.), containing 49.3% of the dimethylamine salt of 2,4-dichlorophenoxyacetic acid, was tested. Auxiliary ingredients, mainly water, were assumed to be non-toxic. Alteration of phototamis was chosen as the indicator of an effect on adults and larvae; egges were examined for percent tatct. Photoactic patterns of larvae and adults receiving 100 ppm Weedar-64 daily were recorded for 12 days. Fositive phototaxis was reduced by 2,4-D in all three larval stages tested. Sensitivity varied with developmental stage (stage 1 was most sensitive). Stage 1 larval responses were altered more by 2,4-d exposure than by aging, but for stages 3 and 7, larval ages influenced phototaxis more than doses. Adults were unaffected. The doses tested did not affect the hatching of eggs.

PUBLICATIONS: 77/07 TO 78/12

MOYEE, C.A.J. 1978. Effect of the herbicide 2,4-d on the phototactic response of the grass ehrlmp, Palaemonetes puglo. M. S. Theeis. N. C. State University, Baleigh. 33 p.

001.080 CFIS0075631 FOSSIBLE CAUSES OF BLUEGILL LEPCHIS MADCOCCHIPUS DEFORMITIES

DEMONT D J; ZOOLCGY; N CARCLINA STATE UNIVERSITY, RALEIGE, NCETB CAECLINA. 27650. Proj. No.: NCC5447 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUN 79 To 31 MAE 80

OEJECTIVES: Examiine temperature shock, genetics, and water quality as poxxitle causes of deformities in bluegill sunfish in Lake Robinson, S. C.

APPEDACE: Fish will be spawned in the laboratory and the eggs and larvae will be subjected to temperature sbock at five stages in devlopment. Tests will be conducted using parental stock from Lake Rchinson and another source to detect genetic effects. Lake Ribinson water and water from another source will be used in duplicate tests to crudely assess the effeats of water quality.

PECGEESS: 79/06 TO 80/03. Work commenced on this project in July after authorization was received. Eluegills chosen from among those which seemed to be approaching spawning condition were stocked into 8 foot diameter fiberglass ponds for "natural spawning." The fish fed poorly and no spawning activity was observed through mid-September. Attempts to strip and fertilize bluegill eggs in the laboratory were also unsuccessful. Even with the injections of Human Chorionic Gonadotropin used late in the summer, eggs obtained were rarely fully developed. Those few eggs which began development died within 24-30 hours. I concluded in early September that further attempts to induce spawning in 1979 were futile and halted work and further spending on the project. This acticn was communicated to Carolina Power and Light Company officials in a meeting on the 19th of September, 1978. The project will he revised and extended before March 31, 1980 or will be terminated with remaining monies reverting back to Carolina Power and Light Company as per our contractural agreement.

PUELICATIONS: 79/06 TC 80/03 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED TEIS PERIOC.

001.081 CFIS0069601 TER STATUS, ABUNDANCE, AND WIELD OF THE STRIPED BASS IN THE BOANOKE BIVER, NORTH CAROLINA

BASSLER W W; BILL N L; ZOCLOGY; N CARCLINA STATE UNIVERSITY, BALEIGE, NORTE CAROLINA. 27650. Proj. No.: NC05352 Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 75 To 30 JUN 78

OBJECTIVES: Delineate the status, abundance, and the ecological factors escential to the perpetuation of the Striped Bass population in the Roanoke Liver.

APPROACH: Before the bass migrate upetream a creel census will provide a base for analysis of subsequent censuses taken as the bass move upstream. In the spawning area (Balifax, N. C.) counts of eggs will provide eetimates of productivity. Measurement of rate of flow, extent of turbidity, temperature and other factors will indicate factors essential to perpetuation.

PEOGRESS: 75/07 IC 79/06. The commercial catch of striped bass in the Roanoke River from 1975-79 was 19,989; 7,156; 10,465; 16,253; and 10,000 fisb respectively. Anchor gill nots were the most successful commercial gear used. The striped tass sport catch for 1975-79 was 22,219; 40,789; 32,983; 28,016; and 25,419 fish respectively. The CUE for these years was 3.61, 4.00, 3.27, 2.76, and 3.25 striped base/boat. Tagging was conducted on striped hass from 1976-79. The exploitation rates were 22.73, 13.47, 21.24, and 13.0% respectively. Tranling in the Albemarle Sound nursery area (1975-79) resulted in catcb/trawl of 10.80, 10.52, 3.63, 0.59, and 0.55 young-of-year striped bass. Reduced catches in 1978 and 1979 were associated with high river discharge flows during the spawning season. Estimates of striped bass egg production for 1975-75 were 2.19, 1.5, 1.76, 1.69, and 1.61 billion eggs respectively. The annual estimated striped bass spawning population wae 3.27, 2.78, 3.48, 3.54, and 3.43 x 10 5 respectively. In 1978 trawling studies in the lower Roanoke River resulted in the collection of 14,309 fish of which white perch was the dominant species.

PUELICATIONS: 75/07 TO 79/06 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED FINAL REPORT PERIOD

001.082 Linnology of farm ponds CFIS0073509

MILLER J M; ZOOLOGY; N CAROLINA STATE UNIVERSITY, EALEIGH, NCETE CASCLINA. 27650. Proj. No.: NC03556 Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 JUL 77 To 30 SEP 80

OBJECTIVES: Determine the important factors controlling quality and quantity of fish production in N.C. farm ponds. Develop a capability to diagnose and recommend treatment for various pond problems fish disease, fish die-off, nuleance weeds, etc. Collaborate with others as necessary in publishing and revising guidelines for farm pond management as Ag. Extension Bulletins.

APFROACE: During the first year, determine the ranges of farm pond types in North Carolina and their important physico-chemical and biological factors influencing fish production. Begin intensive studies to determine the relationships between the above and fish production and pond "problems." This will include experimental manipulations in small enclosures in some ponds, food chain studies and a survey of fish parasites. Follow-up studies of fish stockings by the State will be performed.

PEOGRESS: 77/07 TO 50/0S. Ranks of the primary productivities of 3 study ponds in the Faleigh area were: L-26; Yates and A-2. Zooplankton was highest in Yates, while benthos was highest in L-6. Competition, measured as dietary overlap between size classes of fish, was highest in A-2, and least in L-6. Competition was most severe in mid-summer, suggesting growth depression. Turbidity depressed feeding rates of bluegill sunfish 50% but did not cause a shift in preferred prey size. Perceptual blae was not responsible for the size selection of prey; rather a bypothesis of behavioral preference was supported. Data collected from previous years was aseembled as a basis for submitting a proposal to OWRT entitled "Effects of Low-Level Turbidity on Fishee". This proposal was accepted and a grant of \$126,108 was awarded 1 October 1979. A technique using radioactive glycine uptake by fish scalee was developed to determine ebort-term growth rates of fishes in relation to turbidity. A method was developed to separate the effects of blotic and ablotic particles on turbidity. A precipitation technique for manipulating turbidity in ponds was developed. A 50 channel, computer interfaced, scanner was purchased to continuously monitor relative humidity, water and air temperature, oxygen, wind speed and direction and light.

PUBLICATIONS: 77/07 TO 80/09

GARDNEE, N.E. 1979. The Effects of Turbidity on Feeding Eates and Prey-Size Selection by the Bluegill Sunfish (Leponie macrochirus): a Test of a Foraging-Strategy Byrothesis. N.S. Thesis. Dept. of Zoology, NCSU.

001.083 ECGLOGY OF JUVENILE FISEES IN NC ESTOREIES

MILLER J M; ZCOLOGI; N CAEOLINA STATE UNIVERSITY, RALEIGH, NORTH CARCLINA. 27650. Proj. No.: NCO5435 Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JAN 79 To 30 JUN 81

OBJECTIVES: To estimate the seasonal abundance of juvenile scieenid fiebes in the Parlico Fiver estuary. To relate their distribution to certain environmentl factors such as depth and vegetation. To determine their focd habits, local availability of these foods items, and ratee of consumption.

APPROACE: Sample juvenile fishes and their food approximately viweekly in the Pamlico Hiver estuary in relation to major habitat features. Perform analyses of these data and data from the Department of Natural Resources and Community Development to determine the critical featuree of nursery areas.

PROGRESS: 79/01 TO 81/06. Juvenile fish populations were sampled in Rose Bay, N.C., for a period of two years. They enter the estuary as poet-larvae in December and January and grow there for about 8 months before migrating off shore as adults. During this nursery period they eat mainly zooplankton, clam siphons, polycheate worms, as well as a member of min or dietary organism. Sampling showed reduced abundance in areas subject to salinity depression and variation due to freebwater runoff through canale. Spot and croaker are more or less ubiquitous in Rose Bay, while other species, e.g., specked trout, red drum and silver perch are more restricted to submerged grass beds. There was much dietary overlap among species suggesting the possibility of food competition. Growth rates and mortality ectedules are being analyzed now to test this hypothesis. Spot and croaker, the two dominant species, are segregated on the babitat axes of salinity and temperature. Spot bave a higher optimum temperature than croaker which is reflected in a higher growth rate for croaker in early Spring and a higher growth rate for spot in summer. The high abundance of food and low mortality rates suggest that the major limiting factore to these juvenile fish populations are reduced habitats owing to salinity variability and the lack of abundance of submerged vegetation. Four Master's theses and one Ph.C. dissertation are in progress on the project.

PUBLICATIONS: 79/01 TO 81/06

WILLEE, J.N. and DUNN, N.L. 1980. Feeding strategies and patterns of movement in juvenile estuarine fisbes. In V.S. Kennedy, Ed. Estuarine Perspectives Academic Prese, N.Y. 533 p. 001.084 USB OF BENTBIC MACEOINVERTEBRATES IN N. C. FISBERT MANAGEMENT AND VATER QUALITY ASSESSMENT

MOZLEY S C; ZCOLOGY; N CAROLINA STATE UNIVERSITY, RALEIGE, NORTE CAROLINA. 27656. Proj. No.: NCO3632 Agency ID: CSES Period: 01 NOV 78 10 31 DEC 81

OEJECTIVES: Determine the control exerted by predatory midge larvae (Chaoborus) over zocplankton in N.C. ponde, and develop a taxonmic key to N.C. Chironomidae larvae with a supporting reference collection.

APPECACE: The distribution, seasonal cycles and feeding habits of Chaoborus in campus ponds will be determined. Experimental variation of Chaoborus and food densities will be used to test for controlling ability. Specimens of Chironomidae submitted by state agencies and industry will bu used to revisee and newly illustrate older keye which were written for other geographical regions.

PECGRESS: 78/07 TO 81/06. One general objective of this project was to document species composition, timing of the life cycle, seasonal population fluctuations, depth distribution, production and migratory behavior for Chaoborus (Diptera, Chaoboridae) in Yates Pond. Two speices were found in Yates Pond, C. punctipennis and an undescribed, smaller one. Both probably pass through two or more generations per year. Fall population densities increase steeply with depth, reflecting the refuge from predatory fish offered by anoxic deept waters. Usually, less than 10% of all Chaotorus were floating above bottom during the day, but a consistent 90% moved out of the eedlments at night. Chaoborus was most abundant when anoxic water was present in summer and fall, but decreased an order of magnitude in winter and spring. Incomplete studiee incluce production, feeding habits and the ecological role of Chaoborus in structuring zooplankton communities. The other project objective was to produce a toxonomic key to Chironomidae (Diptera) larvae for North Carolina, a diverse group useful as biological indicators of water quality. A key to the subfamily Orthodadlinae was devised, covering 65 northern-hemisphere genera. Representatives of 41 genera (7 undescrited) were found in collections from the state's streams and rivers, and another 10 genera are expected to show up in further collections. The key greatly increased the capability of water quality biologists to identify stream fauna.

PUBLICATIONS: 78/07 TO 81/06

WOZLEY, S.C. 1980. Eiological Indicators of Water Quality in North Carolina. I. Guide to Generic Identification of Orthocladiine Chironomidae (Diptera). Report to the North Carolina Department of Natural Resources and Community

001.085 CFIS0073132 THE EFFECTS OF AFTIFICIAL STRUCTURES OF GAME FISH IN A BOREOW PIT POND

JOHNSON D L; LAESCN E; PISHEFIES 6 WILDLIFF; CHIO AGFIC RES AND DEVLP CENTER, WCOSTEF, CEIO. 44691. Proj. No.: OHCOUGOOS Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSES Period: C1 JUL 77 To 30 SEP 80

OEJECTIVES: Develop and evaluate a new device called a pop net for eampling various types of artificial cover. Also to chonicle the development of the arfwuchs and flsb communities associated with both tire and stake structures at various depths. Also to determine the use made by various species and sizes of game flsb.

APPROACH: Construct 12 reefe about 25 metere long each made up of 5 separate units each about 1.5 meters high. The reefs will extend into the lake from the north shore. Six of those reefs will be made up of thre structures and the other eix of verticle stake heds. Half of the tire reefs will be kept food-free with bi-weekly scrubbing while the remaining reefs will develop attached communities normally. A new net device, SCUEA, and angling will
all be used to evaluate the effect of depth, cover type, and focd availability on fish community development and fish behavior.

PROGRESS: 77/01 TO SU/09. The pop net has been developed to sample artificial structure. The floor of the cylindrical, open-ended net is placed on the lake bottom, the 4 m diameter circular wall collapsed, and secured around the floor's perimeter. Structure to be sampled is placed on the net floor. The net released mechanism is triggered remotely. The net wall with floats rises, enclosing the structure and associated fish. Eighteen tests were conducted in clear water to determine pop net efficiency. Escapement rates were 0.5% and 2.1% respectively for bluegills (Leponis macrochirus) 75-130 mm and large-mouth bass (Micropterus salmoides) 180-230 mm in total length. No bluegill greater than 160 mm and bass greater than 315 mm escaped. A total of 671 fish were susceptible to capture. Of these, 4 escaped resulting in a net efficiency of 99.4%. Initial examination of data suggests that number of hluegill captured, regardless of size, is inverse to the perceptage of small bass associated with structure. Also, number of small bass captured is inverse to the percentage of small bluegill associated with structure. An inverse relationship is also suggested for water temperature and the percentages of small bluegill and all fish associated with structure.

PUELICATIONS: 77/01 TO 80/09

NC PUBLICATIONS REPORTED FINAL REPORT PERIOD.

001.086 CEISO072485 POTENTIAL EATVEST OF LARE ERIE VEITE CEAPPIE PROM AN ADJOINING ROLFOW PIT

TRIFLETT J E; LECKIE F D; FISHERIES & WILDLIFE; CHIO AGRIC RES AND DEVLP CENTER, WCCSTER, OHIO. 44651. Proj. No.: OHO00258 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JAN 77 To 31 MAK 79

OBJECTIVES: Letermine the potential for increasing accessibility and harvest of fish populations, particularly white crappie, from large bodies of water through fisheries in small adjoined bodies of water.

APPEGACE: The study area will be mapped. Easic limnological parameters will be monitored in the borrow pit and the immediate bay area to detect differences or potential limiting factors. Mark and recapture studies, scnar scans, test netting and electrofishing will provide an estimate of migration into and out of the immediate bay area and the borrow pit. Fisbing pressure and total harvest in both areas will be estimated by creel surveys. The populations structure of white crappie will be determined and compared in both areas from fish sampling data. Management recommendations will be developed on the basis of the significance of migrations and possible causes.

PECGRESS: 77/01 TO 79/03. In 552 hours of sampling, a total of 938 adult fish (19 species) moved through a culvert connecting a borrow pit with Sandusky Bay. Of these, 506 (53.9%) were moving from the Bay into the borrow pit. White crappie (6.3%) and black crappie (4.1%) together represented a greater percentage of the total catch than all other species except gizzard shad and brown bullheads. Culvert current direction regulated the direction of fish movements; of 755 movements during discernible flow, 82.9% were counter current. Spawning activity appeared to determine which species, what size, and when movements occurred. In the borrow pit, larger, older fish of both cappie species wee prevalent in the spring inshore trap sets, culvert movements, and the fishermen's creel, while smaller crappie (150mm or less) were abundant offshore and dominated the summer fish collections. Elack crappie consistently showed up earlier than did white crappie in all sampling methods. This difference in the timing of seasonal activities between the two indicated that black crapple are actife earlier in the spring, and suggested black crabble may spswn earlier than white crappie. The estimated net gain of adult white and black crapple moving into the borrow pit potentially

represented $7{\,\cdot\,}6\%$ and $6{\,\cdot\,}1\%$ of each species tarvest respectively.

PUELICATIONS: 77/01 TO 79/03 NO PUBLICATIONS SEPARTED THIS PERIOD.

001.087 Culture of Pacific Salmon

LANNAN J E; FISBBRIES & WILDLIFE; CREGCN STATE UNIVERSITY, CORVALLIS, OREGCN. 97331. Proj. No.: OREO0163 Project Type: STATE

Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 73 To 30 DEC 84

CHIS0064796

OEJECTIVES: Determine the relationship between incubation density and fry quality in shallow gravel incubators.

APPROACH: Chum salmon eggs will be incubated at six densities ranging from 1000 to 10,000 eggs per square foct of gravel, with six replicates of each density. Emergence timing, size at emergence, yolk utilization and proximate tissue analysis will be compared between and within treatments (densities). The fry quality criteria will also be compared to natural fry. Samples from each treatment will be marked and released and the relationship between density and survival subsequently observed.

PECGRESS: 80/01 TC 80/12. Within the tested range of 1000 - 7000 eyed eggs/ft 2 gravel substrate (1.05 -7.53 eggs/cm. 2), the optimum stocking density for chum salmon (Cncorhynchus keta) eggs in shallow matrix substrate incubators occurred at 3,000-4,000 eggs/ft 2. Premature fry, which predominated early emergence, showed greater variability in lipid content than fry at peak emergence. Cumulative premature fry emergence was lowest at 3000 - 4000 eggs/ft 2 and highest at 5000 - 7000 eggs/ft 2. Early emerging fry are considered to be of lesser quality than peak emerging fry because the observed increase in variation in lipid content (i.e. primary energy reserve) may lead to increased variation in survival during seaward migration. Neither survival (from egg stocking to emergence) nor the gross body composition (determined by proximate analysis) of emerging fry were affected by egg stocking density. Development indices decreased in a linear fashion throughout emergence but the slope and intercept of the line did not differ among egg stocking densities. The frequency of yolk sac adnormalities was negligible in all treatments. The water content of fry increased from early to late emergence while dry weights remained relatively constant. The implications of this observation are discussed. Application of these results depends on the relative importance of bioloigical vs. economic optimization in a hatchery. 3,000-4,000 eggs/ft 2 favors high quality fry production, while 7,000 eggs/ft 2 sinimizes the cost of producing each fry.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

KAPUSCINSKI, A. 1980. In Search of the Optimum Stocking Density for Chus Salmon (Oncorhynchus keta) Eggs in Shallow Matrix Substrate Incubators. M.S. Thesis. Cregon State Univ. Corvallis, Oregon. 36 pp.

001-088 CRIS0075513 CERONIC TURBIDITY AND STRESS IN JUVENILE COEO SALMON AND STEELEEAD TROUT

SCHRECK C B; FISHERIBS 6 WILDLIFE; OREGON STATE UNIVERSITY, CORVALLIS, OREGON. \$7331. Proj. No.: OFE00401 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 25 APR 78 To 31 DEC 80

OEJECTIVES: Objectives will be met by answering: Is there a generalized, physiological reponse to stress in juvenile salmonids: are the physiological responses to stress correlated or related to reduced fitness; does stress produce predictable physiological responses?. APFEGACE: Juvenile cono salmon and steelhead trout will be exposed tosiltation and their resitance to other stresses determined. Clinical chemistries involving primary aspects of the general adaptation syndrome of stress, such as cortisol, will be monitored.

PECGEESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Juvenile coho slamon and steelhead trout exposed to suspended topsoil, clay or Mt. St. Helens volcanic ash had evaluated plasma cortisol, suggesting that exposure to high levels of suspended solids is a moderately stressful condition. Although cordisol returned to pre-stress levels and osmoregulatory performance of the fish was not affected by exposure to sediment, topscil significantly reduced the fish's tolerance to the pathngen Vibric anguillarum. The absence of light during imposition of stree may mitigate in part the reaction to the stress.

```
FUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12
NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.
```

001.055 CEISO063604 PERFORMANCE CF SALMONIDS: SMOLTIFICATION, STEESS AND FITNESS

 SCERECK C E; FISHERIES & WILDLIFE; OREGCN STATE

 UNIVERSITY, CCEVALIES, CRECCN. \$7331.

 Proj. No.: OEB00908
 Project Type: STATE

 Agency ID: SAES
 Period: 02 FEE & TO 30 JUN & 6

OBJECTIVES: Increase percent return of anadromous salmonids by providing an understanding of the functional basis of parr-smolt transformation. Monitor clinical indicators of smoltification. Conduct tests of performance as indicators of smolt quality to signify effects of rearing conditions on development.

APPROACE: Analyze clinical criteria of smoltification, particularly those associated with the endocrine system. Specifically, determine effects of loading regimes on smolt performance criteria; determine effects of loading, regimes on smolt-indicators; determine correlations of smolt-indicators and performance and determine effects of loading on food consumption and feed conversion efficiency and correlate nutritional status with smolt performance and smolt-indicators.

001.090 CFIS0069301 COLUMBIA RIVER CHINOOK SALMON STUDY

SCBRECK C B; KRISTIANSSON A C; FISBERIES 6 WILDLIFE; OREGON STATE UNIVERSITY, CORVALIS, OREGON. 57331. Proj. No.: OFE00313 Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 CCT 75 To 30 JUN 78

OBJECTIVES: Letermine biological and environmental factors influencing run size of Columbia River spring cbinook salmon. Predict the future of anadromous salmonid runs in the upper Columbia River.

APPROACH: A computerized file of physical and biological data will be constructed. Relationships between fixed parameters with correlation analyses will be defined. Correlation and regression techniques will be utilized to isolate those combinations of variables that appear to have the most important influence on run-strength of spring chinook salmon. The analysis will proceed to the development of a model of sufficient sophistication to predict, with an acceptable level of confidence, annual run-strength for spring chinook salmon.

PECGRESS: 79/01 TO 79/12. A statistical analysis of factors influencing the survival rate of both upper Columbia River and Lemhi River spring chinook salmon was performed using correlation and multiple regression techniques. Ocean upwelling and Columbia River flow regimes during outmigration may influence the survival rates of the studied fish. A theoretical model characterizing a Columbia River spring chinook Salmon population was developed to (i) suggest the types of data to be collected in future studies, and (2) suggest the nature of functional relationships influencing selected life history events. An outline for a management model was developed within the framework of the theoretical biological model to illustrate a potentially useful application of the modeling effort.

PUELICATIONS: 79/01 TO 79/12

BARTON, A.C. 1975. Pactors influencing the life bistory of spring chinook salmon (Oncorhynchus tshawytscha) spawning in the Columbia River watershed from 1960 to 1877. Ph.D. Thesis, Cregon State University. 243 pp.

U01.091 CRIS0066734 STOCK DYNAMICS AND ASSESSMENT IN MARINE FISHERIES

 TYLER A V; FISHEFIES & WILDLIFE; OREGCN STATE

 UNIVERSITY, CCEVALLIS, CREGON. S733i.

 Prcj. No.: OFE00254

 Project Type: STATE

 Agency ID: SAES

 Period: Ui JUL 74 To 30 JUN 81

OBJECTIVES: Provide a revised statistical area map for Landings of Cregon groundfish that will improve assessment of fish stocks and provide the tasis for a standardized inter-state unit of fishing effort.

APPROACH: Compile and chart local distribution of recent Oregon landings of principal groundfish species from commercial log-book data of the Fish Commission of Oregon. Analyze and chart distribution of major assemblages of continental shelf fishes, including principal species landed, potentially exploitable species, and minor species. Analyses will be made with recurrent group, species-association coefficient methods. Eased on the distribution of major assemblages of fishes, develop a proposal for revised statistical reporting areas that will be small enough to allow analysis of the status of individual stocks. This map will also provide the basis for a standardized inter-state unit of fishing effort.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 IC 80/12. We propose that management concerns for continental shelf fishes must include not only yield maximization goals on target species (mcdified by social concerns to OI), but also fist assemblage maintenance goals. NSY oriented management has been shown with models to simiplify fishery systems toward species with highest productivity rates. However, there is no assurance that simplified, high production portions of formerly species-rich assemblages can persist in ocean systems. Our analyses of research trawling surveys have indicated there are geographic fish-species assemblages. We conceptualize that each assemblage is part of a geographically definable natural production system of interacting organisms (a "community"). The "regular" species of the community having strong trophic linkages among themselves comprise an "assemblage production unit" (APU). The "regular" species are those that are present in every season. As a management technique for the APU, we propose that monitoring the transition states following controlled pulse fisbing by the commercial dragger fleet may be a means of exploring and maintaining the viability of the APU's. These pulses could be applied simultaneously to a group of near-replicate APU's. The goal would be to find the limits of repetitive pulse fishing that would allow persistence of APU structure

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

BAYWAN, R.A., TYLEE, A.V. and DEMORY, R.L. 1980. A Comparison Between Cohort Analysis and Catch per Unit Effort Using Dover Sole (Miscrostomus pacificus) and English Sole (Paraphrys vetulus). Trans. Am. Fish. Soc. 109:35-53.

- BAYMAN, R.A. and TYLEE, A.V. 1980. Environment and Cohort Strength of Dover Sole (Microstomus pacificus) and English Sole (Paraphrys vetulus). Trans. Am. Fish. Soc. 109:54-70.
- GABRIBL, W.L. and TYLER, A.V. 1980. Preliminary Analysis of Pacific Coast Demersal Fish Assemblages. Marine Fisheries Keview. March-April: 83-88.

BUTLER R L; EIOLOGY; PENNSYLVANIA STATE UNIVERSITY, UNIVERSITY PARK, PENNSYLVANIA. 16802. Proj. No.: PEN01757 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 67 To 30 SEP 79

OBJECTIVES: Letermine what components of cover are related to its use, the role of cover as a determinant of population size, the effects of cover on agonistic and aggressive behavior, and to test response to cover as a bioassay for chronic toxicity.

APPROACE: Procedures will be carried out in a stream aquarium where water velocities, water temperature, water quality and light can be controlled. Cbservations will be made with six different types of artificial cover. Euncan's multiple range test will he used to define gradient of use among the covers. Covers found to be most intensively used under the stream aquarium conditions will be introduced in a natural stream without cover. Population changes will be noted through the use of electrofishing gear. Agonistic and aggressive behavior between two or more fish will be quantified by noting the number and type of frontal and lateral displays, attacks and attitudes of submission or appeasement. Statistical comparisons will be made hetween the utilization of cover under "unpolluted" soft and hard water conditions versus polluted conditions characteristic of mine acid drainage or industrial wastes.

PROGRESS: 78/01 TO 79/09. Utilization of overhead cover among 12 strains of inbred brook trout was significantly different. Cover utilization has a genetic base. Response of wild juvenile smallmouth hass to 11 different types of cover in a stream aquarium was related to the following features of coverts: tactual reference, visual reference, area of darkness, and quiet water. The two coverts that supplied all four of the features were significantly higher in utilization. Utilization of the best coverts under a regime of decreasing pH from 7 to 4 provided no significant difference. Distress movements was significantly higher at lower pH levels. However, under a regime of decreasing dissolved oxygen from S ppm to 5 ppm cover utilization decreased significantly with any change of 2 or more ppm. Activity, that is swimming from quadrat to quadrat, increased. Cover utilization increased significantly under artificially controlled increases in Tennessee No. 10 tall clay from <10 nephelometric turbidity units to >100 NTU. Utilization of cover by adult wild brown trout in a semi-natural stream was significantly higher than that of brown trout of long domestication. These differences persisted in two different sections of stream taken at two different seasons and whether resident or non-resident as populations were doubled with superimposition of either hatchery or wild stock in the same section.

PUELICATIONS: 78/01 TO 79/09

- HUTLEE, FOFFFT L., HAWTHORNE, VEENON 1975. Anchor ice -- its formation and effects on aquatic life. Science in Agri. 26(1): 1pp.
- HAWT HORNE, VERNCN, HUTLER, ROHEET L. 1979. A Trout Stream in Winter. A 16 mm color and sound documentary. Psychological Cinema Register. 18 minutes.
- SCLABEN, JAMES B. 1979. Comparative behavior of hatchery-reared and wild brown trout and its relation to intergroup competition in a stream. Ph.D. thesis. Pa. State Univ., 156 pp. YOUNG, Jobn R. 1975. The behavioral response of
- smallmouth bass ('Micropterus' 'dolomieui) to increased turbidity. M.S. Thesis. Pa. State Univ.

001.093 CGEOGRAPHY AND ECOLOGY OF FISHES IN PENNSYLVANIA

CCCPER E L; EICLOGY; PENNSYLVANIA STATE UNIVERSITY, UNIVERSITY PARK, PENNSYLVANIA. 16802. Froj. No.: PEN02276 Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSRS

Period: 01 JUL 77 To 30 JUN 81

OBJECTIVES: Neasure the impact of environmental disturbance on patterns of distribution of fish species; investigate the phylogeny of selected fish groups in order to assess the validity of species nomenclature.

APPBOACH: The severity of environmental degradation due to acid mine drainage, soil erosion, industrial pollution or other disturbances to aquatic habits will be correlated with the presence or absence of species of fishes known to be sensitive to these forms of pollution. Predictions of the level of pollution permissable to maintain diverse fish pollutions are then possible. Studies will be continued to better understand the diversity of taxa and the geographic distribution of fishes in northeastern United States.

PEOGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Work is continuing on a manuscript "Fishes of Pennsylvania" which is in Press. The phylogeny of the sculpins (Teleostei: Cottidae) of eastern North America has been revised by detailed electrophoretic and meristic anaylsis of many Appalachian species and populations. An acceptable thesis is now being prepared for publication.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

STRUASS, R. E. 1980. Geographic variation and the intra- and interspecific relationships of eastern North American freshwater sculpins (Teleostei: Cottidae). The Graduate School, Penn State Univ., Ph.D. Thesis, 210 p.

001.094 CFISCO68635 STUDIES OF THE ECONOMICALLY INPORTANT SPECIES: MERCENARIA MERCENARIA AND MACGOBRACEIUM ROSENEERGII

EVERSOLE A G; ENTOMOLOGY & ECCNCMIC 200LOGY; CLEMSONUNIVERSITY, CLEMSON, SOUTH CAROLINA. 29631.Proj. No.: SC00155Project Type: STATEAgency ID: SAESPeriod: 01 JUL 75 To 30 JUN 80

OEJECTIVES: Objectives of the Mercenaria phase are: Explore important biological and ecological aspects of rearing clams; investigate the extent and nature of natural clam populations; and provide environmental estuarine base-line data. Objectives of the Wacrobrachium phase are: Investigate the effects of mirex on Wacrobrachium; and investigate the feasibility of polyculturing Wacrobrachium.

APPBOACH: Approach of the Mercenaria phase includes: Evaluations of artificial seeding and growing programs; regular sampling and collection analysis of natural populations; and determination of biological, chemical and physical characteristics of clam hatitats. Approach of the Nacrobrachium phase includes: Nonitoring the effects of exposure to mirex; and analyzing niche utilization in polyculture situations.

PECGEESS: 80/01 TO 80/06. Juvenile and postlarval Macrobrachium rosenbergli were exposed to mirex concentrations of 0.1, 10,50,150,500 and 1000 ug/l, plus control, for 96 hours. Whole animal residue analysis indicated postlarvae and juveniles concentrated mirex, and mortality response appeared tc follor residue levels. Postlarvae and juveniles excosed to 1000 ug/l accumulated girex up to 513x and 88x control levels, respectively. Mirex residues in juveniles were greatest in nerve tissue with levels up to 250x control. Residue analysis of test water revealed a 10-fold decline in mirex concentrations over 96 hours. Residues were not detected in the water from control, 0.1, 10, 50, 100 and 150 ug/l treatments, and only 126 and 165 ug/l mirex was found remaining after 96 hours in water from 500 and 1030 ug/l mirex treatments, respectively. Three studies with hard clams, Mercenaria mercenaria, were initiated in 1980. Two studies were deslaned to determine growth of hard clams cultured in South Carolina, and a third to evaluate reproductive responses to increased density.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/06

- AAS, C.A. and EVERSOLE, A.G. 1980. Effect of mirex on postlarval Macrohrachium rosenbergli in different water hardnesses. Eull. S.C. Acad. Sci. 42:72.
- AAS, C.A. 1980. Effects of mirex on Macrobrachium rosenbergil in various water hardnesses. M.S. Thesis. Clemson Univ. South Carolina. 34 p.

001.095 ANALYSIS OF FEEDATION OF MERCEMARIA MERCEMARIA ET DECAPOD CRUSTACEANS

EVERSOLE A G; ENTOMOLOGY & ECCNCMIC ZOCLCGY; CLEMSON UNIVERSITY, CLEMSON, SOUTH CAROLINA. 28631. Proj. No.: SC00205 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 76 To 30 SEP 80

OEJECTIVES: Letermine the predators (i.e. decapod crustaceans) of seed clams; determine the important factors influencing predation; investigate alternate methods for controlling predation; and evaluate these methods in pilot culturing systems.

AFFEGACE: Collecting potential predators and evaluate stomach contents; examining rates of predation hy principal predators under controlled lahoratory conditions when variables such as size of prey and predators are altered, water temperature is varied and different substrate composites are used; and finally, to test prospective methods of reducing predation in field conditions.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/09. Mercenaria mercenaria maintained in protected trays provided estimates of annual mortality rates for claus 3-5 and 1-5.5 years of age. Claus 3-5 years old averaged 51.12 mm SL (range, 31.6-72.2 mm) at planting and 58.53 mm SL (38.0-74.7 mm) two years later. Claus 1-5.5 years old starting at 24.74 mm SL (11.7-35.3 mm) reached 64.45 mm SL (50.1-78.0 mm) after 4.5 years growth. Annual mortality rates without predation were 1.43% and 1.98% for claus age 3-5 and 1-5.5, respectively.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 10 80/09 NO PUELICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERICD.

001.096 CFIS0083473 PRELIMINARY STUDIES ON CRAVFISE AND FRESEWATER SERIMP DISEASES

SIS R F; LEWIS D B; LEE E J; VETERINARY ANATCMY; TEXAS A6M UNIVERSITY, COLLEGE STATICN, TEXAS. 77843. Proj. No.: TEX06531 Project Type: ANIMAL BEALTB Agency ID: CSRS Period: 04 MAE 81 TO 03 MAE 82

OBJECTIVES: The objectives are to assess the effects of water hardness on shell calcium content, shell morphology and colonization of chithoclastic tacteria on Frocambarus sp. and Macrobrachium rosenbergli and characterize the benocytes of Frocamharus sp. (crawfish) and correlate types with water hardness.

APPECACE: Percent shell calcium content will be determined from atomic absorption analysis. Shell morphology will be described by scanning electron microscopy and electron X-ray micropobe analysis. Colinization of bacteria will be quantified using standard bacteriologic techniques. Hemocytes will be histologically identified and enumeration studies will be done with a Coulter Counter.

001.097 CRISCO64272 POPULATION CEARACTERISTICS OF TEXAS GULF OF MEXICO FISEES

CEITTENDEN M E; WILDLIFE & FISHERIES SCI; TEXAS AGM UNIVERSITY, CCLLEGE STATION, TEXAS. 77843.
 Proj. No.: IEX06049-S
 Project Type: STATE

 Agency ID: SAES
 Period: 30 JUN 75 To 29 JUN 80

OBJECTIVES: Determine abundance, species, and size of fishes. Determine seasonality and distribution of fishes and factors affecting their seasonality, distribution and abundance. Delineate communitites and life histories of Gulf of Mexico fishers. Assess attainable fish yields and potential effects of coastal development, oil related activities and superport construction.

APPROACE: collect fishes with a trawl, aboard research vessels and obtain hydrographic data such as deptb, temperature, salinity and sedlments at each station. Other capture techniques such as seines, gill nets, hand-lines, long-lines and angling will he employed in special situations. Stomach contents will be identified and measured for food habits studies. Scales, otoliths or other hard parts will be collected to age specimens for studies of population dynamics.

FROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Continued studies on life histories and population dynamics of Gulf of Mexico demersal fishes have emphasized sand seatrout (Cynoscion arenarius). Sand seatrcut mature as they approach age I. Spawning occurs in a distinct Spring period (March to May) and in a distinct Late Summer period (August to September). Spawning coincides with the periodicity of onshore winds and surface currents which transport eggs and larvae to estuarine and inchore Gulf nurseries. The main Gulf nursery in the northwestern area lies in water shallower than 18 meters. Estuarine nurseries may be most important to Late Summer spawned groups. Both spawned groups leave estuarine nurseries in the fall to overwinter in the Gulf. The largest specimen captured hy trawling was 342 mm total length, and 99.5% wer less than 280 mm. The typical maximum life span was 1-2 years for trawling years and possibly 2-3 years for other years. The total annual mortality rate was best estimated at 99.79% hased on trawling data and appears to he no lower than 80-90% if maximum life span typically is as great as three years. The apparent temporal isolation of the two spawned groups produced each year suggests they may be separate populations or species. Sand seatrout population dynamics stress short life spans, high mortality rates and rapid turnover of hiomass. This supports previous suggestions that the ahundant species of the white and brown shrimp communities in the Gulf of Mexico have evolved a common pattern of population dynamics.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 SBLOSSMAN, P.A. 1580. Aspects of the Life Bistory of the Sand Seatrout, Cyncscion arenarius, in the Gulf of Mexico. M.S. Thesis. Texas A and M Univ., College Station, Texas. 75 pp.

001.098 Experimental fise ecology

CRIS0072931

NEILL W B; WILDLIFE & FISBERIES SCI; TEXAS A& UNIVERSITY, CCLLEGE STATICN, TEXAS. 77843. Proj. No.: TEX06295 Agency ID: CSES Period: 17 JUN 77 To 16 JUN 82

OEJECTIVES: Experimentally determine biophysical, physiological, and betavioral responses of fishes to environmental variation; evaluate energetic costs and benefits of such responses; generate and evaluate hypotheses relating such responses and their energetic costs/benefits to ecology of wild cultured fishes; develop from these relations generic models for within-habitat distributions of fishes.

APPROACE: Mathematical and computer simulation models to provide conceptual framework within which environment-fish relationships are bypothesized, tested by behavioral-physiological experiment, then used in turn to improve models; final validation of models in field, using such techniques as telemetry.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Experimental Fish Ecology project is directed towards understanding bow fishes! behavioral and physiological responses to ervironment are integrated in an ecological context; project successes enhance the capability for predicting ecological responses under both natural and aquacultural conditions. Realistic patterns of fish movement in temperature gradients have been simulated with a generalized mechanistic model that seems potentially valid for species as diverse as carp, Atlantic salmon, and albecore tuna; the model invokes stochastic increases in turning rate whenever physiological comparisons of ambient and body-core terperature imply worsening thermal conditions. The sajor obstacle to an experimental test of the model's underlying bypothesis has now been overcome: Experiments with bluegill (sunfish) and Tilapia spp. have resulted in a highly accurate model, derived from Newton's Law of cooling, for predicting core temperature (+ 0.2 degrees C) of fish under conditions of continuously fluctuating ambient temperature (+ 10 degrees C); thus, the need for stressful telemetry of core temperature in thermoregulating fish has been obviated. An apparatus for evaluating environegulatory responses of fish in multivariate situations has been constructed and will be put into service during early 1981.

- PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TC 80/12
- CEANBERLAIN, G.W., NEILL, W.B., ECMANCWSKY, P.A. and STEAWN, K. 1980. Vertical Responses of Atlantic Croaker to Gas Supersaturation and Temperature Change. Trans. Amer. Fish. Scc. 109:737-750.

001.09S CFIS0075551 CIGUATERA FIÉR POISONING IN THE U.S. V.I.: BIGCEBNICAL, PRYSOLOGICAL, AND MICRCHICICGICAL STUDIES

MCWILLIAN J F; RAKOCY J E; EUSCE R L; ADDINISTEATICN; VIEGIN ISLANDS AGRIC EXPT STAT, KINGSBILL ST CRC1X, VIEGIN ISLANDS. 00850. Proj. No.: V100020 Froject Type: EATCH Agency 1D: CSES Period: 26 MAY 78 To 25 MAY 83

CHJECTIVES: Achieve a better understanding of the biology and chemistry of ciguatoxin. Develop a simple, reliable test for the ciguatoxicity of fisb. Determine the biological source(s) of toxin.

APFECACB: The nature of the Virgin Islands ciguatoxin will be determined and compared to that investigated in other areas. Ciguatoxin extracts will be tested whether it inhibits the growth of a variety of rapidly growing bacteria. The gut contents of toxic and non-toxic fish will be examined for the presence of microorganisms that may be associated with ciguatoxin. The usefulness of immunological methods to detect ciguatoxin will be determined. Suspect coral reef microorganisms will be grown on artificial media to determine if a ciguatoxin-like substance is produced. Efforts will be made to determine whether the toxin car be detected by immunological methods and also whether there is an alteration of blood or liver enzymes in ciguatoxin figh.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Two methods of purification for ciguatchic extracts obtained from fish flesh previously implicated in human poisonings have been developed. The first method involves two-step thin-layer ctromatography, TLC-I and TLC-II, which give, respectively, lethal doses (LD(9S)) of $500\,{\rm m}_{\rm H}/{\rm kg}$ and 10 to 100 mg/kg when tested in the mouse bicassay. The second technique employs silicic acid column chromatography (CC) and gives a LD(99) of 50 to 200 mg/kg. The second method (CC) is much less time and labor intensive than the first and provides comparable purification. Gambierdiscus toxicus is a dinoflagellate found in the tropical oceans of the world usually on or near coral reefs, cften in association with various macroalgae. Extraction and bloassay of G. toxicus from field collections in the Virgin Islancs and from unialgal cultures (provided by Southern Illinois University) suggests the presence of at least three toxic fractions; a chloroform soluble fraction (CIX), an acetone insoluble fraction (MTX), and an acetone soluble

fraction (Other).

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

001-100 CEISO081384 AN EVALUATION OF ENDANGERED MCLLUSES IN VIEGIBIA

NEVES R J; PAEDUE G B; BENFIELD E F; FISBERIES & WILDLIFE; VIEGINIA POLY INST, BLACKSBUEG, VIEGINIA. 24061. Proj. No.: VA-IIII111 Project Type: STATE Agency 1D: SAES Period: 01 JUL 80 To 30 JUN 83

OBJECTIVES: Develop a literature review, species range and relative distribution maps for the rine endangereo speceis; develop habitat characterization for the nine species; determine and flife histories of two common mussels; summarize components 1 and 2 and prepare final report.

APPROACH: Survey mussel populations in the Clincb, Powell and Holston River; determine water quality, substrate composition and species associations at sites with endangered mussels; artificially infect various species of fish in the laboratory to determine the required fish hosts; apply appropriate statistical analyses to data and write final report.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. The final report on the first phase of this project was submitted to the Virginia Commission of Game and Inland Fisheries in Cctober, 1980. Based on recently completed mussel surveys in southwestern Virginia, the following 7 endangered species reside in the Clinch, Pcwell, and Eclston Rivers: Fusconaia edgariana, Fusconaia cuneolus. Drogus drogas, Conradilla caelata. Cuadrula intermedia, Quadrula sparsa, and Dysnemia walkeri. Three of these species occur only in the lower Powell River, an area influenced by upstream coal mining operations. Two of the species are relatively widespread, and approximately 59 river kilcmeters in Virginia are considered of utsost importance for the continued survival of 5 of the 7 species. Mussel surveys at 2 bridge construction locations on the Clincb kiver recorded 3 endangered species near these sites. Recommendations were made to the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service and the Virginia Department of Highways and Transportation for mitigating disturbance of the habitat of these endangered snecies.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 ZALE, A.V. 1980. The Life Bistories of Four Freshmater Lampsiline Mussels (Mollusca: Unionidae) in Big Moccasin Creek, Russell County, Virginia. M.S. Thesis. Va. Poly. Inst. and State Univ., Blackshurg. 256 pp.

001.101 CRIS0081472 EVALUATION OF THE ECOLOGICAL REQUIEEMENTS OF RESERVOIR FISH SPECIES

NEY J J; FISHERIES 6 WILDLIFE; VIRGINIA PCLY INST, ELACKSBUEG, VIEGINIA. 24061. Proj. No.: VA-1111113 Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 80 To 30 JUN 83

OBJECTIVES: Determine risks and benefits of alewife as pelagic forage in S.E. reservoirs, assess use by gamefish, describe tropbic competition with young fish, define predation on larval fish; determine spawning requirements of striped bass in reservoirs, define degree of boming to spawning tributary streams.

APPROACE: Determine food habits of alewife larval fish, and gamefish/over 2 years as related to food availability. Decribe consumption of alewife by gamefish, trophic overlap between alewife and planktivorious life stages of resident fish and use of larval fish by alewife. Compare growth of major species at different life stages before and after alewife introduction. Determine degree of reproductive isolation by electrophoretic analysis between spawning groups of striped baes in each river over 2 years. Compare gene frequencies of young-of-year fish from Kerr Reservoir to patent spawning stocks. Compare tributaries for hydrologic, water quality and morphoedaphic characteristics to assess differential spawning.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Project to evaluate alewife as a forage species in Southeastern reservoirs was completed. Summer temperature and lack of littoral area are factors which will limit alewife establishment. Alewife are used by pelagic predators but not littcral predators. Adverse effects of alewife include predation on fish larvae, competition with planktovorous fish for food, and downstream emigration. Alewife introductions should be limited to closed systems in which predators are stocked on a put-grow-take basis. Evaluation of reproductive isolation in the use of spawning tributaries by striped bass was completed. Isozyme analysis showed no consistart genetic differences between streams. New projects include (1) analysis of resource partitioning in juvenile fishes, and (2) ctannel catfish movement and feeding patterns.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- BOHLER, C.C. and NEY, J.J. 1980. Piscivority in a Landlocked Alewife (Alosa pseudobrengus) Population. Can. J. Fish. Aquat. Sci. 37(8):1314-1317.
- KOHLER, C.C. 1980. Trophic Ecology of a Landlocked Alewife Fopulation and Assessment of Alewife Impact. Fb.D. Thesis. Va. Poly. Inst. and State Univ., Blacksburg. 192 pp.
- NIGRC, A.A. 1980. Reproduction and Early Life History of a Landlocked Population of Alewives in Claytor Lake, Virignia. M.S. Thesis. Va. Poly. Inst. and State Univ., Blacksburg.
- GUSE, C.J. 1980. Assessment of Genetic Variation Between Spanning Aggregates of Striped Bass from Kerr Reservoir, Virginia-North Carolina. N.S. Thesis. Va. Poly. Inst. and State Univ. Blacksburg. 83 pp

001.102 CFIS0081386 FACTORS INFLUENCING TECUT PEODUCTION IN VIEGIBIA STREAMS

PARDUE G B; FENFIELD E F; WEBSTEF J F; FISBEFIES & WILDLIFE; VINGINIA POLY INST, ELACKSBUFG, VIRGINIA. 24061. Proj. No.: VA-1111114 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL &0 To 30 JUN &3

OBJECTIVES: Eximine links between the food production base and brook trout production, develop the work on brook trout competition with other age classes or trout and with nongame fish to include competition, determine rainbow trout production and gonadal energetics during the year.

APPEGACH: Collect monthly quantitative samples of macroinvertebrates to determine trophic structure, biomass, production and feeding rates; collect quarterly depletion samples of fishes to determine trophic structure, bicmass, production and food habits, compare food habits of trout with nongame fishes and examine longitudinal zonation of fishes in the stream, conduct quarterly mark-recapture sampling, collect length-weigth data and use bomb calorimetry on somatic and reproductive tissues during the year.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Microinvertetrate identification and enumeration from quarterly drift samples is largely completed and is being used to relate to food habits of trout and non-game fishes to determine trophic relationships and feeding overlaps. One bundred sixty taxa of henthic invertebrates have been identified from Guys Bun. Measurements of primary and secondary production have been collected and are in the process of analysis. Behavioral observations of spatial distribution and feeding activities have been conducted for brock trout and five non-game species in laboratory experiments. A conceptual model of energy flow dynamics is being developed for Guys Run, a second order native brook trout stream. Collections of rainbow trout for reproductive biology, gonad energetics and annual

production have been completed and are $\text{beir}_{\mathcal{L}}$ analyzed using multivariate statistics and kicker's cohort production formula (P = GB).

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- MENDALL, W.T. 1980. The Dispersion of Eatchery-reared Rainbow Trout (Salmo gaironeri) Stocked in Big Stoney Creek, Giles County, Virginia. M.S. Thesis. Va. Poly. Inst. and State Univ., Blacksburg. 86 pp.
- GARMAN, G.C. 1980. Impacts of Stocked Brown Trout (Salmo trutta) on the Native Flah Fauna of Bottom Creek, Virginia. M.S. Thesis. Va. Poly. Inst. and State Univ., Blacksburg. 81 pp.

001-103 CRISO083531 AQUACULTURE FOR RESCURCE ENHANCEMENT

AMUNDSON C H; KAYES T B; FOOD SCIENCE; UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN, MADISON, WISCONSIN. 53706. Proj. No.: WIS02581 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 SEP 80 To 31 AUG 84

CEJECTIVES: To determine the quantitative amino acid requirements of rainbow trout and yellow perch; to examine the feasibility or employing anabolic substances; to control sexual differentiation and enhance growth and food conversion efficiency and to apply this information to the progragation and culture of Great lakes fishes.

APPROACH: An amino acid test diet will be developed to promote good growth at 15°C for trout and 22°C for perch. The dietary requirements of these species will be determined under high NB(3) versus low ammonia condition and to determine his, ile, leu, phe, thr, and val requirements and amino acid interrelationships. These studies will be undertaken to determine whether selected biochemical correlates of growth can be used in evaluating the amino acid in protein quality requirements of fishes. With respect to yellow perch only, a study will be undertaken to determine the size or age at which sexual differentiation occurs. Selected androgenic and estrogenic compounds will be used to control sexual differentiation or reverse the sex of immature fish. The dosages and length of treatment required to control sexual differentiation will be studies. A comparison will be made of the growth rate food consumption, food conversion efficiency, protein conversion efficiency, and body composition of treated and untreated fish. Finally, the treated ε untreated species will be evaluated for the affect of these substances on production & palatability of edible flesb.

2. Breeding and Genetics

002.001 FRESHWATER FOOD ANIMALS

CRIS0060955

SMITHERMAN R O; FISHERIES & ALLIEC AQUACULTUEE; AUFURN UNIVEESITY, AUBURN, ALABAMA. 36830. Proj. No.: ALA00338 Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 JUL 71 To 30 SEP 81

OBJECTIVES: Develop and improve production and management systems for freshwater animals cultured for food -- genetics and breeding.

APPEOACB: A crossbred population of channel catfish will be established to serve as a control for selective breeding programs. Genetic material from geographically isolated sources will be utilized. Crossbreds among blue, channel and white catfish will also be tested. Crossbreeding between species of tilapia will be utilized to produce all-male broods. PRCGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Realized heritability for body weight in a wild strain of channel catfish was found to be 0.13. However, this still resulted in an 11% increase in growth through one generation of selection. Fingerling growth of two other strains also indicates a positive response to selection. Reproduction performance of individuals selected for growth did not wary from non-selected individuals. The reprpductive advantage that three-year-old crosshred channel catfish exhibited over pure-line channel catfish was not maintained as four-year-olds. Although intraspecific mating abilities dio not vary, only crossbred individuals hybridized with hlue catfish. Variables that appeared important for hybridization were stocking time, hormone injection, genotype, and size. Reciprocal crossbred channel cattish fingerlings did nct grow at the same rate. Channel female x blue female fingerlings grew at the same rate as channel catfish fingerlings. Channel female x blue male fingerlings produced from different strains of different parents grew at different rates. Genotype x environment interactions were significant when the environmental variables were stocking density and C(2) levels.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- MCGINTY, A.S. 1980. Survival, Growth, and Variation in Growth of Channel Catfish Fry Fingerlings. Ph.D. Dissertation, Auburn Univ., AL. 63 p.
- TAVE, D., MCGINTY, A.S., CHAPPELL, J.A. and SMITHEFMAN, R.C. 1880. Evaluation of Hybrid Catfish for Alabama Fee-Fishing Ponds. Highlights of Agric. Res., Auburn Univ. Agric. Exp. Sta. 27(2): 3.
- YOUNGELOCD, P.N. 1980. Growth and Feed Conversions of Six Genetic Groups of Adult Channel Catfish Selected as Broodstock. M.S. Thesis. Auburn Univ., AI. 35 pp.

002.002

ANINAL BREEDING AND GENETICS CF FISH

CRIS0063270

GALL G A E; ANIMAL SCIENCE; UNIVERSITY CF CALIFOFNIA, DAVIS, CALIFCINIA. 95616. Proj. No.: CA-D*-ASC-2881-B Froject Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSES Period: 30 JAN 73 To 30 SEP 84

OBJECTIVES: Establish pedigree stocks of fish for use in estimating genetic parameters and developing efficient methods of genetic improvement of batchery populations. Apply biochemical electrophoretic techniques to the identification of genetic variability useful in characterizing the taxonomy of wild trout pepulations.

APPEOACE: A crossbred base population has been used to develop lines for the estimation of genetic variances and covariances for growth and reproduction. In addition data from production stocks carried by the California Department of Fish and Game will be utilized for the estimation of genetic parameters. Selection will be practiced in single trait selection lines for increased growth and reproductive performance. Standard electrophoretic and inhistochemical techniques are used to identify protein and enzyme polymorphisms in wild populations of trout. The latter data are used in recommending management programs for threatened and endargered species.

PRCGRESS: 50/01 TO 80/12. Significant non-genetic sources of variation were found to influence growth rate in rainhow trout including spawn date, tank, density, stress, water temperature and rate of sexual maturation. Growth to one year of age was found to be heritable and, under controlled conditions can be expected to responds to selection. Survivial characteristics had high error variance hut hatchability appeared to exhibit adoitive genetic variance under proper experimental conditions. Rainbow trout and golden trout crosses produced viable second generation progeny suggesting that interspecific hybrids will be reproductively viable.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 10 80/12

- GOLD, J.E., FIPRIN, R.E. and GALL, G.A.E. 1979. Notes on a Hybridization Experiment Between Rainhow and Golden Trout. Califorria Fish and Game 65:179-183.
- THORGAARD, G.H. and GALL, G.A.E. 1979. Adult Triploids in a Rainbow Trout Family. Genetics 93:961-973.
- EUSACK, C.A. and GALL, G.A.E. 1980. Ancestry of Artificially Propagated California Fainhow Trout Strains. California Fish and Game 66:17-24

002.003 CRISO080309 GENETIC ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT OF CRUSTACEAN AQUACULTURE STOCKS

BEDGECCCE D; ANIMAL SCIENCE; UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, DAVIS, CALIFORNIA. 95616. Proj. No.: CA-D*-ASC-3394-H Project Type: HATCE Agency ID: CSES Period: 01 NOV 79 To 30 SEP 83

OBJECTIVES: Assess amounts of genetic variation within and hetween wild-caught stocks of cultured marine crustaceans; develop lobster and shrimp broodstock in which the mating system can he dewonstrated with genetic markers; estimate environmental, genetical and interaction components of growth and metabolic variability in laboratory-reared family groups.

AFFROACE: The culture of marine crustaceans is currently heing initiated with wild-caught gravid females; As a step towards domestication of broodstocks, we will undertake two complementary lines of research; electrophoretic studies of gene-enzyme variabililty hoth in native populations and in laboratory-reared family groups, and quantitative experimental studies of growth and metabolism in postlarval juveniles. Studies on the inheritance of electrophoretically detectable protein variants will make possible the selection of genetically tagged broodstock. These, in turn, will quarantee production of predigreed F(1) juveniles that may be mass-reared to marketable ages. Quantitative studies on these pedigreed family groups will be used to estimate the heritabilities and genetic correlations needed for the construction of an initial selection index.

PECGRESS: 80/01 TC 80/12. A comprehensive review of crustacean genetics literature completed this year highlights the great diversity of genetic systems and thus the need for a multifaceted approach to genetic assessment and development of potential and real aquaculture stocks. Work on the incortant brine shrimp, Artemia, has focused on the genetic and biochemical control of cyst-egg formation. Electrophoretic studies of natural populations of the freshwaster prawn macrobrachium rosenhergii revealed very distinct racial groups that are now heing assessed for production potential in Hawaii. Reproduction of lobsters is being controlled with photoperiod, and pedigreed pure-breo and hybrid F(1)'s are being grown out by commercial pilot plants. Discovery of chemical growth inhibition among juvenile lobsters has temporarily precluded further measurement of genetic variations in growth and metabolism.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- BEDGECCCK, D., SIELMACH, D.J., NELSCN, K., LINDENFELSER, M.E. and MALECHA, S.R. 1979. Genetic Divergence and Biogeography of Nature Populations of Macrobrachium rosentergii.
- Proceedings World Mariculture Society 10:873-878. BEDGECOCK, D. 1979. Hiochemical Genetic Variation and Evidence of Speciation in Chthamalus Harnacles of the Tropical Eastern Pacific. Marine Biology 54:207-214.
- NELSON, K. and BEDGECOCK, D. 1975. Enzyme Polymorphism and Adaptive Strategy in the Decapod Crustacea. The American Naturalist 116(2):238-280.
- KALEZIC, N.L. and BEDGECCCK, D. 1979. Genetic Variation and Differentiation of Three Common European Newts (Triturus) in Yugoslavia. British Journal of Herpetology 6:49-57.

BEDGECOCE, D. and NELSON, K. 1980. Gene-enzyme Variation and Adaptive Strategies in the Crustacea. In: Genetics of Marine Animals, a Symposium of the XIV Pacific Science Congress (to be Published in Russian), Pudovkin, A.I.,

002.004* CRISO075881 EWVIRONMENTAL AND ECOLOGICAL INFLUENCES ON GENETIC VARIABILITY

FCIN T C; ECCLCGY; UNIVERSITY CF CALIFCENIA, DAVIS, CALIFOENIA. 55616. Proj. No.: CA-D*-BCL-3669-B Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSES Period: 20 JUL 78 To 30 SEP 83

OBJECTIVES: This project is intended to identify the ecological and environmental correlates of genetic variability in grassland and marine ecosysteme. This will help us to identify the role of genetic variation in mediating population response to environmental and ecological conditions. If the results are similar, analysis of two widely different to ecosystems should produce generalizations applicable both to agricultural and natural ecosystems.

APPEGACE: In both systems we shall routinely measure levels of genetic variation in enzymes using gel electrophoresis; the ecological structure of the community; and relative environmental and trophic stability. With these data we can identify what conditione are most closely associated with high genetic variability. This long-term (several years) study is principally located in the northern California coastal grassland and in the tropical Pacific. The project is currently coordinated with personnel at the University of Bawaii, the University of Washington, and the Departments of Genetics and Agronowy and Range Science at U.C. Davis.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. This program currently consists of two parts. One is the direct measurement of genetic variability in a family of tropical marine gastropods. Fy and large, little work in research has been undertaken in this past year, although two manuscripts hearing on this work have been completed and submitted within the year. The other part of the program is the ecological assessment of a perennial grass species, Anthoxanthum odoratum. The program currently emphasizes the ecological aspects of increase of this species in a coastal grassland at Sea Ranch, Schoma County, to define the limits of adaptability of a species well-known for its genetic variability. Three students are now working on this program: two abstracts and one paper have been produced in the past year. The principal result to emerge is that Anthoxanthum is highly successful along the coast in a variety of environments. There appears to be a strong correlation between Anthoxanthum abundance and soil water availability, conditioned on the presence of other perennial species which are potential competitors.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

002.005 CRISO072302 INTERSIVE CULTURE OF TILAPIA IN GECTEEPHAL VATERS IN THE SAN LUIS VALLEY, COLOFADO

FLICKINGER S; FISHERY 6 WILDLIFE BIOLOGY; COLORADO STATE UNIVERSITY, FORT COLLINS, COLORADO. 80523. Proj. No.: CCL00067 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 15 FEE 77 TC 30 JUN 80

OBJECTIVES: Develop techniques to spawn tilapia year-round and to have only makes for rearing either through early sorting or through bybridization to produce all make offepring.

APPROACE: Erood fish will be held under various photoperiods to determine what length induces spawning and what length inhibits spawning. With controlled spawning to produce large nimbers of offspring at the same time, grading to sort faster growing, and hence larger, males will be tried for accurcay in sorting sexes. Bybrid crosses will also be made to test for unusual sex ratios.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. No progress report this period.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TC 80/12 MAIOLIE, N.A. 1979. Effects of Various Fhotoperiods on the Spawning of Tilapia aurea. M.S. Theeis, Colorado State University, Fort Collins, 41 pp.

002.006* CRISO065219 CEARACTERIZATION OF GOMAD-STINULATING SUBSTANCES IN MARINE ANIMALS

CAEDDIIEAC P T; VETEBINARY SCIENCE; UNIVERSITY CF FLOPIDA, GAINESVILLE, FLOFIDA. 32601. Proj. No.: FLA-VY-01673 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 14 MAR 74 To 31 DEC 80

OBJECTIVES: Develop assay for yonad-stimulating substances. Isolate and characterize substances involved in the regulation of spawning and gamete maturation. Identify and characterize seuroendocrine mechanisms involved in spawinig and gamete maturation. Determine patterns of similarity among gonad-stimulating substances from different animals.

APPROACE: An aeeay eyetem for gonadotrophins, similar to the one used for etarfish, will be developed. Purification of the gonadotrophins will be accomplished by chromatography. The mechanism of action will be studied using purified substances. Patterns of similarity among isolated gonadotrophins will be investigated by determining amino acid sequences, physical and chemical properties and mode of action.

PROGRESS: 74/03 TO 80/12. Warm water marine teleosts which lay pelagie eggs, (enapper, grouper, mackerel, trout, drum, etc.), are a group of fish of major importance to mariculture, sport fishing and commercial fisheries. The pinfieh, Lagodon rhombbides, was selected from this group as a model for the study of toxins, hormones, etc. which effect gamete maturation and spawning. Photoperiod and several mammalian hormones were found to be highly stimulatory. The development of mature oocytes to ripe eggs could be induced, stripped from the fish, fertilized and normal yolk-sac larvae produced. Culture of ovarian follicles and follicle cells in vitro was investigated to determine the action of hormones and toxine directly on the ovary. A defined medium was developed to further simplify these studies and reduce complex interactions and metabolic conversions. Stem cells in the follicle appears to differentlate to oogonia following LB stimulation. Estradiol-17-B is the primary stimulator for vitellogenin production, and a primary and secondary reeponse to estrogen was independent of salinity but dependent on water temperature. Toxicity of copper to the fish and the reproductive process wae investigated because of the hazard presented by environmental copper poisoning and the importance of copper in disease control. A potassium intoxication followe copper poisoning caused by cell damage and failure of comoregulation by the gills and kidneys.

PUELICATIONS: 74/03 TC 80/12

YOSHA, S. 1980. Detection and Induction of Estroyen Effects in a Marine Teleost. Ph.D. Thesie

- University of Florida, Gainesville, FL. 185 pp. CARDEILEAC, P.T. 1980. Mechanisme of Copper Toxicity to Marine Flsh in Aquatic Animal Medicine: A State of the Art. Florida Sea Grant Report 32:101. Jenkens, R.L. and Ealusky, J.G. (Eds.).
- CARDEILEAC, P.T., SIMPSON, C.F., LOVELCCK, E.L., YOSHA, S.F., CALDERWOOD, E.W. and GUDAT, J.C. 1979. Failure of Osmoregulaticn with Apparent Potassium Intoxication in Worine Teleosts: A Primary Toxic Effect of Copper.
- WILEY, A.A. and CARDEILHAC, P.T. 1977. Possible Mammalian Induced Differentiation of Follicle Cells to Cogonic. The Physiologiet 20(4):102.

CARDEILBAC, F.T. 1576. Induced Maturation and Development of Pinfish Eggs. Aquaculture 8:389-393.

CRIS0071491

002.007 Freshwater food animals

BCNDALI E; HILL T E; ANDREWS J W JF; ENTCHOICGY-FISHERIES; GEORGIA COASTAL PLAIN EXPT S1A, TIFION, GEORGIA. 31754. Proj. No.: GEO00286 Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 CCT 76 To 30 SEP 82

OBJECTIVES: Levelop and Improve Production and Management Systems for Freshwater Animals Culture for Foco. Genetics and Breeding.

APPROACE: Estimation of genetic parameters of commercially important charactere. Selection of growth, viability, feed conversion, dressing percentage and fecundity. Selection will be made initially on fish raised in high-density tanks with subsequent evaluation in ponds. Development through individual and family selection of a genetically improved strain of channel catfish.

PECGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. One generation of bi-directional selection for body weight and size uniformity has increased body weight and total length at 40 wks of age 22.2% and 9.2% and 9.2% respectively. The rates of decline in the cownward line were 18.7% for body weight and 4.1% for total length. Family coefficient of variation for 40-sk body weight in the upward line was also 7% less than in the downward line. Fingerlings produced from 5-year old brood channel catfish weighed 20% less and were 8% shorter in total length than fingerlings produced from 3-year old brood fieh. Multipletrait selected fingerlings were also 10.4% beavier in body weight and 3.3% longer in total length than uneelected control fingerlings at 40 weeke of age. Genetic selection for growth rate will continue for eeveral generations. One generation of inbreeding study with channel catfish resulted in 7.4% and 5.5% growth depression at 16 and 40weeks of age, respectively. A etudy concerning the effects of albinism on growth of channel catfish indicated that normal fingerlinge were in a 13% and 20% growth advantage over their full-sih alhinos at 16 and 28 weeks of age, respectively. The albinos, however, poseessed the ability to compensate in growth at 40 and 70 weeks of age.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

 FONDARI, K. 1980. Genetic Experiments in channel Catfieb. Aquaculture Magazine 6(4):38-39.
 FONDARI, K., SHEPPARD, D.C. and MINEAK, L.K. 1980. The Use of Soldier Fly Larvae in Diete of Channel Catfist. Third Annual Proceedings Catfish Farmers of America Research Workshop 31-32.

002.008 CRIS0083554 FRAVN AQUACULTURE PROGRAM - BIOLOGICAL BASIS OF PRODUCTION

MALECHA S E; LAWS E; ANIMAL SCIENCE; UNIVERSITY OF EAWAII, EONCLULU, EAWAII. 96822. Proj. No.: EAWO0250-S Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 OCT 80 To 30 SEP 82

OBJECTIVES: To aid the development of an improved feed and better feed management; to aid the development of management strategies for crises aeeociated with low oxygen levele in ponde; to test management strategies emphasizing the pattern of growth (observed size-frequency distribution) in pond populations of prawne; to contribute to the controlled demeetication of prawns; and to aid the development of alternative etocking and harvesting etrategiee and wanagement systems.

APPROACE: To determine oxygen budget and nutrient flux to simulated pond ecceyeteme; to size grade prawn popultations and test them against ungraded groups; raise and compare growth of individuale under a variety of confinements; determine telerances and growth to low fluctuating dissolved oxygen and temperature; assess the degree of domestication between cultured stocks and wide ancestors; estimate the heritability of size variation using analysis of variance in full and half sib families; and compare larval growth among genetic groups.

002.009# Genetics of natural fise populations

MENZEL B W; ANIMAL ECCLOGY; ICWA STATE UNIVERSITY, AMES, IOWA. 50011. Proj. No.: IOW02235 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 77 To 30 JUN 82

CS150073098

OEJECTIVES: Develop biochemical/genetic approaches to fish taxonomy and to certain problems of fisheries management by electrophorisis by hody tiesue proteins. Several subprograms are racognized. Survey and compare natural populations of fishes with respect to levels of electrophonetically detectable genetic diversity, determine taxonomic relationstips of selected fish species on the basis of biochemical/genetic characters, compare wild and hatchery stocks of eport fishes on a genetic basis in order to evaluate the genetic impact of stocking programs.

APPROACH: Fish populations will be sampled by seines, nets and electrofishing, as appropriate. Blood and tissue samples will be analyzed by starch and acrylamide gel electrophoresis. Bistochemical staining procedures will be used to identify specific proteins. Protein patterns will be analyzed and qualitatively and quantitatively, based on allelic frequencies of polymorphic loci.

PROGRESS: 78/01 TO 78/12. Two manuscripts were prepared on an invectigation of the genetic impact of etocking upon wild brook trout populations. Wild trout were collected from nine streams in central Wisconein and domesticated fish were sampled from the Osceola State Trout Hatchery, Wisconsin. Over many years, the study streams had variously received light to heavy stocking of Osceola trout. Elood plasma and whole-eye homogenate samples from the trout were analyzed electrophoretically for genetic variation in the transferrin and lactate dehydrogenase systems. The hatchery stock was genetically distinctive from most wild populations at two genetic loci. There were eignificant correlations hetween stream stocking histories and allelic frequencies at the Ldh-E(2) locue, the wild type allele decreasing in frequency as stocking intensity increased. This relationship does not seem to reflect interbreeding between wild and hatchery trout, however. Rather, it may indicate alteration of selective pressures induced by ecclogical interactions between the two stocks.

PUELICATIONS: 78/01 TO 78/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

002.010 CKIS0069239 BREBDING, FRODUCTION, NUTRITICN AND MARKETING CF CRANNEL CATFISE

KEILEY J E J2; DEYCE C; KLAASSEN B E; BIOLOGY; KANSAS STATE UNIVERSITY, MANBATTAN, KANSAS. 66506. Proj. No.: KAN00962 Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 SEP 75 To 30 JUN 80

OEJECTIVES: Chtain quantitative data on the growth rates of selective strains of channel catfish and the reaction of eelected strains to different dietary formulatione. Identify interaction of growth rates, diets and pond water quality degradation. Cuantify water quality parameters associated with pond degradation and develop methods of maintaining water quality. Develop methods for product storage and flavor quality. APPROACE: Earthen ponds will be used to replicated experiments to test diets against four strains of channel cattist. Growth rates will be used to compare the effect of diet on strain performance and for between-strain performance using a factorial arrangment of treatments. Full and half sih analysis will be used to compare within-strain performance. Dietary treatments will include evaluation of protein quality and quantity. Effect of diets with different nutrient densities involving nutrients such as vitamins and minerals will be evaluated in relationship to protein levels.

PRCURESS: 80/01 TO 80/06. Ponds treated with cobalt chloride as a trace component of fertilizer were not tound to produce more channel catfish than control ponds. Cobalt chloride was added to the diet of channel catfish to determine if vitamin E(12) could be spared by the addition of this trace mineral. No significant difference was recorded in growth rates of fish receiving normal amounts of B(12) and those fist receiving cohalt in place of P(12) in purified diets. Significant differences were found in serum proteins between three of five populations of catfish. Additional differences in these populations were found in serum esterase patterns. It was concluded that the population of channel catfish in the White Fiver, Arkansas and the Elue River, Kansas, were different from each other and from the other three populations examined. A domestic population from Arkansas, a domestic population from Kansas and wild population in the Kansas Siver. Kansas.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/06 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

002.011 CFIS0056869 INPROVEMENT OF CATFISH STOCK TEROUGE SELECTIVE EREEDING

AVAULT J W; FOFESTEY & WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT; LOUISIANA STATE UNIVERSITY, EATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA. 70803. Proj. No.: LAE01524 Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JAN 70 TO 30 SFP 81

CBJECTIVES: improve catflsh stock, used in fish culture, by selective breeding for fast growth rate, high dressing percentage, and other desirable traits.

APPROACE: Initially, five spawns of channel catfish will be collected for each of four populations from diverse areas of the southeastern United States. Each spawn will be stocked separately in a pond. At maturity male and female sibs will be mated for each of the four populations. All possible crosses and reciprocal crosses between the four populations will be made. Ultimately, it is hoped to develop inbred lines for crossing.

PECGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Fifteen channel catfish families from the Yazoo strain and eight from the LSU strain were tested for genetic variability in mortality rate at a low level of dissolved oxygen (1.1+.01 mg/1). Channel catfish fry of both strains ranging from 2 to 10 days of age were administered low dissolved oxygen shock tests for 10-hour periods following 12-hour acclimation. There was no significant difference (P greater than 0.05) between the LSU and Yazoo strains in mortality. Test fish of each strain averaged 63% mortality during the shock tests. No significant differences (F greater than (0.05) were detected among the age groups of fry (3 and 4; 5 and 6; 7 and 8; and 5 and 10 days old). There were highly significant (P less than 0.01) and significant (p less than 0.05) intra-class correlations among the families. These led to high heritability estimates for the trait of being resistant to low dissolved oxygen. The heritability estimates ranged from 0.9 + 0.3 to 1.7 + 0.1). These inflated heritability estimates were probably due to excess environmental effects common to each family. Based on the high intra-class correlations for low-DO resistance found in this study, one could probably select among 2 to 10-day-old channel catfish fry for the trait of being resistant to low DO. It is not known, however, whether the ability to resist low DO at these ages will hold for the same fish or family of fish at older ages, such as among grow-out fish

for the food market or brood lish.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS SEPORTED THIS PERIOD.

002.012 FRESHWATER FOOD ANIMALS

CBIS0071457

AVAULT J W; FORESIFY & WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT; LOUISIANA STATE UNIVERSITY, EATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA, 70803. Proj. No.: LAB01878 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 CCT 76 To 30 SEP 81

OFJECTIVES: Develop and improve Production and Management Systems for Freshwater Animals Cultured for Food. Genetics and Breeding. Culture Systems.

APPROACH: Catfish. Improved strains of channel catfish will be developed through cross-breeding and pregeny testing. Crawfish. Various agricultural by-products will be fed to rawfish in replicated ponds. Production per acre will be compared between treatments. Populations of crawfish will be monitored in ponds to determine management techniques. Various stocking rates and feeds will be tested with crawfish in tanks. Crawfish will be stocked together with various other species to determine best combinations for increasing production. Traditional trapping methods will be compared, and new methods, such as the use of electricity, will be tested.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Research conducted on catfish management under well-aerated culture and prawn-catfish culture indicated: (1) Catfish were stocked into ponds at rates of 7,500, 15,000, and 22,000 per ha. All ponds received aeration each day from 0200 hrs until 1 hr after sunset. In control unaerated ponds, catfish were stocked at 7,500 per ha. Fish in all ponds were fed a commercial ration containing 36% protein. Production of catfish in kg/ha was: 2717 at a stocking of 7,500; 3,474 at 15,000; and 5,277 at 22,000. In non-aerated ponds production was 1,870 kg/ha. (2) Prawns were stocked into ponds at rates of 25,000/ha, at 50,000/ha, and at 25,000/ha plus channel catfish fry at 75,000/ha. Ponds were also stocked with catfish fry only at 75,000/ha. Prawns and catfish in all ponds were fed Purina catfish chow. Prawn survival, 22%, and production 265 kg/ha were greatest in ponds stocked at 25,000/ha. This production was much lower than that from 1979 study at a stocking density of 25,000/ha. Overall, catfish survival was 33% and production was 695 kg/ha.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- PLEMMCNS, B. 1980. Effects of Aeration and High Stocking Density on Channel Catfish Production. M.S. Thesis. LSU. 37 pp. AVAULT JF., J.W. 1980. Fishery Products from
- AVAULT JE., J.W. 1980. Fishery Products from Aquaculture and Capture Fisheries, pp. 142-155. In: Cole, B.B. and Garett, W.N. (Editore) Animal Agriculture. San Francisco: W. H. Freeman and Co., 739 pp.
- AVAULT JE., J.W. 1980. Management of Aquatic Species, pp. 658-674. In: Cole, H.B. and Garett, W.N. (Editors), Animal Agriculture. San Francisco: W. H. Freeman and Co., 739 pp.
- PLEMMCNS, B. and AVAULT JB., J.W. 1980. Use of Aeration to Increase Catfish Production (Summary Only). In: Bes. Work. Sum. of Papers Catfish Farmers of Amer. Annu. Conv. 1980:12-13.
- BUNER, J.V., NILTNER, M., BEAN, R.A. and AVAULT JF., J.W. 1980. Survival and Reproduction of Blue Tilapia, Tilapia aurea, in Ponds Stocked with Bowfin, Amia calva, to Serve as Predators (Summary Only). In: Res. Work. Sum. of Papers

002.013 CRIS0030722 Development of meteods for mass production and management of bullfrogs

CULLEY D D JR; FORESTRY & WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT; LOUISIANA STATE UNIVERSITY, FATCH GOUCE, LOUISIANA. 70803. Proj. No.: LABG1445 Agency ID: SAES Project Type: STATE Period: 01 SEP 68 To 31 JAN 84

OBJECTIVES: letermine the effects on tadpoles of diet and water quality. Development of pelleted diets for bullfrogs. Determine methods of disease control in tadpoles and bullfrogs. Effeact of environmental factors and tormone injections on controlled reproduction. Influence of selective breeding on improved growth, acceptance of artificial foods and other useful characteristics.

AFF&CACB: Modify protein, fats, carbohydrates, vitamins and minerals in tadpole diets and determine the effect or food conversion, growth, ahncrmalities, etc.; modify water pH and determine effects on growth, mortality and disease occurrence. Determine the effect of temperature, photoperiod and hormone injections or reproductive development. Determine the relationship between diet and mortality due to gut pathogens. Attempt to develop a method to immunize bullfrogs.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Studies involving the effect of pE of the culture water on disease occurrence in the larvae showed that mortality related to disease increased at pH values above 7.0. The optimum pH appears to be between 6.5 to 6.9. The presence or absence of calcium in the water could not he related to disease at various pE levels. Abnormalities increased when calcium was low (less than 2 mg/1 in water and less than 0.5% in diet). Addition of calcium to the water did not reduce abnormalities, but addition to the food (and not water) up to 5% did reduce abnormalities. Selection of bullfrogs for accepting non-living food (F(3) generation) showed no improvement in the number of animals responding over previous generations. This phase of the study was terminated. Selection studies for rapid growth produced an F(3) generation. Growth rates are currently being monitored. Reproduction studies showed that wild-caught females could he brought into ovalatable condition in the laboratory within eight weeks when place on a heavy feeding program, 20-25 degrees C and 12 hr light. Repeated ovulations were achieved within 8 to 12 weeks. Transition metals play significant roles in controlling the production of toxins by pathogenic tacterial in the presence of certain amino acids. The addition of Zinc stimulated production and iron inhibited production.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

MEYELS, S.F., CULLEY JE., D.D., MARSCHALL, D.G. and MARSHALL, G.A. 1980. Evaluation of Binders in Larval Bullfrog Diets. J. Aquaric. 1:20-28.

002.014 CFIS0071642 FRESHWATER FCCD ANIMALS

REAGEN & E; FOBINETTE H F; WILSON F P; WILCLIFE 6 FISHERIES SCI: MISSISSIPPI STATE UNIVERSITY, MISSISSIPPI STATE, MISSISSIPPI. 38762. Proj. No.: MIS-0815 Froject Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSES Period: 01 CCT 76 To 30 SEP 81

OBJECTIVES: Levelog and improve production and management system for freshwater animals cultured for food. Nutrition, genetics and breeding. Evaluate the economics of production processing and marketing of freshwater food animals. Develop and improve products and processing methods that will enhance marketability and insure quality of cultured freshwater food animals.

AFF#OACH: Froject is multidisplinary with Departments of Elochemistry, Borticulture, Agricultural Economics, and Wildlife and Fisheries. Least cost rations will be tested in aquaria and cne-tenth acre ponds. Genetics parameters, heritatility, and genetic correlations estimated for several traits with concurrent selection program. Amino acid requirements on quantitative basis and digestibility of common feeo stuffs determined for catfish. Processing methods compared for dress out yield, with standard nutritional values of catfish flesh determined.

PECGRESS: 80/01 TC 80/12. Apparent and true amino acid availability values have been determined for the following feed ingredients commonly used in catfish feeds: corn, wheat middlings, rice hran, rice mill feed, soytean meal, peanut meal, cottonseed meal, meat and hone meal, and menhaden fish meal. Fingerling channel catfish appear to be more sensitive to the antinutritional factors present in soybean meal than poultry. Studies are currently heing conducted to determine the adverse effects of trypsin inhibitors and flavones in soybean meal on catfish. Duckweed (Family Lemnaceae) was incorporated at 15 and 20% into isocaloric diets formulated to meet or exceed nutritional requirements of channel catfish. Diets containing duckweed performed as well as the control. Cottonseed meal was incorporated into isccaloric diets at 5. 10, 15, 20, and 25% of the basal diet. Growth suppression of channel catfish was noted at the 20 and 25% cottonseed seal levels. The procedure for canning tuna-style channel catfish was refined, further data on heat-processing developed, and work was initiated on a consumer acceptance study. Selection of catfish for weight gain, gain in dress out percentage, and decreased percent fat with 25% for high selection and 25% low selection was completed. Fish will be mated at 2 years of age to decrease age at maturity. A Micro-computer program designed to provide information for Management decision-making has been developed. This system computes daily feeding rates by pond and projects feeding days to barvest.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- WILSON, F.P., ECEINSON, E.B. and POE, W.E. 1980. Amino Acid Supplementation of Practical Type Diets for Channel Catfish. Presented 9th Annual Fish Feed and Nutrition Workshop. Univ. of Washington, Seattle.
- WILSON, R.P., POE, W.E. and ROEINSON, E.E. 1980. Apparent and True Amino Acid Availabilities of Common Feed Ingredients for Catfish Feeds. Presented 9th Annual Fish Feed and Nutrition Northborn Univ. of Weshinston. Seattle.
- Workshop. Univ. of Washington, Seattle. WILSON, R.P., ROEINSON, E.H. and POF, W.E. 1980. Antinutritional Pactors in Catfish Feeds. Presented 9th Annual Fish Feed and Nutrition Workshop. Univ. of Washington, Seattle.
- WALDROP, J.E. and SMITH, K.D. 1980. An Economic Analysis of Producing Pond-Raised Catfish for Food in Mississippi: A January 1980 Update. Dept. of Ag. Economics Research Report No. 103, July.

002.015 Disease-resistant dysters

CEIS0028024

HASKIN H H: CYSTEE CULTURE: RUTGERS UNIVERSITY, NEWERUNSWICK, NEW JERSEY. 08903.Proj. No.: NJ32504Project Type: STATEAgency IC: SAESPeriod: 01 AUG 64 To 30 JUN 82

OEJECTIVES: Vertify the relative high resistance of Delaware Hay oyster stocks to MSX, increase the supply of such oysters, study and modify current procedures for artificial rearing of oysters, experimentally transmit MSX in the laboratory and increase the yield of market oysters by the control of predators.

APPEOACH: Field experiments will be established to accomplish most of the objectives. Disease free oysters will be impored and planted where necessary, warious chemicals will be tested for the control of shell-fouling and oyster drills. Laboratory procedures will be established to study artificial rearing of oyster and to experimentally transmit MSX under controlled conditions so that the nature of this disease will be more fully known.

PEOGRESS: 80/01 TC 80/12. Earlier reports have emphasized that the epizootic oyster oisease, commonly called MSX, which first appeared in Celaware Bay in 1957, has been continuously present in the Eay since then. Its prevalence and intensityhave fluctuated in cyclic fashion with 3 periods of low prevalence in 1962, 1571 and 1978. Intervening priods of high prevalence have not been consistently correlated with any environmental factor or set of factors. Survival of the Deleware Bay oyster industry

has been based on the availability, at reasonable cost, of a mcderately disease-resistant seed from the upper Bay natural heds. Our studies have shown, that, on long-term average, an oyster planter may expect to lose approximately 38% of his systers to disease in the first year after planting. In good years, like 1978, this less will drop to 15 - 20%. In had years, like 1972 and 1980, the disease loss alone approaches 50%. This disease loss in 1980, coupled with poor growth and condition in the surviving oysters, resulted in a disastrous year for the planters. Our work in this project enabled us to evaluate the 1980 losses and place them in long-term perspective. Our more rigidly selected, laboratory-reared stocks of resistant oysters beld up well under the 1980 disease pressure with mortality rates in these experimental stocks at 1/5 to 1/2 those of the native resistant seed stock.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NC PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

002.016 CRISO071700 CRYOGENIC PRESERVATION OF SPEEN FROM WAENWATER FISHES

KEREY J B; ZCOLOGY; N CAROLINA STATE UNIVERSITY, RALEIGE, NCSTE CARCLINA. 27650. Proj. No.: NCO5373 Froject Type: STATE Agency 1D: SAES Period: 01 OCT 76 To 31 DEC 78

CBJECTIVES: Investigations of methods of cryopreserving sperm from warmwater fistes in a viable state.

APPEQACE: The primary emphasis of this project will be to screen those extender and diluents which have been used with success for coldwater species to determine if any would also he of value for use with selected warmwater species. Species to be used will include the striped bass and one or more members of the family Centrarchidae.

PROGRESS: 76/10 TO 78/12. Cryopreservation techniques using sperm from striped bass were investigated using a Linde controlled-rate freezing apparatus. Fourteen different media extended with three different concentrations (5%, 7.5% and 10%) of dimethyl sulfoxide (DMSO), glycerol, ethylene glycol, and propylene glycol were tested. Motility of cryopreserved spermatozoa following thawing was extremely difficult to determine. However, fertilization rates up to 56% were attained when cryopreserved sperm were mixed with freshly-spawned eggs. DMSO was found to he the only adequate extender. No fertilization was obtained using any of the other three extenders. The best media were those which contained lecithin. The difficulty in maintaining consistency in fertilization ability from one set of frozen samples to the next probably resulted from the inability to accurately control the freezing rate through the freezing point. Additional work with hetter equipment is required to further refine the techniques.

PUELICATIONS: 76/10 TO 78/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED FINAL REPORT PERICD.

002.017 CEISO080273 CENGENIC FRESERVATION OF SPEEN FROM STRIPED BASS

KEEBY J B; HUISH M T; 200LOGY; N CABOLINA STATEUNIVERSITY, FALEIGE, NCETE CAECLINA. 27650.Proj. No.: NC05461Project Type: STATEAgency ID: SAESPeriod: 01 OCT 79 To 31 DEC 83

OBJECTIVES: Improve freezing techniques for striped hass sperm to achieve more consistent results; develop methods for freezing large volumes of semen for use under hatchery production conditions.

APPECACE: Striped bass sperm will be cryopreserved using previously developed extenders and dimethyl sulfoxide as the cryoprotectant. Sperm will be frozen at different, carefully controlled rates and different types of containers (french straws, NUNC vials, and blood bags) and stored in liquid nitrogen. Samples will be thawed and fertilization tests will be used to determine conditions under which fertilization capacity of the cells is maximized.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Striped bass semen was cryopreserved at various carefully controlled freezing rates (from -1 to -30 degrees C/min) using four previously developed extenders. Elmethysulfoxide (5% of media) was used as a cryoprotectant. Results of fertilization experiments indicated that the freezing rate needs to be at least -5 degrees C/min $\,$ for acceptable results, but more rapid rates (up to -30 degrees/min did not appear to provide additional improvement. Egg quality was frequently a problem, obvever, and may have helped to mask freezing rate effects. Work this year demonstrated that mass production of striped bass fry using cryopreserved sperm is feasible, but is not yet as efficient as using fresh sperm. Cver 2,000,000 fry were produced using the frozen sperm. Two separate pond experiments (utilizing six 1.0-acre ponds and six 0.5-acre ponde) indicated no significant differences in survival or growth between fish produced using fresh sperm and fish produced with cryopreserved sperm.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

002.018 AN EVALUATION OF STRIPED BASS & WHITE BASS BYBRIDS AND STRIPED BASS & WHITE FERCE BYBRIDS

KERBY J H; HUISH M T; KELLER & R; ZOOLOGY; N CABCLINA STATE UNIVERSITY, BALEIGH, NCFTH CABOLINA. 27650. Proj. No.: NC05430 Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JAN 79 10 31 DEC 81

OBJECTIVES: To evaluate the potential of striped bass x white bass and striped bass x white perch hybrids for use in aquaculture and to disseminate acquired knowledge to interested individuals.

AFPROACE: Bybrids will be cultured in 0.1 hectare ponds usisng both fresh and brackish (ca. 10 0/100) water sources. Two ponds will be used for cage culture experiments to evaluate hybrid response to limited space and crowding. The experiments will provide data concerning comparative survival, growth and adaptability of the two hybrids to pond and cage culture in both fresh and brackist water. Additionally, food preferences of the larval hybrids will be determined.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TC 80/12. Approximately 1.3 million larval striped bass x white bass and 0.6 million striped hass x white perch larvae were produced using artificial fertilization procedures, demonstrating for the second year that the hybrids can be readily produced using existing techniques. Most were placed into intensive culture troughs at the project site. The remainder were stocked in ponds at the Dennis Wildlife Center and the Grangeburg National Fish Hatchery in South Carolina for grow-out to fingerlings. Because culture ponds were not completed at the project site, fish were cultured under intensive conditions in the laboratory and in a series of 24-foot diameter (11,000 gallon capacity) plastic-lined pools. An important advance was development of a method to train larvae to accept dry diet at an earlier age. By presenting large concentrations of small particles of the dry food, and hy keeping it in constant motion through vigorous aeration of the water, we were able to convert the larvae to dry diet at about 15 mm. Previously larvae did not convert until they were 40 mm long. Fingerling striped bass x white bass hybrids obtained from the Orangeburg NFB in January were grown in plastic-lined pools and in cages until September 1980. Mean weight when stocked was 8.1 g (range = 3.0- 33.0 g). At harvest the fish weighed an average of 268 g (range = 32 - 522 g).

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

CRIS0028750 diseases.

002.019 FISE GENETICS

 SCHPECK C E; FISHERIES 6 WILDLIFE; CHEGCN STATE

 UNIVERSITY, CCHVALLES, CHEGCN. 97531.

 Froj. No.: 04E00846

 Project Type: STATE

 Agency ID: SAES

 feriod: 20 JUL 66 Tc 01 JUL 80

OBJECTIVES: Conduct original research in fish genetics and ecology. Apply findings of research toward clarification of existing problems of race identification, hatchery improvement, evolution of fishes, and genetic tolerance to heavy metal poisoning for fishes. Incorporate graduate instruction and research into each of the above objectives.

AFFEGACE: Fogulation genetics, DNA homology studies, cytogenetic and Mendelian genetics studies, toxicity studies, and graduate level instruction in fish genetics and fish culture.

PEOGEESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Objectives include facilitating salmon and trout culture by determining phenotypic control of development, particularily stages during smoltification. Experiments on effects of transportation of coho and chinook indicated that post-release performance could be affected. Wild cut-throat tend to dominate hatchery cobo salmon. Detection of imprinting odorants may vary during smoltification. Hormone therapy can be used to induce spawning in coho salmon in both fresh and saltwater.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- DELABUNTY, G., SCHRECK, C.B., SPECKEF, J., CLCESF, J., VODICNIK, M.J. and LEVLAMING, V. 1979. The Effects of Light Reception on Circulating Estrogen Levels in Female Goldfish, Carassius auratus: Importance of Metinal Pathways
- DELABUNTY, G., SCHRECK, C.H. and DEVLAWING, V.I. 1980. Effects of Photoperiod on Plas me Corticoid Levels in the Goldfisb, Carassius auratus: Role of the Pineal. Comp. Elochem. Physiol. 65A: 355-358.
- EJIKE, C. and SCHRECK, C.H. 1980. Stress and Social Hierarchy Rank in Coho Salmon. Trans. Am. Fish. Soc. 109:423-426.
- BEDDING, J.M. and SCHRECK, C.B. 1979. Adaptive Significance of Certain Enzyme Polymorphisms in Steelhead Trout (Salmo gairdneri). J. Fish. Res. Board Can. 36(5):544-551.
- SPECKER, J.L. and SCERECE, C.E. 1980. Stress Responses to Transportation and Fitness for Marine Survival in Coho Salwon (Cncorhynchus kisutch) Smolts. Can. J. Fish. Aquatic Sci. 37(5):765-769.

002+020 CRIS0067332 Genetic Studies of Affenates Creek Chinock Salmon

 SCHRECK C E; FISHERIES & WILDLIFE; CHEGCN STATE

 UNIVERSITY, CCFVALLIS, CREGON. 97331.

 Froj. No.: OFE00277

 Project Type: STATE

 Agency ID: SAFS

 Period: 01 JAN 74 To 30 JUN 78

OBJECTIVES: Letermine the relative survival and antibody titers between blochemical genotypes; determine the genotype frequencies in juveniles produced and released at Abernathy Creek, and subsequently, to determine the genotype frequencies in the adults returning to Abernathy Creek.

AFFEGACE: Protein systems previously examined for genetically based variability in chinock salmon will be used in addition to any other variable systems found. The genetic basis of variables will be validated by comparing parental and offspring genotypes for the 1973 brood. Tissue samples from the 1973 brood parents adequate for these analyses have been obtained and samples from their offspring will te obtained prior to release early in 1974. Samples for the required analyses will be obtained from "production" fish prior to release in 1974, 1975, and 1976. Tissue samples from adults returning to Abernathy Creek in 1974, 1675, and 1976, and from smolts released in 1974 and 1675 will be examined also. Electrophoretic studies will be conducted to determine isozyme variation. Microtiters for several PRCGRESS: 78/01 TC 78/12. Fall chinook salmon selected for yield (return to fishery plus hatchery) did not produce offspring with a higher survival in the hatchery up to the time of release.

PUBLICATIONS: 78/01 TO 78/12 NO PUBLICATIONS EEPORTED THIS PERIOD.

002-021 CFIS0069128 BIOCHEMICAL GENETICS AND CYTOGENETICS CF THOUT

WRIGHT J E; BIOLOGY; PENNSYLVANIA SIATE UNIVERSITY, UNIVERSITY PARK, PENNSYLVANIA, 16802. Prcj. No.: PEN02213 Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 JUL 76 To 30 JUN 80

OEJECTIVES: Determine soluble protein types, their genetic bases, linkage and cytogenetic relations, and pleiotropic effects; banding patterns of chromosomes to be determined; use of these traits in differentiating strains of trout.

APPROACH: Tissue samples of trout strains from Pennsylvania Fish Commission and Federal hatcheries will be subjected to electrophoresis and histochemical staining to detect protein types. Genetic, statistical, and cytogenetic analyses, including chromosome banding patterns, will be performed on trout which differ for these traits.

PRCGRESS: 76/07 IC 80/06. Electrophoretic examination of approximately 25 enzymes involving 40 gene loci in the tetraploid derivative trouts provided the basis for joint segregation analyses of pairwise combinations of loci. From over 400 such combinations in testcross matings involving 21 loci, nine linkage groupings were found in brook trout and/or lake trout x brook trout hybrids. Six are classical linkage groups since both males and females showed non-random assortment of loci. Three cases involving duplicated loci for LDB, NDH and AAT show pseudolinkage; that is, random assortment in females but excess non-parental gametes from males. The 2h chromosome number in brook trout strains studied was 84, consisting of 68 acrocentrics and 16 metacentrics. All females show the expected 42 bivalent pairing at melotic pachytene, but males show variable numbers of bivalent (homologous) and tetravalent (homoeologous) pairs at metaphase I. Tetravalents consist of two metacentrics and two acrocentrics - the apparent evolutionary result of centric fusions of non-homologous acrocentrics to form metacentrics whose one arm pairs sometimes with homoeologous acrocentrics in the male environment. Male pseudolinkage of duplicated loci may be explained by homoeologous (tetravalent) pairing in which marker alleles on metacentrics and those on acrocentrics are transmitted to separate (non-parental) gametes. Crossing over in the tetravalents would account for another observed result in which unexpected progeny types occur in low frequency.

PUELICATICNS: 76/07 1C 80/06

MAY H., STONEKING M., WEIGHT J.E. 1980. Joint segregation of blochemical loci in Salmonidae: II. Linkage associations from a hydridized 'Salvelinus' genome. Genetics. 95:707-726
WRIGHT J. E., MAY H., STONERING M., LEE G. M. 1980. Pseudolinkage of the duplicated loci for supernatant aspartate aminotransferase in brook trout. J. Beredity. 71:223-228

002-022 CRIS0076879 BIOCHEMICAL GENETICS AND CYTCGENETICS CF TECUT

WEIGHT J E; BIOLOGY; PENNSYLVANIA STATE UNIVERSITY, UNIVERSITY PARK, PENNSYLVANIA. 16802. Proj. No.: PEN02477 Project Type: HATCE Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 JUL 80 To 30 JUN 84

OBJECTIVES: Determine the genetic bases of electrophoretically variable isozymes in brook, brown, rainbow and lake trout and bybrids; study chromosomes of normal and sex-reversed fish; and relate these studies to evolution of trout genomes.

APFECACH: Electrophoresis and histochemical staining of tissue extracts of trout from state and federal batcheries will identify trout to be mated to maximize the number of gene loci to be studied for joint segregation analyses. Cytogenetic analyses, including chromosome banding patterns, will be performed on normal and sex-reversed parents and progeny.

PROGRESS: 80/07 TO 80/12, The 2n chromosome number was found to be 60 (44 metacentrics, 16 acrocentrics) in most of our rainbow trout strains, 58 (46 metacentrics, 12 acrocentrics) in others, and 58, 59 (45 metacentrics, 14 acrocentrics), or 60 in one strain. This variation in number represents homozygosity (2n = 58) or teterozygosity (2n = 59) for a Robertsonian (centric fusion) translocation of two acrocentrics. In all strains, a sub-acrocentric sex chromosome pair is discernible, the male being the heteroganetic sex. Neiotic studies reveal bivalent pairing in females but highly pairing patterns within individual males. In the 2n = 58 or 60 males, metacentrics pair in bivalent, tetravalent, or bexavalent rings or as rod tetravelents having two metacentrics and two acrocentrics; remaining acrocentrics pair as rod bivalents. In 2n = 55 males (heterozygotes for Robertsonian fusion) the metacentric pairs with two acrocentrics to form a trivalent rod. In 2n = 60 males octavalent rings are present also. All male meiotic figures contain a unique subacrocentric rod bivalent, apparently the sex chromosomes. The multivalent and bivalent pairing patterns apparently represent random, mixed homoeologous or homologous pairing in males of this tetraploid derivative species. Evolution of the tetraploid karyotype towards a diploid one was through the fusion of non-homologous acrocentrics, coupled with retention of homology among duplicated chromosome arms in males.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/07 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERICD.

002.023 FRESHWATER FCOD ANIMALS CRIS0076533

 MCGINTY A S; ANIMAL INCUSTAY; UNIVERSITY OF PUERTO

 RICC, RIO PIEDEAS, PUERTO RICC. 00928.

 Proj. No.: PE00322

 Froject Type: HATCE

 Agency ID: CSRS

 Period: 14 SEP 78 To 30 SEP 81

OBJECTIVES: levelop and improve production and management systems for freshwater animals cultured for food: Nutrition, genetics and breeding and culture systems.

APPROACH: Experiments will be designed to determine practical feeds for Tilapia spp. under tropical conditions. Digestibility coefficients for thess diets will be determined for each species. Development and evaluations of suitable bresding and saxing techniques for mass production of Tilapia species and monosex hybrids. Determine optimum stocking densities and growth of Tilapia spp. in cage cultures and prode sutilizing supplementary feeding and/or pond fertilization. Flavor and texture of ths fish (fresh and processed) will be determined by organoleptic tests.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Six 1 m 3 floating cages were suspended in three 0.1 ba ponds and stocked with either 150, 300, 450, or 650 Tilapia nilotica fingerlings (75 to 125 mm/long) per cage. At least one of these densities was either fed a 30% protein sinking pellet at a rats of 4% total body weight daily, six days per week, or not fed. This preliminary study was conducted for 77 days at which time the fist from sach cage were weighed and measured. Fish that ware not fed marely maintained their initial stocking weight, regardless of density. Fish fed 4% daily gained 0.77, 0.70, 0.59, and 0.53 g/day in cages stocked with 150, 300, 450, and 600 fisb/cage, respectively. This indicated T. milotica fed a complete ration grew at a slowsr rate in cages when stocked at higher dansities. The above preliminary study indicates the need to determine the optimum stocking density of T. nilotica in cages. The effects of pond size may also be important and needs to be studied in conjunction with density. An experiment will be conducted during 1981 to determine these effects. Cages will be suspended in pends of either 0.70 ha or 0.16 ha and stocked with either 250, 500, 750, or 1000 fingerlings/cage. All fishes will be fed an equal percentage of the total body weight per cage.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TC 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

002.024 CRIS0071721 BREEDING EXPERIMENTS WITE SALMONIDS

SMITH L T; ANIMAL SCIENCE; UNIVERSITY OF RHODE ISLAND, KINGSTON, RHODE ISLAND. 02881. Proj. No.: RI00822 Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 15 NOV 76 To 14 NOV 81

OEJECTIVES: Two major problems in profitable rearing of cultured salmon are; reduced growth rate at the onset of sexual maturation and subsequent death of a proportion of the stock during spawning. Fish sterility might alleviate both problems. Induced triploidy in plaice and plaice x flounder hybrids are partially or completely sterile, but the condition has not been described for salmon. In addition, systematic selection should increase the process of domestication and improve growth, feed conversion, and carcass quality in salmon under intensive fish culture systems.

APFEOACH: Eggs stripped from ripe female trout will be exposed to various levels of colchicine and related compounds to induce polyploidy which will be determined by chromosome analysis of the embryo cells. Growth, viability, and the development of semual activity in polyploidy fish will be evaluated. Salmonid species and hybrids will be obtained and evaluated on their performance in water re-use systems.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. The production of polyploidy by induced spawning and cold shocking was completed. Mozaic polyploids were produced and their growth and development followed. They appear to grow at a faster rate and no sterility was noted. Work was begun in sex alteration with the feeding of .004 mg methyltestosterone for 900 degree days to fry coming on feed. Eesults were variable with some sterility resulting. Alteration of the sex ratio was in favor of males but not significantly so. The Atlantic salmon kelts were reconditioned but mortality to disease was extreme. Fost mortem's indicated fish were developing sggs for fall spawning. Only one fish survived to spawn. Thirteen survived at the DEM facility, howsver, only one spawned. Canadian kelts were obtained in December 1980 for reconditioning.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 LEMOINE, B.L. and SMITH, L.T. 1980. Polyploidy Induced in Brook Trout by Cold Shock. Transactions of the American Figheries Society 109:626-631.

002.025 FRESHWATER FOOD ANIMALS

CEIS0071695

WILSON J L; FORESTRY 6 WILDLIFE; UNIVERSITY OF TENNESSEE, ENOIVILLE, TENNESSEE. 37916. Proj. No.: TEN00491 Project Type: HATCE Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 CCT 76 To 30 SEP 81

OBJECTIVES: Develop and improves production and management systems for Freshwater animals cultured for food.

APPECACH: Standard msthods will be employed to determine the effects of stercids and selected marking techniques (branding, tagging, multilation) on survival and growth of catfieb. Polycultural methods using food fishes such as catfieb, sunfish hybrids, etc., will be compared to monocultural practices as relating to growth and total production.

PECGEESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Experimentation evaluating the feasibility of polyculturing channel catfish and tilapia in a high-density, flow-through system was completed. Growth and condition of catfish were significantly reduced in all polyculture treatments as compared to monoculture treatment. Correlation of species densities (3:1, 6:1, 12:1 tilagia/catfish) and growth of catfish resulted in a significant negative relationship. Tilapia growth and condition were unaffected except at the highest stocking density. Water quality parameters were similar between the treatments, except for dissolved oxygen levels which at times were lower in the polyculture treatments. A terramycin-resistant strain of Edwardsiella tarda was isolated from infected fish; this is the first report of this strain in channel catfisb. Preliminary work was restricted to examine the feasibility of using freshwater mussels as a food source. Replicate samples using the washboard variety of mussel are heing examined for composition, picrobial profile, and quality of surrounding water.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 BILTCN, B. and WILSON, J.L. 1980. Terramycin-resistant Edwardsiella tarda in Channel Catfish. Prog. Fish Culturist 42(3):159. BILTCN, F. 1580. Effects of Tilapia Densities on Growth of Channel Catfish in Flow-through Polyculture. M.S. Thesis, 29 pp. The University of Tennessee, Enoxville.

002.026 CRIS0075320 METAPRASE CEECNOSOME BANDING OF FRESEWATER FISBES

GCID J E; EICEHAM J; PLANT SCIENCE; TEXAS AGM UNIVERSITY, CCLLEGE STATICN, TEXAS. 77843. Proj. No.: TEX06187 Agency ID: CERS Period: 28 AFR 78 To 27 AFK 83

OBJECTIVES: Levelopment of techniques and procedures which give consistent chromosome banding of rainbow trout, largemouth bass and channel catfist. Application of chromosome banding to fish resource management and teleostean research.

APPEGACE: Analysis of metaphase cbromosome handing patterns of populations of these freshwater fish species (rainbow trout, Salmo gairdneri; largemouth bass, Micropterus salmoides; andchannel catfish, Ictalurus punctatus will be undertaken using hasis and established methods in order to resolve individual, unique chromosomes ofeach species. The resolution of individual charomosomes will be used ib hoth applied and basic researcb.

PECGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. We have recently obtained at least partially banded karyotypes for four species belonging to three cyprinid fish genera. Cur findings sbow that lorgitudinal patterns such as G-, Q-, and R-bands appear conserved in these fishes, at least to the level gererally observed in many vertebrates. Constitutive heterochromatin (C-) handing patterns, however, appear heterogeneous both within and among species. This type of chromosomal variation may thus he of considerable importance in documenting genetic differentiation among populations of fish species, and in understanding the role of this type of chromatin structure in the genetics and development of fishes. Much of our work in the coming year will focus on this type of variation. Another important recent finding was the discovery of an apparent gene amplification event in the common minnow, Notropis lutrensis. Briefly, using silver impregnation techniques, we were able to demonstrate nearly a three-fold increase in chromosomal material on the short arm of the sex chromosome in this species. This was an important observation for two reasons. First, much of the amplified material contained the chromosomal genes for ribosomal RNA. These are vital genes relative to cell growth and function; and it may now be possible to experimentally alter growth rates in fish by manipulating ribosomal DNA content. The second reason was that the remainder of the amplified material was acromatically and homogeneously stained.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TC 80/12

GOLD, J.R., KAREL, W.J. and STRAND, M.R. 1980. Chromosome Formulae of North American Fishes. The Progressive Fish-Culturalist 42:10-23.

GOLD, J.R. 1980. Chromosomal Change and Rectangular Evolution in North American Cyprinid Fishes. Genetical Research 35:157-164.

002.027 FRESEWATER FOOD ANIMALS

CEIS0061207

 STICKNEY R R; STRAWN K; COHE E E; WILDLIFE S

 FISBERIES SCI; TEXAS AGM UNIVEESITY, COLLEGE STATION,

 TEXAS. 77843.

 Proj. No.: TEX02831

 Agency ID: CSRS

 Period: 01 CCT 76 To 30 SEP 81

OBJECTIVES: Develop and improve production and management systems for freshwater animals cultured for food, including: Nutrition, genetics ano breeding, water quality, diseases, and culture systems. Develop and improve products and processing methods that will enhance marketability and insure quality of cultured freshwater food animals.

APPROACH: Various methods will be utilized to meet the objectives of the overall S-38 project in the several cooperating institutions. The thrust of the Texas Agricultural Experiment Station will be on channel catfish, Tilapia and freshwater shrimp, with emphasis heing placed on objectives I ahove, especially nutrition, water quality and culture systems.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Lipid energy requirements of channel catfish fry were evaluated with semipurified diets over the period from onset of feeding until the fish reached several grams in weight. The data obtained will be utilized to aid in the preparation of fry feeds specifically developed for channel catfish. It is anticipated that the protein: energy ratio will be adjusted as food particle size is increased during the initial year of life. Semipurified diets with varying lipid sources and percentages revealed no significant differences in channel catfish fingerling growth over the lipid range from 6 to 14% at a mean temperature of 22 degrees C, though fish fed 10% lipid were slightly larger in mean size at the end of the 20 week experiment. Fatty acid composition revealed that there were no significantly different patterns among diets with the same lipid source, but there were differences among lipid sources with respect to final fatty acid composition. Polyculture studies with freshwater shrimp and tilapia revealed some depressed growth when the two were stocked together, but in general, feeding on the basis of estimated fish biomass will yield a secondary shrimp crop, without the need to provide shrimp feed. Overwintering of large numbers of tilapia is being conducted to determine if the technique is feasible for use in central Texas and to provide fish for a study of second year growth potential of this fish. Plastic and fiberglass covered ponds as well as indoor overwintering facilities are being compared.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- BENDERSCN-AFZAPALC, A., STICKNEY, F.R. and LEWIS, D.H. 1980. Immune Hypersensitivity in Intensively Cultured Tilapia Species. Trans. Am. Fish. Soc. 109:244-247.
- YINGST III, W.L. and STICKNEY, E.R. 1980. Growth and Survival of Caged Channel Catfish (Ictalurus punctatus) fingerlings on Diets Containing Various Lipids. Prog. Fish-Cult. 42:24-26.
- EUENS, E.P. and STICKNEY, E.E. 1980. Growth of Tilapia aurea in Ponds Receiving Poultry Wastes. Aquaculture 20:117-121.
- CUENCO, N.L. and STICKNEY, J.F. 1980. Reliability of an Electrode and a Water Analysis Eit for Determination of Ammonia in Aquaculture Systems. Trans. Am. Fish. Soc. 109:571-576
- MCGEACHIN, R.B. 1980. Production of Tilaria aurea in Simulated Lagoons Receiving Laying Ben Wastes. Ph.D. Disseration, Texas ASM University, 71 pr.

002.028 DEVELOF OF AQUACULTURE SYSTEMS FOR COOL WATER PISE SPECIES

CALBERT B E; FCOD SCIENCE; UNIVERSITY CF WISCONSIN, MADISON, WISCCNSIN. 53706. Proj. No.: WIS01953 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 SEP 72 To 30 AUG 81

OBJECTIVES: Maintain a facility for fish growing operations and research as a service unit. Improve the reproductive efficience of cool water speciee of fish to be used in aquaculture. Improve the acceptability and nutritive value of formulated feede used in aquaculture. Improve methods of yellow perch fingerling production.

APPECACE: The acquaculture research facility at 6080 McKee Boad, Madison, WI and the outside ponds on the UW Experimental Farms will be maintained and operated to provide research facilities and fish to be used in aquaculture research. Selective breeding of yellow perch and otter cool water species will be used to improve the strains of fish and adapt them to aquaculture operations. Studies on the preservation of fish sperm, owa, and fetilized eggs by cryobiological methods will be made. Various types of protein sources will be investigation for incorporation into formulated diets used in fish growing opertions. The care, management and productivity of outside ponds for figerling production will be investigated.

PROGRESS: 79/01 TO 75/12. Project emphasis over the past 4 years has been on developing methods of commercially culturing yellow perch indoors in closed water-recycling systems. Research has shown that this type of culture is technically feasible, through the application of sanitary engineering principles but ie too capitol intensive for commercial development. Project emphasis has been shifted to pond, raceway and cage culture, both for commercial applicatione and mild fisheries enhancement. The project has aleo worked extensively on diet development, control of reproduction, cryopreservation of sperm, and fingerling production of coolwater species of fish. Dietary recommendations regarding coolwater fieb production have been made available through the National Coolwater Fish Diet Steering Committee. Methods for controlling reproduction in coolwater fish have been developed and applied to implrove the predictability of spawning. Sperm from yellow perch, northern pike and walleye have been frozen, stored and later used to fertilize eggs. Such research will aid in improving the efficiency and profitability of fish rearing operations, whether they be for commercial purposes or fishery enhancement.

PUBLICATIONS: 79/01 TO 79/12 NC PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

3. Diseases, Parasites, Pests, Weeds

003.001 CFIS0045406 TRANSMISSION OF CULTURED CATPISE VIEUS: DETECTION BY INMUNOLOGICAL METEODS

PLUME J A; KLESIUS P E; AGRICULTURAL EXPER. STATION; AUBURN UNIVEFSITY, AUBURN, ALABAMA. 36830. Proj. No.: 7602-20440-001-A Project Type:

COOPERATIVE AGREE. Agency ID: AIS Period: 05 JUN 79 To 31 MAY 82

CEJECTIVES: Determine vertical transmission of channel catfish virus disease by adult catfieb to susceptible young fish by immunological methods.

APPROACE: Current immunological procedures will be evaluated as techniques for detecting virus in artificially-infected broodstock and naturally-infected fingerlings. Isolation of virus will be attempted by tiesue culture techniques from broodstock and fingerlings. Reproductive products and excretory producte of broodstock will be collected and assayed for virus. Egg massed, fry and fingerlinge will be accayed for virus by serological and tissue culture techniques.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TC 80/12. The indirect and direct immunofluorescent antibody techniques are being evaluated for detetion of channel catfish virus in tissue culture cells. The direct immunofluorescent antibody technique has worked to detect virus in infected catfish. The variables of the immunofluorescent antibody techniques are being studied for making the techniques diagnostic.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS SEPORTED THIS PERIOD.

003.002 CRISCO82029 TRANSMISSION AND INNUNCLOGY OF CEANNEL CATFISE VIEUS DISEASE OF CULTURED CATFISE

PLUME J A; KLESIUS P B; PISHEFIES 6 ALLIED AQUACULTURE; AUBURN UNIVERSITY, AUFURN, ALAFAMA. 36830. Proj. Noo: ALA-27-0007 Project Type: GEANT Agency ID: CSRS Period: J1 JUL 80 To 01 JUL 83

OBJECTIVES: Demonstration of a carrier stte or latency of channel catfleb virus in channel catflish (CCV). Determine the mode of vertical CCV transmiselon through a breeding study. Determine the influence of environmental factors on the epizootiology of CCV disease.

APPEOACH: The carrier state will be demonstrated by infecting susceptible fish and applying virological and immunological techniques; the cite of virus replication will be determined. Latency will be studied by attempts to restimulate CCV shedding through verioue stress and other types of techniques. Vertical transmission will be descnetrated by utilizing eurvivors of known CCV epizootics on broodstock and hatching and holding progeny to demonstrate virus transmission. Effects of environmental stress on CCV outbreaks will be demonetrated by exposing sub-lethally infected fish to various environmental conditions including crowding, low O(2), high temperature, etc.

PROGRESS: 80/07 TO 80/12. Efforts to perfect the application of FA procedures for detection for CCV are continuing using goat anti-CCV eerum in both the direct and indirect method. Eeults are inconsistent in CCV infected cell cultures and fish. Preliminary experimental infections in sub-adult channel catflish resulted in icolation of CCV from gonads, kidney and epleen at 72 hr PI but not from liver or brain. At 144 hr. PI, CCV was isolated only from gonade. Indirect FA procedures failed to demonstrate virus antigen in any tiesues. Experiments are underway to study the vertical transmission of CCV.

PUELICATIONS: 80/07 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS SEPORTED THIS PERIOD.

003.003 Freshwater food animals CKIS0060554

PLUME J A; ROGESS W A; FISBEFIES & ALLIED AQUACULIURE; AUBUEN UNIVERSITY, AUBURN, ALABAMA. 36830. Proj. No.: ALA00340 Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 JUL 71 To 30 SEP &1

OEJECTIVES: Develop and improve production and management systems for freehwater animals or cultured for food - Diseases.

APPEOACE: Channel and hybrid catfish will be challenged by several routes of infection with cbannel catfish virus in aquaria. Experimentally and naturally infected adult and juvenile channel catfish will be tested by neutralization and fluorescent antibody techniques for CCV transmission and carrier. By artificially altering the environeznt, fish will be etressed and tested for susceptibility to disease. Immunology of "Icb" to fish will be studied in channel catfish and potentials of vaccination evaluated.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Adult channel cattish from a population with a history of CCV infected offspring had antibody-titers from 0.00 to 1.14 against 100 TCID(50) of CCV per 0.1 ml in mid-April. Females were injected with Eetamethazone (immunosuppressent) at 0.25 and 0.125 mg/kg and 3 wks. later spawned. CCV antibody titers did not change. CCV was not isolated from internal organs of the test fish immediately after spawning, but indirect FA application to frozen sections of cvarian tissues revealed what appeared to be foci of CCV antigen. Also primary cell cultures from ovarian tissues showed positive flourescent foci of CCV antigen. Transmission electron microscopy of gonadal tissue revealed no CCV particles. Fry resulting from spawning could not be maintained long enough for acequate CCV assay. An enzyme immunoassay (EIA) has been developed to detect two species of Edwardsiella in fish. Specific antibodies were developed in rabbits and the indirect test run using peroxidase conjugated goat-anti-rathit antisera. Several substrate compounds were used with best result obtained from 3.3 diaminobenzydine. Preliminary tests in the laboratory show that the EIA compares favorably with the flourescent antihody technique. Further testing in the lab and field will he conducted.

- FUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12
 - ECWSER, P.E. and PLUME, J.A. 1980. Channel Catfish Virus: Comparative Replication and Sensitivity of Cell Lines from Channel Catfish Ovary and the Brown Bullhead. J. Wildl. Dis. 16(3):451-454.
 - ECWSEF, P.F. and PLUME, J.A. 1980. Growth Rates of a New Cell Line from Channel Catfish Cvary and Channel Catfisb Virus Replication at Different Temperatures Can. J. Fish. and Aquat. Sci. 37(5): 871-873.
 - WALTEES, G.F. and PLUME., J.A. 1980. Environmental Stress and Eacterial Infection in Channel Catfish. J. Fish. Fiol. 17:177-185.

003.004 CFIS0056021 COOPERATIVE FISH PARASITE AND DISEASE STUDY

 FIGERS VA; FLUMB JA: FISHERIES & ALLIED

 AQUACULTURE; AUBURN UNIVERSITY, AUEURN, ALAEAMA.

 36830.

 Proj. No.: ALA-27-0002

 Froject Type: STATE

 Agency ID: SAES

CBJECTIVES: Letermine the disease producing organisms responsible for epizootics in fish populations in each of the seven cooperating states. Conduct research on identification, life history, epizootiology, pathogenicity and control of organisms associated with fish kills.

APPECACE: Sites of fish kills will be visited by project personnel to collect dead and dying fish. Fish collected by State biologists will be shipped to Auburn. Collected fish will be examined using standard parasitological and microbiological techniques. Isolated pathogens will be utilized to produce diseases in laboratory fish for research.

PROGRESS: £0/01 TO 80/12. A total of 303 fish cases was received for disease diagnosis at the Southeastern Cooperative Fish Disease project laboratory during 1980. Of these, 13 (4.3%) were viruses, 86 (28.4%) were bacterial, 58 (19.1%) were parasitic, and 146 (48.2%) were miscellaneous. Aeromanas ep was the most prominent pathogenic organism. Drug sensitivity was conducted on all bacterial isclates. Golden shiners (Notomegonus crysoleucas) infected with golden shiner virus yielded virus from kidney, liver and spleen at 23 degrees C and 28 degrees C. Virus titers were higher at 28 degrees C than 23 degrees C. Largemouth bass, bighead carp, Tilaria sp. and golden stiners could not be experimentally infected with Edwardsiella sp., the causative agent of enteric septicesia of catfish. An enzyme immunoassay was developed for detecting Edwardsiella tarda and E. sp. of catfish compared favorably with the flourescent antibody test in

laboratory experiments. Phagocytes were separated from whole channel catfist blood by isopyknic centrifungation on PVF coated collogial silica and were used in a luminol-dependent phagocytic chemilummesent assay to determine the effect of temperature on the cellular immune response in channel catfist.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- MITCHEIL, A.J. and FLUMB, J.A. 1980. Toxicity and Efficacy of Furance on Channel Cattish infected Experimentally with Aeromenas hydrophila. J. Fish. Eis. 3:93-99.
- EOWSER, P. R. and PLUME, J.J. 1880. Fish Cell Lines: Establishment of a Line from Cvaries of Channel Catfish. In Vitro. 16:365-268.
- SCHWEDLER, T.E. and PLUME, J.A. 1980. Fish Viruses: Serologic Comparison of the Golden Shiner and Infectious Pancreatic Necrosic Viruses. J. Wildl. Dis. 16:557-593.
- SCOTT, A.L. and KCGERS, W.A. 1980. Histological Effects of Prolonged Sublethal Bypoxia on Channel Catfist. J. Pist. Dis. 3:305-316.

MANAGEMENT STRATEGIES FOR RICE PESTS

003.005

 TUGWELL N P; LEE F N; SMITH R J; FICE-FASIURE RES &

 EXT CENTER; FICE-PASTURE RES & EXT CENTER, STUTIGART,

 ARBANSAS. 72160.

 Proj. No.: AR.S1048

Project Type: STATE

Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 80 To 30 JUN 83

CBJECTIVES: Develop improved practices and systems for control of rice sheath blight, blast, red rice, grass-broadleaf - aquatic weed complexes and the grape colaspis.

APPROACH: Disease - Rice sheath blight and blast nurseries will be expanded and evaluated for disease resistance. Cptimum rates, times and methods of application of fungicides for disease control will be determined tin inoculated plcts. Estimates will be made of damage thresholds under different inoculum and fettility levels and cultural practices. Spatial distribution of inoculum in rice will be determined by intensive surveys. Weeds - Replicated exceriments will be conducted at several locations to compare efficacy of treatments for control of red rice in rice and coprs rotated with rice and for control of grass-broadleaf - aquatic weeo complexes in rice. Control programs for rice will emphasize herbicides other than those of the phenoxy group. Insects Extensive surveys will be made across rice/soylean growing areas. Intensive surveys will be made within highly infested field where insecticides will be screened in replicated plots for grap colaspis control.

003.006 WEED CONTEOL IN BICE PRODUCTION

CLIS0003201

CEIS0082863

SWITH F J; AGECNOMY; UNIVERSITY OF AFKANSAS, FAYETTEVILLE, AFKANSAS, 72701. Proj. No.: AFK00419 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 MAR 70 To 28 FEE 75

OEJECTIVES: Develop more effective chemical, cultural, mechanical, biological, and combination methods of controlling weeds in rice, and in crops grown in rotation with rice.

APFROACE: Evaluate and compare new herbicioes and mixtures with standard ones. Determine the effects of weeds and herbicides on yield and quality of rice. Study the interactions of various control methods with the physiology, ecology, morphology, and anatomy of rice, and of annual and perennial weeds. Characterize the effects of selected herbicides on succeeding crops, fish, and other aquatic animal life. Determine the fate of herbicides, applied to rice, in the rice crop, soil, and water, and in other crops grown in rotation with rice.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Berbicide programs for rice controlled week complexes better than standard propanil, molinate or phenoxys. Herhicides that combined effectively with propaoil for weed control and safety to rice included thisbencarb, hutachlor, oxadiazon, pendimethalin, and acifluorien. Many of these new treatments substitute applications of propanil or goliniate and single applications of 2,4, I, -D silvex or 2,4-D. Taok mixtures of propanil + MCFA or propanil + acifluorfen controlled weeds growing on leaves and were effective substitutes for propanil + 2,4,5-T. Cropping-herbicide systems controlled red rice; important in this system was control of red rice in rotated crops. Effective treatments in soybeans were ppi alachlorm, metolachlor, and tank mixtures of these with pendimethalin; ppi profluralin, UBI-S734, FE-28269 and MCN 097; poe directed paraquat alone, and tank mixed with 2,4-DB; poe directed BAS 9052; and poe overdrop mefluidide + bentazon. Effective in grain sorghum were ppi metclachlor, alachlor, propazine, propagine + metolachlor and alachlor. CGA spores controlled nothern jointwetch in rice and soybeans; CGJ controlled winged waterprimose in rice; both effectively combined in a weed-pest management system. All season competition of dayflower reduced rice yields 15-20%, but competition for up to 80 days had no effect. Nidseasco applications of glyphusate controlled most weed species growing in rice field flooding and draining canals,

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- SMITH JR., R.J. 1980. Rice. pp. 118-124. In: Suggested Guidelines for Weed Control ISEA Apric. Handbook 565, 330 pp.
- SMITH JB., B.J. 1980. Progress Report on Weed Control in Rice. Abstracts 19th Annual Westing Arkansas Agricultural Pesticide Association. pp. 11-12 (Atstract),
- SMITH JR., E.J. and SULLIVAN, J.D. 1980. Feduction of Red kice Grain in Rice Fields by Winter Feeding of Ducks. Arkansas Farm Research. 29(4):1-3.
- TEMPLETON, G.E., SNITH JB., B.J., and KLCMPABENS, W. 1980. Commercialization of Fungi and Bacteria for Biological Control. Biocontrol News and Information. 1(4): 291-294.

003.007 CRIS0044542 CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS PASED ON ALLELOPATEIC CHARACTERISTICS IN SPIRERUSE (ELEOCRARIS SPP.)

ASETON F N; FEANE P A; UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, DAVIS, CALIFCRNIA. 95616. Proj. No.: 5090-20281-003-A(1) Project Type: CCCFEFATIVE AGREE. Period: 07 JUN 78 To 30 SEP 79

Agency ID: ARS

OEJECTIVES: Invelop procedures for qualitative and quantitataive biossay of allelopathic compounds in spikerush. Eleocharis coloradoensis. Extract. isolate, and identify allelopathic compound(s) present in spikerush.

APPROACE: Growing stands of spikerush will be harvested and natural components extracted and partitioned with organic solvents. The extracts will be partitioned further and isolated using various chromatographic techniques. The allelopathic fraction(s) will be segregated from other fractions by appropriate hioassay, followed by chemical characterization and the development of chemical structure.

PROGRESS: 78/06 TO 79/09. Spikerush (Eleocharis coloradoensis) was subjected to several methods of extraction and chromatography. Pure compounds isolated were tricin, luteolin, "gamma-sitosterol," ferulic acid, and dihydroactinidiolide (I). Compound I was synthesized by two routes: Reduction of Beta-ionone (II) to trans-Beta-ionol, phytolysis to cis-Beta-ioncl, and Jones oxidation; protolytic ring colsure of II to a pyran followed by Jones oxidation. The above compounds were tested for allelopathic acitvity or inhibition of rout elongation of watercress (Nasturitum officianale) seedlings and/or of germination of raoish seeds. Ferulic acid and dihydroactinidiolide were very active, luteolin

slightly, and tricin and "gamma-sitosterol" inactive. Analogs of dihydroactinidiolide are being synthesized and tested for allelopathic activity (K. L. Stevens). A cultured cell hioassay to rapidly screen allelopathic compounds was developed using rose, tonato, and sugarcane cells. Synthetic allelopathic compounds were detectable below 5 ppm. Using this assay on carude and purified extracts of spikerush from K, Stevens, a strongly inhibitory compound(s) in fractions of aqueous-ethanol extracts ws detected. Bioassays using whole or excised plant parts of sage pondweed on these extracts have been negative. To increase the specificity of the cultured cell bicassay, we are attempting to obtain a cell culture of sage pondweed.

PUBLICATIONS: 78/06 TO 79/09 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

003.008 CRIS0045580 A SUBVEY FOR PATROGEN FOR AQUATIC WEEDS IN CALIFORNIA FOR USE IN BIOLOGICAL CONTROL

DUNIWAY J N; ANDERSON L W; AGHICULTURAL EXPER-STATION; UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, DAVIS, CALIFORNIA. 95616. Prcj. No.: 5090-20282-006-A Project Type:

COCPENATIVE AGREE. Agency ID: ARS Feriod: 23 AUG 79 To 30 JUN 82

CEJECIIVES: Conduct a survey to discover pathogens that have potential for development as hiological control agents for several important submersed aquatic seeds.

APPROACE: Collect, identify, and culture pathogenic-type organisms found on elodea, milfoil, hydrilla, pondweeds, coontail, and algae in the Davis area and other selected localities. Determine the characteristics of infection, transmission, virulence. Study promising phytopathogens for purposes of augmentation, release, and other manipulations.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TC 80/12. Aquatic weeds were sampled at a number of sites in Central and Northern California, usually at 2-4-week intervals during the past growing season and at less frequent intervals during the dormant season. The survey emphasized submersed weeds and algae, but nonsubmersed weeds were also sampled where disease symptoms were apparent. Sumbersed weeds did not appear to he killed or otherwise generally affected by diseases in the field, but occasionally they had small necrotic cr discolored local lesions. Wany fungi and a few bacteria were observed and/or isolated from such lesions, and after artificial inoculations in a greenhouse, a few fungi reproduced lesions somewhat like those observed in the field, especially in Eurasian watermilfoil. However, the inoculations have not yet shown that local lesions have a negative impact on weed growth and many of the attempted inoculations failed. Efforts are underway to improve the weed culture and inoculation methods. Some stands of emersed weeds had more apparent symptoms of disease; and several fungi known to be plant pathogens were isolated from apparently diseased specimens of cattail, bullrush and parrots feather.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS SEPORTED THIS PERIOD.

003.009 CRIS0078667 SUBVEY OF DISEASES OF CULTURED FRESEWATER FISHES OF CALIFORNIA

BOWSEE P B; ANIMAL SCIENCE; UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, DAVIS, CALIFORNIA. 95616. Proj. No.: CA-D*-ASC-3732-AH Project Type: ANIMAL BEALTH Period: 19 NAR 79 To 30 SEP 83 Agency ID: CSRS

OFJECTIVES: Identify infectious diseases which limit production efficiency of frestwater aquaculture in California: Identify those diseases of freshwater fishes which limit the production of aquaculture and determine the extens of these diseases throughout the state; catalcg diseases found and describe conditions associated with the epizootics. Management techniques and procedures will be developed by which the aquaculturist can limit or eliminate lossed due to disease.

APPEDACE: Data will be collected through necropsy of specimens from disease outbreaks at aquaculture facilities. Ising the standard procedures of fish pathology, specimens will be examined for parasitic and bacterial infections. Any bacteria isolated will be tested for antibiotic sensitivity. Trout and young channel catfish will also be routinely screened for viral diseases. An effort will be directed toward the development of rapid fluorescent antibody techniques for the diagrosis of bacterial and viral diseases.

PECGRESS: 80/01 10 80/12. Continuing progress has been made in identifying diseases of freshwater aquaculture species. These diseases represent limiting factors for economic production. Symptoms of these diseases are recorded along with information describing conditions associated with the epizootics. Through this information, management techniques and procedures can be developed to help eliminate losses due to diseases. This survey has also made available diagnostic services to the California aquaculturist. Diseases have been diagnosed for sturgeon, bass, channel catfish, rainbow trout, Koi, freshwater sbrimp, goldfish and tropical aquarium fish. The most common disease protlem is tacterial, usually caused ty Pseudomonas sp., Aeromonas sp., and Vibrio sp. Flexifacter columaris is often seen causing gill necrosis. The parasitic protozoans Ichthyophthirius, Costia and Trichodina were the most often observed. A report of this survey was presented to the annual California Fish Farmers and California Aquaculture Association meeting.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS SEPERIED THIS PERIOD.

003.010 AQUACULTURE FATEOLCGY

CRIS0080249

HCWSER P R; ANIMAL SCIENCE; UNIVERSITY OF CALIFCENIA, DAVIS, CALIFCENIA. 95616. Proj, No.: CA-C#-ASC-3895-H Froject Type: BATCH Agency ID: CS#S Period: 01 NOV 79 To 30 SEP 83

OEJECTIVES: Investigate the causes of diseases of those marine invertebrate which are being studied under the Aquaculture Frogram at the Hodega Warine Lab; expand disease diagnostic capabilities of the disease project.

APPEGACE: Information on the disease and water quality problems faced by the state's equaculture industry will be solicited. Established techniques of microbiology, pathology, and thoassay will be used to investigate two diseases of particular interest to the Bodega Marine Lab, namely shell disease syndrome and ephiotic fouling. The initial phase of these studies will involve the isolation of the etiological agents and investigation of the pathogenesis of the disease syndromes. Through in-bouse training and attendance at workshops and scientific meetings, the expertise of the disease project personnel will be enhanced.

PRCGEESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Continung progress has been mace in establishing a statewide disease diagnostic center for both freshwater and marine aquaculture species. The laboratory has developed the capability for the diagnosis of parasitic protozoans, fungal and hacterial pathogens. Other techniques such as histological transmission and scanning electron microscopy can also the utilized. During 1580, 38 cases from California aquaculturists were diagnosed and corrective treatments recommended. Research and diagnostic work is counting on marine invertebrates being cultured in the Aquaculture Progrem at the Eodega Marine Laboratory. During 1580, 102 cases were submitted for disease diagnosis from other research groups at the Eodega Marine Laboratory. At the present time, a survey and diagnostic procedures for marine bacterial disease are being conducted. The water quality lab monitors experimental equaculture systems for ammonia, nitrite, nitrate and phosphate and has maintained its standards as a state certified water quality laboratory.

PUFLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

CRANDALL, T.A. and EOWSER, P.K. 1980. The Biology of a Farasite Found in the Mosquitofish Gambusia affinis. Proceedings and Papers of the Forty-eight Annual Conference of the California Nosquito and Vector Control Association, Inc.

003.011 CFIS0045521 BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS WITH CONPETITIVE SPECIES OF SPIKERUSE (ELEOCEARIS SPP.)

ASETON F M; ANDERSCN L %; HOTANY; UNIVERSITY OF CALIFCENIA, DAVIS, CALIFORNIA. 95616. Proj. No.: 5090-20281-004-A(1) Project Type: COCPERATIVE AGRES. Agency ID: ARS Period: 27 JUL 79 To 30 JUN 84

OEJECTIVES: Conduct a pilot test project to establish use of spikerush (Eleocharis spr.) as a practical approach to control of submersed aquatic weeds in irrigation channels, farm ponds, lakes, and reservoirs.

APPECACE: Select sites for planting spikerush in irrigation channels, ponds, and reservoirs. Surveys site to collect data on water quality, soil characteristics, weed species, and weed distribution. Plant spikerush at appropriate times of year as determine by the nature of individual sites. Flot size and number to be determined by availability of seed, length or size of body of water, and opportunity for replication to tests. Determine relationships between water quality, soil characteristics, and other parameters to success of establishment, growth, and spread of spikerush. Determine persistence of spikerush, its atility to encroach into previously extablished stands of weeds, ebility to resist reinvasion of sites by undesiratle aquatic species. It is intended that this work will be followed by Phases II though V.

PECGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Field, germination, ecological studies. Traces of spikerush have been found in P800318, in which southern naiad, waterstargrass, leafy pondweed, curlyleaf pondweed and elodea are also present to varying degrees. The growth of spikerush in P791205 is very extensive both upstream, as well as downstream from the planted plots, indicating either an extremely rapid spread from the seed planted, or a natural invasion of the area. An additional ecological study (E800709) has been initiated in a group of small reservoirs in which both spikerush and American pondweed naturally occur. Allelopathy. The effect of spikerush sol leachate on the growth of tomato cells was studied. Chromatographic methods will soon be employed to further concentrate the active fraction(s). Dihydroactinidiolide has not been found in the leachate material. Tissue Culture. Research on the development of callus and cell cultures of spikerush and sago pondweed is continuing. Several types of growth media and various bormone levels were used to speed the growth of the callus, as well as produce free cells for suspension culture.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

003.012 CRIS0066814 THE USE OF SELECTED AQUATIC OFGANISMS FOR PURPOSES OF AQUACULTURE (FOOD PRODUCTION)

KNIGHT A W; LAND, AIR & WAIEL LESOULCES; UNIVERSITY OF CALIFCENIA, DAVIS, CALIFOLNIA. 95616. Proj. No.: CA-D*-LAW-3350-H Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 05 NCV 74 To 30 SEP 80

OBJECTIVES: Determine the tolerances, growth dynamics, food preference, egg batchability of selected pest organisms. Utilize existing pest organisms such as tadpole shrimp and cladophora algae for beneficial purposes such as low cost protein source.

APPEOACE: Initially information will be obtained relating to the environmental needs of the organisms under consideration. Later we will manage environmental factors in order to maximize the production of the potential protein material for purposes of either a domestic animal food (i.e., chicken or catfish food) or a protein supplement for humans.

PECGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Preparation of manuscripts resulting from our work with the Malaysian prawn (Macrobrachium rosenbergii) continues. These manuscripts focus on physiological aspects of our research and will be submitted to scientific journals in the near future. Research to better understand the laboratory culture of the grass shrimp (Crangon) is progressing well. This shrimp is a key food item for striped bass and sturgeon. Those culturing the sturgeon in the laboratory have indicated a need for food that is also under culture and therefore readily available to feed fish. Our research to determine the evironmental needs of the shrimp bas increased our capabilities to successfully culture this shrimp in the laboratory. Recently we have included the Asiatic clam (Corbicula) in our culture operations. This clam exhibits potential as a filter feeder to remove undesirable particulate matter from aquaculture systems. In addition, the clam has demonstrated an ability to accumulate toxic materials such as heavy metals and organic materials. Clams, it is felt, will serve as excellent monitoring organisms in aquaculture systems. We are experimenting with methods of placing the clams in aquatic systems and their retrieval for tissue burden determination.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

STEPBENSCN, N.J. and KNIGET, A.W. 1980. Growth, Respiration and Caloric Content of Larvae of the Prawn Macrobrachium rosenbergii. Comparative Biochemistry and Physiology 66A(3):385-391.
NAGAMINE, C., KNIGET, A.W., NAGAMINE, C., KNIGET, A.W., MAGGENTI, A. AND PAXMAN, G. 1980. Effects of Androgenic Gland Ablation on Male Primary and Secondary Sexual Characteristics in the Malaysian Prawn. Macrobrachium rosenbergii with First Ewident of Induced

003.013 CFIS0070858 DISEASES OF AQUATIC ANIMALS

RAGGI I G; MEDICINE; UNIVERSITY OF CALIFCENIA, DAVIS, CALIFOENIA. 55616. Proj. No.: CA-V*-MED-3470 Froject Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 76 To 30 JUN 81

OBJECTIVES: Levelor a reliable diagnostic method of "Whirling Disease" of Salmonids. Determine the role of diseases in California aquaculture.

APPEGACE: Concentration and partial purification of Myxosoma cerebralis spores from ground tissue of suspected trout. Specific density of spores as criterion of identification. Bacteriological, wirological, and pathological identification of pathogens of California catfisb, abalone, oysters, crab and lobster. Experimental reproduction of diseases.

PROGRESS: 78/01 TO 78/12. There is no progress report for the period as the Principal Investigator officially retired to "Emeritus" status during this period.

PUBLICATIONS: 78/01 TO 78/12 NC PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

003.014 CEIS0066708 NEMATODE PARASITES OF FRESEWATER FISE: EIGLOGY AND EFFECTS MAGGENTI A R; NEMATOLOGY; UNIVEESITY OF CALIFORNIA, DAVIS, CALIFORNIA. 95616. Proj. No.: CA-D*-NEM-312i-H Project Type: HATCH Agency 1D: CSES Period: 16 CCT 74 To 30 SEP 85

OBJECTIVES: Determine the distribution, species, disease incidence and intensity of nematodes parasitic in freshwater, both game and nongame, cold and warmwater fish of the State. Investigate nematode life history and reservoir bests. Determine the parasitic role in affecting fish growth and mertality. Investigate means of parasite control and management.

APPROACE: Collection and identification and dissection. Effects on growth and mortality will be determined by standard procedures utilized by fishery biologists. control measures to be investigated are anthelmintics and non-chemical pest management such as manipulation of stream-bank vegetation or fish population rotation by species or resistance.

PEOGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Studies continue on the descriptions of two new species of spirurid nematode parasites of rainbow trout from California. Underway is a revision clarifying the genetic validity of Bulbodacnitis, a nematode commonly occurring in salwonids throughout the world. The revision will contain notes on host specificity. Firdings indicate this nematode can also attack fresh water tass species.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

003.015 CONTROL OF VEEDS AND CEPTAIN CTHER AQUATIC PESTS IN THE PACIFIC SOUTEWEST

ANDERSON L W; YEO & R; USCA-ARS AQUATIC WEED CCNT RES, DAVIS, CALIFCENIA. 95616. Prcj. No.: 5206-20280-001 Project Type: INEGUSE Agency ID: ARS Period: 26 FEE 70 To 15 NCV 81

OEJECTIVES: Investigate individual and integrated approaches to control aquatic weeds, including herbicides, berbivorous fish and other aquatic fauna, insects, competitive plants, pathogens and other organisms. Investigate physiology, ecology, and biochemistry of aquatic plants in order to understand why and how the weed problems occur, and how effective control programs can be divesed.

APPROACH: Find and test in laboratory, greenhouse, and field, biological agents that consume, destroy, or inhibit species of problem aquatic weeds. Discover new berbicides and growth regulators, and devise improved methods of using known phytotoxic chemicals or control of aquatic vegetation. Combine chemical and biological control metohds to produce effective and acceptable integrated control programs. Study nutrition, growth, reproduction, and response of aquatic weeds to environmental factors, and utilize this information in programs designed to eliminate weed infestations and to prevent their recurrence.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Several canals and Sheldon Reservoir in El Centro, Ca., were sampled to determine Hydrilla biomass and tuber density. Fresh blomass varied from 0 to 7.4 kg/m 2 and tuber density waried from 0 to 423/m 2 in canals. Bicmass waried from 0.64 kg/m 2 to 2.03 kg/m 2 and tuber density from 12/N 2 to 65/N 2 in Sheldon Reservcir. When water was beld in Sheldon Reservoir, concentrations of greater than 1 ppms copper resulted in good control of Hydrilla. Draw-down application cf fluridone (without soil incorporation) at 1 or 2 lb/acre did not control Bydrilla. Application of endothall (Aquathol $-K \pm 3$) to a small pond in El Centro resulted in ca. 75% control of Eydrilla. Although continuous contact bioassays of PE 4062 at .25 to 1.0 ppms controlled both algal species, Cladophora appeared to be slightly more resistant than Rhizoclonium. In limited contact tests, Rhiozoclonium was controlled one week after exposure to 1.0 ppmw concentration of PB4062 fcr 2 h. while exposure to a 2.0 ppms of PE4062 for 2 b. was necessary for good Cladophora control. A dense

infestation of M. brasilienses in a drainage canal was controlled by a foliar application of fenac at 15 lb/acre in 200 gal/A spray volume. The degree of control in the canal site was not expected and additional studies on foliar application of fenac will follow. A detailed study of the morphology of Eyorilla was made using a scanning electron microscope and normal and polarized light microscopy, ano macropholography.

- FUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12
 - ANDEESCA, 1. and RAINES, N.W. 1980. Bespense of Bydrilla verticillata, elodea canadensis, and Myriophyllum spicatum to combinations of Komeen and Endothall in Noving Water. Abstract, WSWS Research Progress Report, p. 335.
 - DECHCELTZ, N. and PINE, R.T. 1980. Evaluation cf Komeen for Aquatic Weed Control in Ponds. Abstract, WSWS Research Progress Report, p. 335. DECBORETZ, N. and PINE, R.T. 1980. Control of Submersed Aquatic Weeds in Irrigation Canals with
 - Fluridone. WSWS Research Progress Report. p. 340.

003.016 CRIS0045418 USE OF SPIKETUSE (ELEOCHAFIS SPF.) FOR BICLOGICAL CONTEGL OF AQUATIC WEEDS

ANDERSON L W: YEO R R: USEA-ARS AQUATIC WEED CONT RES, DAVIS, CALIFOFNIA. 95616. Proj. No.: 5206-20280-005 Project Type: INBCUSE Period: 05 JUL 79 To 05 JUL 84 Agency ID: AIS

ObJECTIVES: Conduct a pilot test project to establish use of spikerush (Eleocharis spp.) as a practical approach to control submersed aquatic weeds in irrigationchannels, fars ponds, lakes and reservoirs.

APPROACH: Establish an extensive nursery for production of spikerush seed. Culture, harvest, clean and make postharvest treatment of seed prior to use for plantings. Select appropriate sites for planting spikerush in irrigation canals, quality, soil and weed species and their distribution. Plant and use herbicides for preplanting or postplanting control of weeds in spikerush in plots. Determine relationships of water quality, siol characteristics, and other parameters to success of establishment, growth, and spread of spikerush. Determine persistence of spikerush under varied conditions, and ability of spikerush to encroach into established stands of weeds, and ability to resist reinvasion of sites hy undesirable equatic species. Determine comparative costs of aquatic weed control with spikerush vs other approaches, such as herbicides and mechanical means.

PECGRESS: 80/01 TO 86/12. Dormancy of dwarf spikerush seed was reduced to 6 months by exchanging the storage water every month on seed stored wet at 4 degrees C. In field studies, aquascreen placed over sown dwarf spikerush tubers did not aid in establishing a stand in a canal. It may have telped in a lake study. Aquascreen controlled all vegetation except several shoots of sage pondweed that grew through the apertures; however, these shoots remained stunted and old not abstruct the waterflow. When diuron was applied at 20 and 40 lb/A to dwarf spikerush, and sown tubers and seed, followed by several different leaching rates, it caused some injury to the plants. Normal plants were growing vigorously by the 12th week. After growing submersed with dwarf spikerush plants for two seasons, the growth of American, sago, and horned pondweeds, American and Nuttall's elcdea, and Bydrilla was reouced, but the growth of Eurasian watermilfoil was not. The presence of dwarf spikerush appeared to have stunted the reticles of the floating leaves of American pondweed.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- FRANK, P.A. and EECECRETZ, N. 1980, Allelopathy ir Dwarf Spikerush (Eleocharis coloradoensis). Weed Science, 28:499-505.
- YEO, B.R. 1980. Life Bistory and Ecology of Dwarf Spikerust. Weed Sci. 28:263-272. YEC, B.R. 1980. Spikerush May Belp Control
- Waterweeds. Calif. Agric. 34:12-13.

- YEO, R.K., THURSION, J.K. and FALK, R.H. 1980. Seed Dormancy in Dwarf Spikerush. WSSA Feb. 7-9. Abstracts, p. 20.
- YEO, K.R. and TEURSTON, J.R. 1980. Lesponse of Dwarf Spikerust to Several Herbicides. WSWS Research Progress keport.

CRIS0042356 003.017 PRYTOTOXINS FROM ACUATIC AND TERRESTRIAL FLANTS. BACTERIA, AND FUNGI

STEVENS & L; USDA-ARS WESTERN SEG RES CNTR, ALEANY, CALIFORNIA. 94710.

Proj. No.: 5102-20280-001 Project Type: INECUSE Agency ID: ARS Period: 11 APR 75 To 11 APR 82

OBJECTIVES: Isolate, identify, and synthesize natural phytotoxins from plants, tacteria, and fungi, and evaluate their potential as aquatic and terrestrial herbicides.

APFROACE: A study will be conducted of plants which have been reported to produce and release phytotoxins detrimental (allelopathic) to adjacent plants. These include: Spikerush (an aquatic sedge), couch grass, leafy spurge, glant foxtail, sunflower and, even, some economic plants such as oats, rye, and barley. Plants will be collected, extracted with a variety of solvents and individual, toxic components separated and identified. Bioassay methods will be used (in cooperation with the Aquatic Weed Research Laboratory, SEA, Davis, California) to identify potential herbicides. Promising phytotoxins, as well as analogs of these natural materials, will be synthesized and their effects on the growth of higher plants evaluated.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TC 80/12. Russian knapweed (Centaurea repens) has been extracted and several sesquiterpene lactones identified, viz., cynaropicrin, aguarin, Jarerin and acroptilin. Two new compounds, repdiolide and epoxyrepdiolide, were also characterized. Similar sesquiterpene lactones have been isolated from yellow star thistle. These compounds are probably cytotoxic; however, they are non-mutagenic. Preliminary investigation of dormant and non-dormant spikerush seed has been initiated to determine the reasons for dormancy. The allelopathic leafy spurge (Euphorbia esula) has been extracted. No alkaloids have been de tec ted.

PUFLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 STEVENS, K.L. and MERBILL, G.E. 1980. Growth Inhibitors From Spikerush. J. Agric. Food Chem. 28:644-646.

003.018 CRIS0064485 DISTARY FACTORS IN WHITE FISE MEAL RESPONSIELE FOR CATARACT FORMATION IN TROUT

AZARI F; BIOCHEMISTEY; COLORADO STATE UNIVERSITY, FORT COLLINS, COLORADO. 80523. Proj. No.: COL00032 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 73 To 30 JUN 80

CEJECTIVES: Investigate some of the nutritional factors in white fish meal responsible for growth retardation and high incidence of cataract in trout. Modify the white fish meal hy addition of necessary factors or deletion of injuricus substances so that it could be effectively used as a supplement to trout feed.

APPROACH: Feeding experiments: Long-range feeding of trout on a complete white fish feed will be performed in order to determine the incidence and time factor involved in the formation of cataract. The effect of lipid-free and heavy-metal-free diets will also he studied. Organic solvents will be used to extract lipid components, and specific chelating agents will he employed to remove heavy elements. The compositional analysis of white fish meal will be aised at determining the amino acid content of proteins, free and hound carbobydrates and heavy trace elements. Automated amino acid analysis, gas chromatography and atomic absorption procedures will

be used, respectively to accomplish these. Compositional analysis of lens proteins from normal and cataractous fish will be done after solubilization and separation of lens proteins by conventional procedures, followed by acid bydrolysis or proteins to liberate amino acids. The levels of cysteine, cystime and tryptophan will be particularly of interest.

PROGRESS: 79/01 TO 79/12. inclusion of white fish meal at a 20% level into the trout diet was found to cause cataract (67% at 140 days) and higher incidence of mortality (48%) as compared to herring-meal diet. No significant difference in the amino acid composition was found between terring and white fish meals. Fortification of the white-fish diet with tryptophan, histidine, tyrosine, phenylalainine, cystine, lysine or combination of all showed no significant decreass in the incidence of cataract. Fortification of diet with vitamins, A, D, E, E(12) or niacin did not alleviate the problem. Mineral analysis of the white fish and herring meals revealed significantly lower content of Fe, Zn, Se and Mn and a higher content of Ca and P for the white-fish, as compared to terring meal. Incorporation of commercially available mineral mix (protein-mineral chelates) into the white fish diet at 5-10% levels abolished the incidence of cataract and reduced the mortality by 90%. The ratio of calcium to amailable phosphate was found to be approximately 1.5 times higher for white-fish diet as compared to terring. Inclusion of additional phosphate into the whits-fish diet to produce a Ca/P ratio close that of terring diet, reduced the incidence of cataract to 1%. The Na-E ATPase activity of cataractous lens was decreased by about 50%, as compared to normal lens. Fortification of white-fish diet with the mineral mix caused an increase of Na-KATPase activity to 84% of the normal diet.

PUBLICATIONS: 79/01 TO 79/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

003-019 CRISO044198 UPTAKE AND MCVEMENT OF REBBICIDES AND NUTRIENTS IN AQUATIC WEED SPECIES

ANDERSON L V; USDA-AKS AQUATIC WEEC CONT LAE, DENVER, CCLCRADO. 80225. Proj. No.: 5604-20280-003 Project Type: iNHCUSE Agency ID: AKS Period: 01 DEC 77 To 30 SEP 80

OBJECTIVES: Letermine the specific modes of uptake of existing and potential aquatic herbicides and examine the environmental conditions which may affect uptake rates. Elucidate the translocation characteristics of aquatic herbicides to assess their potential in controlling reproductive organs of aquatic weeds.

APPROACE: Use in vitro systems of epithelial leaf tissue of Potamogeton nodosus to measure herbicids uptake rates and conditions affecting uptake (temperaturs, light, water quality). Develop bioassay systems for measuring the affects of flow rate on nutrisnt uptake in the filamentous algal weed Cladophora, and determine how flow rate affects algicide effectiveness. Both approaches will involve use of radioactively labelled herbicide and/or nutrients. Uss root/shoot partitioning apparatus to determine nutrisnt or herbicide uptake route.

PROGRESS: 77/01 TO 80/09. A multi-chamtered temperature-controlled recirculating incubation system was developed to study the affect of flow rate on nutrient uptake in the filamentous alga Cladophora sp. Results indicate that relative rates of photosynthesis (measured by ¹4C-bicarbonate uptake) increase with increasing flow rate. CuSO(4), diquat or Komeen were more effective in reducing ¹4C-bicarbonate fixation under flowing conditions than static conditions. Studies on Fluridone show the following: (a) light is required for efficacy, (b) optimal exposure is 6-9 days post-sprouting in American and sago pondweed, (c) little or not translocation occurs in American pondweed, (d) some translocation (root to shoot) occurs in Hydrilla verticillata, (e) slow movement occurs through isolated stem epidarmis or whole leaf sections, (f)

no difference in uptake (for 1, 2 or 14 days) is seen in light or dark exposures. Studies with isolated stem epidermis of American pondweed show that CuSO(4) enhances movement of diquat, 2, 4-E, dichlotenil, fenac and slivex. Movement of atrazine and simazine is more rapid through sections of submersec leaves than through floating leaves of American prodweed. Root/shoot isolations show that glyphosate is translocated both acropetally and Easipetally in Bydrilla, but the latter is more extensive. A new and improved method of isolating roots and shoots in lutact plants was developed using silicon cental impression compound.

PUELICATIONS: 77/01 TC 80/09 ANDERSON, L.W.J. and PRINGLE, J.C. 1980. ¹4C-fluridone penetration of whole leaf sections of Hydrilla verticillata. West. Soc. Weeo Sci. Progr. Rep. p. 333.

- ANDERSON, L.W.J. and PRINGLE, J.C. 1980. ¹4C-fluridone movement from root to foliar portlons of partitioned hydrilla plants. West. Soc. Weed Sci. Bes. Progr. Ept. p.333.
- PRINGLE, J.C. and ANDERSON, L.W.J. 1980. Movements of herbicides through isolated Americar pondweed (Potamogeton nodosus) epidermal tissues. Weed Science, 28(4):415-424, July 1880.

003.020 CRISO044195 HOPMONAL REGULATION OF GROWTE, DEVELOPMENT AND VEGETATIVE PROPAGATION OF SUBMERSED ACOATIC WEEDS

ANDERSON L W; USDA-ARS AQUATIC WEEG CONT LAE, DENVER, CCLORADO, 80225. Proj. No.: 5604-20280-004 Project Type: INBCUSE

Agency ID: ARS Period: 01 DEC 77 To 30 SEP 80

OEJECTIVES: Determine the role of natural plant growth regulators in controlling development and germination of vegetative propagules of American Pondwesd (Potamogeton nodosus). Determine the effects of temperature and light on development in relation to growth regulator function.

APPEGACE: Characterize the effect(s) of potentially active plant growth regulators (auxins, githerellins, abscisic acld, cytokinins) on germination of winterhuds (tubers) of American pondweed. Attempt to isolate, identify and characterize natural growth and developmental regulatory compounds from American pondweed using standard solvent partiticning, liquid chromatography, TLC, GC and bioassay techniques. Use radloactively labelled plant growth regulators as standards and to obtain information or the movement and fate of the compounds(s) within the plant, or plant organs. Plants grown in greenbouse, environmentally controlled growth chambers and field-collected plants will be utilized in the studies.

PROGRESS: 77/01 TO 80/09. Abecisic acid (AEA) inhibits garmination of vegetative winterbuds of American pondweed (Potamogeton nodosus) and sago pondweed (P. pectinatus) at concentrations above 10^{-5} M. A bioassay for ABA effects was developed. ABA at 5X10-7N to 5X10-6M induced formatlon of floating-type leaves within 5-7 days. These responses were counteracted by GA(3), EA, zeatin or minetin. Preliminary results from high pressure liquid chromatography indicate higher levels of AEA in the root and rhizome portion of P. nodosus than in leaf plus shoot. Results of high pressure liquid chromatography plus G.C. analysis indicate that water-stressed, sprouting P. nodosus winterbuds contain higher levels of ABA than unstressed plants. P. nodosus showed seasonal fluctuations in level of AEA, particularly in rhizcnes. Water-stressed P. nodosus and P. pactinatus plants were susceptible to foliar application of dalapon, glyphosate, simazine, or dicamba. Cordycepin, which inhibits ENA synthesis, blocked AFA-induced formation of floating-typs leaves while allowing growth of normal submersed leaves. Actinomycin-D, which blocks DNA-dependent ENA synthesis, had little effect on induction of floating leaves by ABA. Cycloheximide, which inhibits protein synthesis, blocked the ABA-effect, and caused a general reduction in leaf development. AEA may operate by modulating synthesis of specific RNA's.

PUBLICATIONS: 77/01 TO 80/09

ANDERSON, I.W.J, 1980. Uptake and mode of action of abscisic acid: control of leaf morphogenesis in Potamogeton nodosus, an aquatic anglosperw. Abstract, Sixty-first An. Meeting, Pacific Div. A.Asd.S., Davis, CA.

003.021 EVALUATION OF EFFICACY, CROP RESPONSES AND CROP AND WATER RETENTION OF POTENTIAL AQUATIC REPRICIDES

ANDERSON L W; USDA-AES AQUATIC WEED CONT LAF, DENVER, COLCRADO. 80225. Proj. No.: 5604-20280-005 Project Type: INBCUSE Agency ID: AIS Period: 02 DEC 77 Tc 30 SEP 80

OBJECTIVES: Identify effective, new aquatic herbicides and algicides. Determine the phototoxicity of irrigation water containing aquatic herbicides on crops and the extent of herbicide residue retention in the exposed crops. Determine the level of herbicide residue in water resulting from the application of herbicide to irrigation canals, or impoundments.

APPEGACB: Use a greenhouse, static water screening bioassay for observing the phytotoxic effects of new chemical compounds on American pondweed sago pondweed and Elodea. Use a unialgal culture bioassay to evaluate new chemicals for algicidal properties. Make applications of candidate aquatic herbicides (which show sufficient efficacy and environmental safety) to irrigation canals or canal banks and subsequently sample exposed water and analyze for herbicide residues. Develop bioassay for evaluating controlled-release aquatic herbicides. Grow representative crops in small, replicated plots and irrigate with water containing appropriate levels of aquatic herbicide and subsequently determine the herbicide residue levels in the hervesteo crcps.

PEOGRESS: 77/02 TO 80/09. Eates of 2.25 to 7.43 kg/ha simazine applied to ditchbanks of flowing canals produced a maximum of 60 ug/1. First water flow samples from dry-canal treatments at similar rates produced a maximum of 250 ug/1 with rapid subsequent dissipation. in six crops (corn, pinto beans, alfalfa, sugarbees, tomatoes, cucumbers) irrigated with water containing 0.01 or 0.1 mg/1 simazine, only trace amounts (0.5 to 2.9 ppb) were found. Similar studies showed little cr no arsenic accumulation in crops exposed to 1.0-2.0 ppm MSMA. Small pond tests showed that granular fluoridone controls elodea, pondweeds, and stunts cattails within three months when applied at 2-5 lbs/acre. The levels of dicamba were determined in 6 crops that had been irrigated with .05 or C.5 ppmw dicamba by furrow or sprinkler. Residues were less than .01 ppms with the .05 ppm. Velpar was tested 1.0 ppm in a small (C.08 ha) pond. Fluridone is effective in stopping growth of American and sago pondweed when vegetative tubers were exposed to 1 ppm in the light.

PUBLICATIONS: 77/02 TO 80/09

- ANDERSON, I.W.J. and EAINES, F.W. 1980. Besponse of Hydrilla verticillata, Elodea canadensis, and Myriophyllum spicatum to combinations of Komeen and Endothall in moving water. West. Soc. Weed Sci.Prog. p.334-335.
- ANDERSCN, I.W.J. 1980. Dicamba residues in crops irrigatec with water containing low levels of Benvel 45R herbicide. West. Soc. Need Sci. Progr. Rept. p. 346.

003.022 CEIS0078642

BAGNALL L C; AGRI ENGINEERING; UNIVERSITY OF FLORIDA, GAINESVILLE, FLORIDA. 32601. Proj. No.: FLA-AG-01826 Agency ID: CERS Period: 05 FEB 79 To 30 SEP 83

OBJECTIVES: Develop design criteris and operational procedures for mechanical control of aquatic weeds, primarily waterhyacinth and hydrilla by:

Determination of physical and mechanical properties

of the plants, development of harvester caronents, development of a harvester-reducer-bandling system, and development of a barvester-transport.

APPROACH: Plant tissues will be tested in standard testing equipment. Bulk samples will be tested in a large larboratory press. In situ properties will be tested with a specialized floating fixture. Cutters, elevating mechanisms, choppers balers, and transfer systems will be designed, built, tested and modified for the special requirements of aquatic plants. A 2.4 m wide system will be designed, incorporating the best compacting harvester transport wilcomponents found in the preceding section. Target rate is 100 Mg/hr. A non-elevating compacting hervester transport will be designed, built and tested as a low-cost, low-energy alternative.

PECGRESS: 80/09 1C 80/12. A Bockney aquatic weed cutter was modified and tested in citrus grove irrigation ditches, and found to be unsatisfactory for that use. A 0.6 m wide drag conveyor harvester was designed, built, and tested, and found to operate satisfactorily in hydrilla near standing area 1 density, but ineffective indensities appreciably lower or higher; it is effective in small water hyacinth. A new hydrilla cutter for ditches is being designed and a new hydrilla conveyor-harvester has been designed and is being built. Three new harvester-reducers have been designed and are being built. Cne is a drag conveyor barvester with crimping rolls, another is a lateral-feeding belt conveyor with a shear-bar chopper, and the third is a lateral-feeding screw press-conveyor.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/09 TO 80/12

EAGNALL, L.O. 1980. Bulk Mechanical Properties of Bydrilla. Journal of Aquatic Plant Management 18:23-26.

003.023 CRISO046512 BIOLOGICAL AGENTS FOR CONTROL OF BYDRILLA, A SUBMERSED AQUATIC VEED

BALCIUNAS J K; CENTER T D; AGRI RES & EDUCATION CENTER; UNIVERSITY CF FLCSIDA, FT LAUGERDALE, FLORIDA. 33314. Proj. No.: 7010-20280-007-A COCPERATIVE AGREE. Agency ID: ARS Period: 30 SEP 80 To 30 SEP 83

OBJECTIVES: Discover, identify and assess

effectiveness and bost specificity of potential natural agents for control of Hydrilla, a submersed aquatic weed.

APPEOACE: Conduct field surveys in India and other Southeast Asian countries where Hydrilla is a native aquatic plant, find biological agents, primarily irsects, associated with the plant. Make field and laboratory assessments of their effectiveness and host specificity as potential control agents. Identify each agent taxonomically and determine requirements for its culture. Provide information on and specimens of candidate organisms.

003.024 CRIS0069606 THE PHYSIOLOGY AND CONTEOL OF VEGETATIVE REPRODUCTION IN BYDRILLA (BYDRILLA VERTICILLATA FOYLE)

HALLER W T; AGRONOMY; UNIVERSITY CF FICHIGA, GAINESVILLE, FICHIDA. 32601. Proj. No.: FLA-AY-01784 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 APR 74 To 30 DEC 83

OEJECTIVES: Determine importance of tuter and turion regrowth after chemical control. Letermine photoperiod response and flowering to tuber and turion formation. Study propagule germination and evaluate growth regulators to promote germination. Study carbohydrate storage and synthesis with respect to propagule formation and photosynthesis. Study ecology and physiology of hydrilla. APPEGACE: Laboratory, pool, and field studies will screen growth regulatore and monitor natural growth, germination of hydrilla propagulee. Promising regulators will be injected in hydrosoil, in water, or otherwise applied to field plots. Water level manipulation by draining lakes and ponds permits basic etudies on hydrilla reproduction and reinfestatior.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Evdrilla reproduces primarily underground tubers, and following chemical control practices re-infectation occurs by their gersination and growth. Tubers form at the end of rhizomes during short day conditions (light period less than 12.5 houre) and are hormonally controlled by ABA. Lake drawdown and timed chemical treatments (Fall) prevent formation of new tubers during the following winter months. Annual control practices significantly reduce the presence of tubers, allows growth of native flora, and helps maintain the treated area open to use. The terbicidee Fenac, Orchlobenil, and Fluridone all reduce tuber germination at concentrations of 10 ppm. Fenac applied to drawdown areas (24 kg/ha) during the winter almost totally eliminated hydrilla growth the following summer. Physiological studies indicate hydrilla and certain other submerged aquatic plants have unique photosynthetic properties. During winter, under short day conditions and cool temperatures, photosynthetic properties are characteristic of C(3) plants, and during summer under heavy growth and CO(2) limiting conditions the plants revert to a C(4) type mechanism. Substrate studies clearly indicate that hydrilla grows most favorably in submerged soils high in organic matter. Nutrient culture studies indicate that hydrills grow well at comparatively low levels of Fhcaphorus, but requires high levels of Calcium, Potaseium and Magneeium. The total production of hydrilla under ideal conditione is estimated at 5 N.T. Org. weight/hectare.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NC PUBLICATIONS EEPOFIED THIS PERIOD.

003.025 CFIS0079913 THE ECOLOGICAL IMPACT OF INTEGRATED CHEMICAL AND EIGLOGICAL AQUATIC WEED CONTROL

HALLEB W T; AGEONOMY; UNIVERSITY OF FLORIDA, GAINESVILLE, FLORIDA. 32601. Proj. No.: FLA-AY-01987 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 AUG 79 To 31 DEC 82

GEJECTIVES: Determine the impact of chemical/biological control on the fistery environment, and ascertain the most desirable halance of vegetation verse open water that will maintain deeirable water quality, fish growth and reproduction; evaluate the feasibility of combining chemical and biological weed control in a natural lake and determine costs benefit ratios.

AFFEOACE: Two lakes and 24 ponds will be utilized to test the above objectives, water quality, fish population, henthos, zooplankton, and phytoplankton will be analyzed in each habitat.

PECGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Collection of background information was conducted on aquatic macrophytes, phytoplanktor, benthos, algae and fish populations from Orange Lake (4,921 ha), Lake Pearl (23.5 ha), and in 24 0.2 ha ponds before initiation of treatment. The 24 ponds were separated into chemical, grass carp, fertilization, and control. Grass carp were stocked at a rate of 4, 8 and 16/pond and chemical treatments were applied to evaluate effectivenese for 30, 60 and 100% vegetation control. Treatment pords supported plankton populations consisting primarily of the green algae genera Cosmarium, Scenedesmus and Tetraedron. The cladoceran genera Macrothrix and Alona and the rotifer Keratella numerically dominated all samples. Lake Pearl was chemically treated three times during the spring and summer to reduce blomass and stocked with grass carp to study integrated control. Radio transmitters were implanted in ten grass carp and nine largemouth bass. Although individual hass moved as an ismediate response to terbicide application, percent occurrence

of sightings remained evenly distributed in respect to herbicide treatment. Eighty-one percent of the grass carp were found in the treatment area prior to treatment, decreasing to 56% post-treatment. Dominant genera were the flagellated Ceratium and Chlamydomonas and the nonflagellated chlorophytee Ankistrodesmue, Staurastrum and Cosmarium. Infestation of hydrilla in Orange Lake has increased frcm 66 ha in 1978 to 1,240 ha in 1980.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

003.026 CFIS0082486 EIONOMICS AND CONTPOL OF CHIPCNOMID MIDGES (BLIND MOSQUITOES)

 BALL D W: ENTOMOLOGY & NEWATOLOGY; UNIVERSITY CF

 FLCFIDA, GAINESVILLE, FLOUDA. 32601.

 Proj. No.: FLA-EY-02016
 Project Type: STATE

 Agency ID: SAES
 Period: 15 AUG 80 To 31 DEC 85

GEJECTIVES: Work out method for distinguishing yound larvae of closely related pest species. Determine and describe pathogens of native midges and find ways to augment their impact on the pest species.

APPEGACH: The hemoglohin from different species of midges will be crystallized and compared as a possible means of dictinguishing young midge larvae. Field populations of midges will be screened for pathogens by macro and microscopic methods. The pathogens will then be studied and propagated in the laboratory to assess control potential.

003.027 TAXONONY AND NORPHOLOGY OF NEMATODES

```
CEIS0082837
```

SWART G C JE; TARJAN A C; ENTCNCLCGY & NEWATOLCGY; UNIVERSITY OF FLOPIDA, GAINESVILLE, FLCEIDA. 32601. Proj. No.: FLA-EY-02024 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 21 SEP 60 TC 30 DEC 85

OBJECTIVES: Collect and identify any plant, soil and aquatic nematodes that are of significance to the agricultural economy of Florida. Study and describe the anatomy and morphology of euch nematodes in order to facilitate identification by concerned research workers and regulatory personnel. Determine the existence of biotypes and economically important nematode species which may influence current Integrated Peet Wanagement ard Low Energy Technology practices being employed. Frepare taxonomic treatises, systematic deys, compendia and morphological descriptions for publication in national and international scientifici journale.

APPRUACE: Acquire, preserve, mount on slides and study morphologically. New taxons will be described and published. Accumulated data may lead to taxonomic revisions and compendia preparation.

```
003.028* CFIS0068632
BASELINE STUDIES FOR EVALUATING THE RESPONSE OF AN
ECOSYSTEM TO THE INTRODUCTION OF WHITE ANUE
```

EWEL & C; FOR RES & CONSERV; UNIVERSITY OF FLC&IDA, GAINESVILLE, FLCFIDA. 32601. Prcj. No.: FLA-FY-01765 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 75 To 30 DEC 83

OBJECTIVES: Determine the forcing functions, main energy flows, and variations in the important components in an aquatic ecosystem; construct and elmilate a model which will incorporate these variables and which will include the possible effects of the introduction of white amur to the ecosystem; monitor the changes that actually do take place in an ecosystem when the fish is introduced, revising the model until it is a reasonable generalization of the

ecosystem.

APFECACH: Easeline ecological data will be collected by state agencies on a lake into which the white amur will be introduced in the second year of the study. Nodels incorporating these data will predict the effects of the fish, and these models will be verified by continued data collection.

PECGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. A model of Lake Conway, FL, was simulated with and without white agur present. If rates used in the model are accurate, the grazing food chain in this lake is slightly more important than the detritus food chain, and 10% of the gross primary productivity is grazed. One-quarter of the annual phosphorus input to the epilimnion comes from leaching and decay of submersed macrophytes. Similated ranges of state variables were close to values measured in most cases. The model was stable during a simulation representing ten years. After two years, simulated addition of white amur (7000 fish, each weighting 458g) decreased submersed macrophyte biogass to 60% of its norgal peak kiomass. Water quality improved, gross primary productivity and community respiration decreased, and the relative importance of the grazing food chain increased. Biomass of benthic invertebrates and Secondary predator fist increased. Addition of half as many fish five years after the first introduction brought about the same degree of macrophyte control, but recovery was more racid.

PUBLICATIONS: \$0/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

003.025 EVALUATION OF FUSABIUM ROSEUM "CULNCRUM" AS A BICLOGICAL CONTROL FOR RYDRILLA VEFTICILLATA

CHABUDATTAN 5; FREEMAN T E; PLANT PATECIOGY; UNIVERSITY OF FLORIDA, GAINESVILLE, FLCFIDA. 32601. Proj. No.: FLA-PT-02033 Froject Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 SEP 80 TC 31 DEC 82

CEJECTIVES: The prospects for biological control of the submerged aquatic weed, hydrilla (Eydrilla verticillata, Eydrocharitaceae), with and isolate of a recently discovered, exotic fungel patrogen, Fusarium roseum 'Culmorum', will be evaluated. The pathogen, isolated from a diseased aquatic plant from the Netherlands, will be tested under laboratory and field conditions to determine its host range, safety and efficacy as a biological control for hydrilla.

AFF&OACH: Following quarantine clearance for field use, the ability of the fungus to kill hydrilla under natural conditions will be tested in small and large bodies of mater. Several formulations of the fungal inoculum and techniques of application will be developed. Midia and methods for mass production of the biocontrol agent will be screened. The effect of the Fungicides effective in controlling this Culmorum will be identified.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. An isolate of Fusarium roseum 'Culmorum' which is capable of killing the submersed, nomious aquatic weed hydrilla (Bydrilla verticillata) has been found. Macroconidial suspensions of the furgue when added to water containing hydrilla induced chlorosis of shoots and rotting of the entire plant. Cn the basis of the results of host range testing on nontarget plant hosts and the lack of toxicity to a fish species, the fungue is considered to be a safe and promising biological centrol for hydrilla. Moreover, a fungicide capable of controlling this fungue has been identified. A large-scale pilot test has been initiated to evaluate the efficacy of this histopathology and physiology of diseased hydrilla are underway.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD. OC3.030 CRISCORD ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT AND WEED MANAGEMENT STRATEGIES UTILIZING GRASS CARP (CTENCPEARYNGCDON IDELLA)

SHIREMAN J V; SCHOCL OF FOREST RESCURCES; UNIVERSITY OF FLORIDA, GAINESVILLE, FLCHIDA. 32601. PrcJ. No.: FLA-FY-01986 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 24 JLL 79 To 31 CCT 81

OEJECTIVES: Impact assessment of grass carp on the Lake Wales ecosystem. Determine management strategies for vegetation control utilizing grass carp. Develop methods for selective removal of grass carp from Lake Wales.

APPROACH: Standard field and laboratory methods will be utilized. See attached proposal.

003.031 CRISO074878 Innunologic factors in candidiasis in delpeins

WERNER L L; HALLIWELL R E W; VETEKINAKY MEDICINE; UNIVERSITY OF FLORIDA, GAINESVILLE, FICKIDA. 32601. Agency ID: CSVN-CO-0000Period: 01 JUL 76 To 30 JUN 81

OBJECTIVES: Establish reterence laboratory with Dolphin specific reagents for investigation of immunologic aspects of disease problems. Characterization of the immune system in normal dolphins. Investigation of humoral and cellular immunity in Candida infected Dolphins treated with Levamisole.

APPROACH: Purification and quantitation of dolphin immunoglobulins. Raising dolphin specific anti Ig antibodies in rabbits. Identification of serum anti candida factor by agglutination reaction. Iymphocyte transformation responses to mitogen and Candida antigen.

PROGRESS: 78/01 TC 79/12. Fundamental studies of the dolphin immune system were performed to implement evaluation of immune competence in relationship to chronic infection with the opportunistic fungi-Candida albicans. Normal values for washed peripheral blood lymphocyte responses to mitogen stimulation (lymphocyte transformation) were obtained for realthy dolphins, both from the wild and in captivity. Three dolphins suffering from chronic Candida albicans infection showed normal lymphocyte transformation responses compared to healthy controls when fetal calf serum was used to enrich the lymphocyte culture media. When sera from Candida infected dolphins were used in the culture media, lymphocyte transformation responses for both normal and infected dolphins were severely depressed compared to normal responses obtained when serum from healthy dolphins was used. Serum from one dolphin rendered free cf Candida infection with systemic antitungal therapy was later utilized to enrich culture media for lymphycyte transformation studies on the healthy controls. Suppression of lymphocyte responses was no longer present. These findings suggest that a serum suppressive factor for lymphocytes was present in the three dolphins with chronic Candida albicans infection, but that intrinsic lymphocyte function was intact when free from autologous serum. Insune deficiency might, therefore, be acquired with obronic Candida infection in association with suppressive serum factor(s).

PUBLICATIONS: 78/01 TO 79/12 NO PUBLICATIONS & PORTED THIS PERIOD.

CRIS0061258

003.032 Control of Aquatic Flant Geowie

SUTION D L; STEWARD K K; CENTER T D; UNIVERSITY OF FLORIDA, FT LAUDERDALE, FLORIDA. 33310. Proj. No.: FLA-PL-01599 Agency ID: SAES Period: 10 FEH 72 To 31 DEC 76 OBJECTIVES: fetermine the physiological and nutritional requirements for growth of aquatic plants. Evaluate biological and chemical methods for the control of excessive growth of aquatic plants.

APPROACH: The major portion of this research will be conducted uncer controlled conditions. Field studies will he limited to small enclosed areas.

PECGRESS: 80/01 10 80/12. A survey of the insects associated with Bydrilla verticillata acd Nyriophyllug spicatum infestations in the U.S.A has just been completed. The insects most rumercus on these submersed weeds were the midge larvae (Diptera: Chironomidae), damselfly nymphs (Cdonata-Zygoptera) and the caddisfly larvae (Ihricoptera). Several mothe (Lepidoptera) species, especially Acentria nivea, Parapoynx diminutalis and Synclita obliteralis, caused extensive damage to these plants at some locations. Studies in cutdoor, circular pools have shown that one shoot tip of hydrilla produced as much dry weight during a 16-week period as 16 tips planted under the same conditions. Dry weight of plants 16 weeks after planting was a high as 1,561 times that of the shoot tips planted. Eyorilla reproduced vegetatively under controlled conditions and under field conditions by development of axillary huds from sut-apical fragments. Fragments with a single node were capable of regrowth under both controlled and field conditions. Forty percent of fragments with one or two nodes were capable of regrowth. Regrowth occurred from 68% or more fragments with three to five nodes. A research demonstration encompassing 283 ha in a 2,428-ha citrus grove was initiated to manage hydrilla and other aquatic weeds in an integrated control program using biological, terbicidal, and mechanical methods.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- SUTTCN, D.I., LITTELL, F.C. and LANGELAND, K.A. 1980. Intraspecific Competition of Hydrilla verticillata. Weed Sci. 28:425-428.
- LANGELAND, 8.A. and SUIICN, D.L. 1980. Regrowth of Hydrilla from Axillary Euds. J. Aquat. Flant Manage. 18:27-29.
- GLANDCN, R.P., PAYNE, F.C., MCNAEB, C.D. and BATTERSON, T.E. 1880. A Comparison of Rain-Related Phosphorus and Nitrogen Loading from Urban, Wetland, and Agricultural Sources. Water Res. (In Fress).
- VANDIVER JF., V.V. and SUTTCN, D.L. 1980. Management of Eydrilla in a Citrus Grove. Aquatics (In press).
- VANDIVER JF., V.V. 1980. Bygrophila. Aquatics (In press).

003.033 CFIS0045353 BIOLOGICAL CONTEOL OF WEEDS WITH EMPHASIS ON AQUATIC HABITATS

CENTER T D; USDA-ARS AQUATIC WEEDS GES LAB, FT LAUDERDALE, FICGIDA: 33314. Proj: No:: 7615-20280-005 Agency ID: AFS Period: 29 MAY 79 To 29 MAY 83

OBJECTIVES: letermine hasher information necessary for implementing biological control agents in weed management programs with particular emphasis on equatic systems.

APPROACB: Compile lists of organisms of potential use for biological control from foreign and domestic sources. Arrangs for host specificity testing of these organisms, importation into quarantine, clearance ano final release when appropriate. Assess those organisms released as to efficacy and vagility. Develop data basic to the understanding of the organism-host plant interactions so as to determine the best meacs of integrating these into weed management schemes. Conduct experimentation to determine the compatibility of biological control with existing chemical and mechanical control technology. Determine factors which limit success of biolgical cortrol. PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Sameodes albiguttalis, a South American pyralid released for the biological control of waterbyacinth, has dispersed throughout Florida. Cf 330 sites examined it was found at 170 (52%). Population survival has been documented following a severe frost at one site where the temperature dropped to -13 degrees C. Studies of waterhyacinth leaf production show that rates vary with season, habitat, and shoot size but are highly predictable. Biocontrol agents affect survivorship of leaves in different ways. S. albiguttalis appears to increase the mortality of young leaves. Studies are continuing to develop fiduciary tables for waterhyacinth leaf populations at several sites. Surveys of the insects associated with Bydrilla verticillata and Myriophyllum spicatum in the U.S.A. have been completed. The most numerous insects included midge larvae, damselfly cymphs, and caddiefly larvas. Several moth species, especially Acentria nivea, Parapoynx diminutalis, and Synclita otliteralis, cause severe damage at some locations. Some caddisfly larvae (Fabria sp.) may also feed upon M. spicatum.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- CENTER, T.D. and SPENCE, N.F. 1981. Phenology and Growth of Waterhyacinth in a Eutrophic North-Central Florida Lake. Aquat. Eot. 19(1):1-32.
- BALCIUNAS, J.K. 1980. New Eragonfly (Cdonata) Becords for Tuscarawas Ccunty, Including a Species New to Ohio. Chio J. Sci. 80(2):58.

005.034 CFIS0042568 Biclogical control of aquatic weeds in the soutbeast

PERKINS B D; USDA-ARS AQUATIC WEEDS RES LAB, FT LAUDERDALE, FLORIDA. 33314. Prcj. No.: 7615-20280-003 Project Type: INHOUSE Agency ID: ARS Period: 27 JUN 75 To 30 MAY 79

OFJECTIVES: Determine best means of implementing biological control using insects, mites, and other organisms against aquatic weeds.

APPROACH: Selease and monitor populations of imported host-specific insects or mites to combat specific aquatic weeds. Combinations of insects with mites, other insects, fish, herbicides, and fungue, will be evaluated as to the potential to manipulate them to enhance the degree of control. The potential for using native insects will be determined by svaluating their effect on the weed. Environmental components, such as nutrients, natural enemies, age of host plants, and site conditions, which may affect the biological control agents will be evaluated, and the potential to manipulate them to enhance the degree of control will be studied.

PRCGRESS: 75/06 TO 79/05. Two weevils, Neochetina eichbornias and N. bruchi, and a pyralid moth, Sameodes albiguttalis, have been introduced in the SB U.S. for the biocontrol of waterhyacinth. N. eichborniae has effectively dispersed throughout Florida but N. bruchi has not. The effects of the weevils have been subtle, resulting in minor changes in plant characteristics (such as a reduction in maximum size). This is apparently due to preferential oviposition in older leaves with little resultant damage to the more functional younger leaves. While substantial control has not been achieved, the presence of the weevils retards plant growth and thereaby facilitates control by other means. Various combinations of control measures using insects, mitss, herbivorous fish, pathcgens and chemicals are more effective than any one method used alone. Sameodes albiguttalis is now established at several sites in South Florida. Because the larvae preferentially feed on young plant tissues the potential of this insect for effective control of waterhyacinth is high. Its introduction is too recent, however, to adequately assess its affect. A second pyralid moth, Parapoyns diminutalis, was first found in the U.S. feeding on Bydrilla verticillata in 1975, apprently as the result of an accidental introduciton. It was first recorded in Fort Lauderdale and its range has continued to expand. Bost specificity studies were conducted and it was

found to feed upon a wide variety of aquatic plants as well as rice.

PUELICATIONS: 75/06 TC 79/05

- CHARUDATIAN, R., B. D. PERKINS AND R. C. LITTELL. 1978. Effects of fungi and tacteria on the decline of arthropod-damaged waterhyacinth in Florida. Weed Sci. 26(2):101-107. PERKINS, B. D. 1977. Preliminary results of
- integrating chemical and biological controls to combat waterhyacinthe U. S. Army Engineers Waterways Exp. Sta. Misc. Paper A-77-3.

003.035 CFIS0044312 PHYSIOLCGY AND MANAGEMENT OF AQUATIC WEEDS INTERFERING WITH THE USE OF WATER FESOURCES

STEWARD & B; BLUNES M C; VAN T K; USDA-AES AQUATIC WEEDS RES LAE, FT LAUDERDALE, FLORIDA. 33314. Proj. No.: 7615-20280-004 Project Type: INHCUSE Agency ID: AFS Period: 26 JAN 78 To 26 JAN 82

OBJECTIVES: Investigate manipulation of selected growth factors of problem weed species which produce unfavorable habitats. Eevelop integrated techniques for management of aquatic weeds. Improve technology for chemical control of aquatic weeds.

APFEGACE: Establish requirements of selected aquatic weeos for nutrients, light, temperatures, water quality, soil type, and pB. Determine dependence of problem species on water and soil substrate for supply of these factors. Identify weak links in the life cycles of problem weeds that may make then amenable to managaement. Evaluate ecological modifications which lend themselves to integration with chemical, biological, or mechanical weed control. Evaluate new chemicals, new uses of registered chemicals, and combinations of chemicals to increase effectiveness of chemical control. Develop improved chemical application techniques. Develop faster methods for reliable herbicide bioassay.

PROGRESS: 79/12 TC 80/12. The principle activity in the area of terbicide evaluation research was in design, assembly, and evaluation of a prototype flowing water system for evaluating Controlled Felcase Herbicide Formulation (CRBF). In this cooperative program with the Army Corps of Engineers. a CRHF of 2,4-E was evaluated in static and flowing water bioasseys. Analytical procedures for monitoring 2,4-D residues in water by BPLC and GC were developed and/or modified and refined. Rate of 2,4-D release from CEEF was greater than anticipated by a factor of 3. Phytotoxic 2,4-I concentration was maintained in flowing water for 8 weeks. Plant growth was significantly lower in containers which received CRBF treatments. In an investigation of the influence of hydrosoil composition on the growth of hydrilla, hydrilla biomass production after 70 weeks growth was greatest in a manure supplemented soil and least in plain sand. Homase was as follows: 274, 150, 50, and 4 grams per sq. meter in supplemented soil, soil alone, calcareous marl, or sand, respectively. Biomass was highly correlated with tissue levels of phosphorous and nitrogen and more weakly correlated with potassium tissue levels. There was a strong negative correlation between biomass and calcium concentration in tissue.

PUELICATIONS: 79/12 TC 80/12

STEWARD, E.E. 1980. Fetardation of Hydrilla (Hydrilla verticillata) Regrowth Through Chemical Control of Vegetative Reproduction. Weed Sci. 28(3):245-251.

003.036 IDENTIFICATION OF INSECTS FOR BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS

EUCKINGEAN G 5; USEA-ASS EIOLCGICAL FEST CCNTE, GAINESVILLE, FLCRIDA. 32604.
 Proj. No.:
 7602-20260-002
 Project Type:
 INHCUSE

 Agency ID:
 ARS
 Period:
 09 JAN 76 To 09 JAN 79

OBJECTIVES: Identify candidate insects to control aquatic weeds and evaluate their suppressive capabilities, with special emphasis on waterhyacinth, hydrilla, and Eurasian waternilfoil.

APPROACH: Import insects into quarantine facility after obtaining proper clearances for quarantine studies and/or release in the United States. Verify taxomonic identification, eliminate extraneous biological material, and establish colony for host specificity studies and supply insects for laboratory and field research. Prepare proper documentation for necessary clearances before field release of imported insects. Conduct field evaluations of insect effectiveness for control of aquatic weeds.

PROGRESS: 76/01 TO 79/01. A pyralid moth, Sameodes albiguttalis, was obtained from Argentina after testing showed that it had potential as a biological control agent for waterbyacinth. Additional testing was conducted in guarantine; a report was prepared requesting permission for introduction: large numbers were reared; and it was finally released in September 1977 at three locations in Florida. Establishment occurred at one location. The colony has been transferred to another laboratory which will continue making releases. A five year field study of the weevil, Neochetina eichhorniae, which was introduced from Argentina for control of waterbyacinth was terminated. Due to the intervention of man and to two severe winters, the effect of the dramatic beetle increase on the plant population is unclear, although it appears that the beetles sight help keep the plant population at a steady state by reducing vegetative reproduction. Two insects feeding on Eurasian watermilfoil in the U.S. were colonized in quarantine and detailed biological studies were made with one of them, a weevil, Litodactylus leucogaster. Ecst specificity tests indicated that L. leucogaster may have potential for reducing seed production but htat the moth, Acentropus niveus, is apparently not specific to milfoil. Contrast research conducted for use indicated that the European acth, Parapoynx stratiotata, is not sufficiently specific for introduction into the U.S. for control of Eurasian watermilfoil.

PUBLICATIONS: 76/01 TO 79/01

GRAEAU, W. E. AND N. E. SPENCEL. 1978. A management procedure for the introduction of biological agents for control of weeds. pp.13-34. in Freeman, T. E. Proc. IV INT. SYMP. BIOL. CONTR. WEEDS. AUG 30-SEP 2, 1976.

003.037 CLIS0045077 INPORTATION AND EVALUATION OF INSECTS FOE BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF WEEDS AND INSECT PESTS

BUCKINGHAM G R; USDA-ARS BICLCGICAL PEST CONTR, GAINESVILLE, FLORIDA. 32604. Proj. No.: 7602-20260-004 Project Type: INBOUSE Agency ID: ARS Period: 14 FEB 79 To 14 FEB 82

OEJECTIVES: Obtain and evaluate insects for their potential as bio-control agents of important insect pests and weeds, with special emphasis on the aquatic weeds: Eurasian watermilfoil, hydrilla, and waterbyacinth.

APPROACE: Collect or arrange collections of live natural enemies and weed control candidetes and prepare documentation necessary for the introduction of exotic species into quarantine and later for their release from quarantine. Establish colonies and study the biologies in the laboratory. Test the weed control candidates against a wide range of plants to determine and host specificity. Conduct or aid the field releases of those candidates for which clearance is obtained.

PECGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Fall armyworm, Spodoptera frugiperda, larvae collected in Bolivia by a ccoperator were reared in guarantine to recover a parasitic ichneumonid wasp, Eiphoscma vitticole. Nineteen adult parasites were transferred immediately

to a researcher for interbreeding with his previously established laboratory colony. Additional adults were used to establish a guarantine colony and to test whether the parasite larvae would be encapsulated by Bolivian fall armyworm larvae as they had been by Florida fall armyworm larvae during an earlier quarantine colonization in 1979. Many were encapsulated by the Bolivian larvae. The guarantine colony was later transferred to the researcher. Eurasian watersilfoil, Myriophyllum spicatum, was surveyed four times during the summer at Crystal River, Florida, for the weevil, Litodactylus leucogaster, which had been released during 1979. No adults of L. leucogaster, which is native to the northern U.S., were recovered although 1435 adults of the native Florida weevil, Perenthis vestitus, were collected during the survey. Eight huncred forty flowers, buds, and stems were examined for immatures of L. leucogaster without success. It is still too early to report failure of establishment especially considering the large amount of milfoll to he searched.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERICD.

003.038 CFIS0046116 BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS WITH INSECTS

BUCKINGHAM G E: USDA-AES BIOLOGICAL PEST CONTE, GAINBSVILLE, FLORICA. 32604. Proj. No.: 7602-20280-001 Project Type: INBOUSE Agency ID: AIS Period: 11 APE 80 To 11 APE 84

OBJECTIVES: To provide new insect agents for use in the biological control of aquatic weeds, especially Eurasian watermilfoil, hydrilla, and watertyacinth, and to increase the effectiveness of those agents already present.

APPECACB: Collect or arrange collections of live insects, both exotic and native, which feed on the target aquatic weeds and assemble data necessary to obtain clearance to import them into quarantime cr release them in the field. The biology and host specificity will be studied for each new candidate. Field releases will be aided or conducted, if necessary, when clearance is obtained. Studies will be conducted with those agents already present, in order to increase the understanding of their hebavior, effect upon the plant, and interspecific competition.

PROGRESS: 80/04 TO 80/12. Laboratory and field observations failed to confirm the literature reports that Neochetina eichhornise weevils were attracted to waterbyacinth plants on which the central petiole had heen removed. Large numbers of weevils were found hiding on these plants during the day but it appeared that they were responding to an increase in hiding sites or to increased exposure of succulent new tissue for fcod. Olfactometer studies reported in the literature were repeated but the reported attraction to chopped plants appeared to be due to an attraction to higher humidity rather than to a plant chemical. Individuals from dense weevil populations were strongly attracted to light while those from sparse populations were only moderately attractive. Migratory activity might be influenced by weevil density since migrating weevils are attracted to lights. Laboratory biology and host specificity studies were conducted with a native aquatic moth, Parapoynx seminealis. This species has been reported only upon floating heart, Nymphoides aquaticum. Complete development has been obtained thus far only upon floating heart, but after 3 months larvae are still alive and feeding upon two other plant species. The potential feeding range is thus broader than the actual feeding range found in the field.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/04 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS SEPORTED THIS PERICD. GO3.U39 FRESHWATER FOOD ANIMALS

BILL T K; BROWN E E; CHESNESS J L; ENTOMOLOGY-FISHERIES; GEORGIA COASTAL FLAIN EXPT STA, TIFTON, GECEGIA. 31794. Proj. No.: GEO00283 Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 CCT 76 To 30 SEP 81

CEIS0071451

OBJECTIVES: Develop and Improve Production and Management Systems for Freshwater Animals Cultured for Food. Nutrition. Water Quaty. Diseases. Culture Systems. Evaluate the Economics of Production, Processing and Marketing of Freshwater Food Animals.

APPROACB: Practical diets for channel catfieh and rainbow trout will be tested in raceways. Water quality in raceways will be monitored and removal of wastes investigated. Diseases and parasites problems associated with intensive cultures will be identified and treated. The double-crop corcert of using CC in summer and B1 in winter in raceways will be continued. Polyculture for increased production through wastes utilization will be evaluateo. Complete costs and returns analyses will be developed for different levels of productior and management.

PRCGRESS: 76/09 IC 78/12. Research has been completed with a flowing water system for double-crop fish production in a closeo system of raceways. Each raceway segment, ca. 30 m long by 4.5 m wide, was stocked with 3,000 rainbow trout (November - March) and 2.500 channel catfish (April - October) per segment and produced over 3/4 T. and 1 T. of trout and catfish, respectively, each year. Water temperatures for 20 or more days under 4°C reduced trout production significantly. Multiple harvesting of catfish resulted in higher net production of fish per raceway segment. Feed conversion for multiple harvested/stocked fish was 1.3:1; whereas, cnce harvested fish had a conversion of 1.5:1. Feed conversion ratios were higher for catfish fed a sinking feed than for those fed a floating feed. To facilitate management of waste products in raceways, tilapia were stocked with catfish at 50 and 100 half-pound tilapia. Although they increased in weight from 1/2 pound to 1.1 pounds per fish, the tilapia did not reproduce.

PUBLICATIONS: 76/09 TO 78/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED FINAL REPORT PERIOD.

003.040 A STUDY OP THE MICROBIOLOGICAL FLORA OF ORMANENTAL FISHES

GRATZEK J B; VETERINARY MEDICINE; UNIVERSITY CF GEORGIA, ATHENS, GEORGIA. 30602. Agency ID: CSVM-X029 Period: 01 JUL 75 To 30 JUN 80

OBJECTIVES: Survey imported tropical ornamental tisk and transport water for parasites, hacteria, and viruses potentially harmful to humans, domestic livestock and fish.

APPROACE: Selected samples of fish imported from Southeast Asia are examined sicroscopically for parasites. Bacterial and virus identification and isolation are done using standard facteriological and virological techniques.

PROGRESS: 79/07 TO 80/06. Studies on the use of an ozone generator suggest that the oxidizing effect is significantly reduced as the amount of organics rises in the water. Whereas ozone has a marked antibacterial, antiprotozoal effect in vitro, expected results in an actual fish culture system were not forthcoming. Studies using UV light to stem the extention of an infestation of Ichthyophthirius multifilis infection through a central system suggest that UV light will effect tomites if the exposure is intense enough.

PUELICATIONS: 79/07 TO 80/06 NO PUBLICATIONS SEPARIED THIS FERIOD. CRISO075439 DETERMINATION OF REFFICACY OF CERTAIN ANTI-PARASITIC DRUGS FOR FISHES

GRATZEK J E; VETEBINARY MEDICINE; UNIVERSITY CF GECEGIA, ATHENS, GEORGIA. 30602. Agency ID: CSVM-X030 Period: 01 JUN 77 To 30 JUN 80

OBJECTIVES: Letermine if new classes of drugs are both effications for treatment of monogenetic trematodes, parasitic protozoans of fish while being non-toxic to the fish.

APPEOACH: Selected fish with known loads of parasites are subjected to exposure to graded doses of drugs. Fish are examined at successive intervals post-treatment to evaluated activity and toxicity of drugs.

PRCGRESS: 79/07 TO 80/06. It was shown that monogenetic trematodes (Gyrodactylus elegans) on common woldfish (Carassius auratus) have developed an apparent resistance to the recommended dosages of organophosphates (*25 ppm).

PUBLICATIONS: 79/07 TO 80/06

GGVEN, B.A., GILBERT, J.P. and GRATZEK, J.E. 1980. Apparent Drug Resistance to the Crganophosptate Dimethyl (2,2,2, - Trichloro-1-bydroxyethyl) Phosphonate by Wonogenetic Trematooes. J. Wildlife Diseases. 16,343-347.

003.042 CRIS0075472 SEBCLOGIC AND VIRUULENCE STUDIES OF AFROMCMAS BYDROPHILA

SHCTTS E B; FAWE D L; GRATZEK J B; VETERINARY MEDICINE; UNIVERSITY OF GEORGIA, ATHENS, GEORGIA. 30602. Agency ID: CSVM-0129 Period: 01 JAN 77 To 31 DEC 81

CHJECTIVES: Determine the existence of serologic groups within the genus species Aeromonas hydrophila. Determine the relationship of these serologic groups to virulence for fish and other aquatic life. Develop diagnostic technic(s) capable of selecting virulent strains of Aeromonas hydrophila from clinical situations.

APFECACH: Development of a group of selective antisera against Aeromonas hydrophila isclates through selective sorption of antisera with appropriate antigens. Having developed the above, group isolates according to reactivity in the prepared antisera and examine their virulence through infectivity studies concommitant with the infectivity studies carry out an evaluation of the devloped antisera as a diagnostic aid in the detection of virulent strains of Aeromonas hydrophila.

PROGRESS: 79/07 TO 80/06. Extreme heterogenecity existed among strains of Aeromonas hydrophila used. Cross absorption of antisera resulted in presence of specific antigenic characters 17% of time. No correlation seen between characters and virulence in channel catfish, (Ictalurus punctatus). Becovery of marker strains from fish were reduced from 100% to 38% at 96 h.F.I. in peritoneal cavity and from 25% to 0% at 96 h.P.I. from blood suggesting in vivo serologic alteration or mortality due to indigenous flora.

PUELICATIONS: 79/07 TO 80/06 NO PUELICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

003.043			CFIS0078919
FRESHWATER	FCOB	ANIMALS	

GRATZEK J B; DAWE D L; SHOTTS E H; VETERINARY MICROBIOLOGY; UNIVERSITY OF GECKGIA, ATBENS, GECEGIA. 30602. Agency ID: CSVM-0031 Period: 01 MAR 79 To 30 SEP 81 OBJECTIVES: Develop and improve production and management systems for freshwater animals cultured for loud. D. Diseases.

APPROACH: Strains of A. hydrophila from catfish, goldrish and trout will be studied using standard biochemical tests as well as immunological tests. Efficacy of treatment for monogenetic trematodes will be determined by dose-response studies using lots of known infested fish with treatment histories. Erugs utilized will be trichlorcfon and flubendazole. Development of a vaccine for ichthyopthirlus will be attempted by utilizing the principle of beterologue vaccination as previously used with virus vaccines.

P&CGRESS: 80/01 10 80/12. A vaccine for Ichthyophthirius multifilis has been developed using antigens from Tetrahymena pyriformis. 1. pyriformis is easily propagated and antigenic material is easily recovered.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 GOVEN, E.A., DAWE, D.L. and J.E. Gratzek. Protection of channel catfieb. Ictalurus punctatus Rafinesque, against Ichthyophthirius multifiliis Fouquet by immunization. J. Fish. Hiol. 1980. 17,311-316.

003.044 CRIS0064981 DISEASES OF AQUACULTURE SPECIES

NAKAMURA E N; MIYAHARA A Y; ANIMAL SCIENCE; UNIVERSITY OF HAWAII, HONOLULU, HAWAII. 96622. Prcj. No.: BAW00239 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 SEP 73 To 30 SEP 81

OBJECTIVES: Identify and characterize diseases of aquacultural organisms, seek optimum methods for control and treatment of these diseases and catalog this information for use by aquaculturists and biologists.

APPROACH: Diseases of aquacultural organisms, particularly of the freshwater grawn, will be studied as they occur under natural or experimental conditions. Pathologic and microbiologic techniques will be used. Environmental garameters such as temperature, salinity, pH, will be studied and correlated with the occurrence of disease. Cptimal methods for diagnosis, treatment and control will be sought. This information will be disseminated by publication in journals or extension circulars.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Significant decreases in daily weight gains were recorded in prawns, Macrobrachlum rosenbergil, subjected to hoth adverse temperature and ammonia in the water. Increasing temperatures up to 34 degrees C caused decreased weight gains in fed prawns and increased weight losses in unfed prawns. Significant decrerases in weight gains were seen within 7 days in prawns in 40 and 20 ppm of ammonia as compared to prawns held in water containing 10, 5, and 0 ppm of ammonia. Clotting of prawn hemolymph and precipitation of hemolymph proteins precluded automated clinical laboratory tests. Increased hemolymph glucose was detected in heat stressed prawns.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 CROWELL, S.K. and NAKANURA, R.M. 1980. Effects of Thermal Stress in Macrobrachium rosenbergii. Proc. West. Sec. Amer. Soc. Anim. Sci. 31:31-32.

003.045 CENSO083231 ENVIRONMENTAL GILL DISEASE IN RAINECV TEOUT

 KLCNTZ G W; FISHEFY RESCURCES; UNIVERSITY OF IDAHO,

 MOSCOW, IDAHO. 83843.

 Prcj. No.: IDA00799

 Project Type: ANIMAL

HEALTH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 15 JAN 81 To 30 SFP 81

OBJECTIVES: To document the pathogenesis of environmental gill disease (EGD) in juvenile rainhow trout from the standpoints of: quantitative environmental factors; sequential histopathological chaoges, to propose efficacious methods of preventing and/or treating environmental gill disease in juvenile rainbow trout.

APFECACB: Groups of 500-600 juvenile rainbow trout (with appropriate untreated controls) will be exposed to varying levels of dissolved oxygen, ammonia-N, water temperature, and suspended solids for extended periods. Samples will be taken weekly for examination of gill tissues. Growth rates will be monitored. A second series of experiments will measure the relative efficacies of chemicals to prevent or reduce the severity of EGD io juvenile rainbow trout. Appropriate untreated controls will be used.

003.046 CFIS0065632 THE EFFICACY OF SELECTED ANTIHICTICS IN THE PREVENTION AND CONTROL OF BACTERIAL HIDNEY DISEASE

 KLCNTZ G W; FCREST WILDLIFE & RANGE EXP ST;

 UNIVERSITY OF IDABC, MCSCCW, IDABC. 33843.

 Proj. No.: IIA-CFU-0037

 Froject Type: STATE

 Agency ID: CCI
 Period: 01 JOL 74 To 30 JUN 78

OBJECTIVES: lest several parenterally administered antibacterials for their ability to control facterial kidney disease in adult salmonids; field test an antibacterial efficacious in controlling bacterial kidney disease.

APPECACE: Adult spring chinook salmoo will be Injected subcutaneously with one of several potential systemic antibacterials capable of cootrolling tacterial kioney disease; at spawning time or before all fish will be examined for gross and microscopic lesions of bacterial kidney disease; the progeny of the injected fish will be monitored for congenital anomalies and incidence of bacterial kidney oisease; subsequent field trials using the most efficacious antibacterial will be conducted to determine cost:benefit ratio in detail.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. This is a continuing study to reduce the prespanning mortality due to the bacterial kidney disease in adult spring chinook solmon. During 1980 the prespanning mortality due to bacterial kidney disease was 9.48% - a significat reduction from previous years. The study is also designed to reduce the mortality due to bacterial kidney disease in juvenile spring chinook solmon. The annual mortality bas been reduced from more than 20% to virtually 0.0%. The adult fish are injected with 5 mg/lb erythromycin phosphate at the time they enter the trapping facility. The juvenile occurrences of bacterial kidney disease are prevented by water hardening the eggs at the time of fertilization in 2 mg/l erythromycin phosphate.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

003.047 CFIS0069916 SELECTIVE CEENICALS FOR TEE CONTROL OF TEE TEREESPINE STICKLEEACE

MACCHEE C; FCFEST WILDLIFE 6 FANGE EXP ST; UNIVERSITY OF IDABC, MOSCCW, IDAHC. 83843. Froj. No:: IDA-CFU-0038 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: OCI Period: 01 AUG 74 To 30 DEC 80

OBJECTIVES: Increase the production of salmon in Alaska waters by selective chemical control of stickleback.

APPROACE: Screened by fish esseys about 2000 potential piscicides to detect those which might be selectlyely lethal to the threespine stickleback.

FFCGEESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Control of stickleback in streams and other locales is actieved by selective addition of chemicals that form free azide radicals in water, specifically sodium azide and potassium azide. Subsequent deactivation, when desired, is achieved by addition of calcium compounds. High selectivity to stickleback car be achieved with minimal risk to desirable game fish in the selmon and trout groups. (Federal regulations require that azides be cleared for use in natural waters.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TC 80/12 MACPHEE, C. and CHENG, F.F. 1880. Fish Culture by Stickleback Population Eradication. United States Fatent 4,221,702, 5 pp. Sept. S.

003.048 BIOLOGY AND CONTROL OF AQUATIC VEGETATION

LEMBI C A; BOTANY & PLANT PATHOLCGY; PURDUE ONIVERSITY, LAFAYETTE, INDIANA. 47507. Proj. No.: IND055036 Froject Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 JUL 71 To 30 SEP 81

OBJECTIVES: Evaluate effects of herticides oo aquatic-weeds and water quality parameters under greenhouse and field cooditions. Evaluate non-berbicidal methods of aquatic weed control such as herbivorous fish and light-shading dyes. Study and correlate aquatic plant life cycles, morphology, and cellular structure with selectivity to herbicides.

AFFROACE: Develop meaagement techniques to control aquatic weeds with a minimum of adverse effects on water quality, plankton and fish. Berbicides and water-soluble dyes will be evaluated, and field studies of the biological control agent, the white amur, will be continued. The biology of difficult-to-control aquatic weeds will be studied to determine environmental c.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Studies were continued on the difficult-to-control, mat-forming green alga, Pithophora, with emphasis on the factors regulating its seasonal and spatial distribution in lakes in order to 1) develop timely and appropriate management techniques and 2) serve as a basis for studying other weedy filomentous algae of which little is known. Peak abuodance of Pithophora biomass in an Indiana lake occurs in late summer and is associated with photosynthetic rates which increase from early spring to a maximum of 31.5 mg O(2)/g dry wt/hr in September. A portion of the vegetative filaments with akinetes (spores) makes up the overwintering population and is still photosynthetically competent with O(2) evolution rates of 2.33 mg/2 dry wt/hr when measured in December. Tests with a commonly used algicide, simazine, show reduced initial rates of photosynthesis; however upon removal of the alga from simazine treatment, even after 14 day exposures, photosynthetic rates rapidly recover to control rates. Simazine does not appear to be an effective algicidal material for Pithophora control. Spatial distribution of the alga in the study lake indicates a high nutrient requirement. Balf-saturation constants (K(s)) at 20 degrees C relating filament growth to external concentrations of Nitrate-N is 1.23 mg 1 - 1 and for phosphate-phosphorus, 0.1 mg 1 - 1. This type of information is currently being expaoded to develop water quality standards for local and state agencies to use in the control of this alga.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 SPENCER, D.F., VCLPP, T.E. and LENBI, C.A. 1980. Environmental Control of Fithophora oedogonia (Chlorophyceae) Akinete Germination. J. Phyccl. 16:424-427. LEWBI, C.A. 1980. Aquatic Weed Control - In Feview. Weeds Today 11:4-6.

063.049 C5150059671

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS OF SALWCNBLLCSIS

MORSE E V; VETERINAFY SCIENCE; PORDUE UNIVERSITY, LAFAYETTE, INDIANA. 47907. Proj. No.: IND073019 Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 JUL 71 To 30 JUN 76 OBJECTIVES: Assess environmental parameters influencing Salmonella survival end multiplication. Investigate Salmonella spp. as pollution monitors. Characterize salmonellosis in livestock and companion animals. Survey the presence of Salmonelle in the fooo chain and processing environments. Study impact of livestock rearing practices on the prevalence, course and prevention of salmonellosis.

APPECACE: Standerd methodologies for the collection, cultivation and identification of the Enterobacteriaceae (Ewing) will be followed. Fiver water, bottom sediment and freshwater equatic fauna (fisb, mollusks and crustaceans) will be sempled for presence of salmonellae. Tissues and excretia from salmonellosis patients in the Purdue Large Animal Clinic as well as those animels involved in epizootics on farms will be collected and exemined for selmonellee. Samples of fresh or frozen foods at the retail level will be collected (with Ind. State Board Health Staff) and assessed for salmonellee content. Field trips with enimel/disease diagnostic lab personnel and extension specialists (Ani. Sci & Vet Sci.) to investigate husbandry practices relating to salmonellcsis outbreaks in livestock.

PECGEESS: 78/01 TO 78/12. Antibiograms for 811 Selmonella (10 serotypes) were determined; 160 were from livestock infections and 651 from the environment, i.e., river weter, fish, mussels, cranes and raccoons. Livestock strains were more resistant (25%) to ampicillin, tetracycline, kanamycin, neomycin, streptomycin and sulfonamides. Twelve antimicrobials were employed (Kirby-Baner disc method). A raccoon and a river weter isolate were nalidizic acid resistant. Livestock salmonelles are exposed to antimicrobials in feed or during therapy, and develop resistance. Environmental isolates heve less drug contact and remein sensitive to most entihiotics.

PUELICATIONS: 78/01 TO 78/12

- MCLSE, E.V., GREENWCOD, D.E. and MEYERS, E.P. 1978. Experimental Salmonelle infections in Cressius auratus (Goldfish). J. Environ. Sci. Bealth A113 (4):325-335.
- MORSE, E.V., DUNCAN, M.A. and MYBIOM, E.F. 1978. Selmonella serotypes isolated from the aquatic environment (Webash Eiver, Indiana, 1973-1976). Amer. J. Vet. Ees. 39:717-719.
- MCRSE, E.V., KERSTING, K.W., SMITB, L.E., MYBRCM, E.P. and GREENWOOD, D.E., Salmonellosis: Possible transmission from horse to human to dog of infection. Amer. J. Pub. Blth. 68:487-489.
- MCRSE, E.V. 1878. Salmonellosis and ret animals. Proceed. Nat'l. Salm. Seminer. USDA. Washington, D.C. pgs. 1 -6.
- GOSSETT, K.A. 1978. A study of the effect of residence in fish on the virulence of selmonellee in white mice. M.S. Thesis. Purdue University, Lefayette, Ind. 52 p.

003.050 CRISO083189 BOST-PARASITE RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN THE CHANNEL CATFISH AND ICHTHYCPETHIBIUS MULTIFILIIS

HANSEN M F; FORTHER G W; KLAASSEN B E; BICLCGY; KANSAS STATE UNIVERSITY, MANHATTAN, KANSAS. 66506. Froj: No:: KAN00218 Project Type: ANIMAL REALTH

Period: 14 JAN 81 To 30 SEP 82

Agency ID: CSES

OBJECTIVES: To develop methods for maintaining I. multifilis by cryopreservation; to determine presence of a carrier state of this parasite on fist surfaces end develop an ELISA for detection of the parasite; to evaluate bost resistance mechanisms and attempt to develop a means of immunization of catfish.

APPECACE: Cryopreservation methods used for other protozoans will be acapted for preservation of I. multifiliis. Survival time of the parasite will be measured using a fluorochromasia technique. A method for determining tomite numbers per liter of water will be established and used to study water in which there are infected fish. An ELISA will be established to study paresite density in waters harboring infected fist. The effect of stress on naturally occurring and experimental infections will be evaluated. The humoral respons will be characterized according to the types of antibodies produced, the development of e memory response, interaction of complement components with antibody end antigen and the cells involved in the immune response. Vaccines will be prepered from formol-treeted and freeze-dried paresites and tested.

003.051 CFIS0079532 CELL CULTURE STUDIES ON CELL LINES DEVELOPED FROM TISSUES OF AQUATIC ANIMAL

AMBORSKI G F; VETERINARY MICROBIO & PUE BITB; LCUISIANA STATE UNIVERSITY, EATON FOUGE, LOUISIANA. 70803.

Agency ID: CSVM0034-SVMPeriod: 01 JOL 78 To 30 JUN 80

OBJECTIVES: Prepare primary cell lines from tissues of aquetic enimels. Cheracterize verious cell lines from equetic animals. Preserve suitable or promising aquatic animal cultures in liquid nitrogen. Utilize crayfish cell lines to screen for crustecean viruses.

APPROACH: Verious cell lines will be prepared from vertebrete end invertebrete aquatic arimals (utilizing standard techniques). Established aquatic cell lines will be obtained from edditional cell repositories. The cell lines will be characterized as to growth potential, utilization for viral susceptability and will be screened for use as terget cells in studies with toxins obtained from aquatic pathogens.

PROGRESS: 79/01 TC 79/12. Aquatic cell lines (15) are being maintained in the Cell Culture Center of the School of Veterinary Medicine. Two of the cell lines, Brown Ballhead and Frog Tongue, were used as indicetor systems to test the effects of purified bacterial toxins from Aeromonas hydrophila, an opportunitic aquatic bacteriel patbogen. Utilization of e microtiter system was used to quantitete the toxin during various stages of purification. Toxin prepertions were obtetined from the LSU Amphibian Facility. To study the effects of the toxin et a more detailed cellular level, cells were labeled with ^{51}Cr . Wembrene damage due to the toxin was monitored by the release of ^{51}Cr into the supernetent fluids. Efforts are being continued to develop crayfish and molluscen cell lines.

PUBLICATIONS: 79/01 TO 79/12 NO PUBLICATIONS SEPARTED THIS PERIOD.

003.052 CFIS0084125 TORICITY OF ABBONONAS BYDBOPBILIA EXOTORINS IN CHANNEL CATFISH

THUNE & L; VETEFINARY MICECBICLCGY & PARASITCLCGY; LCUISIANA STATE UNIVERSITY, BATCN GOUGE, LCUISIANA. 70803. Project Type: ANIMAL

11010	7100.	LUL 0700 7							1214 1 1	111
									HEAL	LIB
Agency	ID:	CSRS	Period:	01	MAY	81	Ίo	30	APE	84

OBJECTIVES: To determine the median lethal dose (Lf(50)) for A. bydrophila exotoxing in channel catfish fingerlings. To determine the role of endotoxin on exotoxin toxicity. To compare the pethology of toxin toxicity to netural Aeromones bydrophila bacteremias.

APPROACE: A single exotoxin preparation grown in a defined medium will be harvested, divided into equal eliquots & frozen. Five groups of 15 chennel catfish will be injected intramuscularly in series with a two-fold serial dilution of the original toxin, scored for mortalities, and the Lf(50) velue calculated by te method of Reed and Muench (1938). Endotoxin will be prepared by the method of Westphal and Jann (1965) and LD(50) values determined as for exotoxin. Six groups of 15 fingerling catfish will be inoculated with one of the following preparations: LD(50) dose of exotoxin; LD(50) dose of exotoxin with LD(50) dose of endotoxin; LD(50) dose of endotoxin; and physiological saline. Bematological and histological pathology will be determined in fish which have been injected with varying doses of exotoxin and exotoxin with endotoxin, including long term effects of sublethal doses.

003.053 CRISO083896 Ultrastructural changes in teleost gills: effects of Suetle Alterations in the environment

HAUCE W N; TAYLOR H W; VETERINARY SCIENCE; ICUISIANA STATE UNIVERSITY, EATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA. 70803. Agency ID: CSVM0180-SVMPeriod: 01 JUL 80 To 30 JUN 81

OBJECTIVES: To develop techniques for ultrastructural examination of fisb gills. To compare by light and electron microscopy, normal gill morphology to morphology in which fish have been subjected to specific environmental changes. To correlate morphopathology and onvironmental changes and propose a pathogenic basis for disease development. To examine random gill samples from clear and polluted fresh, estuarine and marine populations of both cultured and feral fish. These samples will be compared to those which have been previously examined.

APPEOACB: Gills will be collected from laboratory cultured fish which have been exposed to pB and dissolved oxygen alteration, addition of ammonia and sewage effluent and increase in fish population density. Gills will be collected from apparently healthy and sick feral and propagated food fish. These samples will be processed and sectioned according to standard methods and examined with the light and electron microscope. An attempt will be made to quantify and correlate lesions with the damaging agert involved.

003.054 CFIS0083472 EICLOGY AND CONTROL OF AQUATIC ANIMAL DISEASES

THUNE F L; VETEFINARY SCIENCE; LOUISIANA STATE UNIVERSITY, EATON & UGE, LOUISIANA. 70803. Proj. No.: LAB02163 Project Type: ANIMAL HEALTH Agency ID: C\$RS Period: 01 MAR \$1 To 31 DEC 86

CBJECTIVES: Develop immunological procedures for studying, diagnosing and preventing aquatic animal diseases. Examine the role of environmental factors on aquatic animal oiseases, partticularly as they affect the bests immune response. Examine the structure, biology and pathology of aquatic animal disease organisms.

APPROACH: Three major immuniological methods will be explored for adaptation to aquatic animal systems: Lympbocyte stimulation, hemolytic plaque assay and pbagocytosis. Assess the effects of temperature, low dissolved oxygen and accumulated nitrogenous waste on the immune system of channel catfibb. The antigenic structure of the cell wall A. hydrophila will be examined. These preparations and others may then be used as immunological techniques developed in Objective 1.

003.055 CFIS0080671 NUTRITION MANAGEMENT AND DISEASE OF MARINE ANIMALS

EAYER R C; ANIMAL 6 VETERINARY SCIENCE; UNIVERSITY OF MAINE, CFONO, MAINE. 04469. Proj. No.: ME08358 Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUN 79 To 30 SEP S2 OBJECTIVES: Formulate and evaluate minimal cost lobster rations, study gaffkemia in lobsters including vaccine evaluation and study lobster pound management. Compounded lobster baits will also be evaluated.

APPROACH: Lobsters will be fed diets of various types and growth will be monitored by measuring weight in water and weight in air. Lobsters will be vaccinated with live bacteria so that survival can be measured.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Practical diets formulated with brewer's yeast, fish meal, kelp meal, alfalfa and wheat flour were fed to adult and juvenile lobsters. The basal diet was supplemented with 20,000, 100,000 and 1,000,000 U.S.P. units of vitamin A per Kg of diet. Growth was greatest in lobsters fed 20,000 U.S.P. units of vitamin A per Kg with growth inhibition seen in lobsters fed the higher level supplements. Adult lobsters were injected with P 3 2 labelled aerococcus viridans, a fatal lobster pathogen, and the distribution of these bacteria in the animal's body was monitored. The bacteria were primarily phagocytized by the hepatopancreas.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TC 80/12

- GALLAGHER, M.L., HAYER, R.C., LEAVITT, D.F. and RITENBURG, J.H. 1979. Effects of Protein Energy Ratio on Growth of Adult American Lobsters. Proc. 10th an Neet. World Mariculture Society.
- GALLABGER, M.L., RITTENBURG, J.H., HAYER, R.C. and LEAVITT, D.F. 1979. Incidence of Aerococcus viridans (var.) homari in Natural Crab Populations in Maine Coastal Waters. Crustaceana 37:316-317.
- EAYER, R.C., GALLAGHER, N.L., LEAVITT, D.F. and RITTENBURG, J.H. 1978. A Radiographic Study of the Lobster (Bomarus americanus) Alimentary Canal. Proc. 10th An. Neet. World Mariculture Society.
- EAYER, R.C., ADRCN, J.W., MACKIE, A.M., PIRIE, B.J. and RITTENBURG, J.H. 1980. Mechanisms of Food Detection and Feeding Behavior in Dover Sole. Fed. Proc. 38:500.
- BAYER, R.C., GALLAHGEk, M.L., LEAVITT, D.F. and RITTENEUGG, J.B. 1980. Requirements for Diet Formulation for Adult Lobsters (Homarus americanus) Beld in High Density Confinement. Abst. 72nd Annual Meeting ASAS, p. 186.

003.056 CRISO070103 PISCINE EEVTHFOCYTIC NECROSIS IN THE ATLANTIC COD

NICHOLSON B L; WICEOHIOLOGY; UNIVERSITY OF NAINE, OBCNO, NAINE. 0446S. Proj. No.: WE08794 Agency ID: SAES Period: 15 FEH 76 To 31 JUL 81

OBJECTIVES: Determine possible effects of PEN virue on the Atlantic cod. Isolate and begin characterization of PEN virus. Determine if PEN infects herring and other marine fish.

APPECACE: Hematological and other parameters will be monitored on uninfected, infected, and experimentally infected cod to determine possible deleterious effects on the infection. PEN virus will be isolated from infected fish and preliminary characterization initiated. Possible in vitro techniques for the isolation and study of the virus will be explored. Electron microscopic studies of other fish will he made to determine the host range or the virus.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Procedures have been improved for the primary culture of cells from Atlantic cod (Gadus morhua) using a modified marine cell culture medium. Studies are continuing on the effects of plecine erythrocytic necrosis (PEN) virus on cod and cod erythrocytes. Emphasis is being placed on effects on oxygen carrying capacity and blood enzyme activities. Ultra structural studies on PEN virus have been extended. An improved method for fixation of samples for electron microscopy has been developed. The improved resolution afforded by this method bas revealed more intricate details of the ultrastructure of PEN virus. Comparative ultrastructural studies of PEN viruses from trout and Atlantic salmon in North America and Europe have been

initiated.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS FEPORTED THIS PERICD.

003.057 CFIS0070107 INFECTIOUS PANCREATIC NECEOSIS IN ATLANTIC SALMON

NICHOLSON E I; NICEOBICLOGY; UNIVERSITY CF MAINE, ORONO, MAINE. 04469. Froj. No.: NE08793 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JAN 76 To 30 SEP 81

CHJECTIVES: The general objective of the proposed study is to evaluate the susceptibility of Atlantic salmon to infectious pancreatic necrosis (IPN) and other potentially destructive fish viruses. In addition, techniques for the detection and identification of viruses infecting Atlantic salmon will be developed or improved. Specific objectives: Determine the susceptibility of Atlantic salmon to IPN virus. Evaluate the possible effects of mycoplasmal contamination of fish cell cultures on the replication of IPN and other fisb viruses.

APFECACE: Atlantic salmon fry will be experimentally infected with iPN virus at different stages of development and under varying environmental conditions. Fish will be monitored for clinical symptoms, immune response, histopathology and mortality rates. Various fish cell cultures will be experimentally contaminated with mycoplasmas isolated from other fish cell cultures and the effect on cell morphology, subculture ability, and ability to support virus replication will be determined.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. infectious pancreatic necrosis virus (iPNV) is the etiologic agent of a serious disease of trout and other salmonid fishes. Recently, similar viruses have been isolated from a variety of marine fishes and shellfish. Numerous iPNV isolates are available that differ in various characteristics. Information on the antigenic relationships of these viruses is either lacking or inconclusive. in this study, neutralization kinetic rate constants (K) were determined for twelve. representative isolates from North America and Europe using two specific antisera. All isolates were neutralized to some degree; however, the technique revealed distinct antigenic differences between a number of isolates. Normalization of K rates (NK) revealed some clustering of antigenically similar isolates but this was not correlated with the geographical areas of isolation. Analysis of NK rates suggested that these isolates could be divided into a minimum of three, tentative antigenic groups. Reciprocal cross kinetic neutralization tests using additional antisera are in progress. This study demonstrated the usefulness of this technique for investigating the antigenic relationships of IPNV.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- MICHCLSON. 1980. Growth of Fish Cell Lines on Microcarriers. Applied and Environmental Microbiology 35:394-397. SCHNEIDEF, F. and MICHOLSON, H.L. 1980. Bacteria
- Associated with Fin Rot Disease in Batchery Reared Atlantic Salmon. Can. J. Fish and Ag. Sci. 37:1505-1513.

003.058 CRISO082308 SERCLOGICAL METHODS FOR DETECTION AND IDENTIFICATION OF VIEUS DISEASES OF FISH

NICHOLSON B L; MICEOHIOLOGY; UNIVERSITY OF MAINE, ORONO, MAINE, 04465. Proj. No.: ME-0-2-121-0 Project Type: GRANT Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 SEP 80 To 31 AUG 83

OBJECTIVES: Develop improved serological methods for detection and identification of vlrus diseases of fish. APPROACH: Develop a solid-phase enzyme-linked immunosorbent assay (SP-ELISA) and a solid-phase aggremation of coupled erythrocytes (SPACE) assay for detecting infectious pancreatic necrosis (IFA), infectious hematopoietic necrosis (IEA) and channel catfish (CCU) viruses. The relative sensitivities and practicality of each test will be determined.

003.059 CRISO012668 AN EVALUATION OF WIDELY USED HERBICIDES ON AQUATIC PLANTS, FISE AND FISE-FOOD ORGANISMS

MCNABB C D; FISHERIES & WILDLIFE; MICEIGAN STATE UNIVERSITY, EAST LANSING, MICEIGAN, 48224. Proj. No.: MICL00959 Agency ID: CSFS Period: 28 CCT 64 To 01 JAN 99

OEJECTIVES: Assess the influence of total alkalinity, μH and temperature of the water on the effectiveness of several widely used herbicides. Test the effect of weed control by chemical means on fish-food organisms. Evaluate fertilization as a method of controlling higher aquatic plants.

APFROACE: Preliminary work in the laboratory will include study of influence of water quality on effectiveness of various herbicides. Toxicity of herbicides to fish will be studied in conjunction with the laboratory, experiments. While some fertilization studies can be done in the laboratory, the major effort here will be in farm ponds and small lakes.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Lake Lansing, Michigan was treated with sodium arsenite for aquatic weed control in 1957. Two 2.5 m cores from deep portions of the lake hasin showed the historical consequence of this treatment. Maxima of 330-340 Mug As g - 1 dry weight occurred at depth interval 0.15-0.30 m; hackground was 17-20 ppm As. An arsenic mass balance budget for the lake for June 1978 to June 1979 showed it lost more arsenic than it received from the watershed. Internal loading of the water from the sediments was occurring; the surface of the sediments in greater than 85% of the lake had concentrations 2-6 times background. From laboratory experiments, we hypothesize Fe 3 + controls As concentration over aerobic sediments; As(III) increases in anoxic water with conversion of Fe 3 + to Fe 2 + and As(V) to As(III) at the sediment surface. As(IiI) in water decreases during prolonged anoxia by reaction with S 2 -. As(IiI) and Fe 2 + are oxidized upon aeration of anoxic water, and As(V) is taken out of solution with ferric iron in a manner similar to phosphate, Arsenic measurements in the lake over an annual cycle fit these expectations. Studies are underway to determine the impact of the annual arsenic cycle on fish food organisms of the lake.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 BATTERSON, T.R. 1980. Arsenic is Lake Lansing, Michigan. Ph.D. Thesis. Mich. State Univ., East Lansing. 79 pp.

003.060 CRISU076398 EFFECTS OF POLLUTANTS ON GILLS OF FRESEWATER FISHES

FROMM P C; PHYSICLCGY; WICHIGAN STATE UNIVERSITY, EAST LANSING, WICHIGAN. 48824. Agency iD: CSVNV-0010 Period: 01 JUL 77 To 30 JUN 82

OBJECTIVES: Develop the isolated perfused gill preparation as a model for the study of the effect of pollutants on fish.

APPEOACH: Experimental investigation of the permeability properties (flux of water across) isolated perfused gills and the effect of pollutants on same, a study of the salt transport capabilities (ATPase levels) in gills exposed to pollutants, and biotransformation of pollutants by gills during transit of materials from the ventilate to the blood vascular space. Test toxicologically some 'model' compounds which represent classes of chemical compounds found in the process water from in situ gasification of coal.

PEOGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. During 1980 research continued on development of the isolated trout gill preparation as a model for the study of the effects of pollutants on fish. Movement of tritiated water from a bath solution into the vascular compartment is a good qualitative measure of diffusive transfer capacity (PdA) of the gill. PdA is not constant but can be altered by changes in physical factors such as ventilation, total blood flow, blood pressure, pattern of blood flow and the exchange surfaces and by varying the number of lamellae (exchange surfaces) perfused. These factors which are regulated by humoral and ceural means provides fish with elegant control of diffusional mass transport of materials across their gills. In acute experiments of 4 hours duration increasing the acidity of the bath from pH 7.2 to 3.5 by addition of sulfuric acid had no effect on PdA but it did increase gill vascular resistance. This response was greater in gills perfused with saline alone than in those perfused with saline containing epinephrine, a potent dilator of gill vessels. In separate experiments with frous it was found that acid stress caused a reduction in short-circuit current and electrical conductance of isolated skirs but with intact animals there was no change in osmotic permeability upon exposure to acid conditions. The data supports the hypothesis that acid stress decreases influx of sodium ions into skins thereby reducing active (inward) sodium tracsport.

- PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 10 80/12
 - JACKSON, W.F. and FRCWM, P.C. 1980. Intrinsic Bypoxic Vasoconstriction in Saline Perfused Trout Gills (Salmo gairdneri). The Physiologist 23(Abstract):175.
 - FROMM, P.C. 1980. A Beview of Some Physiological and Toxicological Responses of Freehwater Fish to Acid stress. Env. Biol. Fish. 5:79-53. JACKSCN, W.P. and FRCMM, P.C. 1980. Effect of Acute
 - Acid Stress on Isolated Perfused Gills of Rainbow Trout. Comp. Biochem. Physiol. 67C:141-145.

003.061 CRISO041849 LIFE HISTORY AND PRYSIOLOGICAL STUDIES OF AQUATIC AND MARGINAL WEEDS

CUILABY JR P C; VOGT G B; USDA-A&S SOUTHERN WEED SCILAB, STONEVILLE, MISSISSIPPI. 38776.Proj. No.: 7402-20280-005Project Type: INBOUSEAgency ID: A&SPeriod: 15 NCV 74 To 15 NOV 79

OBJECTIVES: Study ecophysiology of duckweeds, hydrilla, alligatorweed, smartweeds, waterprimrose, cabomba, waterhyacinth, bluegreen algae, and redvine to aid control.

APPEOACH: Field and laboratory studies include: light and emersion effects on alligatorweed budbreak; alligatorweed occurrence and spread; smartweed life-history; calcium/nitrogen nutrition of amaranths and lemnas; cyanophyte nitrogen-fixing effects on duckweed, hydrilla, and cabomba. Biocontrol studies include; ecology and biogeography of native fauna on duckweed, waterprimose, smartweed, redvine, and alligatorweed, and of Disonycha and Agasicles spp. to develop a basis for introduction of D. argentinensis on terrestrial alligatorweed.

PROGRESS: 74/11 TO 79/11. Growth analysis show that the exotic alligatorweed bas no physiological advantage over native mild smartweed and creeping waterprimrose. Insects introduced for blocontrol have reduced alligatorweed about 90% in the lower Mississippi Fiver basin and adjacent regions. Alligatorweed rooted to the soil in shallow waters is resistant to control. The alligatorweed stemborer is apparently favored by drought and has developed late-season populations for 100% infestation of alligatorweed a far north as Pine Bluff, AF. The alligatorweed fleabeetle was shown to be very sensitive to toxaphene and methyl parathion; this sensitivity may partially explain failure of this biocontrol agent in the Yazoo-Wississipi Delta where insecticides are widely used. Growth of submerged alligatorweed in light apparently depends on the activity of oxygen-producing photosystem II; in the dark, growth occurs only if plants are emersed with direct access to air or if exposed to hydrogen peroxide when submerged. Simazine at 10^{-5} M completely inhibited growth from submerged alligatorweed stem cuttings under artificial lighting. Bydrogen peroxide at 100 mg/L renewed at 48-hr intervals partially reversed the inhibitory effects of simazine on alligatorweed. The submerged alligatorweed system has been shown as a potential bioassay for low levels of simazine in water.

PUELICATIONS: 74/11 TO 79/11

- QUIMEY, P. C., Jr., J. R. PCTTEE AND S. C. DUKE. 1978. Photosystem II and hypoxic quiescence in alligatorweed. Physiol. Plant 44: 246-250. KREASKY, J. B., P. C. QUIMEY JR. AND S. B. KAY. 1979. Dosage-Wortality response of the alligatorweed flea beetle (Agasicles hygrophila) and the nutsedge moth (Bactra verutana) to toxaphene and methyl parathion.
- QUIMBY, P. C., JR., K. E. FRICE, R. D. WAUCBOPE AND S. B. KAY. 1979. Effects of cadmium on two biocontrol insects and their host weeds. Bull. Environ. Contam. and Toxicol. 22: 371-378.
 VOGT, G. B., J. U. WCGUIRE, AND A. D. CUSEMAN. 1979. Probable evolution and morphological variation in South American disonychine flea beetles (Coleoptera: Chrysomelidae) and their amarenthaceous hosts.

003.062 CRISO065163 EFFECTS OF AN ALTERED TEMPERATURE REGIME AND CREMICAL CONTAMINANTS ON THE AQUATIC ECOSISTEM

WITT JR A; CAMPBELL R S; JONES J R; FORESTRY; UNIVERSITY OF MISSCURI, COLUMBIA, MISSOURI. 65211. Proj. ho:: MOOO171 Agency ID: SAES Period: 19 APR 74 To 30 SEP 80

OBJECTIVES: Ascertain effect of altered thermal regime on incidence of diseased fish, growth of diseased fish, and their resistance to thermal stress. Ascertain effect of altered thermal regime on reproduction in fishes. Ascertain the degradation products of phtablic acid (PAEs) in the hydrosoil and their effects on microbial processes. Ascertain effects on phtablic acid on aquatic insects in the hydrosoil.

APPROACH: Fish sampled from thermal effluent and reservoir will indicate incidence of lymphocystis. Infected 6 healthy fish and experimentally for difference in growth 6 temperature stress. Caged control fish 6 fish in thermal effluent fed ad libitum. Eeproduction cycle and fecundity determined from gonads. Eggs 6 larvae tested for differences in viability. Natural hydrosoils 6 their microbial populations will be subjected to PAEs. Nitrogen, sulfur and pbosphate cycles will be monitored to determine effects of PAEs. PAEs will be added to cultures of the blood worm and egg production, viability, and emergence will be monitored.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Bowever, some of our earlier work (Jennings 1979) was used and incorporated by the U. S. Army Corps of Engineers in their "Missouri River Bank Stabilization and Navigation Project Draft Feasibility Report and Draft EIS for the Fish and Wildlife Witigation Plan" for the Missouri River. Life history aspects of the southern cavefish, from springs and caves of Camden County were studied. Length frequency distributions failed to delineate age groups, nor did the scales, indicating continuous growth in their constant environment. A sex ratio of 0.56 males to 1.0 females was found and did not wary with increasing length. Spawning appears to occur in May because of the decrease in the gonosomatic index. Females matured at 45 mm and egg number ranged from 20 to 80. Only one male, 58 mm, was mature, the internal anatomy was described by gross dissection and histological sectioning.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO S0/12 SWITH, V.J. 1980. Some Aspects of the Life History of the Southern Cavefish (Typhlichthys subterraneus Girard) in Missouri. N.S. Thesis 123 pp.

003.063 CRIS0069796 CONTROL OF WHIFLING DISEASE OF SALMONIDS

TAYLOR R L; VETERINARY MEDICINE; UNIVERSITY OF NEVADA, RENO, NEVACA. \$5557. Proj. No.: NEV00387 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 05 DEC 75 To 30 SEP 78

CHJECTIVES: Investigate the life cycle of Myxosoma cerebralis, the cause of whirling disease. Use these and other research findings as the basis for control of the disease.

APPEGACH: Transmission experiments will be performed to determine the effects of temperature, external cysts on diseased fish and the stage of the disease that is contagious. The role of fish eating birds will be studied. Resistant strains of fish and drug treatment will be investigated as control metbods. Attempts will be made to follow the development of infection through tissue sectioning.

PROGRESS: 71/10 TO 80/12. Cxytetracycline, Sulfamerzaine, Primaquine phosphate, Imidocarb dipropronate, Amprolium, Nicarbazine, Furpyrinol and Furazolidone were continuously fed to susceptible trout in known N. cerebralis contaminated water. None of the drugs prevented development of the disease but Furazolidone did reduce spore numbers in infected fish by 90%. However, effective drug levels of 86 mg/kg of body weight reduced the growth rate in medicated fish. Strains of trout (Pit Biver Rainbow and Eagle River Rainbow) which are resistant to Ceratomyxa stasta were found susceptible to whirling disease. Transmission sudies showed that live or dead, mature or young N. cerebralis infected fish will trasmit whirling disease. Further transmission studies showed for the first time that spores remain viable after passing through herrons and ducks and will then transmit the disease to susceptible fish. For the first time infection was demonstrated in a non-salmonid species, the Lahontan Mountain sucker, Pantosteus lahontan. Opercular cysts were demonstrated in infected fish. Tissue sectioning revealed numerous M. cerebralis spores inside the cysts. It was theorized that this is one method of transmission. A new spore concentration method that does not damage the immunogenicity of the organism was developed. This has been used in antigen preparation for the production of a specific hyperimmune serum against N. cerebralis. An enzyme-like immunosorbent assay (ELISA) test was developed for the serological identification of infected fish.

PUBLICATIONS: 71/10 TO 80/12

KCZEL, T.R., LOTT, R. 1980. Isolation of Wyxosoma cerebralis (Whirling Disease) Spores from Infected Fish by Use of a Physical Separation technique. Can. J. Fish. Aquat. Sci. 37:1032-1035.

003.064 CRIS0065603 SALMON CULTURE - DEVELOPMENT OF NUTRITIONAL AND DISEASE CONTICL PROGRAMS

 STECUT R G; ANIMAL SCIENCE; UNIVERSITY OF NEW

 BAMPSBIRE, DURBAN, NEW BAMPSBIE. 03824.

 Proj. No.: NE00227-S

 Project Type: STATE

 Agency ID: SAES
 Period: 01 JUL 73 Tc 30 SEP 78

OBJECTIVES: Determine protein level required for feeding at a constant calorie to protein ratio. Determine minimum level of fishmeal without reducing growth. Determine the critical nutrients supplied by fishmeal. Develop an effective autogenous polyvalent bacterin of Vibrio anguillarum that will withstand laboratory ard field challenge. APPROACH: Hecause basically the study involves calorie-protein ratios, initially protein levels will be studied at a constant calorie-protein ratio. Sources of protein will be investigated, particularly in an attempt to lower the quantity of fishmeal used, and to make use of cheaper protein sources. Diets will be studied in both fresh and saltwater rearing programs, and results will be evaluated primarily by growth and feed conversion. Control of vibriosis in sea water reared salmon will be attempted in 2 ways: immunization of the fish using an autogenous bacterin; and investigationn of anti-biotic efficacy against Vibrio anguillarum. Killed bacterins will ba administered parenterally or orally, and the immune response measured by challenge. Antibiotic activity, screened initially in vitro, will be verified orally in vivo.

PROGRESS: 73/07 TO 78/09. Atlantic sammon (Salmo salar) were found to be as susceptible as coho salmon (Oncorhynchus kisutch) to Maine-New Hamphire strains of Vihrio anguillarum used in both injection and water transmission exposure. Exposure to 1-2.5x10⁵ organisms/ml of one strain (569) in the water for 1 hr. killed fish of both species at 10°C and 15°C. Shculd similar water exposure conditions occur in Maine estuaries newly released Atlantic salmon smots may incounter lethal levels of V_* anguillarum. The organism causing bacterial kedney disease (KD) in sammonid fishes is a slow growing gram positive rod (perhaps genus Corynebacterium) on laboratory media supplemented with cysteine. However, these bacteria grow readily in rainbow trout gonad (FTG-2) cell cultures, using Eagles Minimum Essential Medium Plus 10% newborn calf serum, without antibiotics. Cultures initiated from laboratory media or diseased fish kidneys grow equally well and in six days essentially cover the cell monolayer. No valid data were obtained from the feeding experiment this year because the stock was decimated by kidney disease. This disease is not unvamon in fish culture and unfortunately there is no known cure or effective treatment. Treatment with the antibiotic terramycin and with a greatly elevated lavel os vitamin C (1000 mg/kg) were without effect. Vibrio sp. was isclated from lobsters (Homorus americanus) reared in captivity.

PUBLICATIONS: 73/07 TO 78/09

STROUT, R. G., E. S. SAWYER AND E. CCUTEFWAESH. 1978. Pathogenic vibrios in confinement-reared and feral fishes of the Maine-New Hampshire coasts. J. Fish. Res. Borad Can. 35:403-408. SAWYER, E., R. G. STROUT AND H. COUTEFWARSH. 1979. Pathogenic vibrios conComparatiave susceptibility of Atlantic salmon (Salmo salar) and Coho Salmon.

003.065* CRIS0079854 FBEDING ECOLOGY OF FISHES UTILIZING MARSHES ALTERED FOR CONTROL OF SALT MARSH MOSQUITOES

SHISLER J; MOSQUITO RES & CONTROL; RUTGERS UNIVERSITY, NEW BRUNSWICK, NEW JERSEY. 08903. Proj. No.: NJ40503 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SABS Period: 01 JUL 70 To 30 JUN 80

OHJECTIVES: To study the feeding ecology of salt marsb fishes with emphasis on their rcle as mosquito predators.

APPROACE: Survey of fishes utilizing salt marsh altered for mosquito control. Study the food habits of the dominant species as determined from the survey in order to determine the most effective mosquito predator. Identification of larval fishes which occur in mosquito breeding areas because these may be important predators on the early mosquito instars.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TC 80/12. Fish populations were sampled throughout the year in both natural marshes and marshes that have been altered for mosquito control. Fish species composition varied between study sites with a typical freshwater assemblage common at sites with freshwater or lower salinities and typical estuarine assemblage at high salinities. Fundulue heteroclitus, F. luciae and Cyprinodon variegatus were dominant estuarine fish while freshwater dominate species were F. daphanus, Gambusia affinis, Lepomis gibbosus and Notemigonus crysoleucas. Seasonal changes in both salinity and faunal populations were noted in impoundments.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- ABLE, K.W., SHISLER, J.K. and TAIBOT, C.W. 1979. Preliminary Survey of Fishes Utilizing New Jersey Marshes Altered for Control of Salt Marsh Mosquitoes. Proc. N.J. Mosq. Control Assoc. 66:103-115.
- TALBOT, C. W., ABLE, K. W., SHISLER, J. K. and COCBEY, D. 1980. Seasonal Variation in Composition of Fresh and Brackish Water Fishes of New Jersey Mosquito Control Impoundments. Proc. N.J. Mosq. Control Assoc. 67:50-63.

003.066 CRIS0028020 NATURAL SEED OYSTER REDS OF THE DELAWARE BAY

HASKIN B B; OYSTER CULTURE; RUTGBRS UNIVERSITY, NEW BRUNSWICK, NEW JERSET. 08903. Proj. No.: NJ32500 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 CCT 62 To 01 JAN 99

OBJECTIVES: Develop information on and conduct research leading to the goal of disease-free oysters in the Delaware Bay area.

APPEOACB: Conduct such field and laboratory studies on MSX in oyster populations as required. Advise the Delaware Bay authorities of the best management practices to preserve good seed beds and develop new beds.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. The oyster planters of Delaware Bay depend almost exclusively on the State-controlled natural seed beds of the upper Bay for their supply of seed oysters which are planted on privately-leased beds in the lower Bay. Under this project our laboratory provides basic information on the seed beds and recommendations for their management to the State Division of Fish, Game and Shell-fisheries. In 1980 over 400,000 tushels of seed oysters were removed from the beds in the regular spring planting season. Based on our recommendations, two of the Beds, Egg Island and the Ledge, and a major portion of New Beds, were closed to the taking of seed because of a preponderance of small cysters of the 1978 and 1979 year classes. Following the spring-early summer dredging, a moderate to light general set of 1980 year class cysters occurred on the seed beds. MSX disease mortalities in the 1980 planted stocks were unusually heavy in the summer, fall and early winter of 1980-81. Nortalities in cysters on the lower seed beds were 1/2 to 1/3 those on the planted grounds immediately below the boundary, the Southwest Line separating seed beds and leased bottom. Based on these data and those of the preceding 20 years establishing that similar differential mortalities between seed beds and planting grounds have been the general rule.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO S0/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

003.067* DISEASE-BESISTANT OFSTERS

CEIS0028024

HASKIN B H; CYSTER CULTURE; RUTGBRS UNIVERSITY, NEW BRUNSWICK, NEW JEESEY. 08903. Proj. No.: NJ32504 Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 AUG 64 To 30 JUN 82

OBJECTIVES: Vertify the relative high resistance of Delaware Bay oyster stocks to NSX, increase the supply of such oysters, study and modify current procedures for artificial rearing of oysters, experimentally transmit NSX in the laboratory and increase the yield of market oysters by the control of predators.

APPROACH: Field experiments will be established to accomplish most of the objectives. Disease free oysters will be impored and planted where necessary, various chemicals will be tested for the control of sbell-fouling and oyster drills. Laboratory procedures will be established to study artificial rearing of oyster and to experimentally transmit NSX under controlled conditions so that the nature of this disease will be more fully known.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Earlier reports have emphasized that the epizootic oyster disease, commonly called WSX, which first appeared in Delaware Bay in 1957, has been continuously present in the Bay since then. Its prevalence and intensityhave fluctuated in cyclic fashion with 3 periods of low prevalence in 1962, 1971 and 1978. Intervening priods of high prevalence have not been consistently correlated with any environmental factor or set of factors. Survival of the Deleware Bay oyster industry has been based on the availability, at reasonable cost, of a moderately disease-resistant seed from the upper Bay natural beds. Our studies have shown, that, on long-term average, an oyster planter may expect to lose approximately 38% of his oysters to disease in the first year after planting. In good years, like 1978, this loss will drop to 15 - 20%. In had years, like 1972 and 1980, the disease loss alone approaches 50%. This disease loss in 1980, coupled with poor growth and condition in the surviving oysters, resulted in a disastrous year for the planters. Our work in this project enabled us to evaluate the 1980 losses and place them in long-term perspective. Our more rigidly selected, laboratory-reared stocks of resistant oysters held up well under the 1980 disease pressure with mortality rates in these experimental stocks at 1/5 to 1/2 those of the native resistant seed stock.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED TBIS PERIOD.

003+068 CRIS0002990 BIOLOGY AND CONTROL OP AQUATIC WEEDS

RIEMER D; SOIL & CROP; RUTGERS UNIVERSITY, NEW BRUNSWICK, NEW JEKSEY. 08903. Proj. No:: Nj15180 Agency ID: CSRS Period: 12 JAN 68 To 30 SEP 83

OBJECTIVES: Learn more about the life histories and ecological requirements of problem aquatic weed species; study the effects of herbicides on aquatic weeds in relation to dosage rate, stage of growth of plant, herbicide formulation, and ecological conditions under which the plant is growing and to formulate safe, effective, and economically feasible control measures for aquatic weeds.

APPROACH: Prohlem aquatic weed species will be studied in their natural babitats and under controlled conditions in the laboratory, greenhouse, and experimental ponds; and the response of aquatic weeds to various herbicides will he determined under various conditions in trials to be conducted in the greenhouse and in the field.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Further investigation of seed gemination in white water lily (Nymphaea odorata) has shown that the observed dormancy in freshly harvested seed is due to some intrinsic physiological mechanism and is not due to impermeability of the seed coat. Mechanical disruption of the seed coat has no effect on germination. Crowding of intact seed in a small volume of water or chilling the seed at 4 degrees C overcomes dormancy. The positive effect of crowding appears to be the result of a buildup of dissolved ethylene in the water. Varying the concentrations of dissolved CO(2) and O(2) in the water does not affect germination. Freezing and air drying of seed for short periods of time (even for a few hours of drying) renders the seed incapable of germination, The investigations also showed that the seeds of Nyphaea odorata bave a definite light requirement for germination to occur.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS FEPORIED TBIS PERIOD.
003.069 CFIS0085472 NATURALLY OCCURRING MOSQUITO LARVICIDES

LALONDE R T; BIOLOGY CEFWISTRY & ECCLOGY; CCL OF ENVIRON SCI & FORESTRY, SYRACUSE, NEW YORK. 13210. Froj. No:: NYZ-2213-02-003 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: OCI Period: 01 JUN 78 To 31 AUG 80

OBJECTIVES: Naturally occurring substances from algae are known to inhibit the development of mosquito larvae into the adult stage. These substances show signs of acting selectively. The primary objectives of the research are to isolate and identify such mosquito larvicides produced by the freshwater green alga Cladophcra dn there after develop them as mosquito control agents.

APPROACE: Various forms of chromatography willbe employed as separation procedures. Teh separation will be monitored by the composite sample bloassay using A. aegypti as the test organism. Spectral techniques will be used for identification. Evaluation of control effectiveness will be carried out in the labroatory and in the field.

PRCGRESS: 79/10 TO S0/08. The objective of the project was the identification of plant-produced agents haveing activity against mosquite larvae. The frest water green alga Cladophora glomerata produces active saturated fatty acids identified by spectral means as capric [10:0], lauric [12:0], myristic [14:0] and palmitolic [16:1 (Sc)] acids. The LD(SO) values of these acids in the order just given are: 14, 7, 4 and 3 ppm respectively against the standard test organiem A. triseriatus. The moet active acids 12:0, 14:0 and 16:1 (Sc) were found to be released by the powdered alga at pB 8.5, the pH of Lake Contario and the St. Lawrence River.

N-(2-Wethylpropyl)-(E,E)2,4-decadienamide was found to be an active mosquito larvicide (LD(50) 2 pm) from the terrestial plant Achillea millefolium. Another fatty acid amide isolated and identified from the same plant is (E,E)-2,4-dcadienpiperidide whose LD(50) is 13 ppm. The same level of activitywas observed for (E,E)-2,4-decadienpyrollidide and piperine. Several fatty acid isobutyramidee were synthesized and tested for antilarval activity. An order of antilarval activity comparable to that of N-(2-methylpropyl)-(E,E)-2,4-decadienamide was observed when the ekeletal chain length contained 14-16 members (including nitrogen) and whne at least one double bend was conjugated with the amide carbonyl.

PUBLICATIONS: 79/10 TO 80/08

- LA LONDE, B.T., MORRIS, C.D., WONG, C.F., GARDNER, L.C., ECEERT, D.J., KING, D.P. and ZIMMEEMAN, R.H. 1975. Kesponse of Aedee triseriatus larvae to fatty acids of Cladophors. J. Chem. Ecol. 5:371.
- LA LONDE, F.T., SLAYEACE, J.R.F., BOFSTEAD, S.J., WONG, C.F., MORRIS, C.D. and GARDNER, L.C. 1879. GC-MS detected disfunctional carboxylic acids released by dried Cladophora at the pE of Lake Ontario and the St. Lawrence.
- LA LONDE, E.T., WONG, C.F., ECFSTEAD, S.F., MORRIS, C.D., and GAEDNER, L.C. 1980. N-(2-Methylpropyl)-(E,E)-2,4-decadienamide. A
- mosquito larvicide from Achillea millefolium L. J. Chem. Ecol. 6:35.

003.070 CRIS0078455 BACTERIAL KIDNEY DISEASE IN RAINBOU TROUT: PATEOGENESIS, INMUNITY, AND EFFECT OF WATEP HARDNESS

CARLISLE J C; AVIAN & AQUATIC ANIMAL MEDICIN; CORNELL UNIVERSITY, ITHACA, NEW YORK. 14853. Proj. No.: NYCV426382 Project Type: ANIMAL

BEALTE Agency ID: CSRS Period: 18 FEB 79 To 30 SEP 81

OBJECTIVES: To define the early events in BED pathogenesis: route to entry, site(s) of multiplication and method(s) of dissemination through the body. To determine the effect of water hardness on susceptibility of rainhow trout to EKD. To characterize the chronology of the humoral and cellular immune response to BED. To compare the immune response to EKD in hard and soft water. To challenge a group of susceptible fish by maintaining them in water from a tank of EKD-infected fish, thus stimulating a natural horizontal exposure.

APPROACH: Rainbow trout of 30 gm mean body mass, kept in 95% recirculated dechlorinated tap water at 14+ ⁰C, will be divided into 3 groups of 200 fish. The first group will be infected with Renobacterium salmoninarum by intraperitoneal incculation. The second will be infected by constant exposure to the effluent of the first group. The third group will be uninfected. Balf of each group will be kept in soft water of 5 mg/L total hardness (IH), the other half in hard water of approximately 175 mg/L TB. Postmortem examinations will be conducted on all dead or moribund fish and on fish sacrificed every other day for the first two weeks and weekly thereafter for ten weeks. Immune status will be determined weekly wsing, microagglutination, immunodiffusion, indirect immunofluorescence, leukocyte migration inhibition, antigen binding, and in vivo delayed type hypersensitivity.

PROGRESS: 79/01 TO 79/12. Preliminary studies on Eacterial Kidney Disease (BED) have demonstrated the possibility of infecting rainbow trout fingerlings by feeding kidney tissue from infected brook trout. Approximately 50% developed fatal clinical disease. A second feeding produced no further cases. Transferring the apparently unaffected fish to one-half strength sea water did not induce overt disease. In clinically diseased fish the causative bacteria were demonstrable in frozen kidney sections and impreesion smears stained with FITC labeled anti-EKD serum. The sections proved more sensitive. Enzyme labeled anti-KD serum has been obtained but not tested. Preliminary trials have shown that Walleye fry and fingerlings can be infected with the viruses of Infectious Pancreatic Necrosis (IPN) and Infectious Haematopoletic Necrosis (IEN). Titers of recovered virus were in some cases higher than that of the inoculum in fish infected by intraperitoneal in lection and by bath exposure. Lesions typical of IBN were produced in several walleye and about equal numbers of the rainbow trout that were exposed in parallel. In cooperation with the Tunison Laboratory of Fish Nutrition, rainbow trout and Atlantic salmon fry were reared on diets containing varying levels of magnesium and calcium. The combination of low magnesium and adequate or high calcium produced poor growth, and muscle and kidney degenerative lesions. The effect was enhanced in soft water. IPN virus was isolated from 2 diagnostic cases.

PUBLICATIONS: 79/01 TO 79/12

CARLISLE, J.C., SCHAT, K.A. and ELSTON, F. 1979. Infectious Reematopoietic Necrosis in Rainbow trout in a semi-closed system. J. Fish. Dis. 2:511.

003.071 CRIS0083691 INVEST. OF THE BOLE OF LARVAL AMERICAN OVSTERS (CRASSOSTERA VIRGINICA) AS CARRIERS OF OVSTER DISEASE

ELSTON R; LEIBOVITZ L; AVIAN 6 AQUATIC ANIMAL MEDICIN; CORNELL UNIVERSITY, ITBACA, NEW YCRK. 14853. Agency ID: CSVM-426-386 Period: 01 JAN 80 To 01 JAN 82

CEJECTIVES: To determine if 2 known pathogens of adult oysters infect or can be carried by larval oysters. To attempt to isolate and characterize a virus observed as a virus-like particle in larval oyster tiseuee.

APPROACH: Infectious organisms will be isolated from adult oyster tissue. These will be inoculated into culturee of oyster larvae. Larvae will be monitored with histological and electron microscopical techniques. Larval tissue extract will be applied to primary cultures of adult oyster cells.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Attempts were made to induce disease in larval American oysters, Crassostrea virginica with Perkinsus marinum and Minchinia nelsoni which are well recognized pathogens of the adult oyster. Bistological and ultrastructural examination of experimental animals did not reveal any signs of infectivity. Attempts were made to isolate an oyster virus in primary cultures of oyster heart tissue. Aithough the cell culture system secred to work satisfactorily, evidence of in vitro infection was not detected. A fluorescent antibody test for Perkinsus marinum has been partially developed. The antibody reagent appears to be specific and while titers obtained were not as high as hoped for, the test appears to be promising. A bacterial disease of European and American cysters (Ostrea edulis and C. virginica) from Maine and Massachusetts was characterized. Surface attaching Vibrio spp. caused perforations in periostracum, ligament erosion and abnormal deposition of calcium carbonate. The bacteria were characterized biochenically and specific antibody was produced.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

003.072 CRIS0068826 DISEASES OF AQUATIC ANIMALS

GILLESPIE J E; LEE X M; LEIFOVITZ L; MICRCBICLCGY; CORNELL UNIVERSITY, ITHACA, NEW YORK. 14853. Proj. No.: NYC-433-380 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 NOV 74 To 31 DEC 80

OBJECTIVES: Levelop a program to determine the viral flora of shellfish and salmonids that serve as a source of food for man and animals. Particular importance and study will be attached to viruses associated with disease. Establish the impact of human and animal pathogens residing in shellfish of the New York City Bight area on the health and welfare of man.

APPROACB: Apply virological cultural methods and immunological techniques in performing qualitative and quantitative measurements for virus in shellfish and salmonids. Establish the nature of the host-parasite relationship in shellfish--virological, bacteriological, mycological, and parasitological.

PROGRESS: 75/01 TO 80/12. An abstract of the most important phase of his studies is as follows: "The pathogenesis of infectious pancreatic necrosis virus (iFNV) infection in brock trout and rainbow trout was examined using intraperitoneal inoculation and exposure to virus in feed and water. Fish were sampled sequentially and the distribution of virus determined by virus isolation, histopathology, and immunogluorescence. Following intraperitoneal inoculation virus entered the peritoneal cavity and was found consistently in the blood beginning 24 hours after the injection. Viremia undoubtedly aided in the spread of virus and by 2 DPI virus had interacted with the pancreatic exocrine cells. Replication in these cells resulted in the production of iPNV specific antigen, necrosis of infected cells, and spread of infectious virus to adjacent tissue. Areas of viral replication were at first multifocal but tended to merge as they grew. Eventually most of the acinar tissue became involved and only small pockets of normal acinar cells remained. Twelve-week old brook trout survived with only a small amount of functional exocrine pancreas and limited virus replication continued in this tissue for weeks. Extensive virus replication appeared to take place only in the pancreas although viral antigen and slight pathological changes were found in the renal interstitium and livers of some fish.

PUBLICATIONS: 75/01 TO 80/12

SWANSON, R.N. and GILLESPIE, J.H. 1979.

- Pathogenesis of infectious pancreatic necrosis in Atlantic salmon (Salmo salar). J. Fish. kes. Bd., Canada 36 (5):587-59.
- SWANSON, R.N. 1981. Studies on the Pathogenesis of Infectious Pancreatic Necrosis and a Description of Three Eccent Isolates of IPVN from Northeastern United States. Ph.D. Thesis. Cornell University, Ithaca, New York.

003.073 CF1S0076580 ECOLOGY OP PURPLE LOOSESTRIFE (LYTBRUN SALICARIA)

MALECKI R A; RICBMOND M E; NATURAL RESOURCES; CORNELL UNIVERSITY, IIBACA, NEW YCRK. 14853. Proj. No.: NYC-147327 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 CCT 78 To 30 SEP 81

OBJECTIVES: Three seasons of field study are proposed to describe the development, growth and phenology of purple loosestrife; determine the impact of loosestrife on a morsh ecosystem; investigate methods for the control of loosestrife.

APPROACH: Plant collections will be made during the growing season to document development and phenology of loosestrife. Its ecological interaction with other plant and animal species in a marsh ecosystem will be approached through use of aerialphotographs, exclosures, and transect sampling. Possible control methods to be tested include water level manipulation, mowing, burning, and mechanical removal.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TC 80/12. A third year of field study was completed in central New York. Survival, growth, and flower phenology measurements of seedlings naturally established in 1978 continue to provide data on the life history of this species. Testing of control methodology is involving the use of the chemical glyphosate, mechanical cutting, a combination of cutting and burning, and water level manipulation were also continued. Of the various methods tested, treatment with the herbicide, glyphosate, is proving to be the most promising. Work was also continued in looking at the ecological interaction of loosestrife with both wetland plants and animals. Competiton experiments were conducted using a variety of plant species including cattall, phragmites, rice cut-grass, Japenese millet and reed canary grass. Transect surveys were also conducted to compare utilization of loosestrife dominated wetlands versus cattail with respect to muskrat activity as well as use by march wrens, blackbirds, and bitterns.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TC 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

003.074 DISEASES OF SHELLFISH CRIS0067069

LEIBOVITZ L; MEYERS T R; ELSTON R; VETERINARY MEDICINE; CORNELL UNIVERSITY, ITHACA, NEW YORK. 14853. Proj. No.: NYC-426381 Project Type: STATE Agency 1D: SAES Period: 01 NCV 74 To 06 OCT 79

OBJECTIVES: Diagnose shellfish diseases and public health hazards associated with consumption of shellfish. Experimentally reproduce specific pure infections in disease-free shellfish under controlled latoratory conditions. Study the pathogenesis, immune response and range of specific environmental influences related to experimental diseases in the above studies. Develop, from the above studies, methods of prevention, control and eradication of those diseases of shellfish of economic and public health importance. The development of an educational program for the shell fish industry, the veterinary college and professional disease specialists for the shellfish industry.

APPROACB: During regular monthly visits to Long Island shellfish cooperators, materials will be collected ant these will be brought back to the Veterinary College for bacteriological processing. Organisms isolated will be used in carrying out research related to the above objectives. Findings will be related to the shellfish industry as part of the extension activities.

PRCGRESS: 79/01 TC 79/12. In the previous report, the characteristics of spontaneous outbreaks of vibriosis in commercial hivalve shellfish hatcheries was reported. Work during the current period dealt with experimental vibriosis in oyster (Crassostrea virginica) larvae and in a model hatchery culture system. First, the functional anatomy of normal

larvae was defined in order to interpret the pathologic responses. The later study yislded much new information relative to the velum, digestive tract, body cavities and other functional and morphologic features. Experimental exposure of larvae to defined doses of pure cultures of Vibrio spp. isolated from spontaneous field infection was studied. The gortality, morbidity and pathologic responses ware described. The progress and specificity of the bacterial infection was monitored by immunofluorescence. A microbiologic study of the course of the disease in an experimental model hatchery vessel was conducted. The results indicated that larvae selectively removed Vibrio organisms from the larval cultural medium, the earliest and bighest tacterial concentrations were associated with bottom deposits, and such concentrations were rstained in the bottom deposits for the longest time. Little difference was noted in Vibrio concentrations between top and bottom conical samples. Single dose exposure produced a short period of self-limiting mortality. Repeated daily exposure produced continuous high mortality.

PUBLICATIONS: 79/01 TO 79/12

- LEIBOVITZ, L. 1979. A study of vibriosis at a Long Island shellfish hatchery. New York Sea Grant Publication No. NYSG-RR-79-02. New York Sea Grant Institute, 99 Washington Ave., Albany, New York 12246.
- LEIBCVITZ, L. and ELSTCN, K. 1979. Detection of Vibriosis in batchery larval oyster cultures: Study of interrelationships of diagnosis and management variables in an experimental model. Proc. Joint Ann. Mtg. Nat. Sbellfish.
- ELSTCN, R. 1979. Anatomy, histology and ultrastructure of larval Crassostreid Veligers. Proc. Joint Ann. Mtg. Nat. Shellfish Assoc. and Shellfish Inst. of N. Amer. Vancouver, B.C., Canada.
- ELSTON, R. and LFIEOVITZ, L. 1979. Detection of Vibriosis in hatchery reared larval oysters: Correlation between clinical, histological and ultrastructural observations in experimentally induced diseases. Proc. Joint Ann. Mtg. Nat
- ELSICN, F. 1979. Economically important larval bivalve diseases and their control. Esvista Italia di Piscicoltura e Ittiopatologia. A. XIV, N.2:47-55.

003.075* CRIS0073629 ESTUARINE INVERTEBRATE BEBAVIOF; AN INDEX OF SUBACUTE TOXICITY OF AQUATIC BERBICIDES

BARTHALMUS G T; ZOOLOGY; N CAROLINA STATE UNIVERSITY, RALEIGE, NCRTE CARCLINA. 27650. Proj. No.: NCO5397 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 15 JUN 77 To 31 DEC 78

OBJECTIVES: Letermine the chronic, subacute behavioral effects of 2,4-D herbicide on grass shrimp, Palaemonetes pugio Holthuis; to explore the feasibility of assessing xenobiotic-induced behavioral dysfunctions of aquatic vertsbrates and invertebrates by application of behavioral toxicology techniques.

APPROACE: Dosages of 2,4-E which produce no lethality or locomotor dysfunction for 7 days following a 3 day post-collection period will be determined for adults and larvae. Then, the phototactic behavioral reflexes of dark adapted and dosed shrimp will be tested daily in compartmentalized chambers illuminated by a horizontally directed, intensity controlled monochromatic light stimulus with a duration of 5s at 15s intervals for 5 replications. Shrimp in ths compartment nearest the light will be designated photo-positive. Swimning speeds of larvae will be determined in Petri disbes by measuring distances traveled per unit time.

FECGIESS: 77/07 TO 78/12. The effect on adult temales, three larval stages, and eggs of the grass shrimp, Falaemonetes puglo, exposed to subacute doses of the herbicide Weedar-64 (registered trademark) (Am. Chem., Inc.), containing 49.3% of the dimethylamine salt of 2,4-dichlorophenoxyacetic acid, was tested. Auxiliary ingredients, mairly water, were assumed to be non-toxic. Alteration of phototaxis was chosen as the indicator of an effect on adults and larvae; sgges were examined for percent batch. Photoactic patterns of larvae and adults receiving 100 ppm Wsedar-64 daily were recorded for 12 days. Positive phototaxis was reduced by 2,4-D in all three larval stages tested. Sensitivity varied with developmental stage (stage 1 was most sensitive). Stags 1 larval responses were altered more by 2,4-d exposure than by aging, but for stages 3 and 7, larval ages influenced phototaxis more than doses. Adults were unaffected. The doses tested did not affect the hatching of sggs.

PUELICATIONS: 77/07 TO 78/12 MOYER, C.A.J. 1978. Effect of the herbicide 2,4-d on the phototactic response of the grass shrimp, Palaemonstes pugio. M. S. Thesis. N. C. State University, Raleigh. 33 p.

003.076 CRISO068229 A COMPARATIVE STUDY OF THE FINE STRUCTURE OF APOSTOME CILIATES

BRADBURY P C; ZOOLCGY; N CAROLINA STATE UNIVERSITY, RALEIGH, NORTE CAROLINA. 27650. Proj. No.: NCO5338 Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 75 To 30 SEP 82

OEJECTIVES: Compare the fine structure of three different genera of apostome ciliates that attack the crustacean exoskeleton in thres different ways.

APPROACH: These ectoparagitas have taken the first steps toward endoparasitism, and their visible cytological characteristics during their attack and fasding on the axoskeleton may help to explain how endoparasitism has arisen in this order. The fine structure will be examined and described for: The unique cyst surrounding Terebrospira chattoni, the parasite itself both before and during the invasion of the exoskeleton of a shrimp and the changes in the cyst from the surface through the strata of sxoskeleton to the endocuticle, the attachment of the apostome Conidophrys to the cuticular hairs of the shrimp and the complex connections of the ciliates! cytostome to the exoskeleton of the hair, and the elaborate feeding apparatus of Arcophrys rooor and the attack on the exoskeleton of the shrimp which appears to involve intracellular pumping.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TC 80/12. Despite the visible differences betwsen Conidophrys and the other genera of apostome ciliates, Jankowski's studies of the infraciliature of the pilisuctorian tomite convinced him that Conidophrys belonged with the Apostomatida rather than the Trichostomatida. Electron microscopy confirms Jankowski's view of the affinities of Conidophrys, but electron microscopy also reveals the unique fine structure of the trophont and the cytostome. Like other apostome tomites, the tomite of Conidophrys possesses a rosette, kinetodesmata made up of stacks of individual kinetodesmal fibrils, canaliculi extending from the ventral surface into the interior and surrounded by dense inclusion bodies, and a kinetid with component fibrils arranged as in other apostome genera. However, electron microscopy of the trophont indicates that its fine structure is unlike that of trophonts of other apestome genera. The very young trophont is without an infraciliature and continuously secretes a cyst wall about itself that grows with the organism. The tropbont's only attachment to its bost is the intimate connection between the cytostome and a hair of the crustacean. The cytostome is formed of delicate tubules that pass through disorganized cyst and cuticular materials to the lumen of the hair. The tubules are continuous with pores or diverticula that pass into the trophont's cytoplass. Ingestion is by micropinocytosis. There are no obvious stored food vacuoles.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TC 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD. 003.077 CRIS0072394 EURASIAN WATEEMILFOIL IN CURRITUCE SOUND: ITS CONTROL AND POTENTIAL USE

HUISH M T; KERBY J B; ZOOLOGY; N CAROLINA STATE UNIVERSITY, FALBIGH, NORTH CAROLINA. 27650. Proj. No.: NC05379 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JAN 77 To 31 DEC 78

OBJECTIVES: Ctain fishery relationships to Burasian Watermilfoil. Ealuate "edge effect" of Burasian Watermilfoil control on recreation and commercial fishing..

APPROACE: This is a portion of an overall project with this title. In this portion, age, growth, feeding habits, and distribution of recreational fishes will be determined using standard fishery methods. Sampling will entail the use of various types of nets, seines, and rotenone. Samples will be taken at least quarterly and will be designed to detect differences which can be attributed to the presence or absence of watermilfoil. Standard water chemistry data will be taken at least quarterly and will be designed to detect differences which can be attributed to the presence of watermilfoil.

PROGRESS: 77/01 TO 78/12. The effects of water-milfoil (Myriophyllum spictaum) infestation on fish populations in Currituck Sound were studied, Rotenone samples of three coves before (1959-65) and after (1977) infestation indicated that both weight and number of fish per hectare increased after infestation, but that the average weight per individual decreased from $0.02\ 50\ 0.008\ kg$. The population structure changed, with ictalurids and yellow perch having the greatest increases in numbers and largemouth bass and white perch the greatest decreases. Ictalurids and centrarchids (other than bass) exhibited the greatest increases in weight per hectare, while largemouth bass and "other" fish showed the greatest decreases. Numbers of largemouth bass were not significantly different hetween pre-and post water-milfoil samples. A comparison of areas dense in milfoil with an area of Potomogetan suggested that no adverse effects on the fish populations could be attributed to milfoil.

PUBLICATIONS: 77/01 TO 78/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

003.078 CRISO068204 HELMINTE PARASITES OF VERTEBRATES IN NORTH CAROLINA

MILLER G C; ZOOLOGY; N CAROLINA STATE UNIVERSITY, RALEIGB, NCRTB CARCLINA. 27650. Proj. No.: NC03517 Project Type: HATCE Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 JUL 75 To 31 DEC 78

OBJECTIVES: Study the incidence and host parasite relationships of certian fish in estuaries and ponds of N. C. Augment our knowledge of the effect of environmental factors such as higher temperatures on incidence of parasites.

APPECACB: Fish will be collected in part in cooperation with other investigations of estuaries and ponds. After preliminary analyses for abundance and ecological interest certain parasites will be studied intersively by collection of their hosts. Analysis of incidence and pathological evidence will be used to evaluate the significance of the parasite to the bost.

PROGRESS: 75/07 TO 78/12. Information has been published on the incidence and seasonal distribution of caryophylaeid tapeworms in North Carolina freshwater fishes. Studies on unisexual and bisexual infections of Schistosoma mansoni have shown striking differences in the integument of the isolated female in unisexual infections as revealed by the scanning electron microscope. Maternal transmission of Pharyngostomcides procyonis, a trematode parasite of raccoons, has been documented and studies continue on the entire life cycle. The prevalence of dog heartworms in Wake, Durham, and Crange Counties, NC was studied in both privately-owned free-ranging dogs. Of 121 dogs examined, 37.7% were infected.

PUBLICATIONS: 75/07 TO 78/12

- GRIMES, L.R. and MILLER, G.C. 1975. Caryophyllaeid cestodes in the creek chubaucker, Erimyzon oblongus (Mitchill) in North Carolina. J. Parasit. 61:973-974.
- GRIMES, L.R. and MILLER, G.C. 1976. Seasonal periodicity of three species of caryophyllaeid cestodes in the creek chubsucker. Erimyzon oblongus (Witchill) in North Carolina. J. Parasit. 62:434-441.
- EVANS, T. Unisexual and bisexual infections of Schistosoma mansoni.
- MARSHALL, M. Digenetic trematodes of Ecuadorian bats.
- ROWLEY, B. The prevalence of heartworms in privately owned and free-ranging dogs in Wake, Durham, and Orange Counties, NC. M.S. Theses.

003.079 STUDY OF PATEOLOGY OF FISHES FROM LAKE BYCO, NORTH CAROLINA

NILLER G C; ZOOLOGY; N CAROLINA STATE UNIVERSITY, RALEIGB, NCRTH CARCLINA. 27650. Proj. No.: NC05419 Agency ID: SAES Period: 31 JUL 78 To 31 DEC 79

OBJECTIVES: Determine species, incidence, distribution, and seasonal effects of fish pahtology in Lake Hyco and determine if there are any seasonal effects on the fish diseases if present, evaluate the role of pathogens in the overall fish population of the lake, and recommended possible control methods if detrimental fish pathology is found.

APPROACH: Bass, bluegill, crappie, catfish, and other fishes of interest will be collected at previously established monitoring stations and will be examined for diseases. All pathogens will be identified when possible with special attention given to demaging forms. Species to be examined will be collected at each of four transects on a bi-weekly basis to determine if any diseases in the fish are affected by seasonal changes. Attempts will be made to keep some fish alive in the lab to see if heavy infections, if present, affect their behavior. The study will follow the customary guidelines of collection, preservation and identification.

PROGRESS: 78/06 TO 79/12. Four hundred and twenty three fishes of the families Centrarchidae, Percidae, Ictaluridae, and Clupeidae from Lake Hyco, NC were examined for pathology and parasitism. Thirty-one species of parasites were recovered including: 16 species of monogenetic and three species of digenetic trematodes; four species of cestodes; three species of nematodes; one species acanthocephalan; and four species of parasitic copepods. New host and locality records were noted for some of the parasites and host location within the lake was shown to affect the prevalence of some species and intensity of others. Bost sex was shown to affect the prevalence of one monogenean, and the mean intensities of a larval trematode and larval cestode in the bluegill. The behavioral differences between the sames during the reproductive season probably influences the recruitment of parasites. The digenean Posthodiplostomum minimum from the bluegill; the cestode plerocercoids of Proteocephalus sp.; and the nematodes, Spinitectus spp. were studied for seasonal distribution. Neither the incidence nor intensity of these parasites showed any significant seasonality. The green sunfish of and the channel catfish were also examined for periodicity of parasitism. Neither these bosts showed seasonality in Byco Lake. No definitive pathogenicity was noted in any of the host species as a result of parasitism,

PUBLICATIONS: 78/06 TO 79/12

DAY, S.P. 1978. Parasites of some fishes from Byco Lake, North Carolina. M.S. Thesis.

WHITENER, D.W. 1979. The seasonal distribution of parasites of somefishes from Byco Lake, North Carolina. N.S. Thesis. 003.080 SUSCEPTIBILITY TO I. MILTIFILLIS OF CHANNEL CATFISH EXPOSED TO SUBLETHAL CONCENTRATIONS OF COPPER 90

EWING S A; LWING M S; VETEFINARY PARASITOLCGY & PUE HITH; CALGHCMA STATE UNIVERSITY, STILLWATER, CKLAHGMA. 74C74. Proj. No.: OKLO1754 Agency ID: CSRS Period: U4 JUN 79 To 30 SEP 81

CBJECTIVES: A. Determine the infective dose of I, multifulis necessary to obtain reproduction. Determine the effect of exposure to sublethal concentrations of cooper sulfate on susceptibility of channel catfish fingerlings to I. multifullis infections produced in Cbjective A.

APPROACE: Ichthyophthirius will be maintained in the laboratory and experimental infections produced in channel catfish. Catfish fingerlings will be exposed to various concentrations of dissolved cooper. Fish will then be exposed to the infective cose of I. m. previously established and the variations in susceptibility to the parasite will be recorded and analyzed.

FaCGEESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Several field isolations of Ichthyophtbirius multifilis have been made and some of these bave been successfully passaged in channel catfish in the laboratory. We still have difficulty in maintaining any strain for more than 3 passages and our objective of standardizing exposure levels is still unrealized. Progress has been made toward establishing the LC 50 of Cu⁺⁺ for channel catfish. The influence of this toxicant on susceptibility to I. multifillis is under investigation.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

003.081 CFIS0010094 INFECTIOUS DISEASES OF SALMONID FISEES

FRYER J L; MICROBICLOGY; CREGCN STATE UNIVERSITY, CCFVALLIS, CFEGCN. 97331. Froj. No.: CEE00815 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JAN 66 To 02 SEP 81

OBJECTIVES: Complete the development of the IBN attentuated water borne viral vaccine; complete the work directed toward the detection and prevention of infectious pancreatic necrosis virus in salmonids; investigate the serological and immunological properties of the causative agent of bacterial kidney disease in salmonid fish; continue the diagnosis and study the epizootilogy of fish diseases emphasizing the viruses.

APPRCACE: Attentuation of the IEN virus vaccine strain is not complete. It is our intention to continue on with serial passage until maximum attentuation has occurred without detectable loss in antigenicity. The distribution of IPN virus on Oregon is now reasonably well understood. The remainder of the effort in this study will emphasize serological typing or grouping of these viruses, by cross neutralization and plaque reduction. We will determine the feasibility of developing either a bacterin or vaccine for the causative agent of hacterial kidney disease. This will be done by first examining isolates for serological differences. Secondly, determine if immunity to this agent is humoral, cellular or both. Finally, examine the antigen(s) of this organism which play a role in immunity. Disgnosis and epizootiology of infectious diseases of fish has been under continuous investigation by this research group since its inception and shall be contunued.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. It has been shown that two different antibody populations exist in the serum of byperimmune rainbow trout. These are a high molecular weight immunoglobulin (ENWIg) and a low molecular weight immunoglobulin (LMWIg). The EMWIg is a tetramer with a sedimentation coefficient of approximately 14S and a molecular weight of 620,000 daltons. The LMWIg has a sedimentation coefficient of 10S and molecular weight of 490,000. The amino acid composition of the two are different as are their iscelectric points. Renibacterium salmoninarum has been accepted as the nomenclature for the etiologic agent of bacterial kidney disease. Work concerning the physiology, serology and pathcgenicity of this organism is continuing. Selected isolates of Lactobacillus sp. which have been isolated from fish are being characterized. At present all these isolates appear to be closely related biochemically, but are different from other species of Lactobacillus and Lrysipelothrix. Cell wall and genetic composition of the isclates are being determined. A comparison of the factors responsible for the persistence of IPNV in three established cell lines from trout and salmon has been made. Viral persistence in all three cell lines is mediated by the production of defective interfering virus. Depending on the host cell species, additional factors such as interferon and virus resistant cell types may also contribute to the maintenace of viral persistence in vitro.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- O⁴LEARY, P.J. 1981. A Partial Characterization of Bigh and Low Wolecular Weight Immunoglobulin in Rainbow Trout (Salmo gairdneri). Pb.D. Thesis. Gregon State University, Corvallis, Oregon, 72 pp.
- BEDRICE, R.P. 1980. Persistent Infection of Salmonid Cell Lines with Infectious Pancreatic Necrosis Virus: A Model for the Carrier State in Trout. Ph.D. Thesis. Oregon State University, Corvallis, Oregon, 97 pp. SANDERS, J.E. and FRYER, J.L. 1980. Renibacterium
- SANDERS, J.E. and FRYER, J.L. 1980. Renibacterium salmoninarum Gen. Nov., sp. Nov., the Causative Agent of Eacterial Kidney Disease in Salmonid Fishes, Internatl. J. of Systemat

003.082 DIAGNOSIS OF FISE DISEASES CRIS0060650

FRYER J L; MICKOEIOLOGY; CREGON STATE UNIVERSITY, CORVALLIS, OREGON. 97331. Proj. No.: CAE00231 Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 70 To 01 JAN 99

OEJECTIVES: The purpose of this project is to provide diagnosis and treatment of infectious diseases of fish and inspection and certification of fish and fish eggs for interstate transport and import from and export to foreign countries.

APPROACH: See item No. 24.

PROGRESS: 79/01 TO 79/12. Service Project - no report required.

PUELICATIONS: 79/01 TC 79/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

003.083 CRISO078695 DETECTION OF PISCINE ERYTEROCYTIC NECEOSIS VIRUS IN OREGON FISHES

FRYER J L; MICROBIOLOGY; CREGON STATE UNIVERSITY, CORVALLIS, OREGON. \$7331. Proj. No.: CKE00051 BEALTE Agency ID: CSRS Period: 27 MAR 79 To 26 MAR 82

OBJECTIVES: Attempt to establish the distributuon of PENV within the State of Oregon. The geographical distribution will be determined, and the range of commercially important species of fish which become infected will be ascertained. The method of transmission will be studied to determined if the virus is passed vertically and/or horizontally. If the agent is transmitted horizontally, effort will be made to identify the reservoir(s) of infection. Studies concerning transmission will also include experiments to show whether selected important species of fish not found to be naturally infected are, in fact, susceptible to this virus. The development of more accurate and sensitive techniques for the detection of PENV and the exploration of methods for the artificial propagation of the virus will be examined.

APPROACH: Will use existing methods for detection of PENV, which includes examination of blood smears by light micorscopy, and new techniques may be developed during this project. Confirmation of the presence of the virus requires electron microscopic observation of the virions in blood samples. Detection of the disease state will also be accomplished by histopathological examination of tissues from fish. Preliminary experiments will concentrate on vertical transmission by examination of ovarian fluid and eggs from spawning adults.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. A survey was undertaken to determine the incidence of viral erythrocytic necrosis (VEN) among hatchery reared salmonids in the state of Oregon. Thirty-five different stocks of fish were examined. Included were steelhead trout (Salmo gairdneri), coho (Oncorhynchus kisutch), chum (O. keta), chinook (O. tshawytscha), and kokanee (O. nerka) salmor. Inclusion bodies typical of VEN were found in the red blood cells of fish from 9 of the 35stocks examined. Chum salmon were most heavily infected. Inclusion bodies were also detected in blood from coho and spring chinook salmon and steelhead trcut. This is the first report of natural infections of these three species. Progeny of selected populations of VEN infected adults were examined and cytoplasmic inclusions were fond in erythrocytes of chum and coho juveniles. This obserbation indicates that vertical transmission may be one method by which the virus is disseminated. Preliminary data indicates that this virus may be responsible for mortality in juvenile salmonid fish. Viral erythrocytic necrosis was also detected in a population of Pacific herring (Clupea harengus) which were being beld by commercial hait retailers.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

003.084 CFIS0076338 MICPOBIOLOGICAL ASSESSMENT OF RIVER WATER CONTAMINATION

LECNG J A; MICFOHICLOGY; OREGON STATE UNIVERSITY, CORVALLIS, OFEGON. 97331. Proj. No.: OFE00402 Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 APF 78 To 31 DEC 82

OBJECTIVES: Since 1973, there has been at least one major viral epizootic in Oregon fish hatcheries each year. This research proposal is concerned with the microbiological quality of the water released into the Oregon watershed after a viral epizootic and the potential impact of releasing this virus-containing water on the wildlife fed by this water.

APPEGACE: Determine the rate of virus survival in the field after an epizootic using the following methods: Hatchery effluent sampling and virus concentration by membrane filtration. Assay for virus infectivity in tissue culture. Develop more sensitive assays for infectious virus using known chemical enhancers of viral infectivity. Determine whether IBNV and IPNV can infect arimals other than Salmonid fishes and produce a disease state. Determine whether fish viruses may interact with other viruses to yield an attenuated viral strain or a strain which is now more infectious for other animals.

PEOGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. This project is concerned with the microbiological quality of the water released into the Oregon watershed from fish hatcheries during a viral epizootic and the impact of releasing this virus-containing water on the wildlife fed by this water. In the grant period 10-1-79 to 9-30-80 we made the following progress: We have extended our observations that infectious hematopoietic necrosis virus of salmonid fish can also grow in insect cells. The virus produces no change in the insect cell but large quantities of virus are released by the infected cell line. Thus, a possible insect reservoir for the virus may exist. We have also found that the virus that is produced by the insect cell line is altered in three of the five virion proteins. We are currently determining if the alteration in viral protein is due to a difference in the way the insect cell processes the viral protein or in the way the insect host selects for the replicating viral strain. The sensitivity of the assay for virus detection in tissue samples from diseased fish is dependent upon the cell line used in the assay. (See paper attached, submitted to J. Fish. Res. Ed. Can., 1980.) We have determined that UV-irridation of water can be used to reduce the titer of virus in that water by 1,000 fold.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- SCOTT, J., FENDRICK, J., and LECNG, J. 1980. Growth of infectious Hematopoletic Necrosis Virus in Mosquito and Fish Cell Lines. Wasmann J. of Hiology 38(1,2):21-29.
- HEDRICK, R.P., LEONG, J.C. and FRYER, J.L. 1981. Establishment and Naintenance of the Carrier State in Salmonids with Infectious Pancreatic Necrosis Virus in the Sixth FDA Symposium on Aquaculture. Human Services Publication. Ed.
- FRYER, J.L., MCCAIN, B.F. and LEONG, J.C. 1980. A Cell Line Derived fr om Kainbow Trout (Salmo gairdnert) Hepatoma. Froc. Jap. Soc. Fish Fathol. Tokyo.
- LEONG, J. and FKYER, J.L. 1980. Microbiological Assessment of River Water Contamination by Fish Hatchery Effluent. Office of Water Research and Technology Publication. WFRI 66, 43 pp.

003.085 CRISO075766 DEVELOPMENT OF A SUBUNIT VACCINE TO THE SALMONID VIRUS, HENV, HY NOLECULAR CLONING

LEONG J A; MICEOBIOLOGY; CREGCN STATE UNIVEFSITY, CORVALLIS, OREGCN. 97331. Proj. No.: ORE00094 Project Type: GFANT Agency ID: CSFS Period: 04 JUN 79 To 30 SEP 83

OBJECTIVES: The proposed research is aimed at developing an effective subunit viral vaccine for Infectious Hematopoietic Necrosis Virus (IENV). The gene sequence for the viral protein that induces a protective immune response in fish will be cloned by recombinant DNA technology. A practical and inexpensive method for producing large quantities of pure viral antigen will be developed.

APPEWACH: The IHN viral antigen that induces neutralizing antibody will be prepared as a vaccine. Since the preparation of a viral subunit vaccine from purified virus grown in a tissue culture system is costly, an inexpensive method for producing large quantities of pure viral antigen will be developed. The viral gene coding for the specific neutralizing viral antigen will be isoated and cloned in bacteria by recombinant DNA technology. A recombinant plasmid containing the desired viral gene in a mode expressible in bacteria will be selected and use to synthosize pure viral antigen in bacteria.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. The proposed research is aimed at developing an effective subunit viral vaccine for infectious hematopoletic necrosis virus (IENV). The specific aims for funding year 1980 were the isolation of the IBN viral antigen that induces neutralizing antibody in fish, characterization of this viral antigen, and comparison of viral antigens in different strains of IHNV. We have made the following progress: The glycoprotein virion component of IENV (Round Butte) has been purified and chracterized by SDS-polyacrylamide gel electrophoresis. The major glycoprotein component has an apparent molecular weight of 65,000. In addition, two bands running at 62,000 and 56,000 were also observed. These are apparently virion glycoprotein with fewer carbohydrate groups attached to the virion polypeptide. The glycoprotein component does very slightly between strains of IENV isolated from California, Alaska, Washington, and Oregon. Growth of IHNV is different piscine cell lines does lead to small differences in the glycoprotein migration pattern hy SDS-gel electrophoresis.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

LEONG, J. 1931. Strains of Infectious Hematopoletic Necrosis (IHN) Virus May be Identified by Structural Protein Differences. (Abstract). Symposium on Fish Biologics: Serodiagnostics and Vaccines. HSD, T., ENGELKING, H. M. and LEONG, J.C. 1981. Virion Protein Differences Among Strains of IENV. Submitted to J. Gen Virology.

003.086 CRISO069126 EISTOPATHOLOGIC AND EISTOCEEMICAL INDICES OF SUBLETHAL PESTICIDE TOXICATION IN FISH

ANTEONY A; NEFF W H; BIOLOGY; PENNSYLVANIA STATE UNIVERSITY, UNIVERSITY PAFK, PENNSYLVANIA 16802. Proj. No.: PEN02211 Project Type: BATCH Agency ID: CSES Period: 01 JUL 76 To 30 JUN 81

OBJECTIVES: Develop Histochemical bioassay methods of subletbal pesticide toxication in fish; investigate biochemical and physiological correlates of subletbal pesticide toxication in fish in relation to course of pathogenesis, survival potential and toxicant resistance.

APPEOACH: Fish will be exposed to sublethal concentration of four pesticides. Atrazine, Carbaryl, 2,4-D and Parathion. Acid and formalin exposure will serve as "stress toxicant" reference standards. Tissues from major organ systems will be analyzed using differential and histochemical staining procedures. sytometric and analytical cytophotogetric indices will be used as text parameters in evaluating the utility and sensitivity of histochemical methods for detecting sublethal pesticide toxication. Supplemental biochemical and physiological studies will also be undertaken to validate histochemical assays of pesticides and elucidate their mode of action.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Laboratory tests were conducted to investigate histopathologic and histochemical changes in various tissues of brook trout ('Salvelinus' 'fontinalis') exposed to sub-lethal dosages of the pesticides: atrazine carbaryl, parathion and 2,4-dichlorophenoxyacetic acid. Analytical histochemical methods were employed to provide measures of regulatory aspects of metabolism as well as end products of synthesis. Among the important contributions of the study was the demonstration that guantification of nucleic acid responses in specific hrain, liver, kidney and endocrine tissue compartments permits the detection of incipient stages of toxication and provides information on the pharmacological basis of toxicant induced pathogenesis. For example, it was found that with carbaryl toxication neoronal RNA levels were evaluated in the optic tectum and depressed in cerebellar Purkinje cells. With parathion toxication ENA was elevated in both cerebrocortical and cerebellar compartments. Thus, the higher toxicity of parathion stems from a generalized increase in excitability of brain neurons, whereas carbaryl appears to be more site-specific with respect to toxin-mediated impairment of neuronal functioning.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

ECBULARIE M. G. 1980. Comparative incidence of histopathology in white perch ('Eoccus americanus') and Atlantic tomcod ('Microgadus' 'tomcod') collected from water intake screens of Hudson river nuclear reactor plants. M.S. ANTHONY A., et al. 1980 Microspectrophotometric analyses of water toxicant induced changes in nucleic acid and mucopolysaccharide levels of Stannius corpuscle cells of brook trout. Proc. Pa. Acad. Sci. 54(1):109.

003.087 CRISO078243 DETECTION TEANSNISSION AND PATHOGENESIS OF DISEASE ORGANISMS IN AQUACULTURE SPECIES

CHANG P W; YATES V J; WOLKE R E; ANIMAL PATHOLOGY; UNIVERSITY OF RHODE ISLAND, KINGSTCN, FHCDE ISLAND. 02881. Proj. No.: FIOA413 Project Type: ANIMAL HEALTH Agency ID: CSES Period: 10 JAN 79 To 30 SEP 83 OBJECTIVES: Improve methods to detect and diagnose pathogenic microorganisms and parasites of fishes and selected native species of mollusca, and establish base line data on the role of feral fishes in the spread of diseases to cultured salmonids and other fishes.

APPROACH: Methods of diagnosis employed in human medicine, such as ELISA test, fluorescent antibody technique, lymphocyte transformation and counter-electrophoresis will be explored and adopted to the field of fish diseases. Surveillance of pathogenic agents among feral marine fishes by means of isolation and serological methods will be carried out. Also the pathogenesis and pathogenicity in salonid fishes of microorganisms isolated from feral fishes will be determined.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TC 80/12. Studies on the pathogenesis of gram negative bacterial infection in mammals have shown a generalized intravascular coagulation precipitated by bacterial endotoxin. In fist, changes characteristic of endotoxemia are not well studied. It is suspected that endotoxin could play a similar role in fish as in mammals. Preliminary experiments have been completed with goldfish and brook trout to test this hypothesis that endotoxin by itself is pathogenic in fish. The endotoxin from Salmonella typhisuris caused extensive necrotic lesions in the kidneys of goldfish. Further, these lesions were associated with fihrin microthromhi, a characteristic result of endotoxin induced disseminated intravascular coagulation. Injection of Yersinia ruckeri endotoxin killed goldfish within three days and caused necrosis in the kidney as a result of intravascular coagulation. The fish also displayed a sbock like condition analogous to endotoxin shock seen in mammals. Injection of Yersinia ruckeri and Pseudomonas fluorescens endotoxin also resulted in the death of brook trout. The total blood cell count, differential blood count, prothromhin time, fibrinogen concentration, serum complement concentration and histopathology will be carried out in fish with endotoxemia and compared with normal fish. The eticlogy of Hematopoietic neoplasm in soft-shelled clams, Mya arenaria has been studied. The causative agent appears to be a virus. Further work in transmission is being carried out.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

003.088 CRISO080305 DIAGNOSIS AND PATEOGENESIS OF DISEASES AND PARASITES IN MAJOE WOLLUSCAN AQUACULTURE SPECIES

DURFEE W K; WOLKE R E; ANIMAL PATHOLOGY; UNIVERSITY OF RECDE ISLAND, KINGSTCN, FECDE ISLAND. 02881. Proj. No.: RI00414 Froject Type: GRANT Agency ID: CSRS Period: 20 AFR 79 To 30 SEP 80

OBJECTIVES: Establish the natural of the causative agents of naturally occurring diseases of the: American oyster (Crassostrea virginica), hard clam or quahog (Mercenaria mercanaria), soft-shell clam (Mya arenaria), and bay scallop (Acquipecten irradians) in Rhode Island waters. Evaluate the interrelationship of environment and infectious agents in the etiology of diseasee of these species. Develop methods of diagnosis & prevention, & thereby control & possibly eradlacate specific diseases in these species.

APPROACH: Specimens representing natural populations of the candidate species will be obtained seasonally from selected areas. Samples area selection criteria will consist of water 6 bottom polution, shellfish population (kind, density, 6 age) 6 repeatability for sampling. New diagnostic techniques for aquatic diseases will be tested.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TC 80/12. Tissue samples of Aequipecten irradians, Crassostrea virginics, Mercenaria mercenaria, and Mya arenaria were examined for indications of the presence or absence of diseases and/or parasites. Shellfish samples from fcur natural populations were obtained in the Summer and Fall of 1979 and in Winter and Spring of 1980. Harvest sites were identified earlier; 75 specimens (when possible) were harvested at each site. Conclusions: 1) Mya arenaria harbor a tematopoietic neoplasm. Culture stocks should originate elsewhere. 2) Aequipecten irradians population is severely parasitized hy Trematodes, rickettsia-like organisms, and coccidians. 3) Crassostrea virginica was not heavily parasitized and the lack of two major diseases, "Dermo" and "MSX" would make this population a likely source for aquaculture. 4) Amorphous basophilic inclueions (ABI's) were found in Mercenaria mercenaria but with this exception this species was the least parasitized of the four studied. Cooperators in the Division of Fish and Wildlife, F.I. Department of Environmental Management played vital roles in identifying sites in F.I. estuaries from which culturable species of shellfish could be repeatedly sampled.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

003.089 ICETHYOPATHOLOGY

CRIS0059180

WOLKE R E; ANIMAL PATHOLOGY; UNIVERSITY CF RHODE ISLAND, KINGSTCN, RHCDE ISLAND. 02881. Proj. No.: RI00406 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 SEP 70 To 30 SEP 80

OBJECTIVES: fevelopment of a Histopathology Lahoratory offering diagnostic services to aquaculture projects. Use of lahoratory facilities to survey and study both naturally occurring and laboratory induced diseases of fish. Collection of normal and abnormal tissue sections from marine & fresh water fish to serve as source material for teaching and future research projects.

APPECACE: Collection of normal and diseased fish from private, state, federal and University aquaculture projects and from natural environments. Clinical, pathological, gross and histopathological examination of all specimens. Description and classification of all diseases processes.

PROGRESS: 70/09 TO 80/09. Since its inception in 1970, the Marine Pathology Laboratory (MPL) has assisted annually university, governmental, industrial, and private agencies in the diagnosis, treatment and prevention of fish and other aquatic animal disease problems. This service and other research projects has resulted in over 18,000 aquatic animal accessions as histopathologic paraffin hlocks and slides. The collection is filed as to morphologic lesion or etiology in an easily used retrieval system. In additon, there is an extensive collection of pross and histopathologic kodachromes similarly filed for teaching and research purposes. All necessary equipment for light and electron microscopic tissue preparation, measuremnt of immune response (electrophoresis, densitometry), isolation of pathogenic organisms and determination of blood chemical parameters has been acquired. The laboratory has the largest collection of normal and diseased fish tissue on the Eastern Seaboard. This collection is made available to visiting scientists.

PUBLICATIONS: 70/09 TO 80/09 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED FINAL REPORT PERIOD.

003.090 CRIS0073855 IDENTIFICATION OF SUB-OPTIMAL ENVIRONMENTAL PARAMETERS AFFECTING AQUACULTURE

WOLKE R E; DUNN J L; NEADE T L; ANIMAL PATHCLOGY; UNIVERSITY OF RHODE ISLAND, KINGSTON, RHODE ISLAND. 02851. Proj. No.: RI00412 Agency ID: CSRS Period: 07 NOV 77 To 01 OCT 81

CBJECTIVES: wount a multidisciplinary approach to the elucidation of sub-optimal environmental parameters responsible for inefficient growth, poor reproduction and increased disease incidence in aquaculture production system. Identification and clarification of these critical parameters will be followed by appropriate investigation of remedial measures.

APPROACE: Initial effort will be restrictive and designed to develop tests capable of indicating early stress in the fish, develop tests capable of measuring early suppression of piscine immune response, and investigate the actual effect of altered water and nutritional factors thought to be protective or advantageous to fish in closed systems.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. The cellular and humoral components of the fishes immune system are well developed and reflect environmental alterations. Further, they are probable sensitive indicators of sub-optimal parameters affecting fish culture. To this end, during 1980, we expanded our testing battery by developing the methodology and capabilities to measure the following immune indicators of stress and increased susceptibility in finfish: Cellulose electrophoresis, Gel electrophoresis, Agglutination, Precipitation, Serumlysozymes, Bemolytic plaque, NIF, Macrophage Phagocytic index, Serum Fe and Fe binding capacity, Immuno florescence, Immuno electrophoresis.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

003.091* CRIS0070455 ANALYSIS OF PREDATION OF MERCENARIA MERCENARIA BY DECAPOD CRUSTACEANS

EVERSOLE A G; ENTOMOLOGY 6 ECONOMIC ZCCLOGY; CLEMSON UNIVERSITY, CLEMSCN, SCUTH CAEOLINA. 29631. Proj. No.: SCO0205 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 76 To 30 SFP 80

OBJECTIVES: Determine the predators (i.e. decapod crustaceans) of seed clams; determine the important factors influencing predation; investigate alternate methods for controlling predation; and evaluate these methods in pllot culturing systems.

APPRCACH: Collecting potential predators and evaluate stomach contents; examining rates of predation by principal predators under controlled laboratory conditions when variables such as size of prey and predators are altered, water temperature is varied and different substrate composites are used; and finally, to test prospective methods of reducing predation in field conditions.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TC 80/09. Mercenaria mercenaria maintained in protected trays provided estimates of annual mortality rates for clams 3-5 and 1-5.5 years of age. Clams 3-5 years old averaged 51.12 mm SL (range, 31.6-72.2 mm) at planting and 58.53 mm SL (38.0-74.7 mm) two years later. Clams 1-5.5 years old starting at 24.74 mm SL (11.7-35.3 mm) reached 64.45 mm SL (50.1-78.0 mm) after 4.5 years growth. Annual mortality rates without predation were 1.43% and 1.98% for clams age 3-5 and 1-5.5, respectively.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/09 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

003.092 CRIS0074335 CULTURE AND MANAGEMENT OF SELECTED GAME FISHES

WILSON J L; FORESTRY & WILDLIFE; UNIVERSITY OF TENNESSEE, ENOXVILLE, TENNESSEE. 37916. Proj. No.: TEN00521 Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 CCT 77 To 30 SEP 81

OBJECTIVES: Develop new management techniques and cultural methods for improving yields of game fishes in Tennessee waters by: Evaluating the feasibility of using selected non-native (exotic) species and/or hybrid fishes, and improved fish habitat management practices.

APPROACH: Ponds, raceways, and other holding facilities will be constructed to evaluate the potential of such fish as grass carp, mirror or other carps, tilapia, striped bass, hybrid sunfish, hybrid catfish, and other non-native species. Monospecific culture of selected fishes will be compared to polycultural techniques to determine production (kg/hectare). The use of different stocking rates fertilization practices, and supplemental feeds will be evaluated as management practices. Culture techniques for hybrid sunfish and other selected species will be determined and their potential for use in pond environments will be assessed. New management techniques for improving yields in game fish populations by habitat manipulation will be assessed. Research problems would include the evaluation of the effects of aquatic vegetation control on fish production; the effects of aquatic pesticides on yield of game fishes in ponds, streams, and reservoirs; the identification and control of fish parasites and diseases in game fishes; and the evaluation of biological agents as biofilters of waste materials in aquatic systems.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Data collection for two pond studies were completed and the data are being analyzed. In one study, over 250 Florida largemouth bass have been tagged and released in two different impoundments. All were weighed and measured; scales were removed to determine age composition of the population. In the second study, fingerling striped bass were stocked in two small impoundments to determine survival and growth. To date, 47 young-of-year and yearlings have been collected; indications are that survival is directly related to fingerling size and data of stocking. In a two-year investigation to determine food habits, movements, and general life history of striped bass, approximately 400 fish have been collected. Preliminary analyses indicate young-of-year striped bass utilize zoo plankton, principally midge larvae, as the primary source of food for some time subsequent to stocking. There is evidence of similar food habits for white bass, leading to the assumption of interspecific competition. A study has been initiated to evaluate the effects of fish attractors in Norris Lake.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

MINTON, J.W. 1980. Bioenergetics of Sauger in Watts Bar Reservoir, Tennessee. M.S. Thesis. The University of Tennessee, Knoxville. 75 pp.
WADDLE, B.S., COUTANT, C.C. and WILSON, J.L. 1980. Summer Habitat Selection by Striped Bass, Morone samatilis, in Cherokee Reservoir, Tennessee, 1977. Orrl Env. Sci. Publ. No. 1360. 195 pp.

003.093 CFIS0070519 ADAPTATION FACTORS AND CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS

NEWTON F J; MARTYN R D; PLANT SCIENCE; TEXAS ASM UNIVERSITY, COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS. 77843. Proj. No.: TEX06225 Project Type: STATE Agency iD: SAES Period: 30 APR 77 To 05 APR 81

CEJECTIVES: Investigate environment stress factors on the growth and development of aquatic weeds. Determine biomass production, distribution, and life cycles of aquatic weeds. Determine adaptation characters (morphological and physiological) of aquatic woeds to wet-dry, cold-hot and photoperiodic cycles. Determine effectiveness and mode of action of herbicides and growth regulators for aquatic weed control.

APPROACB: Aerial photographs of lakes Livingston and Conroe will be taken monthly by the Remote Sensing Center to monitor growth and distribution of aquatic weeds. Measurement of temperature, oxygen content, light intensity, nutrient levels will be determined the day after photographs are taken. Perennating organ development effected by environmental stress factors will be monitored quantitatively, and roles of light, temperature, nutrients, herbicides, and growth regulators on development will be investigated under laboratory conditions.

PROGRESS: 79/01 TO 79/12. Research has been conducted along 3 avenues this past year. First, the separation and concentration of phenol storing cells (phe) from materhyacinth leaves and the chrometographic identification of the phenolic acids (pa) within. We believe these cells are responsible, in part, for the high degree of disease resistances found in waterhyacinth. The second major avenue has been in the use of remote sensing data for mapping the aquatic vegetation in Lake Conroe Reservoir. The base line vegetation map has been made and the vegetation levels will be monitored quarterly over the next two years in an effort to determine the efficiency of the grass carp as a biological control agent. The third line of research has involved the interaction of sugars and dormancy in duckweed. Differences in the levels of the trisaccharide, raffinose were associated with the breaking of dormancy with cold treatments.

PUELICATIONS: 79/01 TO 79/12

- CODY, Y.S. 1979. Separation of intact phenol cells from waterhyacinth leaves, characterization of their phenolic content and the effect of some phenolic acid on two potential biocontrol agents. N.S. Thesis, Texas A and M Univ., College Station
- CODY, Y.S. and MARTYN, R.D. 1979. Separation of phenol cells from waterbyacinths and the effect of some phenolic acids on the growth of two potential biocontrol agents. Phytopathology 69:1025.
- SHELTON, D.R. 1979. The effect of sugars on turion germination and growth of Spirodela polyrhiza (L.) Schleiden. W.S. Thesis, Texas A and M Univ., College Station. 86 p.

003.094* CRIS0083473 PRELIMINARY STUDIES ON CRAWFISH AND FRESHWATER SERIMP DISBASES

SIS & F; LEWIS D H; LEE B J; VETERINARY ANATOMY; TEXAS A&M UNIVERSITY, COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS. 77843. Proj. No.: TEX06531 Project Type: ANIMAL HEALTH

Agency ID: CSRS Period: 04 MAR 81 To 03 MAR 82

OBJECTIVES: The objectives are to assess the effects of water hardness on shell calcium content, shell morphology and colonization of chitinoclastic bacteria on Procambarus sp. and Macrobrachium rosenbergil and characterize the hemocytes of Procambarus sp. (crawfish) and correlate types with water hardness.

APPROACH: Percent shell calcium content will be determined from atomic absorption analysis. Shell morphology will be described by scanning electron microscopy and electron X-ray micropobe analysis. Colinization of bacteria will be quantified using standard bacteriologic techniques. Hemocytes will be histologically identified and enumeration studies will be done with a Coulter Counter.

003.095 CRIS0074988 MICROBIAL AND PARASITIC DISEASES OF SHRIMP AND FISE

LEWIS D H; VETERINARY NICRCBICLOGY; TEXAS A&M UNIVERSITY, COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS. 77843. Agency ID: CSVM-0500 Period: 01 SEP 77 To 31 AUG 79

OBJECTIVES: The project is part of a coordinated program directed toward commercial development and quality assurance for the shrimp industry in the United States. Identify and determine drug susceptibility of bacteria associated with fish kills and disease problems of cultured shrimp determine uptake, persistence and host response of laboratory shrimp to select pathogenic bacteria and virus.

APPROACH: Cultured shrimp will be examined for pathogenic bacteria, gill parasites and virus. Antibiotics will be studied with regard to stability in water and food, uptake by aborption and by cral routes and tissue half life. Pathogens isolated from shrimp will be subjected to antibiotic susceptibility.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. The project was designed to enhance capabilities for controlling health problems of cultured shrimp and fish. One phase of the project was directed toward developing cell culture methods which would be useful in screening for viral agents. A primary cell culture technique, based upon the cultivation of shrimp cardiac tissue was developed and will be used in conjunction with electron microscopic and serologic techniques to screen for viral agents in suspect tissues. Another phase of the project related to studying the immune response of shrimp. Shrimp exposed to Vibrio anguillarum developed hemolymph bacteriolysins 24-48 hors after exposure. The bacteriolysin titers persisted for 5 days. As bacterolysin titer diminished, phagocytic activity increased. The enhanced phagocytic activity following stimulation by the vibrio bacteins persisted for at least 4 weeks.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 10 80/12

- LLOBRERA, A.T. 1980. Antibiotic Administration by Osmostic Infiltration in Fresh Water Shrimp, Macrobrachium rosenbergli. W.S. Thesis. Texas A and M University, College Station. 31 pp. BENDERSON, A.A., STICKNEY, R.R. and LEWIS, D.E.
- 1980. Immune Bypersensitivity in Intensively Maintained Tilapia Species. Transactions of the American Fisheries Society 103:244-247. CANNON, N.S., MOLLENHAUER, E.H., EUGELL, T.E.,
- LEWIS, D.H., CANNON, A.W. and THOMFKINS, C. 1980. An Ultrastructural Study of the Leukocytes of the Channel Catfish, Ictalurus punctatus. Journal of Morphology 164:1-23.
- CANNON, W.S., CANNON, A.W., EURELL, T.E. and LEWIS, D.H. 1980. An Ultrastructural Localization of Peroxidase Activity in Neutrophilic Leukocytes of Ictalurus punctatus. Can. Journal of Zoology 58:1139-1143.

003.096 CRIS0078514 DISEASE MANAGEMENT IN CULTURED CATFISE

LEWIS D 8; VETERINARY MICROBICLCGY; TEXAS A6M UNIVERSITY, COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS. 77843. Proj. No.: TEX06388 Project Type: ANIMAL HEALTH Agency ID: CSES Period: 01 MAR 79 To 30 SEP 81

OBJECTIVES: Identify early warning indicators of environmental stress asses role of environmental deterioration on uptake and persistence of bacteria involved in septicemia, identify factors associated with pathology of bacterial septicemia in cultured catfish .

APPEOACH: Catfish will be temperature acclimated and exposed to ammonia at concentrations associated with chronic toxicity. The fish will be necropsied at warious time intervals, serum samples analyzed for cortisol and for protein alterations, tissues examined by light and scanning electron microscopy and histochemistry, acclimated fish will be exposed to bacteris and tissues monitored by culturing tissues and fluorescent antibody techniques. and assessment will be made of histopathologic changes in target tissues.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. The role of mucus in protecting catfish against Ichthyophthirius multifilis and columnaris was studied. Catfish were immunized to killed cysts and immature trophozoites by bath imersion technique. At timed intervals afterwards, mucus was removed from the fish and tested for specific antibody by indirect immunofluorescence techniques. Mucus antibody was detected 4 days after exposure. Specific mucus antibody was detected within 48 hr after antigenic exposure in fish that had been previously immunized. Mucus antibody to Flexibacter columnaris could not be demonstrated consistently.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERICD.

003.097 CRIS0079787 DISEASE MANAGEMENT IN CATFISE AQUACULTURE

LEWIS D H; VETERINARY MICROBIOLOGY; TEXAS ASM UNIVERSITY, COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS. 77843. Proj. No.: TEX06421 Project Type: GRANT Agency ID: CSRS Period: 04 JUN 79 To 30 SEP 82

OBJECTIVES: Identify early warning idicators of environmental stress. Identify factors associated with host susceptibility and pathology of bacterial hemorrhagic septicemia in cultured catfish. Develop and evaluate countermeasures for reducing the incidence of bacterial hemorrhage septicemia in cultured catfish.

APPROACH: Fish will be exposed to conditions of temperature and ammonia stress and an effort made to identify early waring indicators of stress by monitoring for alterations in hematologic and blood chemistry parameters and for tissue changes as revealed by light, scanning and and transmission electronmicroscopy. Bacterial isolates will be subjected to antigenic analysis and screened for presence of plasmids in an attempt to identify microbial factors associated with pathogenicty of the agents. Fish will be exposed to agents under various conditions of stress and appropriate histologic and biochemical parameters monitored to identify factors associated with host susceptibility to the bacteria. An effort will be made to demonstrate value of immunization in protecting catfish against bacterial infections.

PECGRESS: 80/01 TC 80/12. Research activities were primarily oriented toward: (a) defining blood cells associated with bost defense mechanisms and (b) developing an improved technique for detecting early stages of infection in the catfish. Ultrastructural studies conducted on the leukocytes revealed the presence of heterophils (neutrophils), small lymphocytes, monocytes and thrombocytes. Esoinophils and basophils were not observed. Glycogen, present in all leukocytes, is most abundant in heterophils and less abundant in monocytes. Heterophils possess oval or elongate granules which often contain a crystalline or striated structure, small tubules which resemble smooth endoplasmic reticulum, and cristae which traverse the long axes of mitochondria. Cytoplasmic granules of the beterophils exhibit peroxidase activity at light and electron microscopic levels. The presence of perioxidase-positive granules in the neutrophil serve as a marker for identification of the cell and indicate antibacterial and phagocytic functions for this cell.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- BENDERSON, A.A., STICKNEY, R.B. and LEWIS, D.H. 1980. Immune Hypersensitivity in Intensively Maintained Tilapia Species. Transactions of the American Fisheries Society. 108:244-247.
- CANNON, N.S., MOLLENHAUER, H.H., EURELL, T.E., LEWIS, D.H., CANNON, A.M. and THOMPEINS, C. 1980. An Ultrastructural Study of the Leukocytes of the Channel Catfish, Ictalurus punctatus. Journal of Morphology 164:1-23.
- CANNON, M.S., CANNON, A.N., EURELL, T.E. and LEWIS, D.H. 1980. An Ultrastructural Localization of Peroxidase Activity in Neutrophilic Leukocytes of Ictalurus punctatus. Canadian Journal of Zoology 58:1139-1143.
- LEWIS, D.H. 1981. Enzyme Labelled Antibody Microscopy for Differentiating Enteric Redwouth from Motile Aeromonas Septicemia. Canadian Journal of Fisheries and Aquatic Sciences 38. In Press.
- NARKS, J.E., LEWIS, D.B. and TREVINO, G.S. 1980. Nixed Infection in Columnaris Disease of Fish. JAVNA 177:811-814.

003.098 CRIS0063404 MICROBIAL DISEASES AND INMUNE RESPONSE OF CATFISE

LEWIS O H; GRUMBLES L E; BIDALGO R J; VETERINARY MICROBIOLOGY; TEXAS A&M UNIVERSITY, COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS. 77843. Proj. No.: TEX06011Project Type: EATCBAgency ID: CSRSPeriod: 13 DEC 76 To 30 NCV 81

CBJECTIVES: Investigate causes of mortality associated with catfish culture in Texas, evaluate the effect of temperature and ammonia concentration on humoral and cellular immunity and susceptibility of catfish to eelect microhial diseases of catfieh. Field test an aeromonas vaccine.

APPEGACB: Fish and water samples from areas where disease episcdes occure will be eubjected to laboratory analysis using techniques applicable to diagnosing fish diseases. Fulfill objective 2, circulating antihody componente will be monitored using quantitative immunoelec trophoresie and emmunocompetent cells monitored by immunocy to adherence techniques. In immune and non-immune fish being maintained at various temperatures and concentrations of ammonia. Serologic and lethal dose-response measurements will be made on experimental fish maintained under those conditions and exposed to infectious agents. Objective 3 will involve preparation and evaluation of vaccine through cooperative efforts with state and other select hatchery facilities.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Catfish possess a well developed immune eystem, and protective antihodies to a variety of potentially serious pathogens can be elicited. Studiee on antibody production and the general nature of immune responsee reveal that catfish are immunocompetent at 2 weeks of age and that antibodies to a single administration of Aeromonas hydrophila bacterin persist for at least 12 weeks. Catfish are susceptible to infection with Yersinia ruckeri, the causative agent of enteric redmouth disease of salmonids. Infection of catfish with the agen results in a disease resembling motile aeromonas septicemia. A technique for rapid detection of the agent based upon immuneerzyme microscopy was developed.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- MARKS, J.E., LEWIS, D.E. and TREVINO, G.S. 1980. Mixed Infection in Columnaris Disease of Fish. JAVMA 117:811-814.
- MARKS, J.E. 1980. Lumunization of Largemouth Bass to Columnaris (Flexibacter Columaris). N.S. Thesis, Texas ASN University, College Station, 85 pp.
- BENDERSON, ARZAPALO, A., Stickney, R.R. and LEWIS, D.H. 1980. Immune Hypersensitivity in Intensively Maintained Tilapia Species. Transactions of the American Fisheriee Society 109:244-247.
- CANNON, M.S., MOLLENBAUER, B.B., EURELL, T.E., LEWIS, D.B., CANNON, A.M. and IBOMPKINS, C. 1980. An Ultrastructural Study of the Leukocytes of the Channel Catfish, Ictalurus Functatus. Journal of Morphology 164:1-23.
- CANNON, M.S., CANNON, A.M., FURELL, T.E. and LEWIS, D.B. 1980. An Ultrastructural Localization of Peroxidase Activity in Neutrophilic Leukocytes of Ictalurus Punctatus. Canadian Journal of Zoology 58:1139-1143.

003-099 CRIS0065145 PATHOLOGY ANE FATBOGENESIS OF CATFISE DISEASES

CAMP B J; VETERINARY PATBOLOGY; TEXAS A&M UNIVERSITY, COLLEGE STATICN, TEXAS. 77843. Proj. No.: TEX06032 Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 07 FEB 75 To 30 SEP 80

OBJECTIVES: Define the pathogenesis of channel catflsh virus disease, collahorate with other workers by making pathological analyses of diseased catflsh used in experiments on the effects and nature of hacterial infections (ex: Aeromonas liquefaciens) (Department of Veterinary Microbiology) and toxic chemicals or water pollutants (Department of Veterinary Physiology and Pharmacology), and investigate through pathologic procedures the nature and cause of spontaneoue diseases of pond-reared and wild catflish in collaboration with other researchers studying diseases of catflish. APPROACH: Bistological, electron-microscopic and immunopathologic technique will be used to investigate the nature of the lesions, the pattern of their development and their modification in experiments involving manipulation of the age of the fieh, enviromental temperature and immunological status of the fish. Fish infected experimentally with disease-producing hacteria, toxic chemicale or dying from unknown causes will be examined by eelected pathologic techniques to define the nature of the disease produced, such data derived from thie work heing recorded and used in originating and/or made available for planning and implementing other experimente in catfish diseases.

PROGRESS: 78/01 TO 78/12. Immature catfish were fed a diet containing Sh(2)O(5) at a level of 2000 ppm for 56 days to study the uptake and distribution of Sb. Then the fish were fed an Sb free diet for 28 days to measure the rate of elimination of Sb from body fluids and tissues. The following mean concentrations of Sb for certain tissues were as followe for the 56 and 28 day periods, respectively: liver, 90 and 53 ppm; kidneye, 3.7 and 3.0 ppm; ekeletal muscle, 1.5 and 1.0 ppm; epleen, 1.8 and 2.7 ppm. Packed cell volume of the fieh decreased during the ingestion of Sb and the PCV returned to normal valuee during the elimination phase of the etudy. There was an increase in the average weight of the spleen of catfish fed the Sb(2)O(5).

PUBLICATIONS: 78/01 TO 78/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

003.100 CRIS0070377 Mode of Action and Influence of Environmental factors on the Toxicity of Several Aquatic Erreicides

HATZIOS K K; HATZICS K K; PLANT PATBOLOGY 6 PHYSIOLOGY; VIRGINIA POLY INST, BLACKSEURG, VIRGINIA. 24061. Proj. No.: VA-0612269 Agency ID: CSES Period: 01 JUL 76 to 30 JUN 81

OBJECTIVES: The effects of temperature, pE, light, bicarbonate ions and algal cell densities on the performance of chelated cupric ions, diquat, diuron, simazine, and combinations of these aquatic herbicides will be examined. The mode of action of the herbicides at cellular and sub-cellular levels will be studied to facilitate comprehension of aherrations in physiological functions of plants exposed to the compounds.

APPROACH: Since these compounds are inhibitors of photosynthesis, photosynthesis and growth of Chlorella sorokiniana and electron transport in isolated chloroplasts will be used to determine toxicity. The possibility of chlorophyll degradation by these herbicides and the role of photosensitized reactions in this destruction will be examined. Attempts will be made to determine active and non-active site binding of the herbicide molecules and their influence on lipid peroxidation.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. The work on the mode of action of the 1,3,4-thiadiazolyl herbicidal derivatives was completed and a summary of that work was presented in the fifth international congress on photosynthesis during last summer. From that work it wae concluded that photosynthesis is the main metabolic process inhibited by these herbicides in plante. R-25788 (N, N-diallyl-2,2-dichloroacetamide) is a chemical used commercially to protect corn (Zea mays L.) from injury caused by the thiocartamate herbicides EPIC and butylate. Our knowledge on the mode of action of the antidote R-25788 is limited. It has been proposed that R-25788 increases the rate of metabolism of these herbicides in corn. Indirect evidence to support this hypothesis was obtained in our studies initiated this past summer in the greenhouse. The herbicide tebuthiruon resembles etructurally a group of chemicals known ae 1,2,3-benzothiadiazoles, which are strong inhibitors of metabolic enzymes called mixed-function oxidases. Mixed-function oxidases have been implicated in catalyzing the oxidation of the sulfur atom of the thiocarbamate herbicides in corn. Growth responses of corn seedlings treated with combinations of tubeuthuron and EPTC or Butylate in the presence of the antidote R-25788, were indicative of synergistic interactions of these chemicals. Thus, it appeared that R-25788 may act by increasing the activity of the mixed function oxidase system that sulfoxidizes EPTC and butylate in corn.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

HATZIOS, K.K. 1981. Synergistic Interactions of Tebuthiuron with Eradicane (EPIC + R-25788) and Sutan + (Buthlate + R-25788) and Its Implications on the Wode of Action of the Herbicide Antidote R-25788. Abstracts Weed Sci. Soc. of

003.101 CFIS0043655 PHYSIOLOGICAL STUDIES OF AQUATIC AND DITCE BANK WEEDS IN THE PACIFIC NORTHWEST

MARQUIS L Y; USDA-ARS WEED CONTEOL FES; IRFIGATED AGRIC RES & FIT CNTR, PROSSER, WASHINGTON. 99350. Proj. No.: 5506-20280-004 Project Type: INBOUSE Agency ID: ALS Period: 04 FEE 77 To 04 FEB 82

OBJECTIVES: Lefine various aspects of the physiology and biochemistry of aquatic and marginal plants and their control to assist in devising new and improved methods for managing such vegetation without undue impact on the environment.

APPROACH: Study the absorption, translocation, and metabolism of reed canarygrass and creeping red fescue to help define and manipulate susceptibility and resistance between the two species, Assay soil and/or plant material qualitatively and quantitatively for allelopathic compounds and isolate and characterize these substances. Determine nutrient requirements of sago pondweed and related species and the relative importance of roots and foliage for absorption.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. The molecular fate of 1 4C-fluridone was examined in two hydrosoils (extracted from local irrigation canals) and in the water above those soils. During the course of the experiment an average of 10% of the total 1 4C applied to the soils desorbed into the water. Seven months after treatment 86 to 93% of the radloactivity in the water comprised one acidic metabolite (the only fluridone metabolite detected in this study). This compound was purified by solvent fractionation, thin layer chromatography and high performance liquid chromatography and characterized by mass spectrometry. Based on comparison with an authentic standard the metabolite was identified as 1,4-dihydro-1-methyl-4-oxo-5-(3-(trifluoremethyl)phenyl)-3- pyridine carboxylic acid. This metabolite was also found tightly bound to both soils and accounted for about 60% of the total 1 4C in each soil after 12 months. The remainder of the 1 4C in the soils was either fluridone (approximately 30%) or an undefined insoluble residue (approximately 10%). The distribution and fate of 2,4-D was examined in greenhouse-grown 'Concord' grape plants. One mature leaf of each plant was treated with 1 Mul of 1000 ppm test of test prime is the state of the stat absorbed by the treated leaves had moved into the portion of the shoots above these leaves but basipetal translocation was negligible.

```
PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12
MARQUIS, L.Y., COMES, R.D. and YANG, C.P. 1979.
Selectivity of Glyphosate in Creeping Ked Fescue
and Reed Canarygrass. Weed Res. 19:335-342.
```

003.102 CFIS0072335 EFFECTS OF ANTIMYCIN ON STREAM INSECTS

EILSENHOFF W L; ENTOMOLOGY; UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN, MADISON, WISCONSIN. 53706. Proj. No.: WISO2303 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 74 To 31 DEC 78 OBJECTIVES: Determine acute toxicity of antimycin to about 50 common species of stream insects. Determine effects of pH and temperature on rates of mortality caused by antimycin. Determine chronic effects of antimycin on emergence of stoneflies, mayflies, and caddisflies. Study effects of antimycin in a stream treated by Department of Natural Resources personnel to eliminate rough fish.

APPROACE: Initial toxicity experiments will he carried out at concentrations of 1, 10, 100, and 1000 parts per billion (ppb) in 5 liter polyethylene containers and compared to a control. Final replicated tests will be run at twofold dilutions within the range of 0 to 100% mortality. Tests will be conducted at 2[°]C or 20[°]C at pE 8.0 or pE 7.0 with mortality recorded over a 5-day period. Effects of treatment of the Rock River will be studied by sampling benthos in treated and untreated sections before and after treatment. Drift samples in treated and untreated sections will be compared.

PROGRESS: 78/01 TC 78/12. The toxicity of antimycin to 38 species of Wisconsin stream insects was evaluated in static, aerated bioassays utilizing antimycin exposures typical of stream treatments used to kill fish. Several species of Trichoptera, Ephemeroptera and Plecoptera were very sensitive to fish killing concentrations of antiycin (EC-50 less than 50 pph). Beetles (Psephenus herrickl, Optioservus fastiditus, Stenelmis crenata, Helichus striatus), dragonfly nymphs (Neurocordula molesta, Gomphurus vastus), damselfly nymphs (Argia apicalis), fishfly larvae (Nigronia serricornis), and snipe fly larvae (Atherix variegata) were relatively unaffected by antimycin (EC-50 greater than 1,000 pph). Early instars of Tipula spp. and Ephemerella sp. were more sensitive to antimycin than later instars. Exposure to antimycln produced greater mortality at 19 degrees C than at lower temperatures in several species, even though exposure times were reduced at the higher temperature. Post-exposure observations indicated mortality may be delayed more than five days, particularly at reduced temperatures. Large differences in antimycin sensitivity were found for different species belonging to the same family (hydropsychid caddisflies, perlid stoneflies). Emergence of several species of stream insects was reduced or prevented by exposure of the mature larvae or nymphs to sublethal concentrations of antimycin.

PUBLICATIONS: 78/01 TO 78/12

 KOTILA, P.M. 1978. Effect of antimycin on stream insects in field and laboratory trials. Ph.D. Thesis, Univ. of Wisconsin-Madison. 107pp.
 KOTILLA, P.M. and BILSENBOFF, W.L. 1978. Effects of antimycin on stream insects. Wis. Water Resources Center Tech. Rep. 78-05, 55pp.

003-103 CRIS0044499 HIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF WEEDS WITH PATHOGENS

CORDO H A; DELOACH C J; CEARUDATTAN R; BIGICGICAL CONTROL OF WEED LAB, HURLINGEAM, AEGENTINA. Proj. No.: 0420-20263-003 Project Type: INHCUSE Agency ID: ARS Period: 19 MAY 78 To 19 NAY 83

OBJECTIVES: Control the aquatic weed waterhyacinth in the United States by the use of plant pathogens introduced from South America.

APPROACE: In cooperation with the Dept. of Plant Pathology, Univ. of Florida, collect tellospores of the rust Uredo eichhorniae from waterhyacinth in the field, search for alternate hosts of this and other rusts from Pontederiacea, correlate rust density in the field with climatic factors, locate epicenters of U. eichhorniae, and determine the cross-infectivity and host range of U. eichhorniae and of Uromyces pontederiae from Pontederia. Spores of U. eichhorniae will be sent to the quarantine facility at the Univ. of Florida for further testing.

PROGRESS: 79/01 TC 79/12. Ecological studies continued on the plant pathogenic rust, Uredo eichhorniae on waterhyacinth and the araujia mosaic virus on Araujia and Morrenia odorata. The geographic range and seasonal abundance was measured in

different climatic ureas of Argentina.

PUELICATIONS: 79/01 TO 79/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

003.104 CRISOJ41269 BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF WEEDS

DELOACH C J; BICLOGICAL CONTROL OF WEED LAE, HURLINGMAM, AFGENTINA. Froj. No.: 0420-20263-002 Project Type: INHOUSE Agency ID: AFS Period: 15 JUL 74 Tc 08 WAF 82

OBJECTIVES: Find, test, and evaluate the natural enemies of weeds of rangelands, row crops, and aquatic environments that can be used to control weeds of importance in the United States.

APPEOACH: Locate stands of rangeland, row-crop, and aquatic weeds in South America, and collect the insects and other organisms damaging the plants. Evaluate the impact of these organisms on the plants, and determine their life cycles, ecologies, and host ranges. Obtain stocks of suitable natural enemies free from parasites and pathogens and ship them to the United States as needed.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Rangeland weeds: Eiological testing began on 3 insects to control broowweed (Gutierrezia), an aegeriid moth Carmenta sp., a weevil Helipus mesedozencis, and a buprestid beetle Dactylozodes sp. Testing began on a lepidopterous bark feeding larva for control of whitebrush (Aloysia gratissima). Aquatic weeds: Testing was completed on the flea beetle Disonycha argentinensis to control terrestrial alligatorweed. A cold-hearty strain of the alligatorweed fleabeetle, Agasicles hydrophila, was shipped to the U.S. Insects parasites: Parasites of Plusia sp. and the fall armyworm were shipped to the U.S. Dung beetles: Ten promising species of scarab beetles were collected for controlling livestock dung. Plant germplasm: A total of 457 accessions of several species and many races of dallisgrass (Paspalum sp.) were shipped to the U.S.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 DELOACE, C.J., D.J. DELOACE, and B.A. CCEDC.

Observations on the Noth, Samea multiplicalis, on Waterlettuce in Argentina. J. Aquatic Plant Manage. 17(1) (1979):42-44.

003.105 CRIS0044705 ORGANISMS ASSOCIATED WITH AQUATIC WEEDS AND THE HIGLOGICAL CONTROL WATER-HYACINTE IN EGYPT

FAYAD Y B; CENTER I D; MINISTRY OF AGRICULTURE, CAIRO, EGYPT. Proj. No.: 8005-20280-073 Agency ID: AFS Period: 08 JUL 78 To 07 JUL 83

CBJECTIVES: Identify organisms of potential use for the biological control of waterhyacinth, hydrilla, Eurasian watermilfoil, and other aquatic weeds and introduce two Argentine weevils into Egypt for the biological control of waterhyacinth and evaluate their effectiveness.

APPSOACH: Survey the organisms associated with aquatic weeds in Egypt, Identify those species which are berbivores or pathogens, determine their apparent degree of specificity based upon the number of hosts from which they are collected in the aquatic community, and evaluate their potential effectiveness in the biological control of their host plant. Release and monitor population development of two species of weevils in an effort to effect control of waterhyacintb at specific sites in Egypt, including studies of the biology of the insects and the plants. Determine the biological and physical factors responsible for promoting or preventing a successful biological control program.

PROGRESS: 79/12 TO 80/11. Surveys for natural enemies of waterbyacinth have found no species which would possibly be useful biocontrol agents in the U.S. It has been recommended that this portion of the project be discontinued and surveys on N. spicatum he given higher priority. Host specificity studies in quarantine have verified that Neochetina eichborniae and N. bruchi are host specific. Field releases have been mape, the insects have become established, and studies designed to evaluate the effectiveness of this method of control have begun.

PUBLICATIONS: 79/12 TO 80/11 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

003.106 CRISO043028 BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF BURASIAN MILFOIL AND OTHER AQUATIC WEEDS

SPENCER N; BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF WEED LAB, ROME, ITALY. Proj. No.: 0203-20262-002 Project Type: INBCUSE Agency ID: ARS Period: 01 JUL 75 To 30 JUN 80

OEJECTIVES: Search out and study the natural enemies of Eurasian milfoil and other aquatic weeds. Emphasis will be put on those weeds of importance in the United States and whose native range includes Europe, North Africa and the Near East. Plant feeding insects will receive major emphasis.

APPROACH: Locate stands of aquatic weeds in Europe and other areas to which they are indigenous, and survey and collect insects and other organisms on the plants. Evaluate the impact of these organisms on the plants; study their biologies; and determine their host ranges. Obtain stocks of suitable natural enemies free from parasites and pathogens and ship them to the United States as needed.

PROGRESS: 75/01 TO 78/03. A final report on an East African survey for hydrilla and its biotic enemies was submitted by the contractor, Wr. Bob Pemberton. A copy of the report may be obtained from the performing Organization. Work was conducted on the host specificity of Parapoynx startiotata, a potential biocontrol agent for eurasian watermilfoil, Myriophyllum spicatum. The insect does not have the host specificity required to utilize it in a biocontrol program. A survey of the extent of M. spicatum and Bydrilla in Europe has been conducted.

PUELICATIONS: 75/01 TO 78/03 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

003-107 CRISO043340 Control and eradication of aquatic weeds in lakes and Impounded waters

 AHMED M; KHAN M Y; COMES R D; MINISTRY OF FCOD 6 AGEI

 PAKISTAN, KARACBI, PAKISTAN.

 Proj. No.: 8002-20280-054
 Project Type: GRANT

 Agency ID: ARS
 Period: 03 JAN 77 To 02 JAN 82

OFJECTIVES: Develop biological, chemical, and integrated methods for control of aquatic weeds that infest and seriously reduce the productivity of a high percentage of the fish-producing waters of Pakistan.

APPROACH: Survey fishing waters for weeds and to select testing sites. Import phytophagous fish and stock test sites. Determine optimum stocking rates, times and fish size. Observe feeding preferences, rates of weed control, and effects on indigenous fish. Investigate herbicides for weed control, alone and in a program integrated with fish. Cbserve, describe, and quantitate both desirable and adverse effects of herbicides and fish on the aquatic environment. Determine bebefits of weed control in terms of production of indigenous fish and imported phytophagous species.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Two applications of paraquat at 5.5 lb/A each (total 11 lb/A) during a single growing season controlled Typha about 65% and Phragmites about 90%. Regeneration of both genera was faster on a sballow water site where the water did not fluctuate than on a site where the water level was lowered about 3 feet before application and raised to the normal level one month after treatment.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERICO. PUBLICATIONS: 79/12 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

003.108 Control of Acuatic Veeds CRIS0043122

BADAR-UD-DIN; ABMAD N; COMES R D; UNIVERSITY CF PUNJAH, LAHOFE, PARISTAN. Proj. No.: 8002-20280-072 Agency ID: AFS Period: 13 APR 76 To 31 DEC 91

CBJECTIVES: Determine if the phytotoxin produced by the waterhyacintb blight organism Alternaria eichorniae can be used in a program to control water-byacintb.

APPECACE: Extract, characterize, and establish the chemical structure of the phytotoxin obtained from the pathogen Alternaria eichorniae. Design a control program for waterhyacinth using the phytotoxin derived from A. eichorniae. Determine the effects of the phytotoxin on the aquatic organisms, with particular concern for growth and reproduction of fish and other aquatic fauna, and the toxicity of the phytotoxin to other aquatic vegetation.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Although Alternariae eichhornia was not found growing on water hyacinth in Punjab and Sind Provinces, A. alternata, Fusarium spp., Aspergillus spp., Cepholosporium spp., and Curvularia spp. were found. A culture of lypholized A. eichhornise (collected at Bangalore, India) was obtained from the American Type Culture Collection, Rockville, Maryland. Like the culture from the International Nycological Institute in England, the new culture did not sporulate when placed on PDA slants or in PD broth. Species of aquatic plants collected in Punjab and Sind Provinces included Ammannia auriculata Willd., Ammannia baccifera Linn., Ammannia multiflora Roxb., Bramia monnieri (L.) Penn., Centella asiatica (L.) Urban, Gonostegia pentandra (Rcxh.) Miq., Mentha longifolia (L.) Buds., Phyla nodiflcra (Linn.) Greene, Sparganium ramosum Huds, and Veronica anagallis aquatica Linn.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERICD.

003.109 CFIS0045755 BIOLOGICAL CONTROL AGENTS OF BYDEILLA VEETICILLATA

CENTEE T D; INST OF BIOLOGICAL CONTROL; CONMONWLTH AGF BUR-FARNEAN BOUSE, SLCUGH, UNITED EINGDOM-Proje Noo: 7004-20280-006-A Project Type: COOPERATIVE AGREE-Agency ID: ARS Period: 14 SEP 79 To 30 SEP 81

CEJECTIVES: (btain information on biological agents, primarily insects, found to have a suppressing effect on Bydrilla verticillata in its native habitat in Africa and to assess the suitbility and effectiveness of candidate agents for use in the U.S.

APPEOACE: Conduct surveys in East Africa for potential biclogical control agents. Conduct field and laboratory experiments to assess the host specificity of candidate organisms. Obtain sufficient taxonomic and biological information on the organisms to support more intensive investigation in the U.S. Introduce living organisms into quarantine facilities in the U.S. for extended tests of host speidicity and effectiveness.

PROGRESS: 79/12 TO 80/12. A cooperative agreement with the Commonwealth Institute of Biological Control has been arranged to provide for surveys of potential biological centrol agents of hydrilla (Bydrilla verticillata) in East Africa. This work will be carried out from their laboratory in Muguga, Kenya. Because of delays resulting from negotiations with the host country, work has only recently begun and there is not yet any significant progress to report.

4. Ecology and Environment

004.001 CRISO069880 FATE AND RFFECTS OF ATRAZINE IN SALT MARSE ECCSYSTEMS

 DAVIS D E; BOTANY 6 NICROBICLCGY; AUBURN UNIVERSITY,

 AUEURN, ALABAMA. 36830.

 Proj. No.: ALA-05-0043

 Project Type: STATE

 Agency ID: SAES

 Period: 02 FEB 75 To 01 NAK 75

OBJECTIVES: Determine in model ecosystems of increasing complexity: The amount and form of atrazine residues and metabolites in various components of the systems, effects of atrazine on the biclogical components. Determine for stable ecosystems in the field the effects of atrazine on the biological components. Compare atrazine effects, residues, and metabolites in the field with those in model ecosystems.

APPBOACB: Amounts and kinds of residues and metabolites will be determined for: Spartina alterniflora grown in solutions containing atrazine labeled with ¹⁺C in the ring and for Searma reticulata fed leaves from these plants and for detritus produced from leaves of this plant and in fiddler crabs fed this detritus. Similar studies will be made for each component of an intact model ecosystem including a carnivore. Throughout the studies detailed observations will be made on the effects of atrazine on each of the components of the model ecosystems. Wicroexceystems will be treated on Sapelo Island, GA and the results will he compared with those from the model ecosystems.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. No progress report this period.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

PLUMIEY, F.G., DAVIS, D.E., MCENERNEY, J.T. and EVEREST, J.W. 1980. Effect of a Photosynthesis Inhibitor, Atrazine, on the Salt Marsh Fiddler Crab, Uca pugnax (Smith). Estuaries 3:217-223.

004.002 Pond Fertilization and liming CFIS0078980

BOYD C E; FISHERIES & ALLIED AQUACULTURB; AUBUEN UNIVERSITY, AUBUEN, ALABAMA. 36830. Proj. Noo: ALA00497 Project Type: BATCB Agency ID: CSRS Period: 02 APK 79 To 30 SEP 84

OBJECTIVES: Determine the solubilities of different phosphorus fertilizers in pond waters. Evaluate fluid fertilizers ofr use in sport fish ponds. Investigate use of low rates of calcium hydroxide for liming ponds which have excessive overflow during winter and spring.

APPROACE: Solubilities of phosphorus compounds will be determined by measuring the loss of phosphorus from samples of these compounds placed on fertilizer platforms in ponds. Compounds will be tested in ponds representing a range of water quality. Effects of different ratios and rates of application of fluid fertilizer on bluegill production will be evaluated in ponds. Effects of calcium hydroxide applications on total hardness and total alkability will be tested in ponds which have excessive overflow during winter and spring.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Dissolution rates for phosphate fertilizers settling through 1.8m of water at 29 degrees F were: superphosphate, 4.6%; triple superphosphate, 5.1%; monoammonium phosphate, 7.1%; mixed 8-8-8 fertilizer, 11.4%; mixed 20-20-5 fertilizer, 11.9%; diammonium phosphate, 16.8%. Nitrogen was highly soluble (61.7 to 98.8%) from settling grarules of sodium nitrate, calcium nitrate, ammonium nitrate, ammonium sulfate, and two mixed fertilizers, but not (5.1 to 11.7%) from ammonium phosphates. Five pond fertilization programs (44.8 kg/ha per application of 20-20-5 mixed fertilizer, 20.2 kg/ha per application of triple superphosphate, 10.1 kg/ha per application of triple superphosphate, and 7.3 kg/ha of a liquid fertilizer with a grade of 13-25-0) all resulted in similar sunfish yields. The cost of fertilization may be greatly reduced by using the low triple superphosphate, or liquid fertilizer.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- HUNT, D. and BOYD, C.E. 1980. Alkalinity Losses Resulting from Ammonium Fertilizers Used in Fish Ponds. Trans. Amer. Fish. Soc. 110:81-85.
- METZGER, R.J. and BOYD, C.E. 1980. Liquid Ammonium Polyphosphate as a Fish Pond Fertilizer. Trans. Amer. Fish. Soc. 109:563-570.
- MUSIG, Y. and EOYD, C.F. 1980. Comparison of Orthophosphate and Polyphosphate as Fertilizers for Fish Ponds. Aquaculture 20:135-138.

004.003 STREAN AND INPOUNDMENT ECOLOGY

CEIS0069486

LAWRENCE J N; BAYNE D R; BOYD C E; FISHERIES & ALLIED AQUACULTURE; AUBURN UNIVERSITY, AUBURN, ALABAMA. 36830.

Proje Noo: ALA-27-0005 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 NOV 75 To 30 OCT 85

CBJECTIVES: Conduct research on the effects of man's activities on the ecology of streams and impoundments.

APPEOACH: Qualitative and quantitative aspects of the ecology of ar area in a stream or impoundment affected by man's activities will be compared to those aspects of the ecology of an adjacent or nearby area that is relatively unaffected. In some cases "before-and after" studies will be utilized to determine the effects of man's activities on the ecosystem in question.

PRCGEESS: 80/01 TO 80/10. Sampling on a periodic basis for water quality and quantitative analyses of phyto-zooplankton was continued through 1980 in river areas within Alabama that were adjacent to or below steam electric generating plants and paper mills. Collection of water quality, phyto-zooplankton and macroinvertebrate information on West Point Lake Ala-Ga was continued through 1980. The studies of correlations between primary productivity and phyto-plankton production, zooplankton production and fish production are being continued. Relationships between macroinvertebrate production and water level fluctuations are also heing studied. Dye studies of flow characteristics of released textile effluents in the Tennessee River indicated a rather rapid dilution along a restricted flow pattern in the inner channel. Besearch is underway to determine levels of heavy metals and chlorinated hydrocarbons in sediment, macroinvertebrates, fishes, reptiles and mammals located in or adjacent to small streams draining municipal, agricultural and forested watersheds. A study was completed on the effects of submersed fan (water) circulators on phytoplankton abundance, community structure and certain water quality variables in commercial catfish ponds.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/10

- LAWRENCE, J.M. 1980. Interim Report to Container Corporation of America. A Biological Study on the Conecuh-Escambia River in the Vicinity of Brewton, AL. Auburn Univ., AL. 35 pp.
- LAWRENCE, J.M. and BAYNE, D.R. 1580. Phase Report. Limnology Study of West Point Lake Ala-Ga. Corps of Engineers, Mobile District. Auburn Univ., AL. 60 pp.
- LAWRENCE, J.M. and WEBBER, E.C. 1980. Final Report to Burns and McDonnell. Aquatic Biology Study on a Raw Water Intake Structure in the Tombigbee River. Auburn Unive, AL. 53 pp.

LAWRENCE, J.M. 1980. Final Report to Monsanto Textile Company. Effluent Concentration Patterns in Tennessee River Below the Waste-Treatment Outfall from Monsanto's Decatur, Alabama plant. Auburn Univ., AL 12 pp.

004.004 CRIS0045926 PROTECTION, REHABILITATION, AND ENBANCEMENT OF ANADROMOUS FISE HABITAT IN THE PACIFIC NORTHWEST

MEEHAN W R; EVEREST P B; BRYANT M D; PACIFIC NW FOREST 8 RGE EXP STA, JUNEAU, ALASKA. 99801. Proj. No.: PNW-1705 Agency ID: FS Period: 02 JUL 79 To 02 JUL 84

OBJECTIVES: Synthesize present knowledge of anadromous salmonids; determine species and habitat requirements; determine structure and distribution of existing popultions; train managers, cooperators, and the public; develop or revise fish management guidelines. Develop new techniques and methods to rehabilitate and enhance anadromous fish habitat. Validate and implement management programs to ensure a continuing supply of anadromous fish to meet public needs.

APPROACH: Determine the habitat requirements of anadromous salmonids throughout their range in the Pacific Northwest and alaska. Determine the effects of land use activities on anadromous fish habitat. Provide methods for the rehabilitation and enhancement of anadromous fish habitat.

PROGRESS: 79/10 TC 80/09. Three years of season-long livestock grazing at a moderate stocking rate did not indicate profound changes in anadromous fish habitat. Preliminary analyses of data indicate that steelhead trout standing crops may be inversely correlated with years of livestock grazing. Field sampling in this 5-year study will terminate in the fall of 1980, and more definitive conclusions will be made after final data analysis. Materials deposited in stream channels by landslides may be harmful or beneficial to fish production depending on the size and stability of deposited material and the species of fish affected. Composition of anadromous trout populations in disturbed areas shifted to a higher proportion of underyearlings. Not only was standing crop of henthic invertebrates reduced in disturbed areas, but size of organisms was also reduced. Studies of organic debris in streams have shown that debris entering streams naturally becomes an important component of the stream ecosystem and aids in bank stability. Logging debris promotes bank instability and accelerates streambed erosion. In conjunction with these studies, new techniques for sampling streams and fish populations have been developed and refined. These include a freeze-branding device for marking juvenile salmonids, a waterlevel device for measuring stream profiles and gradients, and a method for recording cumulative radiant insolation using an intergrated solar counter.

PUBLICATIONS: 79/10 TO 80/09

- EVEREST, F.B., MCLENORE, C.E. and WARD, J.F. 1980. An Improved Tri-tube Cryogenic Gravel Sampler. USDA Forest Serv. Res. Note PNW-350, 8 pp., Pac. Northwest For. and Range Exp. Stn., Portland, Oreg.
- CUSHING, C.E., MCINTIRE, C.D., SEDELL, J.R., CUMMINS, K.W., MARSBALL, G.W., PETERSCN, R.C. and VANNOTE, S.L. 1980. A Multivariate Approach to Stream Classification Using Physical-chemical Variables. Arch. Hydrobiol. 88:1-4.
- ERYANT, N.D. and WALEOTTEN, W.J. 1980. Carbon Dioxide Freeze-branding Device for use on Juvenile Salmonids. Prog. Fish-Cult. 42(1):55-56.
- WALEOTTEN, W.J. and BRYANT, M.D. 1980. An Instrument to Neasure Stream Channel Gradient and Profiles. USDA Forest Serv. Res. Note PNW-345, 5 pp., Pac. Northwest For. and Range Exp. Stn., Portland, Oreg.
- CARDINAL, P.J. 1980. Habitat and Juvenile Salmonid Populations in Streams in Logged and Unlogged Areas of Southeastern Alaska. N.S. Thesis. Montana State Univ., Fozeman. 115 pp.

004.005 CR IS0065495 EFFECTS OF LCGGING ON ARIZONA TROUT AND THEIR HABITAT IN THE VEITE MOUNTAINS OF ARIZONA

EYNARD B E; WATTER W; SCBOOL OF NATURAL RESOURCES; UNIVERSITY OF ARIZONA, TUCSON, ARIZONA. 85721. Proj. No.: ARZT-170425-68-16 Project Type: MCINTIRE-STENNIS Ageocy ID: CSRS Period: 01 JUL 74 To 30 SEP 79

OEJECTIVES: Evaluate the effects of logging on Arizona Trout and their habitat.

APPEOACE: This will be dooe by comparing population dynamics parameters (growth rate, age structure, and population density) of the Big Bonito trout population before and after logging, comparing insect community structure and biomass pre and post logging, and comparing stream for changes in bottom composition and temperature maximums pre and post logging. Also, another stream will be used as a further control for natural changes.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Data collection was completed and detailed analysis for the project completion report is ongoing. Evidence continues to indicate that logging within the Big Bonito Creek Watershed has not significantly altered fine sediment levels or fish and benthic invertegrate populations.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

004.006 THE EFFECTS OF LOGGING: GRAZING ON STREAMS IN THE WHITE MOUNTAINS

MATTER W; SCBOOL OF NATURAL RESCURCES; UNIVEFSITY OF ARIZONA, TUCSON, ARIZONA. 85721. Proj. No.: AFZT-173484-12-44 Project Type:

MCINTIRE-STENNIS Ageocy ID: CSRS Period: 01 JUL 78 To 30 SEP 82

OBJECTIVES: Assess the effects of logging and grazing on stream quality and biota in the white mountain area of Arizona.

APPEOACE: Collect and analyze physical, chemical and biological data from selected field sites including logged and grazed areas. A near natural state reference stream will act as a basis for comparison.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Three similar study streams were selected and sampled during June, September, and October, 1980; Paradise Creek of the White Fiver draioage, Big Booito Creek of the Black river drainage, and the West Fork of the Little Colorado River, all within Apache County, Arizona. The Big Bonito watershed has been logged, the Paradise Creek watershed supports cattle grazing, and the Little Colorado River drains the Mt. Baldy Wilderness Area (thus, representing a near-natural state stream). Parameters measured in each stream included general water chemistry, small particle sediment, and density and taxonomic composition of benthic invertebrates, invertebrate drift, and fish. Sample analysis is not complete, but some generalizations can be made: 1. all streams are weakly buffered and slightly alkaline; 2. Trichoptera, Diptera, aod Ephemeroptera predominateino the Eenthos: 3. Invertebrate drift exhibits a distinctly octurnal increase and is predominated by Trichoptera and Ephemeroptera; 4 amino apache, a native trout, is common only in Big Booito Creek; brown-trout (S. trutta) predominate the other sites. Sampling will resume in the Spring, 1981.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERICO.

004.007 CRIS0045718 FOLYCULTURAL PRODUCTION OF FISH IN FARM PONDS NEWION S B; GIFFORD J R; AGRICULTUFE; UNIVERSITY OF ARKANSAS, PINE BLUFF, ARKANSAS. 71661. Proje. No.: 7002-20380-001-A Project Type: COOPERATIVE AGREE. Agency ID: ARS Period: 07 SEP 78 To 30 SEP 83

OBJECTIVES: Develop management techniques for polycultural fish production in farm poods that are adaptable to and will provide maximal fish yields for small acreage farmers.

APPROACH: Existing cooperator farm ponds of 2 acres or less with controlled stocking of channel catfish, largemouth bass, bluegills, buffalo, and fathead minnows will be evaluated relevant to costs for labor, chemicals, fish for stocking, controlled feeding, pond fertilization as based on age of pond, water source, disease problems, etc., and total production yields. Biotic and abiotic parameters in the ponds will be monitored for environmental changes and impact. Pond cage studies, coupled with intensive feeding, will be made to maximize barvestable catfish yields. grass carp, Tenopharyngodon idella, will be tested for vegetation control in farm ponds in an attempt to reduce the need for chemicals and increase farm pond total fish yields.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. This farm pond production study is oo schedule with twelve ponds in South Central Arkansas prepared for a 3-5 year population development period. Data collection will commecce during the spring 1981 following the stocking of all ponds with channel catfish, buffalo, grass carp, bluegill, largemouth bass and fathead minnows. Techniques of pond fertilization and fish feeding will be employed along with the use of cages in four of the ponds. Fish harvest will be recreational and commercial methods with production information collections based upon three different management approaches.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

CRIS0003201

004.008* WEED CONTROL IN RICE PRODUCTION

SMITH & J; AGRONOMY; UNIVERSITY OF ARKANSAS, FAYETTEVILLE, ARKANSAS. 72701. Proj. No.: ARK00419 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 MAR 70 To 28 FEB 75

OEJECTIVES: Develop more effective chemical, cultural, mechaoical, biological, and combination methods of controlling weeds in rice, and in crops grown io rotation with rice.

APPROACH: Evaluate and compare new herbicides and wixtures with standard ones. Determine the effects of weeds and herbicides on yield and quality of rice. Study the interactions of various control methods with the physiology, ecology, morphology, and anatomy of rice, and of annual and perennial weeds. Characterize the effects of selected herbicides on succeeding crops, fish, and other aquatic animal life. Determine the fate of herbicides, applied to rice, in the rice crop, soil, and water, and in other crops grown in rotation with rice.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Herbicide programs for rice controlled week complexes better than standard propanil, molinate or phenoxys. Berbicides that combined affectively with propanil for weed control and safety to rice included thiobencarb, butachlor, oxadiazon, pendimethalin, and acifluorfen. Many of these new treatments substitute applicatons of propanil or moliniate and single applications of 2,4, I, -D silvex or 2,4-D. Tank mixtures of propanil + MCPA or propanil + acifluorfen controlled weeds growing on leaves and were effective substitutes for propanil + 2,4,5-T. Cropping-berbicide systems controlled red rice; important in this system was control of red rice in rotated crops. Effective treatments in soybeans were ppi alachlorm, metolachlor, and tank mixtures of these with pendimethalin; ppi profluralio, UEI-S734, RE-28269 and MON 097; poe directed paraquat alone, and tank mixed with 2,4-DB; poe directed BAS 9052; and poe

overdrop mefluidide + bentazon. Effective in grain sorghum were ppi metolachlor, alachlor, propazine, propazine + metolachlor and alachlor. CGA spores controlled nothern jointvetch in rice and soybeans; CGJ controlled winged waterprimrose in rice; both effectively combined in a weed-pest maragement system. All season competition of dayflower reduced rice yields I5-20%, but competition for up to 80 days had no effect. Midseason applications of glyphosate controlled mcst weed species growing in rice field flooding and draining canals.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TC 80/12

- SMITH JR., R.J. 1980. Rice. pp. 118-124. In: Suggested Guidelinas for Weed Control USDA Agric. Handbook 565, 330 pp. SNITH JR., R.J. 1980. Progress Report on Weed
- SMITH JR., F.J. 1980. Progress Report on Weed Control in Rice. Abstracts 19th Annual Meeting Arkansas Agricultural Pesticide Association. pp. 11-12 (Abstract).
- SMITH JR., R.J. and SULLIVAN, J.D. 1980. Reduction of Red Rice Grain in Rice Fields by Winter Feeding of Ducks. Arkansas Farm Researcb. 29(4):1-3.
- TEMPLETON, G.E., SMITH JR., R.J., and KLCMPAFENS, W. 1980. Commercialization of Fungi and Bacteria for Biological Control. Biocontrol News and Information. 1(4):291-294.

004.J05 A SURVEY FOR PATHOGEN FOR AQUATIC WEEDS IN CALIFORNIA FOR USE IN BIOLOGICAL CONTROL

DUNIWAY J W; ANDERSON L W; AGRICULTURAL EXPER-STATICN; UNIVERSITY OF CALIFOPNIA, DAVIS, CALIFORNIA. 95616. Proj. No.: 5090-20282-006-A Project Type: CCOFEFATIVE AGREE-Agency ID: AFS Period: 23 AUG 79 To 30 JUN 82

OBJECTIVES: (onduct a survey to discover pathogens that have potential for development as biological control agents for several important submersed aquatic weeds.

APPROACH: Collect, identify, and culture patbogenic-type organisms found on elodea, milfoil, bydrilla, pondweeds, coontail, and algae in the Davis area and other selected localities. Determine the characteristics of infection, transmission, virulence. Study promising phytopatbogens for purposes of augmentation, release, and other manipulations.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Aquatic weeds were sampled at a number cf sites in Central and Northern California, usually at 2-4-week intervals during the past growing season and at less frequent intervals during the dormant season. The survey emphasized submersed weeds and algae, but nonsubmersed weeds were also sampled where disease symptoms were apparent. Sumbersed weeds did not appear to be killed or otherwise generally affected by diseases in the field, but occasionally they had small necrotic or discolored local lesions. Many fungi and a few bacteria were observed and/or isolated from such lesions, and after artificial inoculations in a greenhouse, a few fungi reproduced lesions somewhat like those observed in the field, especially in Eurasian watermilfoil. However, the inoculations have not yet shows that local lesions have a negative impact on weed growth and many of the attempted inoculations failed. Efforts are underway to improve the weed culture and inoculation methods. Some stands of emersed weeds had more apparent symptoms of disease, and several fungi known to be plant pathogens were isolated from apparently diseased specimens of cattail, bullrush and parrots feather.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

NC PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

004.010* CRISO066346 OSMOREGULATORY RESPONSES OF DESERT PUPFISE: A STUDY MODEL OF PHYSIOLOGICAL ADAPTATION TO ENVIRONMENT

BODA J N; ANIMAL PHYSIOLOGY; UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, DAVIS, CALIFORNIA. 35616. Proj. No.: CA-D¤-APH-3225-H Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 10 SEP 74 To 30 DEC 80

OBJECTIVES: Investigate the physiological mechanisms of adaptation by fishes with emphasis on the maintenance of osmotic and ionic balances.

APPROACH: Two species of desert pupfish, one adapted to extrema and variable conditions of environmental temperature and salinity (C. maculorius), the other restricted to fresh waters (C. radiosus will be employed as laboratory models. Initially, mechanistic differences in the abilities of the eggs and embryos of the two species to tolerate environmental extremes will be investigated in detail. Later, developing fry and adults will be studied.

PRCGRESS: 74/10 TC 80/12. This project was terminated July 1979. The major results of this project include: Establishment of busbandry techniques and environmental requirements for the maintenance of two populations of desert pupfish (Cyprinodon macularius and C. radiosus) in a laboratory situation for several generations. C. manularius is a particularly suitable experimental animal model for the study of embryogenesis. C. radiosus is a difficult species to maintain in the lab beause of low reproductive capacity. Comparisons of tolerances to environmental salinity and other environmental variables for the two species (and hybrids) have demonstrated such tolerances (or their lack) is inherent within the specific population as measured by the success and nature of embryogenesis and hatching of viable larvae. Environmental salinity, temperature, specific organic ions (especially sodium and calcium) have important influences on the rates of embryogenesis and the development of body form. There are interactions between thase thrae environmental variables and there are differences between the two species in their responses to such factors. For example, the quantitative requirement for calcium ion is greater at high salinity, at excessively low salinity (near distilled water), at high temperature, and for C. radiosus for the several environmental conditions.

PUBLICATIONS: 74/10 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS & PORTED FINAL REPORT PERIOD.

004.011* CRISO078835 PHYSIOLOGY AND ECOLOGY OF THE ASIATIC CLAN, COEDICULA SP., IN THE SACRAMENTO-SAN JOAQUIN DELTA

BODA J N; ANIMAL PEYSIOLOGY; UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, DAVIS, CALIFORNIA. 95616. Proj. No.: CA-D*-APH-3716 Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 FEB 79 To 30 OCT 84

OEJECTIVES: Provide detailed physiological and ecological information on the asiatic clam, Corbicula sp., as a basis for management or economic exploitation of the species.

APPROACH: Laboratory studies of individual changes of body composition, growtb, and metabolism and field studies of population changes and productivity will be used to evaluate the ecology of Corbicula in the Sacramento-San Joaquin delta.

PEOGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Caged populations of freshwater clams (Corbicula manilensis) consisting of labeled individuals of known size and estimated tissue composition (based upon tissue analysis of other individuals collected at the same time and location) have been placed in several microenvironments of the San Joaquin Delta. Samples of the caged populations, as well as clams from the same areas, are being collected periodically throughout the year for an evaluation of growth rates and changes of tissue composition (wet and dry weights, tissue calorias, total nitrogen, glycogen concentration). The purpose is to establish baseline values and potentially useful procedures to allow the see of these clams as bioindicators of the quality of the Delte waters. Tissue composition of lyophylized tissues collected from resident populations during 1978 end 1979 are being analysed to esteblish equations for the prediction of tissue compositions from simple field measurements

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

004.012 CFIS0009144 BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF MOSQUITOES IN CENTRAL AND MORTHEEN CALIFORNIA

GARCIA R L; EIOLOGICAL CONTROL; UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, FERKELEY, CALIFORNIA. 94720. Proj. No.: CA-B*-BIC-2428 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 09 AUG 66 To 31 JUL 73

OBJECTIVES: Comprehensively evaluating the ecologies and efficacies of existing natural control, introducing certain foreign parasitic, predatory, or pathogenic species, measuring consequent performance in succeeding years, augmenting the efficacies of existing or introduced natural enemies by environmental manipulations, and essist in the development of integrated control programs agenist certain mosquito species by investigation of those biological and environmental control agents or prectices that will best lend themselves to this end.

APPROACB: Cne or more aquatic environments will be selected where major mosquito problems exist and where the best opportunities lie for developing e biological control phase of an integrated control program.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Bacillus thuringiensis var. israelensis (Eti) seems almost entirely selective for many species of mosquitoes and blackflies. Studies against 59 species of nontarget organisms representing 6 classes, 19 orders, and 32 families of aquatic organisms revealed no observable toxic effects. In 1980 a total of 14 species of nontarget organisms were tested with one chironomid, C. maturus and one Simulium sp. showing susceptibility similar to that of mosquito larvee. Leboratory experiments demonstrated that commercial formulations of Bti reach equilibrium in a column of water within one hour and remain suspended and potent for 5-6 and 1-2days, respectively. Tests were conducted to determine the efficacy of Bti under different aquatic regimes against mosquito larvae. Surface area and depth were investigated with results indicating depth to be an important variable which may have to be taken into consideration in certain field applications. Further tests revealed mortality rates for a given amount of Bti are affected by the number of larvae under treatment, with the efficacy of Bti decreasing as the population sizes increase. Field trials with Bti (Blochem formulation) against Anopheles franciscanus were conducted in two locations in Marin County. Both tests showed mortality rates as high as 100% and with dosage rates as low as 0.5 kg/ha. Other field trials conducted in maturing rice fields in Colusa County, California proved successful in controlling Anopheles freeborni and Culex tarsalis.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 GARCIA, R. and DES ROCBERS, B. 1980. Preliminary Field Trials With Eacillus thuringiensis varisraelensis Against Aedes dorsalis and Culex tarsalis in Salt Marshes. Proc. and Pap. 48th Ann. Coni. Calif. Mosquito and Vector GARCIA, R., DES ROCHEES, B. and TOZER, W. 1980. Studies on the Toxicity of Bacillus thuringiensis var. israelensis Against Organisms Found in Association With Mosquito Larvae. Proc. and Pap. Ann. Conf. Calif. Mosquito and Vector

004.013* CFIS0075881 ENVIRONMENTAL AND ECOLOGICAL INFLUENCES ON GENETIC VARIABILITY FOIN T C: ECOLOGY; UNIVERSITY OF CALIFERNIA, DAVIS, CALIFORNIA. 95616. Proj. No.: CA-D*-ECL-3669-H Project Type: BATCH

Agency ID: CSRS Period: 20 JUL 78 To 30 SEP E3

OEJECTIVES: This project is intended to identify the ecological and environmental correlates of genetic variability in grassland and marine ecosystems. This will help us to identify the role of genetic variation in mediating population response to environmental end ecological conditions. If the results are similar, analysis of two widely different to ecosystems should produce generalizations epplicable both to agricultural and natural ecosystems.

APPROACB: In both systems we shall routinely meesure levels of genetic variation in enzymes using gel electrophoresis; the ecological structure of the community; and relative environmental and trophic stability. With these date we can identify what conditions are most closely essociated with high genetic variability. This long-term (several years) study is principally located in the northern California coastal grassland and in the tropical Pacific. The project is currently coordinated with personnel at the University of Bawaiı, the University of Weshington, and the Departments of Genetics and Agronomy and Range Science at U.C. Davis.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. This program currently consists of two parts. One is the direct measurement of genetic variability in a femily of tropical marine gastropods. By and large, little work in research has been undertaken in this past year, although two manuscripts bearing on this work have been completed and submitted within the year. The other part of the program is the ecological assessment of a perennial grass species, Anthoxanthum odoratum. The progrem currently emphasizes the ecological espects of increase of this species in a coastal grassland at Sea Rench, Sonoma County, to define the limits of adaptability of a species well-known for its genetic variability. Three students are now working on this progrem: two abstracts and one paper heve been produced in the pest yeer. The principal result to emerge is that Anthoxanthum is highly successful along the coast in a variety of environments. There appears to be a strong correlation between Anthoxanthum abundence and soil water evailability, conditioned on the presence of other perennial species which are potential competitors.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS EEPCRTED THIS PERIOD.

004.014 CRIS0084311 VARIABILITY IN PHYSICAL REGIME OF LAKE TITICACA: RELATION TO BIOLOGICAL PROCESSES

PCWELL T M: ECOLOGY; UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, DAVIS, CALIFORNIA. 95616. Proj. No.: CA-D*-ECL-4136 Project Type: STATE

Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUN 81 To 30 SEP 83

OBJECTIVES: Seek multiyear data to estimate the energy budget for Lake Titicaca, Peru-Bolivia. Use the energy budget to compre this high altitude tropical lake to large, temperate lekes. The physicel regime of tropical lakes may be more variable than that found in temperate latitudes. Test this view and determine the extent to which an uncertain and variable physical regime is reflected in the populations of aquatic organisms. Such uncertainty could be reflected in quite variable primary production and fish catch.

APPROACE: We intend to use three sources of data to evaluate the terms in the energy budget: First, a program of field mesurements; second, data collected and recorded by Peruvian and Folivian scientists; third, remote sensed data from satellites. 004.015 CRIS0058986 ECOLOGY OF MCSQUITOES ASSOCIATED WITH CALIFOFNIA PICE FIELDS

WASHING K K; ENTOMOLOGY; UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, DAVIS, CALIFORNIA. 35016. Proj. No.: CA-D*-ENT-2746-H Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 JUL 71 To 30 SEP 79

OBJECTIVES: To develop ecological and biological data that would lead to integrated control programs for mosquitoes associated with California rice fields, with emphasis on cultural or hiological methods of control.

APPROACE: Ey studying the seasonal variability in mosquito larval predation by natural and introduced fish and invertebrate predators; by studying the seasonal variability in the abundance and physiological state of the adult female population in relation to strategy of control and to their ability to serve as noxious pests; to investigate the feasibility of cultural means to control mosquitoes.

PEOGEESS: 79/01 TO 79/09. Entomological and sociological studies yielded information on public tolerance to mosquitoes. Physiological age, blood feeding pattern and lipid content were studied in the adult mosquitoes. Newer sampling methods for larvae and adults were developed. Biological control studies were conducted with three fishes, one nematode, one fungus and several flatworms. Low volume chlorpyrifos and several insect growth regulators as larvicides were studied for chemical control.

PUBLICATIONS: 79/01 TO 79/09

WASHINO, R.K., WESTEFDAEL, B.B., FUKUSHIMA, C.K., FETTER-LASKO, J.L., BROWN, J.K., COLLINS, F.B., HANNA, G. and NAGAMINE, L.R. 1978. The Ecology of Mosquitoes and Mosquito Control Agents in California. Mosquito Control Research

004.016 CEIS0070096 BIOLOGICAL INDICATORS OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY IN CALIFORNIA LAKES AND STREAMS

RESE V H; ENTCMOLOGY & PARASITCLOGY; UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, EERKELEY, CALIFORNIA. 94720. Proj. No.: CA-B*-ENT-3806-H Project Type: HATCB Agency ID: CSRS Period: 29 MAE 76 To 30 SEP 81

OBJECTIVES: Develop the concept of biological indicators of environmental quality as applied to California's lake and stream environments. Analyze the effect of potential impacting activities (e.g. geothermal energy development, organic and heavy metal effluerts) on the energy transfer processes in aquatic ecosystems.

APPRCACE: Streams and lakes throughout California will be selected for study. A statistically-sound sampling regime will be developed for quantitative biotic collections and measurements of key water chemistry and physical parameters. Diversity indices, production estimates, and bioassay procedures will be applied in specific cases. A matrix data arrangement will be developed in which biological information, water chemistry measurements, and physical parameters can be used in preparing predicitive models of the dynamic interactions occurring in these environments.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Research concerning the use of the indicator organism concept in evaluating water quality in California lakes and streams is being concentrated in three main projects: the effect of geothermal energy development and operation as well as the effect of geochemical origin on aquatic biota, the effect of drought conditions on stream and spring systems, and the effect of the addition of mosquito control recirculation ditches on salt marsh biota. Results thus far indicate that: In geothermal energy impact studies, two species of caddisflies (Insecta: Trichoptera) Gumaga nigricula Nel. and Helicopsyche borealis (Hagen) can be used in monitoring programs; during low rainfall years selected populations have higher numbers of individuals in the Spring, probably due to reduced impact of spate activity; sosquito control recirculation ditches may increase abundance

and diversity of salt marsh fish communities but alter seasonal patterns of arthropod communities and distribution patterns of specific arthropod populations. Research is being continued in each of these projects.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

WATERS, W.E. and RESH, V.H. 1979. Ecological and Statistical Features of Sampling Insect Populations in Forest and Aquatic Environments. In: Contemporary Quantitative Ecology and Related Ecometrics (Patil, G.P. and RESB, V.H., BALLING, S.S., BARNBY, W.A. and COLLINS, J.N. 1980. What is the Ecological Impact of Mosquito Control Recirculation Ditches on San Franciso Bay Marshlands? Calif. Agric. 34:38-35.
BARNBY, W.A. and RESH, V.B. 1980. Distribution of

EARNBY, M.A. and RESH, V.B. 1980. Distribution of Arthropod Populations in the Welation to Mosquito Control Recirculation Ditches and Natural Channels in the Petaluma Salt Warsh of San

Francisco Bay. Proc. Calif. Mosq. Vect. Contr. HART, D.D. and RESH, V.H. 1980. Movement Patterns and Poraging Ecology of a Stream Caddisfly Larva. Canad. J. Zool. 58:1174-1185.

RUSSELL, P.P., RESE, V.B. and FLYNN, T.S. A Continuous Plow Bicassay Technique for Assessing the Toxicity of Oil-shale-related Effluents: Preliminary Besults with Two Species of Caddisfly Larvae. Proc. 1st EPA Shale Symposium: Sampling,

004.017 CRIS0066286 DISPOSITION OF CEENICAL POLLUTANTS IN AQUATIC ORGANISMS

CROSBY D G; ENVIRONMENTAL TOXICOLOGY; UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, DAVIS, CALIFORNIA. 95616. Proj. No.: CA-D*-ETX-3260-H Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 06 SEP 74 To 30 SEP 85

OEJECTIVES: Develop techniques for determining pollutant disposition in aquatic species; measure bioconcentration and metabolism of chemical probes (priority pollutants) in economically important aquatic (aquaculture) species; correlate chemical with biologically properties to allow prediction; and apply results to field situations.

APPROACE: Unrestrained representative aquatic species will be exposed to nontoxic levels of selected priority pollutants; bioconcentration will be measured chemically or radiometrically, collected metabolites will be separated and identified, and formation measured. Physical/chemical properties will be correlated with concentrations and phylogeny and predictable trends tested with other probes and species. Results will be applied to the organisms ing the field by chemical analysis.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. The fresh water clam, Corbicular manilensis, was cultured in the laboratory and exposed to hexachlorobenzene (BCB) as a chemical probe. The specially-constructed glass metabolism chamber allowed a constant exposure level of about 0.45 ppb and 90% accountability for HCE. HCB uptake was rapid and reached a plateau after 50 hrs at 11.5 ppm in Corbicula fat, but depuration into HCB-free water was very slow. No evidence of metabolic degradation was seen. A survey of other chemical prches possibly more readily degraded by molluscs suggested o-toluidine (2-methyl-aniline) as a candidate, and preliminary chemical work on analytical systems for it and its potential metabolites is in progress. A laboratory and precedure were established for trace analysis of priority pollutants in water and aquatic animal tissue. Striped bass (Morone samatilis) were collected as indicator species from several areas of Northern California, and muscle, liver, and ovary were analyzed by gas chromatography for background chlorinated substances.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

DIME, R.A. and CROSBY, D.G. 1980. Screening of Organic Contaminants in Relation to Aquaculture at Firebaugh, San Joaquin Valley. Report to California Department of Water Resources. 004.018 CEIS0064884 STREAMSIDE BUFFER STRIPS FOR PROTECTING AQUATIC ORGANISMS FROM LOGGING EFFECTS

ERMAN D C; FOREST RESEARCE UNIT; UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, BERKELEY, CALIFORNIA. 94720. Project Typs: Proj. No.: CA-F*-FRU-2916-MS MCINTIRE-STENNIS Period: 28 JAN 74 To 30 SEP 82

Agency ID: CSRS

OBJECTIVES: Estermins the response of stream macroinvertabrates to various buffer strip designs.

APPROACB: Streams will be located that have different buffer strips left after logging. Quantitative artificial substrats samplers (concrete balls 5 cm in diameter) will be placed in these streams so that invertsbrates can be efficiently collected. Invertebrates will be compared by weights and species from stream sections that have different buffer strip designs.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Sorting and identification of benthic macroinvertsbrates from 26 streams is undsrway. Seven streams with narrow buffers that ware sxamined in 1976 ars included in ths analyses. Preliminary results are available from detailed extraction of plant pigments found on similar bottom type in all strsams. Although pigment quantities wary among unlogged and logged streams, these differences cannot be easily interpreted as resulting from timber harvesting activities. Relationships among chlorophyll a, total pigment complex, light, stream tempsrature and algal biomass ars under study. Compensating chanes in algal biomass or pigment concentration in response to light and temperature suggest that most other routine studies cannot adsquately relate stream chlorophyll changes with parturbation.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

NEWBOLD, J.D., ERMAN, D.C. and ECBY, K.B. 1980. Effects of Logging on Macroinvertebrates in Streams With and Without Buffer Strips. Can. J. Fisb. Aquat. Sci. 37:1076-1085.

004.019* CRIS0076425 EFFECTS OF STAMPEDE RESERVOIR ON UPSTREAM FISE POPULATIONS OF SAGEREN CREEK

BRMAN D C; FOREST RESEARCH UNIT; UNIVERSITY CF CALIFORNIA, BERKELEY, CALIFORNIA. 94720. Proj. No.: CA-F*-FRU-3649-B Project Project Type: HATCB Agancy ID: CSRS Period: 07 SEP 78 To 30 SEP 80

OBJECTIVES: Letermine the cause of upstream movement of sucksrs in Sagshan Creek following impoundment and determins if other changes in fish composition are occurring, particularly trout populations in areas formerly uninhabited by suckers.

APPROACE: Ssasonally, ws will cample fish by elsctrofishing from the reservoir upstream. Density and standing crop estimates will be compared to pre-impoundment baselines data (1952 to 1961). Suckers will be tagged to determine movement patterns. Physiological condition will be assessed to ses if upstream fish are under more stress than those downstream. An underwater observation tank will be used to observe behavior of trout and suckers in cass sucksrs have an advarse affect on trout distribution.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Tahoe sucksr in Webber Lake wers found in different depth and habitat zones dspanding on their size (age). They also fed on different benthic invertebrates depending on size. Juvenils sucker were gregarious by day in shallow water but at night fed as individuals. Adult fish lived in deep zones by day and migrated to shallow water at night to feed. Food of sucker in Webber Laks was mostly ctironomid larvae, an amphipod and molluscs while in Stampede Reservoir they ate mostly chironomid larvas and pupae and some zooplankton (from ths benthos). The difference in diet between systems was a function of didffsrences in food availability. In Sagehan Creek, sucker confined to a section at the underwater observation tank fed actively only in mid afternoon. The action of their

feeding cleared away fins sediment and organic matter from bottom substrates. Invertebrats drift seemed increased by their feeding although further tests are needed for verification.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TC 80/12 MARRIN, D.L. 1980. Food Selectivity and Habitat Utilization by Introduced Trouts and Native Non-game Fishes in Subalpine Lakes. M.S. Thesis.

004.020 CRIS0084225 CRATFISM IN CALIFORNIA RICE FIELDS: DIET, INPACT ON RICE PRODUCTION AND POSSIBLE RETURNS IN EARVEST

GOLDMAN C B; INST OF ECOLOGY; UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, DAVIS, CALIFORNIA. 95616. Proj. No.: CA-D*-ECL-4127 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 MAR 81 To 30 SEP 83

OBJECTIVES: To establish feeding habits of crayfish in rice fields with emphasis on their relationship to rice plants, insects, weeds and rice straw. To determine the sxtent of crayfish population dsvslopment in California fields. To investigate the effect of crayfish on rice production and field damage. To examine the feasibility of a commercial fishery in the rice fields.

APPROACH: Extensive mark and recovery methods and behavioral observations will be done in rice fields. Stomach content analysis and observations will also be conducted in the lab. Population data will be correlated with figures on rice production and field damage. The feasibility of a fishery will be established from population data and simulated harvest,

004.021 CRIS0084226 APPLIED LINNOLOGY AND FISBERIES STUDIES IN TROPICAL LAKES

RICHERSON P J; INST OF ECOLOGY; UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, DAVIS, CALIFORNIA. 95616. Proj. No.: CA-D*-ECL-4129 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 NAE 81 To 30 SEP 86

OBJECTIVES: To estimate the seasonal and year-to-year variability in production of fish food. Past studies indicate that deep tropical lakes have high production but indicate a pattern of unpredictable fluctuations in production. If so, fish production is also likely to vary. Nanagement practices should be dssigned with this variability in mind. Lake Titicaca is typical of large, deep tropical lakes and the results obtained can be extended to an important class of lakes.

APPROACH: Echo sounding and trawl techniques for estimating the variation in distribution and standing stock of fish specis; correlation between plankton production and pelagic fish stocks; analysis of the data to evaluate possible development and regulation of the fishery.

004.022 CRIS0065667 DEVELOPMENT OF FISE PROTECTIVE SYSTEMS FOR WATER INTAFES

AMOROCHO J; LAND, AIR & WATER RESCURCES; UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, DAVIS, CALIFORNIA, 95616. Proj. No.: CA-D*-LAW-3056-B Projsct Type: HATCB Period: 01 JUL 74 To 30 DEC 79 Agency ID: CSRS

OBJECTIVES: Develop practical schemes for protecting marine life at water intakes to lessen the adverse environmental effects of water diversions. Large diversions of water from rivers, lakes, and oceans for irrigation and water supply and for powerplant cooling cause grave ecological problems due to the loss of fish and fish eggs and larvae.

APFEGACE: Bydraulic studies using scale models of intakes to develop intake configurations which produce flow patterns which will efficiently direct fish away from intakes. Development of a pilot installation (using moving and fixed screens and louvers) in which tests are made with fish and fish eggs and larvae. Investigation of the use of very large sand filters for river water diversions. Such a scheme would use very samll openings and very low velocities. Thus, freely swimming and suspended organisms would be excluded from the diverted water.

PROGRESS: 79/01 TO 79/12. A report describing hydraulic tests on a distorted scale model of the intake to the Peripheral Canal of the California Aquedict from the Sacramento River was published. The model simulated 5.5 miles of the Sacramento River plus a river diversion channel and approximately one mile of fish screens. It was constructed to a horizontal scale of 1:240 and a vertical scale of 1:60. The model had a moveable bed; ground walnut shells of a uniform size were used to simulate bedload sediments. A minicomputer was used to control the model operation, allowing unsteady flow conditions to be simulated. Both the upstream flow and downstream river stage could he varied as a function of time to simulate unsteady upstream flows and fluctuations in river levels due to tidal effects. The model tests indicated that probelms related to bedload sediments are minimized if the fish screens are located in an off-stream channel rather than along the river bank. A larger, undistorted model of the intake and adjacent river reach at a scale of 1:50 was completed. The hydraulics of various fish screening schemes are currently under study. These include: the one-mile long off-river fish screen placed in a channel
parallel to the river; a "saw-tooth" fish screen configuration spanning at 1000-ft wide channel; drum screens with vertical axes in an off-river channel.

PUBLICATIONS: 79/01 TO 79/12

EARTMAN, W.J., AMOROCEC, J. and DEVRIES, J.J. 1979. Peripberal Canal Intake Studies. 1. Distorted River Channel Wodel. Volumes I and II. A Report to Department of Water Resources, State of California. Department of Land, Air

004.023* CRIS0066814 THE USE OF SELECTED AQUATIC ORGANISMS FOR PURPOSES OF AQUACULTURE (FOOD PRODUCTION)

KNIGHT A W; LAND, AIR 6 WATER RESOURCES; UNIVERSITY CF CALIFCRNIA, DAVIS, CALIFORNIA. 85616. Proj. No.: CA-D*-LAW-3350-B Project Type: EATCH Agency ID: CSES Period: 05 NOV 74 To 30 SFP 80

CEJECTIVES: fetermine the tolerances, growth dynamics, food preference, egg hatchability cf selected pest organisms. Utilize existing pest organisms such as tadpole shrimp and cladophora algae for beneficial purposes such as low cost protein source.

APPEGACE: Initially information will be obtained relating to the environmental needs of the organisms under consideration. Later we will manage environmental factors in order to maximize the production of the potential protein material for purposes of either a domestic animal food (i.e., cbicken or catfish food) or a protein supplement for humans.

PEOGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Preparation of manuscripts resulting from our work with the Malaysian prawn (Macrobrachium rosenbergii) continues. These manuscripts focus on physiological aspects of our research and will be submitted to scientific journals in the near future. Research to better understand the laboratory culture of the grass sbrimp (Crangon) is progressing well. This shrimp is a key food item for striped bass and sturgeon. Those culturing the sturgeon in the laboratory have indicated a need for food that is also under culture and therefore readily available to feed fish. Our research to determine the evironmental needs of the shrimp has increased our capabilities to successfully culture this shrimp in the laboratory. Recently we have included the Asiatic clam (Corbicula) in our culture operations. This clam exhibits potential as a filter feeder to remove undesirable particulate matter from aquaculture systems. In addition, the clam has demonstrated an ability to accumulate toxic materials such as heavy metals and organic materials. Clams, it is felt, will serve as excellent monitoring organisms in aquaculture systems. We are experimenting with methods of placing the clams in aquatic systems and their retrieval for tissue burden determination.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TC 80/12

STEPHENSON, N.J. and KNIGHT, A.W. 1980. Growth, Respiration and Caloric Content of Larvae of the Prawn Macrobrachium rosenbergii. Comparative Bluchemistry and Physiology 664(3): 385-391.

NAGAMINE, C., KNIGHT, A.W., NAGAMINE, C., KNIGHT, A.W., MAGGENTI, A. AND PAXMAN, G. 1980. Effects of Androgenic Gland Ablation on Male Primary and Secondary Sexual Characteristics in the Walaysian Prawn. Wacrobrachium rosenbergii with First Evident of Inouced

004.024 CRISO069598 RESPONSE OF AQUATIC LIFE TO SALINITY, TEMPERATURE, DISSOLVED OXIGEN AND WATER FLOW

KNIGET A W; LAND, AIR & WATEF RESOURCES; UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, DAVIS, CALIFORNIA. S5616. Proj. No.: CA-D*-LAW-3075 Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 74 To 31 DEC 75

OEJECTIVES: Study the effects of water temperature, flow , salinity and dissolved oxygen on the behavior, growth, and reproduction of aquatic test organisms, including opossum shrimp and striped bass.

APPROACE: Initial operations have been directed at techniques for maintaining and evaluating the effects of environmental factors on aquatic organisms. Artificial streams, static and continuous flow bioassay systems, oxygen consumption apparatue as well as experimental systems for obtaining growth information are being employed.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Concentrated effort continues in the San Joaquin Delta area. The Asiatic clam (Corbicula) is being employed as a means of evaluating (monitoring) environmental factors as well as pollutants in the Delta. We have been placing clams in cages and on lines in areas of the Delta likely to be subjected to heavy metal, organic matter and other toxic substances. Other clams have been similarly placed in areas known to be free of contamination as controls. Information on clam growth, reproduction, survival and tissue burden is being collected for selected stations in the Delta. Some of the test sites are used as predischarge evaluation sites. For example, many of our stations are situated in locations that will likekly be influenced by the proposed San Joaquin Agricultural Drain release into the Delta. With hackground information on clam growth, reproduction and tissue burden of organic and heavy metal materials, it will be possible to evaluate the inpact of such a large discharge of agricultural wastewater on aquatic organisms. We are also conducting population evaluations of the clam at selected sites (same as for clam cages) to determine population changes in clam populations due to man's activities, such as agricultural wastewater return, domestic wastewater introduction, industrial waste discharge and out-of-basin water transfers.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

KNIGET, A.W. and FOE, C. 1980. Utilization of the Asiatic Clam, Corbicula manilensis, for the Direct Monitoring of the Effects of Receiving Waters on the Infauna of a Portion of the Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta.

004.025 CRIS0066677 THE EFFECTS OF IRRIGATION WASTE WATER ON AQUATIC PLANTS IN TEE SACRAMENTO BIVER ENIGHT A W; FAYER D E; LAND, AIR & WATER RESOURCES; UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, DAVIS, CALIFCENIA, 95016, Proj. No.: CA-DX-LAW-3073-B Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 10 OCT 74 To 30 DEC 80

OBJECTIVES: Determine what permutations in the aquatic vegetation growing in the Sacramento River (California) may occur as a result of the influence of irrigation return water and will relate these permutations to agricultural land management practices.

AFPEOACE: A survey of the aquatic vegetation growing in the river both upstream and down-stream of the Colusa Basin Drainage Canal outfall as well as in the canal itself is in progress. Variations through time and space will be noted and correlated with the quality of return water and also agricultural land management practices. Certain plant species will be grown under controlled conditions in the laboratory and the influence of irrigation return water determined using growth rates as a measure of plant performance.

PECGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12 . No progress report for this period.

PUPLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

FCRD, S.A., ENIGET, A.W. and D.E. BAYER. 1980. Irrigation return water impact or selected attached diatoms in the Sacramento River, Cal., U of Cal Water Resources Ctr Proj UCAL-WEC-W477. Water Scj & Eng Paper No. 4511. 86 pp.

004.026 CFIS0075135 GROWTH AND MINERAL UPTAKE IN THE LEWNACEAH

SILK W K; LAND, AIR 6 WATER EESOURCES; UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, LAVIS, CALIFORNIA. 95616. Proj. No.: CA-D*-LAW-3639-B Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSS Period: UI APR 78 To 30 SEP 81

CBJECTIVES: Froduce data on growth and nutrient uptake by selected aquatic plants (especially Lemna & Wolffia) under a variety of laboratory conditions. Growth of lemna buds and increase in number of individual plants will be monitored simultaneously with nutrient removal rates in solutions of different concentrations of nitrates, potassium salts, phosphates and sulfates. The expansion pattern on a developing frond will be analyzed and compared to the pattern of nutrient removal.

APPROACH: Species of duckweed can be cultured vegetatively in defined nutrient medium (Billman, 1961). We have found modifications of published culturing techniques are satisfactory to maintain locally collected varieties of duckweed. Population growth will be monitored by planimeter measurement of total leaf area from microphotographs of small culture experiments and by fresh and dry weight analysis of larger scale experiments. Time lapse photomicrography of developing fronds marked with carbon particles will permit computerized analysis of the expansion pattern. The divergence of velocity will be plotted as a function of position on the frond. The expansion pattern can then be compared to the pattern of accumulation of mineral nutrients as determined by microprobe electron microscopy. Computer assisted analysis of the data could be used to develop a model to relate the mineral uptake rate to the growth rate and to define culturing conditions for nitrient removal by higher aquatic plants.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Experiments were undertaken to evaluate the possibility of using duckweeds to remove nitrate from irrigation return water. Lema protein per frond and per root increases with developmental stage until plants are at least two generations cld. Protein per frond, per root, and per unit dry weight is greater in plants grown at 23.8C than at 18.3C. More protein is found in fronds than in roots, and more nitrate occurs in roots than in fronds. Nitrate per root increases with developmental stage and is higher (per root) in plants grown at 23.9C than at 18.3C. The distribution of generations within a growing population is constant for at least eight doubling times. Whether populations multiply slowly at 15.6C or more rapidly at 23.9C, fronds which have not yet produced progeny form 62% of the population; fronds which are one generation old form 25% of the population; and fronds which are two generations old form 9% of the population. Results allow estimates of nitrate removal as a function of time after frond inoculation. To remove 10 mg 1 - 1 of nitrate-nitrogen would take 10.8 days at 23.9C after inoculation with 16 fronds per liter. The great difference between protein content of plants grown at 18.3C and at 23.9C implies that relible models will require a large data hase.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

004.027 CRISO070366 ENVIRONMENTAL REQUIREMENTS OF POTENTIAL AQUACULTURE FISH SPECIES

CECH J J; WILDLIFE 6 FISHERIES BICLOGY; UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, DAVIS, CALIFORNIA, S5616. Proj. No.: CA-D*-WFB-3455-B Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 JUL 76 To 30 SEP 81

OBJECTIVES: Determine the environmental requirements and limits of several California freshwater fishes with respect to temperature, dissolved oxygen, and other factors. These data would be used to indicate the adaptability of a species to aquaculture systems, including those receiving nutrient enrichment.

APPROACH: Environmental requirements will be actermined by measurements of several respiratory, cardiovascular, and hematological variables under various environmental conditions. These measurements would indicate the physiological state of the fish regarding its overall energetic costs and oxygen uptake/transport functioning.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TC 80/12. Growth rates of juvenile (1-8 g) Sacramento blackfish; Orthodon microlepidotus, a native California cyprinid which grows to greater than 1.5 kg, were measured at three temperature ranges in laboratory aquaria where several diets were offered ad lib. and at four stocking densities in small ponds where natural food was available. Respiratory metabolic (oxygen consumption) rates of juvenile blackfish were also measured in flow-through or static respirometers. Transformations of both growth and respiration data to energy units showed that: growth rates increased with elevations in environmental temperature, growth in aquaria was possible with strictly plant-based diets and was faster with diets higher in protein, lipids, and total calories, growth rates in ponds with high stocking densities approximated those in laboratory aquaria fed pelleted diets, which exceeded the energy costs for respiratory metaholism, and growth rate in the pond with the lowest stocking density was the bighest measured and exceeded respiration energy costs by as much as 2.5 fold. Extensive type of pond culture in warm water (optimal range: 24 degrees to 29 degrees C) with abundant natural food may be recommended for the hardy blackfish. Details of this investigation are forthcoming in published form.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 CECH JR., J.J., MASSINGIL, M.J. and WURTSBAUGH, W.A. 1980. The Relationship of Food Conversion Efficiency and Growth Potential in Juvenile Mosquitofish, Gambusia affinis. Cal-Neva Wildlife Trans, pp. 1-5.

004.028 CRISO066351 BCOLOGICAL STUDIES OF THE NAVARRO AND GARCIA ESTUARIES, WITH EMPHASIS ON THE FISHES

MOYLE P B; WILDLIPE & FISHEPIES BIOLOGY; UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, DAVIS, CALIFORNIA. 95616. Proj. No.: CA-D*-WFH-3221-H Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 04 FEB 75 To 30 DEC 80 OBJECTIVES: Define the physical, chemical and biological parameters of two estuaries (Navvaro and Garcia) with special attention being paid to fish ecology.

APPECACE: The distribution, movements, and feeding habits of the fishes, transient and resident, will be studied in relation to daily and seasonal physical and chemical changes in the estuaries. Collections will be made over a 3-9 day period in each estuary once every two weeks in the summer and fall, once a month in the winter and spring.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. The data analysis is complete on this project and is being incorporated into the Ph.C. thesis of D. H. Varoujean. Essentially, this study had demonstrated that small north coast estauries are important rearing and spawning areas for both marine and anadromous fishes. When the mouth of an estuary becomes closed during low-water years, the estuary may become anoxic in all but the surface of shallow waters, resulting in mortality of fish and crustaceans, and forcing species to compete with each other for limited space that normally would not come in contact with one another. These conditions may occur more frequently if the waters of coastal streams are diverted.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NC PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

004.029* CRIS0068125 INSTREAM FLOW REQUIREMENTS OF CALFORNIA FISHES

MOYLE P B; WILDLIFE & FISBERIES BICLOGY; UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, DAVIS, CALIFORNIA, 95616. Proj. No.: CA-D*-WFB-3206-B Agency ID: CSRS Period: 23 JUN 75 To 30 SEP 84

OBJECTIVES: Determine the requirements of the different life history stages of California fisbes in relation to water velocity, substrate and depth. Show how thes requirements vary in different stream types and in relation to temperature regimes and other fish species present. Determine if squawfish predation on salmon is increased by changed flow regimes and erection of diversionary structures.

APPROACH: Following the USFWS-IFG methodology, representative sections of streams are selected and subjected to intensive hydrological studies that allow the section to be simulated on a computer. Measurements of depth, velocity, substrate and other variables are then recorded for individual fileh of all species present. When the two sets of data are combined, predictions can be made as to how much suitable babitat is available to each species, under different flow regimes. Samples of squawfish collected at different localities, times of the year and habitats are being examined for food habits. the results will be used in conjunction with data collected.

PROGRESS: 79/01 TO 79/12. This project has been terminated in favor of the more specific project WFB 3884-H. Much of what was learned in this project is summarized ir Moyle and Li (1979) and Moyle (in press). Essentially, these studies document the distribution patterns of frestwater fishes in major portions of the Sacramento-San Joaquin drainage system in relation to the changing patterns of water use by man. Specific studies have also concentrated on the unique trout fishery of the McCloud River (Sturgess and Moyle 1978, Tippetts and Moyle 1978) and on the threatened fishes of the Pit River system (Daniels and Moyle 1978; Daniels 1979).

PUBLICATIONS: 79/01 TO 79/12

MOYLE, P.E., 1980 (Ed.). Studies on the distribution and ecology of fishes of the Sacramento-San Joaquin drainage system. 1. Fishes of the Pit River system (Noyle and Daniels). II. Fishes of the Pajaro River system (Smith). III. Stream

DANIELS, R.A. 1979. Distribution and status of crayfishes in the Pit River dra inage, California. Crustaceana. 20:1-8.

- STURGESS, J. and MOYLE, P.E. 1978. Biology of rainbow trout, brown trout and interior Dolly Varden in the McCloud River, California, in relation to management. Cal-Neva Wildlife. pp. 232-250.
- TIPPETS, W.E. and MOYLE, P.B. 1978. Epibenthic feeding by reinbow trout (Salmo gairdneri) in the McCloud River, California. J. Anim. Ecol. 97:549-559.
- DANIELS, R.A. and MOYLE, P.E. 1978. Eiology, distribution and status of rough sculpin, Cottus asperrimus, in the Pit River drainage, Northeastern California. Copeia. p. 673-679.

004.030 CFIS0081224 ECOLOGY OF FISHES OF SACRAMENTO - SAN JOAQUIN ESTUARY, WITH EMPHASIS ON SUISUN MARSE

MOYLE P E; WILDLIFE & FISHERIES HICLOGY; UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, DAVIS, CALIFORNIA. 95616. Proje No.: CA-D*-WFB-3930-B Project Type: HATCE Agency ID: CSRS Period: 28 MAR 80 To 30 SEP 82

OBJECTIVES: Determine the ecological requirements of major fisb species of themore shallow, freshwater (12 ppt. salinity) portions of the estuary, especially Suisun Marsh, in relation to man-caused and natural changes in freshwater inflows. Species of special interest are chinook salmon juveniles, striped bass and native nongame fishes.

APPROACE: Selected areas are sampled every 2-4 weeks throughout the year using otter trawls, seines, traps and other appropriate methods. All fish are measured and samples aged, to determine use of area by size classes. Stomach contants are analyzed on a monthly basis, so a trophic web can be constructed. Selected species will be worked with in the laboratory to test salinity and temperature tolerances.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. In the past year we have sampled the sloughs of the Suisun Marsh twice a month to document changes in the fish fauna in relation to season, temperaure, and salinity. We have also examined the stomachs of nearly 1000 fish to develop a food web for the marsh, and have conducted investigations of the life history of the splittail and tule perch, two native species potentially threatened by future developments in the marsh. We have found that the marsh is an important rearing area for juvenile salmon in the late winter and spring, at least during wet years. It is an important year-round habitat for juvenile striped bass and various native fishes. Catfish, once an important fishery in the marsh, appear to have declined since high-salinity waters invaded the marsh during the recent drought. Bowever, we predict that the managed salinity regime proposed for the marsh by the Department of Water Resources, will bring back catfish and will probably improve conditions for striped bass and splittail as well.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

004.031* CRISO015828 CONTROL OF WEEDS AND CEPTAIN OTHEF AQUATIC FESTS IN THE PACIFIC SOUTHWEST

ANDERSON L W; YEO R R; USDA-ARS AQUATIC WEED CCNT RES, DAVIS, CALIFOENIA. 95616. Proj. No.: 5206-20280-001 Project Type: INECUSE Agency ID: ARS Period: 26 FEB 70 To 15 NOV 81

OBJECTIVES: Investigate individual and integrated approaches to control aquatic weeds, including herbicides, herbivorous fish and other aquatic fauna, insects, competitive plants, pathogens and other organisms. Investigate physiology, ecology, and biochemistry of aquatic plants in order to understand why and how the weed problems occur, and how effective control programs can be divesed. APPEGACE: Find and test in laboratory, greenhouse, and field, biological agents that consume, destroy, or inhibit species of problem aquatic weeds. Discover new herbicides and growth regulators, and devise improved methods of using known phytotoxic chemicals for control of aquatic vegetation. Combine chemical and biological control metohds to produce effective and acceptable integrated control programs. Study nutrition, growth, reproduction, and response of aquatic weeds to environmental factors, and utilize this information in programs designed to eliminate weed infestations and to prevent their recurrence.

FROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Several canals and Sheldon Reservoir in El Centro, Ca., were sampled to determine Hydrilla biomass and tuber density. Fresh biomass varied from 0 to 7.4 kg/m 2 and tuber density varied from 0 to 423/m 2 in canals. Hiomass varied from 0.64 kg/m 2 to 2.03 kg/m 2 and tuber density from 12/M 2 to 65/M 2 in Sheldon Reservoir. When water was held in Sheldon Reservoir, concentrations of greater than 1 ppmw copper resulted in good control of Hydrilla. Draw-down application of fluridone (without soil incorporation) at 1 or 2 lb/acre did not control Hydrilla. Application of endotball (Aquathol -E R) to a small pond in El Centro resulted in ca. 75% control of Hydrilla. Although continuous contact bloassays of PH 4062 at .25 to 1.0 prow controlled both algal species, Cladophora appeared to be slightly more resistant than Rhizoclonium. In limited contact tests, Ebiozoclonius was controlled one week after exposure to 1.0 ppmw concentration of PH4062 for 2 h. while exposure to a 2.0 ppmw of PE4062 for 2 h. was necessary for good Cladophora control. A dense infestation of N. brasilienses in a drainage canal was controlled by a foliar application of fenac at 15 lb/acre in 200 gal/A spray volume. The degree of control in the canal site was not expected and additional studies on foliar application of fenac will follow. A detailed study of the morphology of Hydrilla was made using a scanning electron microscope and normal and polarized light microscopy, and macrophotography.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- ANDERSON, I. and RAINES, R.W. 1980. Fesponse of Hydrilla verticillata, elodea canadensis, and Myriophyllum spicatum to combinations of Komeen and Endothall in Moving Water. Abstract, WSWS Research Progress Report, p. 335.
- DECHORETZ, N. and PINE, R.T. 1980. Evaluation of Komeen for Aquatic Weed Control in Ponds. Abstract, WSWS Research Progress Report, p. 335. DECHORETZ, N. and PINE, E.T. 1980. Control of Submersed Aquatic Weeds in Irrigation Canals with Fluridone. WSWS Research Progress Report, p. 340.

004.032* CRIS0077533 AWALTSIS AND MODELING LAKE MICHIGAN FISH FOPULATION

VANDYNE G; FISHERY & WILDLIFE BIOLCGY; COLORADO STATE UNIVERSITY, FORT CCLLINS, CCLCRADO. 80523. Agency ID: CSVN05500 Period: 01 JAN 76 To 31 DEC 78

OBJECTIVES: Assement of power plant effects such as enterinment, impingement and relatively small thermal increments on Lake Michigan implies a need for a systems analysis approach. Proposed is a modelling effort to examine and interrelate the data from the fishery and related investigations in the vicinity of the Donald C. Cook Nuclear Power Plant to determine power plant effluent pollution effects on commercial and sports fish in Lake Michigan.

APPROACH: The model will examine changes over time on a multispecies population sector. Climatic variables, plant operations and seasonal effects will be used as driving variables in the model to change the values of elements in the transition matrices. The model, after development and revisions, will be used to make predictions of impacts of alternative power plant operational stages on the population vector of the lake ecosystem.

004.033 WATER QUALITY STUDY

MORRISON S M; MICROBIOLOGY; CCLCRADO STATE UNIVERSITY, FORT COLLINS, COLCRADC. 80523. Agency ID: CSVM06349 Period: 30 JUN 78 To 29 JUN 83

OBJECTIVES: Carry out a continuing study of the Cache la Poudre River as it has been effected by the establishment of an industrial complex at Windsor, CO_{\circ} .

APPROACE: Sampling stations above and below the city of Fort Collins and the town and manufacturing complex at Windsor, CO, 12 miles downstream from Fort Collins have been established. Continuous monitoring for a number of indicators of water quality are to be carried out to determine and the effects of pouulation and industrialization pressures on the river. The indicators include physical, chemical (inorganic, organic, heavy metal), and biological (bacteria, benthic and planktonic organisms, fish), parmeters.

PROGRESS: 79/10 IC 80/12. This study is a continuing Cache la Poudre River surveillance project for the river segment from above Fort Collins to a point near the confluence with the South Platte River. A data base is being established for chemical, physical and biological parameters of the stream. Fish population studies and benthic surveys are included. The data is being used by state, local and industrial agencies in establishing a wastewater pollution control and management for the Poudre and discharges to the stream. Graduate students are receiving partial support for their participation in the study.

PUPLICATIONS: 79/10 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

004-034 CFIS0077525 TOXIC EFFECTS ON THE AQUATIC EIGTA PROM COAL AND OIL SHALE DEVELOPMENT

SKOGERHOE R K; NATURAL & ENVIGONMENTAL RES; COLOFADO STATE UNIVERSITY, FCRI COLLINS, CCLORADO. 80523. Agency ID: CSVM01188 Period: 01 JUL 75 To 31 DEC 78

OEJECTIVES: Study the effects of coal combustion and tbe aquatic blota. Study of ammonia toxicity to fishes and aquatic macroinvertebrates. Study of effects of coal and oil shale mining on receiving streams in increased inloads of dissolved solids.

APPROACH: Western Colorado is coming under heavy pressure for energy development, particularly coal and oil shale development. At the same time, Western Colorado is renowned for its wildlife incouding fishing. The relationship and impact of energy development on aquatic biota will be determined using ecosystem sampling techniques and quantifying ammonia concentrations by gas chromatography.

004.035[±] CFIS0044200 EVALUATION OF HPPICACY, CROP RESPONSES AND CROP AND WATER RETENTION OF POTENTIAL AQUATIC HEBHICIDES

ANDERSON L W; USDA-ARS AQUATIC WEED CONT LAE, DENVER, COLORADO. 80225. Proj. No.: 5604-20280-005 Project Type: INHOUSE

 Proj. No.:
 5604-20280-005
 Project Type:
 INHOUSE

 Agency ID:
 ARS
 Period:
 02
 DEC
 77
 To
 30
 SEP
 80

OBJECTIVES: Identify effective, new aquatic herbicides and algicides. Determine the phototoxicity of irrigation water containing aquatic herbicides on crops and the extent of herbicide residue retention in the exposed crops. Determine the level of herbicide residue in water resulting from the application of herbicide to irrigation canals, or impoundments. APPROACH: Use a greenhouse, static water screening bioassay for observing the phytotoxic effects of new chemical compounds on American pondweed sago pondweed and Elodea. Use a unialgal culture bioassay to evaluate new chemicals for algicidal properties. Nake applications of candidate aquatic herbicides (which sbow sufficient efficacy and environmental safety) to irrigation canals or canal banks and subsequently sample exposed water and analyze for herbicide residues. Develop bioassay for evaluating controlled-release aquatic herbicides. Grow representative crops in small, replicated plots and irrigate with water containing appropriate levels of aquatic herbicide and subsequently determine tbe herbicide residue levels in tbe harvested crops.

PRCGRESS: 77/02 TO 80/09. Rates of 2.25 to 7.43 kg/ha simazine applied to ditchbanks of flowing canals produced a maximum of 60 ug/1. First water flow samples from dry-canal treatments at similar rates produced a maximum of 250 ug/1 with rapid subsequent dissipation. In six crops (corn, pinto beans, alfalfa, sugarbees, tomatoes, cucumbers) irrigated with water containing 0.01 or 0.1 mg/1 simazine, only trace amounts (0.5 to 2.9 ppb) were found. Similar studies showed little cr no arsenic accumulation in crops exposed to 1.0-2.0 ppm MSMA. Small pond tests showed that granular fluoridone controls elodea; poncweeds, and stunts cattails within three months when applied at 2-3 lbs/acre. The levels of dicamba were determined in 6 crops that had been irrigated with .05 or 0.5 ppmw dicamba by furrow or sprinkler. Residues were less than .01 ppmw with the .05 ppm. Velpar was tested 1.0 ppm in a small (0.08 ha) pond. Fluridone is effective in stopping growth of American and sago pondweed when vegetative tubers were exposed to 1 ppm in the light.

PUHLICATIONS: 77/02 10 80/09

- ANDERSON, I.W.J. and RAINES, R.W. 1980. Response of Hydrilla verticillata, Elodea canadensis, and Myriophyllum spicatum to combinations of Komeen and Endothall in moving water. West. Soc. Weed Sci.Prog. p.334-335.
- ANDERSON, I.W.J. 1980. Dicamba residues in crops irrigated with water containing low levels of Benvel 45R herbicide. West. Soc. Weed Sci. Progr. Rept. p. 346.

004.036 CRIS0076966 THE EFFECTS CF AGRICULTURAL DRAINAGE OF NATURAL SYSTEMS - PHASE III

DILL N H; FEERIER J J; AGRI & NATUEAL EESCURCES; DELAWARH STATE COLL, DCVER, DELAWARE. 19901. Proj. No.: DELX-0007-79-2 Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 CCT 78 To 30 SEP 83

OBJECTIVES: Determine and measure the operationally significant effects of agricultural drainage on natural systems of the Del-Mar-Va Peninsula with particular reference to changes and trends in water relationship, microclimate population and comunity dynamics community productivities, viability of wetlands. Provide practical recommendations/guidelines for maintaining natural ecosystem where possible or maximizing desirable ecological changes and minimizing undersirable

APPROACH: See item No. 24.

changes where changes are necessary.

PEOGRESS: 79/10 TO 80/12. A water quality monitoring network was established in June 1977 on the Upper Choptank River Watershed (Delmarva Peninsula) to compare reconstructed and unreconstructed agricultural drainage ditches. Water quality wariables and benthic macroinvertebrates are sampled bimonthly. Water-table levels and soil moisture are also monitored. Statistical analysis of water quality data for the calendar years of 1978-1979-1980 is in progress. Significant differences between reconstructed and unreconstructed ditches include; increased water temperature and air temperature variations (2.5 degrees - 3.0 degrees C. water, 4 degrees - 6 degrees air); increases in pH, alkalinity (6-10 mg/l. CaCO(3)), bardness (0-15 mg/l.), sulfate (70-100 mg/l.), dissolved oxygen (2-4 mg/l.) calcium (2-6mg/l.); decreased acidity (10-i5 mg/l. CaC0(3)), haroness (S-15 mg/l.) sulfate (70-i00 mg/l.), dissolve oxygen (2-4 mg/l.) and calcium (2-6 mg/l.); decreased acidity (10-15 mg/l. CaC0(3)), color (20-40 Pt Co Units) and turbidity (10 to 20 NTU). Analysis indicates that the relationstips among variables, as well as the variables themselves are affected. Other water quality variables being monitored include residue, chloride, copper, lead, iron, nitrate, prosphate, fecal coliform, and biochemical oxygen demand. Three-year baseline data now exists on a ditch in which reconstruction activities commenced in April 1380. Post-reconstruction data will allow validation of present hypotheses.

PUBLICATIONS: 79/10 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

004.037 CRISO005920 INSECTICIDE AND NON-CHEMICAL CONTROL OF MOSQUITOHS

LAKE R W; NURPBEY F; ENTONOLOGY & APPLIED ECOLOGY; UNIVERSITY OF DELAWARE, NEWARE, DELAWARE, 19711. Proj. No.: DELO0728-A Project Type: SIATE Agency ID: SAES Period: To 01 JAN 99

OEJECTIVES: Study the effectiveness of control methods by trapping adult mosquitoes; the toxicity of insecticides to possible resistant and non-resistant mosquitoes, and to muskrats; and ditching of salt marshes as a control method.

APPROACH: Light trapping of adult mosquitoes with New Jersey light traps. Field and laboratory tests of promising insecticides. Determine resistance of pest species to insecticides with WHO test-kits. Ditching studies of standard and large (up to 15 feet wide) ditches.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TC 80/12. The following pest mosquitoes accounted for greater than 94% of the total females trapped: Culex spp. 48.5%, Cogillettidia perturbans 32.7%, Aedes vexans 8.3% and A. sollicitans 5.7%. Anopheles crucians complex, A. cantator and Psorophora confinnis made up little more than 3% of the total. Field tests with Hacillus thuringiensis war israelensis in micro marsh pools demonstrated the efficacy of this bacterial insecticide in controlling Culex spp. and A. sollicitans larvae. Dosage rates ranged from 0.25 to 1.25 kg/ha. In most tests mortality was 98.6-100% within 48 hours at the 1.0 and 1.5 kg/ha rate. In one test only 80 and 86.7% mortality was recorded for the .25 and .50 kg/ha rate. This material appears to be effective in both fresh and saline waters. Two tests were conducted with A. sollicitans in water of up to 15 ppt salinity. Oviposition containers in which separate infusions of alfalfa, straw and timothy grasses were tested remained attractive to Culex species for approximately 10-14 days. In five separate tests straw accounted for 69.4%, alfalfa 19.0%, and timothy 11% of 3.292 egg rafts collected. Eggs reared to 4th instar were identified as a mixture of Culex restuans and Culex pipiens. initial tests at Bombay Hook indicate that under dry or near drought conditions oviposition containers can be used as preferential sites for obtaining Culex sp eggs (C. salinarius, C. pipiens and C. restuans) when collecting in natural sites yields low populations of larvae.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

MATBER, T.N. 1980. Small Plot Evaluations of the Toxicity of Selected Chemicals for Mosquito Control to Salt Marsb Wildlife. Naster of Science Thesis. Univ. of Delaware.

004.038 CRISO06S332 PRODUCTIVITY OF THE SALINE MARSHES ON FLORIDA'S MORTH AND WEST COASTS, PEASE II

COULTAS C L; SUBRABNANYAM C E; FLORIDA AGRIC 6 NECE UNIVERSITY, TALLABASSEE, FLOEIDA. 32307. Proj. No.: FLAX-PR-0002-4232 Project Type: GRANT Agency ID: CSIS Period: 14 JAN 75 To 13 JAN 80

OBJECTIVES: The objectives are identical to those in the 1973 project entitled "Productivity of the saline marshes on Florida's North and West Coasts," with the following additions: Measure productivity of marsh plants. Determine calorific values of marst plants and animals.

APPEOACE: In addition to the approach described in the previously cited project (1973) we will use the following: Nonthly growth measurements will be made of marsh plants on different soils. The -14 technique will be used to measure production of Junous. Plants will be harvested in 1 m² plots. An oxygen bomb calorimeter will be employed.

PROGRESS: 79/01 TO 79/12. Juncus roemerianus is the dominant salt marsh anglosperm in Northwestern Florida, and its growth and production was determined in three soil zones. Productivity of Spartina and Distichlis was also measured. Total net aerial production of Juncus decreased landward from 949 g/m 2/yr in low marsh to 595 g in upper marsh and 243 g in high marsh. Production of Spartina also decreased landward from 700 g/m 2/yr to 335 g to 130 g in the three zones. Beight and diageter of Juncus shoots and rhizones decreased landward. Annual mean below ground biomass was 3 to 8 times that of annual mean above ground blomass in the three zones. Decomposition of Juncus and Spartina was faster in low marsh zones, and Spartina decomposed faster. Several methods were used to estimate the primary production of these plants. Nutritive values of shoots and rhizomes of Juncus and shoots of Spartina and Distichlis, were measured for live, dead and decomposing plant parts. Carbohydrates, proteins, lipids, ash, phosphates and nitrates showed seasonal fluctuations. Calorific values were comparable for live and decomposing shoots. Zonal differences were significant in ash crude fiber, protein, lipid and phosphorus of rbizones, and only of ash of shoots of Juncus. Protein enrichment of detritus during decomposition was observed. The detritus appears to be totally produced within the marshes by these plants. Several soil factors were examined, such as electrical conductivity, moist pB, and cation exchange capacities.

PUBLICATIONS: 79/01 TO 79/12

- KRUCZINSKI, W.L., SUERAEWANYAM, C.B. and DRAKE, S.H. 1978. Studies on the plant community of a North Florida salt marsh. Part I. Frimary production. Bull. Nar. Sci. 28:316-334.
- KRUCZYNSKI, W.L., SUBRABMANYAN, C.B. and DRAKE, S.B. 1978. Studies on the plant community of a North Florida salt marsh. Part II. Nutritive values and decomposition. Bull. Mar. Sci. 28:707-715.
- COULTAS, C.L. and GRCSS, E.R. 1975. Distribution and properties of some tidal marsh soils of Apalachee Bay, Florida. Proc. Soil Sci. Amer. 39:914-915.

004.039 COMPARATIVE ECOLOGY OF SELECTED SPECIES OF AQUATIC INSECTS, PHASE IV

PETERS W L; FLORIDA AGRIC & NECH UNIVERSITY, TALLABASSEE, FLOBIDA. 32307. Proj. No.: FLAX-PM-0001-4231 Project Type: GEANT Agency ID: CSRS Period: 22 SEP 75 To 01 JUL 80

OBJECTIVES: Study the ecology of selected species of aquatic insects that are important in understanding the mechanisms of a natural aquatic environment, study the comparative ecology of selected aquatic insects across major climatic areas in order to characterize critical factors, conditions, and indices of the unique relationships with a natural aquatic environment, and develop biological methods based on aquatic insects to indicate, and prevent pollution in natural aquatic environments, by agriculture, industry and the general public. APPROACH: Various species of aquatic insects will be selected for studies of ecology, life history, habits, behavior, and seasonal distribution. The Ephemeroptera (Mayflies), Chironomidae (midges) and Coleoptera (beetles) will receive initial emphasis. Relationships of the several species with their aquatic environments including pollutants will be established.

PROGRESS: 75/09 IC 80/09. During the period of this grant, research was completed on the Adult life and emergence of Dolania Americana in the Blackwater River, Florida. This research is an accumulation of 5 years' data. The environmental requirements of pollution tolerance of common freshwater chironomidae in the United States was completed and published. A total of 16 papers on Ephemeroptera, Chirchomidae and Aquatic were published.

PUELICATIONS: 75/09 TO 80/09

- BECK, W. M., JR. 1977. Environmental requirements and pollution tolerance of common freshwater Chironomidae. U. S. Environmental Protection Agency, Environmental Nonitcring Series, 260p.
- BUBBARD, N. D. 1977. The validity of the generic name Parameletus Bengtsson (Ephemeroptera: Siphlonuriidae). Proc. Entomol. Soc. Wash. 79(3) : 409-410.
- BUBBARD, M. D. AND CUNNINGBAM, W. G. 1977. Orientation of mounds in the ant Solenopsis invicta (Bymenoptera, Formicidae, Myrmicinae). Insectes Sociaux 24(1): 3-7.
- HUBBARD, M. D. and FETERS, W. L. 1977. Ephemeroptera. In S. B. RURLBERT, ed. Biota Acuatica de Sudamerica Austral. San Diego State University. pp. 165-169.
- BUBBARD, M. D. and EDMUNDS, G. 1977. A homonymic synonym in Callibactis (Ephemeroptera: Bactidae). J. New York Entomol. Soc. 85(2): 55.

004.040 CRISO075815 PELATIONSHIPS DETWEEN SALT MARSE AND ESTUARING ANIMAL COMMUNITIES AND ENERGY EXCHANGE

SUERABMANYAM C B; BIOLOGY; FICRIDA AGRIC & MECB UNIVERSITY, TALLABASSEE, FICHIDA. 32307. Proj. No.: FLAX-PE-0002-4232-1 Project Type: GRANT Agency ID: CSRS Period: 21 APR 78 To 20 APF 88

OBJECTIVES: Conclude the study of benthic and pelagic animals in St. Warks estuary. Assess metabolic requirements of estuarine and marsh animals. Determine caloric values of marsh and estuarine animals and plants. Initiate study of seasonal composition of estuarine and inshore plankton.

APPROACE: A benthic dredge will be used to sample a known volume of sediments, and a 14-ft balloon trawl for collecting nektonic and bentbic species. The rate of oxygen uptake of young and mature specimens of invertebrates and fish will be determined in a static system in 2-br experiments. Caloric values of dried specimens of plants, invertebrates and fish will be determined in a Parr Oxygen Bomb Calorimeter using standard procedure. A No. 3 net and a No. 20 net will be used to sample phyto- and zooplankton in the estuary and in insbore waters. After taking the settling volumes qualitative analysis of the species will be carried out in the laboratory.

PROGRESS: 77/10 TO 79/09. The study of the infaunal invertebrates and fish of St. Narks River estuary and shallow inshore was continued and completed. The soils of the same localities contained 80 to 92% sand, 2 to 13% clay, and 0.2 to 2% organic matter. The density of invertebrates was higher than in marsh, and amphipods were more abundant. Fish numbers declined from about 80-2000/catch at inshore station to 5-10/catch at river station. Black bass and spinbox fish were common in trawl samples. Estuarine fish, such as Leiostomus Lagodon, Anchoa, flounders and blue crabs and sbrimps enter marshes as juveniles. The fish production was estimated at 1.68 g/m 2/yr at St. Marks and 3.13. g/m 2/yr at Wakulla. Fish catch in Florida amounts to 18 million dollars per hours. A Master's Thesis was developed on the economic value of salt marshes, and an estimate of 56 to 69 dollars per acre was arrived at based upon blue

crab fishery. The distribution patterns of invertebrates show that Cyathura is ubiquitous, certain polychaetes are restricted to either marsh zones or tidal creeks, and molluscs such as Polymesoda are restricted to marsh zones. Among fishes killifishes occur more abundantly in marsh creeks than in estuaries. Energy exchange between estuaries and marshes in via tidal creeks. Preliminary experiments on metabolic needs of fish species indicate that migratory fish species need basically more oxygen per gm of body weight than resident fist, and both types are metabolically dependent on external oxygen.

PUBLICATIONS: 77/10 10 79/09 SUBEABMANYAM, C.F. 1980. The role of salt marsbes in the production of fish. Florida A and M University Research Bulletin. In Press. SUBRABMANYAM, C.F. 1980. Cxygen consumption of estuarine fish in relation to external oxygen tension. Comparitive Biochemistry and Physiology. In Press.

004.041* CFIS0076759 ECOLOGY OF SALT MAESEES IN FELATICH TO ESTUARIES AND EMERGY FLOU

 SUPFAHMANYAM C B; EIOLCGY; FLCEIDA AGPIC & MECE

 UNIVERSITY, TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA. 32307.

 Proj. No.: FLAX79004

 Project Type: 1890/T

 Agency ID: CSRS

 Period: 01 CCT 78 To 30 SEP 83

OBJECTIVES: Study community structure and seasonal variations in marsh and estuaries; study breeding cycles of individual species; study nutritional needs of species in terms calorie intake study energy utilization of species in terms of oxygen consumption; determine the energy content of species in terms of caloric values and study activity patterns in field and laboratory to understand movements of species.

APPROACE: Collect animals with trawl, plankton nets, corer and grabs. Sort and identify species. Follow the seasonal distribution of larvae in plankton to assess breeding patterns. Conduct feeding experiments in laboratory, and evaluate food intake and assimilation. Study the oxygen consumption rates by continuous flow techniques, and determine diurnal and tidal rhythms of metabolism by 24-tr experiments. Burn the organisms in Cxygen bomb calorimeter and determine caloric values. Tag fish species in field and follow movements by recapture. Release tagged fish in enclosures and follow activity. Perform laboratory experiments.

PROGRESS: 79/09 TO 80/08. The abundance patterns of fish and invertebrates in St. Marks coastal estuarine-marsh system were summarized in a published paper. Preliminary experiments on the metabolism of estuarine fish showed that the two resident species, Fundulus grandis and F. similis consumed 0.036 -0.047 m10(2)/gm/hr, which was lower than 0.071 -0.112 m10(2)/gm/hr consumed by the migratory species Leiostomus xanthurus and Lagodon rhomboides. All the four species showed metabolism dependent on ambient oxygen tension in the range of 20-90 mmBg. Plankton collections and water quality study in St. Warks estuary and Apalachee Eay were started in April 1979 and will be completed in May 1981. Differences hetween surface and bottom salinity in one tidal cycle were as high as 5-8 p.p.t., but between surface and hottom oxygen (0.5-1.0 m1/1) and temperature (1-2)degrees C) were negligible. Summer temperatures were higher in contrast to salinities because of rainfall. Plankton volume varied from 5m1/tow (8 minutes) to 300 ml/tow between cool and warm months. Phytoplankton maxima were observed in fall and early winter, and zooplankton peaks in late spring and late summer. When stations are compared, Apalachee Bay stations generally showed larger volume of plankton, and mesobalize estuarine stations showed less. Crustacean larvae such as crab zora and megalopa, penaeid postlarvae, and fish larvae were abundant from spring through fall.

PUBLICATIONS: 79/09 TO 80/08

 SUBEAHMANYAM, C.B. Oxygsn Consumption of Estuarine Fish in Relation to External Iension. Comparative Biochemistry and Physiology 67A:129-133.
 SUBEABMANYAM, C.B. Studies on the Animal Communities in Two North Florida Salt Marshes. Pt. III. Seasonal Fluctuations of Fish and Macroinvertebrates. Bulletin of Marine Science 30:790-818.

004.042 CFIS0075816 COMPARATIVE ECOLOGY OF SELECTED SPECIES OF AQUATIC INSECTS, PEASE IV

PETERS W L; ENTONCLOGY; PLORIDA AGEIC & MECE UNIVERSITY, TALLAHASSEE, FLCFIDA. 32307. Proj. No.: FLAX-PE-0001-4231 Project Type: GKANT Agency ID: CSFS Period: 21 APR 78 To 01 JUL 80

OBJECTIVES: Study the ecology of selected species of aquatic insects that are important in understanding the mechanisms of a natural aquatic environment, study the comparataive ecology of selected aquatic insects across major climatic areas in order to characterize critical factors, conditions, and indices of the unique relationships within a natural aquatic environment, and develop biological methods based on aquatic insects to evaluate and prevent pollution in natural aquatic environments.

APPROACE: Various species of aquatic insects will be selected for studies of ecology, life history, habits, behavior, and seasonal distribution. The Emphemeroptera (Mayfiles), Chironomidae (midgee) and Coleoptera (beetles) will receive initial emphasis. Relationships of the several species with their aquatic environments including pollutants will be established.

PECGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. During this grant, the snvironmental requirements on pollutions tolerance and Ephemeroptera in the United States were completed and µublished. Ecology and taxonomy of various species were completed from Wisconsin, New Zealand, and New Caledonia. A total of 13 papers on Ephsmeroptera, Chironomidae and aquatic weevils were published.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- FLOWERS, R. W. 1978. Occurrence of Cloeon cognatum Stephens in the United States (Ephemeroptera, Baetidae). Entomological News 89 (2 6 3): 75-80. FLOWER, R. W. and HILSENBOFF, W. L. 1978. Life
- cycles and habitats of Wisconsin Beptageniidae (Ephemeroptera). Bydrobiologia 60 (2): 155-171. EUBEARD, N. D. and PETEFS, W. L. 1978. A catalogue
- BUBEARD, M. D. and FEIERS, W. L. 1978. A catalogue of the Ephemeroptera of the Indian Subregion. Oriental Insects Supplement S. 43pp.
- BUBBARD, M. D. and RIEK, E. F. 1978. New name for a Triassic mayfly from South Africa
- (Ephemeroptera). Psyche 83(3-49 : 260-261. EUBEARD, M. D. and PETERS, W. L. 1978. Environmental requirements and pollution tolerance of Ephemeroptera. U. S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA-600/4-78-061), Cincinnati. vi + 461pp.

004.043 CRIS0076796 WATER QUALITY STUDIES: COMPARATIVE ECOLOGY AND SYSTEMATICS OF SELECTED AQUATIC INSECTS

 PETERS W L; ENTONOICGY; FLCRIDA AGRIC & NECE

 UNIVERSITY, TALLABASSES, FLOFIDA. 32307.

 Proj. No.: FLAI78008

 Agency ID: CSRS

 Period: 01 CCT 78 To 30 SEP 83

OBJECTIVES: Study the systematics of mayflies, midges, and aquatic weevils when needed to use as a tool in water quality studies in the U.S., study the ecology of selected species of mayflies, midges, and aquatic weevils that are important in understanding the mechanisms of a natural aquatic sovironment, study the comparative ecology of selected species of mayflies, midges, and aquatic weevils across major climatic areas in order to characterize critical factors, conditions, and indices of the unique relationships with a natural aquatic environment, and develop biological methods based on aquatic insects to indicate and prevent pollution in natural aquatic environments by agriculture, industry and the general public.

APPEOACH: Various species of aquatic insects will be selected for studies of ecology, life history, habits, behavior, and seasonal distribution. The Ephemeroptera (Mayflies), Chironomidae (midges) and Coleoptera (beetles) will receive initial emphasis. Felationships of the several species with their aquatic environments including pollutants will be established.

PROGRESS: 79/10 TO 80/12. Various taxonomic and ecological studies on aquatic insects have been completed and published. These include among others: (1) a revision of the family Baetiscidae, (2) a review of the nearctic Beptagenia, (3) a comparison of mayfly instar determination methods, (4) comparative internal anatomy of larval mayflies, (5) several works on Southern Bemisphere Leptophlebildae, (6) a revision of Bomoeoneuria, (7) new chironomid records for southern U.S., (8) taxonomic composition of Chironomidae in sand bottom streams in Florida, and (9) a checklist of Hyperodes. Studies continue on: (1) limnology and species ecology of Blackwater River, (2) ecology of aquatic insects of Burnt Mill Creek, (3) ecology of Chironomidae in Turkey Creek, (4) the Chironomidae of Florida, and (5) ethology of aquatic weevils.

PUBLICATIONS: 79/10 TO 30/12

- BECK JR., W.M. 1980. Interesting New Chironomid Records for the Southern United States (Diptera: Chironomidae). Journal of the Georgia Entomological Society 14(1):69-73.
- BERNER, L. and FESCADOR, M.L. 1980. The Mayfly Family Bactiscidae (Ephemeroptera). Part I. In: Flannagan, J.F. and Warshall, K.E., Eds., Advances in Ephemeroptera Biology, pp. 511-524. Flenum Press, New York.
- FINK, T.J. 1980. A Comparison of Wayfly (Ephemeroptera) Instar Determination Methods. In: Flannagan, J.F. and Mershall, K.E., eds., Advances in Ephemeroptera Biology, pp. 367-380. Plenum Press, New York. FLOWERS, R.W. 1979. A New Species of Baetis from
- PLOWERS, R.W. 1979. A New Species of Baetis from Panama (Ephemeroptera:Baetidae) Pan-Pacific Entomol. 55(3):187-191.
- FLOWERS, R.W. 1980. A Review of the Nearctic Heptagenia (Heptageniidae, Ephermeroptera). In: Flannegan, J.F. and Marsball, K.E., Eds., Advances in Ephermeroptera Biology, pp. 93-102. Plenum Fress, New York.

004.044 CFIS0071130 VALUE OF TIDAL MARSHES IN RELATION TO ESTUARINE ECOSYSTEM, AND EVALUATION OF PRESEVATES VETLANDS

COULTAS C L; SUBRAEMANYAM C B; RURAI DEVELCPMENT CENTER; PLORIDA AGAIC & MECH UNIVERSITY, TALLABASSEE, FLCEIDA. 32307. Proj. No.: FLAX-PR-0002-4232 Project Type: GEANT

Agency ID: CSRS Period: 16 JAN 76 To 04 NOV 80

OBJECTIVES: Stabilize dredge spoil & study animal & plant colonization. Study animal communities of St. Marks River estuary. Estimate value of tidal marshes in Wakulla Co. Investigate parameters important for growth of Juncus. Characterize merits of selected freshwater wetland. Compare soil properties of marshes & upland.

AFFFGACH: (The methods related to objectives in the same order). Quantitative bimonthly collection of plants 6 animals in dredge spoil. Quantitative monthly collection of plankton, nekton 6 benthos from estuary. Estimation of standing crop biomass. Estimation of standing crop, collection of fish catch data. Application of fertilizers and monthly estimations of productivity of Juncus. Laboratory determination of soil characteristics. Survey of freshwater soils using standard methods and determination of soil properties. Examination of soils along transects, and estimation of soil properties.

PROGRESS: 79/01 TO 79/12. A study of the fish and invertebrate communities in St. Marks River estuary and shallow waters of Gulf of Mexico is heing conducted, with a two year sampling program. An investigation of the infaunal communities of tidal creeks has been completed, and the results are being processed for a scientific paper. The colonization process in the intertidal zone of a man made dredge spoil island was completed. Cyathura polita, an isopod, has been recorded in Juncus marshes for the first time. Its density in the sediments varied between 58 and 75/m 2. Reproduction occurred in April, young were common in May and these produced young in following April. Males matured first, and possible protogynous hermaphroditism may exist. This is a very important forage species for young fish. A total of 29 species of polychaetes colonized the intertidal zone of the island. Densities varied from 16 to 1152/m 2. No correlation between substrate type and feeding preferences was noticed. Among the four stations studied, species appeared to expand their habitat from low to high tide regions over a year's time. Scoloplos and Aricidea were pioneering species. An equilibrium of number of species was not detected, and more species moved in from estuaries. This study showed that disturbed marshes may be colonized by estuarine species. A comparison with the estuarine fish species of the marsh species revealed that several commercially important species use marshes as nursery.

PUBLICATIONS: 79/01 TO 79/12

SUBRABMANYAN, C.B. and KRUCZYNSKI, W.L. 1978. Colonization of polychaetous annelids in the intertidal zone of a dredged material island in North Florida. Proc. Second Internatl. Ecol. Congr. Statisticl. Ecol., Jerusalem. In Press. COULTAS, C.L., BREITENBECK, G.A., KRUCZYNSKI, W.L. and SUBRABMANYAN. C.B. 1578. Vegetative

and SUBRABMANYAM, C.B. 1878. Vegetative stabilization of dredge spoil in North Florida. J. Soil and Water Conser. Jul-Aug:183-185.

COULTAS, C.L. 1976. Soils of Apalachicola National Forest wetlands. Part I. Titi swamps and savannahs. Proc. Soil and Crop Sci. Soc. Fla. 36:72-77.

004.045²² CRIS0079913 The ecological impact of integrated chemical and Biological aquatic weed contecl

HALLER W T; AGRONOMY; UNIVERSITY OF FLORIDA, GAINESVILLE, FLCEIDA. 32601. Proj. No.: FLA-AY-01987 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 AUG 79 To 31 DEC 82

OBJECTIVES: Determine the impact of chemical/biological control on the fishery environment, and ascertain the most desirable halance of vegetation verse open water that will maintain desirable water quality, fish growth and reproduction; evaluate the feasibility of combining chemical and biological weed control in a natural lake and determine costs benefit ratios.

APPROACH: Two lakes and 24 ponds will be utilized to test the above objectives, water quality, fish population, benthos, zooplankton, and phytoplankton will be analyzed in each habitate

PROGRESS: 80/01 TC 80/12. Collection of background information was conducted on aquatic macrophytes, phytoplankton, henthos, algae and fish populations from Orange Lake (4,921 ha), Lake Pearl (23.5 ha), and in 24 0.2 ha ponds before initiation of treatment. The 24 ponds were separated into chemical, grass carp, fertilization, and control. Grass carp were stocked at a rate of 4, & and 16/pond and chemical treatments were applied to evaluate effectiveness for 30, 60 and 100% vegetation control. Treatment ponds supported plankton populations consisting primarily of the green algae genera Cosmarium, Scenedesmus and Tetraedron. The cladoceran genera Nacrothrix and Alona and the rotifer Keratella numerically dominated all samples. Lake Pearl was chemically treated three times during the spring and summer to reduce biomass and stocked with grass carp to study integrated control. Radio transmitters were implanted in ten grass carp and nine largemouth bass.

Although individual bass moved as an immediate response to herbicide application, percent occurrence of sightings remained evenly distributed in respect to herbicide treatment. Eighty-one percent of the grass carp were found in the treatment area prior to treatment, decreasing to 56% post-treatment. Dominant genera were the flagellated Ceratium and Chlamydomonas and the nonflagellated chlorophytes Ankistrodesmus, Staurastrum and Cosmarium. infestation of hydrilla in Orange Lake has increased from 66 ha ir 1978 to 1,240 ha in 1980.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO SU/12 NG PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERICD.

004.046* CFIS0068632 BASELINE STUDIES FOR EVALUATING THE RESPONSE OF AN ECOSYSTEM TO THE INTRODUCTION OF WHITH ANUE

EWEL & C; FOR RES & CONSERV; UNIVERSITY CF FLORIDA, GAINESVILLE, FLORIDA. 32601. Proj. No.: FLA-FY-01765 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 75 To 30 DEC 80

OBJECTIVES: Letermine the forcing functions, main energy flows, and variations in the important components in an aquatic ecosystem; construct and similate a model which will incorporate these variables and which will include the possible effects of the introduction of white amur to the ecosystem; monitor the changes that actually do take place in an ecosystem when the fish is introduced, revising the model until it is a reasonable generalization of the ecosystem.

APPROACE: Easeline ecological data will be collected by state agencies on a lake into which the white amur will be introduced in the second year of the study, Models incorporating these data will predict the effects of the fish, and these models will be verified by continued data collection.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. A model of Lake Conway, FL, was simulated with and without white agur present. If rates used in the model are accurate, the grazing food chain in this lake is slightly more important than the detritus food chain, and 10% of the gross primary productivity is grazed. One-quarter of the annual phosphorus input to the epilianion comes from leaching and decay of submersed macrophytes. Similated ranges of state variables were close to values measured in most cases. The model was stable during a simulation representing ten years. After two years, simulated addition of white amur (7000 fish, each weighting 458g) decreased submersed macrophyte blomass to 60% of its normal peak biomass. Water quality improved, gross primary productivity and community respiration decreased, and the relative importance of the grazing food chain increased. Hiomass of benthic invertebrates and secondary predator fish increased. Addition of half as many fisb five years after the first introduction brought about the same degree of macrophyte control, but recovery was more rapid.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

004.047 CRIS0067422 ECOLOGICAL STUDY OF LAKE WALES, FLORIDA AFTER INTEODUCTION OF WEITE ANUF (CTENOPEAPYNGCDON IDELLA)

SHIREMAN J V; FOR RES & CONSERV; UNIVERSITY OF FLORIDA, GAINESVILLE, FLORIDA. 32601. Froj. No.: FIA-FY-01748 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JAN 75 To 31 DEC 80

OBJECTIVES: Wonitor the influence of stocked white amur on water chemistry and biological organisms in Lake Wales. Establish the rate of change in these parameters.

APPROACH: Limnological survey of the lake will be conducted. This will include sampling water, benthos, zooplankton, phytoplankton, and sediment. Samples will be collected monthly. PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. During the study period, 1977-1979, hydrilla cover increased from 48.9% during May, 1978 to 80.9% by September, 1979. Water quality determinations (chloride, sulfate, conductivity, chlorophyll a and turbidity) did not display seasonal differences. Calcium, magnesium, total iron potassium, nitrate, nitrogen and ammonia levels fluctuated seasonally exhibiting negative correlations with the amount of hydrilla. Sodium, orthophosphate and total phosphate levels did not exhibit seasonal and chronological changes. Phytoplankton populations can be described by the following generalizations: seasonal periodicity was constant from year to year; seasonal changes were repititious from year to year on a short-term basis; and seasonal changes in frequency and concentrations were minimal. Zooplankton populations exhibited seasonal differences and as hydrilla abundance increased greater numbers of littoral species were encountered. Senthic organisms exhibited significant seasonal changes, however, these changes were minimal, Generally, benthic numbers decreased as hydrilla increased. Previous studies have shown that hydrilla supports organisms that are normally found in the benthic community. Hluegill, redear sunfish and largemouth bass condition factors changed little during the study. It is doubtful that the hydrilla infestation during this study was sufficient to cause severe changes in conditions. Grass carp growth rates were good from 1974-1978.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- MARTIN, R.G. and SHIREMAN, J.V. 1976. A Quantitative Sampling Method for Hydrilla-inhabiting Macroinvertebrates. J.
- Aquatic Plant Manage 14:16-19. SBIREMAN, J.V. and MARTIN, R.G. 1978. Seasonal and Diurnal Zooplankton Investigations of a South Central Florida Lake. Florida Scientist 41:193-201.
- DURANT, D.R., SHIREMAN, J.V. and GASAWAY, R.D. Reproduction, Growth and Food Habits of Seminole Killifish, Fundulus seminolis, from Two Central Florida Lakes. Amer. Nidland Nat. pp. 127-133.
- SHIREMAN, J.V., COLLE, D.E. and MACEINA, M.J. 1980. Grass Carp Growth Rates in Lake Wales, Florida. Aquaculture 19:379-382.
- COLLE, D.E. and SHIREMAN, J.V. 1980. Coefficients of Condition for Largemouth Hass, Eluegill, and Redear Sunfish in Hydrilla Infested Lakes, Trans. Amer. Fish. Soc. 109:521-531.

U04.048 CRIS0J79914 TEE ECOLOGICAL IMPACT OF INTEGRATED CHEMICAL AND BIOLOGICAL AQUATIC WEED CONTROL

SHIREMAN J V; SCHOOL OF FOREST RESOURCES; UNIVERSITYOF FLCRIDA, GAINESVILLE, FLCEIDA. 32601.Proj. No.: FLA-FY-01987Project Type: STATEAgency ID: SAESPeriod: 01 AUG 78 To 31 DEC 82

OBJECTIVES: Determine the impact of chemical/biological control on the fishery environment, and to ascertain the most desirable balance of vegetation versus open water that will maintain desirable water quality, fish growth and reproduction. Evaluate the feasibility of combining chemical and biological weed control in a natural lake and determine cost benefit ratios. Determine the effects of dense submersed aquatic weed growth on the recreational utilization, fish production and water quality of shallow inland Florida lakes.

APPROACH: Two lakes and 24 ponds will be utilized to test the above objeactives, water quality, fish population, bentbos, zooplankton, and phytoplankton will be analyzed in each habitat.

004.049* CFIS0080007 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT AND VEED MANAGEMENT STRATEGIES UTILIZING GRASS CAEP (CTENOPEAPYNGODON IDELLA) SHIFEMAN J V; SCHOOL OF FCREST RESOURCES; UNIVERSITY OF FLORIDA, GAINESVILLE, FLORIDA. 32601. Proj. No.: FIA-FY-01986 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 24 JUL 79 To 31 OCT 81

OBJECTIVES: Impact assessment of grass carp on the Lake Wales ecosystem. Letermine management strategies for vegetation control utilizing grass carp. Develop methods for selective removal of grass carp from Lake Wales.

APPROACH: Standard field and laboratory methods will be utilized. See attached proposal.

004.050 CFIS0012468 RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN PESTICIDES AND GEORGIA PARM POND ECOSYSTEMS

REINERT R E; FOREST RESOURCES; UNIVERSITY OF GEORGIA, ATHENS, GEORGIA. 30602. Proj. No.: GEO00392 Agency ID: CSRS Period: 04 FEH 66 To 30 SEP 81

OBJECTIVES: Design and construct an automatic intermittent flow proportional diluter system capable of simultaneously delivering to test aquaria three different concentrations of each of two contaminants and all possible cross combinations. Determine the rates and sites of accumulation and the physiological effects of different combination and concentrations of metbyl parathion and tomphene on the bluegill.

APPROACE: With the use of the diluter system different groups of bluegill will be exposed to various combinations and concentrations of methyl parathion and toxaphene. Some groups of bluegill will be exposed to the insecticides for short term (56 hr) acute toxicity tests; others will be exposed for periods of 6 weeks to determine uptake rates, principal sites of storage, and long term effects on such parameters as growth, behavior, and mixed function oxidase activity.

PROGRESS: 76/06 TO 81/09. During the past 5 years the following studies have been done under this research project. A study which concerned the design of a proportional diluter to deliver combinations of contaminants to fish, and the use of this diluter to assess the effects of various combinations of concentrations of toxaphene and methyl prathion on bluegill. Two studies concerning the applicability of using gill histology as an "early warning" technique for assessing the effects of contaminants of farm pond fishes; a study that concerned the design and use of a small heart rate transmitter to measure heart rate as a physiological indicator of stress; a study of the capacity of farm pond fishes to acclimate to changes in pH in the laboratory and the field; a study concerning the use of adenylate energy charge as a measure of stress in farm pond fishes; a study of the odd-even food chain concept using algae, Daphnia, and fathead minnows. Hecause of the replacement of most of the insecticides that have been demonstrated to be harmful to fishes with less harmful materials we are terminating this project as of 9/30/81. However, because of the increasing threat of contaminants other than insecticides to farm pond fishes, we have initiated a new Hatch project entitled "Effects ofEnvironmental Contaminants on Georgia Farm Pond Fishes".

PUELICATIONS: 76/06 10 81/09

- HOHREITER, D.W. and R.E. REINERT. 1980. Adenylate Energy Charge as an Indicator of Stress in Fish. (Abstract) American Fisheries Society 110th Annual Meeting, Louisville, KY.
- STRINGER, G.I. 1979. The effects of an anionic detergent on the gill tissue morphology of sheepshead minnows, Cyprinodon vareigatus. (Abstract) Annual Weeting of the Southeastern Electron Wicroscope Society, Athens, Ga. 1979.
- CULEEPTSON, J.C. 1979. Electron microscope observations of the gills of weakfish, Cynoscion regalla and spot, Leiostomus xanthurus. (Abstract) Annual Meeting of the Southeastern Electron Microscope Society, Athens, GA. 1979.

MUDRE, J.M. 1970. Some effects of surgical implantation of transmitters on the physiology and behavior of channel cattish.

004.051 CRISO083648 HEFECTS OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONTAMINANTS ON GEORGIA FARM POND FISHES

REINERT R E; SHRODE J; FOREST RESCURCES; UNIVERSITY OF GEORGIA, ATHENS, GEORGIA. 30602. Proj. No.: GEC00738 Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 PEB 81 To 31 JAN 84

OBJECTIVES: Refine an adenytate (ATP, ADP, AMP) assay procedure for determining energy charge (ATP + 1/2ADP divided by ATP + ADP + AMP) in farm pono fishes; Test the applicability of energy charge as a sensitive indicator of stress caused by various contaminants and water quality parameters associated with agricultural and forestry practices; Determine the capacity of farm pond fishes to acclimate to changes in pH.

APPROACH: In our Whitehall Laboratory energy charge values will be determined for fishes that are stressed by handling, by changes in temperature and dissolved oxygen, and by exposure to sublethal concentrations of insecticides and herbicides. Fishes will be tested using static and flow-through bicassay tests; Fish from low and neutral pB environments will be tested by first exposing them to a series of pBs and then transferring them directly to aquaria adjusted to low pB levels. For each acclimation group, median resistance time determined by probit transformation will be plotted against pB.

004.052 CRIS0077715 OYSTER PRODUCTION EQUIPMENT DEVELOPMENT

WANG J K; AGRI ENGINEERING; UNIVERSITY OF BAWAII, HONOLULU, BAWAII. 96822. Proj. No.: RAW00528-S Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JAN 79 To 30 SEP 81

OBJECTIVES: Develop a system for flushing and cleaning stacked oyster trays of pseudofeces; ideally without breaking open the stacks.

APPROACH: In depth review of literature covering applicable methods and technology. Determine physical and hydraulic properties of oyster at different stages of growth. Design and testing of prototype equipment.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. A prototype oyster cleaning and sorting equipment was designed and constructed. Preliminary tests were conducted on the mechanical oyster cleaner by varying the oyster feed rate, water flow rate, and water pressure. It was found that the oyster cleaner provides satisfactory cleaning for oysters of length greater than 2.5 cm (1 inch). It can clean 250 marketable oysters per minute (about 30 bushels per hour or 680 kg per hour). A water flow rate of greater than 1.58 L/s (25 GPM) and a water pressure of 103 kPa (15 psi) are required. It was found that a 6-inch diameter by 50-foot long parallel rollers can effectively size artifically grown oysters. The prototype sizer can size oysters satisfactorily at a feed rate of 200 marketable oysters per minute (about 24 bushels per hour or 540 kg per hour) at a roller inclination of 175 rad (10 degrees).

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- WANG, J.K. and YCW, K.W. 1980. Analysis of Cyster Production in Hawaii. Paper Presented at the ASAE Summer Meeting, San Antonio, TX. ASAE Paper 80-5047.
- YOW, k.V. and WANG, K.J. 1980. Mechanical Cleaning and Sorting of Hawaiian Cultured Cysters. Paper Presented at the ASAB Winter Meeting, Chicago, IL. ASAE Paper 80-6502.

004.053 CRISO081904 AQUACULTURAL WASTEWATER MANAGEMENT AND UTILIZATION IN HAWAII

YANG P Y: AGFI ENGINEERING; UNIVERSITY OF BAWAII, BONCLULU, BAWAII. 86822. Proj. No.: BAW0J531-S Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 MAF 80 To 30 SEP 82

OBJECTIVES: Characterize effluent quality (organics and inorganics) of aquacultural pond; determine the role of oxygen demand in the water column of the pond; explore the appropriate control of oxygen concentration in the pond; explore the appropriate treatment alternatives in order to control water quality and water reuse of pond effluent.

APPEOACE: Establishment of data collection plan, sample collection and analysis of wastewater characterization. Conduct oxygen demand study in the field and laboratory and establishment of the relationship hetween oxygen consumptior rate and available oxygen demand material in the pond. Search available techniques and develop new ways to control oxygen level in the pond. Conduct laboratory and pilot plant study on the treatment alternative for water quality control and water reuse of pond effluent.

PRCGRESS: 80/03 TO 80/12. Investigations were conducted into the qualitative and quantitative nature of the water column oxygen demand of prawn (Macrohrachium rosenbergii) grow-out ponds. It was found that the water column oxygen demand represented between 48 to 87% of the total pond oxygen loss at night. A good correlation existed between the oxygen uptake rate and the total COD, particulate COD, suspended solids, volatile suspended solids and secchi disk depth measurements of the water column. Water quality management guidelines and procedures regarding oxygen demand in the pond were developed. This will provide a more positive control of the causes of oxygen depletion in the prawn production ponds and reduce the damage of cost of prawn production. Characterization of effluert quality organics and inorganics) of aquacultural pond and the appropriate treatment alternatives for controlling water quality and water reuse of pond effluent are under investigation.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/03 TO 80/12

LCSC&DO, T.M. 1980. An Investigation of the oxygen Demand Materials of the Water Column in Frawn Grow-out Ponds. M.S. Thesis, Univ. of Bawaii, Bonolulu, 100 pp.

004.054 CFISO082666 EXAMINATION OF THE SPAUNING ECOLOGY AND EARLY LIFE HISTORY OF KCIANEE SALNON IN COEUE D® ALENE LAKE

 EENNETT D; FCREST WILDLIFE & RANGE EXP ST; UNIVERSITY

 CF IDABC, WCSCCW, IDABC. 8J843.

 Proj. No.: IDA-CFU-0073

 Project Type: STATE

 Agency ID: OCI
 Period: 01 JUN 79 To 30 MAY 81

OBJECTIVES: Examine the ecology of shoreline spawning kokanee in Cceur d'Alene Lake and where needed, supplement this work with observations in Priest and Pend Oreille Lakes; examine spawning success, fry growth and mortality of shoreline spawning kokanee; evaluate behavior and recruitment of young-of-the-year shoreline spawning kokanee.

APPEOACB: Underwater diving and surface examination of suspected spawning areas will be conducted during the spawning period to chtain data on timing and physical characteristics of the habitat. Feterilized embryos will he placed in hatching boxes to assess spawning success. Fry traps will be positioned over known embryo concentrations to quantify fry emergence. Trawling will be conducted to evaluate concentrations of fry and timing and period of recruitment of pleagic waters.

PROGRESS: E0/0I TO 80/12. Trawling for juvenile kokanee in Cceur d'Alene Lake suggested that the majority of spawning activity was occurring in the northeast part of the lake. Preliminary data

indicated that recruitment to pelagic waters occurred shortly after emergence; emergence occurred over a prolonged period of time from late spring to early summer. Data also suggested significant higher growth rates in juvenile fish from Coeur d'Alene Lake as compared to Pend Oreille Lake. Observations of spawning ecology revealed that kokanee were spawning at singificant depths (15 m) along rip-rapped shorelines in Coeur d'Alene Lake. Natural spawning occurred over a large, irregular gravel substrate and that some fish were not constructing well defined redds as reported previously for this species. Embryos planted in Whitlock-Vihert boxes demonstrated that hatching and emergence success was highest over man-altered fill areas. Emergence success in "natural" areas was considered low. Daily growth estimates are being made by examination of otoliths which should provide additional information on ahundance and survival of juvenile kokanee.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

004.055 CRIS0082655 JUVENILE EMIGRATION OF LABONTAN CUTTIEGAT TROUT IN THE TRUCKEE-PYEAMID LAKE SYSTEM

BENNETT D; BJCENN T C; FOREST WILDLIFE & RANGE EXF ST; UNIVERSITY OF IDABG, MOSCCW, IDABO. 83843. Proj. No.: IDA-CFU-0062 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: OCI Period: 01 CCT 78 To 30 SEP 80

OBJECTIVES: Develop a comprehensive bibliography on timing and factors affecting salmonid fish emigration with particular reference to cutthroat trout; determine the timing and factors related to juvenile Lahontan cutthroat trout (Salmo clarki henshawi) emigration in the Truckee River basin and determine the impact of predators on plants of juvenile Lahontan cutthroat trout.

APPROACE: Juvenile cutthroat trout have been introduced in natural and artificial stream channels at different densities under normal levels of predation and no predation and their sovements monitored daily through the use of traps. Observations are being made on fish distribution, critical habitat and response to varying environmental conditions.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TC 80/12. Lahontan cutthroat trout fry were planted in artificial and natural stream channels at 1, 5 and 10 fish/m 2 to evaluate factors affecting the timing of migration and population responses to high densities. Fish were planted in early July 1979 and 1980 and traps were maintained into November when freezing temperatures precluded further trapping. Emigration of fry were correlated with increased discharges. Cutthroat trout were found to emigrate from the natural stream channel nearly every month of the year with greatest movement in the spring. Predation by resident brown, brook and rainbow trout was found to signififcantly affect the density of cutthroat juveiles in the stream channels. Densities of less than 1 fist/2 m 2 were common in predator free channels and about half this number in channels with predators.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

004.056 CRISO082656 EFFECT OF PEAKING POWER GENERATION ON FISM

BENNETT D; WEITE R G; POREST WILDLIFE & RANGE EXP ST; UNIVERSITY OF IDABO, MOSCCW, IDABC. 83843. Prcj. No.: IDA-CFU-0063 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: OCI Period: 23 FEE 79 To 28 FFE 81

CBJECTIVES: Assess the status of the warmwater fushery and determine the potential of improving warmwater fish habitat in lower Snake River reservoirs for the Snake River compenstation plan. Subobjective: Assess angler use and fishery characteristics in the lower Snake reservoirs aerial and ground surveys will be employed, anglers will be interviewed to assess their attitudes and preferences.

APPEOACH: Resident fishes will be collected by various appropriate techniques to assess species composition, relative abundance and batitat associations. Some of the collected fish are dissected to obtain information on the ecology of selected species while other fish are released with individually numbered tags for later identification if recaptured by sports fishermen or by researchers. Data interpretation and recommendations will be made regarding the potential of improving warmwater fish habitat in lower Snake reservoirs.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Preliminary results of fish collections and assessing angler use in lower Snake reservoirs has revealed a significantly sports fishery for several species of introduced warmwater fish. Ther period from March-Nay received the most intense fishing pressure. Angling success was highly variable but averaged 0.5 fish/hour. Twenty-five species of fish representing 9 families were collected in lower Snake reservoirs. Largescale suckers were the most abundant species followed by northern squawfish, bridgelip sucker, white crapple, yellow perch and carp. A few differences in species composition were found among five representative habitat types in Little Goose Reservoir. Water level fluctuations of 1.5 m were found to expose spawning nests and expose embryos to desiccation of shoreline spawning fishes. Data analysis is continuing to further assess the status of the warmwater fishery in the lower Snake reservoirs. Crayfish was the dominant forage species for predator species while crappies fed primarily upon zooplankton. Channel catfish and smallmouth bass were the two predatory resident species which consumed anadromous salmonid smolts during the spring emigration of smolts from the Snake River

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

BENNETT, D.H., BEATOVICH, P.M., HANSEL, H., KNOX, W. and PALMER, D. 1980. Status of the Warmwater Fishery and the Potential of Improving Warmwater Fish Habitat in the Lower Snake Reservoirs. Annual Rept. U.S. Army Corps of

004.057* CFIS0669627 CAREVING CAPACITY OF STREAMS FOR REARING SALMONIDS AS AFFECTED BY SEDIMENT & OTHER COMPONENTS

BJOENN T C; FOREST WILDLIFE 6 RANGE EXP ST; UNIVERSITY OF IDAHO, MCSCCW, ILAHO. 83843. Proj. No:: IDA-CFU-0031 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: OCI Period: 01 JUN 74 To 30 SEP 78

OBJECTIVES: Assess the density $(\#/m^2)$ of juvenile anadromous salmonids in selected forest streams of central Idahc; relate stream morphometry, cover, temperature, insect drift, numbers of cohabiting fish species, seeding rate (stock recruiment), and fish growth to numbers of juvenile anadromous salmonids; determine effects of a point influx of sediment on fish density; evaluate the usefulness of fall weir counts in determination of fish abundance.

APPROACH: Artificial channels will be employed in assessing the effect of seeding rate on salmonid abundance. Estimation of stream variables and fish abundance and growth will be made on Marsh Creed, Cape Horn Creek, Knapp Creek and Middle Fork on the Salmon River. Models for explaining fish abundance will be formulated and tested.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. During 1974, 1975, and 1976, we sampled Beaver, Cape Horn, Elk, Knapp and Marsh Creeks in the Central Idaho batholith and conducted experiments in artificial stream channels at Hayden Creek Research Station, Idaho, to determine their carrying capacity for rearing juvenile spring chinock salmon (Oncorhynchus tshawytscha) and related factors. We utilized a transect method to measure stream physical parameters, snorkeling gear to facilitate counting of fish, fish weirs to enumerate pre-smolt cbinock migrating downstream, and 30 m 3 of granitic sand dumped into Knapp Creek to assess sediment effects on fisb abundance. We released

juvenile chinook from Rapid River Batchery into Cape Horn, Knapp, and Marsh creeks after various treatments of predator and resident chinook population removal to help define carrying capacity. We also placed chinook population removal to help define carrying capacity. We also placed chinook fry into artificial stream channels to help assess the effects of weeding rate (egg deposition or juvenile plants) and water temperature on fish abundance. Numerical and biomass densities of age 0 chinook salmon in stream sites averaged 0.42 fish/m 2 and 1.51 g/m 2. The maximum average densities observed in naturally seeded streams were 0.48 fish/m 2 and 2.29 g/m 2, compared to 1.38 fish/m 2 and 5.42 g/m 2 in sites of Cape Horn Creek, where I stocked juvenile chinook salmon.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- SEKULICH, P.T. 1980. The Carrying Capacity of Infertile Forest Streams for kearing Juvenile Chinook Salmon. University of Idaho. Ph.D. Dissertation, 156 pp.
- SEKULICH, P.T. and BJORNN, T.C. 1977. The Carrying Capacity of Streams for Fearing Salmonids as Affected by Components of the Babitat. Completion Report to Memo of Understanding No. 12-11-204-11 to U.S. Forest Service, 79 pp.

004.058* WILD VERSUS MATCHERY TROUT CRI \$0082659

EJCENN T C; FOREST WILDLIFE 6 RANGE EXP ST; UNIVERSITY OF IDAHO, WOSCOW, IDAHC. 83843. Proj. No.: IDA-CFU-0066 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: OCI Period: 01 JAN 79 To 30 JUN 81

OBJECTIVES: Determine effect of stocking catchable-size trout on the avundance of wild trout. Investigate competition and survival under predation of wild and hatcheryfry, over-winter survival and behavior and length of hatchery experience repuired to alter fry behavior.

APPROACE: Plants of rainbow trout will be made for 2 years into several sections of a stream and wild trout abundance and movement will be assessed. Short-term abundance and behavior of wild and hatchery trout will be observed in a second stream. Experiments with fry will be conducted in artificial stream channels.

PEOGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. For the past two years we have been studying interactions of wild and hatchery trout in two idaho streams; the infertile St. Joe River and the productive Hig Springs Creek, tributary to the Lemhi River. To date, we have found no evidence that single plants of hatchery-reared, catchable-size rainbow trout displace wild resident trout. Study of effects of repeated plants is in progress. Behavioral differences of wild and hatchery rainbow trout are heing studies in experimental stream channels.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUELICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

004.059 CFIS0082660 EFFECTS OF CERONIC TURBIDITY CN SOCIAL CONTEST IN JUVENILE STEELEBAD TROUT AND COBO SALWON

BJORNN T C; FOREST WILDLIFE 6 RANGE EXP ST; UNIVERSITY CF IDAHC, MOSCC%, IDAHC. 83843. Proj. No:: IDA-CFU-0067 Project Type: STATE Agency iD: OCI Period: 08 FEE 78 To 30 MAY 80

OBJECTIVES: Determine if chronic turbidity interferes with feeding of age o steelhead and coho salmon, if turbidity does interfere with feeding, then determine if interference with feeding reduces growth of age 0 steelhead trout and coho salmon, if growth is reduced, determine if age 0 fish from turbid water streams are less able to secure and defend territories and otherwise compete in downstream rearing areas. APPROACE: We conducted tests at two facilities using fireclay and bentonite clay to generate turbidities in the 22-200 NTU range. We subjected steelhead trout and coho salmon atevins to varying levels of turbidity (contrasted with clear water control) and monitored growth differences based on total length and weight changes. We also calculated daily weight and length changes. After a period of growth, we marked one of the two groups of fish and combined all survivors in a single clear water test unit to determine the effect of rearing in turbid water on social contest ability. Numbers of out migrants of both turbid and clear water reared fish were recorded in both test prases.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12, Many small, intermittent West Coast streams are important spawning grounds for species of anadromous salmonids. Chronic turbidity in these streams during fry emergence and rearing peri could affect the numbers and quality of fry emigrating from these streams, Laboratory tests were conducted in three facilities over a two-year period to determine the effect of chronic turbidity on feeding, growth and social interactions of steelhead trout (Salmo gairdneri Richardson) and coho salmon (Oncorhynchus kisutch Walbaus). Differences in feeding capability and growth between fish reared in clear water (zero turbidity) and fish reared in varying levels of clay generated turbidity were indirectly assessed by measuring differences in the size related variables of condition factor, ending weight and length and mean daily weight and length increases. The two groups of fish were compared for each series cf tests. Differences in the effects of the two types of rearing environment were also assessed by counting the numbers of emigrants from the clear and turbid water test units. Differences between the two groups of fisb with respect to competitive ability were assessed by combining survivors of the growth phase from both clear and turbid water channels and counting the percentages of clear and turbid water reared fish that emigrated after agonistic encounters had occurred. Fish reared in clear water were notably larger and increased more rapidly in both weight and length than fish reared in turbid water.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- SIGLER, J.W. 1980. Effects of Chronic Turbidity on Feeding, Growth and Social Behavior of Steelhead Trout and Coho Salwon. Ph.D. Dissertation. University of Idaho. 158 pp.
- SIGLEE, J. W. and BJOENN, T.C. 1980. Effects of Chronic Turbldity on Feeding, Growth and Social Bebavior of Steelhead Trout and Coho Salmon. Final Report for Memorandum of Agreement 12-11-204-11, Supplement No. 75. College of

004.060 CFIS0082661 A STUDY OF FISM RESOURCES OF THE GOSPEL HUMP AREA

EJOENN T C; FOREST WILDLIFE & FANGE EXP ST; UNIVERSITY OF IDAEC, NOSCOW, IDAEO. 83843. Proj. No.: IDA-CFU-0068 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: OCI Period: 05 APE 79 To 30 SEP 82

OBJECTIVES: What quantity and quality of habitat is available to resident and anadromous fish in Gospel-Hump area study streams? What species of resident and anadromous fish are present, what types of habitat are they using and what are their present and potential densities in various habitat types in Gospel-Hump area streams? What is the potential yield of resident and anadromous fish from Gospel-Hump area streams? What differences are there in fish abundance and habitat quality between undisturbed Gospel-Hump drainages compared to nearby drainages compared to nearby drainages with logging and roading activities similar to those proposed.

APPEDACE: Streams will be stratified into five babitat types (pool, riffle, run, pocketwater, backwater) and fish densities will be observed via snorkeling in each habitat type. Ten sites per km of stream length will be selected randomly. Habitat typing and relative habitat quality will be based on measurements (depth, width, surface velocity, substrate composition, instream and riparian cover) taken across a habitat transect (stream profile) at each site. An entire stream section will be photographed with large-scale (1:3000) color aerial photography to aid in measuring total surface area. Estimates of total fish numbers will be calculated from observed fish densities and total areas for each babitat type.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. During the past year we initiated research to quantify the present and potential fish populations (both resident and anadromous species) in three undeveloped and three developed watersheds. This research will provide information for a model which will predict the effects of forest management activities on the fishery resource. We have identified five habitat types (pool, riffle, run, pocketwater, and backwater), observed fish densities (fish/m 2) via snorkeling in each habitat type to quantify and qualify available habitat, and will estimate total numbers of fish for each stream section. One of our study streams was photographed using large-scale (1:3000) color aerial photography techniques to measure total surface area. Fish migrations, movements, and habitat use will be monitored for 3 years. We will quantify changes in aquatic habitat, and utilize a sediment routing model to predict changes in fish populations resulting from various forest management activities.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

004.061 CRIS0084234 COBUR D'ALENE RIVER FISHERIES INVESTIGATIONS

HJORNN T C; FOLEST WILDLIFE & RANGE EXP ST; UNIVERSITY OF IDAHC, NOSCCW, IDAHC. 83843. Proj. No.: IDA-CFU-0074 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: OCI Period: 01 JUL 80 To 30 JUN 82

OBJECTIVES: Evaluate the status and stability of the fish populations in the Coeur d'Alene River. Identify factors which may limit the successful use of special regulations to maintain or restore west slope cutthroat trout populations. Make management recommendations based upon prior knowledge and data gathered from this study.

APPROACH: Conduct creel census to obtain estimates of harvest, effort, angling trends, angler satisfaction, regulation compliance, etc. Use direct underwater census on a continuous basis to monitor relative changes in abundance and gross movement patterns. Use weirs, tags and specific observation to monitor movements and other behavior.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. The increasing interest to maintain native wild trout populations has created new challenges in sport fishery management. The immediate and most popuar solution bas been to restrict the methods of angling. Nost initial studies reveal that such special regulations successfully reduces total mortality due to reduction in angling mortality. Consequently, restrictive angling regulations are becoming widespread as a management tool to maintain or salvage depleted stocks. More recent evidence, however, suggests that special restrictive regulations may not have the universal effect anticipated. Preliminary investigation of the Coeur d'Alene Biver stocks suggests a failure in the use of special regulations to restore the depleted cutthroat trout population. Major exphasis of this study is to identify factors which may be limiting the success of special regulations as an effective managemen tool. Possible sociological in addition to biological constraints are being investigated.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUELICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

004.062 CRISO084235 EFFECTS OF ADDITIONAL PEAKING FROM A POURTH GENERATOR AT DWORSBAK DAW IN CATCHABILITY, FTC. BJORNN T C; FOREST WILDLIFE & FANGE EXP ST; UNIVERSITY OF IDABO, MOSCOW, IDABO. 83843. Proj. No.: IDA-CFU-0675 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: OCI Period: 01 JUL 80 To 30 JUN 81

OBJECTIVES: To assess the effects of peaking flows and ramp rate on fish movements and distribution, suitability of the river for fishing, and catchability of steelbead in the Clearwater River.

APPROACE: Flows and flow changes simulating those from an additional generator at Dworshak Dam were scheduled during the fall and winter of 1980-81. Fish movements were traced with radio tags and census was used to monitor angler use and success rates.

PEOGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. The Crops of Engineers is proposing an additional generator to be used for power peaking at Dworshak Dam. The addition of a fourth generator would increase daily discharges during peaking operations from the present 10-11,000 cfs to 16-17,000 cfs. The objective of this study is to evaluate the effect of daily peaking on steelbead trout behavior and steelhead trout fishermen, Radio transmitters were implanted in 17 steelhead during September, 1980 with additional transmitters Implanted during the fall and winter. These fish will be monitore to evaluate their behavior during different peaking regimes. A special creel census (with hired anglers) will be conducted to evaluate fish catchability during both peaking flows. We will also determine the effects of the daily timing of the peak flows and daily rate of change in flows to see what conditions might provide the best fishing. Active research in progress.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

004.063 SPAUNING, RAELY LIFE HISTOPY, RAHITAT SELECTION OF NORTHERN SQUAUFISH: INFER. TO COLORADO SQUAUFISH

BJORNN T C; FOREST WILLLIFE & RANGE EXP ST; UNIVERSITY OF IDABO, MOSCC%, IDAHO. 83843. Proj. No:: ICA-CFU-0076 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: OCI Period: 15 AFE 80 To 30 SEP 81

OBJECTIVES: To describe for northern squawfish (Ptychocheilus oregonensis): spawning biology including seasonal and daily timing, characteristics of preferred spawning sites, spawning behavior, age structure and gonadal development patterns; early life history including food habits, daily activity patterns and monthly growth rates; habitat selection, daily activity and seasonal movement patterns.

APPROACE: Wost of the project involves faceplate observations and river mapping. In addition, adults are gill netted to ascertain movements and spawning population characteristics and young are seined for food habit examination. Results are compared between fish from the St. Joe River between St. Joe City and Avery and the Clearwater River below Lenore. Other river sections are sometimes included.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Selected aspects of the life history and behavior of northern squawfish (Ptychocheilus oregonensis) were studied in populations in the St. maries, St. Joe and Clearwater Rivers of north Idaho during 1980 in the first half of a two-year study. Large schools of spawning fish were located and spawnig behavior was decribed in detail. Spawning sites were described and compared and size, age and gonadal development patterns in the spawning populations were also examined. Development of young-of-the-year squawfish was monitored for one year and growth rates were determined. Food habits were examined in detail at intervals until one year of age. Habitats selected by all sizes of northern squawfish in the lower fastwater area of the St. Joe River during summer low flows were described and compared.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

004.064* CRIS0084239 HABITAT SELECTION AND SPECIES INTERACTIONS OF JUVENILE TROUT IN FLATEBAD RIVEP TRIHUTARIES

BJORNN T C; FOREST WILDLIFE 6 RANGE EXP ST; UNIVERSITY OF IDAHC, MOSCCW, 1DAHC. 83843. Proj, No:: IDA-CFU-0079 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: OCI Period: U1 MAY 80 To 30 JUN 82

OBJECTIVES: Determine habitat utilized by juvenile bull trout and cutthroat trout. Evaluate species interactions between juvenile bull trout and cutthroat trout.

APPROACH: Utilized habitat will be quantified at 2 levels, macro and micro. Macro refers to the habitat unit, pool rifile or run, that juvenile fish are using. Micro refers to the exact location within the hatitat unit an individual fish has chosen. Habitat units will be examined in large and small streams. Allopatric and sympatric situations will be sought.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Nigratory populations of cutthorat and bull trout utilize the upper portion of the Flathead River drainage for spawning and rearing. Many of the major tributaries to the upper forks of the river drain National Forest or British Columbi forest lands. These public lands are being investigated for coak, oil, and gas development. The potential impacts of these developments on the adjacent waters and ensuing effects on the Flathead fishery is of concern to the Nontana Cept. of Fish, Wildlife and Parks. Although habitat assessments, fish distribution and fish abundance data is available, the question of habitat selection remains unclear. The study is being conducted to better define the habitat selection of a cutthroat and bull trout. Study has not been completed nor has data been compiled and processed.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

004.065 CFIS0084241 DEVELOPMENT AND VALIDATION OF HABITAT-STANDING CROP FUNCTIONS FOR STREAM FISH AND THEIR FOODS

BJOENN T C; FOREST WILDLIFE & RANGE EXP ST; UNIVERSITY OF IDABC, MOSCCW, IDABC. 83843. Proj. No:: IDA-CFU-0081 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: OCI Period: 01 OCT 79 To 30 MAR 83

OBJECTIVES: The current objective of the fisherles portion of the study is to incorporate instream cover density into our emerging habitat-standing crop function in an effort to quantify the way it modifies the carrying capacity of streams undergoing progressive dewatering. Determine impact of reduced flow on aquatic insects, especially the dewatered zone.

APPROACE: Our approach is the stocking/emigration technique, with experimental (progressively dewatered) and control channels (constant flow) each containing subsections with varying densities of instream cover. Following pre-planned series of flow reductions, subsections are isolated with block nets and electrofished to determine fish distribution. Sample before and after flow reduction.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Three reduced stream discharge experiments were completed during 1980. These experiments were carried out at the Troy Instream Flow Research Facilities in Wallowa County, Oregon. The Experiments were conducted to supplement information on the base line response of fish and aquatic macroinvertebrates to reduced stream discharge. This information will be used to develop habitat-standing crop functions, which will enable prediction of the reduced stream discharge reponse of fish and macroinvertebrates in reconstructed experimenal channels at the Troy facilities. The reconstruction of the channels was completed by December 1980, and consisted of a change in the channel configuration that was predicted to result in maximal change in those habitat parameters most closely associated with the aquatic organisms response to reduced stream discharge.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUELICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

004.066 CFIS0077917

FALTER C N: FCFEST WILDLIFE & FANGE EXP ST;UNIVERSITY OF IDAEC, MCSCOV, IDAEO. 83843.Proj. No.: IDA-CFU-0059Project Type: STATEAmency ID: OCIPeriod: 01 MAY 77 To 01 MAY 80

OBJECTIVES: Assess the effect of low pool levels on selected limnolgical parameters. Temperature, dissolved oxygen, hydrogen sulfide, transparency, algal nutrients, algae and primary production in Dworshak Reservoir during the drought summer of 1977.

APPEOACE: Compare limnnological data from low runoff, drought year to limnological conditions from 1972-75. The draw-dowr reservoir was sampled monthly from May through November 1977 at both inshore and mid-channel sites.

PECGEESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Prominent limnological features of Dworshak Keservoir, a 200 meter deep oligotrophic impoundment in North Idaho were investigated in 1977, an extreme low flow year. Average reservoir retention time of 304 days increased to 634 days in water year 1977. Despite the high retention time, water quality and production characteristics of the reservoir were still determined primarily by influent quality and ambient temperatures. Minimum oxygen levels were 35% saturation at 200 m. Epiliminal temperatures through the Summer of 1977 were 22-24 C but low nutrient loading limited algal and zooplankton production to oligo-mesotrcphic levels.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NC PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

004.067 SPOKANE RIVES LINNOLOGY

CRIS0084244

FALTER C N; MITCHELL H D; FOREST WILDLIFE & RANGE EXP ST; UNIVERSITY CF IDAHC, NOSCOW, IDAHO. 83843. Proj. No.: IDA-CFU-0084 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: OCI Period: 01 FEH 80 To 31 JUL 81

OBJECTIVES: To determine the composition of the acquatic communities of the Spokane River (the 12-mile long outlet arm of Coeur d'Alene Lake) in north Idaho in response to upstream metals loading and sewage discharges to the study reach,

APPROACH: Parameters studied include phytoplankton growth in relation to nutrient addition and metals chelation, sediment composition and macrophyte distribution. Phytoplankton abundance was severely limited in Lake Coeur d'Alene outlet waters by high ambient concentrations of zinc and other heavy metals in the water column. Such inhibition has apparently been in effect since the initiation of sulfide ore mining in the watershed nearly 100 years ago. Experimental algal yields were 48% to 98% below predicted yields based on nutrient concentrations alone. Treatment with sodium salt of EDTA permitted higher algal response and showed the waters to be mesotrophic and primarily phosphorus-limited. Zooplankton and benthos communities in the Spokane River were also depressed below normal mesotrophic levels with both diversity and blomass quite low.

FECGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. The biotic communities of a 12-mile reach of the Spokane River were described in relation to upstream metals loading and municipal sewage discharges to the study reach. Phytoplankton and attached benthic algae production is severely depressed by upstream zinc loading. Henthic invertebrate composition diversity was low, as was total number. Despite a well-washed river bottom of sand, cobble, and coarse logging debris (tark), benthic communities were dominated by forms apparently relying on heteratrophic organic inputs.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUELICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERICD.

004.068 CRIS0084243 Stehlerad Ratchery as affected by pelatively eige Temperature water

KLCNTZ G W: FOREST WILDLIFE & RANGE EXP ST; UNIVERSITY OF IDABO, MOSCCW, IDAHC. 83843. Proj. No.: IDA-CFU-0083 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: OCI Period: 05 JUN 80 To 14 JUN 81

OHJECTIVES: To demonstrate that steelhead trout from Wallowa can be raised in 15 C water from the first feeding fry stage through smoltification.

APPROACH: Three raceways - two in series and one single-pass - will be stocked with several thousand steelhead first-feeding fry. The growth of the fish will be monitored and forecasting using computerized models. In addition, water chemistry parameters will be monitored and evaluated for their effect on growth and growth rates.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. During the first six months of this study, three groups of steelhead trout were monitored for growth rates and length frequency distribution within groups. The groups were designated: A (large fish), H (medium fish), and C (small fish). Each group was set on a feeding schedule designed to permit it to have an average 5.5/lb size by mid-April IS8I. Thus far, the growth data indicate that this approach is feasible. The dietary efficiencies and growth rates have been within 3% of the predicted values.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUELICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

004.069 BIOFILTER FERFORMANCE FACTORS

CRIS0077918

KLONTZ G W; LAI V K; FOREST WILDLIFE 6 RANGE EXP ST;UNIVERSITY OF ABABC, NOSCOW, IDAHC. 83843.Proj. No.: IDA-CFU-0060Project Type: STATEAgency ID: OCIPeriod: 01 JUL 77 To 30 DEC 80

OEJECTIVES: Identify and evaluate the effect(s) of the following factors on nitrification capabilities of biological filters: Alkalinity, pH, calcium and magnesium hardness, dissolved oxygen, water flow rates, ammonia-nitrogen, nitrite-nitrogen and nitrate-nitrogen.

APPROACH: Duplicate fish-free biological filtration systems will be established. Thechemical parameters will be evaluated dairy pre- and post-feeding with ammonia-nitrogen.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. This study arose out of serious questions being asked about the performance of biofiltration systems at the Dworshak hational Fish Batchery. Experiments were designed and executed to determine the inorganic and organic requirements for the microbial nitrification process. The foregoing data were acquired in a fish-free system fed with measured amounts of the chemicals evaluated. Towards the end of the study, fish, steelhead trout, were put into the systems and monitored for physiological conditions such as gill lamellar configurations and growth rates. The study was necessarily short term - 6 weeks - but at the end the fish were all in good condition.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

LAI, K.V. and KLCNTZ, G.W. 1980. Evaluation of Environmental and Nuritional Factors Influencing the Performance of the Biofilters in Fish Rearing Systems: Final Beport. Walla Walla Distr. Corps of Engineers, Tech. Compl. kept. on 004.070 CRIS0082662 DEVELOFMENT AND AFFLICATION OF A METHODOLOGY FOR RECOMMENDING SALWONID EGG INCUEATION FLOWS

WHITE R G; FCREST WILDLIFE & RANGE EXP SI; UNIVERSITY OF IDABO, MOSCCW, IDARO. 83843. Proj. No: IDA-CFU-0069 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: OCI Period: 01 CCT 77 To 30 AFR 80

OBJECTIVES: Tevelop a usable methodology for recommending egg incubation flows for select salmonid fish species in Idaho. Assess the effects of dewatering and low flow on the egg environment and on egg survival. Experimentally compare flow requirements of different developmental stages of salmonid eggs. Measure physical and hydraulic parameters associated with natural redds whereby spawning criteria can be developed for important salmonid species of Idabo.

APPEDACH: Cb jectives 1-3 were conducted in experimental channels available at the Idako Dept. of Fish and Game Hayden Creek Research Station and at the University of Idabo's fishery wet lab. Both green and eyed eggs of chinook salmon, steelbead and cutthroat trcut were utilized in tests designed to compare egg survival in conditions of arying streamflow and different sediment levels. Cbjective 4 entailed loacting active matured redds of spring chinook, summer chinook, steelbead and dolly varden trout and measuring their associated physical and hydraulic parameters (e.g. water depth, water velocity, reed area, substrate composition).

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. From 1977-1979 field and laboratory tests were conducted to determine the impacts of streamflow reduction over redds on salmonid embryo incubation and fry quality. Laboratory tests were conducted in artificial stream channels located at the Bayden Creek Research Station and in incubation chambers installed in the University of Idaho fisheries wet lab. Field tests were designed to evaluate the effects of reducing depths and velocities over redds on spring chinook salmon (Oncorhynchus tshawtscha) and steelhead trout (Salmo gairdneri) embryo incubatin success and resulting alevins. Sediment size and level was incorporated into the test design. Measurements on 104 spring chinook salmon redds, 50 summer chinook salmon, redds, and 89 summer steelhead trout redds were taken and spawning criteria developed. Reduction in streamflow over redds containing sediment (<0.84 mm) in quantities from 3-13% resulted in increased embryo mortality with greatest increases associated with levels of 7% sediment ,0.84 mm. Flow reductions retarded development of embryos resulting in alevins which were shorter and lighter at time of hatching. Flow reductions made during early embryonic development may result in higher mortality than if made after the circulatory system is functional (approximate time of eye-up). Sediment was inversely related to embryo survival but unrelated to alevin quality. Sediment sizes <0.84 mm were the most deleterious to embryo survival.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

004.071 CRIS0082663 REFECTS OF INCREASED FINE SEDIMENT ON INCUEATION AND EMERGENCE OF CHINOOK SALMON AND STEELEEAD TROUT

WHITE R G; FOREST WILDLIFE 6 RANGE EXP ST; UNIVEFSITY OF IDARC, MGSCCW, IDABO. 83843. Proj. No.: IDA-CFU-0070 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: OCI Period: 25 SEP 78 To 30 SEP 81

OBJECTIVES: We plan to study the survival of salmon and steelbead eggs in various sediment mixtures. Our investigations should result in a reliable model to predict salmon and steelhead spawning success relative to stream bottom composition.

APFROACE: Measurements which describe the entire range of particles in spawning substrate should correlate with fish survival better than previously used point estimates (e.g. percent fines). Pirst, we hope to find a way of accurately describing spawning gravel using statistics from size frequency distributions. By relating sediment mixtures commonly found in streams to salmonid egg survival, we would be able to predict spawning success.

FROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. By analyzing gravel samples from salmonid spawning areas, we found that the composition f spawning gravels follows a consistent pattern. For material less than 25.4 mm (1 inch) in diameter, the distribution of particles is close to lognormal and can be accurately represented as a straight line on log-probability paper. Based on this phenomena, we proposed a new method of describing spawning gravel quality; this new method uses two sieve sizes to closely approximate gravel composition. Laboratory incubation experimets with steelhead and salmon embryos were conducted at the University of Idaho to test whether or not our method provided a better measure of spawning gravel quality than "percent fines". Steelhead and salmon embryos were burled in a wide range of gravel mistures, and emerging fry indicated percent survival in each misture. Using a standard statistical package, w developed models relating steelhead and salmon embryo survival to two variables: percent of the substrate less than 9.50 mm and percent of substrate less than 0.85 mm. Using our method of describing spawning gravel, 90 to 92 percent of the variability in survival-to-emergence was correlated with change in gravel composition. "Percent fines" accounted for only 56 to 86 percent of the variation in survival in the same tests.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

TAPPEL, P.D. and T.C. BJORNN. 1980. Effects of sediment composition on salmonid egg survival Annual report for the period September 1979 through October 1980. Memorandum of Agreement Supplement Number 87 to 12-11-204-11.

004.072 CRIS0082665 THE IMPACT OF POWHE PEAKING ON EGG INCUBATION OF FALL CHINOOK SALMOM

 WHITE R G; FOREST WILDLIFE 6 RANGE EXP ST; UNIVERSITY

 OF IDAHO, MCSCCW, IDAHO. 83843.

 Proj. No.: IDA-CFU-0072
 Project Type: STATE

 Agency ID: OCI
 Period: 10 CCT 78 To 30 JUN 80

OBJECTIVES: Assess the impacts of power peaking and the resulting fluctuating flows on the egg incubation and hatching success of fall chinook salmon in Bells Canyon. Experimentally compare the effects of dewatering and flow fluctuation on survival of various developmental stages of chinook eggs and on quality of fry and experimentally determine the tolerance limits of different developmental stages of eggs to varying periods of complete dewatering and associated effects of fry quality.

APPROACE: This portion of the study is being conducted on the Middle Snake river below Hells Canyon Dam where power peaking may pose a serious threat to the incubation and hatching of fall chinook eggs. Fall chinook eggs were placed in selected artificial and hatching of fall chinook eggs. Pall chinook eggs were placed in selected artificial redds which were, depending on location, dewatered frequently, infrequently or not at all (control). Egg survival will be assessed in early March. Objectives 2 and 3 utilized the field laboratory facilities located at Hyden Cree Research Hatchery. Fpr objective 2, chinook eggs were planted in artificial redds in 2 simulated stream channels. Flows in one channel were subsequently fluctuated while the flow in the second channel remained constant. Cbjective 3 was achieved by using 16 one foot deep x one foot wide x four feet long gravel filled chambers. Each chamber contained 4, 100 egg lots which were removed at intevals of 1, 2, 3, and 4 weeks of dewatering.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. During the fall and winter of 1979-80, tests were conducted in a section of the Widdle Snake River within Hells Canyon to determine the effects of hydroelectric powere peaking on fall chinook salmon (Oncorhynchus tshawytscha) embryo incubation and fry quality. Additional simulated peaking tests were conducted at the Hayden Creek
Research Station using artificial stream channels. Steelhead trout (Salmo gairdneri) and chinook slamon egg dewatering tolerance tests weree conducted at the Hayden Creek station using 16 independent flow controllable chamber in Hells Canyon, no definitive relationship was found between embryo survival and the inciderce of flow fluctuations and periodic redd exposure. however, the highest embryo survivals occur in areas dewatered the least. There was extensive sediment intrusion into the artificial fall chinook redds within Bells Canyon. In laboratory tests, no significant different (P>0.05) in survival were found between embryos periodically dewatered (11-12 hr/day) and those continually watered, although alevins from the channel which was dewatered were significantly longer (P < 0.0037) and heavier (P > 0.0391) than alevins from the control. This resulted from elevate temperatures in the dewatered riffles. Steelfead trout and chinook salmon embryos wre tolerant to 1-5 weeks of continuous dewatering with no significant effects on survival to hatching (provided embryos remained moist), alevin quality, growth rates or latent fry quality.

PUPLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

REISER, DUCLEY W. and RCEERTS G. WHITE. 1981. Effects of flow fluctuation and redd dewatering on salmonid embryo development and fry quality. Final report to Bonnevile Power Administration. Contract No. DE-AC7S-738P10848.

004.073 CRIS0082664 EFFECTS OF REDUCED STREAM DISCHARGE ON FISE AND AQUATIC MACRCINVERTEBRATE POPULATIONS

WHITE R G; HENNETT D; FOREST WILDLIFE & RANGE EXP ST;UNIVERSITY OF IDAEC, MOSCCW, IDAHO. 83843.Proj. No.: IDA-CFU-0071Project Type: STATEAgency ID: OCIPeriod: 01 SEP 77 To 30 APR 80

OBJECTIVES: Letermine the relationship between fish abundance and increments of reduced stream discharge. determine the response of aquatic macroinvertebrates to increaments of reduced stream discharge, determine the order of importance of depth, velocity, cover and if possible, food in limiting fish abundance as affecated by increments of reduced stream discharge, assess the primary hydraulic characteristics that are associated with low flow conditions and related biological conditions in a near natural study channel, evaluate the validity of certain predictive models currently beingused to describe hydraulic characteristics associated with low-flow conditions. and assess the influence of low-flow conditions on motion of bed material which may affect the biological communities.

APPROACE: Select fish species will be stocked in two experimental stream channels. Flows will be incrementally reduced in one channel, while remaining constant in the other stream channel. Migration rates of fish out of each channel will be compared. Aquatic macroinvertebrate communities will be monitored by benthic and drift sampling. Eydraulic characteristics will be measured during each test flow.

PECGRESS: 79/01 TO 79/12. During the calendar year 1979 two experiments were completed; one during March-April and one during June-July. Important findings of these experiments are: 1) effect of reduced stream discharge on fish extend at least 3 weeks after initiation of flow reduction; 2) wild rainbow-steelhead trout were more severely affected by reduced stream discharge than were fatchery steelhead trcut; 3) reduced stream discharge had the immediate effect of increasing aquatic insect drift density (#"s/n 3) but drift density returned to control levels in one week or less; 4) reduced stream discharge resulted in reduced invertebrate drift rates (#'s/hr), which lasted for the duration of tests. Specific effects on individual macroinvertebrate taxon are presently being analyzed as are size variation of fish in channels and direction of migration of the fish as related to flow levels. Hydraulic characteristics of experimental stream channels are being utilized to check the accuracy of the various predictive hydraulic models.

PUELICATIONS: 79/01 TO 79/12 NO PUELICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD

004.074 CRIS0027228 EVALUATION OF METHODS FOR INCREASING NATIVE CUTTEROAT STOCKS IN NORTHERN IDAHO

BJORNN T C; FORESTRY; UNIVERSITY OF ILABC, MOSCCW, IDABO. 83843. Proj. No.: ILA-CFU-0003 Rency ID: OCI Period: 01 JUL 66 To 01 JAN 99

OBJECTIVES: Ascertain ecological factors limiting production of cutthroat in northern Idaho. Develop management techniques to maximize production of cutthroat.

APPROACE: Survey St. Joe Fiver drainage to locate cutthroat rearing areas and classify them as to quality. Study ecology of cutthroat trout with special emphasis on movements, growth, and seasonal distribution. Evaluate squawfish as a potential predator and competitor for cutthroat.

PRCGRESS: 76/01 TC 76/12. We studied the fish and fisheries of three Northern Idaho streams to assess the impact of catch-and-release (Kelly Creek), trophy-fish (upper St. Joe River), and standard (North Fork of the Clearwater River) angling regulations on native cutthroat trout populations. Since the initiation of the special regulations, cutthroat abundance increased in Kelly Creek (7-fold) and the upper St. Joe River (3- to 7-fold), but has not changed on the North Fork. The mean size of the cutthroat, the number of large cutthroat, and the catch rate of cutthroat per hour have increased as a result of the special regulations. The annual mortality rates of cutthroat declined and allowed more cutthroat to mature and spawn. The catch of cutthroat by anglers increased, but the angler harvest of cutthroat decreased. Angler effort declined initially, but had recovered by 1975 to 20% of 1969 effort on Kelly Creek and to 100% of 1969 effort on the upper St. Joe River. Characteristics of anglers fishing Kelly Creek (angling method, age, sex, residency) and the upper St. Joe River (method, residency) changed since the special regulations. Tagged cutthroat migrated from the study areas to overwinter in the lower drainage and returned the following spring and early summer. Multiple recaptures of tagged cutthroat was common during the summer.

PUBLICATIONS: 76/01 TO 76/12

JOHNSON, T. H. and T. C. EJCENN. Special angling regulations in the management of cutthroat trout in northern Idaho streams. Job Performance Report, Project F-59-R-7, Idaho Fish and Game Department. 1977.

004.075 AQUATIC RESOURCES OF SILVER CREEK AT THE NATURE CONSERVANCY SITE

EJCENN T C; FORESTEY 6 WILDLIFE; UNIVERSITY CF IDAEC, MOSCOW, IDAHO. 83843. Proj. No:: IDA-CFU-0045 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: OCI Period: 01 SEP 76 To 30 OCT 78

OBJECTIVES: Describe the aquatic ecosystem in Silver Creek at the Nature Conservancy site and in up and downstream sections of the stream; assess primary productivity as related to water chemistry, temperature, aquatic plants, nutrients from headwater streams and farmland runoff and to compare with other portions of the creek and with other streams. Assess abundance and distribution of aquatic insects and the role they play in stream ecosystems; assess abundance, distribution movements, age structuro, recruitment and survival of juveniles and the effects of the fishery on the fish stocks in Silver Creek.

APPECACH: We will sample the aquatic insect and fish populations periodically and relate hiota to water temporatures, nutrients and plant growth in Silver Creek. Maps of the plant communities will be prepared as they develop through the summer, distribution and composition of insect and fish populations will be compared to glant distribution. Growth of fish in Silver Creek will be related to food available, time of year and other physical features.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Some of the aquatic resources of Silver Creek, a renowned trout stream in South Central Idabo, were studied on the Nature Conservancy section of the stream during 1977. The temperature range (average 10-12C, maximum 22C) was found to be good for production and growth of coldwater organisms. Stream discharge at Picabo was relatively stable in 1974-75 and 1975-76 (range 3-13 m 3/sec). Stream discharge in 1976-1977 (low water year) ranged from 2-7.5m 3 sec. Stream substrate consists of silt (including fine sands) and gravel with particle size less than 7 cm in diameter. Silt covered from 42 to 56% of the stream bottom during the year. Twenty-nine species of aquatic plants were found. Vegetation was most ebundant in August, and least abundant in March. Thirty-one genera of algae which colonized on microscope slides were identified, of which Navicula, Fragillaria, and Gomphonema were the most abundant genera. Fifty-three families and seventy-eight genera of aquatic insects were identified. Six species of fish were present in the Nature Conservancy portion of the stream. In decreasing order of abundance these were rainbow trout (Salmo gairdneri), bridgelip suckers (Catastomus columbianus), longnose dace (Rhynichthys cataractae), mountain whitefish (Prosopius williamsoni), Wood River sculpin (Cottus leiopomus) and brook trout (Salvelinus fontinalis). Brown trout (Salmo trutta) and redside shiner (Richardsonius balteatus) were also present below Purdy's irrigation

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 10 80/12

FRANCIS, L.J. and EJORNN, T.C. 1979. Aquatic Resources in the Nature Conservancy Portion of Silver Creek. Final Report to The Nature Conservancy. Technical Report 9, Contribution No. 165. Forest, Wildlife and Range Exp.

004.076 CRIS0072915 LOVER SNAKE RIVER LINNOLOGY

 FALTER C M; FORESTEY & WILDLIFE; UNIVERSITY OF IDABO,

 MOSCOW, IDABC. 83843.

 Proj. No.: IEA-CFU-0048

 Project Type: STATE

 Agency ID: OCI

 Period: 14 MAY 75 To 30 SEP 78

OBJECTIVES: Describe the water quality of the lower Snake River as it flows through four sequential run-of-river impoundments; relate reservoir benthos to sediment composition and aquatic vasculars in the lower Snake Eiver.

APPROACE: Year-round water quality and biota analyses are being made in the lower Snake Fiver to relate open water and littoral communities to the charging water quality with passage through four reservoirs. Special attention is being given to the impact of fluctuating pool levels on the aquatic communities.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Limnological

characteristics of the lower Snake Eiver (150 mile reach from the Clearwater to the Columbia Eiver) were studied from February 1975 to December 1978. The four lower Snake Eiver reservoirs are flow-through pools which showed little thermal stratification or oxygen depletion. The reservoirs function as nutrient traps removing plant nutrients and other components of the dissolved load from the Snake Eiver. Algal productivity likewise declined downstream with distance below nutrient inputs at the Snake-Clearwater confluence. Aquatic macrophytes were limited primarily by low light to 3 meters depth with the near surface band restricted by daily surface fluctuations.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

004.077 CRISOU72918 LINNOLOGICAL EVALUATION AND ZOOPLANKTCN DYNAMICS OF LAKE KOOCANUSA, NORTBWESTERN MONTANA

 FALTER C M; FORESTRY 6 WILDLIFE; UNIVERSITY CF IDABO,

 MGSCOW, IDABC. 83843.

 Proj. No.: IDA-CFU-0051
 Project Type: STATE

 Agency ID: OCI
 Period: 16 AUG 76 To 30 SEP 77

OEJECTIVES: Prepare a limnological description of Lake Koocanusa, Montana in the first four years after impoundment; describe the blexass and composition of zooplankton in Lake Koocanuse, Montana; relate zooplankton community characteristics to operation of the selective withdrawal system of Libby Dam.

APPROACH: A comprehensive study is being made of water quality and aquatic biological data collected by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, the U.S. Geological Survey, and private contractors on Lake Koccanusa from 1972-1976. From this existing data, we will prepare an overview of the early limology of Lake Koocanusa in the first four years after filling. Through a stratified random sampling regime of large volume metered flows, we are measuring zooplankton communities throughout Lake Koocanusa. Particular emphasis is being placed on population dynemics in water masses near the dam, those more susceptible to vertical mixing as a result of water withdrawal.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. An extensive water quality data base collected from Lake Koocanusa in Northwestern Moutana was analyzed to determine which limnological factors controlled primary productivity from initial impoundment in 1972 through 1975. Early predictions of eutrophic levels of algal production (based on N and P loading rates) were not achieved after impoundmnent. Data analysis showed that primary productivity was limited to oligotrophic values because phytoplankton photosynthesis was suppressed by physical limnological factors. Large scale water movements within the reservoir as a result of low hydraulic residence time and reservoir operations resulted in weakly devveloped thermoclines which were usually substantially deeper than the euphotic zone, thereby depressing phytoplankton productivity to oligotrophic levels. Circulation effects on photosynthesis were further compounded by highly turbid inflows received during annual reservoir filling. The noncomformity of Lake Koocanusa to its predicted eutrophic response to large loadings of nutrients suggests that caution be used in epplying nutrient loading models to reservoirs with complex hvdrodynamics.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

004.078 CRISO071722 EFFECTS OF DISSOLVED CHEMICALS ON AQUATIC LIFE

SPACIE A; FORESTRY 6 NATURAL RESCURCES; PURDUE UNIVERSITY, LAFAYETTE, INDIANA. 47507. Proj. No.: IND059042 Agency ID: CSRS Period: 15 NOV 76 To 30 SEP 81

OEJECTIVES: Evaluate the impact of selected municipal and industrial discharges on the productivity of fish, macroinvertebrates, and periphyton on the Wabash River system. To determine the long term influence of nutrient enrichment (cultural eutrophication) on the productivity and composition of lake communities, particularly those in the littoral zone.

APFROACE: Community productivity will be measured in the field through biomass estimates, photosynthetic rates, trophic relationships, and changes in species abundance. Physical and chemical water quality parameters will also be measured at the same locations. Emphasis will be placed on comparisons between stressed communities. Quantitative reletionships between the concentration of dissolved chemicals and productivity will be tested in the laboratory.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Cne of the most widespread pollutants in municipal and industrial wastewater is ammonia. Ammonia discharges occur at a number of points along the Wabaeh River in areas where our surveys have shown fish populations to be depressed. Industrial production is currently limited by the permissible ammonia loadings to the river, as stipulated by NPDES diecharge permits. We are conducting laboratory bloassays to predict the concentration of ammonia toxic to warmwater fish during low flcw conditions in the river. To date, species including white sucker, golden shiner, channel catfish; and bluegill have been tested in acute bioassays. Thirty-day embryo-larval tests on fathead minnews and channel catfish were also completed. Reduced growth of the fry appears to be a sensitive indicator of sublethal ammonia exposure. Future tests will measure the interaction of ammonia with low dissolved oxygen. In addition, research on the uptake of polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons (PAE) in bluegills was completed. Although PAH are important environmental contaminants, they are also of theoretical interest because the series includee a wide-range of physicochemical properties. Eased on the PAE results, as well as information on a large number of other trace organics, we have developed a new general theory of chemical bioconcentration in fish. The theory derives from an existing drug-transport model used in pharmacology.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- SPACIE, A. 1980. Phospherus Loading Models for Indiana Lakes. Purdue Univ. Ag. Exp. Sta. Fes. Bull. #963, 11 pp.
- CURRY, K.D. and SPACIE, A. 1980. A Temperature Controlled Recirculating System for Batching Catostomid Larvae. Prog. Fish Cult. 42(3):151-152.
- SPACIE, A. and BELL, J. 1980. Trophic Status of Fifteen Indiana Lakes in 1977. Purdue Univ. Ag. Exp. Sta. Bull. \$966, 23 pp.
- SPACIE, A. 1980. Biological Effecte of Grganic Detergent Builders. In: Ecological Effecte of Non-Phosphate Detergent Builders Other Tran NTA. Great Lakes Res. Ad. Eoard, Intl. Joint Commission, pp. 51-60.

004.079* CRIS0074624 THE USE OF FISE BEHAVICE IN TOXICITY TESTING

ATCHISCN G J; ANIMAL ECOLOGY; ICWA STATE UNIVERSITY, AMES, IOWA. 50011. Proj. No.: ICW02284 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 77 To 30 JUN 82

CBJECTIVES: Determine the relative sensitivities of a variety of behaviors of fish (such as coughing, feeding, mating and blerarchy formation) to toxic substances. Letermine the effect of a variety of toxic substances on specific behavior patterns of fish. Compare the utility of behavioral toxicity tests and standard EPA chronic exposure tests in establishing safe levels of toxicants in aquatic ecosystems.

APPRCACE: Cbserve and quantify the behavior patterns of fish exposed to varying levels of toxicants compared to the behavior patterns of control fish.

PECGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Research this past year centered on the effects of copper and sethyl parathion on bluegill hehavior. The methyl parathion tests are completed, except for statietical analysis. The copper work will continue through this spring and early summer. Eight populations of five bluegill (ranging from 11.5 to 14.0 cm in total length) were maintained ir separate 315 liter flow through aquaria. After an acclimation period of sufficient time to allow establighment of stable social heirarchies and territories, nine behaviors were monitored for %6 hours before treatment and %6 hours during exposure to methyl parathion. Treatments consisted of two replicates of a control tark and tanks receiving 0.35, 0.035, and 0.0035 mg/l methyl parathion. Statistically, unanalyzed trends from these two runs of the experiment indicate that low levels of methyl parathion increased the frequency of "flinches" and "fin flickering, " both of which are

maintenance behaviors and behavioral manifestatione of nervous system effects. General activity levels appeared to become elevated during the early stages of toxicant administration and were followed by subsequent increases in aggression. After approximately 15 hours these increased activity levele began to subside in all but the lowest exposure concentration. Feeding behavior was also affected by methyl paratblon. Dominant individual feeding success rates dropped as these fish became less successful at capturing the fathead minnows that were used as prey.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

CARLANDER & D; ANIMAL ECOLOGY; ICWA STATE UNIVERSITY, AMES, IOWA. 50011. Proj. No.: ICW02002 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 73 To 30 JUN 79

OBJECTIVES: Compile all available data on life histories of freebwater fishes for United States and Canada; coordinate for comparison; publish summaries; maintain bibliography, crose-indexed.

APPROACE: A crose-indexed filing system and standardized tabulation have been developed. Much of the data have to be transformed to metric system and uniform definition of parameters. Manuscript summaries will be made available in special order as they are prepared for publication in Volume II of "Bandbook of Freehwater Fisheries Biology".

PROGRESS: 73/07 TC 79/06. Volume II of Bandbook of Freshwater Fishery Biology. Life History data of the centrarchid fishes of United States and Canada was published by Iowa State University Prese in 1977, and 1955 copies had been sold as of April 30, 1978. The Handbook is frequently cited in publication and reportedly is widely used as a reference, saving much research time and permitting more effective use of the data. Prior to publication, sections of the manuscript were provided upon request and payment of expenses of copying to other scientists for use on on-going projects or on environmental impact studies. The cross-indexes library is used quite extensively by the graduate students and staff of Iowa State University in their research. Data on species other than centrarchid fiehes have been cross-indexed for use in Volume III, and in possible future revisions or eupplements. The new literature on the speciee covered in Volume I is probably at least one-third that covered in the 1969 publication.

PUELICATIONS: 73/07 TC 79/06 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED FINAL REPORT PERICE.

004.081 CRIS0083590 BIOLOGICAL AND RECREATIONAL ASPECTS OF WATER LEVEL MANAGEMENT OF CLEAR LAKE, IOWA

HUPERT W A; NICKUM J G; CAFLANDER K D; ANIMAL ECOLOGY; IOWA STATE UNIVERSITY, AMES, ICWA. 50011. Proj. No.: ICW02479 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 OCT 80 To 30 SEP 82

OBJECTIVES: To describe littoral plant and fish communities of Clear Lake. To determine the influence of continued water level fluctuations and water level. Stabilization on littoral plant and fish communities of Clear Lake. To determine the attitudes of water-oriented users toward water level fluctuations or stabilization and to assess how they are likely to reepond to future water level Management of lack of it.

APPROACE: Littoral plant communities will be identified, relative abundance estimated, mapped, and water depths measured. Fish will be sampled with gill nets, fyke nets, electrofishing and other techniques. Recreational user attitudes will be assessed by attitude surveys of water-oriented users. PRCGRESS: 80/06 TO 81/01. Field studies were conducted during the summer to assess the relative abundance of fish in different channel types and sampling areas. Thirty-five species were collected. A report on the reconnaissance and site selection study to design future fish movement studies associated with navigation and pool level fluctuations were submitted to the Upper Mississippi River Basin Commission. Due to the Congressional action involving reporting dates and funding, the follow-up study will not be conducted.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/06 TO 81/01 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

004.082 CRIS0078976 BIOLOGY AND SPORT FISHING HARVEST OF YELLOW PHECH

 HUBERT W A; SANDHEINRICH M B; ANIMAL ECOLOGY; IOWA

 STATE UNIVERSITY, AMES, ICWA. 50011.

 Proj. No.: ICW02345
 Project Type: STATE

 Agency ID: SAES
 Period: 01 WAR 79 To 30 JUN 82

OBJECTIVES: To determine the physical and biological factors governing the spatial distribution of yellow perch in West Lake Okoboji. To determine the population structure. To determine the impact of angler barvest.

APPEDACE: Methods for assessing spatial distribution will involve primarily measures of catch per unit of effort with gill nets and fyke nets as well as tag return data. Population structure will be assessed using experimental gill nets and other sampling gear.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. The influence of exploitation on West Lake Okoboji yellow perch is unknown. In 1978 and 1979 the growth and condition of East and West Okoboji Lake perch was compared and the extent of interlake movement was evaluated. During the summer of 1980, research was initiated to compare present abundance to early 1950s' data and to determine physical and biological factors influencing depth distribution of perch in West Lake Okoboji. Monofilament gill nets were set at three locations over five depths during dawn, mid-day, and dusk time periods. Well defined trends in catch-per-unit-effort and perch diet were observed relative to depth and water temperature.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERICD.

004.083* CRIS0073096 BEHAVIOR OF IOWA SPORT FISHES

MENZEL B W; ANIMAL ECOLOGY; IOWA STATE UNIVERSITY, AMES, IOWA. 50011. Proj. No.: IOW02236 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SABS Period: 01 JUL 77 To 30 JUN 82

OBJECTIVES: The research program will involve long term behavioral studies of Iowa sport fisbes in nature using ultrasonic tagging techniques. For each species studied, the major objectives shall be: Determine size and nature of home ranges, including physical features of the preferred babitat, determine daily and seasonal activity patterns and effects of natural environmental variation upon these patterns, and ascertain the effects of human influences upon behavior.

APPROACH: Ultrasonic trensmitters will be surgically implanted into the abdominal cavity of experimental fish. The fish will be released into neture and tracked using a boat-mounted hydrophone and receiver. Cbservation locations will be determined by triangulation and plotted on a wap. Fish movements will be compared with habitat features and other environmental parameters.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. During 1980, data were analysed from a 2 year telemetry study of the movements and behavior of adult maskellunge in Lake West Okoboji, Iowa. These analyses confirm the preliminary findings reported last year. The basic elements of the populations' seasonal behavioral patterns are: reproductive activities along sballow shoreline areas in early spring, active foraging in pelagic areas during late spring and early summer, feeding as ambush predators in the outer littoral zone in late summer and early fall, overwintering in deeper areas. During the growing season, the fish occupy well-defined home ranges averaging about 10% of the lake's surface area. Some fish maintain two disjunct home areas and travel back and forth between them. There is no evidence of territorial behavior; however. Througbout this time, the fish are primarily suspended in the upper and middle portions of the water column. All 9 study fish exhibited these general behavioral patterns although there were individual differences in bome ranges and timing of the major behavioral shifts. Because of the seasonally changing fish behaviors, there is a marked seasonality in angling success for muskellunge in the lake. A M.S. thesis on the research will be completed in spring 1981.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUELICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

004.084≑ ECCLOGY OF LAEVAL STREAM FISHES

MENZEL B W; ANIMAL ECCLOGY; ICWA STATE UNIVERSITY, AMES, IOWA. 50011. Proj. No.: IOW02234 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 77 To 30 JUN 79

CRIS0073106

OEJECTIVES: Develop methods for collecting larval fishes in Iowa warmwater streams and rivers, develop procedures for the identification of such larval fishes, determine species composition, distribution, and abundance of larval fishes in selected rivers, and compare the above parameters with reference to various forms of habitat, stream alteration and water use.

APPEGACE: Larval stream fishes will be collected by drift nets and a water pumping apparatus. Collecting will be done at several stations in a streem which represent different habitat conditions and at various times of day. Species identification will be accomplished by standard morphological methods and by electrophoresis of tissue proteins.

PROGRESS: 77/07 TC 79/06. A study was completed on the taxonomy and ecology of drifting larval fishes in the upper Skunk River, Iowa. Collections were made in Spring 1977 using stationary drift nets at eight river stations in the vicinity of Ames. Larvae of more than 20 fish species were collected, minnows (Cyprinidae) being the most abundant group. Taxonomic descriptions were made for larvae of nine minnow species: stoneroller, brassy minnow, common shiner, bigmouth shiner, red shiner, sand shiner, tluntnose minnow, fathead minnow and creek chub. Larval fish drift was greatest at night and consisted primarily of prolarval and early post-larval stages. Numbers of drifting larvae were not associated with either river discharge or turbidity. Occurrence and abundance of larvae was similar over the 30 km length of river sampled and was not related to local babitat characteristics. Phenological patterns of larvae abundance exhibited a close correlation with the known spawning periodicity of Skunk River fishes. A purpose of drifting behavior may be to transport larvae from low order spawning streams to higher order streams where planktonic food organisms are more abundant.

PUBLICATIONS: 77/07 TO 79/06

- PERRY, L.G. 1979. I. Identification of nine larval cyprinids inhabiting small northern rivers. II. Spatial and temporal patterns of larval fish drift in the upper Skunk River. M.S. Thesis. Iowa State University, Ames. 73 pp. PERRY, L.G. and WENZEL, B.W. 1979. Identification
- PERRY, L.G. and NHNZEL, B.W. 1979. Identification of nine larval cyprinids inhabiting small northern rivers, pp. 141-173. In: Wallus, R. and Voightlander (eds.), Proceedings of a workshop on freshwater larval fishes, Tennessee Valley

004.085 CRIS0080610 RFFECTS OF LAND USE PRACTICES CN STREAM BICTA

MENZEL E W; ANIMAL ECCLOGY; ICWA STATE UNIVERSITY, AMES, ICWA. 50011. Proj. No.: ICW02410 Froject Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 SEP 79 To 30 JUN 84

OBJECTIVES: Letermine the ecological impact of nonpoint source agricultural pollution on the biotic communities of small warmwater streams, and evaluate the efficacy of Best Management Practices (BMPs) for mitigating the negative impacts of such pollution.

APPEGACH: The biotic communities of several streams of the Cedar River drainage, east-central Iowa, will be monitored over a five-year period. During this time one stream, Four-Mile Creek, will have HMPs applied to its watershed through cooperation of landowners and government agencies. A nearby stream, Twelve-Mile Creek, will not receive a subsidized EMP program and, thus, will serve as a control. Cther streams already receiving considerable voluntary HMPs on their watersheds, will also be compared to the target stream, four-Mile Creek.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TC 80/12. Sampling of fishes and measurement of water quality parameters was carried out in 10 headwater streams of the Cedar River basin in east-central Iowa during Spring 1980. This represented a continuation and expansion of field work initiated in Summer 1979 as a portion of a multi-disciplinary study on the utility of agricultural Eest Management Practices for improving water quality. Sediment loads appear to be the salient feature determining habitat conditions for aquatic life in the iO study streams. Cn the basis of their high flow and chronic sediment loads, the streams were distinguishable into 3 categories: Clear (2 streams), Moderately Turhid (4 streams), and Chronically Turbid (4 streams). The Clear streams also carried the lowest levels of plant nutrients (P and N) and featured a diversified hottom structure of riffles and pools and larger substrate particle sizes. The Chronically Turhid streams contained high levels of plant nutrients and generally featureless, sand-silt hottoms. The Noderately Turbid streams tended to be intermediate in these characteristics. Fish species richness and diversity, and total hiomass were typically highest in the Clear streams and lowest is the Chronically Turbid streams. In all streams, the greater portion of the fish community was composed of fishes regarded as moderately tolerant of sediment and turbidity.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

004.086* CRIS0072499 FACTORS AFFECTING FISE POPULATIONS CF IOVA STREAMS

 MUNCY R J; BULKLEY R V; ANIMAL ECOLCGY; ICWA STATE

 UNIVERSITY, AMES, IOWA. 50011.

 Froj. No.: ICW02225

 Project Type: STATE

 Agency ID: SAES

 Period: 01 MAR 77 To 30 JUN 80

CBJECTIVES: Determine fluctuations in ahundance of selected populations of stream fishes and factors affecting these fluctuations. Identify man-made hahitat alterations that can enhance environmental conditions for aquatic life. Increase knowledge of environmental pollutants transport and dynamics in flowing and impounded waters.

APPROACE: Research will consist of field investigation on length, weight and distribution of fish species in several Iowa rivers in relation to selected environmental parameters. Data on pesticide and polychlorinated biphenyls concentration in muscle tissue will be obtained by gas chromatography on fish inhabiting the Des Moines Piver and Red Rock Lake.

PROGRESS: 77/03 TO 80/06. Common carp were used to monitor organochlorine pesticide residues in fish from the Des Moines River. Residues were below U.S. Food and Drug Administration allowable levels in food fish. Reservcir sampling locations, Red Rock and Saylorville, tended to have higher dieldrin levels than riverine locations. This trend was not observed for DDT residues. Missouri river environmental gap evaluation--notches cut in rock revetments to increase habitat density were evaluated. Species composition and sizes of fish associated with notches were described. Smallmouth bass in the Skunk River--during the 1976-77 drought, the population was decimated by winter kill. Survival, growth, production, movement, and habitat associations of fingerlings tocked following the drought was assessed.

PUPLICATIONS: 77/03 TC 80/06

BUBERT, W.A. 1980. Aldrin and DET Residues in Carp from Impounded and Eiverine Segments of the Des koines River, 1975. In: Proceedings of the Seminar on the Water Quality in the Corps of Engineers' Reservoirs in Iowa. U.S. Army Corps

004.087= CFIS0082533 FACTORS AFFECTING FISH POPULATIONS IN IOWA WATERS

NICKUM J G; HUBERT W A; ANIMAL ECCLOGY; ICWA STATE UNIVERSITY, AMES, ICWA. 50611. Proj. No.: IOW02465 Agency ID: SAES Period: 31 JUL 80 To 30 SEP 85

OPJECTIVES: To determine the factors influencing fluctuations in ahundance of selected populations. To identify man-made habitat alterations that impact or enhance environmental conditions for aquatic life. To increase understanding of environmental contaminants transport and dynamics. To evaluate fishery management techniques aimed at enhancing fishery quality or productivity.

APPROACH: Besearch will consist of field and laboratory studies on the life history, environmental requirements, and population dynamics of fish species in Jowa waters. Data on environmental contaminants in fish and their habitats will be obtained by standard analytical procedures. Established methods for population assessment will be used to determine the effects of various management techniques.

PROGRESS: 80/07 TO 80/12. Two individual studies were conducted within the scope of this project: one dealing with pesticide residues in the Des Noines River and another concerned with the propagation of walleyes, Stizostedion vitreum, (propagated walleyes may he stocked so as to manipulate resident fish populations). Concentrations of dieldrin and DDT in muscle tissue of carp, Cyprinus carpio, from the Des Moines River, Iowa, were compared relative to month of collection, age of fish, and sampling location. Satistically significant differences were observed for all three factors. Expression of pesticide levels on the basis of wet weight of flesh often produced different results than when comparisons were made on a fat hasis. Samples from reservoir locations tended to have higher dieldrin levels than samples from riverine locations. However, no similar trend was detected for DDT levels. Walleye fry fed a mixture of a diatom (Melosira sp.), decapsulated hrine shrimp eggs, and dry feed (N-7) exhibited higher survival rates than those fed any of these items alone or in pairs. Walleye fingerlings were reared in ponds to a length of 35 mm and successfully transferred to hatchery production units. Substantial mortality occurred later, apparently due to stress from subsequent handling. Acceptance of dry feed by walleye fingerlings was highest in those rearing units in which water flow patterns held the feed in suspension for the longest times. Research in the coming year will proceed along similar lines for each study.

PUELICATIONS: 80/07 TO 80/12

HUBERT, W.A. 1980. Aldrin and DDT Residues in Carp from Impounded and Riverine Segments of the Des Moines River 1979. In: Proceedings of a Seminar on the Water Quality in Corps of Engineers Reservoirs in Iowa. U.S. Army Corps of 004.088 CRIS0073386 WATER QUALITY ENHANCEMENT OF LAKES BY NECHANICAL PUNPING

SUNMERFELT R C; MCALEXANDER A K; BOLT E R; ANIMAL ECOLOGY; IOWA STATE UNIVERSITY, AMES, IOWA. 50011. Proj. No.: ICW02233 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 77 To 30 JUN 82

CBJECTIVES: Enhance water quality of lakes by in situ aeration with an axial-flow, mechanical pump. Specially, pumping will be done to increase total content of dissolved oxygen, and to decrease the concentration of organic matter, and the toxic substances, namely ammonia and hydrogen sulfide.

APPEGACB: Dissolved oxygen, BOD, hydrogen sulfide and ammonia will be measured by standard procedures at intervals and depths which will allow characterization of total mass of these chemical characteristics of water quality. Fumping will be done with an axial-flow mechanical pump of the Quintero-Garton design. Evaluation will he done on the basis of changes in these water quality variables and improvement in species diversity of aquatic life.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 90/12. An axil-flow pump of the Quintero-Garton (1969) design, with a 120-cm diameter impellor, was operated on McFarland Lake, Story County, Iowa from 13 May through 22 October 1980 to prevent normal summer stratification. The temperature, and concentration of dissolved oxygen, chlorophyll a, BOD, CO(2), B(2)S, total phosphate, and orthophosphate were measured once each month at three sample sites in the lake and at each depth contour from 1 to 5 meters. During mid-summer, when expected temperature and chemical stratification in this lake would be substantial, maximum temperature difference was less than 2.0 C, and the substrate of the lake was warmed nearly 10 C over the expected temperature without artificial destratification. Without pumping, the lake would he anoxic below 4 meters, but with pumping, oxygen in the deepest contour was never less than 1.6 mg/1 (25 June) and otherwise between 2.1 and 3.6, June through August. Long-term trends in lake improvement could be seen by comparing conditions occurring in the summers of 1978, 1979, and 1980. BOD values for the summer of 1980 were about half that of previous two summers and Chlorophyll a concentration in the surface (0-1)meter) stratum of the lake for the June through August period was the lowest of the years. Transparency (Secchi disc) was higher than in previous years.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

004.089 CRISO066196 MATURAL MARSBES AS NUTRIENT SINKS FOR AGRICULTURAL RUNOFF

VAN DER VALE A G; JOENSON H P; BAKER J L; ECTANY & PLANT PATECLCGY; IOWA STATE UNIVERSITY, AMES, IOWA. 50011. Proj. No.: ICW02071 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 74 To 30 JUN 80

OBJECTIVES: Examine the efficiency of natural marshes as nutrient sinks for nitrogen and phosphorus entering as a result of agricultural runoff; the fate of these nutrients in a marsh; practical methods to increase the efficiency of marshes as nutrient sinks.

APPEOACH: Construct an annual nutrient hudget for a marsh receiving agricultural runoff from input, output, plant, and litter nutrient measurements. Examine the effects of water level manipulations, baffles or dredging new channels on the efficiency of nutrient removal by increasing retention time and/or the dispersion of incoming nutrients.

PRCGRESS: 74/01 TO 80/06. During years that had below normal precipitation (1976-1978), Eagle Lake had no effluent and it was a perfect sink for the nutrients in the agricultural runoff passing through it. During a wet year (1979) when the marsh had a significant effluent, it removed 86% of the nitrate entering it, 78% of the ammonia, but total or Kjeldahl-N was not reduced significantly. The marsh was not as effective in removing phosphorus from runoff flowing through it in 1979. Only about 20% of the incrganic phosphorus was removed and even less of the total phosphorus input. The marsh was a net exporter of soluble carbon in 1979. Overall prairie glacial marshes have a beneficial impact on agricultural runoff passing through them. They effectively remove most of the inorganic nitrogen, particularly nitrates. The use of natural and/or constructed marshes as an integral part of a tile drainage network is a cheap and effective method for reducing the potential water pollution problems that could be caused by the inorganic nitrogen levels found in agricultural runoff.

PUELICATIONS: 74/01 TC 80/06

VAN DER VALK, A.G. 1981. Succession in wetlands: a Gleasonian approach. Ecology 62: 688-696.

004,090 CRISO084199 NAVIGATION IMPACTS ON CHANNEL FISBES, UPPER MISSISSIPPI RIVER

HUBERT W A; COOPERATIVE FISHERY RES UNIT; ICWA STATE UNIVERSITY, AMES, ICWA. 50011. Proj. No.: IOW02489 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 APR 81 To 30 JUN 83

OBJECTIVES: To assess potential navigation impacts on channel fishes of the Upper Mississippi utilizing habitat evaluation procedures and literature review.

APPROACE: Data from the 1980 reconnaiseance study will be utilized to assess navigation impacts using two approaches. The first approach will entail procedures similar to those employed by the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service for habitat evaluation. The second approach will involve a detailed statistical analysis of main channel and side channel fish samples from 1980.

004.091 CRISO073396 DETERNINATION OF WATER QUALITY CRITERIA FOR THE SUPPORT OF AQUATIC LIFE IN TWO SMALL MANSAS STREAMS

BURKBEAD C E; BUGGINS D G; WATER RESOURCES INSTITUTE; KANSAS STATE UNIVERSITY, MANHATTAN, KANSAS. 66506. Proj. No.: KAN-05-136 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 77 To 31 DEC 80

OBJECTIVES: Determine the toxicity levels for selected fauna-bicassay tests of ammonia, chloramines, chlorine and their mixtures.

APPROACE: Standard, laboratory bioassay tests will be made to determine the toxicity levels and then intensive biosurveys will be made on Cedar and Mill Creeks in Kansas.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Terminated 12-31-80.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

004.092* CRIS0055844 ECOLOGICAL STUDIES WITH RED SWAMP CRAWFISE AND WHITE RIWER CRAWFISE

AVAULT J W; FORESTRY & WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT; LCUISIANA STATE UNIVERSITY, BATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA. 70803. Proj. No.: LABO1192 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 11 AUG 64 To 31 OCT 80

OBJECTIVES: Study factors influencing ecology of crawfish, such as temperature, season, water quality and depth, vegetation, soil type, and agricultural practices, in relation to feeding, growth, reproduction, hehavior, populations, diseases, predators, and competitors. APPEGACE: Experiments will be set up in aquaria to determine temperature tolerance of crawfish. Past crawfish production records for certain areas will be compared to weather records. Small ponds will be stocked with crawfish and effects of water level fluctuations studied. Crawfish movements will be studied in laboratory and in the field. Methods for food habits studies will be developed and applied in the laboratory. Water from natural crawfish habitats will be analyzed. Natural crawfish populations will be studied ir relation to soil fertility. Population dynamics of crawfish will he studied, including mortality and predators. Crawfish carrying capacity will be determined from small ponds.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/10. Studies conducted during reporting period on influence of pesticides, rice residue, and planted rice on crawfish production indicated: Nc differences in growth, survival and yield of crawfish in tanks planted with untreated rice, planted with untreated rice, or planted with treated rice plus receiving Propanil, Crdram and Furadan. No pesticide residues were detected in flesh. In lab studies, a combination of Propanil, Crdram and Furadan was more toxic to crawfish than any single pesticide. After rice was harvested in crawfish ponds the stubble was left standing (S), baled (B) and added back to ponds periodically, or disked (D) into the soil. Balf the ponds were flooded early (E), Sept. 20, and half late (L), Oct. 10. Crawfish in S, H and D ponds grew to 19, 18, and 17 # respectively. Crawfish in E and L flooded ponds grew to 92 and 83 mm in length, respectively. Rice straw decomposed fastest in B ponds, followed by S and D ponds, with weight loss of 77, 67, and 49%, respectively, after 5-months. Dissolved oxygen was consistently higher in E flooded ponds than in L flooded ponds; 18 weeks after flooding, periphyton in g/m 2 was E 337, L 216, S 358, E 333, D 307. Ponds containing crawfish were planted with or without rice. Ponds with no rice receiving range pellets (crude protein 9.0%) from Sept. 25 to May 3 produced 881 kg of crawfish/ha. Ponds with rice receiving range pellets from Warch 1 through May 3 produced 2016 kg.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/10

- WITZIG, J.F. 1980. Spatial and Temporal Patterns of Macroinvertebrate Communities in a Small Drawfish Pond. M.S. Thesis. LSU, 113 pp.
 CHIEN, Y.H. 1980. Effects of Flooding Dates and
- CHIEN, Y.B. 1980. Effects of Flooding Dates and Disposals of Rice Straw on Crayfish, Procambarus clarkii (Girard), Culture in Rice Fields. Ph.D. Disser. ISU, I20 pp.
- WITZIG, J.F., AVAULT JR., J.W. and CCNNER, J.V. 1980. Insect Dynamics in a Crawfish Pond with Emphasis on Predaceous Insects (Abstract Only). In Abstr. of Fish Culture Sect. of the Amer. Fish. Soc. 14.
- CBIEN, Y.H. and AVAULT JR., J.N. 1980. Effects of Flooding Dates and Type Disposal of Rice Oryza sativa, Straw on the Crawfish, Procambarus clarki (Girard), Culture in Rice Fields, In: Abstr. of Fish Culture Sect. of the
- JOHNSON, W.B. and AVAULT JR., J.W. 1980. Some Effects of Poultry Manures Supplementation to Rice/Crawfish Experimental Earthern Ponds. In Abstr. of Fish Culture Sect. of the Amer. Fish. Soc. 15. (Abstract Only).

004.093* CFIS0030722 DEVELOPMENT CF METHODS FOF MASS PRODUCTION AND MANAGEMENT OF BULLFROGS

CULLEY D D JF; FORESTRY & WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT: LCUISIANA STATE UNIVERSITY, BATCN ROUGE, LCUISIANA. 70803. Proj. No.: LAB01445 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 SEP 68 To 31 JAN 84

OBJECTIVES: Determine the effects on tadpoles of diet and water quality. Development of pelleted diets for bullfrogs. Determine methods of disease control in tadpoles and bullfrogs. Effeact of environmental factors and hormone injections on controlled reproduction. Influence of selective breeding on improved growth, acceptance of artificial foods and other useful characteristics. APPROACE: Modify protein, fats, carbohydrates, vitamins and minerals in tadpole diets and determine the effect on food conversion, growth, abnormalities, etc.; modify water pH and determine effects on growth, mortality and disease occurrence. Determine the effect of temperature, photoperiod and hormone injections on reproductive development. Determine the relationship between diet and mortality due to gut pathogens. Attempt to develop a method to immunize bullfrogs.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Studies involving the effect of pH of the culture water on disease occurrence in the larvae showed that mortality related to disease increased at pH values above 7.0. The optimum pB appears to be between 6.5 to 6.9. The presence or absence of calcium in the water could not be related to disease at various pH levels. Abnormalities increased when calcium was low (less than 2mg/1 in water and less than 0.5% in diet). Addition of calcium to the water did not reduce abnormalities, but addition to the food (and not water) up to 5% did reduce abnormalities. Selection of bullfrogs for accepting non-living food (F(3) generation) showed no improvement in the number of animals responding over previous generations. This phase of the study was terminated. Selection studies for rapid growth produced an F(3) generation. Growth rates are currently being monitored. Reproduction studies showed that wild-caught females could be brought into ovalatable condition in the laboratory within eight weeks when place on a heavy feeding program, 20-25 degrees C and 12 hr light. Repeated ovulations were achieved within 8 to 12 weeks. Transition metals play significant roles in controlling the production of toxins by pathogenic bacterial in the presence of certain amino acids. The addition of Zinc stimulated production and iron inhibited production.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 MEYERS, S.P., CULLEY JR., D.D., MARSCHALL, D.G. and MARSHALL, G.A. 1980. Evaluation of Einders in Larval Hullfrog Diets. J. Aquaric. 1:20-28.

004.094± CRIS0076507 THE RELATIONSHIP OF SALINITY AND DISTANCE FROM THE SEA, TO THE DISTRIBUTION OF JUVENILE FISHES

 HERKE W H; FORESTRY & WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT; LCUISIANA

 STATE UNIVERSITY, HATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA. 70803.

 Proj. No.: LAB02008
 Project Type: STATE

 Agency ID: SAES
 Period: 01 AUG 78 To 31 DEC 80

OBJECTIVES: Determine how far inland the young menhaden, genus Brevoortia, Atlantic croaker, Micropogonundulatus, and spot, Leiostomus xanthurus, move in the Barataria Hay drainage. Correlate their abundance and size with the salinities, and the location, where they are caught.

APPROACH: A transact about 75 km long contains 15 sample sites. Salinity declines in a northerly direction, from saline or brackish to pure fresh water. Samples will be taken every 2 weeks with a 4.9-m otter travl. On alternate trips each site will also be sampled with Surface travl and high speed sampler, or 1.8-m beam travl and plankton net. Salinity, temperature 6 water depth will be recorded for each sample. Total blomass, total number, and length of individuals will be recorded for every sample, for nenhaden, spot and croaker. Length-frequencies will be analyzed. Abundance at the stations will be analyzed to determine the inland entent of penetration of each species.

PRCGRESS: 78/01 TO 80/12. Inshore shrimp trawling was the primary cause for a rapid decline in abundance of Atlantic croaker, Micropogon undulatus, after May. No relationship between salinity and croaker size was found. Trawl catches of croaker were an order of magnitude greater at night than during the day. Gulf menhaden, Brevoortia patronus, and blue crabs, Callinectes sapidus, were also taken in significantly greater numbers in nighttime trawls. The surface trawl was more efficient on 5-25 mm crabs than the otter trawl; researchers on small crabs should consider its use. Menhaden and crabs were taken in greater numbers in shallow, protected waters than in larger, open waters within the marsh. All three species were taken well above the bracklsh/freshwater line; menhaden were taken in numbers at several stations 20 km above. The entire coastal marsh, including the freshwater zone, is an important nursery and should be protected from environmental degradation

- PUBLICATIONS: 78/01 TO 80/12
 - BOGBERS, B.C. 1979. The Spatial and Temporal Distribution of Atlantic Croaker, Micropogan undulatus, and Spot, Leiostomus xanthurus, in the Upper Dreinage Basin of Baratarie Eay, Louisiana, N.S. Theeis, La. State Univ., Baton Rouge
 - SIMONEAUX, L.F. 1979. The Distribution of Menhaden, Genus Erevoortia, with Respect to Salinity, in the Upper Drainage Basin of Barataria Bay, Louisiana. M.S. Thesis, La. State Univ., Baton Rouge, Sé pp.
 - DAUD, N.W. 1979. Distribution and Eccruitment of Juvenile Blue Crabs, Callinectes sapidus, in a Louisiane Estuarine System. W.S. Thesis, La. State Univ., Baton Rouge, 83 pp.

004.095* CRIS0080171 PRESENCE, ABUNDANCE, MOVEMENTS, AND HABITAT USAGE OF ESTUARINE-DEFENDENT FISBES AND CRUSTACEANS.

BERKE W B; RCGERS B D; FORESTRY & WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT; IOUISIANA STATE UNIVERSITY, BATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA. 70803. Proj. No.: LAB02076 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 20 AUG 79 To 15 AUG 83

OBJECTIVES: To determine: seasonal presence and relative abundance of important larvaland juvenile organisms entering and leaving Sabine National Wildlife Refuge; their ingress and egress routes; the relative use made of several habitat types, and to search literature for allied information.

APPEDACE: Traps and plankton nets will be fished 1 to 3 times/week on all (6) major possible wigration cbannels for 3 years. The shallow babitat within the Refuge will be sampled monthly using an airboat for transportation, and whatever gear can be found to work satisfactorily in very shallow water. (Gear type to be determined in preliminary work.) Movements will be studied using fluorescent marking techniques. All catches will be recorded by species, numbers, lengths, and babitat types, and searched for marks.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Field work began in March 1980. Twenty-six traps have been installed and are now in operation. Trapping and trawling is being conducted on established schedules. Nearly 1/2 million organisms were processed by end of July; about 1/2 were fishes (39 familles, 88 species) and the rest were crustaceans (5 familles, 10 species). Ingress and egress appears to be mainly from Caleasieu Lake side. Much of the marsh was used as nursery at different times.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS EEPOPTED THIS PERIOD.

004.096 CRIS0083021 EFFECTS OF BEVIEONMENTAL CONDITIONS AND MANAGEMENT PRACTICES ON COMMERCIAL PRODUCTION OF CRAVEISE

 ROMAIPE P P; FORESTRY 6 WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT;

 LOUISIANA STATE UNIVERSITY, BAICN GOUGE, LCUISIANA.

 70803.

 Proj. No.: LAB02138

 Project Type: STATE

 Agency ID: SABS

 Period: 01 NCV 80 To 31 DEC 85

OBJECTIVES: To delineate the major envirnomental factors that regulate production of crawfish in commercial ponds. To develop management strategies that optimize economic yields of crawfish from commercial ponds. To evaluate new management tachniques developed by the La. Agricultural Experiment Station in commercial crawfish ponds. APPROACE: Environmental factors that regulate production of crawfish in commercial ponds will be evaluated. Initial investigations will concentrate on water quality dynamics, effluent discharge determination of mineral requirements, and the effects of agricultural pesticides on crawfish. Decay dynamics of forage blomass will be assayed and its effects on crawfish population dynamics ascertained. Conventional traps and new traps designs will be tested for efficiency in harvesting. Forage research will concentrate changes in nutrive quality, biomass production and preference of vegetation types by crawfisb.

PROGRESS: 80/11 TO 80/12. Barvesting crawfish with traps is the largest variable expense to commercial producers in Louisiana, generally comprising 40 to 60% of the gross revenues. Six type of traps presently used in the commercial industry and three new trap designs are being evaluated for harvest efficiency in three commercial ponds during the 1980-81 carwfish season. Concomitantly, trap placement, trap density, frequency with which traps are emptied and manipulation of environmental parameters, such as water circulation, are being investigated to ascertain those combinations of harvesting strategies that minimize cost and maximize catch. Seven commercial crawfish ponds are being sample biweekly with dip nets, seines, and small and large mesh traps during 1980-21 season to quantitate growth, mortality, and recruitment patterns of crawfish populations. Seasonal changes in vegetation cover and plant species composition are being determined by the line-intercept method. These data along with catch and effort data supplied by cooperating producers are being used to develop a mathematical model capable of evaluating management strategies that optimize crawfish yields.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/11 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

004.097* CRISO078594 MOVEMENTS OF SONIC-TAGGED FISHES IN RELATION TO WATER QUALITY IN LOWER ATCHAPALAYA RIVER BASIN

 BRYAN C F; RANGE SCIENCE; LOUISIANA STATE UNIVERSITY,

 BATCN FOUGE, LOUISIANA. 70803.

 Proj. No.: LAB02023

 Project Type: STATE

 Agency ID: SAES

 Period: 01 NOV 78 To 31 DEC 82

OBJECTIVES: To develop, from the diversity of systems available, a radio tracking system suitable for the study of largemouth bass, Micropterus salmoides (Lacepede), black drappie, Pomoxis annularis Rafinesque. To relate movements of largemouth bass and crappies to changes in physiocochemical characteristics of water and hydrographic regime in lower Basis gibitats. To compare home range dimensions of the largemouth bass and crapples in various habitats. To gain insight into seasonal and diel patterns of movements of the above sport fishes insofar as these movents may he related to water quality variations in the annual hydrographic cycle.

APPROACE: Bass will be electrofished from at least two habitat types in the Atchafalya River Basin. Radio tags will be implanted surgically and fish will be released immediately. Fish and a physicochemical description of their home ranges will be monitored on a diel and seasonal basis, to gain insight into possible relationships between a changing water quality and fish movements.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. The role of water quality in selection of microhabitats and home ranges of sport fishes has been inferred from laboratory experiments wherein most variables (except one) are held constant. Bowever, a better way to gain insight into water quality preferences may be to follow fishes tagged with telemetry devices while monitoring the water quality in their natural habitat. We surgically implanted radio transmitters in 15 largemouth bass in the Atchafalaya River Easin and tracked them for as many as 117 days. Water temperature, dissolved oxygen, pB, specific conductance, and oxidation-reduction potential were recorded at each release site and subsequently, at the previous, and at each new location for each tracking day until the fish was no longer detected. We found that bass preferred a water temperature of 27 degrees C and made significantly more movements toward increasing dissolved oxygen. Other water quality characteristics measured did not appear to influence movements. Most locations of hass were made near shore ir water less than 1.5 m deep and neither movements nor home range sizes were associated with river stage unless stages were sufficiently high to innudate the swamp flocr.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

DOERZEACBER, J.F. 1980. Movement and Home Wange of Largemouth Bass (Micropterus salmoides) in Relation to Water Guality of the Atchafalaya River Basin, Louisiana. M.S. Thesis, La. State Univ., Baton Rouge, Louisiana.

004.095* Cfis0083896 Ultrastructufal changes in teleost gills: effects of Subtle alterations in the environment

BAUCK W N: TAYLOR B W; VETERINABY SCIENCE; LCUISIANA STATE UNIVERSITY, BATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA. 70803. Agency ID: CSVM0180-SVMPeriod: 01 JUL 80 To 30 JUN 81

OBJECTIVES: To develop techniques for ultrastructural examination of fish gills. To compare by light and electron microscopy, normal gill morphology to morphology in which fish have been subjected to specific environmental changes. To correlate morphopathology and environmental changes and propose a pathogenic basis for disease development. To examine random gill samples from clear and polluted fresh, estuarine and marine populations of both cultured and feral fish. These samples will be compared to those which have been previously examined.

APPEGACE: Gills will be collected from laboratory cultured fish which have been exposed to pB and dissolved oxygen alteration, addition of ammonia and sewage effluent and increase in fish population density. Gills will be collected from apparently healthy and sick feral and propagated food fish. These samples will be processed and sectioned according to standard methods and examined with the light and electron microscope. An attempt will be made to quantify and correlate lesions with the damaging agent involved.

004.099* CRISO082633 CHAMPISH CULTURE STUDIES IN SMALL PCNDS: BURGONING, POLYCULTURE AND NATURAL POND FLCODING

HUNER J V; CCLLEGE OF AGRICULTUBE; SOUTBERN UNIVERSITY, EATON FOUGE, LOUISIANA. 70813. Proj. No.: LA.X-81-2003-2044 Project Type: 1890/T Agency ID: CSES Period: 01 CCT &0 To 30 SEP 85

OBJECTIVES: Letermine the spatial and seasonal burrowing patterns of crawfish in small, open crawfish ponds. Assess the effectiveness of various techniques fcr facilitating successful burrowing of crawfish in crawfish ponds. Determine the effects of soil tilling practices on crawfish burrows in crawfish ponds. Determine the commercial feasibility of cultivating channel catfish and crawfish together in small, open south Louisiana crawfish ponds. Determine the commercial feasibility of using rainfall to flood crawfish ponds in south Louisiana.

APPEOACE: Cbjectives 1, 2, 4 and 5 will be pursued in the four, one acre crawfish ponds located at Southern University. Cbjective 3 will be pursued in a nearby commercial pond. During the first two years, burrows will be marked and mapped on a biweekly basis and several types of materials will be tested to determine their effectiveness as burrowing facilitators. Also, during the first two years, marked burrows will be subjected to disking and tractor-bush hog compaction early and late during the dry season to determine their impact on the occupants. In years 2 and 3, channel catrish will be stocked in test ponds after they have been filled with water in the fall. Catrish production and catfish impact on cawrish production will be recorded. In years 4 and 5, test ponds will be permitted to fill naturally in the fall and winter. The impact on this action on crawfish production will be measured.

004.100* CRIS0060712 METABOLISM AND FUNCTION OF CELLULAR LIPIDS

DESIERVO A J; AGRICULTURAL EXPER. STATION; UNIVERSITY OF MAINE, ORONO, MAINE. 04468. Proj. No.: NE08752 Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSES Period: 01 FEB 78 To 30 SEP 86

OBJECTIVES: Analysis of lipid and lipid enzymes in detergent-resistant and pigmentation mutants of M. lysodeikticus. Studies of lipid composition and lipid identification in marine caulobacter species. The effect of herpesvirus infection on the lipid metabolism of cultured animal and human cells.

APPROACE: Comparative studies between wild-type and detergent resistant mutants are planned to elucidate the mechanism of ressistance and the relationship between resistance and the lipid composition by analyzing the changes in lipid composition during growth in the presence of different levels of detergent. Pigmentation mutants will be compared with respect to lipid composition and fatty acid analysis. Evidence has accumulated which indicates that Caulobacter halobacteroides and other marine caulobacters have an unusual lipid composition. We propose to identify the glycolipids of these organisms, analyze isolated membranes, and determine if typical phospholipid biosynthetic pathways play a role in the metabolism of these organisms. A study of the effects of NDV infection on cellular lipid composition and the breakdown and synthesis of cholesterol ester in an in vitro, primary cell system is planned. Vascular smooth muscle and cardiac muscle cell cultures will be infected with NDV and HVT cell-associated viruses.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. In studies of Triton X-100 (TX) resistant mutants of N. lysodeikticus, a comparison of the release of label from wild-type and mutant cells suggested that it was not the penetration of the detergent through the cell walls that was responsible for resistance. The lipid compositions of the wild-type and mutant were different when grown in the absence of TX. The lipid alterations during growth of the nutant in the presence and absence of TX were significantly different, indicating that the presence of TX does affect the regulation of lipid composition and netabolism. Experiments designed to determine differences between two pigmented mutants and the wild-type of M. lysodeikticus were undertaken. The wild-type contains derivatives of the yellow carotenoid, neurosporene; the pink mutant was shown to have large amounts of lycopene; and the white mutants has only trace amounts of visible pigments. Since it had been suggested that carotenoids may act to reinforce the membrane bilayer, we compared the growth rates of these three cultures at different temperatures. All three cultures had the same optimal growth temperature, 35C. The pink mutants, however, had a more narrow temperature growth range. Studies of the lipid composition of the marine bacterium, Caulobacter halobacteroides, indicate that this organism contains little, if any, phospholipid; most of the extractable lipid being glycolipid. The nature of this glycolipid is currently being investigated.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- DE SIERVO, A.J. and HONOLA, A.D. 1980. Analysis of Caulobacter cresentus Lipids. J. Facteriol. 143:1215-1222.
- DE SIERVO, A.J. and HOMOLA, A.D. 1980. Growth and Lipid Changes of Detergent Resistant Isolates of Micrococcus lysodeikticus. Abt. Ann. Mtg. Amer. Soc. Microbiol. K217:162.

004+101 CRISO075102 EFFECTS OF ATMOSPHERIC INPUTS OF ACIDS AND BEAVY METALS ON LAKE PLANKTON

DAVIS R H; NCRTON S A; BOTANY & PLANT PATHCLCGY; UNIVERSITY CF MAINE, ORONC, MAINE. 04469. Proj. No.: ME08465 Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 MAY 78 Tc 30 SEP 80

CHJECTIVES: Assess the proposition that changes in the planktonic flora and fauna in many northern New England lakes are responses to changes in beavy metal loading from the atmosphere, acidic precipitation, or both.

APPEOACH: Taking sediment cores from montane lakes having watersheds essentially unaltered by bumans, determining sediment chronology by $Cs^{1,37}$, Pb-2-1-0, and palynological methods, and analyzing geo-chemical and microfossil (incl. dlatoms and cladocerans) stratigraphy.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Sediment cores (ca. 0.5 m long) were obtained from six high altitude Malne lakes with pristine, granitic water sheds. The cores have been analysed for sediment chronology (pollen, Ph-210, Cs-137), natural watershed disturbance (pollen, charcoal, chemistry), geochemistry (water, total organic matter, E, Na Mg, Ca, Ti, Al, Fe, Nn, Ph, Zn, Cu), diatom assemblages (five lakes completed), and chydorid Cladocera (three lakes completed). The present median pB of weekly precipitation in the region is about 4.3. Elevated zinc and lead concentrations in precipitation are associated with acid pollution. An increase in Ph and Zn concentrations in the sediments starts in the late 1800's regardless of limnological and geological factors and present lake water pB. Bowever, In subsequently acidified lakes (pB lowered to less than ca. 5), concentrations of Ca, Ng, K, Nn, and Zn decrease in recently deposited sediment. These elements are more soluble at low pH. A proposed mechanism for the decreasing concentrations is the accelerated leaching of the elements from watersted soils (sediment precursors) and from lake sediments at the sediment/water interface. This implies a concurrent increase in concentrations of these metals in soil leachate and lake (and stream) water. Sediment surface diatom assemblages from 30 northern New England lakes of known water pH have been used to derive multiple regression coefficients which are applied down-core for inferring past lake water pH.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- DAVIS, R.H., NORTON, S.A., BRAKKE, D.F. and BESS, C.T. 198C. Atmospheric Deposition In Norway During the Last 300 Years as Recorded In S.N.S.F. Lake Sediments. IV. Synthesis and Comparisons With New England.
- NCRTON, S.A., HESS, C.T. and DAVIS, R.E. 1880. Rates of Accumulation of Beavy Metals in Pre- and Post-European Sediments in New England Lakes. In: Input of Atmospheric Pollutants to Natural Waters, pp. 409-421, Eisenreich, S.J., Ed.
- DAVIS, R.H. 1980. Acidic Precipitation in Maine. Update. Products and Progress in Life Sciences and Agricultural Research 8(4):1-3. Univ. of Maine, Crono.
- NCRTON, S.A. and GALLOWAY, J.K. 1980. Changing pB and Netal Levels in Streams and Lake in Eastern United States. International Symposium for Inland Waters and Lake Restoration, Spons. E.F.A. and CECC, p. 10.

004.102* CFIS0064935 DISTRIBUTION, ABUNDANCE AND BCOLOGY OF ASCOPEYLLUM HODOSUM (1) LE JOIS

VADAS R L; ECTANY & PLANT PATECLCGY; UNIVERSITY CF MAINE, CRONC, MAINE. 0446S. Proj. No.: NE08459 Agency ID: CSRS_____ Period: 13 FEH 74 To 30 SEP 82

OBJECTIVES: Letermine: Distribution and abundance patterns of A. nodosum in Main, growth, reproductive, age and biomass patterns on exposed, semi-exposed and sheltered shcres; biomass of Fucus spp., value of aerial photography and infrared film for A. nodosum surveys; methods to enhance colonization of A. nodosum; harvestable yields of A. nodosum.

APPROACH: Permant and radnomy selected sites will be utilized to survey the algal resource and study growth patterns. Samples will be taken seasonally. Experimental studies on colonization will be conducted in situ and in simulated tide cycles in running seawater tanks.

PROGLESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Four study areas were established in 1980 making a total of six in two major areas (Northeast and Southeast) of the coast. The percent cover and blomass of Ascorhyllum and Fucus spp. were determined in belt transects and ln 10 x 100 cm quadrats, respectively. Samples were stratified by intertidal height. Flomass and growth and density of plants and apical growing points were measured to determine growth and productivity potentials. Reproductive output was measured in Fall 1980 for plants at the six sites. Data measurements are nearly complete for these sites (through Fall 1980). Computer programming and analysis will be initiated in spring 1981. Field colonization studies involving Ascophyllum during 1980 were not successful. Only a few recruits developed (to 2-5 mm) from approximately 130 experimental plots involving millions of fertilized eggs. Some promising leads will be followed up during 1981. Colonization experiments in running sea water from these same eggs showed excellent growth and survival for 1 to 2 months until adversely affected by sedimentation.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

LARSON, E.R., VADAS, R.L. and KESER, N. 1980. Feeding and Nutritional Ecology of the Sea Urchin Strongylocentrotus bracachiensis in Maine, USA. Mar. Eiol. 59:49-62.

EESER, M., VADAS, R.L. and LARSCN, B.R. 1981. Regrowth of Ascophyllum nodosum and Fucus vesiculosus Under Harvesting Eeglmes in Maine, USA. Bot. Mar. 24:29-38.

004.103 CRIS0074475 BLACK FLY DAMAGE TERESHOLDS, BIOLOGY AND CONTROL

GIHBS K E; ENTOMOLOGY; UNIVERSITY CF MAINE, OFCNC, MAINE. 04469. Proj. No.: ME08039 Project Type: BATCH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 OCT 77 To 30 SEP 82

OBJECTIVES: Analyze the population dynamics of black flies, and factors contributing to their distribution and abundance.

APPRCACH: The role of invertebrae and vertebrate predators in the population dynamics of black fly larvae will be examined. Sampling methods will be devised which will give information on black fly larval populations and associated invertebrates. The gut contents of invertebrate predators will be examined for the presence of black fly larvae. Both the larvae and the predators will be classified according to slze. Fish will be sampled by electro-fishing and the stomach contents analyzed for the presence of black fly larvae.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. The roles of fish (Catastonus commersonii (white suckers), Semotilus corporalis (fallfish), Micropterus dolomieui (smallmouth hass) and Lepomis sp. (sunfish) and hydrospychild caddisfly larvae (Symphitospyche morosa, S. sparna and Hydropsyche scalaris) as predators of larvae of Simillium penobscotensis in the Penobscot River are being investigated. Sampling took place at weekly intervals between May and October, 1980. On each date approximately 20 specimens of each species of fish were taken from the beds of Potomogeton spp. to which the black fly larvae were attached. The fish length and weight, volume of stomach content, and the presence of blackfly larvae (numbers and percent volume in the stomach) will be recorded for each fish. Quantative weekly samples of invertebrates were taken from the Potomogeton spp. the substrate and the drift. The numbers and bead widths of the caddisfly larvae will be recorded as will the numbers of black fly larvae in the gut content. Emergence of caddisfly adults was monitored by weekly light trap collections. Processing of these samples is in progress and analyses of these data should allow an evaluation of the role of the different fish species as predators throughout the season, life history analysis of the various caddisfly species and their role as predators.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PEFICD.

004.104 CFIS0074522 COMPARATIVE STUDY OF THE FLEXIBACTEE-CYTOPEAGA GEOUP EACTERIA

PRATT D B; MILLAED P; FOSE G; MICRCEIOLOGY; UNIVERSITY OF MAINE, OFCNC, MAINE, 04469. Proj. No.: ME08755 Project Type: HATCE Agency ID: CSES Period: 23 JAN 78 To 30 SEP 80

CEJECTIVES: Isolate and representative members of Flexibacter and Cytopbaga from warine, aquatic, and soil samples. Improve procedures for detection and recognition of these microorganisms.

APPEOACE: The proposed research can he divided into two phases. Representative cultures will be isolated from marine, aquatic, and soil samples. Various selective and differential media will be tested. Cultures from each source along with named strains will be thoroughly characterized. Comparisons will be made using numerical taxonomy.

PROGRESS: 78/01 TO 80/09. Studies by James Sutton (N.S. Student) concerning the identification and variability of a Flexibacter sp. bave indicated a high rate of spontaneous variation in this organism. The organism was similar to Flexibacter auranticus var. copepodarum (Lewin) and to the organisms in Fager's Group 16. The natural variability of the organism was such that species identification would be easily compromised. Twelve spontaneous variants were studied as to the biochemical and morphological characteristics. Variations were shown in pigment formation, colonial size, roughness, gliding motility, catalase activity, proteolysis, tyrosinase activity, and maximum growth temperature. The nature of the high rate of variability requires further study to learn if it results from chormosomal gene mutation or plasmid loss. Substrate utilization tests using an agar based medium were not useful for agarolytic cytphagas since agar served as a carbon source; the flexibacters examined failed to grow on the defined medium. A study of the toxic effects of electron transfer compounds showed that most of the strains tested were sensitive to methylene blue (2ppm) and to diquat (2-20ppm) hut methyl viologen and triphenyl tetrazolium chloride were relatively less toxic. No correlation to sensitvity and catalase activity was observed. Further studies of the nutritional and growth characteristics of these tacteria are the subject of a new project.

PUBLICATIONS: 78/01 TO 80/09

- MILLAED, P. and PRATT, C. 1986. Sensitivity of Marine Cytophagas and Related Species to Ultraviolet Radiation. Abstract of the Annual Neeting ASM.
- SUTICN, E.J. 1980. The Characterization of Colonial Mutants of a Marine Flexibacter. M.S. Thesis. Department of Microbiology, University of Maine at Crono.

004.105 CFIS0082911 CLOSED CYCLE FISH CULTURE WATER FILTRATION USING EICLOGICAL SYSTEMS

WHEATON F W; LAWSON T E; KAFLANDEE E P; AGFI ENGINEEFING; UNIVERSITY OF MAEYLAND, CCLLEGE PARK, MARYLAND. 20742. Proj. No: M C-FK-066 Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 CCT 80 To 30 SEP 83 OBJECTIVES: Determine efficiency of nitrification filters for closed cycle aquacultural systems as a function of various operating parameters. Determine effectiveness of aquatic plants in removing nutrients from aquatic closed cycle culture systems. Use the data gathered from objectives one and two above to develp design equations for nitrification and plant filters.

APPROACH: Design equations for nitrification filters will be developed by operating pilot scale filters using an inorganic nitrogen source. Filter inlet ammonia concentration, oxygen concentration, temperature and pB will be varied and the filter's efficiency for converting ammonia to nitrate monitored. Macroscopic plants will be used to filter water containing an inorganic nutrient mix. The nitrogen and phosphate concentrations, water temperature, water retention time in the filter, pH and physical filter dimensions will be varied and related to nutrient extraction rates. Light levels will be maintained at a constant value. Filter design equations will be developed from the data collected.

004-106 CRIS0083580 EFFECTS OF HEREICIDES ON CHESAPEARE HAY PETTOPLANETON

CALLOWAY R A; ECTANY; UNIVERSITY CF MARYLAND, COLLEGE PAEK, MARYLAND. 20742. Proj. No.: MD-K-022 Project Type: EATCE Agency ID: CSES Period: 01 FEB 81 To 30 SEP 83

OEJECTIVES: Test the effects of atrazine and linuron on the growth and photosynthesis of several genera of algae, such as Isochrysis, known to be important to the fisheries industry. Other herbicides may be included pending discovery of what would appear to be significant concentrations in the Chesapeake Eay. If an organism is discovered to be resistant to a given herbicide, it will be determined if this results from simply exclusion of the compound, or if the organism takes up the compound and detoxifies it or metabolizes it in some way. If the latter be the case, further tests will be made to see if products injurious to other species are contained by or released from the resistant organism.

APFEOACH: Pure algal cultures will be grown in controlled environments at appropriate temperatures, light intensities and ranges of salinities and exposed to herbicides. Growth and photosynthesis will be monitored by conventional methods. Unaffected organisms will be further tested for herbicide uptake. Where uptake has occurred, the organism will be used in feeding experiments rendered them unfit for or perhaps dangerous to consumers. Additionally, the culture medium will be assayed for metabolites which may affect other organisms. Radioisotopes and gas chromatography will be employed.

004.107* CRIS0067857 PHYSIOLOGY OF CHESAPHAKE BAY PHYTCPLANETON

 KAKLANDER E P; BOTANY; UNIVEFSITY CF MAFYLAND,

 COLLEGE PARK, MARYLAND. 20742.

 Proj. No.: MD-K-013

 Agency ID: SAES

 Period: 01 MAY 75 To 30 SEP 80

OBJECTIVES: Characterization of the major food and oxygen producing plants supporting the seafood industry of Maryland is the major objective. Environmental factors including light, nutrients, temperature, energy, and interspecific interactions will be measured.

APPROACE: The research will be carried out primarily from the University of Maryland. Some work on the Chesapeake Hay will be necessary to obtain samples. Controlled natural, and possible variations in the environment will be introduced in naturally occurring and cultured communities. Initial investigations will concentrate on growth, production, and pigmentation. Absorbance, spectrophotometry, oxygen determination, and carbon uptake techniques will be used with cultured pbytoplankton.

PRCGRESS: 75/05 TO 80/09. Three algae from the Chesapeake Bay were characterized in terme of their gravel rate response to various environmental conditions of light, temperature, nutrition and salinity. The effects of grazing at various phases of growth was measured in a fourth algae. Recults of the grazing work showed that as net primary production decreased from exponential phase to declining phase to stationary phase that an equal level of grazing removed an increasing proportion of net primary production from each phase. The golden-brown planktivid alga. Pseudopedinella pyriforme grew best between 2 1/2 and 5 g/kg salinity. Mychozaetes ruminatus, a unicellular alga grew best between 10 and 20 g/kg salinity at 0.78 m W/cm white light, and 25C. The phytoplankter, Nannochloris oculata had a maximal growth rate at 30 C, 15 g/kg salinity, and 1.35 m W/cm white light on ammonium. The nitrogen source ebowing the best growth was dependent on interactions among the physical parameters of the environment. It is concluded that the production of Chesapeake Bay and the species composition of the primary plants will depend on the management of the environmental parameters affected by nutritional pollution, sedimentation, temperature manipulation and salinity control.

PUBLICATIONS: 75/05 TO 80/09

- OSTROFF, C.R., KARLANDER, E. F., VAN VALKENBERG, S.D. 1980. Growth rates of Peeudopedinella pyriforme (Chrysophyceae) in reeponse to 75 combinatione of light, temperature, and salinity. J. Phycol. 16:421-423.
- TERLIZZI, D.E. and E.P. KARLANDES. 1979. The role of light, temperature, salinity, and nitrogen source, in factorial combination on the growth of Nannochloris oculata Droop. Paper 42 Ann. Mtg. Am. Soc. Limnol. Oceanogr.
- TEPLIZZI, D. E. and E.P. KARLANDER. 1979. Soil algae from a Maryland Serpentine Formation. Soil Biol. Bicchem. 11:205-207.
- SPEARING, A.W. and E.P. KARLANDER. 1979. Effecte of light on the low temperature autotrophic metabolies of Chlorella eorokiniana. Shihira and Krauss. Environ. Exptl. Botany 19:237-243.
- SIMPSON, P.D., KARLANDEF, E.P., and S.D. VAN VALKENEUJG. 1978. The growth rate of Mychonaetee ruminatus Simpson et Van Valkenburg under various light, temperature and salinity regimes. Br. Phycol. J. 13:291-298.

004.108* CRIS0073934 MORPBOLOGICAL, ULTRASTRUCTURAL, AND BIOCBENICAL CRARACTERIZATION OF NANOPLANETCN FROM CRESAFFAKE RAY

PATTERSON G W; VAN VALKENBURG S D; BOTANY; UNIVERSITY OF MARTIAND, COLLEGE PARK, MARYLAND. 20742. Proj. No.: MD-K-016 Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 CCT 77 To 30 SEP 80

OBJECTIVES: Screen various nanoplankton organisms already brought into culture from theChesapeake Bay, in order to select for "new" organisms--those which cannot be identified through use of etandard keys. Study in detail the morphologyand microanatomy of the organisms selected as above in order to determine their taxonomic affinities. Characterize the photosynthetic pigments of these organisms, particularly the chlorophylls, the presence or absence of phycobiline, and the xanthophylls, in order to determine their taxonomic affinities. Characterize the biochemical composition of these organisms, especially the protein and lipid composition, in order to evaluate the organiem ae food for Cheeapeake Bay shellfish.

APPROACH: Screening procedures involve morphological description by light microecopy, a scan of the major pigments by acetone-extraction techniquee and a cursory examination by transmission electron microscopy, sufficient to determine the basic cytological condition of the organiem. In-depth studies by light, scanning electron and transmission electron microscopy will be done in order to produce definitive descriptions of these organisms. Pigmente will be studied by photospectrophometric scanning of acetone extract, and by bothtin layer and column separation and extraction procedures. Total protein composition will be determined by Kjeldabl analysis and lipid analysis willbe performed by etandard extraction methods followed by thin layer and gas cbromatography.

PROGRESS: 77/10 TO 80/09. Over thirty species of Chlorella have been examined for sterol and fatty acid composition. The major fatty acide were palmitic, oleic, linoleic and linolenic. Some strains had major quantities of palmitoleic as well as diand triunsaturated sixteen carbon acids. Tetra-unsaturated acids with 16 and 18 carbons were found in a few strains. Chlorella could be divided into 3 major groupe based on eterol compositions: Delta 5-sterols Delta 7-sterole Delta 5, 7-eterols. One etrain contained Delta 5, 8-eterols, which are extremely rare in living organisms. These lipid constituents show promise as biochemical markers for taxonomic groupings. Nost of the Chlorella species and strains would appear to be unlikely as oyster food based on their sterol composition and that of the oyster. Several diatoms which are of the proper eize for injestion by the oyster, appear to have the same sterol composition as the oyster, indicating that they could be the oyter's focd source.

PUBLICATIONS: 77/10 TO 80/03 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED FINAL REPORT PERIOD.

004-109* CRIS0064213 ACTIVITY REVTENS OF THE NORTBERN BOCK CRAB IN RELATION TO ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL FACTORS

REBACH S; UNIVERSITY OF MARYLAND EASTERN SHCRE, PEINCESS ANN, MARYLAND. 21853. Proj. No.: MDX-PR-0001-URP31/73

Project Type: GRANT Agency ID: CSRS Period: 25 MAY 73 To 24 MAY 78

OBJECTIVES: Develop a simple and accurate way to measure activity rhythms in Cancer borealis and determine the importance and effect of photoperiod, tidal cycle, temperature, salinity, age, sex and stage of the reproductive and molting cycles on its activity and movemente.

APPROACE: Crabs will be maintained under varying regimes of temperature, salinity, photoperiod and tidal cycle. The crabs will be teeted in aquaria utilizing photocells connected to a recording device to measure activity under these different conditions. Observations will be made on crabs of both sexes, varioue agee and different physiological states, such ae molt phase and reproductive condition, determine now these factors effect responses to solar and lunar rhythme. A knowledge of these factors and periods of optimum activity should provide basic information to the crabbing industry in relation to the timing and techniques of harvesting this species. This study might also lead to the ability to advance the reproductive season or increase the number of annual reproductive periods in C. borealls and, therefore, make commercial aquaculture of crabs a profitable veoture.

PROGRESS: 79/01 TO 79/12. Data obtained from measurements of locomotor activity of Cancer irroratus held under varying photoperidos is presently being reanalyzed to determine if size or stage of the molt cycle influenced the amplitude or periodicity of activity

PUELICATIONS: 79/01 TO 79/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PEFIOD.

004.110* BEBAVIOR, ECOLOGY AND BETTENICITY IN THE COMMON BOCK CRAB BEFACE S; NATURAL RESCURCES; UNIVERSITY OF MARYLAND EASTERN SHORE, PRINCESS ANN, MARYLAND. 21853. Proj. No:: MEX-PR-0301-URF4S Project Type: GEANT Agency ID: CESS Period: 15 MAR 76 To 14 DEC 80

OBJECTIVES: Develop a method to maintain crabs under iaboratory conditions for prolon_ked periods. Develop a simple and accurate method to measure activity rhythms. Determine the importance and effect of photoperiod, tidal cycle, temperature, salinity, age, sex and stage of reproductive and molt cycles on activity and movement. Study population structure and the distribution of Cancer irroratus. Determine the nutritional requirements of experimental animals.

APPROACE: Design and construct a recirculating, temperature-controlled activity testing facility. Design infrared photoelectric cell sensors, amplify singnal, record and collect cata. Measure activity rbythms under varying conditions of photoperiod, tidal cycle, temperature, salinity, age, sex, reproductive and molt cycles. Develop a high-protein pelletized diet and compare to other feeds that might be used in commercial mariculture of crustacea. Analyze population structure utilizing catch data on size, sex ratio, and distribution in various local areas.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. In studies of the ecology and behavior of the common rock crab (Canier irroratus) (Febach, 1977, 1978) conducted in the laboratory, it was necessary to maintain 20 to 50 animals for periods in excess of one year. A pelletized diet developed by the principal investigator was compared to other diets fed to the crabs and resulted in greater weight gain; lower mortality and greater molt success in the laboratory. The high levels of calcium and phosphate maythion diet may contribute to molt success and survival. It has been hypothesized that the physical form and high water stability of the pellets were especially suited to benthic decapod crustaceans. The pellets can be stored in the laboratory for indefinite periods, are easy to handle and can be adapted to mechnical delivery sustems.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 REBACB, S. 1981. A Pelletized Diet for Captive Benthic Crustaceans. See Grant Publication UM-SG-15-81-01. 8 pp.

004-111 CFIS0077475 THE FATE AND EFFECTS OF CHENICALS IN AQUATIC ECOSYSTEMS

JOBNSON B E; FISBERIES & WILDLIFE; WICEIGAN STATE UNIVERSITY, EAST LANSING, WICEIGAN, 48824. Proj. No.: MICL03078-S Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 26 DEC 78 To 25 DEC 83

OBJECTIVES: Levelop and test laboratory methods for evaluating the fate and chronic toxicity of agricultural and industrial chemicals in aquatic environments. Determine the environmental requirements of aquatic organisms that are useful indicators of water qualtiy.

APPROACE: Simple laboratory microcosms and semi-natural aquatic environments, i.e. experimental ponds and streams treated with chemicals to determine the fate and toxicity of cheicals to selected aquatic organisms. Various aquatic species will be reared in the laboratory to determine their value as test organisms.

PECGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Beta-napthoflavone was found to stimulate in-vitro metabolism of two selected substrates over that of untreated goldfish. This is the first confirmation of the induction in goldfish and establishes the basis for further identification of sublethal effects of chemicals in aquatic ecosystems. Reproductive performance in mink was suboptimum when fed diets containing 30% Great Lakes fish on fish scraps. Because PCB levels in Great Lakes fish have declined, this study is continuing to evaluate the possible value of this food source for commercial mink production. PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS LEPORIED THIS PERIOD.

004.112 FARM FISE POND MANAGEMENT CRIS0012991

KEVERN N R; FISBEFIES & WILDLIFE; MICHIGAN STATE UNIVERSITY, EAST LANSING, MICHIGAN. 48824. Proj. No.: MICL00064 Agency ID: CSRS Period: 22 JUL 44 To 01 JAN 99

OBJECTIVES: Estimate production of plants and animals per unit area or volume of water in farm type ponds, and natural ponds. Determine extent fertilization of ponds will increase production of fish food (plankton, insects) and fish. Devise practical management programs for farm ponds; this includes the number of fish to plant and harvest. Detect and measure possible detrimental effecte of use of fertilizers in fish ponds.

APPECACE: Measurement release of stored nutrients in the subaqueous soils by additon of chelating (EDTA, etc.) materials to the waters. Tracing the paths of nutrients added to the waters through tagging nutrients with radioactive tracers (P^{32}), rates of fixation of nutrients and accumulation of organic material (basic productivity) will be measured by the C^{14} light-and-dark bottle technic. Input of solar radiation will be measured.

PROGRESS: 44/07 TO 79/10. The research has contributed significantly to the management techniques of fish ponde in northern, midwestern areas of the United States. These techniques relate to the stocking deneitiee of fish, the species of fish suitable, fertilization rates for ponds and fish and fish food relationships. Northern ponds must be stocked and fertilized differently than southern ponds in many aspects. Competition among sport versus rough fish in ponds results in reduced growth rates of sport fish when ponde are fertilized. This results apparently from lower diesolved oxygen levels in fertilized ponds. Raising of catfish in Michigan for sale is successful when starting the season with advanced fingerlings.

PUELICATIONS: 44/07 TO 79/10

- GALLOWAY, J. E. AND N. R. KEVERN. 1976. Michigan suckers, their life histories, abundance and potential for harvest. Mich. Sea Grant Tech. Rpt. 53: 46 pp.
- LU, J. D. AND N. R. KEVERN. 1875. The feasibility of using waste materials as supplemental fish feed. Prog. Fish-Cult. 37(4): 241-244.
- BAINES, T. A. 1973. Effects of nutrient enrichment and a rough fieb population (carp) on a game fish population (small mouth bass). Trans. Am. Fish. Soc. Vol. 102: 346-354.
- BABR, T. G., R. C. BALL AND F. F. BCPPEE. 1969. Some ecological changes in ponds resulting from treatments of sodium areenite and copper sulfate. Michigan Academician, Vol. 1, Nos.3 and 4.
- Michigan Academician, Vol. 1, Nos.3 and 4. BAILS, J. D. AND R. C. BALL. 1576. Response of pond metabolism to sodium arsenite. Papers of Wich. Acad. of Sci., Arts, and Lett., Vol. LI.

004.113 CFIS0012996 ECOLOGICAL BELATIONSHIPS OF PESTICIDES, BADIONUCLIDES 6 NUTRIENTS WITH OFGANISMS IN AQUATIC COMMUNIT

KEVERN N F; FISBERIES & WILDLIFE; MICHIGAN STATE UNIVERSITY, EAST LANSING, MICHIGAN. 48824. Proj. No.: MICL00940 Project Type: BATCH Agency ID: CSFS Period: 11 MAR 64 To 01 JAN 99

OBJECTIVES: Evaluate amount, storage, build-up and releacee of pesticides under varying biological and chemical-conditions.

APPROACH: Studies on contamination and levels necessary to produce injury, debility, sterility or mortality will be conducted. The physiological effects of pesticides on energy exchange measured at the cellular level. Direct bioassay and gas chromatography employed to mointor the accusulation of pesticides in aquatic systems. Determine site of damage and identification of effects of detergents, metallic ions, BOD and other chemicals. Rate of transfer, buildup and exchange within the biota of aquatic systmes will be determined.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Gross primary productivity (phytoplankton) and community respiration were measured in western Lake Erie in the vicinity of the Monroe Power Plant to assess the impact of the once-through cooling system waters on the aquatic ecosystem. Samples were collected from the lake and river source waters; the discharge canal, where water temperature increased 6 to 10 C after passage through the condensers; and the thermal plume. Data were collected monthly for one year for preoperational estimates and for one year for post-operational estimates. The temperature increase of the water mass from the passage through the power plant usually resulted in a depression of the productivity in the discharge canal waters. Corresponding community respiration rates almost doubled as a result of elevated water temperature. Depressed productivity recovered partially as the water mass cooled and moved through the canal. A slight simulation occurred as ambient temperatures were approached in the lake proper. Elevated respiration rates decreased as the water mass cooled. The study revealed the impact of the thermal discharge to be significant over a small area; however, the phytoplankton community did recover.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 WARNES, C.C. 1980. Community Netabolism in Thermally and Organically Enriched Waters of Western Lake Erice. M.S. Thesis. Mich. State Univ. East Lansing. 84 pp.

004-114 CRIS0084690 HECHANISTIC FACTORS DETERMINE AQUATIC FERTILITY

KING D D; FISHERIES 6 WILDLIFE; MICHIGAN STATE UNIVERSITY, EAST LANSING, MICHIGAN, 48224. Proj. No.: MICL01387-B Project Type: BATCH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 JUL 81 To 30 SEP 86

OBJECTIVES: Determination of factors causing bluegreen algal dominance in ponds, lakes, and reservoirs. Determination of the role of the aquatic animal community in determining type and amount of aquatic plant production. Establishment of management criteria for maintenance of the optimal aquatic community and for optimal nutrient use, recycle, and removal within ponds, lakes and reservoirs.

APPECACB: A combination of laboratory microcosms and field study in enriched ponds will be used to determine the mechanisms controlling each portion of the aquatic ecceystem as well as the interactive feedback controls among and between the various physical, chemical and biological components.

004.115* CRIS0075621 ECOLOGY OF FISHES AND LINNOLOGY OF UPPER GREAT LAKES AND THIEUTABLES IN RELATION TO ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS

LISTON C R; FISBERIES & WILDLIFE; MICHIGAN STATE UNIVERSITY, EAST LANSING, MICHIGAN. 48824. Proj. No.: MICL01312 Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 JUL 78 To 30 JUN 83

OBJECTIVES: Understand the biology and ecology of fisbes in near-shore waters of Lake Michigan near Ludington, Michigan, and in selected tributaries of Lake Michigar. Examine limnological aspects in these waters including temperature, water transparency, turbidity, disolved oxygen, and benthos. Eelate findings to impacts of resource utilization, and to agencies responsible for the management of important sport and commercial fish species. APPROACH: Sample adult, juvenile, and larval fishes using standard gill nets, trawls, seives, and meter nets during ice-free periods. Identify species and record total numbers and weights for each method. Record length, weight, sex and age for individuals of all species and determine food habits and fecundity for selected species. Determine limnological parameters at location of fish sampling sites.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Studies continued in four areas: impacts on Lake Michigan fisherles from the Ludington Pumped Storage Power Plant; ecology of connecting waters between Lakes Superior and Huron (St. Mary's River) in relation to winter navigation; fish stock assessment in Whitefish Bay, Lake Superior; ecology of fish in the Red Cedar River. Losses of larval, juvenile, and adult fishes (mainly alewives, smelt, and salmonids) were greater at Ludington than for any other existing power plants on Lake Michigan. Regulatory agencies are now using results to determine a mitigation policy for Michigan. Forty-seven fish species use the St. Nary's River, and young of important sport fish depend upon aquatic plants in shallow water for food and protection. Shallow areas are most likely to be impacted from winter shipping. Adult fish were dominated by lake herring, yellow perch, smelt, northern pike, and white sucker. At least 18 species spawn successfully in the St. Mary's River. Commercial catches of whitefish in Whitefish Bay were comprised mainly of Ages V, Vi, and VII Fish. Average catch was 69.7 kg. Results are used by the U.S. Department of Interior to assess stocksize.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TC 80/12

- LISTON, C.R., HRAZO, D.C., BOHR, J., IIGMAN, R., ONEAL, R. and PETERSON, G. 1980. Studies of Entrainment of Fish and Invertebrates, Turbine Wortalities, Netting and Hydroacoustic Surveys, and Water Currents at the Ludington Pumped
- EONE, J.F. 1980. Abundance, Distribution and Community Interactions of Demensal Fishes Inhabiting a new Pumped Storage Reservoir on Lake Michigan M.S. Thesis, Mich. State Univ. 62 pp.
- LISTON, C.R., DUFPY, W., ASHTON, D., MCNABH, C. and Evaluation of the St. Mary's Fiver KOBBLEK, F. 1980. Environmental Baseline and Evaluation of the St. Mary's River Dredging. Mich. State Univ. Dept. Fish Wildl., Fep to U.S. Fish. Wildl. Servi ce. 285 pp.
- PETERSON, G.F., BRAZO, D.C. and LISION, C.R. 1980. Food Babits of Predatory Fish in Lake Michigan Near the Tailrace of the Ludington Pumped Storage Power Plant. Micb. Acad. Sci., Arts, Letters. Vol. 10.

004.116* CRISO012668 AN EVALUATION OF WIDELY USED HERBICIDES ON AQUATIC PLANTS, FISH AND FISE-FOOD ORGANISMS

MCNABB C D; FISHERIES & WILDLIFE; WICHIGAN STATE UNIVERSITY, EAST LANSING, MICHIGAN. 48824. Proj. No.: MICL00959 Agency ID: CSRS Period: 28 OCT 64 To 01 JAN 99

OBJECTIVES: Assess the influence of total alkalinity, pE and temperature of the water on the effectiveness of several widely used herbicides. Test the effect of weed control by chemical means on fish-food organisms. Evaluate fertilization as a method of controlling higher aquatic plants.

APPROACE: Preliminary work in the laboratory will include study of influence of water quality on effectiveness of various herbicides. Toxicity of berbicides to fish will be studied in conjunction with the laboratory, experiments. While some fertilization studies can be done in the laboratory, the major effort here will be in farm ponds and small lakes.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Lake Lansing, Michigan was treated with sodium arsenite for aquatic weed control in 1957. Two 2.5 m cores from deep portions of the lake basin showed the bistorical consequence of this treatment. Maxima of 330-340 Mug As g - 1 dry weight occurred at depth interval 0.15-0.30 m; background was 17-20 ppm As. An arsenic mass balance budget for

the lake for June 1978 to June 1979 showed it lost more arsenic than it received from the watershed. Internal loading of the water from the sediments was occurring; the surface of the eediments in greater than 85% of the lake had concentrations 2-6 times background. From laboratory experiments, we hypothesize Fe 3 + controls As concentration over aerobic sedimente; As(III) increases in anoxic water with conversion of Fe 3 + to Fe 2 + and As(V) to As(III) at the sediment surface. As(III) in water decreases during prolonged anoxia by reaction with S 2 -. As(III) and Fe 2 + are oxidized upon aeration of anoxic water, and As(V) is taken out of solution with ferric iron in a manner similar to phosphate. Arsenic measurements in the lake over an annual cycle fit these expectations. Studies are underway to determine the impact of the annual arsenic cycle on fish food organisms of the lake.

PUBLICATIONS: 30/01 TO 80/12 EATTERSON, T.R. 1980. Arsenic in Take Lansing, Michigan. Ph.D. Thesis. Mich. State Univ., East Lansing. 79 pp.

004-117 CRIS0063625 EFFECTS OF ACUATIC PLANT COMMUNITIES ON WATER QUALITY IN EXPEREUTROPEIC AQUATIC ENVIRONMENT

MCNABB C D; FISBERIES & WILDLIFE; MICBIGAN STATE UNIVERSITY, EAST LANSING, MICEIGAN. 48824. Proj. No.: MICL01157 Agency ID: CSRS Period: 12 APR 73 To 30 SEP 79

OBJECTIVES: Levelop management strategies for aquatic plants in water purification systems.

APFECACB: Flots of submersed plants will be assayed for growth rate, seed production and seed success; effect on pB, O(2) and redox; and uptake of macronutrients, micronutrients and toxIc metals In wastewater ponds. Elements will be measured in pond influents and effluents so that efficiencies of removal by plant communities can be calculated.

FRCGRESS: 73/04 TO 79/10. The crop producing species of submersed vascular plants of municipal wastewater ponds in Michigan are restricted to a few representatives of the regional flora. Potamogeton foliosus, Elodea canadensis, and Ceratophyllum demersum are principal among them. Lemna minor is commonly aburdant on the surface of these ponds. The latter is a bio-accumulator of horon relative to other specles of aquatic macrophytee. A maximum annual yield of 400 g dry weight per meter square can be expected from harvest of aquatic vascular plants from hypereutrophic ponds in Michigan. This yield would remove a quantity of phosphorus equivalent to 20-25% of the total phosphorus influent in the growing season to ponds having a retention time on the order of 28 days. Similarly calculated estimates аге 50-70% for nitrogen, 80-100% for manganese, 20-30% for iron, 5-10% for copper and zinc, and 1-3% for cadmium, chromium, cobalt and nickel.

PUBLICATIONS: 73/04 TO 79/10

- BULTBUIS, D. A., J. E. CRAIG AND C. D. MCNABE. 1974. Metal dynamics in municipal stabilization ponds. In Trace Substances in Environmental Bealth-VII, Ed. D. D. Bemphill, Univ. of Missouri, Columbia. pp. 117-125.
- LISIECEI, J. B. AND C. D. MCNABB. 1975. Lynamics of hazardous elements in wastewater ponds. Natl. Tech. Inform. Serv., PE 248404, Washington, D.C. 88 pp.
- MCNAEB, C. D. 1976. The potential of submersed vascular plants for reclamation of wastewater in temperate zone ponds. In Biol. Control of Water Polle, Eds. J. Tourbier and R. W. Fearson, Phila., The Univ. Prees. 380 pp.
- GLANDON, R. P. AND C. E. MCNAEB. 1978. The uptake of boron by Lemna minor. Aquatic Eot. 4: 53-64. ANON. 1976. Making aquatic weeds useful: some
- perspectives for devel. countries. Rept. of an Ad Boc Panel of the Advis. Comm. on Tech. Innovation, Bd. of Sci. and Tech. for Intl. Dev., Comm. on Intl. Rel. NAS, Wash.D.C.174pp.

004-118 CRIS0062584 BCOLOGY OF ANABEOBIC EETEROTROPEIC EACTERIA

KLUG M J; MICROBIOLCGY AND PUBLIC BEALTB; MICHIGAN STATE UNIVERSITY, EAST LANSING, MICHIGAN. 48824. Proj. No.: MICL03120 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 72 To 16 JUL 83

OBJECTIVES: Determine the extent of degradation of blue-green algal cells in anaerobic lake eediments; establish the rate limiting stage in this decomposition; elucidate the role of the heterotrophic organisms in the metabolism of volatile fatty acids evolved during this decomposition.

APPROACH: Establish the rate of loading of algae in to the sediments and establishment of pool sizes of intermediates and products evolved during ite decomposition. The kinetics of the turnover of radioactively labeled intermediatee are followed in laboratory reactions and from this information the rate limiting processes are determined.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Studies on anaerobic decomposition in lake sediments were continued through a etudy of the distribution and mineralization of sulfur containing compounds in sediments. Approximately 46 and 42% of the annual total eulfur and ester sulfate sulfur, and 75% of the calculated protein-sulfur inputs were mineralized in eediments. Activity of alky-aryl sulfrydrolasee were readily demonstrated in eedimente. However, ester sulfate hydrolysis only represented 10% of the sulfate consumed in the sediments. We conclude that organic eulfur compounde are more slowly mineralized than other organic compounds and that they constitute a eignificant contribution to end products of lake sediment diagenesis euch as coal and oil depoeits.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TC 80/12

KING, G.M. and KLUG, M.J. 1980. Sulfhydrolase Activity in Sediments of Wintergreen Lake, Ealamazoo County, Michigan. Appl. Environ. Microbiol. 39:850-956.

004.119* CRISO076398 EFFECTS OF POLLUTANTS ON GILLS CF FRESEWATER FISHES

FRCMM P 0; PBYSIOLCGY; MICBIGAN STATE UNIVERSITY, EAST LANSING, MICBIGAN. 48824. Agency ID: CSVWV-0010 Period: 01 JUL 77 To 30 JUN 82

OBJECTIVES: Develop the isolated perfused gill preparation as a model for the study of the effect of pcllutants on fieh.

APPEOACB: Experimental invectigation of the permeability propertiee (flux of water across) ieolated perfused gills and the effect of pollutants on ease, a study of the salt transport capabilities (ATPase levels) in gills exposed to pollutants, and biotransformation of pollutants by gills during transit of materials from the ventilate to the blood vascular space. Test toxicologically some 'model' compounds which represent classes of chemical compounds found in the process water from in situ gasification of coal.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TC 80/12. During 1980 research continued on development of the isolated trout gill preparation as a model for the study of the effects of pollutants on fish. Novement of tritlated water from a bath eolution into the vascular compartment is a good qualitative measure of diffusive transfer capacity (PdA) of the gill. PdA is not constant but can be altered by changee in physical factore such as ventilation, total blood flow, blood pressure; pattern of blood flow and the exchange surfaces and by varying the number of lamellae (exchange surfaces) perfused. These factore which are regulated by humoral and neural means provides fich with elegant control of diffusional mase transport of materials across their gills. In acute experiments of 4 hours duration increasing the acidity of the bath from pB 7.2 to 3.5 by addition of sulfuric acid had no effect on PdA but it did Increase gill vascular resistance. This response was greater in gills perfused with saline alone than in those perfused with saline

containing epinephrine, a potent dilator of gill vessels. In separate experiments with frogs it was found that acid stress caused a reduction in short-circuit current and electrical conductance of isolated skins but with intact animals there was no change in osmotic permeability upon exposure to acid conditions. The data supports the hypothesis that acid stress decreases influx of sodium ions into skins thereby reducing active (inward) sodium transport.

- PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12
 - JACKSON, W.F. and FRCWM, P.C. 1980. Intrinsic Bypoxic Vasoconstriction in Saline Perfused Trout Gills (Salmo gairdneri). The Physiologist 23(Abstract):175.
 - PROMM, P.C. 1980. A Review of Some Physiological and Toxicological Responses of Freshwater Fish to Acid stress. Env. Eiol. Fish. 5:79-93.
 - JACKSON, W.F. and FRCMM, P.O. 1980. Effect of Acute Acid Stress on Isolated Perfused Gills of Rainbow Trout. Ccmp. Biochem. Physiol. 67C:141-145.

004.120 C51S0027015 TAIONOMY, BICLOGY, AND ECOLOGICAL BELATIONSHIPS OP AQUATIC INSECTS

 COOK E F; ENTOMOLOGY, FISHERIES & WIDLIFE; UNIVERSITY

 OF MINNESOTA, ST PAUL, MINNESOTA. 55108.

 Proj. No.: MIN-17-017

 Agency ID: CSRS

 Period: 01 JUL 63 To 30 JUN 81

OEJECTIVES: Study the taxonomy and biology of Crthocladinae (Chironomidae: Diptera) and Bydropsychidae (Trichoptera) and other aquatic taxa and further out knowledge of the aquatic insect fauna of Minnesota. The completion of such studies will help to make possible meaningful environmental impact statements in regard to aquatic habitats.

APPROACE: Systematic studies of selected genera will require anatomical, distributional, life history and ecological investigations. The attempt will be made to incorporate work with living material but not to the exclusion of preserved museum specimens.

PROGRESS: 63/07 TO 81/06. This project was originally concerned with biological studies of systematic problems in Arthropods. The groups worked with initially were Aphididae and Anoplura and there were several papers published on the Anoplura studies that resulted. In 1967 the project was restricted to include groups in a systematic fashion throughout the state. All of this material has been incorporated into the insect collection where it is readily available to interested investigators. Specific biological and systematic investigations were also started in 1867. The results of such studies have been published, are in press or (in 3 instances) are still in preparation on coleoptera (Enocbrus and Bygrotis); Ephemeroptera (Tricorythodes and Callibaetis); Diptera (Chaoboridae and Chironomidae, Diamesa, Polypedilum, and Microtendipes); and the semiaquatic Hemiptera of Minnesota.

PUBLICATIONS: 63/07 TO 81/06 COOK, e.F. 1981. Chaoboridae pp. 335-339. In Handbook of th Nearctic Diptera I. Monograph #27, Research Eranch, Agricultural Canada, Cttawa 674 pp.

004.121* CRIS0080081 ECOLOGY, POPULATION DYNAMIC: AND MANAGEMENT OF MULTI-SPECIES FISH RESOURCES OF LARGE LARES

 SPANGLER G R; ENTOMOLOGY, FISHEBIES & WIDLIFE;

 UNIVERSITY OF MINNESOTA, ST PAUL, MINNESOTA. 55108.

 Proj. No: MIN-17-077

 Project Type: BATCH

 Agency ID: CSRS
 Period: 01 CCT 79 To 30 SEP 82

OEJECTIVES: To develop an improved hiological basis for the management of the fish communities of large lakes through an increased understanding of interspecific relationships; analysis of the role of fishery exploitation in the dynamics of fish communities; and use of simulation modelling to explore the impact of management measures on the structure and productivity of fish communities.

APPROACE: The response of lake whitefish to predation by sea lampreys will be estimated by analysis of stock dynamics prevailing during the years preceding and following lamprey control. The role of fishery exploitation will be examined with respect to its effects in competition with lampreys for available whitefish and as a singulr force of mortality on smelt. Results of these studies will be synthesized into simulation models for the exploration of management strategies appropriate to multi-species fish communities.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. During 1980 the biological basis for management of lake whitefish (Coregonus clupeaformis) was examined with respect to stock discreteness in Canadian waters of Lake Huron. Data from tagging studies together with electrophoretic, morphometric and meristic data were analyzed to determine the utility of these approaches in defining stock discreteness. Recoveries of tagged fish indicated the existence of at least 11 stocks differing sufficiently in their population characteristics that yield to the fishery could be significantly influenced hy stock-specific management. Electrophoretic analyses indicated that genetic differences between Lake Buron stocks were fewer than those detected between Lake Hurch and inland lake populations. Morphological characteristics were relatively insensitive indicators of stock discreteness. Estimates of the influence of lasprey predation on one of these stocks and a preliminary analysis of lamprey stock structure in the Great Lakes were published in 1980. An analysis of the effects of exploitation on smelt (Osmerus wordax) was initiated in 1980 with an examination of gillnet selectivity. Comparison of length distribution from graded mesh experimental nets indicated that mesh sizes greater than 38 cm. (stretched measure) were relatively unselective with respect to smelt size. Tabulation of historical data and verification of ages from scale samples will he completed in 1981.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- SPANGLER, G.R. and COLLINS, J.J. 1980. Sesponse of Lake Whitefish (Coregonus clupeaformis) to the Control of Sea Lamprey (Petromyzon marinus) in Lake Buron. Can. J. Fish. Aquat. Sci. 37(11):2039-2046.
- SPANGLER, G.R., ROESON, D.S and REGIER, H.A. 1980. Estimates of Lamprey-Induced Mortality in Lake Whitefish, Coregonus clupeaformis. Can. J. Fish. Aquat. Sci. 37(11):2146-2150.
- WALTERS, C.J., STEEE, G. and SPANGLER, G. 1980. Responses of Lake Trout (Salvelinus numaycust) to Barvesting, Stocking, and Lamprey Reduction. Can. J. Fish. Aquat. Sci. 37(11):2133-2145.
- KRUEGER, C.C. 1980. Detection of Variability at Isozyme loci in Sea Lamprey, Petromyzon marinus. Can. J. Fish. Aquat. Sci. 37(11):1630-1634.

004.122 CRISO071129 TOXICITY AND ECOLOGICAL EPPECTS OF SELECTED INSECTICIDES AND BERBICIDES

EDNEY N A; LATIF A; BIOLOGY; ALCORN A AND N COLLEGE, LCRWAN, MISSISSIPPI. 39096. Proj. No.: MISX-PR-0002-1976-2 Project Type: GRANT Agency ID: CSFS Period: 18 MAY 76 To 17 MAY 81

OBJECTIVES: Determine the toxicity level for Mirex, Toxaphene, Methyl parathion, EPN, Treflan, Cotoran with MSMA and Dyanap. Assess the long-term effects of the above mentioned insecticides and herbicides on selected fish and fish food organisms.

APPROACE: Toxicity levels of commonly used insecticides (carbamates, organophosphorus and chlorinated hydrocarhon) will be determined for selected animal species. Continuous flow-thru and static bio-assay tests will be conducted. The long-term effects on growth rate, reproductive success and natural animal mortality will be assessed. Biological magnification of chlorinated compounds due to normal usage and accidental

contamination will be investigated.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. This year trials were conducted on National Pickling and Carclina Gyneocious varieties of cucumbers. This was cone in continuation of the field trials of 1979, which evaluated the effect of Naptalam on the sex expression of cucumber. Applications of Alanap were made at the rate of 1, 2, and 4 lbs. per acre. It was found that an application of 2 lbs. of Alanap increased femaleness in the National Pickling variety and also increased the number of abortive flowers in the control and treatments. A series of trials were undertaken ir the greenhouse. It was found that only one application of 25 microliters of Naptalam in a dilution of 10-2 stopped the growth of the main stem and enhanced the number of axillary branckes. This indicated a loss of apical dominance; therefore, it can be concluded that Naptalam or its metabolite directly or indirectly affects the endegenous auxin system of the cucumber. An application of 10 microliters of 10-2 and 10-3 dilutions of Naptalam decreased maleness of 52% and 15%, but increased femaleness by 77% and 10%, respectively. There was no significant cifference in the number of abortive flowers in the control and treatment groups. The effects of Neptalaz on sex expression confirmed the assumption forgulated in previous studies. Keeping in view the sequence of male and female flowers under normal conditions, it can be further assumed that the application of Naptalam has a close relationship with aging.

FUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- EDNEY, N.A., RIZVI, N. and PARKER, A. 1980. Evaluating the Effect of Naptalam on Sex Expression of Cucumber. Journal of Mississippi Academy of Sciences, 25:59-62.
- EDNEY, N.A., RIZVI, N. and PAFKER, A. 1980. Evaluating the Effect of Naptalam on Sex Expression of Cucumber. Abstract. Journal of Mississippi Academy of Sciences.
- EDNEY, N.A., RIZVI, M. and RIZVI, N. 1980. Growth Kinetics of Cucumber Hypocotyl and Leaf Area Under Strees of Dalaron. Abstract. Journal of Mississippi Academy of Sciences.
- EDNEY, N.A., RIZVI, N. and CCLE-ICCKLEY, C. 1980. Evaluating the Effect of Alanap on Sex Expression and Abortive Flowers on Two Selected Varieties of Cucumber. Abstract. Journal of Mississippi Academy of Sciences.
- EDNEY, N.A., RIZVI, N., RIZVI, N. and COLE-LOCKLEY, C. 1980. Evaluating the Effect of an Exogenous Application of Naptalam on Growth, Sex Expression and Abortive Flowers in Cucumber. Abstract. Journal of Mississippi Academy of Sciences

004.123 CFIS0077745 MIREX FEEDING STUDY IN CEARMEL CATFISE (ICTALURUS PUNCTATUS)

MERCER E D; FIDALGC R J; KITZMAN J V; ANIWAI BEAITE RESEARCE; MISSISSIPPI STATE UNIVERSITY, MISSISSIPPI STATE, MISSISSIPPI. 39762. Proj. ho.: MIS-0837 Agency JD: CSES Period: 18 APE 79 To 30 SEP 81

OBJECTIVES: Determine the mathematical relationships between dietary intake of mirex a d ferramicide and the resulting whole body residues. Determine time/dose response relationships between dietary intake of mirex and ferramicide and whole body residues, selected tissue residues, mortality, pathophysiology aof certain organs, growth and callagen formation. Determine correlation between mirex and ferramicide whole-body residues with organ residues, pathophysiology of organs and mortality.

APPEDACE: Fifty channel catfish will be maintained in each of 45 separate 200-L tanks. Body weights of fush in each tank will be made every two weeks throughout the experiments. In separate experiments, 8 levels of mirex and ferramicide will be administered in a defined synthetic diet. Each dose level will be fed to fish in 4 or 5 tanks for 52 weeks. Fish fed each dose level and appropriate controls will be sacrificed at prescribed intervals and appropriate samples collected for assay and histopathology. Pesticide levels in feed, water and fish samles will be analyzed at the National Monitoring and Residue Analysis Laboratory, USDA, Gulfport, Mississippi.

PROGLESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Forty-eight groups of fish in separate aquariums were fed purified mirex at levels of 0.01 - 32.0 ppm in a purified fish diet. Tissues collected at intervals up to 240 days were subjected to quantitative mirex analysis and histopathologic examinations. Growth rates and collagen assays were also determined. There were no bistopathologic nor growth parameter changes that could be correlated with exposure rates of mirex. Results of mirex analysis indicated a direct correlation between total dietary intake and tissue residue levels. The kinetic and mathematical models have yet to be completed. The feeding segment of the project was terminated at 240 days (January 6, 1981) due to excessive mortality resulting from several outbreaks of Aeromonas hydrophila attributable to stress factors. Statistical analysis to determine if there is any time/dose relationship between dietary irtake of mirex and morbidity or mortality is underway. The project will terminate in April 1981, at which time the objectives of this project will have been completed.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

004.124 CRIS0080533 ECOLOGICAL STUDY OF CUTOFF BENDWAYS AND OXECUS WITEIN THE TENNESSEE-TOMEIGEEE WATERWAY

ROEINETTE B &; LCRIO W J; FISBERIES & WILDLIFE; MISSISSIPPI STATE UNIVERSITY, MISSISSIPPI STATE, MISSISSIPPI. 39762. Proj. No.: MIS-0840 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 OCT 79 To 30 SEP 80

OBJECTIVES: Obtain data on the value of cutcff bendways as aquatic habitat relative to other defined waterway aquatic habitats. Define the ecological and hydraulic factors important in cutoff bendway development and maintenance. Provide data useful in design and management of bendways to achieve environmental quality objectives.

APPROACH: Bathymetry, sedimentation rates, etc. will be provided by the ACE. Sampling will correspond to the four normal seasonal river stages at four selected cutoff bendways and two oxbows. Fish populations will be sampled with hoop and gill nets, minnow traps, and by electrofishing. Eenthic, sediment, phytoplankton, and water quality samples will be analyzed.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Oxbow lakes were deleted from the study after the December 1979 sampling, but bendway study sites remained the same. Bendway cutoff channels and impoundment of the river behind lock and dam complexes were the two overriding ecological factors influencing the results. The alteration of current or flow patterns is a dominant factor in the cbanging Tombighee riverine ecosystem. Current in bendways with cutoff channels averaged less than one-half of the current in the river above and below the bendway. There was no difference in current between the river and within the hendway where there was no cutoff channel. The bendway with no cutoff channel had little stratifitcion, but cutoff, bendways had distinct dissolved oxygen stratification from July through September. Lower water column strata often had less than 2.0 mg/l dissolved oxygen. Above normal sediment deposition occurred in some bendways. Plankton density was generally greater within bendways than in the river proper. Higher numbers of species and numbers of fish caught corresponded to the bendways with older cutoff channels. Length nf time since the creation of the cutoff channel and the impoundment of the pool may be important from the standpoint of allowing the new ecosystem to mature. Greatest benthic diversity occurred in the bendway with no cutoff channel. Greatest macrophyte density occurred in the oldest impounded bendway.

004.125 CRISO082872 WINTER FREDING OF CHANNEL CATFISH IN MISSISSIPPI

 ROBINETTE B F; BUSCH F; WALDROP J; WILLLIFE 6

 FISHERIES SCI; MISSISSIPPI STATE UNIVERSITY,

 MISSISSIPPI STATE, MISSISSIPPI. 38762.

 Proj. No: MIS-0851

 Project Type: STATE

 Agency ID: SAES

 Period: 15 NCV &0 To 30 SEP 83

OBJECTIVES: Evaluate growth rates, economic implications and water quality of fingerling and food-sized ctannel catfish winter feeding programs.

APPROACE: There will be four treatments (two experimental feeds two fish sizes) and two controls (no feed x two fish sizes) each replicated three times (18 .04 ha ponds). Fish will be fed as a percent of body weight depending upon water temperature. Fish weight gain, survival, feed conversion ard body proximate analysis will be analyzed using a two-way ANOVA. Economic and water quality evaluations will be conducted.

PROGRESS: 80/11 TO 80/12. Project was initiated 15 Nov 1980. All ponds were stocked and feeding adjusted to water temperature is proceeding.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/11 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

004.126 CRIS0045110 EFFECTS OF SEDIMENTS ON EIOLOGICAL SYSTEMS

COOPER C M; FITCBE J C; USDA-ARS SEDIMENTATION LAB, CIFORD, MISSISSIPPI. 38655. Proj. No.: 7415-20805-004 Project Type: iNHOUSE Agency ID: ARS Period: 13 MAR 79 To 30 SEP 80

OBJECTIVES: Determine effects of sediments and other products of agriculturstems, particularly of primary and secondary production, and on production, composition, and quality of fisheries.

APPROACB: Research on primary and secondary productivity in the food chain will be done by comparing lakes with sediment problems and similar lakes with none. Production will be monitored in aquatic systems where agricultural practices are increasing sediment loads and where conservation practices are decreasing loads. Evaluation will be made to find relationships between sediments, both suspended and deposited, and biological activities to determine changes in communities caused by sediment stress. In addition to a similar approach, controlled experiments.

PROGRESS: 79/01 TO 80/09. A 3 year biological field study on Bear Creek, a flatland watershed, was completed. Research centered upon the effects of sediments and other products of agricultural runoff upon the structure of aquatic communities. Collections of net plankton, benthos, coliform bacteria, BOD's, fishes and aquatic and semi-aquatic plants were supplemented with suspended and deposited sediment data, physical and nitrient chemical parameters, and residual pesticide data. Ecological studies on Lake Chicot were continued with major emphasis on chloropjyll-suspended sediment relationships. Primary productivity, the basis of the aquatic food chain was dependent upon suspended sediment levels and their influence upon light penetration. In the isolated upper lake, where suspended sediment concentrations were much lower, productivity levels were much higher. Lake Chicot studies are being continued under a new WRU.

PUBLICATIONS: 79/01 TO 80/09 COOPER, C. 1980. Effects of abnormal thermal stratification on a reservoir benthic macroinvertebrate community. Amer.Midland Naturaliet, 103:149-154. COOPER, C. 1980. Bivalve Nollusca of the Yalbusha River, Miss. The Nautilus 94:22-24.

004.127* CFIS0065163 BFFBCTS OF AN ALTEBED TEMPERATURE BEGINE AND CHEMICAL CONTAMINANTS ON THE AQUATIC ECOSYSTEM

WITT JR A; CAMPBELL R S; JONES J R; FORESTRY; UNIVERSITY CF MISSCURI, CCLUMEIA, MISSCURI. 65211. Proj. ho.: MC00171 Project Type: STATE Agency iD: SAES Period: 19 APR 74 To 30 SEP 30

OBJECTIVES: Ascertain effect of altered thermal regime on incidence of diseased fish, growth of diseased fish, and their resistance to thermal stress. Ascertain effect of altered thermal regime on reproduction in fishes. Ascertain the degradation products of phtahlic acid (PAEs) in the hydrosoil and their effects on microbial processes. Ascertain effects on phthalic acid on aquatic insects in the hydrosoil.

APPROACE: Fish sampled from thermal effluent and reservoir will indicate incidence of lymphocyEtis. infected 6 healthy fish and experimentally for difference in growth 6 temperature stress. Caged control fish 6 fish in thermal effluent fed ad libitum. Eeproduction cycle and fecundity determined from gonade. Eggs 6 larvae tested for differences in viability. Natural hydrosoils 6 their microbial populations will be subjected to PAEs. Nitrogen, sulfur and phosphate cycles will be monitored to determine effects of PAEs. PAEs will be added to cultures of the blood worm and egg production, viability, and emergence will be monitored.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. However, some of our earlier work (Jennings 1979) was used and incorporated by the U. S. Army Corps of Engineers in their "Missouri River Bank Stabilization and Navigation Project Draft Feasibility Report and Draft EIS for the Fish and Wildlife Mitigation Plan" for the Missouri Biver. Life history aspects of the southern cavefish. from springs and caves of Camden County were studied. Length frequency distributions failed to delineate age groups, nor did the scales, indicating continuous growth in their constant environment. A sex ratio of 0.56 males to 1.0 females was found and did not vary with increasing length. Spawning appears to occur in May because of the decrease in the gonosomatic index. Females matured at 45 mm and egg number ranged from 20 to 80. Cnly one male, 58 mm, was mature, the internal anatomy was described by gross dissection and histological sectioning.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

SMITE, V.J. 1980. Some Aspects of the Life History of the Southern Cavefish (Typhlichthys subterraneus Girard) in Missouri. N.S. Thesis 123 pp.

004-128 CRISO077908 ECOLOGY AND MANAGEMENT OF MISSOURI STREAM FISRES

FINGER T R; FORESTRY WILDLIPE 6 FISHERIES; UNIVERSITY OF MISSCURI, COLUMBIA, MISSOURI. 65211. Proj. No.: MO-00178 Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 JUL 79 To 30 JUN 84

OBJECTIVES: The determine the ecological factors governing the distribution, ahundance and growth of Missouri stream fishes; develop management strategies for these fishes.

APPROACH: The ecological factors determining the distribution, abundance, and growth of Missouri stream fishes will be determined using correlative field evidence and experimental manipulation of ecological parameters, both in the field and in the laboratory. Missouri streams will be characterized by their physical, chemical, and biological characteristics. These in turn will be related to fish species distribution and their production. A management strategy will be developed for certain fishes based on their ecology and the decires of the

public.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. A study is underway on population of rock bass (Ambloplites rupestris) smallmouth bass (Micropterus dolomieui) and redborse (Noxostoma srp.) in the Current and Jacks Fork rivers in southern Missouri. This investigation is examining the population dynamics of these important sport species in relation to habitat, food resources and fishing pressure. It should be completed during 1981. A new study is beginning on use of seasonally flooded lowland hardwood wetlands as spawning and nursery areas by many sport and commercial stream fishes. These areas are adjacent to the Mingo River in southeastern Missour and appear to be critical to maintaingin the excellent fishery in the area. Fieldwork on this study is scheduled to begin in early 1981.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

004.129 CRISO068246 AQUATIC INSECTS AS INDICATORS OF WATER QUALITY AND PRODUCTIVITY: A COORDINATED STUDY

ROEMHILD G R; BIOLOGY; MONTANA STATE UNIVERSITY, BOZEMAN, MCNTANA. 59715. Proj. ho.: MCNE00418 Project Type: BATCH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 JUL 75 To 30 JUN 80

OBJECTIVES: Correlate water quality with the presence of specific aquatic invertebrates. Develop and publish keys for the aquatic invertebrates of Nontana. Measure changes at various areas being developed for mining, recreation, or agricultural activities.

AFPEGACE: Survey of species present in all areas of state, concurrent with water analysis for quality data. Entails: Collecting, identifying, curating, chemicals analysis. Publishing of survey data with distributional records and keys to kontana species of aquatic invertebrates. Sampling of areas where development is taking place to document changes as they occur. Recommend alternate plans, where feasible, to ameliorate undesirable environmental cbanges.

PECGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/06. A survey of the aquatic insects of hontana was carried out and several hundred thousand specimens were collected, identified and curated. This data has added tremendously to the known distribution and importance of the many species in Montana and in the country. Identification keys were developed and published for Zygoptera and Hemiptera and a number of other groups were partially organized with keys in mind. A computer program correlating water quality parameters with aquatic community composition of invertebrates was developed and will be used textensively to determine and predict changes in communities when water quality characteristics change. Baseline studies in eastern Nontana coal fields and in other developmentally impacted areas was carried out and will be used in the computer program noted. Ecological succession of aquatic invertebrate communities in newly established ponds was studied with the objective in mind of establishing the richness and diversity of these communities with the potential of the ponds in supporting duckling populations. A study on the biology, energy flow, and limnology of alpine lakes in the Beartcoth Plateau primitive area was carried out but is not as yet analyzed.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/06

- ROENBILD, G.k. 1978. The Aquatic Beteroptera of Nontana, Nont. Agric. Expt. Sta. Research Report 102:70. Nay.
- EARIL, S.F. 1978. Benthic Invertebrate Distribution, Abundance and Diversity in Rosebud Creek, Nontana. N.S. Thesis.
- BARIL, S.F. and LUDIKE, R.J. 1978. Checklists and Numbers of Macroinvertebrates from Rosebud Creek Montana. NREL-FBL Technical Seport No. 3, 99 pp.

ROEMHILD, G.R. 1978. Environmental Effects of Western Coal Combustion. Fart II. The Aquatic Macroinvertebrates of Rosebud Creek Nontana. EPA, ORD, 600/3078-99, 75 pp.

ROEMBILD, G.R. 1980. Pheromone Glands of Microcaddisflles (Hydroptilldae: Tricboptera). Jour. of Worph. 163:9-12.

004.130 CRIS0079701 IMPACT OF EROSION SILT AND SEDIMENTATION ON FISE REPRODUCTION AND GROWTE

 PETERS E J; FISHERIES & WILDLIFE; UNIVERSITY OF

 NEERASKA, LINCOLN, NEBRASKA. 68583.

 Proj. No.: NEE-26-001

 Project Type: HATCH

 Agency ID: CSRS

 Period: 14 AUG 79 To 30 JUN 83

OBJECTIVES: Describe populations of fishes exposed to different levels of turbidity, describe behavioral reactions of fish speices to turbidity and sediment, determine effects of turbidity and sediment control techniques on fish populations.

APPROACE: Collect, measure, mark and release fish to determine population size, growth rates and movement patterns; tag fish with radio transmitters to determine local movements; experimentally manipulate turbidity levels to determine reaction of fishes in field and in laboratory streams.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Total inventory of fish populations in a turbid reservoir. This is providing a comparison between mark and recapture population estimates and total inventory - data are being compiled and analyzed at this time. Water clarification using lime has been accomplished. Fish and invertebrate production rates will be compared to preclarification production rates. Impacts of sediment laden runoff on fish populations was doumented on several occasions. The most notable occurred at a study site on Maple Creek, Stanton County, Nebraska where fathead minnow (Pimephales promelas) densities declined from 28.6 m 2 tefore the runoff event to 1.71/m 2 after the event. Cther accomplishments centered on determinations of fish and aquatic invertebrate community structure in areas subjected to different levels of sediment concentration. This is providing baseline information for comparison with future studies.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

004.131 INSECTICIDES AND THEIR FORMULATIONS

CRIS0014327

SUTHERLAND D J; DELORME D; ADMINISTRATION; RUTGERS UNIVERSITY, NEW BRUNSWICK, NEW JERSEY. 08903. Proj. No.: NJ40100 Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 24 SEP 59 To 31 DEC 83

OBJECTIVES: Determine the efficiency of newer insecticide formulations in the control of aquatic and terrestrial pest; recommend design modifications for increasing their efficiency; and to determine optimum chronic threasholds of temephos and dursban to aquatic insect pests.

APPROACH: It is planned that most of the research will deal with the following formulations microencapsulated malathion and fenitrothion (Pennealt Corp; Plastic-core formulations of temephos and cblorpyrifos (Environmental Chemicals and Dow Chemical, respectively); and Microencapsulated formulations of methoprene (Zonecon).

PROGRESS: 80/01 TC 81/12. Bacillus thuringiensis israelensis is effective in the control of Culex piplens at rates of 2 and 4 oz/acre. Any residual effect disappears within 5 days and larval populations rapidly renew themselves. The granular formulations so far examined do not extend the activity of the Hacillus. PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 81/12 SUTHEFLAND, D.J. 1980. Insecticide Recommendations for Mosquito Control in New Jersey, 1990. N.J. Agr. Exp. Sta. Pamphlet.

004.132 CFIS0083273 SALINITY, REDOX POTENTIAL, 6 MICPOBIAL TRANSFORMATIONS OF MERCURY POLLUTANTS IN ESTUABINE SEDIMENTS

 BARTHA R; BICCHEMISTRY & WICROBIOLOGY; RUTGERS

 UNIVERSITY, NEW BRUNSWICK, NEW JERSEY. 08903.

 Proj. No.: NJ01504
 Project Type: STATE

 Agency ID: SAES
 Period: 01 WAY 80 To 30 JOL 81

OBJECTIVES: To determine the effect of ealinity on aerobic and anaerobic methylation of mercuric ions in estuarine sediments. To determine the effect of salinity on aerobic and anaerobic demethylation of monomethyl and dimethyl mercury in estuarine sedimente. To clarify the mode of action of salinity on the methylation and demethylation processes.

APPROACE: Sediment eamples spiked with Hg^{++} ions or methylmercury pollutants will be adjusted to different salinities and will be incubated under aeroble or anaeroble conditions. The various forms of mercury will be analyzed by EO-GC and A aproaches. The theory that SO(4) from seawater, after reduction to H(2)S(4), makes Hg^{++} ions unavailable for methylation will be tested.

PROGRESS: 80/05 TO 80/12. Wicrobial methylation of inorganic mercury in aquatic sediments greatly increases the toxicity and biomagnification of this heavy metal pollutant. Experiments with Eg + +-epiked sediments from Northern New Jersey estuaries established that redox potential and salinity strongly influence the rate and extent of mercury methylation. Low redox potential and low salinity favored mercury methylation while aerobic conditions and high ealinity had the opposite effect. We are currently examining the theory that in low redox potential - high salinity sedimente E(2)S generated from the sulfate component of eea salts ties up Eg + * ions and thus rendere them less available for microbial methylation.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/05 TO 80/12

BLUM, J.E. and BARTEA, R. 1980. Effect of Salinity on the Methylation of Mercury. Bull. Env. Contam. Toxicol. 25:404-408.

004.133 CRISO013266 CHEMICAL CONTROL OF MOSQUITOES OF NUISANCE AND BEALTH INFORTANCE

SUTHERLAND D J; ENTONOLOGY & ECONOMIC ZOOLCGY; RUIGERS UNIVERSITY, NEW BRUNSWICK, NEW JBESEY. 08903. Proj. No:: NJ40401 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JAN 79 To 31 DEC 83

OBJECTIVES: Letermine the eusceptibility of native New Jersey species to newer toxic-specific chemicals; determine the incidence and development or reeistance among these species; determine the effect of larval babitat temperature and aquatic pollutante on larval susceptibility; and determine the influence of mosquito age (larval, adult) on susceptibility.

APPEOACE: In laboratory experiments, larvae and adults of NJ species will be bioassayed for susceptibility to newer componds. Dependent on results, certain compounds will be subjected to field experiments. Resistance incidence and development will be studied by bioassays of field populations and laboratory colonies subjected to insecticide selection. The effect of larval habitat termperature and of pollution will be studied by varying these factors and correlating them to susceptibility. The influence of age will he studied with similar procedures. PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Larvae of most New Jersey mosquito speciee continue to exhibit susceptibility to the insecticides temephos, fenthion and chlorpyrifos. Previoue tolerance noted in certain dump populations of Culex pipiens has diminished. In contrast to the negative temperature coefficient of chlorinated hydrocarbons, the organophosphate temephos displays a positive temperature coefficient, with toxicity decreasing markedly below 15 degrees C. Toxicity also depends on larval instar generally, but the degree depende on mosquito species and insecticide.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 UTBERG, ♥. 1979. M.S. Thesie. Rutgers University, N.J.

004.134* CRIS0079854 FEEDING ECOLOGY OF FISHES UTILIZING MARSHES ALTERED FOR CONTROL OF SALT MARSH MOSQUITOES

SHISLER J; MOSQUITO RES 6 CONTROL; EUTGERS UNIVERSITY, NEW BEUNSWICK, NEW JERSEY. 08803. Proj. No.: NJ40503 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 70 To 30 JUN 80

OEJECTIVES: To study the feeding ecology of salt marsh fiehes with emphasie on their role as mosquito predators.

APPROACH: Survey of fishee utilizing salt marsh altered for mosquito control. Study the food habits of the dominant species as determined from the survey in order to determine the most effective mosquito predator. Identification of larval fishes which occur in mosquito breeding areae because these may be important predators on the early mosquito instars.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Fish populations were sampled throughout the year in both natural marshes and marshes that have been altered for mosquito control. Fish species composition varied between study sites with a typical freshwater assemblage common at eitee with freshwater or lower salinities and typical estuarine assemblage at high salinities. Fundulus heteroclitus, F. luciae and Cyprinodon variegatus were dominant estuarine fish while freehwater dominate species were F. daphanus, Gambusia affinis, Lepomis gibbosus and Notemigonue crysoleucae. Seasonal changes in both salinity and faunal populations were noted in impoundments.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TC 80/12

- ABLE, K.W., SBISLER, J.K. and TALBOT, C.W. 1979. Preliminary Survey of Fishes Utilizing New Jersey Warsbes Altered for Control of Salt Marsh Mosquitoes. Proc. N.J. Mosq. Control Assoc. 66:103-115.
- TALEOT, C.W., ABLE, K.W., SBISLER, J.K. and COCKEY, D. 1980. Seasonal Variation in Corposition of Fresh and Brackish Water Fishes of New Jersey Woequito Control Impoundmente. Proc. N.J. Woeq. Control Aseoc. 67:50-63.

004.135* CRIS0028620 NATURAL SEED CYSTER BEDS OF THE DELAWARE EAT

HASKIN H B; OYSTER CULTURE; FUTGEFS UNIVERSITY, NEW BRUNSWICK, NEW JERSEY. 08903. Proj. No.: NJ32500 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 OCT 62 To 01 JAN 99

OBJECTIVES: Develop information on and conduct research leading to the goal of disease-free oysters in the Delaware Bay area.

APPROACH: Conduct such field and laboratory studies on MSX in oyster populations as required. Advise the Delaware Bay authorities of the best management practices to preserve good seed beds and develop new beds.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TC 80/12. The oyeter planters of Delaware Bay depend almost exclusively on the State-controlled natural seed beds of the upper Bay for their supply of seed oysters which are planted on

privately-leased beds in the lower Bay. Under this project our Laboratory provides basic information on the seed beds and recommendations for their management to the State Division of Fish, Game and Shell-fisheries. In 1980 over 460,000 hushels of seed oysters were removed from the beds in the regular spring planting season. Based on our recommendations, two of the Eeds, Egg Island and the Ledge, and a major portion of New Eeds, were closed to the taking of seed because of a preponderance of small oysters of the 1978 and 1979 year classes. Following the spring-early summer dredging, a moderate to light general set of 1980 year class oysters occurred on the seed beds. MSX disease mortalities in the 1980 planted stocks were unusually heavy in the summer, fall and early winter of 1980-81. Wortalities in oysters on the lower seed beds were 1/2 to 1/3 those on the planted grounds immediately below the boundary, the Southwest Line separating seed beds and leased bottom. Based on these data and those of the preceding 20 years establishing that similar differential mortalities between seed heds and planting grounds have been the general rule.

FUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS SEPORTED THIS PERIOD.

004.136 CRIS0C66259 SUBF CLAN MARAGEMENT STUDIES

HASKIN H H; CYSTER CULTURE; RUTGERS UNIVEFSITY, NEW BEUNSVICK, NEV JERSEY. 08903. Proj. No.: NJ32503 Agency ID: SAES Period: 26 JUN 74 To 30 JUN 82

OBJECTIVES: Letermine the capacity of inshore surf clam beds near Atlantic City to sustain increased commercial harvest because of the partial depletion of the large offshcre heds.

APPROACH: Selected bed areas sampled in 1972 will be open to dredging and two 6-square mile areas including high density clam populations will be closed to commercial barvest. Nonitoring of all beds will include settling intensity of larvae, juvenile mortality, juvenile growth, to determine if retaining brood stock is necessary to maintain recruitments.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. The surf clam resource off the coast of New Jersey lies both in State waters, inside the three-mile limit, and offshore in Federal waters. Under State and Federal financing the population in New Jersey waters has been under detailed study since 1972, that in Federal waters has had some attention in this project since 1978. New Jersey began its management of the State resource in January 1977 and has based its annual quota and its decisions on areas closed to harvest on the results of our annual inventories. The work in Federal waters has resulted in the closure of a 120-square-mile area off Atlantic City and similar, though smaller, areas off Maryland and Virginia. The closures in all cases have been designed to prevent wasteful harvest of small clams. Until 1976 the New Jersey inshore resource was in steady decline under harvest pressure with no significant recruitment. The 1976 year class of clams set heavily in the Atlantic City area and survived well. The population of this year class in an area exterding roughly 20 miles along the coast and centered on Absecon Inlet has more than doubled the standing stock of clams in New Jersey waters between Shark River and Care Nav Inlet. The same year class also set and survived in Pederal waters. The 120-square-mile closed area off AtlantIc City has a population which we estimate at 17 million hushels.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NC PUBLICATIONS REPORTED FINAL REPORT PERIOD.

CRIS0078908

OVEEBOARD DISPOSAL STUDY

004.137*

HASKIN H H; DUFAND J; OYSTER CULTUFE; RUTGERS UNIVERSITY, NEW ERUNSWICK, NEW JERSEY. 08903. Proj. No4: NJ32501 Agency ID: SAES Project Type: STATE Period: 01 JUL 77 To 30 JUN 82

OBJECTIVES: Determine the effects of overboard disposal of dredge spoil on the benthic macroinvertebrate community with particular emphasis on the bard clam, Mercenaria mercenaria.

APPROACH: In Absecon Creek, where channel dredging is required for navigation purposes, two study areas have been selected. Following an initial taseline study of both areas, one area has been partially covered by dredge spoil; the second has been hald largely undisturbed as a control area. Follow-up studies will be centered largely on recolonization of the spoil area. At selecte d stations a minimum of 7 Peterson or ponar grabs will be taken and sieved. All + 1 mm organisms will be sorted out, identified and counted to enable description of community structure, diversity and tiomass. Complete sampling of all areas will be done quarterly. Experimental plantings of small clams before and periodically after dredging will permit detailed studies of the efect cd dredging on motallties, growth and condition. Invertebrate data will he supplemented hy water quality studies and geological studies designed to determine effects of dredging distrutance on nutrient releases from the bottom and stability of bottom as it affects survival and growth of clam.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Overboard disposal of dredge spoil has resulted in a dramatic effect on benthic infaunal polychaetes. Water chemistry (nutrients), henthic nutrient cycling, sediment structure, and benthic invertebrate communities all were affected. Some effects were transitory. Effects upon nutrient regeneration from bottom sediments. structure of bottom sediments, and benthic invertebrates in the dredge spoil have persisted. The Control Site and the Dredged Channel Site showed marked differences in nutrient cycling and in the benthic invertebrate community following dredging. Both have since returned to pre-dredge levels. The Dredge Spoil Site remains in a disturbed condition with respect to the sediments, nutrient cycling, and the invertebrate community. Regeneration of ammonium-N from bottom muds is suppressed below the rates observed in the Control Site and in the Dredged Channel Site. Counts of benthic invertebrates remain high and the dominant organisms exhibit both wide fluctuations in numbers and higher counts than during the pre-dredge time. Species make-up at the Dredge Speil Site is unstable. Different species have shown explosive growth in numbers at different times hut not according to a particular sequence. At this time it is not possible to estimate when stability will be reached.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUELICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

004.138 CRIS0081257 BIOLOGICAL AMALYSIS OF THE AGE AND GROWTH PATE OF THE OCEAN QUAROG ARCTICA ISLANDICA

LUTZ F A; OYSTER CULTURE; RUTGERS UNIVERSITY, NEW BRUNSWICK, NEW JERSEY. 08903. Proj. No.: NJ32505 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 15 SEP 79 To 15 MAE 81

OEJECTIVES: Analyze seasonal and/or annual variation is growth patterns within the shell of the ocean quahog, Arctica islandica. Determine the relationship between dissolved oxygen and shell structural changes in A. islandica. Determine the age of various sized specimens of A. islandica from natural populations off New England and New Jersey.

APPROACE: Analyze fractured sections and growth surfaces of clams from field and laboratory experiments dealing with burrowing activity of clams. Label specimens with strontium chloride and place in field. Analyze acetate peels and fractured sections (using optical and scanning electron microscopy) of clams sacrificed during various times of the year. PRCGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Ocean guahog (Arctica Islandica) shells were collected at approximately monthly intervals from two separate localities (Narragansett, &D and Cape May, NJ) for an entire year. Analyses conducted to date of longitudinally sectioned and fractured shells suggest that internal banding patterns may reflect annual cycles of growth. One and only one prismatic sublayer was formed within the shells of specimens from the Narragansett population during the year in which the organisms were sampled. Cooperative laboratory and field studies with Dr. Alan Taylor from the University of Glasgow have revealed no relationship tetween dissolved oxygen concentration (and/or burrowing activity) and internal shell banding patterns in A. Islandica. No detectable shell growth was observed in ocean quahogs experimentally planted in 90 ft. of water off Care May, NJ during the period from May to August, 1980. Cooperative field studies with Dr. Roger Mann of Woods Hole Oceanographic Institution revealed similar slow growth rates in New England waters. Results of our studies were presented to the shellfish industry and individuals from state and federal agencies at the annual meeting of the Shellfish Institute of North America. It is concluded that the growth of this species is exceedingly slow relative to the majority of other species of bivalves and that the maximum age of specimens in natural populations may be in excess of 50 years.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- LUTZ, R.A. and RHOADS, D.C. 1980. Growth Patterns Within the Wolluscan Shell: An Overview. In: Skeletal Growth of Aquatic Organisms, Rhoads, D.C. and Lutz, R.A., (Eds.), pp. 203-254. Plenum Press: New York. 750 pp.
- REOADS, D.C. and LUT2, k.A. 1980. Skeletal Records of Environmental Change. In: Skeletal Growth of Aquatic Crganisms, khoads, D.C. and Lutz, S.A., (Eds.), pp. 1-19. Plenum Press: New York. 750 pp.
- KENNISH, N.J., LUTZ, R.A. and RECADS, D.C. 1980. Preparation of Acetate Peels and Fractured Sections for Observation of Growth Patterns Within the Bivalve Shell. In: Skeletal Growth of Aquatic Cr&anisms, Rhoads, D.C. and Lutz, R.A.,

004.139 CFIS0083693 ECONOM. IMPOBTANT DISEASES OF EIVALVE SHELLFISH, INCLUDING THEIR PREVENTION. CONTROL AND HEADICATION

LEIHOVITZ L; AVIAN & AQUATIC ANIMAL MEDICIN: CORNELL UNIVERSITY, ITEACA, NEW YCRE. 14853. Agency ID: CSVM-426-438Period: 01 JAN &0 To 31 DEC 81

OBJECTIVES: The research is intended to quantity and quality the toxicity of common estuarine pollutants, bilge cleaners and fuel oil for C. virginica and M. mercenaria and selected species fo finfish.

APPROACH: Eivalve larvae of separate age groups of C. virginica and N. mercenaria will be exposed to varying concentrations of bilge cleaners and fuel oils for variable periods of time to evaluate possible acute or chronic toxicities.

004-140 CFIS0065391 NUTFIENT INTERACTIONS AND CRANGES IN ALGAL QUALITY IN CATUGA LAKE

BARLOW J P; FCOLOGY AND SYSTEMATICS SEC; COFNELL UNIVERSITY, ITHACA, NEW YORK. 14853. Proj. No:: NYC-183406 Project Type: BATCH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 OCT 77 To 30 SEP 81

OEJECTIVES: Letermine effect of changes in nutrient ratios on composition of phytoplankton associations in Cayuga Lake.

APPECACE: Isolate representative species from the natural community in Cayuga Lake and determine their reactions to changes in nutrient ratios in laboratory experiments. Results of these experiments will be used to interpret nutrient perturbation experiments made with the mixed community, and predict changes in this community that could result from changes in P and Si loading.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Interactions between light and nutrient may be particularly important in controlling growth of phytoplankton in deep stratified lakes such as Cayuga because there are often distinct vertical gradients of both properties in the mixed layer. The objective of the current research has been to investigate these interactions with experiments on both mixed natural assemblages and single species in pure culture. The experiments with mixed assemblages have been made by impounding samples of water from Cayuga Lake in large volume continuous flow apparatus maintained in the laboratory. Effects of perturbations of nutrients, light and temperature on growth rate, unusical cowposition and species makeup of contained communities were measured in a series of four experiments run during the Summers of 1979 and 1980. Data from these experiments is still being analyzed. The results of the mixed population experiments will be compared with parallel studies on single species in pure culture. For this purrose Mr. David Mitchell has isolated a diatom, Cyclotella glomerata from Cayuga Lake. This is now axenic culture. During the summer of 1980 he ran a series of experiments on growth of this alga under various light, temperature and nutrient conditions using continuous culture facilities of Dr. G. Y. Rhee of the N.Y. State Department of Public Bealth in Altany. These studies are being completed here at Cornell.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS SEPORTED THIS PERIOD.

CRIS0081163

RESEARCE IN SYSTEMS ECOLOGY Hall C A S; Cleveland C; NCVOY C; ECOLOGY AND

004-141

SYSTEMATICS SEC; CORNELL UNIVERSITY, ITHACA, NEW YOEK. 14853. Proj. No.: NYC-183315 Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JAN 80 To 30 SEP 83

OEJECTIVES: Completion and publication of "Yield per effort and net energy analysis of the American Petroleum Industry", including sensitivity analysis of underlying assumptions. Extension of methodology to other energy-related issues and to a more general economic format if and as appropriate. Completion and publication of three papers on concentration and production patterns for oxygen, nutrients and fish in New York and Massachusetts estuaries. Integrate these studies as possible to look at the relation between nutrient patterns, low oxygen and fish production.

APPECACH: Collate statistics from the U.S. petroleum industry and examine relation between effort, yield, and energy cost of effort. Finish statistical and computer analysis of fish, nutrients and oxygen. Quantify data on a per square meter basis. Relate patterns of fish production over space and especially time to patterns of primary production, nutrient supply and low oxygen. If and as time and date permit develop a general estuarine model to predict fish production from data on nutrients oxygen and other environmental parameters. Test model against other data sets.

PROGRESS: 80/01 IC 80/12. During the past year we bave successfully completed one of the major parts of our proposed work (analysis of U.S. Petroleum Industry bistory using methods borrowed from fisheries analysis) and have made significant progress on two other parts of our research. More specifically, the petroleum analysis is in press in Science and will be coming out in about a wonth. We have finished the conceptual analysis of the North River Estuary studies, including a set of computer analysis and the preparation of what is essentially a final draft manuscript. We have some final sensitivity analysis to run, after which the manuscript will be ready for internal review and submission. We believe that will cccur by about March. We have made some additional progress on the statistical analysis of fish production in Flax Pond Estuary, but progress on the final analysis has been

frustratingly slow. Finally, I spent the month of August at the University nf British Columbia, working on our North Pacific Ocean food chain model and its application to salmon biology. We successfully restructured the model into a series of more readily understood and analyzed subroutines, and worked further nn our manuscript. We believe that a final, soft cover report (to be published in a unreviewed 'soft-cover' form at the University of British Columbia) will be completed sometime this spring, and it will be submitted in this form for consideration for publication as a monograph protably next summer.

BALL, C., CLEVELAND, C., KAUFWANN, R., DETWILER, P. and BENGER, M. 1981. Yield Per Effort as a Function of Time and Effort for Several Energy Industries. Abstract for Symposium on Energy and Ecological Modeling, University of

004.142 CRIS0064193 NITROGEN PIXATION EX MICROBES INHABITING SURFACES OF AQUATIC MACECPENTES

SEELEY B W; FCOD SCIENCE; CCRNELL UNIVERSITY, ITBACA, NEW YORK. 14553. Proj. Nn: NYC-144418 Project Type: BATCH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 JUL 73 To 30 SEP 79

OBJECTIVES: Study of the chemical interrelationsbips hetween certain common water plants (macrophytes) and the large microbial populations (epipbytes) inhabiting their surfaces. A quantitative study nf nitrngen fixation by epiphytes will be emphasized and will be converted to an estimate of their contribution to the grnwth potential of the aquatic eco-system. Total populations and dominant species of epiphytic microbes will be determined. An effort will be made to determine the relative proportions of total nitrogen fixed by bacteria and blue-green algae.

APPEOACB: Nitrogen fixation (nitrogennse activity) will be measured by a Eewlett and Packard Bigh Efficiency gas chromatograph through the conversion of acetylene to ethylene. Microbial populations will be measured by embedding techniques that allow direct counting, by the Winogradsky slide culture method, by an AMR model S00 scanning electron microscope and by plating on various total count and nitrogen-free media. Identification of microbes will be by standard techniques.

PROGRESS: 74/01 TO 76/12. Acetylene reduction techniques were used to fnllow diurnal cycles of nitrogen-fixing activity and the seasonal course of such activity over a 15-month period in a pond beavily colorized by Myrinpbyllum spicatum. Reduction was maximal hetween noon and 6 p.m., with nighttime activities 40% those of the day. Mean rates of activity were calculated for each month. From diurnal and seasonal cycles it was calculated that a mean nf 12.5 mug N was added annually by epiphyte N-fixation per mg. dry wt. plant sample. This is significant when compared with actual N contact of such samples, estimated to be 25 mug per mg dry wt. Gloeotrichia was to be primarily responsible for the N-fixation. Aunicelgal culture of Gloeotrichia reduced acetylene in light at rates of 0.6 to 0.8 n moles/mg dry wt. min. Enrichment and isolation procedures failed to disclose any significant numbers of aerobic or anaerobic heterotrophic bacteria. Rhodnpseudomonas appeared in some numbers at certain times in the cycle. A strain of R. gelatinosa reduced acetylene anaernbically at a maximal rate of 16 n moles/dry wt. min. N-fixation by these bacteria in situ would compare favorably with that of blue-green bacteria if the potential is fully expressed in conditions of the epiphytic niche.

PUBLICATIONS: 74/01 TO 76/12

FINKE, L. A. In Situ and Laboratory Studies of Nitrogen Fixation by Epiphyte Populations nf Aquatic Plants, Ph.D. Thesis, Cornell University (1976). 004.143 STUDIES IN PHYCOLOGY

KINGSBURY J M; GENETICS DEV AND PHYSIOL SEC; CORNELL UNIVERSITY, ITBACA, NEW YORK. 14853. Proj. No.: NYC-185404 Agency ID: CSFS Period: 26 DEC 61 Tn 30 SEP 79

OBJECTIVES: Describe quantitatively the relationship of important algae with their environment and the converse; manipulate the environment for enhancing or inhibiting algae growth as desired; predict the effect of projected change in environment on same.

APPROACE: Isles of Shoals project - Initial comparison of transect data from Star Island from 1967 - 1972 and from Appledore Island, 1973, completed. Permament transect sites on Appledore Island surveyed and marked for 1974 data collection. Work in this project will be directed entirely toward elucidating the ecology of marine algae at the Isles of Shoals this year.

PROGRESS: 79/01 TO 79/12. Project terminated 12/31/78.

PUBLICATIONS: 79/01 TO 79/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

004.144 CEIS0080866 LUNINGUS EACTERIA AS INDICATORS OF SHELLFISE CONTAMINATION BY PATHOGENIC VIERICS

 GREENBERG E P; WICROBIOLOGY; COENELL UNIVERSITY,

 ITHACA, NEW YORE. 14853.

 Proj. No.: NYC-144381
 Project Type: STATE

 Agency ID: SAES
 Period: 01 JAN 80 To 30 SEF 82

OEJECTIVES: Assess the potential use of luminous marine bacteria as indicators of shellfish contamination by pathogenic marine vibrios. Thus, to attempt th develop a simple and inexpensive method that can be routinely used to screen for these pathogens. Study the effects of various conditions of depuration on the rate of removal of these bacteria.

APPEOACB: Both laboratory and field studies will be undertaken to assess the otential of luminous Vibrin (Beneckea) harveyi as an indicator of V. parabaemolyticus. Field studies will involve sampling both class and water from various areas of the Great South Bay. Total counts of V. parabaemolyticus and V. harveyi will be determined. Laboratory experiments will involve pretreatment of shellfish with the bacterial species mentioned above followed by depuration. The persistence of the bacteria in the shellfish will be followed during the time of depuration.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. A depuration chamber was used to study the persistence of marine vibring in the bardshell clam, Mercinaria mercinaria. Clams were incubated for 2 h in artificial seawater containing 10 3 cells/ml of Vibrio parabaesolyticus, Vibrio harveyi and Escherichia coli, and then transferred to the depuration chamber (a tank through which U.V.-sterilized artifical seawater was continually flowing). Numbers of the three bacterial species in meat of clams removed from the chamber at various times over a 72 h period were determined by differential plating techniques. The number of each species ranged from 10 2 to 10 3 colony-forming units/gram of meat immediately after transfer to tha depuration chamber. After 24 h at 25 degrees C the number of E. coli cells detected had decreased nver 100-fold. Generally, V. parahaemolyticus and V. harveyl were found in increased ahundance after 24 h. The abundance of V. parahaemolyticus and V. harveyi in clams that had been incubated in the depuration chamber for 72 h at 25 degrees C was approximately 10% of the abundance of these species immediately after transfer to the chamber. Similar results were obtained when the incubation temperature was 8 or 15 degrees C. Thus. V. harveyi and the potential human pathogen V. parahaemolyticus which are both of marine origin were not removed from M. mercinaria at a rate comparable to the rate at which N. mercinaria depurated cells of E. coli.

FUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

004.145* CFIS0076313 ANTIBACTERIAL MECHANICS IN CLANS; CONTRIEUTION OF THE WATER STREAM

TIMONEY J F; MICROBIOLOGY; CORNELL UNIVERSITY, ITEACA, NEW YORK. 14853. Proj. No.: NYC-433379 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JAN 78 Tn 31 DEC 80

OBJECTIVES: Determine the rate of removal in the waterstream of Salmonella typhimurium, Shigella flexneri, Escherichia coli, and Vihrio parahemalyticas from hard clams. Examine the binding properties of clam mucus for these test bacteria.

APPROACE: Clams will be exposed to the test hacteria for one hour and then removed for u/v irridation of their outer surfaces to inactivate hacteria on their shells. The clams will then be placed in a model depuration tank which is designed for removal of all bacteria from the water. The rate of disappearance of the test organisms from the clam tissues will then be measured by timed samplings of randomly chosen clams. Nucus will he collected using a suitable irritant. The bomogenized mucus will then be mixed with the test hacteria incubated at 20C and timed samples taken and centrifuged. Eacterial counts will he peformed on the supernatant and sediment.

PEOGRESS: 79/01 TO 80/12. The uptake and clearance of Salmonella typhimurium and Escherichia coli by actively siphoning clams was studied. The follnwing conclusions are possible from the experiments performed. Enteric hacteria are rapidly concentrated 100X within actively siphoning clams. Accumulated bacteria are then rapidly cleared. Counts of bacteria are reduced 1,000X within 8 hours. A further 10X reduction occurs by 24 hours. Eacteria are cleared in the form of mucus-fecal aggregates which rapidly sediment in the water. Very few fire hacteria are released. Clams which are prevented from siuphoning do not clear themselves of bacteria within 24 hours. Ionic phenomena are not important in binding of hacteria to mucus-fecal aggregates.

PUBLICATIONS: 79/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

004.146 SOURCES AND MANAGEMENT OF MORTALITY IN EARLY LIFE STAGES OF PIEBES

GLOSS S P; NATURAL RESOURCES: CCENEIL UNIVEFSITY, ITEACA, NEW YCEK. 14853. Proj. No: NYCEK. 14853 Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 12 MAY 64 To 30 SEP 83

OBJECTIVES: Specific objectives will be to determine: Acute toxicity levels of metals and other pollutants through standard bioassay procedures for freshwater fishes at various stages of their early life history. Sublethal effects of various pollutants on early life history stages of various freshwater fishes - e.g., reduced growth rates, stamina, oxygen uptake, enzyme activities, etc. Develop testing procedures which are amenable to use with small fish - numerous techniques which measure sub-lethal effects mentioned under objective 2 are available for sub-adult or adult fish where relatively large volume tissue, hlood, weight and other samples are available. Adapting these techniques of developing others for early life histry stnges is necessary to assess sub-lethal impacts of pollutants. Rearing and maintenance capabilities for early life history stages of the more predaceous species of fish are problematic and will he studied and hopefully improved upon for various species as a result of these studies.

APPROACE: Standardized bioassay techniques involving either statis or flow through exposure systems will he utilized to determine acute toxicity levels of pollutants. Proportional diluters will be used to wary concentration of pollutants in the flow through systems. Each metal or synthetic organic pollutant and various species of fish will he studied individually with appropriate experimental design considerations for statistical reliability of the resultant data.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TC 80/12. The increasing acidity of many surface waters from acid precipitation increases the solubility and potential adverse effects of metals in these systems. Lead contamination results primarily from its release during combusion of various fuels and in combination with lnw pH may present a threat to fishes. Lead inhibits the activity of the enzyme amino levulinate dehydrase (ALAD) which plays an important role in hemoglobin synthesis. Reduction in ALAD activity may reduce stamina while simultaneously increasing locomotor activity due to perceived oxygen deficit; hoth reactions antagonistically stressing the fish. The effects of lead on smallmouth bass are being studied in the laboratory to determine activity, stemina, and hemoglobin relationships. Preliminary estimates of 96 hr LC(50) levels for sac fry have been made and apparatus set up for stamina tests of fish, etc.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

004.147 CFIS0083022 BCOLOGICAL FACTORS AFPECTING POTENTIALLY TEREATENED OF BNANGERED FISH SPECIES IN NY

GLOSS S P; NATURAL RESOURCES; CORNELL UNIVERSITY, ITHACA, NEW YORE. 14853. Proj. No.: NYC-147335 Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 OCT 80 To 30 SEP 83

OBJECTIVES: Determine distribution and ahundance of primarily non-game fish species in selected lakes and streams of New York; determine habitat preference of rare species and species associations with common habitat preference; determine historical nr present day changes in habitat which may affect the distribution of rare species.

APPROACH: Standard fisheries collection techniques (seining, electrofishing, etc.) will be used to cnllect fishes. Other physical, chemical and biological aspects of their babitat will be measured.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Electrofishing and seining surveys of fishes in French Creek, Chautauqua County, NY were conducted. No longhead darter Percina macrocephala, were collected. The silverjaw minnow Ericyaba buccata was collected and represents the first report of this species from New York State. The spotted darter, etheostoma maculatum, pnpulation was confirmed in the system and continues to represent the only known locale in NY State for this species. Concurrent collections of benthic fistes and invertebrates were made throughout the summer to better determine the importance of food organisms as possible controlling factors in the distribution of darter species. Data analysis is incomplete. A single sampling of Cattaraugus Creek headwaters, Cattaraugus and Chautauqua Countles, NY was conducted as the survey is expanded to other waters.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

004.148 CFIS0083270 METHODOLOGY AND ASSESSMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL EFFECTS AT LOW HEAD HYDEO POWER SITES GLOSS S P; NATURAL RESOURCES; CORNELL UNIVERSITY, ITHACA, NEW YORK. 14853. Prcj. Nn.: NYC-147334 Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUN 80 To 30 SEP 83 OBJECTIVES: Research undertaken at hydroelectric

sites will address the following objectives: Development of reliable and practical methods for assessing turbine mortality and other effects associated with fish passage at low-head hydropower facilities, Estimation of species and size specific effects caused by design of lowhead hydropower facilities using methodology determined in the first objective or alternative methods.

APPECACE: Studies will involve insitu introduction of valous species and sizes of fish into the headrace of low-head hydro power plants and their recapture or recovery in the tallrace. Recovery will be studied using passive (stationary) trawling in the tallrace with efficiercy of capture determined for fishes in live, dead, and injured condition. Several anadromous species from the northeast U.S. will be tested dependent upon their availability. Factors such as turbine type, stream flows, water temperature, etc. may be contributing variables.

PROGRESS: 80/05 TO 80/12. Testing of introduction and recovery methodology for estimating turbine mortality incurred by anadromous fishes passing through Cssberger-Cross Flow turbines was begun. Direct introduction from live holding tanks to a subsurface point directly upstream of turbine intakes utilizing a 13 cm irrigation pipe appears most feasible. Recovery is accomplished by modified butterfly nets attached directly to the discharge end of the draft tubes. Preliminary data on rainbow trout (proxy Atlantic salmon) and striped bass has been obtained for turbine mortality. No complete results are available.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/09 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERICD.

004.149 CRIS0084203 MODELS TO ASSESS BIOMAGNIFICATION POTENTIAL OF PERSISTENT TOXIC SUBSTANCES IN AQUATIC FOOD CHAINS

 GLCSS S P; NATURAL RESOURCES; CCRNELL UNIVERSITY,

 ITEACA, NEW YORK. 14853.

 Proj. No.: NYC-147336

 Proj. No.: NYC-147336

 Project Type: STATE

 Agency ID: SAES

 Period: 01 JAN 81 To 30 SEP 82

OBJECTIVES: Undertake laboratory evaluation of three types of micorcosms for estimating the uptake, transfer, and degradation of xenoblotic chemicals in aquatic food chains. The results of these studies will be used in assessing the suitability of one or more of the three microcosms for industrial testing which may be required under the Toxic Substances Control Act (Public Law 94-469).

APPECACB: Comparative evaluation of: recirculating statis; flow through multiple-species microcosms; and a modular food-chain model using p, p⁴ DDT (hase line or reference xenobiotic) and one of more halogenated hydrocarbons and one or more phthalate esters selected from the EPA list of 129 priority pollutants. A literature review of the selected test chemicals and at least one representative chemical from each of the other major classes of toxicants to document occurrence in freshwater habitats, persistence, and pathways and processes (if known) that result in potential hazards to man via aquatic food chains. An investigation of the feasibility of incorporating a sediment phase in one or more of the compartments of the wodular food-chain model.

CRISO071348 SCOPE OF WORK FOR PRELIMINARY STUDY OF PRIMARY AND SECONDARY PRODUCTION OF THE ST. LAWFENCE RIVER

MILLS E L; FORNEY J L; NATURAL RESCURCES; CCFNELL UNIVERSITY, ITEACA, NEW YORK. 14853. Proj. No.: NYC-147323 Agency ID: SAES Period: 06 AUG 76 To 30 SEP 78

OBJECTIVES: Cbtain preliminary data on species composition and biomass of primary producers (phytoplankton, periphyton, and macrophytes) and consumers (zcoplankton and benthic invertebrates). Assess the relative contribution of various communities to primary and secondary production in the St. Lawrence Biver. Evaluate methods of measuring biomass and production. Incorporate preliminary data in a comprehensive plan of study.

APFROACE: Review literature, obtain preliminery data using standard techniques, on species composition and hiomass of primary producers (phytoplankton, periphyton, and macrophytes) and consumers (zooplankton and benthic invertebrates). Collect vertically integrated samples for water quality and assess in conjunction with other field studies. Outline possible food webs and their probable importance in energy transfer. Prepare a comprehensive proposal identifying areas requiring further research and outlining methods of attack.

PROGRESS: 79/01 TO 79/12. Standing stock of phytoplankton in the St. Lawrence River was estimated at five sites between Cape Vincent near Lake Cntario and Waddington, New York, Winter through Summer 1978. Decreasing algal and zooplankton standing crops downriver supported the conclusion from earlier years that inputs from Lake Ontario determine phytoplankton abundance. Grazing, rapid downstream movement helow Ogdenshurg and the straining potential of vegetation were suspected as affecting composition and gradations of algal populations dewnriver while increased current flow, turbulence and a rapid transport partially accounted for decreasing stocks of zooplankton in Lake St. Lawrence. Nean sedimentation rates of detrital material rangeo between 3.6 and 6.5 g/m 2/day. Significant losses of organic drift was transported downriver from Lake St. Lawrence; only 0.001 g/m 3/day entered the St. Lawrence from Lake Ontario while 0.15 g/m 3/day was in transport in Lake St. Lawrence. A wide variety of benthic invertebrates were identified in bottom samples; chironomids, oligochaetes, amphiorods and mollusks were the dominant forms; the potential for benthic production was greatest for inshore waters at Galop Island and offshore sites near Cape Vincent. Food habits of St. Lawrence Fiver fish under ice cover generally preferred isopods and amphipods; however, mollusk shells, organic detritus and other fish composed the dlet of some fish.

PUBLICATIONS: 79/01 TO 79/12

- MILLS, E.L., SMITB, S.B. and FORNEY, J.L. 1978. Primary producers, secondary consumers and water quality in the St. Läwrence River and Wills, et al. 1878b. Benthic sampling and substrate analysis at ice boom sites.
- MILLS, E.L., SMITH, S.B. and FORNEY, J.L. 1978. Characterization of the primary and secondary components of the St. Lawrence River food web during Summer 1978. Technical Report submitted to U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, Department of

004.151 CFIS0067977 BIOLOGICAL, TECHNICAL, AND ECCNOMIC STUDIES OF CULTURED AQUATIC RESOURCES

NICKUM J G; NATURAL RESOURCES; CORNELL UNIVERSITY, ITBACA, NEW YORK. 14853. Proj. No:: NYC-147319 Agency ID: SAES Period: 12 MAY 75 To 31 DEC 80

OBJECTIVES: The Cornell Aquaculture Program include measurement and evaluation of changes in the effuent quality from oxidation ponds due to filtration by confined populations of daphnids and measurement and evaluation of yield of daphnids from confined populations receiving effluents from oxidation ponds.

APPROACB: Daphnid populations will be confined in partially submerged cages which will receive flows of algae laden water from algal culture systems and/or small oxidation ponds. The effects of variation in concentration of algae, velocity of flow, and cage depth will be tested at three different levels for each parameter. Changes in effluent water quality will be measured by comparing the quality of water entering the daphnid cages with that of the water that has flowed out of the cages. Daphnic populations will be harvested on a pre-determined schedule, dried and weighed to determine production.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. This project was initiated in August 1979 as an investigation of the impacts of manure fertilization on the water quality and production pctential of New York fish ponds. The field season (April-October) of 1980 was a period of great activity on the project. Six experimental ponds were fertilized at three levels of manure (no manure, 2500 kg/ha ard 12,300 kg/ha) and stocked with larval walleye, Stizostedion vitreum. The manure was effluent from an experimental methane digester. The physical and chemical response was monitored through analysis of nitrogen and phosphorus concentrations, light penetration, dissolved oxygen levels, water temperature, pH and alkalinity. The biological response was monitored by measuring production and consumption of oxygen by the phytoplankton community, chlorophyll concentration and form (a, b and c), zooplankton biomass and community structure, and fish growth. Fish survival was estimated. Attempts to model oxygen and ammonia levels, and to assess the variaility in predicted values show that minimum oxygen levels can be predicted from manure load, temperature and chlorophyll values. Ammonia levels can be predicted from load, temperature, pB and chlorophyll. The research under this project has been transferred to the Agronomy Department, Cornell University.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERICO.

004.152 CFIS0058307 EUTROPHICATION AND COMPARATIVE LINNOLOGY OF THE FINGER LAKES

OGLESHY R T; SCHAFFNER W R; NATURAL RESCURCES; COBNELL UNIVERSITY, ITHACA, NEW YORK. 14853. Proj. No.: NYC-147308 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: OI JUL 70 To 30 SEP 83

OBJECTIVES: Further elucidation of the role agriculturally derived phosphorus may play in the eutrophication of lakes.

APFECACE: Water samples are collected from experimental agricultural plot and rural watershed runoff and further samples are prepared by aqueous extraction of manures and decaying vegetation. Analyses are performed for various forms of phosphorus (particulate, dissolved inorganic, dissolved organic). Eioassays of two types are then performed to determine the biological availability of P and algal preferences for the various forms.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. A new phase of work has begun (December 1980) with funding through OWRT for research focussed on the biological availability to phytoplankton of phosphorus derived from agricultural activities. Initial work on this two year project will focus on phosphorus bound in organic form. This is a joint project involving a soil scientist and a phytoplankton ecologist as well as aquatic scientists from Natural Resources. It is anticipated that by Fall 1981 initial chemical characterization of organic P compounds in agricultural ruroff and preliminary bloassays of these will be completed. We intent to experimentally release P from these organics by using phosphatase enzymes. Two other phases of work have been completed. In one, four techniques developed by others to assess biological availability of P in natural waters were compared using samples from two different types of New York streams. It was concluded that currently accepted techniques are far from adequate for this purpose. In the second, data from our studies of the Finger Lakes were statistically analyzed to determine the number of years of sampling needed to define specified levels of change in trophic status. A manuscript on this has just been submitted for publication.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

TRAUTMANN, N.W. 1981. Eiological Availability of Wastewater Phosphorus in the Sediments of Two New York Streams. M.S. Thesis, 107 p. Cornell Univ., Ithaca. 004.I53 CRIS0070504 RFFBCTS OF ACID PRECIPITATION ON ADIRONDACE LAKES

SCEOFIELD C L; WEBSTER D A; NATURAL RESOURCES; CCRNELL UNIVERSITY, ITHACA, NEW YCER. 14853. Proj. No.: NYC-147321 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 APR 76 To 30 SEP 83

OEJECTIVES: Investigate lake sensitivity to acidification and determine mechanism leading to chemical and biological changes. Evaluate and develop procedures for restoring and maintaining fisheries in acidified waters.

APPROACH: Sources of acidity and sinks for precipitation strong acids are being investigated in three Adirondack lakes, reprosentative of the regional range in sensitivity to acidification. The roles of aluminum (in soils, as a sink for hydrogen ion; in water, as a toxic species) in the acidification proces s are currently emphasized. Screening and selection of factors influencing acclimation and adaptation to acid waters. Evaluation of partial or refuge liming in acid lakes for maintenance of fish populations.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Soil aluminum mobilization by strong acids originating from atmospheric deposition was identified as an integral facet of the acidification process in Adirondack Mountain watersheds. Aluminum discharged from the basins in streamflow accounted for only a small fraction of the total strong acid inputs on an annual basis, but the predominant inorganic species of aluminum present during periods of high discharge were found at levels potentially toxic to fish. Bigh inorganic aluminum levels, approximately equivalent to mobile strong acid anion (SO(4) and NO(3)) levels, were also found in soil solution and ground water collected below the spodozol E horizons in the study watersheds. These findings suggest that a large, but as yet unquantified, fraction of the strong acid loading undergoes a two stage neutralization process in the soil system. Thus, initial aluminum dissolution reactions are succeeded by hydrolysis or CEC reactions when deeper flow paths favor longer water retention times in the soil. The primary implication of this working hypothesis is that basin hydrology is the key factor determining the sensitivity of Adirondack watersheds to either acidification or increased hasic cation leaching. The potentials for maintaining brook trout fisheries in acidified Adirondack Lakes by utilizing hatchery stocks selected for increased physiological tolerance to acid-aluminum stress or acclimated to recipient lake water quality prior to stocking were demonstrated excerimentally.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

SCHOFIELD, C.L. 1980. Processes Limiting Fish Populations in Acidified lakes. In: Atmospheric Sulfur Deposition, Environmental Impact and Health Effects, Ed. Shriner, D.S. et al. Ann Arbor Sci. Puhl., pp. 345-356.

- SCHOFIELD, C.L. and TROJNAK, J.K. 1580. Aluminum Toxicity to Hrook Trout (Salvelinus fontinalis) in Acidified Waters. In: Polluted Rain. Ed. Toribara, T.Y., Miller, N.W. and Morrow, P.E. Plenum Press, N.Y. pp. 341-366. DRISCOLL, C.T., HAKER, J.P., HISOGNI, J.J. and
- DRISCOLL, C.T., HAKER, J.P., HISOGNI, J.J. and SCHOFIELD, C.L. 1980. Aluminum Speciation in Dilute Acidified Waters and Its Effect on Fish. Nature 284:161-164.
- EAKER, J.P. and SCEOFIELD, C.L. 1980. Aluminum Toxicity to Fish as Related to Acid Precipitation and Adirondack Surface Water Quality. Proc. Int. Conf. on Ecol. Impact of Acid Precipitation, pp. 292-293. Sandefjord, Norway. March
- GALLOWAY, J.N., SCHOFIELD, C.L., BENDRY, G.R., ALTWICKER, E.R. and TROUTMAN, E.E. 1980. An Analysis of Lake Acidification Using Annual Hudgets. Proc. Int. Conf. on Ecol. Impact of Acid P recipitation Sandefjord, Norway. March

004.154 CRIS0013142 FATE AND EFFECTS OF TOXICANTS IN AGRICULTURAL AND ENVINONMENTAL FOOD CHAINS

LISE D J; CFFICE OF RESEARCH ADMIN.; CCRNELL UNIVERSITY, ITHACA, NEW YORK. 14853. Proj. No.: NYC-102315 Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 57 To 30 SEP 84

OBJECTIVES: To determine the fate of pesticides, beavy metals and industrial toxicants in soil-plant-animal end aquatic systems.

APPECACH: The downward movement of pesticides through sandy soils on Long Island under practical field applications will be determined. Nutritional supplements including ectiveted charcoel, microsomal enzyme inducers and thyroid stimulatnts will be used to attempt to rid fish of PCE residues. Forage crops grown on municipal sludge-emended soils ere being fed to pregnant goats, sheep, swine and quail to study possible toxic effects such as a residues in milk and meat, mutagenicity and tissue lesions. Additives to sludge such as fly ash will be studied to hopefully reduce upteke of cedmium by crops. Additives to grey muck soils such as sludge and tree berk will be studied hopefully to improve onion yields by replacing the lost organic matter and lowering pH. A nationwide analytical survey of municipal sludges for toxic elements, nutrients and chlorinated organics is underwey.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. The berbicide Lasso was found to repidly disappear from Long Island soils. Fydrin-treated apples when processed showed that the insecticide concentrated in the skins, cores and pomace, not the juice or sauce. Nass spectrometry showed that Fydrin did not decompose in the rumen of a cow. Nor wes it or its acid metabolite excreted in urine. Honey which is acidic dissolves iron when shipped in steel drums end may ecquire a dark color possibly due to an iron-tannin complex formed. Acid dairy waste may be effectively incorporated in fish diets. Radioactivity wes not found in honeys collected near the Three Mile Island Nuclear Power Plant. Carcinogenic polynuclear arometic compounds were found in municipal sludge eshes of American cities. Metals in municipal sewage wastewater contamineted e marine fish food chain raised in the water. Crops grown on sludge ashes abscrb lower levels of Cd probably due to its presence as refractory compounds formed during the ashing. No significant differences were found in absorption of Cd, Ni and Zn by 8 varieties of field corn grown on sludge amended soil. Wheat, corn silage, alfalfa-timothy silage, corn grain and vegetables grown on sludge are being fed, respectively, to quail, sheep, pregnant goats, swine and rats in long term studies to assess heavy metal deposition, liver enzyme changes, mutagenesis and tissue lesions. Similarly fly ash and fly ash-grown crops heve been fed to cows, steers and chickens to assess selenium toxicity and nutrition.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- MANDISOD2A, D.T., FCND, W.G., LISE, D.J., GUTEMANN, W.H. and HCGUE, D.E. 1880. Selenium Retention in Tissues of Swine Fed Carcasses of Pigs Grown on Diets Containing Sodium Selenite or Higb Selenium White Sweet Clover Grown on Fly
- FUR R, A.K., PARKINSCN, T.F., BACHE, C.A., GUTENMANN, W.H., PAKKALA, I.S. and LISK, D.J. 1980. Multielement Absorption by Crops Grown on Soils Amended with Municipal Sludge Asbes. J. Agric. Food Chem. 28:660-662.
- FURR, A.K., PARKINSON, T.F., WINCE JE., F.E., BACHE, C.A., GUTENMANN, W.B., PAKKALA, I.S. and LISK, C.J. 1880. Elemental Composition of New York State Maple Syrups Sampled Near Sources of Air Pollution. Nutr. Rep. International
- HOGUE, D.E., REID, J. T., HEFFEON, C. L., GUIENMANN, W.H. and LISK, D.J. 1980. Soft Coal Fly Ash es a Source of Selenium in Unpelleted Sheep Fations. The Cornell Vet. 70:67-71.
- LEIN, D.H., MAYLIN, G.A., HRAUND, D.G., GUTENMANN, W.H., CHASE, L.E. and LISK, D.J. 1980. Increasing Selenium in Hovine Hlood by Feed Supplements or Selenium Injections. The Cornell Vet. 70:113-124.

004-155 CFIS0071839 QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE STUDIES OF POLLUTION IN SELECTED FARM PONDS

MARROW E; HIOLOGY; AGRIC & TECH UNIVERSITY CF N C, GREENSHORC, NORTH CARCLINA. 27412. Prcj. No.: NC.X-PE-0006-307-086

Project Type: GFANT Agency ID: CSES Period: 30 JUN 76 To 29 JUN 81

OBJECTIVES: Interpret and eveluate the quantitative and qualitative date which have been gethered over a five-yeer period (1973-78) on pollution in selected farm ponds. Weke an assessment of the effects of this pollution on the plant and animal life of the ponds as reflected in changes that occur over the five-year period.

APPROACH: Plent and animal specimens which have been collected during the course of this project will be sorted and identified. Tabuler end graphic interpretation will be made of physical, chemical, and biological data. Collection of water samples and chemicel exemination of same will continue. Data collected during earlier phases are to be compared with more recent data.

PROGRESS: 80/03 TC 81/02. Degrees of eutrophication resulting from pollution have been determined in 10 ponds, based on the following paremeters: concentration of nutrients, numbers and species of algee, bacteriel populations, general conditions and plankton similarity indexes. Data from four ponds (Sites 9, 10, 11, 12) not previously treated ere included. With the exception of Site 10 (Bitter's Lake, a small recreational facility, ca. 10 m (2) in size, south of the city), these ponds are cheracterized by few plankton species and high bacterial counts and nutrients concentrations. Eighteen plankton species were counted in samples from Site 9 (Creekridge Road Pond, southwest of the city); 7 spp. from Site 10; 13 spp. from Site 11 (Mertin Ferm Fond, McLeansville community, ca 12 km east of city); and 5 spp. from Site 12 (Simmons Farm Pond, McLeansville). Sites 10 end 11, with 5 plankton species in common, showed highest degree of species similarity (S = 0.50), but differed in nutrient concentrations and bacterial counts (no coliforms or fecel strip were found in Site 10 samples). Site 7 (with 11 spp.) and Site 12 had 3 spp. in common (S = 0.375), and differed greetly in bacteriel counts and nutrient loads. No blue-green algae, fecal coliforms for fecal streptococci were found in Site 10. This pond is temporarily classified as oligotrophic, although low numbers of species suggest eutrophy. The Plant Materials Pond (Site 2) and the simmons Pond (Site 12) ere mesotrophic, approaching eutrophy.

PUELICATIONS: 80/03 TO 81/02 NO PUELICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

004.156 CRISO074023 A COMPARISON OF THE ACCUMULATION EATES OF P AESORHED BY THE VITAL ORGANS OF FISE

VICK A; HIOLOGY; AGRIC & TECH UNIVERSITY CF N C, GREENSHCEC, NCRTH CAROLINA. 27412. Proj. No.: NC.X-PF-0006-20094 Froject Type: GRANT Agency ID: CSFS Period: 26 SEP 77 To 25 SEP 82

OBJECTIVES: Note whether solid or dissolved forms of p^{32} in the medium wary in absorption rates of the material in the organs of fish determine the tolerance level of p^{32} in Gambusia during different seasons of the year.

AFPROACE: Quantities of minnows will be collected periodically from nearly farms ponds and streams and maintained in acquaria for observation and study. Three ten gelon acquarium tanks will be filled with pond water from which the specimens are taken. The tanks will be labeled "experimental liquid" "experimental solid" "controled". A daily record will be taken of the room temperature and temperature of each tank. Likewise, the daily pB for eech tank and the concentration of p^{32} for the "experimental" and "solid" tanks. (Note: The concentrations of the liquids in these two tanks should be identical). An adequate quantity of specimens will be placed in each tank and at three day intervals. Ten specimens from each tank will be sacrficed and dissected to obtain such vital organs as the eye, brain, gills, heart, liver, skin, kidney, body muscle, gonad, and vertebrae, Each of these organs will be thoroughly dehydrated in a drying oven followed by pulverization. Small aliquot portions of each of the samples will be weighed and tested by the use of

PROGRESS: 80/03 TO 81/02. This is a summrized statement of the results of an investigation of a comparison of the accumulation rates of radioactive phosphorus absorbed by the vital organs of fish fed treated solid food to the rates of those imhibing the isotope dissolved directly in water. The experimental results obtained to date by the use of model 470 gas flow detector, modle 1042 automatic sample changer and model 8703 decade scaler from Searle Analytic, Inc., are as follows: The kidney, heart, and liver respectively absorbed 1.3 times as much radiation as did similar organs of organisms absorbing the isotope dissolved directly in water; The brain, gonad, vertebrae and gills absorbed 1.4 times as much as did the respective organs of specimens receiving the dissolved form; The skin absorbed 1.5 times as much as its counterpart; The eye 1.6 times as much and the muscle 1.3 times the accumulation as its respective counterpart. Hence, on the basis of these results it may be concluded that it is well worthwhile to dissolve waste (32-P) before disposal.

```
PUBLICATIONS: 80/03 TO 81/02
```

VICK, A.E. 1978. A Comparison of the Accumulation Rates of Radioactive Phosphorus in Certain Vital Organs of Fish (Gambusia affinis): The Research Bulletin Series, Summer, North Carolina Agricultural and State University.

004.157 CRISO023126 NITROGEN FIXATION AND ITS EFFECT ON EUTROPHICATION: IN-POINT AND NON-POINT SOURCE PONDS

BEDDY G B; PLANT SCIENCE; AGRIC & TECH UNIVERSITY OF N C, GREENSBCEC, NORTH CAPOLINA. 27412. Proj. No: NCCX-045-5-80-130-1 Project Type: 1880/T Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 OCT 80 To 30 SEP 82

OBJECTIVES: The objectives are to study the rates of nitrogen fixation by blue-green algae bacteria in sediments; measure the total nitrogen input in ponds; isolate and culture the responsible blue-green algal species and micro-organisms for nitrogen fixation; measure the total biomass present in the system; evaluate the significance of nitrogen fixation and its correlation to other nutrients; and to investigate the primary nutrients cycle in confined water systems and in the laboratory.

APPROACH: Water and sediment samples will be collected from different ponds. All biological, cbemical and N(2)-fixation analysis will be performed on these samples. At each sampling time, water temperature, day's temperature and light intensities will be recorded. Nitrogen fixation will be assayed by C(2)E(2) reduction techniques by using gas chromatography. Microorganisms will be isolated and the total bicmass will be estimated by determining ATP, and chlorophyll contents.

004-158 CFIS0068208 STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT OF MARGINAL SALT MARSE SPECIES FROM NOETE CAROLIN

ANDERSON C E; HOTANY; N CAROLINA STATE UNIVERSITY, RALFIGH, NORTH CARCLINA. 27650. Proj. No.: NCO3518 Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 JUL 75 To 30 FEE 79

OBJECTIVES: Describe the vegetative development of shrubs growing on the mangins of salt manshes; determine seed germination tolerance and growth response to salinity and discover mechanisms for dealing with salt stress and compare among salt marsh species.

APPROACH: Seeds from marginal salt marsh species such as Myrica certifera and Iva frutescens will be collected and their germination tolerances will be studied. Seedlings from the germinated seeds and field specimens will be used to study patterns of development and the influence of various environmental factors, particulary salinity, on the development. Mechanisms of salt tolerance will be investigated using cyto- and histcchemical analysis and comparative data from other marsh and dune species.

PROGRESS: 78/07 TO 79/06. Camphor weed growing in North Carolina dune systems has two growth forms and may respond as a biannual. Seeds germinating in the spring produce a rosette form. The following growing season an erect form develops and flowering occurs. If germination occurs in the fall, as it may in North Carolina, the rosette form is essentially bypassed, and the erect form and flowers are produced the following growing season.

PUBLICATIONS: 78/07 TO 79/06 NO PUBLICATIONS SEPORTED THIS PERIOD.

004-159 EFFECTS OF THE HRUNSWICK NUCLEAR POWER-PLANTS ON THE PRODUCTIVITY OF SPARTINA ALTERNIFLORA

SENECA E D; STEOUD L M; BOTANY; N CAROLINA STATE UNIVERSITY, RALEIGH, NORTH CAROLINA. 27650. Proj. No.: NC05276 Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 73 To 31 DEC 79

OEJECTIVES: Determine the effect of the construction and operation of the Brunswick Nuclear Power Plant on the productivity of Spartina alterniflora (smooth cordgrass).

APPROACH: In order to fulfill the objectives, environmental analysis of the Oak Island and Dutchman's Creek must be determined. Field studies monitoring environmental parameters, sampling of above and below ground vegetation to determine productivity. After initial gathering of data and vegetation samples, analysis of data, by computer and laboratory tests will be carried out and a model developed for the area.

PROGRESS: 73/07 TO 79/12. A preliminary energy budget was developed for the emergent portion of a Spartina alterniflora marsh located in the Cape Fear River Estuary, NC, based on data from this marsh and where needed, values from the literature. Gross primary production was about 1.1% of incident solar energy: of this amount, 32% was respired by the primary producers, mainly Spartina and benthic microalgae, leaving a net production of 7918 kcal m = 2 yr = 1. The equivalent of 50% of the net production (3957 kcal m - 2 yr - 1) was respired by the microbes, but combined meiofaunal and macrofaunal respiration amounted to only 8% (671 kcal m - 2 yr - 1). About 42% of the net production was available for export from the marsh to the estuary, with about 1/3 of that amount in the form of dissolved organic carbon and about 2/3 in the form of particulate matter; a portion of the latter was probably lost to the marsh sediment as accretion. Release of DOC from live Spartina, decaying litter and sediment or methane release from the sediment surface; together, accounted for 39% of the production remaining after microbial and faunal respiration. A tagging study indicated that mean stem longevity for Spartina was 7.9 months, and the experimental turnover rate was 1.5 crops yr - 1. Five methods (peak standing crop, Milner and Hughes, Smalley, Wiegert and Evans, and Lomnicki et al.) yielded net aerial primary production estimates ranging from 214 to 1038 g dry wt m - 2 yr - 1 in a stand of short Spartina.

PUBLICATIONS: 73/07 TO 79/12

MENDELSSOEN, I.A. 1979. Nitrogen metabolism in the height forms of Spartina alterniflora in North Carolina. Ecology 60:574-584. LINIHURST, K.A. 1978. The effect of aeration on the growth of Spartina alternifiora Loisel. Amer. J. Bot. 66:685-691.

004.160 CFIS0068035 IMPACTS OF THE CONSTRUCTION AND OPERATION CF COASTAL NUCLEAR POWES PLANTS ON ESTUARINE ECOLOGY

COPELAND B J; HUISE M T; MCNFOE R J; ZCCLCGY; N CARCLINA STATE UNIVERSITY, BALEIGH, NOFTH CARCLINA. 27650. Proj. No.: NC05332 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SZES Period: 01 JUN 75 To 30 JUN 81

OEJECTIVES: Develop information for evaluating the effects of power plant construction and operation on the ecology of North Carolina estuaries. Specific objectives are to establish baseline populations, diveristy and movements of organisms in the intake and outfall areas of the Cape Fear River Estuary and adjacent ocean; determine the effects of construction and operation of the discharge canal on the nursery utilization and productivity of Dutchman Creek; determine the impact of entrainment and impingement on larval fish and crustaceans; and develop information on heat tolerances of organisms.

APPEGACH: Sampling stations are established on lower Cape Fear River, offshore and at site of power plant. Fegular collections of samples will be examined for changes in phytoplankton, zooplankton, larval fish and crustaceans. Certain physical measurements will be obtained.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Major analysis of field data was accomplished during the year, resulting in several theses and reports. A major accomplishment was the use of information from the project to prove the premise of power plant cooling without towers. These results enabled the power company to obtain an operating permit and saved the rate-payers about \$800 million over the next 20 years. Scientific significance was underscored by the development of analyses tectniques to handle large amounts of field data and provide answers for management questions. Sampling and statistical techniques developed and used during the year will form the base upon which federal agencies will develop guidelines for future studies of potential impact.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- BOBBIE, J.F. and CCPFLAND, E.J. 1980. Estuarine Ecosystems, pp. 186-197. In: Guthrie, F.E. and Perry, J.J. (Eds.). Introduction to Environmental Toxicology. Elsevier North-Bolland, N.Y., 469 pp.
- EITCHENS, %.b. and COPELAND, B.J. 1980. Succession in Laboratory Microecosystems Subjected to Thermal and Nutrient Addition Stress, pp. 536-561. In: Glese, J.P. (Ed.), Microcosms in Ecological Research. DCE Symposium.
- EEINSFIELD, E.C. 1980. Differential Responses of Obligate and Facultative Schooling Fistes in Currents. N.S. Thesis, N.C. State Univ., 108 pp. RULIFSON, R.A. 1980. Assessing the Vulnerability of
- penaeid Shrimp to GEAGEAN, J.P. 1980. Distribution and Diversity of
- Fish and Crustace an Communities in the Cape Fear River Estuary, N.C., 1977-1879. Ph.D. Dissertation, N.C. State Univ., 91 pp.

004.161* CRIS0078631 POSSIBLE CAUSES OF BLUEGILL LEPONIS MARCOCHIEUS DEFCRMITIES

DEMONT D J; ZCOLOGY; N CAROLINA STATE UNIVERSITY, RALEIGE, NCFTH CABCLINA. 27650. Proj. No.: NC05447 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUN 79 To 31 WAE 80

OBJECTIVES: Examiine temperature shock, genetics, and water quality as poxxible causes of deformities in bluegill sunfish in Lake Robinson, $S \cdot C$.

APPROACE: Fish will be spawned in the laboratory and the eggs and larvae will be subjected to temperature shock at five stages in devlopment. Tests will be conducted using parental stock from Lake Robinson and another source to oetect genetic effects. Lake Ribinson wateer and water from another source will be used in duplicate tests to crudely assess the effeats of water quality.

PECGRESS: 79/06 TO 80/03. Work commenced on this project in July after authorization was received. Bluegills chosen from among those which seemed to be approaching spawning condition were stocked into 8 foot diameter fiberglass ponds for "natural spawning." The fish fed poorly and no spawning activity was observed through mid-September. Attempts to strip and fertilize bluegill eggs in the laboratory were also unsuccessful. Even with the injections of Human Chorionic Gonadotropin used late in the summer, eggs obtained were rarely fully developed. Those few eggs which began development died within 24-30 hours. I concluded in early September that further attempts to induce spawning in 1979 were futile and halted work and further spending on the project. This action was communicated to Carolina Power and Light Company officials in a meeting on the 19th of September, 1975. The project will be revised and extended before March 31, 1980 or will be terminated with remaining monies reverting back to Carolina Power and Light Company as per our contractural agreement.

PUBLICATIONS: 79/06 TC 80/03 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED TBIS PERIOD.

004.162 CRISO073893 IMPACT OP LAND USE PRACTICES ON POPULATIONS OF WILDLIFE AND FISEEET RESOURCES

HAIR J D; ZOOLOGY; N CAROLINA STATE UNIVERSITY, RALEIGH, NCFTH CAECLINA. 27650. Proj. No.: NC05398 Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 77 To 30 JUN 79

OEJECTIVES: Develop data base on habitat requirements of game and non-game species of wildlife and fresh-water fish, research impacts of agriculture/forestry land use practices on population dynamics of wildlife-fisheries resources, develop habitat inventory systems and predictive management alternatives for terrestrial and aquatic ecosystems.

APPROACH: Wildlife and fishery resources are products of terrestrial and aquatic habitats. Effectively document and predict responses to habitat changes, a systems approach to research will be utilized. Initially, this will involve identification of key wildlife-fishery research needs for agricultural, forest and aquatic ecosystems of North Carolina. Subsequently, specific research programs will be developed that will address problems in a systematic manner that will provide both short and long term answers for the wise and sustained management of North Carolina wildlife and inland fishery resources.

PROGRESS: 77/07 TC 79/06. This project provides support for a number of activities associated with the fisheries-wildlife research program. Non-salary budget support included departmental operating expenses, research laboratory utilities, vehicle maintenance, current services and temporary wages. Funds have also been used to support, in part, the following research projects: Echavioral Ecology, Structure and Function of Waterfowl Community During the Winter Period, Winter Habitat Utilization of the Greater Snow Goose Along Coastal North Carolina, Effects of Prescribed Burning of a Bigh Altitude Shrub Bald in North Carolina, Ecology and Wangaement of Purbearers in Nortb Carolina and Impact of Agricultural Practices on Cottontail Kabbit Habitat Selection and Population Dynamics.

PUBLICATIONS: 77/07 TO 79/06 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD. 004.163 CRISO081387 STATUS, ABUNEANCE AND EXPLOITATION OF THE STRIPED BASS IN THE BOANOKE RIVER, NC

HASSLER W W; ZOOLOGY; N CABOLINA STATE UNIVERSITY, RALEIGH, NCRTH CARCLINA. 27650. Proj. No.: NC05466 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Perlod: 01 JAN 80 To 30 JUN 82

OBJECTIVES: Delineate the sttus, abundance, exploitation and ecology of striped bass in the Roanoke River and Albemarle Sound, N. C.

APPROACH: Tagging and creel census studies will be conducted in the Roanoke River to determine exploitation rates, sport and commercial catches and population size. Egg recovery surveys will be conducted to determine spawning abundance and egg viability. Trawling studies will determine relative success of sparning and survival of young-of-year striped bass.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Roanoke River conversial striped bass catches declined to 20-year low with a total of 2,286 striped bass landed for a c.u.e. of 0.71 fish per net day. The commercial fishing was centered in the Williamston area (87.8% of total catch) and the migration peaked between April 8-28. The sport catch totaled 13,318 fish of which rcd and reel accounted for 7452 fish and fight nets 5451. Cnly 77 fish were tagged because of the poor commercial catch. A cumulative total of 10,711 fish have been tagged over a 20-year period. Trawling studies in the Albemarle sound collected 5585 fish of which 26 were young-of-year striped bass and the c.u.e. was 0.46. The Albemarle Sound catch was dominated by an increase in white perch and the c.u.e. for this species was 75.54 per trawl. A survey of motile Aeromonas septicemia indicated a low incidence of this disease in the Roanoke River and Albemarle Sound.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

HASSLER, W.W. and HILL, N.L. 1979. A Summary of the Statum, Abundance, and Exploitation of Striped Hass in the Roanoke River and Albemarle Sound, North Carolina. 82 pp.

004.164* CRIS0069601 THE STATUS, ABUNDANCE, AND VIELD OF THE STRIPED BASS IN THE FOANOIE RIVER, NORTH CADOLINA

HASSLER W W; BILL N L; ZOOLOGY; N CAFCLINA STATEUNIVERSITY, FALEIGE, NORTE CAROLINA. 27650.Proj. No.: NC05352Froject Type: STATEAgency ID: SAESPeriod: 01 JUL 75 To 30 JUN 79

OBJECTIVES: Celineate the status, abundance, and the ecological factors essential to the perpetuation of the Striped Bass population in the Roanoke River.

APPROACE: Eefore the bass migrate upstream a creel census will provide a base for analysis of subsequent censuses taken as the bass move upstream. In the spawning area (Balifax, N. C.) counts of eggs will provide estimates of productivity. Weasurement of rate of flow, extent of turbidity, temperature and other factors will indicate factors essential to perpetuation.

PROGRESS: 75/07 TO 79/06. The commercial catch of striped bass in the Roanoke River from 1975-79 was 19,989; 7,156; 10,465; 16,253; and 10,000 fish respectively. Anchor gill nets were the most successful commercial gear used. The striped bass sport catch for 1975-79 was 22,219; 40,799; 32,983; 28,016; and 29,419 flsb respectively. The CUE for these years was 3.61, 4.00, 3.27, 2.76, and 3.25 striped bass/boat. Tagging was conducted on striped bass from 1976-79. The exploitation rates were 22.73, 13.47, 21.24, and 13.0% respectively. Trawling in the Albemarle Sound nursery area (1975-79) resulted in catch/trawl of 10.80, 10.52, 3.63, 0.59, and 0.55 young-of-year striped bass. Reduced catches in 1978 and 1979 were associated with high river discharge flows during the spawning season. Estimates of striped bass egg production for 1975-79 were 2.19 1.5, 1.76, 1.69, and 1.61 billion eggs respectively.

The annual estimated striped bass spawning population was $3 \cdot 27$, $2 \cdot 78$, $3 \cdot 48$, $3 \cdot 54$, and $3 \cdot 43 \times 10$ 5 respectively. In 1278 trawling studies in the lower Roanoke River resulted in the collection cf i4,305fish of which white perch was the dominant species.

PUELICATIONS: 75/07 TC 79/06 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED FINAL REPORT PERICD

004.165* CRISO072394 BURASIAN WATERMILFOIL IN CURRITUCE SOUND: ITS CONTROL AND POTENTIAL USE

HUISH M T; KERBY J H; ZOOLOGY; N CAROLINA STATE UNIVERSITY, RALEIGH, NORTH CAFCLINA. 27650. Proj. No.: NC0537S Akency ID: SAES Period: 01 JAN 77 To 31 DEC 78

OBJECTIVES: Otain fishery relationships to Eurasian Watermilfoil. Ealuate "edge effect" of Eurasian Watermilfoil control on recreation and commercial fishing..

APPROACE: This is a portion of an overall project with this title. In this portion, age, growth, feeding habits, and distribution of recreational fishes will be determined using standard fishery methods. Sampling will entail the use of various types of nets, seines, and rotenone. Samples will be taken at least quarterly and will be designed to detect differences which can be attributed to the presence or absence of watermilfoil. Standard water chemistry data will be taken at least quarterly and will be designed to detect differences which can be attributed to the presence or absence of watermilfoil.

PRCGRESS: 77/01 TO 78/12. The effects of water-milfoil (Myriophyllum spictaum) infestation on fish populations in Currituck Sound were studied. Rotenone samples of three coves before (1959-65) and after (1977) infestation indicated that both weight and number of fish per hectare increased after infestation, but that the average weight per individual decreased from 0.02500.008 kg. The population structure changed, with ictalurids and yellow perch having the greatest increases in numbers and largemouth bass and white perch the greatest decreases. Ictalurids and centrarchids (other than bass) exhibited the greatest increases in weight per hectare, while largemouth bass and "other" fish showed the greatest decreases. Numbers of largemouth bass were not significantly different between pre-and post water-milfoil samples. A comparison of areas dense in milfoil with an area of Potomogetan suggested that no adverse effects on the fish populations could be attributed to milfcil.

PUBLICATIONS: 77/01 TO 78/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

004.166* Ckiso078749 BCology of Juvenile Fishes in NC estuaries

MILLER J N; ZOOLOGY; N CAEOLINA STATE UNIVERSITY, RALEIGH, NORTH CAEOLINA. 27650. Proj. No.: NCO5435 Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JAN 79 To 30 JUN 81

OEJECTIVES: To estimate the seasonal abundance of juvenile sciaenid fishes in the Pamlico River estuary. To relate their distribution to certain environmentl factors such as depth and vegetation. To determine their food habits, local availability of these foods items, and rates of consumption.

APPROACE: Sample juvenile fishes and their food approximately viweekly in the Pamlico River estuary in relation to major habitat features. Perform analyses of these data and data from the Department of Natural Resources and Community Development to determine the critical features of nursery areas.

FRCGRESS: 79/01 TO 81/06. Juvenile fish populations were sampled in Rose Bay, N.C., for a period of two years. They enter the estuary as post-larvae in December and January and grow there for about 8 months before migrating off shore as acults. During this nursery period they eat mainly zooplankton, clam siphons, polycheate worms, as well as a member of min or dietary organism. Sampling showed reduced abundance in areas subject to salinity depression and variation due to freshwater runoff through canals. Spot and croaker are more or less ubiquitous in Hose Bay, while other species, e.g., specked trout, red drum and silver perch are more restricted to submerged grass beds. There was much dietary overlap among species suggesting the possibility of food competition. Growth rates and mortality schedules are being analyzed row to test this hypothesis. Spot and croaker, the two dominant species, are segregated on the habitat axes of salinity and temperature. Spot have a higher optimum temperature than croaker which is reflected in a higher growth rate for croaker in early Spring and a higher growth rate for spot in summer. The high abundance of food and low mortality rates suggest that the major limiting factors to these juvenile fish populations are reduced habitats owing to salinity variability and the lack of abundance of submerged vegetation. Four Master's theses and one Ph.D. dissertation are in progress on the project.

- PUBLICATIONS: 79/01 TO 81/06
 - MILLER, J.N. and DUNN, N.L. 1980. Feeding strategies and patterns of movement in juvenile estuarine fishes. In V.S. Kennedy, Ed. Estuarine Perspectives Academic Press, N.Y. 533 p.

004.167 CFIS0075647 LIMITS ON PECDUCTION OF AECTIC CEIRONOMIDAE: A FART OF PROJECT A. L. P. S.

MOZLEY S C; 200LOGY; N CARCLINA STATE UNIVERSITY, RALEIGE, NCETE CARCLINA. 27650. Proj. No.: NC05413 Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 MAY 78 To 30 APR 81

OBJECTIVES: The Prcject is designed to test whether food or temperature are limiting the growth and secondary production of Choronomidae (Diptera) larvae in lakes, with specific reference to Toolik Lake along the Alaska Pipeline.

APPEGACB: Field observations of energy flow through chironomidae for three years will estimate natural variation of production as a result of year-to-year changes in environment and primery production field experiments with test for production responses to increased food, reduced benthic primery production, evevated temperature and increased competition in replicated, randomized plots of lake bottom.

PROGRESS: 78/05 TO 81/04. Because they grow slowly and have synchronous reproduction, arctic Chironomidae (midges) offer a simplified system in which to test factors that potentially limit invertebrate animal production in lakes. Isolated plots of mud and animals were treated by increasing food (soy flour), raising the temperature, or shading benthic algae to reduce their productivity in 1978, 1979 and 1980. Food became partly limiting in 1978 when chirorosid densities were high, but in other years densities were lower and the natural food supply exceeded their needs. No other treatments had a significant effect on production. Predators may have reduced chironomid populations below food-limited levels. Field experiments with carnivorous invertebrates and sculpin (small fist) showed that ratural predators can eat large numbers of midge larvae. Both types of predators tended to remove the more active and abundant prey species selectively. The fish preferred larger midge larvae as prey, and indirectly promoted a shift in prey size toward a large proportion of very small larvae. Predation caused significant changes in tenthic communities of Toolik Lake. This study indicates that food resources are of secondary importance, but biological controls of benthic community structure and probably production were surprisingly strong in this harsh arctic environment.

PUBLICATIONS: 78/05 TO 81/04

EERSHEY, A.E. 1980. Chironomid Community Structure in an Arctic Lake: The Role of a Predatory Midge. W.S. Thesis, North Carolina State University, 28 pp.

004.168* CRIS0073132 TEB EFFECTS OF ARTIFICIAL STRUCTURES OF GAME FISE IN A BORROW PIT FOND

JOBNSON D L; LARSON E; FISHERIES & WILDLIFE; CBIC AGRIC RES AND DEVLP CENTER, WCCSTEE, CHIO. 44691. Proj. No.: OB000609 Project Type: BATCB Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 JUL 77 To 30 SEP 80

OBJECTIVES: Develop and evaluate a new device called a pop net for sampling various types of artificial cover. Also to chonicle the development of the arfwuchs and fish communities associated with hoth tire and stake structures at various depths. Also to determine the use made by various species and sizes of game fish.

APPROACB: Construct 12 reefs about 25 meters long each made up of 5 separate units each about 1.5 meters high. The reefs will extend into the lake from the north shore. Six of those reefs will be made up of tire structures and the other six of verticle stake beds. Half of the tire reefs will be kept food-free with bi-weekly scrubbing while the remaining reefs will develop attached communities normally. A new net device, SCUBA, and angling will all be used to evaluate the effect of depth, cover type, and food availability on fish community development and fish behavior.

PEOGRESS: 77/01 TO 80/09. The pop net has been developed to sample artificial structure. The floor of the cylindrical, open-ended net is placed on the lake bottom, the 4 m diameter circular wall collapsed, and secured around the floor's perimeter. Structure to be sampled is placed on the net floor. The net released mechanism is triggered remotely. The net wall with floats rises, enclosing the structure and associated fish. Eighteen tests were conducted in clear water to determine pop net efficiency. Escapement rates were 0.5% and 2.1% respectively for bluegills (Leponis macrochirus) 75-130 mm and large-mouth bass (Micropterus salmoides) 180-230 == in total length. No bluegill greater than 160 mm and bass greater than 315 mm escaped. A total of 671 fish were susceptible to capture. Cf these, 4 escaped resulting in a net efficiency of 99.4%. Initial examination of data suggests that number of bluegill captured, regardless of size, is inverse to the percentage of small bass associated with structure. Also, number of small bass captured is inverse to the percentage of small bluegill associated with structure. An inverse relationship is also suggested for water temperature and the percentages of small bluegill and all fish associated with structure.

PUBLICATIONS: 77/01 TO 80/09 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED FINAL REPORT FERIOD.

004.169 CRIS0084520 The effect of structure on fise behavior

JCBNSON D L; TEIPLETT J R; FISHERIES & WILDLIFE; OBIO AGRIC RES AND DEVLP CENTER, WCOSTEF, OBIO. 44651. Proj. No.: OBCO0490-S Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 78 To 30 JUN 83

OBJECTIVES: To define the relationships of structure type and placement to behavior and harvest of selected fish species, which will serve as a basis for altering the habitat and improving the fishery of C. J. Erown Reservoir.

APPROACE: Batchery ponds will be used to determine preference for a size-range of bluegill, white crappie and largemouth bass for structures of various interstitial sizes and configurations. C. J. Brown Reservoir will be sampled to determine fish community composition and artificial structure installed to determine preference of fish for a variety of

004.170						CR IS007799
ALGAL	METABOLISM	IN	THE	PRESENCE	OF	BEFEICIDES

HAWXBY E W; LANGSTON UNIVERSITY, LANGSTON, CELAHCMA. 73050. Proj. No.: OELE-7984-15-4 Project Type: 1890/T

Period: 04 JUN 69 To 03 JUN 84

Agency ID: CSRS

OEJECTIVES: Letermine cellular and sub-cellular effects of triazine, dinitroaniline, urea and phenoxy acetic acid herbicides on algae with use of an electron microscope. Compare the effects and interactions of herbicides in algal photosynthetic lamellae, polyhedral, bodies, pigment proteins and cell structure with effects on cell metaboliem. Determine the interaction of various levels of minerals and climatic factors in metabolism of algae in the preserce of the above herbicides.

APPROACE: Standard EN techniques will be used to determine norphological and cytological changes in algae due to berbicide treatment: Labelled herbicides will be used; polyhedral bodies will be eeparated by centrifugation and studied under the EN; standard analysis will be used in the analysis of algae treated with minerals.

PECGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Electron microscopic and biochemical studies were carried out on the blue-green algae Anacystic nidulans and Lynghya birgie treated with 10 - 5 M dinoseh. Preliminary observations suggest that photosynthetic lamellae in Anacystis were affected more than those of Lyngbya. Work on algal pigment separation and absorption spectrum analysis of Anacystis grown under day-light type fluorescent light was done. The results are now being compiled for possible publication. Estimation of total protein by the Lowry method and physobiliprotein eeparation by sucrose gradient techniques are being utilized. Column chromatography was also used to analyze algal pigments. Work on the effects of Xanthomonas malvacearum on cotton plant was also begun. TEN and SEM pictures of the infected cotton leaf cells were obtained and remain to be analyzed.

```
PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12
BAWIBY, K. 1980. Participated in Symposium on
"Algae as Biomase and Solar Energy Collector" at
the E. W. Society of America Meeting Reno,
Nevada, Aug. 1-8.
MEBTA, R.S. and HAWXEY, K.W. 1980. The Electron
```

Microscopy of the Blue-Green Alga Anacystis nidulans. Association of Research Director Symposium, Atlanta, GA, November 12, 15.

004.171 CRIS0065961 Accumulation and degradation of some berbicides by Algae

HAWNBY K W; MEHTA R S; LANGSTON UNIVERSITY, LANGSTON, OKLAHOMA. 73050. Proj. No.: OKLX-PR-0007-404 Project Type: GRANT

Agency ID: CSRS Period: 12 FEB 74 To 11 FEB 79

OBJECTIVES: Determine the extent and rate of removal of phenoxyacetic acid, dinitrophenol and dinitroaniline herbicides from aqueous solutions by cultures of algae common to Oklahoma lake waters. Determine the extent and rate of breakdown of the herbicides by algae. Determine whether algae may be induced to breakdown the herbicides by substrate enrichment techniquee as has been shown for hacteria.

APPROACH: The algae will be cultured in sterile, defined nutrient media by methods as described by Erickson et al. (29) or Schiff (30). Preparation of sterile media, the harvesting of algae and the determination of algae wet and dry weight will be carried out by methods described by Curl and Rodriguez-Kabana (31).

PROGRESS: 79/01 TO 79/12. Under experimental conditions, eimazine at 10 - 5M concentration is effective by disrupting photosynthetic functions. Whether the presence of simazine affected the thylakoids (photosynthetic lamellae) and polyhedral bodiee (etorage granulee) directly or not has not been determined. Simazine apparently caused death in algal celle by imbalancing the function of thylakoide and in turn making polyhedral bodies incapable of performing their functione. What these functions are, remains to be understood. The estimation of protein in whole and mechanically dierupted Anacystie cells was done by the Lowry method. Pigment and cellular protein values in control and herbicide treated cells were evaluated. Phycobilisomes have been separated using sucrose gradients, and protein content will be determined. Preliminary observation of 100 ml. Anacystis aliquots (0.D. = 0.6) showed 1.5 times more protein in ruptured cells than in whole cells.

PUELICATIONS: 79/01 TO 79/12

- MEHTA, R.S. and HAWXBY, K.W. (1879) Effecte of simazine on the blue-grass alga Anacystis nidulans Hull, Environ. Contam. Toxicol 23:319-326.
- MEBTA, R.S. (1979) An electron microecopic study of the blue green algae: Oklahoma Academy of Science.
- MEETA, R.S. (1979) Structure of phycobilisome in the blue-green algae. Poeter session at the E.M.S.A. annual meeting, San Antonio, TJ.

004.172 CRISO070155 ACCUMULATION AND DEGRADATION CF SCME REREICIDES EY ALGAE

HANNEY K W; MEHTA R S; LANGSTON UNIVERSITY, LANGSTON, OKLAHCNA. 73050. Proj. No.: OKLX-PR-0007-616-36 Project Type: GRANT Agency ID: CSRS Period: 16 JAN 76 To 15 JAN 81

OBJECTIVES: Determine whether algae may be induced to breakdown the herbicides by substrate enrichment

techniques as has been shown for tecteria. APPROACE: Algae will be grown through several cultures in the presence of low levels of the

cultures in the presence of low levels of the herblcides. This data will then be compared to data taken before prolonged exposures to the herbicides. Such etudies should reveal whether algae can be induced to accumulate or detoxify herbicides.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TC 80/12. Aliquote of Anacystis nidulans, Chlorella pyrenoidosa, Scendesmue quadricauda, Lynbya birgei, and Anabaena variabilis were treated with 10 - 5 M alachlor, Aquazine, dinceeb, fluometuron, glyphosate, methazole, prometryn, trifluralin, or 2,4,5-T. Algal samples were taken after 1, 2, 3, and 4 days and the optical density was measured. The Lowry method was used to determine protein content of the samples. Ten ml samples of A. variabllis, L. birgei, or C. pyrenoldosa were treated with 1 Mul 1 4C-simazine, 1 4C-trifluralin, 1 4C-2,4-D, or 1 4C-2,4,5-T. After one hr, the eamples were centrifuged and filtered. Pellets obtained were placed in scintillation cocktail and counted. Half of the treatments contained 10 - 5 k dinitrophenol (DNP). Treated samples were compared with controls to determine uptake. After 4 days the growth of algae in the fluometuron, prometryn, Aquazine, and methazole treatmente was greatly reduced when compared to controls. The reduction of protein in these treatments was not as pronounced, indicating the herbicidee had a greater effect on photosynthesie than on protein synthesis. Berbicide uptake by the algae was recorded as follows; triflural in greater than simazine greater than 2,4,5-1=2,4-D. DNP treatment had little effect on herbicide uptake of most algae tested. However, simazine, 2,4,5-T and trifluralin uptake by A. variabilis and 2,4,5-1 uptake by L. birgel was greatly reduced after 1 hr.

PUFLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

HAWXBY, K.W. and MEHTA, R. 1980. Uptake of Herbicides by Algae and Herbicidal Effects on Algal Netabolism. Association of Research Directors Symposium. Atlanta, GA, November 12-15. 004.173 CFIS0079845 FEASIBILITY CF CAGED FISE CULTURE IN NORTE CENTRAL OKLAHOMA PARM PONDS

MAUGHAN O E; BOWNAN D E; LANGSTCN UNIVERSITY, LANGSTON, CKLAHONA. 73050. Proj. No: OKLX-8085-15-5 Project Type: 1890/T Ageocy ID: CS⁴S Period: 01 CCT 79 To 30 SEP S4

OBJECTIVES: Study production and cost of caged fish in small ponds in Central Oklahoma, investigate and test the feasibility of caged fish ic a normal fara or racch operation.

AFFFOACH: Channel cattish will be grown in cages and fed pellets contrg 30-35% protein, and Tilapia will be grown in cages and fed pellets contrg 25-30% protein. Oxygen and temperature will be measured daily at feeding time to develop a profile as if they relate to growth. Record as to marketing acd home consumptions and and cost will be kept to determine return on investment.

PECGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Cage culture appears to be economically feasible in small (less than 2.0 ha) farm ponds acd bas potential for generating a small additional scurce of income (estimated to be S744.00/ha) and/or producing low cost food for the farm family. Ponds that are clear (depth of visibility greater than 1.0 m) and shallow (depth less than 1.0 m over half of the pond) should probably not be used for cage fish culture unless aquatic vegetation control is implemented. Channel catfish fingerlings should be 150 to 200 mm in total length when stocked if a large proportion cf marketable size fish are to be produced in one year in Cklahoma. Tilapia appear to stimulate channel catfish feeding and therefore increase production. The optimum ratio appears to be a very high ratio of catfish to tilapia. The optimum density of fish per cage appears to be about 400 fish per cubic meter with an anticipated harvest weight of 0.45 kg.

- PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12
 - GEBHART, G.E. and MAUGHAN, O.E. 1980. Feasibility of Mixed Cage Culture of Tilapia acd Channel Catfist. Inland Commercial Fisheries Association. 14 March 1580, Nashville, TN. GEBHART, G.E. and MAUGHAN, C.E. 1980. Cage Fish
 - GEBBART, G.E. and NAUGBAN, C.E. 1980. Cage Fish Culture in Small Farm Ponds in Oklahoma. Oklahoma Academy of Science, November 14, 1980. Norman, Oklahoma.

004.174 CFIS0068774 ACCUMULATION AND DEGRADATION OF SOME MERBICIDES BY ALGAB

HAVEBY K W; LANGSTON UNIVERSITY; LANGSTON UNIVERSITY, LANGSTON, CKLARCMA. 73050. Proj. No.: OKLX-PR-0007 Project Type: GRANT Agency ID: CSES Period: 21 MAY 75 To 20 MAY 80

CEJECTIVES: Letermine the extent and rate of breakdown of the herbicides by algae.

APPEOACE: Herbicides will be labeled with ¹⁴C and uptake in lagae and disappearance in the nutrient media will be followed by assaying for radicactivity.

PROGRESS: 79/01 TO 79/12. Previous work in our laboratory indicated different reactions when phosphate levels changed in the presence of herbicides. Aliquots of Chorella pyrenoidosa were cultured in tigh (0.023 mg/1) or low (.003 mg/1)concentrations of ortho or polyphosphate along with different concentrations of herbicides. Phosphate bydrolyzed by algal cells was determined by the method of Eray. Eigh concentrations of polyphosphate appeared to be toxic to algal growth. Prometryn inhibited algal growth more than fluometuron at the concentrations tested. Orthophosphate was more conducive to growth than polyphosphate. Greater hydrolysis by algal cells was observed with high concentrations of ortho and polyphosphates. Different levels of phosphate and herbicides were also added to aliquote of various algae. Oxygen evolution and respiration were measured with an oxygen monitor. No significant difference in photosynthesis or

respiration were found due to phosphorus levels in the treatments. Bigher concentrations of the herbicides tested reduced photosynthesis but bad little effect on respiration.

PUFLICATIONS: 79/01 TO 79/12

TUBEA, B. and HAWXBY, K. Interaction of prosphates and herbicides with Chlorella pyrencidosa. 1979 Oklahoma Academy of Science; Southern Weed Science Society.

004.175 CRISC022032 Release of adsorbed pesticides into water

MENZEL R G; S PLAINS WTRSHED 6 WTF QLTY LF, DURANT, CKIAHOMA. 74701. Proj. No.: 7320-20790-002 Project Type: INHOUSE Agency ID: ARS Period: 16 JUN 71 To 30 SEP 79

OFJECTIVES: We will relate the movement of herbicides in surface rucoff, and their persistence and effects in farm ponds, to the degree of their adsorption on scils.

APFROACE: Arsenical herbicides which vary widely in degree of adsorption on soils will be used in laboratory and model pond studies. Methylation or demethylation of the various forms of these herbicides will be investigated. Effects on pond microorganisms and transformations by pond microorganisms will be related to the persistence of these berbicides in farm ponds. Ic cooperation with runoff studies at other locations, the relationship of adsorption characteristics to movement of herbicides in interflow, surface runoff, and sediment transport, will be incorporated into an agricultural chemical transport model.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Microbial transformations of arsenical herbicides were studied in pord microcosms containing about 500 g of sediment and 6 ? of water. About 20% of cacodylic acid demethylated after 9 months, but methylation of arsenate was undetectable. Numerous types of bacteria were isolated that were adapted to high concentrations of arsenic. These isolates were tested in groups or individually for their ability to transform arsenic compounds by methylation, demethylation, or gaseous evolution. No arsenic transformations were detected. A method was developed for separating arsenate, monomethylarsonate, and dimethylarsinite on an ion exchange column. The method performed satisfactorily on runoff samples containing arsenic at environmental concentrations.

PUPLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

004-176 CRIS0045905 EFFECTS OF WATER QUALITY PARAMETERS ON FARM POND WEGETATION AND THESE INTERACTIONS

WILLIAMS R D; MENZEL R G; MCHENRY J R; S PLAINS WTRSHED & WTF QLTY LB, DUEANT, OKLAHOMA. 74701. Proj. No.: 7320-20790-006 Project Type: INECUSE Ageocy ID: ARS Period: 12 DEC 79 To 12 DEC 82

OBJECTIVES: Assess the ecology of aquatic vegetation (macrophytes, algae, and hacteria) in farm ponds in relation to water quality and the development of management practices to optimize these systems.

APPROACE: Conduct laboratory, growth chamber, and field experiments designed to investigate the influence the of water quality parameters (temperature, nutrient level, light pentration, and sediment) of farm ponds on associated plant growth and succession; investigate the effect of aquatic vegetation on the nutrient flow into and nutrient cycling within the impoundment; and manage plant species associated with waterways and impoundments to reduce the impact of non-point pollution.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. The physiology and growth of various amphibious and aquatic plants are being studied in relation to sediment and nutrient influxes that typify farm ponds. Transpiration rates of maldencain (Panicum hemitomon), marshhay cordgrass (Spartina patens), and narrowleaf cattail (Typha angustifolia) were measured during moisture stress cycles, and are being evaluated for significance. With yellow nutsedge (Gyperus esculentus), significant reductions in tuber weight occurred from sbading at a low level of N fertilization, but not at two higher levels. Diatom (Nitzschia sp.) growth rates in solution culture did not vary at different N concentrations, indicating that this species can store N for later use. Sediment deposition averaged 32 and 175 g/m 2 per day in two farm ponds near Chickasha, GK. Although the sediment composition was similar, one of the sediments released much more soluble P and NH(4)-N to water than the other sediment did.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- LEBMAN, C.F. 1980. Oxygen Exchange Between a "Nodel" Pond and the Atmosphere Advances in Water Resources 3:87-90.
- MENZEL, R.G. 1980. Review of Book, "A Perspective of Environmental Pollution," by Holdgate, N.W. J. Environ. Qual. 9:332.
- MENZEL, R.G. 1980. Enrichment Ratios for Water Quality Modeling. In: "GREAMS - Field Scale Model for Ghemicals, Runoff, and Erosion from Agricultural Management Systems" Enisel W.G. (Editor), USDA-SEA Gonservation Research Report
- TROEGER, W.W. and OINESS, A. 1980. Plant Development and Sequence in Artifical Ponds With or Without Phosphorus- Enriched Sediments. Southwest. Nat. 25:441-423.
- WAUCHOPE, 5.D. and YAMAMOTO, W. 1580. Extraction, Speciation, and Analysis of Arsenic and Arsenical Herbicides in Runoff: Evaluation of Simple Methods at the ppb Level. J. Environ. Qual. 9:497-601.

004.177 CFIS0011762 BCOLOGY AND SYSTEMATICS OF AQUATIC INSECTS

ANDERSON N H; HAWKINS G P; DUDLEY T L; ENTGMOLOGY; OREGON STATE UNIVERSITY, CGFVALLIS, CWEGCN. 97331. Proj. No.: OFE00578 Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CERS Period: 02 JUN 67 To 30 JUN 85

OBJECTIVES: lo increase the knowledge of occurrence and distribution of aquatic insects in Oregon, and to obtain basic life history information on selected species; To investigate the role of food quality in life bistory strategies of aquatic insects through both laboratory and field studies; To investigate the interrelationships between wood debris and stream invertebrates; and To compare the effects of canopy modification and sediment input due to logging on stream invertebrate communities.

APPROACH: The work proposed with aquatic insects includes both field and laboratory studies. In the field, emphasis will be on faunal surveys, larvae-adult associations, population estimates in relation to sediment input, and densities of insects on submerged wood of known age. Under laboratory conditions work will be on impact of aquatic insects on their food resources. Feeding experiments will be conducted with shredders and grazer-scrapers. The experiments include determination of food preferences, growth rate studies, and calculation of ingestion, egestion and assimilation.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. The mayfly community on wood was investigated as part of long-term studies on invertebrates associated with wood debris in streams. Of 9 genera encountered, only Cinygma showed a prediliction for wood. Cinygma and Ironodes have mouthparts adapted for scraping the aufwuchs film and ingest wood fibers along with the fungal and bacterial flora. Mycophagy in wood-associated mayflies makes a contribution to wood processing and related to emergence and mineralization estimated at over 1g/m 2/yr. Benefits accrued by mayflies from wood are related to emergence and shelter in addition to feeding. The effects of fine sediments on stream communities was studied by comparing logged and forested sections of streams in the Oregon Cascades. The open clearcut sites had greater biomass of invertebrates and trout than did the shaded forested sections regardless of sediment composition. The changes in trophic status and increased primary production resulting from shade removal may mask or override the effects of sedimentation in these small streams. Study of stream recovery following the Nt. St. Helens eruption was initiated in 1980. Sites were established to compare channel condition ano stream communities: across a range of impacts (blast deposits, heavy ash and pumice, moderate ash, light ash deposit), and along a continuum in a system receiving blast deposits and debris flows in the headwater reaches.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- PEREIRA, C.R.D. 1980. Life Histroy Studied of Glnygma integrum Eaton (Ephemeroptera: Heptageniidae) and Other Nayflies Associated with Wood Substrates in Oregon Streams. #S thesis, \$2 DD.
- GPAFIUS, E. and ANDERSON, N.B. 1980. Population Dynamics and Fole of Two Species of Lepidostome (Trichoptera: Lepidostomatidae) in an Oregon Coniferous Stream. Ecology 61:808-816.
- WINTERBOURN, M.J. and ANDERSGN, N.H. 1980. The Life History of Philanisus plebelus (Trichoptera: Chathamiidae), a Gaddisfly Whose Eggs Were Found in a Starfish. Ecol. Ent. 5:293-303.

004.178 CRIS0069960 BIOLOGICAL FEASIBILITY OF INTENSIFIED OVSTER CULTURE

 BREESE W P; FISHERIES & WILDLIFE; GREGON STATE

 UNIVERSITY, CGRVALUS, OREGON. \$7331.

 Proj. No.: ORE00338

 Project Type: STATE

 Agency ID: SAES

 Period: 01 JUL 75 To 30 JUN 81

OBJECTIVES: Out-bay culture will investigate the biological and economic feasibility of pond or raceway culture under controlled conditions. This will yield data on the influence of parameters such as water volumes, currents and seeding density on oyster growth. Efforts will also he made to correlate changes in available natural food, as measured by dissolved and particulate organic carbon and nitrogen, with changes in oyster growth. These studies may also encourage investors by demonstrating the reduced threat to culture facilities from floods, winds and storms.

APPROACH: Batchery-produced seed oysters will be placed on the bottom of commercial oyster growing grounds, on oyster growing trays and on experimental rafts. The growth and survival of these oysters will be monitored over a two-year period beginning in the spring of 1975. These data will provide a means of evaluating the relative efficiency and productivity of the various culture methods. Goncurrent with the placement of seed oysters in the field, oysters from the same brood group will be held in an existing out-bay rearing pond provided with pumped seawater. The growth and survival of these oysters will be monitored for comparison with other rearing methods. Refinement of the out-bay culture method will he a continuing process.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Cultchless seed was again planted in Tillamook Bay. As we have had no ice or adverse weather to date, growth and survival data should be collected in the Spring of 1981. Crassostrea rivularis has been accepted by some of the growers and eyed larvae andseed are available from two commercial hatcheries. Monthly sampling of the Kumamoto oyster is complete. Three years of data shows this oyster to mature later in the year. As this oyster is a warm water spawner (25 degrees C), this data agrees with our laboratory data which says low temperature delays sexual maturation but does not affect the rate of maturation. For the second year we have successfully spawned this cyster in late summer. Eyed larvae as a seed source is gaining popularity. A failure of domestic wild seed has increased the interests in hatchery seed. Techniques for handling eyed larvae are being perfected. Four hatcheries are now producing syed larvae for sale. Communication.

Beld a workstop in Astoria for Cregon and Washington growers to explain the eyed larvae technique for obtaining oyster seed. Visited the interested growers and helped them with the technique of setting eyed larvae.

- PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12
 - LANNAN, J.F. 1980. Eroodstock Management of Crassostrea gigas I. Genetic and Environmental Variation in the Larval Rearing System. Aquaculture 21:323-336.
 - LANNAN, J.E., ROBINSCN, A.N. and EREESE, W.P. 1980. Broodstock Management of Crassostrea gigas II. Broodstock Conditioning to Maximize Larval Survival. Aquaculture 21:337-345.
 - LANNAN, J.F. 1980. Broodstock Management of Crassostrea gigas III. Selective Breeding for Improved Larval Survival. Aquaculture 21:347-351. LANNAN, J.F. 1980. Broodstock Management of
 - Crassostrea gigas IV. Inbreeding and Larval Survival. Aquaculture 21:353-356. NURANANKA, W.S. 1980. Broodstock Management of the
 - Pacific Cyster Crassostrea gigas (Thunberg), N.S. Thesis. Cre. State Univ., 55 pp.

004.179 CFIS0084309 TEMPERATURE EFFECTS ON XENOBIOTIC ELIMINATION BY FISEES

CURTIS L R; FISBERIES 6 WIIDLIFE; CEEGCN STATE UNIVERSITY, CCRVALLIS, CREGON. 97331. Proj. No.: OFE00911 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 81 To 30 JUN 86

CBJECTIVES: Increased understanding of and enhanced ability to explain the cellular events underlying hepatic elimination of xenobiotics will be sought. The influence of environmental factors on bebatic metabolism and biliary excretion of selected chemicals by salmonids will be investigated in an attempt to characterize the capacities of these fishes to eliminate "prototype" environmental contaminants.

APPEOACE: Pharmacological/toxicological approaches will be employed to investigate the effecte of acclimation under various regimens of temperature and caloric intake on the elimination of 2,4-toluenediamine, phenolphthalein and henzo(a) pyrene by slmonids. Standard pharmacokinetic indices will be applied to trace movement of administered agents from plasma to bile and/or urine. Examination of bichemical processes associated with hepatic elimation of exnobiotics will be incorporated into the research project so that mechanistic explanations of the actiors of xenobiotics may be approached. The roles of conjugative metabolism and adencesine triphosphatase activity in hepathobiliary function are of particular interest.

004.180 ACUTE AND CHIONIC EFFECTS ON FISE EXPOSED CONTINUOUSLY AND INTERMITTENTLY TO TOXICANTS

CURTIS L R; WARREN C E; SEIM W E; FISEEFIES & WILDLIFE; CREGON STATE UNIVERSITY, CORVALLIS, OREGON. 97331. Proj. No.: OFE00910 Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL &1 To 30 JUN 86

OBJECTIVES: The potential for environmental contaminants to produce adverse effects on natural populations is not easily extrapolated from laboratory data. Expanded knowledge of how temporal factors contribute to tolerance of fistes to toxic substances is necessary for development of environmental policy. The influence of manipulation of schedules of toxicant exposure on salwonid survival, growth and development will be studied.

APPROACB: The toxicity of copper and an additional agent to salwonids following continuous and intermittent exposure will be assessed. Juverile rainbow trout will be utilized for determination of LC50 values, the results being coupled with 21 day growth studies. Embryo-larval tests will be conducted to ascertain the responses of anothr stage in the life history of rainbow trout to variation in exposure regimens of toxic substances. Tissue residue analysis will be utilized to gain insight into how dispositional factors may influence differential toxicity attributable to temporal aspects of exposure.

004.181 CRIS0004421 EFFECTS OF WATERSHED PRACTICES ON STREAM BABITAT AND FISE POPULATIONS

 BAIL J D; FISBERIES & WILDLIFE; CKEGON STATE

 UNIVERSITY, CCFVALLIS, CREGON. 97331.

 Proj. No.: CRE00526
 Project Type: STATE

 Agency ID: SAES
 Period: To 30 JUN 84

OBJECTIVES: To assess impacts of forest practices on fish populations and their habitat in streams of the Coast and Cascade ranges in Oregon. To develop improved metbods of evaluating fish habitat, especially those characteristics impacted by forest practices. To evaluate measures taken to rehabilitate and enhance fish habitat in streams impacted by forest practices.

APPROACE: Cooperative with ongoing studies of watershed management and stream ecology on B. J. Andrews Experimental Forest and other locations in Gregon for extensive analysis of matersheds in a variety of geomorphic settings. Develop specific process studies to define detailed aspects of fish habitat, impacts on that habitat, and means to rebabilitate damaged or degraded streams.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. A review of natural variation in abundance of salmonid populations in streams was completed during the year. The work was based on literature and unpublished data. A major objective was to use the information to make recommendations for design of studies of watershed management impacts on streams. The standing stock biomass of salmonid fishes in streams was found to vary greatly in both time and space, from 0 to 60 g/m 2 or more. This variation is sufficient to mask large-scale perturbations caused by land management practices. Among the approaches we suggest to minimize the masking effect, the most important are further development of habitat quality ratings and improved systems of watershed and stream classification. Study designs employing paired comparisons are advocated as an additional improvement. In one study that incorporated this design, the effects of small clearcuts on fish and their habitats in the Cascade Wountains of Cregon were found to vary depending on stream gradient and time after logging. Clearcut sections where the stream was still exposed to sunlight (5-17 yrs. after logging) had greater trout bicmass than old-growth (450 yrs) forested sections. Second-growth logged sections (12-35 yrs after logging), reshaded by forest canopy, bad lower biomass of trout and fewer predator taxa than old-growth sites. Work began during the year on a new subproject involving impacts of sedimentation.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TC 80/12

- MURPBY, N.L. and BALL, J.D. 1981. Varied Effects of Clear-cut Logging on Predators and Their Babitat in Small Streams of the Cascade Mountains, Oregon. Can. J. Fish. Aquat. Sci. 38:137-145.
- GREGCRY, S.V. 1980. Effects of Light, Nutrients, and Grazing on Periphyton Communities in Streams. Ph.D. Thesis. Oregon State Univ., Corvallis, 151 pp.
- KNIGET, N.J. 1980. Factors Affecting the Smolt Yield of Coho Salmon (Cncorhynchus kisutch) in Three Oregon Streams. N.S. Thesis. Oregon State Univ., Corvallis, 105 pp.
- FAUDKSAR, J.D. 1980. Ecology of Underyearling Summer Steelhead Trout in Intermittent Streams Tributary to the Rogue River, Oregon. W.S. Thesis. Oregon State Univ., Corvallis, 85 pp.

004.182 MICROCOSM MODELING OF THE RESPONSE OF PERSISTENT AQUATIC COMMUNITIES TO A TOXICANT

LISS W J; WAFREN C E; FISBERIES & WILDLIFE; CREGON STATE UNIVERSITY, CORVALLIS, OREGON. 97331. Proj. No.: 05E00081 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 APR 80 To 31 MAE 83

OBJECTIVES: The objectives of this research are 1) to evaluate and explain the influence of population exploitation, invertebrate habitat availability, and energy input rate on the structure and organization of laboratory aquatic communities, 2) evaluate and explain the response of these communities to introduction of a toxic substance and their recovery from toxicant perturbation as influenced by exploitation, habitat availability, and energy input.

APPEOACE: Laboratory communities composed of pereistent populations of guppies, amphipods, snaile, planaria, and various microinvertebrates are being maintained at Cak Creek Laboratory of Eiology. The guppies are exploited at different rates to simulate fishing. Two levels of energy input, in the form of an alfalfa ration, and invertebrate habitat availability are maintained. When the behavior of the communities at each exploitation and energy input rate has been well-documented and the systems have established near steady-etates, dieldrin, an organochlorine insecticide, is introduced. The response of the systems to dieldrin, as influenced by exploitation and energy input rate, is determined and explained.

004.183* FISE GENETICS CRIS0028750

SCHEECK C B; FISHERIES & WILDLIFE; OREGON STATEUNIVERSITY, CCRVALLIS, OREGON. 97331.Proj. No.: OFE00846Project Type: STATEAgency ID: SAESPeriod: 20 JUL 66 To 01 JUL 80

OBJECTIVES: Conduct original research in fish genetics and ecology. Apply findings of research toward clarification of existing problems of race identification, batchery improvement, evolution of fishes, and genetic tolerance to heavy metal poisoning for fiehes. Incorporate graduate instruction and research into each of the above objectivee.

APPEOACE: Population genetics, DNA homology studies, cytogenetic and Wendelian genetics studiee, toxicity studies, and graduate level instruction in fish genetics and fish culture.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Objectives include facilitating salmon and trout culture by determining phenotypic control of development, particularily etages during emoltification. Experiments on effects of transportation of coho and chinook indicated that post-release performance could be affected. Wild cut-throat tend to dominate hatchery coho salmon. Detection of imprinting odorants may vary during emoltificaticn. Bormone therapy can be used to induce spawning in coho salmon in both fresh and saltwater.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- DELABUNTY, G., SCHRECK, C.E., SPECKER, J., OICESE, J., VODICNIK, M.J. and DEVLAWING, V. 1979. The Effects of Light Reception on Circulating Estrogen Levels in Female Goldfish, Carassius auratus: Importance of Retinal Pathways
- DELABUNTY, G., SCHRECK, C.E. and DEVLAWING, V.I. 1980. Effecte of Photoperiod on Plas me Corticoid Levels in the Goldfisb, Carassius auratus: Role of the Pineal. Comp. Biochem. Physiol. 65A: 355-358.
- EJIKE, C. and SCERECE, C.E. 1980. Stress and Social Hierarchy Rank in Cobo Salmon. Trans. Am. Fish. Soc. 109:423-426.
- REDDING, J.N. and SCREECE, C.E. 1979. Adaptive Significance of Certain Enzyme Polymorphisms in Steelhead Trout (Salmo gairdneri). J. Fish. Ree. Ecard Can. 36(5):544-551.

SPECKER, J.L. and SCHRECK, C.E. 1980. Stress Responses to Transportation and Fitness for Marine Survival in Coho Salmon (Oncorhynchus kisutch) Smolts. Can. J. Fish. Aquatic Sci. 37(5):765-769.

004.184* CFIS0075513 CHEONIC TURBIDITY AND STRESS IN JUVENILE COBO SALMON AND STEELEBAD TROUT

SCBRECK C E; FISHERIES & WILDLIFE; OREGON STATE UNIVERSITY, CCEVALLIS, CREGON. 97331. Prcj. No.: ORE00401 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 25 APR 78 To 31 DEC 80

OEJECTIVES: Objectives will be met by answering: Is there a generalized, physiological reponse to stress in juvenile salmonids; are the physiological responses to stress correlated or related to reduced fitnees; does stress produce predictable physiological responses?.

APPROACE: Juvenile coho salmon and steelhead trout will be exposed tosiltation and their resitance to other stresses determined. Clinical chemistries involving primary aspects of the general adaptation syndrome of etress, euch as cortisol, will be monitored.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Juvenile coho slamon and eteelhead trout exposed to suspended topsoil, clay or Mt. St. Eelens volcanic ash had evaluated plasma cortisol, suggesting that exposure to high levels of suspended solids is a moderately stressful condition. Although cordisol returned to pre-stress levels and oemoregulatory performance of the fish was not affected by exposure to sediment, topsoil eignificantly reduced the fish's tolerance to the pathogen Vibrio anguillarum. The absence of light during imposition of stree may mitigate in part the reaction to the strees.

PUFLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS SEPORTED THIS PERIOD.

004.185 ACCOUNTING FOR VARIABILITY IN PRODUCTIVITY CF OCEAN FISH IN VIELD ESTIMATION

TYLER A V; FISBEFIES 6 WILDLIFE; CREGCN STATE UNIVERSITY, CORVALLIS, OREGCN. 97331. Proj. No.: OFE00912 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 81 To 30 JUN 86

OBJECTIVES: Provide new mathematical approaches to estimating yields that account for variability in natural production of ocean fishes.

APPROACH: Develop multi-factor statistical analyses of the effects of physical oceanographic processes, fishing effort and stock eize on trends of selected contenintal ehelf fishes in the eastern Pacific. Develop mathematical models that explore how to estimate fishery yields in the face of variability in productivity due to deneity-dependent population processes and aleo variability brought about by hydrographic trends and fuctuations. Consideration will be given to food-meb structure and multi-species fieheries.

 004.186
 CRIS0014167

 TOXICOLOGICAL AND ECOLOGICAL EFFECTS OF TOXICANTS

 WARREN C E; WEBER L J; LISS W J; FISHERIES 6

 WILDLIFE; OREGON STATE UNIVERSITY, COLVALLIS, CREGON.

 97331.

 Proj. No.: ORE00693
 Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSRS

 Period: 31 DEC 64 To 31 DEC 80
OBJECTIVES: Levelog an understanding of mechanisms of toxicity to aid in developing standards for toxicants which are adequate to protect freshwater organisms. The research will be designed to predict effects from multiple toxicants found in aquatic environment; effects of acute and chronic administration; and physiological treatment of toxicants by aquatic organisms.

APPEGACE: Toxicological and pharmacological approaches will be used to determine the effects of multiple toxicant; toxicological and bioenergetic approaches will be used in specific toxicant studies; and pbysiological, pharmacological, and biochemical approaches will be used in relation to the organism elimination of a toxicant.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Investigation of acute copper toxicity to juvenile rainbow trout following either continuous or intermittent exposure has been conducted. The 96-hr LC 50's appear to markedly differ (in terms of total mg/br of toxicant exposure) between treatment schedules. In addition, when a daily ration is provided to fish in our bioassay system the 96-hr LC 50 is approximately twice that of unfed trout. Analysis of studies of structure-toxicity relationships of substituted benzenes has been completed. Increase in the degree of chlorine substitution, with subsequent enhanced lipophilicity, was found to result in increased acute toxicity of these agents to fishes. Laboratory ecosytems composed of persistent populations of guppies, snails, amphipods, planaria, and various microinvertebrates are being maintained. The gupples are exploited at different rates to simulate fishing and two levels of energy input are maintained. Near steady-state community structure and organization of the systems was determined by the rate of exploitation of their guppy population and by the rate of input of energy. Continuous introduction of 1 ppb of dieldrin into four ecosystems, one at each exploitation rate, at the low level of energy input brought about alteration of community structure and organization rate. Response ranged from initial reduction in density and subsequent recovery of the unexploited guppy population to extinction of the most heavily exploited guppy population.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- FINGER, S.E. 1980. Effects of Perturbation on Community Structure and Crganization of Aquatic Microcosses N.S. Thesis, Cregon State University, Corvallis.
- KULBICKI, N.L. 1980. Effects of Dieldrin and Different Food Levels on Life History Tactics of the Guppy (Poecilia reticulata Peters). N.S. Thesis, Cregon State University, Corvallis. WCLTERING, D.M. 1981. Organization and the
- Adaptation of Aquatic Laboratory Ecosystems to Resource Availability, Exploitation, and a Toxicant. Pb.D. Ibesis, Oregon State University, corvallis.

004.187* CFIS0076338 MICEOBIOLOGICAL ASSESSMENT OF PIVEE WATER CONTANINATION

LEONG J A; MICROBICLOGY; CREGCN STATE UNIVERSITY, CCFVALLIS, CIEGON. 97331. Proj. No.: OFE00402 Project Type: HATCB Agency ID: CSES Period: 01 APR 78 To 31 DEC 82

OBJECTIVES: Since 1973, there has been at least one major viral epizootic in Oregon fish hatcheries each year. This research proposal is concerned with the microbiological quality of the water released into the Oregon watershed after a viral epizootic and the potential impact of releasing this virus-containing water on the wildlife fed by this water.

APPROACB: Determine the rate of virus survival in the field after an epizootic using the following methods: Hatchery effluent sampling and virus concentration by membrane filtration. Assay for virus infectivity in tissue culture. Develop more sensitive assays for infectious virus using known chemical enhancers of viral infectivity. Determine whether IENV and IPNV can infect animals other than Salmonid fishes and produce a disease state. Determine whether fish viruses may interact with other viruses to yield an attenuated viral strain or a strain which is new more infectious for other animals.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. This project is concerned with the microbiological quality of the water released into the Cregon watershed from fist hatcheries during a viral epizootic and the impact of releasing this virus-containing water on the wildlife fed by this water. In the grant period 10-1-79 to 9-30-80 we made the following progress: We have extended our observations that infectious hematopoietic necrosis virus of salmonid fish can also grow in insect cells. The virus produces no change in the insect cell but large quantities of virus are released by the infected cell line. Thus, a possible insect reservoir for the virus may exist. We have also found that the virus that is produced by the insect cell line is altered in three of the five virion proteins. We are currently determining if the alteration in viral protein is due to a difference in the way the insect cell processes the viral protein or in the way the insect host selects for the replicating viral strain. The sensitivity of the assay for virus detection in tissue samples from diseased fish is dependent upon the cell line used in the assay. (See paper attached, submitted to J. Fish. Res. Bd. Can., 1980.) We have determined that UV-irridation of water can be used to reduce the titer of virus in that water by 1,000 fold.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- SCOTT, J., FENDRICK, J., and LECNG, J. 1980. Growth of Infectious Bematopoletic Necrosis Virus in Mosquito and Fish Cell Lines. Wasmann J. of Biology 38(1,2):21-29.
- HEDRICK, R.P., LEONG, J.C. and FRYER, J.L. 1981. Establishment and Maintenance of the Carrier State in Salmonids with Infectious Pancreatic Necrosis Virus in the Sixth FDA Symposium on Aquaculture. Human Services Publication. Ed.
- FXYER, J.L., MCCAIN, B.B. and LECNG, J.C. 1980. A Cell Line Derived fr om Kainbow Trout (Salwo wairdneri) Hepatoma. Proc. Jap. Soc. Fish Pathol. Tokyo.
- LEONG, J. and FRYER, J.L. 1280. Nicrobiological Assessment of River Water Contamination by Fish Hatchery Effluent. Office of Water Research and Technology Publication. WERI 66, 43 pp.

004.188 CRISO031226 BACTERIAL SURVIVAL AND RECOVERY NECEANISMS: SIGNIFICANCE IN MARINE ENVIRONMENT

MORITA R Y; MICLCEIOLCGY; CREGON STATE UNIVERSITY, CORVALLIS, GREGON. 97331. Proj. No.: ORE00895 Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 APE 68 To 30 SEP 86

OEJECTIVES: To determine the physiological mechanism that permits bacteria to survive for long period of time without the presence of an energy-yielding substrate as well as to determine the mechanism of recovery from the starvation-survival state.

APPROACE: Vibrio (Ant-300), a pseudomonad, and a few nitrifiers will be monitored as to their survival in the absence of energy-yielding substrates for periods of days and months. During this period the size of the cells, formaticn or decrease in the macromolecules (protein, DNA, and RNA) will be followed and analyzed on the basis of the total cell count, viable cell count, and the respiring cell count. Endogenous metabolis, f any, EC (energy charge), and the cryptic growth will also be determined. In the recovery of the bacterial cells, the ability to utilize an energy-yielding substrate will be monitored. In both the survival and recovery processes, the protein patterns will be determined by the O'Ferrel gel technique so that the possible changes in protein patterns (including enzymes) can be analyzed.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. The ability of psychrophilic facterial cells (Ant-300) to undergo starvation survival over long periods of time lies in their ability to capture, bind, transport and utilize substrate when avaialble. Under prolonged starvation the cells maintain their binding proteins and an energized membrane. The starvation survival forms are in a state of "ready and waiting", capable of maintaining itself in nutrient deprived environment only to take advantage in any favorable shift in the nutrients available in the organism's environment. During the first 1.5 to 14 days of starvation under hydrostatic pressure Ant-300 cells are apparently more pressure sensitive than cells of Ant-300 starved for long periods of time. The data obtained indicates that Ant-300 may well adapt to survival at increased pressure under extended starvation but not capable of growth under pressure unless sufficient energy is available.

- PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12
 - MCRITA, F.Y. 1980. Microbiology of the Deep-sea. Can. J. Microbiol. 26:1375-1385.
 - MCRITA, R.Y. 1980. Calcite Precipitation by Marine Bacteria. Geomicrobiol. J. 2:63-82. MORITA, F.Y. 1980. Biological Limits of Low
 - Temperature and Pressure. Crigins of Life i0:215-222.
 - SCRITA, B.F. 1980. Low Temperature, Energy, Survival and Time in Microbial Ecology. pp. 323-324. In Schleissinger, D. (Ed.), Microbiology. Amer. Soc. Microbiol., Washingon, D.C.
 - YOLGEY, F.S. 1980. The Synergetic Effect of Starvation and Hydrostatic Fressure on Uptake of Alpha-aminoisobutyric Acid by a Psycbrophilic Marine Vibrio. M.S. Thesis. Oregon State Univ., Corvallis. 81 pp.

004.185* CFIS0069126 BISTOPATHOLOGIC AND HISTOCEEMICAL INDICES OF SUBLETEAL PESTICIDE TOXICATION IN FISH

ANTHONY A; NEFF W E; EIOLOGY; PENNSYLVANIA STATE UNIVERSITY, UNIVERSITY PARK, PENNSYLVANIA. 16802. Proj. No.: PEN02211 Froject Type: HATCH Agency 1D: CERS Period: 01 JUL 76 To 30 JUN 81

OBJECTIVES: Develop Bistochemical bioassay methods of sublethal pesticide toxication in fish; investigate biochemical and physiological correlates of sublethal pesticide toxication in fish in relation to course of pathogenesis, survival potential and toxicant resistance.

APPEOACB: Fish will be exposed to sublethal concentration of four pesticides. Atrazine, Carbaryl, 2,4-D and Parathion. Acid and formalin exposure will serve as "stress toxicant" reference standards. Tissues from major organ systems will be analyzed using differential and histochemical staining procedures. sytometric and analytical cytophotogetric indices will be used as text parameters in evaluating the utility and sensitivity of histochemical methods for detecting sublethal pesticide toxicaticn. Supplemental biochemical and physiological studies will also be undertaken to validate bistochemical assays of pesticides and elucidate their mode of action.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Laboratory tests were conducted to investigate histopathologic and histochemical changes in various tissues of brook trout ('Salvelinus' 'fontinalis') exposed to sub-lethal dcsages of the pesticides: atrazine carbaryl, parathion and 2,4-dichlorophenoxyacetic acid. Analytical histochemical methods were employed to provide measures of regulatory aspects of metabolism as well as end products of synthesis. Among the important contributions of the study was the demonstration that quantification of nucleic acid responses in specific brain, liver, kidney and endocrine tissue compartments permits the detection of incipient stages of toxication and provides information on the pharmacological basis of toxicant induced pathogenesis. For example, it was found that with carbaryl toxication neoronal RNA levels were evaluated in the optic tectum and depressed in cerebellar Purkinje cells. With parathion toxication RNA was elevated in both cerebrocortical and cerebellar compartments. Thus, the higher toxicity of parathion stems from a generalized increase in excitability of brain neurons, whereas carbaryl appears to be more site-specific with respect to toxin-mediated impairment of neuronal functioning.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TC 80/12

- KOBULARIK N. G. 1980. Comparative incidence of histopathology in white perch ('Roccus americanus') and Atlantic tomcod ('Nicrogadus' 'tomcod') collected from water intake screens of Hudson river nuclear reactor plante. M.S.
- ANTHONY A., et al. 1980 Nicrospectrophotometric analyses of water toxicant induced changes in nucleic acid and mucopolysaccharide levels of Stunnius corpuscle cells of brook trout. Proc. Pa. Acad. Sci. 54(1):109.

004.190* CRISO069189 ZOOGBOGBAPHY AND ECOLOGY OF FISHES IN PENNSILVANIA

COOPER E L; BICLOGY; PENNSYLVANIA STATE UNIVERSITY, UNIVERSITY PARK, PENNSYLVANIA. 16802. Proj. No.: PEN02276 Project Type: BATCH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 JUL 77 To 30 JUN 81

OBJECTIVES: Measure the impact of environmental disturbance on patterns of distribution of fish species; investigate the phylogeny of selected fish groups in order to assess the validity of species nomenclature.

APPROACH: The severity of environmental degradation due to acid mine drainage, soil erosion, industrial pollution or other disturbances to aquatic habits will be correlated with the presence or absence of species of fishes known to be sensitive to these forms of pollution. Predictions of the level of pollution permissable to maintain diverse fish pollutions are then possible. Studies will be continued to better understand the diversity of taxa and the geographic distribution of fishes in northeastern United States.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Work is continuing on a manuscript "Fishes of Pennsylvania" which is in Press. The phylogeny of the sculpins (Teleostei: Cottidae) of eastern North America has been revised by detailed electrophoretic and meristic anaylsis of many Appalachian species and populations. An acceptable thesis is now being prepared for publication.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 STRUASS, R. E. 1980. Geographic variation and the intra- and interspecific relationships of eastern North American freshwater sculfing (Teleostei: Cottidae). The Graduate School, Penn State Univ., Ph.D. Thesis, 210 p.

004.191 CRISO082236 ECOLOGY OF RARE AND ENDANGERED FISEES OF PENNSYLVANIA

COOPER E L; BRENNEMAN W M; BICLOGY; PENNSYLVANIA STATE UNIVERSITY, UNIVERSITY PARK, PENNSYLVANIA. 16802. Proj. No.: PEN02534 Project Type: HATCH

Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 JUL 81 To 30 JUN 82

OBJECTIVES: Determine the status of rare or endangered fish species in Pennsylvania; to determine the role of the banded darter, Etheostoma onadele, in fish communities on stream riffles.

APPROACH: The distribution of most common fishes in Pennsylvania has been well defined by collections. Effort now is needed to describe the distributionand ecology of the rare and endangered species by collections in specific areas. The banded darter recently expanded its normal range by invading the colonizing mose of the Susquehanna River drainage. Seceral riffle communities of fishes, including this darter, will be selected within the original range on these riffles, the ecological role of the darter will be compared to answer how this species successfully colonized a new riffle already supporting an abundant fish community. 004,192 CRIS0076818 NATURAL PRODUCTION OF TROUT IN INFERTILE MCUNTAIN STREAMS OF PENNSYLVANIA

ARNCLD D E; FISBERIES 6 WILDLIFE; PENNSYLVANIA STATE UNIVERSITY, UNIVERSITY PARK, PENNSYLVANIA 16802. Proj. No.: PEN02408 Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 MAY 79 To 30 JUN 83

OBJECTIVES: Determine factors which limit natural reproduction and growth of trout in infertile streams; develop methods to manipulate the limiting factors.

APPECACH: Compare fertile and infertile streams with regard to numberand size of fish produced, effects of rainfall chemistry, and other factors. Test methods of managing and controlling the factors identified.

PRCGRESS: 80 /01 TO 80/12. Over six years of data on sensitive streams and their biota have been collected on the Guebanna Wilderness Area. Several precipitation chemistry stations have also been maintained. Furing this period emphasis was shifted to biology. A thesis on the effect of low dissolved minerals on trout is in the writing stage. Most chemical analyses of rain and stream samples have been completed. New thesis studies on feeding of brook trout and on insect populations as affected by acidification of poorly-buffered, infertile streams were begun. Several streams which show severe effects of acidification bave been identified. Fainfall pH continues to average 4.0 or below.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

004,193 CFIS0064010 FISE MOREIDITY AND MORTALITY RELATED TO ENVIRONMENTAL CHANGES AND/CF INTENSIVE CULTURE METHODS

ROTBENBACHER H; VETERINARY SCIENCE; PENNSYLVANIA STATE UNIVERSITY, UNIVERSITY PAEK, FENNSYLVANIA. 16802. Proj. No.: PEN02099 Project Type: HATCE Agency ID: CSKS Period: 01 JAN 74 To 31 DEC 79

OBJECTIVES: Letermine major causes of fish morbidity and mortality in Pennsylvania and examine the role of man-made environmental stress conditions on incidence of disease in fish. Attempt duplication of stressed

stream or lake conditions in the laboratory to study

pathogenesis.

APPkOACB: Case reports of fish disease or mortality will be investigated and classified into physical, chemical, wiral, bacterial, parasitic, neoplastic or nutritional pathology. Physical, chemical and microbiologic water determinations will be made at sites of major disease incidence and correlated to man-made environmental change. Laboratory studies are aimed at duplication of stressed stream or lake situations in order to study pathogenesis by precipitating disease. Combinations of various stresses will be applied.

PROGRESS: 79/01 TO 79/12. A 3 year experiment of mixed culture between native bluegills 'epomis' macrochirus and Israeli mirror carp 'Cyprinus' 'carpio' in 2-1000 m² ponds prevented reproduction of the carp and resulted in overgrowth of bluegills. Interbreeding and reproduction between recently imported high-bred Israeli Mirror Carp and native (1890 imports) Allegheny River sirror carp continued for the 6th year in an irrigation reservoir. Consultation agreements on pond-and intensive fish culture continued with the Penna. Fish Commission research hatchery and with 2 private foundations. Experiments to recycle dried sewage sludge into fish feed are in progress at the Benner Spring research hatchery. Diagnostic examinations were made on 14 saltwater fish from a local aquarium and 2 freshwater aquarium fist. Gill and internal parasites (flukes), nutritional rathology and tuberculosis were main findings in the saltwater fish. The freshwater fish had 'Aeromonas' septicemia.

PUBLICATIONS: 79/01 TC 79/12 ROTHENBACKER, B., SBANNCN, EARRY. 1975. Deaths among brook trout traced to polluted water. Science in Agr. XXVI, No. 2, p3.

004.194* CRIS0073855 IDENTIFICATION OF SUB-OPTIMAL ENVIRONMENTAL PARAMETERS AFFECTING AQUACULTURE

WOLKE R E; DUNN J L; MEADE T L; ANIMAL PATHOLOGY; UNIVERSITY OF FBODE ISLAND, KINGSICN, RHODE ISLAND. 02881. Proj. No.: RI00412 Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 07 NOV 77 To 01 OCT 81

OBJECTIVES: Nount a multidisciplinary approach to the elucidation of sub-optimal environmental parameters responsible for inefficient growth, poor reproduction and increased disease incidence in aquaculture production system. Identification and clarification of these critical parameters will be followed by appropriate investigation of remedial measures.

APPECACE: Initial effort will be restrictive and designed to develop tests capable of indicating early stress in the fish, develop tests capable of measuring early suppression of piscine immune response, and investigate the actual effect of altered water and nutritional factors thought to be protective or advantageous to fish in closed systems.

PEOGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. The cellular and humoral components of the fishes immune system are well developed and reflect environmental alterations. Further, they are probable sensitive indicators of sub-optimal parameters affecting fish culture. To this end, during 1980, we expanded our testing battery by developing the methodology and capabilities to measure the following immune indicators of stress and increased susceptibility in finfish: Cellulose electrophoresis, Gel electrophoresis, Agglutination, Precipitation, Serumlysozymes, Bemolytic plaque, MIF, Macrophage Phagocytic index, Serum Fe and Fe binding capacity, Immuno florescence, Immuno electrophoresis.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

004-195 AEATEMENT OF EUTROFEICATION RESULTING FROM INTENSIVE ANIMAL PRODUCTION

MEADE T L; ANIMAL SCIENCE; UNIVERSITY CF REODE ISLAND, KINGSTCH, EBODE ISLAND. 02881. Proj. No.: RI00822 Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 73 To 30 SEP 80

OBJECTIVES: Develop practical methods for: Removal of metabolites form fish culture water that render it unsuitable for re-use. Treatment of fish culture water to meet existing and projected standards for discharge. Removal and treatment of suspended solid wattes in fish culture water. Adaptation and/or modification of processes for treatment of fish culture water and solid waste in treatment of waste from intensive livestock and poultry production.

APPROACE: Primary treatment will involve physical screening and aerobic digestion. Secondary treatment will involve aerobic digestion of solids, denitrification by continuous microbial reduction and recxygenation of effluent.

PROGRESS: 77/06 TO 80/09. Solids removal is one of the more difficult unit processes involved in water reuse systems for the culture of salmonids. Traditional settling basins effectively remove settleable solids but suspended solids are normally entrained in the associated biological filter where their buildup impairs nitrification efficiency and necessitates periodic cleaning. Alternate methods of solids removal were evaluated. Studies with a pulsed rapid sand filter indicated that a 12 cm. athracite coal bed over a 7.5 cm. sand bed resulted in a 66 percent removal of suspended solids at acceptable hydraulic loading rates. Studies with an inclined 40 mesh stainless steel static screen indicated that up to 38 percent of the suspended solids could be removed at a bydraulic loading rate of 122 liters/m2/mipute. Combining a plate settler with an 80 mesh stainless steel screen resulted in a 71 percent removal rate when the influent contained 77 mg/l of suspended solids. The relatively poor results obtained lead to investigation of "in situ" solids digestion in a system using 10 o/oc salinity water. Solids concentration was reduced S7 percent. This work will be continued in freshwater systems.

PUBLICATIONS: 77/06 TO 80/09 LLOYD, S.W. 1980. Solids removal from fish culture systems. M.S. Thesis, University of Rhode Island, Kingston, RI 50 p.

004.196 CRIS0071719 FISE BARRIER SYSTEMS FOR FOURT STATIONS

 MOTTE G A; BILLIER A J; FISBERIES & NAFINE TECH;

 UNIVERSITY OF RHODE ISLAND, KINGSTON, RHODE ISLAND.

 02881.

 Proj. No.: RI00751
 Project Type: STATE

 Agency ID: SAES
 Period: 01 OCT 76 To 01 OCT 81

OBJECTIVES: The ingress of fish into the cooling outlet canals of large power stations present serious mechnical δ environmental problems. Fish attracted by the high temperature are sometimes killed in great numbers by the toxic gases in the warm water outlet plume. Such fish kills are of environmental concern δ can interfere with powerplant efficiency. Study materials, design δ effectiveness of fish net barrier systems presently installed in power station outlet canals; propose modifications of design δ installation based on above study.

APPROACE: Conduct laboratory tests on precise scale models of installed fish barrier nets; conduct minor adjustments, based on above tests, on installed barrier nets; monitor stress factors in the installed net systems.

PROGRESS: 79/01 TO 79/12. Work conducted during the report period was limited to analyzing data collected earlier.

PUBLICATIONS: 79/01 TO 79/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

004.197 CRIS0065375 THE PHYSIOLOGICAL BASIS FOR WANAGING TIDAL WARSE VEGETATION

 BULL E J; PLANT & SOIL SCIENCE; UNIVERSITY OF RHODE

 ISLAND, KINGSTON, RHODE ISLAND. 02881.

 Proj. No.: RI00527
 Project Type: HATCH

 Agency ID: CSRS
 Period: 01 JUL 74 To 30 SEP 80

OBJECTIVES: The impact of tidal marsh management practices on the physiological condition of marsh vegetation will be measured. Barvesting salt marsh hay, altering flood water salinity and solute content, changing drainage patterns will be evaluated for their effects on the stability of salt marsh grasslands.

APPEOACB: Sound grassland management is based on knowledge of the seasonal energy flow through component species. Management practices will be evaluated for their effect on annual photosynthetic patterns, carbohydrate mobilization and storage, root rhizome and tiller growth, mineral uptake and transport. Most studies will be conducted on Spartina alterniflora and S. patens growing under marsh conditions.

PROGRESS: 74/07 TO 80/09. Seasonal energy relations and mineral nutrient absorption by tidal salt marsh vegetation were studied in order to formulate management programs which would enhance the productivity and stability of these fragile estuarine grasslands. Carbohydrates in rhizomes of Spartina alterniflora were depleted during spring shoot growth and were not replenished until late summer. This cycle in carbohydrate status was of lesser magnitude in the short ecophene than in the tall form. Substantial amounts of photosynthate were partitioned to vegetative reproduction throughout the growing season even during grain filling. Energy overwintering in rhizome and crown tissues was utilized in the spring to support growth and in the summer to regenerate the rhizome system, soluble nitrogen and phosphorus applied to the marsh surface rapidly penetrated the sediment and were readily absorbed by S. alterniflora roots resulting in stimulated shoot growth. The presence of NaCl in the nutrient solution stimulated ammonium absorption by roots of S. alterniflora and S. patens while reduced oxygen tension had no effect on root function. Both ammonium and nitrate were utilized by S. alterniflora although the reduced nitrogen source was preferred. The corderasses are well adapted to growth under tidal salt marsh conditions and to absorption of nutrients introduced to the marsh in the tidal flood waters.

PUBLICATIONS: 74/07 TO 80/09

WRONA, A. 1976. Nutrient Uptake and Growth of Spartine patens as a Function of Salinity and Oxygen Concentration. N.S. Thesis, University of Rhode Island, Kingston, 59 pp.

004.198 FPESEWATER FOOD ANIMALS

CRIS0071761

FOLTZ J W; EVERSOLE A G; FOLTZ J W; ENTOMCLOGY & ECCNOMIC ZOOLOGY; CLEMSON UNIVERSITY, CLEMSON, SOUTH CARCLINA. 29631. Proj. No.: SC00241 Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSMS Period: 01 CCT 76 To 30 SEP 81

OEJECTIVES: Develop and improve production and managemeant systems for freshwater animals cultured for food, Nutrition, water quality, diseases and culture systems. Evaluate the economics of production processing and marketing of freshwater food animals.

APFROACE: Parasites, nutrition and growth of American eels will be investigated in natural and cultured populations. Tolerance of eels to chemicals commonly used in fish culture will be studied. Nutritional requriements and growth of tilapia and basses will be investigated by feeding diets containing varying percentages of protein and different amino acid mixtures. Effects of waterborne quantities of insecticides (Mirex) on production of freshwater prawns will also be investigated. economics of a state-operated hatcbery for Macrobrachium rosenbergii will be investigated. Cooperate involvement in fresbwater shrimp culture is not anticipated in South Carolina, but a cottage industry may be assisted by receiving post larvae or juveniles from the state.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. A feeding regime for channel catfish, which takes into account water temperature and body size was tested again during 1980. Results described herein represent data from 1571 channel catfish weighed individually. Average final weight after 174 feeding days was 280 g, representing a 270 g net gain. Conversion (5) averaged 1.20. Catfish continued to feed regularly until harvest, at which time water temperature was 10 degrees C. Final weights and conversions observed in this study represent substantial improvements over previously reported values. The assumption of linearity in daily growth in length was tested in a separate experiment. When water temperature exceeds 25 C, daily growth is essentially linear, averaging 1.27 mm/day (0.05 in/day). Work on the identification and confirmation of parasites found on 21 7 subadult American eels (Anguilla rostrata) trapped in Cooper River, S.C. is continuing. New host records were identified for the protozoan Trypanosoma granulosum; monogenean Gyrodactylus anguillae; trematodes Stephanostomum imparaspine, Opecoeloides fimbriatus and O. vitellosus; cestode, Bothrimonus sturionus; and crustacean Ergasilus cerastes. New distribution records for parasites found in the southeastern region of United States include the protozoans T. granulosum and Myxidium giardi; monogenean G. anguillae; cestude B. sturionus; acanthocephalan

Fessisentis friedi and crustacean E. celestis

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- HINTON, N.J. and EVERSCIE, A.G. 1880. Toxicity and Tolerance Studies with Yellow-phase Eels: Five Chemicals. Prog. Fish-Cult. 42(4):201-203. BANSEN, K.A. 1979. Age, Growth, and Sex Fatio of
- EANSEN, F.A. 1979. Age, Growth, and Sex Fatio of the American Eel, Anguilla rostrata (LeSueur), in Brackish Water Portions of Cooper Fiver, South Carolina. N.S. Thesis. Clemson Univ., Clemson, South Carolina, 45 pp.

004.199 CFIS0C73560 THE QUALITY CF SEAFOOD CONSUMED BY THE PEOPLE OF SOUTE CANOLINA

KOLI A: SOUTE CAROLINA STATE CCLL, CHANGEBURG, SCUTE CARCLINA. 29115. Proj. No.: SC.X-PR-0001-EN-21 Project Type: GRANT Agency ID: CSRS Period: 02 MAR 77 To 01 SEP 82

OBJECTIVES: fetermine mercury levels of Sea and Freshwater fish consumed by the people of South Carolina, determine the effect of fish species on the accumulation and distribution of mercury in their tissues, and compare levels of mercury found by geographic location and relate to environmental factors.

APPEGACE: Determine the availability of knowledge on the quality of seafood consumed by the people of South Carolina. The fish samples will be collected from the Atlantic Coast of South Carolina for determination of mercury content. To accomplish this the state's coastline will he divided into 30 sections of ten miles apart. The fish samples will he frozen on dry ice and stored in a freezer. The fish tissue will be analyzed for mercury contents hy flameless atomic absorption spectroscopy--Mercury Analyzer.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. A survey of mercury and other toxic trace element residues in saltwater fish from the Atlantic Coast of South Carolina was conducted to see if the problem of the magnitude of toxic trace elements contamination was evident in the South Carolina Fishery. Samples of fish and shellfish from the Atlantic Coast of South Carolina were collected during 1978 and 1979. The fish collected were Spot, Whiting, Silver Snapper, Red Snapper, Flounder, Shrimp, Sea Bass, Squid, Grouper, Eluefish, Clam, Crab, Scallop, Speckled Trout, Croaker, Mullet, etc. The whole fresh fish were placed in plastic bags and frozen in a freezer. Triplicate samples of fish tissues were analyzed hy wet digestion method. Sample flasks were incubated in reagent grade sulfuric acid and nitric acid mixture using a constant temperature shaking-water hath at 58 degrees C. Digests were analyzed using atomic absorption spectrophotometry procedures outlined hy Eatch and Ott, and Uthe et al, as modified for use with a Perkin-Elmer, Coleman Mass-50 Mercury Analyzer and Flame atomic absorption spectrophotometer, Perkin-Elmer Model 306 and 5000. Thirteen trace metal elements were determined hy atomic absorption spectrophotometry analysis of fish tissues. Trace elements determined were Mercury, Cadmium, Copper, Zinc, Arsenic, Lead, Iron, Magnesium, Chromium, Nichel, Aluminum, Manganese and Cobalt. A significant finding of this report are that larger fish had higher trace element contents than smaller fish of the same species.

- KOLI, A.K. and CANTY, V.T. 1979. Determination of Methylmercury in Fish of South Carolina. Oceanic Abstract 16:472.
- KOLI, A.K., SANDHU, S.S., CANTY, W.T., FELIX, K.L., REED, R.J. and WEITMORE, R. 1979. Trace Metals in Some Fish Species of South Carolina. Oceanic Abstract 16:884.

004.200 CRIS0075108 EFFECT OF SEDIMENT CONTROL DANS ON THE WATER QUALITY OF A PRAINTE LAKE HARFTEL L; BOTANY & BIOLOGY; S DAKGTA STATE UNIVERSITY, BROOKINGS, SCUTH DAKGTA. 57007. Proj. No.: SD06873 Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 78 To 01 SEP 86

OBJECTIVES: Evaluate the effect of perimeter record sediment control dams on the water quality opf a prairie lake.

APPROACH: Lake Cochrane (Deuel County, S. D.) has been extensively sampled for water quality through previous agricultural experiment station projects (SD 668, 590). Sediment control dams were constructed on inflowing tributaries to Lake Cochrane in 1976. This study would sample algal density, algal production rates and water clarity using replicate samples at two sites in the lake. In addition, concentrations of limiting algal nutrients (NO(3), NH(3), total N, ortho PO(4) and total PO(4)) would be sampled both at the inlake stations and above the sediment control structures. Data would be analyzed by multiple regression and analyses of variance to evaluate present limiting factors and compare present lake level concentrations with those present in the lake prior to sediment dam construction, respectively.

PROGRESS: 78/07 TO 80/09. Secchi disc transparency, algal density (chlorophyll and cell counts) and nutrient chemistry (NH(3), NO(3), Org. N, Crtho PC(4) and Total PO(4)) were sampled on Lake Cochrane, S.D. from 1976-1979 during and after sediment dam construction. These data were compared by ANOVA with previous data from Lake Cochrane 1970-1975. Nutrient levels were significantly highest in 1977 and 1978, prohahly as a result of erosion caused in construction of the sediment control dam. However, chlorophyll a data indicated that 1978 and 1979 were not significantly different from 1970, the year of lowest algal concentrations and hest water transparency measured, suggesting a trend toward improved water quality after sediment dam construction. Water transparency readings from 1971 to 1979, were significantly poorer than in 1970. Algal species composition also indicated more eutrophic conditions from 1971-1979 than existed in 1970. Since the disturbance of water quality from the construction process apparently persisted through the 1978 open water season, and this study terminated sampling midway through the 1979 open water season, more data needs to he taken to properly evaluate the long-term effects of the sediment-control dams on Lake Cochrane water quality.

PUELICATIONS: 78/07 TO 80/09 HAERTEL, L. 1980. Effect of Sediment Control Dams on the Water Quality of a Prairie Lake. USDI-OWRT Complition Report A-061 SDAK.

004.201 FISBBRIES UNIT

CRIS0028152

APPLEGATE R L; WILDLIFE WANAGEWENT; S DAKCTA STATE UNIVERSITY, BRCOKINGS, SOUTH DAKOTA. 57007. Proj. No.: SD00914 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 17 JAN 67 To 01 JAN 99

OBJECTIVES: Research various prohlems of fish and aquatic habitats in South Dakota.

APPROACE: Partial contribution by University to M/U hetween U and Cooperative Fishery Unit hetween U. S. Sport Fisheries and Wildlife and S. D. Department of Game, Fish, & Parks. Work program varies according to the annual agreement of the coordinating committee.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. The study concerning fish interactions in a power plant cooling reservoir continued. The estimated standing crop of the 4 major forage fish species was 28.1 kg/ha. The forage fish population was dominated by age-groups I and II. Impingement of forage fishes was primarily restricted to young-of-the-year and highest impingement rates usually occurred in the evening. Muskellunge (Esox masquinongy) were most vulnerable to impingement during the first 2 months after their introduction. The growth rate of muskellunge in the reservoir (Age-II, 753 mm average; Age-I, 465 mm average) was higher than all reports for the species in North

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

America. Alimentary canal development of muskellunge was studied with relation to invertebrate food sources. The most selected for food organism during both day and night was Noina brachiata. Cyclops vernalis was also selected for during night. Nuskellunge selected against Asplanchna sieboldi, Potamocypris sp., and Daphnia sp. Food organisms collected from the foregut of fry collected at 2300 hours were significantly larger, but not more numerous, than those in the foregut of fry collected at 1300 hours. As the fry grew and the mouth diameter increased, the sizes of food organisms increased. Fry initially selected for the first and second instars of N. brachiata and against the later instars and adults; by day 23 they selected for adults and against immature instars.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- BENDA, R.S. 1979. Analysis of Catch Data for 1968 Through 1976 for Nine Fish Landings in Kenya Waters of Lake Victoria. J. Fish Eiol. 15:385-387.
- BENDA, R.S. 1979. Occurrence of Argulus appendiculosus Wilson, 1907 (Branchiura) in Indiana. Indiana Acad. Sci. 89:344.
- RCSEN, R.A. and EALES, D.C. 1980. Occurrence of Scarred Faddlefish in the Missouri River, South Dakota-Nebraska. Prog. Fish-Cult. 40(2):82-85.
- WAHL, J.F. 1980. Forage Fist Populations and Growth of Muskellunge in a South Dakota Power Plant Cooling Reservoir. M.S. Thesis. South Dakota State University, Brookings. 71 p. SLOANE, G.F. 1980. Macroscopic Benthes Populations
- SLOANE, G.F. 1980. Macroscopic Benthos Populations in a South Dakota Power Plant Cooling Reservoir. N.S. Thesis. South Dakota State University, Brookings. 67 p.

004.202 CRIS0080247 APPLIED PHYSIOLOGY OF ECONOMICALY IMPORTANT PISEES

STRANGE R J; FCRESTRY & WILDLIFE; UNIVERSITY OF TENNESSEE, KKCXVILLE, TENNESSEE, 37916. Proje No.: TEN00555 Project Type: BATCH Agency ID: CERS Period: 17 OCT 79 To 30 SEP 84

OBJECTIVES: Use plasma cortisol and glucose concentrations to measure acute stress during management and culture procedures and to develop ways of reducing stress; develop enzyme assays as indicators of chronic stesss caused hy pollution or other adverse environmental conditions.

APPROACE: Important sport and commercial fish species will be subjected to various management and culture routines used in fisheries. Plasma cortisol and glucose concentration will be determined. It cortisol and glucose levels indicate that a given management or culture routine subjects a fish to substantial stress the routine will be modified and tested again to see if the modification results in less stress. Important sport and cultural fish species will be taken from either natural environments where adverse conditions are suspected or experimental tanks where such conditions are created. Various tissues from these stressed fish and controls will be tested for activity of several enzymes. When differences in enzyme activity occur between stressed and control fish, the enzymes will be characterized and developed, if possible, into indicators of chronic stress.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Investigation showed that basal concentrations of plasma control (near 50 ng/ml) and plasma glucose (near 0.50 mg/ml) were significantly greater in yearling channel catfish (Ictalurus punctatus) acclimated to 10 C than in fish adapted to 20 or 30 C; the latter groups had similar basal levels of cortisol (near 25 ng/ml) and glucose (near 0.30 mg/ml). Fish at 10 C had a slower and less marked increase in cortisol and glucose over minutes, hours, and days in response to the stress of severe confinement than fish at 20 or 30 C which were again similar. No mortality occurred in the fish stressed at 10 C during 3 days of confinement, while 89% died in the 20 C group by day 3 and all fish at 30 C were dead by day 2. Glucose concentrations initially rose more slowly than those of cortisol, but continued to increase between 3 and 12 hours after confinement.

Also, glucose returned to near basal levels in dying fish while cortisol at that time was at its highest level. Channel catfish, even at warm temperatures, bave a slower and less extensive cortisol response to stress, taking 3 days to reach 225 ng/ml, than other fish that have been investigated. This is significant in that it helps define usefulness of plasma cortisol and glucose as indicators of acute stress in fish. In addition to the progress on cortisol and glucose, work continues on the refinement of assays of enzyme activities (e.g. NDB) to be tested as indicators of chronic stress.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TC 80/12

STRANGE, R.J. 1980. Acclimation Temperature Influences Cortisol and Glucose Concentrations in Stressed Channel Catfish. Transactions of the American Fisheries Society 105:298-303.

004.203* CRIS0074335 CULTURE AND WANAGEMENT OF SELECTED GAME FISEES

 WILSON J L; FCGESTRY 6 WILDLIFE; UNIVERSITY OF

 TENNESSEE, KNCXVILLE, TENNESSEF. 37916.

 Proj. No.: TEN00521
 Project Type: BATCB

 Agency ID: CSRS
 Period: 01 OCT 77 To 30 SEP 81

OBJECTIVES: Develop new management techniques and cultural methods for improving yields of game fishes in Tennessee waters by: Evaluating the feasibility of using selected non-native (exotic) species and/or hybrid fishes, and improved fish habitat management practices.

APPROACE: Ponds, raceways, and other holding facilities will be constructed to evaluate the potential of such fish as grass carp, mirror or other carps, tilapia, striped bass, hybrid sunfish, hybrid catfish, and other non-native species. Monospecific culture of selected fishes will be compared to polycultural techniques to determine production (kg/hectare). The use of different stocking rates, fertilization practices, and supplemental feeds will be evaluated as management practices. Culture techniques for hybrid sunfish and other selected species will be determined and their potential for use in pond environments will be assessed. New management techniques for improving yields in game fish populations by habitat manipulation will be assessed. Research problems would include the evaluation of the effects of aquatic vegetation control on fish production; the effects of aquatic pesticides on yield of game fishes in ponds, streams, and reservoirs; the identification and control of fish parasites and diseases in game fishes; and the evaluation of hiological agents as biofilters of waste materials in aquatic systems.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TC 80/12. Data collection for two pond studies were completed and the data are being analyzed. In one study, over 250 Florida largemouth bass have been tagged and released in two different impoundments. All were weighed and measured; scales were removed to determine age composition of the population. In the second study, fingerling striped bass were stocked in two small impoundments to determine survival and growth. To date, 47 young-of-year and yearlings have been collected; indications are that survival is directly related to fingerling size and data of stocking. In a two-year investigation to determine food hahits, movements, and general life history of striped bass, approximately 400 fish have been collected. Preliminary analyses indicate young-of-year striped bass utilize zoo plankton, principally midge larvae, as the primary source of food for some time subsequent to stocking. There is evidence of similar food habits for white bass, leading to the assumption of interspecific competition. A study has been initiated to evaluate the effects of fish attractors in Norris Lake.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 MINTON, J.W. 1980. Bioenergetics of Sauger in Watts Bar Reservoir, Tennessee. M.S. Thesis. The University of Tennessee, Knoxville. 75 pp. WADDLE, H.F., COUTANT, C.C. and WILSCN, J.L. 1980. Summer Habitat Selection by Striped Eass, Morone saxatilis, in Cherokee Reservoir, Tennessee, 1977. Crnl Env. Sci. Publ. No. 1360. 195 pp.

004.204* CFIS0070519 Adaptation factors and control of aquatic VEEDS

NEWION R J; MARTYN R D; PLANT SCIENCE; IEXAS AGM UNIVERSITY, COLLEGE SIATION, IEXAS. 77843. Proj. No.: TEX06225 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 30 AF# 77 To 05 AF# 81

OBJECTIVES: Investigate environment stress factors on the growth and development of aquatic weeds. Determine hicmass production, distribution, and life cycles of aquatic weeds. Determine adaptation characters (morphological and physiological) of aquatic weeds to wet-dry, cold-hot and photoperiodic cycles. Determine effectiveness and mode of action of herbicides and growth regulators for aquatic weed control.

APFEOACE: Aerial photographs of lakes Livingston and Conroe will be taken monthly by the Remote Sensing Center to monitor growth and distribution of aquatic weeds. Measurement of temperature, oxygen content, light intensity, nutrient levels will be determined the day after photographs are taken. Perennating organ development effected by environmental stress factors will be monitored quantitatively, and roles of light, temperature, nutrients, herbicides, and growth regulators on development will be investigated under laboratory conditions.

PROGRESS: 79/01 TO 79/12. Research has been conducted along 3 avenues this past year. First, the separation and concentration of phenol storing cells (phe) from waterhyacinth leaves and the chromatographic identification of the phenolic acids (pa) within. We telieve these cells are responsible, in part, for the high degree of disease resistances found in waterhyacintt. The second major avenue has been in the use of remote sensing data for mapping the aquatic vegetation in Lake Conroe Reservoir. The base line vegetation map has been made and the vegetation levels will be monitored quarterly over the next two years in an effort to determine the efficiency of the grass carp as a biological control agent. The third line of research has involved the interaction of sugars and dermancy in duckweed. Differences in the levels of the trisaccharide, raffinose were associated with the breaking of dormancy with cold treatments.

PUBLICATIONS: 79/01 TO 79/12

- CCDY, Y.S. 1979. Separation of intact phenol cells from waterhyacinth leaves, characterization of their phenolic content and the effect of some phenolic acid on two potential biocontrol agents. M.S. Thesis, Texas A and M Univ., College Station CCDY, Y.S. and MARTYN, F.D. 1979. Separation of phenol cells from waterhyacinths and the effect of some phenolic acids on the growth of two potential biocontrol agents. Phytopathology 69:1025.
- SEELITCN, D.F. 1979. The effect of sugars on turion germination and growth of Spirodela polyrhiza (L.) Schleiden. N.S. Thesis, Texas A and M Univ., College Station. S6 p.

004.205 CRISC064257 FRESHWATER SERIMP OF THE GENUS MACFOERACHIUM WITH SPECIAL EMPHASIS CN CULTURE

BRICK R W; WILDLIFE & FISHERIES SCI; TEXAS A&M UNIVERSITY, COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS. 77843. Proj. No.: TEX06052 Agency ID: CSRS Period: 13 JUL 73 To 31 DEC 80

CEJECTIVES: Levelop & improve production & management systems for freshwater shrimp cultured for food & Bait in Texas. Conduct field studies on natural history and ecology of freshwater shrimp to better understand their nutritional and environmental reguirements. APPROACE: Laboratory and field observations will be coordinated in studying nutritional and environmental requirements of Macrobrachium under culture conditions. Survival and growth will be indices most considered in evaluating treatments.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TC 80/12. Studies undertaken within this project were highly varied in nature, in part because very little information on the culture of freshwater shrimp has been developed. Electrophoretic patterns of several species of freshwater shrimp were elaborated and the genetic implications of them addressed in one study. The basic nitritional requirements and nutritional physiology of Macrohrachium rosenhergii with respect to protein were outlined, giving rise to information on the protein-energy requirements of that species. The feasibility of rearing freshwater shrimp with tilapia was demonstrated. The responses of freshwater shrimp to degraded water quality was also addressed in an attempt to determine the limits within which this organism can live and grow.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

004.206 CRISO074338 LINNOLOGICAL BASIS FOR THE PECDUCTIVITY OF INLAND WATERS

CLARK W J; WILDLIFE & FISHERIES SCI; TEXAS A&M UNIVERSITY, CCLLEGE STATICN, TEXAS. 77843. Proj. No.: TEX06259 Agency ID: CSRS Period: 09 JAN 78 To 08 JAN 83

OBJECTIVES: Evaluate the limnclogy of the inland waters of Texas on a regional basis by: Inventorying the resource, establishing the basic regional limnological characteristics, identifying those characteristics in each region which are of major importance in determining productivity or are otherwise of critical importance in management of the waters.

APPROACE: Divide the state into limnological regions, working first with ponds, later with streams and reservoirs; inventory the resource, review available data, study representative bodies of water in each region and establish regional limnological patterns, determine critical productivity or management paramaters.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Current research is directed at developing the ability to predict the ionic composition of pond waters from the watershed soil chemistry. Conservative ions are being studied using ion exchange characteristics. Field studies are still underway and collections and analyses have been completed for 6 out of a projected 14 total sites in representative areas of Texas. It is now clear that standard soil science techniques for determining the quantity/intensity relationship can also be used successfully to characterize the ion exchange complex of pond muds as well as watershed soils, and that the characteristics of the watershed soil are closely related to lake water composition. Preliminary data indicate that quantity/intensity analysis of watershed soils can predict the order of dominance of the cations in lakes that trap water running over the soils, and that for many systems the activity ratios of the cations may be predicted with some precision. Equilibrium concentrations of phosphorous indicated hy adsorption isotherms of watershed soils have been found to he poorly related to oxidized pond mud equilibrium phosphorous concentratons, which have been uniformly too low to measure by standard methods.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUELICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

004.207* EXPERIMENTAL FISE ECOLOGY CFIS0072931

NEILL W H; WILDLIFE & FISBERIES SCI; TEXAS A&M UNIVERSITY, COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS. 77843. Proj. No.: TEX06295 Agency ID: CSRS Period: 17 JUN 77 To 16 JUN 82

OBJECTIVES: Experimentally determine biophysical, physiological, and behavioral responses of fisbes to environmental variation; evaluate energetic costs and benefits of such responses; generate and evaluate hypotheses relating such responses and their energetic costs/benefits to ecology of wild cultured fishes; develop from these relations generic models for within-habitat distributions of fishes.

APPECACB: Nathematical and computer simulation models to provide conceptual framework within which environment-fish relationships are hypothesized, tested by betavioral-physiological experiment, then used in turn to improve models; final validation of models in field, using such techniques as telemetry.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Experimental Fish Ecology project is directed towards understanding how fishes! hehavioral and physiological responses to environment are integrated in an ecological context; project successes enhance the capability for predicting ecological responses under both natural and aquacultural conditions. Realistic patterns of fish movement in temperature gradients have been simulated with a generalized mechanistic model that seems potentially valid for species as diverse as carp, Atlantic salmon, and albacore tuna; the model invokes stochastic increases in turning rate whenever physiological comparisons of ambient and body-core temperature imply worsening thermal conditions. The major obstacle to an experimental test of the model's underlying hypothesis has now been overcome: Experiments with bluegill (sunfisb) and Tilapia spp. have resulted in a highly accurate model, derived from Newton's law of cooling, for predicting core temperature (+ 0.2 degrees C) of fish under conditions of continuously fluctuating ambient temperature (+ 10 degrees C); thus, the need for stressful telemetry of core temperature in thermoregulating fish has been obviated. An apparatus for evaluating enviroregulatory responses of fish in multivariate situations has been constructed and will be put into service during early 1981.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

CEANBERLAIN, G.W., NEILL, W.B., ROWANOWSKY, P.A. and STRAWN, K. 1980. Vertical Responses of Atlantic Croaker to Gas Supersaturation and Temperature Change. Trans. Amer. Fish. Soc. 109:737-750.

004.208 CRISO071939 FISE POPULATION AND PRODUCTION IN FOND AND LAKE IMPOUNDMENTS

NOELE E L; TEER J G; WILDLIFE & FISBERIES SCI; TEXAS A6M UNIVERSITY, COLLEGE STATICN, TEXAS. 77843. Proj. No.: TEX06206 Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 DEC 76 To 31 DEC 80

OBJECTIVES: Determine variations in fish population parameters in existing and planned floodwater retarding structures. Relate variations in fish population parameters to variations in management practices and biological, limnological and structural differences among reservoirs. Test and evaluate selected structural modifications and periodic management practices which will enhance fish production is floodwater retarding structure reservoirs.

APPROACE: Fisb population characteristics of selected reservoirs will be measured and correlated with physical, chemical and biological characteristics of the reservoirs. Selected management techniques will be experimentally evaluated.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Farm and ranch ponds provide the potential for substantial food production and recreation close to rural residences. Florida largemouth bass have been widely stocked into Texas waters, with little known of their ecological requirements and interactions with native northern

largemouth bass. Research on these two subspecies indicated that Florida bass were more susceptible to cold shock, which can occur at the time of stocking, than are northern bass. Intergradation between the subspecies occurs when stocked together, but rates of intergradation vary with pond characteristics. particularly water clarity. Intergradation has occurred within several hatchery stocks in Texas and the genetic integrity of fisb stocked throughout the state likely has frequently been mistaken. Studies of floodwater retarding structures indicated that channel catfish populations were largely related to pbysical conditions, whereas biological conditions were most important to largemouth bass. Summer drawdown of floodwater retarding structures can be used to increase water clarity of turbid lakes without long-lasting direct effects on fish populations. Two new studies on larger impoundments were initiated during 1980. In Lake Conroe, baseline data were collected for evaluation of effects of vegetation control to be initiated in early 1981.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 PATE, N.V. 1980. Intergradation Eetween Two Subspecies of Largemouth Bass, Micropterus salmoides, in Texas. N.S. Thesis, Texas A and N University, College Station, 64 pp.

004.209 CRISO084198 PRE-IMPOUNDMENT ENVIRONMENTAL STUDIES OF AQUILLA LAKE

SLACK R 0; NOBLE R L; CLAFK W J; WILDLIFE 6 FISHERIES SCI; TEXAS A6N UNIVERSITY, CCLLEGE STATICN, TEXAS. 77843. Proj. No.: TEX06533 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 24 MAR 81 To 30 JUN 82

OBJECTIVES: Docoument fish and wildlife resources of the Aquilla Lake project area. Evaluate current aquatic and terrestrial habitats of the Aquilla Lake project area. Determine land use changes and associated impacts of dam construction on aquatic and wildlife resources.

APPEOACE: Aquatic habitats and fish resources will be sampled quarterly during the period 1 January 1980 through 30 August 1981. Terrestrial habitats and wildlife will be sampled and evaluated monthly. Infrared aerial photography will be used to determine land uses and the area extent of identified habitat types. Final aerial photography will be taken at dam closure in early 1983.

004.210 CRISO060593 **DEFECTS ON SELECTED ORGANISMS OF WATER PASSING THROUGH THE CEDAR BAYOU GENERATING STATION**

STRAWN &; ALDRICH D V; NEILL W B; WILLLIFE & FISBERIES SCI; TEXAS A&M UNIVERSITY, COLLEGE STATICN, TEXAS. 77843. Proj. No.: TEX01869 Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 APR 71 To 01 JUN 80

OBJECTIVES: Determine the suitability of electric power plant cooling water for growth, food conversion, and survival of selected species of crustaceans and fishes in cages, ponds, and temperature-controlled tanks.

APPROACE: Animals will be held in cages in front of the plant intake and in the discharge canal; in fish ponds located near the start of the discharge canal; and in aquaria in a laboratory to be built near the fish ponds. After the construction of the cooling pond, animals will be kept in cages in its first and last compartments and occurrence and distribution of selected organisms in the cooling pond will be determined. Temperatures in the aquaria will span the range of temperatures usually occurring in Trinity Bay. The influence of the effluent on phytoplankters both in the field and in culture will also be determined. PROGRESS: 72/01 IO 75/12, Species most suited for commercial production in the vest quantities of water pumped by the Cedar Eayou Generating Station are being identified and raised to evaluate their potential. Blue shrimp (Penaeus stylirostris) survived low salinities (2% or less for over half of the culture period) associated with heavy rain falls during the Summer of 1979, but survival and production were down. Quality of harvested shrimp was excellent. Staggered stocking of postlarvae appeared superior to a single stocking. Mud monnows (Fundulus grandis) were raised for marine live bait. Local fish performed better than a pend-raised stock from Alabama. Some spwaring occurred all summer. Polyculture of black drum (Pogonias chromis) and striped mullet (Mugil cephalus) was superior to monoculture. New pens are better than cages for black drum culture, because they are cheaper to construct and less labor intensive.

PUBLICATIONS: 79/01 TO 79/12

- BRANCE, N. and SIRAWN, K. 1979. Analysis of feeding relationsbip among estuarine fishes raised in polyculture in ponds receiving thermal effluents. Power Plant Waste Beat Utilization in Aquaculture Workshop II. Allanheld, Osmun and Co.
- CEUNG, K.S. and SIRANN, K. 1579. Eeat tolerance of free-living estuarine anima is to predict their survival in heated effluents. Proc. 31st Ann. Conf. Southeastern Assoc. Wildlife Agencies. pp. 514-518.
- GIBEARD, G.L. 1979. Report on survival, growth, and behavior of selected estuarine organisms cultured in tanks receiving beated effluent from a power plant near Eaytown, Texas. M.S. Thesis. Texas A and M Univ. College Station
- BUFF, M.E. 1979. Growth and survival of selecte d marine and estuarine organisms employed as water quality monitors and cultured at various temperatures and light intensitities in flow-through systems utilizing power-plant effluent.

004.211 CRIS0072283 FISE PHYSICLCGY IN RESPONSE TO VATER QUALITY AND CHEMISTRY

 STRAWN K; NEILL W H; STICKNEY F R; UILDLIFE 6

 FISHERIES SCI; TEXAS AGN UNIVERSITY, COLLEGE STATION,

 TEXAS. 77843.

 Proj. No.: TEX06260

 Agency ID: CSRS

 Period: 10 FEB 77 To 30 OCT 80

OBJECTIVES: fetermine physiological changes, particularly in blood pB, due to water pB, water temperatures, ions and ion concentrations, and other aquatic environmental factors. Establish minimal and optimal water quality parameters for fish survival, as influenced by acid-base stress factors, flesh wounds, feed and other factors.

APPROACE: Fisbes will be subjected to water containing various levels of ABPS factor under controlled laboratory conditions. Temperature, blood and water pH, buffering ions and observations on the well being of the fish will be recorded on a regular basis.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Each species of fish is adapted to its own set of hydrological conditions. Intensive culture adds stress and intensifies our need to delineate ranges and optimums. A species either should be cultured in natural water that fully meet its requirements or in water that is cheap to modify. The buffering system and resulting pf controls both the loss of ammonia to air and its toxicity. The objectives of our research are as follows 1) the ability of channel catfish to withstand exposure to acid-base stress in various solutions of CaCl(2) will be examined, 2) the relationship between blood pH and the salt solution will be assessed to determine the physicochemical buffering capacity, 3) other hematological characteristics will also be examined to determine their relationship with blood pH and the salt solution. Project goals have been completed up to conducting the experimental phase.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TC 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

004.212 ECCLOGY AND TAXONOMY OF TWO MAJOE CRDERS OF AQUATIC INSECTS, EPHE2EEOPTERA AND TRICHOPTERA, IN VA

VOSBELL J R JP; ENICMOLOGY; VIRGINIA POLY INST, ELACESBURG, VIRGINIA: 24061. Proj. No.: VA-0612317 Agency ID: CSES Period: 01 NGV 78 To 31 CCT 83

OBJECTIVES: Determine the function of selected species of Ephemeroptera and Trichoptera in aquatic ecosystems. Analyze the downstream effects of impoundment upon a river ecosystem. Prepare identification manuals for the Ephemeroptera and Trichoptera occurring in Virginia.

APPROACH: Field and laboratory studies with basic and applied aspects aimed at understanding the taxonomy and ecology of aquatic insects, with special emphasis on determining the downstream effects produced by impounding rivers.

PECGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. A comparative study of the secondary production of filter-feeding Trichoptera in an impounded and a free-flowing river was completed. Total production was extremely high immediately below the dam (318,416 mgDW/m 2/yr), but farther downstream production in the impounded river (11,221 mgDW/m 2/yr) was considerably less than that at a similar location in a free-flowing river (50,416 mgDW/m 2/yr). Seston analysis showed that the release of nutritious plankton, particularly zooplankton, from the reservoir was the primary factor responsible for the high production below the dam. However, the amount of available energy in the seston decreased downstream, because the abnormally high densities of filter-feeders immediately below the dam lowered the food quality of the seston. Further analyses of the effects of impoundment on the life history of Heterocleon curiosum (Ephemeroptera) indicated that surface-release reservoirs may have subtle, but significant, adverse effects on benthic macroinvertebrates. A 50% reduction in the density of H. curiosum in the impounded river, as compared to the free-flowing river, was attributed to reduced fecundity brought about by an altered thermal regime.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- PARKER, C.R. 1980. Production of Filter-feeding Trichoptera in an Impounded and a Free-flowing River. Ph.D. Dissertation, Va. Polytech. Inst. and St. Univ., Blacksburg, 220 pp.
- PARKER, C.R. and VOSHELL JR., J.R. 1580. Ochrotrichia graysoni, A New Species of Caddisfly From Virginia (Trichoptera: Hydroptilidae). Ann. Entomol. Soc. Am. 73:369-371.
- VOSHELL JR., J.R. and PARKER, C.F. 1980. Cuantity and Quality of Seston in an Impounded and a Free-flowing River. (Abstract). In: Titles and Abstracts of 28th Annual Meeting North American Henthological Society, p. 45. War. 26-28,

004.213[±] Ckiso081384 An evaluation of endangered ncliuses in vieginia

NEVES R J; PARDUE G B; BENFIELD E F; FISHERIES & WILDLIFE; VIEGINIA POLY INST, HLACKSBURG, VIEGINIA. 24061. Proj. No.: VA-1111111 Project Type: STATE

Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 80 To 30 JUN 83

OBJECTIVES: Develop a literature review, species range and relative distribution maps for the nine endangered speceis; develop habitat characterization for the nine species; determine and flife histories of two common mussels; summarize components 1 and 2 and prepare final report.

APPROACH: Survey mussel populations in the Clinch, Powell and Holston Biver; determine water quality, substrate composition and species associations at sites with endangered mussels; artificially infect various species of fish in the laboratory to determine the required fish hosts; apply appropriate statistical analyses to data and write final report.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. The final report on the first phase of this project was submitted to the Virginia Commission of Game and Inland Fisheries in October, 1980. Based on recently completed mussel surveys in scuthwestern Virginia, the following 7 endangered species reside in the Clinch, Powell, and Bolston Rivers: Fusconaia edgariana, Fusconaia cuneolus. Dromus dromas, Conradilla caelata, Quadrula intermedia, Guadrula sparsa, and Dysnomia walkeri. Three of these species occur only in the lower Powell Fiver, an area influenced by upstream coal mining operations. Two of the species are relatively widespread, and approximately 59 river kilometers in Virginia are considered of utmost importance for the continued survival of 5 of the 7 species. Mussel surveys at 2 bridge construction locations on the Clinch River recorded 3 endangered species near these sites. Recommendations were made to the U.S. Pish and Wildlife Service and the Virginia Department of Bighways and Transportation for mitigating disturbance of the habitat of these endangered species.

- PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12
 - ZALE, A.V. 1980. The Life Histories of Four Freshwater Lampsiline Mussels (Mollusca: Unionidae) in Hig Moccasin Creek, Fussell County, Virginia. M.S. Thesis. Va. Poly. Inst. and State Univ., Elacksburg. 256 pp.

004.214 CRIS0090686 BIGACCUNULATION AND IMPACT OF HIGHWAY-GENEFATED BRAVY METALS ON STREAM FISHERY RESOURCES IN VIRGINIA

NEY J J; GARLING D L; FISBERIES & WILDLIFE; VIRGINIA POLY INST, BLACKSBURG, VIRGINIA. 24061. Proj. No.: VA-0612367 Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 JAN 80 To 30 DEC 84

OBJECTIVES: fetermine lead, cadmium, nickel, and zinc levels in water, sediments, invertebrate animals and fish associated with highways of different traffic densities. Determine if lead, cadmium, nickel, and zinc move upward in aquatic food chains. Determine if seasonal charges in contamination occur. Assess the relationship of metal accumulation with age and size of fish. Assess impact of heavy metal contamination on fish and invertebrate animal populations as a function of traffic density and period of exposure. Profile hematological parameters to determine their utility as indicators of stress associated with heavy metal toxification.

APPROACE: Collect quarterly samples of water, sediment, and aquatic plants and animals from streams which are crossed or paralleled by established highways. Collect quarterly samples of water, sediment, and aquatic plants and animals from streams of pre- and post- construction of new highways. Analyze samples for heavy metals using standard clean-lab atomic absorption spectrophotometric methods. Construct fish hematological profiles. Validation through additional lab work.

PECCRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. All field collections have been completed on the sub-project to evaluate activity of selected enzymes as indicators of chronic lead contamination in trout from roadside streams. Enzyme levels in blood and lead concentrations in bone and liver are being analyzed to determine relationships and effects of traffic density. Pre-traffic data were collected during the autumn on lead, zinc, rickel and cadmium i the biota of streams which flow under 1295. Population estimates were made for fish and benthos. Study sites include upstream, highway, and downstream locations on two streams.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

VAN BASSEL, J.B. NEY, J.J. and GARLING JR., D.L. 1980. Beavy Metals in a Stream Ecosystem at Sites Near Eigtways. Trans. Amer. Fish. Soc. 109:656-663. 004.215 CRIS0078829 TEE USE OF FISEING TOURNAMENT RECORDS TO ESTIMATE ABUNDANCE OF BASS POPULATIONS

NIELSEN L A; FISHERIES 6 WILDLIFE; VIRGINIA POLY INST, BLACKSBURG, VIRGINIA. 24061. Proj. No.: VA-0612338 Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 MAK 79 To 28 FEB 82

OFJECTIVES: The abundance of largemouth bass in a lake will be estimated from various types of data available from fishing tournaments. Decline in catch per unit effort in several tournaments, on Back Eay, Virginia, in one year will be evaluated as a practical method of estimating population abundance for management purposes.

APPROACE: During spring of 1979 and 1980, large mouth bass will be collected by electrofishing and marked with distInctive fin clips. During fishing tournaments throughout the year, all captured fish will be observed for marks and catch per unit of effort will be calculated. Ongoing creel census or Back Bay will provide data on total harvest. Procedures for population estimation developed for Back Bay will be applied to data for other reservoirs in the southeastern U.S.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. During 1980, 12 bass fishing tournaments and general fishing use were monitored on Eack Eay, Virginia to develop methods for estimating largemouth bass abundance. Population estimates were made by mark-recapture, fishing success using tournaments, and fishing success using all fishermen. All estimates are comparable and indicate a population of approximately 160,000 largemouth bass 300-mm or longer. The method using fishing success and creel census data may te useful because the necessary data are collected for other management purposes on many major fisheries. Data have been collected for another lake in Virginia, two lakes in West Virginia, and a lake in Oklahoma.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

004.216 CRISO081385 IMPACTS OF RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT AND EXPLORTATION ON NATURAL RESOURCES

NIELSEN L A; FISBERIES 6 WILDLIFE; VIRGINIA POLY INST, BLACKSBURG, VIRGINIA. 24061. Proj. No.: VA-11111112 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 80 To 30 JUN 83

OEJECTIVES: The effects of various environmental changes and explortation activities on fish populations will be investigated by literature review and field sampling. Environmental changes, such as road cnstruction, reservoir construction, water quality alterations, and forest management will be used to create generalizations regarding the impact on fish populations in streams, rivers and impoundments. Explortation of fish populations for commercial and recreational purposes will be analyzed to determine potential benefits and effects of explortation of resident and introduced species.

APPROACH: Surveys of fish populations and fishery users will be made in areas destined for hahitat or population alteration. Based on descriptions of the existing environment and analysis of relevant literature, changes in the affected ecceystems will be predicted. Fost-alteration surveys will be conducted to determine the accuracy and precision of predictions and formulate general principles.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Progress on this project has occurred under a variety of separate analyses of the relationship between resource use and fisheries. Re-routing of an access road to the Gathright Dam area in western Virginia was predicted to have no permanent impact on the adjacent stream, and recommendations for minimum impact on the stream and watershed were made to the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers. Extensive inventory of fish fauna and censusing of fishing on Erumley Creek and Hidden Valley Lake in southwest Virginia indicated that construction of e pumped-storeged hydroelectric project on the stream might impact both stream fishes and fishing. Bowever, comparison of fauna and fishing use to other similar locations indicated that the feuna was typical of other streams and could be re-introduced and that fishing in the effected areas was of comparable or lower quelity than other arees. Assessment of the potential for establishing e commerical bait minnow fishery on the Ohio River in West Virginia indicated that both Chio and West Virginia bait dealers would utilize the minnows if they could be caught, transported, maintained, end solo readily. Sampling of sport end commercial fishes in the Ohio Fiver indicated that only seuger utilize minnow species extensively as prey

DITEI	TCATIONS.	00/01	70	00/12	
r uni		00701		00/14	

- NIELSEN, L.A. 1980. Fisheries Component. In: A Preliminary Environmentel Assessment of a Potential Site for an Appalachian Fower Company Pumped Storage Hydroelectric Facility. Center for Environmental Studies, Va. Poly. Inst.
- EAIN, M.F. 1980. The Relationship of Parental Care, Fisb Predation, end Larval Eluegill Survival During Nesting. N.S. Thesis. Va. Poly. Inst. and State Univ., Elacksburg. 75 pp.

004.217* CFIS0081386 Factors influencing trout production in Virginia Streams

PARCUE G B; FENFIELD E F; WEBSTEF J R; FISHEFIES & WILDLIFE; VIFGINIA PCLY INST, FLACKSBURG, VIRGINIA. 24061. Proj. No.: VA-1111114 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL &0 To 30 JUN &3

CEJECTIVES: Exlmine links between the food production base and brook trout production, develop the work on brook trout competition with other age classes or frout and with nongame fish to include competition, determine rainbow trout production and gonedal energetics during the year.

APPROACE: Collect monthly quantitative samples of mecroinvertebretes to determine trophic structure, biomass, production and feeding rates; collect quarterly depletion samples of fishes to determine trophic structure, biomass, production and food habits, compare food habits of trout with nongame fishes and examine longitudinal zonation of fishes in the stream, conduct quarterly mark-recapture sampling, collect length-weigth data and use bomb calorimetry cn somatic and reproductive tissues during the year.

FROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Microinvertebrate identification and enumeration from quarterly drift samples is largely completed and is being used to relate to food habits of trout and non-game fishes to determine trophic relationships and feeding overlaps. One hundred sixty taxa of benthic invertebrates have been identified from Guys Run. Neasurements of primary and secondary production heve been collected and are in the process of analysis. Behavioral observetions of spatial distribution and feeding activities have been conducted for brock trout and five non-geme species in laboratory experiments. A conceptual model of energy flow dynamics is being developed for Guys Run, a second order native brook trout stream. Collections of rainbow trout for reproductive biology; gonad energetics and annual production have been completed end ere heing analyzed using multivariate statistics end Ricker's cotort production fcraula (P = GE).

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- KENDALL, W.T. 1980. The Dispersion of Batchery-reared Rainbow Trout (Salmo gairdneri) Stocked in Big Stoney Creek, Giles County, Virginia, N.S. Thesis. Va. Poly. Inst. and State Univ., Elecksburg. 96 pp.
- GARMAN, G.C. 1980. Impacts of Stocked Frown Trout (Salmo trutta) on the Native Fish Faune of Bottom Creek, Virginia. W.S. Thesis. Va. Poly. Inst. and State Univ., Blacksburg. S1 pp.

004.218* CRISO070377 Mode of action and influence of environmental factors on the toxicity of several aquatic hebbicides

HATZIOS K K; BATZIOS K K; PLANT PATBOLOGY 6 PBYSIOLOGY; VIRGINIA POLY INSI, BLACKSEURG, VIRGINIA. 24061. Proj. No.: VA-0612269 Project Type: HATCE Agency ID: CSES Period: 01 JUL 76 To 30 JUN 81

OBJECTIVES: The effects of temperature, pB, ligbt, bicarbonate ions end elgal cell densities on the performance of chelated cupric ions, diquat, diuron, simazine, end combinations of these aquatic herbicides will be examined. The mode of action of the herbicides at cellular and sub-cellular levels will be studied to facilitate comprehension of aberrations in physiological functions of plants exposed to the compounds.

APPECACE: Since these compounds are inhibitors of photosynthesis, photosynthesis end growth of Cblorella sorokiniena and electron transport in isolated chloroplasts will be used to determine toxicity. The possibility of chlorophyll degradation by these herbleides and the role of photosensitized reactions in this destruction will be examined. Attempts will be made to determine active and non-active site binding of the herbleide molecules and their influence on lipid peroxidation.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. The work on the mode of action of the 1,3,4-thiadiazolyl herbicidel derivatives wes completed and e summary of that work was presented in the fifth internetional congress on photosynthesis during last summer. From that work it was concluded that photosynthesis is the main metabolic process inhibited by these herbicides in plants. R-25788 (N, N-diallyl-2,2-dichloroecetamide) is a chemical used commercially to protect corn (Zea mays L.) from injury caused by the thiocarbamete herbicides EPIC and butylate. Our knowledge on the mode of ection of the antidote R-25788 is limited. It has been proposed that R-25788 increases the rate of metabolism of these herbicides in corn. Indirect evidence to support this hypothesis was obtained in our studies initiated this past summer in the greenhouse. The herbicide tebuthiruon resembles structurally a group of chemicals known as 1,2,3-benzothiediazoles, which are strong inhibitors of metabolic enzymes called mixed-function oxidases. Mixed-function oxidases have been implicated in cetalyzing the oxidation of the sulfur atom of the thiocarbamate herbicides in corn. Growth responses of corn seedlings treated with combinations of tubeuthuron end EPTC or Butylate in the presence of the antidote R-25788, were indicative of synergistic interactions of these chemicals. Thus, it appeared that R-25788 may act by increasing the activity of the mixed function oxidase system that sulfoxidizes EPIC and butylate in corn.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

BATZICS, E.E. 1981. Synergistic Interactions of Tebuthiuron with Eredicane (EPIC + R-25788) and Sutan + (Buthlate + R-25788) end Its Implications on the Mode of Action of the Berbicide Antidote R-25788. Abstracts Weed Scl. Soc. of

004.219 CRISO033237 NITROGEN FIXATION IN METHANE-OXIDIZING BACTERIA

O'CONNOR M L; MICROBIOLOGY; UNIVERSITY OF WASEINGION, SEATTLE, WASEINGICN. 98105. Proj. No.: 7801086 Project Type: GRANT Agency ID: CRGC Period: 22 SEP 78 To 31 SEP 81

OBJECTIVES: Isolate and characterize new strains of nitrogen-fixing methane-oxidizing hacteria. Determine the influence of verious chemicel and physical parameters on nitrogen fixetion in one of these new isolates. Determine the relative importance of nitrogen fixation hy methane-oxidizers in five different aquatic environments. APPROACE: Five distinct aquatic environments will be sampled. Various chemical and physical determinations will be made on these samples and they will also be used for enrichment culture. Isolates will be characterized and regulatory studies will be carried out on one isolate with the use of continuous culture techniques.

PROGRESS: 79/10 TO 80/09. Two new facultative methane-oxidizing bacteria have been isolated from lake water enrichments and characterized. One of these, named Nethylobacterium ethanolicum has been used for further studies. Nitrogen fixation has been found to he regulated by oxygen in both M. ethanolicum and Methylobacterium organcphilum R6, with the optimum in sulfate-limited continuous culture (D = 0.03) at 25 MuM. The structural genes for nitrogen fixation have been located in M. organophilum R6 onto an 11.5 kb EcoRI chromosomal fragment and in M. ethanolicum onto a 12.1 kb EcoRI chromosomal fragment, using the probe pSA30 containing the nif region of Klebsiella penumoniae. A seasonal ecological study has been initiated and has shown that nitrogen fixing methane oxidizers predominate in lakes where oxygen tensions are low hut methane is in the MuM range. In Lake Washington and Soap Lake, it appears unlikely that nitrogen fixation is being carried out by methane oxidizers.

- PUBLICATIONS: 79/10 TO 80/09
 - MCNEENEY, T. and OCONNOR, M.L. 1980. Regulation of Enzymes Associated with C-1 Metabolism in Three Faculative Methylotrophs. Appl. Env. Micro. 40:370-375.
 - LYNCE, N.J., WOPAT, A.E. and OCONNOR, N.L. 1980. Characterization of Two New Facultative Methanotrophs. Appl. Micro. 40:400-407. OCONNOR, N.L. In press. Extension of the Nodel
 - Concerning Linkage of Genes Coding for C-1 Related Functions in Methylohacterium organophilum. Appl. Env. Micro.

004.220 CRISO066854 MICROBIAL ECCLOGY OF METRANE PRODUCTION IN AQUATIC ENVIRONMENTS

ZEIKUS J G; HAC'EPIOLOGY; UNIVERSITY OF WISCCNSIN, MADISON, WISCONSIN. 53706. Proj. No.: WISO2110 Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 MAE 74 To 30 AUG 81

OBJECTIVES: Characterization of the microbial anaerobic niche, as it occurs in aquatic sediments, in terms of: environmental parameters affecting bacterial methane formation; quantitative enumeration and kinds of methane bacteria present; determination of the in situ rates of methane production and decomposition of organic matter; determination of the preferred substrates employed by methane-producing tacteria present. Isolation of bacterial species responsible for methane formation in aquatic sediments and specification of their important properties, in terms of: determination of general properties, nutritional requirements and growth rates; determination of the rates of methane production and factors which influence this process; establishment of taxonomic identity and characterization of new species.

APPROACE: Characterization of bacterial methane formation as it occurs in nature by employing in situ experimentations. Quantitative enumeration of methane-producing bacteria present in sample sediments. Isolation of pertinent bacterial species and characterization of the'r morphological, nutritional and physiological properties.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Microbial methanogenesis was characterized in situ in thermal, volcanic environments in Yellowstone National Park, wetwoods in living trees and lake sediments in Wisconsin lakes. The organisms responsible for methanogenesis in these ecosystems and source rock from oil fields in U.SS.R. were isolated and, their general growth and metabolic features were examined. Nethanol was shown to be an important end product of pectin metabolism. Wethanol metabolism by acidogenic and methanogenic bacteria was examined in more detail. A new species was described, Eutyritacterium methylotrophicum, that produced organic acids from growth on methanol, B(2)/CO(2) or carbon monoxide as energy sources. The involvement of vitamin E(12) in methanol metabolism by anaerobes was established by quantification of high amounts of corrinoids in methanogens or acetogens specifically grown on methanol.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- ZEIKUS, J.G. 1980. Microbial Populations in Digestors. In Proc. First International Symposium on Anaerobic Digestion. Stafford, D.A. (ed), pp. 75-103. A.D. Scientific Press, Cardiff.
- KRZYCKI, J. and ZEIKUS, J.G. 1980. Quantification of Corrinoids in Nethanogenic Eacteria. Current Microbiology 3:243-245.
- ZEIKUS, J.G., BEN-BASSAT, A. and HEGGE, P.W. 1980. Microbiology of Methanogenesis in Thermal Volcanic Environments. J. Bacteriol. 143:432-440.
- SCHINK, B. and ZEIKUS, J.G. 1880. Microbial Methanol Formation: A Najor End Product of Pectin Metabolism. Current Microbiology 4:387-390.

004.221 CRIS0057149 BIOLOGY, ECOLOGY, TAXONOMY AND DISTRIBUTION OF AQUATIC INSECTS IN WISCONSIN

HILSENEOFF W L; ENTOMOLOGY; UNIVERSITY OF WISCCNSIN, MADISON, WISCCNSIN. 53706. Proj. No.: WIS01564 Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 77 To 30 JUN 85

OEJECTIVES: Provide illustrated keys to the genera and species of aquatic insects found in Wisconsin. Determine the life cycles and distribution of aquatic insects in Wisconsin. Evaluate extrinsic bioregulatory mechanisms in aquatic beetles.

APPROACH: Aquatic insects will be collected from all types of habitats throughout Wisconsin and identified to species whenever possible. When sufficient knowledge is gained about a family, group of families, or order within Wisconsin, species keys and notes on blology and distribution will be published. A study of aquatic beetles will be continued to determine factors that cause emergence, flight, swimming and hiding behavior, and hibernation. Wethods for quantitatively evaluating beetle populations will be developed.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Aquatic Insects of Wisconsin was revised. All keys were modified, some extensively, and plates were expanded with about 100 additional illustrations. Other figures were redrawn, and information on biology and ecology was updated. Studies of hioregulatory mechanisms in water beetles were greatly expanded. We developed a new technique for quantitatively sampling shallow ponds, which involves enclosing a measured area in a cylinder and adding an irritant to force beetles to the surface where they can be easily collected. Life cycles of several species were studied and it was found that low soil moisture levels prevented some species form emerging from their pupal chamber. Larvae of several species were described for the first time. Movements of beetles within and into and out of a pond were studied. Most species congregated in shallow water with a heavy vegetative cover, but a few preferred the deeper areas. Heetles entered wintering sites in October, either in or out of the pond. Those that hibernated within the pond became active in early spring before the ice melted from the pond. A study of the distribution, abundance, and life cycels of the abundance, and life cycles of the abundant caddisfly fauna of Otter Creek was initiated in April, with collections being made at 2-week intervals from five sites in the stream. During the warm months, adult caddisflies were collected with a blacklight in alternate weeks.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 HILSENHOFF, W.L. 1980. Coptotomus (Coleoptera: Dytiscidae) in Eastern North America with Descriptions of Two New Species, Trans. Amer. Entomol. Soc. 105:461-471. KARL, T.S. and HILSENECFF, W.L. 1980. The Caddisflies (Trichoptera) of Parfrey's Glen Creek, Wisconsin. Trans. Wis. Acad. Sci. Arts and Let. 67:51-42.

004.222						CFIS0072335
EFFECTS	OF	ANTINYCIN	ON	STREAM	INSECTS	

HILSENHOFF V L; ENTONCLOGY; UNIVERSITY CF VISCONSIN, MADISCN, VISCONSIN. 53706. Proj. No.: VISO2303 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 74 To 31 DEC 78

OBJECTIVES: Determine acute toxicity of antimycin to about 50 common species of stream insects. Determine effects of pE and temperature on rates of mortality caused by antimycin. Determine chronic effects of antimycin on emergence of stoneflies, mayflies, and caddisflies. Study effects of antimycin in a stream treated by Department of Natural Resources personnel to eliminate rough fish.

APPEGACE: Initial toxicity experiments will be carried out at concentrations of 1, 10, 100, and 1000 parts per billion (ppb) in 5 liter polyethylene containers and compared to a control. Final replicated tests will be run at twofold dilutions within the range of 0 to 100% mortality. Tests will be conducted at 2°C or 20°C at pH 8.0 or pH 7.0 with mortality recorded over a 5-day period. Effects of treatment of the Rock River will be studied by sampling benthos in treated and untreated sections before and after treatment. Drift samples in treated and untreated sections will be compared.

PROGRESS: 78/01 TO 78/12. The toxicity of antiaycin to 38 species of Wisconsin stream insects was evaluated in static, aerated bioassays utilizing antimycin exposures typical of stream treatments used to kill fisb. Several species of Trichoptera, Ephemeroptera and Plecoptera were very sensitive to fist killing concentrations of antiycin (EC-50 less than 50 ppb). Beetles (Psephenus herricki, Optioservus fastiditus, Stenelmis crenata, Helichus striatus), dragonfly nymphs (Neurocordula molesta, Gomphurus vastus), damselfly nymphs (Argia apicalis), fishfly larvae (Nigronia serricornis), and snipe fly larvae (Atherix variegata) were relatively unaffected by antimycin (EC-50 greater than 1,000 ppb). Early instars of Tipula spp. and Ephemerella sp. were more sensitive to antimycin than later instars. Exposure to antimycin produced greater mortality at 18 degrees C than at lower temperatures in several species, even though exposure times were reduced at the bigher temperature. Post-exposure observations indicated mortality may be delayed more than five days, particularly at reduced temperatures. Large differences in antimycin sensitivity were found for different species belonging to the same family (hydropsychid caddisflies, perlid stoneflies). Emergence of several species of stream insects was reduced or prevented by exposure of the mature larvae or nymphs to sublethal concentrations of antimycin.

PUBLICATIONS: 78/01 TO 78/12

 BCTILA, F.M. 1978. Effect of antimycin on stream insects in field and laboratory trials. Ph.D. Thesis, Univ. of Wisconsin-Madison. 107pp.
 BCTILLA, P.M. and HILSENBOFF, W.L. 1978. Effects of antimycin on stream insects. Wis. Water Resources Center Tech. Rep. 78-05, 55pp.

004.223 CFIS0073469 EFFECTS OF LIVESTOCE GRAZING PEACTICES ON THE WATER QUALITY OF STREAMS

BILSENBOFF V L; ENTOMOLCGY; UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN, MADISON, WISCONSIN, 53706. Proj. No.: WIS02338 Project Type: HATCE Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 JUL 77 To 30 SEP 80

OBJECTIVES: Document effects of pasturing cattle on the fauna and water quality of streams. Determine factors associated with the congregation of cattle in streams. Determine relationships of cattle weight, stream flow, cattle access, and water quality. APPROACE: Replicated laboratory tests will be carried out in artificial streams at various temperatures and current velocities to determine effects of oifferent amounts of cattle manure in the water on selected aquatic insects known to be sensitive to organic pollution. The arthropod fauna of a stream from which cattle have been fenced will be compared before and after fencing and with a control stream. Other streams will be observed to determine how many cattle can be pastured and under what conditions before the ecosystem of a stream is altered.

PROGRESS: 79/01 TO 79/12. Tests of the effects of manure on water quality and aquatic insects were carried out in two pairs of 8-foot fiberglassed streams channels. In this system we can control water temperature, discharge rate, depth of riffles and pocls, current velocity and photoperiod. A 5-day BOD test showed a 10g/1 suspension of ganure to have a EOD 55mg/1, nearly twice the effluent standard of 30mg/i required hy law. Effects of manure were tested for 2-week periods at concentrations of 2, 4, 8, 16 and 32g/1, with the manure confined in a mesh bag. At the two highest concentrations, dissolved oxygen levels dropped to 5mg/l and there was significant mortality of Acroneuria lycorias and Symphitopsyche riola, a stonefly and a caddisfly. Large amounts of nutrients were released into the stream from the manure, causing considerable growths of periphyton. This in turn resulted in diel dissolved oxygen fluctuations as great as 1.1mg/1. Total organic nitrogen increased 2 to 26 fold and total phosphorous 2 to 134 fold over the range of manure concentrations tested. Color, conductivity and alkalinity all increased substantially upon addition of manure. All initial tests were carried out with soft water from Otter Creek in Sauk County, but similar results were achieved with water from Trout Creek, a hard water stream. In additional tests, manure was throughly mixed with the water instead of being enclosed in a mesh bag.

PUBLICATIONS: 79/01 TO 79/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

5. Feeding and Nutrition

005.001 CRIS0067635 EVALUATION OF A CLOSED SYSTEM FOE THE CULTURE CF FISE, SEELLFISE AND AQUATIC PLANTS

ALLISCN R; FISHERIES 6 ALLIED AQUACULTURE; AUBURN UNIVERSITY, AUBURN, ALAHAMA. 36830. Proj. No.: ALA00398 Agency ID: CSRS Period: 14 APR 75 To 30 JUN 80

OBJECTIVES: Naximize animal protein production from a fed fish population in a closed system through the use of aquatic plants, fish and shellfish grown in the effluent. Develop management plan for growing fish from recently hatched fry to harvestable size in a closed system. Determine the carrying capacity of closed systems for various sizes of food fish fingerlings.

APFROACE: Food fish populations will be grown in tanks and fed a complete diet. The effluent will be reconditioned by circulation through tanks containing populations of filter feeding fidh and shellfish. It will be further reconditioned with the removal of dissolved nutrients by aquatic plants. Reconditioned water will be aerated by air blower and returned to the food fish population.

PROGRESS: 75/04 TO 80/06. During 1580 all data for the year 1979 were summarized and recorded in a doctoral dissertation and two technical papers. Data collected during the five-year period of the project were summarized and the varius modifications of the systems used were compared. This project was initiated 14 April 1975 and terminated 30 June 1980. Initial experiments were conducted in dual tanks, one for production and one for filtration. In this system dense populations of unicellular algae developed and was not adequately removed by the filter or filter feeding fish. Max.mum production of channel catfish was 2.65 kg/m 3 and tilapia was 4.54 kg/m 3. A system of one production and three filtration tanks was developed. Aquatic macrophytes were used to control unicellular algae. Maximum production of Tilapia was 38.9 kg/m 3.

PUFLICATIONS: 75/04 TC 80/06 FAKOCY, J.E. 1980. Evaluation of a Closed Recirculating System for Tilapia Culture. Fh.D. Dissertation. Auburn Univ. Auburn 119 pp.

005.002 CRIS0066917 MANAGEMENT OF AQUATIC PLANTS FOF SPORT FISE PRODUCTION IN PONDS

FOYD C E; FISHERIES & ALLIED AQUACULTURE; AUEURN UNIVERSITY, JUEUEN, ALAEMMA. 36830. Froj. No.: AIA00398 Froject Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 JAN 75 To 30 JUN 79

OBJECTIVES: Letermine the most effective fertilization rate for high levels of fish production in ponds. Determine the amount of fertilizer needed for moderate fish production and adequate control of aquatic weeds in ponds. Develop better methods for applying fertilizers to ponds.

AFFECACH: Influence of different rates of fertilization on production of bluegill sunfish and growth of aquatic weeds will be evaluated in ponds. Neeo for trace elements in fertilizer mixtures will be investigated by nutrient bloassay experiments. Two methods of application, broadcasting and underwater platforms, will be compared. Detention time of water for effective fertilization will be determined in ponds with known flushing rates.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. No progress report.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 BCYD, C.E. and CUENCC, M.L. 1980. Refinements of the Lime Requirement Procedure for Fist Ponds Aquaculture 21:293-299.

ACRE, R.G. and BCYD, C.E. 1980. Water Chemistry of Alabama Pons. Agr. Exp. Sta., Auburn Univ., Auburn, Eull. 522. 35 pp.

005.003* Pond Fertilization and liming CR1S0078980

 BOYD C E; FISBERIES & ALLIED AQUACULTURE; AUBURN

 UNIVERSITY, AUBURN, ALAEAMA. 36830.

 Proj. No.: ALA00497

 Agency ID: CSFS

 Period: 02 APk 79 To 30 SEP 84

OBJECTIVES: Determine the solubilities of different phosphorus fertilizers in pond waters. Evaluate fluid fertilizers cfr use in sport fish ponds. Investigate use of low rates of calcium hydroxide for liming ponds which have excessive overflow during winter and spring.

APPEOACE: Solubilities of phosphorus compounds will be determined by measuring the loss of phosphorus from samples of these compounds placed on fertilizer platforms in ponds. Compounds will be tested in ponds representing a range of water quality. Effects of different ratios and rates of application of fluid fertilizer on bluegill production will be evaluated in ponds. Effects of calcium hydroxide applications on total hardness and total alkability will be tested in ponds which have excessive overflow during winter and spring.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Dissolution rates for phosphate fertilizers settling through 1.5m of water at 29 degrees F were: superphosphate, 4.6%; triple superphosphate, 5.1%; monoammonium phosphate, 7.1%; mixed 8-8-8 fertilizer, 11.4%; mixed 20-20-5 fertilizer, 11.9%; diammonium phosphate, 16.8%. Nitrogen was highly soluble (61.7 to 98.8%) from settling grarules of sodium nitrate, calcium nitrate, ammonium nitrate, ammonium sulfate, and two mixed fertilizers, but not (5.1 to 11.7%) from ammonium phosphates. Five pond fertilization programs (44.8 kg/ha per application of 20-20-5 mixed fertilizer, 20.2 kg/ha per application of triple superphosphate, 10.1 kg/ha per application of triple superphosphate, 10.1 kg/ha per application of diamonium phosphate, and 7.3 kg/ha of a liquid fertilizer with a grade of 13-25-0) all resulted in similar sunfish yields. The cost of fertilization may be greatly reduced by using the low triple superphosphate treatment 10.1 kg/ha, diamonium phosphate, or liquid fertilizer.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- BUNT, C. and ECYD, C.E. 1980. Alkalinity Losses Resulting from Ammonium Fertilizers Used in Fish Ponds. Trans. Amer. Fish. Scc. 110:51-85. METZGER, R.J. and BOYD, C.E. 1580. Liquid Ammonium
- Polyphosphate as a Fish Pond Fertilizer. Trans. Amer. Fish. Soc. 109:563-570.
- MUSIG, Y. and BOYD, C.E. 1980. Comparison of Orthophosphate and Polyphosphate as Iertilizers for Fish Ponds. Aquaculture 20:135-138.

CRIS0060956

005.004 Fresewater food animals

LOVELL R T; PRATHER E E; FISBERIES & ALLIEC AQUACULTURE; AUBURN UNIVERSITY, AUBURN, ALABANA. 36530. Proj. No.: ALA00339 Project Type: BATCH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 JUL 71 To 30 SEP 81

CBJECTIVES: Develop production and management systems for freshwater food animals - Nutrition.

APPROACB: Winter feeding regimes for catfish in ponds will studied. Mineral and blotin requirements for catfish will be determined. Energy requirements and digestibility from various food sources will be determined for catfish.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Channel catfish fed rations of 15% extruded (floating) and 85% pelleted (sinking) diets in ponds grew as well and had the same feed conversion rate as fish fed 50:50, 100:0, or 0:100 ratios of extruded to pelleted diets. Extruded diets cost 20% more. A small percentage of the extruded diet in the ration gave the same management benefits but was 17% cheaper than feeding an all-extruded diet. Channel catfish synthesized as much as 1.9ng/g body wt/day of vitamin B(12) by intestinal factoria. Addition of an antibiotic or emission of cohalt from the diet suppressed vitamin synthesis. Intestinally synthesized vitamin B12 was absorbed directly from the gut and utilized by the fish. Fish fed diets without E12 showed deficiency signs. A nutritionally-complete meal-type diet for feeding ornamental fishes was developed which would not loose any water-soluble nutrients to leaching when the feed was placed in the water. Vitamin C was most susceptible to leaching. By suspending powdered vitamin C in oil and spraying on, it adhered well to feed particles when put in water.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12
LOVELL, R.T. 1980. Fish Cultures in the United States. Science 2/6:1368.
LOVELL, R.T. 1980. Combination Feeding of Extruded and Felleted Diets for Catfish. Bighlights of Agric. Res., Auburn Univ. Agric. Exp. Sta. 27:3.
LOVELL, R.T. 1980. Computer Formulation of Fish

- Feeds. Aquaculture 6(4):36. LOVELL, R.T. 1980. Nutrient Requirements of Tilapia. Aquaculture 7(1):42.
- LOVELL, R.T. 1980. Feeding Extruded and Pelleted Fish Diets. Aquaculture 6(2):38.

005.005 INSECTS ATTRACTED BY LIGET AS A SOURCE OF FOOD FOR CATFISE

NEWTON S B; MERKOWSKY A; AGRICULTURE; UNIVERSITY OF AFKANSAS, PINE BLUFF, ARKANSAS. 71601. Proj. No.: AF.X-PR-0006-859 Project Type: GRANT Agency ID: CSRS Period: 27 JUN 74 To 20 JUL 79

OBJECTIVES: Evaluate the effectiveness of different light sources in attracting (making available for fish) insects and zooplankton over fish pends. Determine most advantageous time to run the light during the crepuscalar and diurnal periods. Determine cost-benefit ratio of insect and fish meal fed fish along with weight gain and survival per acre. Determine the feeding efficiency of small fingerlings on aquatic insects and zooplankton that are attracted to the lights. Determine species and life stages of insects attracted.

APFRCACE: Channel catfish fingerlings will be stocked at the rate of 1,500 to 2,000 per acre in eight (8) 1/10 acre ponds. The treatments will consist of feeding the fish a formula simular to Auburn Number 2, while a diet with reduced protein will be fed to fish which are utilizing attracted insects. The tenth acre ponds will have a controlled water supply.

PECGRESS: 74/06 TO 79/06. Attraction of aerial insects to supplement channel catfish production was insignificant economically for both cage and pond production methods. Additional growth benefits were not achieved by catfish during three seasons of study which involved at least four experiments. A nutritional profile of attracted insects suggested that they were dietarily adequate; but data collections revealed that neither sufficient volumes of insects were made available, nor were insects utilized by the catfish. Therefore, with light-attraction units, costs of production were doubled in cages and nearly tripled in ponds compared to production units receiving artificial feed alone. light units co concentrate catfish for harvest either by recreational or commercial methods. Aerial insects may be reduced around living areas, gardens, and livestock hy light-attraction units and some may be cycled through fish rather than wasted entirely. There is a need for additional research with light attraction of insects for other fish species. Greater utilization may be anticipated with sunfishes, and possibly even with catfish fry during the first year of their development.

PUBLICATIONS: 74/06 TO 79/06 NEWTON, S. F. AND A. J. WERKCWSKY. 1976. Use of Aerial Insects to Supplement the Artificial Feeding of Channel Catfish in Ponds and Cages. (Abstract)

005.006 CFIS0080218 CRUSTACEAN NUTRITION AND FEED DEVELOPMENT

CONKLIN D E; ANIMAL SCIENCE; UNIVERSITY CF CALIFCENIA, LAVIS, CALIFOENIA. 95616. Proj. No.: CA-D=-ASC-3821-E Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 OCT 79 To 30 SEP 83

OBJECTIVES: lefine the nutritional requirements of crustaceans; define other important nutritional parameter (i.e., consumtion assimilation, food conversion) for use in the economic evaluation of crustacean aquaculture; designe appropriate nutrient delivery systems (i.e., stable, nonleaching microparticles for water-soluble nutrients, binding systems for particulate portion of pelletized rations, etc.) for aquatic crustaceane.

APPROACE: Various deficiency syndromes will be established for the lobster, Homarus americanusandad other crustaceans by using a series of defined diets. Addition of a various feed ingredients and specific nutrients to the diets will allow for the defininition of qualitative requirements which eliminate the various deficiency syndromes. A range of microencarsulation techniques will be evaluated as to their ability to prevent leaching of required nutrients which are water-soluble and as to their acceptability to cultured crustaceans. Quantitative studies will be carried out in order to maximize growth and health of intensively cultured crustaceans. Feeding trials will be used to define the interaction of dietary and environmental influences or consumption. Assimilation and

conversion values for the lobster will be established using an imput-output balance approach and used along with the other data in the economic evaluation of lobster aquaculture.

PECGEESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Development of practical and economical formulated rations for use in the commercial cultivation of lobsters (Bomarus americanus and B. gammarus) as well as other decapod crustaceans. This development requires for crustaceans the definition of minimal, qualitative requirements along with the delineation of optimum quanitities of both essential and growth promoting nutrients. In addition to identifying these nutrient requirements, other parameters such as consumption, assimilation and food conversion reed to be quantified. Significant progress has been made in the attempt to provide an efficient pelletized ration which will promote rapid growth and high survival. Inclusion of soy lecithin (approximately 10% dry weight) into the formulated purified diet has been found to be critical and eliminates mortalities associated with a "molt death syndrome". This syndrome is characterized by the lobster's inability to extricate itself successfully from its exoskeleton during ecdysis. We have now demonstrated the phosphatidylcholine is the active component of the soy lecithin. Preliminary information suggests that the phosphatidylcholine is an important component of a lipoprotein complex that effectively transfers choesterol, an essential nutrient for lobsters, from the heratopancreas to the hemolymph.

PUFLICATIONS: 80/01 TG 80/12

- BORDNER, C.E., D'ABRAMO, L.F. and CONELIN, D.E. 1980. Progress in Lobster Nutriticn Research. Feedstuffs 52(13):23-25.
- GOLDBLATT, M.J., CONKLIN, D.E. and ERCWN, W.D. 1980. Nutrient Leaching from Coated Crustacean kations. Aquaculture 19(4):383-388.
- CONKLIN, D.E. 1980. Recent Progress in Lobster Nutrition at the Bodega Marine Laboratory. Lobster Nutrition Workshop Proceedings. Main Sea Grant Publications Technical Report 58.
- CONKLIN, D.E., D'ABRANO, L.R., ECRDNER, C.E. and BAUM, N.A. 1980. A Successful Purified Diet for the Culture of Juvenile Lobsters: The Effect of Lecithin. Aquaculture 21:243-249.
- CONKLIN, D.E. 1980. Nutrition. IN: The Fiology and Management of Lobsters. Editors, Cotb, S.J. and Phillips, B., Academic Press. Inc., 1:277-300.

005.J07 CFIS0066365 NUTRITIONAL ASPECTS OF AQUACULTURE SYSTEMS

BRCWN W D; FCCD SCIENCE & TECBNCLCGY; UNIVERSITY OF CALIFCENIA, DAVIS, CALIFORNIA. 55616. Proj. No.: CA-D*-FST-3010-H Project Type: BATCE Agency ID: CSRS Period: 10 SEP 74 To 30 SEP 82

OBJECTIVES: Learn more of nutrient requirements of crustacea, including such things as optimal dietary level of protein and the interrelationship of energy and protein in diets for juvenile and adult crustacea; develop the technology of better feed delivery systems, incluoing encapsulation and other means of preventing nutrient loss by leaching.

APFEGACH: A system for holding several hundred juvenile crustacea (or other aquatic animals) has been designed and built and will be installed in the Ecology Institute of the University of California at Davis. Experimental animals will be housed in this system with controlled water quality, temperatute, light etc. Feeding experiments will be conducted according to established protocal, and will be based on our earlier work in this area.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Delivery of essential nutrients is the primary purpose of any animal ration. We have been able to demonstrate the failure of conventional shrimp and lobster in water soluble nutrients for periods long enough to assure effective delivery to the target animal. The loss due to leaching of rihoflavin choline, vitamin C, free amino acirs and potassium was found to be rapid and independent of a ration's physical stability, regardless of the binding agent used in the diet. Losses of total nitrogen and trace minerals were found to be negligible when examined on a per gram ration recovered basis. We have investigated the use of ethyl cellulose as a coating agent to retain water soluble nutrients in pelleted feeds. When the entire ration pellet was coated, minimal nutrient leaching occurred, even after 6 hours. Inclusion of individually coated micronutrients was less effective than total pellet coating for nutrient retention, but did help prevent losses due to leaching.

- PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12
 - GCLDBLATT, N.J., CCNKLIN, D.E. and BROWN, W.D. 1980. Nutrient Leaching from Coated Crustacean Rations. Aquaculture 19(4):383-388.

005.008* CFIS0066814 TEE USE OF SELECTED AQUATIC OPGANISMS FOR PUPPOSES OF AQUACULTURE (FOOD FRODUCTION)

KNIGHT A W; LAND, AIR 6 WATER BESOURCES; UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, DAVIS, CALIFORNIA. 95616. Proj. No.: CA-D*-LAW-3350-B Project Type: BATCH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 05 NOV 74 To 30 SEP 80

OBJECTIVES: Determine the tolerances, growth dynamics, food preference, egg hatchability of selected pest organisms. Utilize existing pest organisms such as tadpole shrimp and cladophora algae for beneficial purposes such as low cost protein source.

APFFCACH: Initially information will be obtained relating to the environmental needs of the organisms under consideration. Later we will manage environmental factors in order to maximize the production of the potential protein material for purposes of either a domestic animal food (i.e., chicken or catfish food) or a protein supplement for humans.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Preparation of manuscripts resulting from our work with the Malaysian prawn (Nacrobrachium rosenhergii) continues. These manuscripts focus on physiological aspects of our research and will be submitted to scientific journals in the near future. Research to better understand the lahoratory culture of the grass shrimp (Crangon) is progressing well. This shrimp is a key food item for striped bass and sturgeon. Those culturing the sturgeon in the laboratory have indicated a need for food that is also under culture and therefore readily available to feed fish. Our research to determine the evironmental needs of the shrimp has increased our capabilities to successfully culture this shrimp in the laboratory. Recently we have included the Asiatic clam (Corbicula) in our culture operations. This clam exhibits potential as a filter feeder to remove undesirable particulate matter from aquaculture systems. In addition, the clam has demonstrated an ability to accumulate toxic materials such as heavy metals and organic materials. Clams, it is felt, will serve as excellent monitoring organisms in aquaculture systems. We are experimenting with methods of placing the clams in aquatic systems and their retrieval for tissue burden determination.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 SIEPEENSON, N.J. and ENIGET, A.W. 1980. Growth, Respiration and Caloric Content of Larvae of the Prawn Macrobrachium rosenhergii. Comparative Biochemietry and Physiology 66A(3):385-381. NAGAMINE, C., ENIGET, A.W., NAGAMINE, C., ENIGET, A.W., MAGGENTI, A. AND PAXMAN, G. 1980. Effects of Androgenic Gland Ablation on Male Primary and Secondary Sexual Characteristics in the Malaysian Prawn. Macrobrachium rosenbergii with First

Evident of Induced

005.009* CFIS0064485 DIETARY FACTORS IN WHITE FISH MEAL RESPONSIBLE FOR CATARACT FORMATION IN TROUT AZARI P: HIOCHEWISTRY; COLORADO STATE UNIVERSITY, FORT COLLINS, COLORADO. 80523. Proj. No.: COL00032 Project Type: STATE Awency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 73 To 30 JUN 80

OBJECTIVES: Investigate some of the nutritional factors in white fish meal responsible for growth retardation and high incidence of cataract in trout. Modify the white fish meal by addition of necessary factors or deletion of injurious substances so that it could he effectively used as a supplement to trout feed.

APPROACH: Feeding experiments: Long-range feeding of trout on a complete white fish feed will be performed in order to determine the incidence and time factor involved in the formation of cataract. The effect of lipid-free and heavy-metal-free diets will also be studied. Organic solvents will be used to extract lipid components, and specific chelating agents will be employed to remove heavy elements. The compositional analysis of white fish meal will be aimed at determining the amino acid content of proteins, free and bound carbohydrates and beavy trace elements. Automated amino acid analysis, gas chromatography and atomic absorption procedures will be used, respectively to accomplish these. Compositional analysis of lens proteins from normal and cataractous fish will be done after solubilization and separation of lens proteins by conventional procedures, followed by acid hydrolysis or proteins to liberate amino acids. The levels of cysteine, cystine and tryptophan will be particularly of interest.

PRCGRESS: 79/01 TC 79/12. Inclusion of white fish meal at a 20% level into the trout diet was found to cause cataract (67% at 140 days) and higher incidence of mortality (48%) as compared to herring-meal diet. No significant difference in the agino acid composition was found between herring and white fish meals. Fortification of the white-fish diet with tryptophan, histidine, tyrosine, phenylalainine, cystine, lysine or combination of all showed no significant decrease in the incidence of cataract. Fortification of diet with vitamins, A, D, E, B(12) or niscin did not alleviate the problem. Mineral analysis of the white fish and herring meals revealed significantly lower content of Fe, Zn, Se and Mn and a higher content of Ca and P for the white-fish, as compared to herring meal. Incorporation of commercially available mineral mix (protein-mineral chelates) into the white fish diet at 5-10% levels abolished the incidence of cataract and reduced the mortality hy 90%. The ratio of calcium to abailable phosphate was found to be approximately 1.5 times higher for white-fish diet as compared to herring. Inclusion of additional phosphate into the white-fish diet to produce a Ca/P ratio close that of herring diet, reduced the incidence of cataract to 1%. The Na-K ATPase activity of cataractous lens was decreased by about 50%, as compared to normal lens. Fortification of white-fish diet with the mineral mix caused an increase of Na-KATPase activity to 84% of the normal diet.

PUBLICATIONS: 79/01 TO 79/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

CRISO075815 BELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN SALT MARSE AND ESTUARINE ANIMAL COMMUNITIES AND ENERGY EXCHANGE

SUBRAHMANYAM C E; HIOLOGY; FLCRIDA AGRIC 6 WECH UNIVERSITY, TALLABASSEE, FLORIDA. 32307. Proj, No.: FLAX-PR-0002-4232-1 Project Type: GRANT Agency ID: CSRS Period: 21 APR 78 To 20 APF 88

OBJECTIVES: Conclude the study of henthic and pelagic animals in St. Marks estuary. Assess metabolic requirements of estuarine and marsh animals. Determine caloric values of marsh and estuarine animals and plants. Initiate study of seascnal composition of estuarine and inshore plankton. APPEGACE: A tenthic dredge will be used to sample a known volume of sediments, and a 14-ft balloon trawl for collecting nektonic and benthic species. The rate of oxygen uptake of young and mature specimens of invertebrates and fish will be determined in a static system in 2-tr experiments. Caloric values of dried specimens of plants, invertebrates and fish will be determined in a Parr Oxygen Bomb Calorimeter using standard procedure. A No. 3 net and a No. 20 net will be used to sample phyto- and zooplankton in the estuary and in inshore waters. After taking the settling volumes qualitative analysis of the species will be carried out in the laboratory.

PROGRESS: 77/10 TO 79/09. The study of the infaunal invertebrates and fisb of St. Narks River estuary and shallow inshore was continued and completed. The soils of the same localities contained 80 to 92% sand, 2 to 13% clay, and 0.2 to 2% organic matter. The density of invertebrates was higher than in marsh, and amphipods were more abundant. Fish numbers declined from about 80-2000/catch at inshore station to 5-10/catch at river station. Black bass and spinbox fish were common in trawl samples. Estuarine fisb, such as Leiostomus Lagodon, Anchoa, flounders and blue crabs and shrimps enter marshes as juveniles. The fish production was estimated at 1.68 g/m 2/yr at St. Marks and 3.13. g/m 2/yr at Wakulla. Fisb catch in Florida amounts to 18 million dollars per bours. A Waster's Thesis was developed on the economic value of salt marshes, and an estimate of 56 to 69 dollars per acre was arrived at based upon blue crab fishery. The distribution patterns of invertebrates show that Cyatbura is ubiquitous certain polychaetes are restricted to either marsh zones or tidal creeks, and molluscs such as Polymesoda are restricted to marsh zones. Among fishes killifishes occur more abundantly in marsh creeks than in estuaries. Energy exchange between estuaries and marshes in via tidal creeks. Preliminary experiments on metabolic needs of fish species indicate that migratory fish species need basically more oxygen per gm of body weight than resident fish, and both types are metatolically dependent on external oxygen.

- PUBLICATIONS: 77/10 TO 79/09
- SUBRAHMANYAN, C.B. 1980. The role of salt marshes in the production of fish. Florida A and M University Research Bulletin. In Press.
 SUBRAHMANYAN, C.B. 1980. Gxygen consumption of estuarine fish in relation to external oxygen tension. Comparitive Biochemistry and Physiology. In Press.

005.011* CFIS0076759 ECOLOGY OF SALT MARSHES IN BELATION TO ESTUARIES AND EMERGY FLOW

SUBRAHMANYAM C B; BIOLOGY; FLCRIDA AGRIC & MECH UNIVERSITY, TALLAHASSEE, FLCRIDA. 32307. Proj. No.: FIAX79004 Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 CCT 78 To 30 SEP 83

GBJECTIVES: Study community structure and seasonal variations in marsb and estuarles; study breeding cycles of individual species; study nutritional needs of species in terms calorle intake study energy utilization of species in terms of oxygen consumption; determine the energy content of species in terms of caloric values and study activity patterns in field and laboratory to understand movements of species.

APPEOACE: Collect animals with trawl, plankton nets, corer and grabs. Sort and identify species. Follow the seasonal distribution of larvae in plankton to assess breeding patterns. Conduct feeding experiments in laboratory, and evaluate food intake and assimilation. Study the oxygen consumption rates by continuous flow techniques, and determine diurnal and tidal rbythms of metabolism by 24-hr experiments. Burn the organisms in Cxygen bomb calorimeter and determine caloric values. Tag fisb species in field and follow movements by recapture. Release tagged fish in enclosures and follow activity. Perform laboratory experiments. PRCGRESS: 79/09 TC 80/08. The abundance patterns of fish and invertebrates in St. Marks coastal estuarine-marsh system were summarized in a published paper. Preliminary experiments on the metabolism of estuarine fish showed that the two resident species, Fundulus grandis and F. similis consumed 0.036 -0.047 m10(2)/gm/hr, which was lower than 0.071 -0.112 m10(2)/gm/hr consumed by the migratory species Leiostowus xanthurus and Lagodon rhomboides. All the four species showed metabolism dependent on ambient oxygen tension in the range of 20 - 90 mmBg. Plankton collections and water quality study in St. Marks estuary and Apalachee Bay were started in April 1979 and will be completed in May 1981. Differences between surface and bottom salinity in one tidal cycle were as high as 5-8 p.p.t., but between surface and bottom oxygen (0.5-1.0 m1/1) and temperature (1-2 degrees C) were negligible, Summer temperatures were higher in contrast to salinities because of rainfall. Plankton volume varied from 5m1/tcw (8 minutes) to 300 ml/tow between cool and warm months. Phytoplankton maxima were observed in fall and early winter, and zooplankton peaks in late spring and late summer. When stations are compared, Avalachee Bay stations generally showed larger volume of plankton, and mesohaline estuarine stations showed less. Crustacean larvae such as crab zoea and megalopa. penaeid postlarvae, and fish larvae were abundant from spring through fall.

PUELICATIONS: 79/09 TO 80/08

SUBRABNANYAM, C.B. Oxygen Consumption of Estuarine Fish in Relation to External Tension. Comparative Biochemistry and Physiology 67A:129-133. SUBRABNANYAN, C.B. Studies on the Animal Communities in Two North Florida Salt Marstes. Pt. III. Seasonal Fluctuations of Fish and Macroinvertebrates. Bulletin of Warine Science 30:790-818.

005.012 CRIS0064913 UTILIZATION OF KRAFT WILL EFFLUENT FOR FISE PRODUCTION

SHIREMAN J V; JUUL R B; FOR KES & CONSERV; UNIVERSITY OF FLORIDA, GAINESVILLE, FLCRIDA. 32601. Proj. No.: FLA-FY-01671 Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 66 FEB 74 To 30 JUN 79

OBJECTIVES: Determine the suitability of secondarily treated kraft effluent for fish growth and production. Establish the feasibility of utilizing pulp mill effluent as a medium for fish production systems. Determine the effects of intensive fish culture on the environmental quality of effluent waters.

APPROACE: Field and laboratory studies will be conducted to determine the effects of kraft mill effluent on warm water fish populations. An effluent channel coming from four oxidation ponds at the Hudson Pulp and Paper Corporation Secondary Wastewater Facility will be surveyed for biological and chemical parameters. Studies pertaining to the influence of kraft effluents on fish growth, movement, distribution, food consumption, and food preference will be conducted in the effluent channel. Measurements obtained from populations inhabiting the channel will be compared to those obtained from naturally occurring populations. Fish will be contained within cages in order that growth and other measurements can be obtained from known individuals. This study should provide information as to the fitness of kraft effluents for warm water fish production.

PROGRESS: 79/01 TC 79/06. Terminated 30 Jun 1979.

PUELICATIONS: 79/01 TC 79/06 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

005.013 FRESEWATER FOOD ANIMALS CRIS0066524

ANDREWS J W JR: ENTOMOLOGY-FISBEFIES; CECRGIA CCASTAL FLAIN EXPT STA, TITTCN, GEORGIA. 31794. Proj. No.: GEO00254 Project Type: HATCH Agency 1D: CSAS Period: US SEP 74 To 30 SEP 81

OBJECTIVES: Levelop and improve production and management systems for freshwater animals cultured for food. Nutrition; culture systems.

APFFCACE: Studies will be conducted to determine protein, amino acid, energy, vitamin and mineral requirements of catfish and relate these requirements to environmental and cultural conditions and least-cost reed formulations. Polyculture studies will be conducted with species which can utilize atfluent waste products from catfish tenks.

PECGRESS: 76/09 TO 78/12. Studies were conducted on the dietary protein, lipid, carbohydrate, thiamin, riboflavin, riacin, pyridoxine pantothenic acid, vitamin D, vitamin E, vitanin C, potassium and cooper requirements of catfish and culture techniques for catfish, bait minnows, goldfish Macrobachium shrimp and American shad. Results indicated free amino acids and simple sugar were poorly utilized by channel catfish. Higt dietary levels of linoleic acid (4% of diet) had a growth depressing effect when compared to saturated fats. Studies were conducted on the relative values of various animal and plant protein sources in catfish diets. Cultural techniques and diets were tested for rearing Agerican shad from agg to sub-adult size

PUBLICATIONS: 76/08 TO 78/12 NC PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

005.014* FRESHWATER FCOD ANIMALS CF1S0071451

HILL T K; ERCON E E; CEESNESS J L; ENTOMOLCGY-FISHERIES; GEOFGIA CCASTAL PLAIN EXFT STA, TIFTON, GECRGIA. 31794. Proj. No.: GEO00283 Project Type: HATCE Agency ID: CSES Period: 01 OCT 76 To 30 SEP 81

OBJECTIVES: Develop and Improve Production and Management Systems for Freshwater Animals Cultured for Food. Nutrition. Water Quaty. Diseases. Culture Systems. Evaluate the Economics of Production, Frocessing and Marketing of Freshwater Food Animals.

APPEOACB: Fractical diets for channel catfish and rainbow trout will be tested in raceways. Water quality in raceways will be monitored and removal of wastes investigated. Diseases and parasites problems associated with intensive cultures will be identified and treatad. The double-crop concept of using CC in summer and RT in winter in raceways will be continued. Pelyculture for increased production through wastes utilization will be evaluated. Complete costs and returns analyses will be developed for different levels of production and management.

PROGRESS: 76/09 TO 78/12. Research has been completed with a flowing water system for double-crop fish production in a closed system of racaways. Each raceway segment, ca. 30 m long by 4.5 m wide, was stocked with 3,000 rainbow trout (Novamber - March) and 2.500 channel catfish (April - October) par sagment and produced over 3/4 T. and 1 T. of trout and catfish, respectively, each year. Water temparatures for 20 or more days under 4 C reduced trout production significantly. Multiple harvesting of catfish resulted in higher net production of fish per raceway segment. Feed conversion for multiple harvested/stocked fish was 1.3:1; whereas, once harvested fish had a conversion of 1.5:1. Feed conversion ratios were higher for catfish fed a sinking feed than for those fed a floating feed. To facilitate management of waste products in racaways, tilapla were stocked with catfish at 50 and 100 half-pound tilapla. Although they increased in waight from 1/2 pound to 1.1 pounds per fish, the tilapia did not reproduce.

PUBLICATIONS: 76/09 TO 78/12 NO PUBLICATIONS SEPERTED FINAL SEFORT PERIOD.

005.015 CRISO074599 NITROGEN METABOLISM OF FRESHWATER PRANNS IN RELATION TO DIET

NELSON S G; AGFICULTUFE; UNIVERSITY OF GUAM, AGANA, GUAM. 96513. Proj. No.: GUA00023 Project Type: HATCH Agency 1D: CSFS Period: 28 FEB 78 To 30 SEP 82

OBJECTIVES: Determination of the assimilation efficiency of Macrobachium rosenbergil and M. lar. in relation to diet. Determine the relationships between growth, nitrogen excretion and dietary protein.

Determine if growth preformance can be predicted by an examination of nitrogen metabolism in relation to diet.

AFPROACH: Egestion, excretion, growth and molting will be monitored in relation to dietary nitrogen content. Nitrogen and caloric valves will be determined for specific diets, fecal wastes, individual prawns, and shed exuria. Nitrogen and caloric budgets be constructed for young prawns on selected dietary regimes.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Studies of the freshwater prawn Nacrobrachium lar focused on the relation between the rate of ammonia excretion and body weight as influenced by recent feeding history. The dists used for these studies ranged from 2 to 14% nitrogen. The rate of ammonia excration per gram is a function of a power of the body weight. This power ranged from -0.3 to -0.8 for groups of 20 to 30 prawns which ware fad one of 6 exparimental diets. although the relation between excretion rate and body weight was influenced by the diet. This influence was not correlated with the nitrogen content of the diet.

PUPLICATIONS: 80/01 TC 80/12

NELSON, S.G. and EROPP, K.K. 1981. Ammonia Excretion by the Freshwater Prawn Macrobrachium lar in relation to Diet. Technical Raport 18 of the University of Guam agricultual Experiment Station, 12 pp.

005.016 CF1S0082572 STUDY OF MANURE-ENRICHED FOOD WEES IN MARINE POND ECOSYSTEMS

BELFRICH P; SHLESEE R; AGEI ENGINEERING; UNIVERSITY OF HAWAII, HONOLULU, HAWAII. S6822. Proj. No.: HAW00535-S Projact Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 28 SEP 78 To 30 SEP 84

OBJECTIVES: Obtain analytical data on the physical, chemical, nutrient, and tropic cycles of manure-enriched, marine ponds. Davelor pond-management techniquas for working with manure-enriched, marine ponds. Evaluate the economic potantial of using marine-enriched food webs for application to a marine-shrimp-production industry.

APPROACH: Growth of Panaeus stylirostris will be measured in 0.1 acre marine ponds fertilized with standard faed and varying amounts of ground cow manure as the experimental treatments. Levels of major nutrients and the species composition of bacterial phytoplankton and zooplankton will be determined in the marine anvironment and correlated with shrimp growth. Thase data will be interpreted to ascertain what tropic levals are the optimal contributing to shrimp growth and utilization of cow manure for shrimp production in manure aquaculture industrias.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TC 80/12. The study of manure-enriched ponds is directad toward improving the economics of shrimp production by reducing feed costs. Tha immadiate objactives are 1) obtain analytical data for the salient physico-chemical, nutrient and tropic cycles resulting from manure anrichment of ponds, and by that information: 2) acquire insights into prudent pond management practices of strategies for working with manure-enricted ponds; 3) evaluate the biological benefits acquired by a valuable marine culture organism exploiting the manure-enriched food web; and develop data that can be used to evaluate the potential of using cow manure to improve the economics of shrimp production. Results to date imply that levels of shrimp biomass increase with levels of manure addition. By comparison to ponds which used commerical formulated feeds, manure-enriched ponds did as well or better. However, these preliminary results require further replication, as the number of replicates to date are still too few. Data have accumulated on the physico-chemical and nutrient changes in ponds through two series of pond trials. At the same time, a water quality laboratory has been developed ro refine the procedures and methods of anaylsis. Results thus far have shown considerable ranges to exist in dissolved oxygen, temperature, pH, rainfall and water exchange rates; and both long- and short-term effects of these extremes on shrimp growth need to be further evaluated through laboratory experiments.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REFORTED THIS PERICD.

005.017 CRIS0045738 MANURE-ENRICEED FOOD WEES IN MARINE POND ECOSYSTEMS

HELFRICH P; SELESER F; ANDERSON L; AGRICULTUKAL EXPER. STATICN; UNIVERSITY CF HAWAII, ECNCLULU, EAWAII. 96822. Proj. No.: 5090-20284-007-A(1) Project Type: COOPERATIVE AGREE. Agency ID: ASS Period: 28 SEP 79 To 30 JUN 81

CBJECTIVES: Cbtain analytical data on the physical, chemical, nutrient, and tropic cycles of manure-enricted, marine ponds. Develop pond & aquatic vegetation management techniques for working with manure-enriched, marine ponds. Evaluate the economic potential of using marine-enriched food webs for application to a marine-shrimp-production industry.

APPEGACE: Growth of Penaeus stylirostris will be measured in C.1 acre marine ponds fertilized with standard feed and varying amounts of ground coe manure as the experimental treatments. Levels of major nutrients and the species composition of bacterial phytoplankton and zooplankton will be determined in the marine environment and correlated with shrimp growth. These data will be interpreted to ascertain what tropic levels are the optimal contributing to shrimp growth and utilization of cow manure for sbrimp production in manure aquaculture industries.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. After conditioning of newly constructed shrimp culture ponds, each was stocked on 13 June with 2,100 P. stylirostris (30,000 per acre). Nanure was applied two weeks prior to stocking at 0, 2,500, 5,000 and 10,000 lhs. per acre or with standard commercial feed. Sampling included ammonia, nitrate, phosphate, pH, p.0., chlorophyll, ASP, and temperature. Shrimp were sampled weekly to measure growth rate. Ponds were harvested July 21. Production was highest in manure-enriched pond (10.000 lb/acre) (9 kg); control produced 45 kg. Large variations in PC(4), NO(2), NB(3), and pH occurred during the culture. A second stocking was made 7 December at the same rate of manure, and will be harvested in early March 1981.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERICD.

005.018 CFIS0077916 WEIGHT GAIN CF FISE

ELCNTZ G W; FOREST WILDLIFE & RANGE EXP ST; UNIVERSITY OF IDABC, MCSCCW, IDABC, 83843. Proj. No.: ILA-CFU-0058 Froject Type: STATE Agency ID: OCI

OBJECTIVES: Define and test a method wherety weight gain of rainbow trout may be accurately estimated.

APPROACH: First-feeding rainbew trout fry will be raised through adulthood under closely controlled conditions. The evaluative parameters include weight gain, length gain, feeding rate, dietary composition, water temperature, oxygen availability, and population density. The fish will be fed at a programmed rate and the effects will be measured at biweekly intervals.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. This study was designed to develop a computerized model to predict the growth rate of salmonids in hatchery settings. The input data were water temperature, dissolved oxygen, preximate analysis of the diet, water inflow, ammonia-N generation, and solids generation. The model was developed and tested under laboratory conditions using rainbow trout. The results were very encouraging. When the model was field tested, the results were very encouraging. The model proved so sensitive that small percentage changes in weight gain were easily detected. From the application of the model under field conditions we were able to establish a statistic which we term 'allowable growth rate' based upon weight gain rather than length gain. Work is continuing on another project to incorporate the data and models acquired from this study.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

FOCHT, R.L. 1980. Determination of Allowable Growth in Rainhow Trout. M.S. Thesis, Department of Fishery Resources, College of Forestry, Wildlife and Range Sciences, University of Idaho, Moscow.

005.019 CRIS0079933 TRACE MINERAL INBALANCE IN HATCHEFY FISH

STOSZEK N J; MACPHEE C; FCREST WILDLIFE 6 RANGE EXP ST; UNIVERSITY OF IDABO, NOSCOW, IDABC. 83843. Proj. No.: IDA00778-H Project Type: ANIMAL HEALTE

Agency ID: CSRS Period: 12 OCT 79 To 30 SEP 80

OBJECTIVES: Establish basic criteria for diagnosis of trace-mineral disorders in chinook salmon, steelhead and hatchery rainbow trout; determine whether there is a relationship between health problems found in individual hatcheries and mineral contents of fish tissues; accumulate and evaluate informaticn of physiological and chemical parameters associated with different mineral levels, and establish normal and ahnormal levels of trace minerals in fish blood and tissue by species and age groups.

APPROACE: The fish will be sampled and shipped frozen to the laboratory at regular intervals from 8 hatcheries. All samples will be analyzed for trace mineral content and levels of several metabolic products and enzymes. Results will be related to existing health problem in hatcheries.

005.020[™] CRIS0069239 BEEBDING, PRODUCTION, NUTRITICN AND MARKETING OF CEANNEL CATFISE

 KELLEY J & JF; DEYOE C; KLAASSEN B F; EIOLCGY; KANSAS

 STATE UNIVERSITY, MANBATTAN, KANSAS.

 Proj. No.: KAN00902

 Project Type: STATE

 Agency ID: SAES

 Period: 01 SEP 75 To 30 JUN 80

OEJECTIVES: Obtain quantitative data on the growth rates of selective strains of channel catfish and the reaction of selected strains to different dietary formulations. Identify interaction of growth rates, diets and pond water quality degradation. Cuantify water quality parameters associated with pond degradation and develop methods of maintaining water quality. Develop methods for product storage and flavor quality. APPEOACE: Earthen ponds will be used to replicated experiments to test diets against four strains of channel catfish. Growth rates will be used to compare the effect of diet on strain performance and for between-strain performance using a factorial arrangment of treatments. Full and half sib analysis will be used to compare within-strain performance. Dietary treatments will include evaluation of protein quality and quantity. Effect of diets with different nutrient densities involving nutrients such as vitamins and minerals will be evaluated in relationship to protein levels.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/06. Ponds treated with cohalt chloride as a trace component of fertilizer were not found to produce more channel catfish than control ponds. Cobalt chloride was added to the diet of channel catfish to determine if vitamin B(12) could be spared by the addition of this trace mineral. No significant difference was recorded in growth rates of fish receiving normal amounts of B(12) and those fish receiving cobalt in place of B(12) in purified diets. Significant differences were found in serum proteins hetween three of five populations of catfish. Additional differences in these populations were found in serum esterase patterns. It was concluded that the population of channel catfish in the White Eiver, Arkansas and the Blue River, Kansas, mere different from each other and from the other three populations examined. A domestic population from Arkansas, a domestic population from Kansas and wild population in the Kansas River, Kansas,

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/06 NC PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

005.021 CRISO079383 DEVELOPMENT CF OPTIMUM SUSTAINED VIELD OF FISEES IN FARM PONDS

 KLAASSEN B E; BIOLOGY; KANSAS STATE UNIVERSITY,

 MANBATTAN, KANSAS. 66506.

 Proj.

 Proj.

 Raboli 18

 Project Type: STATE

 Agency ID: SAES

 Period: 01 JUL 79 To 30 JUN 82

OBJECTIVES: Develop and manage methods to achieve a higher usable yield of largemouth hass and bluegill by evaluating the protected range size limit and toatal weight limit as a method to prevent over-haravest of hass and maintain high quality bass yield, testing different levels of bluegill harvest to determine the level which will yield the optimum size structure. Develog low level supplemental feeding programs which will yield desired amounts of channel catfish at minimum cost.

APPROACE: Farm ponds with populations of largemouth bass and bluegill will be used. The bass harvest will be regulated by following a 30 cm to 38 cm protected range size limit along with a 22 kg/ha/yr weight limit. Bluegill will be harvested at three levels: 11, 34, and SO kg/ha/yr. Results will be evaluated by the size structure of fish harvested, population structure of fish in pond (by electrofishing), reproductive success. Some ponds will be stocked only with channel catfish at a rate of 250/ha plus the number of one pound fish desired by the pond owners. They will be fed at amount 3% of hody wt/day. Peed adjustments will be made based on calculated growth. The quota by number will be harvested each year and intermediate replacements stocked. Evaluated by size of fish harvested, cost/pound of fish harvested.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Cne phase of this project deals with evaluating the population structure of largemouth bass and bluegill in nine ponds subjected to three different levels of bluegill harvest. The bass harvest was the same level in all ponds. The study was initiated during the Summer of 1979 so only the ponds with old established populations were harvested. All fish harvested were measured to determine size structure of the catch. Also the pond populations were sampled and the size structure determined. It is too early in the study to present results. The other phase of the project involves low level supplemental feeding of channel catfish in six additional prods. Three harvest goals were set (100, 150, and 200 fish per pond). Calculated amounts of feed were fed three times per week. The harvest goals were not quite reached in the ponds. The fish harvested in most ponds averaged over one pound each. The feed conversion (wt. fed/net wt. harvested) ranged from 1.27 to 2.39.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

NILSON, E.B. and KLAASSEN, E.E. 1980. Aquatic Pest Control; Commercial Pesticide Applicator Certification and Recertification Study Manual. Cooperative Extension Service, Kansas State Univ., Manhattan, 16 pp.

005.022 CRIS0072940 FORMULATION OF POODS FOR AQUATIC ANIMALS OF ECONOMIC IMPORTANCE

NEYERS S P; FOOD SCIENCE; LOUISIANA STATE UNIVERSITY, BATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA. 70803. Proj. No.: LAB01918 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JON 77 To 31 DEC 81

OEJECTIVES: Formulation of nutritionally-halanced diets for various stages of shrimp and prawn growth, especially for larval and juvenile development. Include will be species of marine shrimp (Penaeus), freshwater prawn (Macrobranchium) and crawfish (Procambarus). Use of agricultural and fisheries wastes or byproducts in least-cost grow-out rations for crustacean aquaculture.

APPROACH: Diets and formulations developed and prepared in the Department of Food Science will be tested in cooperative on-going programs with aquaculturists at various sites in this country. Projected areas of continued investigation will include analyses of attractants in diets to enhance chemoreceptor response, studies of modified starches and waterstability of flake/extruded diets, microbial degradation of cellulosic-fiber substrates and diet development for protein-deficient areas, effect of diet on organoleptic qualities of the cultivated animal crop, and transfer of dietary carotenoid pigment to internal/external parts of the fish or crustacea.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Application of the tropical fish Trichogaster leeri as an assay animal for evaluation of carotenoids and carotenoid-containing dietary ingredients has been demonstrated. Nethods of analyses for measurement of fin and integument sites of accumulation of the main repository pigment have been developed and are heing used to assay astaxanthin-rich substrates, such as crawfish wastes, and isolated pigments in flake and extruded formulations for aquatic animals. Oregon Moist Pellet (OMP) diets, fortified with 20% crawfish waste puree, have yielded significant flesh coloration of rainbow trcut as well as coho salmon. Binders useo as water stability agents in larval bullfrog (Rana catesbelana) diets have been evaluated in terms of growth and food conversion as well as features of the hydrocolloids themselves. Levels of solids present and features of the distary ingredients are related to binder performance. The wide application of alginate products is noted in flake and extruded dietary preparations where loss of water-soluble components is critical. A variety of guns have been tested as binding-matric agents for adult bullfrogs. Moist and semi-poist dietary preparations have been shown to possess desirable binding characteristics and water stabilities for as long as 24 hours. Feeding tests have produced useful information on the feeding response and hehavior of bullfrogs.

PUBLICATIONS: S0/01 TO 80/12

- MEYERS, S.P., CULLEY JR., D.D., MARSCHAII, D.G. and MARSHAIL, G.A. 1980. Evaluation of Binders in Larval Bullfrog Diets. J. Aquariculture 1:20-28.
- FEY, N. and MEYELS, S.P. 1980. Evaluation of Carotenoid-Fortified Flake Diets with the Pearl Gorerami Trichogaster leeri. J. Aquariculture 1:15-19.
- MEYERS, S.P. 1980. Water-Stable Extruded Diets and Feeding of Invertebrates. J. Aquariculture 1:44-46.

LIAC, A. 1580. Fabrication of Amphibian Diets Using Louisiana Shrimp and Crewfish Wastes with Selected Binders. N.S. Thesis. La. State Univ., Baton Rouge. 76 pp.

CRISO059059 UTILIZATION CF AQUATIC PLANTS FOR WASTE TREATMENT AND ANIMAL FEEDS

CULLEY D D JF; FORESTRY & WILCLIFE MANAGEMENT; LCUISIANA STATE UNIVERSITY, EATCN HOUGE, LCUISIANA. 70803. Proj. No.: LAE01558 Froject Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 FEE 71 To 15 WAR 80

OEJECTIVES: To determine the feasibility of utilizing aquatic plants for treatment of agricultural and domestic waste by removing nitrogen compounds, phosphates, and various inorganic salts. To determine if plants grown on waste waters have sufficient nutrient value and can be produced in large enough quantities to warrant use as a feed supplement for poultry, swine, cattle, catfish, etc.

APPFOACB: Nutrient value will be determined for various aquatic plants growing under natural conditions. Flants of acceptable nutrient levels will be fed to poultry, swine, catfish, etc. to check for toxic as well as growth responses. Flants that show no signs of toxicity will be placed on water containing agricultural and domestic sewage to see if they will grow. Nutrient analysis will be made for any plants that do grow, and the plants will again be fed to domestic arimals (5-10% of regular rations), to determine if the plants are usable as a food supplement. Water quality changes will be recorded and related to the usefulness of aquatic plants to reduce pollution levels in waste waters.

FRCGRESS: 71/02 TO 80/03. Clones of duckweed Spirodela polyrhiza, S. punctata, Lemna gibba and Wolffia columbiana cultured on dairy waste lagoons gave a mean yield of 23,310 kg/ha/yr dry weight when harvested daily, or 2.3 kg/m²/yr. Maximum yields obtained outdoors in .14 m² tanks was 44,330 kg/ha (4.4m²/yr) dry wt. Daily harvests (25-35% removed/day) gave higher yields than weekly harvests (50% removal). Optimum standing crop density was about 500g/m². Loading rates of fresh manure 10 to 20g/1 of water gave maximum growth and highest proximate analysis in the plants. Mixed duckweed cultures gave higher yields than monocultures due to seasonality of growth. Crude protein averaged 38% dry wt. with a maximum value of over 44%; fats 3-6%, NFE 25-35%, fiber 7-13%, P 2%, K 2.5-5%, Ca 1-2%. The amino acid content was equal or superior to most high protein crops. Annual removal (kg/ha) of plant nutrients by duckweed from waste lagoons was: N. 1375; P, 347; E, 441. Removal efficiency was greater in shallow lagoons. 5.3 ha of duckweed would provide total protein requirements of 200 lactating cows. Preliminary studies on feeding cows (up to 75% of diet) and swine (up to 25% of diet) showed no adverse effects of duckweed, wet or dry. Feeding of poultry broilers and layers showed no adverse effects, equal or improved growth, meat and egg color, and egg production and quality. In vitro digestibility ranged from 70 to 97%.

PUBLICATIONS: 71/02 TO 80/03

- TKAUX, R.E., D. D. Culley, Jr., M. GEIFFITE, W.A. JOBNSON, and J.P. WOOD. 1972. Duckweed for chick feed. Louisiana Agriculture 16(1):8-9. CULLEY, E.E., Jr. and E.A. Epps. 1973. Use of
- duckweed for waste treatment and animal feed. Journal Water Pollution Control 45(2):337-347.
- LAWSCN, T.E., E.J, ERAUD, and F.T. WEATTEN. 1974. Methods of drying duckweed, Lemnaceae. In American Society of Agricultural Engineers. Paper No. 74-3531.
- CULLEY, D.C., Jr., J.B. GBCLSCN, T.S. CBISHCLN, L.C.STANIIFER, and E.A. EPPS. 1578. Water quality renovation of animal waste lagoons utilizing aquatic plants. U.S. EPA Cff. Res. & Dev. EPA-600/2-78-153.

005.024* CRISC083515 LABORATORY CULTURE FOR RESEARCH PURPOSES OF ESTUARINE AND MARINE LOESTERS, CRABS AND SERINGS

TRUESDALE F N: FORESTRY & WILCLIFE MANAGEMENT; LOUISIANA STATE UNIVERSITY, EATON & CUGE, LCUISIANA. 70803. Proj. No.: LAB02159 Project Type: STATE

Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 MAR 81 To 30 JUN 86

OBJECTIVES: Rear decapod larvae (lobsters, crabs and shrimps) of as many Louisiana species as possible, from egg through postlarval stages under defined laboratory conditions. Describe and illustrate the developmental stages of each species reared. Compare laboratory reared larvae with corresponding larvae taken in the plankton.

APPROACE: Egg-bearing crabs and shrimps will be collected at coast-wide Louisiana sites. In the laboratory most specimens will be isolated in aquaria under simulated field conditions until eggs hatch; for large species eggs will be removed and hatched in vitro. Rearing procedures will allow the developmental sequence of each larva to be traced; this will entail isolating individual larvae within plastic tray compartments and examining each daily for evidence of molting. Emough larvae will be reared to investigate three salinity/temperature combinations with replication. Daily data on survival, molting, behavior and morphology will be recorded. Larvae will be transferred to compartments with clean water and fresh food (Artemianauplii) each day. Detailed descriptions and drawings of each developmental stage will be made. Comparative descriptions of closely related species will be made to elucidate oifference. Laboratory-reared specimens will be compared with plankton-caught larvae in order to develop diagnostic guides for fishery researchers.

005.025 ENVIRONMENTAL EFFECTS ON PRODUCTIVITY CF CRAYFISE IN POND BABITATS, PHASE I, II

RCDDY L R; DAVIS C E; BIOLOGY; SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY, BATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA. 70813. Proj. No.: LA.X-PR-0001-8-15-66

Agency ID: CSRS Period: 29 OCT 74 To 28 OCT 79

CEJECTIVES: Determine the type and amount of food that will yield the best production. Determine the most efficient harvesting method in small pends. Investigate an early and extended crayfish season in small pends.

APPROACH: Literature and cooperating personnel will supplement our selection of food types and amount during the feeding season. Standard nets, seins, modified traps and nets will be used. The possible use of chemicals and electric devices will be investigated. Systematic regulation of water will be maintained, to determine the possibility of increase and decrease of water level on an extended season. Statistical analysis will be made.

PROGRESS: 79/01 TC 79/12. Feeding: Data obtained from the crayfish project indicated that feeding and fertilizing had great impact on productivity. Feed with a high protein percentage favored productivity, consequently, fish pellets are highly recommended in the feeding regimen. Barvesting: Four different traps were constructed and placed in water depth of 120, 90, 60 and 30 cm respectively. The total weight of each catch per trap was recorded. Cn the basis of results obtained, Type I trap with 1.5cm mesh wire construction, barrel shape design, 70cm long, 30cm wide with two funnel openings at the bottom is recommended for utilization from January through June. Dual Crop of Crayfish and Fish: 205 fingerlings of hybrid buffalo fish were added to each of the two crayfish ponds. Rice was planted in each pond. None of the fish reached market size over this phase of the investigation but the preliminary results indicate that it is feasible to rear crayfish and these fish in the same pond. Cost Yield Ratio: Based

upon average crayfish price, net profits of \$85.82 in fond I and \$338.83 in Fond II were realized, thereby indicating the feasibility of commercial crayfish production under small pond conditions.

PUBLICATIONS: 79/01 TO 79/12 NC PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

005.026* CRISO080671 NUTRITION MANAGEMENT AND DISEASE OF MARINE ANIMALS

HAYER P C; ANIMAL & VETERINARY SCIENCE; UNIVERSITY OF MAINE, ORONO, MAINE. 04469. Proj. No.: ME08398 Project Type: STATE

Proje No.: ME08398 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUN 79 To 30 SEP 82

OBJECTIVES: Formulate and evaluate minimal cost lobster rations, study gaffkemia in lobsters including vaccine evaluation and study lobster pound management. Compounded lobster baits will also be evaluated.

APPEOACH: Lobsters will be fed diets of various types and growth will be monitored by measuring weight in water and weight in air. Lobsters will be vaccinated with live bacteria so that survival can be measured.

PECGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Practical diets formulated with brewer's yeast, fish meal, kelp meal, alfalfa and wheat flour were fed to adult and juvenile lobsters. The basal diet was supplemented with 20,000, 100,000 and 1,000,000 U.S.F. units of vitamin A per Kg of diet. Growth was greatest in lobsters fed 20,000 U.S.F. units of vitamin A per Kg with growth inhibition seen in lobsters ied the higher level supplements. Adult lobsters were injected with P 3 2 labelled aerccoccus viridans, a fatal lobster pathogen, and the distribution of these bacteria in the animal's body was monitored. The bacteria were primarily phagocytized by the hepatopancreas.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- GALLAGEER, N.L., BAYER, F.C., LEAVITI, D.F. and RITTENBUNG, J.H. 1979. Effects of Protein Energy Ratio on Growth of Adult American Lobsters. Proc. 10th an Neet. World Mariculture Society.
- GALLABGER, N.L., RITTENBURG, J.H., BAYER, R.C. and LEAVITT, D.P. 1979. Incidence of Aerococcus viridans (var.) homari in Natural Crab Populations in Maine Coastal Waters. Crustaceana 37:316-317.
- BAYER, R.C., GALLAGHER, M.L., LEAVITT, D.F. and RITTENEURG, J.B. 1579. A Kadiographic Study of the Lobster (Hemarus americanus) Alimentary Canal. Proc. 10th An. Meet. World Mariculture Society.
- BAYBE, R.C., ADRCN, J.W., MACKIE, A.M., PIRIE, B.J. and RITTENEURG, J.B. 1880. Nechanisms of Food Detection and Feeding Behavior in Dover Sole. Fed. Proc. 38:500.
- HAYER, R.C., GALLAHGEE, M.L., LEAVITT, D.F. and RITTENBUG, J.H. 1980. Requirements for Diet Formulation for Adult Lobsters (Homarus americanus) Held in High Density Confinement. Abst. 72nd Annual Meeting ASAS, p. 186.

005.027* CRIS0083163 BIOSYNTHESIS OF STEROLS IN THE CYSTEP AND CORPELATION OF STEPOL COMPOSITION TO OYSTEP PRODUCTIVITY

 PATTERSON G %; BOTANY; UNIVERSITY CF MARYLAND,

 COLLEGE PAFK, MABYLAND. 20742.

 Proj. No.: MC-J-114

 Project Type: HATCH

 Agency ID: CEES

 Period: 01 JAN 81 To 31 DEC 81

OBJECTIVES: Lata from several sources indicate that oysters synthesize only a fraction of their total sterol. Analysis of fast growing oysters from Cape Batteras indicates that the Chesapeake Bay oyster could, in some cases, be deficient in total sterol composition. Inadequate algae or the wrong king of algae in the diet could cause this deficiency. The extent of sterol biosynthesis in the oyster will be determined. Cysters from different bars with different degrees of success will be compared with respect to their sterol content. "Good food" algae will also be examined to determine which sterols they contribute to the oyster's diet.

APPROACH: Oyster samples will be analyzed by standard methods for sterol composition. These samples will be taken from oyster bars showing a great diversity of characteristics with respect to growth rate, spat set, shell growth, and general health of the oyster. An attempt will be made to correlate stercl composition with these characteristics. To determine if the oyster can synthesize stercls, oyster tissue cultures will be incubated with labeled acetate and the sterols isolated and examined. Algae will be examined for sterol composition to determine if sterols correlate with the desirability of certain algae as oyster food.

005.028⁷ EEHAVIOR ECOLOGY AND RETEBUICITY IN THE ROCE CRAES, CANCER IRROBATUS AND CANCER ECREALIS, PBASE II

REBACH S: UNIVERSITY OF MARYLAND EASTERN SECRE, PRINCESS ANN, NARYLAND. 21853. Prcj. No.: WDX-PE-0001-URP53 Project Type: GRANT Agency ID: CSRS Period: 27 FEE 78 To 26 FEE 83

CBJECTIVES: Determine influence of tidal and/or geophysical rhythms or activity of rock crabs. Determine relative influences of photophase & scotophase on molting of rock crabs. Determine effect of short 6 long day photoperiods on growth, molting & reproduction. Record seasonal distribution of age classes, seres 6 molt stage individuals. Develop optimum diet for growth 6 maintenance 6 develop a delivery system for diet.

APPROACH: Encourage local utilization of rock crab as an alternate or supplement to blue crab. Correlate observed activity rhythms with tidal, barometic, humidity, magnetic flux cycles. Varying length & proportions of light & dark periods to determine influence on molting. Utilizing less than or greater than 24 hour days in laboratory environment. Utilizing tag and recaptire studies at monthly intervals aboard a coastal vessel. Automated system for delivery of optimum protein, fiber & mineral content of presently used nutriticnal pellets will be developed. Interviews, free samples & information on location & abundance of rock crabs might increase local utilization of rock crab meet.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TC 80/12. Previous work (Rebach, 1977, and in preparation) indicates that length of photoperiod and light: dark ratios are controlling factors in courtship, reproduction and molting of the rock crab, Cancer irroratus. The newly opened Crab Lab, a converted 70 foot house trailer, has a water treatment facility and 5 laboratories with running seawater and computer-controlled photoperiods. Tanks and electronic instrumentation have been designed, constructed and tested to allow the test animal to select the duration of light and dark in one laboratory. Total hours of light and dark and light: dark ratios are monitored. Another laboratory allows the animal to control the intensity of illumination. In 1980, after correcting many problems and improving the water delivery and treatment facilities (to produce adequate flow rates to maintain the animals), we were able to introduce our first group of animals. Pilot studies led to further refinement of light control mechanisms in the test tanks. These studies indicated that the animals were able to control the photoperiod and intensity in their respective laboratories. We are now ready to initiate full-scale testing. In order to determine the locations of marketable numbers of animals, a tag-recapture program is planned. However, spaghetti tags injected into the crabs' muscle resulted in a 40% mortality rate in the laboratory. This level is too high for a successful tag and recapture program.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD. JCBNSON E E; FISHERIES & WILDLIFE; MICEIGAN STATE UNIVERSITY, EAST LANSING, MICEIGAN. 48824. Proj. No.: MICL03146 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JAN 74 To 19 FEB 81

OBJECTIVES: Combine dried animal wastes (e.g., poultry wastes) and items from local wastewater ponds into a pellet acceptable for various high yield, low cost fish species grown under intensive culture conditions.

APPROACE: Microplankton and macrophytes will be mechanically harvested from MSU wastewater ponds. Analyses will be made on these and farm animal wastes for components important in fish diets. These products will be processed and combined to form fishfood pellets. Northern climate fishes with potential for high production at low cost will he fed standard commercial diets and experimental pellets. Growth rates, food conversion rates and fish production will be compared, resulting in maximum dietary use of farm animal wastes and biological production from wastewater ponds.

PRCGRESS: 74/03 TO 81/02. Eainbow trout grew well on diets formulated from aquatic plants, crustaceans and poultry wastes. Carp growth on this dlet was Inversely related to quantities of poultry waste. Water quality In a terminal wastewater lake maintained exceptional growth rates for forage and recreational fish without accumulation of harmful levels of toxic materials in fIsh. The growth of cage-reared channel catfish was significantly impared by high pB ard ammonia concentrations in a terminal wastewater prod.

FUBLICATIONS: 74/03 TO S1/02

- JOHNSON, H.E. and DUGGIELD, D.L. 1980. Utilization of Mastewater for Intensive Fish Culture. Project A-082 Completion Report for Office of Water Research and Technology, U.S. Department of Interior. 34 pp.
- DUFFIELD, C.J. 1875. Cage Culture of Channel Catfish, Ictalurus punctatus (Bafineques), In a Tertiary Wastewater Treatment Pond and a Private Pond in Southern Michigan. N.S. Thesis, Mich. State Univ.
- KERNS, C.L. and ROELOFS, E.W. 1977. Foultry Wastes in the Diet of Israeli Carp. Bamidgeh 29(4):125-135.
- EAHE, T.G., KING, D.L., JCHNSCN, H.E. and KEENS, C.L. 1977. Municipal Wastewater Recycling: Production of Algae and Macrophytes for Animal Food and Other Uses. Developments in Industrial Microbiology 18:121-134.
- KERNS, C.L. 1976. The Use of Selected Biological Naterials Froduced by Tertiary Wastewater Treatment Ponds in the Diet of Two Species of Fish. W.S. Thesis, Wich. State Univ., 47 pp.

005.030*

FARM FISH POND MANAGEMENT

CRIS0012991

KEVERN N R; FISBERIES 6 WILDLIFE; MICEIGAN STATE UNIVERSITY, FAST LANSING, MICEIGAN. 48824. Proj. No.: MiCL00064 Agency ID: CSES Period: 22 JUL 44 To 01 JAN 99

OBJECTIVES: EstImate production of plants and animals per unit area or volume of water in farm type ponds, and natural ponds. DetermIne extent fertilization of ponds will increase production of fish food (plankton, irsects) and fish. Devise practical management programs for farm ponds; this ircludes the number of fish to plant and harvest. Detect and measure possible detrimental effects of use of fertilizers in fish ponds.

APPROACH: Weasurement release of stored nutrients in the subaqueous soils by additon of chelating (EDTA, etc.) materials to the waters. Tracing the paths of nutrients added to the waters through tagging nutrients with radioactive tracers ($F^{3/2}$), rates of fixation of rutrients and accumulation of organic material (basic productivity) will be measured by the $\mathsf{C}^{1\,4}$ light-and-dark bottle technic. Input of solar radiation will be measured.

PRCGRESS: 44/07 TO 79/10. The research has contributed signIfIcantly to the management techniques of fish ponds in northern, midwestern areas of the United States. These techniques relate to the stocking densities of fish, the species of fish suitable, fertilization rates for ponds and fish and fish food relationships. Northern ponds must be stocked and fertilized differently than southern ponds in many aspects. Competition among sport versus rough fish in ponds results In reduced growth rates of sport fish when ponds are fertilized. This results apparently from lower dissolved oxyger levels in fertilized ponds. Ealsing of catfish in Michigan for sale is successful when starting the season with advanced fingerlings.

PUBLICATIONS: 44/07 TO 79/10

- GALLOWAY, J. E. AND N. R. KEVERN. 1976. Michigan suckers, their life histories, abundance and potential for harvest. Wich. Sea Grant Tech. Rpt. 53: 46 pp.
- LU, J. D. AND N. R. KEVERN. 1975. The feasibility of using waste materials as supplemental fish feed. Prog. Fish-Cult. 37(4): 241-244.
- BAINES, T. A. 1973. Effects of nutrient enrichment and a rough fish population (carp) on a game fish population (small mouth bass). Trans. Am. Fish. Soc. Vol. 102: 346-354.
- EAHR, T. G., R. C. EALL AND F. F. BOPPER. 1969. Some ecological changes in ponds resulting from treatments of sodIum arsenite and copper sulfate. Michigan Academician, Vol. 1, Nos.3 and 4. EAILS, J. D. AND R. C. BALL. 1976. Response of pond
- FAILS, J. D. AND R. C. BALL. 1976. Response of pond metabolism to sodium arsenite. Papers of Wich. Acad. of Sci., Arts, and Lett., Vol. LI.

CRIS0071472

005.031 CEANNEL CATFISE NUTRITION

WILSON R P; BIOCHEWISTRY; WISSISSIPPI STATE UNIVERSITY, MISSISSIPPI STATE, WISSISSIPPI. 39762. Proj. No.: MIS-0818 Project Type: BATCH Agency ID: CSES Period: 01 CCT 76 To 30 SEP 80

OBJECTIVES: Determine the dietary requirements and interaction for each of the essential amino acids in fingerling hannel catfIsh. In addition, studies will be conducted on the digestion, absorption and metabolism of proteins, amino acids and carbohydrates.

APPROACH: All nutrititional studies will be conducted with small 2-5 Inch fingerling channel catfish in glass aquaria, reared on semi-purlfied diets, with at least 3 replicate groups on each test dlet. The experimental diets will be ormulated to be equivalent to 24% crude protein and 275 kcal/100 g diet. Caseln and gelatin mixtures will be supplemented with L-amino acids to provide the amino acid pattern in 24% hole egg protein. The procedure for diet preparation and storage has already been established in our laboratory and proven satisfactory for the last years. The digestion, absorption and metabolism studies will be conducted by established methods. Preliminary studies n our laboratory have been successful in measuring certain of these parameters.

PROGRESS: 76/10 TO 80/09. A series of growth dtudies have been completed in order to quantitate the amino acid requirements for fingerling channel catfish. The minimal requirements for the ten essential amino acids expressed as a percentage of dietary protein are as follows: arginine 4.3; histidine 1.5; iscleucine 2.6; leucine 3.5; lysine 5.1; methionine 2.3; phenylalanine 5.0; threonine2.3; tryptophan 0.5; and valine 3.0. Additional studies have indicated the following; cystine can replace about 60% of the methionine on a mucle sulfur tasis; DI-methionine was utilized as effectively as L-methionine; methionine hydromy analogue was only 26% as effective as L-methionine; taugine or inorganic sulfate did not replace any of the L-methionine; tyrosine can replace about 50% of phenylalanine; excess tyrosine (up to 10% of diet) was not toxic to the fish; and no apparent argining-lysing could be demonstrated.

Lysine was found to be the first limiting amino acid in most feedstuffs used in commercial catfish feeds. Growth and feed efficiency data fromstudies using peanut meal diets supplemented with feed grade lysine demonstrated that fingerling chanel catfish are able to utilize free amino acids effectively in practical diets. Studies have been initiated to determine the amino acid availability values for several common feed ingredients. These date should assist various researchers in formulating various experimental test diets and assist the catfish industry in formulating least cost rations for catfish.

PUELICATIONS: 76/10 TO 80/09

- WILSON, E.F., POE, W.E., and ROBINSON, E.H. 1980. Stufies on the amino acid availability of common feed ingredients used in catfish ratios. Presented at the annual meeting of Catfish Farmers of American, New Crleans, IA.
- ROBINSON, L.P., POE, W.E., and WILSON, E.P. 1980. Arginine requirement of channel catfish. Fed. Proc. 39: 2786.
- WILSCN, E.F., POE, W.E., and ROBINSON, E.E. 1980. Leucine, isoleucine valine and histidine requirements of fingerling channel catfish. J. Nutr. 110, 627-633.

005.032 CEIS0045643 EVALUATION OF BY-PRODUCTS FROM CATFISE PROCESSING VASTE FOR CATFISE FEED SUPPLEMENTS

WILSON R P; FREEMAN D W; BICCBENISTRY; MISSISSIPPI STATE UNIVERSITY, MISSISSIPPI STATE, MISSISSIPPI. 38762. Proj. No.: 7003-20530-004-A Project Type: COOPERATIVE AGREE. Agency ID: AKS Period: 07 SEP 79 To 30 SEP 81

OBJECTIVES: Evaluate nutritional value for channel catfish fingerlings of concentrated protein, bone meal and oil by-products made from catfish processing waste; recommend practical catfish feed formulations based on optimum use of these by products.

APPROACE: Determine protein efficiency ratio, protein digestibility and amino acid availability in aquaria studies with channel catfish finglings fed several concentrated protein by-products made from catfish processing wastes (heads, viscera and skins) in isonitrogenous, isocaloric semi-purified diets. Evajluate possible adverse effects of added catfish oil and/or bone meal prepared from catfish processing waste. Incorporate acceptable by-products into practical commercial-type catfish feeds and evaluate in aquaria feeding tests.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. This is a specific cooperative agreement between SEA and Wississippi State University to assist the catfish industry in locating suitable uses for by-products made from processing wastes. Initial fingerling feeding tests were made with four by-products as follows: silage with bones, silage without bones, catfish hone meal, and standard menhaden meal (control). Results were disappointing for the silage by-products. Digestible protein for these products was less than 30% apparently due to uncontrolled protein cleavage. Catfish fingerlings cannot utilize short-chain amino acids. Purther work to define this problem has been initiated.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NC PUBLICATIONS SEPORTED THIS PERIOD.

005.033 CHANNEL CATFISE NUTRITION

CEIS0081712

WILSON & P; FOE W E; BIOCBEMISTRY; MISSISSIPPI STATE UNIVERSITY, MISSISSIPPI STATE, MISSISSIPPI. 39762. Proj. No.: MIS-0844 Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 CCT &0 To 30 SEP 85

OBJECTIVES: Determine the protein digestibility and amino acid availability in various foodstuffs for channel catfish and test these in least cost rations. Test various foodstuffs for potential antinutritional factors for channel catfish. Determine the mineral requirements for channel catfish. Investigate various blochemical or metabolic parameters in the catfish as they may be influenced by diet of nutritional status.

APPROACH: The digestibility and availability studies will be conducted with 1.5 to 2 pound fish held in 300 gal raceways and fed the appropriate diet containing the test feed ingredient and 0.5% chromium oxide as an inert marker. Various least-cost formulas will be generated by the computer based on various nutritional restrictions and tested in 3-4 inch triplicate groups of catfish in 29 gal aquaria. The diets will be prepared with a pelleting machine to closely mimic commerically prepared rations. Growth and digestive enzyme studies will be conducted in 29 gal aquaria with 40-50gm catfish to assess the potential of antinutritional factors in various feed ingredients. The mineral requirement studies will be conducted utilizing the same or similar experimental design that was previously used to determine the amino acid requirements.

PROGRESS: 80/09 TO 80/12. The apparent and true amino acid availability values have been determined for the following feed ingredients commonly used in catfish feeds: corn, wheat middlings, rice bran, rice mill feed, soybean meal, peanut meal, cottonseed meal, meat and bone meal and menhaden fish meal. Fingerling channel catfish appear to be more sensitive to the antinutritional factors present in soyhean meal than poultry. Studies are currently being conducted to determine the adverse effects of trypsin inhibitors and flavones in soyhean meal on catfish. Also, studies have been initiated to determine the dietary requirements for Mg, Wn, Zn, Fe and Cu.

PUELICATIONS: 80/09 TC 80/12

- WILSON, R.P., ROBINSON, E.B. and PCE, W.E. 1980. Amino Acid Supplementation of Practical Type Diets for Channel Catfish. Presented at the 9th Annual Fish Feed and Nutrition Workshop, Univ. of Washington, Seattle.
- WILSON, E.P., POE, W.E. and ROBINSON, E.B. 1980. Apparent and True Amino Acid Availabilities of Common Feed Ingredients for Catfish Feeds. Presented at the 9th Annual Fish Faed and
- Nutrition Workshop, Univ. of Washington, Seattle. WILSON, E.P., ROBINSON, E.H. and POE, W.E. 1980. Antinutritional Factors in Catfish Peeds. Presented at the 9th Annual Fish Feed and Nutrition Workshop, Univ. of Washington, Seattle

005.034× FRESEWATEP FOOD ANIMALS

REAGEN R E; ROBINETTE E R; WILSON E P; WILDLIFE 6 FISHERIES SCI; MISSISSIPPI STATE UNIVERSITY, MISSISSIPFI STATE, WISSISSIPPI. 39762.

CEIS0071642

Proje Nos: MIS-0819 Agency ID: CSFS Period: 01 OCT 76 To 30 SEP 81

OBJECTIVES: Develop and improve production and management system for freshwater animals cultured for food. Nutrition, genetics and breeding. Evaluate the economics of production processing and marketing of freshwater food animals. Develop and improve products and processing methods that will enhance marketability and insure quality of cultured freshwater food animals.

APPROACH: Project is multidisplinary with Departments of Hiochemistry, Horticulture, Agricultural Economics, and Wildlife and Fisheries. Least cost rations will be tested in aquaria and one-tenth acre ponds. Genetics parameters, heritability, and genetic correlations estimated for several traits with concurrent selection program. Amino acid requirements on quantitative basis and digestibility of common feed stuffs determined for catfish. Processing methods compared for dress out yield, with standard nutritional values of catfish flesh determined.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Apparent and true amino acid availability values have been determined for the following feed ingredients commonly used in catfist feeds: corn, wheat middlings, rice bran, rice mill feed, soybean meal, peanut meal, cottonseed meal,

meat and bone meal, and menhaden fish meal. Fingerling channel catfish appear to be more sensitive to the antinutritional factors present in soybean meal than poultry. Studies are currently being conducted to determine the adverse effects of trypsin inhibitors and flavones in soytean meal on catfish. Duckweed (Family Lemnaceae) was incorporated at 15 and 20% into isocaloric diets formulated to meet or exceed nutritional requirements of channel catfish. Diets containing duckweed performed as well the control. Cottonseed meal was incorporated into isccaloric diets at 5. 10, 15, 20, and 25% of the basal diet. Growth suppression of channel catfish was noted at the 20 and 25% cottonseed real levels. The procedure for canning tuna-style channel catfish was refined, further data on beat-processing developed. and work was initiated on a consumer acceptance study. Selection of catfish for weight gain, gain in dress out percentage, and decreased percent fat with 25% for high selection and 25% low selection was completed. Fish will be mated at 2 years of age to decrease age at maturity. A Kicro-computer program designed to provide information for Management decision-making bas been developed. This system computes daily feeding rates by pond and projects feeding days to harvest.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- WILSCN, R.P., ROFINSCN, E.B. and FOE, W.E. 1980. Amino Acid Supplementation of Fractical Type Diets for Channel Catfish. Presented 9th Annual Fish Peed and Nutrition Workshop. Univ. of Washington, Scattle.
- WILSCN, F.F., POE, W.F. and RCHINSCN, E.F. 1580. Apparent and True Amino Acid Availabilities of Common Feed Ingredients for Catfish Feeds. Presented 9th Annual Fish Feed and Nutrition Workshop. Univ. of Washington, Seattle.
- WILSON, R.F., ROFINSCN, E.H. and POE, W.E. 1980. Antinutritional Factors in Catfish Feeds. Presented 9th Annual Fish Feed and Autrition Workshop. Univ. of Washington, Seattle.
- WALDROP, J.E. and SMITH, R.D. 1980. An Economic Analysis of Producing Pond-Raised Catfish for Food in Mississippi: A January 1980 Update. Dept. of Ag. Economics Research Report No. 103, July.

005,035 CFIS0083555 PRACTICAL FEED FORMULATIONS AND FEEDING FRACTICES FOR CATFISE FARMING IN MS

EUSCH R L: TUCKEF C S; RCBINETTE B R; DELTA EFANCH EXPERIMENT STA; MISSISSIPPI STATE UNIVERSITY, STCNEVILLE, MISSISSIFPI. 38776. Proj. No.: MIS-0852 Agency ID: CSFS Period: 18 FEE &1 To 28 FEE &3

OBJECTIVES: Evaluate the practical application of computer derived least cost ration formulations in catfish production ponds; compare experimental rations developed from the most current catfish nutrition information available to a standard commercial ration used tbroughout the industry; evaluate any effects of peanut meal as a feed ingredient on the shelf life of processed fish; evaluate diet formulation for winter feeding regimes in catfisb production ponds.

APPECACE: Experimental rations will be formulated and compared to currently used commercial rations in both summer and winter feeding studies for channel catfish. Research will be conducted with both fingerling and market-size channel catfish cultured in.04/ha earthen pends.

005.036 CFIS0073179 ANALYSIS OF THE MARKET POTENTIAL FOR FRESH WATER AQUACULTURAL PRODUCTS PRODUCED IN NEWADA

GAFRETT J &; TAYLOR E L; AGRI & RESOURCE ECONOMICS; UNIVERSITY OF NEVADA, RENO, NEVADA. 89557. Proj. No.: NEV00270 Agency ID: CSRS Project Type: BATCH Period: C1 JUL 77 To 30 SEP 80

CEJECTIVES: Determine the cost and availability of byproduct food stuffs for feeding cattish and shring in Nevada. Estimate the demand for catfish, shring and plants produced in fresh warm water ponds. Estimate the marketing marging for fresh water products and estimate marketing constrairts placed on fresh water products by the institutional trade.

APPROACH: Availability and costs will be estimated for byproduct feeds which prove feasible as shrinp and catfish food in a large scale pilot production study. Nevada brokerage firms, and if necessary California processing firms, will be surveyed to ascertain the possibility of marketing live shrimp. These firms will also be interviewed to determine existing marketing margins for different types of products handled by these firms. A similar procedure will be followed for catfish and freshwater plants that might be complementary to shrimp and catfish.

PRCGRESS: 77/01 TO 80/09. Eudgetary analysis of production costs of freshwater shring produced in 10 one-acre plots reflect a cost of \$2.23 per lb. live weight at production levels experienced in the experiment. (About 2,000 lbs. per acre.) Increased feeding levels and other management practices could possibly raise production to 3,000 lbs. or even 4,000 lts. per acre. Production costs for these levels were estimated to be \$1.60 and \$1.31 per lb., respectively. Four marketing alternatives were considered: Whole live, whole fresh, fresh; headless and frozen headless. Processing costs for the first two alternatives were negligible, but both headless process required substantial capital investment and operating costs. Costs for processing 20,000 lts. of live shrimp were \$7.79 for fresh teadless and \$7.91 for frozen beadless. Thus, at current production. levels, total cost of producing fresh headless shrimp would be \$12.15 per lbs. Even doubling the production level to 40,000 lb. would only reduce the total cost per 1b. of product to \$6.53--well above the current wholesale price of \$4.50. Production of live or fresh whole fresh-water shrimp does appear to be a viable pursuit for persons with a source of hot water providing they can develop a ready market for the product.

PUELICATIONS: 77/01 TO 80/09 CNYEAGBAKC, C. 1979. Marketing Alternatives of the Grant Walaysian Prawn (Nacrobrachium rosenbergii), N.S. Thesis, University of Nevada-Reno.

005.037* CRIS0065603 SALMON CULTURE - DEVELOPMENT OF NUTRITIONAL AND DISEASE CONTROL PROGRAMS

STROUT R G; ANIMAL SCIENCE; UNIVERSITY OF NEW HAMPSBIRE, DUEHAM, NEW HAMPSHIFE. 03824. Proj. No.: NH00227-S Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 73 To 30 SEP 78

OBJECTIVES: Determine protein level required for feeding at a constant calorie to protein ratio. Determine minimum level of fishmeal without reducing growth. Determine the critical nutrients supplied by fishmeal. Develop an effective autogenous polyvalent bacterin of Vibrio anguillarum that will withstand laboratory and field challenge.

APPROACH: Because basically the study involves calorie-protein ratios, initially protein levels will be studied at a constant calorie-protein ratio. Sources of protein will be investigated, particularly in an attempt to lower the quantity of fishmeal used, and to make use of cheaper protein sources. Diets will be studied in both fresh and saltwater rearing programs, and results will be evaluated primarily by growtb and feed conversion. Control of vibriosis in sea water reared salmon will be attempted in 2 ways: immunization of the fish using an autogenous bacterin, and investigationn of anti-biotic efficacy against Vibrio anguillarum. Killed bacterins will be administered parenterally or orally, and the immun response measured by challenge. Antibiotic activity, screened initially in vitro, will be verified orally in vivo.

PROGRESS: 73/07 TO 78/09. Atlantic sammon (Salmo salar) were found to be as susceptible as coto salmon (Oncortynctus kisutch) to Maine-New Bamphire strains of Vibrio anguillarum used in both injection and water transmission exposure. Exposure to 1-2.5x10⁵ organisms/ml of one strain (569) in the water for 1 hr. killed fish of both species at 10°C and 15°C. Should similar water exposure conditions occur in Maine estuaries newly released Atlantic salmon smots may incounter lethal levels of V. anguillarum. The organism causing bacterial kedney disease (KD) in sammonid fistes is a slow growing gram positive rod (perhaps genus Corynebacterium) on laboratory media supplemented with cysteine. However, these bacteria grow readily in rainbow trout gonad (RTG-2) cell cultures, using Eagles Minimum Essential Medium Plus 10% newborn calf serum, without antibiotics. Cultures initiated from laboratory media or diseased fish kidneys grow equally well and in six days essentially cover the cell monolayer. No valid data were obtained from the feeding experiment this year because the stock was decimated by kidney disease. This disease is not unvmmcn in fish culture and unfortunately there is no known cure or effective treatment. Treatment with the antibiotic terramycin and with a greatly elevated level os vitamin C (1000 m_2/k_2) were without effect. Vibrio sp. was isolated from lobsters (Bomorus americanus) reared in captivity.

PUBLICATIONS: 73/07 TO 78/09

STROUT, F. G., E. S. SAWYER AND B. CCUTERMARSE.
1978. Pathogenic vibrios in confinement-reared and feral fishes of the Maine-New Hampshire coasts. J. Fish. Res. Borad Can. 35:403-406.
SAWYER, E., R. G. STRCUT ANC B. COUTERMARSE. 1979. Pathogenic vibrios conComparatiave susceptibility of Atlantic salmon (Salmo salar) and Coto Salmon.

005.038 CRIS0075225 INTENSIVE CULTURE OF THE WALLEYE (PERCIDAE: STIZOSTEDION WITHEUM)

NICEUM J G; NATURAL RESOURCES; CORNELL UNIVERSITY, ITBACA, NEW YORK. 14853. Proj. No.: NYC-147382 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JAN 78 To 31 DEC 80

OBJECTIVES: Develop started and production diets for walleyes based upon the nutrient content of walleye eggs and/or hody tissues. compare growth and survival of walleye fry and fingerlings fed experimental diets with growth and survival of fry and fingerlings fed live diets. Extermine the combination of environmental conditions which obtains the highest survival and most rapid growth of walleye fry and fingerlings. Monitor any histological and/or chemical differences in the tissues of walleye fry and fingerlings reared on various diets. Evaluate the relative economic energy and nutrient efficiencies of intensive walleye culture versus extensive walleye culture.

APPEOACE: Experimental diets will be developed in collaboration with the Tunison Laboratory of Fish Nutrition. All growth and survival tests will be conducted in triplicate in running water systems at temperatures between 10°C and 21°C. "Mini"-troughs of six-liter capacity will be used. Lots of 200 walleye fry or 30 walleye fingerlings will be used and feeding trials will be scheduled for 10 weeks. Fish will be fed at five minute intervals with automatic feeders. Five fish from each lot will be selected for histological and pathological analyses. Total costs in terms of nutrients, energy, and money will be determined and compared with thnse incurred in rearing walleyes under extensive conditions.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Intensive culture of walleye through all stages of their early life history requires knowledge of the factors effecting the successful conversion of post hatch larvae to artificial or natural diets. Massive mortality of fry usually occurs as they fail to initiate feeding. This study has assessed the role of available energy in the yolk sac to larval development and the role of feeding initiation in increased survival of fry in cylindrical rearing units. Caloric energy deficits occur in fry at 7 days (20 degrees C) but no survival differences were detected in fish which initiated feeding at 2, 4, or 6 days of age. Death due to starvation occurred at 14 and 21 days for walleye fry held at 17 and 20 degrees C respectively. Survival and growth of juvenile walleye were strongly influenced by the shape of the rearing unit and direction of water flow within the unit. Significantly better results were obtained in hatching jars with an upwelling flow of water in comparison to troughs. Better performance of the cylindrical units could be attributed to two factors: improved food suspension time and reduced competition for food.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- CORAZZA, L. 1980. Intensive Culture of Walleye: Factors Affecting the Ability of Juveniles to Utilize a Dry Diet. Ph.D. Thesis, Curnell Univ. 78 pp.
- JAHNCKE, M. 1980. Selected Factors Influencing Mortality of Walleye Fry in Intensive Culture. N.S. Thesis, Cornell Univ. 45 pp.

005.039* CEIS0074023 A COMPARISON OF THE ACCUMULATION FATES OF P ABSORED BY THE VITAL ORGANS OF FISE

VICK A; BIOLOGY; AGRIC & TECH UNIVERSITY CF N C, GREENSBORC, NCRTH CARCLINA. 27412. Proj. No.: NC.X-PR-0006-20094 Project Type: GRANT Agency ID: CSRS Period: 26 SEF 77 To 25 SEP 82

OBJECTIVES: Note whether solid or dissolved forms of p^{32} in the medium vary in absorption rates of the material in the organs of fish determine the tolerance level of p^{32} in Gamhusia during different seasons of the year.

APPROACE: Quantities of minnows will be collected periodically from nearly farms ponds and streams and maintained in acquaria for observation and study. Three ten gallon acquarium tanks will be filled with pond water from which the specimens are taken. The tanks will be labeled "experimental liquid" "experimental solid" "controled". A daily record will be taken of the room temperature and temperature of each tank. Likewise, the daily pB for each tank and the concentration of p^{32} for the "experimental" and "snlid" tanks. (Note: The concentrations of the liquids in these two tanks should be identical). An adequate quantity of specimens will be placed in each tank and at three day intervals. Ten specimens from each tank will be sacrficed and dissected to obtain such vital organs as the eye, brain, gills, heart, liver, skin, kidney, hody muscle, gonad, and vertebrae, Each of these organs will be thoroughly dehydrated in a drying oven followed hy pulverization. Small aliquot portions of each of the samples will be weighed and tested by the use of equipment manufactured by Searle Analytic. Inc.

PROGRESS: 80/03 TC 81/02. This is a summrized statement of the results of an investigation of a comparison of the accumulation rates of radioactive phosphorus absorbed by the vital organs of fish fed treated solid food to the rates of those imbibing the isotope dissolved directly in water. The experimental results obtained to date by the use of model 470 gas flow detector, modle 1042 automatic sample changer and model 8703 decade scaler from Searle Analytic, Inc., are as follows: The kidney, heart, and liver respectively absorbed 1.3 times as much radiation as did similar organs of organisms absorbing the isotope dissolved directly in water; The brain, gonad, vertebrae and gills absorbed 1.4 times as much as did the respective organs of specimens receiving the dissolved form; The skin absorbed 1.5 times as much as its counterpart; The eye 1.6 times as much and the muscle 1.3 times the accumulation as its respective counterpart. Bence, on the basis of these results it may be concluded that it is well worthwhile to dissolve waste (32-P) before disposal.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/03 TO 81/02

VICK, A.E. 1978. A Comparison of the Accumulation Rates of Radioactive Phosphorus in Certain Vital Organs of Fish (Gambusia affinis): The Research Bulletin Series, Summer, North Carolina Agricultural and State University.

005.040 BIOLOGICAL FEASIBILITY OF INTENSIFIED OVSTEP CULTOPE

 BREESE W P; FISHERIES 6 WILDLIFE; OREGON STATE

 UNIVERSITY, CORVALLIS, CREGON S7331.

 Froj. No.: OKEU0338

 Project Type: STATE

 Agency ID: SAES

 Period: 01 JUL 75 To 30 JUN 81

OBJECTIVES: Cut-hay culture will investigate the biological and economic feasibility of pond or raceway culture under controlled conditions. This will yield data on the influence of parameters such as water volumes, currents and seeding density on oyster growth. Efforts will also be made to correlate changes in available natural food, as measured by dissolved and particulate organic carbon and nitrogen, with changes in oyster growth. These studies may also encourage investors by demonstrating the reduced threat to culture facilities from floods, winds and storms.

APPSGACE: Batchery-produced seed oysters will be placed on the bottom of commercial oyster growing grounds, on oyster growing trays and on experimental rafts. The growth and survival of these oysters will be monitored over a two-year period beginning in the spring of 1975. These data will provide a means of evaluating the relative efficiency and productivity of the various culture methods. Concurrent with the placement of seed oysters in the field, oysters from the same brood group will be held in an existing out-bay rearing port provided with pumped seawater. The growth and survival of these oysters will be monitored for comparison with other rearing methods. Refinement of the out-bay culture method will be a continuing process.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Cultchless seed was again planted in Tillamook Bay. As we have had no ice or adverse weather to date, growth and survival data should be collected in the Spring of 1981. Crassostrea rivularis has been accepted by some of the growers and eyed larvae andseed are available from two commercial hatcheries. Monthly sampling of the Kumamoto oyster is complete. Three years of data shows this oyster to mature later in the year. As this oyster is a warm water spawner (25 degrees C), this data agrees with our laboratory data which says low temperature delays sexual maturation hut does not affect the rate of maturation. For the second year we have successfully spawned this oyster in late summer. Eyed larvae as a seed source is gaining popularity. A failure of domestic wild seed has increased the interests in hatchery seed. Techniques for handling eyed larvae are being perfected. Four hatcheries are now producing eyed larvae for sale. Communication. Held a workstop in Astoria for Oregon and Washington growers to explain the eyeo larvae technique for obtaining syster seed. Visited the interested growers and helped them with the technique of setting eyed larvae.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- LANNAN, J.F. 1980. Broodstock Management of Crassostrea gigms I. Genetic and Environmental Variation in the Larval Rearing System. Aquaculture 21:323-336.
- LANNAN, J.E., ROBINSCN, A.M. and BREESE, W.P. 1980. Broodstock Wanagement of Crassostrea gigas II. Broodstock Conditioning to Maximize Larval Survival. Aquaculture 21:337-345.
- IANNAN, J.E. 1980. Broodstock Management of Crassostrea gigas III. Selective Breeding for Improved Larval Survival. Aquaculture 21:347-351.

LANNAA, J.E. 1980. Broodstock Wanagement of Crassostrea gigas IV. Inbreeding and Larval Survival. Aquaculture 21:353-356.

MURANANKA, M.S. 1980. Broodstock Management of the Pacific Cyster Crassostrea gigas (Thunherg), M.S. Thesis. Cre. State Univ., 55 pp. 005.041 NUTRITION OF SALMONID FISHES

CRAWFORD D L; LAW D E; FOOD SCIENCE & TECHNOLOGY; OBEGON STATE UNIVERSITY, CORVALLIS, OBEGON. 97331. Proj. No.: ORE00826 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 20 JUL 66 To 31 DEC 80

OBJECTIVES: Investigate the fundamental nutrition of hatchery salmonids. Further develop and improve, hoth nutritionally and economically, the Oregon Moist Pellet. Develop a nutritionally adequate and physically available starter diet for young salmonids.

APPROACE: A completely purified diet for salmonid which will produce growth responses as good or hetter than the Oregon Moist Pellet (OMP) for investigation of the fundamental nutritional requirements of salmonids will be developed. Experiments will he conducted to expand the body of knowledge about the vitamin, mineral, amino acid, and fatty acid requirements of salmonids. The purified diet will he used to evaluate new, more nutritional and economical sources of protein for use in formulating the C.M.P. Modifications in the composition of the O.M.P. to enhance its manufacturing, feeding, and nutritional qualities will be investigated. Means of preserving the C.M.F. hy methods other than freezing will be investigated. Basic methods of evaluating nutritive value and quality will be investigated to provide a more critical criteria for evaluating the quality of the OMP. A nutritionally sound and physically available starter diet for juvenile salmonids will he developed.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TC 80/12. Cooperative efforts with the Oregon Department of Fish and Wildlife accomplished research which supported improved production, cost and nutrition in the Oregon pellet feed system. Corn and soyhean oil supplements were replaced with fish oil providing superior dietary fatty acids. Chemical indices for the quality of fish oil were correlated with growth. Efforts allowed the use of fillet carcass waste, hake and meals of anchovy, hake and menhaden providing flexibility to specifications. Evaluations of oil seed meals as substitutes for fish protein showed limitations related to availability and/or stress to body functions. Wet heat processing and/or enzymatic modification coupled with dietary mineral and amino acid supplementation failed to improve availability. A phosphoric acid-potassium sorbate stabilization system was developed for wet fish components reducing storage costs. The relationship between dietary ascorbic acid and destruction (production and storage) to body status was estimated. Protected sources of ascorbic acid at appropriate levels were evaluated for the feed system. Fish protein and fat energy levels required for optimum growth in warm and cold water conditions were determined. Two high quality ration concepts based on fish meal, poultry by-product meal and fish press cake were developed and evaluated (laboratory and hatchery scale) to entance fish survival.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- CRAWFORD, D.L. and LAW, D.K. 1972. Mineral Composition of Cregon Pellet Production Formulations. The Prog. Fish-Cult. 34(3):126-129.
- CRAWFORD, D.L., LAW, D.K., MCKFF, T.B. and WESIGATE, J.W. 1973. Storage and Nutritional Characteristics of Modifled Oregon Moist Rations as an Intermediate-moisture Product. The Prog. Fish-Cult. 35(1):33-38.
- CRAWFORD, D.L., LAW, D.K., MCKFF, T.F. and WESTGATE, J.W. 1974. Nutritional Characteristics of Oregon Pellet Rations Containing Weals of Different Fish Species. The Prog. Fish-Cult. 36(1):3-7.
- WESTGATE, J.W., MCKEE, T.B., CRAWFOID, C.L. and LAW, D.K. 1976. Nutritional Effects of Using "Salty" Herring Meal in Cregon Moist Pellets. The Prog. Fish-Cult. 38(2):118-115.

005.042 CRISO078971 USE OF NUTFIENT CONTAINING LIPID VESICLES AS A FOOD SOURCE FOR SEELLFISH OF PACIFIC NORTHWEST

SELIVONCHICK D P; FOOD SCIENCE & TECHNCICGY: CREGON STATE UNIVERSITY, COEVALLIS, CREGON. 97331. Proj. No.: OFE06417 Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 09 MAY 79 To 08 MAY 82

OBJECTIVES: Determine the feasibility of using lipid vesicles (liposome) for feeding juvenile Facific oyeters in culture. Make comparieons between the digestion of live algae and lipid vesicles. Determine the potential to use lipid vesicles as a means of studying nutritional requirements in oysters. Determine the applicability of the lipid vesicle ration to other suepension feeders, i.e. crabs and shrimp. Determine the feasibility of applying this artificial ration to the study of food chain relationships and environmental toxicants.

APPECACH: Lipid vesicles containing amino acids will be prepared for egg-lecithin and fed to juvenile Pacific oysters in an artificial system. Acceptance and digestion of the vesicles and its contents will be monitored by radiotracer techniques. Growth and development of the oystere fed the liposomal diet will be monitored by radiotracer techniques. Growth and development of the oystere fed the liposomal diet will also be compared to oysters on live food sources. These data should provide information in order to determine the feasibility of using lipid vesicles for growing shellfish in intensive culture systeme.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. The ingestion, uptake and metaboliem of liposomes by juvenile Pacific oysters (Craseostrea gigas were studied by several methods in an effort to assess their potential as encapsulating agents. Liposomes composed of egg phosphatidylcholine-cholesterol-sterylamine (7:1:2) formed readily and appeared stable in $20^{\circ}/00$ seawater. Radiotracer studies with liposomes made with [14C]-labelled cholesterol or ['4C]-pboephatidyl-choline showed substantial uptake of the label throughout the oyster with a high level of label found in the epithelial cells of ducts and tubules of the digestive diverticula from animale fed [¹4C]-labelled phosphatidyl choline. To examine metabolism of liposome encapsulated substances, $[^{1}4C]$ -glucose and $[U^{1}4C]$ -amino acids were entrapped and fed to oysters. Label from glucoee appeared largely in a chloroform-methanol insoluble fraction, while most label from amino acide were recovered in trichloroacetic acid-precipitable protein. Further evidence for intracellular uptake of lipoeomes were obtained with fluorescence microscopy after feeding oysters liposomes containing bovine serum albumin conjugated with fluorescein isothiocynate. The ingestion, intracellular uptake, and breakdown of liposomes and their contents indicatee a use for these particles in studiee of nutrition or pollutant-food web relationships in bivalve molluecs or other filter-feeding organisms.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

005.043 CRIS0064572 OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF THE REPATICMA LABORATORY

SINNHUBER F C; FOOD SCIENCE & TECHNOLOGY; CREGON STATE UNIVERSITY, COEVALLIS, OREGON. 97331. Proj. No.: OEE00233 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 72 To 01 JAN 99

OBJECTIVES: Frovide for the operation and maintenance of the Food Toxicology and Nutrition Laboratory at Corvallis, Oregon.

APPEGACE: The Food Toxicology and Nutrition Laboratory provides unique research facilities for conducting experiments in food toxicology and nutrition using rainbow trout und other salmonids as experimental animals. This laboratory provides opportunities for basic and applied research in protecting man's food supply and understanding his nutritional requiremente. PROGRESS: 79/01 TO 79/12. Service Project -- no report required.

PUBLICATIONS: 79/01 TO 79/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

005.044 CFIS0066726 UTILIZATION OF PROTEIN INGREDIENTS IN FISE FATIONS

YU T C: SINNHUHER E O; FOOD SCIENCE & TECHNOLOGY: OREGON STATE UNIVERSITY, CORVALIS, OREGON. 97331. Proj. No.: ORE00195 Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 17 CCT 74 To 31 DEC 82

OBJECTIVES: Feasibility of reducing consumption of fish meal and other animal protein ingredients in fish ratione by Utilization of new and/or little used proteins to replace fish meal and other animal proteins in fish rations, maximum use of dietary lipids and carbohydrates to spare protein and satisfy the energy requiremente of fieh.

APPROACH: Algae, fungal, and leaf proteins will be obtained. Treatmente, if needed, will be conducted to inactivate undesirable ingredients, feeding experiments with rations containing these proteins will be conducted. Fish weight gain, mortality, feed conversion and protein efficiency ratio (PER) will be calculated. Different levels of marine lipids and animal fats will be incorporated in fish rations to supply adequate quantities of omega 3 fatty acide and energy for fish. Utilization of carbohydratee for energy will be determined. The minimum and optimum levels of protein in rations containing varying levels of lipid and carbohydrates will be determined.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. A trout feeding experiment was conducted to study the nutritional quality of plant proteins when used for partial replacement of the expensive animal proteins in fish diets. Several eoybean products were evaluated. These were two samples of soy protein isolatee (\$2% protein), tempeh, a fermented soybean product, extracted tempeh (about 70% of fat removed), cooked soybean, unfermented. Eight test diets were prepared using these proteins to replace 22 to 44% of animal protein in fish diets. Each test diet was fed to duplicate groups of rainbow trout for 14 weeks. The results indicated that replacing 22% of dietary animal protein by soy protein isolates did not reduce the growth rate of fish. However, replacement of 33 and 44% significantly reduced the fieh growth. Trout reluctantly accepted the diet containing 22% protein from cooked soybean. Fermentation of th same soybean by Rhizopus oligosporus removed the grassy taste and improved the acceptability of the diet and the fish growth was significantly greater than that of the unfermented soybean diet. Calculation of the feed efficiency (fish wt. gain/wt. of dry feed consumed) showed that the all animal protein control diet wae 1.20; diets containing 22% protein isolates 1.15 and 1.17; extracted tempeh diet 1.03; unextracted tempeh 0.99; 33 and 44% soy protein isolates diets 1.00 and the unfermented soybean 0.99. Fish mortality was low (0.5-3.0%).

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

005.045* FEESHWATEE FOOD ANIMALS CRIS0076533

MCGINTY A S; ANIMAL INDUSTRY; UNIVERSITY OF PUERTC RICO, RIO PIEDEAS, FUERTC BICO 00928. Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSES Period: 14 SEP 78 To 30 SEP 81

OBJECTIVES: Develop and improve production and management systems for freshwater animals cultured for food: Nutrition, genetics and breeding and culture systems.

APPROACH: Experiments will be designed to determine practical feeds for Tilapia spp. under tropical conditions. Digestibility coefficients for these diets will be determined for each species. Development and evaluations of suitable breeding and sexing techniques for mass production of Tilapia species and monosex hybrids. Determine optimum stocking densities and growth of Tilapia spp. in cage cultures and ponds sutilizing supplementary feeding and/or pond fertilization. Flavor and texture of the fish. (fresh and processed) will be determined by organoleptic tests.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Six 1 m 3 floating cages were suspended in three 0.1 ha ponds and stocked with either 150, 300, 45J, or 650 Tilapia nilotica fingerlings (75 to 125 mm/long) per cage. At least one of these densities was either fed a 30% protein sinking pellet at a rate of 4% total body weight dally, six days per week, or not fed. This preliminary study was conducted for 77 days at which time the fish from each cage were weighed and measured. Fish that were not fed merely maintained their initial stocking weight, regardless of density. Fish fed 4% daily gained 0.77, 0.70, 0.59, and 0.53 g/day in cages stocked with 150, 300, 450, and 600 fish/cage, respectively. This indicated T. nilotica fed a complete ration grew at a slower rate in cages when stocked at higher densities. The above preliminary study indicates the need to determine the optimum stocking density of T. nilotica in cages. The effects of pond size may also be important and needs to be studied in conjunction with density. An experiment will be conducted during 1981 to determine these effects. Cages will be suspended in pends of either 0.70 ha or 0.16 ha and stocked with either 250, 500, 750, or 1000 fingerlings/cage. All fishes will be fed an equal percentage of the total body weight per cage.

FUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

005.046 CRISO066637 THE TREATMENT AND USE OF WASTE PRODUCTS AND CHEWICALS IN THE DIBT OF AQUATIC ANIMALS

SINFSON K L; LEE T C; CHICHESTER; FOOD & RESOURCE CHEMISTER; UNIVEESITY OF RHODE ISLAND, KINGSTON, RHODE ISLAND. 02881. Proj. No.: R100015 Agency ID: CSRS Period: 03 OCT 74 To 30 SEP 80

OBJECTIVES: Feed crab waste & evaluate it as a feed supplement for trout & salmon. Experiment with microwave energy as an alternate method of cooking crab sections. Utilization of the waste product will determine the value of the process to the producer. We propose to synthesize epoxy canthaxanthin & determine the effect of these alkylating agents on trout. Evaluate citrus peels that have been processed as a feed supplement to some aquatic animals.

APPROACE: Diets for trout & salmon have been developed & in some cases commercial rations are available. The materials to be tested will either be adsorbed on prepared diets or incorporated into defined diets. Where the best diet is at present unknown the effect of various test diets will have to be determined by looking at growth rate & the condition of various organs. An attempt will be made to determine the point of deposition of various compounds that are added. Fish necropsy will be performed to determine abnormal effects particularly with the addition of epoxy canthaxanthin. Microwave energy cooking & thawing will be used as an alternative means of processing crab. The waste material from this will be compared with conventionally cooked material.

PRCGRESS: 74/10 TO 80/09. The deposition of carotenoid pigments was studied in the frestwater prawn with and without eyestalk ablation. Ablated prawn fed a pigmented diet showed a significant increase in pigmentation over the nonablated controls fed pigmented diets. The major pigment in the flower Adonis aestivalis was proved to be astaxanthin diester. The diester was completely characterized to the SS' chiral form. The whole flower fed to rainbow trout proved to be toxic hut an extract showed good pigmentation. Fatty acid analysis proved that the ester is hydrelyzed and resynthesized in the trout skin. Adonis flowers represent the only plant source of the salmon pigment. In an effort to assess the cause of some brine shrimp supporting growth and survival of larval fish, Artesia were contaminated with environmental levels of cischlordane and dieldrin. These Artemia were fed to winter flounder. No mortalities were observed but lower growth was noted. Some increased lipid metabolism was seen and some metabolism of the chlorinated hydrocarbons was suggested.

PUBLICATIONS: 74/10 TO 80/09

- SCHAUER, P.S., JOHNS, D.M., OLNEY, E.E. and SINPSON, K.L. 1980. Lipid Level, Energy Content and Fatty Acid Composition of Newly Hatched Nauplii. In: The Brine Shrimp Artemia. Eds., Persoone, G. et al., Universa Press, Wetteren
- SEIDE L, C.R., KRYZNOWEK, J. and SIMPSON, K.L. 1980. Amino Acid Composition and Electrophoretic Protein Patterns of Artemia. In: The Brine Shrimp Artemia. Eds. P ersoone, G., et. al., Universa Press, Wetteren (Helgium). 2:375-382.
- SOEJIMA, T., KATAYAMA, T. and SIMPSCN, K.L. 1980. Carotenoid Composition of Seven Geographical Strains of Artemia. In: The Erine Shrimp Artemia. Eds. Persoone, et al., Universa Press, Wetteren (Belgium). 2:613-622.
- MCLEAN, S. 1980. Effects of Cis-chlordane and Dieldrin on the Short Food Chain Artemia to Winter Flounder. M.S. Thesis, University of Rhode Island.

005.047 CRIS0082925 EFFECT OF DIET QUALITY ON AQUATIC ANIMALS

SIMPSON & L; CINEY C E; FOOD SCIENCE & TECHNOLOGY; UNIVERSITY OF EHODE ISLAND, KINGSTON, RHODE ISLAND. 02881. Proj. No.: RI00021 Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSES Period: 01 NOV 80 To 30 SEP 83

OFJECTIVES: Assess the effect of temporal and sampling site variations on the chlorinated hydrocarbons, fatty acids and protein electtophoretic patterns of Artemia from the San Francisco/San Pablo Bays. Assess the variation within commercial lots of Artemia. Develop Artemia as a vehicle to deliver specific nutritional components and/or contaminants to pre- and post-metamorphosed winter flounder. Determine the individual and combined effects of cis-chlordane, dieldrin and long chain fatty acids on growth and survival of winter flounder fed Artemia. Verify a method of "fingerprinting" Artemia populations by isoelectric focusing. Develop and test new sources of astaxanthin for salmonid and crustacean culture.

APPROACH: Artemia from commercial and personal collections will be typed by published \mathcal{E} developed procedures for fatty acids, pesticides and electrophoretic patterns GLC/integrators and isoelectric focus equipment will be used. Astaxanthin ester from Adonis flowers will be fed to trout and the color and toxicity if any noted Artemia with specific levels chlorination hydrocarbons and fatty acids will be fed to winter flounder larva.

005.048* FRESEWATER FOOD ANIMALS

CRIS0071761

 FCLTZ J W; EVERSOLE A G; FOLTZ J W; ENTOMOLOGY 6

 ECONOMIC ZOOLOGY; CLEMSON UNIVERSITY, CLEMSON, SCUTH

 CAROLINA. 29631.

 Proj. No.: SC00241

 Project Type: EATCH

 Agency ID: CSRS

 Period: 01 OCT 76 To 30 SEP 81

OBJECTIVES: Develop and improve production and managemeant systems for freshwater animals cultured for food. Nutrition, water quality, diseases and culture systems. Evaluate the economics of production processing and marketing of freshwater food animals. APPEACE: Parasites, nutrition and growth of American eels will be investigated in natural and cultured populations. Tolerance of eels to chemicals commonly used in fish culture will be studied. Nutritional requriements and growth of tilaria and basses will be investigated by feeding diets containing varying percentages of protein and different amino acid mixtures. Effects of waterborne quantities of insecticides (Mirex) on production of freshwater prawns will also be investigated. economics of a state-operated hatchery for Macrobrachium rosenbergli will be investigated. Cooperate involvement in freshwater shrimp culture is not anticipated in South Carolina, but a cottage industry may be assisted by receiving post larvae or juveniles from the state.

PECGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. A feeding regime for channel catfish; which takes into account water tempsrature and body size was tested again during 1980. Results described herein represent data from 1571 channel catfish weighed individually. Average final weight after 174 feeding days was 280 g, representing a 270 g net gain. Conversion (5) averaged 1.20. Catfish continued to feed regularly until harvest, at which time water temperature was 10 degrees C. Final weights and conversions observed in this study represent substantial improvements over previously reported values. The assumption of linearity in daily growth in length was tested in a separate experiment. When water temperature exceeds C, daily growth is essentially linear, averaging 25 1.27 mm/day (0.05 in/day). Work on the identification and confirmation of parasites found on 21 7 subadult American eels (Anguilla rostrata) trapped in Cooper River, S.C. is continuing. New host records were identified for the protozoan Trypanosoma granulosum; monogenean Gyrodactylus anguillae; trematodes Stephanostomum imparaspine, Opecoeloides fimbriatus and O. vitellosus; cestode, Botbrimonus sturionus; and crustacean Ergasilus cerastes. New distribution records for parasites found in the southeastern region of United States include the protozoans T. granulosum and Myxidium giardi; monogenean G. anguillae; cestode B. sturionus; acanthocephalan Fessisentis friedi and crustacean E. celestis

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

BINTCN, M.J. and EVERSOLE, A.G. 1980. Toxicity and Tolerance Studies with Yellow-phase Eels: Five Chemicals. Prog. Fish-Cult. 42(4):201-203.
BANSEN, R.A. 1979. Age, Growth, and Sex Ratio of the American Eel, Anguilla rostrata (LeSueur), in Brackish Water Portions of Cooper River, South Carolina. M.S. Thesis. Clemson Univ., Clemson, South Carclina, 45 pp.

005.04	19					CRIS0081599
SOUTH	DAKOTA	FARM	AN D	FANCE	FISBERIES	

SCALET C G; WODDE T C; WILDLIFE & FISHERIES SCI; S DAKOTA STATE UNIVERSITY, BROOKINGS, SOUTH DAKOTA. 57007. Proj. No.: SD00300 Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CERS Period: 01 JUN 80 To 30 JUN 83

OBJECTIVES: determine the feasibility of culturing annual crops of channel catfish and rainbow trout in eastern South Dakota dugouts; determine the forage species which produce the greatest growth rates and harvestable biomass of largemouth bass in South Dakota ponds and dstermine the panfish species which, when stocked with largemouth bass, is least susceptable to overpopulation.

APPEOACH: Fonds and dugouts will be stocked with a variety of fish species, Stocking rates, fish species, artificial feeding and other variables will bs utilized to ascertain both sport and commercial value of selected South Dakota pondfish populations.

PROGRESS: 80/06 TO 80/12. Sixteen dugout ponds in eastcentral South Dakota were stocked with fingerling channel catfish (Ictalurus punctatus) at stocking rates of 309, 618, 1235, and 1853/ha. After one growing season average weights for catfish at the various stocking rates were 180, 193, 173, and 105 g, respectively. Survival rates were 54, 34, 66, and 51%. Taste tests resulted in all fish rating as fair or better. Twenty-one dugouts were stocked with rainbow trout (Salmo gairdneri) at stocking rates of 200, 400, 600, 800/ha. Survival rates for the whole growing season were poor; however; growth and survival for approximately the first 2 months of the study were excellent. Average length for the initial 2 month period was 188 m TL (135-239 mm range); average weight was 79 g (27-170 g range). A tast panel rated all but one group of fish as at least fair to good. Analysis of data concerning the stocking of 80 South Dakota ponds with a number of different species compositions is being completed. Initial results indicate significant differences in first year growth of largemouth bass (Micropterus salmoides) and black bullheads (I. melus) between southern and northern quadrats. No difference in the first year growth rates of largemeuth bass were observed among stocking combinations. First year survival of game species was 67.5% for black bullheads, 50.8% for largemouth bass, and 28.7% for bluegill (Lepomis macrochirus).

PUBLICATIONS: 80/06 TO 80/12

- NODDE, I.C. 1980. Evaluation of Fish Stocking Combinations in South Dakota Ponds. South Dakota Dept. Game, Fish and Parks. Prog. Rept. 80-9. 22 PP.
- NODDE, T.C. 1980. State Stocking Policies for Small Warnwater Impoundments. Fisheries 5:13-17. MOUDE, T.C. and STONE, C.C. 1980. Growth and
- Biomass of Largemouth Pass (Micropterus salmoides) in a Western South Dakota Stock Pond. Proc. S.D. Acad. Sci. 59:138-146.
- SCALET, C.G. 1980. Endangered and Threatened Fishes of South Dakota. South Dakota State Univ. Coop. Ext. Serv. ESS 27E. 7 pp.

005.050± Fisebries unit

```
CRIS0028152
```

APPLEGATE R L; WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT; S DAKOTA STATE UNIVERSITY, BROOKINGS, SOUTH DAKOTA. 57007. Proj. No.: SD00914 Agency ID: SAES Period: 17 JAN 67 To 01 JAN 99

OEJECTIVES: Research various problems of fish and aquatic habitats in South Dakota.

APPROACH: Partial contribution by University to M/U betwsen U and Cooperative Fishery Unit between U. S. Sport Fisheries and Wildlife and S. D. Department of Game, Fish, & Parks. Work program varies according to the annual agreement of the coordinating committee.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. The study concerning fish interactions in a power plant cooling reservoir continued. The estimated standing crop of the 4 major forage fish species was 28.1 kg/ha. The forage fish population was dominated by age-groups I and II. Impingement of forage fishes was primarily restricted to young-of-the-year and highest impingement rates usually occurred in the evening. Nuskellunge (Esox masquinongy) were most vulnerable to impingement during the first 2 months after their introduction. The growth rate of muskellunge in the reservoir (Age-II, 753 mm average; Age-I, 465 mm average) was higher than all reports for the species in North America. Alimentary canal development of muskellunge was studied with relation to invertebrate food sources. The most selected for food organism during both day and night was Moina brachiata. Cyclops vernalis was also selected for during night. Muskellunge selected against Asplanchna sieboldi, Potamocypris sp., and Daphnia sp. Food organisms collected from the foregut of fry collected at 2300 hours were significantly larger, but not more numerous, than those in the foregut of fry collected at 1300 hours. As the fry grew and the mouth diameter increased, the sizes of food organisms increased. Fry initially selected for the first and second instars of N. brachlata and against the later instars and adults; by day 23 they selected for adults and against immature instars.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- BENDA, R.S. 1975. Analysis of Catch Data for 1868 Through 1876 for Nine Fish Landings in Kenya Waters of Lake Victoria. J. Fish Biol. 15:385-387.
- BENDA, R.S. 1979. Occurrence of Argulus appendiculosus Wilson, 1907 (Branchiura) in indiana. Indiana Acad. Sci. 89:344.
- ROSEN, R.A. and EALES, D.C. 1980. Occurrence of Scarred Faddlefisb in the Missouri River, South Dakota-Nebraska. Prog. Fish-Cult. 40(2):82-85.
- WABL, J.F. 1980. Forage Fish Populations and Growth of Muskellunge in a South Dakota Power Plant Cooling Reservoir. N.S. Thesis. South Dakota State University, Brookings. 71 p.
- SLOANE, G.E. 1980. Macroscopic Benthos Populations in a South Dakota Power Plant Cooling Jeservoir. N.S. Thesis. South Dakota State University, Brookings. 67 p.

005.051* FRESEWATER FCOD ANIMALS

CRIS0071695

WILSON J L; FORESTRY & WILDLIFE; UNIVERSITY OF TENNESSEE, KNCXVILLE, TENNESSEE. 37916. Froj. No.: TEN00491 Project Type: BATCB Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 OCT 76 To 30 SEP 81

OBJECTIVES: Levelop and improve production and management systems for Freshwater animals cultured for food.

APPROACE: Standard methods will be employed to determine the effects of steroids and selected marking techniques (branding, tagging, multilation) on survival and growth of catfish. Polycultural methods using food fishes such as catfish, sunfish hybrids, etc., will be compared to monocultural practices as relating to growth and total production.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Experimentation evaluating the feasibility of polyculturing channel catfish and tilapia in a high-density, flow-through system was completed. Growth and condition of catfish were significantly reduced in all polyculture treatments as compared to monoculture treatment. Correlation of species densities (3:1, 6:1, 12:1 tilapia/catfish) and growth of catfish resulted in a significant negative relationship. Tilapia growth and condition were unaffected except at the highest stocking density. Water quality parameters were similar between the treatments, except for dissolved oxygen levels which at times were lower in the polyculture treatments. A terramycin-resistant strain of Edwardsiella tarda was isolated from infected fish: this is the first report of this strain in channel catfish. Preliminary work was restricted to examine the feasibility of using freshwater mussels as a food source. Replicate samples using the washboard variety of mussel are being examined for composition, microbial profile, and quality of surrounding water.

PUELICATIONS: \$0/01 TO 80/12 BILTON, R. and WILSCN, J.L. 1980. Terramycin-resistant Edwardsiella tarda in Channel Catfish. Prog. Fish Culturist 42(3):159. BILTON, R. 1980. Effects of Tilapia Densities on Growth of Channel Catfish in Flow-through Polyculture. N.S. Thesis, 29 pp. The University of Tennessee, Knoxville.

005.052 SERIMP MATURATION, REPRODUCTION, DEVELOPMENT, MUTRITION, INTENSIVE-EXTENSIVE CULTURE AND MARICULTURE

LAWRENCE A; TEXAS AGN UNIVERSITY, CORPUS CERISTI, TEXAS. 78406. Proj. No.: TEX06325 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 CCT 79 To 30 SEP 83

CBJECTIVES: (btain basic and applied knowledge required for development of penaeid shrimp mariculture as a successful industry. This includes reproduction in captivity, development of satisfactory dried prepared feeds and improvement of shrimp production from intensive and extensive

culture.

APPROACE: Shrimp reproduction of natural populations will be biochemically and nutriticnally characterized. Nutritional, environmental and cultural requirements for reproduction in captivity will be studied. By comparing reproducion obtained in captivity to baseline reproductive data from natural populations and evaluating laboratory experiments, the understanding of reproduction and basis for reproduction in captivity will be obtained. Shrimp nutrition will be evaluated by determining food conversion ratios, % assimilation values, growth rates, % mortalities, organ indices and biochemical changes to different dried prepared foods. Improvement of shrimp production from intensive (tank) and extensive (pond) culture will be from nutritional, salinity, temperature and polyculture studies.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. General objective of this project is to obtain technology with knowledge and understanding of basic biological principles necessary to establish shrimp mariculture as a new agricultural crop in Texas. Accomplishments for last year were: Construction of maturation/reproduction facility at Corpus Christi; Maturation with spawning of fertile eggs of three species of marine sbrimp, Penaeus vannamei, P. stylirostris and P. setiferus; Evaluation of lipid requirement in marine sbrimp maturation/reproduction; Seedstock supply of marine shrimp is most limiting to establishment of shrimp mariculture in Texas. The preceding represent significant steps in removing this obstacle. Overwintering of broodstock in ponds receiving heated effluent. Overwintering of broodstock is a necessity for a guaranteed source of seedstcck and future genetic/domestication studies. Determination of chill tolerance of brine shrimp larvae and importance of cryoprotectants and viability of marine shrimp frozentto -16 degrees C. The preceding represents a step toward cryopreservation of marine shrimp seedstock which will be required to guarantee seedstock supply at minimum cost. Determination osmoregulation of juvenile and mature marine shrimp. Knowledge of osmoregulatory ability of marine shrimp is needed since sea water along Texas coast is variable.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- MIDDLEDITCH, B.S., MISSLEP, S.F., HINES, B.B., MCVEY, J.P., BROWN, A., WARD, D.G. and LAWRENCE, A.L. 1980. Metabolic Profiles of Penaeid Shrimp: Dietary Lipids and Ovarian Maturation. Journal of Chromatography, 195:359-368
- EAUST, J.G. and LAWRENCE, A.L. 1980. Ontogenetic Variability of Chill Tolerance in Larval Artemia salina II. Single Type Cryoprotectants. Aquaculture, 20:305-311.
- BAUST, J.G. and LAWRENCE, A.L. 1980. Ontogenetic Variability of Chill Tolerance in Larval Artemia salina I. Dual Type Cryoprotectants. Aquaculture, 20:313-321.
- CASTILLE JR., F.L. and LAWRENCE, A.L. 1980. The Effect of Salinity on the Osmotic, Sodium and Chloride Concentrations in the Bemolymph of the Euryhaline Shrimp of the Genus Penaeus. Comparative Biochemistry and Physiology.

005.053 LIPID METABOLISM IN AQUATIC ORGANISMS

BOTTINO N R; BIOCHEMISTRY & EICPBYSICS; TEXAS A&M UNIVERSITY, COLLEGE STATICN, TEXAS. 77843. Proj. No.: TEX01926 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 SEP 71 To 31 MAY 81

CRIS0060713

OEJECTIVES: Characterize the fatty acyl lipids of various trophic levels in open waters in the proximity and under the Ross Ice Shelf. Evaluate the transfer of lipids through these trophic levels. Characterize the influence of a reduced degree of illumination on the polyunsaturated fatty acid content of the lipids of various trophic levels. APPECACH: Various experiments are proposed to study the metabolism of lipids in aquatic organisms and its application to improve the quality of these aquatic products as human food. Various fatty acid mixtures will be fed to shrimp and the growth rate determined. Seasonal variations in the sterol composition of shrimp from the Gulf of Nexico will be characterized. Groups of Tilapia aurea will be fed different diets and the degree of fat production will be determined, and Marine invertebrates will be grown in the presence of inorganic selenium and the incorporation of the element will be followed. Furthermore, the selenium-compounds formed will be characterized.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 81/05. Studies were continued on basic and applied aspects of the metabolism of lipids (fats) and selenium in aquatic organisms. The sterols of Gulf of Mexico shrimp (white and brown shrimps were analyzed) were 90 to 95% cholesterol rlus small amounts (1 to 2% each) of other components. The level of cholestercl in shrimp muscle was about 1 g per 100 g. About 90% of the cholesterol was free, the rest being cholesterol esters. No major differences were detected between the two species of shrimp that were studied. Tilapia aurea is a freshwater fish that is becoming very popular among aquaculturists. Our studies on this advanced significantly when we were able to adapt recently developed methods to the isolation of Tilapia liver mitochondria. These studies will be subject of a future publication. Work on the physiclogical and toxiological effects of selenium in a algae continued vigorously. We are in the process of analyzing the selenium-containing gases (protably selenides) exhaled by various algae. Furthermore, we have analyzed the biochemical components of various algae after their exposure to selenium and found selenium in amino acids, proteins, carbobydrates and lipids in decreasing order. These and experiments with radiolabeled selenium indicate that selenium is incorporated into the algal cells and also that selenium as selenite is much better incorporated that selenium as selenate.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 81/05

HOTTINO, N.E., GENNITY, J., LILLY, L.M., SIMMONS, E. and FINNE, G. 1980. Seasonal and Nutritional effects of the fatty acids of three species of shrimp, Fenaeus setiferus, P. aztecus, and P. duorarum. Apuaculture 19:139.

005.054* FRESHWATER FCOD ANIMALS

CEIS0061207

 STICKNEY R B; STRAWN K; COBB B E; WILDLIFE 6

 FISHERIES SCI; TEXAS A6M UNIVERSITY, COLLEGE STATION,

 TEXAS. 77843.

 Proj. No.: TEX02831

 Project Type: HATCE

 Agency ID: CSRS

 Ferlod: 01 CCT 76 To 30 SEP 81

OBJECTIVES: Develop and improve production and management systems for freshwater animals cultured for food, including: Nutrition, genetics and breeding, water quality, diseases, and culture systems. Develop and improve products and processing methods that will enhance marketability and insure quality of cultured freshwater food animals.

APPFOACH: Various methods will be utilized to meet the objectives of the everall S-38 project in the several cooperating institutions. The thrust of the Texas Agricultural Experiment Station will be on channel catfish, Tilapia and freshwater shrimp, with emphasis being placed on objectives I above, especially nutrition, water quality and culture systems.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Lipid energy requirements of channel catfish fry were evaluated with semipurified diets over the period from onset of feeding until the fish reached several grams in weight. The data obtained will be utilized to aid in the preparation of fry feeds specifically developed for channel catfish. It is anticipated that the protein: energy ratio will be adjusted as food particle size is increased during the initial year of life. Semipurified diets with varying lipid sources and percentages revealed no significant differences in channel catfish fingerling growth over the lipid range from 6 to 14% at a mean temperature of 22 degrees C, though fisb fed 10% lipid were slightly larger in mean size at the end of the 20 week experiment. Fatty acid composition revealed that there were no significantly different patterns among diets with the same lipid source, but there were differences among lipid sources with respect to final fatty acid composition. Polyculture studies with freshwater shrimp and tilapla revealed some depressed growth when the two were stocked together, but in general, feeding on the basis of estimated fish blomass will yield a secondary sbrimp crop, without the need to provide sbrimp feed. Overwintering of large numbers of tilapia is being conducted to determine if the technique is feasible for use in central Texas and to provide fish for a study of second year groath potential of this fish. Plastic and fiberglass covered ponds as well as indoor overwintering facilities are being compared.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- BENDERSCN-AFZAPALO, A., STICKNEY, R.R. and LEWIS, D.B. 1980. Immune Bypersensitivity in Intensively Cultured Tilapia Species. Irans. Am. Fish. Soc. 109:244-247.
- YINGST III, W.L. and STICENEY, E.E. 1980. Growth and Survival of Caged Channel Catfleh (Ictalurus punctatus) fingerlings on Diets Containing Various Lipids. Prog. Fish-Cult. 42:24-26.
- EURNS, E.P. and STICKNEY, E.E. 1980. Growth of Tilapia aurea in Ponds Receiving Poultry Wastes. Aquaculture 20:117-121.
- CUENCO, M.L. and STICKNEY, K.F. 1980. Feliability of an Electrode and a Water Analysis Kit for Determination of Ammonia in Aquaculture Systems. Trans. Am. Fisb. Soc. 109:571-576
- MCGEACBIN, R.B. 1980. Production of Tilaria aurea in Simulated Lagoons Receiving Laying Ben Wastes. Pb.D. Disseration, Texas ASM University, 71 pp.

005.055 EVALUATION OF RELATIVE PROTEIN PERFCEMANCE IN PELLETED FISE RATIONS USING PHYSIOLOGICAL INDICES

KIEKPATEICK E L; FISHERIES 6 WILDLIFE; VIEGINIA POLY INST, BLACKSBUEG, VIEGINIA 24061. Proj. No.: VA-0838003-1 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 CCT 77 To 30 SEP 78

OFJECTIVES: Develop a physiological chamber to facilitate collection of blood and urine from fish, determine the response of selected physiological indices of channel catfish maintained in physiological chambers and feed diets containing different single and combined protein sources, develop methodology for predicting relative protein performance, test the above methodology.

APPROACH: Design chamber for simultaneous blood and urine collection, identify physiological responses of channel catfish to different dietary protein sources through colorimetric determinations of blood and urine selected indices, apply appropriate statistical analysis and multiple regression analysis to develop diagnostic methodology, test methodology through addition protein evaluations.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Progress on this project falls into two main areas of evaluating enzyme indicators for rapid evaluation of fish growth response to different protein diets and evaluating the utility of seafood waste products as a ingredient for fish feeds. Evaluation of enzyme indicators in laboratory experiments indicates that glutamate oxaloacetate transaminase and glutamate detydrogenase reliably predict the continued growth rate of channel catfish after four weeks of testing. Similar results occur when both the quantity or quality of protein in the diets are varied. This technique has widespread applicability to the feed industry because rapid experiments are more economical and controllable than long-term feeding trails and because protein is the most expensive ingredient in diets. Evaluation of seafood wastes as a dietary ingredient for catfish culture indicates that both crab and finfish wastes have more than 60% protein and that the amino acid composition of wastes is balanced with respect to catfish nutritional needs, containing all essential

amino acids. Use of seafood wastes is important to the seafood industry, which must fine alternative means for disposal of wastes, and for the aquacuiture industry, which needs inexpensive forms of protein for fish pends

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NC PUELICATIONS REFORTED THIS PERICD.

005.056* CFIS00E3531 AQUACULTURE FOR RESOURCE ENBANCEMENT

AMUNDSON C H; KAYES T H; FOOD SCIENCE; UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN, MADISON, WISCONSIN. 53706. Proj. No.: #IS02581 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 SEP 80 To 31 AUG 84

CBJECTIVES: To determine the quantitative amino acid requirements of rainbow trout and yellow perch; to examine the feasibility of employing anabolic substances; to control sexual differentiation and enhance growth and food conversion efficiency and to apply this information to the propagation and culture of Great Lakes fishes.

APPRCACE: An amino acid test diet will be developed to promote good growth at 15°C for trout and 22°C for perch. The dietary requirements of these species will be determined under high NE(3) versus low assonia condition and to determine his, ile, leu, phe, thr, and val requirements and amino acid interrelationships. These studies will be undertaken to determine whether selected biochemical correlates of growth can be used in evaluating the amino acid in protein quality requirements of fishes. With respect to yellow perch only, a study will be undertaken to determine the size or age at which sexual differentiation occurs. Selected androgenic and estrogenic compounds will be used to control sexual differentiation or reverse the sex of immature fish. The dosages and longth of treatment required to control sexual differentiation will be studies. A comparison will be made of the growth rate food consumption, food conversion efficiency, protein conversion efficiency, and body composition of treated and untreated fish. Finally, the treated & untreated species will be evaluated for the affect of these substances on production & palatability of edible fleeb.

005.057* CFIS0062972 DEVELOP OF ACUACULTURE SYSTEMS FOR COOL WATER FISE SPECIES

CALEERT H E; FOOD SCIENCE; UNIVERSITY CF WISCONSIN, WADISON, WISCONSIN. 53706. Proj. No.: WISO1953 Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 SEP 72 To 30 AUG 81

OBJECTIVES: Maintain a facility for fish growing operations and research as a service unit. Improve the reproductive efficience of cool water species of fish to be used in aquaculture. Improve the acceptability and nutritive value of formulated feeds used in aquaculture. Improve methods of yellow perch fingerling production.

APPEOACE: The acquaculture research facility at 6080 McKes Road, Madison, WI and the outside ponds on the UW Experimental Farms will be maintained and operated to provide research facilities and fish to be used in aquaculture research. Selective breeding of yellow perch and other cool water species will be used to improve the strains of fish and adapt them to aquaculture operations. Studies on the preservation of fish spers, ova, and fettilized segs by cryobiological methods will be made. Various types of protein sources will be investigation for incorporation into formulated diets used in fish growing opertions. The care, management and productivity of outside ponds for figerling production will be investigated.

PEOGRESS: 79/01 TC 79/12. Froject emphasis over the past 4 years has been on developing methods of commercially culturing yellow perch indoors in closed water-recycling systems. Research has shown that this type of culture is technically feasible, through the application of sanitary engineering principles but is too capitol intensive for commercial development. Project emphasis has been shifted to gond, raceway and cage culture, both for commercial applications and wild fisheries enhancement. The project has also worked extensively on diet development, control of reproduction, cryopreservation of sperg, and fingerling production of coolwater species of fish. Dietary recommendations regarding coolwater fish production have been made available through the National Coolwater Fish Diet Steering Committee. Methods for controlling reproduction in coolwater fish have been developed and applied to implrove the predictability of spawning. Sperm from yellow perch, northern pike and walleye have been frozen, stored and later used to fertilize eggs. Such research will ald in improving the efficiency and profitability of fish rearing operations, whether they be for commercial purposes or fishery enhancement.

PUELICATIONS: 79/01 TO 79/12 NO PUELICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOC.

6. Production Management Systems

006.001 CRIS0080491 Development of an integrated system fof total utilization of swine waste

 HILL D T; MCCASKEY T A; PFINCE T J; AGRI ENGINEERING;

 AUBURN UNIVERSITY, AUBURN, ALABAMA. 36830.

 Proj. No.: ALA00515

 Project Type: HATCH

 Agency ID: CSRS

 Period: 05 NCV 79 To 30 SEP 84

OEJECTIVES: Determine basic relationships of the unit processes of screening, pressing, anaerobic digestion and algae production at the bench and field scales using flushed swins waste. Determine the potential feeding value of the screened raw swine waste, the residue of digestion and the harvested algae in varying combinations with conventional feeds. Provide a facility for demonstration of the concept of total waste utilization that would he viewed as a forerunner or model for the future.

APPROACE: Investigation of scrsening and pressing will be performed at the field scale. Easic characteristics of screen rigs and flowrate and separation of solids fraction will be studied. Suitability of screened solids for refesding and anearobic digestion will be evaluated. Pressing will be used to dewater the solids before refeeding. Anaerobic digestion will be studied at the bench scale (100 gal.) in continuously expanding volume operation. Easic relationships of tempsrature, gass rpoduction and quality, etc. will be studied followed by installation of field unit. Algas production will be studied using field scale production ponds.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Work on this multi-phased project progressed well in 1980. Full scale components installed at the 600 head swine research unit comprising a waste processing laboratory consistsd of a deep pit for waste storage, a constant volume waste handling pump, a vibrating screen for solids separation and a metal building for housing the components. Studies involving nutriant separation of the flushed swine weste will begin in sarly 1981. Three bench scale (378.5L) anasrobic digestors ware constructed and placed in operation using the continuously sxpanding digestor concept and swine waste. One run (90 day cycle tima; 10, 22.5, 35 dsgrees C; and .32 kg VS/day loading) has been completed. Results of this particular run show poor performance based on VS reduction and gas quantity and quality. Chemical analysis of the digestor contents claarly show overloading. VFA contents was 8000-10000mg/1, NE(4) + concentration was about 3000

mg/1 and pH values were in the 6.3 to 6.6 range. Loading rate and cycle time etudies (.16 and .48 kg VS day and 90,135 and 180 day cycle times) will continue in 1981. The 10 degrees C digestor temperature will be discontinued following the current run due to extremely poor digestor performance. Mild acid and alkaline hydrolyeis etudies as a pretreatment to enhance gas production during digestion were also started during 1980.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- MCCASKEY, T.A. and SHEHAVE, J.E. 1980. Lactic Acid Fermentation Reduces Riek of Mycobacteria Transmission by Hovine Manure - Formulated Ratione. In "Livestock Waste." A Renewable Recource, ASAE, St. Joseph, MI.
- LINCOLN, E.P., HILL, D.T. and HALL, T. Field Scale Algae Production - Four Years of Cperating Experiences. ASAE Paper No. 80-5043. ASAE 1980, St. Joseph, MI.
- HILL, D.T. and T OLLNER, E.W. 1980. Chemical and Physical Properties of Flushed Swine Waste After Screening. ASAE Paper No. 80-4056. ASAE, St. Joseph. MI.

006.002* CRIS0067635 EVALUATION OF A CLOSED SYSTEM FOR THE CULTURE OF FISH, SHELLFISH AND AQUATIC PLANTS

ALLISON R; FISHERIES & ALLIED AQUACULTURE; AUHURN UNIVERSITY, AUHURN, ALAHAMA. 36830. Proj. No.: ALA00399 Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 14 APR 75 To 30 JUN 80

OBJECTIVES: Namimize animal protein production from a fed fish population in a closed system through the use of aquatic plants, fieh and ebellfish grown in the effluent. Develop management plan for growing fieh from recently hatched fry to harvestable eize in a closed eystem. Determine the carrying capacity of closed systems for various sizes of food fish fingerlings.

APPECACE: Food fieb populations will be grown in tanks and fed a complete diet. The effluent will be reconditioned by circulation through tanks containing populations of filter feeding fidh and shellfish. It will be further reconditioned with the removal of dissolved nutrients by aquatic plants. Reconditioned water will be aerated by air blower and returned to the food fish population.

PECGEESS: 75/04 TO 80/06. During 1980 all data for the year 1979 were summarized and recorded in a doctoral dissertation and two technical papers. Data collected during the five-year period of the project were summarized and the variue modifications of the systems used were compared. This project was initiated 14 April 1975 and terminated 30 June 1980. Initial experiments were conducted in dual tanks, one for production and one for filtration. In this system dense populatione of unicellular algae developed and was not adequately removed by the filter or filter feeding fish. Maximum production of channel catfish was 2.65 kg/m 3 and tilapia was 4.54 kg/m 3. A system of one production and three filtration tanks was developed. Aquatic macrophytee were used to control unicellular algae. Maximum production of Tilapia was 38.9 kg/m 3.

PUBLICATIONS: 75/04 TO 80/06 RAKOCY, J.E. 1980. Evaluation of a Closed Recirculating System for Tilapia Culture. Ph.D. Dissertation. Auburn Univ. Auburn 118 pp.

006.003 CEIS0082106 INTEGRATION OF A SOLAR GREENHOUSE WITH A RECIRCULATING FISH CULTURE SYSTEM

ALLISON R; FISHERIES & ALLIED AQUACULTURE; AUBURN UNIVERSITY, AUHURN, ALAHAMA. 36830. Proj. No.: ALA00527 Project Type: HATCH Period: 24 JUL 80 To 30 JUN 83 Agency ID: CSBS

OBJECTIVES: Determine the operational characteristics of a solar heated greenhouse, thermal storage and heat recovery facility for fish culture. Evaluate a recirculating fish culture system compatible with the greenhouse, thermal storage and heat recovery facility. Develop design and cost information based on the above to enable full ecale production system to be built.

APPROACH: Pood fish populations will be grown in tanks. The effluent will be reconditioned by circulation through a clarifier and tanks containing aquatic macrophytee. Reconditioned water will be aerated and returned to the food fish production tanks. The fish culture units will be housed in a solar heated greenhouse. The greenhouse will contain a beat storage facility and a heat recovery system.

PROGRESS: 80/07 TO 80/12. A parabolic green house covered with fiber glass panels has been constructed. Six fiber glace tanks with drains, air and water supply systems have been installed. Two large circular pools (6 and 10 ft. diameter) were also installed. During the summer period air temperatures in excese of 50 degrees C were recorded. Evaporative cooling was used to reduce air temperatures to 30 degreee C. The base of the green house was flooded with water to a level where the eand floor was moist. Exhaust fans moved outside air over the moist floor and effectively reduced excessive air temperatures. Low air temperatures of -1 degrees C have been recorded during the winter period. Water temperatures in the small tanke have remained above 10 degrees C and that of the large tanks above 16 degrees C. Tilapia have eurvived in both systems. A modified hydroponice eyetem wae developed using effluent from the large circular pool. Seeds of cotton, soybeans, wheat and rye germinated well and produced good vegetative growth.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/07 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

006.004 FRESEWATER FOOD ANIMALS

CRIS0073917

HUSCH C D; HOYD C E; FISHERIES 6 ALLIED AQUACULTURE; AUHURN UNIVERSITY, AUHURN, ALAHAMA. 36830. Proj. No.: ALA00453 Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 OCT 77 To 30 SEP 81

OEJECTIVES: Develop and improve production and management systems for freshwater animals cultured for food: water quality.

APPROACH: An improved deeign for paddlewheel aerators will be undertaken and their use for enhancing water quality in enriched culture ponds will be evaluated. Application of the aerators will be extended through simulation and hydraulic modeling.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Pond stirring, to more fully utilize the daytime oxygen surplue, and emergency aeration were observed at Auburn's Fisheries Research Unit in 1980. Hetween one and five waterblenders, designed and built in the Agricultural Engineering Department, provided daily circulation in a 1.42 ha pond. A trailer-mounted paddlewheel powered (via PTO) by a Ford 4000 tractor provided emergency aeration in a 1.12 ha pond. The emergency aerated pond was stocked at the rate generally considered to be a safe maximum with emergency aeration available, 7,400 fish/ha. The stirred pond was stocked at a higher deneity, 10,000 fleh/ha, anticipating, in part, some benefits from pond stirring. This trial was not replicated, however, the heavier stocking of the pond relying on daily circulation would have made that pond more succeptible to oxygen problems. Total aeration energy costs were \$91.60/ha for emergency aeration and \$54.89/ha for aeration through circulation.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

HUSCH, C.D. and FLOOD JR, C.A. 1979. Pond Water Novement Can Improve Natural Aeration. Higblights of Agricultural Research 26(1):8.

BUSCB, C.D., FLOOD JR., C.A. and CAKES, F.L. 1980. Fulltime Simulation of Pond Water Quality. Paper No. 80-5045, Annual Meeting of ASAE, June 15-18, San Antorio, Texas.

006.005		CRIS006948
SPORTF ISB	NANAGENENT	

DAVIES W D; FRATHER E E; SBEITCN W L; FISBERIES & ALLIED AQUACTLTURE; AUBURN UNIVERSITY, AUBURN, ALABAMA. 36830. Proj. No.: ALA-27-0004 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 NOV 75 To 30 OCT 85

CBJECTIVES: (onduct various experiments in sportfish management.

APPEOACE: Ponds well stocked with a combination of species of sportfish. Specific management techniques will be applied. Effectiveness of the technique will be measured in terms of angler catch and in catch per unit of effort. In streams and large reservoirs information will be collected on age, growth and population structure. From this information management schemes for increasing sportfish harvest will be devised.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Predator-prey relationships are usually based on the assumption that if prey is present that can be swallowed then it is available and will be utilized. This premise has been evaluated by examining actual length of prey eaten by largemouth bass from a large (10,500 ha) main stream reservoir in the Southeastern United States. The data suggest a well defined tendency for larger bass to eat larger prey; large bass do not utilize the smaller size prey usually assumed to be available. The range in prey size (sunfishes and shad) utilized by bass was predicted from a regression of prey versus predator length and the associated 95% confident interval. These studies have also suggested a shift in prey preference from bluegrill to shad at lengths greater tham 200 mm. The availability of small size bluegrill, however, may be critical in determining the number of young-of-year bass eventually recruited as age 1(+) fisb into the population. Three systems were compared as to the number of largemouth bass recruited. Farmponds (bass and bluegrill only); community fisbing lakes (bass, bluegrill, shad); large impoundments (23-plus species including all of the above). Recruitment on the average was estimated to be 24-54, 24-44 and 7 respectively. In each case when shad was present, bluegrill condition and spawning frequency decreased. Our conclusion is that bass populations in complex communities may be recruitment limited

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- TIMMONS, T.J, SHELTON, W.L. and DAVIES, W.D. 1980. Differential Growth of Largemouth Bass in West Point Reservoir, Alabama-Georgia. Trans. Am. Fish. Soc. 109:176-186.
- TINMONS, T.J., SEELTON, W.L. and DAVIES, W.D. 1980. Gonad Development, Fecundity and Spawning Season of Largemouth Bass in Newly Impound West Point Reservoir, Alabama-Georgia. U.S. Fisb Wildlife Service, Tech. Paper 100. 6 pp.

006.006			
FRESHWATER	FCOD	ANIMALS	

CRIS0058961

LOVELL R T; MCCOY E W; FISEERIES & ALLIED AQUACULTURE; AUBURN UNIVERSITY, AUBURN, ALABAMA. 36830. Proj. No.: ALA00630 Agency ID: CSES Period: 01 FEB 71 To 30 SEP 81

OBJECTIVES: Evaluate economics of production, processing, and marketing of freshwater food animals. Develop and improve products and processing methods that will entance marketability and insure quality of cultured freshwater food animals. APPROACH: Mechanically deboned flesh from various fishes will be evaluated with regard to yield, quality, and storage stability. Waste from fish processing will be evaluated chemically and biologically, and technology will be developed for economic waste utilization. Wethods will be tested for control of geosmin related off-flavor in pond raised fish. Costs and returns associated with production of food fish in various culture systems will be assessed. Identify and evaluate alternative marketing and distribution systems for fish with respect to market expansion, consumer reactions, and optimizing income to producers and processors.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12, 59 collections of catfish processing waste (head, skin, viscera) from the major processing plants and representing production ponds from Ala., Miss. and Ark. were analyzed for a-BBC, heptachlor, DDE, DDT, Dieldrin, endrin and toxaphene. All samples contained toxaphene. All samples contained toxaphene; the range was 0.06 to 3.6 mg/kg. DDE and DDT was found in most; the range of DDE was 0.01 to 0.56 mg/kg and the range of DDT was 0.01 to 0.58 mg/kg. None of the pesticide concentration in any sample exceeded the levels allowed in human foods, indicating the waste should be safe to use in commercial fish feeds. 35 off-flavored catfish collected from p rocessing plants in Mississippi during April-June 1980 were evaluated by a trained sensory panel for quality and intensity of off-flavor. Only six of the samples had the distinct geosmin flavor which was formerly thought to be the major off-flavor in pond raised catfish. The most prominent flavor was "fecal" (sewage or manure); other were "rancid", "paint", "diesel", and "algae". Extracts from each fish were sent to the Southern Regional Research Center (USDA - AR) for compound identification.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- LOVELL, R.T. 1980. Utilization of Catfish Processing waste. Auburn Univ. Agri. Exp. Sta. Bull. S 21. 19 p.
- LOVELL, R.T. 1980. S-83 Annual Report: Freshwater Food Animals. So. Coop. Ser. Sp. Rep., June, 1980. 20 pp.
- LOVELL, F.T. 1980. Effects of Feeding Full-Fat Soybean Meal on Growth and Flesb Quality in Catfish. Aquaculture 6(3):39.
- LOVELL, R.T. 1980. Nutritional Value of Fish-Aquaculture 6(5) 45.
- LOVELL, R.T. 1980. Effects of Feed on Sensory Quality of Fish. Aquaculture 6(6) 41.

006.007 AQUACULTURE

CRIS0069484

SMITHERMAN E C; AILISCN E; PEATHER E E; FISHEFIES 6 AILIED AQUACULTURE; AUBURN UNIVERSITY, AUBURN, ALABAMA. 36830. Proj. No: ALA-27-0006 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 NOV 75 To 30 OCT 85

OBJECTIVES: Conduct various experiments on aquaculture.

APPEOACE: A species or several species of fish will be stocked into aquaria, troughs, pools, ponds or raceways. Treatments appropriate to the research will be applied for a pre-determined time when the fish will be removed and weighed and measured.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Over a 3-year culture period, trapping experiments in a 10-hectar catfish pond yielded 1996 kg/ha/year of which 75% was caught by trapping and 25% upon draining the pond. Feed conversion was 2.0. Similar results were obtined in 1-ha ponds, but draining was every or every other year and production was approximately 3000 kg/ha. During 1980, one pond stocked at 8000 catfish/ha, and managed with improved genetic stock, destratification technique, and 15% floating 85% sinking feed yielded 4000 kg/ha and 1.5 feed conversion. Silver carp in catfish ponds changed algae dominance from blue-green to green, made catfish harvest more difficult, and decreased the number of emergency aerations. Large variations of the sex ratios in individual spawn of Tilapia nilotica and T. aurea indicate sex

determination is not a simple 1-locus system. Sex reversed males were potent allowing a workable system. One out of four sex-reversed grass carp males (gynogentic female) produced wilt and was able to fertilize eggs. Protective net covering over ponds improved paddlefish fry survival. Maintaining O(2) levels of at least 5.5 ppm was critical for good fry eurvival. When inoculated into pond water, 95% of Salmonella typhimiruim dieappeared within 6 hours. Salmonella could be detected in Tilapia viscera but not in the dressed carcass.

- PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12
 - LCPEZ, J. 1980. Comparative Efficacy of Two Androgens and Two Estrogens in Functional Sex Reversal of Tilapia aurea. M.S. Thesie, Auburn Univ., AL. 36 pp.
 - MERIWETHER III, F.N. 1980. Progency Sex Fatice for Spawning of Tilapia aurea (Steindachner). M.S. Thesis, Auburn Univ., AL. 61 pp.

006.008 CFIS0078875 CULTURE SYSTEMS FOR YEAR-BOUND MARKETING OF FISE FROM VATERSHED POIDS

SMITEERMAN F O; MCCOY E W; FISHERIES & ALLIED AQUACULTURE; AUEURN UNIVERSITY, AUEURN, ALABAMA. 36830. Proje. No.: ALA00496 Project Type: EATCE Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 APR 79 To 30 SEP 83

OBJECTIVES: Develop techniques for producing, harvesting, and marketing aquacultural crops from watershed ponds througbout the year.

APPROACE: Channel catfleb, tilapia, silver carp, and rainbow trout will be produced in watershed ponds up to 8.9 ha. Partial barwesting with cages, drop nets and corral seines will be evaluated to extend the marketing season and to improve cash flow.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Tilapia aurea fingerlings cultured in cags at etocking rates of 400, 800, 1200, and 1600/m 3 for 92 days gained an average of 127, 124, 114, and 100 grams, respectively. The weight of fish in a cage was more important than the number; growth was reduced as the standing crop exceeded approximately 100 kilograms/m 3. Tilapia in cages were fed a standard ration. One treatment received the daily allotment in one feeding; the other treatment had its daily ration divided into two feeding per day. After two months, fish fed once per day gained an average of 129 grass, those fed twice per day gained 149 grams, an increase of 16% due to feeding frequency. Blue tilapis (T. aurea) and golden hybrids (T. hornorum x T. mossambica) were cultured in cages. At harvest, male golden hybrids averaged 435 grams, while male blue tilapia averaged 288 grams. Female golden bybrids averaged 173 grame and female blue tilapia were 254 grams. Male golden hybrids and both male and female blue tilapia were 100% marketable (total length 19 cm) but only 67% of the golden hybrid females were marketable.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUELICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

006.009 CRIS0067351 A FOLTCULTURE SYSTEM OF FISH PRODUCTION FOR DISADVANTAGED FARMERS IN ARKANSAS

NEWTON S H; AGRICULTURE; UNIVERSITY OF ARKANSAS, PINE ELUFF, ARKANSAS. 71601. Proj. No: AF.X-PP-0006-858 Project Type: GRANT Agency ID: CSRS Period: 10 MAY 74 To 09 MAY 79

OEJECTIVES: See Approach.

APPEOACE: Feed and labor records will be kept and all species in the study will he harvested and marketed to arrive at a coet of productions and returns.

PROGRESS: 74/05 TO 79/05. Polycultural fish production studies in small ponds (0.1 ha) have been supportive of the combined culture of channel catfieh as the primary species along with "exotic" Chinese" carps, buffalo, blueglll, and largemouth baes. Concurrent experiments over four seasons of study have indicated substantially greater yields for polyculture combinations over monoculture etockings of catfish alone. Polyculture production yields are greater due to more efficient useage of the available food eources by a varlety of compatible fieh species. Total fish production in shallow ponde (1m) was equal to or greater than that in deep ponds (1.5m) for comparable systems, with catfish stocked at 3,150 fish/ha ln each. Shallow ponds are less expensive to construct and operate as well as usually being better suited for rotation with rice or row-crops. Fish survival was high for all species used in mixed culture combinations with minimal disease or paraeite probleme. When warmwater pond water temperature remains below 18°C, rainbow trout may be produced in otherwise idle production ponds. Or, trout and catfish can be overwintered together, then the trout may be eelectively harvested in the spring in the presence of catfish, which usually remain for production during the period when the water temperatures exceed 21°C. There is a need for continued study to further determine the role of each spesies in mixed culture systemsespecially those of exotic carps, and predatorprey relationships.

PUELICATIONS: 74/05 TC 79/05

NEWTON, S.H. 1977. Fisherles Research at the University of Arkansas at Pine Bluff. State Report Section. Sixth Inland Commercial Fisheries Workshop, 53-54.

BAILEY, W.N., M.D. GIPSON, S.E. NEWTON, J.M. MAETIN AND D.L. GRAY. 1976. Status of Commercial Aquaculture in Arkansae in 1975. Proc. 30th Annual Conf. S.E. Assoc. Game and Fieh Commissioners, 30: 246-50.

006.010* CRIS0045718 POLYCULTURAL PRODUCTION OF FISE IN FARM PONDS

NEWTON S B; GIFFORD J R; AGRICULTURE; UNIVERSITY OF ARKANSAS, PINE BLUFF, ARKANSAS. 71601. Proj. No.: 7002-20380-001-A Project Type: COCPERATIVE AGREE. Agency ID: ARS Period: 07 SEP 79 To 30 SEP 83

OEJECTIVES: Develop management techniques for polycultural fish production in farm ponds that are adaptable to and will provide maximal fieh yields for small acreage farmers.

APPROACE: Existing cooperator farm ponds of 2 acres or lese with controlled stocking of channel catflsh, largemouth bass, bluegille, buffalo, and fathead minnows will be evaluated relevant to costs for labor, chemicals, fieb for stocking, controlled feeding, pond fertilization as based on age of pond, water source, dieeaee problems, etc., and total production yielde. Biotic and abiotic parameters in the ponds will be monitored for environmental changee and impact. Pond cage studiee, coupled with inteneive feeding, will be made to maximize harveetable catflish yields. graes carp, Tenopharyngodon idella, will he tested for vegetation control in farm ponds in an attempt to reduce the need for chemicals and increase farm pond total fish yields.

PEOGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. This farm pond production etudy is on echedule with twelve ponds in South Central Arkansas prepared for a 3-5 year population development period. Data collection will commence during the spring 1981 following the stocking of all ponds with channel catflsh, buffalo, grass carp, bluegill, largemouth bass and fathead minnows. Techniquee of pond fertilization and fish feeding will be employed along with the use of cages in four of the ponds. Fish harvest will be recreational and commercial methode with production information collections based upon three different management approachee.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS BEPORTED THIS PERIOD.
006.011 CFIS0073005 DEVELOF AND IMPROVE PRODUCTION AND MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS FOR FRESHWATER ANIMALS CULTURED FOR FCCD

NEWTON S B; EASKINS C J; RCBISCN V £; AGRICULTURE; UNIVERSITY OF AFKANSAS, PINE ELUFF, AFKANSAS. 71601. Proj. No.: Af.X0901 Project Type: GFANT Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 APR 77 TO 31 MAK 82

CEJECTIVES: Select and evaluate fish species combinations (polyculture) with potential for adaptation to extensive cultural environments (farm ponds). Incorporate the use of hybrid fishes (sunfish and buffalo) as well as species (Chinese carp) relatively new to pond culture to increase total fish production. Evaluate various environmental situations and management techniques for adaptation to polycultural fish production. Develop tasic techniques and guidelines to provide fish culture information for low-income farmers as well as large commercial fish producers.

APFEGACE: Establish several different combinations of fishes in 0.1 ha ponds and evaluate seasonal performance variations within each situation and among the combinations subjected to certain extensive cultural practices. Study possibilities of several hybrids and new species of fishes for adaptation to commercial fish farming.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. All experimentation and data collection for this project have been completed. Eigmouth X black and black X higmouth huffalo hybrids were compared with bigmouth parentals when reared in polyculture with channel catfish, grass carp, and largemouth bass over a two-season period in 0.1 hectare ponds. Stocking rates per hectare were 2500 catfish, 30 grass carp, 100 bass, and 250 tuffalo or buffalo hybrids. All fish harvested were of marketable size. Highest catfleh yields and greatest total fish production were achieved with the polyculture combinations. Parental bigmouth buffalo appeared to be most satiefactory for this polycultural combination (over buffalo hybrids) with channel catfish as the primary speciee. Additional publications and termination report are fortbcoming. pending additional data analyses.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NEWICN, S.B. 1980. Catflsh Farming with Chinese Carps. Arkansas Farm Research Journal 29(1):8.

006.012 C 5150076706 BIOLOGICAL STUDIES WITH THE MOSQUITOPISH, GANEUSIA AFFINIS, UNBER CULTURAL SITUATIONS

NEWTON S H; ECHISON W R; AGRICULTURE; UNIVERSITY OF ARKANSAS, FINE HLUFF, ARKANSAS. 71601. Proj. No.: AF.X0959 Agency ID: CSES Period: 06 CCT 78 To 30 SEP 83

OEJECTIVES: Investigate and refine pond culture techniques for production of mosquitofish. Develop techniques for stocking, harvesting, holding, and transporting of mosquitofish. Collect economic information for Mosquito Abatement District usage in mosquito control programs. Evaluate mosquitofish production eystems for application to current pond production systems.

APPROACE: Use ponds and indoor tanke to improve culture techniques for mosquitofier, especially related to harvest and transportation methods for use as hiological control agente against field mosquitoes.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Preliminary etudiee have produced yielde of over 224 kg per ha hy multiple harvest of mosquitofish. Additional yields of 1122 kg per ha of companion food flishes have been harvested from polyculture combinations. Gambusia were maintained best in tanks by ueing a high exchange rate (5.7 L/min) of fresh water circulation. Fish survival was also aided by adding 0.2% NaCl hy weight to holding tanks, with mechanical agitation of the water. A series of predator/prey aquaria and tank experiments are planned for Winter 1981. Both interand intra-specific predation will be examined. Practical pond production studies and reproductive schedules will be wonitored in 0.1 and 0.05 ha ponde during the 1981 growing season. Several publications are forthcoming on pond production, harvesting, handling, and holding of mosquitofish during 1981.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERICE.

006.013 CFIS0081624 SHALLOV-VATER POLYCULTURE OF FISHES IN PONDS DESIGNED FOR ROTATION TO GRAIN CROPS

NEWTON S H; HASKINS C J; DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE; UNIVERSITY OF ARKANSAS, PINE FLUFF, ARKANSAS. 71601. Proj. No.: AF.X1043 Project Type: 1890/T Agency ID: CSRS Period: 29 MAY 80 To 30 SEF 85

OEJECTIVES: Evaluate polycultural fish production in ehallow water ponds (average deptb = 1 m); evaluate fish systems in conjunction with grain crop production for maximal utilization of marginal farmland; experiment with Chinese carps and bybrid carp for vegettion control and water quality errects in shallow fieh ponds and document economic aspects of fish/grain crop rotational eystems on marginal farmland.

APPROACE: Construct ehallow fish ponds for economical use of marginal farmland to produce fish and grain crops through rotational management.

PECGRESS: 80/01 TC 80/12. A fish/row crop rotation project wae initiated in July 1880. Project efforts were directed toward facilities construction of 19 shallow ponds and related water eupply eystems for filling and draining the ponds. All construction aspects of the ponds were completed, as well as an 800 square foot feed and chemical storage huilding by mid-winter. In order to test the new system, a winter feeding study with fingerling channel catfish was conducted during November-March 1981. Fish/crop rotation experiments in ehallow ponds will commence during the Spring, 1981.

PUFLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

006.014* CFIS0066365 NUTRITIONAL ASPECTS OF AQUACULTURE SYSTEMS

HEGWN W D; FOCD SCIENCE & TECHNOLOGY; UNIVERSITY OF CALIFCENIA, DAVIS, CALIFORNIA. 95616. Proj. No.: CA-D*-PST-3010-H Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSES Period: 10 SEP 74 To 30 SEP 82

OEJECTIVES: Learn more of nutrient requirements of crustacea, including such things as optimal dietary level of protein and the interrelationship of energy and protein in diets for juvenile and adult crustacea; develop the technology of better feed delivery systeme, including encapsulation and other means of preventing nutrient loss by leaching.

APPEOACE: A system for holding several hundred juvenile crustacea (or other aquatic animale) has heen designed and built and will be installed in the Ecology Institute of the University of California at Davis. Experimental animals will be housed in this system with controlled water quality, temperatute, light etc. Feeding experiments will be conducted according to established protocal, and will be based on our earlier work in this area.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Delivery of essential nutrients is the primary purpose of any animal ration. We have been able to demonstrate the failure of conventional shrimp and lobster in water coluble nutrients for periods long enough to assure effective delivery to the target animal. The loss due to leaching of rihoflavin choline, vitamin C, free amino acire and potassium was found to be rapid and independent of a ration's physical statility, regardlese of the binding agent used in the diet. Losses of total nitrogen and trace minerals were found to be negligible when examined on a per gram ration recovered basis. We have investigated the use of ethyl cellulose as a coating agent to retain water soluble nutrients in pelleted feeds. When the entire ration pellet was coated, minimal nutrient leaching occurred, even after 6 hours. Inclueion of individually coated micronutrients was less effective than total pellet coating for nutrient retention, but did help prevent losses due to leaching.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 GCLDELATI, M.J., CONKLIN, D.E. and BROWN, W.D. 1880. Nutrient Leaching from Coated Crustacean Rations. Aquaculture 19(4):383-388.

006.015* CFISC084225 CRAYFISE IN CALIFORNIA RICE FIELDS: DIET, INPACT ON RICE PRODUCTION AND POSSIBLE RETURNS IN HARVEST

GOLDWAN C R; INST CF ECOLOGY; UNIVERSITY CF CALIFORNIA, DAVIS, CALIFORNIA. 95616. Proj. No.: CA-D*-ECL-4127 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 MAR 81 To 30 SEP 83

OBJECTIVES: To establieh feeding habite of crayfish in rice fields with emphaele on their relationship to rice plants, insecte, weeds and rice straw. To determine the extent of crayfish population development in California fields. To investigate the effect of crayfish on rice production and field damage. To examine the feasibility of a commercial fiehery in the rice fields.

APPEOACB: Extensive mark and recovery methods and behavioral observations will be done in rice fields. Stomach content analysis and observations will also be conducted in the lah. Population data will be correlated with figures on rice production and field damage. The feasibility of a fishery will be established from population data and eimulated harvest.

006.016* CRIS0067184 CLEAP LAKE ECOSYSTEM ANALYSIS: THE FISHES

LI B W; MOYLE P B; WILDLIFE 6 FISBERIES BIOLOGY; UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, DAVIS, CALIFCRNIA. 95616. Proj. No.: CA-D*-WFB-3205-B Project Type: HATCB Agency ID: CSRS Period: 13 JAN 75 To 31 DEC 79

OBJECTIVES: Study the ecology of game and nongame fishes of Clear Lake, centering around the recently introduced Menidia and devise a fieheriee management plan for the lake.

APPEOACH: Determine the ecological significance of Clear Lake tributariee, especially ephemeral ones, by comparative population analysee. Production of Menidia will be estimated by the method of Bamilton (1969). The effectiveness of Menidia as a biocontrol agent will be evaluated by studying its prey electivity.

PROGRESS: 79/01 TO 79/12. This project was terminated this year, although analysis of data concerning the biology of th recently (1967) introduced Miesissippe silversides in the lake is still proceeding by B. W. Li (now at Oregon State Univ.) and by W. W. Wurtshaugh (Ph.D. theeis). Overall we have found that the silvesides may be having some controlling impact on the populatione of the prestiferous Clear Lake gnat but that its impact on gamefish populatione and those of native nongame fiehes has been negative or neutral. Similar effects, or worse, are expected in the Sacramento- San Joaquin Delta where the fish has Just become established, and in numeroue reservoirs.

PUBLICATIONS: 79/01 TO 79/12

WOYLE, PETER B. and N. J. HOLZHAUSER. 1978. Effects of the introduction of Wississippi silverside (Menidia audens) and Florida largemouth hase (Wicropterus salmoides floridanue). BROADWAY, J.E. and P. E. MOYLE 1978. Aspects of the ecology of the prickly sculpin, Ccttus asper Richardson, a persistent native species in Clear Lake, California. Env. Eiol. Fish. 3(4):337-343.

006.017* CRISU072302 INTENSIVE CULTURE OF TILAPIA IN GEOTEERMAL WATERS IN THE SAN LUIS WALLEY, COLORADO

FLICKINGER S; FISHERY 6 WILDLIFE EIGLOGY; CCLCRADC STATE UNIVERSITY, FORT COLLINS, CCLORADC. 80523. Proj. No.: CCL00067 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 15 FEE 77 To 30 JUN 80

OBJECTIVES: Develop techniques to spawn tilapia year-round and to have only males for rearing either through early sorting or through hybridization to produce all male offspring.

APPROACH: Brood fish will be held under various photoperiods to determine what length induces epawning and what length inhibits spawning. With controlled spawning to produce large nimbers of offspring at the same time, grading to sort faster growing, and hence larger, males will be tried for accurcay in sorting sexee. Bybrid crosses will also be made to test for unusual sex ratios.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. No progrees report this period.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 MAICLIE, N.A. 1979. Effects of Various Photoperiods on the Spawning of Tilapia aurea. N.S. Thesis, Colorado State University, Fort Collins, 41 pp.

006.018 MINNOWS AS FORAGE IN THE PARM POND PRODUCTION OF FINFISH

HODOLA A; AGRI 6 NATURAL RESCURCES; DELAWAGE STATE CCLI, DOVER, DELAWARE. 19901. Proj. No.: DELX-PR-0002-3266/7 Project Type: GRANT Agency ID: CSRS Period: 22 MAR 74 To 21 WAR 79

OBJECTIVES: Determine which minnow epecies can be satisfactorily utilized as forage in Delaware farm ponds. Determine the nature and extent of a "refuge" area required for continuous minnow production in the presence of predatory fieh. Determine the optimum degree of fertilization of pond waters for maximum production of minnows. Determine which potentially marketable plecivorous finfish can be eatisfactorily reared in Delaware farm ponds. Determine which permutations of the above result in maximum production of each of the finfish epecies determined in the previous objective.

APPROACE: During the execution of the program the literature will be thoroughly searched for information. State and Federal agencies will be conculted. For the implementation of the program pond owners will be contacted regarding use of their ponds. A seriee of 1/8 acre experimental ponde for close continuous study of the epecific facets of the program will be constructed at Delaware State College.

PROGRESS: 79/01 TO 79/12. The year-long test for suitability of a minnow to be forage in farm ponds in Delaware was completed for the swamp darter, Etheoetoma Fueiforme. It eurvived well in the pond habitat and reproduced prolifically. The etudy to determine the optimum eize of refuge for minnowe in ponds with predatory fish indicated increased production of both predator and prey biomaee with increase in refuge eize. Refuges in the 9 x 15 meter pocls ranged from a 1/2 meter band of aquatic plants along the pond's edge to a 2 meter hand in increments of 1/2 meter. Experimente on selective feeding (preference) by largemouth bass and white perch on eight forage epecies were completed. A paper is currently being prepared. A pilot etudy of the feeding rates by week of certain predatory fish has heen completed.

006.019 CRIS0077158 THE RESOLUTION OF SOME PROBLEMS ATTENDING THE EMPLOYMENT OF MINNOWS AS FORAGE FOE FARMFOND FISHES

BODCLA A; PETEOSKY B; WUJTEWICZ D; AGRI & NATURAL RESOURCES; DELAWARE STATE COLL, DOVER, DELAWARE. 19501. Proj. No.: DELX-0003-79-2 Project Type: 1890/T Agency ID: CSES Period: 01 OCT 78 To 30 SEP 82

OBJECTIVES: Find refuges acceptable to the farmpond owner and to prey minnows but which resist incursion by the large predatory fish. Find the size of refuge needed (ratio of the pond surface) to maintain a perennial population of prey minnows in the presence of predatory fish. Determine the suitable ratio of predatory fish to prey minnows to ponds area in the presence of refuges. Evaluate the two methods of producing finfish: By use of minnows and reguge. By use of bluegills and no refuge.

APPECACE: Fresent various refuges - artifical and natural - to minnows in an observation pool introduce a predatory fish and note which refuges are used the most. Set up a series of pools with increasing amonunts of refuge. To this add 100 individuals of a suitable species of minnow and two large predators. Check at the end of a year for evidence of minnow survival and reproduction. Find the smallest effective reguge. Set up a series of similar sized pools complete with the preferred refuge of adequate size and minnows. Add predators to pools - one in pool 1, two in pool 2, etc. At the end of the year determine what combinations resulted in optimal gains. 4. Set up two sets of pools, one with the best o (3), the other with bluegills as per usual farm-pond practice. At end of year determine which method provided the results.

FROGRESS: 79/10 TO 80/09. Two papers were presented at the Bicentennial Weeting of the Association of Research Coordinators: "Selective Predation by Largemouth Bass on Eight Forage Fishes" and "The Effect of Refuge Size on Forage Production and Largemouth Bass Production in Small Ponds". In the former paper, selectivity by the bass was indicated by the greater consumption of certain species when a surfeit of each of eight or nine forage species was offered the predator. Always eaten were Enneacanthus spp.; Fundulus heteroclitus and Umbra pygmea. Seldom eaten were Fundulus diaphanus, Notropis chalybeaus and Notropis procne. Gambusia affinis, Micropterus salmoides fingerlings and Fimephales promelas were intermediate. The second paper showed that both predator and prey biomass were enhanced with increased refuges in ca 0.01 hectare pools. Refuges from 17% to 65% of pool surface. Predator biomass for the year increased steadily from 21.5% at least refuge to 40.5% at most refuge. Prey biomass from 4925 gms at least refuge steadily to 11660 gms at most refuge. Further, it was determined that the refuge area of a pool produced 131.5 g/m 2 of prey while the non-refuge area produced only 17.2 g/m 2. The study of weekly feeding rates of Esox niger, Micropterus salmoides, Morone american and Pomoxis nigromaculatus was concluded after a year. Results are currently being compiled. A preliminary study of relative productivities of weedless pools, pools including a refuge of dead branches, and one including a refuge of living plants was completed.

PUELICATIONS: 79/10 TO 80/09 NC PUBLICATIONS EEPORTED THIS PERIOD.

006.020* Cris0064913 Utilization of Kraft mill effluent for fise Production

SHIREMAN J V; JUUL R E: FOR RES & CONSERV; UNIVERSITY CF FLCEIDA, GAINESVILLE, FLCEIDA. 32601.

Proj. No.: FLA-FY-01671 Pr Agency ID: CSRS Period: 06 Fl

1Project Type: BATCHPeriod: 06 FEB 74 To 30 JUN 79

OEJECTIVES: Determine the suitability of secondarily treated kraft effluent for fish growth and production. Establish the feasibility of utilizing pulp mill effluent as a medium for fish production systems. Determine the effects of intensive fish culture on the environmental quality of effluent waters.

APPROACE: Field and laboratory studies will be conducted to determine the effects of kraft mill effluent on warm water fish populations. An effluent channel coming from four oxidation ponds at the Budson Pulp and Paper Corporation Secondary Wastewater Facility will be surveyed for hiological and chemical parameters. Studies pertaining to the influence of kraft effluents on fish growth, movement, distribution, food consumption, and food preference will be conducted in the effluent channel. Measurements obtained from populations inhabiting the channel will be compared to those obtained from naturally occurring populations. Fish will be contained within cages in order that growth and other measurements can be obtained from known individuals. This study should provide information as to the fitness of kraft effluents for warm water fish production.

PROGRESS: 79/01 TO 79/06. Terminated 30 Jun 1979.

PUBLICATIONS: 79/01 TO 79/06 NO PUBLICATIONS DEPORTED THIS PERIOD.

006.021* CRIS0079914 THE ECOLOGICAL IMPACT OF INTEGRATED CHEMICAL AND BIOLOGICAL AQUATIC WEED CONTECL

SHIREMAN J V; SCHOOL OF FOREST RESOURCES; UNIVERSITY OF FLORIDA, GAINESVILLE, FLORIDA. 32601. Proj. No.: FLA-FY-01987 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 AUG 78 To 31 DEC 82

OBJECTIVES: Determine the impact of chemical/biological control on the fishery environment, and to ascertain the most desirable balance of vegetation versus open water that will maintain desirable water quality, fish growth and reproduction. Evaluate the feasibility of combining chemical and biological weed control in a natural lake and determine cost henefit ratios. Determine the effects of dense submersed aquatic weed growth on the recreational utilization, fish production and water quality of shallow inland Florida lakes.

APPROACE: Two lakes and 24 ponds will be utilized to test the above objeactives, water quality, fish population, henthos, zooplankton, and phytoplankton will be analyzed in each habitat.

006.022* FRESHWATER FOOD ANIMALS

CRIS0066524

ANDREWS J W JR; ENTOMOLOGY-FISHERIES; GEORGIA COASTAL PLAIN EXPT STA, TIFTON, GEORGIA. 31794. Proj. No.: GEO00254 Project Type: BATCE Agency ID: CSRS Period: 05 SEP 74 To 30 SEP 81

OEJECTIVES: Develop and improve production and management systems for freshwater animals cultured for food. Nutrition; culture systems.

APPROACE: Studies will be conducted to determine protein, amino acid, energy, vitamin and mineral requirements of catflish and relate these requirements to environmental and cultural conditions and least-cost feed formulations. Polyculture studies will be conducted with species which can utilize effluent waste products from catflish tanks. PROGEESS: 76/09 TO 78/12. Studies were conducted on the dietary protein, lipid, carbohydrate, thiamin, rihoflavin, niacin, pyridoxine pantothenic acid, vitamin D, vitamin K, vitamin C, potassium and cooper requirements of catfish and culture techniques for catfish, bait minnows, goldfish Macrobachium shrimp and American shad. Results indicated free amino acids and simple sugar were poorly utilized by channel catfish. Bigh dietary levels of linoleic acid (4% of diet) had a growth depressing effect when compared to saturated fats. Studies were conducted on the relative values of various animal and plant protein sources in catfish diets. Cultural techniques and diets were tested for rearing American shad from egg to sub-adult size

PUBLICATIONS: 76/09 TO 78/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

006.023* FRESEWATER FCOD ANIMALS

CRIS0071491

BONDARI K; BILL T K; ANDREWS J W JR; ENTOMOLOGY-FISHERIES; GEOFGIA CCASTAL PLAIN EXPT STA, TIFTON, GEORGIA. 31794. Proj. No.: GEO00286 Project Type: HATCE Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 CCT 76 To 30 SEP 82

CHJECTIVES: Develop and Improve Production and Management Systems for Freshwater Animals Culture for Food. Genetics and Breeding.

APPROACE: Estimation of genetic parameters of commercially important characters. Selection of growtb, viability, feed conversion, dressing percentage and fecundity. Selection will be made initially on fish raised in high-density tanks with subsequent evaluation in ponds. Development through individual and family selection of a genetically improved strain of channel catfish.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. One generation of bi-directional selection for body weight and size uniformity has increased body weight and total length at 40 wks of age 22.2% and 9.2% and 9.2% respectively. The rates of decline in the downward line were 18.7% for hody weight and 4.1% for total length. Family coefficient of variation for 40-wk hody weight in the upward line was also 7% less than in the downward line. Fingerlings produced from 5-year old brood channel catfish weighed 20% less and were 8% shorter in total length than fingerlings produced from 3-year old brood fish. Multipletrait selected fingerlings were also 10.4% heavier in hody weight and 3.3% longer in total length than unselected control fingerlings at 40 weeks of age. Genetic selection for growth rate will continue for several generations. One generation of inbreeding study with channel catfish resulted in 7.4% and 5.9% growth depression at 16 and 40weeks of age, respectively. A study concerning the effects of alhinism on growth of channel catfish indicated that normal fingerlings were in a 13% and 20% growth advantage over their full-sib albinos at 16 and 28 weeks of age, respectively. The albinos, however, possessed the ability to compensate in growth at 40 and 70 weeks of age.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12
HCNDARI, K. 1980. Genetic Experiments in channel Catfish. Aquaculture Magazine 6(4):38-39.
ECNDARI, K., SHEPPARD, D.C. and MINEAF, L.F. 1980. The Use of Soldier Fly Larvae in Diets of Channel Catfish. Third Annual Proceedings Catfish Farmers of America Research Workshop 31-32.

006.024* FEBSHWATER FCOD ANIMALS CRIS0071451

BILL T K; BRCWN E E; CBESNESS J L; ENTOMOLOGY-FISHERIES; GEORGIA CCASTAL PLAIN EXFT STA, TIFTON, GEORGIA. 31794. Proj. No.: GEO00283 Project Type: EATCH Agency ID: CSRS

Ŷ

Period: 01 OCT 76 To 30 SEP 81

OBJECTIVES: Develop and Improve Production and Management Systems for Freshwater Animals Cultured for Food. Nutrition. Water Quaty. Diseases. Culture Systems. Evaluate the Economics of Production, Processing and Marketing of Freshwater Food Animals.

APPROACE: Practical diets for channel catfish and rainhow trout will be tested in raceways. Water quality in raceways will be monitored and removal of wastes investigated. Diseases and parasites problems associated with intensive cultures will be identified and treated. The double-crop concept of using CC in summer and RT in winter in raceways will be continued. Polyculture for increased production through wastes utilization will be evaluated. Complete costs and returns analyses will be developed for different levels of production and management.

PBOGRESS: 76/09 TO 78/12. Research has been completed with a flowing water system for double-crop fish production in a closed system of raceways. Each raceway segment, ca. 30 m long hy 4.5 m wide, was stocked with 3,000 rainbow trout (November - March) and 2.500 channel catfish (April - October) per segment and produced over 3/4 T. and 1 T. of trout and catfish, respectively, each year. Water temperatures for 20 or more days under 4 C reduced trout production significantly. Multiple harvesting of catfish resulted in higher net production of fish per raceway segment. Feed conversion for multiple harvested/stocked fish was 1.3:1; whereas, once harvested fish had a conversion of 1.5:1. Feed conversion ratios were higher for catfish fed a sinking feed than for those fed a floating feed. To facilitate management of waste products in raceways, tilapia were stocked with catfish at 50 and 100 half-pound tilapia. Although they increased in weight from 1/2 pound to 1.1 pounds per fish, the tilapia did not reproduce.

PUBLICATIONS: 76/09 TO 78/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED FINAL REPORT PERIOD.

006.025* CRIS0083648 EFFECTS OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONTAMINANTS ON GEORGIA FARM POND FISHES

REINERT R E; SHRODE J; FOREST RESCURCES; UNIVERSITY OF GEORGIA, ATEENS, GEORGIA. 30602. Proj. No.: GEO00738 Project Type: FATCE Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 FEE 81 To 31 JAN 84

OBJECTIVES: Refine an adenylate (ATP, ADP, AMP) assay procedure for determining energy charge (ATP \pm 1/2 ADP divided by ATP \pm ADP \pm AMP) in farm pond fishes; Test the applicability of energy charge as a sensitive indicator of stress caused by various contaminants and water quality parameters associated with agricultural and forestry practices; Determine the capacity of farm pond fishes to acclimate to changes in pE.

APPROACE: In our Whitehall Laboratory energy charge values will be determined for fishes that are stressed by bandling, by changes in temperature and dissolved oxygen, and by exposure to sublethal concentrations of insecticides and herbicides. Fishes will be tested using static and flow-through bloassay tests; Fish from low and neutral pH environments will be tested by first exposing them to a series of pEs and then transferring them directly to aquaria adjusted to low pH levels. For each acclimation group, median resistance time determined by probit transformation will be plotted against pH.

006.026 CFIS0074563 SYSTEMS ANALYSIS OF INTENSIVE AQUACULTURE: A CASE STUDY OF OYSTER PRODUCTION YAMAUCHI E; LAVIDSCN J F; AGRI ECCNCMICS; UNIVERSITY CF EAWAII, ECNCLULU, HAWAII. 96822. Proj. No.: EAW00470S Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 NOV 77 To 30 SEP 80

OEJECTIVES: The overall goal is to generate information which can be useful for improving on the economic efficiency of commercial oyster production in the State. Specific objectives are: Conduct a feasibility study which will examine biological, technical, and economic parameters in an intensive oyster production system, and develop and analyze alternative management strategies for the current specie and system configuration.

APPROACE: A systems analytic approach will be followed In this study. A simulation model will be developed of the land-based oyster culture operations of the Kabuku Seafood Plantation. This simulation model will incorporate the relevant biological, technical, and economic parameters of the operating system. The model will be used in the feasibility study and analysis of alternative management strategies.

FECGRESS: 77/11 TO 80/08. Ihis study assessed the feasibility of land-based oyster aquaculture for Bawaii and examined the constraints which are likely to affect the development of an industry. Conclusions were: small scale land-based oyster culture is technically feasible. Commercial production on a limited scale is being attempted in Bawaii, but as yet, without sustained outputs. OpportunItles to realize further efficiency gains through economies of scale are limited. Emphasis is on developing new management techniques within exisiting scales. Various uncertainties make it difficult for conventional commercial lending sources to assess the viability of oyster aquaculture ventures. Therefore, scale expansion will probably not be forthcoming.

PUBLICATIONS: 77/11 TO 80/09 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

006.027 CRIS0068896 PEAWN AQUACULTURAL ENGINEEPING

WANG J K; AGSI ENGINEERING; UNIVERSITY OF BAWAII, BONOLULU, BAWAII. 56822. Froj. No.: HAW00524 Project Type: BATCE Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 JUL 75 To 30 SEP 81

CHJECTIVES: Develop a harvesting system, including equipment and strategy, for the continuous production of prawn in Hawaii. Further investigate and evaluate high density nursery culture. Develop a post-harvest handling system for live prawn for both local and export market. Develop an engineering-economic analysis model to evaluate alternative prawn production system.

APPROACE: Prototype harvesting equipment will be field tested and a suitable harvesting strategy developed. Experiments will be carried out to determine the effects of density and size on nursery mortality rates and growth rates. Storage and transportation of live animal under low temperature will be tested in the laboratory. An engineering economic analysis of prawn production using nursery stocking strategy and inventory pond will be performed to determine optimum harvesting strategy and facility requirements.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. A simple net reel was designed and fabricated. It mounts on a standard three point bitch and is powered by the tractor bydraulics. Using the reel, one man can pick up or set a prawn harvesting seine for a 40 s wide pond in 5-10 minutes. The net reel is being field tested by local prawn farmers. Prawn physical dimensions of engineering significance, such as overall length, tall length, orbit length, heigth, width, and mass are being collected and analyzed. Felationships of various dimensions to orbit length and mass will be determined. Live transport of prawn was investigated. Life support was limited to bubhling air in water and temperature control. The initial 18 liter of water oxygen was above 7.0 ppm and temperature 16 to 18 degrees C. No mortalities were experienced in the first 20 hours. Two replications did not have a mortility for 114 hours. If the inItal mortality was not removed, the mortality rate increased rapidly. Conditioning and selection of prawn before transport appear significant to the length of transport allowed.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

WANG, J.K. and WILLIAMSON, N.R. 1980. Aquacultural Engineering in Fresh Water Prawn Froduction. ASAE Transactions 23(5):1318-1321, 1325.
KNEALE, D.C. and WANG, J.K. 1979. A Laboratory Investigation of Macrobrachium rosenbergil Nursery Production. Proc. of the World Wariculture Society 10:359-368.

006.028* Cris0077715 OYSTER PRODUCTION EQUIPMENT DEVELCEMENT

WANG J E; AGRI ENGINEERING; UNIVERSITY OF BAWAII, HONOLULU, BAWAII. 96822. Proj. No.: BAW00529-S Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JAN 79 To 30 SEF 81

OBJECTIVES: Develop a system for flushing and cleaning stacked oyster trays of pseudofeces; ideally without breaking open the stacks.

APPROACE: In depth review of literature covering applicable methods and technology. Determine physical and hydraulic properties of oyster at different stages of growth. Design and testing of prototype equipment.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. A prototype oyster cleaning and sorting equipment was designed and constructed. PrelIminary tests were conducted on the mechanical oyster cleaner by varying the oyster feed rate, water flow rate, and water pressure. It was found that the oyster cleaner provides satisfactory cleaning for oysters of length greater than 2.5 cm (1 Inch). It can clean 250 marketable oysters per minute (about 30 bushels per hour or 680 kg per hour). A water flow rate of greater than 1.58 L/s (25 GPM) and a water pressure of 103 kPa (15 psi) are required. It was found that a 6-incb diameter by 50-foot long parallel rollers can effectively size artifically grown oysters. The prototype sizer can size oysters satisfactorily at a feed rate of 200 marketable oysters per minute (about 24 busbels per hour or 540 kg per hour) at a roller inclination of 175 rad (10 degrees).

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TC 80/12

- WANG, J.K. and YOW, K.W. 1980. Analysis of Oyster Production in Hawaii. Paper Presented at the ASAE Summer Meeting, San Antonio, TX. ASAE Paper 80-5047.
- YCW, K.V. and WANG, K.J. 1980. Mechanical Cleaning and Sorting of Hawaiian Cultured Oysters. Paper Presented at the ASAE Winter Neeting, Chicago, IL. ASAE Paper 80-6502.

006.029* CRISO081904 Aquacultural Vastevater Management and Utilization im Havaii

YANG P Y; AGRI ENGINEERING; UNIVERSITY OF BAWAII, BCNOLULU, BAWAII. 96822. Proj. No.: HAW00531-S Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 MAR 80 To 30 SEP 82

OBJECTIVES: Characterize effluent quality (organics and inorganics) of aquacultural pend; determine the role of oxygen demand in the water column of the pond; explore the appropriate control of oxygen concentration In the pond; explore the appropriate treatment alternatives in order to control water quality and water reuse of pond effluent.

APPROACE: Establishment of data collection plan, sample collection and analysis of wastewater characterization. Conduct oxygen demand study in the field and laboratory and establishment of the relationship between oxygen consumption rate and available oxygen demand material in the pond. Search available techniques and develop new ways to control oxygen level in the pond. Conduct laboratory and pilot plant study on the treatment alternative for water quality control and water reuse of pond effluent.

PROGRESS: 80/03 TO 80/12. Investigations were conducted into the qualitative and quantitative nature of the water column oxygen demand of prawn (Macrobrachium rosenbergii) grow-out ponds. It was found that the water column oxygen demand represented between 48 to 87% of the total pond oxygen loss at night. A good correlation existed between the oxygen uptake rate and the total COD, particulate COD, suspended solids, volatile suspended solids and secchi disk depth measurements of the water column Water quality management guidelines and procedures regarding oxygen demand in the pond were developed. This will provide a more positive control of the causes of oxygen depletion in the prawn production ponds and reduce the damage of cost of prawn production. Characterization of effluent quality organics and inorganics) of aquacultural pond and the appropriate treatment alternatives for controlling water guality and water reuse of pond effluent are under investigation.

- PUBLICATIONS: 80/03 TO 80/12
 - LOSOLDO, T.N. 1980. An Investigation of the oxygen Demand Materials of the Water Column in Prawn Grow-out Ponds. M.S. Thesis, Univ. of Hawaii, Bonolulu, 100 pp.

006.030* CEIS0083554 PRAWN AQUACULTURE PROGRAM - BIOLOGICAL BASIS OF PRODUCTION

 MALECHA S B; LAWS E; ANINAL SCIENCE; UNIVERSITY CF

 HAWAII, HCNCLULU, HAWAII. 96822.

 Proj. No.: HAW00250-S

 Froject Type: STATE

 Agency ID: SAES

 Period: 01 OCT &0 To 30 SEP 82

OBJECTIVES: To aid the development of an improved feed and better feed management; to aid the dsvelopment of management strategies for crises associated with low oxygen levels in ponds; to test management strategies emphasizing the pattern of growth (observed size-frequency distribution) in pond populations of prawns; to contribute to the controlled demestication of prawns; and to aid the dsvelopment of alternative stocking and harvesting strategies ard management systems.

APPROACE: To determine oxygen budget and nutrient flux to simulated pond scosystems; to size grade prawn popultations and test them against ungraded groups; raise and compare growth of individuals under a variety of confinements; determine tolerances and growth to low fluctuating dissolved oxygen and temperature; assess ths degree of domestication between cultured stocks and wide ancestors; estimate the heritability of size variation using analysis of variance in full and balf sib families; and compare larval growth among genetic groups.

006.031 CEIS0079155 IMPROVEMENT CF OGO PRODUCTION AND MARKETING IN HAVAII

DOTY M S; BOTANY; UNIVERSITY CP HAWAII, BCNCLULU, HAWAII. 96822. Proj. No.: HAW00688 Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSES Period: 24 APR 79 To 30 SEP 82

OBJECTIVES: Inventory the current OGO (Gracilaria) industry its problems and potentials. Identify and appraise the environments of potential production areas in Hawaii. Experimentally grow Gracilaria in those areas and seasonally determine its market values and growth rates. Adapt methods of algal farming used elsewhers to selected areas and develop recommendations for pest and fertilizer control, and marketing. Demonstrate adapted farming technologies and provide technical advice with the aim of inducing Gracilaria farming in USA.

APPROACH: Analyze the results of interviews with the people now active in the Gracilaria industry to appraise the industry in Hawaii and elsewhere. Survey the environments of potential farm sites in Hawaii to select the more favorable and enlist owner interest. Monitoring test plantings to yield growth rates and market quality during the seasons will permit selection among the sites. Adapt farming methods in use elsewhere for optimal production and market plans at the selected sites. Demonstration plots at suitable sites, discussions with the nearby people, and technical help will be used to get farming initiated and stabilized.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. The local Gracilaria fresh vegetable market shortage has continued. Curiously, quality and form variations have been found in the course of the seasonal study that seem to follow quickly upon changes in the snvironment. Thus, the correlated studies of the environments and growth rates are being continued and an experimental program added with additional appropriate measurements to elucidate the nature of these phenomena. Experiments to shorten the lag time observed in the harvesting methods used to date have been begun. These, in short, are primarily experimental harvesting by cutting off only certain of the longest more central branches of the thalli with the controls being the complete abbreviation of the thalli found to be the most favorable among the earlier harvest methods recommended as management practice. The work has been extended from Oahu to the island of Nolokai under such staffing conditions that an equitable amount of effort may be spent on both as success in farming progresses. Interestingly, the Gracilaria species from Nolokai are different both in form and gel nature from those on Oahu. This is hard to understand in view of the wide Leographic distribution of the two principle species and so by transplanting experiments explanations are being sought.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS DEPORTED THIS PERIOD.

006.032 CFIS0077515 FISE CULTURE USING GEOTHERMAL WATER

 BELEAU M; FOREST WILDLIFE & RANGE EXP ST; UNIVERSITY

 OF IDABO, MOSCOW, IDABO. 83843.

 Proj. No.: IDA-CFU-0057

 Project Type: STATE

 Agency ID: OCI
 Period: 01 JUL 78 To 30 DEC 80

OBJECTIVES: Assess the economic feasibility of raising fresh water fin fish in geothermal waters.

APPROACE: The objective will be attained by raising carp and channel catfish in natural geothermal waters and in non-geothemal waters. The growth rates, hematological parameters, bioaccumulations of heavy metals, and proximate analyses of white muscle will be measured and used as validating criteria.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Use of thermal effluents for aquaculture has received increasing interest from fish culturists for reducing production costs and from industry for productively exploiting energy rich waste streams, howsver, the culture of fish directly in geothermal water is an emerging field. Geothermal discharges represent a large thermal energy source for continuously maintaining the temperatue of culture fluids while providing a constant source of water for year-round intensive culture of warmwater fish species. The commercial potential for geothermal aquaculture was svaluated for 2 years at the Department of Energy's Baft River geothermal site in Southcentral Idaho. Common carp (Cyrpinus carpio) and channel catfisb (Ictalurus punctatus) were selected as culture species. Objectives included investigation of growth rates; nutrition trials; histological and physilogical parameters; bioaccumulation of heavy metals, and reproductive capacity. Growth rates of cultured channel catfish and common carp were high throughout the study. Various physiological and morphological parameters were monitored; no differences were detected between fish reared in

geothermal or fresh water. Tests were designed to evaluate the reproductive capacity of common carp (Cyprinus carpio L.) reared directly in geothermal water. In 1988, two groups of females were naturally induced to spawn.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 SULLIVAN, J.F. and BELEAU, M.H. 1979. Potential for Using Geothermal Resources for the Culture of Freshwater Fish. Trans. Exp. Geotherm. Front. 3:689-692. WOIWODE, J.G. 1980. Studies on the Effects of

Geothermal Vater on the Reproductive Capacity of Common Carp (Cyprinus carpio L.) at the Kaft River Geothermal Site, Idaho. N.S. Thesis. Univ. Idaho, Moscow. 39 pp.

006.033 Adult Fall Chinook teapping for snake pivee egg eank peogeam

BJOENN T C; FOREST WILLLIFE & RANGE EXP ST; UNIVERSITY OF IDAHC, MOSCOW, IDAHO. 83843. Proj. No.: ILA-CFU-0077 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: OCI Period: 19 AUG 80 To 31 DEC 80

OBJECTIVES: Trap one half of the fall chinook salmon run (or up tc 400 fisb) which passes Ice Harbor Dam. Transport them to batcheries in Washington and Idaho for use in at egg bank program.

APPEOACH: To accomplish our objective we installed a trap near the top of the south shore fish ladder at Ice Harbor Dam. This trap was operated from September 2, 1980 to October 8, 1980. We collected 394 adult fall chinook. One hundred ninety-eight (198) fish were hauled by truck to the Tucannon Fish Hatchery (Washington Department of Game) in S.E. Washington and 196 to Dworshak National Fish Hatchery in northern Idaho. The eggs from these fish will be used to supplement wild Snake River Fall chinook runs which have fallen to perilously low numbers.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. The fall chinnok salmon trap was installed in the south shore fish ladder at Ice Harbor Dam on September 2, 1980 and removed October 9, 1980. During that period, Idaho Cooperative Fishery Research Unit personnel trapped and transported 394 adult and 20 jack chinook salmon for use in the Snake River fall chinook egg bank program. The 394 adults transported comprised 35 percent of the estimated 1126 adult fall chinook counted over Ice Harbor Dam in 1980. Dworshak National Fish hatchery received 195 adults between Septermber 3 and October 2 and Tucannon Fish Hatchery manager, we also hauled 10 jacks to each batchery to provide a larger source of sperm for early egg takes. Fish were hauled in a 1000 gallon recirculating refrigerated tanker supplied by Dworshak National Fisb Hatchery. The trap was operated during the daylight hours only from approximately 6:30 a.m. to 7:30 p.m. We used a cut off length of 24 inches for jacks rather than 20 inch length used at the Ice Harbor counting window beacuse Tucannon Hatchery personnel bave stated that a high percentage of fish below 24 inches are males. Our counts at the trap indicated that when we were operating, 75 percent of the steelhead and 57 percent of the adult chinook counted at the south shore counting station near the base of the ladder passed through the trap. We passed 22 percent acre jacks than the counting station as a result of the 24 incb rather than 20 inch designation for jacks.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

EJOENN, T.C. and RUDY E. FINGE. 1981. Fall chinook trapping at Ice Harbor Dam, 1980, Summary of Operation. Report to U.S.F.W.S. Areas Office, Hoise. 3 pp.

006.034* CFIS0027228 EVALUATION OF METHODS FOR INCREASING NATIVE CUTTEROAT STOCKS IN NOTTHERN IDABO HJORNN T C; FORESTRY; UNIVERSITY CF IDAHC, MOSCOW, IDAHO. 83843.

 Proj. No.:
 IDA-CFU-0003
 Project Type:
 STATE

 Agency ID:
 OCI
 Period:
 01 JUL 66 To 01 JAN 99

OBJECTIVES: Ascertain ecological factors limiting production of cutthroat in northern Idaho. Develop management techniques to maximize production of cutthroat.

APPROACE: Survey St. Joe Fiver drainage to locate cutthroat rearing areas and classify them as to quality. Study ecology of cutthroat trout with special emphasis on movements, growth, and seasonal distribution. Evaluate squawfish as a potential predator and competitor for cutthroat.

PROGRESS: 76/01 TC 76/12. We studied the fish and fisheries of three Northern Idabo streams to assess the impact of catch-and-release (Kelly Creek). trophy-fish (upper St. Joe River), and standard (North Fork of the Clearwater River) angling regulations on native cutthroat trout populations. Since the initiation of the special regulations, cutthroat abundance increased in Kelly Creek (7-fold) and the upper St. Joe River (3- to 7-fold), but has not changed on the North Fork. The mean size of the cutthroat, the number of large cutthroat, and the catch rate of cutthroat per hour have increased as a result of the special regulations. The annual mortality rates of cutthroat declined and allowed more cutthroat to mature and spawn. The catch of cutthroat by anglers increased, but the angler harvest of cutthroat decreased. Angler effort declined initially, but had recovered by 1975 to 20% of 1969 effort on Kelly Creek and to 100% of 1969 effort on the upper St. Joe River. Characteristics of anglers fishing Kelly Creek (angling method, age, sex, residency) and the upper St. Joe River (method, residency) changed since the special regulations. Tagged cutthroat migrated from the study areas to overwinter in the lower drainage and returned the following spring and early summer. Multiple recaptures of tagged cutthroat was common during the summer.

PUELICATIONS: 76/01 TO 76/12

JOHNSCN, T. H. and T. C. HJCENN. Special angling regulations in the management of cutthroat trout in northern Idaho streams. Job Performance Report, Project F-59-R-7, Idaho Fish and Game Department. 1977.

006.035* CRISO072914 EVALUATION OF JUVENILE SALMON AND STEELBEAD DEBSITY AS RELATED TO DEBSITY OF SPANNERS AND FRY RELEASE

BJORNN T C; FORESTRY 6 WILDLIFE; UNIVERSITY CF IDAHC, MCSCOW, IDAHC. 83843. Proj. No.: IDA-CFU-0047 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: OCI Period: 01 JAN 77 To 30 MAY 79

OBJECTIVES: Evaluate data collected on the density of juvenile salmon and steelhead in good and marginal nursery streams following small spawning escapements (such as 1974, 1975, and 1976) and with larger escapements. Evaluate data on the impacts and success of releasing large numbers of steelhead fry into nursery streams and compare with survival obtained in other streams.

APPROACE: Select transect areas in good and marginal areas were counted in 1975 and 1976 with snorkel gear. The data was analyzed and a report is in preparation. Steelhead fry were released in selected study streams to evaluate movements, growth, survival, competition with natural fry. Data on this segment of study will be analyzed and a report prepared.

PEOGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Juvenile steelhead densities decreased from 1975-77 and increased in 1978. Age I and O steelhead densities for the four years correlated (r = .62 to .99) with the respective adult ascapements. Densities of fry in tributaries in August ranged from 0.0 to 92.0/100 m². Streams that did not receive hatchery fry had the largest (92.0 fry/100 m²) and also the smallest densities (0.0 fry/100 m^2). Bighest mean densities (44.1 fry/100 m(2)) were associated with streams that had both hatchery and wild fry. Streams with only wild fry had mean densities of 33.8 fry/100 m^2 and streams (2) that had only hatchery fry had densities of 7.3 fry/100 m^2 . Steelhead fry densities of 20-40/100 m(2)and probably higher may be expected in fully seeded rearing areas. Tributaries in 1978 that had hatchery fry introduction o 520 fry/100 m² were below fry densitiss needed to fully seed the rearing areas. If stellhead fry are available, stocking at a rate of 100 fry/100 m^2 may be needed to insure full sesding of the rearing areas. Fish movement through traps in Post Office and Weir Creeks, 1977-78, was highest when traps were installed in early July, then dscreased near the end of July and through August Nearly all movement of age I and older steelhead ceased in August with the exception of fish movement associated with freshets.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 MARHOTT, L. ERENT. 1981. Density and habitat of wild and introduced juvenile steelhead trout in ths Lochsa River Drainage, Idaho. Wasters Thesis. University of Idaho. 94 pp.

006.036* CRISO073360 INVESTIGATION OF AQUATIC ECOSYSTEMS IN SMALL PONDS

LIEEY G S; FCRESTRY & NATURAL RESOURCES; PURDUE UNIVERSITY, LAFAYETTE, INLIANA. 47907. Proj. No: INDOS9044 Agency ID: CSES Period: 01 OCT 77 To 30 SEP 82

OBJECTIVES: Determine the interactions in the Plankton community of small impoundments; investigate the relationship of plankton to young fish; evaluate the effect on fish populations of ecosystem changes.

APPEGACE: Ecosystem measurements will be made in the field. A time series of population data will be used to evaluate interactions in the plankton community. Fish population on plankton will he determined by comparing populations from ponds containing no fish with populations from ponds with young fish. Adult fish populations status will be monitored and changes resulting from matural or induced disruptions measured.

PECGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. The farm pond is an important aquatic ecosystem in the midwestern United States. Fish population imhalances in ponds are often caused by wide variations in the size of predator or prsy year classes. These variations can be the result of fluctuations in larval mortality. Food availability and competition for food are the primary determinants of larval mortality and growth. Experiments conducted at varios prey levels showed survival as a function of prey density was different for bluegill, green sunfish, and large mouth bass. Green sunfish survival was superior to either bluegill or bass. Eluegill survival improved as prey density increased, but bass had a low survival at most prey levels. The influence of competition bstween bluegill and green sunfish on their natural diet was investigated in a series of partitioned areas in a local pond. The presence of interspecific competition did not alter the diet of either species, but competition with older individuals produced major dietary shifts. In a study on the genetics of channel catfish, triploidy was induced by cold-shocking fertilized eggs. The triploid catfish are as viable as their diploid full sibs and tolerate the ployploidy condition well. Evidence for an increased growth rate due to triploidy and due to the lack of sexual maturation in sterile triploids was noted.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- HCLLAND, L.E. and LIHEY, G.S. 1980. Inexpensive Egg-Batching Jar. Prog. Fish-Cult. 42(2):112.
- LIBEY, G.S. and EELT2, J.R. 1980. Method for Monitoring Downstream-Migrating Alewives. Prog. Fish-Cult. 42(3):172-173.
- LIEEY, G.S. and HOLLAND, L.E. 1980. The Use of Periodic Light Applications of Fotenone as a Management Technique for Small Impoundments. Purdue Univ., Water Resources Research Center, Tech. Report No. 132. 30 pp.

006.037 CRIS0079173 BIOLOGICAL DATA FOR MANAGEMENT OF WALLEYES AND OTEEE FISEES

CARLANDER K D; ANIWAL ECOLOGY; IOWA STATE UNIVERSITY, AMES, IOWA. 50011. Proj. No.: IOW02378 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 79 To 30 JUN 84

OEJECTIVES: Summarize and publisb in Volume 3, the available data on the Perciform fishes other than the Centerarchidae; maintain a bibliography so that the original references and data can be readily located; maintain a cross index to the literature on all species so that future revisions can be prepared; develop and demonstate methods of utilizing the data.

APPROACE: The systems of recording and tabulation used in volumes 1 and 2 of "Bandbook of Freshwater Fiseries Eiology" will be followed for Volume 3 but possibilities of using computer programs will be investigated. Newer methods of representing growth rate will also he incorporated in the study. Data will come from all avaliable publications and special reports.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TC 80/12. In the last 15-20 years many scientists have apparently used body-scale regressions as predictive equations in calculating lengths from scale measurements. This practice is contrary to provious methods and results in greater variance because differences in scale size are not properly adjusted. I prepared a paper cautioning scientists on the asthod, which is to be published in January 1981, and presented two papers at national and regional meetings. Two additional papers on standardization of methodology have been prepared for submittal. Matsrial for Volume 3 of the Handbook of Freshwater Fishery Biology and for revision of Volumes 1 and 2 has been recorded as the publications arrive. Tabulation and manuscript preparation bas proceeded on the section on white perch. Morone americanus, and is about half completed.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUELICATIONS SEPORTED THIS PERIOD.

006.038* CRIS0082533 FACTORS AFFECTING FISH POPULATIONS IN IOWA WATERS

NICKUM J G; HUEEBT W A; ANIMAL ECCLOGY; IOWA STATE UNIVERSITY, AMES, IOWA. 50011. Proj. No.: IOW02465 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 31 JUL 80 To 30 SEP 85

OEJECTIVES: To determine the factors influencing fluctuations in abundance of selected populations. To identify man-made habitat alterations that impact or enhancs environmental conditions for aquatic life. To increase understanding of environmental contaminants transport and dynamics. To evaluate fishery management techniques aimed at enhancing fishery quality or productivity.

APPROACE: Research will consist of field and laboratory studies on the life history, environmental requirements, and population dynamics of fieb species in lowa waters. Data on sovironmental contaminants in fish and their habitats will be obtained by standard analytical procedures. Established methods for population assessment will be used to determine the effects of various management techniques.

PPOGRESS: 80/07 TO 80/12. Two individual studies were conducted within the scope of this project: one dealing with pesticide residues in the Des Moines Biver and another concerned with ths propagation of walleyes, Stizostedion vitrsum, (propagated walleyes may be stocked so as to manipulate resident fish populations). Concentrations of dieldrin and DDT in muscle tissue of carp, Cyprinus carpio, from the Des Moines River, Iowa, were compared relative to month of collection, age of fish, and sampling location. Satistically significant differences were observed for all three factors. Expression of pesticide levels on the basis of wet weight of flesh often produced different results than when comparisons were made on a fat hasis. to have higher dieldrin levels than samples from riverine locations. However, no similar trend was detected for DDT levels. Walleye fry fed a mixture of a diatom (Welosira sp.), decapsulated brine shrimp eggs, and dry feed (W-7) exhibited higher survival rates than those fed any of these items alone or in pairs. Walleye fingerlings were reared in ponds to a length of 35 mm and successfully transferred to hatchery production units. Substantial mortality occurred later, apparently due to stress from subsequent handling. Acceptance of dry feed hy walleye fingerlings was highest in those rearing units in which water flow patterns held the feed in suspension for the longest times. Research in the coming year will proceed along similar lines for each study.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/07 TO 80/12 BUBEET, W.A. 1980. Aldrin and DDT Residues in Carp from Impounded and Riverine Segments of the Des Moines River 1979. In: Proceedings of a Seminar on the Water Quality in Corps of Engineers Reservoirs in Iowa. U.S. Army Corps of

006.035* CRISO073386 VATER QUALITY ENHANCEMENT OF LAKES BY MECHANICAL PUMPING

 SUMMERFELT R C; MCALEXANDER A K; BCLT B R; ANIMAL

 ECCLOGY; ICWA STATE UNIVERSITY, AMES, IOWA. 50011.

 Proj. No.: ICW02233

 Project Type: STATE

 Agency ID: SAES

 Period: 0i JUL 77 To 30 JUN 82

OBJECTIVES: Enhance water quality of lakes by in situ aeration with an axial-flow, mechanical pump. Specially, pumping will he done to increase total content of dissolved oxygen, and to decrease the concentration of organic matter, and the toxic substances, namely ammonia and hydrogen sulfide.

APPROACE: Dissolved oxygen, ECD, hydrogen sulfide and ammonia will be measured by standard procedures at intervals and depths which will allow cbaracterization of total mass of these chemical cbaracteristics of water quality. Pumping will be done with an axial-flow mechanical pump of the Quintero-Garton design. Evaluation will be done on the basis of changes in these water quality variables and improvement in species diversity of aquatic life.

FROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. An axil-flow pump of the Cuintero-Garton (1968) design, with a 120-cm diameter impellor, was operated on McFarland Lake, Story County, Iowa from 13 May through 22 October 1980 to prevent normal summer stratification. The temperature, and concentration of dissolved oxygen, cblorophyll a, BOD, CO(2), B(2)S, total phosphate, and orthophosphate were measured once each month at three sample sites in the lake and at each depth contour from 1 to 5 meters. During mid-summer, when expected temperature and chemical stratification in this lake would be substantial, maximum temperature difference was less than 2.0 C, and the substrate of the lake was warmed nearly 10 C over the expected temperature without artificial destratification. Witbout pumping, the lake would be anoxic below 4 meters, but with pumping, oxygen in the deepest contour was rever less than 1.6 mg/1 (25 June) and otherwise between 2.1 and 3.6, June through August. Long-term trends in lake improvement could be seen hy comparing conditions occurring in the summers of 1978, 1979, and 1980. BOD values for the summer of 1980 were abcut half that of previous two summers and Chlorophyll a concentration in the surface (0-1) meter) stratum of the lake for the June through August period was the lowest of the years. Transparency (Secchi disc) was higher than in previous years.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD. 0J6.040* CFIS0069239 BREEDING, PRODUCTION, NUTRITICN AND MARKETING CF CHANNEL CATFISE

KELLEY J R JR; DEYOE C; KLAASSEN E E; EICLCGY; KANSAS STATE UNIVERSITY, MANBATIAN, KANSAS. 66506. Proj. No.: KAN00962 Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 SEP 75 To 30 JUN 80

OBJECTIVES: Obtain quantitative data on the growth rates of selective strains of channel catfish and the reaction of selected strains to different dietary formulations. Identify interaction of growth rates, diets and pond water quality degradation. Quantify water quality parameters associated with pond degradation and develop methods of maintaining water quality. Develop methods for product storage and flavor quality.

APPROACE: Earthen ponds will be used to replicated experiments to test diets against four strains of channel catfish. Growth rates will be used to compare the effect of diet on strain performance and for hetween-strain performance using a factorial arrangment of treatments. Full and half sit analysis will be used to compare within-strain performance. Dietary treatments will include evaluation of protein quality and quantity. Effect of diets with different nutrient densities involving nutrients such as vitamins and minerals will be evaluated in relationship to protein levels.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TC 80/06. Ponds treated with cobalt chloride as a trace component of fertilizer were not found to produce more channel catfish than control ponds. Cohalt chloride was added to the diet of channel catfish to determine if vitamin B(12) could he spared hy the addition of this trace mineral. No significant difference was recorded in growth rates of fish receiving normal amounts of B(12) and those fish receiving cohalt in place of B(12) in purified diets. Significant differences were found in serum proteins between three of five populations of catfish. Additional differences in these populations were found in serum esterase patterns. It was concluded that the population of channel catfish in the White River, Arkansas and the Elue River, Kansas, were different from each other and from the other three populations examined. A domestic population from Arkansas, a domestic population from Kansas and wild population in the Kansas River, Kansas.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/06 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

066.041 CEIS0067654 DEVELOPMENT OF MAXIMUM SUSTAINED VIELD IN KANSAS FARM PONDS

 KLAASSEN B E; BIOLOGY; KANSAS STATE UNIVERSITY,

 MANBATTAN, KANSAS. 66506.

 Proj. No.:
 KAN-05-344

 Project Type:
 STATE

 Agency ID:
 SAES

 Period:
 01 JUL 73 To 31 DEC 80

OBJECTIVES: Deveop procedures of obtaining sustained yield of edible fish in Kansas farm ponds.

APPROACH: A number of ponds will be cleared of fish and then restocked and managed with vrious species and pactices.

PROGRESS: 77/01 TC 77/12. The study continued into its fifth year. The 30 study ponds were checked periodically and physical & chemical data were collected. The previous year had been very dry & most of the ponds were low. Some of the ponds experienced a winterkill. Then during summer there were several periods of excessive flooding .nd numerous fish washed out of the ponds. Dur to these problems much of the year was spent in readjusting the population and allowing them to build up through reduced harvest.

PUBLICATIONS: 77/01 TO 77/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED TBIS PERIOD. 006.042 CRIS0084700 MECHANIZATION OF CRAWFISH HARVESTING AND PRODUCTION

EDLING R J; AGRI ENGINEERING; LCUISIANA STATE UNIVERSITY, FATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA. 70803. Proj. No.: LAB02184 Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 AUG 81 To 30 JUN 84

OBJECTIVES: Develop one or more methods to mechanically harvest crawfish. Mechanize and develop aeration, water management and other systems for crawfish production.

AFPECACH: The development of one or more mechanical harvesters and other mechanical devices will relate to practical application needs. The primary harvesting method to be pursued is formulated around a relatively expensive baited trap. The trap design permits easy entrance but makes exit difficult. The added entrance-exit design requirements and the stronger construction needed for mechanical handling make the trip relatively expensive. The expense is defrayed by highly efficient use, characterized by frequent movement. A large number of trap placements per unit area and the frequent movement of the traps will be feasible with a mechanical carrier. The carrier will be self propelled and programmed with timers to remain stationary for given time periods and to move given distances. A device will be made to lower, raise and invert the trap for emptying. Crawfish will be deposited in an inclined pipe through which they will be transported by a stream of water to the end of the wide-span carrier. A linear move irrigator may serve as a carrier and would also be used to aerate the water.

006.043* CFIS0055844 ECOLOGICAL STUDIES WITH RED SWAMP CRAWFISH AND WHITE RIVER CRAWFISH

AVAULT J W; FORESTEY 6 WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT; LOUISIANA STATE UNIVERSITY, EATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA. 70803. Froj. No.: LAH01192 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 11 AUG 64 To 31 OCT 80

OBJECTIVES: Study factors influencing ecology of crawfish, such as temperature, season, water quality and depth, vegetation, soil type, and agricultural practices, in relation to feeding, growth, reproduction, behavior, populations, diseases, predators, and competitors.

APPEGACE: Experiments will be set up in aquaria to determine temperature tolerance of crawfish. Past crawfish production records for certain areas will be compared to weather records. Small ponds will be stocked with crawfish and effects of water level fluctuations studied. Crawfish movements will be studied in laboratory and in the field. Wethods for food habits studies will be developed and applied in the laboratory. Water from natural crawfish habitats will be analyzed. Natural crawfish populations will be studied in relation to soil fertility. Population dynamics of crawfish will be studied, including mortality and predators. Crawfish carrying capacity will be determined from small ponds.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/10. Studies conducted during reporting period on influence of pesticides, rice residue, and planted rice on crawfish production indicated: No differences in growth, survival and yield of crawfish in tanks planted with untreated rice, planted with untreated rice, or planted with treated rice plus receiving Propanil, Ordram and Furadan. No pesticide residues were detected in flesh. In lab studies, a combination of Propanil, Crdram and Furadan was more toxic to crawfish than any single pesticide. After rice was harvested in crawfish ponds the stubble was left standing (S), baled (H) and added back to ponds periodically, or disked (D) into the soil. Half the ponds were flooded early (E), Sept. 20, and half late (L), Oct. 10. Crawfish in S, H and D ponds grew to 19, 18, and 17 g respectively. Crawfish in E and L flooded ponds grew to 92 and 83 mm in length, respectively. Rice straw decomposed fastest in E ponds, followed by S and D

ponds, with weight loss of 77, 67, and 49%, respectively, after 5-months. Dissolved oxygen was consistently higher in E flooded pends than in E flooded ponds; I8 weeks after flooding, periphyton in g/m 2 was E 337, E 216, S 358, E 333, D 307. Ponds containing crawfish were planted with or without rice. Ponds with no rice receiving range pellets (crude protein 9.0%) from Sept. 25 to May 3 produced 881 kg of crawfish/ha. Ponds with rice receiving range pellets from March 1 through May 3 produced 2016 kg.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/10

- WITZIG, J.F. 1980. Spatial and Temporal Patterns of Nacroinvertebrate Communities in a Small Drawfish Pond. N.S. Thesis. LSU, 113 pp.
- CHIEN, Y.H. 1980. Effects of Flooding Dates and Disposals of Rice Straw on Crayfish, Procambarus clarkii (Girard), Culture in Fice Fielde. Ph.D. Dieser. LSU, 120 pp.
- WITZIG, J.F., AVAULT JR., J.W. and CCNNEE, J.V. 1980. Insect Dynamics in a Crawfish Pond with Emphasis on Predaceous Insects (Abstract Cnly). In Abstr. of Fish Culture Sect. of the Amer. Fish. Soc. 14.
- CHIEN, Y.B. and AVAULT JR., J.N. 1980. Effects of Flooding Dates and Type Disposal of Rice Oryza sativa, Straw on the Crawfish, Procamtarus clarkii (Girard), Culture in Rice Fields, In: Abstr. of Fish Culture Sect. of the
- JOHNSON, W.B. and AVAULT JR., J.W. 1980. Some Effects of Poultry Manures Supplementation to Rice/Crawfish Experimental Earthern Ponds. In Abstr. of Fish Culture Sect. of the Amer. Fish. Soc. 15. (Abstract Cnly).

006.044* CFIS0056869 IMPROVEMENT OF CATFISH STOCK THROUGH SELECTIVE BREEDING

AVAULT J W; FORESTRY 6 WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT; LCUISIANA STATE UNIVERSITY, HATCN ROUGE, LOUISIANA. 70803. Proj. No.: LAB01524 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JAN 70 TO 30 SEP 81

OBJECTIVES: Improve catfish stock, used in fish culture, by selective breeding for fast growth rate, high dressing percentage, and other desirable traits.

APPEOACH: Initially, five spawns of channel catfish will be collected for each of four populations from diverse areas of the southeastern United States. Each spawn will be stocked separately in a pond. At maturity male and female sibs will be mated for each of the four populations. All possible crosses and reciprocal crosses between the four populations will be made. Ultimately, it is hoped to develop inbred lines for crossing.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Fifteen channel catfish families from the Yazoo strain and eight from the LSU strain were tested for genetic variability in mortality rate at a low level of dissolved oxygen (1.1+.01 mg/1). Channel catfish fry of both strains ranging from 2 to 10 days of age were administered low dissolved oxygen shock tests for 10-hour periods following 12-hour acclimation. There was no significant difference (P greater than 0.05) between the LSU and Yazoo strains in mortality. Test fish of each strain averaged 63% mortality during the shock tests. No significant differences (P greater than 0.05) were detected among the age groups of fry (3 and 4; 5 and 6; 7 and 8; and 9 and 10 days old). There were highly significant (P less than 0.01) and significant (p less than 0.05) intra-class correlations among the families. These led to high heritability estimates for the trait of being resistant to low dissolved oxygen. The heritability estimates ranged from 0.9 + 0.3 to 1.7 + 0.1). These inflated heritability estimates were probably due to excess environmental effects common to each family. Based on the high intra-class correlations for low-DO resistance found in this study, one could probably select among 2 to 10-day-old channel catfish fry for the trait of being resistant to low DO. It is not known, however, whether the ability to resist low DC at these ages will hold for the same fish or family of fish at older ages, such as among grow-out fish

for the food market or brood fish.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

006.045* FRESEWATER FCOD ANIMALS

CFIS0071457

AVAULT J W; FOLESTRY & WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT; LOUISIANA STATE UNIVERSITY, EATON FOUGE, LOUISIANA. 70803. Proj. No.: LABO1878 Ageocy ID: SAES Period: 01 CCT 76 To 30 SEP 81

OEJECTIVES: Devalop and improve Production and Management Systems for Freshwater Animals Cultured for Food. Genetics and Breeding. Culture Systems.

APFROACB: Catfish. Improved strains of channel catfish will be developed through cross-breeding and progeny testing. Crawfish. Various agricultural by-products will be fed to rawfish in replicated ponds. Production per acre will be compared between treatments. Fopulations of crawfish will be monitored in ponds to determine management techniques. Various stocking rates and feeds will be testad with crawfish in tanks. Crawfish will be stocked together with various other species to determine best combinations for increasing production. Traditicoal trapping methods will be compared, and new methods, such as the use of electricity, will be tested.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Research conducted on catfish management under well-aerated culture and prawn-catfish culture indicated: (1) Catfish were stocked into ponds at rates of 7,500, 15,000, and 22,000 per ha. All ponds received aeration each day from 0200 hrs until 1 hr after sunset. Io control unaerated ponds, catfish were stocked at 7,500 per ha. Fish in all ponds were fed a commercial ration containing 36% protein. Production of catfish in Eg/ba was: 2717 at a stocking of 7,500; 3,474 at 15,000; and 5,277 at 22,000. In non-aerated ponds production was 1,870 kg/ha. (2) Prawns ware stocked into ponds at rates of 25,000/ha, at 50,000/ha, and at 25,000/ha plus chancal catfish fry at 75,000/ha. Ponds were also stocked with catfish fry ooly at 75,000/ha. Prawns and catfish in all ponds were fed Purina catfish chow. Prawn survival, 22%, and production 265 kg/ha were greatast in ponds stocked at 25,000/ha. This production was much lower than that from 1979 study at a stocking density of 25,000/ha. Overall, catfish survival was 33% and production was 695 kg/ha.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- PLEXMCNS, E. 1980. Effects of Aeration and High Stocking Density on Channel Catfish Froduction. M.S. Thesis. LSU. 37 pp. AVAULT JE., J.W. 1980. Fishery Products from
- AVAULT JE, J. W. 1980. Fishery Products from Aquaculture and Capture Fisheries, pp. 142-155. In: Cole, B.H. and Garett, W.N. (Editors) Animal Agriculture. San Francisco: W. B. Freeman and Co., 739 pp.
- AVAULT JE., J.W. 1980. Management of Aquatic Species, pp. 658-674. In: Cola, B.B. and Garett, W.N. (Editors), Animal Agriculture. San Francisco: W. B. Freeman and Co., 739 pp.
- PLEMMONS, E. and AVAULT JR., J.W. 1980. Use of Aeration to Increase Catflish Production (Summary Only). In: Res. Work. Sum. of Fapers Catflish Farmers of Amer. Annu. Conv. 1980:12-13.
- BUNER, J.V., MILTNER, M., BEAN, R.A. and AVAULT JR., J.W. 1980. Survival and Reproduction of Blue Tilapia, Tilapia aurea, in Ponds Stocked with Bowfin, Amia calva, to Serve as Predators (Summary Ooly). In: Res. Work. Sum. of Fapers

006.046 CFIS0082871 MANAGEMENT TECHNIQUES FOR INCREASING CRAWFISE PRODUCTION

AVAULT J W; FORESTRY & WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT; LCUISIANA STATE UNIVERSITY, BATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA. 70803. Proj. No.: LAE02133 Agency ID: SAES Froject Typa: STATE Pariod: 01 NCV 80 To 30 SEP 85

OBJECTIVES: Davelop hatter methods of harvesting crawfish. Develop forage/feeding schemes to maximize crawfish yields. Multipla crop crawfish with rice, soybeaos and other crops on the same lands. Improve methods of maintaining optimum water quality.

APPROACH: Nost of the research will be carreid out in replicated Louisiana Agricultural Experimental ponds using field-plot techniques. Outfield research will be conducted io commercial ponds. Pesticide research will be conducted in the field and in the lab.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. During reporting period research cootinued on: improved methods of harvesting crawfish; avaluation of artificial baits for harvasting crawfish; and avaluation of two varieties of rice, Saturn and LaBelle with and without fertilizer, as forages for crawfish. Such research established under LAB01192 which was terminated 31 Oct 1980.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

006.047* CRIS0083021 EFFECTS OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS AND MANAGEMENT PRACTICES ON CONMERCIAL PRODUCTION OF CRAVFISE

RCMAIRE E P; FORESTRY & WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT; LOUISIANA STATE UNIVERSITY, EATON & CUGE, LCUISIANA. 70803. Proj. No.: LAB02138 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 NOV 80 To 31 DEC 85

OBJECTIVES: To delineate tha major envirnomental factors that regulate production of crawfish in commercial ponds. To develop management strategies that optimize economic yields of crawfish from commercial ponds. To evaluate new macagement techniques devaloped by the La. Agricultural Experiment Station in commercial crawfish ponds.

APPEOACB: Environmental factors that regulate production of crawfish in commercial ponds will be evaluatad. Initial investigations will conceotrate on water quality dynamics, effluent discharge determination of minaral requirements, and the effects of agricultural pesticidas on crawfish. Decay dynamics of forage blomass will be assayed and its effects on crawfish population dynamics ascertained. Conventional traps and new traps designs will be tested for efficiency in harvesting. Forage research will concentrate changes in nutrive quality, blomass production and prefarence of vagetation types hy crawfish.

PROGRESS: 80/11 TO 80/12. Barvasting crawfish with traps is the largest variable axpensa to commercial producers in Louisiana, generally comprising 40 to 60% of the gross revenues. Six type of traps presently used in the commercial industry and three new trap designs ara being evaluated for harvest efficiency in three commercial ponds during the 1980-81 carwfish season. Concomitantly, trap placement, trap dansity, frequency with which traps are emptied and manipulation of environmeotal parameters, such as water circulation, are being investigated to ascertain those combinations of harvesting strategies that minimize cost and maximize catch. Seven commercial crawfish ponds are teing sample biweekly with dip nets, saines, and small and large mesh traps during 1980-81 saasoo to quantitate growth, mortality, and recruitmant patterns of crawfish populations. Saasonal changes in vegatation covar and plant species composition are being datermined by the line-intarcept method. These data along with catch aod effort data supplied by cooperating producers are baing used to davelop a mathematical modal capable of evaluating management strategias that optimiza crawfish yields.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/11 TO 80/12

006.048* CFIS0067268 ENVIRONMENTAL EFFECTS ON PRODUCTIVITY CF CEATFISE IN FOND HABITATS, PHASE I, II

RODDY L F; DAVIS C E; BIOLOGY; SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY, HATON ROUGE, ICUISIANA. 70813. Proj. No.: LA.X-PR-0001-8-15-66

Project Type: GRANT Agency ID: CSBS Period: 29 OCT 74 To 28 CCT 79

OBJECTIVES: Determine the type and amount of food that will yield the best production. Determine the most efficient barvesting method in small ponds. Investigate an early and extended crayfish season in small ponds.

APPROACE: Literature and cooperating persoonel will supplement our selection of food types and amount during the feeding season. Standard nets, seins, modified traps and nets will be used. The possible use of chemicals and electric devices will be investigated. Systematic regulation of water will be maintained, to determine the possibility of increase and decrease of water level on an extended season. Statistical analysis will be made.

PROGRESS: 79/01 TO 79/12. Feeding: Data obtained from the crayfish project indicated that feeding and fertilizing had great impact on productivity. Feed with a high protein percentage favored productivity, consequently, fish pellets are highly recommended in the feeding regimen. Harvesting: Four different traps were constructed and placed in water depth of 120. 90, 60 and 30 cm respectively. The total weight of each catch per trap was recorded. On the hasis of results obtained, Type I trap with 1.5cm mesh wire construction, barrel shape design, 70cm long, 30cm wide with two funnel openings at the hottom is recommended for utilization from January through June. Dual Crop of Crayfish and Fish: 205 fingerlings of hybrid buffalo fish were added to each of the two crayfish ponds. Rice was planted in each pond. None of the fish reached market size over this phase of the investigation but the preliminary results indicate that it is feasible to rear crayfish and these fish ir the same pond. Cost Yield Ratio: Based upon average crayfish price, net profits of \$85.82 in Fond I and \$338.83 in Fond II were realized, thereby indicating the feasibility of commercial crayfish production urder small pond conditions.

PUBLICATIONS: 79/01 TO 79/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

006.049* Cfis0082633 CRAWFISH CULTURE STUDIES IN SMALL FONDS: BURFOWING, POLYCULTURE AND NATURAL FOND FLOODING

BUNER J V; CCLLEGE OF AGBICULTURE; SOUTHEEN UNIVERSITY, EATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA. 70813. Proj. No.: LA.X-81-2003-2044 Project Type: 1890/T Agency ID: CERS Period: 01 OCT 50 To 30 SEP 85

OBJECTIVES: Determine the spatial and seasonal burrowing patterns of crawfish in small, open crawfish ponds. Assess the effectiveness of various techniques for facilitating successful hurrowing of crawfish in crawfish ponds. Determine the effects of soil tilling practices on crawfish burrows in crawfish ponds. Determine the commercial feasihility of cultivating channel catfish and crawfish together in small, open south Louisiana crawfish ponds. Determine the commercial feasihility of using rainfall to flood crawtish ponds in south Louisiana.

APPROACE: Objectives 1, 2, 4 and 5 will be pursued in the four, one acre crawfish ponds located at Southern University. Objective 3 will be pursued in a nearby commercial pond. During the first two years, burrows will be marked and mapped on a biweekly basis and several types of materials will be tested to determine their effectiveness as burrowing facilitators. Also, during the first two years, marked burrows will be subjected to disking and tractor-hush hog compaction early and late during the dry season to determine their impact on the occupants. In years 2 and 3, channel catfish will be stocked in test ponds after they have heen filled with water in the fall. Catfish production and catfish impact on cawfish productioo will be recorded. In years 4 and 5, test ponds will be permitted to fill naturally in the fall and winter. The impact on this action on crawfish production will be measured.

006.050* CRIS0080671 NUTRITION MANAGEMENT AND DISEASE OF MARINE ANIMALS

BAYEB R C; ANIMAL & VETERINARY SCIENCE; UNIVERSITY OF MAINE, ORONG, MAINE. 04469. Proj. No.: ME08398 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUN 79 To 30 SEP 82

OBJECTIVES: Formulate and evaluate minimal cost lobster rations, study gaffkemia in lobsters including vaccine evaluation and study lobster pound management. Compounded lobster haits will also he evaluated.

APPROACE: Lobsters will be fed diets of various types and growth will be monitored by measuriog weight in water and weight in air. Lobsters will be vaccinated with live facteria so that survival can be measured.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Practical diets formulated with brewer's yeast, fish meal, kelp meal, alfalfa and wheat flour were fed to adult and juvenile lobsters. The hasal diet was supplemeoted with 20,000, 100,000 and 1,000,000 U.S.P. units of vitamin A per Kg of diet. Growth was greatest in lobsters fed 20,000 U.S.P. units of vitamin A per Kg with growth inhibition seen in lobsters fed the higher level supplements. Adult lobsters were injected with P 3 2 labelled aerococcus viridans, a fatal lobster pathogen, and the distribution of these hacteria in the animal's hody was monitored. The hacteria were primarily phagocytized by the hepatopancreas.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- GALLAGHER, M.L., BAYER, R.C., LEAVITT, D.F. and RITTENBUEG, J.B. 1979. Effects of Protein Energy Ratio on Growth of Adult American Lotsters. Proc. 10th an Meet. World Mariculture Society.
- GALLABGER, M.L., BITTENBURG, J.E., EAYER, R.C. and LEAVITT, D.F. 1979. Incidence of Aerococcus viridans (var.) homeri in Natural Crab Populations in Maine Coastal Waters. Crustaceana 37:316-317.
- HAYER, R.C., GALLAGBER, N.L., LEAVITI, D.F. and RITTENBURG, J.B. 1979. A Kadiographic Study of the Lobster (Homarus americanus) Alimentary Canal. Proc. 10th An. Meet. World Mariculture Society.
- EAYER, R.C., ADRON, J.W., MACKIE, A.M., FIFIE, B.J. and RITIENEURG, J.B. 1980. Mechanisms of Food Detection and Feeding Behavior in Dover Sole. Fed. Proc. 38:500.
- EAYER, B.C., GAILAHGER, M.L., LEAVITT, D.F. and RITTENEUGG, J.B. 1980. Mequirements for Diet Formulation for Adult Lobeters (Hemarus americanus) Held in High Density Coofinement. Abst. 72nd Annual Neeting ASAS, p. 186.

006.051* CRISO074202 MATHEMATICAL MODEL OF OYSTER POPULATION IN THE CHESAPRAKE BAY

WHEATON F W; CABRAAL A; AGRI ENGINEERING; UNIVERSITY OF MARYLAND, CCLLEGE PARE, MAFYLAND. 20742. Proj. No.: MD-E-057 Project Type: BATCH Agency ID: CSES Period: 01 OCT 77 To 30 SEP 80

OBJECTIVES: Develop a bank of pertinent data to study oyster productivity in the Marylaod portion of the Chesapeake Bay. Develop a mathematical model for describing the production function of oysters, this model will incorporate economic and management factors affecting the productivity of an oyster tar. Evaluate the effectiveness of the oyster repletion program in Maryland and suggest means of optimizing the operation.

APPEOACB: A data bank will be established incorporating oyster catch, effort and spatfall data, and seed and shell planting data. This data will be stored on computer tape and coded so data is available by bar and is accessable by river basin code, oyster bar code, Davis code, NGAA code, by latitude and longitude or by official or common bar name. This and other data will be useo to develop an oyster demand equation, catch effort equation and production function. The effects of existing catch limits will be determined. Existing oyster population size will be estimated and management alternatives determined.

PECGEESS: 77/11 TO 80/09. A computerized data bank was developed which contains Maryland oyster seed and shell plantings by bar from 1964 to 1975, natural oyster spatfall for 1955 to 1975, harvest and effort for 1964 to 1975 and several more general economic statistics such as ex-vessel price of oysters. The Maryland portion of the Chesapeake Bay was divided into 6 general areas. Production functions relating catch to effort, lagged spatfall, seed and shell plantings, were developed for each area. Fresh shell was the most successful cultch material with dredge shell being less efficient in catching spat. Seed plantings produced 12 to 19 bushels of marketable oysters per 100 bushels of seed planted depending on the area planted. The State run oyster repletion program returned about 300,000 bushels of marketable oysters per year for the approximately \$1,000,000 annual expenditure. Estimates of oyster population were made for each of the six areas for the beginning of the 1975-76 harvest year using the Leslie and DeLury equations. Calculated rates of resource exploitation varied from 17 to 31 percent, depending on the area. Demand equations developed indicated oysters had an unitary demano elasticity. Effort equations developed showed that the boat-days of harvesting effort were stable over time for most river systems.

PUBLICATIONS: 77/11 TO 80/09

- CABRAAL, R.A. 1978. Systems Analysis of the Maryland Oyster Fishery: Production Management and Economics. Ph.D. Thesis. University of Maryland, College Park. 318 pp.
- CABRAAL, R.A. and WHEATCN, F.W. 1978. A Fredictor Model for Chesapeake Bay Oyster Productivity. Paper No. 78-5036. American Society of Agricultural Engineers. St. Joseph, Michigan.

006.052 CFIS0074565 VATER QUALITY MAINTENANCE IN CLOSED CYCLE FISH CULTURE SYSTEMS

WEEATON F W; LAWSON T H; AGRI ENGINEERING; UNIVERSITY OF MARYLAND, COLLEGE PARK, MARYLAND. 20742. Proj. No.: ND-R-058 Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 FEB 78 To 30 SEP 80

CBJECTIVES: Develop design data for filtration systems to control water quality in closed cycle aquatic culture systems.

APPEOACB: Several types of filters will be studied as a means of removing metabolic wastes from closed cycle fish culture systems. Laboratory tests with these filters will be carried out to develop design equations for the filters. Water quality data, physical data from the filters and biological data will be combined by statistical and mathematical techniques to produce equations, graphs and other results which can be used to design filtration systems for prototype and commercial fish culture systems.

PRCGRESS: 78/01 TO 80/09. A venturi air injection system for mixing air and an aqueous solution of surfactant, triton X-100, was used on a foam fractionation system. Using similtude principles, surfactant extraction efficiency was determined as a function of four independent variables grouped into three pi terms: ratio of area of air holes to throat area of venturi (A(H)/A(T)), ratio of air flow rate to liquid flow rate (Q(A)/Q(L)), and number of air holes (n). The equations developed from the model predicted protoype triton X=100 extraction efficiency with 71% accuracy. Six of the eight equations necessary to combine 4 pi terms and their tests for applicability were worked out. A review of floam fractionation research has also been developed as part of this Project.

PUBLICATIONS: 78/01 TO 80/09

- WHEATON, F.W., LAWSON, T.B. and LOMAX, K.M. 1980. Foam Fractionation Applied to Aquacultural Systems. Proceedings World Mariculture Society 10:795-808.
- LAWSON, T.H. 1978. Venturi Cesign Parameters for Air Injection into a Foam Fractionation System. Ph.D. Thesis. University of Maryland. 204 pp.

006.053* CRIS0082911 CLOSED CYCLE FISH CULTURE VATER FILTRATION USING BIOLOGICAL SYSTEMS

WHEATON F W; LAWSON T H; KARLANDEE E P; AGFi ENGINEERING; UNIVERSITY OF MAEYLAND, COLLEGE PARK, MAFYLAND: 20742. Proj. No.: ND-RK-066 Project Type: HATCH

Agency ID: CSkS Period: 01 OCT 80 To 30 SEP 83

OBJECTIVES: Determine efficiency of nitrification filters for closed cycle aquacultural systems as a function of various operating parameters. Determine effectiveness of aquatic plants in removing nutrients from aquatic closed cycle culture systems. Use the data gathered from objectives one and two above to develp design equations for nitrification and plant filters.

APPROACH: Design equations for nitrification filters will be developed by operating pilot scale filters using an inorganic nitrogen source. Filter inlet ammonia concentration, oxygen concentration, temperature and pB will be varied and the filter's efficiency for converting ammonia to nitrate monitored. Macroscopic plants will be used to filter water containing an inorganic nutrient wix. The nitrogen and phosphate concentrations, water temperature, water retention time in the filter, pH and physical filter dimensions will be varied and related to nutrient extraction rates. Light levels will be maintained at a corstant value. Filter design equations will be developed from the data collected.

006.054 CFIS0073525 ECONOMICS OF BIVALVE MOLLUSK AQUACULTURE IN NEW ENGLAND

ALLEN P G; STOREY D A; CONRAD J M; FOCD & RESCURCE ECONOMICS; UNIVERSITY OF WASSACHUSETTS, ANHERST, MASSACHUSETTS. 01002. Proj. No.: MAS00415 Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 CCT 77 To 30 OCT 80

OBJECTIVES: Construct biological response models; specify alternative plausible technical alternatives; combine biological and engineering components into production models; conduct marketing and demand analyses to determine marketing costs, price and income elasticities and gross revenues for different output levels; combine production and marketing analysis to determine economic feasibility of different systems at different individual plant scales and aggregate ievels of output.

APPROACE: Generate a data base, develop cost of production estimates and provide sybsystem modeling support in cooperation with Texas AGN University. Modify Texas AGM computer program to fit local conditions.

PROGRESS: 77/10 TO 80/10. Two activities have been carried out on cooperative projects supported by NOAA-Office of Sea Grant. In cooperation with Texas A and M University. Data for the aquaculture budget generator were provided by a survey of shellfish aquaculturalists in New England and by the economic-engineering analysis of three synthetic model plants. As the budget generator becomes operational locally, it will enable the marine advisory service to provide detailed cost information to existing and prospective aquaculturalists. The economic-engineering analysis indicated that it was possible to produce 60g (85 mm) oysters at 1979 costs which ranged from \$18.50 in the lowest cost system to \$34.50 per bushel in the highest cost system. By comparison prices received for high-quality half-shell oysters were \$33.75 per bushel in 1979. Nost operating oyster-producers had costs of at least \$37.50 per bushel, due to the experimental nature of their operations. In cooperation with Woods Hole Cceanographic Institution: A computer program has been written based on the lobster aquaculture program of the University of California, Davis. The new program contains features not found in any other bioeconomic simulator and in a variable planning horizon framework it includes both start up and operationg sequences for either identical or nonidentical seasonal conditions for single, repeated batch or continuous batch operation.

PUBLICATIONS: 77/10 TO 80/10

- DCNOHUE, M. 1980. An Analysis of the Economics of Shellfish Aquaculture Systems in New England, M.S. Thesis, Univ. of Mass.
- SAWICKI, V. 1980. The Economic Feasibility of Intensive Culture Cyster Production, W.S. Thesis, Univ. of Mass.

006.055* FARM FISH POND MANAGEMENT CEIS0012991

KEVERN N E; FISHERIES & WILDLIFE; MICHIGAN STATE UNIVERSITY, EAST LANSING, MICHIGAN, 48824. Proj. No.: MICL000064 Agency ID: CSRS Period: 22 JUL 44 To 01 JAN 99

OBJECTIVES: Estimate production of plants and animals per unit area or volume of water in farm type ponds, and natural ponds. Determine extent fertilization of ponds will ircrease production of fish food (plankton, insects) and fish. Devise practical management programs for farm ponds; this includes the number of fish to plant and harvest. Detect and measure possible detrimental effects of use of fertilizers in fish vonds.

APPROACH: Measurement release of stored nutrients in the subaqueous soils by additon of chelating (EDTA, etc.) materials to the waters. Tracing the paths of nutrients added to the waters through tagging nutrients with radioactive tracers (P^{32}) , rates of fixation of nutrients and accumulation of organic material (basic productivity) will be measured by the C^{14} light-and-dark bottle technic. Input of solar radiation will be measured.

PRCGRESS: 44/07 TO 79/10. The research has contributed significantly to the management techniques of fish ponds in northern, midwestern areas of the United States. These techniques relate to the stocking densities of fish, the species of fish suitable, fertilization rates for ponds and fish and fish food relationships. Northern ponds must be stocked and tertilized differently than southern ponds in many aspects. Competition among sport versus rough fish in ponds results in reduced growth rates of sport fish when ponds are fertilized. This results apparently from lower dissolved oxygen levels in fertilized pends. Raising of catfish in Nichigan for sale is successful when starting the season with advanced fingerlings.

PUBLICATIONS: 44/07 TO 79/10

- GALLCWAY, J. E. AND N. R. KEVERN. 1976. Michigan suckers, their life histories, abundance and potential for harvest. Mich. Sea Grant Tech. Rpt. 53: 46 pp.
- LU, J. D. AND N. R. KEVERN. 1975. The feasibility of using waste materials as supplemental fish feed. Frcg. Fish-Cult. 37(4): 241-244.

- HAINES, T. A. 1973. Effects of nutrient enrichment and a rough fish population (carp) on a game fish population (small mouth bass). Trans. Am. Fish. Soc. Vol. 102: 346-354.
- EAHE, T. G., R. C. BALL AND F. F. HOPPEE. 1965. Some ecological changes in ponds resulting from treatments of sodium arsenite and copper sulfate. Micbigan Academician, Vol. 1, Nos.3 and 4.
- BAILS, J. D. AND R. C. BALL. 1976. Response of pond metabolism to sodium arsenite. Papers of Mich. Acad. of Sci., Arts, and Lett., Vol. LI.

006.056* FRESHWATER FOOD ANIMALS CEIS0071642

REAGEN R E; ROBINETTE H R; WILSON K P; WILDLIFE & FISHERIES SCI; MISSISSIPPI STATE UNIVERSITY, MISSISSIPPI STATE, MISSISSIPPI. 39762. Proj. No: MIS-0819 Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 CCT 76 To 30 SEP 81

OBJECTIVES: Develop and improve production and management system for freshwater animals cultured for food. Nutrition, genetics and breeding. Evaluate the economics of production processing and marketing of freshwater food animals. Develop and improve products and processing methods that will enhance marketability and insure quality of cultured freshwater food animals.

APPROACH: Project is multidisplinary with Departments of Biochemistry, Borticulture, Agricultural Economics, and Wildlife and Fisheries. Least cost rations will be tested in aquaria and one-tenth acre ponds. Genetics parameters, heritability, and genetic correlations estimated for several traits with concurrent selection program. Amino acid requirements on quantitative basis and digestibility of common feed stuffs determined for catfish. Processing methods compared for dress out yield, with standard nutritional values of catfish flesh determined.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Apparent and true amino acid availability values have been determined for the following feed ingredients commonly used in catfish feeds: corn, wheat middlings, rice bran, rice mill feed, soybean meal, peanut meal, cottonseed meal, meat and bone meal, and menhaden fish meal. Fingerling channel catfish appear to be more sensitive to the antinutritional factors present in soybean meal than poultry. Studies are currently being conducted to determine the adverse effects of trypsin inhibitors and flavones in soybean meal on catfish. Duckweed (Family Lemnaceae) was incorporated at 15 and 20% into isocaloric diets formulated to meet or exceed nutritional requirements of channel catfish. Diets containing duckweed performed as well as the control. Cottonseed meal was incorporated into isocaloric diets at 5. 10, 15, 20, and 25% of the basal diet. Growth suppression of channel catfish was noted at the 20 and 25% cottonseed meal levels. The procedure for canning tuna-style channel cutfish was refined, further data on heat-processing developed, and work was initiated on a consumer acceptance study. Selection of catfish for weight gain, gain in dress out percentage, and decreased percent fat with 25% for high selection and 25% low selection was completed. Fish will be mated at 2 years of age to decrease age at maturity. A Micro-computer program designed to provide information for Management decision-making has been developed. This system computes daily feeding rates by pond and projects feeding days to harvest.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- WILSON, E.P., ROBINSON, E.B. and POE, W.E. 1980. Amino Acid Supplementation of Practical Type Diets for Channel Catflish. Presented 9th Annual Fish Feed and Nutrition Workshop. Univ. of Washington, Seattle.
- WILSON, E.P., POE, W.E. and ROBINSON, E.H. 1980. Apparent and True Amino Acid Availabilities of Common Feed Ingredients for Catfleh Feeds. Presented 9th Annual Fish Feed and Nutrition Workshop. Univ. of Washington, Seattle.

WILSCN, b.f., PCEINSCN, E.H. and POE, W.E. 1980. Anticutritional Factors in Catfish Feeds. Presented 9th Anoual Fish Feed and Nutrition Workshop. Univ. of Washington, Seattle.
WALD&CF, J.E. and SMITE, R.D. 1980. An Economic Analysis of Producing Pond-Raised Catfish for Food in Wississippi: A January 1980 Update. Dept. of Ap. Economics Research Keport No. 103, July.

006.057* CFIS0082872 WINTER FEEDING OF CHANNEL CATFISE IN MISSISSIFPI

ROPINETTE F F; BUSCH F; WALDROP J; WILDLIFE S FISBERIES SCI; MISSISSIPPI STATE UNIVERSITY, MISSISSIPPI STATE, MISSISSIPPI. 39762. Proj. No.: MIS-0851 Project Type: STATE Ageocy ID: SAES Period: 15 NOV 80 To 30 SEP 83

CEJECTIVES: Evaluate growth rates, economic implications and water quality of fingerling and food-sized channel catfish winter feeding programs.

APPECACE: There will be four treatments (two experimeotal feeds two fish sizes) and two controls (no feed x two fish sizes) each replicated three times (18 .04 ha ponds). Fish will be fed as a percent of body weight depending upoo water temperature. Fish weight gain, survival, feed conversion ard body proximate acalysis will he analyzed usiog a two-way ANOVA. Economic and water quality evaluations will he conducted.

PROGRESS: 80/11 TO 80/12. Project was initiated 15 Nov 1980. All ponds were stocked and feeding adjusted to water temperature is proceeding.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/11 TO 80/12 NC PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

006.058* CFIS0083555 PRACTICAL FEED FORMULATIONS AND FEEDING FRACTICES FOR CATFISE FARMING IN MS

EUSCH E L; TUCKER C S; RCEINETTE H E; DELTA BEANCE EXPERIMENT STA; MISSISSIPPI STATE UNIVERSITY, STCNEVILLE, MISSISSIPPI. 38776. Proj. No.: MIS-0852 Agency ID: CSES Period: 18 FEE \$1 To 28 FEE \$3

OBJECTIVES: Evaluate the practical application of computer derived least cost ration formulations in catfish production ponds; compare experimental rations developed from the most current catfish nutrition information available to a standard commercial ration used throughout the industry; evaluate any effects of peanut meal as a feed ingredient or the shelf life of processed fish; evaluate diet formulation for winter feeding regimes in catfish production ponds.

APPROACE: Experimental rations will be formulated and compared to currently used commercial rations in both summer and winter feeding studies for channel catfish. Research will be conducted with both fingerling and market-size channel catfish cultured in.04/ha eartten ponds.

006.059 CFIS0081602 VATER QUALITY STOCKING RATES AND HARVESTING SYSTEMS FOR CATFISE

TUCKER C S; EUSCB & L; WALDROP J; DELTA ERANCE EXPERIMENT STA; MISSISSIPPI STATE UNIVERSITY, STCNEVILLE, WISSISSIPPI. 38776. Proj. No.: MIS-0842 Agency ID: CSFS Period: 01 JUN 80 To 30 JUN 82

OEJECTIVES: Estimate production function for stocking rates on methods in poods; measure water quality factors, production method, diseases; identify factors that limit production; access costs associated with above and compare these costs. Compute net returns. Develop and publish recommendations,

APPROACE: Ponds at Stoneville will be stocked at three rates. Fish will be clean harvested at 1.2 pounds. Comparable poods will be harvested by removing market-size fish. Scientists and producers will recommend production management practices for poods.

PRCGRESS: 80/06 TC 80/12. Work in the past 6 months has been of a preparative nature. Construction of the six 1.62 ha ponds is complete and ponds are now ready for use. Initial sampling of pond soils is completed and most of the materials required to support the proposed research have been obtained. Laboratory equipment necessary to conduct analyses of interest have beeo obtained and the water chemistry laboratory should be fully operational by Narch 1, 1281. The rights to 200,000 finglerling channel catfish have beeo acquired and fisb should be oo hand by mid-February 1981. Ponds will be stocked and research in progress by mid-March 1881.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/06 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

006.060 CRIS0071310 PRODUCTION OF MACROBRACEIUM ROSENBERGII (GIANT MALAYSIAN PRAUN IN NEVADA)

TAYLOR R L; VETERINARY MEDICINE; UNIVERSITY OF NEVADA, RENO, NEVADA. 89557. Proj. No.: NEV00355 Agency ID: SAES Period: 13 AUG 76 To 31 DEC 77

OEJECTIVES: Determine the feasibility of raising prawns in power plant effluents and/or gecthermal waters in Nevada.

AFFROACE: Cbtain prawns, conduct liveability tests, prepare for production. Grow larvae in brackist water, prepare ponds and study pond water parameters. Stock poods with juveniles, feed, maintain and harvest adults. Study market.

PECGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Thirty five hundred new post larval prawns were stocked in a floating polypropylene net suspended in the maio cooling ponds of an electric power production plant. The stocking rate was 10 per cubic meter. The survival rate at the end of a 180 day grow out period was 46% with an average prawn weight of 5 grams. Water temperatures during the test period varied from 20 degree C to 37 degree C

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 TAYLCR, R. E. L. 1980. A Feasibility Study on the Production of Macrobrachium rosenbergii (Giant Malaysian Prawn) in Nevada. Bulletin, College of Agriculture, Univ. of Nevada, Beno.

006.061 CRIS0083202 REARING BAIT FISE IN VESTERN NEVADA

 TAYLOR R L; VETERINARY MEDICINE; UNIVERSITY OF

 NEVADA, RENC, NEVADA. 89557.

 Proj. No.: NEV00388

 Proj. No.: NEV00388

 Agency ID: SAES

 Period: 01 OCT 78 To 01 OCT 83

OEJECTIVES: Determine the supply and demand for bait fish used in western Nevada waters. Develop techniques for culture of native minnows acceptable for use in these waters. Encourage development of private commercial operations for raising and selling the suitable species of bait fish.

APPROACE: Collection of adult fish will be made from local waters and a captive population established in the laboratory. Artificial and natural spawnings will be attempted Egg and fry development stages will be identified and food preferences determied. Growth rates will be determined. PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Adult Lahontan Tui Chubs, Siphateles bicolor obesus, obtained from Walker Lake, Nevada were successfully spawned both artificially and naturally. Spawning mats made of Spanish Moss were a satisfactory egg substrate although the development of fungus on some eggs was a common problem. About 50% of chubs fed trout meal and screened brine sbrimp flakes for the first 21 days survived. After 21 days mortality was minimal for chubs fed live brine shrimp naupliae. Survival of newly hatched fish raised in a semi-natural pond environment and not fed appeared to be as good as those raised in troughs and fed artificial diets.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

006.062* CRIS0028020 NATURAL SEED OYSTER EEDS OF TEE DELAWARE EAV

HASEIN B E; CYSTER CULTURE; RUTGERS UNIVERSITY, NEW BRUNSWICK, NEW JERSEY. 08903. Proj. No.: NJ32500 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 OCT 62 To 01 JAN 99

OBJECTIVES: Develop information on and conduct research leading to the goal of disease-free systems in the Delaware Bay area.

APPECACE: Conduct such field and laboratory studies on MSX in syster populations as required. Advise the Delaware Bay authorities of the best management practices to preserve good seed heds and develop new heds.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. The oveter planters of Delaware Bay depend almost exclusively on the State-controlled natural seed beds of the upper Bay for their supply of seed oysters which are planted on privately-leased heds in the lower Bay. Under this project cur laboratory provides basic information on the seed beds and recommendations for their management to the State Division of Pish, Game and Shell-fisheries. In 1980 over 400,000 hushels of seed oysters were removed from the beds in the regular spring planting season. Eased on our recommendations, two of the Beds, Egg Island and the Ledge, and a major portion of New Beds, were closed to the taking of seed because of a preponderance of small oysters of the 1975 and 1979 year classes. Pollowing the spring-early summer dredging, a moderate to light general set of 1980 year class oysters occurred on the seed beds. MSX disease mortalities in the 1980 planted stocks were unusually heavy in the summer. fall and early winter of 1980-81. Mortalities in oysters on the lower seed heds were 1/2 to 1/3 those on the planted grounds immediately below the houndary, the Southwest Line separating seed heds and leased bottom. Based on these data and those of the preceding 20 years establishing that similar differential mortalities between seed heds and planting grounds have been the general rule.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NC PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

006.063* CRIS0066259 SURF CLAM MANAGEMENT STUDIES

HASKIN E E; CYSTER CULTURE; RUTGERS UNIVERSITY, NEWERUNSWICK, NEW JERSEY. 08903.Proj. No.: NJ32503Project Type: STATEAgency ID: SAESPeriod: 26 JUN 74 To 30 JUN 82

OBJECTIVES: Determine the capacity of inshore surf clam beds near Atlantic City to sustain increased commercial harvest because of the partial depletion of the large offshore beds.

APPROACE: Selected bed areas sampled in 1972 will be open to dredging and two 6-square mile areas including high density clam populations will he closed to commercial harvest. Monitoring of all beds will include settling intensity of larvae, juvenile mortality, juvenile growth, to determine if retaining brood stock is necessary to waintain recruitments. PRCGRESS: 80/01 TC 80/12. The surf clam resource off the coast of New Jersey lies both in State waters, inside the three-mile limit, and offshore in Federal waters. Under State and Federal financing the population in New Jersey waters has been under detailed study since 1972, that in Federal waters has had some attention in this project since 1978. New Jersey began its management of the State resource in January 1977 and has based its annual quota and its decisions on areas closed to harvest on the results of our annual inventories. The work in Federal waters has resulted in the closure of a 120-square-mile area off Atlantic City and similar, though smaller, areas off Maryland and Virginia. The closures in all cases have been designed to prevent wasteful harvest of small clams. Until 1976 the New Jersey inshore resource was in steady decline under harvest pressure with no significant recruitment. The 1976 year class of clams set heavily in the Atlantic City area and survived well. The population of this year class in an area extending roughly 20 miles along the coast and centered on Absecon Inlet has more than doubled the standing stock of class in New Jersey waters between Shark River and Cape Nay Inlet. The same year class also set and survived in Federal waters. The 120-square-mile closed area off Atlantic City has a population which we estimate at 17 million tushels.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED FINAL REPORT PERICD.

006.064 CFIS0078907 OYSTEP DRILL CONTROL BY BYDRAULIC DREDGING IN DELAWARE EAY

BASKIN H H: OYSTER CULTURE; GUTGERS UNIVERSITY, NEW BRUNSWICK, NEW JERSEY. 08903. Proj. No.: NJ32502 Agency IL: SAES Period: 28 JUN 78 To 27 JUN 81

OBJECTIVES: Increase oyster production in Delaware Pay by reducing losses to predation by oyster drills in a cost-effective way.

APPROACE: Construct a hydraulic dredge; install it on a boat; adjust it for removal of cyster drills and associated materials, from the upper layer of oyster bottom; separate the drills from larger and smaller materials by a system of screen conveyers; destroy the drills; and return the associated materials to the hotom immediately so as to maintain stability to the oyster bottom.

006.065* CFIS007773 ECOLOGY AND MANAGEMENT OF VALLEYE

FORNEY J L; NATURAL RESOURCES; COENELL UNIVERSITY, ITBACA, NEW YORK. 14853. Proj. No: NYC-147331 Agency ID: SAES Period: 30 MAR 79 To 30 SEP 82

OBJECTIVES: Define the role of interspecific competition and predation in governing walleye recruitment from an analysis of fish community structures.

APPROACB: Reproductive success of walleye as measured by abundance of young and age composition of the population will be compared with size distribution and species composition of fish communities in a wide spectrum of lakes. Information on community structure will be gathered primarily from the catch in gillnets and trawls. More specific information on the nature of interspecific competition and predation will be generated by following the fate of larval and fingerling walleye stocked in lakes with different densities and assemblages of potential predators or competitors. Role of walley in restructuring fish communites will be assessed from pre-and post-surveys of lakes where walleye populations are established by stocking.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Eeginning with a strong year-class in 1962, the walleye population in Chautauqua Lake, New York expanded from an occasional adult to over 50,000 mature fish in 1979. Analysis of scale samples, tagging records and other data showed that recruitment stabilized while growth and survival of walleye declined during the period of population expansion. Recruitment was initially highly variable with three year classes contributing 91% of the adult stock from 1862-1973, but subsequent cohorts were more uniform in size. Average length of a 5-year old male decreased from 515 mm in 1966-1973 to 436 mm in 1980 while adult survival declined from near 100% to about 70%. As walleye stocks expanded numbers of adult muskellunge decreased in the 1970s to about one-fourth the levels which prevailed in earlier years. The timing of events suggests the increase in walleye may have contributed to the collapse of muskellunge hut analysis of historical data did not reveal any evidence of direct interactions. Reduced growth and survival may limit further expansion of walleye stock and favor development of a new equilibrium with muskellunge.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

006.066* CRIS0067977 BIOLOGICAL, TECHNICAL, AND ECONOMIC STUDIES OF CULTURED AQUATIC RESOURCES

NICKUM J G; NATURAL RESOURCES; CCRNELL UNIVERSITY, ITHACA, NEW YORK. 14853. Proj. No.: NYC-147315 Agency ID: SAES Period: 12 MAY 75 To 31 DEC 80

OBJECTIVES: The Cornell Aquaculture Program include measurement and evaluation of changes in the effuent quality from oxidation ponds due to filtration by confined populations of daphnids and measurement and evaluation of yield of daphnids from confined populations receiving effluents from oxidation ponds.

APPEGACE: Daphnid populations will be confined in partially submerged cages which will receive flows of algae laden water from algal culture systems and/or small oxidation ponds. The effects of variation in concentration of algae, velocity of flow, and cage depth will he tested at three different levels for each parameter. Changes in effluent water quality will he measured hy comparing the quality of water entering the daphnid cages with that of the water that has flowed out of the cages. Daphnid populations will he harvested on a pre-determined schedule, dried and weighed to determine production.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. This project was initiated in August 1979 as an investigation of the impacts of manure fertilization on the water quality and production potential of New York fish ponds. The field season (April-October) of 1980 was a period of great activity on the project. Six experimental ponds were fertilized at three levels of manure (no manure. 2500 kg/ha and 12,300 kg/ha) and stocked with larval walleye, Stizostedion vitreum. The manure was effluent from an experimental methane digester. The physical and chemical response was monitored through analysis of nitrogen and phosphorus concentrations, light penetration, dissolved oxygen levels, water temperature, pH and alkalinity. The hiological response was monitored by measuring production and consumption of oxygen hy the phytoplankton community, chlorophyll concentration and form (a, h and c), zooplankton hiomass and community structure, and fish growth. Fish survival was estimated. Attempts to model oxygen and ammonia levels, and to assess the variaility in predicted values show that minimum oxygen levels can be predicted from manure load, temperature and chlorophyll values. Ammonia levels can be predicted from load, temperature, pH and chlorophyll. The research under this project has been transferred to the Agronomy Department, Cornell University.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERICE.

006.067* CRISU075225 INTENSIVE CULTURE OF THE VALLEYE (PERCIDAE: STIZOSTEDION VITEEUN)

NICKUM J G; NATURAL RESOURCES; CGRNELL UNIVERSITY, ITHACA, NEW YORK. 14853. Prcj. No.: NYC-147382 Agency JD: SAES Period: Úl JAN 75 To 31 DEC 80

OEJECTIVES: Develop started and production diets for walleyes hased upon the nutrient content of walleye eggs and/or body tissues. compare growth and survival of walleye fry and fingerlings fed experimental diets with growth and survival of fry and fingerlings fed live diets. Determine the combination of environmental conditions which obtains the highest survival and most rapid growth of walleye fry and fingerlings. Nonitor any histological and/or chemical differences in the tissues of walleye fry and fingerlings reared on various diets. Evaluate the relative economic energy and nutrient efficiencies of intensive walleye culture versus extensive walleye culture.

APPROACH: Experimental diets will be developed in collaboration with the Tunison Laboratory of Fish Nutrition. All growth and survival tests will be conducted in triplicate in running water systems at temperatures between 10°C and 21°C. "Minim-troughs of six-liter capacity will be used. Lots of 200 walleye fry or 30 walleye fingerlings will be used and feeding trials will be scheduled for 10 weeks. Fish will be fed at five minute intervals with automatic feeders. Five fish from each lot will be selected for histological and pathological analyses. Total costs in terms of nutrients, energy, and money will be determined and compared with those incurred in rearing walleyes under extensive conditions.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TC 80/12. Intensive culture of walleye through all stages of their early life history requires knowledge of the factors effecting the successful conversion of post hatch larvae to artificial or natural diets. Massive mortality of fry usually occurs as they fail to initiate feeding. This study has assessed the role of available energy in the yolk sac to larval development and the role of feeding initiation in increased survival of fry in cylindrical rearing units. Caloric energy deficits occur in fry at 7 days (20 degrees C) but no survival differences were detected in fish which initiated feeding at 2, 4, or 6 days of age. Death due to starvation occurred at 14 and 21 days for walleye fry held at 17 and 20 degrees C respectively. Survival and growth of juvenile walleye were strongly influenced by the shape of the rearing unit and direction of water flow within the unit. Significantly hetter results were obtained in hatching jars with an upwelling flow of water in comparison to troughs. Better performance of the cylindrical units could be attributed to two factors: improved food suspension time and reduced competition for food.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 CORAZZA, L. 1980. Intensive Culture of Walleye: Factors Affecting the Ability of Juveniles to Utilize a Dry Diet. Ph.D. Thesis, Cornell Univ. 78 pp. JAINCKE, M. 1980. Selected Factors Influencing Wortality of Walleye Fry in Intensive Culture. M.S. Thesis, Cornell Univ. 45 pp.

006.068 CFIS0082309 INTENSIVE CULTURE OF CRAYFISE

YOUNGS W D; NATURAL RESOURCES; CORNELL UNIVERSITY, ITBACA, NEW YCFK. 14853. Proj. No: NYC-147423 Froject Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 28 AUG 80 To 30 SEF 83 CBJECTIVES: Develop an intensive culture method for crayfish suitable for use in northeastern U_*S_* Growth, mortality and time of sexual maturity will be evaluated to assess the feasibility of intersive culture of crayfish.

APPROACH: Nodular unit which isolates individual crayfish, allows reuse of water and occupies minimal space will be designed. Growth will be measured by weekly weighing of idividual crayfish; mortality will be detrmined by weekly period. Feasibility will be determined on the basis of potential economic value taking into consideration growth and mortality of crayfish and the cost of building and operating a culture system.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. This is a new project which started in October, 1980. Intensive culture of crayfish has not been successfully atterpted in the Northeast; most species of crayfish are very aggressive which results in mortality when crowding is attempted. The approach in this project is to develop a system whereby each individual can be confined with large numbers in a small space. The concept for such a system has been formed and construction of the components of the system has been started.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED TEIS PERIOD.

006.069 CRISO079984 DEVELOPMENT CF INEXPENSIVE AQUACULTURE SYSTEMS FOR HOME (SUBSISTENCE-TYPE) CULTURE IN N. C.

HASSLER W W; ZOOLOGY; N CARCLINA STATE UNIVERSITY, RALFIGE, NCFTH CARCLINA. 27650. Proj. No.: NC05448 Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 78 To 30 SEP 82

CHJECTIVES: To develop inexpensive and efficient methods of fish culture for home consumption. To determine best species of fish and algae for home culture. To determine costs involved in home culture system.

APPBOACE: Use translucent solar-algae tanks and use solar energy to grow algae which can be utilized by herbivorous fishes (tilapia). Determine methods of utilizing solar-algae tanks throughout year: outside with insulation; within greenhouse; outside with cold-tolerant species; outside with solar collectors. Determine production of different species in monoculture, polyculture, and diseasonal use.

PECGRESS: 80/01 TC 80/12. Elue tilapia (Saratherodon aureus) were grown to edible size (211 g) in backyard fish tanks ir approximately 6 months. There was no significant difference in the growth rates of blue tilapia and tybrid tilapia. Fainbow trcut stocked (41 g) fish were barvested at 309 g. Water temperatures were modified by using saran shaders and tank placement during the summer. Plastic insulation and solar exposure were used to maintain winter temperatures. Wind-proof covers were also devised for the tanks. Water recycling was accomplished by floating trickling filters at the tank surface. Ammonia control was effected by using clinoptilolite in an improvised, air-lift filter.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NC PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

006.070* CFIS0078543 AN EVALUATION OF STRIPED BASS I WHITE FASS HYBRIDS AND STRIPED FASS I WHITE PHECH HYBRIDS

 KERBY J B; BUISH M T; KELLEF K R; ZCOLCGY; N CARCLINA

 STATE UNIVERSITY, RALEIGH, NORTH CARCLINA. 27650.

 Proj. No.: NC05430
 Project Type: STATE

 Agency ID: SAES
 Period: 01 JAN 79 To 31 DEC 81

OBJECTIVES: To evaluate the potential of striped bass x white bass and striped bass x white perch hybrids for use in aquaculture and to disseminate acquired knowledge to interested individuals. APPROACE: Bybrids will be cultured in 0.1 hectare ponds using both fresh and brackish (ca. 10 0/100) water sources. Two ponds will be used for cage culture experiments to evaluate hybrid response to limited space and crowding. The experiments will provide data concerning comparative survival, growth and adaptability of the two hybrids to pond and cage culture in both fresh and brackist water. Additionally, food preferences of the larval hybrids will be determined.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Approximately 1.3 million larval striped bass x white bass and 0.6 million striped hass x white perch larvae were produced using artificial fertilization procedures, demonstrating for the second year that the hybrids can be readily produced using existing techniques. Nost were placed into intensive culture troughs at the project site. The remainder were stocked in ponds at the Dennis Wildlife Center and the Orangeburg National Fish Batchery in South Carolina for grow-out to fingerlings. Hecause culture ponds were not completed at the project site, fish were cultured under intensive conditions in the laboratory and in a series of 24-foot diameter (11,000 gallon capacity) plastic-lined pools. An important advance was development of a method to train larvae to accept dry diet at an earlier age. By presenting large concentrations of small particles of the dry food, and by keeping it in constant motion through vigorous aeration of the water, we were able to convert the larvae to dry diet at about 15 mm. Previously larvae did not convert until they were 40 mm long. Fingerling striped bass x white bass hybrids obtained from the Orangeburg NFH in January were grown in plastic-lined pools and in cages until September 1980. Mean weight when stocked was 8.1 g (range = 3.0- 33.0 g). At harvest the fish weighed an average of $268 \pm (range = 32 - 522 g)$.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

006.071* Linnology of farm ponds

MILLER J N; ZOCLOGY; N CAEOLINA STATE UNIVERSITY, RALEIGE, NORTH CAROLINA. 27650. Proj. No.: NC03596 Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSSS Period: 01 JUL 77 To 30 SEP 80

CRIS0073509

OBJECTIVES: Determine the important factors controlling quality and quantity of fish production in N.C. farm ponds. Develop a capability to diagnose and recommend treatment for various pond problems fish disease, fish die-off, nuisance weeds, etc. Collaborate with others as necessary in publishing and revising guidelines for farm pond management as Ag. Extension Hulletins.

APPROACH: During the first year, determine the ranges of farm pond types in North Carolina and their important physico-chemical and biological factors influencing fish production. Eegin intensive studies to determine the relationships between the above and fish production and pond "problems." This will include experimental manipulations in small enclosures in some ponds, food chain studies and a survey of fish parasites. Follow-up studies of fish stockings by the State will be performed.

PRCGRESS: 77/07 IC 80/09. Banks of the primary productivities of 3 study ponds in the Faleigh area were: L-26; Yates and A-2. Zooplankton was highest in Yates, while benthos was highest in L-6. Competition, measured as dietary overlap between size classes of fish, was bighest in A-2, and least in L-6. Competition was most severe in mid-summer, suggesting growth depression. Turbidity depressed feeding rates of bluegill sunfish 50% but did not cause a shift in preferred prey size. Perceptual bias was not responsible for the size selection of prey; rather a hypothesis of behavioral preference was supported. Data collected from previous years was assembled as a basis for submitting a proposal to OWET entitled "Effects of Low-Level Turbidity on Fishes". This proposal was accepted and a grant of \$126,108 was awarded 1 October 1979. A technique using radioactive glycine uptake by fish scales was developed to determine short-term growth rates of fishes in relation to turbidity. A method was developed to separate the effects of biotic and abiotic particles on turbidity. A precipitation technique for manipulating turbidity in ponds was developed. A 50 channel, computer interfaced, scanner was purchased to continuously monitor relative bumidity, water and air temperature, oxygen, wind speed and direction and light.

PUBLICATIONS: 77/07 TO 80/09

GARDNER, N.B. 1979. The Effects of Turbidity on Feeding Sates and Prey-Size Selection by the Bluegill Sunfish (Leponis macrochirus): a Test of a Foraging-Strategy Bypothesis. N.S. Thesis. Dept. of Zoology, NCSU.

006.072* CRIS0072485 POTENTIAL BANVEST OF LAKE BRIE WHITE CRAPPIE FROM AN ADJOINING BOEROW PIT

 TRIPLETT J R; LECKIE F D; FISHEFIES 6 WILDLIFE; CBIO

 AGRIC RES AND DEVLF CENTER, WOOSTER, CHIC. 44691.

 Proj. No.: OBC00258

 Project Type: STATE

 Agency ID: SAES

 Period: 01 JAN 77 to 31 MAF 79

OBJECTIVES: Letermine the potential for increasing accessibility and barvest of fisb populations, particularly white crappie, from large bodies of water through fisheries in small adjoined bodies of water.

APPEGACH: The study area will be mapped. Easic limnological parameters will be monitored in the borrow pit and the immediate bay area to detect differences or potential limiting factors. Mark and recapture studies, sonar scans, test netting and electrofishing will provide an estimate of migration into and out of the immediate bay area and the borrow pit. Fishing pressure and total harvest in both areas will be sstimated by creel surveys. The populations structure of white crappie will be dstermined and compared in both areas from fish sampling data. Management recommendations will be developed on the basis of the significance of migrations and possible causss.

PROGRESS: 77/01 TO 79/03. In 552 hours of sampling, a total of 938 adult fisb (19 species) moved through a culvert connecting a borrow pit with Sandusky Bay. Of these, 506 (53.9%) were moving from the Bay into the borrow pit. White crappie (6.3%) and black crapple (4.1%) togetter represented a greater percentage of the total catch than all other species except gizzard shad and brown bullheads. Culvert current direction regulated the direction of fish movements; of 755 movements during discernible flow, 82.9% were counter current. Spanning activity appeared to determine which species, what size, and when movements occurred. In the borrow pit, larger, older fish of both cappie species wee prevalent in the spring inshore trap sets, culvart movements, and the fishermen's creel, while smaller crappie (150mm or less) were abundant offsbore and dominated the summer fish collections. Elack crappie consistently showed up earlier than did white crappie in all sampling methods. This difference in the timing of seasonal activities between the two indicated that black crappis are actife earlier in the spring, and suggested black crabbie may spswn earlier than white crappie. The estimated net gain of adult white and black crapple moving into the borrow pit potentially represented 7.6% and 6.1% of each species harvest respectively.

PUBLICATIONS: 77/01 TO 79/03 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

006.073* CEIS0079845 FEASIBILITY CF CAGED FISH CULTURE IN NORTH CENTRAL OKLAHOMA FARM PONDS MAUGBAN O E; BOWMAN D E; LANGSTON UNIVERSITY, LANGSTON, OKLABOMA. 73050. Proj. No.: OKLX-8085-15-5 Project Type: 1890/T Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 OCT 79 To 30 SEF 84

OEJECTIVES: Study production and cost of caged fish in small ponds in Central Oklahoma, investigate and test the feasibility of caged fish in a normal farm or ranch operation.

APPROACE: Channel catfish will be grown in cages and fed pellets contng 30-35% protein, and Tilapia will be grown in cages and fed pellets contng 25-30% protein. Cxygen and temperature will be measured daily at feeding time to develop a profile as if they relate to growth. Record as to marketing and home consumptions and and cost will be kept to dstermine rsturn on investment.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Cage culture appears to be economically feasible in small (less than 2.0 ha) farm ponds and has potential for generating a small additional source of income (estimated to be \$744.00/ha) and/or producing low cost food for the farm family. Ponds that are clear (depth of visibility greater than 1.0~m) and shallow (depth less than 1.0~m over half of the pond) should probably not be used for cass fish culture unless aquatic vegetation control is implemented. Channel catfish fingerlings should be 150 to 200 mm in total length when stocked if a large proportion of marketable size fish are to be produced in one year in Oklahoma. Tilapia appear to stimulate channel catfisb feeding and therefore increase production. The optimum ratio appears to be a very high ratio of catfish to tilapia. The optimum density of fish per cage appears to be about 400 fish per cubic meter with an anticipated harvest weight of 0.45 kg.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- GEBBART, G.E. and MAUGHAN, C.E. 1980. Feasibility of Mixed Cage Culture of Tilapia and Channel Catfish. Inland Commercial Fishsries Association. 14 March 1980, Nashville, TN.
- GEBBART, G.E. and MAUGHAN, C.E. 1980. Cage Fish Culture in Small Farm Ponds in Oklahoma. Oklahoma Academy of Science, November 14, 1980. Norman, Oklahoma.

006.074* CFIS0069960 BIOLOGICAL PEASIBILITY OF INTENSIFIED OYSTER CULTURE

BREESE W P; FISBERIES 6 WILDLIFE; OREGON STATE UNIVERSITY, CORVALLIS, OREGON. 97331. Proj. No.: ORE00338 Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 75 To 30 JUN 81

OBJECTIVES: Out-bay culture will investigate the biological and economic feasibility of pond or raceway culture under controlled conditions. This will yield data on the influence of parameters such as water volumes, currents and seeding density on oyster growth. Efforts will also be made to correlate changes in available natural food, as measured by dissolved and particulate organic carbon and nitrogen, with changes in oyster growth. These studies may also encourage investors by demonstrating the reduced threat to culture facilities from floods, winds and storms.

APPEOACB: Batcbsry-produced seed oysters will be placed on the bottom of commercial oyster growing grounds, on oyster growing trays and on experimental rafts. The growth and survival of these oysters will be monitored over a two-year psriod beginning in the spring of 1975. These data will provide a means of evaluating the relative efficiency and productivity of the various culture methods. Concurrent with the placement of seed oysters in the field, oysters from the same brood group will be teld in an existing out-bay rearing pond provided with pumped seawater. Ths growth and survival of these oysters will be monitored for comparison with other rearing methods. Refinement of the out-bay culture method will be a continuing process.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Cultchleee eeed was again planted in Tillamook Bay. As we have had no ice or adverse weather to date, growth and survival data should be collected in the Spring of 1981. Craesostrea rivularis has been accepted by some of the growere and eyed larvae andeeed are available from two commercial hatcheries. Nonthly sampling of the Kumamoto oyeter is complete. Three years of data shows this oyster to mature later in the year. As this oyster is a warm water spawner (25 degrees C), this data agrees with our laboratory data which says lew temperature delays sexual maturation but does not affect the rate of maturation. For the second year we have successfully spawned this oyster in late summer. Eyed larvae as a seed source is gaining popularity. A failure of demestic wild seed has increased the intereste in hatchery seed. Techniquee for handling eyed larvae are being perfected. Four hatcheries are now producing eyed larvae for sale. Communication. Held a workshop in Actoria for Oregon and Washington growere to explain the eyed larvae technique for obtaining oyeter seed. Vielted the interested growere and helped them with the technique of setting eyed larvae.

- PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12
 - LANNAN, J.F. 1980. Broodstock Management of Crassostrea gigas I. Genetic and Environmental Variation in the Larval Rearing System. Aquaculture 21:323-336.
 - LANNAN, J.E., ROBINSCN, A.M. and BREESE, W.P. 1980. Broodetock Management of Craesostrea gigas II. Broodetock Conditioning to Maximize Larval Survival. Aquaculture 21:337-345.
 - LANNAN, J.F. 1980. Broodetock Management of Crassoetrea gigas III. Selective Breeding for Improved Larval Survival. Aquaculture 21:347-351.
 - LANNAN, J.F. 1980. Broodstock Management of Crassoctrea gigae IV. Inbreeding and Larval Survival. Aquaculture 21:353-356.
 - MURANANKA, N.S. 1980. Broodetock Management of the Pacific Cyster Crasecetrea gigas (Thunberg), N.S. Theeis. Cre. State Univ., 55 pp.

006-075 CRIS0084301 MOLLUSCAN BATCHERY TECHNOLOGY

BREESE W P; FISHERIES 6 WILDLIFE; CFEGCN STATE UNIVERSITY, CCEVALLIS, OREGON. 97331. Proj. No.: 0fe00913 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 81 To 30 JUN 84

OBJECTIVES: This project proposes to adapt the hatchery techniques developed for the Miyagi variety of Crassestrea gigas to selected oysters, clams and the sea mussel. Species chosen are Kumamoto oysters, gaper, cockle and razor clams and the sea mussel. This should result in hatchery techniques for most of these mollusks.

APPEOACE: The above mentioned oysters, clame and muesel will be brought to the laboratory at or near their natural epawning cycle, conditioned fi necessary and then induced to spawn. the reculting egge will be fertilized and reared through the larval free swimming period. Varablee will be temperature and calinity. Newly set eeed will be reared to various sizes and then planted in coveral estuaries to determine techniques that exhibit the greatest eurvival and growth.

006.076* CFIS0064796 CULTURE OF PACIFIC SALNON

LANNAN J E; FISHERIES 6 WILDLIFE; OREGON STATE UNIVERSITY, CORVALLIS, OREGCN. 97331. Proj. No.: OLEO0163 Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 73 To 30 DEC 84

OBJECTIVES: Determine the relationship between incubation deneity and fry quality in shallow gravel incubators. AFFEOACE: Chum salmon egge will be incubated at six deneities ranging from 1000 to 10,000 egge per square foot of gravel, with elx replicates of each density. Emergence timing, size at emergence, yolk utilization and proximate tieeue analysis will be compared between and within treatments (deneities). The fry quality criteria will also he compared to natural fry. Samplee from each treatment will be marked and released and the relationship between density and survival subsequently observed.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Within the tested range of 1000 - 7000 eyed eggs/ft 2 gravel substrate (1.08 -7.53 eggs/cm. 2), the optimum stocking density for chum salmon (Oncorhynchus keta) egge in shallow matrix substrate incubators occurred at 3,000-4,000 eggs/ft 2. Premature fry, which predominated early emergence, showed greater variability in lipid content than fry at peak emergence. Cumulative premature fry emergence was lowest at 3000 - 4000 eggs/ft 2 and highest at 5000 - 7000 eggs/ft 2. Barly emerging fry are considered to be of leseer quality than peak emerging fry because the observed increase in variation in lipid content (i.e. primary energy reserve) may lead to increased variation in survival during seaward migration. Neither eurvival (from egg etocking to emergence) nor the gross body composition (determined by proximate analysis) of emerging fry were affected by egg stocking density. Development indices decreased in a linear fashion throughout emergence but the slope and intercept of the line did not differ among egg etocking densities. The frequency of yolk eac adnormalities was negligible in all treatments. The water content of fry increased from early to late emergence while dry weights remained relatively constant. The implications of this observation are discussed. Application of these results depende on the relative importance of bioloigical ve. economic optimization in a hatchery. 3,000-4,000 eggs/ft 2 favors high quality fry production, while 7,000 eggs/ft 2 minimizes the cost of producing each fry.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

KAPUSCINSKI, A. 1980. In Search of the Cptinum Stocking Density for Chum Salmon (Cncorhynchus keta) Eggs in Shallow Matrix Substrate Incubators. W.S. Thesis. Cregon State Univ. Corvallis, Cregon. 36 pp.

006.077* CFIS0083604 PEEFORMANCE OF SALNOHIDS: SMOLTIFICATION, STRESS AND FIINESS

SCHRECK C B; FISHERIES & WILDLIFE; OREGCN STATE UNIVERSITY, CORVALLIS, CREGCN. 97331. Proj. No.: OFE00908 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 02 FEE 81 To 30 JUN 86

OEJECTIVES: Increase percent return of anadromous ealmonide by providing an understanding of the functional basis of parr-smolt transformation. Monitor clinical indicators of smoltification. Conduct tests of performance as indicators of emolt quality to signify effects of rearing conditions on development.

APPROACE: Analyze clinical criteria of smoltification, particularly those associated with the endocrine eystem. Specifically, determine effects of loading regimes on emolt performance criteria; determine effects of loading regimes on smolt-indicators; determine correlations of smolt-indicatore and performance and determine effects of loading on food concumption and feed conversion efficiency and correlate nutritional statue with smolt performance and smolt-indicators.

006.078* CFIS0066734 STOCK DYNAMICS AND ASSESSMENT IN MARINE FISMERIES

 TYLER A V; FISHERIES & WILDLIFE; CFEGON STATE

 UNIVERSITY, CCRVALLIS, OREGON. 97331.

 Proj. No.: 04E00254

 Agency ID: SAES

 Period: 01 JUL 74 To 30 JUN 81

OBJECTIVES: Frovide a revised statistical area map for landings of Oregon groundfish that will improve assessment of fish stocks and provide the tasis for a standardized inter-state unit of fishing effort.

APPEOACE: Compile and chart local distribution of recent Oregor landings of principal groundfish species from commercial log-book data of the Fish Commission of Oregon. Analyze and chart distribution of major assemblages of continental shelf fishes, including principal species landed, potentially exploitable species, and minor species. Analyses will be made with recurrent group, species-association coefficient methods. Based on the distribution of major assemblages of fishes, develop a proposal for revised statistical reporting areas that will be small enough to allow analysis of the status of individual stocks. This map will also provide the basis for a standardized inter-state unit of fishing effort.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. We propose that management concerns for continental shelf fishes must include not only yield maximization goals on target species (modified by social concerns to CY), but also fish assemblage maintenance goals. NSY oriented management has been shown with models to simiplify fishery systems toward species with highest productivity rates. However, there is no assurance that simplified, high production portions of formerly species-rich assemblages can persist in ocean systems. Our analyses of research trawling surveys have indicated there are geographic fish-species assemblages. We conceptualize that each assemblage is part of a geographically definable natural production system of interacting organisms (a "community"). The "regular" species of the community having strong trophic linkages among themselves comprise an "assemblage production unit" (APU). The "regular" species are those that are present in every season. As a management technique for the APU, we propose that monitoring the transition states following controlled pulse fishing by the commercial dragger fleet may be a means of exploring and maintaining the viability of the APU's. These pulses could be applied simultaneously to a group of near-replicate APU's. The goal would be to find the limits of repetitive pulse fishing that would allow persistence of APU structure

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- HAYMAN, 5.A., TYLEE, A.V. and DENORY, R.L. 1980. A Comparison Hetween Cohort Analysis and Catch per Unit Effort Using Dover Sole (Miscrostomus pacificus) and English Sole (Paraphrys vetulus). Trans. Am. Fish. Soc. 109:35-53.
- EAYMAN, R.A. and TYLEE, A.V. 1980. Environment and Cohort Strength of Dover Sole (Microstomus pacificus) and English Sole (Paraphrys vetulus). Trans. Am. Fish. Soc. 109:54-70.
- GABRIEL, W.L. and TYLER, A.V. 1980. Freliminary Analysis of Pacific Coast Demersal Fisb Assemblages. Marine Fisheries Keview. March-April: 83-88.

006.079* FEESHWATER FCOD ANIMALS

CFI S0076533

 MCGINTY A S; ANIMAL INDUSTRY; UNIVERSITY OF PUERTO

 RICO, RIO PIEDRAS, PUERTO RICC. 00928.

 Proj. No.: PE00322

 Project Type: HATCE

 Agency ID: CSRS

 Period: 14 SEP 78 To 30 SEP 81

OBJECTIVES: Develop and improve production and management systems for freshwater animals cultured for food: Nutrition, genetics and breeding and culture systems.

APPECACH: Experiments will be designed to determine practical feeds for Tilapia spp. under tropical conditions. Digestibility coefficients for these diets will be determined for each species. Development and evaluations of suitable breeding and sexing techniques for mass production of Tilapia species and monosex hybrids. Determine optimum stocking densities and growth of Tilapia spp. in cage cultures and ponds sutilizing supplementary feeding and/or pond fertilization. Flavor and texture of the fish (fresh and processed) will be determined by organoleptic tests.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Six 1 m 3 floating cages were suspended in three 0.1 ha ponds and stocked with either 150, 300, 450, or 650 Tilapia nilotica fingerlings (75 to 125 mm/long) per cage. At least one of these densities was either fed a 30% protein sinking pellet at a rate of 4% total body weight daily, six days per week, or not fed. This preliminary study was conducted for 77 days at which time the fish from each cage were weighed and measured. Fish that were not fed merely maintained their initial stocking weight, regardless of density. Fish fed 4% daily gained 0.77, 0.70, 0.59, and 0.53 $\,$ g/day in cages stocked with 150, 300, 450, and 600 fish/cage, respectively. This indicated T, nilotica fed a complete ration grew at a slower rate in cages when stocked at higher densities. The above preliminary study indicates the need to determine the optimum stocking density of T. nilotica in cages. The effects of pond size may also be important and needs to be studied in conjunction with density. An experiment will be conducted during 1981 to determine these effects. Cages will be suspended in ponds of either 0.70 ha or 0.16 ha and stocked with either 250, 500, 750, or 1000 fingerlings/cage. All fishes will be fed an equal percentage of the total body weight per cage.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

006.080* CFIS0064402 ABATEMENT OF EUTROPEICATION RESULTING FROM INTENSIVE ANIMAL PRODUCTION

MEADE T L; ANIMAL SCIENCE; UNIVERSITY CF RHCDE ISLAND, KINGSTCN, RHODE ISLAND, 02881. Proj. No.: RI00822 Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 73 To 30 SEP 80

OBJECTIVES: Develop practical methods for: kemoval of metabolites form fisb culture water that render it unsuitable for re-use. Treatment of fish culture water to meet existing and projected standards for discharge. Removal and treatment of suspended solid wastes in fish culture water. Adaptation and/or modification of processes for treatment of fish culture water and solid waste in treatment of waste from intensive livestock and poultry production.

APPROACE: Primary treatment will involve physical screening and aerobic digestion. Secondary treatment will involve aerobic digestion of solids, denitrification by continuous microbial reduction and reoxygenation of effluent.

PROGRESS: 77/06 TO 80/09. Solids removal is one of the more difficult unit processes involved in water reuse systems for the culture of salmonids. Traditional settling basins effectively remove settleable solids but suspended solids are normally entrained in the associated biological filter where their buildup impairs nitrification efficiency and necessitates periodic cleaning. Alternate methods of solids removal were evaluated. Studies with a pulsed rapid sand filter indicated that a 12 cm. athracite coal bed over a 7.5 cm. sand bed resulted in a 66 percent removal of suspended solids at acceptable hydraulic loading rates. Studies with an inclined 40 mesh stainless steel static screen indicated that up to 38 percent of the suspended solids could be removed at a hydraulic loading rate of 122 liters/m2/minute. Combining a plate settler with an 80 mesh stainless steel screen resulted in a 71 percent removal rate when the influent contained 77 mg/l of suspended solids. The relatively poor results obtained lead to investigation of "in situ" solids digestion in a system using 10 o/oo salinity water. Solids concentration was reduced 97 percent. This work will be continued in freehwater systems.

PUELICATIONS: 77/06 TO 80/09 LLOYD, S.W. 1980. Solids removal from fish culture systems. M.S. Thesis, University of Rhode Island, Kingston, RI 50 p.

006.081 CEIS0084296 INVESTIGATION OF "IN SITU" SOLIDS DIGESTION FOE SALMONID PRODUCTION

NEADE T L; WCLKE F E; AQUACULTURE SCI & PATHCLOGY; UNIVERSITY OF EHODE ISLAND, KINGSTON, RHODE ISLAND. 02861. Proj. No.: RIO0851 Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 JUN 81 To 30 SEP 83

OBJECTIVES: To reduce the cost of water treatment in salmonid production by "in situ" solids digestion. To characterize the microbial processes involved in an intermediate salinity (10 o/oo) environment. To evaluate selective nutrient enrichment of fresh water to achieve "in situ" solids digestion. To insure that fish health is not imparied when "in situ" solids digestion is carried out in the culture system.

APPEOACE: Solids production in a non-enriched fresh water environment will be determined and compared with published predictive factors. Fecoverable solids will be determined in both intermediate salinity and selectively enriched fresh water environments to determine percent of "in situ" digestion occuring. fish health will be determined by physiological, biochemical and pathological determination of appropriate parameters. Water quality will be monitored at appropriate intervals throughout the project.

006.082 CFIS0065044 ECONOMICS CP SALMONID AQUACULTURE IN MEW ENGLAND

GATES J N; RESCURCE ECONOMICS; UNIVERSITY CF & HODE ISLAND, KINGSTON, REODE ISLAND. 02881. Proj. No.: RI00144 Project Type: BATCE Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 JUL 74 To 30 SFP 80

OBJECTIVES: Compile and evaluate cost data associated with construction and operation of the system to determine capital requirements and production costs. evaluate potential economic gains for vertical integration in production (hatching-smolt production and grow out) systems as compared to separate of non-integrated systems. Project capital requirements and cost conditions to establish economically feasible commercial size operations and evaluate economics of integrated management of a joint commercial/sport fishery program based on a hatchery release program.

APPEOACB: Study will be in 2 phases; economics of a pilot aquaculture system utilizing water re-uss techniques would be analyzed. This would provide a firm data base for coast parameters; analysis of management measures for an integrated commercial/sport fishery program. Once capital requirements and production costs for the integrated system are krown and evaluation will be made of the integrated and non-integrated system to determine any economic gairs associated with each respective system. For analysis the integrated system will be broken down into two operations: hatching and smolt production; grow out. Capital requirements and production costs associated with each operation will be evaluated and projected to establish economically feasible full scals commercial operations.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. A polyperiodic or dynamic linear programming model was used which includes the age/size class structure of fish stocks. It also includes size specific "treatment" effects (such as thermal controls) on growth rates. It also includes optimum marketing and product possibilities. Decisions optimized over time include (1) the number of fish of each size to be cultured, (2) the tempsrature(s) at which to culture them, (3) the number of fish of each size to be harvested, (4) the size dependent products to produce, and (5) the number of recruits to purchase. The model was applied to Atlantic solmon and to salmon culture in a water reuse system. Marginal returns to risk ranged from 5 to 237% depending on species, discount rate, and the sensitivity analysis assumptions. The marginal return to risk is after all costs, including the opportunity cost of capital (varied from 10% to 30%). It is a measure of pure profit or return to marginal risks associated with the enterprise.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- GATES, J.N., MACDONALD, C.R. and POILARD, B.J. 1980. Salmon Culture in Water Reuse Systems: An Economic Analysis. Contribution No. 1853, KI Agricultual Experiment Station, URI, Warine Technical Report 78.
- POLLARD, B.J. 1980. Optimizing the Production of Atlantic Salmon in Water Beuse Systems, N.S. Thesis.

006.083 CEISO081987 EQUIPMENT FOR MECHANIZATION OF PRODUCTION OF OYSTERS AND OTHER SHELLPISE

COLLIER J A; MCLAUGBLIN D N; EVERSCLE A G; AGRI ENGINEERING; CLEMSON UNIVERSITY, CLEMSON, SOUTB CAROLINA. 29631. Proj. No.: SCO0457 Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 JUL 80 To 30 SEP 83

OEJECTIVES: Evaluate mechanical equipment for harvesting and transplanting cysters. Conduct environmental impact study of a mechanical harvesting system. Investigate the feasibility of mechanically handling and harvesting hard clams in a tray/raft culturs system. Develop equipment for deheading fresh market shrimp.

APFROACB: Evaluate the efficiency and yield of a mechanical oyster harvester in relation to several different harvest methods. Conduct a two year study to determine perturbations, if any, of mechanical harvesting on the environment and develop, if necessary, practices which would mitigate these perturbations. Develop a mechanized system for handling and barvssting tray/raft cultured hard clams. Three systems will be investigated for orienting and deheading shrimp from which a commercial machine will be developed.

PROGRESS: 80/07 TC 80/12. The mechanical oyster harvester was out of the water for repairs and maintenance during this period. Testing should begin in the Spring of \$1. Physical properties data on sbrimp were obtained and initial design work started for the shrimp dsheader. Location of the thickest part of the sbrimp and its canter of gravity were found. The two parameters are located at different positions along the longitudinal axis of the shrimp and this will be used to generate the necessary force to orient the shrimp for deheading.

PUFLICATIONS: 80/07 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

006.084 CFIS0068717 DEVELOPMENT AND EVALUATION OF OYSTEP BARVESTING EQUIPMENT AND MARICULTURE SYSTEMS

COLLIER J A; WEBE E K; EVERSOLE A G; AGRI ENGINEERING; CLEMSCN UNIVERSITY, CLEMSON, SOUTB CAROLINA. 29631. Proj. No.: SCO0114 Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 75 To 30 SEP 80

OBJECTIVES: Develop and evaluate mechanical equipment for harvesting systems. Evaluate damage by mechanical harvesting systems to system beds, remaining systems and other marine organisms. Investigate systems for shellfish production including spawing systems, seed stock production and grow-out systems, handling systems and feeding systems. APFEGACE: Physical data of oyster heds will be translated into design constraints to construct an oyster barvester. Field tests will be made for evaluating machine performance and monitoring effects on marine life. Engineering systems for planting shell, harvesting and transplanting seed oysters, materials bardling and harvesting schedules will be developed. Computer models will be used for optimization.

FRCGRESS: 75/07 TO 80/09. A mechanical oyster harvester has been developed and tested in South Carolina estuaries. An 11.5 meter steel hull house boat was salvaged and modified to carry the oyster harvester. This modification included extending the hull to 14 meters, mounting a winch and boom system to raise the head, counstructing a conveyor system to handle the oysters and mounting three engines on the vessel. The most important consideration in developing a machine to harvest oysters is protection of the fragile shell matrix or hed on which the oysters grow. Therefore, an automatic system to control harvester force exerted on the bottom was developed that can precisely regulate the force exerted on the shell matrix through a varying depth range of 1 tc 3 meters. The head can operate on bottom contours with pitch and roll angles of .35 radians. Harvest rates of 20 m 3/hr were obtained with damage to the oysters and shell matrix equal to or less that of hand harvesting.

PUBLICATIONS: 75/07 TO 80/09 NC PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

COG.085* CRIS0068635 STUDIES OF THE ECONOMICALLY IMPORTANT SPECIES: MERCEMARIA MERCENARIA AND MACROERACHIUM ECSENBERGII

EVERSOLE A G; ENTOWOLOGY & ECCNOMIC ZCCLCGY; CLENSON UNIVERSITY, CLENSON, SOUTH CARCLINA. 28631. Proj. No.: SC00155 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 75 To 30 JUN 80

OBJECTIVES: Objectives of the Mercenaria phase are: Explore important biological and ecological aspects of rearing clams; investigate the extent and nature of natural clam populations; and provide environmental estuarine base-line data. Objectives of the Macrobrachium phase are: Investigate the effects of mirex on Macrobrachium; and investigate the feasibility of polyculturing Macrobrachium.

APPEGACE: Approach of the Mercenaria phase includes: Evaluations of artificial seeding and growing programs; regular sampling and collection analysis of natural populations; and determination of biological, chemical and physical characteristics of clam habitats. Approach of the Macrobrachium phase includes: Monitoring the effects of exposure to mirex; and aralyzing niche utilization in polyculture situations.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/06. Juvenile and postlarval Macrobrachium rosenbergii were exposed to mirex concentrations of 0.1, 10,50,150,500 and 1000 ug/l, plus control, for 96 hours. Whole animal residue analysis indicated postlarvae and juveniles concentrated mirex, and mortality response appeared to follow residue levels. Postlarvae and juveniles exposed to 1000 ug/l accumulated mirex up to 513x and 88x control levels, respectively. Mirex residues in juveniles were greatest in nerve tissue with levels up to 250x control. Residue analysis of test water revealed a 10-fold decline in mirex concentrations over 96 hours. Residues were not detected in the water from control, 0.1, 10, 50, 100 and 150 ug/l treatments, and only 126 and 165 ug/l sirex was found remaining after 96 hours in water from 500 and 1000 ug/l mirex treatments, respectively. Three studies with hard clams, Mercenaria mercenaria, were initiated in 1980. Two studies were designed to determine growth of hard clams cultured in South Carolina, and a third to evaluate reproductive responses to increased density.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/06

- AAS, C.A. and EVERSOLE, A.G. 1980. Effect of mirex on postlarval Macrobrachlum rosenbergli in different water hardnesses. Eull. S.C. Acad. Sci. 42:72.
- AAS, C.A. 1980. Effects of mirex on Macrobrachium rosenbergli in various water hardnesses. M.S. Thesis. Clemson Univ. South Carolina. 34 p.

006.086 CRISO081873 MANAGEMENT AND CULTURE OF MOLLUSCAN SPECIES

EVERSOLE A G; ENTONOLOGY 6 ECCNONIC ZCOLOGY; CLEMSCN UNIVERSITY, CLEMSCN, SOUTH CAICLINA. 28631. Proj. No.: SC00454 Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 JUL 80 To 30 JUN 85

OEJECTIVES: Determine compensatory growth in stunted clams; describe relative and absolute growth of clams cultured in SC; determine the effectiveness of using aggregate complexes to increase recruitment and survival of clams; determine the feasibility of a proposed mariculture strategy for clams in SC and determine the extent and dynamics of natural populations of molluscan species in S.C.

APPECACE: Evaluation of the growth response by stunted clams to decreased density; statistical analysis of growth relationships of clams cultured in SC; evaluations of planting site preparations, different times of planting and different sizes of seed clams; and regular sampling and collection analysis of natural populations.

PROGRESS: 80/07 TC 80/12. In May, a research project was initiated to determine if hard class, Mercenaria mercenaria, that had experienced reduced growth due to crowding would compensate with increased growth at lowered population density. Class that had been raised at 280, 859, and 1,159 class/m 2 were replanted at a stocking density of 290/m 2 in two tidal locations (intertidal and subtidal). Fegular measurements of growth (shell length) revealed clams were compensating or adjusting to reduced density. Mortality was low and only a few empty shells (dead clams) exhibited signs of forced entry by decapod crustaceans. Rigid analysis is underway to determine if statistical inferences can be made about these preliminary observations. Two other phases of this project were initiated, one to evaluate reproductive responses to increased density and the other to determine growth characteristics of hard class cultured in South Carolina. Data from these phases will be used to project clam growth and the affect of increased density on reproductive output.

PUELICATIONS: 80/07 TO 80/12 NO PUELICATIONS SEPORTED THIS FEFICE.

006.087 CRISO067238 FISH PRODUCTION IN SOUTH DAKOTA FARM AND RANCE WATERS

 SCALET C G; MODDE T C; FISHERY & WILDLIFE HIOLOGY; S

 DAKOTA STATE UNIVERSITY, HROOKINGS, SOUTE DAKOTA.

 57007.

 Proj. No.: SD00712

 Agency ID: SAES

 Period: 01 JUL 75 To 30 JUN S0

OBJECTIVES: Develop techniques for the enhancement of fish production in South Dakota. Study areas will include east river farm ponds and marshes and west river stock tanks. The final goal of this work will be to provide the farmers and ranchers of the State with a bulletin describing to thes the best fish production procedures for their particular aquatic system. Both the recreational and commercial aspects of fish production will be studled.

APPROACE: Farm pond and stock tank etudies will involve the determination of the success of various stocking combinations and stocking ratios. This will include the success of stocking in relation to the physical, chemical, and biological attributes of these waters. Marsh studies will include the determination of species composition, food, population structure, and production of native marsh fishes. Work will follow concerning the production of introduced forms, including stocking ratios, and their effects upon the natural communities of these marshes. Recapture techniques of these introduced forms will also be studied.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/06. The potential for genetic alteration in body composition and growth traite was examined in 365 day-old rainbow trout (Salmo gairdneri) through the estimation of heritabilities, phenotypic standard deviations, and genetic correlations. Percent moisture, percent protein on a wet weight baeis, and the growth traits: etandard length, weight, and E yielded heritabilities of 0.48+ .223, 0.73 + .316, 0.93 + .331, 0.99 + .338, and 0.54 + .221 respectively. Genetic alteration of percent protein on a wet weight basis may be accomplished effectively through selection directed toward weight. Inbreeding (at 4 levele) in rainbow trout was evaluated in relation to an altered environment (upper lethal temperature 29 C). In all cases inbreds were less resistant to lethal temperature than were respective outbred familiee. Inbred fieh were 82% less resistant to lethal temperature as compared to the respective outbred family at 50% inbreeding and 19% less resistant at 25% inbreeding. Work continued on the evaluation of pondetocked fish combinations. Initial indications showed excellent growth. New work was initiated concerning the culture of channel catfish (Ictalurus punctatus) and rainbow trout in dugout ponde. The fish were etocked at various stocking rates in approximately 30 dugouts.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/06

- KCTH, R.M. 1980. Food Babite and Growth of Rainbow Trout in a Prairie Pond. M.S. Thesis. South Dakota State University, Erookings. 55 pp.
 MANGIARDI, J.L. 1979. Inbreeding in Rainbow Trout (Salmo gairdneri): Analysis of Lethal Temperature Tolerance. M.S. Thesis. South Dakota State University, Brookings. 40 pp.
- PARTELOW, G.W. 1979. Expectation of Genetic Alteration of Nuscle Composition and Growth Traits in Rainbow Trout (Salmo Gairdneri). N.S. Thesis. South Dakota State University, Brookings. 57 pp.

006.088* CRIS0081599 SOUTE DAKOTA FARM AND PANCE FISHERIES

 SCALET C G; WODDE T C; WILDLIFE & FISBERIES SCI; S

 DAKOTA STATE UNIVERSITY, ERCORINGS, SOUTB DAKCTA.

 57007.

 Proj. No.: SD00300

 Project Type: BATCB

 Agency ID: CSRS

 Period: 01 JUN 80 To 30 JUN 83

OBJECTIVES: determine the feasibility of culturing annual crops of channel catfish and rainbow trout in eastern South Dakota dugouts; determine the forage species which produce the greatest growth ratee and harvestable biomass of largemouth tass in South Dakota ponds and determine the panfish species which, when stocked with largemouth base, is least susceptable to overpopulation.

APPROACB: Ponds and dugouts will be stocked with a variety of fish speciee. Stocking rates, fieh species, artificial feeding and other variables will be utilized to ascertain both sport and commercial value of eelected South Dakota pondfish populations.

PROGRESS: 80/06 TO 80/12. Sixteen dugout ponds in eastcentral South Dakota were stocked with fingerling channel catfish (Ictalurus punctatue) at stocking rates of 309, 618, 1235, and 1853/ha. After one growing season average weighte for catfish at the various stocking rates were 180, 193, 173, and 105 g, respectively. Survival rates were 54, 34, 66, and 51%. Taste teete resulted in all fish rating as fair or better. Twenty-one dugouts were stocked with rainbow trout (Salmo gairdneri) at stocking rates of 200, 400, 600, 800/ha. Survival rates for the whole growing season were poor, however, growth and survival for approximately the first 2 months of the study were excellent. Average length for the initial 2 month period was 188 m TL (135-239 mm range); average weight was 75 g (27-170 g range). A taste panel rated all but one group of fieh as at least fair to good. Analysis of data concerning the stocking of 80 South Dakota ponds with a number of different speciee compositions is being completed. Initial results indicate significant differencee in first year growth of largemouth bass (Micropterus salmoides) and black bullheads (I. melus) between southern and northern quadrats. No difference in the first year growth rates of largemouth bes were observed among etocking combinations. Firet year survival of game species was 67.5% for black bullheads, 50.8% for largemouth base, and 28.7% for bluegill (Lepomis macrochirus).

- PUBLICATIONS: 80/06 TO 80/12 MODDE, T.C. 1980. Evaluation of Fish Stocking Combinations in South Dakota Ponde. South Dakota Dept. Game, Fish and Parks. Prog. Rept. 80-9. 22 pp.
 - MODDE, T.C. 1980. State Stocking Policies for Small Warmwater Impoundments. Fieheries 5:13-17. MODDE, T.C. and STONE, C.C. 1980. Growth and
 - Biomass of Largemouth Bass (Micropterue salmoidee) in a Weetern South Dakota Stock Pond. Proc. S.D. Acad. Sci. 59:138-146.
 - SCALET, C.G. 1980. Endangered and Threatened Pishes of South Dakota. South Dakota State Univ. Coop. Ext. Serv. ESS 278. 7 pp.

006.089* FISHERIES UNIT

APPLEGATE R L; WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT; S DAKOTA STATE UNIVERSITY, BROOKINGS, SOUTH DAKOTA. 57007. Proj. No.: SD00914 Project Type: STATE

CRIS0028152

Agency ID: SAES Period: 17 JAN 67 To 01 JAN 99

OEJECTIVES: Research varioue probleme of fish and aquatic habitate in South Dakota.

APPROACB: Partial contribution by University to W/Ubetween U and Cooperative Fishery Unit between U. S. Sport Fisheries and Wildlife and S. D. Department of Game, Pish, S Parks. Work program varies according to the annual agreement of the coordinating committee.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. The study concerning fish interactions in a power plant cooling reservoir continued. The estimated standing crop of the 4 major forage fish species was 28.1 kg/ha. The forage fish population was dominated by age-groups I and II. Impingement of forage fishes was primarily restricted to young-of-the-year and higheet impingement rates usually occurred in the evening. Muskellunge (Esox macquinongy) were most vulnerable to impingement during the first 2 months after their introduction. The growth rate of muskellunge in the reservoir (Age-II, 753 mm average; Age-I, 465 mm average) was higher than all reports for the species in North America. Alimentary canal development of muskellunge was studied with relation to invertebrate food sources. The most selected for food organism during both day and night was Moina brachiata. Cyclops vernalis was also selected for during night. Muskellunge selected against Asplanchna sieboldi, Potamocypris sp., and Daphnia ep. Food organisms collected from the foregut of fry collected at 2300 hours were significantly larger, but not more numeroue, than those in the foregut of fry collected at 1300 hours. As the fry grew and the mouth diameter increased, the eizes of food organisms increased. Fry initially selected for the first and second instare of M. brachiata and against the later instars and adults; hy day 23 they eelected for adults and against immature instars.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- EENDA, R.S. 1979. Analysie of Catch Data for 1968 Through 1976 for Nine Fish Landings in Kenya Waters of Lake Victoria. J. Fieh Biol. 15:385-387.
- EBNDA, E.S. 1979. Occurrence of Argulus appendiculosus Wilson, 1907 (Eranchiura) in Indiana. Indiana Acad. Sci. 88:344.
- FOSEN, R.A. and BALES, D.C. 1980. Occurrence of Scarred Paddlefish in the Missouri River, South Dakota-Nebraska. Prog. Pish-Cult. 40(2):82-85.

- WAHL, J.F. 1980. Forage Fish Populations and Growth of Muskellunge in a South Dakota Fower Flant Cooling Jeservoir. N.S. Thesis. South Dakota State University, Brockings. 71 p.
- SLOANE, G.F. 1980. Macroscopic Benthos Populations in a South Dakota Power Plant Cooling Reservoir. M.S. Thesis. South Dakota State University, Brookings. 67 p.

006.090* FRESEWATER FCCD ANIMALS

CFIS0071695

WILSON J L; FORESTRY 6 WILDLIFE; UNIVERSITY OF TENNESSEE, KNCXVILLE, TENNESSEE. 37916. Proj. No.: IEN00491 Project Type: HATCE Agency ID: CSES Period: 01 OCT 76 To 30 SFF 81

CBJECTIVES: Develop and improve production and management systems for Freshwater animals cultured for food.

APPROACE: Standard methods will be employed to determine the effects of steroids and selected marking techniques (branding, tagging, multilation) on survival and growth of catfish. Folycultural methods using food fishes such as catfish, sunfish hybrids, etc., will be compared to monocultural practices as relating to growth and total production.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Experimentation evaluating the feasibility of polyculturing channel catfish and tilapia in a high-density, flow-through system was completed. Growth and condition of catfish were significantly reduced in all polyculture treatments as compared to monoculture treatment. Correlation of species densities (3:1, 6:1, 12:1 tilapia/catfish) and growth of catfish resulted in a significant negative relationship. Tilapia growth and condition were unaffected except at the highest stocking density. Water quality parameters were similar between the treatments, except for dissolved oxygen levels which at times were lower in the polyculture treatments. A terramycin-resistant strain cf Edwardsiella tarda was isolated from infected fish; this is the first report of this strain in channel catfish. Preliminary work was restricted to examine the feasibility of using freshwater mussels as a food source. Replicate samples using the washboard variety of sussel are being examined for composition, microbial profile, and quality of surrounding water.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12
BILTCN, F. and WILSON, J.L. 1980.
Terramycin-resistant Edwardsiella tarda in Channel Catfish. Prog. Fish Culturist 42(3):159.
BILTON, F. 1980. Effects of Tilapia Densities on Growth of Channel Catfisb in Flow-through Polyculture. M.S. Thesis, 29 pp. The University of Tennessee, Knoxville.

006.091* CRIS0074335 CULTURE AND MANAGEMENT OF SELECTED GAME FISEES

WILSON J L; FORESTRY 6 WILDLIFE; UNIVERSITY OF TENNESSEE, KNOXVILLE, TENNESSEE. 37916. Proj. No.: TEN00521 Project Type: HATCE Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 OCT 77 To 30 SEP 81

CEJECTIVES: Develop new management techniques and cultural methods for improving yields of game fishes in Tennessee waters by: Evaluating the feasibility of using selected non-native (exotic) species and/or hybrid fishes, and improved fish habitat management practices.

APPECACE: Ponds, raceways, and other holding facilities will be constructed to evaluate the potential of such fish as grass carp, mirror or other carps, tilapia, striped bass, hybrid sunfish, hybrid catfish, and other non-native species. Monospecific culture of selected fishes will be compared to polycultural techniques to determine production (kg/bectare). The use of different stocking rates, fertilization practices, and supplemental feeds will he evaluated as management practices. Culture techniques for hybrid sunfish and other selected species will be determined and their rotential for use in pond environments will be assessed. New management techniques for improving yields in game fish populations by babitat manipulation will be assessed. Research problems would include the evaluation of the effects of aquatic vegetation control on fish production; the effects of aquatic pesticides on yield of game fishes in ronds, streams, and reservoirs; the identification and control of fish parasites and diseases in game fishes; and the evaluation of biological agents as biofilters of waste materials in aquatic systems.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Data collection for two pond studies were completed and the data are being analyzed. In one study, over 250 Florida largemouth bass have been tagged and released in two different impoundments. All were weighed and measured; scales were removed to determine age composition of the population. In the second study, fingerling striped bass were stocked in two small impoundments to determine survival and growth. To date, 47 young-of-year and yearlings have been collected; indications are that survival is directly related to fingerling size and data of stocking. In a two-year investigation to determine food habits, movements, and general life history of striped bass, approximately 400 fish have been collected. Preliminary analyses indicate young-of-year stripeo bass utilize zoo plankton, principally midge larvae, as the primary source of food for some time subsequent to stocking. There is evidence of similar food habits for white bass, leading to the assumption of interspecific competition. A study has been initiated to evaluate the effects of fish attractors in Norris Lake.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

MINTON, J.W. 1980. Bioenergetics of Sauger in Watts Bar Reservoir, Tennessee. M.S. Thesis. The University of Tennessee, Knozville. 75 pp.
WADDLE, B.R., COUTANT, C.C. and WILSON, J.L. 1980. Summer Babitat Selection by Striped Eass, Morone saxatilis, in Cherokee Reservoir, Tennessee, 1977. Ornl Env. Sci. Publ. No. 1360. 195 pp.

CRIS0080188 SEEIMP MATURATION, REPRODUCTICN, DEVELOPMENT, NUTRITION, INTENSIVE-EXTENSIVE CULTURE AND MARICULTURE

LAWRENCE A; TEXAS A&W UNIVERSITY, CORPUS CBRISII, TEXAS. 78406. Proj. No.: TEX06325 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 CCT 79 To 30 SEP 83

OEJECTIVES: Obtain basic and applied knowledge required for development of penaeid shrimp mariculture as a successful industry. This includes reproduction in captivity, development of satisfactory dried prepared feeds and improvement of sbrimp production from intensive and extensive culture.

APPROACE: Shrimp reproduction of natural populations will he biochemically and nutritionally characterized. Nutritional, environmental and cultural requirements for reproduction in captivity will be studied. By comparing reproducion obtained in captivity to baseline reproductive data from natural populations and evaluating laboratory experiments, the understanding of reproduction and tasis for reproduction in captivity will be obtained. Sbrimp nutrition will be evaluated by determining food conversion ratios, % assimilation values, growth rates, % mortalities, organ indices and biochemical changes to different dried prepared foods. Improvement of shrimp production from intensive (tank) and extensive (pond) culture will be from nutritional, salinity, temperature and polyculture studies.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. General objective of this project is to obtain technology with knowledge and understanding of basic biological principles necessary to establish shrimp mariculture as a new agricultural crop in Texas. Accomplishments for last year were: Construction of maturation/reproduction

facility at Corpus Christi; Maturation with spawning of fertile eggs of three species of marine shrimp, Penaeus vannamel, P. stylirostris and P. setiferus; Evaluation of lipid requirement in marine shrimp maturation/reproduction; Seedstock supply of marine shrimp is most limiting to establishment of shrimp mariculture in Texas. The preceding represent significant steps in removing this obstacle. Overwintering of broodstock in ponds receiving heated effluent. Cverwintering of broodstock is a necessity for a guaranteed source of seedstock and future genetic/domestication studies. Determination of chill tolerance of brine shrimp larvae and importance of cryoprotectants and viability of marine shrimp frozentto -16 degrees C. The preceding represents step toward cryopreservation of marine shrimp seedstock which will be required to guarantee seedstock supply at minimum cost. Determination osmoregulation of juvenile and mature marine shrimp. Enowledge of osmoregulatory ability of marine shrimp is needed since sea water along Texas coast is variable.

- MIDDLEDITCE, B.S., NISSIER, S.F., BINES, H.B., MCVEY, J.P., BLOWN, A., WARD, D.G. and LAWRENCE, A.L. 1986. Metabolic Profiles of Penaeid Shrimp: Dietary Lipids and Ovarian Naturation. Journal of Chromatography, 195:359-368
- EAUST, J.G. and LAWRENCE, A.L. 1980. Ontogenstic Variability of Chill Tolerance in Larval Artemia salina II. Single Type Cryoprotectants. Aquaculture, 20:305-311.
- BAUST, J.G. and LAWRENCE, A.L. 1980. Ontogenetic Variability of Chill Tolerance in Larval Artemia salina I. Dual Type Cryoprotectants. Aquaculture, 20:313-321.
- CASTILLE JF., F.L. and LAWRENCE, A.L. 1980. The Effect of Salinity on the Osmotic, Sodium and Chloride Concentrations in the Bemolympt of the Euryhalire Shrimp of the Genus Penaeus. Comparative Biochemistry and Physiology.

006.093 CFIS0083168 CULTURE OF ACUATIC ORGANISMS AND EVALUATION OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS AT STEAM ELECTRIC PLANTS

STRAWN K; ALDRICH D V; NEILL W B; FISHERIES 6 WILDLIFE; TEXAS AGM UNIVERSITY, COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS. 77843. Proj. No.: TEX06462 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 CCT 80 To 31 DEC 83

OBJECTIVES: Determine which species are best suited for culture at spscific sites and if they can be cultured commercially. Compare polyculture with monoculture and culture of mixed-age organisms with those of uniform age. Asses the potential of various culture systems for use at power plants. Investigate problems such as gas supersaturation in discharge water. Determine occurrence, abundance and distribution of wild spscies in areas influenced by a power plant and apply this information to culture.

APPEOACB: Penaeid shrimp, blue crabs, various fishes and other appropriate organisms will be cultured in ponds and cages using intake and heated discharge waters. Commercial species will be emphasized. Environmental conditions at each research site will determine the species used. Ponds (0.1 hectare), cages, net pens and cooling ponds will be investigated as culture systems. Surveys of natural populations will be conducted and occurrence and abundancs of organisms related with environmental factors.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Mariculture experiments were performed in heated brackish effluent of power plant. Blue crabs were grown in individual cagss for soft shelled crab production. Expenses were high. Time between molts will have to be shortened for this method to be economic. Crabs were susceptable to gas hubble disease when kspt in gas saturated water. Fundulus grandis (locally called mud minnows) were evaluated for salt water hait. Production was as high as 882 Eg/ha and wholesale price was about \$14.30/Kg. Culture of this species looks promising. The blue shirmp (penaeus stylirostris) was stocked July 17 and 18 and harvested December 6-7. Production was as high as 1244 Kg/ha with a wholesale value of about \$5.50/Kg. Because of slower growth and reduced survival, economic returns did not increase appreciably as stocking density was raised from 5 to 10 to 15 shrimp per square meter. Plans, for future experiments, are to use a shrimp species that has a better survival and growth at high stocking densities. Behavior studies of channel catfish cultured in variable depth cages indicated that the fish avoid both the surface and deepest water in cages. Water depths occupied by the water column increased with cage depth. Studies in the cooling reservoir of this plant showed good production of largemouth bass in conjunction with an expanding blue tilapia population.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- CBAMBERLAIN, G.W., NEILL, W.H., ROMANOWSEY, P., STRAWN, E. 1880. Vertical Responses of Atlantic Croaker to Gas Super-saturation and Temperature Changes Trans. Amer. Fish. Soc. 109:737-750.
- OJEDA, G.M. and STRAWN, K. In press. Comparison of Wire and Net Cages for the Culture of Black Drum (Pogonias chromis). Proc. of the 11th Ann. Meeting World Maricult. Soc.
- CJEDA, J., ALDRICH, D.V. and STEAWN, E. In press. Staggsred Stocking of Penaeus stylirostris in Brackfish Water Ponds Receiving Power Plant Cooling Water. Proc. 11th Ann. Meeting World Maricult. Soc.
- ROMANOWSEY, P. and STRAWN, E. 1979. Vertical Distribution of Caged Estuarins Fish in Thermal Effluent Subject to Gas Supersaturation. Proc. JJrd Ann. Conf. Southeastern Assoc. Fish. and Wildlife Agencies. J3:466-483.
- RCSSBERG, K.S. and STRAWN, E. In press. Comparative Growth and Survival of Brown Shrimp Cultured with Florida Pompano, Black Drum, and Striped Mullet. Proc. 11th Ann. World Maricult Soc.

006.094* CRISO064257 FRESEWATER SERINP OF THE GENUS MACROEFACEIUN WITE SPECIAL EMPHASIS ON CULTURE

BRICE R W; WILDLIFE 6 FISBERIES SCI; TEXAS AGM UNIVERSITY, COLLEGE STATICN, TEXAS. 77843. Proj. No.: TEX06052 Agency ID: CSRS Period: 13 JUL 73 To 31 DEC 80

OBJECTIVES: Develop & improve production & management systems for freshwatsr shrimp cultured for food & Bait in Texas. Conduct field studies on natural history and ecology of freshwater shrimp to better understand their nutritional and environmental requirements.

APPROACE: Laboratory and field observations will be coordinated in studying nutritional and sovironmental requirements of Macrobrachium under culture conditions. Survival and growth will be indices most considered in evaluating treatments.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Studies undertaken within this project were highly varied in nature, in part because very little information on the culturs of freshwater shrimp has been developed. Electrophoretic patterns of several species of freshwater shrimp were elaborated and the genetic implications of them addresssd in one study. The basic nitritional requirements and nutritional physiology of Macrobrachium rossnbsrgli with respect to protein were outlinsd, giving riss to information on the protein-energy requirements of that species. The feasibility of rearing freshwater shrimp with tilapia was demonstrated. The responses of freshwater shrimp to degraded water quality was also addressed in an attempt to determine the limits within which this organism can live and grow.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

006.095* CFIS0071939 FISE FOPULATION AND PRODUCTION IN FOND AND LAKE IMPOUNDMENTS

 NOBLE R L; TEER J G; WILDLIFE & FISBERIES SCI; TEXAS

 A&W UNIVERSITY, COLLEGE STATICN, TEXAS. 77843.

 Proj. No.: TEX06206
 Froject Type: STATE

 Agency ID: SAES
 Period: 01 DEC 76 To 31 DEC 80

OBJECTIVES: Determine variations in fish population parameters in existing and planned floodwater retarding structures. Relate variations in fish population parameters to variations in management practices and biological, limnological and structural differences among reservoirs. Test and evaluate selected structural modifications and periodic management practices which will enhance fish production in floodwater retarding structure reservoirs.

APPROACE: Fisb population characteristics of selected reservoirs will be measured and correlated witb physical, chemical and biological characteristics of the reservoirs. Selected management techniques will be experimentally evaluated.

PECGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Farm and ranch ponds provide the potential for substantial food production and recreation close to rural residences. Florida largemouth bass have been widely stocked into Texas waters, with little known of their ecological requirements and interactions with native northern largemouth bass. Research on these two subspecies indicated that Florida bass were more susceptible to cold shock, which can occur at the time of stocking, than are northern bass. Intergradation between the subspecies occurs when stocked together, but rates of intergradation vary with pond characteristics, particularly water clarity. Intergradation has occurred within several hatchery stocks in Texas and the genetic integrity of fish stocked throughout the state likely has frequently been mistaken. Studies of floodwater retarding structures indicated that channel catfish populations were largely related to physical conditions, whereas biological conditions were most important to largemouth bass. Summer drawdown of floodwater retarding structures can be used to increase water clarity of turbid lakes without long-lasting direct effects on fish populations. Two new studies on larger impoundments were initiated during 1980. In Lake Conroe, baseline data were collected for evaluation of effects of vegetation control to be initiated in early 1981.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 PATE, M.W. 1580. Intergradation Between Two Subspecies of Largemouth Bass, Micropterus salmoides, in Texas. N.S. Thesis, Texas A and M University, College Station, 64 pp.

006.096* FRESEWATER FCOD ANIMALS CRIS0061207

 STICKNEY R E; STRAWN K; COBE E E; WILDLIFE 6

 FISERFIES SCI; TEXAS AGM UNIVERSITY, CCLIEGE STATICN,

 TEXAS. 77843.

 Proj. No.: TEX02831

 Project Type: BATCE

 Agency ID: CSRS

 Period: 01 CCT 76 To 30 SEP 81

OEJECTIVES: Levelop and improve production and management systems for freshwater animals cultured for food, including: Nutrition, genetics and breeding, water quality, diseases, and culture systems. Develop and improve products and processing methods that will enhance marketability and insure quality of cultured freshwater food animals.

APFECACE: Various methods will be utilized to meet the objectives of the overall S-38 project in the several cooperating institutions. The thrust of the Texas Agricultural Experiment Station will be on channel catfish, Tilapia and freshwater shrimp, with emphasis beirg placed on objectives I above, especially nutrition, water quality and culture systems.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Lipid energy requirements of channel catfish fry were evaluated with semipurified diets over the period from onset of feeding until the fish reached several grass in weight. The data obtained will be utilized to aid in the preparation of fry feeds specifically developed for channel catfish. It is anticipated that the protein: energy ratio will be adjusted as food particle size is increased during the initial year of life. Semipurified diets with varying lipid sources and percentages revealed no significant differences in channel catfish fingerling growth over the lipid range from 6 to 14% at a mean temperature of 22 degrees C, though fish fed 10% lipid were slightly larger in mean size at the end of the 20 week experiment. Fatty acid composition revealed that there were no significantly different patterns among diets with the same lipid source, but there were differences among lipid sources with respect to final fatty acid composition. Polyculture studies with freshwater sbrimp and tilapia revealed some depressed growth when the two were stocked together, but in general, feeding on the basis of estimated fish biomass will yield a secondary shrimp crop, without the need to provide shrimp feed. Cverwintering of large numbers of tilapia is being conducted to determine if the technique is feasible for use in central Texas and to provide fish for a study of second year growth potential of this fish. Plastic and fiberglass covered ponds as well as indoor overwintering facilities are being compared.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

HENDERSON-ARZAPALO, A., STICKNEY, R.F. and LEWIS, D.B. 1980. Immune Bypersensitivity in Intensively Cultured Tilapia Species. Trans. Am. Fish. Soc. 109:244-247.

- YINGST III, W.L. and STICKNEY, E.R. 1980. Growth and Survival of Caged Channel Catfish (Ictalurus punctatus) fingerlings on Diets Containing Various Lipids. Prog. Fish-Cult. 42:24-26.
- EURNS, R.P. and STICKNEY, R.R. 1980. Growth of Tilapia aurea in Ponds Ecceiving Poultry Wastes. Aquaculture 20:117-121.
- CUENCO, M.L. and STICKNEY, R.R. 1980. Reliability of an Electrode and a Water Analysis Kit for Determination of Ammonia in Aquaculture Systems. Trans. Am. Fish. Soc. 109:571-576
- MCGEACHIN, R.B. 1980. Production of Tilapia aurea in Simulated Lagoons Receiving Laying Ben Wastes. Ph.D. Disseration, Texas ASM University, 71 pp.

006.097* CFIS0060593 REFECTS ON SELECTED ORGANISMS OF WATER PASSING THROUGH THE CEDAR BAYOU GENERATING STATION

STRAWN K; ALDRICH D V; NBILL W E; WILDLIFE 6 FISBERIES SCI; TEXAS AGM UNIVERSITY, CCLLEGE STATICN, TEXAS. 77843. Proj. No.: TEX01869 Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 APR 71 To 01 JUN 80

OBJECTIVES: Determine the suitability of electric power plant cooling water for growth, food conversion, and survival of selected species of crustaceans and fishes in cages, ponds, and temperature-controlled tanks.

APPROACE: Animals will be held in cages in front of the plant intake and in the discharge canal; in fish ponds located near the start of the discharge canal; and in aquaria in a laboratory to be built near the fish ponds. After the construction of the cooling pond, animals will be kept in cages in its first and last compartments and occurrence and distribution of selected organisms in the cooling pond will be determined. Temperatures in the aquaria will span the range of temperatures usually occurring in Trinity Eay. The influence of the effluent on phytoplankters both in the field and in culture will also be determined.

PROGRESS: 79/01 TO 79/12. Species most suited for commercial production in the wast quantities of water pumped by the Cedar Eayou Generating Station are being identified and raised to evaluate their potential. Blue shrimp (Penaeus stylirostris) survived low salinities (2% or less for over half of the culture period) associated with heavy rain falls during the Summer of 1979, but eurvival and production were down. Quality of harvested shrimp was excellent. Staggered stocking of postlarvae appeared superior to a single stocking. Nud monnows (Fundulue grandie) were raised for marine live hait. Local fish performed hetter than a pond-raised stock from Alabama. Some spwaning occurred all summer. Polyculture of hlack drum (Fogonias chromie) and striped mullet (Mugil cephalus) was superior to monoculture. New pens are hetter than cagee for hlack drum culture, hecause they are cheaper to construct and less labor intensive.

- PUBLICATIONS: 79/01 10 79/12
 - BRANCE, M. and STRAWN, K. 1979. Analysis of feeding relationship among estuarine fishes raised in polyculture in ponds receiving thermal effluents. Fower Plant Waste Beat Utilization in Aquaculture Workshop II. Allanheld, Oemun and Co. CHUNG, K.S. and STRAWN, K. 1979. Beat tolerance of
 - CHUNG, K.S. and STRAWN, E. 1979. Beat tolerance of free-living estuarine anima is to predict their eurvival in heated effluente. Proc. 31st Ann. Conf. Southeastern Assoc. Wildlife Agencies. pp. 514-518.
 - GIBBARD, G.L. 1979. Report on eurvival, growth, and hehavior of selected estuarine organiess cultured in tanks receiving heated effluent from a power plant near Baytown, Texas. N.S. Thesis. Texas A and M Univ. College Station
 - BUFF, N.E. 1979. Growth and survival of selecte d marine and estuarine organiems employed as water quality monitors and cultured at various temperaturee and light intensitities in flow-through systems utilizing power-plant effluent.

006.098 CFIS0080100 CAGE CULTURE OF TILAPIA IN THE VIRGIN ISLANDS

RAKOCY J E; NAIR A; ADMINISTRATION; COLL OF VIRGIN ISLANDS, ST CROIX, VIRGIN ISLANDS. 00850. Proj. No: VI00024 Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 OCT 79 To 30 SEP 84

OBJECTIVES: Develop practical cage culture methode of tilapia fish production suitable to the freshwater resources of the Virgin Islands. Evaluate the acceptiblity of tilapia as a food fish by the local populace.

APPROACE: Various tilapia species and their hybrids will he evaluated under similar growing conditione for use in freshwater cage culture production systems. Imported commercial pelleted fish feed will he compared to themselves and other animal feeds for cage culture use. Feede comprised of locally produced ingredients will he formulated and evaluated for tilapia culture in cages. Stocking densities, the use of sliding feeding-rate schedules, and the evaluation of monosex cultures obtained by mechanical grading or hand sexing of tilapia (separation of sexes by observing sexually dimorphic external characteristics.) will be investigated for fish production in cages under Virgin Ielands pond conditions. Fish produced in cage culture research will be evaluated by taste panele and sold to the public. Acceptability of tilapia as a food fish will be evaluated by questionaires and the actual marketability of the fish when compared to locally caught salt water species.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. An experiment, presently in its twelfth month, was conducted to evaluate three connercial feeds, each of which was fed to caged tilapia according to three feeding rate schedules. The feeds were floating catfish pellets from Purina (#5140) and Sunchine Mills (Tupelo, MS) and sinking crumbles (Tilapia Finisher) from Central Soya (San Juan, PE). The protein content was 32% for Purina and Sunshine and 30% for Central Soya. The treatments were replicated three times with a stocking rate of 200 fish/m 3. The feeding rate schedules were 3% of body weight throughout the experiment, 5% for 2 months followed by reductions to 4,3,2 and 1% at monthly intervale (time slide) and thereafter maintained at 1%, and 5% to a mean weight of 60 g followed hy reductions to 3% up to 100 g, 2% up to

150 g and 1% up to harvest (weight elide). The fieh were fed once per day, 6 days per week, for 270 feeding days. After 6 months, the Central Soya treatments were diecontinued because feed was lost through the cage sides during feeding, resulting in low growth rates. Analysis of the data after 11 months indicates that more growth was obtained with Purina. Mean weighte for Purina were 269 g (3%), 246 g (time slide) and 301 g (weight slide) compared to reepective mean weighte of 229, 220 and 225 g for Sunehine. The cage meehs, (6-mm Vexar) partially clogged with algae and prevented adequate water circulation, contributing to low dissolved oxygen levels and growth rates, which generally averaged lese than 1 g/day.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

006.099 FRESHWATER FOOD ANIMALS CEIS0076162

RAKOCY J E; NAIE A; ADMINISTRATION; VIRGIN ISLANDS AGBIC EXPT STAT, KINGSBILL ST CROIX, VIRGIN ISLANDS. 00850. Proj. No.: VI00021 Project Type: BATCB

Agency ID: CSRS Period: 14 JUL 78 To 30 JUN 81

OBJECTIVES: Develop and improve production and management systems for freshwater animals cultured for food.

APPROACE: Tilapia (Sarotherodon)sp.) will be cultured in both static and recirculated water systems utilizing circular plaetic pools (3.7 m X .9 m) ae experimental units. These units will be evaluated as production facilities for fingerling fish and as grow-out facilities for market-sized fish available for human concumption. The study will evaluate such variables as fish species utilized, stocking density, use of available feeds and animal manures as nutrient sources, and the use of simple water recirculation eyetems as applicable to the grow-out units. Total fieh production, per cent fish survival, feed conversione and pertinent water quality parameters will be monitored. Fingerling production research will study the effects of brood fish necessary to maximize production. All research will be coordinated toward the development of an integrated plan of optimal tilapia production in small modular fish culture eystems.

FEOGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. A research facility was established for the etudy of recirculating fish culture-hydroponic systems and tilapia fingerling production in small poole. A fenced site, (320' x 120') was leveled and water lines, drain lines and electrical receptacles were installed. A field lahoratory was upgraded to include six electric meters for monitoring power consumption by the recirculating eyetems. A total of 34 circular swimming pools have heen erected and six recirculating eysteme are heing constructed. A small prototype recirculating system was constructed and is being evaluated.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

NAIR, A. 1981. Fieh Culture and Hydroponics in the Virgin Islands. Bull. Annu. Agri. Food Fair Virgin Islands 11:87-88.

006.100 CRISO063835 CAGE CULTURE OF FISE IN THE WIRGIN ISLANDS UTILIZING TERTIARY TREATED WATER

 PACDA D S; SANDS F B; BUSCB R L; AGRICULTUFAL EXPER.

 STATION; VIEGIN ISLANDS AGRIC EXFT STAT, HINGSBILL ST

 CROIX, VIEGIN ISLANDS. 00850.

 Froj. No.: VI00009

 Project Type: HATCH

 Agency ID: CSES

 Period: 04 JUN 73 To 30 SEF 79

OBJECTIVES: Develop a practical eystem of cage culture for Tilapia aurea; and determine feasihility of cage culture of Tilapia as a productive farm enterprise. APPROACE: Bates of gain, cost of production and returns will be determined for four different feeding regimens and different stocking rates.

PECGRESS: 73/06 TO 79/09. Cage culture research was initially conducted in four 0.4-ha ponds that were constructed for this project. Hefore any significant research results were obtained, the ponds had to be abandoned because the treatment plant supplying tertiary treated wastewater to the ponds shut down for 3 years for repairs. An alternate facitlity, a 1-ha watershed pond, was located in 1977. A total of 41 cages and 2 rafts were established in this pond to study the culture of tilapia. Support facilities, including a water quality lab, were gradually developed. Four experiments and one marketing study were conducted. Tilapia (Tilapia aurea) in aquaria were fed catfish feed, chicken feed or coconut meal. Catfish feed produced the greatest growth while coconut meal produced the least growth. Tilapia fed at three rates in raceways, supplied by tertiary treated wastewater, exhibited the best growth and feeo conversion at rates of 2 and 3% of body wt., but growth rates were low, 0.6 and 0.8 g/fish/day, respectively. Tilapia in 0.5 m³ cages were fed catfish feed at rates ranging from 1 to 5%. Feed costs at the 2 and 3% rates were the most economical and amounted to 62 and 84 cents/kg of fish production, respectively. The growth of T. aures and T. mossambica were compared . Greater growth and survival were exhibited by T. mossambica at the O (control), 1 and 2% feeding rates while the growth and feed conversion of T. aurea was superior at the 3 and 4% rates.

PUBLICATIONS: 73/06 10 79/09

- BUSCE, R. I. 1978. Freshwater aquaculture a possiblilty for the Virgin Islands. Bull. Annu. Agri. Food Fair Virgin Islands. 8:61-64.
- BUSCH, R. L. 1975. A prospectus for cage culture of freshwater fish in the U.S. Virgin Islands. Eull. Annu. Agri. Food Fair Virgin Islands. 9:41-44.
- BUSH, F. L. 1980. Marketing tilapia in the Virgin Islands. Bull. Annu. Agri. Food Fair Virgin Islands. 10:17-19.
- ST. AIMEE, D. 1976. Growth of Tilapia aurea (L.) on selected feeding regimes. M. S. Thesis. Fairleigh Dickersor Univ. 32 p.

006+101 CEIS0065679 DESPONSE OF FISHES AND AQUATIC SYSTEMS TO ELECTRIC SHOCK AND CAPTURE TECHNOLOGY

LACKEY R T; FISHERIES & WILDLIFE; VIRGINIA PCLY INST, BLACKSHURG, VIRGINIA. 24061. Proj. No.: VA-0202361 Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 74 To 30 SEP 79

OBJECTIVES: Evaluate the effects of electronarcosis on physiological processes in fishes; examine electroshocking efficiency as a collecting tool in fisheries maragement practices; and develop decision making methodologies to be used in altervative management strategies.

APPECACE: Fhysiological evaluations of

electrically-anesthetically-and handle-stressed fish, primarily using hemal parameters; laboratory and field studies employing warious species and habitat types subjected to collecting procedures, and computer simulation of selected fisheries to test management strategies.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. No progress report this period.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

SAUL, G.F. 1980. Effects of Repetitive Electrostocking on Fish Populations in Experimental Raceways and a Small Headwater Stream in Southern West Virginia. Fh.D. Thesis. Va. Poly. Inst. and State Univ., Hlacksburg. 180 pp.

006.102* CRISO062572 DEVELOP OF AQUACULTURE SYSTEMS FOE COOL WATER FISE SPECIES

CALBERT B E; FCCD SCIENCE; UNIVERSITY CF WISCCASIN, MADISCN, WISCCNSIN. 53706. Proj. No.: WIS01953 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 SEP 72 To 30 AUG 81

OBJECTIVES: Maintain a facility for fieh growing operations and research as a service unit. Improve the reproductive efficience of cool water species of fish to be used in aquaculture. Improve the acceptability and nutritive value of formulated feeds used in aquaculture. Improve methods of yellow perch fingerling production.

AFPROACH: The acquaculture research facility at 6080 McKee Road, Madison, WI and the outside ponds on the UW Experimental Farms will be maintained and operated to provide research facilities and fish to be used in aquaculture research. Selective breeding of yellow perch and other cool water species will be used to improve the strains of fish and adapt them to aquaculture operations. Studies on the preservation of fish sperm, ova, and fetilized eggs hy cryobiological methods will be made. Various types of protein sources will be investigation for incorporation into formulated diets used in fish growing opertions. The care, management and productivity of outside ponds for figerling production will be investigated.

PROGRESS: 79/01 TO 79/12. Project emphasis over the past 4 years has been on developing methods of commercially culturing yellow perch indoors in closed water-recycling systems. Research bas shown that this type of culture is technically feasible, through the application of sanitary engineering principles but is too capitol intensive for commercial development. Project emphasis has been shifted to pond, raceway and cage culture, both for commercial applications and wild fisheries enhancement. The project has also worked extensively on diet development, control of reproduction, cryopreservation of sperm, and fingerling production of coolwater species of fish. Dietary recommendations regarding coolwater fish production have been made available through the National Coolwater Fish Diet Steering Committee. Nethods for controlling reproduction in coolwater fish have been developed and applied to implrove the predictability of spawning. Sperm from yellow perch, northern pike and walleye have been frozen. stored and later used to fertilize eggs. Such research will aid in improving the efficiency and profitability of fish rearing operations, whether they be for commercial purposes or fishery enhancement.

PUBLICATIONS: 79/01 TO 79/12 NO PUBLICATIONS SEPORTED THIS PERIOD.

7. Harvesting and Handling

007.001* CRISO078875 CULTURE SYSTEMS FOR YEAR-ROUND MARKETING OF FISE FROM WATERSHED PONDS

SMITHERMAN R O; MCCOY E W; FISHERIES 6 ALLIED AQUACULTURE; AUHURN UNIVERSITY, AUEURN, ALABAMA. 36830. Proj. No.: ALA00496 Project Type: HATCH

Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 APR 79 To 30 SEP 83

OBJECTIVES: Develop techniques for producing, harvesting, and marketing aquacultural crops from watershed ponds throughout the year.

APPROACE: Channel catfish, tilapia, silver carp, and rainbow trout will be produced in watershed ponds up to 8.9 ha. Partial harvesting with cages, drop nets and corral seines will be evaluated to extend the marketing season and to improve cash flow. PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Tilapia aurea fingerlings cultured in cags at stocking rates of 400, 800, 1200, and 1600/m 3 for 92 days gained an average of 127, 124, 114, and 100 grams, respectively. The weight of fish in a cage was more important than the number; growth was reduced as the standing crop exceeded approximately 100 kilograms/m 3. Tilapia in cages were fed a standard ration. One treatment received the daily allotment in one feeding; the other treatment had its daily ration divided into two feeding per day. After two months, fish fed once per day gained an average of 129 grams, those fed twice per day gained 149 grams, an increase of 16% due to feeding frequency. Blue tilapis (T. aurea) and golden hybrids (T. hornorum x T. mossamhica) were cultured 435 grams, while male flue tilapia averaged 288 grams. Female golden hybrids averaged 173 grams and female blue tilapia were 254 grams. Male golden hybrids and both male and female blue tilapia were 100% marketable (total length 19 cm) but only 67% of the golden bybrid females were marketable.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

007.002* CFIS0068896 PRAVN AQUACULTURAL ENGINEERING

WANG J K; AGKI ENGINEEFING; UNIVERSITY OF BAWAII, BONOLULU, BAWAII. 56822. Proj. No: BAW00524 Project Type: BATCE Agency ID: CSES Period: 01 JUL 75 To 30 SEP 81

OBJECTIVES: Develop a harvesting system, including equipment and strategy, for the continuous production of prawn in Bawaii. Further investigate and evaluate high density nursery culture. Develop a post-harvest handling system for live prawn for both local and export market. Develop an engineering-economic analysis model to evaluate alternative prawn production system.

APPROACB: Prototype harvesting equipment will be field tested and a suitable harvesting strategy developsd. Experiments will be carried out to determine the effects of density and size on nursery mortality rates and growth rates. Storage and transportation of live animal under low temperature will be tssted in the laboratory. An engineering economic analysis of prawn production using nursery stocking strategy and inventory pond will be psrformed to dstermine optimum harvesting strategy and facility requirements.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. A simple net reel was designed and fabricatsd. It mounts on a standard thres point bitch and is powered by the tractor hydraulics. Using the resl, one man can pick up or set a prawn tarvesting seine for a 40 m wide pond in 5-10 minutes. The net reel is being field tested by local prawn farmers. Prawn physical dimensions of engineering significance, such as overall length, tail length, orbit length, beigth, width, and mass are being collected and analyzed. Eslationships of various dimensions to orbit length and mass will be determinsd. Live transport of prawn was investigated. Life support was limited to bubbling air in water and temperature control. The initial 18 liter of water psr 1 kg prawn was not changed or filtered. Dissolved oxygen was above 7.0 ppm and temperature 16 to 18 dsgrsss C. Nc mortalities were experienced in the first 20 hours. Two replications did not have a mortility for 114 hours. If the inital mortality was not removed, the mortality rate increased rapidly. Conditioning and selection of prawn before transport appear significant to the longth of transport allowsd

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- WANG, J.K. and WILLIAKSCN, W.F. 1980. Aquacultural Engineering in Fresh Water Prawn Production. ASAE Transactions 23(5):1318-1321, 1325.
- ENEALE, D.C. and WANG, J.K. 1979. A Laboratory Invsstigation of Macrobrachium rosenbergii Nursery Production. Proc. of the World Mariculture Society 10:359-368.

007.063 CFIS0073715 POST-BARVEST BANDLING AND PROCESSING OF MACEOBRACHIUM PRAWNS

NIP W; MOY J B; FOOD SCIENCE 6 TECBNOLOGY; UNIVERSITY OF HAWAII, BCNCLULU, HAWAII. 96822. Proj. No.: BAW00576-S Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 77 To 30 SEF 80

OBJECTIVES: Define the quality of fresh and cooked prawns in terms of physical, chemical, bacteriological and organoleptic attributes. Assess the effect of various processing techniques (freezing, holding, packaging, storage and thawing on the quality of the frozen prawns. Determine and recommend a set of handling, holding and processing conditions in terms of acceptable quality of frozen prawns for long term storage.

APFROACE: Zero-time control samples will be analyzed in terms of texture, pH, trimethylamine, collagen, and salt content, Eacterial count and teste score. Prawns will be processed, stored and analyzed for the various quality attributes. Optimum conditions for processing, packaging and storing of frozen prawns will be determined based on the above results.

PROGRESS: 77/07 IO 80/12. Various posthervest handling and freezing procedures for the freshwater prawn, Macrobrachium rosenbergli were tested. Results of the frozen storage stability studies (6 mos) suggested that prawns may be chilled up to 48 hrs, then frozen and still maintain acceptable quality; the quality of prawns held under chilled conditions 48 hrs after thawing was still acceptable; post-blanching chilled storage may not be a practical prefreezing technique for commercial preservation and marketing of frozen prawns; and prawns can be frozen either in air or in brine at -18 degrees C, packaged in polymylar hags with or without vacuum, or frozen in ice-blocks, and still maintain acceptable quality. Effect of purging on quality factors and cost-effectiveness were also tested. No significant difference (p less than or equal to $0,\,05$) was found between the purged prawns and the control in their muscls's pH, ammonia content, solutle/insoluble collagen ratio, and peak height/plateau height ratio. Bowever, the decrease in pB and peak height/plateau height ratio, and the increase in ammonia content and soluble/insoluble collagen with ice-chilled time were highly significant (p lsss than or equal to 0.01), indicating a gradual quality degradation when stored on ice. Postharvest purging helped to improve the appearance of the prawn but its cost-effectiveness based on economic feasibility analysis was doubtful.

PUBLICATIONS: 77/07 TO 80/12

NIP, W.K. and MCY, J.B. 1978. Effect of Freezing Methods on the Quality of the Prawn macrobrachium rosenbergii. Proc. of World Naricul. Soc. 10:761-768.

007.004* CRIS0079383 DEVELOPMENT OF OPTIMUM SUSTAINED THELD OF FISHES IN FARM FONDS

KLAASSEN B E; BIOLOGY; KANSAS STATE UNIVERSITY, MANHATTAN, KANSAS. 66506. Proj. No.: KAN00118 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 79 To 30 JUN 82

OBJECTIVES: Develop and manage methods to achieve a higher usable yield of largemouth bass and hluegill by evaluating the protected range size limit and toatal weight limit as a method to prevent over-haravest of bass and maintain high quality bass yield, testing different levels of bluegill harvest to determine the level which will yield the optimum size structure. Develop low level supplemental feeding programs which will yield desired amounts of channel catfish at minimum cost.

APPEOACE: Farm ponds with populations of largemouth bass and bluegill will be used. The bass harvest will be regulated by following a 30 cm to 38 cm protected range size limit along with a 22 kg/ha/yr weight limit. Bluegill will be harvested at three levels: 11, 34, and 90 kg/ha/yr. Results will be evaluated by the size structure of fish harvested, population structure of fish in pond (hy electrofishiog), reproductive success. Some ponds will he stocked only with chancel catfish at a rate of 250/ha plus the oumber of oce pound fish desired by the pood owners. They will be fed at amount 3% of body wt/day. Feed adjustments will be made based on calculated growth. The quota by number will be harvested each year and intermediate replacements stocked. Evaluated by size of fish harvested, cost/pound of fish harvested.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Cne phase of this project deals with evaluating the populatioo structure of largemouth bass and bluegill in oine ponds subjected to three different levels of bluegill harvest. The bass barvest was the same level in all ponds. The stucy was initiated during the Summer of 1979 so only the poods with old established populatioos were barvested. All fish harvested were measured to determice size structure of the catch. Also the pond populatioos were sampled and the size structure determined. It is too early io the study to presect results. The other phase of the project iovolves low level supplemeotal feediog of channel catfish in six additional ronds. Three barvest goals were set (100. 150, and 200 fish per pond). Calculated amounts of feed were fed three times per week. The harvest goals were not quite reached in the ponds. The fish harvested in most poods averaged over one pouod each. The feed ccoversioo (wt. fed/net wt. harvested) ranged from 1.27 to 2.39.

- PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12
 - NILSON, E.E. and KLAASSEN, E.E. 1980. Aquatic Pest Cootrol; Commercial Pesticide Applicator Certification and Recertification Study Maoual. Cooperative Extensioo Service, Kaosas State Univ., Manhattao, 16 pp.

007.005* CRISC084700 MECHANIZATION OF CEANFISH HAEVESTING AND FEODUCTION

EDLING F J; AGRI ENGINEERING; LCUISIANA STATE UNIVERSITY, FATON ROUGE, LCUISIANA. 70803. Proj. No.: LAB02184 Project Type: STATE Ageocy ID: SAES Period: 01 AUG 81 To 30 JUN 84

OBJECTIVES: Develop one or more methods to mechaoically harvest crawfish. Mechanize and develop aeration, water management and other systems for crawfish production.

APPRCACE: The development of one or more mechanical harvesters and other mechaoical devices will relate to practical application needs. The primary harvesting method to be pursued is formulated around a relatively expensive haited trap. The trap design permits easy entrance but makes exit difficult. The added entrance-exit design requirements and the strooger construction needed for mechanical handling make the trip relatively expensive. The expeose is defrayed by tighly efficient use, characterized by frequeot acvement. A large number of trap placements per unit area and the frequent movement of the traps will be feasible with a mechanical carrier. The carrier will be self propelled and programmed with timers to remain stationary for given time periods aod to move giveo distances. A device will be made to lower, raise and invert the trap for emptyiog. Crawfish will be deposited in an ioclined pipe through which they will be traosported by a stream of water to the end of the wide-span carrier. A licear move irrigator may serve as a carrier and would also be used to aerate the water.

007.006* CRIS0082871 MANAGEMENT TECENIQUES POP INCREASING CRAWPISE PRODUCTION

AVAULT J W; FORESTRY & WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT; ICUISIANA STATE UNIVERSITY, EATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA. 70803. Proj. No.: LAB02133 Agency ID: SAES Project Type: STATE Period: 01 NOV 80 To 30 SEP 85

OEJECTIVES: Develop hetter methods of barvesting crawfish. Develop forage/feeding schemes to maximize crawfish yields. Multiple crop crawfish with rice, soybeaos and other crops on the same laods. Improve methods of maintaining optimum water quality.

APPROACE: Nost of the research will be carreid out in replicated Louisiaoa Agricultural Experimeotal poods using field-plot techoiques. Outfield research will he conducted in commercial pords. Pesticide research will be cooducted io the field and in the lab.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Duriog reporting period research continued on: improved methods of harvesting crawfisb; evaluation of artificial baits for harvesting crawfish; and evaluation of two varieties of rice; Saturo and LaBelle with aod witbout fertilizer, as forages for crawfish. Such research established under LAB01192 which was termioated 31 Oct 1980.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS SEPORTED TBIS PERIOD.

007.007* CRIS0067268 ENVIRONMENTAL EFFECTS ON PRODUCTIVITY OF CRAYPISH IN POND RABITATS, PHASE I, II

RODDY L R; DAVIS C E; BIOLOGY; SOUTBERN UNIVERSITY, BATCN ROUGE, LOUISIANA. 70813. Proj. No.: LA.X-PR-0001-8-15-66 Project Type: GRANT

Ageocy ID: CSRS Period: 29 OCT 74 To 28 OCT 79

OFJECTIVES: Determine the type and amount of food that will yield the best production. Determine the most efficient harvesting method in small ponds. Investigate an early and extended crayfish season in small ponds.

APPROACB: Literature and cooperatiog personnel will supplement our selection of food types and amount auring the feeding season. Standard oets, seios, modified traps and oets will be used. The possible use of chemicals and electric devices will he iovestigated. Systematic regulation of water will he maintained, to determine the possibility of increase and decrease of water level on an extended season. Statistical analysis will be made.

PROGRESS: 79/01 TO 79/12. Feediog: Data obtained from the crayfish project indicated that feeding aod fertilizing had great impact on productivity. Feed with a high protein perceotage favored productivity, consequently, fish pellets are highly recommended io the feeding regimeo. Harvesting: Four different traps were coostructed and placed in water depth of 120. 90, 60 and 30 cm respectively. The total weight of each catch per trap was recorded. On the basis of results obtained, Type I trap with 1.5cm mesh wire construction, harrel shape design, 70cm long, 30cm wide with two fuonel opeologe at the hottom is recommended for utilization from Jaouary through Juce. Dual Crop of Crayfish and Fish: 205 fingerlings of hybrid huffalo fish were added to each of the two crayfish ponds. Rice was planted in each pond. None of the fish reached market size over this phase of the iovestigation hut the prelimioary results iodicate that it is feasible to rear crayfish and these fish in the same pood. Cost Yield Ratio: Based upon average crayfisb price, net profits of \$85.82 in Pond I and \$338.83 in Pond II were realized, thereby indicating the feasibility of commercial crayfish production under small pood conditions.

PUELICATIONS: 79/01 TO 79/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED TBIS PERIOD.

007.008* CFIS0064935 DISTRIBUTION, ABUNDANCE AND ECOLOGY OF ASCOPEVILUE NODOSUM (1) LE JOIS VADAS R L; BOTANY & PLANT PATECLOGY; UNIVERSITY OF MAINE, ORONO, MAINE. 04468. Proj. No.: ME08459 Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CERS Period: 13 FEB 74 To 30 SEP 82

OEJECTIVES: Letermine: Dietribution and abundance patterne of A. nodosum in Main, growth, reproductive, age and biomass patterne on exposed, eemi-exposed and sheltered shores; biomase of Fucue epp., value of aerial photography and infrared film for A. nodosum eurveys; methods to enhance colonization of A. nodosum; harvestable yields of A. nodosum.

APPROACE: Permant and radnomy selected eites will be utilized to survey the algal resource and etudy growth patterns. Samplee will be taken eeasooally. Experimental etudies on colonization will he conducted in eitu and in simulated tide cyclee in running eeawater tanke.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Four study areas were established in 1980 making a total of eix in two major areae (Northeast and Southeast) of the coast. The percent cover and biomaes of Ascophyllum and Fucus spp. were determined in belt transects and in 10 x 100 cm quadrats, respectively. Samplee were etratified by intertidal height. Hiomase and growth and density of plante and apical growing points were measured to determine growth and productivity potentials. Reproductive output was measured in Fall 1980 for plante at the six sitee. Data measuremente are nearly complete for these sites (through Fall 1980). Computer programming and analysis will be initiated in spring 1981. Field colonization etudies involving Accophyllum during 1980 were not eucceseful. Cnly a few recruits developed (to 2-5 mm) from approximately 130 experimental plots involving millione of fertilized eggs. Some promising leade will be followed up during 1981. Colonization experiments in running eea water from theee same egge ebowed excellent growth and survival for 1 to 2 monthe until adversely affected by eedimentation.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

LARSCN, H.J., VADAS, R.L. and KESER, M. 1980. Peeding and Nutritional Ecology of the Sea Urchin Strongylocentrotue bracachieneis in Maine, USA. Mar. Biol. 59:49-62.

KESER, M., VADAS, R.L. and LARSON, H.R. 1981. Regrowth of Accophyllum nodocum and Fucue vesiculocus Under Harvesting Regimes in Maine, USA. Bot. Mar. 24:22-38.

007.009 CFIS0073941 Factors Affecting the texture of seafoods

HAMANN D D; IANIER T C; POOD SCIENCE; N CAROLINA STATE UNIVERSITY, RALEIGE, NORTH CAICLINA. 27650. Proj. Noo: NC02111 Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CERS Period: 01 NOV 77 To 30 SEP 82

OBJECTIVES: Inveetigate factors affecting the texture of producte made from mechanically dehoned fish tieeue, collect texture data on several epeciee and commercial handling procedures develop methode for improving texture, and develop products from N. C. coast epecies that have commercial potential.

APPEOACH: Atlantic croaker and other speciee will be etudied to determine the effect of harveeting, handling and processing conditions on protein denaturation and resulting poor texture. Major muscle proteine will be separated into sarcoplaemic protein and individual myofibrillar protein euch as myoein and actin to study their rolee in gel formation, water binding, etc. Enzyme activity during heatiog and resulting protein changes will be determined. Eesulte will be applied to development or improvement of specific products.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. An alkaline protease found in mechanically deboned fieh has been shown to he derived from both muscle tissue and visceral contamination and to cause texture breakdown during thermal proceesing of fish gels. Alkaline protease was partially purified from both muscle and liver tissue (both enzymes being cytoplasmic in nature and heat stable). The muscle protease is a sulfhydryl protease and doee not required Ca + + for ite activity while the liver enzyme(e) is Ca +-+ activated. Several Atlantic fish species have been examined with respect to the textural properties of gele prepared from the waehed and unwashed minces. Processing factors which affect the textural characteristics of fieh gele include processing temperature/time, preesure, method of comminution, additivee (eoy, egg and whey alhumine, various starchee and hydrocolloide), method of forming, and frozen storage. Several simulated shellfish meats have been successfully fabricated based on washed mince (surimi) such as sbrimp, clam strips and scallops. Work is processing to develop appropriate electrophoretic, isoslectric focusing and/or immunoelectrophoretic techniques for the determination of epeciee composition of minced fish and surimi blocks.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- LIN, T.S., SU, H.K. and LANIER, T.C. 1980. Characterization of Fieh Nuecle Proteasee Using Radio-labeled Protein Subtrates. J. Food Sci. 45(4):1036-1039.
- LIN, T.S. and LANIER, T.C. 1980. Properties of an Alkaline Protease from the Skeletal Muscle of Atlantic Croaker. J. Food Biochem. 4:17-28.

007.010 CFIS0075507 DEVELOPMENT OF IMPROVED HANDLING, SMIPPING/STOPAGE AND MARKETING PRACTICES FOR FISHERY PRODUCTS

LANIER T C; FCCD SCIENCE; N CAROLINA STATE UNIVERSITY, RALEIGH, NORTE CAFOLINA: 27650. Proj. No.: NCO2113 Project Type: HATCH Agency iD: CSSS Period: 01 JUL 78 To 30 SEP 83

OEJECTIVES: Describe the factors which contribute to loss of quality in fresh and frozen raw seafoode, develop and test rapid methods of quality assessment and evaluate new handling, packaging, etorage/ebipment and marketing techniques for their potential in improving market life and quality of these products.

APPEOACH: North Carolina seafood species will be etudied to determine how handling, processing and etorage methode may be imposed to minimize quality deterioration due to hacterial and autolytic proceesee. Groes and epecific enzyme assays will be used to identify the source and mode of action of degradative enzyme systems. Various packaging and storage regimes, involving both refrigerator and freezer temperatures, will be tested in combination with various preetorage treatments (eanitizers, antioxidante, etc.) to improve market life of fielery producte.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Freeze thaw handling as a meane of merchandieing prepackaged fish appeare to he feasible from both a technical and marketing etandpoint. Previoue eupermarket sales tests demonstrated the acceptability of chilled fish laheled "previouely-frozen." Vacuum-packaged fish previously frozen for 100 days at -20 degrees C, thawed and held chilled were found to have a ealeable life equal to that of freeh fieh from the same lot stored chilled in an identical manner. Shelf-life etudies of freeh and previously-frozen grey trout are continuing in order to evaluate modified atmosphere packaging, various predips and thorough washing prior to packaging as means of extending the life. Analyses will include: changee in the microbial flora on the surface, changes in gaeeous composition within the package. A second consumer test will compare sales of prepackaged (modified atmosphere) fresh and previously-frozen fleh (eo-laheled) with that of vacuum packaged frozen fieh.

PUHLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD. 007.011 CRIS0067349 FISHERIES EQUIPMENT AND GEAR DEVELOPMENT

MOTTE G A; BILLIER A J; FISHEKIES & MAKINE TECH; UNIVERSITY OF RHODE ISLAND, KINGSTCN, BHCDE ISLAND. 02881. Proj. No.: R100750 Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 75 To 30 JUN 80

CEJECTIVES: Gain an in-depth understanding of the hydrodynamic and mechanical behavior patterns of trawling equipment and gear in its fishing environment. Keep fishermen that are engaged in appropriate operations informed of experimental results and obtain their assistance in providing field trials data.

APPECACH: Develop facilities and equipment capability, both laboratory and shipboard, for the study of fishing gear and its associated equipment. Conduct full-scale instrumented trials on selected components of the total trawl system in order to identify the contribution of component variation to the fishing attitude and performance of the system. Conduct tank tests with scale model of trawls in collaboration with local "highline" skippers. These tests will be conducted by applying known hydrodynamic scaling laws and used as a general gear design medlum.

PRCGRESS: 75/07 TO 79/09. Fishing trawls were tested in several ways using a test tank as well as conducting irstrumented tests at sea in attempts to improve fish catch by improving trawl gear. The research resulted in 1) the development of a towing tank with appropriate instrumentation; 2) the discovery of otterboard physical characteristics which would enable improved design; 3) otterboard design modifications which improved net spreading ability and increased fish catches; 4) establishing techniques fcr evaluating towing capability of fishing vessels associated with trawl gear.

PUBLICATIONS: 75/07 TO 79/09 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERICD.

007.012* CFIS0081987 EQUIPMENT FOE MECHANIZATION OF PRODUCTION OF OVSTEES AND OTHER SHELLFISH

COLLIEF J A; MCLAUGHLIN D M; EVERSOLE A G; AGRI ENGINEERING; CLEMSCN UNIVERSITY, CLEMSCN, SCUTH CAFOLINA. 29631. Proj. No.: SC00457 Project Type: HATCB Agency ID: CSES Period: 01 JUL 80 To 30 SEP 83

OBJECTIVES: Evaluate mechanical equipment for barvesting and transplanting oysters. Conduct environmental impact study of a mechanical barvesting system. Investigate the feasibility of mechanically handling and harvesting hard clams in a tray/raft culture system. Develop equipment for deheading fresh market shrimp.

APPEOACE: Evaluate the efficiency and yield of a mechanical oyster harvester in relation to several different harvest methods. Conduct a two year study to determine perturbations, if any, of mechanical harvesting on the environment and develop, if necessary, practices which would mitigate these pertubations. Develop a mechanized system for bandling and harvesting tray/raft cultured hard clams. Three systems will be investigated for orienting and deheading shrimp from which a commercial machine will be developed.

PEOGRESS: 80/07 TO 80/12. The mechanical oyster harvester was out of the water for repairs and maintenance during this period. Testing should begin in the Spring of 81. Physical properties data on shrimp were obtained and initial design work started for the shrimp deheader. Location of the thickest part of the shrimp and its center of gravity were found. The two parameters are located at different positions along the longitudinal axis of the shrimp and this will he used to generate the necessary force to orient the shrimp for deheading. PUBLICATIONS: 80/07 TC 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS SEPORTED THIS PERIOD.

CRISO068717 DEVELOPMENT AND EVALUATION OF OVSTEE DARVESTING EQUIPMENT AND MARICULTURE SYSTEMS

CCILIER J A; WEBB B K; EVELSOLE A G; AGRI ENGINEERING; CLEMSCN UNIVERSITY, CLEMSCN, SOUTH CAROLINA. 29631. Proj. No.: SC00114 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 75 To 30 SEP 80

OBJECTIVES: Develop and evaluate mechanical equipment for harvesting oysters. Evaluate damage by mechanical harvesting systems to oyster beds, remaining oysters and other marine organisms. Investigate systems for shellfish production including spaming systems, seed stock production and grow-out systems, handling systems and feeding systems.

APPROACE: Physical data of oyster beds will be translated into design constraints to construct an oyster harvester. Field tests will be made for evaluating machine performance and monitoring effects on marine life. Engineering systems for planting shell, harvesting and transplanting seed oysters, materials handling and harvesting schedules will be developed. Computer models will be used for optimization.

PROGRESS: 75/07 TC 80/09. A mechanical oyster harvester has been developed and tested in South Carolina estuaries. An 11.5 meter steel hull house boat was salvaged and modified to carry the oyster harvester. This modification included extending the hull to 14 meters, mounting a winch and boom system to raise the head, counstructing a conveyor system to handle the oysters and mounting three engines on the vessel. The most important consideration in developing a machine to harvest oysters is protection of the fragile shell matrix or bed on which the oysters grow. Therefore, an automatic system to control harvester force exerted on the bottom was developed that can precisely regulate the force exerted on the shell matrix through a varying depth range of 1 to 3 meters. The head can operate on hottom contours with pitch and roll angles of .35 radians. Barvest rates of 20 m 3/br were obtained with damage to the oysters and shell matrix equal to or less that of hand harvesting.

PUBLICATIONS: 75/07 TO 80/09 NO PUBLICATIONS LEPORTED THIS PERIOD.

007.014 CFIS0064807 MICROBIOLOGICAL ASPECTS TO SHELLFISH SAMITATION AND QUALITY

VANDERZANT C; RAY S M; ANIMAL SCIENCE; TEXAS AGM UNIVERSITY, CCLLEGE STATICN, TEXAS. 77843. Proj. No.: TEX06054 Agency ID: CSRS Period: 07 JAN 74 To 30 SEP 80

OBJECTIVES: Determine the level and seasonal distribution of Vibrio parahaemolyticus in freshly harvested oysters, clams and mussels. The effect of processing and handling procedures in wholesale and retail operations on V. parahaemolyticus also will be studied. Data on environmental and water characteristics will be used to examine possible relations between microbiological quality of seafoods and environmental characteristics.

APPROACH: Oysters, clams and mussels from Galveston Bay and waters and sediment from these areas will be examined for microhiological parameters (V. parahaemolyticus, coliforms, fecal coliforms, etc.).

PROGRESS: 74/01 TO 80/01. Vibrio parahaemolyticus is a potential pathogen transmitted to humans by consumption of contaminated seafoods. V. parahaemolyticus was present in lcw concentrations in about 60% of oysters, water and sediment of the Gulf of Mexico. No seasonal distribution of this organism was noted. There was no significant relationship

between levels of V. parahaemolyticus and other bacteriological or environmental parameters. No increases in V. parahaemolyticus concentrations of seafood occurred when good processing practices were applied. Most seafood isolates of V. parahaemolyticus belonged to serotype 05: K17 and differed from typical clinical isolates. Few were hemolytic (Kanagawa-positive). Kanagawa-positive and Kanagawa-negative strains of V. parahaemolyticus were examined for enterotoxigenicity, enteropathogenicity, drug resistance and plasmid DNA content. No significant relationship existed between cultural characteristics and indices of pathogenicity. Only 3 of 31 strains, all patient isolates, contained plasmid DNA with molecular weights of 24 or 60 million daltons.

PUBLICATIONS: 74/01 TO 80/01 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

007.015 CFIS0056948 IMPROVING SUBFACE WATER CONDITIONS TERCUGE CONTROL AND DISPOSAL OF AQUATIC VEGETATION

BRUBN B D; LIVERMORE D F; KCEGEL R G; AGBI ENGINEERING; UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN, MADISON, WISCONSIN. 53706. Proj. No.: WIS05032 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 68 To 30 JUN 78

OBJECTIVES: Increase aquatic vegetation harvesting equipment capacity, reduce harvesting costs, and develop methods and procedures for utilizing aquatic vegetation.

APPEOACB: New theories of harvesting methods are being investigated. Laboratory studies are being made of new types of functional components of harvesting equipment. Prototypes of promising equipment are being constructed and tested in the lake. Processing of aquatic vegetation is being investigated to determine its feeding value after processing and methods of increasing palatability.

PROGRESS: 79/01 TO 79/12. Bigh-speed aquatic plant cutters were built and tested to determine requirements. Two low-capital harvesting systems involving stationary removal equipment and in-water transport of cut vegetation were monitored.

PUBLICATIONS: 79/01 10 79/12

KOEGEL, R.G. and LIVERMORE, D.F. 1979. Feducing Capital Investment in Aquatic Plant Barvesting Systems. Proceedings 2/79, Institute for Environmental Studies, U. of Wis.-Nadison.
LIVERMCRE, D.F. and KOEGEL, R.G. 1979. Mechanical Barvesting of Aquatic Plants: An Assessment of the State of the Art. Proceedings 2/79, Institute for Environmental Studies, U. of Wis.-Madison.

007.016 CRIS0083616 METHODS OF MCDIFIED-ATNOSPHERE PRESERVATION OF REFRIGERATED FRESH FISH

LINDSAY R C; DEIBEL R E; FOOD SCIENCE; UNIVEESITY OF WISCONSIN, MADISON, WISCONSIN. 53706. Proj. No.: WISO5171 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 80 To 31 JUL 82

OBJECTIVES: To investigate the modified-atmosphere packaging of fresh fish with special emphasis on the behavior of Clostridium botulinum Type E in conditions of short-term, high abuse temperatures. To investigate the behavior of C. botulinum Type E in long-term storage under refrigeration conditions with particular reference to the effects and influences of sorbic acid and varying atmospheres. To develop practical and effective methods for assessing the potential shelflife of modified-atmosphere packaged fresh fish.

APPECACE: Fresh and saltwater species of fish will be obtained from commercial sources, and packaged in a range of modified-atmospheres, including carbon dioxide mixtures. Samples will be inoculated with mixed-strain C. botulinum spores and held under a range of conditions, including temperature abuses (60 degree - 50 degree F) up to 72 hours. Toxigenesis will be determined by mouse bioassays. Nethods will be evaluated for assuring safety from C. botulinum, and will include carbon dioxide atmospheres, chemical preservation with potassium sorbate, and other food-approved additives. Microbiological and chemical indicies for quality will be evaluated for application to preserved fish.

8. Processing and Product Development

008.001* FRESHWATER FOOD ANIMALS CRIS0058961

LOVELI R T; MCCCY E W; FISHERIES 6 ALLIED AQUACULTURE; AUBURN UNIVERSITY, AUBURN, ALAEAMA. 36830. Proj. No.: ALA00630 Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 FEB 71 To 30 SEP 81

OFJECTIVES: Evaluate economics of production, processing, and marketing of freshwater food animals. Develop and improve products and processing methods that will enhance marketability and insure quality of cultured freshwater food animals.

APPROACH: Mechanically deboned flesh from various fishes will be evaluated with regard to yield, quality, and storage stability. Waste from fish processing will be evaluated chemically and biclogically, and technology will be developed for economic waste utilization. Methods will be tested for control of geosmin related off-flavor in pond raised fish. Costs and returns associated with production of food fish in various culture systems will be assessed. Identify and evaluate alternative marketing and distribution systems for fish with respect to market expansion, consumer reactions, and optimizing income to producers and processors.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TC 80/12. 59 collections of catfish processing waste (head, skin, viscera) from the major processing plants and representing production ponds from Ala., Miss. and Ark. were analyzed for a-BBC, heptachlor, DDE, DDT, Dieldrin, endrin and togaphene. All samples contained toxaphene. All samples contained toxaphene; the range was 0.06 to 3.6 mg/kg. DDE and DDT was found in most; the range of DDE was 0.01 to 0.56 mg/kg and the range of DDT was 0.01 to 0.58 mg/kg. None of the pesticide concentration in any sample exceeded the levels allowed in human foods, indicating the waste should be safe to use in commercial fish feeds. 35 off-flavored catfish collected from p rocessing plants in Mississippi during April-June 1980 were evaluated by a trained sensory panel for quality and intensity of off-flavor. Only six of the samples had the distinct geosmin flavor which was formerly thought to be the major off-flavor in pond raised catfish. The most prominent flavor was "fecal" (sewage or manure); other were "rancid", "paint", "diesel", and "algae". Extracts from each fish were sent to the Southern Regional Research Center (USDA - A&) for compound identification.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- LOVELL, R.T. 1980. Utilization of Catfish Processing waste. Auburn Univ. Agri. Exp. Sta. Bull. S 21. 19 p.
- LOVELL, R.T. 1980. S-83 Annual Report: Freshwater Food Animals. So. Coop. Ser. Sp. Rep., June, 1980. 20 pp.
- LOVELL, R.T. 1980. Effects of Feeding Full-Fat Soybean Weal on Growth and Flesh Quality in Catfish. Aquaculture 6(3):39.
- LOVELL, E.T. 1980. Nutritional Value of Fish. Aquaculture 6(5) 45.

5

LCVBLL, B. T. 1980. Effects of Feed on Sensory Quality cf Fish. Aquaculture 6(6) 41.

008.002 CRISO066589 PIGNENTS OF NEAT AND FISE PRODUCTS (OFF-COLORS IN TUBA)

EROWN W D; FCOD SCIENCE & TECBNCLOGY; UNIVERSITY OF CALIFOENIA, DAVIS, CALIFCRNIA. 95616. Proj. No.: CA-D*-FST-3011-WH Project Type: BATCB Ageocy ID: CSRS Period: 30 SEP 74 To 30 SEP 79

 $\label{eq:cbjectives: Determine factors isovolved in development of off-colors in tuna fish- \\$

APPROACE: Determine the extent of influence of post-mortem levels of crgaoic phosphate compounds on oxidatioo rate of syoglobin. Evaluate the extent of contribution of oxidatico to the darker colors of some species of fish, especially wheo frozen. Determine if organic peroxides produced during storage of fish are involved io greeoiog reactions with myoglobins. Develop new color stabilizers for canned fish pet food products to replace nitrite in the event the use of nitrite should be bacoed. Develop oew assay for free ribose loasmuch as the latter compound has been shown to be involved in an important deteriorative browning reaction in precooked skipjack tuna; evaluate means of inhibitiog this browolog reaction, e.g. by dipping fish prior to freeziog in inhibitor solution.

PROGRESS: 74/09 TO 79/09. A method was developed for determining relative and absolute concentrations of myoglobin pigment derivatives in meats and fish, both untreated and treated with atmospheres contaiolog carbon monoxide. A study was made to determine the fate of (1 4C) carboo mocoxide in cooked or stored ground beef samples. Following exposure of meat samples to labeled CO, samples were either stored or cooked for varying periods of time. Aqueous and fat extracts were made and the amounts of radioactivity in these factioos and in the residues were determined. Activity is the aqueous fractios was due ectirely to carboxymyoglobic; that in the lipid fraction was iosignificant. During storage, CO was lost with a half-life of about 3 days. Naximum loss from cooked patties was about 85%. The use of low levels of CO may preveot the discoloration noted when red meats are stored in elevated levels of CO(2). Microbiological and color shelf lives of ground beef patties exposed to a 1% carboo mocoxide, 50% carboo dioxide (balance air) atmosphere were significantly increased compared to controls held in air at 2 degrees C. Accompaoying studies were made of the uptake of carbon monoxide by myoglobin in beef patties exposed to a 1% CO atmosphere, and the subsequent loss of carboo monoxide when samples are placed in an air atmosphere under fluorescent illumination. The half-life for the loss of carboo mocoxide from such samples was found to be about 2 days.

PUBLICATIONS: 74/09 TO 79/09

- WATTS, D.A., WOLFE, S.K. and BROWN, W.D. 1978. Fate of (14C) carbon mocoxide io cooked or stored ground beef samples. Journal of Agricultural and Food Chemistry 26(1):210-214.
- WCLFE, S.K., WATTS, D.A. and BROWN, W.D. 1978. Analysis of myoglobin derivatives in meat or fish samples usiog absorption spectrophotometry. Journal of Agricultural and Food Cremistry 26(1): 217-219.
- GEE, D.L. and BROWN, W.D. 1978. Stability of carboxymyoglobin in refrigerated ground beef. Journal of Agricultural and Food Chemistry 26(1):273-274.
- GEE, D.L. and BROWN, W.D. 1578. Extension of shelf life in refrigerated ground beef stored under ao atmosphere contaiolog carboo dioxide aod carbon monoxide. Journal of Agricultural and Food Chemistry 26(1):274-276.

008.003 MARINE FOOD SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY

BROWN W D; FOOD SCIENCE & TECBNCLOGY; UNIVERSITY CF CALIFORNIA, DAVIS, CALIFORNIA. 95616. Proj. No.: CA-D*-FST-3865-B Project Type: BATCE Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 CCT 79 To 30 SEP 84

OEJECTIVES: Provide new or altered techoology resulting in improved quality in seafood products, iocludiog the production of more appealing products for the coosumer and those in which outrient retention is maximized. Provide means of improved and extended distribution of fresh and frozen seafoods via new and alternate methods of handling and processing. Develop new marine food products. Collect basic hinchemical data on protein, ligid and other constituents of aquatic animals.

APPROACB: Apply innovative technological procedures to a variety of seafood products and determine the resulting quality of such products by chemical, microbiological and sensory analyses. Pursue detailed studies of the effects of modified atmosphere storage on seafood products, including investigation of the effectiveness of high levels of carbon dioxide in such systems. Determine structure and properties of mycglobins and other pigments from a variety of aquatic animals; examine lipid composition and oxidation in seafoods; and investigate deleterious chemical and microbiological changes in fish.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TC 80/12. Rockfish fillets and salmon steaks were held in atmospheres cootaining 20% or 40% carboo dioxide. Controls were stored in air. At iotervals of refrigerated storage up to 14 days, samples were removed for seosory, chemical, and microbiological acalyses. Samples held ic air were judged by panelists to have stronger aromas than others held under carbon dioxide at either level. The higher level of carbon dioxide was more effective. Storage under carboo dioxide was effective io reduciog the formation of trimethylamice aod ammonia, aod markedly iohibited microbial growth. Bistamice productioo by Proteus morganii, Proteus vulgaris and Bafoia alvei cultures isolated from spoiled skipjack tuca was measured under twelve environmental conditions. The bighest bistamine concectrations were found at 19 degrees C. and 30 degrees C; on histamine was formed at 1 degrees C. Proteus organisms at first formed high levels of histamine. much of which was subsequently destroyed. The conceptration of histamine in tuca products may depend on ac equilibrium between histamine production and destruction. Amino acid sequeoces of the soluble tryptic peptides of yellowfin tuoa myoglobin, comprising 60% of the total residues, were determined; the amino termious is acetylated.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

RICE, R.H., WATTS, D.A. and BROWN, W.D. 1979. Sequences of the Soluble Tryptic Feptides from Myoglohin of Yellowfin Tuoa (Thunous albacares). Comparative Biochemistry and Physiology 628(4):481-487.

- BROWN, W.D., ALBRIGET, N., WATTS, D.A., BEYER, B., SPRUCE, B. and PRICE, R.J. 1580. Nodified Atmosphere Storage of Rockfish (Sebastres mioiatus) and Silver Salmon (Cncorhynchus kisutch). Journal of Food Science 45(1):93-96.
- ARNCLD, S.H., FRICE, K.J. and BROWN, W.D. 1980. Histamine Formation by Bacteria Isolated from Skipjack Tuna, Katsuwonus pelamis. Eulletin of the Japanese Society of Scieotific Fisheries 46(8):891-995.

008.004 BIOCONVERSION OF CEITIN WASTES

CARROAD P A; FOOD SCIENCE & TECENOLOGY; UNIVERSITY CF CALIFCENIA, DAVIS, CALIFORNIA. 95616. Prcj. No.: CA-D*-FST-3523-B Ageocy ID: CSRS Period: 23 MAY 77 To 30 DEC 81

CRIS0072763

OBJECTIVES: Design and economically analyze a process for the bioconversion of shell fish chitio wartes to single-cell protein. The specific goals are: Select a microorganism which secretes an active extracellular chitinaee system and characterize the kinetics of chitin hydrolysis. Optimize chitinaee production with eelected microorganiem; determine conversion rate of chitin degradation producte into yeast eingle-cell protein; deelgn a process for enzymatic chitin hydrolyeie and bioconversion to protein and economically analyze the proceee with respect to application to the California geafood industry.

APPEOACB: Fermentations will be conducted in a well-stirred instrumented fermentor. Organisme will be compared for extracellular chitinolytic activity on shripm shell and colloidal chitin. Yeasts will be selected on the basis of growth rate and acceptable amino acid distribution for a feed supplement. Conventional engineering and economic principles will be used for the design and feasihility study.

PROGRESS: 80 /01 TO 80/12. A proceee for bioconverstion of shellfieh proceesing chitin waste is heing deeigned. Experimental aepects just completed are determination of optimum conditions for microbial chitinase production and for pretreatment of waste to render the chitin accessible to enzymatic hydrolysis. Enzyme production was studied in shaken flacks and fermentors using response surface methodology to define the temperature and pB which yield highest enzyme activity in solution and the accociated enzyme and cell mass yield factore. Waete pretreatment includee grinding for increase of surface area, alkaline waeh to remove protein, and mild acid treatment to remove carbonate. A computer program for deeign of the fermentation equipment bas been modified for use in this project. With experimental results now available, the complete process of enzyme production, chitin pretreatment and hydrolyeie, and hydrolysate conversion to eingle-cell protein will be designed and analyzed economically.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 YOUNG, N.E., CARROAD, P.A. and BEIL, F.L. 1980. Batimation of Diffueion Coefficients of Proteine. Biotechnology and Bioengineering 22:847-955.

008.005* CRISCO66814 THE USE OF SELECTED AQUATIC ORGANISMS FOR PURPOSES OF AQUACULTURE (FOOD PRODUCTION)

KNIGHT A W; LAND, AIR & WATER RESOURCES; UNIVERSITY CF CALIFCENIA, DAVIS, CALIFCENIA. 95616. Proj. No.: CA-D*-LAW-3350-B Project Type: BATCB Agency ID: CSRS Period: 05 NOV 74 To 30 SEP 80

OBJECTIVES: Determine the tolerancee, growth dynamice, food preference, egg batchability of selected peet organiems. Utilize existing pest organisms such as tadpole shrimp and cladoptora algae for beneficial purposes such as low cost protein ecource.

APPEGACB: Initially information will be obtained relating to the environmental needs of the organisme under coneideration. Later we will manage environmental factors in order to maximize the production of the potential protein material for purposes of either a domestic animal food (i.e., chicken or catfish food) or a protein supplement for humans.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Preparation of manuecripte resulting from our work with the Malaysian prawn (Macrobrachium rosenbergli) continues. These manuecripts focus on physiological aepects of our research and will be submitted to scientific journale in the near future. Research to better understand the laboratory culture of the grase ehrimp (Crangon) is progreesing well. This chrimp is a key food item for striped base and sturgeon. Those culturing the eturgeon in the laboratory have indicated a need for food that is also under culture and therefore readily available to feed fieh. Our research to determine the evironmental needs of the chrimp has increased our capabilities to successfully culture this shripp in the laboratory. Recently we have included the Aelatic clam (Corbicula) in our culture operations. This clam exhibite potential as a filter feeder to remove undeeirable particulate matter from aquaculture systeme. In addition, the clam has demonstrated an

ability to accumulate toxic materials such as heavy metale and organic materials. Clams, it is felt, will serve as excellent sonitoring organisms in aquaculture systems. We are experimenting with methode of placing the clams in aquatic systems and their retrieval for tiesue burden determination.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 STEPBENSON, N.J. and KNIGHT, A.W. 1880. Growth, Respiration and Caloric Content of Larvae of the Prawn Macrobrachium roeenbergii. Comparative Biochemistry and Physiology 66A(3):385-391.

NAGAMINE, C., ENIGET, A.W., NAGAWINE, C., ENIGET, A.W., MAGGENTI, A. AND PAXMAN, G. 1980. Effecte of Androgenic Gland Ablation on Male Primary and Secondary Sexual Characterietics in the Malaysian Prawn. Macrobrachlum rosenbergii with First Evident of Induced

008.006 CRIS0044032 DEVING SEAFOOD FEODUCTS WITH SOLAE ENERGY

DENG J C; BAIRD C D; BERRY R E; UNIVERSITY OF FLCRIDA, GAINESVILLE, FLORIDA. 32601. Proj. No.: 7092-20530-0024(2) COOPERATIVE AGFEE. Agency ID: ARS Period: 09 NOV 77 To 30 JUN 81

OEJECTIVES: Develop and etudy low cost solar dryers for drying seafood and mullet roe. Develop optimum conditions and etudy effecte of collector material and configuration, radiation rate, air flow, on quality of products. Determine need for heat storage and potential energy eavinge.

APPEOACH: Develop dryers designed of simple, inexpensive materials to use direct solar radiation and solar heated air (indirect). Compare natural convection with forced air. Prepare dried mullet roe, minced fieh cake and fish fillets (white and dark flesh). Compare drying of freeh fish and roe, with producte previouely cured with ealt. Compare temparatures and air velocities vs. quality of products. Develop optimum conditions for retention of quality and basic information for developing design and drying system for commercialization.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TO 81/06. Temperatures to dry mullet roe were developed for a direct insolation greenhouse type drier with inside temperatures of 100 to 110°F during winter. During eummer, excessive temperatures were reached. An acceptable product was obtained at 88, 98 and 113°F with dewpoints of 43, 53 and 68°F, but the higher the temperature the more rapid the rate of product browning. From these results one can determine how long and at what moisture content to dry mullet roe before it becomee unacceptable. Feasibility was determined for modifying a flat plate solar collector to reach sufficient temperatures to make an acceptable smoked product without use of supplementary heat. A sufficient temperature (160°F) could be obtained during peak insolation, but an excessively large collector would be required for a commercially ueable amount of smoked mullet.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 81/06 NO PUBLICATIONS BEPORTED THIS PERIOD.

008.007 CRISCO71104 FOCD PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT FROM FLOFIDA UNDERUTILIZED FISH SPECIES

DENG J C: POOD SCIENCE; UNIVERSITY OF FLOBIDA, GAINESVILLB, FLOBIDA. 32601. Proj. No.: FLA-FS-01789 Project Type: BATCB Agency ID: CSRS Period: 13 AUG 76 To 30 JUN 81

OBJECTIVES: Develop new products, minced fish products, intermediate moisture mullet roe, and canned fish; evaluate quality and investigate storage stability of the new producte.

APPBOACB: Several Florida underutilized fish epecies, either alone or mixed, will be investigated to determine the quality and eubsequent storage etablity of minced fieh producte. The improved
method for processing mullet roe and the salt content, water activity and darkening problem related to the internediate molsture mullet roe will be studied. The processing of various canned fish products, the quality and subsequent storage stability of the products will be studied.

FROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Fish patties were prepared from mixing minced light color fish (sheephead) flesh with various concentrations of sodium alginate (NaAlg), tripolyphosphate (TPP), and salt (NaCl). The overall trend indicated that as the NaAlg. level was increased, the breaking force (firmness) decreased. At 0.10% NaAlg. as the NaCl level was increased, it was necessary to decrease the TPP concentration in order to attain the same breaking force. As the NaAlg. level was increased at a constant IPP level, the breaking force increased. At NaAlg. levels 0.10% the trend begins to change so that in some instances it was necessary to increase the TPP to a maximum point and then decrease it in order to maintain the same breaking force. Consequently at a fixed NaAlg. and a constant TPP level, two levels of NaCl would produce the same breaking force. Also, if the NaAlg. and TPP levels remained constant, then an increase in NaCl would first cause a decrease in breaking force and then a slight increase. The trend toward an increase in breaking force became less apparent at the higher NaAlg, levels. Effect of washing temperature on fish muscle proteins in the washing treatment of minced fish mullet was studied.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- HSU, W.H., DENG, J.C. and CORNELL, J.A. 1980. Effect of Salting Time, Dehydration Temperature and Debydration Time on Quality of Intermediate Moisture Mullet Roe. J. Food Sci. 45:102. HSU, W.H. and DENG, J.C. 1980. Processing of Cured
- Mullet Roe. J. Food Sci. 45:97. DENG, J.C. 1981. Effect of Temperatures on Fish Muscle Alkaline, Frotease Interaction and Texture Quality. J. Food Sci. 46:62.
- DENG, J.C. and TOMASZEWSEI, F.T. 1980. Effect of Alginate, Tripolyphosphate and Sodium Chloride on Quality of Minced Fisb Flesh Croaker. Proceedings of Int. Conf. on Fish Sci. and Tech. Aberdeen, Scotland.

008.008 SMCKING OF SEAFOOD AND POULTRY

CRIS0068717

 KOEURGER J A; OBLINGER J L; FCOD SCIENCE; UNIVERSITY

 OF FLORIDA, GAINESVILLE, FLORIDA. 32601.

 Proj. No.: FLA-FS-01763

 Project Type: EATCH

 Agency ID: CSRS

 Period: 01 JUL 76 To 30 JUN 81

OBJECTIVES: Investigate the effects of brining, smoking and storage on the chemical, mocrobial and sensory attributes of selected seafood and poultry products.

AFPECACE: The effects of brine concentration, brining time, smoking times and temperature will be studied as to their effects on quality attributes of selected seafood and poultry products.

PECGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Effects of brine concentration (0-6%), intensity of smoking (1.5 or 3.0 hr), method of cooking (baked, brolled or fried) and frozen storage on the acceptance of cold smoked mullet fillets were determined. A twenty member sensory panel indicated that fillets soaked in 4% brine for 30 min, smoked for 1.5 hr at 48C and deep fat fried were an acceptable product. Frozen storage of the smoked fillets for two weeks or of the whole fish for six weeks prior to smoking had no significant effect on acceptance of the product. Panel members gave the product a "very good" rating and indicated they would purchase it if available.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 KOBUEGEE, J.A. and OTWELL, W.S. 1980. Florida Smokies: A Fried Cold Smoked Fillet Produced From Roe Mullet. Proc. Trop. and Subtrop Fish Conf. 5:54-61. OTWELL, W.S., KCEURGER, J.A. and DEGNER, F.L. 1980. Low-Temperature Smoking Technique Crens Soute for New Fish Products. Food Prod. Develop. 14:16-18.

CFIS0068170

0C8.009 BIOLOGICALLY ACTIVE AMINES IN FOOD

EITENMILLER R R; KCEHLE* P E; FCCD SCIENCE; UNIVERSITY OF GEORGIA, ATHENS, GECRGIA. 30602. Proj. No.: GEOU0514-BM Froject Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 JUL 75 In 30 JUN 80

OBJECTIVES: Determine phenylethylamine concentrations in fermented fonds and quantitate other biologically active amines in foods which have not previously been studied. Study more fully tyramine formation in fermented sausage products and determine factors influencing the formation of tyrosine decarboxylase during sausage production. Study factors leading to histamine formation in fish muscle and identify bistidine decarboxylating microorganisms in the muscle microflora.

APPROACE: Identification and quantitation of amines will be done with ion-exchange techniques, gas chromatography, and TLC. Assay of amino acic decarboxylase activity will be carried out using radiolsotopic techniques. Factors affecting production of amino acid decarboxylases in food products will be studied.

PROGRESS: 75/07 TO 80/06. An assay method based upon high pressure liquid chromatography and paired in chrcmatography was developed for assay of tryptamine, and phenethyl amine in food products. The procedure is more sensitive and faster than most quantitative procedures for biologically active amine analysis. Factors influencing tyramine formation and the presence of tyrosine decarboxylase activity in natural microflora and starter (Pediococcus cerevisiae) fermented sausages were determined. The study indicated that the natural meat microflora developed during the aging of salted meat can develop tyrosine decarbnxylase activity necessary for rapid conversion of tyrosine to tyramine. The use of a started culture such as P. cerevisiae appears to decrease the possibility of development of a microflora during fermentation that would possess both tyrosine decarboxylase activity and proteolytic activity necessary to produce fermented sausages with potentially hazardous tyramine concentration. Histamine formation by Proteus morganil in tuna muscle was studied to determine factors influencing histamine formation in tuna. Inoculated tuna muscle supported high histamine development when stored at ambient temperature (24 degrees) or at 30 degrees C. At these temperatures, histamine development was greater than 500 mg/100 g muscle after 24 hr of storage. A corresponding decrease occurred in free bistidine in the muscle. Little histamine occurred in tuna fish inoculated with P. morganii and stored at 15 degrees C.

PUELICATIONS: 75/07 TO 80/06 NO PUELICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERICE.

008.010 CFIS0082931 LOW-TEMPERATURE STORAGE OF FRESHWATER FRANN, MACROBRACHIUM ROSENBERGII

NIF W; MOY J E; FOOD SCI 6 HUMAN NUTRITION; UNIVERSITY OF HAWAII, HONCLULU, HAWAII. 96822. Frcj. No.: HAW00577-B Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 OCT 80 To 30 SEP 83

OBJECTIVES: Develop appropriate techniques to preserve the quality of ice-chilled N. rosenbergii. The freshwater prawn, N. rosebergii becomes much after three days of ice-chilled storage. The cause(s) of this muchiness are not known.

APPROACH: Preserve the quality of freshwater prawn includes: Neasuring the post-harvest quality changes in N. rosenbergli under ice-chilled condition; characterizing the collagennlytic activity of prawn hepatopancreas and its enzymes; characterizing the proteolytic and collagenolytic microorganisms associated with M. rosenbergii and measuring the effects of food additives on the shelf-life of ice-chilled N. rosenbergii.

PROGRESS: 80/10 TO 80/12. This is a new project concerning the investigation of the causes of mushiness in the freshwater prawn and the effects of food additives on the quality factors of prawn during ice-chilled storage. Data collected to date showed that prawn muscle's of pB, ammonia, soluble protein and indole increased significantly during ice-chilled storage of the whole and deheaded prawns.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/10 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERICD.

008.011 CEIS0071426 BISTAMINE/BONEYCOMBING IN SEIPJACE TUNA

FRANK H A; NIP W; NIP W; FOOD SCIENCE 6 TECHNOLOGY; UNIVERSITY OF BAWAII, BONCLULU, BAWAII. 96822. Proj. No.: HAW00573 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 76 To 30 SEP 81

OBJECTIVES: Develop methodology for measuring decomposition in skipjack tuna (Katsuwnnus pelamis). Learn the corditions of handling causing high histamine and/or honeycombing.

APPEOACH: Suitable analytical methods for histamine, histidine and honeycomb in skipjack will be selected and developed. These are fluorescence, thinlayer and high pressure liquid chromatography. Appropriate samples indicative of methods of handling will be analyzed. These will include times and temperatures.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. A study was completed on the effect of low-temperature (30 to 50 degrees F) incubation on histamine formation, honeycombing and quality deterioration in skipjack tuna. A study was completed on the effect of low-temperature (30 to 50 degrees F) incubation on microbial growth and histidine decarboxylation in skipjack tuna. A study was completed on the quantitative relationship between collagen breakdown and honeycombing in skipjack tuna. A nomograph was prepared to show the relationship of time-temperature-histamine in skipjack tuns under controlled conditions in the 70-100 degrees F range. A paper, "Eacterial bistamine formation in skipjack tuna; " was presented at the annual meeting of the Pacific Pisheries Technologists, March 16-19, 1980, in Astoria, Crgeon. Tuna Research Workshop V was sponsored on December 11-12, 1980, in Honolulu to present a final report on the progress made on this project. A paper "Histamine formation and honeycombing during decomposition of skipjack tuna (Katsuwonus pelamis) at elevated temperatures; " has been submitted for publication in Marine Fisheries Review. Additional manuscripts are being prepared for publication.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

008.012* CRIS0073715 POST-HARVEST HANDLING AND PROCESSING OF MACROBRACHIUM PRAVMS

NIP W; MOY J H; FOOD SCIENCE & TECENOLCGY; UNIVERSITY OF HAWAII, HCNCLULU, HAWAII. 96822. Proj. No.: HAW00576-S Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 77 To 30 SEP 80

OBJECTIVES: Lefine the quality of fresh and cooked prawns in terms of physical, chemical, bacteriological and organoleptic attributes. Assess the effect of various processing techniques (freezing, holding, packaging, storage and thawing on the quality of the frozen prawns. Determine and recommend a set of handling, holding and processing conditions in terms of acceptable quality of frozen prawns for long term storage. APPROACH: Zero-time control samples will be analyzed in terms of texture, pB, trimethylamine, collagen, and salt content, bacterial count and taste score. Prawns will be processed, stored and analyzed for the various quality attributes. Optimum conditions for processing, packaging and storing of frozen prawns will be determined based on the above results.

PROGRESS: 77/07 TO 80/12. Various postharvest handling and freezing procedures for the freshwater prawn, Macrobrachium rosenbergil were tested. Results of the frozen storage stability studies (6 mos) suggested that prawns may be chilled up to 48 hrs. then frozen and still maintain acceptable quality; the quality of prawns held under chilled conditions 48 hrs after thawing was still acceptable; post-blanching chilled storage may not be a practical prefreezing technique for commercial preservation and marketing of frozen prawns; and prawns can be frozen either in air or in brine at -18 degrees C, packaged in polymylar bags with or without vacuum, or frozen in ice-blocks, and still maintain acceptable quality. Effect of purging on quality factors and cost-effectiveness were also tested. No significant difference (p less than or equal to 0.05) was found between the purged prawns and the control in their muscle's pB. ammonia content. soluble/insoluble collagen ratio, and peak height/plateau height ratio. However, the decrease in pH and peak height/plateau height ratio, and the increase in ammonia content and soluble/insoluble collagen with ice-chilled time were highly significant (p less than or equal to 0.01), indicating a gradual quality degradation when stored on ice. Postharvest purging helped to improve the appearance of the prawn but its ccst-effectiveness based on economic feasibility analysis was doubtful.

PUBLICATIONS: 77/07 TO 80/12

NIP, W.E. and MOY, J.B. 1979. Effect of Freezing Methods on the Quality of the Prawn macrobrachium rosenbergii. Proc. of World Maricul. Soc. 10:761-765.

CRIS0066181

008.013 PREFLAVORED CHANNEL CATFISE

CAUL J F; FOOD & NUTRITION; KANSAS STATE UNIVERSITY, MANEATTAN, KANSAS. 66506. Proj. No.: KAN00919 Project Type: STATI

 Proj. No.: KAN00919
 Project Type: STATE

 Agency ID: SAES
 Period: 01 JUL 74 To 30 JUN 78

OBJECTIVES: Explore the effects of conventional home cookery on the flavor of whole channel catfish preflavored with three commercial flavorants (e.g., onion, liquid smoke, garlic) when the treated fish are fresh; have been held in a household refrigerator 2-3 days; have been frozen in a household freezer, stored 1-2 months, then thawed before cooking.

APPROACE: Farm-raised channel catfish, 1/2-1 pound, will be preflavored by adding known quantities of flavorant(s) to their aquarium water. After being dressed and cooked, preflavored catfish and controls will be examined by flavor profile panel. Preflavoring treatments, cookery and examinations will be repeated at least once; at least two concentrations or two exposure times of each flavorant will be used. Research will be reported as a master's thesis.

PECGRESS: 74/06 TC 78/07. Prior work having shown the feasihility of preflavoring channel catfish in laboratory aquariums, experiments were conducted to explore the effects of conventional home cookery on the flavor of whole channel catfish preflavored with a commercially available liquid smoke flavorant. An experienced taste panel found that the flavor was retained in fish stored in home-type refrigerator for 1-3 days or in a commerical freezer up to 10 weeks; the dressed fish, 167-349 grams, were cooked plain by microwave or breaded, by frying. Details are given in Master's Thesis of Jo Karen Clithero, "Preflavoring Channel Catfish, "1975.

PUBLICATIONS: 74/06 TO 78/07

NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

008.014 OFERATING PARAMETERS OF LAGOOUS FOR DISPOSAL OF WTILLIZATION OF DAILY FARM AND PROCESSING PLANT WASTE

GOUGE E E; WHITE C H; DAIRY SCIENCE; LCUISIANA STATE UNIVERSITY, EATON FOUCE, LCUISIANA. 70803. Proj. No.: LAE01955 Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 OCT 77 To 30 SEP 82

OBJECTIVES: Improve scientific guidelines for management of oxidation lagoons through evaluation of the operational characteristics as measured by chemical and bacteriological qualities of the effluents. Determine effect, if any, of including aquatic plants in dairy cattle rations on the properties of milk produced. Evaluate lagooning as a means of whey disposal.

APPEDACH: Plans are to use the existing LSU dairy farm lagoons together with new lagoons to be huilt to measure effects of operational procedures on quality of effluents. Duckweed grown on these ponds will be included in dairy cattle rations and the milk produced will be analyzed to determine effects on composition. The work with whey will be accomplished by use of 2 existing used 200 gal. capacity milk vats for lagoon simulation. Reduced lactose whey will be used for these oxidation studies.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Cbjectives: To study the operating parameters of a mechanically aerated lagoon for disposal of dairy plant wastes. Accomplishments: A mechanically aerated lagoon (182.9 m x 60.9 m x 2.4 m) which was used for disposal of dairy plant wastes was utilized in this study. Lagoon aeration was by the use of four surface aerators. Lagoon samples were taken at depths of .15 m and 1.52 m in five lagoon locations at montbly intervals for fifteen sampling periods. The samples taken at each depth were composited for analyses. Additional samples were taken at a .15 depth at the entrance to a lagoon settling area and from the lagoon effluent. Lagoon sample analyses included BCD, CCD, total suspended solids (TSS), and dissolved oxygen (DO). The average values (mg/L) for BOD, COD, TSS and DO for the .15 m composite sample were 111, 520, 260, and 2.5, respectively and for the 1.52 m composite sample the average values (mg/L) were 119, 589, 328, and 2.3, respectively. The average ECD value (mg/L) for the lagoon effluent was 99. Significance and/or Application: The effluent from the aerated lagoon in this investigation exceeded the permitted BOD daily average (234 lbs.) 9 times in the 15 month period. During one three month period, the daily maximum BOD values were exceeded 7 times. A secondary treatment for the lagoon effluent is needed in order to meet state and federal regulations.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

GEOLSON, J.E. and GOUGE, R.E. 1980. Yeasts that Utilize lactose in Sweet Whey. Ia. Agriculture 23(3):22.

008.015 CFIS0075300 FLAVOR DIFFEIENCES OF MECHANICALLY- AND HAND-PROCESSID CRAB MEATS

EIEDE S L; RUTLEDGE J E; FCCD SCIENCE; LCUISIANA STATE UNIVERSITY, BATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA. 70803. Proj. No.: LAB01981 Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 MAY 78 To 30 APR 82

OBJECTIVES: Study the influence of handling procedure of flavor retention in mechanically-processed crab meat. Asses organopleptic and gross compositional differences Letween hand- and mechanically-processed crab meats. Relate gas chromatographic patterns to flavor scores of crab meats. Asses the composition and importance of the novolatile flavors in crab meats. Develop a method or methods for the flavor enhancement of mechanically-processed crab meat. APPROACH: Hand- and mechanically-picked Blue crab meat will be assessed for organoleptic and chemical differences. Flavor components lost will be characterized using combined gas chromatography and mass spectrometry, amino acid analysis and electrophoresis. Mechanically-picked meats will be treated with flavor enhancers to imporve the flavor.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Isolation and characterization of protein losses resulting from the mechanical processing of Blue crab meat utilizing electrophroesis revealed significant differences in quantity and make-up of the protein fractions. Preliminary data have revealed the loss of the heamolymph with mechanical processing. This appears to be a significant portion of the protein losses. Further work is being undertaken to determine the feasibility of using cooler stressed Blue crabs for mechanical processing of fresh, brine frozen and stressed blue crabs, as well as the electrophoretic patterns of the salt and water extractable proteins, to determine the effects of cooler stress.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

EIEDE, S.L., RUTLEDGE, J.E. and CALLAHAN, C.A. 1980. Flavor Differences in Blue Crah Weats. Scientific Information Bulletin No. 46. Takeda Inc.

EIEDE, S.L., RUTLEDGE, J.E., BENDRY, P.L. and CALLABAN, C.A. 1980. Effects of Mechanical Processing on Crab Meat. Ia Agric. 23:14-17.

008.016* CRIS0072940 FORNULATION OF FOODS FOR AQUATIC ANIMALS OF ECONOMIC INFORTANCE

 MEYERS S F; FOOD SCIENCE; LOUISIANA STATE UNIVERSITY,

 BATON ROUGE, LCUISIANA. 70803.

 Proj. No.: LAB01918

 Project Type: STATE

 Agency ID: SAES

 Period: 01 JUN 77 To 31 DEC 81

OBJECTIVES: Formulation of nutritionally-talanced diets for various stages of shrimp and prawn growth, especially for larval and juvenile development. Included will be species of marine shrimp (Penaeus), freshwater prawn (Nacrohranchium) and crawfish (Procambarus). Use of agricultural and fisheries wastes or hyproducts in least-cost grow-out rations for crustacean aquaculture.

APFROACE: Diets and formulations developed and prepared in the Department of Food Science will be tested in cooperative on-going programs with aquaculturists at various sites in this country. Projected areas of continued investigation will include analyses of attractants in diets to enhance chemoreceptor response, studies of modified starches and waterstability of flake/extruded diets, microbial degradation of cellulosic-fiber substrates and diet development for protein-deficient areas, effect of diet on organoleptic qualities of the cultivated animal crop, and transfer of dietary carotenoid pigment to internal/external parts of the fish or crustacea.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Application of the tropical fish Trichogaster leeri as an assay animal for evaluation of carotenoids and carotenoid-containing dietary ingredients has been demonstrated. Wethods of analyses for measurement of fin and integument sites of accumulation of the main repository pigment have been developed and are being used to assay astaxanthin-rich substrates, such as crawfish wastes, and isolated pigments in flake and extruded formulations for aquatic animals. Oregon Woist Pellet (OMP) diets, fortified with 20% crawfish waste puree, have yielded significant flesh colcration of rainbow trout as well as cobo salmon. Binders used as water stability agents in larval bullfrog (Rana catesbeiana) diets have been evaluated in terms of growth and food conversion as well as features of the hydrocolloids themselves. Levels of solids present and features of the dietary ingredients are related to binder performance. The wide application of alginate products is noted in flake and extruded dietary preparations where loss of water-soluble components is critical. A variety of gums have been

tested as binding-matric agents for adult bullfrogs. Moist and semi-moist dietary preparations have been shown to possess desirable binding characteristics and watsr stabilities for as long as 24 hours. Fseding tests have produced useful information on the fseding response and behavior of bullfrogs.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- MEYERS, S.P., CULLEY JR., D.D., MARSCBALL, D.G. and MARSHALL, G.A. 1980. Evaluation of Binders in Larval Bullfrog Dists. J. Aquariculture 1:20-28.
- FEY, M. and MEYERS, S.P. 1980. Evaluation of Carotenoid-Portified Flake Diets with the Pearl Gorerami Trichogaster leeri. J. Aquariculture 1:15-19.
- MEYERS, S.F. 1980. Water-Stable Extruded Diets and Feeding of Invertebrates. J. Aquariculture 1:44-46.
- LIAO, A. 1980. Pabrication of Amphibian Diets Using Louisiana Shrimp and Crawfish Wastes with Selected Binders. M.S. Thesis. La. State Univ., Baton Rouge. 76 pp.

008.017 Cfis0072943 RECOVERY AND UTILIZATION OF SHRIMP AND CRAWPISE PROCESSING BIPRODUCTS

MEYERS S P; FOOD SCIENCE; LOUISIANA STATE UNIVERSITY, RATON & OUGE, LCUISIANA. 70803. Proj. No.: LABO1917 Froject Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUN 77 To 01 JUN 82

OBJECTIVES: Levelop cooperative studies with the Louisiana shrimp canning industry in waste stream abatement, material recovery and ultimate utilization of protsinaceous "waste" materials in food products. Correlated investigations will include analyses of crawfish processing wastes, especially recovery of food-grade meat for product development.

APPECACE: Initial investigations of shrimp processing operations in the New Orleans area will focus on wasts stream abatement and recovery and use of nutritionally-valuable materials present in discharges and as processed meals. Area of proposed investigation include such aspects as effluent stream flow rates, amounts of dissolved proteins and suspended meat particles in these streams, and composition of the extracted materials. Attention must be given to utilization of extracted materials for fesd and food purposes, evaluation of the effectiveness of these preparations compared with comparable commercially available preparations, and measurement of the effectiveness of particle removal from the sffluent streams expressed ad BOD reduction. Projected studies also involve investigation of the biochamical composition of the blanch stream, including protein levels, specific amino acids, amino sugars, and other potentially nutritionally-valuable components.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Research efforts were directed toward recovery and concentration of astaxanthin pigments from heat-processed body fragments remaining after removal of the tail muscle from Louisiana crawfish. Willions of pounds of this byproduct, comprising over 75% of the crustacean, have been heretofore discarded annually as wastes. Uss of the unsxtracted fresh frozen crawfish meal at a 20% level in the Oregon Noist Pellet (CMP) dist, bas elicited desirable pink flssh coloration in rainbow trout. More than a six-fold increass in pignsnt concentration i.e., from 0.72 to 4.2 mg/g wet weight was recorded for test fish after a 60-day growth period. Large scale tests with pen-reared coho salmon in the Pacific Northwest bays shown comparable results. Pigment concentrations as high as 153 Mug/g substrate, using solvent extraction techniques are noted. An astaxanthir/oil concentrate (151 mg/100 g oil) has been developed by a batch-type system of extraction of crawfish waste with heated soybsan oil. Characteristics of the oil recovery procedure, in terms of sxtraction stages and pigment concentration, suggest a wide application for the material in aquacultural diets in which astaxanthin fortification or supplementation is desirable. Storage studies have demonstrated the bensficial use of antioxidants in maintaining pigment quality.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 BSING, S. 1980. Development of a Shrimp Sausage Product from Gulf Shrimp Cannery Byproduct. M.S. Thesis. LA State Univ., Eaton Rouge. 82 pp.

008.018 CRIS0009816 BANDLING AND PROCESSING OF FISH AND SHELLFISH

RUTLEDGE J E; GRODNER R; RAO E; FOOD SCIENCE & TECHNOLOGY; LOUISIANA STATE UNIVERSITY, EATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA. 70803. Proj. No.: LAB0084S Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 DEC 58 To 01 DEC 81

OBJECTIVES: Perform research on the best methods of harvesting, collscting, processing, packing, preserving, labeling, and distributing fish and shellfish. Work in packing plants to institute good manufacturing practices, quality assurance laboratories, and investigate the critical control points during the manufacture of fishery products. Monitor the microbiological, physical, chemical and organoleptic safety status of Gulf fish and shellfish on a routine basis to protect the consumer and industry.

APPROACE: Study the physical and blochemical mechanisms involved in deterioration of these products so that procedures may be developed to reduce the rate of decomposition and the formation of undesirable compounds in the foods. Rapid methods of testing will be developed to enable the producers and packers to evaluate the products prior to packing, and before the onset of initial spoilage. Tests will include the qualitative and quantitative measurement of pathogenic microorganisms, those that are an index of pollution, ammonia, trimethylamine, lactic acid, volatile acids, sulfhydryl groups, indols, amino N, etc.. for the purposs of augmenting existing objective measurements. The reliability and predictability of the abbreviated tests will be compared to AOAC methods, and the data will be subjected to statistical analyses for sources of sample and technique, and products variation.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Crawfish: The effect of cooking, vacuum packaging and the presence or absence of hepatopancreatic tissue on the development of oxidative rancidity in frozen crawfish were studied. Two-thiobarbituric acid (TEA) values were determined every two months during the course of the study. There was a steady increase in TBA values in all cases with the progress of storage time. Both cooking and the presence of fat (hepatopancreatic tissue) on the tailmeat accelerated the production of malonaldehydss as indicated by the TEA test. Vacuum packaging significantly (p less than 0,01) lowered the TEA values as did the absence of fat. Crabs: The effect of various cooking temperatures and time periods were evaluated in relation to color changes in Blue crabs. These changes ware also compared to the internal body temperatures in the crabs during cooking. The rate of color development was found to be dspendent on time and temperature of exposure. Crabs placed in water at 100 degrees C had a mean "a" value of 15.27 on the Bunter scale after only 30 seconds of exposure. Values on the "a" scale 15 and above were considered typical of the red-orange color of cooked crabs. However, at this time and temperature exposurs the crabs had an internal body temperature on only 16 degrees C thus, still showing effects of refrigerated storage. Longer exposures did not greatly enhance the color. Bence, crabs cooked in boiling water for thirty second appear generally the same as one cooked for sixteen minutes.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- AME, A.S. and RUTLEDGE, J.E. 1980. Oxidative Rancidity in Whole-Glazed Frozen Crawfish. Proceedings of the 50th Annual Tropical and Sub-Tropical Pisheries Technological Conference of the Americas.
- EIMELELCOM, B.B. 1980. Beat Penetration, Shell Color Changes, and Meat Yislds of Crabs, Crawfish, and Shrimp Under Various Cooking Conditions. W.S. Thesis, La. State Univ., Baton Rouge.

008.019 CRIS0082922 EVALUATION OF THE STABILITY AND EDIBLE QUALITY OF FRESH WATEL SERIMP

HWANG D; HCYE ECONCMICS; LOUISIANA STATE UNIVERSITY, BATCN ROUGE, LOUISIANA. 70803. Proj. No.: LAE02131 Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 OCT 80 To 30 SEP 83

CBJECTIVES: In order to evaluate edible quality and stability of fresh water shrimp as compared to marine shrimp, following items will be studied: Compositional data of the fresh water shrimp. How compositional changes are related to the edible quality of the shrimp. How deterioration of the edible quality can be controlled.

APFEGACE: Total lipid, to total free fatty acids and fatty acid composition will be determined for hoth fresh water and marine shrimp. The following parameters will be evaluated as a function of type of storage time: The extent of oxidation of polyunsaturated fatty acids as estimated by TEA value and conjugated diene, acceptability as determined by sensory evaluation.

PROGRESS: 80/10 TO 80/12. Approximately 13.6 kg. of sample (frest water shrimp) were obtained from the LSU aquaculture farm. A portion of sample was immediately extracted by Folch method in order to determine lipid composition of fresh tissues. The rest of sample was vacuum packed and stored at -15C in the Food Science Department for subsequent analysis.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/10 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERICD.

008.020 CFIS0045605 RECOVERY AND CONVERSION OF CATFISE PROCESSING WASTE INTO VALUABLE FEED SUPPLEMENTS

 FREEMAN D W; USDA-ARS SOUTHERN REG RES CENTER, NEW

 OFLEANS, LCUISIANA. 70179.

 Proj. No.: 7102-20532-001

 Project Type: INBOUSE

 Agency ID: AFS

 Period: 29 AUG 79 To 28 AUG 82

OBJECTIVES: Assess, modify and/or develop methods to recover processing waste from catfish farmers/processors and upgrade into valuable and nutritious feed supplements, both moist and dried; characterize and evaluate feed supplements for optimum end uses and assess energy and epuioment requirements for the processes.

APPROACE: Evaluate catfish waste (heads, viscera and skin) in laboratory tests, using a sequence of process steps appropriate for commercially feasible rendering or food processing to convert each type of waste to valuable oil and feed supplements. Characterize chemical composition and properties of each supplement to help determine whether separate processing of each type waste would be heneficial. Apply appropriate processing steps in pilot-scale tests to prepare several alternate by-products from catfish wate in sufficient quantities for evaluation in animal and fish feeds and/or pest foods. Estimate equipment and energy requirements and value-in-use for the varicus potential feed supplements.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Catfish processing waste dehydration techniques were investigated on a pilot-plant scale. Proximate analyses and material balances were established for traditional dry rendering and formic acid-activated silage. In pilot-plant tests, chopped or ground waste (100-lb) was dry rendered (atmospheric) and pressed to yield 26 lh meal (58% protein) and 10 lh oil. Silage samples were successfully concentrated to 52% solids in a jacketed Groen kettle operated under vacuum. Efforts to further dry the concentrate to less than 10% moisture in a vacuum tray dryer were disappointing. Efforts were made to find a substitute enzyme activator. A mixture of phosphoric and acetic acids (1:1) was found hest; however, no substitute has proven as effective as 0.5% formic acid for the fastest rate of autolysis. Samples of concentrated silage were sent to several pet food manufacturers

for informal palatability testing.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- BRYAN, W.L., FREEMAN, D.W. and GkACI, A.V. 1980. Potential Hy-products from Catfish Processing Waste. Proceeding 1979 Miss. Catfish Processors Workshop.
- ERYAN, W.L. and FREEMAN, D.W. 1980. Treatment of Catfleh Processing Waste for Animal or Catflek Feeds. Proceeding the Annual Catfleh Farmers of America Research Workshop.

008.021 CRISO045121
PEELIMINARY COSTS OF CATFISE PROCESSING WASTE
UTILIZATION

 FREEMAN D W; DECOSSAS K W; SPADARO J J; USDA-ARS

 SOUTHERN REG RES CENTER, NEW ORLEANS, LCUISIANA.

 70179.

 Proj. No.: 7102-20530-002
 Project Type: INBCUSE

 Agency ID: ARS
 Period: 06 OCT 78 To 30 SEP 79

OEJECTIVES: Determine rates of waste production and compare the costs of disposal with alternate means of waste utilization for several large catfish processing plants. (TO-1).

APPROACE: Establish field contacts and visit several large processing plants in Arkansas, Wiisslessippi, and Alabama to confirm how these processors dispose of their wastes. Obtain or estimate the costs of such disposal and obtain or estimate the rates of waste production. Prepare preliminary capital investment and processing costs for alternate methods of converting these wastes into usable products.

PROGRESS: 78/10 TO 79/09. Visits were made to three catfish processing plants in the Mississippi Delta and methods of waste disposal were evaluated in two of them. Cffal collection, essentially the same in both plants, consists of automatically conveying the heads, viscera, and skin from the eviscerating table, skinner, and washer to a common discharge, where the mixture is screened from the wastewater and collected in a holding bin. The offal from one plant, 6 million lbs annually, is discharged in bulk into trucks that haul it in 20,000-lb. loadsto a poultry rendering plant where it is blended in limited amounts with chicken waste to produce chicken feed. The renderer pay 1-2 cents/lb for the offal, which is about the cost to the processor for transporting it. The offal from the second plant, 4.5 million lbs. annually, is discharged into reusable 1500-2000-lh. capacity plastic containers, iced, and shipped, 20 containers per refrigerated trailer truck, to a cat food processor. The cat food processor pays 41/2 cents/lb. for the offal at destination, which covers all expenses to the catfish processor (lahor, ice, stationary refrigeration of trailer track during 2-day loading period, and transport costs) and 1/2 cent/lh. profit. A rendering plant of the poultry type is under construction at the third catfish processing plant visited, to which admission was not gained.

PUBLICATIONS: 78/10 TO 79/09 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED TBIS PERIOD.

008.022 HUNAN NUTRITION IMPROVEMENT CRIS0067371

DEBAAS B; SLABYJ B M; BIOCBEMISTEY; UNIVERSITY OF MAINE, ORONO, MAINE. 04469. Proj. No: ME08025 Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 JUL 74 To 30 SEP S3

OBJECTIVES: Improve the nutritional status of people hy appropriate dietary modification. Department of Food Science will process seafoods, i.e., squid, quahog, periwinkle, sardines, clams, oysters, shrimp, lohster. Processing will include canning, freezing, frying and pickling and appropriate samples will be taken to reveal nutritional changes due to processing and storage. Analyses will include proximate composition, mineral content and processing and storage. Aliquot samples will be provided to the

Department of Biochemistry.

APPROACB: The Department of Biochemietry will study the effect of processing on the nutritional value of the proteins by determination of the PER (AOAC) and chemical ecore at several steps in the processing. Diet composition will conform to NE-73 (Revised) protocol. Cooperation with MD (amino acid analyses), NJ (tryptophan) and RI (mineral and cholesterol analysis) amd VT (lysine availability) is planned.

PRCGRESS: 79/10 TO 80/09. The FE and PER of squid mantle protein were determined on raw, blanched, canned in brine, canned in oil, and on the two canned producte after 6 months and after 12 months of storage at room temperature. The FE of raw sould was lower than any of the processed forms and was significantly lower than all of the processed forms (p less than 0.05) except the 0 time canned in oil treatment. The PER of the canned in oil product stored for 6 months and the canned in brine produc stored for 12 months were eignificantly lower than the PER of blanched squid (p lese than 0.05) and the PER of canned in oil product at 0 storage time (p lese than 0.05). Although there was a decline in the PER of the squid canned in oil it was not eignificant. The lowered PEE of the equid canned in oil for 6 months (p less than 0.01) appeare to be an anomaly as the PER after 12 months storage is nearly that of the freshly canned product. Storage of canned squid at room temperature for up to 12 months does not seriously decrease the protein value of the product. No major changes in proximate composition due to storage were noticed in either canned product, although lipid content of the brine packed mantles appeared to decrease and that of the oil pack appeared to increase. Evidence from the analysis of fatty acid compositiion of the lipide indicated that soy bean oil permeated the squid mantle in the oil pack. Mineral composition during storage changed only alightly.

PUBLICATIONS: 79/10 TO 80/09 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

008.023 THE EFFECT OF FROZEN STORAGE ON TEXTURAL QUALITY OF LOBSTER MEAT

SLAFYJ B M; TRUE R B; FOOD SCIENCE; UNIVERSITY OF MAINE, CRONO, MAINE. 04469. Proj. No.: ME08594 Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 OCT 79 To 30 SEP 82

CBJECTIVES: Determine shelf life of blanched lobster meat sealed under vacuum and stored at -18 and -29°C; determine relationship between texture, extractable protein and structural changes (Scanning EW) that are taking place in etored frozen lobeter muscle.

APPECACE: Lobsters will be blanched 70 seconde in 3% brine at 90.5°C. Picked meat as will as entire claw and tail sections will be sealed in cans under vacuum, frozen at -37 C and stored at -18 and -25 C for up to 15 months. At 3 months. At 3 months intervale easplee will be removed, examined for extractable protein, and texture of raw and cooked (15 min in 2% brine) muscle using Warner-Bratzler shear*. Duplicate samples will be prepared by critical point drying or freeze drying for examination with scanning EN. In addition, thin sections will be extracted with chloroform:methanol (2:1) prior to preparation for EM examination. Lipids will be extracted and separated into phospholipids and neutral lipids and their fatty acide determined. Electrophoresis of myofibrillar protein, treated with SDS**, on polyachylaside gel will be performed. Formaldebyde and dimethylamine content will be determined. Sensory evaluation will be restricted to critical experiments. *Shear force measurement, **Sodium-dodecylsulfate-polyacrylamide gel.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Lobster tails sealed with and without vacuum, and held in frozen etorage are now being removed for analyses. PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

008.024 CRIS0069547 SHEAP PROPERTIES OF FROZEN PISE FILLET ELCCES

WHEATON F W: AGRI ENGINEERING: UNIVERSITY CF MARYLAND, COLLEGE PARK, WAEYLAND. 20742. Proj. No.: ND-1-053 Agency ID: CSRS Period: 02 MAR 76 To 30 SEP 80

OBJECTIVES: Determine the shear properties of frozen fish fillet pieces. Determine effect of shearing on conformation of the resulting cut surface.

APPROACH: Frozen fieh blocke will be sawed to sample eize with band saws. By use of an inetrom machine and/or a guillotine cutter the fish sample pieces will be sheared and the force necessary to cut the eamples recorded. Sample thickness, cutting speed, sample temperature when cut, knife geometry, fish muscle fibre direction and possibly fish species will be variables investigated and related to peak force necessary to cut the sample. The conformation of the sheared sample will be investigated to determine the effect shearing action has on squareness of corners and other critical parameters.

PROGRESS: 76/01 TO 80/09. Samplee of frozen cod fillet blocks having different thicknesses and fillet orientatione were cheared using a guillotine shearing device at -12.2 degrees, -17.8 degrees and -23 degrees C. knife bevel angles of 10 degrees, 20 degrees, and 30 degrees and cutting speeds of 2.5, 7.5 and 12.5 cm/sec were used. Peak shearing force, shearing energy and surface damage of front and rear slices were measured. Regression equations were developed to relate individually peak shearing force, shearing energy, and eurface damage for front and rear eurfaces with the variables of temperature, block thicknese, knife bevel angle and knife velocity. Cne set of equations was developed for shearing perpendicular to the muscle filter and one set for ebearing parallel to the muscle fiber. Blocks can be sheared but damage to the sheared piece is unacceptable except for 1.27 cm thick block sheared at -12.2 degrees C using a 10 degrees knife bevel angle. Thus, shearing does not appear to be a feasible method for cutting frozen fish blocks into fish portions, and fieh sticks. An alternative approach should be tried for reducing the fish "sawdust" loss. Product development research could produce a salable product from the "sawdust.

PUELICATIONS: 76/01 TC 80/09 VENKATEAMANI, T.A. 1978. Shear Properites of Frozen Cod Fillet Blocks. W.S. Thesis. University of Maryland, College Park, 137 pp.

008.025 CFIS0069928 WATER QUALITY CHANGES IN OYSTER PROCESSING

 WHEATON F W; INGLING A L; AGEI ENGINEERING;

 UNIVEESITY OF MARYLAND, COLLEGE PAEK, MARYLAND.

 20742.

 Proj. Noo:: MD-ED-052

 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES

 Period: 01 JAN 76 To 30 AUG 80

OBJECTIVES: Compare cleaning efficiency as a function of operating parameters for a spray waching system, a brush washing system and a tumble washing system for oyeter shelletock. Determine water requirements for washing oyster shellstock in a spray washer, a brush waeher and a tumble washer. Determine quality of water discharged from a spray washer, a brush washer and a tumble washer when waching oyeter shellstock, and the extent of treatment required for the effluent to meet discharge guidelines or regulations.

APPECACE: A high pressure spray washer, a rotary brush washer, and a tumbler washer will be used to wash oyster shellstock. Bach will be tested to determine optimum operating conditions and cleaning efficiency. Water use rate and the quality of effluent will be determined for each washer. Effluent quality parameters will be compared with discharge regulations to determine extent of treatment required to meet guidelines.

PROGRESS: 76/01 TO 80/08. Three oyster shellstock washers have been designed, constructed and tested. Testing was done to determine each washer's cleaning efficiency and to determine the quantity and quality of water discharged during washing. The following results have been determined: The spray and brush washer do an acceptable job of washing oyster shellstock. The tumbler severely damages the oyster meats and is unacceptable for commercial operations. The brush washer removes more fouling organisms than does the spray washer. If shellstock must be washed prior to stucking, water requirements and effluent volumes for oyster processing plants will increase. Washer effluent will require only disinfection and, in some cases a reduction in pB, before discharge to meet all EPA and Maryland discharge limitations. Regression equations were developed to relate brush and spray washer cleaning efficiency to water pressure, water flow rate, oyster feed rate and, for the brush washer, brush speed.

- PUBLICATIONS: 76/01 TO 80/08
 - WBEATON, F.W., CBANG, S. and INGLING, A.L. 1979. Effluent Water Quality Discharged From Three Oyster Shellstock Washers. Technical Report 54. Waryland Water Resources Research Center, University of Waryland, College Park.
 - CHANG, S.C. 1879. Evaluation of Three Oyster Shellstock Washers Including Effluent Water Quality. M.S. Thesis. University of Maryland, College Park. 161 pp.
 - WBEATON, F.W. and CBANG, S. 1980. Evaluation of Three Oyster Shellstock Washers. Commercial Fisheries News 13(4):3. Department of Natural Resources, Annapolis, Maryland.
 - WHEATON, F.W. and CBANG, S. 1979. Effluent Water Quality From Three Oyster Washers. Accept. for Publication in Commercial Fisheries News. Department of Natural Resources, Annapolis, Waryland.
 - CHANG, S., WBEATCN, F.W. and INGLING, A.L. 1978. Design, Evaluation and Effluent Water Cuality Analysis of Three Oyster Stellstock Wasbers. Paper No. 7S-5038, American Society of Agricultural Engineers, St. Joseph, Michigan.

008.026 CFIS0082531 ENZYMATIC CONTROL OF QUALITY FACTORS IN MARINE FOODS

HULTIN B 0; COLLEGE CF FCCE & NATUFAL FES.; UNIVERSITY OF MASSACEUSETTS, ANBERST, MASSACEUSETTS. 01002. Proj. No.: MAS00493 Project Type: HATCE Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 CCT &0 To 30 SEP 85

OBJECTIVES: To characterize the enzymes and lipids involved in the membrane lipid oxidation system of fish muscle. To determine the importance of this system in lipid oxidation in stored fish tissue. To determine the mechanism of the inhibitory action of phopholipase on this lipid oxidation. To determine the characteristics of the soluble and inscluble enzyme systems responsible for the conversion of trimethylamine oxide to dimethyoamine and formaldebyde. To determine the effect of temperature on these and other important enzymic systems in marine foods.

APFEOACE: Flan to examine in detail some of the enzyme systems in fish which adversely affect the flavor and textural properties of the material. The major pertubation to be studied is the effect of temperature.

008.027 CEIS0084064 MARUFACTURE CF PROCESSED MEAT AND/OF FISE PECDUCTS WITE UNDERUTILIZED MARINE SPECIES

 BUCK E N; FOOD SCIENCE 6 NUTRITION; UNIVERSITY OF

 MASSACEUSETTS, AMBERST, MASSACEUSETTS. 01002.

 Proj. No.: MAS00510

 Project Type: EATCE

 Agency ID: CSFS

 Period: 01 OCT 81 To 30 SEP 86

OBJECTIVES: Develop the process necessary to produce a hot-dog like product which is acceptabel to consumers using washed, minced and red hake. Determine the feasibility of recovering and re-using protein from fish flesh wash water. Measure the effect of saberizing versus regular skinning on quality of finished product. Develop processes for the manufacture of other products, especially seafood (crab, etc.) type products. Develop the process of hlending surimi with other underutilized species such as squid, or other meats such as chicken, heef or pork.

APPROACE: The entire project is though of as involving several phases of research, the final Phase of which would involve the use of under utilized marine species for the development of analogs for crab, shrimp, and lobster products all of which are becoming increasingly more expensive and less available.

008.028 FUE ANIMAL STUDIES (MINE)

CFIS0055478

AULERICE R J; ANIMAL SCIENCE; MICEIGAN STATE UNIVERSITY, EAST LANSING, MICEIGAN. 48824. Proj. No.: MICLO1035 Agency ID: CSRS Period: 21 AUG 69 To 30 SEP 83

OBJECTIVES: Investigate the use of underutilized species o Great Lakes fish for animal feed. Study the mechanisms of action of PCBs in relation to their toxic effects on reproduction and the cell mediated immune system of mink and ferrets. Continue ongoing studies of the "early kit loss" problem in mink. Determine the significance of the cytoplasmic droplet frequently observed on the tail of sermatozoa from certain mink.

APPEOACE: The performance of mink fed Great Lakes fish and fish products will be evaluated and mmink tissues analyzed the PCBs. ¹⁴C labeled compounds will be used to determine plancental milk transfer of PCBs PBB. A lymphocyte culturing technique will be used to measure the integrity of the animals' immune system. The role of trace minerals, particularly copper, in the "early kit loss" problem will be studied through mink feeding experiments. Winkbreeding trials involving males producing spermatozoa that contain cytoplasmic droplets will be conducted to determine the significance of the droplet on the fertilizing ability of the spermatozoa.

PROGRESS: 80/10 TO 80/12. I. Feeding CuSO(4)(0-800 pps) to natural dark mink did not cause adverse affects in the adult animals and resulted in darker fur. No differences were observed in hematclogic parameters of control and CuSC(4) treated mink, although the higher levels of CuSC(4) supplementation resulted in increased liver copper levels and decreased kit survival. II. Experiments to compare placental and mammary transfer of PCEs and PEEs in mink and European ferrets revealed that PCE Aroclor 1242 crosses the placenta more readily than PBB. Differences in the type of placentation may account for the variation in transplacental exchange of these compounds between mink and ferrets. Considerably greater quantities of both compounds were obtained by the offspring via lactation than by placental transfer. III. Preliminary results of studies pertaining to the renewed use of Great Lakes fish for feeding mink indicate that present PCE levels in most species of fish are such that optimum performance cannot be expected when they are fed to mink for extended periods. IV. A study bas been undertaken to investigate urinary incontinence ("wet belly" disease) in male mink. Observations on affected and normal animals are in progress and urine and blood samples have been collected for analysis. V. Experiments have been initiated to determine the effects of sodium hypochlorite added to the feed or

water on growth and survival of mink. VI.

PUELICATIONS: 80/10 TO 80/12 AULEBICB, J.J. and BINGER, R.E. 1980. Toxicity of the Polychlorinated Bipbenyl Arocler 1016 to Mink. Environm. Res. Lab., Office Res. Develop., US Environm. Protection Agency, Duluth, MN, 24 pp.

BLEAVINS, N.R., AULERICB, R.J. and RINGER, R.K. 1980. Polychlorinated Biphenyls (Aroclors 1016 and 1242): Effects on Survival and Reproduction in Mink and Ferrets. Arch. Environm. Contam. Toxicol. 9:627-635.

THEUERKAUF, D.A. and AULERICE, R.J. 1980. A Bibliography of Mustelids. Part VII: Badgers. Animal Science Dept., Michigan State University, E. Lansing, MI, 35 pp.

BROOKHYSER, K. N. and AULERICB, R.J. 1980. Consumption of Food, Body Weight, Perineal Colour and Level of Progesterone in the Serum of Cyclic Female Chinchillas. J. Endocr. 87:213-219. BLEAVINS, N.E. 1980. The Effects of Two

Polychlorinated Eiphenyl Wixtures (Aroclors 1242 and 1016) on Wink and Fer

008.029* CEIS0065119 RECYCLING WASTES INTO ANIMAL FEEDS

JOHNSON B E; FISHERIES & WILDLIFE; MICBIGAN STATE UNIVERSITY, EAST LANSING, MICEIGAN. 48824. Proj. No.: MICLO3146 Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JAN 74 To 19 FEB 81

OBJECTIVES: Combine dried animal wastes (e.g., poultry wastes) and items from local wastewater ponds into a pellet acceptable for various high yield, low cost fish species grown under intensive culture conditions.

APPEOACH: Microplankton and macrophytes will be mechanically harvested from MSU wastewater ponds. Analyses will be made on these and farm animal wastes for components important in fish diets. These products will be processed and combined to form fishfood pellets. Northern climate fishes with potential for high production at low cost will be fed standard commercial diets and experimental pellets. Growth rates, food conversion rates and fish production will be compared, resulting in maximum dietary use of farm animal wastes and biological production from wastewater ponds.

PROGEESS: 74/03 TO 81/02. Rainbow trout grew well on diets formulated from aquatic plants, crustaceans and poultry wastes. Carp growth on this diet was inversely related to quantities of poultry waste. Water quality in a terminal wastewater lake maintained exceptional growth rates for forage and recreational fish without accumulation of harmful levels of toxic materials in fish. The growth of cage-reared channel catfish was significantly impared by high pB and ammonia concentrations in a terminal wastewater pond.

PUBLICATIONS: 74/03 TO 81/02

- JCHNSON, B.E. and DUGGIELD, D.L. 1980. Utilization of Wastewater for Intensive Fish Culture. Project A-082 Completion Report for Office of Water Research and Technology, U.S. Department of Interior. 34 pp.
 DUFFIELD, D.J. 1979. Cage Culture of Channel
- DUFFIBLD, D.J. 1979. Cage Culture of Channel Catfish, Ictalurus punctatus (Fafineques), in a Tertiary Wastewater Treatment Pond and a Private Pond in Southern Michigan. M.S. Thesis, Mich. State Univ.

KERNS, C.L. and ROELOFS, E.W. 1977. Poultry Wastes in the Diet of Israeli Carp. Bamidgeh 29(4):125-135.

- BABR, T.G., KING, D.L., JOHNSCN, B.E. and KEENS, C.L. 1977. Municipal Wastewater Recycling: Production of Algae and Nacrophytes for Animal Food and Other Uses. Developments in Industrial Microbiology 18:121-134.
- KERNS, C.L. 1976. The Use of Selected Biological Materials Produced by Tertiary Wastewater Treatment Ponds in the Diet of Two Species of Fish. N.S. Thesis, Mich. State Univ., 47 pp.

008.030* CFIS0045643 EVALUATION OF EX-PRODUCTS FROM CATFISE PROCESSING WASTE FOR CATFISE FEED SUPPLEMENTS

WILSON R P; FREEMAN D W; EIOCBEMISTRY; MISSISSIPPI STATE UNIVERSITY, MISSISSIPPI STATE, MISSISSIPPI. 39762.

Proj. No.: 7003-20530-004-A Project Type: COOPERATIVE AGREE. Agency ID: ARS Period: 07 SEP 79 To 30 SEP 81

OFJECTIVES: Evaluate nutritional value fopr channel catfish fingerlings of concentrated protein, bone meal and oil by-products made from catfish processing waste; recommend practical catfish feed formulations based on optimum use of these by products.

APPROACB: Determine protein efficiency ratio, protein digestibility and amino acid availability in aquaria studies with channel catfish finglings fed several concentrated protein by-products made from catfish processing wastes (beads, viscera and skins) in isonitrogenous, isocaloric semi-purified diets. Evajluate possible adverse effects of added catfish oil and/or bone meal prepared from catfish processing waste. Incorporate acceptable by-products into practical commercial-type catfish feeds and evaluate in aquaria feeding tests.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. This is a specific cooperative agreement between SEA and Missiesippi State University to assist the catflish industry in locating suitable uses for by-products made from processing wastes. Initial fingerling feeding tests were made with four by-products as follows: silage with bones, silage without bones, catflish bone meal, and standard menhaden meal (control). Results were disappointing for the silage by-products. Digestible protein for these products was less than 30% apparently due to uncontrolled protein cleavage. Catflish fingerlings cannot utilize short-chain amino acids. Further work to define this problem has been initiated.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO FUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

008.031* CRIS0083555 PRACTICAL FEED FORMULATIONS AND FREDING FRACTICES FOR CATFISE FARMING IN MS

 BUSCB R L; TUCKER C S; ROFINETTE B R; DELTA BFANCE

 EXPERIMENT STA; MISSISSIPPI STATE UNIVERSITY,

 STONEVILLE, MISSISSIPPI. 38776.

 Proj. No.: MIS-0852

 Project Type: GFANT

 Agency ID: CSFS

 Period: 18

 FEB 81 To 28

 FEF 83

OBJECTIVES: Evaluate the practical application of computer derived least cost ration formulations in catfish production ponds; compare experimental rations developed from the most current catfish nutrition information available to a standard commercial ration used throughout the industry; evaluate any effects of peanut meal as a feed ingredient on the shelf life of processed fish; evaluate diet formulation for winter feeding regimes in catfish production ponds.

APPROACB: Experimental rations will be formulated and compared to currently used commercial rations in both summer and winter feeding studies for channel catfish. Research will be conducted witb both fingerling and warket-size channel catfish cultured in.04/ha earthen ponds.

008.032* CRIS0073179 ANALYSIS OF THE MARKET POTENTIAL FOR FEESE WATER AQUACULTURAL PRODUCTS PRODUCED IN NEVADA

GARRETT J R; TAYLCE R L; AGRI & RESOURCE ECCNOMICS; UNIVERSITY OF NEVADA, RENC, NEVADA. 89557. Proj. No.: NEV00270 Agency ID: CSES Project Type: HATCB Period: 01 JUL 77 To 30 SEP 80

OBJECTIVES: Determine the cost and availability of byproduct food stuffs for feeding catfish and shrimp in Nevada. Estimate the demand for catfish, shrimp and plants produced in fresh warm water pcnds. Estimate the marketing margins for fresh water products and estimate marketing constraints placed on fresh water products by the institutional trade.

APPROACE: Availability and costs will be estimated for byproduct feeds which prove feasible as shrimp and catfish food in a large scale pilot production study. Nevada brokerage firms, and if necessary California processing firms, will be surveyed to ascertain the possibility of marketing live shrimp. These firms will also be interviewed to determine existing marketing margins for different types of products handled by these firms. A similar procedure will be followed for catfish and freshwater plants that might be complementary to shrimp and catfish.

PROGRESS: 77/01 TO 80/09. Eudgetary analysis of production costs of freshwater shrimp produced in 10 one-acre plots reflect a cost of \$2.23 per lb. live weight at production levels experienced in the experiment. (About 2,000 lbs. per acre.) Increased feeding levels and other management practices could possibly raise production to 3,000 lbs. or even 4,000 lbs. per acre. Production costs for these levels were estimated to be \$1.60 and \$1.31 per lb., respectively. Four marketing alternatives were considered: Whole live, whole fresh, fresh; headless and frozen headless. Processing costs for the first two alternatives were negligible, but both beadless process required substantial capital investment and operating costs. Costs for processing 20,000 lbs. of live shrimp were \$7.79 for fresh headless and \$7.91 for frozen headless. Thus, at current production levels, total cost of producing fresh headless shrimp would be \$12.15 per lbs. Even doubling the production level to 40,000 lb. would only reduce the total cost per lb. of product to \$6.53--well above the current wholesale price of \$4.50. Production of live or fresh whole fresh-water shrimp does appear to be a viable pursuit for persons with a source of hot water providing they can develop a ready market for the product.

PUBLICATIONS: 77/01 TO 80/09 ONTEAGBANO, C. 1979. Warketing Alternatives of the Grant Walaysian Prawn (Nacrobrachium rosenbergii), M.S. Thesis, University of Nevada-Reno.

008.033 CEIS0081937 NEW FOOD PRODUCTS FROM UNDERUTILIZED FISE SFECIES

MORSE R E; FCCD SCIENCE; RUIGERS UNIVERSITY, NEW BRUNSWICK, NEW JERSEY. 08903. Proj. No.: NJ10410 Agency ID: SAES Period: 10 APR 80 To 09 APR 85

OEJECTIVES: Determine the best estimated of availability of East Coast fish species, e.g. Whiting, Squid, Eutterfish, Eel; study factors which affect their low acceptability; to prepare new food products of much higher, consumer acceptability from underutilized fish species.

APPROACE: Underutilized fish species, Whiting, Squid, Eutterfish and Eels will be examined to determine which factors contribute to low consumer acceptance. Especial emptasis will be given on texture, flavor, aroma and color by using existing chromatographic techniques.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Various conditions and methods to grow the American eel (Anguilla rostrato) were studied. The fish were caught in a glass eel stage (5 cm in length) and grown to a full size (60-70 cm. in length) in tanks. The effect of some environmental factors on growth were studied. Special emphasis was placed on feed composition in relation to fat content and fat composition of a fully grown eel. This is the critical factor in consumer acceptance in smoked eel. PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

008.034 CFIS0066910 RECLAMATION OF PEOTEIN AND FLAVOE MATERIALS FROM CLAM WASE VATER

HOOD L F; ZALL R R; FOOD SCIENCE; CORNELL UNIVERSITY, ITEACA, NEW YOFK. 14853. Proj. No.: NYC-143380 Agency ID: SAES Period: 08 NGV 74 To 30 SEP 81

OEJECTIVES: Convert pollutants from a clam processing facility into profitable food products.

APPROACE: Wash water from the mincing and shredding of clams will be pumped through a pulverizer to mince the tissue pieces. The material will be filtered or clarified to remove the sand. Solids content will be standardized and the produce processed as clam juice. An alternate approach will be to recover the tissue particulates from the wash water and process them as a clam chowder base.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TC 80/12. Fish broth was prepared by combining cleaned yellowtail flounder (Limanda ferruginea) racks with six times their weight of cold tap water, and boiling in a steam jacketed kettle. After cooking, the liquid portion was strained to remove bones. The resultant liquid, called fish broth, was put into cans and retorted. The results of these studies indicate that the racks must be fresh or have been frozen cleaned in order to make a high quality broth. Broth made from racks which had been stored overnight uncleaned in ice developed off odors and flavors during storage. Processing conditions contributed little to the deterioration of the broths. The broth would be used as a food ingredient. Therefore, it was utilized at varying levels in a fish chowder to determine if it could function as a partial or complete fish replacement. An equivalent chowder could be made when half of the fist was replaced by broth. When the broth was used as a total replacement the taste panel scores of the chowders decreased. It was anticipated that the rack residues remaining after broth manufacture would be converted to fish meal. Wineral and amino acid assays were conducted on fish meals made from the rack residues. These meals were of equivalent nutritive quality to a commercial meal.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TC 80/12

BOOD, L.F. and ZALL, R.R. 1580. Recovery and Utilization of Seafood Processing Wastes. In: Advances in Fish Science and Technology Fishing News Books, Ltd. Farnham, England. pp. 355-361.

008.035 CFIS0064528 POTENTIAL OF DIFFEBENT UNDEBUTILIZED SPECIES CF FISE FOR CONVENIENCE FOODS

BAKER R C; REGENSTEIN J M; POULTRY & AVIAN SCIENCES; CORNELL UNIVERSITY, ITBACA, NEW YCRK. 14853. Proj. No.: NYC-157380 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 DEC 78 To 30 SEP 83

OBJECTIVES: To develop nutritious, palatable convenience and economical products from species of fish not explored in the past. To study the factors which affect water holding capacity of fish flesh which is extremely important in functionality, cock-out, texture, juiciness and flavor of new fish products. To study composition of the effect of hones in fish flesh on functionality, flavor and texture of further processed foods.

AFFROACE: Product development will proceed according to the following plan: Brainstrorming for ideas, developing new products, testing the product for optimum consumer satisfaction and storage studies. Five mechanisms will be studied for increasing water holding capacity: pB, ionic strength, specific ionic effects cleavage of actomyosin linkages and calcium and magnesium binding. Bnd deboned fillets, minced fish and fish hones will be studied by measuring variables such as pB, proximate analyses and

representative functional properties.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Experiments on extending shelf life of red hake and salmon were conducted using potassium sorbate in a dip or in storage ice. and/or stored in Barrier Bags (cryovac) with modified atmospheres. Effective treatments were as follows: (1) All potassium sorbate treatments inbibited some TMA-producing baceria; (2) CO(2) in modified atmospheres without ice at 20 or 60% was highly effective in extending shelf life of fresh fish. The greatest effect was obtained with a combination of 1% w/v potassium sorbate ice and an atmosphere of 60% CO(2), with refrigerated storage. Taste panel results indicated no off-flavors or off-odors attributable to treatment after storage of at least 4 weeks, after the fish was received at our lab. A study of the effects of different polyphosphates on the water binding properties of trout muscle showed differences in magnitude and in mechanisms by which the polyphosphates produced these changes. Bexameta- and glass-phosphates have a much greater potential for increasing water binding than pyro- or tripolyphosphate, mostly by a specific anion effect. In contrast, pyro- and tripolyphosphate increased water binding potential mostly through pH increases. Hexameta- and glass-phosphates were less effective for reducing expressible moisture than pyro- or tripolyphosphate, probably because of the inability of the longer chain polyphosphates to interact with the proteins.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- FEY, N.S. 1980. Extending the Shelf Life of Fresh Fish by Fotassium Sorbate and Modified Atmospheres at 0-1 Degrees C. Ph.D. Thesis, Cornell University, Ithaca, NY, 451 pp. JAUREGUI, C.A. 1581. Effect of Polyphosphates on
- JAUREGUI, C.A. 1981. Effect of Polyphosphates on the Water Binding Properties of Muscle Proteins. Ph.D. Thesis, Cornell University, Ithaca, NY, 144 pp.
- BAKER, R.C. and DARFLER, J.M. 1980. Development of Products from Minced Fish: 7. Canned Fish Balls in Tomatc Sauce. New York Sea Grant Bulletin.

008.036 CFIS0083222 EXTENDING THE SHELF-LIFE OF FISH

REGENSTEIN J N; BAKER R C; POULIRY SCIENCE: CORNELL UNIVERSITY, ITHACA, NEW YCFK. 14853. Proj. No.: NYC-157381 Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JAN 81 To 30 SEP 83

OBJECTIVES: To improve the shelf-life of fresh fish particularly underutilized species by modified atmosphere (carbon dioxide), low temperature and/or additives such as potassium morbate, so that thet may be successfully shipped to inland and overseas destinations.

APPROACB: To improve the texture stability of frozen red bake and whiting (underutilized East Coast gadoids), particularly after mincing. Additives and heat treatments will be investigated. To determine if the trimethylamine oxide to dimethylamine and formaldehyde reaction is cold-activated or freeze-activated. To better understand the mechanism by which polyphosphates effect the water retention properties of fish flesh.

008.037 CEIS0063358 USE OF CLAN EY-PRODUCTS

 SHALLENBERGEF R S; FCOD SCIENCE & TECENOLOGY; N Y

 AGRICULTURE EXPT STATICN, GENEVA, NEW YORE. 14456.

 Proj. No:: NYC23343

 Proj. No:: NYC23343

 Agency ID: SAES

 Period: 01 JAN 73 To 31 DEC 80

OBJECTIVES: Explore means by which the surf clam (Spisula sclidissum) digestive tract, a waste product of the clam processing industry, may be utilized, either as food or as a source of enzymes for assisting in the waste disposal problems of plant food processing industries. APPROACH: The digestive tract of the surf clam will be extracted and a screening program for enzyme activities will be executed. Particular attention will be given to the existence of unusual gluconases capable of hydrolyzing glucans which are the major component of the surf clam diet, and also the major component of plant food processing wastes.

PROGRESS: 73/01 TO 80/12. The carbohydrase activities extractable from the significant waste of the sbellfish processing industries have been tabulated and characterized. Wany have promising application elsewhere in the technological community. Potential applications include pretreatment of wastes in plant food processing industries and the brewing industry. One product, laminarinase, is now commercially available through a chemical supply house.

PUBLICATIONS: 73/01 TO 80/12

KERSCENEE, L.E. 1981. Studies on a Beta-D-glucanase in Mollusca. M.S. Thesis, Cornell Univ., Ithaca. 122 pp.

008.038* CRIS0073941 FACTORS AFFECTING THE TEXTURE OF SEAFCODS

HAMANN D D; LANIER T C: FOOD SCIENCE; N CAROLINA STATE UNIVERSITY, RALEIGH, NCRTH CAROLINA. 27650. Proj. No.: NCO2111 Froject Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSES Period: 01 NOV 77 10 30 SEP 82

OEJECTIVES: Investigate factors affecting the texture of products made from mechanically deboned fish tissue, collect texture data on several species and commercial handling procedures develop methods for improving texture, and develop products from N. C. coast species that have commercial potential.

APPROACH: Atlantic croaker and other species will be studied to determine the effect of barvesting, handling and processing conditions on protein denaturation and resulting poor texture. Major muscle proteins will be separated into sarcoplasmic protein and individual myofibrillar protein such as myosin and actin to study their roles in gel formation, water binding, etc. Enzyme activity during heating and resulting protein changes will be determined. Results will be applied to development or improvement of specific products.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. An alkaline protease found in mechanically deboned fish tas been shown to be derived from both muscle tissue and visceral contamination and to cause texture breakdown during thermal processing of fish gels. Alkaline protease was partially purified from both muscle and liver tissue (both enzymes being cytoplasmic in nature and heat stable). The muscle protease is a sulfhydryl protease and does not required Ca + + for its activity while the liver enzyme(s) is Ca +activated. Several Atlantic fish species have been examined with respect to the textural properties of gels prepared from the washed and unwashed minces. Processing factors which affect the textural characteristics of fisb gels include processing temperature/time, pressure, method of comminution, additives (soy, egg and whey albumins, various starches and hydrocolloids), method of forming, and frozen storage. Several simulated shellfish meats have been successfully fabricated based on washed mince (surimi) such as shrimp, clam strips and scallops. Work is processing to develop appropriate electrophoretic, isoelectric focusing and/or immunoelectrophoretic techniques for the determination of species composition of minced fish and surimi blocks.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- LIN, T.S., SU, H.K. and LANIER, T.C. 1980. Characterization of Fish Muscle Proteases Using Radio-labeled Protein Subtrates. J. Food Sci. 45(4):1036-1035.
- LIN, T.S. and LANIER, T.C. 1980. Properties of an Alkaline Protease from the Skeletal Muscle of Atlantic Croaker. J. Food Biochem. 4:17-28.

COS.035* CRISO075507 DEVELOPMENT OF IMPROVED HANDLING, SHIPFING/STORAGE AND MARKETING PRACTICES FOR FISHERY PRODUCTS

LANIER T C; FOOD SCIENCE: N CAFCLINA STATE UNIVERSITY, BALEIGH, NCRIH CAROLINA. 27650. Proj. No.: NCO2113 Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 JUL 78 To 30 SEP 83

OBJECTIVES: Lescribe the factors which contribute to loss of quality in fresh and frozen raw seafoods, develop and test rapid methods of quality assessment and evaluate new handling, packaging, storage/shipment and marketing techniques for their potential in improving market life and quality of these products.

APPROACE: North Carolina seafood species will be studied to determine hcw handling, processing and storage methods may be imposed to minimize quality deterioration due to bacterial and autolytic processes. Gross and specific enzyme assays will be used to identify the source and mode of action of degradative enzyme systems. Various packaging and storage regimes, involving both refrigerator and freezer temperatures, will be tested in combination with various prestorage treatments (sanitizers, antioxidants, etc.) to improve market life of fishery products.

PRCGEESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Freeze thaw bandling as a means of merchandising prepackaged fish appears to be feasible from both a technical and marketing standpoint. Frevious supermarket sales tests demonstrated the acceptability of chilled fish labeled "previously-frozen." Vacuum-packaged fish previously frozen for 100 days at -20 degrees C, thawed and beld chilled were found to have a saleable life equal to that of fresh fish from the same lot stored chilled in an identical manner. Shelf-life studies of fresb and previously-frozen grey trout are continuing in order to evaluate modified atmosphere packaging, various predips and thorough washing prior to packaging as means of extending the life. Analyses will include: changes in the microbial flora on the surface, changes in gaseous composition within the package. A second consumer test will compare sales of prepackaged (modified atmosphere) fresh and previously-frozen fish (so-labeled) with that of vacuum packaged frozen fish.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NC PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

008.040* CRIS0073629 ESTUARINE INVERTEBRATE BEBAVIOR; AN INDEX OF SUBACUTE TOXICITY OF AQUATIC HEEDICIDES

HARTHALMUS G T; ZOCLOGY; N CAFCLINA STATE UNIVERSITY, RALFIGE, NCRTH CAROLINA. 27650. Proj. No.: NCO5397 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 15 JUN 77 To 31 DEC 78

OBJECTIVES: Letermine the chronic, subacute behavioral effects of 2,4-D herbicide on grass shrimp, Palaemonetes pugio Bolthuis; to explore the feasibility of assessing xenobiotic-induced behavioral dysfunctions of aquatic vertebrates and invertebrates by application of behavioral toxicology techniques.

APPROACE: Dosages of 2,4-D which produce no lethality or locomotor dysfunction for 7 days following a 3 day post-collection period will be determined for adults and larvae. Then, the phototactic behavioral reflexes of dark adapted and dosed shrimp will be tested daily in compartmentalized chambers illuminated by a horizontally directed, intensity controlled monochromatic light stimulus with a duration of 5s at 15s intervals for 5 replications. Shrimp in the compartment nearest the light will be designated photo-positive. Swimming speeds of larvae will be determined in Petri dishes by measuring distances traveled per unit time.

PRCGRESS: 77/07 IC 78/12. The effect on adult females, three larval stages, and eggs of the grass shrimp, Palaemonetes pugio, exposed to subacute doses of the herbicide Weedar-64 (registered trademark) (Am. Chem., Inc.), containing 49.3% of the dimethylamine salt of 2,4-dicklorophenoxyacetic acid, was tested. Auxiliary ingredients, mainly water, were assumed to be non-toxic. Alteration of phototaxis was chosen as the indicator of an effect on adults and larvae; egges were examined for percent hatch. Photoactic patterns of larvae and adults receiving 100 ppm Weedar-o4 daily were recorded for 12 days. Positive phototaxis was reduced by 2,4-D in all three larval stages tested. Sensitivity varied with developmental stage (stage 1 was most sensitive). Stage 1 larval responses were altered more by 2.4-d exposure than by aging, but for stages 3 and 7, larval ages influenced phototaxis more than doses. Adults were unaffected. The doses tested did not affect the hatching of eggs.

PUELICATIONS: 77/07 TO 78/12 MOYER, C.A.J. 1978. Effect of the herbicide 2,4-d on the phototactic response of the grass shrimp, Palaemonetes pugio. M. S. Thesis. N. C. State University, Raleigh. 33 p.

008.041 CRIS0031586 UTILIZATION OF LATENT MARINE RESOURCES AND EY-PRODUCTS WASTE

LAW D K; FOOD SCIENCE & TECHNCLCGY; OFFGON STATE UNIVERSITY, CORVALLIS, OFFGON. \$7331. Proj. No.: OFF00831 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 79 To 30 JUN 84

OBJECTIVES: Convert hake, hake waste and other underutilized fish and fish waste into a more useful form by autolytic hydrolysis, oil, bone, and odor removal, concentration, and/or drying.

APPROACH: Conventional heat exchange systems will be compared to scaped surface systems to determine the most effective method for autolytic hydrolysis. Methods for oil, bone, and odor removal necessary to upgrade protein quality will be examined using centrifugal and concentrated and/or dried using commercially applicable procedures that will provide demonstration samples that may be used for marketing and other evaluations.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Conversion of hake to a food quality protein concentrate continues to be the main orientation of this project. Samples of whole hake were digested and deboned. Some of these samples were oil extracted and spray dried, producing an FPC with excellent functionality. An unextracted sample was also spray dried. Fifty pounds of this sample was prepared for salmon nutrition studies. A number of improvements were innovated. These included: (1) the development of a metering system to feed the hopper leading to the heat exchanger, (2) installation of a reaction vessel that permittee continuous flow, (3) development of an extraction and recovery system for the fish oil. It was noted that hake cil could be of two distinct qualities. Those feeding on shrimp appeared to produce a red pigmented oil and those feeding on anchovies an amber yellow cil. Samples of partially deboned and acidified hydrolysate were prepared for feeding trials for the Animal Science Department. A change in the pattern of the Oregon trawl fleet resulted in an increase in catch of the "soft brown" rockfish (Sebastes entomelas). During 1980 approximately 7000 metric tons were landed. This generated more than 4000 metric tons of carcass waste that created a disposal problem. The problem was aggravated by indications that mink did not do well when subjected to this type of feed. This scrap digested well in our system and produced an animal focd grade product with good feed characteristics.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD. 008.042* CRIS0066637 THE TREATMENT AND USE OF WASTE PEODUCTS AND CHEMICALS IN THE DIET OF AQUATIC ANIMALS

SIMPSON & L; LEE T C; CHICHESTEF; FOOD & FESOURCE CHEMISTRY; UNIVERSITY OF FHODE ISLAND, KINGSTON, RHODE ISLAND. 02881. Proj. No:: R100015 Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSES Period: 03 OCT 74 To 30 SEP 80

CBJECTIVES: Feed crab waste δ evaluate it as a feed supplement for trout δ salmon. Experiment with microwave energy as an alternate method of cooking crab sections. Utilization of the waste product will determine the value of the process to the producer. We propose to synthesize epoxy canthaxanthin δ determine the effect of these alkylating agents on trout. Evaluate citrus peels that have been processed as a feed supplement to some aquatic animals.

APPROACH: Diets for trout & salmon have been developed & in some cases commercial rations are available. The materials to be tested will either be adsorbed on prepared diets or incorporated into defined diets. Where the best diet is at present unknown the effect of various test diets will have to be determined by looking at growth rate & the condition of various organs. An attempt will be made to determine the point of deposition of various compounds that are added. Fish necropsy will be performed to determine abnormal effects particularly with the addition of epoxy canthaxanthin. Microwave energy cooking & thawing will be used as an alternative means of processing crab. The waste material from this will be compared with conventionally cooked material.

PROGRESS: 74/10 TO 80/09. The deposition of carotenoid pigments was studied in the freshwater prawn with and without eyestalk ablation. Ablated prawn fed a pigmented diet showed a significant increase in pigmentation over the nonablated controls fed pigmented diets. The major pigment in the flower Adonis aestivalis was proved to be astaxanthin diester. The diester was completely characterized to the SS' chiral form. The whole flower fed to rainbow trout proved to be toxic but an extract showed good pigmentation. Fatty acid analysis proved that the ester is bydrolyzed and resynthesized in the trout skin. Adonis flowers represent the only clant source of the salmon pigment. In an effort to assess the cause of some brine shrimp supporting growth and survival of larval fish, Artemia were contaminated with environmental levels of cischlordane and dieldrin. These Artemia were fed to winter flounder. No mortalities were observed but lower growth was noted. Some increased lipid metabolism was seen and some metabolism of the chlorinated hydrocarbons was suggested.

PUBLICATIONS: 74/10 TO 80/09

- SCHAUBER, P.S., JCHNS, D.W., CLNEY, E.E. and
 SIMPSON, K.L. 1980. Lipid Level, Energy Content and Fatty Acid Composition of Newly Hatched
 Nauplii. In: The Brine Shrimp Artemia. Eds., Persoone, G. et al., Universa Press, Wetteren
 SEIDE L, C.R., ERYZNOWEK, J. and SIMPSON, K.L.
 1980. Amino Acid Composition and Electrophoretic Protein Patterns of Artemia. In: The Brine Shrimp Artemia. Eds. P ersoone, G., et. al., Universa
- Press, Wetteren (Belgium). 2:375-382. SOEJIMA, T., KATAYAMA, T. and SIMPSON, K.L. 1980. Carotenoid Composition of Seven Geographical Strains of Artemia. In: The Brine Shrimp Artemia. Eds. Persoone, et al., Universa Press, Wetteren
- (Belgium). 2:613-622. MCLEAN, S. 1980. Effects of Cis-chlordane and Dieldrin on the Short Food Chain Artemia to Winter Flounder. N.S. Thesis, University of Fhode Island.

008.043 SENSORY 6 NUTRITIONAL EVALUATION OF SEAFOODS

PATEL K; PERCIVAL S; FOOD SCIENCE & TECHNOLOGY; UNIVERSITY OF RHODE ISLAND, KINGSTCN, FHODE ISLAND. 02881. Proj. No.: RI00067 Agency ID: CSES Project Type: HATCH Period: 01 NOV 80 To 30 SEP 83

OEJECTIVES: Assess seafood quality using both objective and sensory methods. Determine the nutrient content as influenced by processing, preparation and storage. Study properties in food systems as influenced by processing, preparation and storage conditions. Use the information to develop new products from underutilized regional resources.

APPROACH: There is much work to be done with assessing seafood quality in terms of acceptability and nutritional values. Additionally, the effects of storage, cooking and processing on the parameters must be determined. An essential component of this work is the formation of a data bank. This is necessary in order to be able to store, organize and retrieve the large volumes of data that will be generated. Procedures include statistical differences and correlation. From this data, a characteristic edible profile and nutritonal value of a species can be outlined.

008.044 CRISO081890 THE USE OF SELECTED MARINE MATERIALS AND EX-PRODUCTS FOR CRETAIN HORTICULTURAL CROPS

KINGMAN A R; BORTICULTURE; CLEMSCN UNIVERSITY, CLEMSON, SOUTH CAROLINA. 29631. Proj. No.: SC00456 Project Type: BATCE Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 JUL 80 To 30 JUN 83

OBJECTIVES: Evaluate the effects of seaweeds, seaweed extracts, fish by-products, such as oyster shells, shimp shells, fish meals and fish emulsions on nutrient availability. Determine the growth regulating properties of selected seawood materials.

APPROACH: All materials used in the research will be chemically analyzed. Rates of application will be determined through greenhouse tests. Crops, including chrysanthemum, geranium, holly, azalea and several vegetables will be grown in the mixtures under standard and reduced commercial fertilizer regimes. Correlations between soil and foliar analyses and accumulated plant dry weights will be made to determine fertilizer utilization under greenhouse and field conditions. Vegetable yield and quality parameters will also be determined. Seaweed extracts will analyzed for plant hormones. Effective and quick purification techniques for use of Gas Liquid Chromatography will be explored. Using seaweeds of known hormone content(s) and reference hormone materials, Applications to plants will be made in the greenhouse. Growth and quality comparisons will be made

PROGRESS: 80/07 TO 80/12. Chemical analysis of coastal SC fish by-products resulted in 9.0, 3.8, .36, anbd 7.2% N, P, K, and Ca, respectively, with several trace elements present. This material will be incorporated into the backfill for Ilex crenata rotundifolia under simulated landscape conditions. Simplification of purification and extraction procedures for gas liquid chromatographic (GLC) analysis of sea plant products has been accomplisted. Identification of several plant growth regulating hormones have resulted. The significance of the research is energy conservation through agricultural use of sea plants and marine by-products, rapid GLC analysis of sea plant products by manufactures, and possible application of the simplified GLC procedure for analysis of an array of natural materials.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/07 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

008.045 CFIS0063667 QUALITY FACTORS FOR FISH AND SHELLFISH STORAGE FINNE G; ANIMAL SCIENCE; TEXAS AGM UNIVERSITY, COLLEGE STATICN, TEXAS. 77843. Proj. No.: TEX06031 Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CERS Period: 01 JUL 74 To 12 NOV 82

OBJECTIVES: To determine the yield after each processing step for both fresh and prefrozen fish. To assess microbiological characteristics of minced flesh as influenced by species, processing steps and raw product quality. to determine chemical properties and frozen storage stability of minced flesh from different species. Freezing finfish. To determine composition of finfish as influenced by season, species, and area of catch. To establish optimum freezing rates and storage temperatures. To evaluate effectiveness of glazes, packaging methods and materials, controlled atmospheres and antioxidants in extending frozen shelf life of Gulf of Wexico finfish.

APPROACE: Deboned fish flesh. Minced flesh from 6 to 8 different species will be produced. Analyze deboned flesh for total protein, fat, ash, moisture, fatty acid composition, total volatile nitrogen, malonaldehyde, soluble protein and ph. Number and types of microorganisms will be determined after each processing step. Using above chemical quality parameters, determine stability of frozen debond flesh over one-year storage period. Freezing of finfish-Using chemical, microbiological and sensory evaluations, determine frozen storage stability of fish packaged five different ways. Evaluate effect of freezing rates and frozen storage temperatures by using different freezing techniques.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Composition, quality and stability during frozen storage of Gulf of Nexico finfish species were investigated. The fish, which were frozen both fresh and after five days on ice, included; spotted trout, black drum, tilefish, flounder, swordfish and red fish. Each species was frozen vacuum packed, in a carbon dioxide atmosphere. water-glazed, over-wrapped with PVC and over-wrapped dressed. All samples were held at two different temperatures during frozen storage. In every case tested, vacuum packed fish was shown to have superior frozen storage stability followed by dressed and glazed fist. For the lean white species (flounder, tilefish, trcut and red fish) little difference between holding at -30 degrees C and -15 degrees C could be observed after one year of frozen storage. For the dark muscle fish however, a holding temperature of -30 degrees C was shown to he superior. Elack drum developed rancidity early except for fish packed in vacuum. Swordfish also developed some rancidity however, the main problem with this species during frozen storage was shown to be loss in water holding capacity and subsequent had texture. All other fish tested were of good quality even after one year of frozen storage. This study will help the Gulf Seafood industry develop frozen finfish products. Melanosis in shrimp is a major problem to the Texas shrimp industry.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- TENHET, V., FINNE, G., NICKELSON, R. and TCLCDAY, D. 1980. Penetration Mechanism and Distribution Gradient of Sodium Tripolyptosphate in Peeled and Deveined Shrimp. Proc. 5th Ann. Trop. and Subtrop. Fisheries Tech.
- TENHET, V., FINNE, G., NICKELSON, E. and TOLOCAY, D. 1980. Determination of Phosphorous in Shrimp Treated with Sodium Tripolyphosphate. Proc. 5th Ann. Trop. and Subtrop. Fisheries Tech. of the American 5:195-204.
- FINNE, G., NICKELSON, R., QUIMBY, A. and CCNNALLY, N. 1980. Minced Fish Flesh from Non-traditional Gulf of Nexico Finfish Species: Yield and Composition. J. Food Sci. 45:1327-1329.

008.046

PROCESSING QUALITY AND PACKAGING FACTORS WHICH AFFECT THE UTILIZATION OF FISE AND SHELLFISH

FINNE G; VANLEEZANT C; ANIMAL SCIENCE; TEXAS A&M UNIVERSITY, COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS. 77843. Proj. No.: TEX06242 Agency ID: CSRS Project Type: HATCH Period: 30 MAY 79 To 29 MAY 82

OBJECTIVES: Evaluate physical parameters that accelerate melanosis, determine precursors of melanosis and enzyme kinetics, evaluate potential inhibitors of melanosis, determine Na-bisulfite decomposition mechanism. Evaluate quality charactaeristics of fish in various gaseous atmospheres controlled initially and and "completely" during refrigerated storage, determine changes in gaseous composition in packages, evaluate spoilage parameters of fish in controlled atmospheres.

APPROACH: Factors related to handling on board will be evaluated, enzymes associated with melanosis will be extracted from shrimp, purified and their activities determined, potential inhibitors tested, head space gases from sulfite treated shrimp will be analyzed. Fish packaged in six gas atmospheres stored at 0-2 and 5-8C for 18 days will be examined for sensory, blochemical and microbiological qualities, cmposition of gases in packages will be analyzed by gas chomatography.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Modified-atmosphere packaging (MAP) of fish using carbon dioxide was shown to be effective in inhibiting the growth of typical gram-negative spoilage organisms. Gram-positive organisms, especially lactobacilli, not normally associated with fish held on ice, were little affected by the modified atmospheres. This selective inhibition of the typical gram-negative speilage organisms, together with the much slower growth rate of gram-positive organisms on fish, results in a significant extension of shelf-life when using CO(2) atmospheres. The seafood industry should benefit from the use of MAP systems with CC(2). The higher initial costs of packaging would certainly be compensated by savings on transportation and handling costs and, most of all, by a significant extension in the shelf-life of the product. Indole levels have recently been used by the Food and Drug Administration as an index of quality in fresh and frozen shrimp. The determination of indole, however, has been performed using sophisticated and expensive instrumentation prohibiting its use as a quality control tool in the seafood industry. A simple method where indole is extracted with light petroleum from trichlovoacetic acid-precipitated shrimp muscle was developed. The extracted indole, soluble in light petroleum, is re-extracted with Ehrlich's reagent and indole in form of a rose indole complex can be determined spectrophotometrically. It is anticipated that this modified method may find its use as a much needed quality control tool in the seafood industry.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TC 80/12

- HANKS, H., NICKELSON, R. and FINNE, G. 1980. Shelf-life Studies on Carbon Dioxide Packaged Finfish from the Gulf of Mexico. J. Food Sci. 45:157-162.
- NICKELSCN, E. and FINNE, G. 1980. Brine Freezing Shrimp. Proc. 5th Ann. Trop. and Subtrop. Fisheries Tech. of the Americas 5:158-164.
- LANNELCNGUE-FAVRE, N. 1980. Storage Characteristics of Freeh Fish Packed in Modified Gas Atmospheres Containing Carhon Dioxide. M.S. Thesis, Texas A and M University, 57 pp.

008.047* CRIS0064807 MICROBIOLOGICAL ASPECTS TO SEELLFISE SANITATION AND QUALITY

VANDERZANT C; RAY S M; ANIMAL SCIENCE; TEXAS A6M UNIVERSITY, CCLLEGE STATICN, TEXAS. 77843. Proj. No.: TEX06054 Agency ID: CSRS Period: 07 JAN 74 To 30 SEP 80

OBJECTIVES: Determine the level and seasonal distribution of Vibrio parahaemolyticus in freshly harvested oysters, clams and mussels. The effect of processing and hancling procedures in wholesale and retail operations on V. parahaemolyticus also will be studied. Data on environmental and water characteristics will be used to examine possible relations between microbiological quality of seafoods and environmental characteristics.

CRIS0071432

APPROACH: Cystere, class and museels from Galveston Bay and waters and sediment from these areas will be examined for microbiological parameters (V. parabasmolyticus, coliforms, fecal coliforms, etc.).

PROGRESS: 74/01 TO 80/01. Vibrio parahaemolyticus is a potential pathogen transmitted to humans by consumption of contaminated seafoods. V. parabaemolyticue was present in low concentrations in about 60% of oysters, water and sediment of the Gulf of Wexico. Nc seasonal distribution of this organism was noted. There was no significant relationship between levels of V. parahaemolyticus and other bacteriological or environmental parameters. No increases in V_{\bullet} parahaemolyticus concentrations of seafood occurred when good processing practicee were applied. Most seafood icolates of V. parabaemolyticue belonged to serotype 05: K17 and differed from typical clinical isolatee. Few were hemolytic (Kanagawa-positive). Kanagawa-positive and Kanagawa-negative strains of V. parahaemolyticus were examined for enterotoxigenicity, enteropathogenicity, drug resistancs and plaemid DNA content. No significant relationship existed between cultural characteristics and indices of pathogenicity. Only 3 of 31 strains, all patient ieolates, contained plasmid DNA with molecular weights of 24 or 60 million daltons.

PUBLICATIONS: 74/01 TO 80/01 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERICD.

008.048* CFIS0083616 METHODS OF MCDIFIED-ATMOSPHERE PRESERVATION OF REFRIGERATED FRESH PISH

LINDSAY R C: DEIBEL R E; FOOD SCIENCE: UNIVERSITY OP WISCCNSIN, MADISON, WISCONSIN. 53706. Proj. No.: WIS05171 Froject Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 80 To 31 JUL 82

OBJECTIVES: To investigate the modified-atmosphere packaging of fresh fish with special emphasis on the behavior of Cloetridium botulinum Type E in conditions of short-term, high abuse temperaturee. To investigate the behavior of C. botulinum Type E in long-term storage under refrigeration conditions with particular reference to the effects and influences of sorbic acid and varying atmospheree. To develop practical and effective methods for assessing the potential shelflife of modified-atmosphere packaged fresh fieh.

APPROACB: Presh and saltwater species of fish will be obtained from commercial cources, and packaged in a range of modified-atmospheres, including carbon dioxide mixtures. Samplee will be inoculated with mixed-strain C. botulinum spores and held under a range of conditions, including temperature abuses (60 degree - 90 degree F) up to 72 hours. Toxigeneeis will be determined by mouse bioassays. Nethods will be evaluated for assuring safety from C. botulinum, and will include carbon dioxide atmospheres, chemical preservation with potassium sorbate, and other food-approved additives. Wicrobiological and chemical indicies for quality will be evaluated for application to preserved fish.

9. Product Quality, Nutritive Value, Consumption

009.001 CFIS0044774 EVALUATION OF PESTICIDE LEVELS IN CATFISE PECCESSING WASTES

LOVELL R T; FREEMAN D W; AUBURN UNIVERSITY, AUBURN, ALABAMA. 36830.

Proj.	No.:	7002-20530-001-4

Agency ID: ARS Per

001-A Project Type: COOPERATIVE AGREE. Period: 18 SEP 78 To 30 SEP 80

OBJECTIVES: Explors pesticide levels in catfish processing wasted by sampling by-products obtained from catfish grown under commercial farm environments. (TO-1).

APPEOACE: Following a literature search, obtain eeparate samples of heade, viscera, and skins from catflieh processing plants located in two separate geographic aree (Mississippi River Delta and southwest Alabama) during the eummer and winter growing seasons. Evaluate these eamples for organochlorine insecticides such as aldrin, DDT and ite analogues, dieldrin and teptachlor and correlate these data to the environmental management factors under which the fieh were cultivated.

PROGRESS: 78/09 TO 80/09. Two channel catfish were collected at plant site from each of 59 farms in Ala., Ark., and Mies. The fish were brought back to the lab at Auburn Univ. and the bead, skin, and viscera were removed as in the commercial processing operation. In 18 of the samples, the three parts were analyzed separately. The distribution of the pecticidee among these three tiseues was conctant; therefore, it was assumed that in the remaining 41 eamples, the 3 tiseues could be composited for analysis. The pesticidee aseayed were a-BBC, heptaclorepoxide, pp'DDE, pp'DDD, dieldrin, endrine, and toxaphene. All eamplee assayed contained lower concentrations of pesticides than FDA action levels for human foods. Of all the pesticides assayed for, toxaphene was found in the higheet amounts. Bowever. only 4 samples exceeded 1 mg toxaphene/kg waste. The FDA action level for this substance is 5 mg/kg. The data provided by this study represent samples from the major catfieh producing areas in the U.S. collected in two separate areas (i.e. Ala. vs. Miss.) through two growing eeaeons. Comparing pesticide values derived from this study with values in food and feed products made from other animal sources, catfish proceesing wastes contain very low levels of pesticidee. Catfish processing wastes can be made into feedstuffs which can safely be blended into liveetock or fish feeds.

PUBLICATIONS: 78/09 TO 80/09 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

009.002* FFESHWATEF POOD ANIMALS CFIS0058961

LOVELL R T; MCCOY E W; FISHERIES 6 ALLIED AQUACULTURE: AUBURN UNIVERSITY, AUFURN, ALAFAMA. 36830. Proj. No.: ALA00630 Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 FEE 71 To 30 SEF 81

OBJECTIVES: Evaluate economics of production, processing, and marketing of freebwater food animals. Develop and improve products and processing methods that will enhance marketability and insure quality of cultured freebwater food animals.

APPEOACH: Mechanically deboned flesh from various fishes will be evaluated with regard to yield, quality, and storage stability. Waste from fish processing will be evaluated chemically and biologically, and technology will be developed for economic waste utilization. Methods will be tested for control of geosmin related off-flavor in pond raised fieh. Coets and returns associated with production of food fish in varioue culture systems will be assessed. Identify and evaluate alternative marketing and distribution systems for fish with respect to market expansion, consumer reactions, and optimizing income to producers and processors.

PEOGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. 59 collections of catfieb processing waste (bead, skin, viecera) from the major processing plants and representing production ponds from Ala., Mies. and Ark. were analyzed for a-BBC, heptachlor, DDE, DDT, Dieldrin, endrin and toxaphene. All samplee contained toxaphene. All samples contained toxaphene; the range was 0.06 to 3.6 mg/kg. DDE and DDT was found in most; the range of DDE was 0.01 to 0.56 mg/kg and the range of DDT was 0.01 to 0.58 mg/kg. None of the pesticide concentration in any sample exceeded the levels allowed in ruman foods, indicating the waste should be safe to use in commercial fish feeds. 35 off-flavored catfish collected frame processing plants in Wississippi during April-June 1980 were evaluated by a trained sensory panel for quality and intensity nf off-flavor. Cnly six of the samples had the distinct weosmin flavor which was formerly thought to be the major nff-flavor was "fecal" (sewage or manure); other were "rancid", "paint", "diesel", and "algae". Extracts from each fish were sent to the Southern Regional Research Center (USDA - AR) for compound identification.

- PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12
 - LOVELL, R.T. 1980. Utilization of Catfish Processing waste. Auburn Univ. Agri. Exp. Sta. Bull. S 21. 19 p.
 - ICVELL, F. 1. 1980. S-83 Annual Report: Freshwater Food Anigals. So. Coop. Ser. Sp. Rep., June, 1980. 20 pp.
 - ICVELL, F. J. 1980. Effects of Feeding Full-Fat Soybean keal on Growth and Flesh Quality in Catfist. Aquaculture 6(3):35. ICVELL, R. J. 198C. Nutritional Value of Fist.
 - Aquaculture 6(5) 45. ICVELL, 5.7. 1980. Effects of Feed on Sensory
 - Quality of Fish. Aquaculture 6(6) 41.

009.003* CFIS0066589 PIGMENTS OF NEAT AND FISE PRODUCTS (OFF-COLCES IN TUNA)

BROWN W D; FCOD SCIENCE & TECENCLOGY; UNIVERSITY CF CALIFOENIA, DAVIS, CALIFOENIA. 95616. Proj. No.: CA-D*-FST-3011-NE Project Type: HATCE Agency ID: CSRS Period: 30 SEP 74 To 30 SEP 79

CEJECTIVES: Determine factors involved in development of off-colors in tuna fish.

APPROACE: Determine the extent of influence of post-morter levels of crganic phosphate compounds on oxidation rate of myoglobin. Evaluate the extent of contribution of oxidation to the darker colors of some species of fish, especially when frozen. Determine if organic peroxides produced during storage of fish are involved in greening reactions with myoglobins. Develop new color stabilizers for canned fish pet food products to replace nitrite in the event the use of nitrite should be banned. Develop new assay for free ribose inasmuch as the latter compound has been shown to be involved in an important deteriorative browning reaction in precocked skipjack tuna; evaluate means of inhibiting this browning reaction, e.g. by dipping fish prior to freezing in inhibitor solution.

PECGRESS: 74/09 TO 79/09. A method was developed for determining relative and absolute concentrations of myoglobin pigment derivatives in meats and fish, both untreated and treated with atmospheres containing carbon monoxide. A study was made to determine the fate of (1 4C) carbon monoxide in cooked or stored ground beef samples. Following exposure of meat samples to labeled CO, samples were either stored or cooked for varying periods of time. Aqueous and fat extracts were made and the amounts of radioactivity in these factions and in the residues were determined. Activity in the aqueous fraction was due entirely to carboxymyoglobin; that in the lipid fraction was insignificant. During storage, CO was lost with a half-life of about 3 days. Maximum loss from cooked patties was about 85%. The use of low levels of CO may prevent the discoloration noted when red meats are stored in elevated levels of CO(2). Microbiological and color shelf lives of ground beef patties exposed to a 1% carbon monoxide; 50% carbon dicaide (balance air) atmosphere were significantly increased compared to controls held in air at 2 degrees C. Accompanying studies were made of the uptake of carbon monoxide hy myoglobin in beef patties exposed to a 1% CO atmosphere, and the subsequent lcss of carbon monoxide when samples are

placed in an air atmosphere under fluorescent illumination. The half-life for the loss of carbon monoxide from such samples was found to be about 2 days.

PUELICATIONS: 74/08 TO 79/09

- WATTS, D.A., WOLFE, S.K. and ERCWN, W.D. 1978. Fate of (14C) carbon monoxide in cooked or stored ground beef samples. Journal of Agricultural and Food Chemistry 26(1):210-214.
- WCLFE, S.K., WATTS, D.A. and BECWN, W.D. 1978. Analysis of myoglobin derivatives in meat or fish samples using absorption spectrophotometry. Journal of Agricultural and Food Chemistry 26(1):217-219.
- GEE, D.I. and BRCWN, W.D. 1978. Stability of carboxymyoglobin in refrigerated ground heef. Journal of Agricultural and Fcod Chemistry 26(1):273-274.
- GEE, D.L. and BROWN, W.D. 1978. Extension of shelf life in refrigerated ground beef stored under an atmosphere containing carbon dioxide and carbon monoxide. Journal of Agricultural and Food Chemistry 26(1):274-276.

CRIS0080190

0C9.004≠ MARINE FOOD SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY

ERCWN W D; FOOD SCIENCE 6 TECHNCLCGY; UNIVERSITY CF CALIFORNIA, DAVIS, CALIFORNIA. 95616. Proj. No.: CA-D*-FST-3865-B Project Type: BATCH Agency ID: CSFS Period: 01 CCT 79 To 30 SEP 84

CEJECTIVES: Provide new or altered technology resulting in improved quality in seafood products, including the production of more appealing products for the consumer and those in which nutrient retention is maximized. Provide means of improved and extended distribution of fresh and frczen seafoods via new and alternate methods of handling and processing. Develop new marine food products. Collect basic biochemical data on protein, lipid and other constituents of aquatic animals.

APPECACE: Apply innovative technological procedures to a variety of seafood products and determine the resulting quality of such products hy chemical, microhiological and sensory analyses. Pursue detailed studies of the effects of modified atmosphere storage on seafood products, including investigation of the effectiveness of high levels of carbon dioxide in such systems. Determine structure and properties of myoglohins and other pigments from a variety of aquatic animals; examine lipid composition and oxidation in seafoods; and investigate deleterious chemical and microbiological changes in fish.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Rockfist fillets and salmon steaks were held in atmospheres containing 20% or 40% carbon dioxide. Controls were stored in air. At intervals of refrigerated storage up to 14 days, samples were removed for sensory, chemical, and microbiological analyses. Samples held in air were judged by panelists to have stronger aromas than others held under carbon dioxide at either level. The higher level of carbon dioxide was more effective. Storage under carbon dioxide was effective in reducing the formation of trimethylamine and ammonia, and markedly inhibited microbial growth. Histamine production by Proteus morganil, Proteus vulgaris and Hafnia alvei cultures isolated from spoiled skipjack tuna was measured under twelve environmental conditions. The highest histamine concentrations were found at 19 degrees C. and 30 degrees C; no histamine was formed at 1 degrees C. Proteus organisms at first formed high levels of histamine, such of which was subsequently destroyed. The concentration of histamine in tuna products may depend on an equilibrium between histamine production and destruction. Amino acid sequences of the soluble tryptic peptides of yellowfin tuna myoglobin, comprising 60% of the total residues, were determined; the amino terminus is acetylated.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- FICE, R.B., WATTS, D.A. and BECWN, W.D. 1979. Sequences of the Soluble Tryptic Peptides from Myoglobio of Yellowfin Tuna (Thunnus albacares). Comparative Bicchemistry and Physiology 628(4):481-487.
- BFOWN, W.D., ALBRIGBI, M., WATTS, D.A., BEYER, B., SPRUCE, B. and PRICE, k.J. 1980. Modified Atmosphere Storage of Rockfish (Sebastres miniatus) and Silver Salmon (Oncortynchus kisutch). Journal of Food Science 45(1):93-96.
- KISUTCH). Journal of rood science 45(1).53-56. ARNOLD, S.B., PRICE, R.J. and BROWN, W.D. 1880. Bistamine Formation by Bacteria Isolated from Skipjack Tuna, Katsuwonus pelamis. Bulletin of the Japanese Society of Scientific Fisheries 46(8):991-995.

009.005* CFIS0064485 DIETARY FACTORS IN WHITE FISH MEAL RESPONSIBLE POP CATARACT FORMATION IN TROUT

AZARI P; BIOCHEMISTRY; COLCRADO STATE UNIVERSITY, FORT COLLINS, COLORADO. 80523. Proj. No.: CCL00032 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 73 To 30 JUN 80

OBJECTIVES: Investigate some of the nutritional factors in white fish meal responsible for growth retardation and high iocidence of cataract in trout. Modify the white fish meal by addition of necessary factors or deletion of injurious substances so that it could be effectively used as a supplement to trout feed.

APPROACE: Feeding experiments: Long-range feeding of trout on a complete white fish feed will be performed in order to determine the incidence and time factor involved in the formation of cataract. The effect of lipid-free and heavy-metal-free diets will also be studied. Organic solveots will be used to extract lipid components, and specific chelating agents will be employed to remove heavy elements. The compositional analysis of white fish meal will be aimed at determining the amino acid content of proteins, free and bound carbohydrates and heavy trace elements. Automated amino acid analysis, gas chromatography and atomic absorption procedures will be used, respectively to accomplish these. Compositional analysis of lens proteins from normal and cataractous fish will be done after solubilization and separation of lens proteins by conventional procedures, followed by acid bydrolysis or proteins to liberate amino acids. The levels of cysteine, cystine and tryptophao will be particularly of interest.

PROGRESS: 79/01 TO 79/12. Inclusion of white fish meal at a 20% level into the trout diet was found to cause cataract (67% at 140 days) and higher incidence of mortality (48%) as compared to herring-meal diet. No significant difference in the amino acid composition was found between herring and white fish meals. Fortification of the white-fish diet with tryptophan, tistidice, tyrosine, phenylalainine, cystine, lysice or combination of all showed no significant decrease in the incideoce of cataract. Fortification of diet with vitamins, A, D, E, B(12) or niacin did oot alleviate the problem. Wineral analysis of the white fish and herring meals revealed significantly lower content of Fe, Zn, Se and Mn and a higher content of Ca and P for the white-fish, as compared to terring meal. Incorporation of commercially available mineral mix (protein-mineral chelates) into the white fish diet at 5-10% levels abolished the incidence of cataract and reduced the mortality by 90%. The ratio of calcium to abailable phosphate was found to be approximately 1.5 times higher for white-fish diet as compared to herring. Inclusion of additional phosphate into the white-fish diet to produce a Ca/P ratio close that of herring diet, reduced the incidence of cataract to 1%. The Na-K ATPase activity of cataractous lens was decreased by about 50%, as compared to normal lens. Fortification of white-fish diet with the mineral mix caused an increase of Na-KATPase activity to 84% of the oormal diet.

PUBLICATIONS: 79/01 TO 79/12 NO PUBLICATIONS FEPORTED THIS PERIOD.

009.006* CFIS0071104 FOOD PRODUCT DEVELCPMENT PROM FLOFIMA UNDERUTILIZED FISH SPECIES

DENG J C; FOOD SCIENCE; UNIVERSITY OF FICRIDA, GAINESVILLE, FICKIDA. 32601. Proj. No.: FLA-FS-01789 Agency ID: CSRS Period: 13 AUG 76 To 30 JUN 81

OBJECTIVES: Develop new products, minced fish products, intermediate moisture mullet roe, and canned fish; evaluate quality and investigate storage stability of the new products.

APPROACB: Several Florida underutilized fish species, either alone or mixed, will be investigated to determine the quality and subsequent storage stability of minced fish products. The improved method for processing mullet roe and the salt content, water activity and darkening problem related to the intermediate moisture mullet roe will be studied. The processing of various canned fish products, the quality and subsequent storage stability of the products will be studied.

PEOGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Fish pattles were prepared from mixlog minced light color fish (sheephead) flesh with various concentrations of sodium alginate (NaAlg), tripolyphosphate (TPP), and salt (NaCl). The overall trend indicated that as the NaAlg. level was increased, the breaking force (firmness) decreased. At 0.10% NaAlg. as the NaCl level was increased, it was necessary to decrease the TPP concentration in order to attain the same breaking force. As the NaAlg. level was increased at a constant TPP level, the breaking force increased. At NaAlg. levels 0.10% the trend begins to change so that in some instances it was necessary to increase the TPP to a maximum point and then decrease it in order to maintain the same breaking force. Consequently at a fixed NaAlg. and a constant TPP level, two levels of NaCl would produce the same breaking force. Also, if the NaAlg. and TPP levels remained constant, theo an increase in NaCl would first cause a decrease in breaking force and then a slight iocrease. The trend toward an increase in breaking force became less apparent at the higher NaAlg. levels. Effect of washing temperature on fish muscle proteins in the washing treatment of minced fish mullet was studied.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- HSU, W.H., DENG, J.C. and CORNELL, J.A. 1980. Effect of Salting Time, Dehydration Temperature and Dehydration Time on Quality of Intermediate Moisture Mullet Roe. J. Food Sci. 45:102. HSU, W.E. and DENG, J.C. 1980. Proceeding of Cured
- Mullet Roe. J. Pood Sci. 45:97. DENG, J.C. 1981. Effect of Temperatures on Fish
- Muscle Alkaline, Protease Interaction and Texture Quality. J. Food Sci. 46:62.
- DENG, J.C. and TCMASZEWSKI, F.T. 1980. Effect of Alginate, Tripolyphosphate and Sodium Chloride on Quality of Minced Fisb Flesh Croaker. Proceedings of Int. Conf. on Fish Sci. and Tech. Aberdeen, Scotland.

009.007* Smoking of Seafood and Poultry

CRIS0069717

KOBURGER J A; OBLINGER J L; FCOD SCIENCE; UNIVERSITY OF FLORIDA, GAINESVILLE, FLORIDA. 22601. Proj. No.: FLA-FS-01763 Project Type: BATCE Agency ID: CSES Period: 01 JUL 76 To 30 JUN 81

OBJECTIVES: Investigate the effects of hrining, smoking and storage on the chemical, mocrobial and sensory attributes of selected seafood and poultry products.

APPROACE: The effects of brine concentration, brining time, smoking times and temperature will be studied as to their effects on quality attributes of selected seafood and poultry products. PECGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Effects of brine concentration (0-6%), intensity of smoking (1.5 or 3.0 hr), method of cooking (baked, hrolled or fried) and frozen storage on the acceptance of cold smoked mullet fillets were determined. A twenty member sensory panel indicated that fillets soaked in 4% brine for 30 min, smoked for 1.5 br at 48C and deep fat fried were an acceptable product. Frozen storage of the smoked fillets for two weeks or of the whole fish for six weeks prior to smoking had no significant effect on acceptance of the product. Panel members gave the product a "very good" rating and indicated they would purchase it if available.

- PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12
 - KOBURGER, J.A. and OTWELL, W.S. 1980. Florida Smckies: A Fried Cold Smoked Fillet Produced From Roe Mullet. Proc. Trop. and Subtrop Fish Conf. 5:54-61.
 - CTWELL, W. S., KOBURGER, J.A. and DEGNER, R.L. 1980. Low-Temperature Smoking Technique Cpens Foute for New Fish Products. Food Prod. Develop. 14:16-18.

009.008 CFIS0068075 ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS AFFECTING SUBVIVAL OF TBBBMALLY-INJURED EACTERIA FOUND ON FISBERY PRODUCTS

BEUCHAT L &; FCOD SCIENCE; GEORGIA AGRIC EXPT STATION, EXPERIMENT, GEORGIA. 30212. Proj. No.: GEO01209 Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 JUL 75 To 30 DEC 80

OBJECTIVES: Construct an instrument for monitoring the effects of rates of chilling and freezing on lethality to bacteria; evaluate methodology for isolation and enumeration of Vibrio parahaemolyticus with regard to suitability of procedures for the resuscitation of thermally (heat and cold) stressed cells; formulate and evaluate new culture media for the support of thermally stressed V. parahaemolyticus; study the effects of natural (shellfisb) environments versus laboratory formulations on the survival and injury of thermally shocked bacteria associated with fishery products.

APPROACB: An instrument will be built with the capacity to accurately and precisely chill or freeze samples of bacteria at selected rates and temperature extremes. Culturing media recommended for enrichment and isolation of V. parahaemolyticus will be examined for their usefulness to resuscitate thermally injured cells. Biffects of chemicals on rates and extent of death of fish spoilage bacteria will be evaluated.

PRCGRESS: 80/07 TO 80/12. No progress report this period.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/07 TO 80/12

- BEUCHAT, L.R. 1980. Inhibitory Action of Potassium Sorbate, Sodium Benzoate, and Sucrose and Glycerol Esters of Fatty Acids AgaInst Vibrio parahaemclyticus, (Abstr.). World Congr., Foodborne Infections and Intoxications, Berlin, F.R.G.
- MCCN, N.J., BEUCHAT, L.R. and HAYS, E.R. 1880. Evaluation of lactic Eacteria for Extending the Shelf Life of Shrimp, (Abstr.). Prog. 40th Annu. Mtg. IFT, New Orleans, 8-11 June, p. 150.
- NAKATAWA, T.O.W. and BEUCBAT, L.F. 1980. Application of Microwaves to Extend the Shelf Life of Fresh Stored on Ice, (Abstr.). Sou. Assoc. Agric. Sci. 3-6 Feb., Bot Springs, AR., 17:7-8.

009.009 CFIS0071211 TEE OXIDATIVE DETEDIORATION OF LIPIDS IN MECHANICALLY DEECNED POULTRY AND FISH

LILLARD D A; TOLEDO R T; FCOD SCIENCE; UNIVEFSITY CF GEORGIA, ATBENS, GEORGIA. 30602. Proj. No.: GEO00586 Project Type: BATCB Agency ID: CSRS Period: 27 AUG 76 To 26 AUG 83 OBJECTIVES: Determine the role of hemoproteins, unsaturated lipids, free fatty acids, and free amino acids on the rate and mechanism of lipid oxidation in mechanically deboned fish and poultry meat. Determine the significance of the bone marrow of fish and poultry as a source of catalysts of lipid oxidation. Characterize the antioxidant component in shrimp and determine its use in mechanically deboned products. Develop methods to prevent or delay lipid deterioration in mechanically deboned products.

APPROACE: Mechanically deboned fish and poultry will be fractionated and the role of each component in lipid oxidation will be determined using a rapid oxygen uptake procedure. The constituents of bone marrow of fisb and poultry will be characterized and the importance of the bone marrow as a source of prooxidants will be determined. Various approaches to prevent or delay oxidation of these products will include the removal of prooxidants, the addition of compounds to inactivate the prooxidants or the use of antioxidants. The initial screening of these methods will be conducted on model systems and the most promising treatments will be used on mechanically deboned products to determine their industrial use The reported antioxidant component in shrimp will be isolated, identified, and used as one of the antioxidant treatments.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. An investigation was initiated to determine the effects of antioxidants. storage temperature, packaging conditions and type of bird on the oxidative stability of freezed-dried poultry. Freshly slaughtered broilers and spent hens were band deboned and the debone meat was mixed and ground after the addition of 2% salt and either BBT, BBA or no antioxidant. The ground meat was studded into cellulose casings and cooked in a water bath until an internal temperature of 77 degrees C was reached. After cooling, the cooked loaves were cut into cubes (1 x 1 x 2.5 cm) and frozen in a blast freezer at -30 degrees C. The cubed meat was freeze dried in two batches with nitrogen being used to release the vacuum on one batch while air was used on the second hatch. The meat cubes were vacuum packaged with a nitrogen flush being used on the nitrogen treated samples. Samples were stored at 25 degrees and 50 degrees C and analyzed at 0, 4, 8, 12, and 24 weeks for TBA reagents, total values and browning index. The results indicated that TBA values are not very reliable when measuring oxidative rancidity in freeze-dried chicken. TBA numbers increased to a maximum value then decreased as the storage time continued. Antioxidants, BBT, and EBA, reduced the rate of increase in TBA values and maximum TBA values were reached after a longer storage period. Total carbonyl values also increased as the freeze dried samples were stored. Antioxidants had very little effect on the rate of carbonyl formation.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 ROGERS, T.L. 1980. Isolaticn and Characterization

of Natural Antioxidants in Shrimp Processing Waste. M.S. Thesis, University of Georgia Library, Athens, Georgia. p. 75.

009.010* CR1S0071426 BISTANINE/BONEYCONBING IN SKIFJACK TUNA

FRANK B A; NIP W; NIP W; FOOD SCIENCE 6 TECBNOLOGY; UNIVERSITY OF HAWAII, HONOLULU, BAWAII. 96822. Proj. No.: HAW00573 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 76 To 30 SEP 81

OBJECTIVES: Develop methodology for measuring decomposition in skipjack tuna (Katsuwonus pelamis). Learn the conditions of handling causing high histamine and/or honeycombing.

APPROACE: Suitable analytical methods for histamine, histidine and honeycomb in skipjack will be selected and developed. These are flucrescence, thinlayer and high pressure liquid chromatography. Appropriate samples indicative of methods of handling will be analyzed. These will include times and temperatures.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. A study was completed on the effect of low-temperature (30 to 50 degrees F) incubation on histamine formation, honeycombing and quality deterioration in skipjack tuna. A study was completed on the effect of low-temperature (30 to 50 degrees F) incubation on microbial growth and bistidine decarboxylation in skipjack tuna. A study was completed on the quantitative relationship between collagen breakdown and honeycombing in skipjack tuna. A nomograph was prepared to show the relationship of time-temperature-histamine in skipjack tuna under controlled conditions in the 70-100 degrees F range. A paper, "Bacterial histamine formation in skipjack tuna, " was presented at the annual meeting of the Pacific Fisheries Technologists, March 16-19, 1980, in Astoria, Orgeon. Tuna Research Workshop V was sponsored on December 11-12, 1980, in Bonolulu to present a final report on the progress made on this project. A paper "Histamine formation and honeycombing during decomposition of skipjack tuna (Katsuwonus pelamis) at elevated temperatures, " bas been submitted for publication in Narine Fisheries Review. Additional manuscripts are being prepared for publication.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED TELS PERICD.

009.011* CFIS0073715 POST-HARVEST HANDLING AND PROCESSING OF WACROBRACHIUM PRAVNS

 NIP W; MOY J H; FOOD SCIENCE 6 TECENOLOGY; UNIVERSITY

 OF HAWAII, BCNOLULU, HAWAII. 96822.

 Proj. No.: HAW00576-S

 Project Type: STATE

 Agency ID: SAES

 Period: 01 JUL 77 To 30 SEP 80

OBJECTIVES: [efine the quality of fresh and cooked prawns in terms of physical, chemical, bacteriological and organoleptic attributes. Assess the effect of various processing techniques (freezing, holding, packaging, storage and thawing on the quality of the frozen prawns. Determine and recommend a set of handling, holding and processing conditions in terms of acceptable quality of frozen prawns for long term storage.

APPRCACE: Zero-time control samples will be analyzed in terms of texture, pH, trimethylamine, collagen, and salt content, bacterial count and taste score. Prawns will te processed, stored and analyzed for the various quality attributes. Cptimum conditions for processing, packaging and storing of frozen prawns will be determined based on the above results.

PROGRESS: 77/07 TO 80/12. Various postharvest handling and freezing procedures for the freshwater prawn, Macrobrachium rosenhergii were tested. Results of the frozen storage stability studies (6 mos) suggested that prawns may be chilled up to 48 hrs, then frozen and still maintain acceptable quality; the quality of prawns held under chilled conditions 48 hrs after thawing was still acceptable; post-blanching chilled storage may not be a practical prefreezing technique for commercial preservation and marketing of frozen prawns; and prawns can be frozen either in air or in brine at -18 degrees C, packaged in polymylar bags with or without vacuum, or frozen in ice-blocks, and still maintain acceptable quality. Effect of purging on quality factors and cost-effectiveness were also tested. No significant difference (p less than or equal to 0.05) was found between the gurged prawns and the control in their muscle's pB, ammonia content, soluble/insoluble collagen ratio, and peak beight/plateau height ratio. However, the decrease in pH and peak height/plateau height ratio, and the increase in assonia content and soluble/insoluble collagen with ice-chilled time were highly significant (p less than or equal to 0.01), indicating a gradual quality degradation when stored on ice. Postbarvest purging helped to improve the appearance of the prawn but its cost-effectiveness based on economic feasibility analysis was doubtful.

PUBLICATIONS: 77/07 TO 80/12

NIP, W.K. and MOY, J.E. 1979. Effect of Freezing Methods on the Quality of the Prawn macrobractium rosenbergii. Proc. of World Maricul. Soc. 10:761-768.

009.012* PREPLAVORED CEANNEL CATFISE

CRIS0066181

CAUL J F; FOOD 6 NUTRITION; KANSAS STATE UNIVERSITY, MANEATIAN, KANSAS. 66506. Proj. No.: KAN00919 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 74 To 30 JUN 78

OBJECTIVES: Explore the effects of conventional home cookery on the flavor of whole channel catfish preflavored with three commercial flavorants (e.g., onion, liquid smoke, garlic) when the treated fish are fresh; have been held in a bousehold refrigerator 2-3 days; have been frozen in a household freezer, stored 1-2 months, then thawed before cooking.

APPROACE: Farm-raised channel catfish, 1/2-1 pound, will be preflavored by adding known quantities of flavorant(s) to their aquarium water. After being dressed and cooked, preflavored catfish and controls will be examined by flavor profile panel. Preflavoring treatments, cookery and examinations will be repeated at least once; at least two concentrations or two exposure times of each flavorant will be used. Research will be reported as a master's thesis.

PRCGRESS: 74/06 TO 78/07. Prior work having shown the feasibility of preflavoring channel catfish in laboratory aquariums, experiments were conducted to explore the effects of conventional home cookery on the flavor of whole channel catfish preflavored with a commercially available liquid smoke flavorant. An experienced taste panel found that the flavor was retained in fish stored in home-type refrigerator for 1-3 days or in a commerical freezer up to 10 weeks; the dressed fish, 167-349 grams, were cooked plain by microwave or breaded, by frying. Details are given in Master's Thesis of Jo Karen Clithero, "Preflavoring Channel Catfish, " 1975.

PUELICATIONS: 74/06 TO 78/07 NO PUELICATIONS REPORTED TEIS PERIOC.

009.013 CRISO070825 EVALUATION OF AQUATIC PLANTS AS PCTENTIAL FEEDSTUFF FOR DAIRY CATTLE

RUSOFF L L; DAIRY SCIENCE; LOUISIANA STATE UNIVERSITY, BATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA. 70803. Proj. No.: LAE01852 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 76 To 30 SEF 79

OBJECTIVES: Determine the chemical composition, and cell wall and fiber components of dry water hyacinth for indicating its possible nutritive value. Determine the digestibility of dry water hyacintt ("in-vitro" and "in-vivo" studies). Determine whether dry water hyacinth would have any palatability problems or harmful effects when fed to dairy animals. Determine the feeding value of dry water byacinth as a source of protein or a roughage in the ration of growing dairy animals. Cetermine the feeding value of dry water hyacinth as a source of protein a blended ration or as a roughage in the ration for lactating cows. Determine the feeding value of dry water hyacinth on milk yield and milk composition.

APPROACH: The nutritive value of dry water hyacinth will be evaluated by in-vitro and in-vivo studies. In-vitro cellulose and DM digestibility studies along with chemical analyses will be made. As a source of roughage, NB will be compared with C bermudagrass hay and alfalfa hay in rations for growing dairy heifers and lactating cows; as a source of protein at concentrate portion of the rations. Growth, milk production and composition will be studied. PROGRESS: 79/01 TO 75/11. Paper prepared for presentation at the annual meeting of the Southern Division, American Dairy Science Association, New Orleans, La., 1979. Funds were not available for additional work during this period.

PUBLICATIONS: 79/01 TO 79/11

ZERINGUE, S.P., FUSOFF, I.I. and WCLVEFICN, B.C. 1979. Water hyacinth a source of roughage for lactating cows. J. Eairy Sci. 62:Suppl. 1, 200.

009.014* CRISCO75300 FLAVOR DIFFESENCES OF MECHANICALLY- AND BAND-PROCESSED CRAE MEATS

 PIEDE S L; RUTLEDGE J E; FCCD SCIENCE; LCUISIANA

 STATE UNIVERSITY, FATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA. 70803.

 Proj. No.: LAB01981

 Project Type: STATE

 Agency ID: SAES
 Period: 01 MAY 78 To 30 AFF 82

OBJECTIVES: Study the influence of handling procedure of flavor retention in mechanically-processed crab meat. Asses organopleptic and gross compositional differences between hand- and mechanically-processed crab meats. Eelate gas chromatographic patterns to flavor scores of crab meats. Asses the composition and importance of the novolatile flavors in crab meats. Develop a method or methods for the flavor enhancement cf mechanically-processed crab meat.

APPROACE: Band- and mechanically-picked Blue crab meat will be assessed for organoleptic and chemical differences. Flavor components lost will be characterized using combined gas chromatography and mass spectrometry, amino acid analysis and electrophoresis. Mechanically-picked meats will be treated with flavor enhancers to imporve the flavor.

PECGEESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Isolation and characterization of protein losses resulting from the

mechanical processing of Blue crab meat utilizing electrophroesis revealed significant differences in quantity and make-up of the protein fractions. Preliminary oata have revealed the loss of the beamolymph with mechanical processing. This appears to be a significant portion of the protein losses. Further work is being undertaken to determine the feasibility of using cooler stressed Blue crabs for mechanical processing. Comparisons are heing made between the processing of fresh, brine frozen and stressed blue crabs, as well as the electrophoretic patterns of the salt and water extractable proteins, to determine the effects of cooler stress.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- BIEDE, S.L., RUTLEDGE, J.E. and CALLABAN, C.A. 1980. Flavor Differences in Blue Crab Weats. Scientific Information Bulletin No. 46. Takeda Inc.
- BIEDE, S.L., RUTLEDGE, J.E., HENDRY, P.L. and CALLABAN, C.A. 1980. Effects of Mechanical Processing on Crab Meat. La Agric. 23:14-17.

009.015 CRIS0075853 DEVELOPMENT CF RAPID SEAFOOD QUALITY TESTS FOF COMMERCIAL AND REGULATORY USE

GRODNER R; HACKNEY C B; FOOD SCIENCE & TECHNOLOGY; LOUISIANA STATE UNIVERSITY, BATON ROUGE, LCUISIANA. 70803. Proj. No.: LAE01991 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 03 JUN 78 To 31 DEC 81

OBJECTIVES: Develop rapid analytical quality tests to detect chemical and biochemical mechanisms reflecting the chemical and physical deterioration of seafood products from the initial catch to a processed product for the consumer. Identify and establish key chemical compounds or components which can be related to the deterioration process of fresh seafood products. Correlate chemical and physical changes during the deterioration process in seafood with organoleptic data. APPROACE: Simple and direct gas chromatographic (GC) techniques coupled with mass spectrographic analysis will be developed and utilized for identifying and separating chemical volatile components from commercially produced seafood products that are associated with flavor and the deterioration process. Organoleptic panels will be utilized for evaluations of flavor and deterioration and each chemical component and profile identified will be correlated with these evaluations. At the same time, morphological changes will be studied with a Scanning Electron Microscope (SCN) for correlations with identifiable chemical changes.

PECGRESS: 80/01 TC 80/12. The use of rapid and direct Gas Chromatographic (GC) techniques continued on shrimp, crat meat and crayfish (crawfish) as a means of establishing quality indices for decomposition measurements and correlations with chemical and/or biochemical tests. The acquisition of a new Varian EPLC Unit recently, will require new techniques and methodology to adapt our testing procedures. Work bas continued to correlate structural changes with progressive decomposition as measured by GC and now **BPLC.** Structural changes were determined using photographic techniques of the scanning electron microscope and the transmission electron microscope. Scanning Electron Microscopy studies of Vitrio cholerae in relation to the factors affecting adsorption to Blue crabs and their shell were also studied with the scanning electron microscope. These studies revealed that V. cholerae cells were adsorbed in a more or less random pattern on the shell surface which may protect the cells from being washed off. Another area of continued investigation is based upon studies that reveal that microorganisms can suffer non-lethal injury from stresses, such as, low heat, low temperatures, low pH, low water activity, sanitizers and starvation as well as any various combinations of these stress.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

DIETRICH, N.A. 1980. Factors Affecting the Adherence of Vibrio cholerae to the Blue Crab (Callinectes sapidus). N.S. Thesis. La. State Univ., Baton Rouge.

009.016* CRISO009816 BANDLING AND PROCESSING OF FISH AND SEELLFISE

RUTLEDGE J E; GRODNER R; RAO F; FOOD SCIENCE & TECHNOLOGY; LOUISIANA STATE UNIVERSITY, EATCN ROUGE, LCUISIANA. 70803. Proj. No.: LAB00849 Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 DEC 58 to 01 DEC 51

OBJECTIVES: Perform research on the best methods of harvesting, collecting, processing, packing, preserving, labeling, and distributing fish and shellfish. Work in packing plants to institute good manufacturing practices, quality assurance laboratories, and investigate the critical control points during the manufacture of fishery products. Monitor the microbiological, physical, chemical and organoleptic safety status of Gulf fish and shellfish on a routine basis to protect the consumer and industry.

APPEOACB: Study the physical and biochemical mechanisms involved in deterioration of these products so that procedures may be developed to reduce the rate of decomposition and the formation of undesirable compounds in the foods. Rapid methods of testing will be developed to enable the producers and packers to evaluate the products prior to packing, and before the onset of initial spoilage. Tests will include the qualitative and quantitative measurement of pathogenic microorganisms, those that are an index of pollution, ammonia, trimethylamine, lactic acid, volatile acids, sulfhydryl groups, indole, amino N, etc., for the purpose of augmenting existing ohjective measurements. The reliability and predictability of the abbreviated tests will be compared to AOAC methods, and the data will be subjected to statistical analyses for sources of sample and technique, and products variation.

FROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Crawfish: The effect of cooking, vacuum packaging and the presence or absence of hepatopancreatic tissue on the development of oxidative rancidity in frozen crawfish were studied. Two-thiobarbituric acid (TBA) values were determined every two months during the course of the study. There was a steady increase in TBA values in all cases with the progress of storage time. Both cooking and the presence of fat (hepatopancreatic tissue) on the tailmeat accelerated the production of malonaldehydes as indicated by the TBA test. Vacuum packaging significantly (p less than 0.01) lowered the TBA values as did the absence of fat. Crabs: The effect of various cooking temperatures and time periods were evaluated in relation to color changes in Blue crabs. These changes were also compared to the internal body temperatures in the crabs during cooking. The rate of color development was found to be dependent on time and temperature of exposure. Crabs placed in water at 100 degrees C had a mean "a" value of 15.27 on the Bunter scale after only 30 seconds of exposure. Values on the "a" scale 15 and above were considered typical of the red-orange color of cooked crabs. Bowever, at this time and temperature exposure the crabs had an internal body temperature on only 16 degrees C thus, still showing effects of refrigerated storage. Longer exposures did not greatly enhance the color. Bence, crabs cooked in boiling water for thirty second appear generally the same as one cooked for sixteen minutes.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- AMR, A.S. and RUTLEDGE, J.E. 1980. Oxidative Rancidity in Whole-Glazed Frozen Crawfish. Proceedings of the 50th Annual Tropical and Sub-Tropical Fisheries Technological Conference of the Americas.
- BIMELBLOCM, B.H. 1980. Heat Fenetration, Stell Color Changes, and Neat Yields of Crabs, Crawfish, and Shrimp Under Various Cooking Conditions. M.S. Thesis, La. State Univ., Baton Rouge.

009.017 CRISO009838 REGULATORY PEOBLEMS OF LOUISIANA FOOD INDUSTRIES

RUTLEDGE J E; GRODNER R; LIUZZO J A; FOOD SCIENCE 6 TECBNOLOGY; LOUISIANA STATE UNIVERSITY, BATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA. 7(803. Proj. No.: LABO0958 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 DEC 57 To 01 DEC 81

CBJECTIVES: Assist the Louisiana food producers to conform to international, federal, state and local food laws, standards and good manufacturing practices. Perform immediate research on problems which arise and cause a controversy between an agency and packer or producer, or between these groups and consumer agencies. Nonitor the safety and regulatory acceptance of Louisiana food products through routine quality assurance tests, and assist in recall of defective, contaminated or adulterated products. Inform Louisiana processors of new laws and their scientific interpretations and significance, and recommend new manufacturing procedures and equipment when laws require such modifications.

APPROACE: Bandle each situation according to its state of urgency. When a health hazard is involved, the problem will be given immediate attention as to the causative agent, the action taken by the regulatory agencies involved, and a review with the participants, after which recommendations and action for its solution will by made. Reviews will be made of all proposed regulations and then recommendations will be made to the appropriate industries as to what the future significance of each might be. Scientific information collected in our laboratories will be offered to the legal staffs of the companies concerned and the regulatory agencies upon request. Several major areas of competence will be good manufacturing practices, nutritional labeling, microbiological standards and guidelines, food additives, quality assurance, and manufacturing regulations.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. The presence of V. chloerae in crabs taken in Louisiana has come under close scrutiny because of the implication of V. cholerae as a causative agent of foodborne illness in isolated outbreaks during the past few years. This study was initiated to provide regulatory agencies information on the thermal resistance of V. ctolerae in crabs in order to establish safe cooking times. Results of the study have shown that the cooking procedures used by commercial crab processors appear to be generally adequate as far as bacterial quality of crab meat is concerned. One of the largest problems associated with establishing adequate cooking procedures is that the crabs vary in size, weight, condition, etc. which influences the heat penetration rate. Therefore, the safest recommendation would be to cook crabs until the slowest heating point reaches 71 degrees C and is maintained at that temperature for a minimum of 1-minute.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TC 80/12 SCHUTLZ, L.M. 1980. Thermal Resistance of Vibriofcholerae in Blue Crabs (Callinectis sapidus) Meat Homogenates. N.S. Thesis, La. State Univ., Haton Rouge.

009.018 QUALITY CONTROL OF CANNED SQUID

SLABYJ B M; TFUE R H; FOOD SCIENCE; UNIVERSITY CF MAINE, CRCNC, MAINE. 04469. Proj. No.: ME08594 Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 76 To 30 SEP 80

<code>OBJECTIVES: Determine quality of squid mantle and tentacles canned in oil and brine using 3 3/4 oz. sardine cans.</code>

AFFBOACE: Two species of squid (Illex illecebrosus) and (Loligo pealei) will either be salted (1, 2 and 4 lbs per bushel) or brined (12, 22 and 32^{\sim} Ealometer) and stored at 33, 50 and 70"F. Squid stored in ice will serve as reference sample. Evaluation of raw material will involve sensory and microbiological tests on samples removed at daily intervals. Canned product (skinless) will be evaluated for appearance, odor and texture. Drained weight and total solid analysis will be performed to determine weight loss due to handling and processing. Effect of blanching (149 $^{\circ}$ F for 2 min) and the use of CaCl(2) on texture of selected samples (best quality product) will be evaluated. Shelf life of canned product will be initiated.

PROGRESS: 75/10 TO 80/09. Shelf life of brine refrigerated whole squid (Illex illecebrosus) was about 3 days at 7.2 degrees C and 5 days at 0.6 degrees C. No difference in keeping quality was detected when using 3 or 12% brine. Salt-requiring, heat-sensitive bacteria predominated in the spoilage flora. Sensory evaluation of whole squid and canned mantles showed significant correlations with trimethylamine-nitrogen and tyrosine content of the raw material. Precanning blanching caused 37% shrinkage and 15% loss of dry matter in fresh squid, which increased with preprocess storage conditions to a maximum of 56% shrinkage and 42% loss of dry material. Squid mantles with skin removed were canned in oil, using quarter-pound aluminum sardine cans. The product had a good appearance, a mild flavor, and firm texture; however, the mantles required blanchingr prior to canning. Ten minutes blanching in 3 percent boiling brine resulted in about 45 percent shrinkage. Addition of polyphosphate to the blanch water did not reduce shrinkage. Presence of citric acid in blanch water or the use of different oils in the can did not improve the quality of the canned mantle strips. Frozen storage temperature (-23 and -40 degrees C) of the raw material bad no significant effect on the quality of the canned product. Squid mantle strips canned in oil had an acceptable shelf life.

PUBLICATIONS: 75/10 TO 80/09 NO PUBLICATIONS SEPORTED THIS PERIOD.

CRIS0071161

CCESCO15* CCEISO069947 SHEAR PROPERTIES OF FROZEN FISH FILLET ELOCKS

WBEATCN F W; AGRI ENGINEERING; UNIVERSITY CF MARYLAND, COILEGE PARK, MARYLAND. 20742. Proj. No.: MD-R-053 Project Type: EATCH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 02 MAE 76 To 30 SEP 80

CHJECTIVES: Determine the shear properties of frozen fish fillet pieces. Determine effect of shearing on conformation of the resulting cut surface.

APPROACE: Frozen fish blocks will be sawed to sample size with bard saws. By use of an instrom machine and/or a guillotine cutter the fish sample pieces will be sheared and the force necessary to cut the samples recorded. Sample thickness, cutting speed, sample temperature when cut, knife geometry, fish muscle fibre direction and possibly fish species will be variables investigated and related to peak force necessary to cut the sample. The conformation of the sheared sample will be investigated to determine the effect shearing action has on squareness of corners and other critical parameters.

FECGEESS: 76/01 TO 80/09. Samples of frozen cod fillet blocks having different thicknesses and fillet orientations were sheared using a guillotine shearing device at -12.2 degrees, -17.8 degrees and -23 degrees C. krife bevel angles of 10 degrees, 20 degrees, and 30 degrees and cutting speeds of 2.5, 7.5 and 12.5 cm/sec were used. Feak shearing force, shearing energy and surface damage of front and rear slices were measured. Regression equations were developed to relate individually peak shearing force, shearing energy, and surface damage for front and rear surfaces with the variables of temperature. block thickness, knife bevel angle and knife velocity. Cne set of equations was developed for sbearing perpendicular to the muscle fiber and one set for shearing parallel to the muscle fiber. Blocks can be sheared but damage to the steared piece is unacceptable except for 1.27 cm thick block sheared at -12.2 degrees C using a 10 degrees knife bevel angle. Thus, shearing does not appear to be a feasible method for cutting frozen fish blocks into fish portions, and fish sticks. An alternative approach should be tried for reducing the fish "sawdust" loss. Product development research could produce a salable product from the "sawdust.

PUELICATIONS: 76/01 TO 80/09

VENKATRAMANI, T.A. 1978. Shear Properites of Frozen Cod Fillet Elocks. N.S. Thesis. University of Maryland, College Fark, 137 pp.

009.020 CFIS0045743 THE EFFECTS OF DIET ON THE BISK OF CANCER

GEESEOFF S; GOEBACE S; IACONO J; NUTRITICN INSTITUTE; TUPTS UNIVERSITY, MEDFCED, MASSACEUSETTS. 02155. Proj. No.: 5090-20913-003-G(1) Project Type: GRANT Agency ID: AES Period: 07 SEP 79 To 31 DEC 81

<code>OBJECTIVES: The study addresses the effects of diet on the risk cf cancer.</code>

APPEOACE: Population group consuming diets low in protein but high in fat will be identified. A second group consuming diets low in protein but high in fat will be identified. A second group with diet bigh in protein form fish or poultry but not meat and low in fat will be identified. Seventy-two bour female dietary records and food, fecal and urine samples will be obtained. Analyses will be done on fecal and urinary estrogen and androgen levels, the concentration of cholesterol, the existence of mutagens in the feces. Procarcinogens will be incubated and the rate of formation of mutagens will be measured. 009.021 CRIS0067589 PACTORS AFFECTING THE FUNCTIONAL PROPERTIES AND QUALITY OF PROCESSED MUSCLE FOODS

REYNOLDS A E; FOOD SCIENCE 6 NUTRITION; MICHIGAN STATE UNIVERSITY, EAST LANSING, MICHIGAN. 48824. Proj. No.: MICL01205 Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 02 AFR 75 To 01 AFF 80

OEJECTIVES: Hetter understand the functional properties of muscle foods in processing systems, thereby improving product quality and allowing greater flexibility in the use of lower cost raw materials.

APPROACE: Muscle foods will be studied in model systems to compare their functional properties by studying water binding capacity, temperature stability and native physical and chemical properties; and functional systems to evaluate the properties which effect product quality, i.e., type of muscle protein, binding capacity, effect of additives, microbial changes, heat stability and fat levels.

PECGRESS: 79/01 TC 79/12. Freshwater suckers (Catostomidae family), an underutilized species, were obtained from Lake Huron (Saginaw Eay, Michigan) to study the possibility of developing new products utilizing its fless. Suckers were mechanically deboned, then blast frozen and stored at -29 degrees C. Minced sucker was analyzed for fat, protein and moisture content. The effects of storage at 3 degrees C for 7 days and -29 degrees C for 90 days on the solubility of myofibrillar and sarcoplasmic proteins as well as nonprotein nitrogen of sucker flesh were also studied. Results showed that suckers have a lower caloric content than do red meats or poultry and therefore are an ideal source of animal protein for use in low calorie diets. Solutility of myofibrillar proteins decreased by either refrigeration (3 degrees C) or freezer (-29 degrees C) storage, while sarcoplasmic proteins and nonprotein nitrogen were essentially unchanged by both storage methods. In comparisons between sodium chloride and sodium tripolyphosphate, sodium chloride increased protein solubility, while sodium tripolyphosphate appeared to be more beneficial. For example, it increases myosin solubility, pB, swelling and gel forming ability.

PUBLICATIONS: 79/01 TO 79/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOC.

009.022* CFIS0077745 MIREX FEEDING STUDY IN CHANNEL CATFISE (ICTALURUS PUNCTATUS)

MERCER B D; HIDALGO R J; KITZMAN J V; ANIMAL BEALTE RESEARCB; MISSISSIPPI STATE UNIVERSITY, MISSISSIPPI STATE, MISSISSIPPI. 39762. Proj. No.: MIS-0837 Agency ID: CSRS Period: 18 APR 79 To 30 SEP 81

OEJECTIVES: Determine the mathematical relationships between dietary intake of mirex a d ferramicide and the resulting whole body residues. Determine time/dose response relationships between dietary intake of mirex and ferramicide and whole body residues, selected tissue residues, mortality, pathophysiology aof certain organs, growth and callagen formation. Determine correlation between mirex and ferramicide whole-body residues with organ residues, pathophysiology of crgane and mortality.

APPROACE: Fifty channel catfish will be maintained in each of 45 separate 200-L tarks. Eody weights of fush in each tank will be made every two weeks throughout the experiments. In separate experiments, 8 levels of mirex and ferramicide will be administered in a defined synthetic diet. Each dose level will be fed to fish in 4 or 5 tanks for 52 weeks. Fish fed each dose level and appropriate controls will be sacrificed at prescribed intervals and appropriate samples collected for assay and bistopathology. Pesticide levels in feed, water and fish samles will be analyzed at the National Monitoring and Residue Analysis Laboratory, USDA, Gulfport, Mississippi.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Forty-eight groups of fish in separate aquariums were fed purified mirex at levele of 0.01 - 32.0 ppm in a purified fieh diet. Tissues collected at intervale up to 240 days were eubjected to quantitative mirex analyeis and bietopathologic examinations. Growth rates and collagen aseays were aleo determined. There were no hietopathologic nor growth parameter changes that could be correlated with exposure rates of mirex. Resulte of mirex analysis indicated a direct correlation hetween total dietary intake and tissue residue levels. The kinetic and mathematical modele have yet to be completed. The feeding segment of the project was terminated at 240 days (January 6, 1981) due to excessive mortality resulting from several outbreaks of Aeromonas hydrophila attributable to streee factore. Statistical analysis to determine if there is any time/doee relationship between dietary intake of mirex and morhidity or mortality is underway. The project will terminate in April 1981, at which time the objectives of this project will have been completed.

FUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NC FUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS FERIOD.

009.023 CFIS0055497 DETECTION AND IDENTIFICATION OF NYCOTOXINS AND ALGAL TOXINS IN FOCDS AND FREDS

IKAWA M; BIOCHEMISTRY; UNIVERSITY OF NEW BAMPSEIRE, DURHAM, NEW EAMPSEIRE. 03824. Proj. No.: NE00205 Project Type: BATCE Agency ID: CSRS Period: 20 CCT 77 To 30 SEP 82

OBJECTIVES: Develop and apply rapid methode for detecting and identifying fungal and algal toxins in foode and feeds, isolate, characterize, and identify toxic and carcinogenic eubetancee produced by fungi and algae.

APPROACH: Microbial methods involving the use of Bacillus subtilie, Chlorella pyrenoidosa, Saccharomyces cerevielae, the brine ehrimp Artemia ealina, and mutants of Salmonella typhimurium will be applied for the detection of toxic and carcinogenic metabolites. Thin-layer or mini-column chromatography combined with fluore ecence will be applied to the detection and identification of toxins. Toxingenic fungi grown on food or feed sources, algal-contaminated foode, or algal blooms will he extracted and the toxine isolated by column or high preseure liquid cbromatography. Gas-liquid chromatography and spectrometric methode will be used to characterize and identify the toxins.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. A method for identifying the paralytic ehellfish poisone (PSP'e) present in crude ehellfish extracts has been under investigation. The method consisted of absorbing the toxine on a strong cation exchange resin column and eluting the toxins with a cerice of buffers followed by strong acid. The column was sonitored by oxidizing an aliquot of each fraction with hydrogen peroxide and measuring the resulting fluoreecence. Most of the PSP's will fluoreece under these conditions. A separation of the Gonyaulax tamareneis toxine could be achieved, with the less hasic gonyautoxins (GTX 2 and GTX 3) eluting first and the more faelc eaxitoxin (STX) eluting last. When crude extracts of the toxic blue-green alga Aphanizomenon flos-aquae were tested in this procedure, an early eluting fluorescence peak and a late peak corresponding in position to STX were observed. This is additional evidence that STX is also produced by a blue-green alga. The early eluting peak of A. flos-aquae was very labile to acid and therefore appeared to differ from the GTX 2 and GTX 3 type toxins. Experiments also indicated that considerable A. Flosaquae toxicity wae present in non-fluorescent bands. Fluorescence profiles were also run on toxin samplee obtained from ecallops in Japan and extracts of toxic crabs from the southern islande of Japan. The STX peak was observed in the crab extract, thus confirming the presence of STX. The procedure developed may be useful for identifying PSP's and for determining their origin.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- NEWBURGER, J.D., UEBEL, J.J., IKAWA, M., ANDERSEN, K.K. and GAGOSIAN, R.B. 1979. Sterols of Agarum cribosum. Desmosterol in a Brown Alga. Phytochemistry 18:2042-2043.
- IKAWA, N., NOGUCBI, T. and BASBINOTO, K. 1980. Extraction of Paralytic Shellfish Poieons from Whole Oyeter, Whole Short-necked Clam and Scallop Digestive Gland. Bull. Japan. Soc. Scientific Fisheriee 46:201-205.
- TAYLCR, R.P. and IKAWA, N. 1980. Gas Chromatography, Gae Chromatography-mass epectrometry and High-preseure Liquid Chromatography of Carotenoids and Retinoids. Methode in Enzymology 67:233-261.
- IANNITELLI, R.C. and IKAWA, N. 1980. Effect of Fatty Acids on Action of Polyene Antibiotics. Antimicroh. Agente Chemother. 17:861-864.

009.024 CFIS0072087 ROLE OF LIFIDS AND THEIR OXIDATION IN FISH QUALITY

KINSELLA J E; FCOD SCIENCE; CCENELL UNIVERSITY, ITBACA, NEW YORK. 14853. Proj. No.: NYC-143381 Agency ID: SAES Period: 08 DEC 76 To 30 SEP 81

OBJECTIVES: Analysis of lipid components of fish. Elucidation of the mechanism of lipid deterioration in fish and the interaction of the products of lipid oxidation with proteins.

APPROACE: Lipide are extracted and analyzed by established procedures. Oxidation is quantified by TEA and carbonyl generation. The interaction of carbonyle with protein will be measured by adsorption processes using vapor analyses.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TC 80/12. The lipid and proximal composition of 15 species of freshwater fish was determined. The fish contained an average 78, 19, 1.1% moisture protein and ach, respectively. The lipids ranged from 0.7 to 7.2% with epecies. Cholesterol averaged 70 mg/100 g fillet. The detailed fatty acid composition of 18 species was determined. The content of polyunsaturated acids varied between speciee. The effecte of cooking (deep frying, pan frying) on the lipid content and composition of trout, bluegill and eucker were determined. Uptake of frying oil was proportional to the surface area and lipid content of the fillete. Breaded fillets abeorbed frying oil. Deep frying eluted cholesterol from the fillets. The role of phoepholipaee in releasing fatty acide was studied. It was shown that the lipid composition of dark and light muscles were different. Antioxidants limited the oxidation of fish lipide during etorage. Fieh tissue facilely converte w-3 polyunsaturated fatty acide to corresponding proetaglandine. A new tetraenoic proetaglandin wae discovered in fieh gill tissue. This was eynthesized from docoeshexaenoic acid.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- MAI, J. and KINSELLA, J.F. 1979. Lipid Composition of Dark and White Muscle from White Sucker (Catostomus commersoni). J. Food Sci. 44:1101-1109.
- MAI, J. and KINSELLA, J.E. 1979. Changes in Lipid Composition of Cooked Minced Carp (Cyprinus carpio) During Frozen Storage. J. Food Sci. 44:1619-1624.
- MAI, J., SHETTY, J.K. and KINSELLA, J.E. 1980. Protein and Amino Acid Composition of Select Freshwater Fish. J. Ag. Food Chem. 28:884-885.

009.025 BN2YMES IN FOOD FERMENTATIONS

CRIS0059120

LEDFORD R A; REGENSTEIN J M; FOOD SCIENCE; CORNELL UNIVERSITY, ITEACA, NEW YORK. 14853. Proj. No:: NYC-143305 Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 CCT 77 To 30 JUN 83 OEJECTIVES: The over all objective of this project is to improve the quality of fresh fish by controlling the growth of psychrotrophic microorganisms and insure that changes in processing and handling of fresh fish do not lead to other microbiologically undersirable effects. As part of this overall objective, the following specific objecties will he pursued in this project.

APPEOACH: The microflora of commercial, iced fish and other commercial forms of fish will be examined. The organisms present will be enumerated with particular emphasis on P. putrefaciens. In addition, the presence of trimethylamine (TMA) will be monitored. Lipolytic and proteolytic activity will also be monitored. The results of the microhological work will be correlated with the sensory evaluation of both the raw and cooked fish in order to determine the importance of various microbiological patterns on consumer acceptability of the food. Samples prepared specifically for shelf-life studies involving hoth gas and chemical treatments will also be evaluated by the various tests proposed.

PEOGRESS: £0/01 TO 20/12. Hacteriological analyses were performed on commercial milk samples subjected to consumer and trained taste panels as part of a comprehensive departmental project on milk quality Methods used included the Standard Plate Count (SPC), Psychrotrophic Hacterial Count (PBC), Lab Pasteurization Count (IPC), and the Coliform Count. The potential application of a new rapid method to monitor microbiological quality, the pyruvate test, was evaluated. Recently, the research has begun to study key factors in determining the growth of psychrotrophic organisms in milk. The first series of experiments consisted of 24 samples tested fresh and 24 analyzed after holding at 7.5C to the sell-hy date. The fresh samples averaged Standard plate and psychrotrophic counts of 1,900 and 41, respectively, and the consumer panel scores indicated excellent milk quality. The sample held to sell-by dates ("aged" samples) had high Standard Plate and Psychrotrophic Counts: 13,000,000 and 11,000,000. The taste panels data indicate that the growth of psychrotrophic microorganisms in processed milk is a major factor limiting quality. The results also indicate that the pyruvate test values are influenced significantly by the growth of these organisms. In the second series of experiments, the rates of microbiological changes in milk samples from 30 N.Y. State plants were examined by testing after 1, 7, and 10 days. The average psychrotrophic counts were 15, 71,000, and 5,400,000, for the 1, 7, and 10 days samples, respectively.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

LEDFOED, B.A., SENYK, G.P., SHIPE, W.F., EANDLEE, D.K. and WOLFF, E.T. 1980. Hacteriological Evaluation of Fresh and Aged Market Milk. J. Dairy Sci. 63(Supplement 1):106.

009.026* CRIS0064528 POTENTIAL OF DIFFEENT UNDERUTILIZED SPECIES OF FISH FOR CONVENIENCE FOODS

EAKER R C; REGENSTEIN J M; PCULTEY 6 AVIAN SCIENCES; CORNELL UNIVEESITY, ITHACA, NEW YORK. 14853. Proj. Nos: NYC-157380 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 DEC 78 To 30 SEP 83

OBJECTIVES: To develop nutritious, palatable convenience and economical products from species of fish not explored in the past. To study the factors which affect water holding capacity of fish flesh which is extremely important in functionality, cook-out, texture, juiciness and flavor of new fish products. To study composition of the effect of bones in fish flesh on functionality, flavor and texture of further processed foods.

AFPEGACH: Product development will proceed according to the following plan: Brainstrorming for ideas, developing new products, testing the product for optimum consumer satisfaction and storage studies. Five mechanisms will be studied for increasing water holding capacity: pH, ionic strength, specific ionic effects cleavage of actomyosin linkages and calcium and magnesium binding. Hnd dehoned fillets, minced fish and fish bones will be studied by measuring variables such as pH, proximate analyses and representative functional properties.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TC 80/12. Experiments on extending shelf life of red hake and salmon were conducted using potassium sorbate in a dip cr in storage ice and/or stored in Barrier Hags (cryovac) with modified atmospheres. Effective treatments were as follows: (1) All potassium sorbate treatments inhibited some TWA-producing baceria: (2) CO(2) in modified atmospheres without ice at 20 or 60% was highly effective in extending shelf life of fresh fish. The greatest effect was obtained with a combination of 1% w/v potassium sorbate ice and an atmosphere of 60% CC(2), with refrigerated storage. Taste panel results indicated no off-flavors or off-odors attributable to treatment after storage of at least 4 weeks, after the fish was received at our lab. A study of the effects of different polyphosphates on the water binding properties of trout suscle showed differences in magnitude and in mechanisms by which the polyphosphates produced these changes. Bexameta- and glass-phosphates have a much greater potential for increasing water binding than pyro- or tripolyphosphate, mostly hy a specific anion effect. In contrast, pyro- and tripolyphosphate increased water binding potential mostly through pH increases. Hexameta- and glass-phosphates were less effective for reducing expressible moisture than pyro- or tripolyphosphate, probably because of the inability of the longer chain polyphosphates to interact with the proteins.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- FEY, M.S. 1980. Extending the Shelf Life of Fresh Fish by Potassium Sorbate and Modified Atmospheres at 0-1 Degrees C. Ph.D. Thesis, Cornell University, Ithaca, NY, 451 pp.
- JAUREGUI, C.A. 1981. Effect of Polyphosphates on the Water Einding Properties of Muscle Proteins. Ph.D. Thesis, Cornell University, Ithaca, NY, 144 pp.
- EAKER, R.C. and DARFLER, J.N. 1980. Development of Products from Minced Fish: 7. Canned Fish Halls in Tomato Sauce. New York Sea Grant Hulletin.

009.027 CRIS0068791 COMPARATIVE STUDIES OF LOBSTEE AND CHICKEN MUSCLE

REGENSTEIN J M; POULTRY & AVIAN SCIENCES; CCRNELL UNIVERSITY, ITHACA, NEW YORK. 14853. Proj. No.: NYC-157310 Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 75 To 30 SEP 78

OBJECTIVES: Further compare the filament regulatory proteins, (troponin and tropomyosin) of lobster; one of the few solely thin filament-regulated invertebrates, with chicken. Also compare lobster and chicken myosins.

APPROACH: Ca binding of regulatory proteins will be carefully characterized and quantitated by equilibrium dialysis binding and quantitative SDS gel electrophoresis. The effects of DINH on myosin ATPase activities and on SDS gels will also be investigated.

PECGRESS: 79/01 TO 79/09. The water holding capacity (WHC) of both rainbow trout (Salmo gairdneri) white muscle and lotster (Homarus americanus) tail muscle controls did not change as the muscle went from preto post-rigor. The trout muscle WBC values were similar to those of post-rigor chicken hreast muscle and they did not change markedly with additions of sodium pyrophosphate (PP(i)), Ng, Ca or combinations of these. In contrast, the WHC of lobster muscle was more like the WHC of pre-rigor chicken breast muscle. The pre-rigor lobster muscle showed a large increase in WHC values with the addition of pyrophosphate (205% of control) hut with the addition of Mg to the sample the increase was depressed (166% of control) and Ca addition even more markedly depressed the WBC (90% of control). In both cases, Mg and Ca seemed to have approximately the same effect on WBC whether PP(i) was present or not. Kena, on the other hand, increased the WHC of both pre- and post-rigor trout and lobster muscle. Ca seemed to negate the

increasing effect Kena had on WEC. Mg addition with Kena caused a large increase in the WHC of the pre-rigor lobster muscle; the WHC capacity with Kena alone was 123% of control while the WHC with Kena and Mg was 231% of control.

PUBLICATIONS: 79/01 TO 79/09 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERICD.

009.028* CRIS0083222 EXTENDING THE SHELF-LIFE OF FISH

REGENSTEIN J N; EAKER F C; POULTRY SCIENCE; CORNELL UNIVERSITY, ITBACA, NEW YCEK. 14853. Proj. No.: NYC-157381 Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JAN 81 Tc 30 SEP 83

OBJECTIVES: To improve the shelf-life of fresh fish particularly underutilized species by modified atmosphere (carbon dioxide), low temperature and/or additives such as rotassium sorbate, so that thet may he successfully shipped to inland and overseas destinations.

APPECACE: To improve the texture stability of frozen red hake and whiting (underutilized East Coast gadoids), particularly after mincing. Additives and heat treatments will be investigated. To determine if the trimethylamine oxide to dimethylamine and formaldehyde reaction is cold-activated or freeze-activated. To better understand the mechanism by which polyphosphates effect the water retention properties of fish flesh.

009.029* CRIS0073941 FACTORS AFFECTING THE TEXTURE OF SEAFOCDS

HAMANN D D; LANIER T C; FOOD SCIENCE; N CAROLINA STATE UNIVERSITY, RALEIGH, NORTH CARCLINA. 27650. Proj. No.: NCO2111 Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSES Period: 01 NOV 77 To 30 SEP 82

CEJECTIVES: Investigate factors affecting the texture of products made from mechanically debcned fish tissue, collect texture data on several species and commercial handling procedures develop methods for improving texture, and develop products from N. C. coast species that have commercial potential.

APPEGACE: Atlantic croaker and other species will be studied to determine the effect of harvesting, handling and processing conditions on protein denaturation and resulting poor texture. Major muscle proteins will be separated into sarcoplasmic protein and individual myofibrillar protein such as mynsin and actin to study their roles in gel formation, water binding, etc. Enzyme activity during heating and resulting protein changes will be determined. Results will be applied to development or improvement of specific products.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. An alkaline protease found in mechanically deboned fish has been shown to be derived from both muscle tissue and visceral contamination and to cause texture breakdown during thermal processing of fish gels. Alkaline protease was partially purified from both muscle and liver tissue (both enzymes being cytoplasmic in nature and heat stable). The suscle protease is a sulfhydryl protease and does not required Ca + + for its activity while the liver enzyme(s) is Ca +-+ activated. Several Atlantic fish species have been examined with respect to the textural properties of gels prepared from the washed and unwashed minces. Processing factors which affect the textural cbaracteristics of fish gels include processing temperature/time, pressure, method of comminution, additives (scy, egg and whey albumins, various starches and hydrocolloids), method of forming, and frozen storage. Several simulated shellfish meats bave been successfully fabricated based on washed mince (surimi) such as shrimp, clam strips and scallops. Work is processing to develop appropriate electrophoretic, isoelectric focusing and/or

immunoelectrophoretic techniques for the determination of species composition of minced fish and surimi blocks.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- LIN, T.S., SU, H.K. and LANIER, T.C. 1980. Characterization of Fish Muscle Proteases Using Radio-labeled Protein Subtrates. J. Food Sci. 45(4):1036-1039.
- LIN, T.S. and LANIER, T.C. 1980. Froperties of an Alkaline Protease from the Skeletal Muscle of Atlantic Croaker. J. Food Hiochem. 4:17-28.

005.030* CFIS0075507 DEVELOPMENT OF IMPROVED HANDLING, SHIPPING/STORAGE AND MARKETING PRACTICES FOR FISHERY PRODUCTS

LANIER T C; FOOD SCIENCE; N CAROLINA STATE UNIVERSITY, RALHIGH, NORTH CAFOLINA. 27650. Proj. No.: NCO2113 Project Type: EATCH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 JUL 78 To 30 SEP 83

OBJECTIVES: Describe the factors which contribute to loss of quality in fresh and frozen raw seafoods, develop and test rapid methods of quality assessment and evaluate new handling, packaging, storage/shipment and marketing techniques for their potential in improving market life and quality of these products.

APPROACE: North Carolina seafood species will he studied to determine how handling, processing and storage methods may be imposed to minimize quality deterinration due to bacterial and autolytic processes. Gross and specific enzyme assays will be used to identify the source and mode of action of degradative enzyme systems. Various packaging and storage regimes, involving both refrigerator and freezer temperatures, will be tested in combination with various prestorage treatments (sanitizers, antioxidants, etc.) to improve market life of fishery products.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Freeze thaw handling as a means of merchandising prepackaged fish appears to be feasible from both a technical and marketing standpoint. Previous supermarket sales tests demonstrated the acceptability of chilled fish labeled "previnusly-frozen." Vacuum-packaged fish previously frozen for 100 days at -20 degrees C, thawed and held chilled were found to have a saleable life equal to that of fresh fish from the same lot stored chilled in an identical manner. Shelf-life studies of fresh and previously-frozen grey trout are continuing in order to evaluate modified atmnsphere packaging, various predips and thorough washing prior to packaging as means of extending the life. Analyses will include: changes in the microbial flora nn the surface, changes in gasenus composition within the package. A second consumer test will compare sales of prepackaged (modified atmnsphere) fresh and previously-frozen fish (so-labeled) with that of vacuum packaged frozen fish.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

009.031 CRIS0061084 IMPROVING THE ASSURANCE OF QUALITY AND SAFETY OF CONSUMER'S FOOD

DOCRES S; GLASS E D; KEENEY P G; DAIRY SCIENCE; PENNSYLVANIA STATE UNIVERSITY, UNIVERSITY PARK, PENNSYLVANIA. 16802. Proj. No.: PEN02010 Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 OCT 77 To 30 SEP 82

OEJECTIVES: Develop procedures and programs to detect food-born pathogens and to control them in the fnod supply. Develop procedures to identify food additives and to evaluate them for efficacy and safety before and after interaction with food. Develop procedures and programs to identify unitentional additives in the food supply and to determine their sources and potential health significance. APPEOACE: Seafood products and frozen convenience foods will be evaluated and the effect of heating on pathogens in these foods studied. Lysozyme holds potential as a new food preservative. Its effectiveness, especially its action or clostridial spores will he studied. Various foods, especially milk, will be monitored for pesticide and industrial chemical residues.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Decontamination studies were conducted in order to remove residues (up to 90 times the current FDA action level) of the organochlorine hydrocarbon insecticide mirex from brown trout. Various conventional heat treatments were not effective. Ultraviolet (24.48, and 72 hours) and gamma irradiation (1,3, and 5 Mrad) opf macerated muscle tissue decreased the initial concentrations by 30, 43, and 46% and 10, 23 and 38 %, respectively.

- PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 CIN, D. A. 1980. Mirex in brown trout ("Salmo Trutta") the effect of food processing and preservation methods in attempts to remove this chlorinated hydrocarbon insecticide. M.S. Thesis. Penn State Univ.
 - CIN, D. A., KROGER, N. 1981. Effects of heat treatment, ultraviolet light and gamma irradiation on mirex insecticide residues in brown trcut. J. Food Sci.

009.032* Cbis0082927 SEBSORT 6 HUTRITIONAL EVALUATION OF SEAFOODS

PATEL &; PERCIVAL S; FOOD SCIENCE & TECHNOLOGY; UNIVERSITY OF RHODE ISLAND, KINGSTCH, FHCDE ISLAND. 02881. Proj. No.: RI00067 Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 NCV 80 To 30 SEP 83

OBJECTIVES: Assess seafood quality using both objective and sensory methods. Determine the nutrient content as influenced by processing, preparation and storage. Study properties in food systems as influenced by processing, preparation and storage conditions. Use the information to develop new products from underutilized regional resources.

APPROACE: There is much work to be done with assessing seafood quality in terms of acceptability and nutritional values. Additionally, the effects of storage, cocking and processing on the parameters must be determined. An essential component of this work is the formation of a data bank. This is necessary in order to be able to store, organize and retrieve the large volumes of data that will be generated. Procedures include statistical differences and correlation. From this data, a characteristic edible profile and nutritonal value of a species can be outlined.

009.033 CRIS0083412 ENZYME DEVELCEMENT FOR SEAFOOD QUALITY

EAND A G JE; FOOD SCIENCE & TECENCLCGY; UNIVERSITY OF RHCDE ISLAND, KINGSTON, RHCDE ISLAND. (2281. Proj. No.: RI00022 Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 23 JAN 81 Tc 30 SEP 82

<code>OBJECTIVES: To develop a simple, rapid, visual test unit employing enzymatic tests for the assessment of fish quality.</code>

APPEOACE: An integrated series of tests will be created to assess component stability and determine the quality status of seafood for possible grading. The multitest unit will be evaluated in a series of stability trials on fish common to the waters of Southern New England. 00\$.034* CRIS0073560 THE QUALITY OF SEAFOOD CONSUMED BY THE PEOPLE OF SOUTE CARCLINA

KOLI A; SCUTH CAROLINA STATE COLL, ORANGEBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA. 29115. Proj. No.: SC.X-PR-0001-BN-21 Project Type: GFANT Agency ID: CSFS Period: 02 MAR 77 To 01 SEP 82

OBJECTIVES: Determine mercury levels of Sea and Freshwater fish consumed by the people of South Carolina, determine the effect of fish species on the accumulation and distribution of mercury in their tissues, and compare levels of mercury found by geographic location and relate to environmental factors.

APPROACH: Determine the availability of knowledge on the quality of seafood consumed by the people of Soutb Carolina. The fish samples will be collected from the Atlantic Coast of South Carolina for determination of mercury content. To accomplish this the state's coastline will be divided into 30 sections of ten miles apart. The fish samples will be frozen on dry ice and stored in a freezer. The fish tissue will be analyzed for mercury contents hy flameless atomic absorption spectroscopy--Mercury Analyzer.

PECGRESS: 80/01 TC 80/12. A survey of mercury and other toxic trace element residues in saltwater figh from the Atlantic Coast of South Carolina was conducted to see if the problem of the magnitude of toxic trace elements contamination was evident in the South Carolina Fishery. Samples of fish and shellfish from the Atlantic Coast of South Carolina were collected during 1978 and 1978. The fish collected were Spot, Whiting, Silver Snapper, Red Snapper, Flounder, Shrimp, Sea Bass, Squid, Grouper, Bluefish, Clam, Crab, Scallop, Speckled Trout, Croaker, Mullet, The whole fresh fish were placed in plastic hags etc. and frozen in a freezer. Triplicate samples of fish tissues were analyzed by wet digestion method. Sample flasks were incubated in reagent grade sulfuric acid and nitric acid mixture using a constant temperature shaking-water hath at 58 degrees C. Digests were analyzed using atomic absorption spectroptotometry procedures outlined by Hatch and Ctt, and Uthe et al, as modified for use with a Perkin-Elmer, Coleman Mass-50 Mercury Analyzer and Flame atomic absorption spectrophotometer, Perkin-Elmer Model 306 and 5000. Thirteen trace metal elements were determined by atomic absorption spectrophotometry analysis of fish tissues. Trace elements determined were Mercury, Cadmium, Copper, Zinc, Arsenic, Lead, Iron, Magnesium, Chromium, Nichel, Aluminum, Manganese and Cobalt. A significant finding of this report are that larger fish had higher trace element contents than smaller fish of the same species.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

KOLI, A.K. and CANTY, W.T. 1979. Determination of Methylmercury in Fish of South Carolina. Cceanic Abstract 16:472.

KOLI, A.K., SANDEU, S.S., CANTY, W.T., FELIX, K.L., REED, R.J. and WHITMORE, R. 1979. Trace Metals in Some Fish Species of South Carolina. Oceanic Abstract 16:884.

009.035* CRIS0063667 QUALITY FACTORS FOR FISE AND SHELLFISH STORAGE

FINNE G; ANIMAL SCIENCE; TEXAS AGM UNIVERSITY, COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS. 77843. Proj. No.: TEX06031 Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 JUL 74 To 12 NCV 82

CEJECTIVES: To determine the yield after each processing step for both fresh and prefrozen fish. To assess microhiological characteristics of minced flesh as influenced by species, processing steps and raw product quality. to determine chemical properties and frozen storage stability of minced flesh from different species. Freezing finfish. To determine composition of finfish as influenced by season, species, and area of catch. To establish optimum freezing rates and storage temperatures. To evaluate effectiveness of glazes, packaging methods and materials, controlled atmospheres and antioxidants in sxtending frozen shelf life of Gulf of Mexico finfish.

APPECACE: Deboned fish flesh. Minced flesh from 6 to 8 different species will be produced. Analyze deboned flesh for total protein, fat, ash, moisture, fatty acid composition, total volatile nitrogen, malonaldshyde, soluble protein and pb. Number and types of microorganisms will be determined after each processing step. Using above chemical quality parameters, determines stability of frozen debond flesh over ons-year storage period. Freezing of finfish-Using chemical, microbiological and sensory evaluations, determine frozen storage stability of fise packaged five different ways. Evaluate effect of freezing rates and frozen storage temperatures by using different freezing techniques.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Composition, quality and stability during frozen storags of Gulf of Mexico finfish species wars investigated. The fish, which were frozen both fresh and after five days on ice, included; spotted trout, black drum, tilefisb, flounder, swordfish and red fish. Each species was frozen vacuus packed, in a carbon dioxide atmosphere, water-glazed, over-wrapped with PVC and over-wrapped dresssd. All samples were held at two different tsapsratures during frnzen storage. In every case tested, vacuum packed fish was shown to have superior frozen storage stability followed by dressed and glazed fisb. For the lean whits species (flounder, tilefish, trnut and red fish) little difference between bolding at -30 degrees C and -15 degrees C could be observed after one year of frozen stnrage. For the dark muscle fish however, a holding temperaturs cf -30 degrees C was shown to be superior. Elack drum developed rancidity early except for fish packed in vacuum. Swordfish also developed some rancidity however, the main problem with this species during frozen storage was shown to be loss in water holding capacity and subsequent bad texture. All other fish tested were of good quality even after one year of frozen storage. This study will help the Gulf Seafood industry develop frozen finfish products. Malanosis in shrimp is a major problem to the Taxas shrimp industry.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- TENBET, V., FINNE, G., NICKELSON, R. and TOLODAY, D. 1980. Penetration Mechanism and Distribution Gradient of Sodium Tripolyphosphate in Peeled and Deveined Shrimp. Proc. 5th Ann. Trnp. and Subtrop. Fisheries Tech.
- TENEET, V., FINNE, G., NICKELSON, R. and TOLODAY, D. 1980. Determination of Phosphorous in Shrimp Treated with Sodium Tripolyphosphate. Proc. 5th Ann. Trop. and Subtrop. Fisheries Tech. of the Americas 5:195-204.
- FINNE, G., NICKELSON, R., QUIMEY, A. and CONNALLY, N. 1980. Minced Fisb Flesh from Non-traditional Gulf of Mexico Finfish Species: Yield and Composition. J. Food Sci. 45:1327-1328.

009.036* CRIS0071432 PROCESSING QUALITY AND PACKAGING FACTORS WHICH AFFECT THE UTILIZATION OF FISE AND SHELLFISH

FINNE G; VANTERZANT C; ANIMAL SCIENCE; TEXAS AGM UNIVERSITY, COLLEGE STATICN, TEXAS. 77843. Proj. No.: TEX06242 Agency ID: CSRS Period: 30 MAY 79 To 29 MAY 82

OBJECTIVES: Evaluate physical parameters that accelerate melanosis, determine precursors of melanosis and snzyme kinetics, evaluate potential inhibitors of melanosis, determine Na-bisulfite decomposition mschanism. Evaluate quality charactaeristics of fish in various gaseous atmospherss controlled initially and and "completely" during refrigerated storage, determins changes in gaseous composition in packages, evaluate spoilage parameters of fish in controlled atmospheres.

APPROACE: Factors related to handling on board will be svaluated, snzymes associated with melanosis will be extracted from shrimp, purified and their activities determined, potential inhibitors tested, head space gases from sulfite treated shrimp will be analyzed. Fish packaged in six gas atmospheres stored at 0-2 and 5-8C for 18 days will be examined for sensory, biochsmical and microbiological qualities, cmposition of gases in packages will be analyzed by gas chomatography.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Nodified-atmosphere packaging (MAP) of fish using carbon dioxide was shown to be effective in inhibiting the growth of typical gram-negative spoilage organizes. Gram-positive organisms, especially lactobacilli, not normally associated with fish held on ice, were little affected by the modified atmospheres. This selective inhibition of the typical gram-negative spoilage organisms, together with the much slower growth rate of gram-positive organisms on fish, results in a significant extension of shelf-life when using CO(2) atmospheres. The seafood industry should benefit from the use of MAP systems with CO(2). The higher initial costs of packaging would certainly be compensated by savings on transportation and handling costs and, most of all, by a significant extension in the shelf-life of the product. Indole levels have recently been used by the Food and Drug Administration as an index of quality in fresh and frnzen shrimp. The determination of indole, however, has been performed using sophisticated and expensive instrumentation prohibiting its use as a quality control tool in the seafood industry. A simple method where indole is extracted with light petroleum from trichlovoacetic acid-precipitated shrimp muscle was developsd. The extracted indole, soluble in light petroleum, is re-extracted with Ebrlich's reagent and indols in form of a rose indole complex can be determined spectrophotomstrically. It is anticipated that this modified method may find its use as a much needed quality control tool in the seafood industry.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- EANKS, H., NICKELSON, R. and FINNE, G. 1980. Shelf-life Studies on Carbon Dioxide Packaged Finfish from the Gulf of Mexico. J. Food Sci. 45:157-162.
- NICKELSCN, 5. and FINNE, G. 1980. Brine Freezing Shrimp. Proc. 5th Ann. Trop. and Subtrop. Fisheries Tech. of the Americas 5:158-164.
- LANNELONGUE-FAVRE, N. 1580. Storage Characteristics of Fresh Fish Packed in Modified Gas Atmospheres Containing Carbon Dioxide. N.S. Thesis, Texas A and M University, 57 pp.

009.037* CRIS0064807 MICROEIOLOGICAL ASPECTS TO SHELLPISH SANITATION AND QUALITY

VANDERZANT C; RAY S N; ANIWAL SCIENCE; TEXAS AGM UNIVERSITY, COLLEGE STATICN, TEXAS. 77843. Proj. No.: TEX06054 Agency ID: CSRS Period: 07 JAN 74 To 30 SEP 80

OEJECTIVES: Determine the level and seasonal distribution of Vibrio parabaemolyticus in freshly barvested oysters, clams and mussels. The effect of processing and handling procedures in wholesale and retail operations on V. parabaemolyticus also will be studied. Data on environmental and water characteristics will be used to examine possible relations between microbiological quality of seafoods and environmental characteristics.

APPROACH: Oysters, clams and mussels from Galveston Eay and waters and sediment from these areas will be examined for microbiological parameters (V. parahaemolyticus, coliforms, iecal coliforms, etc.).

PROGRESS: 74/01 TO 80/01. Vibrio parahaemolyticus is a potential pathogen transmitted to humans by consumption of contaminated seafoods. V. parahaemolyticus was present in low concentrations in about 60% of oysters, water and sediment of the Gulf of Mexico. No seasonal distribution of this organism was noted. There was no significant relationship between levels of V. parahaemolyticus and other bacteriological or environmental parameters. No increases in V. parahaemolyticus concentrations of seafood occurred when good processeing practices were applied. Most ssafood isolates of V. parahaemolyticus belonged to serotype 05: E17 and differed from typical clinical isolates. Few were hemolytic (Kanagawa-positive). Kanagawa-positive and Eanagawa-negative strains of V. parahaemolyticus were examined for enterotoxigenicity, enteropathogenicity, drug resistance and plasmid DNA content. No significant relationship existed between cultural characteristics and indices of pathogenicity. Only 3 of 31 straines, all patient isolates, contained plasmid DNA with molecular weights of 24 or 60 willior daltors.

PUBLICATIONS: 74/01 TO 80/01 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

009.038* CRISO060713 LIPID METABOLISM IN AQUATIC ORGANISMS

BOTTINO N E; BIOCBEMISTRY & BICPBYSICS; TEXAS A&M UNIVERSITY, COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS. 77843. Proj. No.: TEX01926 Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 SEP 71 To 31 WAY 81

OBJECTIVES: Characterize the fatty acyl lipids of various trophic levels in open waters in the proximity and under the Ross Icc Stelf. Evaluate the transfer of lipids through these trophic levels. Characterize the influence of a reduced degree of illumination on the polyunsaturated fatty acid content of the lipids of various trophic levels.

APPEOACE: Various experiments are proposed to study the metabolism of lipids in aquatic organisms and its application to improve the quality of these aquatic products as human food. Various fatty acid mixtures will be fed to shrimp and the growth rate determined. Seasonal variations in the sterol composition of shrimp from the Gulf of Nexico will be characterized. Groups of Tilapia aurea will be fed different diets and the degree of fat production will be determined, and Warine invertebrates will be grown in the presence of inorganic selenium and the incorporation of the element will be followed. Furthermore, the selenium-compounds formed will be characterized.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 81/05. Studies were continued on basic and applied aspects of the metabolism of lipids (fats) and selenium in aquatic organisms. The sterols of Gulf of Mexico shrimp (white and brown shrimps were analyzec) were 90 to 95% cholesterol plus small amounts (1 to 2% each) of other components. The level of cholestercl in shrimp muscle was about 1 g per 100 g. About 90% of the cholesterol was free, the rest heing cholesterol esters. No major differences were detected between the two species of sbrimp that were studied. Tilapia aurea is a freshwater fish that is becoming very popular among aquaculturists. Our studies on this advanced significantly when we were able to adapt recently developed methods to the isolation of Tilapia liver mitochondria. These studies will be subject of a future publication. Work on the physiclogical and toxiological effects of selenium in a algae continued vigorously. We are in the process of analyzing the selenium-containing gases (probably selenides) exhaled by various algae. Furthermore, we have analyzed the biochesical components of various algae after their exposure to selenium and found selenium in amino acids, proteins, carbohydrates and lipids in decreasing order. These and experiments with radiolabeled selenium indicate that selenius is incorporated into the algal cells and also that selenium as selenite is much better incorporated that selenium as selenate.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 81/05

BOTTINO, N.R., GENNITY, J., LILLY, L.M., SIMMONS, E. and FINNE, G. 1980. Seasonal and Nutritional effects of the fatty acids of three species of sbrimp, Penaeus setiferus, P. aztecus, and P. duorarum. Apuaculture 19:139.

009.039* CRISO080100 CAGE CULTURE OF TILAPIA IN THE VIRGIN ISLANDS RAKOCY J E; NAIF A; ADMINISTRATICN; COLL OF VIRGIN ISLANDS, ST CROIX, VIRGIN ISLANDS. 00850. Proj. No.: VI00024 Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 CCI 79 To 30 SEP 84

OBJECTIVES: Develop practical cage culture methods of tilapia fish production sultable to the freshwater resources of the Virgin Islands. Evaluate the acceptiblity of tilapia as a food fish by the local populace.

APFROACE: Various tilapla species and their hybrids will be evaluated under similar growing conditions for use in freshwater cage culture production systems. Imported commercial pelleted fist feed will be compared to themselves and other animal feeds for cage culture use. Feeds comprised of locally produced ingredients will be formulated and evaluated for tilapia culture in cages. Stocking densities, the use of sliding feeding-rate schedules, and the evaluation of monosex cultures obtained by mechanical grading or hand sexing of tilapia (separation of sexes by observing sexually dimorphic external characteristics.) will be investigated for fish production in cages under Virgin Islands pond conditions. Fish produced in cage culture research will be evaluated by taste panels and sold to the public. Acceptability of tilapia as a food fish will be evaluated by questionaires and the actual marketability of the fish when compared to locally caught salt water species.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 IC 80/12. An experiment, presently in its twelfth month, was conducted to evaluate three commercial feeds, each of which was fed to caged tilapia according to three feeding rate schedules. The feeds were floating catfish pellets from Purina (#5140) and Sunshine Mills (Tupelo, MS) and sinking crumbles (Tilapia Finisher) from Central Soya (San Juan, PR). The protein content was 32% for Purina and Sunshine and 30% for Central Sova. The treatments were replicated three times with a stocking rate of 200 fish/m 3. The feeding rate schedules were 3% of body weight throughout the experiment, 5% for 2 months followed by reductions to 4,3,2 and 1% at monthly intervals (time slide) and thereafter maintained at 1%, and 5% to a mean weight of 60 g followed by reductions to 3% up to 100 g, 2% up to 150 g and 1% up to harvest (weight slide). The fish were fed once per day, 6 days per week, for 270 feeding days. After 6 months, the Central Soya treatments were discontinued because feed was lost through the cage sides during feeding, resulting in low growth rates. Analysis of the data after 11 months indicates that more growth was obtained with Purina. Mean weights for Purina were 269 g (3%), 246 g (time slide) and 301 g (weight slide) compared to respective mean weights of 229, 220 and 225 g for Sunshine. The cage mesh, (6-mm Vexar) partially clogged with algae and prevented adequate water circulation, contributing to low dissolved oxygen levels and growth rates, which generally averaged less than 1 g/day.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

009.040* CFIS0075551 CIGUATERA FISE POISONING IN THE U.S. V.I.: BIOCHEMICAL, PHYSOLOGICAL, AND MICROBIOLOGICAL STUDIES

 MCMILLIAN J P; RAKOCY J E; BUSCE R L; ADMINISTRATION;

 VIRGIN ISLANDS AGRIC EXPT STAT, KINGSBIIL ST CECIX,

 VIRGIN ISLANDS. 00850.

 Proj. No.: VI00020

 Project Type: BATCE Agency ID: CSES

 Period: 26 MAY 78 To 25 MAY 83

OBJECTIVES: Achieve a better understanding of the biology and chemistry of ciguatoxin. Develop a simple, reliable test for the ciguatoxicity of fish. Determine the biological source(s) of toxin.

APPEOACE: The nature of the Virgin Islands ciguatoxin will be determined and compared to that investigated in other areas. Ciguatoxin extracts will be tested whether it inhibits the growth of a variety of rapidly growing bacteria. The gut contents of toxic and non-toxic fish will be examined for the presence of microorganisme that may be associated with ciguatoxin. The usefulness of immunological methods to detect ciguatoxin will be determined. Suspect coral reef microorganisms will be grown on artificial media to determine if a ciguatoxin-like substance is produced. Efforts will be made to determine whether the toxin can be detected by immunological methods and also whether there is an alteration of blood or liver enzymes in ciguatoxin fish.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Two methods of purification for ciguatoxic extracts obtained from fish flesh previously implicated in human poisonings have been developed. The first method involves two-step thin-layer chromatography, TLC-I and TLC-II, which give, reepectively, lethal doses (LD(99)) of 500mg/kg and 10 to 100 mg/kg when tested in the mouse bioassay. The second technique employs silicic acid column chromatography (CC) and givee a LD(SS) of 50 to 200 mg/kg. The second method (CC) is much less time and labor intensive than the first and provides comparable purification. Gambierdiscus toxicue is a dinoflagellate found in the tropical oceans of the world usually on or near coral reefs; often in association with various macroalgae. Extraction and bloaseay of G. toxicus from field collections in the Virgin Islands and from unialgal cultures (provided by Southern Illinois University) suggests the presence of at least three toxic fractions; a chloroform soluble fraction (CTX), an acetone ineoluble fraction (NTX), and an acetone soluble fraction (Other).

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

009.041 CRIS0072469 ANALYSIS OF DOWESTIC FOOD DEMAND AND CONSUMPTION BEBAVIOE

HAVLICEK J J5; AGRI ECONOMICS; VIRGINIA POLY INST, HLACKSBURG, VIRGINIA. 24061. Proj. No.: VA-0622280 Agency ID: CERS Period: 01 JAN 77 To 30 SEP 81

OHJECTIVHS: Levelop systems of behavioral relationships explaining consumer demand. Define and eetimate parameters describing demand and consumption decisione with particular emphasis on food demand behavior and nutritional intake. Assess the implicatione of the findings from analytical and policy perspectives.

APPECACH: Demand and consumption models will be formulated which will permit incorporating more than price and income variables. Focue will be on identifying and measuring the impacts of major factore on demand behavior at various levels of the marketing channel and household demand and concumption behavior for selected meat, poultry, eeafoods, cereals, and fruit and vegetable products. In particular, the effecte non-food expenditures and food policies euch as food stamps will be taken into consideration. Cross-sectional data such as HLS Consumer Expenditure Survey data and USDA Household Food Consumption Survey data will be analyzed in addition to various types of time series data for the selected food products. Analyses will utilize etatietical and econometric methods such as analysis of variance, chi-square analyses, regression analyeis, and eyetems of simultaneous equations.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Analyses of consumer purchases of ground beef, eteaks, roaste, pork, poultry, other meats, ecafood, and food away from home indicated a dramatic decrease in the at-home concumption of beef, a elight decrease in the at-home concumption of other meats and in food consumed away from home, and a elight increase in the at-home consumption of pork, poultry, and seafood in the Northeast, Midweet, South, and West. A comparison of the S(1)-branch eyetem and the constant elasticity of demand system (CHDS) indicated (1) the S(1)-branch eyetem generated more reliable structural estimates, (2) the goodnese-of-fit of the S(1)-branch eystem to the sample data was better than the goodness-of-fit of the CEDs, and (3) the predictive ability of the S(1)-branch system to independent data samples was better than the predictive ability of the CEDS. The statis theoretical framework cf complete demand systems was summarized from an historical perspective, and several development, usefulness, and estimation issues of complete demand systems were analyzed. Quantity data from the 1972-1974 BLS Consumer Expenditure Diary Survey were edited and prepared for use by researchers across the U.S. Errors and discrepancies with respect to socioeconomic and demographic factors and expenditures, quantity, packaging, price, and other variablee were identified.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- CAPPS JR., C. 1980. The Impacts of Selected Nonfonds, Foods, Socioeconomic and Demographic Characteristics on the Decision to Purchase Various Meats and Seafoods for Home Consumption. AJAE. December. Abstract.
- CAPPS JR., O. and HAVLICEK JE., J. 1980. Impacts of Selected Nonfoods, Foods, Socioeconomic and Demographic Characteristics on the Decision to Purchase Varioue Neets and Seafoods in the U.S. and the South. Staff Paper SP-80-3.
- CAPPS JR., C. and HAVLICEE JR., J. National and Regional Household Demands for Meats and Seafood in the U.S.: A Complete Systems Approach. AJAE. December. Abstract.
- CAPPS JR., O. and HAVLICEK Jk., J. 1980. Static Theoretical Framework of Complete Demand Systems. Dept. of Agric. Econ. Staff Paper SP-80-12. Virginia Tech, Blacksburg, VA. September. 68 pp.
- CAPPS JR., O. and HAVLICEK JR., J. The Demand for Selected Weats and Seafood Using the S(1)-Branch System. Chap

009.042 CRIS0064710 POISONOUS DINOFLAGELLATES AND SHHILFISH POISONING

SCHNOES H K; SCHANTZ E J; BICCHEMISTRY; UNIVERSITY CF WISCONSIN, MADISON, WISCONSIN. 53706. Proj. No.: WIS02045 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 SEP 73 To 30 DEC 80

OEJECTIVES: Research objectives include: Culturing of poisonoue dinoflagellatere; isolatinn and characterization of new toxins; study of their chemistry and biochemistry of action; and etudy of their biosynttesie.

APPROACH: Organiess are cultured in large carboys, in natural and artificial ecawater under constant illumination. Isolation involves a series of chromatographic etepe including ion exchange, adsorption, and gel cbromatography. New compounds are to be characterized by physical techniques (nuclear magnetic reconance and mass spectroscopy, espeically) as well as chemical degradations. The toxins will be etructurally modified to explore structure activity relationships.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TC 80/12. We have investigated the potent neurotoxins produced by species of marine dinoflagellatee of the genus Gonyaulax. From laboratory culturee of a producing organism (G. excavata) as well as from toxin-contaminated shellfish (scallops, collected in the Hay of Fundy) we have isolated six toxins and characterized their structures. All compounde are etructurally related to saxitoxin which we previously characterized. The six toxine are: saxitoxin, neo-saxitoxin (1-hydroxysaxitoxin), 11Alpha-hydroxysaxitoxin sulfate, 11Heta-hydroxyeaxitoxin eulfate; 11Alpha-hydroxyneosaxitoxin 11-sulfate, and 11Eeta-hydroxyneosaxitoxin 11-sulfate. The toxins accumulating in shellfish are the same as those produced by the dinoflagellatee but occur in different relative abundance. A variety of chemical analoge of eaxitoxin have been prepared and the affinity and hinding epecificity of the natural toxins and their chemical analoge for the eodium channel in nerve membranes has been investigated to obtain information on the structural features of the molecule which are important for toxin/channel interactione. The five-membered guanidine ring and the C-12-ketone function of these compounds were shown to he the most important features determining

binding affirity. From the dinoflagellate Gymnodinium breve (iodigenous to the Gulf of Mexico, and responsible for massive fish kills there) we have isolated two ichthyotoxic compounds in pure form.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- BOYER, G.L., WICHMANN, C.F., MOSSER, J., SCBANTZ, E.J. and SCBNOES, B.K. 1979. Toxios Isolated From Bay of Fuody Scallops. In: Toxic Dinoflagellate Blooms, Taylor, D.L. and Seliger, B.B., Eds., pp. 373-376. Proceedings of the Second
- NICCCLAI, N., SCENCES, H.K. and GIEHCNS, W.A. 1980. Study of the Stereochem istry, Felaxation Mechanisms and Intercal Moticos of Natural Products Utilizing Proton Relaxation Parameters: Solution and Crystal Structure of

009.043 IDENTIFICATION OF OFF-FLAVOR COMPOUND SOURCES FOR FISE AND WATER FROM THE UPPER VISCONSIN BIVER

LINDSAY R C; FOOD SCIENCE; UNIVERSITY CF WISCONSIN, MADISON, WISCONSIN. 53706. Proj. No.: WIS02520 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 15 AUG 79 To 30 SEP 83

OBJECTIVES: Identify the malodorous volatile constituents contributing to off-flavored fish and water from the Upper Wisconsin River at selected sides between Brokaw and DuBay Dam; attempt to identify sources of off-flavored compounds through matching of cdor types and compound profiles.

APPEOACE: A variety of fish will be obtained from Department of Natural Besources sampling crews. The fish will be processed into usual edible portions, and appropriate samples will be subjected to secory analysis to locate species with notable levels of off-flavors. Subjective evaluation will be follosed by suitable scalyses for recovery of volatil malodorous compounds. Identity of offending compounds will be established through GC-WS and supporting techniques and contribution to off-odor and flavors will be established and subjectively. Natching of volatile profiles of water and fish will be attempted to locate sources of Compounds.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Research has continued on the assessment of off-flavors in fish taken from several sites between Erokaw and D Hay Daw on the Wisconsin Elver. Data have been developed which show that seasonal effects may influence apparent flavors of walleye pike, and that these effects may be either oatural environmental influences or a result of iodustrial activities along the river. Vacuum distillation methods for recovery of volatile flavor compounds have been applied, and samples are currectly under analysis by combined gas chromatography-mass spectrometry. Sources of compounds identified in walleye pike appear to be the food chain, naturally occurring constituent reactions, environmentally-related natural compounds, aod those from industrially-related activities oo the river.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERICD.

10. Marketing and Economics

010.001 CFIS0072375 THE STATUS AND RELATION OF THE COASTAL ZONE TO ALABAMA'S ECCNONY

BARDY JR W E; CLONTS JR H A; NCCOY E W; AGFI ECONOMICS & RUBAL SOCICL; AUBURN UNIVERSITY, AUBURN, ALABAMA. 368 CO. Proj. No.: ALA-01-0059 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES

Period: 01 JAN 77 To 31 DEC 77

OBJECTIVES: Describe the scope of iodustrial activity io the coastal region of Alabama, with emphasis on the seafood industry. Major sectors of iodustries will be delineated and their interrelationships analyzed to estimate the contribution of each industry to economy of the coastal area and State. Determine economic and environmental impact of the Alabama seafood iodustry of total resources, other iodustries of coastal zone, and the State.

APPROACE: Appropriate primary and secondary data will be assimilated and analyzed. This will include descriptive and quaotitative data. Hased on the data, an ioput-output model will be constructed to determine the effects of various industries. Iodustrial aod invironmeot considerations will be analyzed. Information will be useful to state and local area planners.

PROGRESS: 79/01 TO 79/12. A secondary data base of eovironmental ioput-output coefficients was constructed and combined with the economic input-output model developed during earlier stages of the project. Model analysis permits an evaluation of the environmeotal effects of each of the thirty sectors which were found to exist in the Alabama coastal economy. Manuscripts are being developed which will completely describe both the economic and environmeotal input-output models.

PUELICATICNS: 79/01 TO 79/12 NISSAN, E., WILLIAMS, D.C., GREEN, T., BAEDY, W.E. aod NELSCN, E.G. 1979. Ao Economic Input-Cutput Analysis for Wississippi-Alabama Coastal Counties. Mississippi-Alabama Sea Graot Program, MASGP-78-029, Ccean Springs, MS. NELSON, R.G. aod BARDY, JR., W.E. 1979. "The

Economy of Alahama's Coastal Counties," Bighlights of Agricultural Research. Ala. Agric. Exp. Sta., Vol. 26, No. 2.

010.002* CRIS0058961 FRESHWATER FOOD ANIMALS

LOVELL F T; MCCOY E W; FISHERIES 6 ALLIED AQUACULTURE; AUBURN UNIVERSITY, AUEURN, ALABAMA. 36830. Proj. No.: ALA00630 Project Type: HATCE Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 FEB 71 To 30 SEP 81

OBJECTIVES: Evaluate economics of production, processing, and marketing of freshwater food animals. Develop and improve products and processing methods that will echance marketability and insure quality of cultured freshwater food animals.

APPROACE: Mechanically debooed flesh from various fishes will be evaluated with regard to yield, quality, and storage stability. Waste from fich processing will be evaluated chemically and biologically, and technology will be developed for ecocomic waste utilizatioo. Wethods will be tested for control of geosmin related off-flavor in pond raised fish. Costs and returns associated with production of food fish in various culture systems will be assessed. Identify and evaluate alternative marketing and distribution systems for fish with respect to market expansion, consumer reactions, and optimiziog income to producers and processors.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. 59 collections of catfish processing waste (tead, skin, viscera) from the major processing plants and representing production ponds from Alae, Misse and Arke were analyzed for a-BEC, heptachlor, DDE, DDT, Dieldrin, endrin and tomaphene. All samples contained tomaphene. All samples contained tomaphene; the range was 0.06 to 3.6 mg/kg. DDE and DDT was found in most; the range of DDE was 0.01 to 0.56 mg/kg and the range of DDT was 0.01 to 0.58 mg/kg. None of the pesticide concentration in any sample exceeded the levels allowed in human foods, indicating the waste should be safe to use in commercial fish feeds. 35 off-flavored catfish collected from p rocessing plants in Mississippi during April-June 1980 were evaluated by a trained sensory panel for quality and intensity of off-flavor. Only eix of the samplee had the distinct geoemin flavor which was formerly thought to be the major off-flavor in pond raieed catfieh. The moet prominent flavor was "fecal" (eewage or manure); other were "rancid", "paint", "dieeel", and "algae". Extracte from each flish were sent to the Southern Regional Research Center (USDA - AR) for compound identification.

- PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12
 - LOVELL, R.T. 1980. Utilization of Catfieb Processing wate. Auburn Univ. Agri. Exp. Sta. Bull. S 21. 19 p.
 - LOVELL, R.T. 1980. S-83 Annual Report: Freshwater Food Animale. So. Coop. Ser. Sp. Rep., June, 1980. 20 pp.
 - LOVELL, F. 1. 1980. Effects of Feeding Full-Fat Soybean Meal on Growth and Flesh Quality in Catfish. Aquaculture 6(3):39.
 - LOVELL, B. I. 1980. Nutritional Value of Fish. Aquaculture 6(5) 45.
 - LOVELL, R.T. 1980. Effecte of Feed on Sensory Quality of Fish. Aquaculture 6(6) 41.

010.003 CFIS0060945 CATFISH BREEDING, PRODUCTION, AND MARKETING

ELAN E V; AGSI ECONOMICS & RURAL SOCIOL; UNIVERSITY OF ARKANSAS, FAYETTEVILLE, ARKANSAS. 72701. Proj. No.: AFK00763 Project Type: EATCH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 JUL 71 To 30 SEP 81

OBJECTIVES: Develop proceesing and marketing technology for the catfieh industry.

APPROACE: Interviewe with huyere and controlled in-etore interviews with customers will be used to collect data on preference, usage, huying practices and other influential variables to provide the basis for evaluating the market potential for catfish producte and market etrategies.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. The regional project did not have an economic component that was active this year. Minimum contact was maintained with State and Federal agencies regarding volume of production and marketing data. Some materiale were furnished to the Cooperative Extension Service for their educational program.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

010.004 ECONOMICS OF AQUACULTURE

CIIS0066364

JOHNSTON W E; EOWITT E E; CARMAN E F; AGRI ECONOMICS; UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, DAVIS, CALIFCENTA. 95616. Proj. No.: CA-D*-AEC-3107-WH Project Type: EATCH Agency ID: CSES Period: 11 SEP 74 To 30 SEP 82

OBJECTIVES: Investigate the economic potential for commercial aquaculture. The long-range goal of this project focusee on the economic potential of speciee not presently identified as commercially productive in culture eystems. The immediate focus will be on the northern (or New England) lobster Homarue americanus.

APPROACE: The investigation has two major components roughly parallel to economics of production potential and economics of market potential. The first relates to determining the "eupply function" for loheters from mariculture and will involve close liagon with other invectigators studying the genetic, hiological, and engineering potentials for culture. By necessity, the phase of the investigation will be a continuing one involving economic evaluation of experiments including perhaps recommendations for specific experimental deeigns, and ultimately economic evaluation and recommendations of proposed aquaculture systeme. The second component, economice of market potential, hae as ite objectives the determination of economic feasibility and the assesement of the economic impact of the "new" inductry.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Major work on this project included the updating of the lobster model to early 1980 conditions for an invited presentation to an FAO sympoelum in Norway. Major cost components increased were construction, energy, and indirect coets. It was shown that while that system costs increased by 75% from 1975 to early 1980, non-heat coets roee by a leeser amount (37%), and that commercial feasibility for systems using heated effluents seems near at hand collaborating recent power company interests and invectmente in Maine and in Southern California. Project will terminate in 1981. /80/Symp.:E/S6).

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- JOHNSTON, W.E. and EOTSFORD, L.W. 1980. Systems Analysis for Loheter Aquaculture. Presented at Symposium on New Developments in the Utilization of Eeated Effluents and of Recirculation Systeme for Intensive Aquaculture.
- FLETCHEE, J.J. and JOENSTON, W.F. 1980. Vessell Characterietice and Summary Report of Landings and Revenues of the Northern California Crah Fleet: Coastwide Summary Data Base, 1974-76. Davie, Processed. Prepared for National JOENSTON, W.E. 1981. The Economy: gflaticn.
- JOHNSTON, W.E. 1981. The Economy: qflation, Productivity and the Aquaculture Industry. Comments Made on the Major Topics Panel. California Aquaculture Association/California Fish Farmere Workshop, San Diego.

010.005 CFIS0080062 TOVARDS A THEORY OF THE REGULATED FISBERY

WILEN J E; INST OF ECOLOGY; UNIVERSITY OF CALIFOINIA, DAVIS, CALIFOINIA. 95616. Proj. No.: CA-D*-ECL-3883 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 79 To 31 AUG 81

OEJECTIVES: Develop come new conceptual models of commercial fiching firms operating in a regulated fichery. The intended benefit will be a better understanding ex ante of the impact of various regulatory echemee on individual fichermen, of their reactions to euch schemee, and of the reactione regulatory agenciee in turn.

APPROACE: Combination of deductive conceptual modeling and empirical testing of the models. The first stage will involve capturing in as simple form as possible the nature of regulator-regulatee interactions and then deducing predictions. Then some regulatory case etudies will be examined to verify or refute the hypothesis.

PEOGRESS: 80/01 TC 80/12. This project is proceeding in two directions at present: extension of theoretical work done last year on behavioral models of flehermen decision-making, and teeting of theories hy investigating actual fisheriee. The project topic remains an important ieeue for fleheries management--it is hecoming increasingly necessary to forecaet how fishermen will react to changing circumetancee such as price and coet changes and regulation changes. Little work (theoretical or empirical) has been done on these issues. This year an agricultural economics graduate student at UCD is beginning diecertation work under my supervision extending some of the ideas developed thus far. We plan to spend time researching data availability in exieting fisheriee this eummer.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED TEIS PERIOD.

010.006 CRISO068219 BCONOMICS OF PRODUCING AND MARKETING LONG ISLAND SOUND OYSTERS

LEONARD R L; AGRI ECONOMICS & RUBAL SOCIOL; UNIVERSITY OF CONNECTICUT, STORRS, CONNECTICUT. 06268. Proj. No.: CONS00466 Project Type: EATCE Agency ID: CSES Period: 01 JUL 75 To 31 JAN 79 OBJECTIVES: Froject for the Long Island Sound oyster industry the impact of alternative regulatory and public investment policies on production, marketing, prices, employment, and industry profits.

APFECACE: Comparative budgeting will be used to estimate supply functions with alternative regulatory policies and levels of investment to improve public seed beds. A simultaneous equation model will be used to project the impact of alternative supply functions on price and quantity gold.

PRCGRESS: 79/01 TO 79/12. Terminated January 31, 1978.

PUBLICATIONS: 79/01 TO 79/12 FCLSON, W.F. 1979. An Economic Analysis of the Long Island Sound Oyster Industry. Ph.D. Thesis. Univ. of Connecticut, Storrs. 99p.

010.007 CEIS0063026 ECONOMIC BEBAVIOR OF FOOD AND FIBEE FIRMS

PRCCHASKA F J; COLETTE W A; ALVAREZ J; FOCD S RESCURCE ECONCMICS; UNIVERSITY OF FLORIDA, GAINESVILLE, FLORIDA. 32601. Proj. No.: FLA-AS-01621 Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 NOV 72 To 31 DEC 80

OBJECTIVES: Tevelop and maintain current technical and economic data relative to enterprises and firms producing and marketing selected agricultural and marine commodities. Evaluate alternative firm decisions for maximizing net income. Appraise economic effects of institutional arrangements and regulations on firm operations.

APPEGACB: Sample surveys and cost studies to establish input-output relationships, enterprise profitability and firm efficiency. Develop and analyze economic models of firm structure and operation with varying technical, economic, institutional and legal arrangements and restrictions using simulation, linear programming and other EDP methods and procedures.

PRCGBESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. A formal decision model was constructed to determine the optimal time to replace an existing field of sugarcane. An analysis to evaluate the effects of producing sugarcane following rice production was completed. The economic feasibility of cancelling ECCB compounds in the Everglades Agricultural Area was evaluated. The energy input for celery production was computed for the Everglades and Central Florida. Developed a 1980 budget for field-corn production in the Everglades. Production, costs and returns data for Florida lobster fishermen were analyzed. The most profitable allocation of fishing effort between lobstering and stone crabbing by time of year or fisbing season was determined. A biostatistical model was developed to analyze production of Gulf of Mexico reef fish. A profit maximizing dynamic linear programming model was developed to determine the optimal levels of field crop, forage and beef cattle enterprises in North and West Florida. The economic feasibility of on-farm grain storage and drying was evaluated. Collected and summarized data on grove care costs from grove caretakers in the Ridge and Indian Biver areas

- CEANE, D.R. and SPREEN, T.B. 1980. A Model of the Stubble Beplacement Decision for Florida Sugarcane Growers. Southern Journal of Agricultural Economics 12:2. December.
- ALVAREZ, J., KIDDER, G., SPREEN, T.B. and CRANE, D.B. 1980. Rates of Decline in Productivity of Florida Sugarcane. Soil and Crop Science Society of Florida Proceedings. 39:95-98.
- MISHCE, J.W. and ALVAREZ, J. 1980. Energy Use in Florida Celery Production. In: Bandbook of Energy Utilization in Agriculture, pp. 185-188, Pimental, D., Editor. Boca Raton, FL, CRC Press Inc.

LANDRUN, P.D. and PROCHASKA, F.J. 1980. The Florida Hlue Crab Industry: Landings, Prices and Resources Productivity. State University System of Florida Sea Grant Report 34:51. Gainesville, University of Florida. August.

PREVATT, J.W., REYNOLDS, J.E. and MELTON, E.E. 1980. Determination of Optimal Levels of Field Crops, Forage and Beef Cattle Enterprises. Soil and Crop Science Society of Florida Proceedings 39:108-112.

010.008 CRIS0073519 ANALYSIS OF DOMESTIC FOOD DEMAND AND CONSUMPTION BERAVIOR

 PROCEASKA F J; TILLER D; FOOD & RESOURCE ECCNOMICS;

 UNIVERSITY OF FLOBIDA, GAINESVILLE, FLCEIDA. 32601.

 Proj. No.: FLA-AS-01843

 Project Type: HATCH

 Agency ID: CSKS

Period: 01 JAN 77 To 30 SEP 81

OBJECTIVES: Develop systems of behavioral relationships explaining consumer demand. Evaluate present systems for food demand analysis and evole criteria for improving information systems.

APPROACH: Development and estimation of the necessary parameters for an analytical system of demand relationships with special emphasis on a detailed analysis of the food sector. It is proposed that a microeconomic empirical approach which makes use of both economic and psychological factors be taken. Assessment of present data systems as to their adequecy for analysis of food demand. Work associated with the second part of this objective will concentrate on the formulation and testing of new or improved data systems. Continuity of information is necessary in order that movements and trends in food demand may be measured in response to changing socioeconomic conditions and/or governmental policies.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. An econometric model relating household expenditures on fishery products to the household's socio economic and demographic characteristics was estimated with ELS data. Specific independent variables included in the Tobit model were food stamps, income expenditures away from home, race, urbanization, occupation, education and adult equivalent scales. A total of 85 equations were estimated by region and seafood group. Cross tabulations of mean consumption levels by independent variables were made. An econometric model of the wholesale and retail demand for frozen concentrated orange juice (FCOJ) and chilled orange juice (COJ) was estimated. The endogenous variables of the model are FOB, FCOJ inventory, FOB prices, domestic retail size FOB movement, bulk FOB movement retail prices of FCCJ and COJ and retail sales of FCCJ and CCJ. Derived reduced form equations were estimated and used to perform several stimulation exercises. Differences between elasticities derived from structural and reduced form equations are distinguished. Long-run price elasticities of demand for frozen concentrated orange juice and chilled orange juice were estimated to be -0.777 and -1.136, respectively. Time varying parameter estimation procedures were used to estimate the demand for frozen concentrated orange juice (FCOJ), chilled orange juice (COJ) and canned single strength (CSS) orange juice.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

WARD, F.W. and TILLEY, D.S. 1980. Time Varying Parameters with Random Components: The Orange Juice Industry. Southern Journal of Agricultural Economics. Vol 12, Number 2, December.
MALICK, W.M. 1980. A Simultaneous Equation Model of the Florida Retail Orange Juice Marketing System.
M.S. Thesis, University of Florida.

010.009 CRISO084329 PRODUCTION ECONOMICS OF AQUACULTURE SPECIES IN BAWAII

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

 SHANG Y C; SAMPLES K C; AGRI & RESCURCE ECCNCNICS;

 UNIVERSITY OF HAWAII, BONOLULU, HAWAII. \$6822.

 Proj. No.: HAW00475-H

 Agency ID: CSRS

 Period: 01 NAY \$1 To 30 SEP \$3

OBJECTIVES: To determine current and experiment costs and returns for commercial production of catfieh, oyster, mullet, marine shrimp and trine shrimp in Hawaii. To design a computerized budget generator for pond aquaculture in Bawaii.

APPEOACE: This etudy will attempt to evaluate the profitability of the production of various aquaculture species in Hawaii for both intended fish farmere and policymakers. The cost and return method is used in this study. Data needed for analysis will be collected through personnel interview of producers and input suppliers. Sensitivity analysis will be conducted. Culture practices in other regions will be collected for reference.

010.010 CFIS0077778 ECONOMICS OF FISHERIES DEVELOPMENT AND MANAGEMENT FOR THE HAWAIIAN ARCHIPELAGO

CONITINI S; LAVIDSON J R; AGRI ECONCMICS; UNIVERSITY CF HAWAII, HCNCLULU, HAWAII. 96822. Proj. No.: HAW00474-S Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JAN 79 To 30 SEP 82

OBJECTIVES: Determine the economic feasibility of alternative poseibilities for figheries development in the Hawaiian Archipelago. Determine the economic and gocial benefits and coste of figheries development in the Hawaiian Archipelago.

APPEDACE: This etudy will attempt to establish potentials for both economic benefits and costs of fisheries development and the nature of the tradeoffs between economic benefits and social values. The working hypotheses is that fistery devlopment can produce positive net benefite even with "adequate" allowance for protection of eocial values.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Work was completed on phase 1 of this project. A feasibility analysis of alternative paths of fisheries development was finalized using three classes of tuna (ahi) longliners as prototype vessels for planned development of the tuna resources. The high fuel requirements of the larger vessles appear to impose a major constraint on their profitability for long-distance operations. These findings will assist State planners to modify exisiting strategies for fisheries development in the Hawalian archipelago.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

COMITINI, 5. and DAVIDSON, J.B. 1980. Economics of Fisberies Development for the Hawaiin Archipelago. Proc. of the Symposium on Status of Resource Investigations in the Northwestern Hawaiian Islands, Eds. Grigg, E.W. and

010.011* CRIS0074563 SYSTEMS ANALYSIS OF INTENSIVE AQUACULTUPE: A CASE STUDY OF OYSTEP PRODUCTION

YAMAUCHI H; DAVIDSON J R; AGRI ECONCMICS; UNIVERSITY OF HAWAII, HCNOLULU, HAWAII. 96822. Proj. No.: HAW00470S Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 NOV 77 To 30 SEP 80

OBJECTIVES: The overall goal is to generate information which can be useful for improving on the economic efficiency of commercial oyster production in the State. Specific objectives are: Conduct a feasibility study which will examine biological, technical, and economic parameters in an intensive oyster production system, and develop and analyze alternative management strategies for the current specie and system configuration. APPROACH: A systems analytic approach will be followed in this study. A simulation model will be developed of the land-based oyster culture operations of the Kahuku Seafood Plantation. This simulation model will incorporate the relevant biological, technical, and economic parameters of the operating eystem. The model will be used in the feasibility study and analysis of alternative management strategies.

PECGRESS: 77/11 10 80/0S. This study assessed the feasihility of land-based oyster squaculture for Bawaii and examined the constraints which are likely to affect the development of an industry. Conclusions were: emall ecale land-based oyster culture is technically feasible. Commercial production on a limited scale is being attempted in Hawaii, but as yet, without sustained outputs. Opportunities to realize further efficiency gains through economiee of scale are limited. Emphaeis is on developing new management techniques within exisiting scales. Various uncertainties make it difficult for conventional commercial lending sources to assess the viability of oyster aquaculture ventures. Therefore, scale expansion will probably not be forthcoming.

PUBLICATIONS: 77/11 TO 80/09 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

010.012* CRIS0079155 INPROVEMENT OF OGO PRODUCTION AND MARKETING IN MAXAII

DOTY M S; BOTANY; UNIVERSITY OF HAWAII, BONGLULU, HAWAII. 96822. Proj. No.: BAW00688 Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 24 APR 79 To 30 SEP 82

OBJECTIVES: Inventory the current OGO (Gracilaria) industry ite problems and potentials. Identify and appraise the environments of potential production areas in Hawaii. Experimentally grow Gracilaria in those areas and ecasonally determine its market values and growth rates. Adapt methods of algal farming used elsewhere to selected areas and develop recommendations for pest and fertilizer control, and marketing. Demonstrate adapted farming technologies and provide technical advice with the aim of inducing Gracilaria farming in USA.

APPROACH: Analyze the results of interviews with the people now active in the Gracilaria industry to appraise the industry in Hawaii and elsewhere. Survey the environments of potential farm sites in Hawaii to select the more favorable and enlist owner interest. Monitoring test plantings to yield growth rates and market quality during the seasone will permit selection among the eites. Adapt farming methods in use elsewhere for optimal production and markket plane at the selected sites. Demonstration plots at suitable sites, discussions with the nearby people, and technical help will be used to get farming initiated and etablized.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TC 80/12. The local Gracilaria fresh vegetable market shortage has continued. Curiously, quality and form variations have been found in the course of the seasonal study that seem to follow quickly upon changes in the environment. Thus, the correlated studies of the environments and growth rates are being continued and an experimental program added with additional appropriate measurements to elucidate the nature of these phenomena. Experiments to shorten the lag time observed in the harvesting methods used to date bave been begun. These, in short, are primarily experimental harvesting by cutting off only certain of the longest more central branches of the thalli with the controls heing the complete abbreviation of the thalli found to be the most favorable among the earlier harvest methode recommended as management practice. The work has been extended from Cahu to the island of Molokai under such staffing conditions that an equitable amount of effort may be epent on both as success in farming progresses. Interestingly, the Gracilaria species from Molokai are different both in form and gel nature from those on Cahu. This is hard to understand in view of the wide geographic distribution of the two principle speciee and so by tranerlanting

experiments explanations are being sought.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NC PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

010.013* CFIS0045121 PEELIMINARY COSTS OF CATFISE PROCESSING WASTE UTILIZATION

FREEWAN D W; DECOSSAS K W; SPADARO J J; USDA-ARS SOUTHERN REG FES CENTEF, NEW CELEANS, LCUISIANA. 70179. Proj. No.: 7102-20530-002 Project Type: INBOUSE Agency ID: ARS Period: 06 CCT 78 To 30 SEP 79

CBJECTIVES: Determine rates of waste production and compare the costs of disposal with alternate means of waste utilization for several large catfish processing plants. (TO-1).

APPEGACE: Establish field contacts and visit several large processing plants in Arkansas, Niississippi, and Alabama to confirm how these processors dispose of their wastes. Obtain or estimate the costs of such disposal and obtain or estimate the rates of waste production. Frepare preliminary capital investment and processing costs for alternate methods of converting these wastes into usable products.

PROGRESS: 78/10 TO 79/09. Visits were made to three catfish processing plants in the Mississippi Delta and methods of waste disposal were evaluated in two of them. Offal collection, essentially the same in both plants, consists of automatically conveying the heads, viscera, and skin from the eviscerating table, skinner, and washer to a common discharge, where the mixture is screened from the wastewater and collected in a holding bin. The offal from one plant, 6 million lbs annually, is discharged in bulk into trucks that haul it in 20,000-lb. loadsto a poultry rendering plant where it is blended in limited amounts with chicken waste to produce chicken feed. The renderer pay 1-2 cents/lb for the offal, which is about the cost to the processor for transporting it. The offal from the second plant, 4.5 million lbs. annually, is discharged into reusable 1500-2000-lb. capacity plastic containers, iced, and shipped, 20 containers per refrigerated trailer truck, to a cat food processor. The cat food processor pays 41/2 cents/lb. for the offal at destination, which covers all expenses to the catfish processor (labor, ice, stationary refrigeration of trailer track during 2-day loading period, and transport costs) and 1/2 cent/lb. profit. A rendering plant of the poultry type is under construction at the third catfish processing plant visited, to which admission was not gained.

PUELICATIONS: 78/10 TO 79/09 NC PUBLICATIONS SEPORTED THIS PERIOD.

010.014 CRIS0061088 AN ECONOMIC EVALUATION OF ICE FISHING IN MAINE

 BEILING S D; AGRI & BESOURCE ECONOMICS; UNIVERSITY OF

 MAINE, CRONO, MAINE. 04469.

 Proj. No.: ME08292

 Project Type: STATE

 Agency ID: SAES

 Period: 01 CCT 79 To 30 SEP 82

OBJECTIVES: Determine economic value of recreational ice fishing. Eetermine angler attitudes and preferences towards various fresh water species, recreational settings, ice fishing regulations. Determine the socioeconomic characteristics of ice fishermen and effect of these characteristics and attitudes on demand for and value of ice fishing activities. To estimate the demand for and value of ice fishing using published methodologies.

APPEGACE: Primary data collected via mail questionnaire from a sample of 5000 people who purchased fishing licenses in 1978. Socioeconomic data collected and analyzed. Attitudes and preferences of fishermen concerning ice fishing regulations and species studied. Demand for and/or value of ice fishing estimated using several approaches that have been suggested hy other researchers. Methods and estimates of value will he compared for consistency and restrictions of assumptions required to use the different methods. Traditional distance zone travel cost, individual travel cost and contingent valuation are three of methods to be used to estimate value of ice fishing.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. A mail questionnaire was designed and utilized to collect primary data. A response rate of about 35% was obtained from the sample of almost 5,000 residents who purchased angling licenses in 1978. Analysis of the data indicates that about 42% of the respondents ice fished at least once during the last two seasons and about 31% ice fished during the 1979-80 season. Statistically significant differences exist between open-water and ice fishermen and their preferences. For example, motivations for fishing, the type of site preferred and the composition of the fishing party varied among the two categories of fishermen. Significant differences also exist with respect to age, occupation, sex, attitudes toward selected fishing regulations and the current residence of ice and open-water fishermen. Income and education levels are not statistically different. The economic value of ice fishing in Waine was also estimated using three different methods: a travel cost model, a contingent valuation approach and unit day values. Preliminary results indicate that the values obtained from the three methods are highly variable and are not comparable. This suggests that the value obtained for a recreational activity or facility may depend on the procedure used to estimate value. Additional work is required on the valuation models before they are reported.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 TAYLOR, J.L. 1980. An Economic Evaluation of Ice Fishing in Maine. M.S. Thesis, 110 pp. University of Maine, Orono.

010.015 CRIS0080120 ECONOMIC IMPACTS OF THE 200-MILE LIMIT ON RURAL NORTHEASTERN COASTAL COMMUNITIES

STRAND I E; NOETON V T; MCCONNELL & E; AGEI S RESOURCE ECONOMICS; UNIVERSITY OF MARYLAND, CCLLEGE PARK, MARYLAND. 20742. Proj. No.: MD-A-026-CV Agency ID: CSES Period: 01 CCT 79 To 30 SEP 83

OBJECTIVES: Evaluate the economic impacts of extended fisheries jurisdiction on coastal communities with particular reference to opportunities for industrial and employment expansion. Evaluate the degree to which expansion and growth of the offshore fishing industry will be able to absorb labor and capital from declining inshore fisheries.

APPROACH: The objectives will be met by determining amount of changes in labor and capital employed in recreational and commercial fishing in the future and the likelihood that any excess labor and capital can be absorhed in the offshore industry. Three steps will be undertaken: Determining the extent, persistence and causes for declining production in inshore commercial and sport fisheries; Predicting employment and income from inshore fisheries; Assessing the likelihood of expansion in the offshore commercial and recreational fisheries and the ability of the expansion to absorb displaced inshore labor and capital.

PWOGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. The project has progressed in the following areas: 1) conceptual issues in determining variation in inshore commercial seafood production, 2) examining the likelihood that increases will occur in offshore fisheries, 3) examining input-output and regional models to determine their usefulness in impact analysis, and 4) collecting and assemblying data fcr use in regional models. With regard to, a model has been oeveloped to estimate hioeconomic parameters fcr fiehereles. It requires only data on catch and effort. Initial testing of the model has been done for Waryland Elue Crabs. One fishery, offshore surf clars, have been studied to determine how much, if any, additional effort will be forthcoming. 3) and 4) Sporfiehing data from North Carolina to Maine for 1979 has been assembled and processed. It will likely be linked to a regional model to determine impacte of various fisherise policy changes.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- STRAND, I.E. and CHAMBERS, R.G. 1980. Resource Stocke and Supply Estimation: An Alternative Approach. Abstract Am. J. Ag. Econ., Vol 62(Dec):1116.
- NORTON, V.J. 1980. Economic Coneideratione of State and Interstate Fisheries Management. Froceedings of a Conference on State and Interetate Fishery Juriediction: Froblems and Progreee. UNC-SG-80-02. pp. 27-34.
- STRAND, I.E. and NORTON, V.J. 1980(forthcoming). Some Advantages of Landings Taxee in Ficheriee Management. Proceedinge of the Technical Consultation of Fisheriee Resource Allocation, International Game Fishing Association.
- STRAND, I.E., KIRKLEY, J.E. and MCCONNELL, K.E. 1981(forthcoming). Economic analysis and Management of Atlantic Surf Clame. Economic Analysis for Fisheries Management Plane, Andereon, L.G., (Ed) Ann Arbor Science. YAGER, J.C. 1980. Coet Analysie of Striped Bass
- YAGER, J.C. 1980. Coet Analysie of Striped Eass Culture. Maeter's Thesis, Univ. of Md., College Park, Md. 166 pp.

010.016* CFIS0073525 ECONOMICS OF BIVALVE MOLLUSK AQUACULTURE IN NEW ENGLAND

ALLEN P G; STOREY D A; CONEAD J M; FOOD & BESCURCE ECONOMICS; UNIVERSITY CF WASSACBUSETTS, AMBERST, WASSACBUSETTS. 01002. Proj. No.: WAS00415 Agency ID: CSES Period: 01 OCT 77 To 30 OCT 80

OBJECTIVES: Construct biological response models; specify alternative plausible technical alternatives; combine biological and engineering components into production modele; conduct marketing and demand analyeee to determine marketing coste, price and income elasticities and gross revenues for different output levels; combine production and marketing analyeis to determine economic feasibility of different systems at different individual plant ecales and aggregate levels of output.

APPROACE: Generate a data base, develop cost of production estimates and provide sybsystem modeling support in cooperation with Texas ASM University. Modify Texas ASM computer program to fit local conditions.

PROGRESS: 77/10 TO 80/10. Two activities have been carried out on cooperative projecte supported by NCAA-Office of Sea Grant. In cooperation with Texas A and M University. Data for the aquaculture hudget generator were provided by a eurvey of ehellfieh aquaculturaliste in New England and by the economic-engineering analyeis of three synthetic model plante. As the budget generator becomes operational locally, it will enable the marine advisory service to provide detailed coet information to existing and prospective aquaculturalists. The economic-engineering analysis indicated that it was poesible to produce 60g (85 mm) oystere at 1979 coste which ranged from \$18.50 in the lowest coet system to \$34.50 per bushel in the highest cost system. By comparison prices received for high-quality half-etell oyeters were \$33.75 per buehel in 1979. Most operating oyeter-producers had coets of at least \$37.50 per buebel, due to the experimental nature of their operations. In cooperation with Woode Hole Oceanographic Institution: A computer program has been written based on the lobster aquaculture program of the University of California, Davis. The new program containe featuree not found in any other bioeconomic simulator and in a variable planning borizon framework it includes both start up and operationg sequences for either identical or nonidentical seasonal conditions for single, repeated hatch or continuous batch operation.

PUBLICATIONS: 77/10 TO 80/10

- DONOEUE, M. 1980. An Analysis of the Economics of Shellfieh Aquaculture Systeme in New England, M.S. Thesis, Univ. of Mase.
- SAWICKI, V. 1980. The Economic Feasibility of Inteneive Culture Oyster Froduction, N.S. Thesis, Univ. of Mase.

010.017 CFIS0071802 THE IMPACT OF THE 200 MILE ECONOMIC ZONE ON RUBAL NEW ENGLAND COASTAL COMMUNITIES

STOREY D A; BUTCHINSON C; WILLIS; FOOD & HESOUHCE ECONOMICS; UNIVERSITY OF MASSACBUSETTS, AMBENST, MASSACBUSETTS. 01002. Proj. No.: MAS00387 Project Type: BATCE Agency ID: CSES Period: 01 CCI 76 To 30 SEP 79

OBJECTIVES: Construct bioeconomic modele, determine ports which will support expanded fleets and landings; project sustained yields into processing and marketing; determine impact on rural development of rural coastal communities, including the number of induetry related jobs, increases in coastal populations, and the neceeity for additional local community investments.

APPROACE: Determine appropriate speciee and through econometric modele identify yield functions and cost functions to determine a cost equation which would permit formulation of a management strategy. Then identification of processing and warketing networke will determine impact on the onshore investments and by using input-output methodology we will estimate population, employment, income, tax and town expendituree.

PROGRESS: 78/10 TO 79/10. Nathematical models of (1) demand for fieh and (2) control theory for fishery biological systems were completed and published. The models provide a baeis for more informed decisions about management of the New England fisheriee under the Fishery Management and Concervation Act. The demand analysis indicated that price flexibilities are leee than one for cod, haddock, flounder, and sea scallops. Thie suggests that these fish are unlike moet farm food producte because management policies to decrease landings in order to rebuild etocks would have the effect of decreasing fishermen's grose revenues. Boston auction prices were found instrumental in determining Gloucester and New Hedford pricee. The daily auction at Boeton occurs earlier than in New Bedford, while in Gloucester direct negotiation between fleherman and processor determinee price. The etochastic control theory models were applied to the eea scallop fighery. Expected values of profits from these models were higher than for deterministic models. The main value of the research was in the methodology developed as an aid to future decision processes.

PUBLICATIONS: 78/10 TO 79/10

BUTCBINSON, C.E. and FISCHER, T.F. 1979. Stochastic control theory applied to flehery management.
IEEE Transactione on Systems, Man, and Cybernetics Vol. SMC-9, No. 5, pp. 253-259.
ABMAD, M. 1979. Econometric analysis of ex-vessel prices for cod, haddock, flounder and ecallops in Maeeachueetts. Ph.D. Theeis. Univ. Maes., Amherst.

010.018 CFIS0078986 ECONOMIC IMPACTS OF THE 200-MILE LIMIT ON FURAL NORTHEASTERN COASTAL COMMUNITIES

STOREY D A; FOOD AND RESOURCES ECONOMICS; UNIVERSITY OF MASSACBUSETIS, AMBERST, MASSACBUSETIS. 01002. Proj. No.: MAS00464 Froject Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 JAN 79 TO 30 SEP 83

OBJECTIVES: Evaluate the economic impacts of extended fleberies jurisdiction on coastal communities with particular reference to opportunities for industrial and employment expansion. APPECACE: The general conceptual framework to be used for attaining objective (1) will be that of benefit cost analysis. All economic benefits are classified as either direct or indirect. The direct benefits can be measured conceptually by producer or consumer surpluses. The quantitative methods which will be used for measurement of direct benefits include statistical methods, especially regression analysis, and syothetic methods including budgeting, mathematical programming and optimal control. The participating faculty each have experience in application of one and, in some cases, several of these methods (e.g. Albobello, Storey and Conrad, 1977; Gates and Norton, 1974; Dunham and Mueller, 1876).

PROGRESS: 79/10 TO 80/09. Work has continued on idenfitication and development of bio-economic models which will permit projections of offshore harvesting volumes in New England and which will enable comparisons of the economic impacts of alternative policy scenarios.

PUELICATIONS: 79/10 TO 80/09 NC PUELICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

010.019 CFIS0074610 FISHERIES AND WILDLIFE ECONOMICS RESEARCE IN THE GREAT LAKES

 TALBELM D E: FISHEFIES 6 WILDLIFE; MICBIGAN STATE

 UNIVERSITY, FAST LANSING, MICFIGAN. 48824.

 Proj. No.: MICL01304H
 Project Type: FATCH

 Agency ID: CSRS
 Period: 02 MAF 78 Tc 01 MAF 83

OBJECTIVES: Assess the primary benefits received by fish and wildlife resource users; estimate how henefits charge wheo resources change; estimate the economic impacts of this resource use; estimate other related benefits, costs and impacts.

APPROACE: Recreatiool values estimated by constructing a simulation model of demand and supply of each variety of recreation (characterized hy certain site-related attributes). Varieties identified by examining travel patterns. Demand for each is a function of the availability (price) of several varieties. Model can estimate value of adding, subtracting or changing sites statewide. Commercial values estimated by either estimating total demand and supply or by various bloeconomic modeling techniques. Bioeconomics can also be used to improve recreation models. Initial investigations will study Great Lakes and anadromous sport and commercial fishing. Studies will estimate sport vs commercial fishing tradeoffs and value changes caused by fish mortality from power plants.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. A study of fish impingement and entrainment at Consumers Power Company's Whiting generating plant on Lake Erie showed that the plant reduced the adult yellow perch population by about 1.7%. Relatec studies showed that the recreational value lost because of the reduction in perch population was about \$25,000 per year. Results of the study are currently central to a cootested hearing hetween the kichigan Department of Natural Resources and Consumers regarding appropriate evaluation of losses and mitigation amounts. A study of angling demand and supply resulted in a simulation model which has been used to estimate fisheries values for several practical purposes. Management programs of the Michigan Department of Natural Resources and the Great Lakes Fishery Commission have been evaluated. A study of commercial fisheries population dynamics showed that the "surplus production model" does poorly in describing most of Michigan's commercial fish populations. An Anglers Guide to Michigan's Great Lakes was written and published as a commercial publication by the Michigan Department of Natural Resources. A model state law for commercial fisheries was written and is in the process of being published. It is expected to form the basis for a new Michigan statute, and it may influence laws in other states or provinces. Work was begun on a study of Great Lakes boating demark and supply, and economic impact. Data has been collected and is in the process of being analyzed for preliminary results.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- FISBER, A.T., CUPTIS, G.R. and TALBELM, C.R. 1980. Angler's Guide to Nichigan's Great Lakes. Nich. Dept. Nat. Res., Lansing. ERONSTEIN, D., THOMAS, M., TALBELM, D.K., GEETHEK,
- BRONSTEIN, D., THOMAS, N., TALHELN, D.K., GETTER, H. and RICBARDSON, A. 1980. Great Lakes Model Commercial Fishery Statute. Mich. Sea Grant Program, Univ. of Mich., Ann Arbor.
- JORDAN, S.W. and TALHELM, D.E. 1981. The Economic Feasibility of Fisheries Management Options for Michigan's Great Lakes. J. Great Lakes Res.
- TALHELM, D.R. and BISBOP, K.C. 1980. Benefits and Costs of Sea Lamprey (Petromyzon Marinus): Control in the Great Lakes. Some Preliminary Results. Can. J. Fish. Aquat. Sci. 37(11):2169-2174.
- TALBELM, D.F. 1980. Limited Entry in Michigan Fisheries, in Wash. Sea Grant Program, Limited Entry as a Fishery Management Tool. Univ. of Wash. Press, Seattle. pp. 300-316.

010.020 CFIS0007202 NEW METEOD OF APPRAISING NUTRITICNAL STANDARDS

 BC&GSTRCM G A; FOCD SCIENCE 6 NUTFITICN; MICHIGAN

 STATE UNIVERSITY, FAST LANSING, MICHIGAN. 48824.

 Proj. No.: MICL00669
 Project Type: STATE

 Agency ID: SAES
 Period: 25 CCT 61 To 07 JAN 81

OEJECTIVES: Review and analyze world food resources in relation to population demands and assess the role of food waste as well as increased utilization of marioe resources in meeting world and regional needs.

APPROACE: Studies will be continued in this area and also in editing a 10-volume Encyclopedia of Pood Science (partically supported by a grant from John C. Wiley).

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. During 1980 studies were concentrated on defining and establishing more accurately on one hand the role of key animal food items (meat, milk and eggs) in the overall pattern of continents, regions and countries, as well as their utilization patterns, both in absolute and relative terms. This resulted in major revisions of the traditional notions as to the nutritive role of respective commodities such as beef, pork, milk, cheese, eggs, etc. When moving to aquatic protein this analysis renders an entirely new insight into the relative role of protein from agricultural as contrasted to aquatical sources. Fish averages have been computed in tilled land counterparts and, thus, new insights were gained into the true role of aquatic food as contrasted to agricultural contributions, in several instances revising prevailing notions in this regard. Through this quite new insights were furthermore obtained into the bistorical role of freshwater and ocean catches as to human feeding, frequently thereby revising traditional beliefs. In a similar manner detailed analyses have been expanded to many other key food categories such as cereals, pulses, tubers and 'empty calories' (fats and oils), evaluated as to C/N ratio and protein standing. Finally the global protein balance has been reviewed taking into account the specific effects of trade, in several instances comparable to that of long distance fishing. This material is now being reworked to be placed in books under preparation.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS SEPORTED THIS PERIOD.

010.021 CFIS0081043 MARKET POTENTIAL AND CURRENT MARKETING PROCEDURES AND PRACTICES OF THE CATFISE FOR FOOD INDUSTRY

CONNER J R; WALDROP J E; AGRI ECCNGWICS; MISSISSIPPI STATE UNIVERSITY, MISSISSIPPI STATE, MISSISSIPPI. 39762. Proj. No.: MIS-0841 Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 79 To 31 DEC 81 OBJECTIVES: Determine and describe the structural and operational characteristics and the procurement and marketing practices of the U.S. Catfist for Food processing industry; determine and describe the geographic distribution, operational characteristics and procurement and marketing practices of the food broker, wholealer, distributor and chain grocery firme handling catfish for food products; and estimate the market potential for catfieh for food within the current market area and within the currrent market etructure.

APPROACE: In depth interviews with marketing and management personnel from processing food broker, wholesaler, distributor and chain grocery firms handling catfish for food will be conducted. In addition, interviewe will be conducted with managers of a representation sample of catfish for food producer firms. Also, interviews will be conducted with a representative sample of retail firms handling domestically produced catfish for food. Volumee of domestically produced catfish eold per store customer from the sample stores will be used to estimate potential volume that could be sold in the current market area.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. A catfish marketing etudy designed to ascertain etructural and organizational characteristics of the catfish processor and wholesaler inductries and develop preliminary eetimatee of market potential was initiated. The data from catfish processors and wholesalers bas been collected via an extensive survey and the summarization and the analysis of that data is nearing completion. Work is underway to develop preliminary indications of market potential.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NC PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

010.022* CFIS0073179 ANALYSIS OF THE MARKET POTENTIAL FOR FRESH WATER AQUACULTURAL PRODUCTS PRODUCED IN NEVADA

GARRETT J R; TAYLOR R L; AGRI & RESOURCE ECCNOMICS; UNIVERSITY CF NEVADA, EENC, NEVADA. 89557. Proj. No:: NEV00270 Project Type: BATCE Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 JUL 77 To 30 SEP 80

OBJECTIVES: Letermine the cost and availability of hyproduct focd etuffs for feeding catfleh and shrimp in Nevada. Estimate the demand for catflish, shrimp and plants produced in fresh warm water ponde. Estimate the marketing margins for fresh water products and estimate marketing constraints placed on fresh water products by the institutional trade.

APPROACB: Availability and coste will he estimated for byproduct feeds which prove feasible as shrimp and catfish food in a large scale pilot production study. Nevada brokerage firme, and if necessary California processing firms, will he surveyed to ascertain the possibility of marketing live ehrimp. These firme will also he interviewed to determine existing marketing margins for different types of products handled by these firms. A similar procedure will be followed for catfish and freshwater plants that might be complementary to shrimp and catfish.

PROGRESS: 77/01 TO 80/09. Eudgetary analysis of production costs of freshwater shrimp produced in 10 one-acre plots reflect a cost of \$2.23 per lb. live weight at production levels experienced in the experiment. (About 2,000 lbs. per acre.) Increased feeding levels and other maragement practices could possibly raise production to 3,000 lbs. or even 4,000 lbs. per acre. Production costs for these levels were estimated to be \$1.60 and \$1.31 per lb., respectively. Four marketing alternatives were considered: Whole live, whole fresh, fresh; headless and frozen headless. Processing costs for the first two alternatives were negligible, but both headlees process required substantial capital investment and operating costs. Costs for processing 20,000 lbs. of live shrimp were \$7.79 for fresh headless and \$7.91 for frozen headless. Thus, at current production levels, total cost of producing fresh beadless shrimp would be \$12.15 per lbs. Even doubling the production level to 40,000 lb. would only reduce the total cost per lb. of product to \$6,53--well above the current wholesale price of \$4.50. Production of live or fresh whole fresh-mater shrimp does appear to be a viable pureuit for persons with a source of hot mater providing they can develop a ready market for the product.

PUBLICATIONS: 77/01 TO 80/09 CNYEAGRAKC, C. 1579. Warketing Alternatives of the Grant Walaysian Prawn (Wacrobrachium rosenbergii), N.S. Thesis, University of Nevada-Reno.

010.023* CEIS0083202 REARING BAIT FISE IN WESTERN NEVADA

 TAYLOR R L; VETEBINARY MEDICINE; UNIVERSITY OF

 NEVADA, RENO, NEVADA: 89557.

 Proj. No:: NEV00388

 Project Type: STATE

 Agency ID: SAES

 Period: 01 CCT 78 To 01 OCT 83

OFJECTIVES: Determine the supply and demand for bait fish used in western Nevada waters. Develop techniquee for culture of native minnows acceptable for use in these waters. Encourage development of private commercial operations for raising and selling the suitable species of bait fish.

APPROACE: Collection of adult fish will be made from local watere and a captive population established in the laboratory. Artificial and natural spawnings will be attempted Egg and fry development stages will be identified and food preferences determied. Growth rates will be determined.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Adult Lahontan Tui Chubs, Sipbateles bicolor obeeus, obtained from Walker Lake, Nevada were successfully spawned both artificially and naturally. Spawning mate made of Spanlsh Moss were a satisfactory egg eubstrate although the development of fungus on some eggs was a common problem. About 50% of chubs fed trout meal and ecreened hrine sbrimp flakes for the first 21 days survived. After 21 days mortality was minimal for chubs fed live brine sbrimp naupliae. Survival of newly batched fish raised in a semi-natural pond environment and not fed appeared to be as good as those raised in troughe and fed artificial diets.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS SEPORTED THIS PERIOD.

010.024 CFIS0081145 ECONOMIC IMPACTS OF THE 200-MILE LIMIT ON EUPAL NOPTHEASTERN COASTAL CONMUNITIES

GREENWOOD P H; INST OF NAT & ENV. KESOURCES; UNIVERSITY OF NEW HAMPSHIKE, DURHAM, NEW HAMPSHIKE. 03824. Proj. No.: NB00265 Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 03 JAN 80 To 30 SEP 83

OBJECTIVES: Evaluate the economic impacts of extended fisheries jurisdiction on coastal communities with particular reference to opportunities for industrial and employment expansion.

APPROACH: The general conceptual framework will be benefit/cost analysis. Quantitative measures to be used include regression analysis, mathematical modeling and control methode. Data on current volume and industry capacity will be secured from completed and current studies of the fisheries industry. Survey methods will be used to determine managers' intentions with respect to expansion, location, marketing, ect., with the intent to develop a dynamic disguilibrim model of the American lobster fisheries which has the capacity to evaluate the economic impact of the managers' decieions.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. This project bas produced deterministic projections of American lobster (Bomarus) (Americanus) harvest, value and effort through 1999. Landings, which were 33.5 million pounde in 1979, are predicted to decline to 24.7
silling pounds in 1999, a 26% decline. Real prices are predicted to rise 79% over this period. Effort, which is measured by the number of pots fished, are projected to increase 37%. Real revenue per pot is expected to fall 13%. Stochastic projections of harvest have also been produced; these indicate that little absolute confidence may be placed on the point predictions. Harvest and value projections under varying levels of fishing effort have been produced. The economic welfare consequences of varying the level of imports of lobster from Canada bas been simulated. The qualitative conclusions which emerge from these exercises are not startling and include: a) restricting effort rewards both the industry and the consuming public, b) an increase in imports rewards the consuming public and penalizes the industry.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERICD.

010.025 CRISO080876 ECONOMIC DESCRIPTION OF THE NEW JERSEY CONNERCIAL FISEING INDUSTRY

POSSI D; BECK R; AGRI ECCNCMICS & MARKETING; FUTGERS UNIVERSITY, NEW BRUNSWICK, NEW JERSEY. 08803. Proj. No.: NJ02430 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JAN 80 Tn 30 JUN 81

OBJECTIVES: Inventory and analyze economic conditions in the commercial fishing industry in New Jersey with a specific facus on landings, vessels, docking and processing facilities, and employment and income generated within the industry. Identify current problems and needs of the commercial fishing industry and evaluate critical areas for future research.

APPROACE: Develop and overview of the commercial fishing industry, four areas of concentration were defined: Commercial landings of fish at NJ ports; commercial fishing vessels registered to and owned by NJ residents; docking and processing facilities located in the state; and employment and income generated within the industry. Data from various secondary sources, personal interviews with fishermen, facility operators, and personnel from hanks and local, state and federal governments will be used to describe and classify the various sectors of the industry. This information will also be used to identify the various sectors of the industry. This information will also be used to identify current problems and needs of the industry. evaluate critical areas for future research and identify gaps in existing data and potential sources of new data.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Efforts on the first objective of developing an overview of the commercial fishing industry in New Jersey have focused collection and analysis of secondary data. The date time series data on the following types of information tas been collated and preliminary analysis has been performed: quantity and value of annual landings in New Jersey ports by major species, county and type of gear; quantity and value of monthly landings by county; number and type of fishing gear, fisbing craft and fishermen employed: number of and employment in wholesale establishments; number of, employment in and value of production of processing establishments; number and value of production of canned and industrial fishery product plants; and levels of various fishery price indices. Detailed primary data on port, processing and wholesaling facilities has been collected by the Center of Coastal and Environmental Studies at Rutgers and will be available to the researchers shortly. Various problems and needs of the N.J. commercial fishing industry have been reviewed and one, the economic interrelationships between this industry and related sectors, has been singled out for further study. A research proposal has been developed and submitted to the National Sea Grant Office for funding.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TC 80/12

NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

010.026 CRIS0078981 HUMAN ECOLOGY OP NEW JERSEY FISHERIES

MCCAY B J; BCOLOGY; RUTGERS UNIVERSITY, NEWBRUNSWICK, NEW JERSEY. 08903.Prnj. No.: NJ26501Project Type: STATEAgency ID: SAESPeriod: 01 WAE 79 To 30 APE 82

OBJECTIVES: Document the nature of the fisheries of Ocean and Monmouth Counties, N.J., providing data needed for fisheries management plans and for state government involvement in fisheries development. Generate and test hypotheses about the role of fisheries cooperatives in the state in helping fishermen manage both market and natural environmental relations. Provide a format through which fishermen and other members of the industry of university and governmental help desired.

APPROACE: The methods to be used are those of anthropology: informal and formal interviews with fisherment on the docks, in their homes, and on their boats. Data will be arranged on forms their results will be analyzed.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Anthropological field interviewing and observations were completed in two commercial fisbing communities, continued in a third, and begun in a fourth and fifth; archival and oral-historical research was undertaken. The findings have clarified the role of the producers cooperatives in helping members mitigate certain economic problems inherent in the fresh-fish marketing system of the region. The cooperatives mimic government systems of limited entry and quota controls. The potentials and limits th regional cooperation among the cooperatives have also become clear. The findings also reveal great cultural as well as economic and technological changes in the fisheries over the past century, as illustrated by the industrialization of the menhaden fisbing industry and the concomitant loss of the acceptability of menbaden as direct human food. Finally, an attempt to account for the persistent violation of fisheries laws led to recognition of the importance of social and political history, as well as economics and ecology, in generating behavioral and cultural patterns. This finding has redirected our efforts toward depiction of fisheries legislation as "social legislation, " with markedly different costs and benefits for different social/technological groups. It also appears that the technology and economics of different fishery types plus a "culture of the commons" are more useful, for policy purposes, than ethnicity and other descriptors of the culture of commercial fishermen.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

MCCAY, E.J. 1980. A Fisherman's Cooperative, Limited: Indigenous Resource Management in a Complex Society. Anthrop. Quart. 53:29-38. MCCAY, E.J. In Press. Optimal Foragers cr Political Actors: Ecological Analyses of a New Jersey

Fishery. Amer. Ethnol. MCCAY, E.J. In Press. Wenhaden as Food and Fertilizer: A Footnote to the Social Bistnry of New Jersey's Fisheries. New Jersey Bistnry.

010.027 CFIS0081479 BCONOMIC IMPACTS OF THE 200-MILE LIMIT ON RUPAL NORTHEASTERN COASTAL COMMUNITIES

CONPAD J W; AGEI ECONOMICS; CCRNELL UNIVERSITY, ITHACA, NEW YORK. 14853. Proj. No:: NYC-121508 Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 03 MAR 80 To 30 SEF 83

OEJECTIVES: Evaluate the economic impacts of extended fisheries jurisdiction on coastal communities with particular reference to opportunities for industrial and employment expansion. Evaluate the degree to which expansion and growth of the offshore fishing industry will be able to absorb lator and capital from declining instore fisheries. APPECACE: Seafood processors will be surveyed to determine source of raw product inputs and market destination for processed output. Investment plans on Long Island will be examined within a regional context to determine economic viability. The Long Island finficbery will be studied to determine those vessel/gear/species combinations which will support future fleet expansion and absorb excess capacity from inshore fisheries.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. The theory of multiproduct production bas been reviewed as well as the associated econometric techniques for the direct estimation of product transformation functions or the dual cost furction. Seafood processing firms, which typically employ several inputs to transform finfish or shellfish into two or more final products, will be surveyed for data which will allow estimation of elasticities of substitution and transformation as well as econcaises of scale. These elasticity parameters will, in turn, allow estimation of the impacts of input and output price changes on the level of processing activity and employment within rural fishing communities.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PHPICD.

010.028 C LIS0082905 MANAGEMENT OF A MULTIPLE COBORT FISHERY: THE HARD CLAM RESOURCES IN GREAT SOUTH HAY

CONRAD J M; AGRI ECONOMICS; CORNELL UNIVEESITY, ITEACA, NEW YOEK. 14853. Proj. No.: NYC-121384 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 APR 80 To 30 SEP 83

OBJECTIVES: fevelop a multiple cohort bioeconomic model; apply that model to the hard clam resource of Great South Bay to determine optimal harvest and age distribution. Compare optimal harvests and age distribution to current harvest and estimates of standing stock and suggest policies for moving the resource toward the optimal age structure.

APPROACE: Construction a dynamic optimization model of a reasonably general form. Specif particular functional forms. Identify bioeconomic parameters from literature and data on the hard clam (Mercenaria, Mercenaria). Solve dynamic optimization problem for study-state equilibrium harvest and age structure.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. A general model of a multiple cohort (year, class) fishery was developed. Management rules and equations describing a steady-state optimum ware derived from a discrete time control problem which maximized the present value of net revenues subject to spawning and recruitment constraints. Biological and economic information was collected on the hard clam fishery in Great South Bay on Long Island, New York. This information will be used to identify optimal cohort stocks and yields, and to make recommendations on resource management.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS FEPOPTED THIS PERIOD.

010.029 CFIS0082906 COSTS AND RETURNS IN THE OTTER TRAVE FLEET ON LONG ISLAND, NEW YORK

CONRAD J M; AGRI ECONOMICS; CORNELL UNIVEESITY, ITHACA, NEW YOEK. 14853. Proj. No: NYC-121383 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 23 JUL 80 To 30 SEP 83

OBJECTIVES: Identify fixed and variable cost elements for alternative vessel classes in the Long Island trawler fleet and determine those investments and procedures capable of significant cost savings. Determine expected catch functions for major finfish species by alternative vessel class. Identify static, declining and expanding fisheries and simulate the profitability of a select set of vessel/gear/species

combinations.

APPROACE: Analysis of NMFS trip data on catch, area fished, ex-vessel price and operating cost. Develop probability distributions for catch of a particular species in a particular area and for ex-vessel price received by fishermen. Develop a stochastic simulation model to predict costs and returns per trip.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. A stochastic model has been developed to simulate costs and returns for commercial trawler vessels. A questionnaire was developed and pretested on seven fishermen from Shinnecock and Mattituck inlets on Long Island, New York.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TC 80/12 NO PUBLICATIONS LEPORTED THIS PERIOD.

010.030 CEISO083455 MANAGEMENT ECONOMICS OF NEW YORK'S MARINE INDUSTRIES

CONRAD J N; AGRI ECONCMICS; CCENELL UNIVERSITY, ITBACA, NEW YORK. 14853. Proj. No.: NYC-121385 Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 SEP 80 To 30 SEP 83

OBJECTIVES: To study the industries engaged in harvesting, processing, and marketing of fish shellfish. Develop research programs to improve the management of firms within seafood related industries. To evaluate resource management programs and their impact on marine industries in New York State.

APPROACH: Collection and analysis of available secondary data on the harvesting, processing, and marketing of fish and shellfish in New York City and Long Island. Develop models to simulate financial returns within the otter trawl fleet on Eastern Long Island. This will entail a stochastic simulation model which characterizes trip costs, fixed costs, and probability distributions for catch and prics. Multi-input/multi-output production function analysis will be applied to the seafood processing sector. Bioeconomic modeling of the hard clam (Mercenaria mercenaria) in Great South Bay will pool existing biological data on growth, mortality, and fecundity, with economic data on costs and returns to determine optimal age structure and, sustainable yield from each cohort (or year class).

PROGRESS: 80/01 TC 80/12. Research has focused on the identification of (1) the major commercial fisheries in New York's marine district, (2) the trends in the amount and value of landings, and (3) the analysis of current and alternative management strategies and their impact on the industry.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 CONEAD, J.W. 1980. New York's Marine Fisheries: Situation and Outlook. A.E. Ext. 80-29. New York Economic Handbook: Agricultural Situation and Outlook. Dept. of Agr. Econ., Cornell Univ., Ithaca, N.Y. pp. 127-34.

010.031 CEISO084032 AN ECONOMIC ANALYSIS OF THE ATLANTIC CCAST STRIPED BASS FISHERY

CONRAD J M; AGRI ECONOMICS; CCRNELL UNIVEESITY, ITERCA, NEW YCLK. 14853. Proj. No.: NYC-121339 Project Type: STATE Agency IC: SAES Period: 01 MAR 81 To 30 SEP 84

OBJECTIVES: To analyze the direct and induced impacts of expenditures by commercial and sport fishermen seeking striped base. To determine the value (net benefits) from programs or policies designed to increase the stock of striped bass.

APPECACE: Estimate the expenditures made by alternative classes of sport and commercial fishermen as well as the value added as the product moves through the various marketing channels to the consumer. These expenditures will be introduced into a regional ecorometric model which will estimate total, (direct plus induced), dollar impacts. A bioeconomic model including both sport and commercial effort will be constructed where the willingness-to-pay on the part of sport fishermen, and the harvest cost of commercial fishermer are stock dependent. By varying the stock across biologically feasible limits we can assess the value of programs designed to increase striped bass populations.

01C.032 CRIS0067638 DEVELOPMENT CF & FISE MARKETING PROGRAM

GCCDRICH D C JR; AGRI ECONCMICS; CCRNELL UNIVERSITY, ITHACA, NEW YORK. 14853. Proj. ho:: NYC-121381 Project Type: STATE Agency JD: SAES Period: 01 AFE 75 To 30 SEP 81

ObJECTIVES: Study the current economic situation in fin fisb, shell fish, and fish product marketing and identify specific and important problems capable of treatment through marketing research.

APFFOACE: Fublications dealing with fin fish, shell flsb, and fish product marketing will be reviewed. Discussions will be held with researchers at institutions which have had programs in fish marketing. Conferences will be held with leading fish industry participants; facilities and operations which they manage will be observed.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Results of limited test marketing of five new minced fish/seafood products indicate the probability of commercial success. However, unit sales of each new product relative to volumes of similar or closely competing items in the test stores were influenced by low prices for the test products. If the bypothesized low acquisition cost of the principal marine ingredient in these products proved to be elusive, the encouraging test sales results would have to be reexamined. Survey interviews with selected wholesalers of frest and frozen seafood in New York City's Fulton Fish Market yielded information about characteristics of the market and certain practices of its sellers. An estimated 70 wholesale enterprises operate in the market, about 20 percent fewer than 10 years ago. Nost operate as corporations. Somewhat more than half of them bandle only fresh product. Nearly as many offer both fresh and frozen. Less than 10 percent specialize in frozen product. The majority of wholesalers specialize in finfish (58 percent). The next largest group offers finfish and shell fish (30 percent) and the smallest number specialize in shell fish (12 percent). An average of 30 species of finfish and 8 species of shell fish are offered by each firm. The great majority of wholesalers carry product barvested by Long Island fishers. Less than 10 percent engage in foreign trade. Nore firms import than export product. A final publication is in precaratior.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 GOODRICH JR., D.C. and WHITAKER, D.H. 1980. Fetail Market Tests of Frozen Prepared Minced Fish. A.E. Res. 80-4. Dept. of Agr. Econ., Cornell Univ., Ithaca, N.Y. 9 pp. GCODRICH JF., D.C. and WHITAKER, D.H. 1980. Retail

Market Tests of Canned Minced Fish. A.F. Res. 80-5. Dept. of Agr. Econ., Cornell Univ., Ithaca, N.Y. 6 pp.

010.033 CRISO067224 THE IMPACT OF SALMONID INTEGDUCTIONS ON NEW YORK FISHEBMEN AND COMMUNITIES

BECWN T L; NATURAL RESOURCES; CCRNELL UNIVERSITY, ITHACA, NEW YCEK. 14853. Proj. No.: NYC-147381 Froject Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES

Period: 01 JAN 75 To 31 DEC 76

OEJECTIVES: Provide data on use and economic impact of salmonid fishing in New York. Frovide a recreation facilities and services inventory of the Salmon River corridor, and identify areas of unmet recreation service demand.

APPROACE: Assist N.Y.S.D.E.C. in development of creel census methodology and computer analysis of census data. Gather economic impact data from businesses in the Salmon River corridor. Analyze stat-wide fishing survey to determine current interest in salmon fishing.

PRCGRESS: 79/01 TO 79/12. A study of riparian owners along New York's Great Lakes tributaries showed that the posting rate of private properties was shallar to that for the rest of New York (42%). Two-thirds of the landowners studied would not sell a fishing easement to the State if requested to, primarily due to the "in perpetuity" clause of the easement rather than the price offered. Other options which would not foreclose upon future use of the property seemed more viable for increasing recreational fishing access. For example, 60% of these riparian landowners indicated a willingness to post "Fishing by Permission Only" signs if such signs were made available to them.

PUELICATIONS: 79/01 TC 79/12

- EROWN, T.L. and DECKER, D.J. 1979. Access to Great Lakes Salmonid Fishing via Frivate Lands: A Study of New York's Riparian Landowners. In Recreation Impacts: The Great Lakes Ecosystem. Ontario Research Council on Leisure.
- SCHUMAN, S.P., BROWN, T.L. and EUTTWEILEE, W.W. 1979. The Foles of Research and Extension Education in the Developing Lake Ontario Salmonid Fisbery. Fisberies 4(3):6-8.

010.034 CRIS0078483 APPLICATION OF MANAGEMENT STEATEGIES TO THE MID-ATLANTIC EXTENDED JUBISDICTION RECREATIONAL FISHERIES

WILKINS H T: EVEPHART W H; NATURAL BESOURCES; COFNELL UNIVERSITY, ITHACA, NEW YCRK. 14853. Proj. No.: NYC-147329 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JAN 79 To 16 SEP 83

OBJECTIVES: Determine the recreation management strategles applicable to be Nid-Atlantic extended jurisdiction recreational fisheries. Identify advantages and disavantages of each strategy. Determine the attitudes of the managers, fishermen and Council members to the suggested strategies and the impacts on them and the fishery.

APPROACH: Review the literature on recreational strategies. Develop criteria to evaluate the advantages and disadvantages of each strategy and their impact on the fishery. Survey the managers, fishermen and Council members to determine the acceptability of the alternate strategies.

PECGRESS: 80/01 TC 80/12. Under the Fishery Conservation and Management Act of 1976 the Regional Fishery Management Councils must develop plans for managing each fishery in the 3-200 mile offshore zone. In the second year of this study over 1,300 marine recreational anglers using the 3-200 mile offshore zone were interviewed during May through October to determine their reasons for fishing and their reactions to four promising management options (regulations) identified in the first year of the study. The survey was conducted in New York and Virginia in conjunction with the National Marine Fisheries Service's national 1980 Marine Recreational Fishery Survey. The data from these two surveys are being analyzed for publication in 1981.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12 DAWSON, C.P. and WILKINS, E.T. 1980. Social Considerations Associated with Marine Recreational Fisheries Management. Marine Fisheries Review 42(12):12-17. 010.035* CFIS0079845 FEASIBILITY OF CAGED FISE CULTURE IN NORTH CENTRAL OKLAHOMA FARE FONDS

MAUGHAN O E; BOWMAN D E; LANGSTON UNIVERSITY, LANGSTON, OKLAHOMA. 73050. Proj. No.: OKLX-8085-15-5 Project Type: 1890/T Agency ID: CERS Period: 01 OCT 79 To 30 SEP 84

OBJECTIVES: Study production and cost of caged fish in small ponds in Central Oklahoma, investigate and test the feasibility of caged fish in a normal farm or ranch operation.

APPROACE: Channel catfish will be grown in cages and fed pellets contng 30-35% protein, and Tilapia will be grown in cages and fed pellets contng 25-30% protein. Oxygen and temperature will be measured daily at feeding time to develop a profile as if they relate to growth. Record as to marketing and home consumptions and and cost will be kept to determine return on investment.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. Cage culture appears to be economically feasible in small (less than 2.0 ha) farm ponds and has potential for generating a small additional source of income (estimated to be \$744.00/ha) and/or producing low cost food for the farm family. Ponds that are clear (depth of visibility greater than 1.0 m) and shallow (depth less than 1.0 m over half of the pond) should probably not be used for cage fish culture unless aquatic vegetation control is implemented. Channel catfish fingerlings should be 150 to 200 mm in total length when stocked if a large proportion of marketable size fish are to be produced in one year in Oklahoma. Tilapia appear to stimulate channel catfish feeding and therefore increase production. The optimum ratio appears to be a very high ratio of catfish to tilapia. The optimum density of fish per cage appears to be about 400 fish per cubic meter with an anticipated harvest weight of 0.45 kg.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- GEBBART, G.E. and MAUGBAN, O.E. 1980. Feasibility of Mixed Cage Culture of Tilapia and Channel Catfish. Inland Commercial Fisheries Association. 14 March 1980, Nasbville, TN.
- GEBHART, G.B. and MAUGHAN, O.E. 1980. Cage Fish Culture in Small Farm Ponds in Cklahoma. Oklahoma Academy of Science, November 14, 1980. Norman, Oklahoma.

010.036 CFIS0084107 AN ECONOMIC EVALUATION OF THE FECREATICHAL SALMON FISHING IN THE KENAL/FUSSIAN RIVER BEGION

GIBES K C; RESOURCE RECREATION MANAGEMENT; CREGON STATE UNIVERSITY, COEVALLIS, OREGON. 97331. Proj. No.: OFE-FR-159-B Project Type: STATE Agency ID: OCI Period: 01 NCV 80 To 01 NOV 81

OBJECTIVES: Develop theoretical model for estimation of outdoor recreation demand to be applied to Salmon sport fishing. Estimate the magnitude and distribution of salmon sport fishing on Kenai and Russian Rivers. Estimate the economic demand for, and net economic value of, recreational Salmon fishing on kenai and Bussian Rivers.

APPROACE: Fishermen will be contacted personally and then a follow-up mailed survey will be sent to obtain information enabling the estimation of their effort, location, distance travelled, time spent fishing, success, etc. The methodology developed will then be used to estimate the demand for and net economic walue of sport fishing in these two rivers.

010.037 AN ANALYSIS CF NEW ENGLAND FISHBRIES INVESTMENT BREAVIOP BOCKSTAEL N E; RESOURCE ECONCMICS; UNIVERSITY CF RHCDE ISLAND, KINGSTCN, RHCDE ISLAND. 02881. Proj. No.: RI00154 Project Type: BATCH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 17 OCT 77 To 30 SEP 80

OFJECTIVES: Develop and extend current methodology for analyzing fishery investment behavior and estimate empirical relations of New England fishing firms' investment. The results will be used to assess the likely behavior of domestic fishermen under different scenarios regarding extended jurisdiction.

APFROACE: Multinomial logit analysis will be used to estimate the likelihood that an individual facing a set of discrete alternatives will choose a particular alternative as a function of the characteristics of the alternatives and the characteristics (e.g. socioeconomic) of the individual.

PROGRESS: 77/10 TO 80/09. A sequential multinomial logit model was developed to model fishery investment decision making, relating the protability of choosing different investment alternatives to the expected revenues and costs associated with these options. A two stage decision on optimal fishery of participation and optimal capital stock was estimated and was modified to reflect the fact that fishermen may systematically prefer one type of operation over another even when returns are equal. The model predicted well but indicated substantial inertia or the part of fishermen. A more successful specification of the model reflected fishermen's adverse reaction to risk. The model's value is the ability to predict participation rates and fleet composition in various fisheries. The implications for management are important. Regulations aimed at restricting effort will be self defeating if they reduce uncertainty and are not coupled with entry limitations. Additionally, large incentives must be provided to encourage fishermen to enter underutilized fisheries in order to overcome both inertia and the high level of uncertainty in these fisheries. Results suggest that information and training simed at lowering the resistance to new fisheries has a potentially higher return to management than increasing direct ecoromic incentives in these underutilized fisherles

PUELICATIONS: 77/10 TC 80/09 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED FINAL REPORT PERIOD.

010.038* CRISO065044 ECONOMICS OF SALMONID AQUACULTURE IN NEW ENGLAND

GATES J N; RESOURCE ECONOMICS; UNIVERSITY OF RHODE ISLAND, KINGSTON, RHODE ISLAND. 02881. Proj. No:: BI00144 Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CSRS Period: 01 JUL 74 To 30 SEP 80

OBJECTIVES: Compile and evaluate cost data associated with construction and operation of the system to determine capital requirements and production costs. evaluate potential economic gains for vertical integration in production (hatching-smolt production and grow out) systems as compared to separate of non-integrated systems. Project capital requirements and cost conditions to establish economically feasible commercial size operations and evaluate economics of integrated management of a joint commercial/sport fishery program based on a hatchery release program.

APPROACH: Study will be in 2 phases; economics of a pilot aquaculture system utilizing water re-use techniques would be analyzed. This would provide a firm data base for coast parameters; analysis of management measures for an integrated cosmercial/sport fishery program. Once capital requirements and production costs for the integrated system are known and evaluation will be made of the integrated and non-integrated system to determine any economic gains associated with each respective system. For analysis the integrated system will be broken down into two operations: tatching and smolt production; grow out. Capital requirements and production costs associated with each operation will be evaluated and projected to establish economically feasible full scale commercial operations.

PROGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. A polyperiodic or dynamic linear programming model was used which includes the age/size class structure of fish stocks. It also iocludes size specific "treatment" effects (such as thermal cootrols) on growth rates. It also includes optimum marketing and product possibilities. Decisioos optimized over time include (1) the number of fish of each size to be cultured, (2) the temperature(s) at which to culture them, (3) the number of fish of each size to be harvested, (4) the size dependent products to produce, and (5) the number of recruits to purchase. The model was applied to Atlantic salmon and to salmon culture in a water reuse system. Marginal returns to risk raoged from 5 to 237% depending on species, discount rate, and the sensitivity analysis assumptions. The marginal return to risk is after all costs, including the opportunity cost of capital (varied from 10% to 30%). It is a measure of pure profit or returo to margical risks associated with the enterprise.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- GATES, J.W., MACDONALD, C.R. aod POLLARD, E.J. 1980. Salmon Culture in Water Feuse Systems: An Economic Analysis. Contribution No. 1883, RI Agricultual Experiment Station, URI, Marine Technical Report 78.
- PCLLAED, B.J. 1980. Optimizing the Production of Atlantic Salmon in Water Reuse Systems, N.S. Thesis.

010.039 CRIS0083321 ECOMONIC IMPACTS OF THE 200-MILE LIMIT ON EUFAL NOFTHEASTERN CCASTAL COMMUNITIES

GATES J M; RESOURCE ECONOMICS; UNIVERSITY OF REODE ISLAND, KINGSTON, REODE ISLAND, 02881. Proj. No.: RI00157 Project Type: BATCE Agency ID: CSRS Period: 19 FEB 81 To 30 SEP 83

CEJECTIVES: Evaluate the degree to which expansion and growth of the offshore fishing industry will be able to absorb labor and capital from declining ioshore fisheries.

APPECACE: The otter trawl fleet of New England will be studied. The fleet will be stratified by vessel size and possibly by port and for each strata a representative vessel or firm will be modelled. NNFS data on catct statistics by area, gear, season and financial records will be used. A licear programming model of each representative vessel will be constructed based on alternative objective functions such as maximum annual gross stock, maximum annual return to cartain and maximum return to vessel owner. A systematic procedure (linear programming) will be developed by which ratiocal foreign fee schedules could be approximated for such species as squid, whiting, mackerel, other hakes and butterfisb inclusive of aspociated by-catches.

010.040 CFIS0071965 SOUTHEEN NEW ENGLAND ECONOMIC IMPACT PEOJECT

 GRAGALUNAS T A; RESOURCE ECONCMICS; UNIVEFSITY CF

 RECDE ISLAND, KINGSTON, REODE ISLAND. (2881.

 Proj. No.: RI00152
 Project Type: HATCH

 Agency ID: CSES
 Period: 20 DEC 76 To 30 SEP 80

CEJECTIVES: The level, composition & distribution of population & economic activity io the Southern New England Marine Region (SNENR) have chaoged considerably sioce the last major socio-economic review of the region was reported (1967). Several major marine-related developments have been proposed for the near future. Examice the economic structure & importance of marine-oriented activities in the SNEME; develop an economic framework, based on an loterindustry or input-output approach which traces dollar flows of inputs & outputs among economic sectors of the economy; to assess the major economic and socio-economic changes that have taken place since 1976. APPROACE: A questionnaire will be used to cover intermediate traosactions with all marine sectors within the SNEMR 6 with "all other sectors"; sales by each sector to find demand within the region; net experts. Secondary data sources will be used also.

PRCGRESS: 76/12 TO 80/09. The purpose of this project was to develop an input-output model which could he used to estimate the economic impacts of proposed marine-related policies or developments on the Southern New England Marioe Region. Data from 390 interviews with marioe establishments and from secondary sources were used to coostruct an input-output table with 20 industries. The marine industries in the model cover five categories of activity: commercial fishing, tourism, manufacturing, marine military, and research and education. The results indicate that in 1976, marine activity accounted for about \$4 billion of output and over 65,000 workers, with shipbuilding being the largest single employer. In the first phase, Type I and Type II output and income multipliers were estimated for each industry. Type I multipliers ranged from 6.1 to 1.07 and Type II from 8.6 to 1.51. Employment multipliers were estimated in the second phase of the study and ranged from 1.07 to 4.8 for the Type I and from 1.48 to 9.8 for the Type II multipliers. Those iodividuals concerned with developing policies for use of the oceao (e.g., the formulation of fisheries management plans) or for evaluating proposed developments often want to know the likely impact of the policy or development on the regional economy. The results of this study provide a tool which can be used to assess regional economic effects of marine-related decisions.

PUELICATIONS: 76/12 TO 80/09 NO PUELICATIONS SEPORTED FINAL SEPORT PERIOD.

010.041 CRIS0076590 EFFECTS OF THE TAX REFORM ACT OF 1976 OR NEW ENGLAND VESSEL OWNERS AND CREW

HOLMSEN A; RESOURCE ECONOMICS; UNIVERSITY CF RHODE ISLAND, KINGSTON, REODE ISLAND, 02881. Proj. No.: RI00138 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 78 To 30 SEP 80

OEJECTIVES: The ecocomic impact of the Tax Reform Act of 1976 on vessel owners and crew for different size vessels and different lays for the five coastal New England states will be determined. The confusion that exists in regard to interpretation and compliance with the Act will be studied and also the significance of the changes in the Capital Construction Fund by the Tax Reform Act.

APPROACE: Information will be obtained from the Internal Revenue Service, The Social Security Administration, and the Financial Assistance Division of the National Marine Fisheries Service. Primary data will be obtained from a sample of New England vessel owners, stratified by crew size, lay onboard and home state.

CRISO068087 ECONOMIC ANALYSES OF FISHEPIES NANAGEMENT ISSUES APISING FROM EXTENDED JUPISDICTION OF NEW ENGLAND

 BUETE D L; BOCKSTAEL N E; RESCUECE ECCNOMICS;

 UNIVERSITY OF PHODE ISLAND, KINGSTCN, RHODE ISLAND.

 02881.

 Proj. No.: R100136

 Project Type: STATE

 Agency ID: SAES

 Period: 01 JUL 75 To 30 JUN 82

OEJECTIVES: Develop methodologies useful for the analysis of policy issues arisiog from extended jurisdiction; provide information for U.S. policy decisions regarding the management of foreign effort in New England fisheries; estimate the investment response of the New England fishing industry to alternative foreign effort management schemes; provide guidance as to informational needs for improved fisheries management decisions; provide eetimatee of the benefits and coste of alternative management etrategies and the distribution of theee benefits and costs between producers and concumers.

APPROACE: Analytical modele of New England fieheries will be developed to provide the bases for evaluatione of alternative management strategies. Econometric techniques will be utilized for the estimation of the parameters of the modele and optimization techniques including dynamic programming and discrete time optimal control programming will be used to obtain policy implications for U.S. fisheries management off New England.

PROGRESS: 79/01 TO 79/12. This project was intended to support research designed to develop and apply economic methodologiee useful for aseeseing the management of domeetic fleheries under the Fisheries Management and Concervation Act of 1976 (FCMA). Several conceptual papere have been published or are under review dealing with welfare theory iesues ae applied to ficheries management probleme. The work in these papers, e.g., the evaluation of consumer eurplue in a multi-market framework, can be extended to many problems in resource economice. The project also has resulted in numerous research papers, publicatione and thesis analyzing the market etructure of the flehing industry; international competition and subsidies; the demand for groundfieh; and public policy issues arising from the enactment of the FCMA. Individual publications have been lieted in prior progress reporte. There has been a change in personnel and a change in the issues of interest to researchers and public officiale. Therefore thie project is being terminated.

PUBLICATIONS: 79/01 TO 79/12 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED THIS PERIOD.

010.043 CFIS0083490 AN ECOMONIC AMALYSIS OF DECISION MAKING AND POLICY FORMULATION

SUTINEN J G; EESOULCE ECONOMICS; UNIVERSITY OF FHODE ISLAND, KINGSTON, RHCDE ISLAND. 02881. Proj. No.: RI00160 Project Type: STATE Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 AUG 80 To 30 SEP 82

OBJECTIVES: To evaluate policy formulation proceseee developed by Regional Fisheriee Nanagement Councils (RFMC) and recommended to the Department of Commerce (DCC) as mandated by the Fisheries Conservation and Management Act (FCMA). Bypotheses to be teeted are the more complex the fishery, the greater the informational needs and decision-making coste for the councils; the more complex the fiehery, the narrower the range of informational concerne the RFMC can bave; the greater the reliance on sutual-partisan-adjustment, the greater the amount of information on economic, social, and ecological iesues which will be forthcoming; the more councils rely on mutual-partiean-adjustment the greater the delay in implementing the management plan; the greater the delay in implementing plane, the greater the decision costs for the DOC; the greater the potential for such costs, the higher the probability of conflict between the RFMC and the DCC.

APPROACE: Specialists in marine affairs,, economice, eociology, and public administration will gather test data from six RFMC's, to study approaches to optimum yield, fishery complexity, information availability, weighting of decision factore.

010.044 CRIS0059426 ECONOMICS OF THE COMMERCIAL FISM INDUSTRY

GRIFFIN W L; LACEWELL R D; NICHCLS J P; AGFI ECCNOMICS; TEXAS AGM UNIVERSITY, COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS. 77843. Proj. No.: TEX01866 Project Type: BATCE Agency ID: CSRS

Period: 30 MAR 71 To 30 SEP 80

OBJECTIVES: For major fieh and shellfish species. Establieh production and proceesing requirements. Evaluate economic feasibility of alternative management programe. Estimate impact of evnironmental change. Evaluate the etructure, performance and potential of the marketing eector.

APPEOACH: Using breakeven analysis, minimum levels of production or proceesing required for alternative investment levels will be identified. An optimum resource mix in production and processing activities will be defined by marginal analysis. Large increments of increased investment and economic feasibility of experimental practices will be evaluated by budgetary analysis. A model bill be developed to evaluate the feasibility of adopting new technology, determine economies of size and estimate the impact of epecific changes in model variables. Questionnaires and surveys will be used to evaluate marketing aspects of major fish and shellfish epecies.

PROGRESS: 79/01 TC 79/12. The general purpose of this etudy le to initiate and perform economic evaluations relative to production, processing and marketing activities involving eelected major fish and shellfieb species which are found in the waters within and adjacent to Texas. A simulation model of the pink shrimp fiehery was completed and proposed policy alternatives by the Gulf of Mexico Flehery Management Council were evaluated. Utilizing an economic welfare framework, almost every alternative appeared inferior to the eimulation reflecting the status quo. The only exception was the eimulation which attempted to maximize annual rent. Results of the etudy were utilized in the shrimp management plan. Cloeure of the Texae epring season was evaluated using an econometric model which resulted in a ehort run gain of \$10 million to gulf ehrimpers at a cost of up to one million dollars to bay shrimpere. A study of the variation in dockside prices among ports in Texas was completed and results indicate a eignificant difference among ports depending on the type of pricing mechaniems used. A pack-out eystem with a telephone auction reported prices may be 10% higher than in other ports which use a box weight method.

PUBLICATIONS: 79/01 TO 79/12

- BLOMO, V., GRIFFIN, W. and NICECLS, J. 1978. "Catch-Effort and Price-Coet Trends in the Gulf of Mexico Shrimp Fishery: Implications of Mexico'e Extended Juriediction." Marine Fieheries Review. Vol. 40. NO. 7. August.
- Review, Vol. 40, NO. 7, Auguet. NICBCLS, J., GRIFFIN, W. and BLCMO, V. 1978. "Economic and Production Aspecte of the Gulf of Mexico Shrimp Fiehery." Chapter in Drugs and Food for the Sea: Myth or Reality? The University of Oklahoma Preee, Norman, Oklahoma, pp. 301-316. GRANT, W.E. and GRIFFIN, W.L. 1979. "A Bioeconomic
- GRANT, W.E. and GRIFFIN, W.L. 1979. "A Bioeconomic Model of the Gulf of Mexico Shrimp Fiehery." Trane. Am. Fieh. Soc., 108:1-13.
- NICBOLS, J.P. and JOHNSTON, L. 1979. "The Influence of Alternative Fricing Methode in Exvessel Shrimp Pricee, Department of Agricultural Economics", Texas A and M University, DIR 75-1, SP-8. August.
- SWARTZ, A.N. and GRIFFIN, W.L. "The Effect of an Increase Price of Dieeel Fuel on Gulf Shrimp Veseel Operatione, DIR 78-1, SP-4, pp. 1-8.

010.045 CRIS0079285 ECONOMICS OF THE COMMERCIAL FISM INDUSTRY

GRIFFIN W L; NICHOLS J P; SWAFTZ A N; AGRI ECCNOMICS; TEXAS AGM UNIVERSITY, COLLEGE STATICN, TEXAS. 77843. Proj. No.: TEX06404 Agency ID: CSES Period: 17 JUL 79 To 16 JUL 83

OBJECTIVES: For major fieh and shellfish species, eetablich production and proceesing recource requirements, evaluate economic feacibility of alternative management programs, estimate economic effect on production and marketing of regulatory or biological environment, and evaluate structure, performance and potential of the marketing sector. APPEOACE: Eudget will be constructed on an annual basis allowing breakeven analysis to determine minimum level of production and investment. Case studies and systems analysis will be employed to conduct problem oriented research for production, processing and marketing. Economic feasibility of management programs and methods for employing nontraditional species will be established by budgetary analysis. Economic response of output per vessel will be evaluated utilizing price elasticities of demand and budgetary analysis. Initial analysis of the marketing phase of commercial fish industry will be to differentiate and examine distribution channels of selected fish and fish products.

PECGRESS: 80/01 TO 80/12. A bio-engineering-model computer was developed that incorporates three water quality parameters into growth of shrimp: salinity, temperature and dissolved oxygen. Cost and return budgets were developed for bay boats in Texas. A decision not to fish or being excluded for some other reason from the spring season would cost the bay fisherman slightly less than \$2000 per boat. A mathematical model representing the movement and survival of white shirmp (Peneaus setiferus) in Galveston Eay was developed. A mathematical model representing the growth, movement and survival of brown shrimp (Peneaus aztecus) in Galveston Fav was developed. A simulation model was adapted to the Texas sbrimp fishery and used to evaluate economic impacts of management policies for the Texas shrimp fishery and the conflict between users. Closing the offsbore of Texas and landing all shripp has an estimated net economic benefit to shrimping of \$20.29 million. Landing increased by 8.61 million pounds, culls reduced by 6.6 million pounds, and full time craft equivalence increase 280. The monthly demand by size of shrimp, within the range of data; is highly inflexible and demand for large shrimp is very high relative to other sizes. The following microcomputer programs on firm decision-making are now available to vessel owners: Notor vehicle cost analysis; Vessel cost analysis; Vessel fuel cost analysis; Marine loan analysis; Advances program; and Decision to fish analysis.

PUELICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- VARFEN, J.F. and GRIFFIN, W.L. 1980. Costs and Returns Trends in the Gulf of Mexico Shrimp Industry, 1971-1978. Marine Fisheries Feview. 42(2):1-7. February.
- BIXON, R.F., HANLON, P.T., GILLEPSPIE, S.N. and GRIFFIN, W.L. 1980. Squid Fishery in Texas: Biological, Economic, and Marketing Considerations. Marine Fisheries Review, 42(7-8):44-50. July-August.
- SWAFTZ, A.N. and ADAMS, C.W. 1979. The Economics of Rockport, Texas Eay Shrimping Vessels DIF 79-1, staff Paper No. 6. Department of Agricultural Economics, TAES, TAMU, August.
- NICHOLS, J.P. et. al. 1980. Warketing Alternatives for Fishermen. Texas A and M University, Sea Grant College Program, TAMU-SG-80-204. May. pp.2-6.
- ADAMS, C.M., GRIFFIN, W.L., NICECLS, J.P. and BRICK, R.E. 1980. Application of a Bio-Econcmic-Engineering Model for Shrimp Mariculture Systems, Southern Journal of Agricultural Economics, 13(1). July.

010.046 CRIS0068760 ASSESSMENT OF COASTAL BECREATION RESOURCES

DITTCN B B; RECREATION & PARKS; TEXAS AGM UNIVERSITY, COLLEGE STATICN, TEXAS. 77843. Proj. No.: TEX06073 Agency ID: CSRS Period: 24 JUL 75 To 30 AUG 85

OBJECTIVES: To establish the extent, nature and distribution of coastal recreation participation by regional and statewide populations. To describe coastal recreation participants on the basis of their socio-economic characteristics, boat equipment, reasons for participation and levels of satisfaction. To identify the economic impacts generated by coastal recreation participants on regional economics and to develop a series of management case studies which may be useful in recognizing and reconciling coastal use

conflicts.

APFROACE: Two area wide surveys of the boat fishing population will be made to collect the needed data. One survey will focus on the 7 county Eduston-Galveston-Texas City SMSA while the other will be statewide. A pretest will be conducted prior to each survey. Data collected will be analyzed using the SPSS and SAS programs available at the TAMU data processing center. Resource management implications of the collected data will be developed in a series of managerial case studies.

PRCGRESS: 80/01 TC 80/12. In late 1979 we tegan a two year study of the statewide distribution of saltwater boat fishermen and their fishing and socio-economic characteristics with supplemental funding from the TANU Sea Grant Program. In early 1980 a pilot study was conducted to validate the methodology and survey instrument. Using a screening phone interview and subsequent mail questionnaire with a stratified sample (coastal and non-coastal) of boat fishermen, our response rate was 74%. Pretest findings revealed that over 2/3 of the coastal boatowners used their boats for fishing in the past year. Of those coastal boatowners that fished, over half fished freshwater only. Slightly more than 47% of the coastal boat fishermen fished in Texas' bays or in offshore waters. Thirty-three percent of the sampled 495 coastal boatowners were saltwater fishermen. Fishermen were not as prevalent in the inland strata of owners. Although 60% of the inland boatowners used their boat to fish within the past year, less than 7% fished saltwater. Statewide, we found that 63% of all hoat owners used their boats for fishery purposes while only 14% used their boats to fish in saltwater. Based on the pretest we made some modifications in an instrumentation. For the main wave of the study, we made 5,500 phone calls to locate 1,264 saltwater fishermen. Of these 859 or 68% responded to our mail questionnaire.

PUBLICATIONS: 80/01 TO 80/12

- GRAEFE, A.R. 1980. The Belationship Between Level of Participation and Selected Aspects of Specialization in Recreational Fishery. Ph.D. Thesis. Texas A and M Univ., College Station. 155 pp.
- DITTCN, R.B., GRAEPE, A.R. and LAPOTKA, G. 1980. Economic Impacts of Recreational Boat Fishing in the Houston-Galveston Area of the Texas Coast. TANU-SG-80-206. Texas A and N Univ. Sea Grant Program, College Station.
- DITTCN, R.B., GEAEFE, A.E. and FEDLEE, A.J. 1980. Pr edicting Marine Recreational Fishing Patterns from Boat Characteristics and Equipment. Transactions of the American Fisheries Society 108:644-645.
- DITTON, R.E. 1980. The Euffalo National Fiver Recreation Study: Year One. Tech. Rept. Prepared for the Office of Natural Res., Southwest Region, Nat. Park Serv., Santa Fe, New Mexico. 115 pp. EEDNAEZ, P. 1980. An Analysis of Use and User
- Characteristics at Padre Ealli County Park on Padre Island (Texas). Prof. Paper, Dept. of Rec. and Parks, Texas A and W Univ., College Station. 63 pp.

010.047 CFIS0073656 ECCHOMIC ANALYSIS OF ALTERNATIVE VIRGINIA COASTAL WETLANDS POLICY

EATIE S S; SEABMAN L A; LONG E F; AGRI ECCNCMICS; VIRGINIA PCLY INST, ELACKSEURG, VIRGINIA. 24061. Proj. No.: VA-0612325 Project Type: EATCE Agency ID: CSRS Period: 04 CCT 77 To 30 JAN 80

OBJECTIVES: The current market situation of wetlands, determine motivations of owners of wetlands, identify the current and future services provided by wetlands, develop a framework for determining trade-off values between wetland services and estimate the values identified, and analyze existing and possible public policies. APPROACE: Two or three Virginie counties will be selected. Necessary market and use information will be obtained from tax and deed records, personel interviews and surveys. Technical data will be obtained from secondary date sources and will provide the data necessary for economic analyses.

PROGRESS: 79/01 TO 79/12. This project, which has as an objective the economic analysis of alternative manegement strategies for marine wetlands hes resulted in first, a critique of previous ettempts to provide economic velues of natural coastel merine wetlands. Also, the current market situation with respect to Virginia wetlands has been identified by analyzing present ownership patterns, identifying present wetlend use, end determining the velue of past market sales. Present owners of wetlands have been surveyed as to their motivation for ownership of wetlands and their expectations of future wetlands exchange values and future use. A framework has been developed for determining the tradeoff velues between the various services provided by wetlards. Economic values have been estimeted for coastal wetlands services as (a) inputs in oyster production (b) inputs into residentiel housing in Virginia Beach, Virginia, (c) inputs into recreational lots in Accomack County, Virginia, (d) inputs in erosion control, and (e) inputs in nonpoint pollution control. Alternative management strategies investigated include the current system of permitting, zoning, tax and subsidy programs, and transferable development rights.

PUBLICATIONS: 79/01 TO 79/12

SHABMAN, L.A. and BERTELSON, N. 1979. The development value of natural coastel wetlands: a framework for analysis of residential values. Land Economics. Vol. 55 (1) Feb. (Also published as Sea Grant Project Paper VPI-SG-77-08).
PARK, W.M. and BATIE, S.S. 1979. Methodological issues associated with estimetion of the economic value of coastal wetlands in improving water quality. Sea Grant Project Paper VPI-SG-79-09.
PARK, W.E. and EATIE, S.S. 1979. A stochastic methodology for estimating the value of coastal wetlands in controlling nonpoint pollution. Abstrated in Am. Journe of Agric. Econ.

010.048 CFIS0065833 CHARACTERISTICS, PREFERENCES, AND ATTITUDES CONCERNING PRIVATE FEE-FISHING OPERATIONS

LACKEY E T; GARLING D L; FISBERIES 6 WILDLIPE; VIRGINIA PCLY INST, BLACKSBURG, VIRGINIA. 24061. Proj. No.: VA-0613234 Project Type: HATCH Agency ID: CERS Period: 01 JUL 74 To 31 CCT 79

OBJECTIVES: Letermine selected demographic and other characteristics of anglers on selected fee-fishing operations in Virginia, determine and renk important factors affecting the perceived quality of a fishing experience on selected fee-fishing operations in Virginia, develop methodology for predicting man-deys of use accruing to selected fee-fishing operations in Virginia. Test the above methodology as to its utility as a predictive tool.

APPROACE: Survey questionnaire to selected fee-fishing operations in Virginia. Regression analysis, linear programming, or simulation for developing predictive methodology, Validation through additional survey work.

PROGEESS: 74/07 TO 79/10. Research and survey resulted in publications which will aid the fee-fisbing cperator in establishing an economically viable operation through use of ta formal planning process and adoption of sound management objectives and techniques. Procedures for economic and biological feasibility studies of proposed fish culture operations were described and used to evaluate commercial catfish culture and stocking stripped base in fee-fishing ponds. Both are impractical in Virginal because of the short growing season (catfish) and poor survival and catchability (stripped bass). Three strains of channel catfish for fee-fishing ponds. Both Grief for the short growing means of the stocking were eveluated. Wild Lake Erie fish out-performed Wild Ohio River and pond-reared Alahame catfish. Pond stocking programs were described and commercial fish sources identified. Surveys of fee-fishermen preferences indicated they place tigher velue on environmental quality, manager attitude end companionship than on catch in the fee-fishing experience. Commerciel aquaculeture enterprises in Virginia were surveyed. Existing commercial operations are small but well established end profitable. Developing mariculture end fee-fishing establishments have the highest potential for expanding aquaculture in Virginia.

PUBLICATIONS: 74/07 TO 79/10

- ASBLEY, K. W. 1979. Use of silver nitrate merking and physiological markers for differentiating geographical stocks of channel cetfish, Ictalurus punctetus. M.S. Thesis, VPI6SU, Blacksturg, Virginia. 65p.
- GARLING, D. L., JF and BELFFICE, L.A. 1979. Planning for commercial aquaculture. Virginia Cooperative Extension Service, VPI6SU. MT12E. 9 p.
- GARLING, D.L., JR. LACKEY, F.T., and SAUL, G. E. 1979. Use of selected strains of commercially available channel catfish in an intensively fished lake. NOAA 75/3-250-R. 23 p.

010.049 CRISOU78496 ECONOMIC PROPILE & REGIONAL ECONOMIC IMPACTS OF TEE ALASKA SHELLFISH INDUSTRY

BUTCHER W R; PETRY G B; BUTEAU J; AGRI ECCNCMICS; WASBINGTCN STATE UNIVERSITY, PULLMAN, WASBINGTCN. 99164. Proj. No.: WNP00436 Project Type: STATE

Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 OCT 78 To 30 SEP 80

OBJECTIVES: Determine the economic linkages (purchases and sales) between harvesters of Alaska shellfish and other sectors of the Alaska, Washington and Oregon state economies. Determine the economic linkages (purchases and sales) between the processors of Alaska shell fish and other sectors of the Alaska, Washington and Oregon economies. Incorporate the sectors primarily connected to the shellfish fishery into revised state economic input/cutput models and estimate economic impacts of potential permanent changes in the amount of fishing stocks available to the industry.

APPROACH: Available data on costs will be supplemented with data on expenditure patterns obtained by interviews with individual fishermen and by meeting with representative groups. Expenditure date will b used to form new detailed shellfish sectors for Alaska and Washington 1/0 models. Effects of fishery development and management policies will be traced through to calculate economic impects.

PROGRESS: 78/09 TC 80/09. Data on shellfish harvesting costs, obtained from a previous study, were revised and recategorized by input supplying industry; as well as by subfleet and fishery being harvested. These data were inserted in an updated Alaska-Washington interregional (interstate) input/output model. Estimates of impacts throughout the Alaska-Washington economy that would follow from changes in the shellfish industries' deliveries to final demand varied only slightly. Bowever, the share gained by Alaska households ranged from 0.44 for Alaska-based crab harvesters to 0.03 for Washington-based crab vessels. Washington always realizes considerable gain from expansion of Alaska shellfish harvesting, even if the hervests ere carried out by Alaska-based vessels and the catch is processed through Alaska-based plents.

PUBLICATIONS: 78/09 TO 80/09 NO PUBLICATIONS REPORTED FINAL REPORT PERIOD. 010.050 CRIS0071764 ESCULATION OF VISCONSIN'S LAKE NICHIGAN CONNERCIAL FISHERIES

HISBOP E C: AGEI ECONGNICS; UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN, MABISON, WISCONSIN. 53706. Proj. No.: WISO2278 Agency ID: SAES Period: 01 JUL 76 Ic 31 AUG 78

OBJECTIVES: Fhase I (1975-6) - Formulate an issue-oriented overview of Visconsin Great Lakes Commercial Fisheries. Fhase II (1976-7) - Complete a data base on Visconsin's Great Lakes commercial fishermen which can be used to analyze the potential impacts of alternative forms of fishery regulation. Emphasis is placed on effects of fishery regulation on the fishing industry, consumers and society as a whole.

APPROACE: Phase I - Develop a socio-economic profile of Wisconsin's commercial fishermen from primary and secondary sources. Phase II - Use profile data base to investigate impacts from PCE contamination, forms of limited entry and other types of fishery regulation.

PRCGRESS: 75/09 TO 78/08. The first step in the project was to clearly identify the conceptual framework to guide the study. Using welfare theory we concluded that the role of the economist should be to identify major potential impacts of alternative policies on consumers, commercial fishers, sports fishers, and others. Although some attention was given to consumers and recreationists, the most complex impacts of connercial fishery regulation fall on the commercial fishers and most of our work focused on this group. Two major data sources were utilized. One was records of the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources, which contain much detailed information on individual fishing operations. These data were organized and analyzed for publication. They also provided a basis for developing a stratified sample of nearly 100 commercial fishermen of Wisconsin's Lake Michigan. A total of 93 personal interviews were completed covering a wide range of topics including fisbing history, costs, attitudes concerning current policy issues, the economic effects of fishery regulations, job mobility, and other socio-economic aspects of connercial fishing. Fesults of the study are being made available to public decision makers in published form and on a personal basis. In addition, previously unavailable information on the fisheries and Wisconsin's experiences in fisheries management are now available to a broad audience of citizens, other eccnomists, and fishery scientists through project publications.

PUBLICATIONS: 75/09 TO 78/08

- EISEOP, R.C. and OTHERS. 1978. "Wisconsin's Limited Entry Experience." National Workshop on Limitation of Entry. Univ. of Wash., May 15-18, 1978. (Proceedings forthcoming).
- BISHOF, E.C. and OTHERS. 1978. Wisconsin's Lake Michigan and Green Eay Commercial Fisheries: A Statistical Overview, Univ. of Wisc. Sea Grant Advisory Rept., No. 418.
- Advisory Eept., No. 412. JCHNSON, V. and EISBOP, E.C. 1979. "Wisconsin's Commercial Fisheries: Present and Future," Economic Issues No. 29 (January).
- BISMOP, L.C. and SAMPLES, K. 1978. "Sport and Commercial Fishing Interactions", Univ. of Wisc.-Madison, Dept. of Econ. Staff Faper No. 146, July 1978. Presented at Amer. Agr. Econ. Assoc., Elacksburg, Virginia, August 6-10.



INVESTIGATOR INDEX

ABLE K. 1.064 ABNAD N. 3.108 ABMED N. 3.107 ALDRICE D V. 4.210, 6.093, 6.097* ALLEN P G. 6.054, 10.016* ALLISON R. 5.001, 6.002*, 6.003, 6.007 ALVAREZ J. 10.007 AMBCRSKI G F. 3.051 ANCECCEC J. 4.022 AMUNDSON C B. 1.103, 5.056* ANDERSCN C E. 4.158 ANDERSON J M. 1.071 ANDERSON L. 5.017 ANDERSON L W. 3.008, 3.011, 3.015, 3.016, 3.019, 3.020, 3.021, 4.009*, 4.031*, 4.035* ANDERSON N B. 4.177 ANDREWS J W JR. 2.007, 5.013, 6.022*, 6.023* ANTBONY A. 3.086, 4.189* APPLEGATE R L. 4.201, 5.050*, 6.089* ARNOLD D E. 4.192 ASETON F M. 3.007, 3.011 ATCHISCN G J. 1.032, 4.079* AULERICE R J. 8.028 AVAULT J W. 1.042, 2.011, 2.012, 4.092*, 6.043*, 6.044*, 6.045*, 6.046, 7.006* AZARI P. 3.018, 5.009*, 9.005*

BADAR-UD-DIN. 3.108 BAGNALL L C. 3.022 BAIRD C D. 8.006 EAKER J L. 4.089 BAKER R C. 8.035, 8.036, 9.026*, 9.028* BALCIUNAS J K. 3.023 EARLOW J P. 4.140 BARTHA R. 4.132 BARTBALMUS G T. 1.079, 3.075±, 8.040* BATIE S S. 1C.047 EAUMANN P. 1.008 BAYER D E. 4.025 EAYER R C. 3.055, 5.026*, 6.050* EAYNE D R. 4.003 BECK R. 10.025 BELEAU N. 6.032 BENFIELD E F. 1.100, 1.102, 4.213*, 4.217* BENNETT D. 4.054, 4.055, 4.056, 4.073 EERRY R E. S.006 BEUCBAT L R. 9.008 BICKBAN J. 2.026 BIEDE S L. 8.015, 9.014* EISBOP R C. 10.050 EJOENN T C. 1.024, 1.025, 1.026, 1.027, 1.028, 1.025, 4.055, 4.057*, 4.058*, 4.058, 4.060, 4.061, 4.062, 4.063, 4.064*, 4.065, 4.074, 4.075, 6.033, 6.034*, 6.035* BOCKSTAEL N E. 10.037, 10.042 ECDA J M. 1.003, 1.004, 4.010*, 4.011* BODOLA A. 6.(18, 6.019 BONDARI K. 2.007, 6.023*

EORGSTROM G A. 10.020 BOTTINC N R. 5.053, 9.038* BCWES G E. 1.017 BOWMAN D B. 4.173, 6.073*, 10.035* EOWSER P R. 3.009, 3.010 ECYD C E. 4.002, 4.003, 5.002, 5.003*, 6.004 ERADEURY P C. 3.076 BREESE W P. 4.178, 5.040*, 6.074*, 6.075 BRENNEMAN W N. 4.191 BRICK R W. 4.205, 6.094* EROTBERS E E. 1.068, 1.069, 1.070 BROWN E E. 3.039, 5.014*, 6.024* EROWN T L. 10.033 EROWN W D. 5.007, 6.014*, 8.002, 8.003, 9.003*, 8.004* BRUBN B D. 7.015 EFUNER M C. 3.035 ERYAN C F. 1.049, 4.097* ERYANT M D. 4.004 EUCK B M. 8.027 EUCKINGEAM G R. 3.036, 3.037, 3.038 BULKLEY R V. 1.039, 4.086* EURKBEAD C E. 4.051 EUSCE C D. 6.004 BUSCE R. 4.125, 6.057* BUSCE F L. 1.099, 5.035, 6.058*, 6.059, 6.100, 8.031*, 9.040* BUTCEER W R. 10.049 EUTEAU J. 10.049 EUTLER R L. 1.092

CABRAAL A. 1.053, 6.051* CALBERT B B. 2.028, 5.057*, 6.102* CALLCWAY & A. 4.106 CAMP E J. 3.089 CAMPBELL R S. 3.062, 4.127* CARDEILBAC P T. 1.020, 2.006* CARLANDER & D. 1.033, 4.080*, 4.081, 6.037 CARLISLE J C. 3.070 CARLSON C A. 1.014 CARMAN E F. 10.004 CARRCAD P A. 8.004 CAUL J F. 8.013, 9.012* CECE J J. 4.027 CENTER T D. 3.023, 3.032, 3.033, 3.105, 3.109 CHANG E S. 1.005 CHANG P W. 3.087 CEARUDATIAN R. 3.029, 3.103 CHESNESS J L. 3.039, 5.014*, 6.024* CBICBESTER. 5.046, 8.042* CHITTENDEN M E. 1.097 CLAEK W B. 1.006, 1.007 CLARK W J. 4.206, 4.209 CLEVELAND C. 4.141 CLONTS JR B A. 10.001 COBB B B. 2.027, 5.054*, 6.096* COLETTE W A. 10.007 CCLLIEF J A. 6.083, 6.084, 7.012*, 7.013* COMBS C L. 1.019 CCMES & D. 3.107, 3.108 COMITINI S. 10.010 CONKLIN D E. 5.006 CCNNER J R. 10.021

CONFAD J M. 6.054, 10.016*, 10.027, 10.028, 10.029, 10.030, 10.031 COOK E F. 4.120 COOPER C M. 4.126 COOPER E L. 1.093, 4.190*, 4.191 COFELAND E J. 4.160 CORDO B A. 3.103 COULTAS C L. 4.038, 4.044 CRAWFORD D L. 5.041 CROSBY D G. 4.017 CULLEY D J JR. 1.043, 2.013, 4.093*, 5.023* CURTIS L R. 4.178, 4.180

DAVIDSCN J R. 6.026, 10.010, 10.011* DAVIES W D. 6.005 DAVIS C E. 5.025, 6.048*, 7.007* DAVIS D E. 4.001 DAVIS R B. 4.101 DAWE D L. 1.022, 3.042, 3.043 DECOSSAS K M. 8.021, 10.013* DEBAAS E. 8.022 DEIBEL R B. 7.016, 8.048* DELOACE C J. 3.103, 3.104 DELORME D. 4.131 DEMONT D J. 1.080, 4.161* DENG J C. 8.006, 8.007, 9.006* DESIERVO A J. 1.051, 4.100* DEYOE C. 2.010, 5.020*, 6.040* DILL N B. 4.036 DITTON E B. 10.046 DOORES S. 9.031 DOROSECV S I. 1.007 DOTY M S. 6.031, 10.012* DUDLEY T L. 4.177 DUNIWAY J M. 3.008, 4.009* DUNN J L. 3.090, 4.194* DURAND J. 1.066, 4.137* DURFEE W K. 3.088

EDLING R J. 6.042, 7.005* EDNEY N A. 4.122 FITENMILLEF F F. 8.009 ELAM E W. 10.003 ELSTON R. 3.071, 3.074 EPMAN D C. 1.010, 4.018, 4.015* EVEREST F B. 4.004 FVEREART W.B. 10.034 EVBRSOLE A G. 1.094, 1.095, 3.091*, 4.198, 5.048*, 6.083, 6.084, 6.085*, 6.086, 7.012*, 7.013* EWEL K C. 1.018, 3.028*, 4.046* EWING M S. 3.080

FACTOR J R. 1.071 FALTER C N. 4.066, 4.067, 4.076, 4.077 FAYAD Y H. 3.105 FERRIER J J. 4.036 FINGER T F. 4.128 FINNE G. 8.045, 8.046, 9.035*, 9.036*

FLICKINGER S. 2.005, 6.017# FCIN T C. 1.009, 2.004*, 4.013* FOLTZ J W. 4.128, 4.198, 5.048*, 5.048* FORNEY J L. 1.073, 4.150, 6.065* FORTHER G W. 3.050 FRANK H A. 8.011, 9.010* FRANK P A. 3.007 FREEMAN D W. 5.032, 8.020, 8.021, 8.030*, 9.001, 10.013* FREEMAN T E. 3.029 FROMM P 0. 3.060, 4.118* FRYER J L. 3.081, 3.082, 3.083 GALL G A E. 2.002 GARCIA R L. 4.012 GARLING D L. 4.214, 10.048 GAFFETT J R. 5.036, 8.032*, 10.022* GATES J N. 6.082, 10.038*, 10.039 GERSHOFF S. \$.020 GIEES & C. 10.036 GIBBS K E. 4.103 GIFFORD J 5. 4.007, 6.010* GILLESPIE J H. 3.072 GLASS E D. 9.031 GLOSS S P. 4.146, 4.147, 4.148, 4.149 GOLD J R. 2. (26 GOLDMAN C R. 4.020, 6.015* GOODRICH D C JR. 10.032 GOREACE S. 9.020 GOUGH # H. 8.014 GRAGALUNAS T A. 10.040 GRATZEK J B. 1.022, 3.040, 3.041, 3.042, 3.043 GREEN D N. 1.074, 1.075 GREENEESG E F. 4.144 GREENWCOD P B. 10.024 GREGORY D R. 1.019 GRIFFIN W L. 10.044, 10.045 GRIMES C. 1.064 GRCDNER R. 8.018, 9.015, 9.016*, 9.017 GRUMBLES L E. 3.098 HACKNEY C R. S. 015 BAERTEL L. 4.200 MAIR J D. 4.162 MALL C A S. 4.141 BALL D W. 3.026 HALL J D. 4.181 BALLER W T. 3.024, 3.025, 4.045* HALLIWELL R E W. 3.031 HAMANN D D. 7.009, 8.038*, 9.029* BANSEN M F. 3.050 BARDY JE W E. 10.001 HARRIS-WARFICK E M. 1.076 HASKIS - WARRISCH R W. 1.076 HASKIN H H. 1.066, 2.015, 3.066, 3.067*, 4.135*, 4.136, 4.137*, 6.062*, 6.063*, 6.064 HASKINS C J. 6.011, 6.013 HASSLER W W. 1.081, 4.163, 4.164*, 6.068 HATZIOS K K. 3.100, 3.100, 4.218*, 4.218* HAUCE W N. 3.053, 4.098* EAVLICEE J JF. 9.041 HAWKINS C P. 4.177 HAWKEY E W. 4.170, 4.171, 4.172, 4.174 BEDGECOCK D. 2.003 BELFRICE P. 5.016, 5.017 BERKE W B. 1.044, 1.045, 4.094*, 4.095* HIDALGO R J. 3.098, 4.123, 9.022* BILL D T. 6.001 BILL N L. 1.081, 4.164* EILL T K. 2.007, 3.039, 5.014*, 6.023*, 6.024* HILLIER A J. 4.196, 7.011 HILSENHOFF W L. 3.102, 4.221, 4.222*, 4.223

BCFFEET J R. 1.062 BOLMEEN A. 10.041 HCLT E R. 4.088, 6.035* ECOD L F. 8.034 HOWITT R E. 10.004 BUEERT W A. 1.034, 1.035, 1.040, 4.081, 4.082, 4.087*, 4.090, 6.038* **EUETH D L. 10.042** EUGGINS D G. 4.081 BUISE M T. 2.017, 2.018, 3.077, 4.160, 4.165*, 6.070* BULL & J. 4.197 BULTIN N C. 8.026 LUNER J V. 1.050, 4.099#, 6.049* EUTCEINSON C. 10.017 EWANG D. 8.019 IACONO J. S.020 IKAWA N. 9.023 INGLING A L. 8.025 JCHNSON D L. 1.085, 4.168*, 4.169 JOHNSON B E. 4.111, 5.029, 8.029* JCENSCN H F. 4.089 JOBNSION W E. 10.004 JONES J R. 3.062, 4.127* JUUL & H. 5.012, 6.020* KAFLANDER E P. 1.054, 4.105, 4.107≭, €.053* KAYES T B. 1.103, 5.056* **KEENEY P G. 9.031** KELLEF K R. 2.018, 6.070* KELLEY J R JR. 2.010, 5.020*, 6.040* KEFBY J B. 2.016, 2.017, 2.018, 3.077, 4.165*, 6.070* KEVERN N R. 4.112, 4.113, 5.030*, 6.055* EHAN N Y. 3.107 KING D D. 4.114 EINGMAN A R. 8.044 KINGSBURY J N. 4.143 KINSELLA J E. 9.024 KIRKPATRICK P L. 5.055 EITZMAN J V. 4.123, 9.022* KLAASSEN B E. 2.010, 3.050, 5.020*, 5.021, 6.040*, 6.041, 7.004* LESIUS P H. 3.001, 3.002 KLCNTZ G W. 3.045, 3.046, 4.068, 4.069, 5.018 KLUG M J. 4.118 ENIGHT A W. 3.012, 4.023*, 4.024, 4.025, 5.008*, 8.005* ECEUEGEE J A. 8.008, 9.007* KOEGEL F G. 7.015 KOEHLER P E. 8.009 KOLI A. 4.199, 9.034* BRISTIANSSON A C. 1.090 **EYNARD B E. 4.005** LAEISKY R F. 1.019 LACEWELL R D. 10.044 LACKEY R T. 6.101, 10.048 LAI V K. 4.069 LAKE E W. 4.037 LALONDE E T. 3.065 LANIER T C. 7.005, 7.010, 8.038*, 8.039*, 9.029*, 9.030* LANNAN J E. 1.087, 6.076* LARSCN E. 1.085, 4.168* LATIF A. 4.122 LAW D K. 5.041, 8.041 LAWRENCE A. 5.052, 6.092*

LEDFORD R A. 9.025 LEE B J. 1.096, 3.094* LEE F N. 3.005 LEE K N. 3.072 LEE T C. 5.046, 8.042* LEIBOVITZ L. 3.071, 3.072, 3.074, 4.139 LEMBI C A. 3.048 LEONARD R L. 10.006 LEONG J A. 3.084, 3.085, 4.187* LEWIS D B. 1.096, 3.094#, 3.095, 3.096, 3.027 LEWIS O B. 3.098 LI B W. 1.011, 1.012, 6.016* LIBEY G S. 1.031, 6.036* LILLARD D A. 9.009 LINDSAY & C. 7.016, 8.048*, 9.043 LISK D J. 4.154 LISS W J. 4.182, 4.186 LISTON C R. 1.060, 4.115* LIUZZO J A. 9.017 LIVERMORE D F. 7.015 LOEW E R. 1.077 LONG E F. 10.047 LORIO W J. 4.124 LOVELL R T. 5.004, 6.006, 8.001*, 9.001, 9.002*, 10.002* LUTZ R A. 1.067, 4.138 MACPREE C. 3.047, 5.019 MAGGENTI A R. 3.014 MALECHA S R. 2.008, 6.030* MALECKI R A. 3.073 MARQUIS L Y. 3.101 WAREOW E. 4.155 MARTIN R G. 1.078 MARTYN R D. 3.053. 4.204* MAEZOLF G E. 1.041 MATLOCK D B. 1.023 MATTER W. 4.005, 4.006 MAUGHAN O E. 4.173, 6.073*, 10.035* MCALEXANDEE A K. 4.088, 6.039* MCCASKEY T A. 6.001 MCCAY E J. 10.026 MCCONNELL E E. 10.015 MCCOY E W. 6.006, 6.008, 7.001≠, 8.001*, 9.002*, 10.001, 10.002* MCGINTY A S. 2.023, 5.045*, 6.079* MCBENRY J R. 4.176 NCLAUGBLIN D N. 6.083, 7.012* MCMILLIAN J P. 1.099, 9.040* MCNABE C D. 3.059, 4.116*, 4.117 NCVOY C. 4.141 NEADE T L. 3.090, 4.194*, 4.195, 6.080*, 6.081 MEEHAN W R. 4.004 MEEHAN W N. 4.004 NEHTA E S. 4.171, 4.172 MENZEL B W. 1.036, 1.037, 1.038, 2.009*, 4.083*, 4.084*, 4.085 MENZEL R G. 4.175, 4.176 MERCER B D. 4.123, 9.022* MERKOWSKY A. 5.005 MEYERS S P. 5.022, 8.016*, 8.017 MEYERS 1 R. 3.074 MILLARD P. 4.104 MILLER G C. 3.078, 3.079 MILLER J M. 1.082, 1.083, 4.166*, 6.071± MILLS E L. 4.150 MITCHELL B D. 4.067 MIYAHARA A Y. 3.044 MODDE T C. 5.049, 6.087, 6.088* MONROE R J. 4.160 NORITA E Y. 4.188 NORRISCN S N. 4.033 NORSE E V. 3.049 MORSE R E. 8.033 NOTTE G A. 4.186, 7.011 NOY J B. 7.003, 8.010, 8.012*, 9.011* NOYLE P B. 1.012, 1.013, 4.028, 4.025*, 4.030, 6.016* MOZLEY S C. 1.084, 4.167

LECKIE F D. 1.086, 6.072*

LAWSCN T E. 4.105, 6.052, 6.053*

LAWRENCE J N. 4.003

LAWS E. 2.008, 6.030*

MULLONEY B. 1.001 NUNCY R J. 1.039, 4.086* MURPHEY F. 4.037

NAIE A. 6.098, 6.099, 9.039* NAKAMURA R N. 3.044 NEFF W H. 3.026, 4.189* NEILL W H. 1.098, 4.207*, 4.210, 4.211, 6.093, 6.097* NELSON S G. 5.015 NEVES R J. 1.100, 4.213* NEWTON R J. 3.093, 4.204∓ NEWTON S H. 4.007, 5.005, 6.009, 6.010*, 6.011, 6.012, 6.013 NEY J J. 1.101, 4.214 NICHOLS J P. 10.044, 10.045 NICHOLSON E L. 3.056, 3.057, 3.058 NICKUM J G. 1.040, 4.081, 4.087*, 4.151, 5.028, 6.038*, 6.066*, 6.067* NIELSEN L A. 4.215, 4.216 NIP W. 7.003, 8.010, 8.011, 8.011, 8.012*, 9.010*, 9.010*, 9.011* NOBLE R L. 4.208, 4.205, 6.095* NORTON S A. 4.101 NOFTON V T. 10.015

O'CONNOR M L. 4.219 CBLINGEE J L. 8.008, 9.007* OGLESBY R T. 4.152 OLNEY C E. 5.047

PADDA D S. 6.100 PARDUE G B. 1.100, 1.102, 4.213*, 4.217* PATEL K. 8.043, 9.032* PATTERSON G N. 1.055, 1.056, 4.108*, 5.027* PESCIVAL S. 8.043, 9.032* PERKINS B D. 3.034 PETERS E J. 4.130 FETERS W L. 4.039, 4.042, 4.043 PETROSKY B. 6.019 PETEY G H. 10.049 PHILLIPS D W. 1.002 PLUMB J A. 3.001, 3.002, 3.003, 3.004 POE W E. 5.033 POWELL T N. 4.014 PRATHER E E. 5.004, 6.005, 6.007 PRATT D B. 4.104 PRINCE T J. 6.001 PROCHASKA F J. 10.007, 10.008

OUIMBY JR P C. 3.061

RAGGI L G. 3.013 RAKOCY J E. 1.099, 6.098, 6.099, 9.039*, 9.040* RAND A G JE. 9.033 RAO R. 8.018, 8.016* RAY S M. 7.014, 8.047*, 9.037* REAGEN R E. 2.014, 5.034*, 6.056* REBACH S. 1.057, 1.058, 1.059, 4.108*, 4.110*, 5.028* REDDY G B. 4.157 REGENSTEIN J N. 8.035, 8.036, 9.025, 9.026*, 9.027, 9.028* REILING S D. 10.014 REINBRT R E. 4.050, 4.051, 6.025* RESE V H. 4.016 REYNOLDS A E. 9.021 RICHERSCN F J. 4.021 RICHMOND M E. 3.073 EIEMER D. 3.068 RITCHE J C. 4.126 ROBINETTE E 5. 2.014, 4.124, 4.125, 5.034*, 5.035, 6.056*, 6.057*, 6.058*, 8.031*

ROBISON W R. 6.011, 6.012
 ROBISON W R. 6.011, 6.012
 IILLEF D. 10.008

 FCDDY L F. 5.025, 6.048*, 7.007*
 TIMONEY J F. 1.072, 4.145*

 FOEMHILD G R. 4.129
 TOLEDO R T. 9.009
 FOEMHILD G R. 4.129 FCGEFS B D. 1.045, 4.095* ROGERS W A. 3.003, 3.004 ECMAIRE E P. 4.096, 6.047* ROSE G. 4.104 LCSSI D. 10.025 FCTEENBACHER H. 4.193 FUSCFF L L. 9.013 EUTLEDGE J E. 8.015, 8.018, 9.014*, 9.016*, 9.017

SAMPIES K C. 10.009 SANDHEINRICH M H. 4.082 SANDS F B. 6.100 SCALET C G. 5.049, 6.087, 6.088* SCHAFFNER W R. 4.152 SCHAN12 E J. 9.042 SCHNOES H K. 9.042 SCHOFIELD C L. 4.153 SCBEECK C B. 1.088, 1.089, 1.090, 2.019, 2.020, 4.183*, 4.184*, 6.077* SEELEY B W. 4.142 SEIN W K. 4.180 SELIVCNCHICK D P. 5.042 SENECA E D. 4.159 SHAHMAN L A. 10.047 SHALLENBERGER R S. 8.037 SHANG Y C. 10.009 SHELTON W L. 6.005 SHIREMAN J V. 3.030, 4.047, 4.048, 4.045*, 5.012, 6.020*, 6.021* SHISLEF J. 1.065, 3.065*, 4.134* SELESEF R. 5.016, 5.017 SHCTIS E H. 3.042, 3.043 SHRODE J. 4.051, 6.025* SILK W K. 4.026 SIMPSON K L. 5.046, 5.047, 8.042* SINNHUHER & O. 5.043, 5.044 SIS F F. 1.096, 3.094* SECGEREOE R K. 4.034 SLAEYJ E N. 8.022, 8.023, 9.018 SLACK E D. 4.209 SMART G C JR. 3.027 SMITH L T. 2.024 SMITE R J. 3.005, 3.006, 4.008* SMITHERMAN R C. 2.001, 6.007, 6.008, 7.001* SPACIE A. 4.078 SPADAFC J J. 8.021, 10.013* SPANGLER G R. 1.063, 4.121* SPENCER N. 3.106 STEVENS K L. 3.017 STEWARD K K. 3.032, 3.035 STICKNEY R R. 2.027, 4.211, 5.054*, 6.096* STOREY D A. 6.054, 10.016*, 10.017, 10.018 STOSZEK N J. 5.019 STRAND I E. 10.015 STRANGE R J. 4.202 STRAWN K. 2.027, 4.210, 4.211, 5.054*, 6.053, 6.096*, 6.087* SIECUL N. 4.159 SIECUL R G. 3.064, 5.037* SUERAEMANYAM C B. 1.016, 4.038, 4.040, 4.041*, 4.044, 5.010*, 5.011* SUMMERFELT R C. 4.088, 6.039* SUTHERLAND D J. 4.131, 4.133 SUTINEN J G. 10.043 SUTTCN D L. 3.032 SWARTZ A N. 10.045

TALBELN D R. 10.019 TAFJAN A C. 1.021, 3.027 TAYLCE H W. 3.053, 4.098* TAYLCE E L. 3.063, 5.036, 6.060, 6.61, 8.032*, 10.022*, 10.023* TEER J G. 4.208, 6.095* THUNE F L. 3.052, 3.054

TILLEE D. 10.008 TRIPLETT J R. 1.086, 4.169, 6.072∓ TRUE R H. 8.023, 9.018 TRUESDALE F N. 1.046, 1.047, 1.048, 5.024± TUCKER C S. 5.035, 6.058*, 6.059, 8.031* TUGWELL N P. 3.005 TYLER A V. 1.091, 4.185, 6.078±

VADAS R L. 1.052, 4.102*, 7.008* VAN DER VALE A G. 4.089 VAN T E. 3.035 VAN VALKENBURG 5 D. 1.056, 4.108* VANDERZANT C. 7.014, 8.046, 8.047*, 9.036*, 9.037* VANDYNE G. 1.015, 4.032* VICK A. 4.156, 5.039* VOGT G B. 3.061 VOSHELL J R JR. 4.212

WALDROP J. 4.125, 6.057*, 6.059 WALDFOF J E. 10.021 WANG J K. 4.052, 6.027, 6.028*, 7.002**≭** WARREN C E. 4.180, 4.182, 4.186 WASHING R K. 4.015 WEBB B K. 6.084, 7.013* WEBER L J. 4.186 WEBSTER D A. 4.153 WEBSTER J F. 1.102, 4.217* WERNER L L. 3.031 WHEATON F W. 1.053, 4.105, 6.051*, 6.052, 6.053×, 8.024, 8.025, 9.019* WHITE C H. 8.014 WHITE R G. 1.028, 4.056, 4.070, 4.071, 4.072, 4.073 WHITE R J. 1.061 WILEN J E. 10.005 WILKINS B T. 10.034 WILLIAMS R D. 4.176 WILLIS. 10.017 WILSON J L. 2.025, 3.092, 4.203*, 5.051*, 6.090*, 6.091* WILSON R P. 2.014, 5.031, 5.032, 5.033, 5.034*, 6.056*, 8.030* WITT JR A. 3.062, 4.127* WOLKE R E. 3.087, 3.088, 3.089, 3.090, 4.194*, 6.081 WRIGHT J E. 2.021, 2.022 WUJTEWICZ C. 6.019

YAMAUCBI H. 6.026. 10.011* YANG P Y. 4.053, 6.029* YATES V J. 3.087 YEO R R. 3.015, 3.016, 4.031* YOUNGS W D. 1.074, 1.075, 6.068 YU T C. 5.044

ZALL R R. 8.034 ZEIKUS J G. 4.220



PERFORMING INSTITUTION INDEX

ALABANA

AUBERN UNIVERSITY, AUBURN, 2.001, 3.001, 3.002, 3.003, 3.004, 4.001, 4.002, 4.003, 5.001, S.002, 5.003*, 5.004, 6.001, 6.002*, 6.003, 6.004, 6.005, 6.006, 6.007, 6.008, 7.001*, 8.001*, S.001*, S.002*, 10.001, 10.002*

ALASKA

PACIFIC NW FCREST & RGE EXP STA, JUNEAU, 4.004

ARGENTINA

BICLOGICAL CONTEOL OF WEED LAB, HURLINGHAM, 3.103, 3.104

ARIZONA

UNIVERSITY OF ARIZCNA, TUCSON, 4.005, 4.006

ARKANSAS

UNIVERSITY OF ARKANSAS, FAYETTEVILLE, 3.006, 4.008*, 10.003

UNIVERSITY OF ARKANSAS, PINE BLUFF, 4.007, 5.005, 6.009, 6.010*, 6.011, 6.012, 6.013

RICE-PASTURE RES & EXT CENTER, STUTIGAET, 3.005

CALIFORNIA

USDA-ARS WESTEEN BEG RES CNTR, ALBANY, 3.017

UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, EERKELEY, 1.010, 4.012, 4.016, 4.018, 4.019*

UNIVERSITY OF CALIFOENIA, LAVIS, 1.001, 1.002, 1.003, 1.004, 1.005, 1.006, 1.007, 1.008, 1.009, 1.011, 1.012, 1.013, 2.002, 2.003, 2.004*, 3.007, 3.008, 3.009, 3.010, 3.011, 3.012, 3.013, 3.014, 4.005*, 4.010±, 4.611×, 4.013*, 4.014, 4.015, 4.017, 4.020, 4.021, 4.022, 4.023*, 4.024, 4.025, 4.026, 4.027, 4.028, 4.025*, 4.030, 5.006, 5.007, 5.008*, 6.014*, 6.015*, 6.616*, £.002, £.003, 8.004, 8.005*, 5.003*, 5.004±, 10.004, 10.005 USDA-ARE ACUATIC WEED CONT RES, DAVIS, 3.015, 3.016, 4.031*

COLCRADO

- USDA-ARS AQUATIC WEED CONT LAB, DENVEE, 3.019, 3.020, 3.021, 4.035*
- COLORADO STATE UNIVERSITY, PORT COLLINS, 1.014, 1.015, 2.005, 3.018, 4.032*, 4.033, 4.034, 5.009*, 6.017*, 5.005*

CONNECTIOUT

UNIVERSITY OF CONNECTICUT, STORRS, 10.006

DELAVARE

DELAWARE STATE COLL, DOVER, 4.036, 6.018, 6.019 UNIVERSITY OF DELAWARE, NEWARE, 4.037

EGIPT

MINISTRY OF AGRICULTURE, CAIEC, 3.105

FLORIDA

- UNIVERSITY OF FLORIDA, FT LAUDEFDALE, 3.023, 3.032 USDA-AFS AQUATIC WEEDS DES LAB, FT LAUDERDALE, 3.033, 3.034, 3.035
- UNIVERSITY OF FLORIDA, GAINESVILLE, 1.017, 1.018, 1.020, 2.006*, 3.022, 3.024, 3.025, 3.026, 3.027, 3.028*, 3.025, 3.030, 3.031, 4.045*, 4.046*, 4.047, 4.048, 4.049*, 5.012, 6.020*, 6.021*, 8.006, 8.007, 5.008, S.006*, S.007*, 10.007, 10.008 USDA-ARS BIOLOGICAL PEST CONTE, GAINESVILLE, 3.036, 3.037, 3.038
- UNIVERSITY OF FLORIDA, KEY WEST, 1.019
- UNIVERSITY OF FLORIDA, LAKE ALFEED, 1.021
- FLORIDA AGRIC & MECH UNIVERSITY, TALLABASSEE, 1.016, 4.038, 4.039, 4.040, 4.041*, 4.042, 4.043, 4.044, 5.010*, 5.011*

GEORGIA

UNIVERSITY OF GECEGIA, ATHENS, 1.022, 3.040, 3.041, 3.042, 3.043, 4.050, 4.051, 6.025*, 8.009, 9.009

GECRGIA AGRIC EXPT STATICN, EXPERIMENT, S.008

GEORGIA CCASTAL PLAIN EXPT STA, TIFTON, 2.007, 3.039, 5.013, 5.014*, 6.022*, 6.023*, 6.024*

GUAM

UNIVERSITY OF GUAN, AGANA, 1.023, 5.015

BAVAII

UNIVERSITY OF HAWAII, HONCLULU, 2.008, 3.044, 4.052, 4.053, 5.016, 5.017, 6.026, 6.027, 6.028*, 6.028*, 6.030*, 6.031, 7.002*, 7.003, 8.010, 8.011, 8.012*, 5.010*, 9.011*, 10.009, 10.010, 10.011*, 10.012*

IDABO

UNIVERSITY OF IDABC, MCSCCW, 1.024, 1.025, 1.026, 1.027, 1.028, 1.029, 1.030, 3.045, 3.046, 3.047, 4.054, 4.055, 4.056, 4.057±, 4.058*, 4.059, 4.060, 4.061, 4.062, 4.063, 4.064*, 4.065, 4.066, 4.067, 4.068, 4.069, 4.070, 4.071, 4.072, 4.073, 4.074, 4.075, 4.076, 4.077, 5.018, 5.019, 6.032, 6.033, 6.034*, 6.035*

INDIANA

PURDUE UNIVERSITY, LAFAYETTE, 1.031, 3.048, 3.049, 4.078, 6.036*

IOVA

IOWA STATE UNIVERSITY, AMES, 1.032, 1.033, 1.034, 1.035, 1.036, 1.037, 1.038, 1.039, 1.040, 2.009*, 4.073*, 4.080*, 4.081, 4.082, 4.083*, 4.084*, 4.0855, 4.086*, 4.087*, 4.088, 4.089, 4.080, 6.037, 6.038*, 6.039*

ITALY

EIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF WEED LAB, ROME, 3.106

KABSAS

KANSAS STATE UNIVERSITY, MANHATTAN, 1.041, 2.010, 3.050, 4.0£1, 5.020*, 5.021, 6.040*, 6.041, 7.004*, 8.013, 9.012*

LOUISIANA

- LOUISIANA STATE UNIVERSITY, BATON ROUGE, 1.042, 1.043, 1.044, 1.045, 1.046, 1.047, 1.048, 1.049, 2.011, 2.012, 2.013, 3.051, 3.052, 3.053, 3.054, 4.092*, 4.053*, 4.094*, 4.095*, 4.096, 4.057*, 4.098*, 5.022, 5.023*, 5.024*, 6.042, 6.043*, 6.044*, 6.045*, 6.046, 6.047*, 7.005*, 7.006*, 8.014, 8.015, 8.016*, 8.017, 8.018, 8.019, 9.013, 9.014*, 9.015, 9.016*, 9.017 SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY, BATON ROUGE, 1.050, 4.099*, 5.025, 6.048*, 6.049*, 7.007*
- USDA-ARS SOUTHERN FEG RES CENTER, NEW ORLEANS, 8.020, 8.021, 10.013*

MAINE

UNIVERSITY OF MAINE, OBONO, 1.051, 1.052, 3.055, 3.056, 3.057, 3.058, 4.100*, 4.101, 4.102*, 4.103, 4.104, 5.026*, 6.050*, 7.008*, 8.022, 8.023, 9.018, 10.014

MARYLAND

- UNIVERSITY OF MARYLAND, COLLEGE PARK, 1.053, 1.054, 1.055, 1.056, 4.105, 4.106, 4.107*, 4.108*, 5.027*, 6.051*, 6.052, 6.053*, 8.024, 8.025, 9.019*, 10.015
- UNIVERSITY OF MARYLAND EASTERN SHORE, PRINCESS ANN, 1.057, 1.058, 1.059, 4.109≠, 4.110≠, 5.028≠

MASSACHUSETTS

UNIVERSITY OF MASSACHUSETTS, AMBERST, 6.054, 8.026, 8.027, 10.016*, 10.017, 10.018

TUFTS UNIVERSITY, MEDFORD, 9.020

MICHIGAN

MICEIGAN STATE UNIVERSITY, EAST LANSING, 1.060, 1.061, 1.062, 3.059, 3.060, 4.111, 4.112, 4.113, 4.114, 4.115*, 4.116*, 4.117, 4.118, 4.119*, 5.029, 5.030*, 6.055*, 8.028, 8.028*, 9.021, 10.019, 10.020

MINNESOTA

UNIVERSITY OF WINNESOTA, ST FAUL, 1.063, 4.120, 4.121*

MISSISSIPPI

ALCORN A AND N COLLEGE, LCRMAN, 4.122

MISSISSIPPI STATE UNIVERSITY, MISSISSIPPI STATE, 2.014, 4.123, 4.124, 4.125, 5.031, 5.032, 5.033, 5.034*, 6.056*, 6.057*, 8.030*, 9.022*, 10.021

USDA-ARS SEDIMENTATION LAB, CXFORD, 4.126

MISSISSIPPI STATE UNIVERSITY, STONEVILLE, 5.035, 6.058*, 6.059, 8.031* USDA-ARS SOUTHERN WEED SCI LAB, STONEVILLE, 3.061

MISSOURI

UNIVERSITY OF MISSCURI, CCLUMBIA, 3.062, 4.127*, 4.128

MONTABA

MONTANA STATE UNIVERSITY, BOZEMAN, 4.129

NEERASEA

UNIVERSITY OF NEBRASKA, LINCCLN, 4.130

NEVADA

NEW HAMPSHIRE

UNIVERSITY OF NEW BAMPSBIRE, DURBAN, 3.064, 5.037*, 9.023, 10.024

NEW JERSEY

RUTGERS UNIVERSITY, NEW BRUNSWICE, 1.064, 1.065, 1.066, 1.067, 2.015, 3.065[±], 3.066, 3.067[±], 3.068, 4.131, 4.132, 4.133, 4.134[±], 4.135[±], 4.136, 4.137[±], 4.138, 6.062[±], 6.063[±], 6.064, 8.033, 10.025, 10.026

NEW YORK

- N Y AGRICULTURE EXPT STATICN, GENEVA, 8.037
- CORNELL UNIVERSITY, ITHACA, 1.068, 1.069, 1.070, 1.071, 1.072, 1.073, 1.074, 1.075, 1.076, 1.077, 3.070, 3.071, 3.072, 3.073, 3.074, 4.139, 4.140, 4.141, 4.142, 4.143, 4.144, 4.145*, 4.146, 4.147, 4.148, 4.149, 4.150, 4.151, 4.152, 4.153, 4.154, 5.038, 6.065*, 6.066*, 6.067*, 6.068, 8.034, 8.035, 8.036, 8.024, 9.025, 9.026*, 9.027, 8.025*, 10.027, 10.028, 10.029, 10.030, 10.031, 10.032, 10.033, 10.034

UNIVERSITY CF NEVADA, RENO, 3.063, 5.036, 6.060, 6.061, 8.032*, 10.022*, 10.023*

NORTH CAROLINA

- AGRIC 6 TECH UNIVERSITY OF N C, GREENSEORO, 1.078, 4.155, 4.156, 4.157, 5.039*
- N CARCLINA STATE UNIVERSITY, RALEIGH, 1.079, 1.080, 1.081, 1.082, 1.083, 1.084, 2.016, 2.017, 2.018, 3.075*, 3.076, 3.077, 3.078, 3.079, 4.158, 4.159, 4.160, 4.161*, 4.162, 4.163, 4.164*, 4.165*, 4.166*, 4.167, 6.069, 6.070*, 6.071*, 7.009, 7.010, 8.038*, 8.039*, 8.040*, 8.029*, 9.030*

OHIO

OHIC AGRIC RES AND DEVLP CENTER, WCCSTER, 1.085, 1.086, 4.168*, 4.169, 6.072*

OKLAHOMA

- S PLAINS WIESBED & WIE QLIY LH, DURANT, 4.175, 4.176
- LANGSTCN UNIVERSITY, LANGSTON, 4.170, 4.171, 4.172, 4.173, 4.174, 6.073*, 10.035*

OKLAHOMA STATE UNIVERSITY, STILLWATER, 3.080

CREGON

OREGON STATE UNIVERSITY, CCFVALLIS, 1.087, 1.088, 1.089, 1.090, 1.091, 2.015, 2.020, 3.081, 3.082, 3.083, 3.084, 3.085, 4.177, 4.178, 4.179, 4.180, 4.181, 4.182, 4.183*, 4.184*, 4.185, 4.186, 4.187*, 4.188, 5.040*, 5.041, 5.042, 5.043, 5.044, 6.074*, 6.075, 6.076*, 6.077*, 6.078*, 8.041, 10.036

PAKISTAN

MINISTRY OF FCOD & AGRI PAKISTAN, KARACHI, 3.107

UNIVERSITY OF PUNJAE, LABORE, 3.108

PENNSYLVANIA

PENNSYLVANIA STATE UNIVERSITY, UNIVERSITY PARK, 1.092, 1.083, 2.021, 2.022, 3.086, 4.189*, 4.180*, 4.191, 4.182, 4.193, 9.031

PUERTO RICO

UNIVERSITY OF PUERTO RICC, RIO PIECRAS, 2.023, 5.045*, 6.(79*

RECOB ISLAND

UNIVERSITY OF RHODE ISLAND, KINGSTON, 2.024, 3.087, 3.088, 3.089, 3.090, 4.194*, 4.195, 4.196, 4.197, 5.046, 5.047, 6.080*, 6.081, 6.082, 7.011, 8.042*, 8.043, 9.052*, 9.033, 10.037, 10.038*, 10.039, 16.040, 10.041, 10.042, 10.043

SOUTH CAROLINA

CLEMSON UNIVERSITY, CLEMSCN, 1.094, 1.095, 3.091*, 4.198, 5.046*, 6.083, 6.084, 6.085*, 6.086, 7.012*, 7.013*, 8.(44

SOUTH CAROLINA STATE COLL, ORANGEHURG, 4.188, 9.034*

SOUTH DAKOTA

S DAKOTA STATE UNIVERSITY, HECOKINGS, 4.200, 4.201, 5.049, 5.050*, 6.087, 6.088*, 6.089*

TENNESSEE

UNIVERSITY OF TENNESSEE, KNOXVILLE, 2.025, 3.092, 4.202, 4.203*, 5.051*, 6.090*, 6.091*

TEXAS

TEXAS A&W UNIVERSITY, COLLEGE STATICN, 1.096, 1.097, 1.098, 2.026, 2.027, 3.093, 3.084*, 3.095, 3.086, 3.097, 3.098, 3.089, 4.204*, 4.205, 4.206, 4.207*, 4.208, 4.209, 4.210, 4.211, 5.053, 5.054*, 6.093, 6.094*, 6.095*, 6.096*, 6.097*, 7.014, 8.045, 5.046, 8.047*, 9.035*, 9.036*, 9.037*, 9.038*, 10.044, 10.045, 10.046

TERAS AGM UNIVERSITY, CORPUS CHRISTI, 5.052, 6.092*

UNITED KINGDOM

COMMONWLTH AGR HUR-FARNHAM HOUSE, SLOUGE, 3.109

VIEGIN ISLANDS

- VIRGIN ISLANDS AGRIC EXPT STAT, KINGSBILL ST CFCIX, 1.099, 6.099, 6.100, 9.040*
- CCIL OF VIRGIN ISLANDS, ST CECIR, 6.098, 9.039*

VIRGINIA

VIRGINIA POLY INST, HLACKSHURG, 1.100, 1.101, 1.102, 3.100, 4.212, 4.213*, 4.214, 4.215, 4.216, 4.217*, 4.218*, 5.055, 6.101, 5.041, 10.047, 10.048

WASBINGTON

IRRIGATED AGRIC RES & EXT CNTE, PECSSEE, 3.101

WASHINGTON STATE UNIVERSITY, FULLWAN, 10.049

UNIVERSITY OF WASHINGTON, SEATTLE, 4.219

WISCONSIN

UNIVERSITY OF WISCCNSIN, MADISCN, 1.103, 2.028, 3.102, 4.220, 4.221, 4.222*, 4.223, 5.056*, 5.057*, 6.102*, 7.015, 7.016, 8.048*, 9.042, 9.043, 10.050

KEYWORD/TITLE INDEX

ABALONE DISEASES OF AQUATIC ANIMALS. 3.013 ABSCISIC-ACID HCRMONAL REGULATION OF GROWTH, DEVELOPMENT AND VEGETATIVE FRCPAGATICN CF SUBMERSED ACUATIC **VEEDS**. 3.020 ACACIA BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF WEEDS. 3.104 ACCLIMATIZATION EFFECTS OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONTAMINANTS ON GEORGIA FARM FOND FISHES. 4.051, 6.025* EXPERIMENTAL FISE ECCLCGY. 1.098, 4.207* ACID-PRECIPITATION EFFECTS OF ATMOSPHERIC INPUTS OF ACIDS AND BEAVY METALS CN LAKE PLANETCN. 4.101 ACID-RAIN EFFECTS OF ACID PRECIPITATION ON ADISONDACE LAKES. 4.153 NATURAL PRODUCTION OF TROUT IN INFERTILE MOUNTAIN STREAMS OF PENNSYLVANIA. 4.182 ACIDITY EFFECTS CF ACID PRECIPITATION ON ADIRONDACK LAKES. 4.153 FISE PHYSICLOGY IN RESPONSE TC WATER QUALITY AND CHENISTRY. 4.211 ZOOGEOGRAPHY AND ECOLOGY OF FISBES IN PENNSYLVANIA. 1.093, 4.190* ACTIN COMPARATIVE STUDIES OF LOBSTER AND CHICKEN MUSCLE. 9.027 FACTORS AFFECTING THE TEXTURE OF SEAFOODS. 7.009. 8.038*, 9.029* ADAPTABILITY AN EVALUATION OF STRIPED EASS & WHITE BASS BYBEIDS AND STRIFED BASS I WHITE PERCE HYERIDS. 2.018, 6.070* ENVIRONMENTAL REQUIREMENTS OF POTENTIAL AQUACULTURE FISH SPECIES. 4.027 ADAPTATION AN INVESTIGATION OF THE ADAPTIVE SIGNIFICANCE OF MELANISM IN THE MALE MOSQUITOFISH, GAMBUSIA AFFINIS. 1.078 CBRONIC TUEBIDITY AND STRESS IN JUVENILE CCHO SALMON AND STEELHEAD TROUT. 1.088, 4.184* OSMOREGULATCRY RESPONSES OF DESERT PUPPISE: A STUDY MCDEL OF FBYSIOLOGICAL ADAPTATION TO ENVIRONMENT. 1.003, 4.010* ADDITIVES FREFLAVOREE CBANNEL CATFISE. 8.013, 9.012* ADENOSINE-TRIPBOSPEATASE COMPARATIVE PHYSIOLOGICAL STUDIES OF VERTEBRATE EYES. 1.062 COMPARATIVE STUDIES OF LOBSTER AND OBICKEN MUSCLE. 9.027 EFFECTS OF POLLUTANTS ON GILLS OF FRESBWATER FISBES. 3.060, 4.119* ADENOSINE-TRIPHOSPHATES NITROGEN FIXATION AND ITS EFFECT ON EUTRCPHICATION: IN-FOINT AND NON-POINT SOURCE PONDS. 4.157 ABDES CBENICAL CONTROL OF MOSQUITCES OF NUISANCE AND BEALTE INPORTANCE. 4.133 ABDES-ABGYPT I NATURALLY CCCURRING MOSOUITO LARVICIDES. 3.069 ABRATION FRESHWATER FCOD ANIMALS. 6.004 INTEGRATION OF A SOLAR GREENBOUSE WITH A RECIRCULATING FISE CULTURE SYSTEM. 6.003 MECHANIZATION OF CRAWFISH BARVESTING AND PRCDUCTICN. 6.042, 7.005* RESPONSE OF AQUATIC LIFE TO SALINITY, TEMPERATURE, DISSOLVED OXYGEN AND WATER FLCW. 4.024

WATER QUALITY ENHANCEMENT OF LAKES BY MECHANICAL PUMPING. 4.088, 6.039* ABRIAL-PHOTOGRAPHY A STUDY OF FISH RESCURCES OF THE GOSPEL HUMP APEA. 4.060 ADAPTATION FACTORS AND CONTROL OF ACUATIC WEEDS. 3.093, 4.204* DISTRIBUTION, ABUNDANCE AND ECOLOGY OF ASCOPHYLIUM NODCSUM (1) IE JCIS. 1.052, 4.102*, 7.008* ECOLOGY OF PURPLE LOOSESTRIFE (LYTHRUM SALICARIA). 3.073 FRE-IMPOUNDMENT ENVIRONMENTAL STUDIES OF AQUILLA LAKE. 4.209 ARROBIC-DIGESTION ABATEMENT OF EUTROPHICATION RESULTING FROM INTENSIVE ANIMAL PRODUCTION. 4.185, 6.080* AE PONONAS-BYDROPBILA BIOLOGY AND CONTECL OF AQUATIC ANIMAL DISEASES. 3.054 DISEASE MANAGEMENT IN CULTURED CATFISE. 3.096 FRESHWATER FOOD ANIMALS. 3.043 SEROLOGIC AND VIRUULENCE STUDIES OF AEFONCNAS **BYDROPHILA**. 3.042 AE ROMONAS-HYDROPHILIA TOXICITY OF AERONONAS HYDROPHILIA EXCTOXING IN CHANNEL CATFISH. 3.052 AESCHYNOMENE WEED CONTROL IN FICE PRODUCTION. 3.006. 4.008* AGAR IMPROVEMENT OF OGC PRODUCTION AND MARKETING IN HAWAII. 6.031, 10.012* AGASICLES LIFE HISTORY AND PHYSIOLCGICAL STUDIES OF AQUATIC AND MARGINAL WEEDS. 2.061 AGE ACTIVITY REVIEWS OF THE NORTBERN BOCK CRAH IN RELATION TO ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL FACTORS. 1.057, 4.109* AGE AND GROWTH OF FISH; A FIELD AND LABOFATORY APPRCACB. 1.068 APPLICATION OF OTOLITE MICROSTRUCTURAL DATA TO STUDIES OF THE EARLY LIFE HISTORY OF FISHES. 1.070 BEHAVIOR FOCLOGY AND RHYTHMICITY IN THE ROCK CRABS. CANCER IRRORATUS AND CANCER HOREALIS, PBASE II. 1.058, 5.028* EEHAVIOR, ECCLOGY AND REYTEMICITY IN THE COMMON ROCK CRAB. 1.059, 4.110* HIOLOGICAL ANALYSIS OF THE AGE AND GROWTH RATE CF THE CCEAN QUARCE ARCTICA ISLANDICA. 4.138 BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS IN THE SCUTHEAST. 3.034 CHENICAL CONTROL OF MOSCUITCES OF NUISANCE AND BEALTB INPORTANCE. 4.133 ECOLCGY OF FISHES OF SACRAMENTO - SAN JOAQUIN ESTUARY, WITH EMPHASIS CN SUISUN MARSH. 4.030 EURASIAN WATERWILFOIL IN CUFFITUCE SOUND: ITS CONTROL AND POTENTIAL USE. 3.077, 4.165* FACTORS INFLUENCING TROUT PRODUCTION IN VIRGINIA STREAMS. 1.102. 4.217* FISE AND AQUATIC MACROINVERTEERATE FAUNA IN SCUTE FORK HOISE RIVER HELCW ANDERSON MANCH DAN. 1.029 MANAGEMENT OF A MULTIPLE COBORT FISHERY: THE HARD CLAM RESCURCES IN GREAT SOUTH HAY. 10.028 POPULATICN DYNAMICS OF LARGEMOUTH AND SNALLMOUTH BASS IN 16 NEW YORK LAKES. 1.075 SPORTFISE MANAGEMENT. 6.005 TRACE MINERAL IMBALANCE IN HATCHERY FISH. 5.019 VISUAL PIGMENT CHANGES DURING THE LIFE CYCLE OF THE AMERICAN EEL, ANGUILLA ECSTRATA. 1.077 AGGRESS ION AN INVESTIGATION OF THE ADAPTIVE SIGNIFICANCE OF

AN INVESTIGATION OF THE ADAPTIVE SIGNIFICANCE OF MELANISM IN THE MALE NOSCUITCFISH, GAMBUSIA AFFINIS. 1.078

THE EFFECT OF STREAM CURRENT UPCN FISH BEBAVICE, GROWTH AND MICKOHABITAT SELECTION. 1.011 AGRICULTURAL-CHENICALS THE FATE AND EFFECTS OF CHEMICALS IN AQUATIC ECOSYSTENS. 4.111 AGRICULTURAL-LAND THE EFFECTS OF AGRICULTURAL DEALNAGE OF NATURAL SYSTENS - PHASE III. 4.036 AGROPTRON-REFENS PHYTOTOXINS FROM AQUATIC AND TERFESTRIAL PLANTS, EACTERIA, AND FUNGI. 3.017 AIR-POLLUTION EFFECTS OF ATMOSPHERIC INPUTS CF ACIDS AND BEAVY METALS ON LAKE PLANKTON. 4.101 ALDRIN EVALUATION OF PESTICIDE LEVELS IN CATFISH PROCESSING WASTES. 9.001 ALBW IFB EVALUATION OF THE ECOLOGICAL REQUIREMENTS OF RESERVOIR FISH SPECIES. 1.101 ALGAE A SURVEY FOR PATHOGEN FOR AQUATIC WEEDS IN CALIFORNIA FOR USE IN BIOLOGICAL CONTECL. 3.008, 4.009* ACCUMULATION AND DEGRADATION OF SOME BERBICIDES BY ALGAE. 4.171, 4.172, 4.174 Algal metaeclism in the presence of herbicides. 4.170 BIOLCGICAL, TECHNICAL, AND ECONOMIC STUDIES OF CULTUREE AQUATIC RESCURCES. 4.151, 6.066* BIOLOGY AND CONTROL OF AQUATIC VEGETATICN. 3.048 BIOSYNTHESIS OF STERCLS IN THE OYSTER AND CORRELATION OF STERCE COMPOSITION TO CYSTER PEODUCTIVITY. 1.055, 5.027* DETECTION AND IDENTIFICATION OF MYCOTOXINS AND ALGAL TOXING IN FOODS AND FEEDS. 5.023 DEVELOPMENT OF AN INTEGRATED SYSTEM FOR TOTAL UTILIZATION OF SWINE WASTE. 6.001 DEVELOPMENT OF INEXPENSIVE AQUACULTURE SYSTEMS FOR HOME (SUESISTENCE-TYPE) CULTURE IN N. C.. 6.069 DISTRIBUTION, ABUNDANCE AND ECOLOGY OF ASCOPHYLLUM NODOSUM (1) LE JOIS. 1.052, 4.102*, 7.008* EFFECT OF SEDIMENT CONTROL LAWS ON THE WATER QUALITY OF A PRAIRIE LAKE. 4.200 EFFECTS OF BERHICIDES ON CHESAPEAKE BAY PHYTOFLANKTON. 4.106 EFFECTS OF WATER QUALITY PARAMETERS ON FARM FOND VEGETATION AND THEIR INTERACTIONS. 4.176 IMPROVEMENT OF OGO PRODUCTION AND MARKETING IN HAWAII. 6.031, 10.012* LINNCLOGICAL PARAMETERS. 4.066 LINNOLOGY CF FARM PONDS. 1.082, 6.071* MANAGEMENT OF AQUATIC PLANTS FOR SPORT FISH PECDUCTION IN PONDS. 5.002 NODE OF ACTION AND INFLUENCE OF ENVISCEMENTAL FACTORS ON THE TOXICITY OF SEVERAL AQUATIC HERHICIDES. 3.100, 4.218* NATURALLY CCCURRING MOSQUITO LARVICIDES. 3.065 NITROGEN FIXATION AND ITS EFFECT CN EUTECPHICATICN: IN-POINT AND NON-POINT SCURCE PONDS. 4.157 NITROGEN FIXATION HY MICROBES INBABITING SUBFACES OF AQUATIC MACROPEYTES. 4.142 NUTFIENT INTERACTIONS AND CHANGES IN ALGAL QUALITY IN CAYUGA LAKE. 4.140 PHYSIOLOGY OF CHESAPEAKE BAY PHYTCPLANETCN. 1.054, 4.107* SCOPE OF WORK FOR PRELIMINARY STUDY OF PRIMARY AND SECONDARY PRODUCTION OF THE ST. LAWRENCE BIVER. 4.150 SPOKANE RIVER LIMNCLCGY. 4.067 STUDIES IN PEYCOLOGY. 4.143 THE FATE AND EFFECTS OF CHENICALS IN AQUATIC ECOSYSTEMS. 4.111 THE USE OF SELECTED AQUATIC CRGANISMS FOR PUBPOSES OF AQUACULTURE (FOOD PRODUCTION). 3.012, 4.023*, 5.008*, E.005* The use of selected warine waterials and HY-PRODUCTS FOR CERTAIN BORTICULTURAL CROPS. 8.044 UPTAKE AND WOVEMENT OF HERBICIDES AND NUTRIENTS IN ACUATIC WEED SPECIES. 3.019 USE OF NUTFIENT CONTAINING LIPID VESICLES AS A FOOD SOURCE FOR SHELLFISH OF PACIFIC NORTHWEST. 5.042 UTILIZATION OF PROTEIN INGREDIENTS IN FISH BATIONS. 5.044 ALGAL-NUTRIENTS EFFECT OF SEDIMENT CONTROL DAMS ON THE WATER

QUALITY OF A PRAIFIE LAKE. 4.200

ALGICIDES EVALUATION OF EFFICACY, CEOF RESPONSES AND CROP AND WATER RETENTION OF POTENTIAL ACUATIC BERBICIDES. 3.021. 4.035* UPTAKE AND NOVENENT OF BERBICIDES AND NUTRIENTS IN AQUATIC WEED SPECIES. 3.019 ALKALINITY FISH PHYSIOLOGY IN RESPONSE TO WATER QUALITY AND CBENISTRY. 4.211 POND FERTILIZATION AND LINING. 4.002, 5.003* ALLELES GENETICS OF NATURAL FISE PCPULATIONS. 1.037, 2.009* ALLELOPATHIC-COMPOUNDS CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS BASED ON ALLELOPATHIC CHARACTERISTICS IN SPIKERUSE (ELECCHARIS SPP.). 3.007 ALLELOPATEV CONTECL OF AQUATIC WEEDS BASED ON ALLELOPATHIC CHARACTERISTICS IN SPIKERUSE (ELECCEARIS SPP.). 3.007 CONTROL OF WEEDS AND CERTAIN OTHER AQUATIC PESTS IN THE PACIFIC SCUTHWESI. 3.015, 4.031* PBYSIOLCGICAL STUDIES OF AQUATIC AND DITCH EANST WEEDS IN THE PACIFIC NORTHWEST. 3.101 PHYTOTCXINS FECH AQUATIC AND TEFRESTRIAL PLANTS, HACTERIA, AND FUNGI. 3.017 ALLOPATRY HABITAT SELECTION AND SPECIES INTERACTIONS OF JUVENILE TECUT IN FLATHEAD RIVER TRIBUTARIES. 1.027. 4.064* ALOYSTA ELOLOGICAL CONTROL OF WEEDS. 3.104 ALTERNANTHERA EIOLOGICAL CONTECL OF WEEDS. 3.104 ALTERNARIA-EICHORNIAE CONTROL CF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.108 ALTERNATE-HOSTS **BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF WEEDS WITH PATHOGENS. 3.103** ALUNINUM EFFECTS OF ACID PRECIPITATION ON ADIRCNEACE LAKES. 4.153 ANINES BIOLOGICALLY ACTIVE AMINES IN FCOD. 8.009 ENZYMES IN FCCD FERMENTATIONS. 9.025 AMINO-ACID-REQUIREMENTS EREEDING, PRODUCTION, NUTRITION AND MARKETING OF CHANNEL CATFISE. 2.010, 5.020*, 6.040* CHANNEL CATFISE NUTRITION. 5.031 FRESEWATER FOOD ANIMALS. 5.013, 6.022* AM INO-ACID-SEQUENCE CHARACTERIZATION OF GONAD-STIMULATING SUBSTANCES IN MAFINE ANIMALS. 1.020, 2.006* Studies of Relationships between warine and TERBESTRIAL BACTERIA. 1.008 AMINO-ACIDS AQUACULTURE FOR RESOURCE ENBANCEMENT. 1.103, 5.056* BIOLOGICALLY ACTIVE AWINES IN FCOD. 8.009 CHANNEL CATFISH NUTRITICN. 5.031, 5.033 DIETARY FACTORS IN WHITE FISH NEAL RESPONSIBLE FOR CATARACT FORMATION IN TRCUT. 3.018, 5.009*, 9.005* EVALUATION OF HY-PRODUCTS FROM CATFISH PROCESSING WASTE FOR CATFISH FEED SUPPLEMENTS. 5.032, 8.030* FLAVOR DIFFERENCES OF MECHANICALLY- AND HAND-PROCESSED CRAH WEATS. 8.015. 9.014* FRESEWATER FCCD ANIMALS. 2.014, 4.198, 5.034*, 5.048*, 6.056* NUTRITION OF SALWONID FISHES. 5.041 STUDIES OF RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN MARINE AND TEREESTRIAL BACTERIA. 1.008 THE OXIDATIVE DETERIORATION OF LIFIDS IN MECHANICALLY DEHONED FOULTRY AND FISH. 9.009 USE OF NUTRIENT CONTAINING LIPID VESICLES AS A FCCD SOURCE FOR SHELLFISH OF PACIFIC NORTHWEST. 5.042 ANNONIA **BIOFILTER PERFORMANCE FACTORS. 4.069** CLOSED CYCLE FISE CULTURE WATER FILTBATICN USING BICLCGICAL SYSTEMS. 4.105, 6.053* DETERMINATION OF WATER CUALITY CRITERIA FOR THE SUPPORT OF AQUATIC LIFE IN TWO SHALL BANSAS STREAMS. 4.091 DISEASE MANAGEMENT IN CATFISH AQUACULTURE. 3.097 DISEASE MANAGEMENT IN CULTURED CATFISE. 3.096 ENVIRONMENTAL GILL DISEASE IN RAINHOW TEOUT. 3.045 MICROHIAL DISEASES AND INMUNE RESPONSE CF CATFISE. 3.098

NITROGEN METAHCLISM OF FRESHWATER PRAWNS IN RELATION TO DIET. 5.015 TOXIC EFEECTS ON THE AQUATIC HIOTA FECH COAL AND OIL SHALE DEVELOPMENT. 4.034 ULTRASTRUCTURAL CHANGES IN TELEOST GILLS: EFFECTS OF SUBTLE ALTERATIONS IN THE ENVIRONMENT. 3.053, 4.058* WATER QUALITY ENHANCEMENT OF LAKES BY MECHANICAL PUMPING. 4.088, 6.039* ANADRONOUS-FISH METEODOLOGY AND ASSESSMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL EFFECTS AT LOW BEAD HYDRO POWER SITES. 4.148 ANAEPOBIC-BACTERIA ECOLOGY CF ANAEROHIC HETEROTECPHIC HACTEFIA. 4.118 MICECHIAL ECCLOGY OF METHANE PRODUCTION IN AQUATIC ENVIRONMENTS. 4.220 ANABROBIC-CONDITIONS DEVELOPMENT OF AN INTEGRATED SYSTEM FOR TCTAL UTILIZATION OF SWINE WASTE. 6.001 ANAEPOBIC-DECONPOSITION BCOLOGY OF ANAEROHIC BETEROTECPHIC BACTERIA. 4.118 ANALOGS MANUFACTURE OF PROCESSED MEAT AND/OR EISE PRODUCTS WITH UNCERUTILIZED MARINE SPECIES. 8.027 ABALYTICAL-CEENISTEY PHYTOTOXINS FROM AQUATIC AND TERRESTRIAL PLANTS, EACTERIA, AND FUNGI. 3.017 ANALYTICAL-NETHODS BISTAMINE/BONEYCOMBING IN SEIPJACE TUNA. 8.011, 9.010* HISTOPATEOLOGIC AND HISTOCHEMICAL INDICES CF SUBLETBAL PESTICIDE TOXICATION IN FISE. 3.086, 4.189* MORPHOLOGICAL, ULTRASTRUCTURAL, AND BIOCBEMICAL CHARACTERIZATION OF NANOPLANETON FROM CHESAPHAKE BAY. 1.056, 4.108* ANATONY COMPARATIVE PHYSIOLOGICAL STUDIES OF VERTEBRATE EYES. 1.062 TAXONOMY AND NORPEOLOGY OF NEMATORES. 3.027 ANDROGRNS AQUACULTURE FOR RESOURCE ENBANCEMENT. 1.103, 5.056* TEE EFFECTS OF DIET ON THE RISE CE CANCER. 9.020 ANGIOSPERMS PHOTOSYNTHESIS AND PROTORESPIRATION IN AQUATIC PLANTS. 1.017 ANIMAL-ANATONY FUNCTIONAL MORPHCLOGY OF INVERTEERATE CRGAN SYSTEMS. 1.071 ANIHAL-BEBAVIOR ACTIVITY REVIEWS OF THE NORTHERN ROCE CRAB IN RELATICN TO ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL EACTORS. 1.057, 4.109* ADULT PADDLEEISE NOVEMENT IN PCOL 13, UPPER MISSISSIPPI RIVER. 1.034 BEHAVIOR ECCLOGY AND REVTEMICITY IN THE ROCK CRAHS, CANCER IRRORATUS AND CANCEF BORFALIS, PHASE II. 1.058, 5.028* BEHAVIOR OF IOWA SPORT EISEES. 1.036, 4.083* BEBAVIOR, ECCLOGY AND REVIEWICITY IN THE COMMON ECCK CRAE. 1.059. 4.110* CHEMICALS THAT DIFFUSE FROM PREDATORY ASTEROIDS & TRIGGER DEFENSIVE EEBAVIORS IN MARINE INVERTEERATE. 1.002 CRAWFISH CULTURE STUDIES IN SMALL PONDS: HURBOWING, PCLYCULTURE AND NATURAL POND FLOODING. 1.050, 4.099*, 6.049* ECOLOGICAL STUDIES OF THE NAVARRO AND GARCIA ESTUARIES, WITE EMPHASIS CN THE FISHES. 4.028 EFFECTS OF STAMPEDE RESERVOIR ON UPSTREAM EISE POPULATIONS OF SAGEBEN CREEK. 1.010, 4.019* EXAMINATION CE THE SPAWNING ECOLOGY AND EARLY LIEE BISTORY CE KOKANEE SALMON IN CCEUE D' ALENE LAKE. 4.054 FISH NOVEMENT IN PCCL 9. UPPER MISSISSIPPI RIVER. 1.035 IMPACT CF EROSION SILT AND SEDIMENTATION CN FISH REPRODUCTION AND GROWTE. 4.130 MCVEMENTS OF SONIC-TAGGED FISHES IN FELATION TO WATER QUALITY IN LOWER ATCHAFALAYA RIVER BASIN. 1.049, 4.097* NEURAL CONTROL OF SWINNING IN CRAYFISHES. 1.001 NEUROTRANSMITTERS, NEURCHODULATORS, AND LCCONCTICN. 1.076 RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN PESTICIDES AND GEOFGIA FARM PCND ECCSYSTEMS. 4.050 RESPONSE OF AQUATIC LIFE TO SALINITY, TEMPERATURE,

RESPONSE OF AQUATIC LIFE TO SALINITY, TEMPERATURE, DISSOLVED OXYGEN AND WATER ELCW. 4.024

FOLE OF SHORT DISTANCE MIGRATICN OF THE HOMING OF SALMON AND STEELHEAD. 1.028 STUDY OF PATHOLOGY OF EISHES FROM LAKE HYCO, NORTH CARCLINA. 3.079 THE EFFECT OF STREAM CURRENT UPON FISH BEEAVICE, GREWTH AND MICROBABITAT SELECTION. 1.011 THE EFPECTS OF ARTIFICIAL STRUCTURES OF GAME FISH IN A HOFFCW PIT PCND. 1.085, 4.168* THE RESOLUTION OF SOME PROBLEMS ATTENDING THE EMPLOYMENT OF MINNEWS AS FORAGE FOR EARMPOND FISHES. 6.019 THE USE OF FISH BEHAVIOR IN TOXICITY TESTING. 1.032, 4.079* ANINAL-BREEDING ANIMAL REEEDING AND GENETICS CF EISE. 2.002 AQUACULTURE. 6.007 HREEDING EXPERIMENTS WITH SALMCNIDS. 2.024 HREEDING, PRODUCTION, NUTRITION AND MARKETING CE CHANNEL CATFISH. 2.010, 5.020*, 6.040* Develop of aquaculture systems eck ccol watek fish SPECIES. 2.028, 5.057*, 6.102* DEVELOPMENT OF METHODS FOR MASS FRODUCTION AND MANAGEMENT OF HULLFROGS. 2.013, 4.093* FRESEWATER FOOD ANIMALS. 2.001, 2.007, 2.012, 2.014, 2.027, 5.034±, 5.054±, 6.023±, 6.045±, 6.056*, 6.096* IMPROVEMENT OF CATFISH STOCK THECUGH SELECTIVE BREEDING. 2.011, 6.044* ANIMAL-DEVELOPMENT PRODUCTION CF IDENTIFICATION CIRCULARS ON THE LAEVAE OF CCLCEADO FISHES. 1.014 ANTHAL-DISBASE-RESISTANCE CONTROL OF WHIELING DISEASE OF SALMONIDS. 3.063 AN IMAL-DISEASES A STUDY OF THE MICROBIOLOGICAL FLCRA OF CENAMENTAL FISEES. 3.040 AQUACULTURE FATECLOGY. 3.010 EACTERIAL KIDNEY DISEASE IN RAINECW TROUT: PATHCGENESIS, INNUNITY, AND EFFECT OF WATER HARDNESS. 3.070 HIOLOGY AND CONTROL OF AQUATIC ANIMAL DISEASES. 3.054 CELL CULTURE STUDIES CN CELL LINES DEVELOPED FRCM TISSUES OF AQUATIC ANIMAL. 3.051 CCOPERATIVE FISH PARASITE AND DISEASE STUDY. 3.004 DETECTION OF PISCINE ERYTERCCYTIC NECROSIS VIRUS IN OREGON FISHES. 3.083 DEVELOPMENT OF METHODS FOR MASS PRODUCTICN AND MANAGEMENT OF HULLERCGS. 2.013, 4.093* DIAGNOSIS AND PATHOGENESIS CF DISEASES AND PARASITES IN MAJOR MOLLUSCAN AQUACULTURE SPECIES. 3.088 DISEASE MANAGEMENT IN CATFISH AQUACULTURE. 3.097 DISEASE-RESISTANT OYSTERS. 2.015, 3.067* DISEASES OF AQUACULTURE SPECIES. 3.044 DISEASES OF AQUATIC ANIMALS. 3.013, 3.072 ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS OF SALMCNELLOSIS. 3.049 ENVIRONMENTAL GILL DISEASE IN RAINHOW TROUT. 3.045 FISE WCEHIDITY AND MORTALITY RELATED TO ENVIRONMENTAL CHANGES AND/OF INTENSIVE CULTURE METHCDS. 4.193 ERESEWATER ECOD ANIMALS. 2.027, 3.003, 3.043, 5.054*, 6.096* ICETEYOPATHOLOGY. 3.089 INMUNOLOGIC EACTORS IN CANDIDIASIS IN DCLPHINS. 3.031 INVEST. OF THE ROLE OF LARVAL AMERICAN CYSTERS (CEASSOSTREA VIRGINICA) AS CAERIERS CE OYSTER DISEASE. 3.071 MICROBIAL AND PARASITIC DISEASES OF SERIMP AND EISE. 3.095 MICROHIAL DISEASES AND IMMUNE RESPONSE OF CATFISH. 3.098 NATURAL SEED OYSTER BEDS OF THE DELAWARE EAY. 3.066, 4.135*, 6.062* NUTRITION MANAGEMENT AND DISEASE OF MARINE ANIMALS. 3.055, 5.026*, 6.050* PRELIMINARY STUDIES ON CRAWEISH AND FRESHWATER SERIMP DISEASES. 1.096, 3.094* SEROLOGICAL METHODS FOR DETECTION AND IDENTIFICATION OF VIRUS DISEASES OF FISH. 3.058 STUDY OF FATHCLCGY CF FISHES FECH LAKE HYCO, NORTH CAROLINA. 3.079 SURVEY OF DISEASES OF CULTURED ERESENATES FISHES OF CALIFORNIA. 3.009 SUSCEPTIBILITY TO I. MILTIFILLIS OF CHANNEL CATFISH EXPOSED TO SUBLETHAL CONCENTRATIONS OF COPPER

90. 3.080

TOXICITY OF AEROMONAS HYDROPHILIA EXOTOXINS IN CHANNEL CATFISH. 3.052 TRANSMISSION OF CULTURED CATFISH VIRUS: DETECTION HY IMMUNOLOGICAL METHODS. 3.001 ULTRASTRUCTURAL CHANGES IN TELEOST GILLS: EFFECTS OF SUBTLE ALTERATIONS IN THE ENVIRONMENT. 3.053, **4.0**98≠ WATER CUALITY STCCKING RATES AND HARVESTING SYSTEMS FOR CATFISE. 6.059 AN IMAL-BCOLOGY HEHAVIOR ECCLOGY AND REVIEWICITY IN THE RCCK CRAES. CANCES INFORATUS AND CANCEE BOREALIS, FRASE II. 1.058. 5.028* CLEAF LAKE ECOSYSTEM ANALYSIS: THE FISHES. I.012, 6.016* ENVISCEMENTAL AND ECCLOGICAL INFLUENCES ON GENETIC VARIAEILIITY. 1.009, 2.004*, 4.013* EURASIAN WATERNILFOIL IN CURBITUCE SCUND: ITS CCNIRCL AND PCTENTIAL USE. 3.077, 4.165* THE USE CF SELECTED AQUATIC ORGANISMS FOR PURPCSES OF AQUACULTURE (FCOD PRODUCTION). J.012, 4.023*, 5.008*, 8.005* AN INAL-GENETICS AN EVALUATION OF STRIPED BASS & WHITE HASS HYBRIDS AND STRIPED BASS & WHITE PERCH BYERIDS. 2.018, 6.070* ANIMAL BREEDING AND GENETICS OF FISH. 2.002 BIOCHEMICAL GENETICS AND CYTCGENETICS OF TRCUT. 2.021, 2.022 PREEDING EXPERIMENTS WITH SALMONIDS. 2.024 BREEDING, FECDUCTION, NUTRITION AND MARKETING CF CHANNEL CATFISH. 2.010, 5.020*, 6.040* ENVIRONMENTAL AND ECCLOGICAL INFLUENCES ON GENETIC VAEIAEILITY. I.009, 2.004*, 4.013* FISE GENETICS. 2.019, 4.183* FRESHWATER FOCD ANIMALS. 2.001, 2.007, 2.012, 2.014, 2.027, 5.034*, 5.054*, 6.023*, 6.045*, 6.056*, 6.096* GENETIC ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT OF CRUSTACEAN AQUACULTURE STOCKS. 2.003 GENETIC ASSESSMENT OF NACEOBRACEIUM ON GUAM. 1.023 INPROVEMENT OF CATFISE STOCK TELECUGE SELECTIVE HEEDING. 2.011, 6.044* NETAPBASE CERONOSONE BANDING OF FRESEWATER FISHES. 2.026 POSSIBLE CAUSES OF BLUEGILL LEPONIS MARCOCHIRUS DEFORMITIES. 1.080, 4.161* ANIMAL-GROWTH AGE AND GROWTH OF FISH; A FIELD AND LABORATORY APPROACE. 1.068 AN EVALUATION OF STRIPED EASS X WHITE BASS HYBRIDS AND STRIPED HASS X WHITE PERCH HYERIDS. 2.018, 6.070* ANIMAL REEEDING AND GENETICS OF FISE. 2.002 APPLICATION OF OTOLITH MICROSTRUCTURAL DATA TO STUDIES OF THE EAGLY LIFE HISTORY OF FISHES. 1.070 AQUACULTURE. 6.007 AQUACULTURE FOR RESOURCE ENHANCEMENT. 1.103, 5.056* BIOLOGICAL ANALYSIS OF THE AGE AND GROWTH FATE OF THE OCEAN QUABOG ABCTICA ISLANDICA. 4.138 BIOLOGICAL STUDIES OF THE SPINY LOESTER IN SOUTH FLORIDA. 1.019 BIOSYNTHESIS OF STERCLS IN THE OYSTER AND COBRELATION OF STEROL COMPOSITION TO OVSTER PRODUCTIVITY. 1.055, 5.027* HREEDING EXPERIMENTS WITH SALMONIDS. 2.024 BREEDING, FRODUCTION, NUTBITION AND MARKETING CF CHANNEL CATFISH. 2.010, 5.020*, 6.040* CARRYING CAPACITY OF STREAMS FOR REAFING SALMONIDS AS AFFECTED BY SEDIMENT & CTHER COMPONENTS. 1.024, 4.057* CONTEOL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.108 DEVELOPMENT OF METBODS FOR MASS PRODUCTION AND MANAGEMENT OF BULLFROGS. 2.013, 4.093* EARLY LIFE BISTORY ECOLOGY AND GECWTE OF THE BIVER SHEIMP MACROBRACHIUM OBICNE IN LOUISIANA. 1.046 ECOLOGICAL STUDIES WITE BED SWAMP CRAWFISE AND WHITE RIVER CRAWFISE. 1.042, 4.092*, 6.043* EFFECTS OF AN ALTERED TEMPERATURE BEGINE AND CHENICAL CONTAMINANTS ON THE AQUATIC ECOSYSTEM. 3.062, 4.127* ENVIRONMENTAL GILL DISEASE IN RAINBOW TROUT. 3.045 EURASIAN WATERNILFOIL IN CUERITUCE SCUND: ITS CCNTEOL AND POTENTIAL USE. 3.077, 4.165*

FEASIHILITY OF CAGED FISE CULTURE IN NORTH CENTRAL OKLAHOMA FARM PONDS. 4.173, 6.073*, 10.035*

6.023*, 6.090* GENETIC ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT OF CRUSTACEAN AQUACULTURE STOCKS. 2.003 IDENTIFICATION OF SUB-OPTIMAL ENVIRONMENTAL PARAMETERS AFFECTING AQUACULTURE. 3.090, 4.194* IMPROVEMENT OF CATFISH STOCK THROUGH SELECTIVE EREEDING. 2.011, 6.044* INTENSIVE CULTURE OF CRAYFISH. 6.068 MANAGEMENT AND CULTURE OF MCLLUSCAN SPECIES. 6.086 NEMATODE PARASITES OF FRESHWATER FISH: BIOLOGY AND EFFECTS. 3.014 NITROGEN METABOLISM OF FRESHWATEE PRAWNS IN RELATION TO DIET. 5.015 NUTRITION MANAGEMENT AND DISEASE OF WARINE ANIMALS. 3.055, 5.026*, 6.050* NUTEITICN OF SALMONID FISHES. 5.041 POPULATION DYNAMICS OF LARGENCUTH AND SMALLMOUTH BASS IN 16 NEW YORK LAKES. 1.075 RECYCLING WASTES INTO ANIMAL FEEDS. 5.029, 8.029* RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN PESTICIDES AND GECEGIA FARM PCND ECCSYSTEMS. 4.050 RESPONSE OF AQUATIC LIFE TO SALINITY, TEMPERATURE, DISSOLVED OXYGEN AND WATER FLCW. 4.024 SALMON CULTURE - DEVELOPMENT OF NUTRITICNAL AND DISEASE CONTROL PEOGRAMS. 3.064, 5.037* SERIMF MATURATICS, REPRODUCTION, DEVELOPMENT, NUTRITION, INTENSIVE-EXTENSIVE CULTURE AND MARICULTURE. 5.052, 6.092* THE EFFECT OF STREAN CURRENT UPON FISH BEHAVIOR, GROWTH AND MICROHABITAT SELECTION. 1.011 THE FINE STRUCTURE OF FISH CTCLITES: ENDOGENOUS AND ENVISONMENTAL FACTORS. 1.069 THE USE OF SELECTED AQUATIC ORGANISMS FOR PURPCSES OF AQUACULTURE (FOOD PEODUCTION). 3.012, 4.023*, 5.008*, 8.005* USE OF NUTRIENT CONTAINING LIPID VESICLES AS A FOOD SOURCE FOR SHELLFISH OF PACIFIC NORTHWEST. 5.042 UTILIZATION OF KEAPT MILL EFFLUENT FCR FISH PRODUCTION. 5.012, 6.020* UTILIZATION OF PROTEIN INGREDIENTS IN FISH RATIONS. 5.044 WEIGHT GAIN OF FISH. 5.018 AN INAL-BEALTH IDENTIFICATION OF SUB-OPTIMAL ENVIRONMENTAL PARAMETERS AFFECTING AQUACULTURE. 3.090, 4.194* INVESTIGATION OF "IN SITU" SOLIDE DIGESTICN FCR SALMONID PECDUCTION. 6.081 ANIMAL-METABOLISM LIPID METABOLISM IN AQUATIC ORGANISMS. 5.053, 9.038* ANINAL-MORPHOLOGY FUNCTIONAL MORPHOLOGY OF INVERTEERATE ORGAN SYSTEMS. 1.071 ANIMAL-NUTRITION AQUACULTURE. 6.007 AQUACULTURE FOR RESOURCE ENBANCEMENT. 1.103, 5.056* BIOSYNTHESIS OF STEROLS IN THE CYSTER AND CCERELATION OF STEROL COMPOSITION TO OYSTER PRODUCTIVITY. 1.055, 5.027* BREEDING, PRODUCTION, NUTRITION AND MARKETING CF CHANNEL CATFISH. 2.010, 5.020*, 6.040* CAGE CULTURE OF TILAPIA IN THE VIRGIN ISLANDS. 6.098, 9.039* CHANNEL CATFISE NUTBITION. 5.031, 5.033 CRAYFISH IN CALIFORNIA RICE FIELDS: DIET, IMPACT CM RICE PRODUCTION AND POSSIBLE BETURNS IN BARVEST. 4.020, 6.015* CRUSTACEAN NUTRITION AND FEED DEVELCPMENT. 5.006 DEVELOP OF AQUACULTURE SYSTEMS FOR CCOL WATER FISH SPECIES. 2.028, 5.057*, 6.102* DEVELOPMENT OF AN INTEGRATEL SYSTEM FOR ICTAL UTILIZATION OF SWINE WASTE. 6.001 DEVELOPMENT OF METHODS FOR MASS PRODUCTION AND MANAGEMENT OF BULLFECGS. 2.013, 4.093* DIETARY FACTORS IN WHITE FISH MEAL RESPONSIBLE FOR CATARACT FORMATION IN TECUT. 3.018, 5.009*, 9.005* ECOLOGICAL STUDIES OF THE NAVAREC AND GARCIA ESTUARIES, WITH EMPHASIS ON THE FISHES. 4.028 ECOLOGY OF SALT MARSHES IN RELATION TO ESTUARIES AND ENERGY FLCW. 1.016, 4.041*, 5.011* EFFECT CF DIET QUALITY ON ACUATIC ANIMALS. 5.047 EVALUATION OF A CLOSED SYSTEM FCF TEE CULTUFE CF FISE, SEELLFISE AND AQUATIC PLANTS. 5.001, 6.002*

FRESHWATER FCCD ANIMALS. 2.007. 2.025. 5.051*.

EVALUATION OF AQUATIC PLANTS AS POTENTIAL FEEDSTUFF FOE DAIRY CATTLE. 9.013

EVALUATION OF RELATIVE FROTEIN PEFFORMANCE IN PELLETED FISH RATIONS USING PHYSICLCGICAL INDICES. 5.055 FACTORS INFLUENCING TROUT PRODUCTION IN VIRGINIA STREAMS. I. 102, 4.217* FEASIBILITY OF CAGED FISE CULTURE IN NORTH CENTRAL OKLAHCHA FARM PONDS. 4.173, 6.073*, 10.035* FRESHWATER FCOD ANIMALS. 2.012, 2.014, 2.023, 2.027, 3.039, 4.158, 5.004, 5.013, 5.014*, 5.034*, 5.045*, 5.048*, 5.054*, 6.022*, 6.024*, 6.045*, 6.056*, 6.078*, 6.096* FRESEWATER SERIMP OF THE GENUS MACROEFACEIUM WITH SFECIAL EMPHASIS CN CULTURE. 4.205, 6.094* FUR ANIMAL STUDIES (MINE). 8.028 IDENTIFICATION OF SUE-OPTIMAL ENVIRONMENTAL PARAMETERS AFFECTING AQUACULTURE. 3.080, 4.194* INTENSIVE CULTURE OF THE WALLEYE (PERCIDAE: STIZOSTEDION VITREUM). 5.038, 6.067* LIFID METAFCLISM IN AQUATIC ORGANISMS. 5.053, 9-038* WANAGEMENT TECHNIQUES FCB INCREASING CRAWFISH PRODUCTION. 6.046, 7.006* MANURE-ENRICHED FOCD WEES IN WARINE FOND ECOSYSTEMS. 5.017 NITROGEN METAECLISM OF FRESEWATER PRAWNS IN FELATION TO DIET. 5.015 NUTRITICN MANAGEMENT AND DISEASE OF MARINE ANIMALS. 3.055, 5.026*, 6.050* NUTRITION CF SALMONID FISHES. 5.041 NUTRITIONAL ASPECTS OF AQUACULTURE SYSTERS. 5.007, 6.014* OPERATING FARAMETERS OF LAGOCNS FOR DISPOSAL OR UTILIZATION OF DAIRY FARM AND FROCESSING PLANT WASTE. 8.014 PRACTICAL FEED FORMULATIONS AND FEEDING PRACTICES FOR CATFISE FARMING IN MS. 5.035, 6.058*, 8.031* FESEARCE IN SYSTEMS ECOLOGY. 4.141 SALMON CULTURE - DEVELOPMENT OF NUTRITICNAL AND DISEASE CONTROL PECGEAMS. 3.064, 5.037# SERIMP MATURATION, REPRODUCTION, DEVELOPMENT, NUTRITICN, INTENSIVE-EXTENSIVE CULTURE AND MARICULTURE. 5.052, 6.092* STUDY OF MANUEE-ENRICEED FOCD WEES IN MAEINE POND ECOSYSTEMS. 5.016 THE BOLE OF SILTS AND CLAYS IN THE NUTRITICN OF ZCOPLANETON. 1.041 THE TREATMENT AND USE OF WASTE PRODUCTS AND CHENICALS IN THE DIET OF AQUATIC ANIMALS. S.046, 8.042* THE USE OF SELECTED AQUATIC OFGANISMS FOR PURPOSES OF AQUACULTURE (FCOD PRODUCTICN). 3.012, 4.023*, 5.008*, 8.005* TRACE MINEFAL IMBALANCE IN BATCHERY FISH. 5.019 USE OF NUTRIENT CONTAINING LIFID VESICLES AS A FOOD SOURCE FOR SHELLFISH OF PACIFIC NORTHWEST. 5.042 UTILIZATION OF PROTEIN INGREDIENTS IN FISE RATIONS. 5.044 WEIGHT GAIN CF FISH. 5.018 WINTER FEELING OF CHANNEL CATFISE IN MISSISSIPPI. 4.125, 6.057* COOFERATIVE FISE PARASITE AND DISEASE STUDY. 3.004 FISE MOREIDITY AND MCRTALITY RELATED TC ENVIRONMENTAL CEANGES AND/OR INTENSIVE CULTURE **METHODS. 4.193** FRESHWATER FCOD ANIMALS. 3.039, S.014*, 6.024* BELMINTH PARASITES OF VERTEBRATES IN NORTH CAROLINA. 3.078 HCST-PARASITE RELATIONSHIPS HETWEEN THE CHANNEL CATFISH AND ICHTHYOPHTHIFIUS MULTIFILIIS. 3.050 SURVEY OF DISEASES OF CULTURED FRESHWATER FISHES OF CALIFCRNIA. 3.009 ANIMAL-PATHOGENS SURVEY OF DISEASES OF CULTURED FRESHWATER FISHES OF CALIFCRNIA. 3.009 ANIMAL-PATEOLOGY ICHTHYOPATHCLOGY. 3.089 IDENTIFICATION OF SUE-OPTIMAL ENVIRONMENTAL PARAMETERS AFFECTING AQUACULTURE. 3.050, 4.154* SURVEY OF DISEASES OF CULTURED FRESHWATER FISHES OF CALIFCRNIA. 3.009 ANIMAL-PERFORMANCE EREEDING EXPERIMENTS WITH SALMONIDS. 2.024 INTENSIVE CULTURE OF THE WALLEYE (PEECIDAE: STIZOSTEDION VITREUM). 5.038, 6.067* PERFORMANCE CF SALMONIDS: SMCLTIFICATICN, STEESS AND FITNESS. 1.089, 6.077*

ANIMAL-PEYSIOLOGY

A COMPARISON OF THE ACCUMULATION RATES OF P ABSORBED BY THE WITAL ORGANS OF FISE. 4.156, 5.039≠

ACTIVITY REATENS OF THE NORTHERN ROCK CRAE IN RELATION TO ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL FACTORS. 1.057, 4.109*

- APPLIED PHYSIOLOGY OF ECONCHICALY IMPORTANT FISHES. 4.202
- EEBAVIOR ECCLOGY AND REYTHNICITY IN THE ECCE CEAES, CANCER IRECEATUS AND CANCER ECREALIS, PHASE II. 1.058, 5.028*
- BEHAVIOR, ECOLOGY AND REYTHMICITY IN THE COMMON KOCK CRAE. 1.059, 4.110*
- HIOCHENICAL GENETICS AND CYTOGENETICS OF TECUT. 2.022
- EIOSYNTHESIS OF STEBOLS IN THE CYSTER AND CORRELATION OF STEROL COMPOSITION TO CYSTER PRODUCTIVITY. I.055, 5.027*
- CERONIC TUREIDITY AND STRESS IN JUVENILE GCHC SALWON AND STEELHEAD TECUT. 1.088, 4.184*
- CIGUATERA FISE PCISCNING IN THE U.S. V.I.: BICCEENICAL, PHYSOLOGICAL, AND MICROEICLOGICAL STUDIES. 1.098, 5.040*
- CCMPARATIVE PHYSIOLCGICAL STUDIES OF VERTEERATE EYES. 1.062
- DEVELCEMENT OF METHODS FOR MASS PEODLCTICN AND MANAGEMENT CF HULLFRCGS. 2.013, 4.083=
- DISPOSITION OF CHEMICAL FOLLUTANTS IN AQUATIC ORGANISMS. 4.017
- EFFECTS OF PCLLUTANTS ON GILLS CF FEESHWATER FISHES. 3.060, 4.119±
- EFFECTS OF STAMPEDE RESERVOIE ON UPSTBEAN FISH POPULATIONS OF SAGEBEN CREEK. I.010, 4.015± ENVIRONMENTAL BEQUIREMENTS OF POTENTIAL AQUACULTURE
- FISH SPECIES. 4.027
- EVALUATION OF BELATIVE PROTEIN FERFORMANCE IN PELLETED PISE RATIONS USING PEYSICLOGICAL INDICES: 5.055
- FISE PEYSICLCGY IN SESPENSE TO WATER QUALITY AND CHEMISTRY. 4.211
- FRESHWATER SHEINF OF THE GENUS WACFCHRACHIUM WITH SPECIAL EMPHASIS ON CULTURE. 4.205, 6.054* HISTOPATHOLOGIC AND HISTOCHEMICAL INDICES OF
- SUBLETHAL FESTICIDE TOXICATION IN FISE, 3,086, 4,189*
- IMMUNOLCGIC PACTORS IN CANDIDIASIS IN DCLPHINS. 3.031
- IMMUNOLOGIC RESPONSE OF CHANNEL CATFISH, ICTALURUS PUNCTATUS, TO HETERCLOGOUS ANTIPECTOZOAN IMMUNIZATION. 1.022
- LIPID METABOLISM IN AQUATIC ORGANISMS. 5.053, 9.038*
- MOLECULAR ENDOCRINOLOGY OF MOLTING AND REPRODUCTION IN CRUSTACEANS. 1.005
- NEURAL CONTROL OF SWIMMING IN CEAYFISHES. 1.001
- NEUROTRANSMITTERS, NEUROMODULATCRS, AND ICCCMOTICN. 1.076
- OSMOREGULATORY RESPONSES OF DESERT PUPFISE: A STUDY MODEL OF PHYSIOLOGICAL ARAFTATICN TC
- ENVIEONMENT. 1.003, 4.010* PHYSIOLOGY AND ECOLOGY OF THE ASIATIC CLAM, COBBICULA SP., IN THE SACRAMENTO-SAN JCACUIN DELTA. 1.004, 4.011*
- RESPONSE OF FISHES AND AQUATIC SYSTEMS TO ELECTRIC SHOCK AND CAPTURE TECHNCLOGY. 6.101
- SOURCES AND MANAGEMENT OF MORTALITY IN EARLY LIFE STAGES OF FISHES. 4.146
- SUSCEPTIBILITY TO I. WILTIFILLIS OF CEANNEL CATFISH EXPCSED TO SUBLETHAL CONCENTRATIONS OF COPPER 90. 3.080
- SWIMBLADDER INFLATION IN LAEVAE OF PHYSOCILISTOUS FISEES. 1.007
- TOXICCLCGICAL AND ECOLOGICAL EFFECTS OF TOXICANIS. 4.186

TRACE MINERAL IMBALANCE IN HATCHERY FISE. 5.019 VISUAL PIGMENT CHANGES DUBING THE LIFE CYCLE OF THE

ANIMAL-REPRODUCTION

DEVELOP CF AQUACULTURE SYSTEMS FCR CCOL WATER FISE SPECIES. 2.028, 5.057±, 6.102≠

ECOLOGY AND MANAGEMENT OF WALLEYE. 1.073, 6.065^\pm penaeidae gametes, their structure, activatics and

FUSION. 1.006 SHEIMP MATURATICN, REPRODUCTION, DEVELOPMENT, NUTBITION, INTENSIVE-EXTENSIVE CULTURE AND MARICULTURE. 5.052, 6.052*

THE ECOLOGICAL IMPACT OF INTEGRATED CHEMICAL AND BIOLOGICAL AQUATIC WEED CONTRCL. 4.048, 6.021* ANIMAL-STRESS DISEASE MANAGEMENT IN CATFISH AQUACULTURE. 3.097 POSSIBLE CAUSES OF BLUEGILL LEPCHIS NAECCCBIEUS DEFORMITIES. 1.080, 4.161* ANIMAL-TISSUE HISTOPATHOLOGIC AND HISTCCHEWICAL INDICES CF SUBLETHAL PESTICIDE TOXICATION IN FISH. 3.026, 4.189* ANIMAL-VIRUSES CELL CULTURE STUDIES ON CELL LINES DEVELOPED FROM TISSUES OF AQUATIC ANIMAL. 3.051 ANINAL-VASTE DEVELOPMENT OF AN INTEGRATED SYSTEM FOR TOTAL UTILIZATION OF SWINE WASTE. 6.001 EFFECTS OF LIVESTOCK GRAZING PRACTICES ON THE WATER QUALITY OF STREAMS. 4.223 OPERATING FARAMETERS OF LAGCONS FOR DISFOSAL OF UTILIZATION OF DAIRY FARM AND PROCESSING PLANT WASTE. 8.014 RECYCLING WASTES INTO ANIMAL FEEDS. 5.029, 8.029* STUDY OF MANURE-ENRICHED FOCD WEES IN MARINE PCND ECOSYSTEMS. 5.016 UTILIZATION OF AQUATIC PLANTS FOR WASTE TREATMENT AND ANIMAL FEEDS. 1.043, 5.023* ANIMAL-WEIGHT NUTRITION MANAGEMENT AND DISEASE OF MARINE ANIMALS. 3.055, 5.026*, 6.050* ANTEBLMINTICS NEMATODE PARASITES OF FRESHWATER FISH: HICLOGY AND EFFECIS. 3.014 ANTIBIOTICS SALMON CULTURE - DEVELOPMENT OF NUTRITIONAL AND DISEASE CONTRCL PROGRAMS. 3.064, 5.037* SURVEY OF DISEASES OF CULTURED FRESHWATER FISHES OF CALIPCRNIA. 3.009 THE EFFICACY OF SELECTED ANTIHIOTICS IN THE PREVENTION AND CONTROL OF EACTERIAL KIDNEY DISEASE. 3.046 ANT IBOD IES GENETIC STUDIES OF ABERNATHY CREEK CHINCOK SALMON. 2.020 IMMUNOLOGIC FACTORS IN CANDIDIASIS IN DCLPHINS. 3.031 MICROBIAL DISEASES AND IMMUNE RESPONSE OF CATFISH. 3.098 ANTICENS **EIOLOGY AND CONTROL OF AQUATIC ANIMAL DISEASES.** 3.054 DEVELOPMENT OF A SUBUNIT VACCINE TO THE SALMONID VIRUS, IBNV, BY MOLECULAR CLONING. 3.085 DISEASE MANAGEMENT IN CATFISH AQUACULTURE. 3.097 IMMUNOLOGIC FACTORS IN CANDIDIASIS IN DOLPHINS. 3.031 INNUNOLOGIC RESPONSE OF CHANNEL CATFISE, ICTALUEUS PUNCTATUS, TO BETERCLOGOUS ANTIPROTOZCAN IMMUNIZATION. 1.022 SEROLOGIC AND VIRUULENCE STUDIES CF AEROMONAS HYDROPHILA. 3.042 ANTINYCIN EFFECTS OF ANTIMYCIN ON STREAM INSECTS. 3.102, 4.222* ANTIBUTRITIONAL-FACTORS CHANNEL CATFISE NUTRITION. 5.033 ANTIOXIDANTS THE OXIDATIVE DETERICRATICN OF LIPIDS IN MECHANICALLY DEBONED FOULTEY AND FISH. 9.009 ANTIPARASITICS DETERMINATION OF EFFICACY OF CERTAIN ANTI-PARASITIC DRUGS FCE FISHES. 3.041 ANTISERA SEROLOGIC AND VIRUULENCE STUDIES OF AERCHCHAS HYDEOFEILA. 3.042 APPLICATION-METHODS EVALUATION OF FUSARIUM ROSEUM "CULMOBUM" AS A BIOLOGICAL CONTROL POR HYDRILLA VESTICILLATA. 3.029 MANAGEMENT OF AQUATIC PLANTS FOR SPORT FISH PRODUCTION IN PCNDS. 5.002 APPLICATION-EATE BIOLOGY AND CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.068 AQUATIC-ANIMALS CELL CULTURE STUDIES ON CELL LINES DEVELOPED FROM TISSUES OF AQUATIC ANIMAL, 3.051 CHARACTERIZATION OF GONAD-STIMULATING SUBSTANCES IN MARINE ANIMALS. 1.020. 2.006*

DISEASES OF AQUACULTURE SPECIES. 3.044 DISEASES CF ACUATIC ANIMALS. 3.072 ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS OF SALMONELLOSIS. 3.049 MECHANISTIC PACTOES DETERMINE ACUATIC FERTILITY. 4.114 STREAMSIDE BUFFER STRIPS FOR PROTECTING AQUATIC ORGANISMS FROM LOGGING EPFECTS. 4.018 THE USE OF SHLECTED AQUATIC ORGANISMS FOR PURPOSES OF AQUACULTURE (FOOD PRODUCTION). 3.012, 4.023*, 5.008*, 8.005* AQUATIC-ARTHROPODS TAXONONY, BIOLOGY, AND ECOLOGICAL RELATIONSHIPS OF AQUATIC INSECTS. 4.120 THE USE OF SELECTED AQUATIC ORGANISMS FOE PUBPOSES OF AQUACULTURE (FOCD PRODUCTION). 3.012, 4.023*, 5.008*, 8.005* ACUATIC-ECOLOGY AN EVALUATION OF ENDANGERED MOLLUSKS IN VIRGINIA. 1.100, 4.213* ANALYSIS AND NODELING LAKE MICHIGAN FISH POPULATION. 1.015, 4.032* HIOSYNTEESIS CP STEROLS IN THE CYSTEE AND CORRELATION OF STEROL COMPOSITION TO OYSTER PRODUCTIVITY. 1.055, 5.027* DIAGNOSIS AND PATBOGENESIS CF DISEASES AND PARASITES IN WAJOR NOLLUSCAN AQUACULTUSE SPECIES. 3.088 ECOLOGY OF FISHES AND LINNOLOGY OF UPPER GREAT LAKES AND TRIBUTARIES IN RELATION TO ENVIRCEMENTAL IMPACTS. 1.060, 4.115* ECOLOGY OF SALT WARSHES IN RELATION TO ESTUAFIES AND ENERGY FLCW. 1.016, 4.041*, 5.011* EFFECT OF DIET QUALITY ON AQUATIC ANIMALS. 5.047 EFFECT OF PEAKING POWEE GENERATION ON FISH. 4.056 EXAMINATION OF THE SPAWNING ECCLOGY AND EARLY LIFE HISTORY OF KOKANEE SALMON IN COEUF D' ALENE LAKE. 4.054 FACTORS INFLUENCING TROUT PRODUCTION IN VIRGINIA STREAMS. 1.102, 4.217* LINNOLOGICAL EVALUATION AND ZOOPLANETCN DYNAMICS OF LAKE KOOCANUSA, NORTHWESTERN MONTANA. 4.077 LINNOLOGICAL PARAMETERS. 4.066 LCWEB SNAKE BIVEB LINNOLCGY. 4.076 NATURAL PRODUCTION OF TROUT IN INPERTILE MOUNTAIN STREAMS OF PENNSYLVANIA. 4.192 CVERHOARD DISPOSAL STUDY. 1.066, 4.137* VARIABILITY IN PHYSICAL REGIME OF LAKE TITICACA: RELATION TO EIOLOGICAL FROCESSES. 4.014 ACUATIC-BCOSYSTEMS APPLIED LIMNOLOGY AND FISRERIES STUDIES IN TROPICAL LAKES. 4.021 ACUATIC RESOURCES OF SILVER CREEK AT THE NATURE CONSERVANCY SITE. 4.075 EASELINE STUDIES FOE EVALUATING THE SESPENSE OF AN ECOSYSTEM TO THE INTRODUCTION CP WHITE ANUE. 1.018, 3.028*, 4.046* BIOLOGICAL AND RECREATIONAL ASPECTS OF WATER LEVEL MANAGEMENT OF CLEAR LAKE, IOWA. 4.081 CLEAR LAKE ECCSYSTEM ANALYSIS: THE FISHES. 1.012, 6.016* CONTROL OF WEEDS AND CERTAIN OTHER AQUATIC PESTS IN THE PACIFIC SOUTHWEST. 3.015, 4.031* DEVELOPMENT AND VALIDATION CP BABITAT-STANDING CRCP FUNCTIONS FCF STEEAM FISH AND THEIR FOODS. 4.065 ECOLOGICAL STUDIES OF THE NAVAREC AND GARCIA ESTUARIES, WITH EMPHASIS ON THE FISHES. 4.028 ECOLOGY AND TAXONOMY OF TWO MAJCE OFFERS OF AQUATIC INSECTS. EPHEMEROPTERA AND TRICHOPTERA. IN VA. 4.212 EFFECTS OF AN ALTERED TEMPERATURE REGIME AND CHEMICAL CONTAMINANTS ON THE AQUATIC ECOSYSTEM. 3.062, 4.127* EFFECTS OF LAND USE PRACTICES ON STREAM BIOTA. 4.085 EFFECTS OF SEDIMENTS ON EICLOGICAL SYSTEMS. 4.126 ENVIRCEMENTAL IMPACT AND WEED MANAGEMENT STRATEGIES UTILIZING GRASS CARP (CTENCPHAEYNGODON IDELLA). 3.030, 4.049* Estuarine invertebrate behavicr; an index of SUBACUTE TOXICITY OF AQUATIC BEREICIDES. 1.079, 3.075*. 8.040* FATE AND EFFECTS OF ATRAZINE IN SALT MAESH ECOSYSTEMS. 4.001

IMPACTS OF THE CONSTRUCTION AND OPERATION OF COASTAL NUCLEAR POWER PLANTS ON ESTUARINE ECOLOGY. 4.160

INVESTIGATION OF AQUATIC ECOSYSTEMS IN SMALL PCNDS. 1.031, 6.036*

- MECHANISTIC FACTORS DETERMINE AQUATIC FERTILITY. 4.114
- MICROCCSM MODELING OF THE RESPONSE OF PERSISTENT AQUATIC COMMUNITIES TO A TOXICANT. 4.182 MODELS TO ASSESS BIOMAGNIFICATION POTENTIAL OF
- PERSISTENT TOXIC SUBSTANCES IN AQUATIC FOOD CHAINS. 4.149
- NITROGEN FIXATION BY MICROBES INBABITING SURFACES OF AQUATIC MACRCPEYTES. 4.142
- NUTRIENT INTERACTIONS AND CEANGES IN ALGAL QUALITY IN CAYUGA LAKE. 4.140
- PRAWN AQUACULTURE PROGRAM BIOLOGICAL BASIS CF PEODUCTICN. 2.008, 6.030*
- QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE STUDIES OF POLLUTION
- IN SELECTED FARM PONDS. 4.155 RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN SALT MARSE AND ESTUAFINE ANIMAL COMMUNITIES AND ENERGY EXCEANGE. 4.040, 5.010*
- SCOPE OF WCRK FOR PRELIMINARY STUDY OF PRIMARY AND SECONDARY PRODUCTION OF THE ST. LAWRENCE FIVER. 4.150
- SPOKANE EIVER LINNOLOGY. 4.067
- STREAM AND IMPOUNDMENT ECCLOGY. 4.003
- THE EFFECTS OF AGRICULTURAL DEAINAGE OF NATURAL SYSTEMS - PHASE III. 4.036
- THE FATE AND EFFECTS OF CHENICALS IN AQUATIC ECOSYSTEMS. 4.111 THE ROLE OF SILTS AND CLAYS IN THE NUTRITICN OF
- ZOOPLANETON. 1.041 THE USE CF FISE BEHAVIOR IN TOXICITY TESTING.
- 1.032, 4.079*
- VALUE OF TIDAL MARSBES IN RELATION TO ESTUARINE ECOSYSTEN, AND EVALUATION OF FEESEWATER WETLANDS. 4.044
- VARIABILITY IN PHYSICAL REGIME OF LAKE TITICACA: RELATION TO BIOLOGICAL PROCESSES. 4.014 ACUATIC-ENVISONMENT
 - ADAPTATION FACTORS AND CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.093. 4.204*
 - AQUACULTURAL WASTEWATER WANAGEMENT AND UTILIZATION IN HAWAII. 4.053, 6.029*
 - AQUATIC INSECTS AS INDICATORS OF WATER QUALITY AND PRODUCTIVITY: A COOFDINATED STUDY. 4.129
 - BIGACCUMULATION AND IMPACT OF HIGHWAY-GENERATED HEAVY METALS ON STREAM FISEERY RESCURCES IN VIEGINIA. 4.214
 - BIOLOGICAL INDICATORS OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY IN CALIFCENIA LAKES AND STREAMS. 4.016
 - CARRYING CAPACITY OF STREAMS FOR REARING SALMONIDS AS AFFECTED BY SEDIMENT & CTHER COMPONENTS. 1.024, 4.057*
 - CLEAR LAKE ECOSYSTEM ANALYSIS: TEE FISHES. 1.012. 6.016*
 - COMPARATIVE ECOLOGY OF SELECTED SPECIES OF AQUATIC INSECTS, PBASE IV. 4.039, 4.042 CONTROL ANE ERADICATION OF AQUATIC WEEDS IN LAKES
 - AND INFCUNDED WATERS. 3.107
 - CONTROL OF AQUATIC PLANT GROWTH. 3.032
 - CCNTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.108
 - CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS BASED ON ALLELOPATHIC CHARACTERISTICS IN SPIKERUSE (ELECCHARIS SPP.). 3.007
 - DISPOSITION OF CHEMICAL POLLUTANTS IN AQUATIC ORGANISES. 4.017
 - ECOLOGICAL STUDIES OF THE NAVARRC AND GARCIA ESTUARIES, WITH EMPHASIS CN THE FISHES. 4.028
 - ECOLCGICAL STUDY OF LAKE WALES, FLORIDA AFTER INTRODUCTION OF WHITE ANUF (CTENOFHARYNGODON IDELLA). 4.047
 - ECOLOGY AND MANAGEMENT OF MISSOURI STREAM FISEES. 4.128
 - ECOLOGY AND MANAGEMENT OF STREAM AND STREAM FISHES. 1.061
 - EXPERIMENTAL FISE ECOLOGY. 1.098, 4.207*
 - FACTORS AFPECTING FISH POPULATIONS IN IOWA WATERS. 1.040, 4.087*, 6.038*
 - FATE AND EFFECTS OF TOXICANTS IN AGRICULTURAL AND ENVIRONMENTAL FOOD CRAINS. 4.154 LIFE HISTORY AND PHYSIOLCGICAL STUDIES OF AQUATIC
 - AND MARGINAL WEEDS. 3.061
 - NICROBIAL ECOLOGY OF NETBANE PRODUCTION IN AQUATIC ENVIRONMENTS. 4.220
 - NATURAL MARSEES AS NUTRIENT SINKS FOR AGRICULTURAL RUNOFF. 4.089
 - NITROGEN FIXATION IN NETBANE-OXIDIZING HACTERIA. 4.219 PHYSIOLOGICAL STUDIES OF ACUATIC AND DITCE HANK
 - WEEDS IN THE PACIFIC NORTHWEST. 3.101

- PHYSIOLCGY AND MANAGEMENT OF AQUATIC WEEDS INTERPERING WITH THE USE OF WATER RESCURCES. 3.035
- POLYCULTURAL PRODUCTION OF FISE IN FARM PONDS. 4.007, 6.010*

SELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN SALT MARSE AND ESTUARINE ANIMAL COMMUNITIES AND ENERGY EXCHANGE. 4.040, 5.010*

- RESPONSE OF AQUATIC LIPE TC SALINITY, TEMPERATURE, DISSOLVED OXYGEN AND WATER FLOW. 4.024
- SALINITY, REDCY POTENTIAL, & MICROBIAL TRANSFORMATIONS OF MERCURY POLLUTANTS IN ESTUARINE SEDIMENTS. 4.132
- STREAM AND IMPOUNDMENT ECOLCGY. 4.003 STREAMSIDE BUFFER STRIPS FOF PROTECTING AQUATIC
- ORGANISMS PROM LOGGING EFFECTS. 4.018 THE ECOLOGICAL IMPACT OF INTEGRATED CHENICAL AND
- **BIOLOGICAL AQUATIC WEED CONTEOL. 3.025, 4.045*,** 4.048, 6.021*
- THE USE OF SELECTED AQUATIC ORGANISMS FOR PURPOSES OF AQUACULTURE (FOOD PRODUCTION). 3.012, 4.023*, 5.008*, 8.005*
- TOXIC EFFECTS ON THE AQUATIC BICTA FROM COAL AND OIL SHALE DEVELOPMENT. 4.034
- TOXICOLOGICAL AND ECOLOGICAL EFFECTS OF TOXICANTS. 4.186
- UTILIZATION OF KRAFT WILL EFFLUENT FOR FISH PRODUCTION. 5.012, 6.020* WATER QUALITY STUDIES: COMPARATIVE ECCLCGY AND
- SYSTEMATICS OF SELECTED AQUATIC INSECTS. 4.043 ZOOGE OG FAPEY AND ECOLOGY OF FISES IN PENNSYLVANIA.
- 1.093, 4.190*
- AQUATIC-BABITATS
 - BIOFILTER PERFORMANCE FACTORS. 4.069 FIOLCGICAL CONTROL OF WEEDS WITH EMPHASIS ON AQUATIC BABITATS. 3.033
 - DEVELOPMENT AND APPLICATION OF A METHODOLOGY FOR RECOMMENDING SALMONID EGG INCUBATION FLOWS. 4.070
 - ECOLOGICAL STUDY OF CUTOFF BENDWAYS AND OXHOWS WITHIN THE TENNESSEE-TONFIGEEE WATERWAY, 4,124
 - EPFECTS OF LAND USE PRACTICES ON STREAM FIOTA. 4.085 EFFECTS OF LCGGING ON ABIZONA TROUT AND THEIR
 - HAHITAT IN THE WHITE NOUNTAINS OF ARIZCNA. 4.005 EFFECTS OF BEDUCED STREAM DISCHARGE ON FISH AND
 - AQUATIC MACROINVERTEBRATE POPULATIONS. 4.073 EFFECTS OF WATERSHED PRACTICES CN STREAM BABITAT
 - AND FISE POPULATIONS. 4.181 EXPERIMENTAL FISE ECOLOGY. 1.098, 4.207*
 - FACTORS AFFECTING FISH POPULATIONS OF ICWA STREAMS. 1.039, 4.086*
 - FISE AND ACUATIC MACROINVERTEBRATE FAUNA IN SOUTE FORK HOISE RIVER BELOW ANDERSON MANCH DAM. 1.029
 - FISHERIES UNIT. 4.201, 5.050*, 6.088* IMPACTS OF RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT AND EXPLORATION ON
 - NATUFAL RESOURCES. 4.216 MICROCOSM NODELING OF THE FESPONSE OF PEFSISTENT
 - AQUATIC COMMUNITIES TO A TOXICANT. 4.182 NCDE OF ACTICN AND INFLUENCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL PACTORS ON THE TOXICITY OF SEVERAL AQUATIC BERBICIDES. 3.100, 4.218*
 - NODELS TO ASSESS EICMAGNIFICATION POTENTIAL OF PERSISTENT TOXIC SUBSTANCES IN AQUATIC FCCD CBAINS. 4.149
 - PHYSICLOGY AND MANAGEMENT OF AQUATIC WEEDS INTEFFERING WITH THE USE OF WATER RESCURCES. 3.035
 - PRE-IMPOUNDMENT ENVIRONMENTAL STUDIES OF AQUILLA LAKE. 4.209
 - RESPONSE OF FISHES AND AQUATIC SYSTEMS TO ELECTRIC SHOCK AND CAPTURE TECHNOLOGY. 6-101 STREAMSIDE BUFFEE STRIPS FCE PROTECTING AQUATIC
 - **ORGANISMS FROM LOGGING EFFECTS**. 4.618 TAXONOMY, BIOLOGY, AND ECOLOGICAL RELATIONSHIPS OF
 - AQUATIC INSECTS. 4.120 THE EFFECTS OF LOGGING: GRAZING ON STREAMS IN THE
 - WHITE MCUNTAINS. 4.006 ZOOGEOGRAPHY AND ECOLOGY OF FISEES IN PENNSYLVANIA.
 - 1.093, 4.190*
- AQUATIC-INSECTS
 - AQUATIC INSECTS AS INDICATORS OF WATER QUALITY AND PRODUCTIVITY: A COORDINATED STUDY. 4.129 AQUATIC RESOURCES OF SILVER CREEK AT THE NATURE
 - CONSERVANCY SITE. 4.075 FIOLOGICAL INDICATORS OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY IN CALIFORNIA LAKES AND STREAMS. 4.016

AQUATIC INSECTS IN WISCCASIN. 4.221 HIONOMICS AND CONTROL OF CHIRONOMID MIDGES (HLIND MOSQUITCES). 3.026 BLACK FLY DAMAGE TERESECIDS, BICLCGY AND CONTROL. 4.103 COMPARATIVE ECOLOGY OF SELECTED SPECIES OF AQUATIC INSECTS, PHASE IV. 4.039, 4.042 DEVELOPMENT AND VALIDATION OF HABITAT-STANDING CROP FUNCTIONS FOR STREAM FISH AND THEIR FOODS. 4.065 ECOLOGY AND SYSTEMATICS OF AQUATIC INSECTS. 4.177 ECOLOGY AND TAXONOMY OF TWO NAJOF CEDERS OF AQUATIC INSECTS, EPHENEROPTERA AND TRICHOPTERA, IN VA. 4.212 EFFECTS OF AN ALTERED TEMPERATURE REGINE AND CHEMICAL CONTAMINANTS ON THE AQUATIC ECOSYSTEM. 3.062, 4.127* EFFECTS OF ANTINYCIN ON STREAM INSECTS. 3.102, 4.222* EFFECTS OF LIVESTOCK GRAZING PRACTICES ON THE WATER QUALITY OF STREAMS. 4.223 FFFECTS CF LOGGING ON ARIZONA TROUT AND THEIR HABITAT IN THE WEITE WCUNTAINS OF ARIZCNA. 4.005 INSECTICIDES AND THEIR FCFMULATIONS. 4.131 NATURALLY CCCURRING MOSCUITC LARVICIDES. 3.069 STREAMSIDE EUFFER STRIPS FOR PROTECTING AQUATIC ORGANISMS FROM LOGGING EFFECTS. 4.018 TAXONOMY, FIOLOGY, AND ECCLOGICAL RELATIONSHIPS OF AQUATIC INSECTS. 4.120 UTILIZATION OF KRAFT WILL EFFLUENT FCF FISH PRODUCTION. 5.012, 6.020* WATER QUALITY STUDIES: COMPARATIVE ECOLOGY AND SYSTEMATICS OF SELECTED AQUATIC INSECTS. 4.043 AQUATIC-INVESTEBTATES THE FATE AND EFFECTS OF CHENICALS IN AQUATIC ECOSYSTEMS. 4.111 AOUATIC-LIFE BIOLOGICAL INDICATORS OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY IN CALIFCRNIA LAKES AND STREAMS. 4.016 EIOLOGICAL, TECENICAL, AND ECONOMIC STUDIES OF CULTUREL AQUATIC RESOURCES. 4.151, 6.066* CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.108 DETERMINATION OF WATER QUALITY CRITERIA FCR THE SUPPORT OF AQUATIC LIFE IN TWO SMALL KANSAS STREAMS. 4.091 DISEASES OF AQUACULTURE SPECIES. 3.044 EFFECTS CF DISSOLVED CBEMICALS CN AQUATIC LIFE. 4.078 EFFECTS OF SEDIMENTS ON BIOLOGICAL SYSTEMS. 4.126 FISE AND ACUATIC MACRCINVERTEERATE FAUNA IN SOUTH FORK BOISE RIVER EELOW ANDERSCN RANCH DAM. 1.029 LCWER SNAKE RIVER LINNOLOGY. 4.076 MECEANISTIC FACTORS DETERMINE AQUATIC FEETILITY. 4.114 MICROCOSM NODELING OF THE RESPONSE OF PERSISTENT AQUATIC COMMUNITIES TO A TOXICANT. 4.182 NCDELS TO ASSESS BIOMAGNIFICATION POTENTIAL OF PERSISTENT TOXIC SUBSTANCES IN AQUATIC FOOD **CEAINS. 4.149** RECYCLING WASTES INTO ANIMAL FEEDS. 5.029, 8.029* RELEASE OF ADSOREED PESTICIDES INTO WATER. 4.175 RESPONSE OF AQUATIC LIFE TO SALINITY, TEMPERATURE, DISSOLVED OXYGEN AND WATER FLOW. 4.024 SCOPE CF WCRE FOR PRELIMINARY STUDY CF PRIMARY AND SECONDARY PRODUCTION OF THE ST. LAWRENCE RIVER. 4.150 SPOKANE RIVER LIMNOLOGY. 4.067 THE EFFECTS OF LOGGING: GRAZING CN STREAMS IN THE WEITE MCUNTAINS. 4.006 THE FATE AND EFFECTS OF CHENICALS IN AQUATIC ECCSYSTEMS. 4.111 WATER QUALITY ENHANCEMENT OF LAKES BY MECHANICAL FUMPING. 4.088, 6.039* WATER QUALITY STUDY. 4.033 AQUATIC-MACECPETTES EFFECTS OF WATER QUALITY PARAMETERS ON FARM POND VEGETATION AND THEIR INTERACTIONS. 4.176 NECBANISTIC FACTORS DETERMINE AQUATIC FERTILITY. 4.114 RECYCLING WASTES INTO ANIMAL FEEDS. 5.029, 8.029* SPOKANE RIVER LIMNOLOGY. 4.067 STREAM AND IMPOUNDMENT ECOLOGY. 4.003 AQUATIC-NEMA TODES TAXONOMY AND MORPBOLCGY CF NEWATODES. 3.027 AQUATIC-ORGANISHS **BIOFILTER FERFORMANCE FACTORS. 4.069** SEROLOGIC AND VIRUULENCE STUDIES OF AEROMONAS BYDROFEILA. 3.042

BIOLCGY, ECOLCGY, TAXONOMY AND DISTRIBUTION OF

AQUATIC-PESTS

THE USE OF SELECTED AQUATIC ORGANISMS FOF PUMPCSES OF AQUACULTDRE (FOCD PHCDUCTICN). 3.012, 4.023*, 5.008*, 8.005*

AQUATIC-PLANTS

- AN EVALUATION OF WIDELY USED HEREICIDES CN AQUATIC PLANTS, FISH AND FISH-FOCD OFGANISMS. 3.059, 4.116*
- AQUATIC RESOURCES OF SILVER CREEK AT THE NATURE CONSERVANCY SITE. 4.075 EIOLOGICAL AND RECREATIONAL ASPECTS OF WATER LEVEL
- EIOLCGICAL AND RECREATIONAL ASPECTS OF WATER LEVEL MANAGEMENT OF CLEAR LAKE, ICWA. 4.081 BIOLCGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS IN THE
 - SOUTHEAST. 3.034
- BIOLOGY AND CONTROL OF AQUATIC VEGETATICN. 3.048 CLOSED CYCLE FISH CULTURE WATER FILTRATICN USING BIOLOGICAL SYSTEMS. 4.105, 6.053*
- CONTROL OF AQUATIC PLANT GROWTH. 3.032 CONTROL OF WEEDS AND CERTAIN OTHER AQUATIC PESTS IN
- THE PACIFIC SCUTDERST. 3.015, 4.031* CULTURE AND MANAGEMENT OF SELECTED GAME FISHES.
- 3.092, 4.203*, 6.091* EFFECTS OF AQUATIC PLANT COMMUNITIES CN WATER
- QUALITY IN HYPEREUTROPHIC AQUATIC ENVIRONMENT. 4.117
- EFFECTS OF WATER QUALITY PARAMETERS ON FARM PCND VEGETATION AND THEIR INTERACTIONS. 4.176 EURASIAN WATERMILFOIL IN CURRITUCE SCUND: ITS
- CONTROL AND POTENTIAL USE. 3.077, 4.16*
- EVALUATION OF A CLOSED SYSTEM FOR THE COLTURE OF FISH, SHELLFISE AND AQUATIC PLANTS. 5.001, 6.002*
- EVALUATION OF AQUATIC PLANTS AS EOTENTIAL FEEDSTUFF FOR DAIRY CATTLE. $9{\,}{\,}{\,}{\,}013$
- GROWTH AND NINERAL UPTAKE IN THE LEMNACEAE. 4.026
- LOWER SNAKE RIVER LINNOLOGY. 4.076 MANAGEMENT OF AQUATIC PLANTS FOR SPCRT FISH
- MANAGEMENT OF AQUATIC PLANTS FOR SPCRT FIS PRODUCTION IN PONDS. 5.002
- MECHANISTIC FACTORS DETERMINE AQUATIC FERTILITY. 4.114
- NITROGEN FIXATION BY MICROEFS INHABITING SURFACES OF AQUATIC MACFOPHYTES. 4.142
- NUTRIENT INTERACTIONS AND CHANGES IN ALGAL QUALITY IN CAYUGA LAKE. 4.140

CPERATING PARAMETERS OF LAGCONS FOR DISPOSAL OR UTILIZATION OF DAIRY FARM AND PRCCESSING PLANT WASTE: 8.014

- CKGANISMS ASSOCIATED WITH AQUATIC WEEDS AND THE BIOLOGICAL CONTROL WATER-BYACINTE IN EGYPT. 3.105
- PHOTOSYNTHESIS AND PHOTORESPIRATION IN AQUATIC Plants. 1.017
- PHYSIOLOGICAL STUDIES OF AQUATIC AND DITCH HANK WEEDS IN THE PACIFIC NORTHWEST. 3.101
- FOND FERTILIZATION AND LIMING. 4.002, 5.003*
- THE ECOLOGICAL IMPACT OF INTEGRATED CHEMICAI AND BIOLCGICAL ACUATIC WEED CONTFOL. 4.048, 6.021* THE EFFECTS OF INFIGATION WASTE WATER ON AQUATIC
- PLANTS IN THE SACRAMENTO BIVER 4.025 THE USE OF SELECTED AQUATIC OFGANISMS FOR PURPOSES
- OF ACUACULTURE (FOOD PEODUCTION). 3.012, 4.023*, 5.008*, 8.005*

DTILIZATION OF AQUATIC PLANTS FCE WASTE TREATMENT AND ANIMAL FEEDS. 1.043, 5.023*

AQUATIC-WEEDS

- A SURVEY FOR PATEOGEN FOR AQUATIC WEEDS IN CALIFORNIA FOR USE IN BICLCGICAL CONTROL. 3.008, 4.009*
- ADAPTATION FACTORS AND CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.093, 4.204*
- EASELINE STUDIES FOR EVALUATING TEE RESPONSE OF AN ECOSYSTEM TO THE INTRODUCTION OF WHITE ANUR. 1.018, 3.028*, 4.046* EIOLOGICAL AGENIS FOR CONTECL OF HYDRILLA, A
- EIOLOGICAL AGENTS FCR CONTECL OF HYDRILLA, A SUBMERSED AQUATIC WEED. 3.023
- EIOLOGICAL CONTROL AGENTS OF EYDRILLA VERTICILLATA. 3.109
- EIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS IN THE SOUTHEAST. 3.034
- EIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS WITH COMPETITIVE SPECIES OF SPIKEFUSE (ELEOCEARIS SPP.). 3.011
- BIOLOGICAL CONTECL OF AQUATIC WEEDS WITE INSECTS. $3{\scriptstyle \bullet}\,038$
- EIOLCGICAL CONTRCL OF EURASIAN MILFOIL AND OTEER AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.106
- BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF WEEDS. 3.104

BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF WEEDS WITH EMPEASIS CN EFFECT OF DIET QUALITY ON AQUATIC ANIMALS. 5.047 AQUATIC HABITATS. 3.033 BIOLOGICAL CONTRCL OF WEEDS WITE PATECGENS. 3.103 BIOLOGY AND CONTROL OF AQUATIC VEGETATION. 3.048 ARTEROPODA THE USE OF SELECTED AQUATIC ORGANISMS FOR PURPOSES BIOLOGY ANE CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.068 OF AQUACULTURE (FOOD PRODUCTION). 3.012, 4.023±, CONTROL AND ERADICATION OF AQUATIC WEEDS IN LAKES 5.008*, 8.005* AND IMPCUNDED WATERS. 3.107 ARTIFICAL-REARING CONTROL CF AQUATIC PLANT GROWTE. 3.032 CONTROL OF AQUATIC NEEDS. 3.108 CONTROL CF AQUATIC WEEDS BASED ON ALLELOPATBIC CEARACTERISTICS IN SPIKEFUSE (ELECCHARIS SPP.). 3-007 CONTEOL OF WEEDS AND CERTAIN OTHER AQUATIC PESTS IN THE PACIFIC SCUTEWEST. 3.015, 4.031[±] ECOLOGY CF PURPLE LOOSESTRIFE (LYTHRUN SALICARIA). 3.073 BAVIRONMENTAL IMPACT AND WEED MANAGEMENT STRATEGIES UTILIZING GRASS CARP (CTENCPEAFYNGCDCN IDELLA). 3.030, 4.049* ASB EURASIAN WATERWILFOIL IN CURRITUCE SCUND: ITS CONTRCL AND POTENTIAL USE. 3.077, 4.165* EVALUATION OF EFFICACY, CROP RESPONSES AND CROP AND ASIATIC-CLAN WATER RETENTION OF POTENTIAL AQUATIC EERBICIDES. 3.021, 4.035* EVALUATION OF FUSARIUM ROSEUN "CULNCRUN" AS A ASSAT BIOLOGICAL CONTRCL FOR BYDRILLA VERTICILLATA. 3.029 HCRMONAL REGULATION OF GROWTH, DEVELOPMENT AND ASSINILATION VEGETATIVE PROPAGATION OF SUBMERSED AQUATIC **WEEDS**. 3.020 ASTEROIDEA IDENTIFICATION OF INSECTS FCR BICLOGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.036 IMPORTATION AND EVALUATION OF INSECTS FOR BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF WEEDS AND INSECT PESTS. 3.037 IMPROVING SURFACE WATER CONDITIONS THROUGH CONTROL ASTRAGALUS AND DISFOSAL OF AQUATIC VEGETATION. 7.015 LIFE BISTORY AND PRYSIOLCGICAL STUDIES OF AQUATIC ATRAZINE AND WARGINAL WEEDS. 3.061 MANAGEMENT OF AQUATIC PLANTS FOR SPORT FISE PECDUCTION IN PONDS. 5.002 MANAGEMENT STRATEGIES FOR RICE PESTS. 3.005 NECHANICAL CONTECL OF ACUATIC WEEDS. 3.022 MODE OF ACTION AND INFLUENCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS ON THE TOXICITY OF SEVERAL AQUATIC 4.189* **EFREICICES.** 3.100, 4.218* ATTENTUATION NITROGEN FIXATION BY MICROBES INEABITING SURFACES OF AQUATIC MACROPEYTES. 4.142 ATTITUDES CEGANISMS ASSOCIATED WITE AQUATIC WEEDS AND THE BIOLOGICAL CONTROL WATER-BYACINTE IN EGYPT. 10.014 3.105 PHYSIOLOGICAL STUDIES OF AQUATIC AND DITCE BANK WEEDS IN THE PACIFIC NORTHWEST. 3.101 PBYSIOLOGY AND MANAGEMENT OF AQUATIC WEEDS INTERFEEING WITE THE USE OF WATER RESCUECES. 10.048 3.035 PCLYCULTURAL PRODUCTION OF FISH IN FARM PCNDS. AUTOMATION 4.007, 6.010* SHALLOW-WATER POLYCULTURE OF FISHES IN PONDS AUXINS DESIGNED FOR ROTATION TO GRAIN CROPS. 6.013 THE ECOLOGICAL IMPACT OF INTEGRATED CHEMICAL AND BIOLOGICAL AQUATIC WEED CONTECL. 3.025. 4.045*. 4.048, 6.021* **AVAILAHILITY** THE PHYSIOLOGY AND CONTROL OF VEGETATIVE REPRODUCTION IN BYDRILLA (BYDFILLA VELTICILLATA ECYLE). 3.024 UPTAKE AND MOVEMENT OF BERBICIDES AND NUTRIENTS IN AQUATIC WEED SPECIES. 3.019 USE CF SPIKERUSE (ELEOCHARIS SPP.) FCR BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.016 VEED CONTECL IN FICE PRODUCTION. 3.006, 4.008# BACCHARIS A COMPARATIVE STUDY OF THE FINE STRUCTURE CF APOSTONE CILIATES. 3.076 AREA-STUDIES THE STATUS AND RELATION OF THE COASTAL ZCNE TO ALABAMA'S ECONOMY. 10.001 BACTERIA NEW FOOD PEODUCTS FROM UNDBRUTILIZED FISE SPECIES. 8.033 ARSENIC RELEASE OF ADSOREED PESTICIDES INTO WATER. 4.175 DETECTION AND IDENTIFICATION OF NYCOTOXINS AND ALGAL TOXING IN FOODS AND FEEDS. 9.023 LABORATORY CULTURE FOR RESEARCE PURPCSES OF 3.054 ESTUARINE AND MARINE LCESTERS, CRAES AND

LABORATORY CULTURE FOR RESEARCE PURFCSES CF ESTUARINE AND MARINE LOESTEES, CRAES AND SHRINPS. 1.048, 5.024± ARTIFICIAL-DIETS INTENSIVE CULTURE OF THE WALLEYF (PERCIDAE: STIZOSTEDION VITREUN). 5.038, 6.067* ARTIFICIAL-INSEMINATION GENETIC ASSESSMENT OF MACEOBRACHIUM ON GUAN. 1.023 ASCOPHYLLUM-NODOSUM DISTRIBUTION, ABUNDANCE AND ECOLOGY OF ASCOPBYLLUM NODOSUM (1) LE JCIS. 1.052, 4.102#, 7.008# MARINE FCOD SCIENCE AND TECENOLOGY. 8.003, 9.004# PHYSIOLOGY AND ECOLOGY OF THE ASIATIC CLAM, COREICULA SP., IN THE SACRAMENTO-SAN JCACUIN DELTA. 1.004, 4.011* EFFECTS OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONTAMINANTS CN GECEGIA FARM POND FISHES. 4.051, 6.025 ECOLOGY AND SYSTEMATICS OF AQUATIC INSECTS. 4.177 CBENICALS THAT DIFFUSE FROM PREDATORY ASTERCIDS & TRIGGER DEFENSIVE EEBAVIORS IN MARINE INVERTEERATE. 1.002 FUNCTIONAL MORPBOLOGY OF INVERTEERATE ORGAN SYSTENS, 1.071 EIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF WEEDS. 3.104 EFFECTS OF BERBICIDES ON CHESAPEAKE BAY PEYTOPLANKTON. 4.106 FATE AND EFFECTS OF ATRAZINE IN SALT MARSE BCOSYSTEMS. 4.001 BISTOPATEOLOGIC AND BISTOCHEMICAL INDICES OF SUBLETEAL PESTICIDE TOXICATION IN FISE. 3.086,

ARTENIA-SALINA

INFECTIOUS DISEASES OF SALMCNID FISBES. 3.081

- AN ECCNCHIC EVALUATION OF ICE FISEING IN MAINE. BIOLOGICAL AND RECREATIONAL ASPECTS OF WATER LEVEL
- MANAGEMENT OF CLEAR LAKE, IOWA. 4.081 CHARACTERISTICS, PREFERENCES, AND ATTITUDES CONCERNING PEIVATE FEE-FISEING OPERATIONS.
- EFFECT OF PEAKING POWER GENERATION ON FISH. 4.056
- CATFISE BREEDING. PRODUCTION. AND MARKETING. 10.003

BORMONAL REGULATION OF GROWTH, DEVELOPMENT AND VEGETATIVE PECPAGATICN OF SUBMERSED AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.020

- ANALYSIS OF THE MARKET POTENTIAL FOR FRESE WATER AQUACULTURAL PRODUCTS PRODUCED IN NEVADA. 5.036. 8.032*, 10.022*
- FISBERIES AND WILDLIFE ECONOMICS RESEARCH IN THE GREAT LAKES. 10.019

BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF WEEDS. 3.104

BACILLUS-SUBTILIS

DETECTION AND IDENTIFICATION OF MYCCICXINS AND ALGAL TOXINS IN FOCDS AND FEECS. 9.023

- A STUDY OF THE MICROBIOLOGICAL FLORA OF CRNAMENTAL FISBES. 3.040
- ANTIBACTERIAL MECHANICS IN CLAMS; CONTRIBUTION OF THE WATER STREAM. 1.072, 4.145* BACTERIAL KIDNEY DISEASE IN RAINECW TROUT:

PATBOGENESIS, INMUNITY, AND EFFECT OF WATER BARDNESS. 3.070

EACTERIAL SUBVIVAL AND RECOVERY MECHANISMS: SIGNIFICANCE IN MARINE ENVIRONMENT. 4.188

EIOLOGY AND CONTEOL OF AQUATIC ANIMAL DISEASES.

- ARCOPERTS-RODOR

- ARONA
- ARTENIA
- ARTENIA-NAUPLII
- SHEIMPS. 1.048, 5.024*

COMPARATIVE STUDY OF THE FLEXIBACTER-CYTOPHAGA GROUP BACTERIA. 4.104 DETECTION TRANSMISSION AND PATBOGENESIS OF DISEASE OFGANISMS IN AQUACULTUBE SPECIES. 3.087 DEVELOPMENT OF IMPROVED BANDLING, SBIPPING/STORAGE AND MARKETING PRACTICES FCF FISBERY PRODUCTS. 7.010. 8.039*. 9.030* DISEASE NANAGEMENT IN CULTURED CATFISH. 3.096 DISEASES OF AQUATIC ANIMALS. 3.013, 3.072 DISEASES OF SBELLPISB. 3.074 ECOLOGY OF ANAEBOBIC BETEROTBOPBIC BACTELIA. 4.118 EFPECTS OF WATER QUALITY PARAMETERS CN FARM PCND VEGETATION AND TBBIR INTERACTIONS. 4.176 ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS OF SALMONELLOSIS. 3.049 ENVIECNMENTAL FACTORS AFFECTING SURVIVAL OF THERMALLY-INJURED BACTEBIA FOUND ON FISHERY PRCDUCT5. 9.008 **BNZYMES IN FCOD FERMENTATIONS. 9.025** FEESHWATEF FCOD ANIMALS. 3.003 IMPBOVING THE ASSURANCE OF QUALITY AND SAFETY OF CONSUMER'S FOCD. 9.031 INFECTIOUS DISEASES OF SALMONID FISBES. 3.081 LUMINOUS BACTEBIA AS INDICATOES OF SBELLFISE CONTAMINATION BY PATEOGENIC VIBBICS. 4.144 METBODS OF MODIFIED-ATMOSPBERE PRESERVATION OF BEPRIGEFATED FRESE FISE. 7.016, 8.048* MICBCBIAL AND PARASITIC DISEASES OF SHBINP AND PISH. 3.095 MICROBIAL ECOLOGY OF METHANE PRODUCTION IN AQUATIC ENVIRCEMENTS. 4.220 NICBOBIOLOGICAL ASPECTS TO SHELLFISH SANITATION AND QUALITY. 7.014, 8.047*, 9.037* NITROGEN FIXATION AND ITS EFFECT ON EUTECPBICATION: IN-POINT AND NON-POINT SCUECE PCNDS. 4.157 NITECGEN FIXATION BY MICEOBES INBABITING SURPACES OF AQUATIC MACROPHYTES. 4.142 NITROGEN FIXATION IN WETBANE-CXIDIZING BACTEEIA. 4.219 PATEOLOGY AND PATHOGENESIS OF CATFISE DISEASES. 3.099 PHYTOTOXINS FROM AQUATIC AND TERRESTRIAL PLANTS. EACTERIA, AND FUNGI. 3.017 PRELIMINATY STUDIES ON CRAWFISH AND FRESHWATEB SERIMP CISEASES. 1.096, 3.094* REGULATORY PROBLEMS OF LOUISIANA FOOD INDUSTRIES. 9.017 STUDIES OF RELATIONSHIPS EETWEEN WARINE AND TERRESTRIAL BACTERIA. 1.008 SURVEY OF DISEASES OF CULTURED FRESEWATER FISHES OF CALIFCENIA. 3.009 THE EFPICACY OF SELECTED ANTIBIOTICS IN THE PREVENTION AND CONTROL OF EACTERIAL KIDNEY DISEASE. 3.046 TOXICITY OF AEROMONAS BYDROPBILIA EXOTOXINS IN CBANNEL CATFISH. 3.052 WATER QUALITY STUDY. 4.033 BACTERIAL-CONTAMINATION WICRCEIOLOGICAL ASPECTS TO SHELLFISH SANITATION AND QUALITY. 7.014, 8.047*, 9.037* BACTERIAL-DI SEASES-ANIMALS BACTERIAL HIDNEY DISEASE IN HAINBOW TROUT: PATBOGENESIS, IMMUNITY, AND EFFECT OF WATER BARDNESS. 3.070 BIOLOGY AND CONTROL OF AQUATIC ANIMAL DISEASES. 3.054 DISEASE MANAGEMENT IN CATFISE AQUACULTURE. 3.087 INFECTIOUS DISEASES OF SALMONID FISHES. 3.081 NUTRITION MANAGEMENT AND DISEASE CF MABINE ANIMALS. 3.055, 5.026*, 6.050* PATHOLOGY AND PATHOGENESIS CF CATFISE DISEASES. 3.099 THE EFFICACY OF SELECTED ANTIBIOTICS IN THE PREVENTION AND CONTROL OF EACTERIAL SIDNEY DISEASE. 3.046 TOXICITY OF AFROMONAS BYDROPBILIA EXCTORING IN CBANNEL CATFISH. 3.052 BACTERIAL-ECCLOGY ECOLOGY CF ANAEROBIC HETEROTECPBIC BACTERIA. 4.118 BACTERIAL-KIENEY-DISBASE BACTEBIAL KIDNEY DISEASE IN RAINBOW TROUT: PATHOGENESIS, INMUNITY, AND EFFECT OF WATER HARDNESS. 3.070 BACTERINS INFECTIOUS DISEASES OF SALMONID FISBES, 3.081 SALMON CULTURE - DEVELOFMENT OF NUTRITICNAL AND DISEASE CONTRCL PROGRAMS. 3.064, 5.037* BACTERIOLOGY

FOOD PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT PRCM FLOBIDA UNDEBUTILIZED PISE SPECIES. 8.007, 9.006* Studies of Relationsbips between wabine and TERRESTRIAL FACTERIA. 1.008 BAIT-FISE REARING BAIT FISE IN WESTEEN NEVADA. 6.061. 10.023* RAITS NUTRITICN MANAGEMENT AND DISEASE OF MARINE ANIMALS. 3.055, 5.026*, 6.050* BARLEY PEYTOTOXINS PRCM AQUATIC AND TERRESTRIAL PLANTS, BACTERIA, AND FUNGI. 3.017 BARRIBRS FISE BARRIER SYSTEMS FOR POWER STATICNS. 4.196 BASS AN ECONOMIC ANALYSIS OF THE ATLANTIC COAST STRIPED EASS FISEEEV. 10.031AN EVALUATION OF STRIPED BASS X WEITE BASS BYERIDS AND STRIPED BASS X WEITE PERCE EVERIDS, 2.018. 6.070* CRYOGENIC PRESEBVATION OF SPERM FBOM WARWWATER **FISBES**. 2.016 CULTUBE AND MANAGEMENT CF SELECTED GAME FISBES. 3.092, 4.203*, 6.091* DEVELOPMENT OF OPTIMUM SUSTAINED YIELD OP FISHES IN PABM PONDS. 5.021, 7.004* ECOLOGY AND WANAGEMENT OF STREAM AND STBEAM FISBES. 1.061 ECOLOGY OF FISHES OF SACRAMENTO - SAN JOAQUIN ESTUARY, WITH EMPHASIS CN SUISUN MARSE. 4.030 EVALUATION OF THE ECOLOGICAL REQUIREMENTS OF RESERVOIR PISE SPECIES. 1.101 FRESEWATER FOOD ANIMALS. 4.198, 5.048* METAPBASE CBRONOSONE BANDING CF FRESBWATER FISBES. 2.026 **WOVENENTS OF SCHIC-TAGGED FISHES IN BELATION TO** WATER QUALITY IN LOWEB ATCHAFALAYA FIVER EASIN. 1.049. 4.097* POLYCULTURAL PRODUCTION OF FISE IN FARM PONDS. 4.007, 6.010* POPULATION DYNAMICS OF LARGEMOUTH AND SMALLMOUTH BASS IN 16 NEW YORK LAKES. 1.075 RESPONSE OF AQUATIC LIFE TO SALINITY. TEMPERATURE, DISSOLVED OXYGEN AND WATER FLCW. 4.024 STATUS, ABUNDANCE AND EXPLCITATION OF THE STRIPED EASS IN THE RCANCEE DIVEL, NC. 4.163 STUDY OF PATEOLOGY OF FISHES FRCM LAKE BYCO, NCLTH CARCLINA. 3.079 SWIMELADDER INPLATION IN LARVAE CF PEYSOCILISTCUS FISBES. 1.007 THE EFFECT OF STRUCTURE ON FISE BEBAVIOR. 4.169 THE EFFECTS OF ARTIFICIAL STRUCTURES OF GAME FISH IN A BCEROW FIT PCND. I.085, 4.168* THE STATUS, ABUNDANCE, AND YIELD CP THE STHIPPD BASS IN THE ROANOKE FIVER, NOFTH CARCLINA. I.081, 4.164* THE USE OF FISEING TOURNAMENT RECORDS TO ESTIMATE ABUNDANCE OF BASS POPULATIONS. 4.215 REDS SURF CLAM MANAGEMENT STUDIES. 4.136. 6.063* BEBAVIOR ACTIVITY REVTHES OF THE NOFTBEEN BOCK CRAB IN RELATION TO ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL FACTORS. 1.057, 4.109* ANALYSIS OF DEMESTIC FOOD DEMAND AND CONSUMPTION BEEAVIOR. 10.008 EXAMINATION OF THE SPAWNING ECOLOGY AND EARLY LIFE BISTORY CF KOKANEE SALMON IN COEUE D' ALENE LARE. 4.054 LABORATORY CULTURE POR RESEARCE PURPOSES OF ESTUARINE AND MARINE LOESTERS, CRAES AND SBRINPS. 1.048, 5.024* THE USE OF FISE BEHAVIOE IN TOXICITY TESTING. 1.032, 4.079# WILD VERSUS HATCBERY TROUT. 1.026, 4.058* BEBAVIOR-PATTERNS COEUE D'ALENE BIVER PISBERIES INVESTIGATIONS. 4.061 BOLE OF SHORT DISTANCE MIGRATICN OF THE BOMING CF SALMON AND STEELBEAD. 1.028 SPAWNING, EARLY LIFE EISTORY, HABITAT SELECTION OP Nortbern Squawfise: Infer. TC Colcearc SOUAWFISE. 4.063

THE USE OF FISH BEEAVIOE IN TOXICITY TESTING. 1.032, 4.079* EBRAVIORAL-RESPONSES

EXPERIMENTAL FISE ECOLOGY. 1.098, 4.207* BENEFICIAL-INSECTS

HIOLOGICAL CONTROL AGENTS OF HYDRILLA VERTICILLATA. 3.109 BENEFITS AN ECONOMIC ANALYSIS OF THE ATLANTIC CCAST STRIPED BASS FISHERY. 10.031 FISHERIES AND WILDLIFE ECCNCWICS RESEARCH IN THE GRHAT LAKES. 10.019 RENTROS ECOLOGICAL STUDY OF CUTOFF HENDWAYS AND CXEONS WITHIN THE TENNESSEE-TCMHIGHEE WATERWAY. 4.124 ECOLOGICAL STUDY OF LAKE WALES, FLORIDA AFTER INTRODUCTION OF WHITE ANUE (CTENOFHARYNGODCN IDELLA). 4.047 EFFECTS OF LCGGING ON ABIZONA TEOUT AND THEIR HAHITAT IN THE WEITE MCUNTAINS OF A FIZCHA. 4.005 EFFECTS OF SEDIMENTS ON HIOLOGICAL SYSTEMS. 4.126 LIMNOLOGY CF FARM PONDS. 1.082, 6.071* Relationships between salt masse and estuatine ANIMAL COMMUNITIES AND ENERGY EXCEANGE. 4.040, 5.010* SCOPE OF NORK FOR PRELIMINARY STUDY OF PEIMARY AND SECONDARY PRODUCTION OF THE ST. LAWRENCE RIVER. 4.150 VALUE OF TIDAL MARSBES IN RELATION TO ESTUARINE ECOSYSTEN, AND EVALUATION OF FRESEWATER WETLANDS. 4.044 BENZO-PYRENE TEMPERATURE EFFECTS ON XENOHICTIC ELIMINATION BY FISHES. 4.179 **BIBLIOGEAPHY** CRGANIZATION AND RETRIEVAL OF FRESHWATER FISHERY DATA. 1.033, 4.080* BICARBONATE MODE OF ACTION AND INFLUENCE OF ENVISONMENTAL FACTORS ON THE TORICITY OF SEVERAL AQUATIC BERHICICES. 3.100. 4.218* BILE TEMPERATURE EFFECTS ON MENCHIOTIC ELIMINATION HY **FISHES. 4.179** BINDING ANTIBACTERIAL MECBANICS IN CLAMS; CONTRIEUTION OF THE WATER STREAM. 1.072, 4.145* BINDING-SITES MODE OF ACTION AND INFLUENCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS ON THE TOXICITY OF SEVERAL AQUATIC HERHICICES. 3.100, 4.218* BIOASSAT ACUTE AND CERONIC EFFECTS ON FISH EXPOSED CONTINUCUSLY AND INTERMITTENTLY TO TOXICANTS. 4.180 CHARACTEFIZATION OF GONAD-STINULATING SUBSTANCES IN MARINE ANIMALS. 1.020, 2.006* CCNTFOL CF AQUATIC WEEDS BASED ON ALLELOPATEIC CHARACTERISTICS IN SPIKEFUSH (ELECCHAFIS SPF.). 3.007 DETERMINATION OF WATER QUALITY CRITERIA FOR THE SUPPORT OF AQUATIC LIFE IN TWO SMALL KANSAS STREAMS. 4.091 EFFECTS OF ANTIMYCIN ON STREAM INSECTS. 3.102. 4.222* EFFECTS OF ENVIECNMENTAL CONTAMINANTS ON GEORGIA FARM PONL FISHES. 4.051, 6.025* EVALUATION OF EFFICACY, CROP RESPONSES AND CROP AND WATER RETENTION OF POTENTIAL AQUATIC REFRICIDES. 3.021. 4.035* HISTOPATECLOGIC AND HISTOCHENICAL INDICES OF SUBLETBAL PESTICIDE TOXICATION IN FISH. 3.086, 4.189* MANAGEMENT OF AQUATIC PLANTS FOR SPORT FISH PRODUCTION IN PONDS. 5.002 METBODS CF MCDIFIED-ATMOSPHERE PRESERVATION OF REFRIGERATED FRESE FISH. 7.016, 8.048* NATURALLY CCCURRING MOSQUITC LARVICIDES. 3.069 PEYSICLOGY AND MANAGEMENT OF AQUATIC WEEDS INTERFEEING WITH THE USE CF WATER RESCURCES. 3.035 PHYTOTOXINS FROM AQUATIC AND TERRESTRIAL PLANTS. EACTERIA, AND FUNGI. 3.017 SOURCES AND MANAGEMENT OF MORTALITY IN EARLY LIFE STAGES CF FISHES. 4.146 THE BEBAVICE OF FISH AS RELATED TO ARTIFICIAL CCVER. 1.092 TCXICITY AND ECOLOGICAL EFFECTS CF SELECTED INSECTICIDES AND BERBICIDES. 4.122 TOXICITY OF AEROMONAS HYDROPHILIA EXCTORINS IN CHANNEL CATFISH. 3.052

BICCHEMICAL-GENETICS

ANIMAL HREEDING AND GENETICS CF FISH. 2.002 HIOCHEMICAL GENETICS AND CYTOGENETICS OF TECUT. 2.021 GENETIC ASSESSMENT OF MACROPRACEIUM CN GUAM. 1.023 GENETIC STUDIES OF ABERNATHY CREEK CHINCCK SALMON. 2.020 GENETICS OF NATURAL PISE POPULATIONS. 1.037. 2.009≠ BIOCHEMISTRY HIOCHENICAL GENETICS AND CYTOGENETICS OF TROUT. 2.022 BIOCCNVERSICN OF CHITIN WASTES. 8.004 CIGUATERA FISH POISONING IN THE U.S. V.I.: BIOCHEMICAL, FEYSOLOGICAL, AND MICROBICLCGICAL STUDIES. 1.099, 9.040* DEVELCEMENT OF RAPID SEAFOOD QUALITY TESTS FOR COMMERCIAL AND REGULATORY USE. 9.015 MORPHOLOGICAL, ULTRASTRUCTURAL, AND BIOCEEMICAL CHARACTERIZATION OF NANCPLANKTON FROM CHESAPEAKE EAY. 1.056, 4.108≠ NEUROTRANSMITTERS, NEURCHCDULATCES, AND LCCOMOTION. 1.076 PENAEIDAE GAMETES, THEIR STRUCTURE, ACTIVATION AND FUSICN. 1.006 POISONCUS DINOFLAGHLLATES AND SHELLFISH POISONING. 9.042 SHRIMP WATURATICN, REPRODUCTION, DEVELOFMENT, NUTRITION, INTENSIVE-EXTENSIVE CULTURE AND MAEICULTURE. 5.052, 6.092* THE OXIDATIVE DETERIORATION OF LIPIDS IN MECHANICALLY DEBONED POULTRY AND FISH. 9.009 TEXICOLOGICAL AND ECOLOGICAL EFFECTS OF TOXICANTS. 4.186 BIOCHEMISTRY-COMPARATIVE COMPARATIVE STUDIES OF LOESTER AND CHICKEN MUSCLE. 9.027 BIODEGRADATION **EIOCCNVERSION OF CHITIN WASTES. 8.004** BIOBNERGETICS EXPERIMENTAL FISH ECCLCGY. 1.098, 4.207* TOXICOLOGICAL AND ECOLOGICAL EFFECTS OF TOXICANTS. 4.186 BIOGENIC-AMINHS NEUROTRANSMITTERS, NEURCHODULATORS, AND LOCOMOTION. 1.076 BIOLOGICAL-CONTROL HIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF MOSQUITOES IN CENTRAL AND NORTBERN CALIFCENIA. 4.012 CONTROL OF AQUATIC PLANT GROWTE. 3.032 EICLOGICAL-CONTROL-INSECTS BIOLOGICAL STUDIES WITH THE MOSCUITCFISH, GAMBUSIA AFFINIS, UNDER CULTURAL SITUATIONS. 6.012 EIONOMICS AND CONTROL OF CHIRCNCHID MIDGES (HLIND MOSCUITOES). 3.026 HLACK FLY DAMAGE TERESHOLDS, BICLOGY AND CONTROL. 4.103 FEEDING ECOLCGY OF FISHES UTILIZING WARSHES ALTERED FOR CONTROL OF SALT MARSE MOSQUITCES. 1.065, 3.065*, 4.134* BIOLOGICAL-CONTROL-NEWATODES NEWATODE PARASITES OF FRESHWATER FISH: FICLCGY AND FFFECTS, 3,014 BIOLOGICAL-CONTROL-PREDATORS CYSTER ERILL CONTROL BY BYDEAULIC DREDGING IN DELAWARE EAY. 6.064 BIOLOGICAL-CONTROL-VEEDS A SURVEY FOR PATHCGEN FOR AQUATIC WEEDS IN CALIFORNIA FOR USE IN EICLOGICAL CONTECL. 3.008, 4.009* EASELINE STUDIES FOR EVALUATING THE RESPONSE OF AN ECOSYSTEM TO THE INTRODUCTION OF WHITE ANUE. 1.018, 3.028*, 4.046* BIOLOGICAL AGENTS FOR CONTECL OF HYDRILLA, A SUBMERSED AQUATIC WEED. 3.023 BIOLOGICAL CONTROL AGENTS OF BYERILLA VERTICILIATA. 3.109 BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS IN THE SCUTHEAST. 3.034 EICLOGICAL CONTECL OF ACUATIC VEEDS WITH COMPETITIVE SPECIES CF SPIKEEUSE (ELECCHAEIS SPP.). 3.011 BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS WITH INSECTS. 3.038 **EIOLOGICAL CONTECL OF EURASIAN MILFOIL AND OTHER**

AQUATIC VEEDS. 3.106

EIOLOGICAL CONTECL OF WEEDS. 3.104 HIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF WEEDS WITE EMPEASIS ON AQUATIC BAHITATS. 3.033

BICLCGICAL CONTROL OF WEEDS WITH PATHOGENS. 3.103 BIOLOGY ANE CONTROL OF AQUATIC VEGETATION. 3.048 CONTROL AND ERADICATION OF AQUATIC WEEDS IN LAKES AND IMPCUNDED WATERS. 3.107 CCNTFCL CF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.108 CONTROL OF ACUATIC WEEDS EASED ON ALLELOPATBIC CHARACTERISTICS IN SPIKERUSE (FLECCHARIS SPP.). 3.007 CONTROL OF WEEDS AND CERTAIN CTBER ACUATIC PESTS IN THE PACIFIC SOUTHWEST. 3.015, 4.031* EVALUATION OF FUSARIUN ROSEUM 'CULNORUN' AS A BIOLOGICAL CONTROL FOR HYDRILLA VERTICILLATA. 3.029 IDENTIFICATION OF INSECTS FCF BICLCGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.036 IMPORTATION AND EVALUATION OF INSECTS FOR BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF WEEDS AND INSECT PESTS. 3.037 LIFE BISTORY AND PHYSIOLOGICAL STUDIES OF ACUATIC AND MARGINAL WEEDS. 3.061 ORGANISNS ASSOCIATED WITH AQUATIC WEEDS AND THE BIOLOGICAL CONTRCL WATER-BYACINTH IN EGYPT. 3.105 POLYCULTURAL PRODUCTION OF FISH IN FARM PONDS. 4.007, 6.010* THE ECOLOGICAL INPACT OF INTEGRATED CHEMICAL AND BIOLOGICAL AQUATIC WEED CONTROL. 3.025, 4.045*, 4.048, 6.021* USE OF SPIKERUSH (ELEOCHARIS SPP.) FOR BICLOGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.016 WEED CONTECL IN RICE PRODUCTION. 3.006, 4.008* **BIOLOGICAL-BFFBCTS** FATE AND EFFECTS OF ATRAZINE IN SALT WARSE ECCSYSTEMS. 4.001 BIOLOGICAL-OITGEN-DENAND QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE STUDIES CF PCLLUTION IN SELECTED FARM FONDS. 4.155 WATER QUALITY ENHANCEMENT OF LAKES BY WECHANICAL FUMFING. 4.088, 6.039* EIOLOGICAL-PEOPBETIES ECOLOGICAL STUDY OF LAKE WALES, FLORIDA AFTER INTRODUCTION OF WHITE AMUR (CTENOPHARYNGODON IDELLA). 4.047 FISE FOPULATION AND FRODUCTION IN POND AND LAKE IMPOUNDMENTS. 4.208, 6.095* BIOLOGICAL-RETTENS ACTIVITY REYTHMS OF THE NORTHERN FOCE CEAR IN RELATION TO ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL FACTORS. 1.057, 4.109* BEHAVIOR ECOLOGY AND RHYTEMICITY IN THE FOCK CRAES, CANCER IRRORATUS AND CANCER BCREALIS, PEASE II. 1.058, 5.028* BEHAVIOR. ECOLOGY AND RHYTHWICITY IN THE COMMON ROCK CRAB. 1.059, 4.110* ECOLCGY OF SALT MARSHES IN RELATION TO ESTUARIES AND ENERGY FLOW. 1.016, 4.041*, 5.011* BIOMASS ADAFTATION FACTORS AND CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.093, 4.204* DISTRIBUTION, ABUNDANCE AND ECOLOGY OF ASCOPBYLLUM NODOSUM (1) LE JOIS. 1.052, 4.102*, 7.008* EFFECTS CF DISSOLVED CHEMICALS ON AQUATIC LIFE. 4.078 BFFECTS OF LOGGING CN ARIZONA TROUT AND THEIS HABITAT IN THE WHITE MOUNTAINS OF ARIZONA. 4.005 LIMNOLOGICAL EVALUATION AND ZCOPLANETON DYNAMICS OF LAKE BOCCANUSA, NORTHWESTERN MONTANA. 4.077 NITROGEN FIXATION AND ITS EFFECT ON EUTECPHICATION: IN-FOINT AND NON-POINT SOURCE FONDS. 4.157 QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE STUDIES OF POLLUTION IN SELECTED FARM PONDS. 4.155 SCOFE OF WCRE FOR FRELIMINARY STUDY OF PRIMARY AND SECONDARY PRODUCTION OF THE ST. LAWRENCE RIVER. 4.150 BIOPHYSICS EXFERIMENTAL FISH ECCLOGY. 1.098, 4.207* BIOSYNTHESIS BIOSYNTHES IS OF STERCLS IN THE OYSTER AND CORRELATION OF STEROL COMPOSITION TO OYSTER FRODUCTIVITY. 1.055, 5.027* POISONOUS DINOFLAGELLATES AND SBELLFISB POISONING. 9.042 BIGTIN FRESEWATER FOOD ANIMALS. 5.004 BIOTYPES TAXONOMY AND MORFHOLOGY CF NEMATODES. 3.027 BLOOD

DETECTION OF PISCINE ENYTHEOCYTIC NECROSIS VIRUS IN CREGCN FISHES. 3.083 EVALUATION OF BELATIVE PROTEIN PERFORMANCE IN PELLETED FISB RATIONS USING PHYSICLCGICAL INDICES. 5.055 FISE PHYSIOLOGY IN RESPONSE TO WATER QUALITY AND CBEMISTRY. 4.211 TRACE MINERAL IMBALANCE IN BATCBERY FISH. 5.019 BLOOD-CBENISTRY DISEASE MANAGEMENT IN CATFISH AQUACULTURE. 3.097 BLOOD-PROTRINS THE OXIDATIVE DETERIORATION OF LIPIDS IN MECBANICALLY DEBONED FCULTEY AND FISE. 9.009 BLOOD-TESTS GENETICS OF NATURAL FISE FCPULATIONS. 1.037. 2.009* BLUBGILL DEVELOPMENT OF CPTIMUM SUSTAINED YIELD OF FISHES IN FARM PONDS. 5.021, 7.004* MANAGEMENT OF AQUATIC PLANTS FOR SPCRT FISE PRODUCTION IN PONDS. 5.002 FOLYCULTURAL PRODUCTION OF FISE IN FARM PONDS. 4.007, 6.010* POND FERTILIZATION AND LIMING. 4.002, 5.003* POSSIBLE CAUSES OF BLUEGILL LEPCHIS MARCCCBIRUS DEFCEMITIES. 1.080, 4.161* RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN PESTICIDES AND GEORGIA FARM POND ECOSYSTEMS. 4.050 STUDY OF PATHOLCGY OF FISHES FROM LAKE HYCO, NORTH CARCLINA. 3.079 THE EFFECT OF STRUCTURE ON FISE EEBAVICE. 4.169 THE EFFECTS OF AFTIFICIAL STRUCTURES OF GAME FISH IN A BORFOW FIT FOND. 1.085, 4.168* THE RESOLUTION OF SOME PROBLEMS ATTENDING THE EMPLOYMENT OF MINNOWS AS FORAGE FOR FARMFOND **FISEES. 6.019** BOATING ASSESSMENT OF COASTAL RECREATION RESOURCES. 10.046 BOATS COSTS AND BETURNS IN THE OTTER TRAVI FLEET ON LONG ISLAND, NEW YCRE. 10.029 EFFECTS OF THE TAX REFORM ACT OF 1976 ON NEW ENGLAND VESSEL OWNERS AND CREW. 10.041 BODY-COMPOSITION AQUACULTURE FOR RESCURCE ENHANCEMENT. 1.103, 5.056* PBYSIOLOGY AND ECOLOGY OF THE ASIATIC CLAN, CCREICULA SP., IN THE SACRAMENTO-SAN JCAQUIN DELTA. 1.004, 4.011* BODY-VEIGHT **WINTER FEEDING OF CHANNEL CATFISH IN MISSISSIFFI.** 4.125, 6.057* BONE-MARROW THE OXIDATIVE DETERIORATION OF LIFIDS IN MECHANICALLY DEBONED FOULTRY AND FISE. 9.009 BONE-MEAL EVALUATION OF BY-PRODUCTS FROM CATFISE PROCESSING WASTE FOR CATFISE FEED SUPPLEMENTS. 5.032, 8.030* BONBS UTILIZATION OF LATENT MARINE RESOURCES AND BY-PRODUCTS WASTE. 8.041 BORROW-PITS POTENTIAL HABVEST OF LAKE BELE WHITE CRAPPIE FROM AN ADJOINING EORROW FIT. 1.086. 6.072* BRACKISE-WATER AN EVALUATION OF STRIFED BASS X WHITE BASS HYBRIDS AND STRIFED BASS & WBITE FERCE BYERIDS. 2.018. 6.070* BRANDING FRESEWATER FOOD ANIMALS. 2.025, 5.051*, 6.090* EREEDING-SYSTEMS FRESEWATER FOOD ANIMALS. 2.023, 5.045*, 6.079* BREVOORTIA THE BELATIONSBIP OF SALINITY AND DISTANCE FROM THE SEA, TO THE DISTRIBUTION OF JUVENILE FISHES. 1.044, 4.094* BRINE QUALITY CONTEOL OF CANNED SQUID. 9.018 BRINING SMOKING OF SEAFOCD AND PCULTEY. 8.008, 9.007* BROWN ING. PIGMENTS OF MEAT AND FISE PRODUCTS (OFF-COLORS IN TUNA). 8.002, 9.003* FROCESSING QUALITY AND FACKAGING FACTORS WEICH AFFECT THE UTILIZATION OF FISH AND SHELLFISH. 8.046. 9.036* BUDGET-GENERATOR PRODUCTION ECCNOMICS OF AQUACULTURE SPECIES IN HAWAII. 10.009

BUDGETS ECONOMICS OF THE CONMERCIAL FISH INDUSTRY. 10.045 BUDS GROWTH AND MINERAL UPTAKE IN THE LEMNACEAE. 4.026 BUFFALO-FISE FOLYCULTURAL PRODUCTION OF FISE IN FARM PONDS. 4.007, 6.010* BUFFERS FISB PEYSICLCGY IN RESPONSE TO WATER CUALITY AND CHEMISTRY. 4.211 STREAMSIDE BUFFER STRIPS FC% PROTECTING AQUATIC CEGANISES FROM LOGGING EFFECTS. 4.018 BULLETINS FISE PRODUCTION IN SOUTH DAKOTA FARM AND RANCE WATERS. 6.087 BURNING ECOLOGY OF PURPLE LOCSESTRIFE (LYTHRUM SALICAFIA). 3.073 BURROWING CRAWFISE CULTURE STUDIES IN SMALL PONDS: EURBOWING, POLYCULTURE AND NATURAL FOND FLOODING. 1.050, 4.099*, 6.049* BUSYCON MANAGEMENT AND CULTURE OF MCLLUSCAN SPECIES, 6.086 BUTTBEFISH NEW FOOD PEODUCTS FROM UNDERUTILIZED FISE SPECIES. 8.033 BYPRODUCTS ANALYSIS OF THE MARKET PCTENTIAL FOR FRESH WATER ACUACULIUFAL PRODUCTS PRODUCED IN NEVADA. 5.036. 8.032*, 10.022* EVALUATION OF BY-PRODUCTS FROM CATFISE PROCESSING WASTE FOR CATHISE FEED SUPPLEMENTS. 5.032. 8.030* EVALUATION OF PESTICIDE LEVELS IN CATFISE PROCESSING WASTES. 9.001 FRESHWATER FOOD ANIMALS. 2.012, 6.045* PRELIMINARY COSTS OF CATFISE PROCESSING WASTE UTILIZATION. 8.021, 10.013* BECLAMATION OF PROTEIN AND FLAVOR MATERIALS FROM CLAM WASH WATER. 8.034 RECOVERY AND CONVERSION OF CATFISE PECCESSING WASTE INTC VALUABLE FEED SUPPLEMENTS. 8.020 RECOVERY AND UTILIZATION OF SHRIMP AND CRAWFISH PROCESSING BYPRODUCTS. 8.017 THE TREATMENT AND USE OF WASTE PRODUCTS AND CREMICALS IN THE DIET OF AQUATIC ANIMALS. 5.046, 8.042* THE USE OF SELECTED MARINE MATERIALS AND BY-PRODUCTS FOR CERTAIN BORTICULTURAL CROPS. 8.044 USE OF CLAM BY-FRODUCTS. 8.037 UTILIZATION OF LATENT MAKINE RESOURCES AND BY-PRCDUCTS WASTE. 8.041 CADNIUM EIGACCUMULATION AND IMPACT OF EIGHWAY-GENERATED BEAVY METALS ON STREAM FISHBRY RESCURCES IN VIRGINIA. 4.214 DISEASES OF AQUATIC ANIMALS. 3.072 CAGE-BRARING FRESHWATER FOOD ANIMALS, 2.023, 5.045*, 6.079* CAGES CAGE CULTURE OF FISE IN TEE VIRGIN ISLANDS UTILIZING TERTIARY TREATED WATER. 6.100 CAGE CULTURE OF TILAPIA IN THE VIRGIN ISLANDS. 6.098, 5.039* CULTURE SYSTEMS FOR YEAR-ROUND MALKETING OF FISE FROM WATERSBED PONDS. 6.008, 7.001* EFFECTS CN SELECTED ORGANISMS OF WATER PASSING TBROUGE THE CEDAR BAYCU GENERATING STATION. 4.210. 6.097* FEASIBILITY OF CAGED FISE CULTURE IN NORTH CENTRAL OKLAECMA FARM PONDS. 4.173, 6.073*, 10.035* PCLYCULTURAL PRODUCTION OF FISH IN FARM PONDS. 4.007. 6.010* CALCIUN BIOFILTER FERFORMANCE FACTORS. 4.669 LIFE BISTORY AND PHYSIOLOGICAL STUDIES OF AQUATIC AND MARGINAL WEEDS. 3.061 PRELIMINARY STUDIES ON CRAWFISH AND FRESHWATER SERIMF CISEASES. 1.096, 3.094* CALCIUN-BINDING COMPARATIVE STUDIES OF LOBSTER AND CHICKEN NUSCLE. 9.027

CALCIUM-BYDROXIDE POND FERTILIZATION AND LIMING. 4.002, 5.003* CALORIES SALMON CULTURE - DEVELOPMENT OF NUTHITICNAL AND DISEASE CONTROL PROGRAMS. 3.064, 5.037# CALORINETRY PRODUCTIVITY OF THE SALINE MARSHES ON FLORIDA'S NCETE AND WEST COASTS, PEASE II. 4.038 CANALS FISH BARRIER SYSTEMS FOR POWER STATIONS. 4.196 THE EFFECTS OF IRRIGATION WASTE WATER CN AQUATIC PLANTS IN THE SACRAMENTC RIVER. 4.025 CANCER CFERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF THE HEPATOMA LABORATORY, S.043 THE EFFECTS OF DIET ON THE RISK OF CANCER. 9.020 CANCER-BORBALIS ACTIVITY RHYTHMS OF THE NORTHERN FOCK CRAB IN RELATION TO ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL FACTORS. 1.057, 4.109* CANDIDIASIS IMMUNCLOGIC FACTORS IN CANDIDIASIS IN DOLPHINS. 3.031 CANNED-FOOD FOOD PRCDUCT DEVELOPMENT FRCM FLCRIDA UNDERUTILIZED FISE SPECIES. 8.007, 9.006* PIGMENTS OF MEAT AND FISE PRODUCTS (OFF-CCLCES IN TUNA). 8.002, 9.003* QUALITY CONTROL OF CANNED SQUID. S.018 THE EFFECT OF FROZEN STORAGE ON TEXTURAL QUALITY OF LCHSTER MEAT. 8.023 CANNING RUMAN NUTRITION IMPROVEMENT. 8.022 QUALITY CONTECL OF CANNED SQUID. 9.018 CAPACITY SURE CLAM MANAGEMENT STUDIES, 4,136, 6,063* CAPITAL AN ANALYSIS OF NEW ENGLAND FISHERIES INVESTMENT BEBAVIOR. 10.037 ECONOMIC BEHAVIOR OF FOOD AND FIEER FIRMS. 10.007 ECONOMIC IMPACTS OF THE 200-MILE LIMIT CN RURAL NORTHEASTERN COASTAL COMMUNITIES. 10.015. 10.027, 10.039 ECONOMICS OF SALMONID AQUACULTURE IN NEW ENGLAND. 6.082, 10.038* CAPITAL-REQUIREMENTS ECONOMICS OF SALMONID AQUACULTURE IN NEW ENGLAND. 6.082, 10.038* CARBARYL HISTOPATHOLOGIC AND HISTCCHENICAL INDICES OF SUBLETBAL PESTICIDE TOXICATION IN FISE. 3.086, 4.189* CARBO BY DRATES CHANNEL CATFISH NUTRITICN. 5.031 TEE PHYSICLCGICAL EASIS FOE MANAGING TIDAL MARSE VEGETATION. 4.197 THE PHYSICLOGY AND CONTROL CF VEGETATIVE REPRODUCTION IN BYDRILLA (BYCRILLA VERTICILLATA ROYLE), 3.024 CTILIZATION OF PROTEIN INGREDIENTS IN FISH RATIONS. 5.044 CARBON MICROBIAL ECOLOGY OF METBANE PECDUCTION IN AQUATIC ENVIRCHMENTS. 4.220 CARBON-DICXIDE METRODS OF MODIFIED-ATMCSPHERE PRESERVATION OF REFRIGERATED FRESH FISE. 7.016, 8.048* CARBON-DIGXIDE-FIXATION PBOTOSYNTBESIS AND PBOTORESFIRATION IN AQUATIC PLANIS. 1.017 CARBONYLS ROLE OF LIPIDS AND THEIR CXIDATICN IN FISH QUALITY. 9.024 CARCASS-OUALITY BREEDING EXPERIMENTS WITE SALMONIDS, 2.024 CARCASS-TRAITS IMFREVEMENT OF CATFISE STECK THROUGH SELECTIVE EREEDING. 2.011, 6.044* CARCINOGENS DETECTION AND IDENTIFICATION OF MYCOTOXINS AND ALGAL TOXINS IN FOCDS AND FEEDS. 9.023 CARDIOVASCULAR-SYSTEM ENVIRONMENTAL REQUISEMENTS OF POTENTIAL AQUACULTURE FISH SPECIES. 4.027 CAREX WEED CONTROL IN RICE PRODUCTION. 3.006, 4.008* CAPP

ACUACULTURE. 6.007 CULTURE AND MANAGEMENT OF SELECTED GAME FISHES. 3.092, 4.203*, 6.091* CULTURE SYSTEMS FOR YEAR-ROUND MARKETING OF FISH FROM WATERSHED PONDS. 6.008, 7.001* DEVELOP AND IMPHOVE PRODUCTION AND MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS FOR FRESHWATER ANIMALS CULTURED FOR FCOD. 6.011 ENVIEONMENTAL IMPACT AND WEED MANAGEMENT STRATEGIES UTILIZING GRASS CARP (CTENCPHAEYNGODON IDELLA). 3.030, 4.049* FISH CULTUFE USING GECTHERMAL WATER. 6.032 SHALLOW-WATER POLYCULTURE OF FISHES IN PONDS DESIGNED FOR ROTATION TO GRAIN CROPS. 6.013 CAPPIRES TEANSMISSICN AND IMMUNOLOGY OF CHANNEL CATFISH VIRUS DISEASE OF CULTURED CATFISE. 3.002 CARRYING-CARACITY CARRYING CAPACITY OF STHEAMS FOR REARING SALMONIDS AS AFFECTED BY SEDIMENT & OTHER COMPONENTS. 1.024, 4.057* DEVELOPMENT AND VALIDATION OF EABITAT-STANDING CROP FUNCTIONS POR STREAM FISH AND THEIR FCCDS. 4.065 ECOLOGY AND MANAGEMENT OF STREAM AND STREAM FISHES. 1.061 EVALUATION OF A CLOSED SYSTEM FOR THE CULTURE OF FISH, SHELLFISH AND AQUATIC PLANTS. 5.001, 6.002* FRESHWATER FOOD ANIMALS. 3.039, 5.014*, 6.024* CATABACT-FORMATION DIETARY FACTORS IN WHITE FISH MEAL RESPONSIBLE FOR CATARACT PORMATION IN TROUT. 3.018, 5.009*, 9.005* CATARACTS DIETARY FACTORS IN WHITE FISH WEAL RESPONSIBLE FOR CATARACT FORMATION IN TROUT. 3.018, 5.009*, 9.005* CATFISS ANALYSIS OF THE MARKET POTENTIAL FOR FRESH WATER AQUACULTURAL PRODUCTS PRODUCED IN NEVADA. 5.036, 8.032*, 10.022* AQUACULTURE. 6.007 BIOLOGY AND CONTROL OF AQUATIC ANIMAL DISEASES. 3.054 BEEEDING, PRODUCTION, NUTRITION AND MARKETING CF CHANNEL CATFISH. 2.010, 5.020*, 6.040* CHANNEL CATFISH NUTRITICN. 5.031, 5.033 CRAWPISH CULTURE STUDIES IN SMALL PONDS: EURROWING, FOLYCULTURE AND NATURAL PCND FLOOPING. 1.050, 4.099±, 6.049≠ CULTURE AND MANAGEMENT OF SELECTED GAME FISHES. 3.092, 4.203*, 6.091* CULTURE SYSTEMS FOR YEAR-ROUND MARKETING OF FISH FHON WATERSBED PONDS. 6.008, 7.001* DEVELOP AND IMPHOVE PHODUCTION AND MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS FOR FRESEWATER ANIMALS CULTURED FCR FCCD. 6.011 DEVELOPMENT OF OPTIMUM SUSTAINED YIELD OF FISHES IN FARM PONDS. 5.021, 7.004* DISEASE MANAGEMENT IN CATFISE AQUACULTURE. 3.097 DISEASE WANAGEMENT IN CULTURED CATFISH. 3.096 DISEASES OF AQUATIC ANIMALS. 3.013 EVALUATION OF BY-PRODUCTS FROM CATPISE PROCESSING WASTE FCR CATFISE FEED SUPPLEMENTS. 5.032, 8.030* EVALUATION OF PESTICIDE LEVELS IN CATFISE PROCESSING WASTES. 9.001 EVALUATION OF RELATIVE PROTEIN PERPORMANCE IN PELLETEC FISH RATIONS USING PHYSICLCGICAL INDICES. 5.055 FISE CULTURE USING GEOTEERMAL WATER. 6.032 FHESHWATER FCOD ANIMALS. 2.001, 2.007, 2.012, 2.014, 2.025, 2.027, 3.003, 3.039, 3.043, 4.198, 5.004, 5.013, 5.014*, 5.034*, 5.048*, 5.051*, 5.054*, 6.022*, 6.023*, 6.024*, 6.045*, 6.056*, 6.090≯, 6.096≠ EOST-PARASITE RELATIONSELPS HETWEEN THE CHANNEL CATFISE AND ICETHYOPHTHIEIUS MULTIFILIIS. 3.050 INMUNOLOGIC DESPONSE OF CHANNEL CATFISE, ICTALUEUS PUNCTATUS, TO EFTEBOLOGOUS ANTIPECTCZCAN INMUNIZATION. 1.022 IMPROVEMENT OF CATFISE STOCK THECUGH SELECTIVE BFEEDING. 2.011, 6.044* INSECTS ATTRACTED BY LIGHT AS A SCURCE OF FOOD FOR CATFISE. 5.005 MARKET PCTENTIAL AND CUBRENT MARKETING PROCEDURES AND PHACTICES OF THE CATFISE FCF FOCD INDUSTRY.

10.021

MIBEX FEEDING STUDY IN CHANNEL CATFISE (ICTALURUS PUNCTATUS). 4.123, 9.022* PATHOLCGY AND PATHOGENESIS CF CATFISH DISEASES. 3.099 POLYCULTURAL PECDUCTION OF FISE IN FARM PONDS. 4.007, 6.010* PRACTICAL FEED FORMULATIONS AND FEEDING PHACTICES FOR CATFISH FARMING IN MS. 5.035, 6.058*, 8.031* PHELIMINARY COSTS OF CATFISE PROCESSING WASTE UTILIZATION. 8.021, 10.013* PHODUCTION ECONOMICS OF AQUACULTURE SPECIES IN **EAWAII. 10.009** BECOVERY AND CONVERSION OF CATFISH PROCESSING WASTE INTO VALUABLE FEED SUPPLEMENTS. 8.020 SEROLOGICAL METHODS FOR DETECTION AND IDENTIFICATION OF VIHUS DISEASES OF FISH. 3.058 SHALLOW-WATER POLYCULTURE OF FISHES IN PONDS DESIGNED FCE BOTATION TC GRAIN CECPS. 6.013 SOUTE DAKOTA FARM AND RANCE FISEERIES. 5.049, 6.088* STUDY OF PATHOLOGY OF FISHES FROM LAKE HYCO, NOHTH CAROLINA. 3.079 SURVEY CP DISEASES OF CULTURED FRESHWATER FISEES OF CALIFORNIA. 3.009 SUSCEPTIBILITY TO I. WILTIFILLIS OF CHANNEL CATFISH EXPOSED TO SUBLETHAL CONCENTRATIONS OF COPPER 90. 3.080 TOXICITY OF AEBCMCNAS HYDROPHILIA ENOTONINS IN CHANNEL CATFISE. 3.052 TRANSMISSION AND IMMUNOLOGY OF CHANNEL CATPISH VIRUS DISEASE OF CULTUREE CATFISE. 3.002 UTILIZATION OF AQUATIC PLANTS FOR WASTE IFEATMENT AND ANIMAL FEEDS. 1.043, 5.023* UTILIZATION OF KEAPT WILL EFFLUENT FCR FISE PRODUCTION. 5.012, 6.020* WATER QUALITY STOCKING HATES AND HARVESTING SYSTEMS FOR CATFISH. 6.059 WINTER FEEDING OF CHANNEL CATPISE IN MISSISSIPPI. 4.125. 6.057* CATOSTONIDAE ENVIRONMENTAL REQUIREMENTS OF POTENTIAL AQUACULTUFE FISE SPECIES. 4.027 CATTLE EFFECTS OF LIVESTOCK GRAZING PRACTICES CN THE WATER QUALITY OF STREAMS. 4.223 UTILIZATION OF AQUATIC PLANTS FOR WASTE TREATMENT AND ANIMAL FEEDS. 1.043, 5.023* CELL-CULTURE CELL CULTURE STUDIES ON CELL LINES DEVELOPED FROM TISSUES OF AQUATIC ANIMAL. 3.051 INFECTICUS PANCEEATIC NECECSIS IN ATLANTIC SALMON. 3.057 INVEST. OF THE RCLE OF LARVAL AMERICAN CYSTERS (CRASSOSTEEA VIRGINICA) AS CARHIERS OF OYSTER DISEASE. 3.071 MOLECULAR ENDOCRINOLOGY OF MOLTING AND REPRODUCTION IN CRUSTACEANS. 1.005 CELL-MEDIATED-IMMUNITY EACTEBIAL KIDNEY DISEASE IN BAINBOW TROUT: PATHOGENESIS, IMMUNITY, AND EFFECT OF WATES BARDNESS. 3.070 CELL-STRUCTURE BIOLOGY AND CONTROL OF AQUATIC VEGETATICN. 3.048 CELL-WALL EVALUATION OF AQUATIC PLANTS AS PCTENTIAL FEEDSTUFF FCE DAIRY CATTLE. 9.013 CELLULAR-IMMUBITY INMUNCLOGIC FACTORS IN CANDIDIASIS IN DOLPHINS. 3.031 CENTRAL-NERVOUS-SYSTEM NEUBOTHANSMITTEES, NEURCMODULATORS, AND LOCOMOTION. 1.076 CENTRARCHIDAE CRYOGENIC PRESERVATION OF SPERM FROM WARMWATER FISEES. 2.016 CERATOPETLLUM A SUBVEY FOR PATHCGEN FOR ACUATIC WEEDS IN CALIFOBNIA FOR USE IN BIOLOGICAL CONTECL. 3.008, 4.009* CEREALS ANALYSIS OF DOMESTIC POOD DEMANE AND CONSUMPTION EEBAVICE. 9.041

METAPHASE CHRONOSONE HANDING OF FRESHWATER FISHES.

MICROBIAL DISEASES AND IMMUNE RESPONSE OF CATPISE.

2.026

3.098

CHANNEL-CATFISE

CRAWFISH CULTURE STUDIES IN SMALL PCNDS: BURROWING. FOLYCULTURE AND NATURAL FOND FLOODING, 1.050, 4.099*, 6.049* FISH CULTURE USING GEOTHERMAL WATER. 6.032 HOST-FARASITE RELATIONSHIPS HETWEEN THE CHANNEL CATFISE AND ICETHYOPETHIRIUS MULTIFILIIS. 3.050 INMUNOLOGIC RESPONSE OF CHANNEL CATFISE, ICTALURUS PUNCTATUS, TO BETEROLCGOUS ANTIPRCTCZCAN INMUNIZATION. 1.022 IMPROVEMENT OF CATFISE STCCE TEROUGE SELECTIVE BREEDING. 2.011, 6.044* WIREX FEEDING STUDY IN CEANNEL CATFISE (ICTALURUS PUNCTATUS). 4.123, 9.022* TRANSMISSION AND IMMUNOLOGY OF CHANNEL CATFISH VIRUS DISEASE OF CULTURED CATFISH. 3.002 WINTER FEEDING OF CEANNEL CATFISE IN MISSISSIPPI. 4.125, 6.057* CHANNEL-CATF ISH-VIFUS SEROLOGICAL METHODS FOR DETECTION AND IDENTIFICATION OF VIRUS DISEASES OF FISH. 3.058 CHANNEL-MORF BOLOGY ECOLOGY AND MANAGEMENT OF STREAM AND STREAM FISHES. 1.061 CHANNELIZATION FACTORS AFFECTING FISE POPULATIONS OF IOWA STREAMS. 1.039, 4.086* CHANNELS ECONOMICS OF THE COMMERCIAL FISH INDUSTRY. 10.044 CHACHORUS USE OF BENTHIC MACROINVERTEHRATES IN N. C. FISHERY MANAGEMENT AND WATER QUALITY ASSESSMENT. 1.084 CHARA NITROGEN FIXATION BY MICROBES INHABITING SURFACES OF AQUATIC MACROPEYTES. 4.142 CHARACTERIZATION CHARACTERIZATION OF GONAD-STIMULATING SUBSTANCES IN MARINE ANIMALS. 1.020, 2.006* DETECTION AND IDENTIFICATION OF MYCOTOXINS AND ALGAL TOXINS IN FOODS AND FEEDS. 5.023 INVEST. OF THE BOLE OF LARVAL AMERICAN OYSTERS (CRASSOSTREA VIRGINICA) AS CAEBIEBS OF CYSTER DISEASE. 3.071 MICROBIAL ECCLOGY OF METHANE PRODUCTION IN AQUATIC ENVIRCNMENTS. 4.220 MORPHOLOGICAL, ULTRASTRUCTURAL, AND BIOCHEMICAL CHARACTERIZATION OF NANOPLANETCN FECH CHESAPEAKE HAY. 1.056, 4.108* NITROGEN FILATION IN METBANE-OXIDIZING BACTERIA. 4.219 FOISONOUS CINOFLAGELLATES AND SHELLFISH PCISONING. 9.042 CHERSE **BIOLOGICALLY ACTIVE AMINES IN FOCD. 8.009** CRELATES DIETARY FACTORS IN WHITE FISH MEAL RESPONSIBLE FOR CATARACT FORMATION IN TROUT. 3.018, 5.009*, 9.005* CRELATING-AGENTS SPOKANB RIVER LIMNOLOGY. 4.067 CHELATICH MODE OF ACTION AND INFLUENCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS ON THE TOXICITY OF SEVERAL AQUATIC BERHICILES. 3.100, 4.218* CBENICAL-ANALTSIS AGE AND GROWTH OF FISH; A FIELD AND LABOFATORY APFROACE. 1.068 AQUACULTURAL WASTEWATER MANAGEMENT AND UTILIZATION IN HAWAII. 4.053, 6.029* AQUATIC INSECTS AS INDICATORS OF WATER QUALITY AND PRODUCT IVITY: A CCORDINATED STUDY. 4.129 CHENICALS THAT DIFFUSE FROM FREDATORY ASTEROIDS & TRIGGER DEFENSIVE BEBAVIORS IN MARINE INVERTEERATE. 1.002 CONTEOL OF AQUATIC WEEDS BASED CN ALLELOFATHIC CHARACTERISTICS IN SPIKEBUSH (ELECCHARIS SPP.). 3.007 DEVELOPMENT OF RAPID SEAFOOD QUALITY TESTS FOR CONMERCIAL AND REGULATCRY USE. 9.015 DISPOSITION OF CHENICAL POLLUTANTS IN AQUATIC OFGANISES. 4.017 EVALUATION OF AQUATIC PLANTS AS POTENTIAL FEEDSTUFF FOR DAIRY CATTLE. 9.013 FISE CULTUSE USING GEOTHERNAL WATER. 6.032 EUMAN NUTRITION IMPROVEMENT. 8.022 IDENTIFICATION OF OFF-FLAVOR COMPOUND SOURCES FOR FISE AND WATER FECH THE UPPER WISCONSIN BIVER.

9.043

MARINE FOOD SCIENCE AND TECENOLOGY. 8.003. 9.004* MORPHOLOGICAL, ULTRASTRUCTURAL, AND BICCEENICAL CHARACTEFIZATION OF NANOPLANETON FEON CHESAPEAKE EAY. 1.056, 4.108* NATURALLY OCCURRING MOSQUITC LARVICIDES. 3.069 THE USB OF SELECTED MARINE MATERIALS AND HY-PRODUCTS FCE CERTAIN HORTICULTURAL CROPS. 8.044 CHENICAL-CHANGES DEVELOPMENT OF RAPID SEAFOOD QUALITY TESTS FCK COMMERCIAL AND REGULATORY USE. 9.015 ECOLOGICAL STUDIES OF THE NAVAREC AND GARCIA ESTUARIES, WITH EMPHASIS ON THE FISHES. 4.028 CHENICAL-CHARACTERISTICS FISH POPULATION AND PRODUCTION IN POND AND LAKE INFOUNDMENTS. 4.208, 6.095* CEENICAL-CONFOSITION EVALUATION OF AQUATIC PLANTS AS POTENTIAL FEEDSTUFF FOR DAIRY CATTLE. 9.013 FACTORS AFFECTING THE TEXTURE OF SEAFOODS. 7.009. 8.038*, 9.029* CHENICAL-CONFOUNDS DEVELCEMENT OF RAFID SEAFOOD QUALITY TESTS FOR COMMERCIAL AND REGULATORY USE. 9.015 CHENICAL-CONTROL CONTROL OF AQUATIC PLANT GREWTH. 3.032 SELECTIVE CHENICALS FOR THE CONTROL OF THE THREESPINE STICKLEBACK. 3.047 CEBNICAL-CONTROL-INSECTS HCOLOGY OF MOSQUITOES ASSOCIATED WITH CALIFORNIA **BICE FIELDS. 4.015** CHENICAL-CONTROL-NEMATODES NEMATODE PARASITES OF FRESHWATER FISH: BIOLOGY AND EFFECTS. 3.014 CHEMICAL-CONTROL-WHEDS HIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF WEEDS WITH EMPHASIS CM AQUATIC BABITATS. 3.033 PEYSIOLCGY AND NANAGEMENT OF AQUATIC WEEDS INTERFERING WITH THE USE OF WATER BESCURCES. 3.035 THE PHYSIOLOGY AND CONTROL OF VEGETATIVE REFRODUCTION IN HYDRILLA (HYDRILLA VERTICILLATA RCYLE). 3.024 USE OF SPIKERUSE (ELEOCHARIS SPP.) FCR HIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WHEDS. 3.016 WEED CONTROL IN RICE PRODUCTION. 3.006, 4.008± CHEMICAL-PROFERTIES CHARACTERIZATION OF GONAD-STINULATING SUBSTANCES IN MARINE ANIMALS. 1.020, 2.006* ECOLOGICAL STUDY OF LAKE WALES, FLOFIDA AFTER INTEODUCTION OF WHITE AMUR (CTENOPBARYNGCDON IDELLA). 4.047 WATER QUALITY STUDY. 4.033 CREWICAL-STRUCTURB CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.108 CCNTROL CF ACUATIC WEEDS HASED CN ALLELCFATBIC CBARACTERISTICS IN SFIREFUSH (ELEOCHAFIS SPP.). 3.007 POISONOUS DINOFLAGELLATES AND SEELLFISE FCISCNING. 9.042 CREMICALS ENVIRONMENTAL EFFECTS ON PECDUCTIVITY OF CRAYFISB IN POND HABITATS, PEASE I, II. 5.025, 6.048*, 7.007* ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS AFFECTING SURVIVAL CF THBEMALLY-INJURBD HACTERIA FOUND ON FISHERY FRODUCTS. 9.008 SELECTIVE CBEMICALS FOR THE CONTROL OF THE **THREESPINE STICKLEHACK. 3.047** THE FATE AND EFFECTS OF CHENICALS IN AQUATIC ECOSYSTENS. 4.111 CRICKENS COMFARATIVE STUDIES OF LORSTEE AND CHICKEN MUSCLE. 9.027 CHILLING ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS AFFECTING SURVIVAL CF TBERNALLY-INJURED BACTEGIA FOUND ON FISHERY PRODUCTS. 9.008 CHIRONOMIDAE BIONOMICS AND CONTROL OF CHIRCNCHID MIDCES (HLIND NOSCUITOES). 3.026 COMPARATIVE ECOLOGY OF SELECTED SPECIES OF AQUATIC INSECTS, PHASE IV. 4.039, 4.642 INSECTICIDES AND TEELE FORMULATIONS. 4.131 LIMITS ON PRODUCTION OF ARCTIC CEIRCNCHIDAE: A FAFT OF PLOJECT A. L. F. S.. 4.167 TAXONOMY, BIOLOGY, AND ECOLOGICAL RELATIONSELPS OF AQUATIC INSECTS. 4.120

WATER QUALITY STUDIES: COMPARATIVE ECOLOGY AND SYSTEMATICS OF SELECTED AQUATIC INSECTS. 4.043 CHITIN BIOCONVERSION OF CHITIN WASTES. 8.004 PRELIMINARY STUDIES ON CRAWFISH AND FRESEWATER SERIMP DISEASES. 1.096, 3.094* CHITINASE **EIOCONVERSION OF CHITIN WASTES. 8.004** CHLORAMINES DETERMINATION OF WATER QUALITY CRITERIA FCR THE SUPPORT OF AQUATIC LIFE IN TWO SMALL MANSAS STREAMS. 4.091 CHLORDANE EFFECT OF DIET QUALITY CN AQUATIC ANIMALS. 5.047 CHLORELLA- PTEENOIDOSA DETECTION AND IDENTIFICATION OF MYCOTOXINS AND ALGAL TOXINS IN FOODS AND FEEDS. 5.023 CHLORINATED-BYDROCARHONS EFFECT OF DIET QUALITY ON ACUATIC ANIMALS. 5.047 FACTORS AFFECTING FISH POPULATIONS OF IOWA STREAMS. 1.039. 4.086* CELORINE DETERMINATION OF WATER QUALITY CFITEFIA FOR THE SUPPOST OF AQUATIC LIFE IN TWO SMALL KANSAS STREAMS. 4.091 CHLOROPHTLLS MORPHOLOGICAL, ULTRASTRUCTURAL, AND BICCBEMICAL CHARACTERIZATION CP NANOPLANKTCN FRCM CHESAFEAKE BAY. 1.056, 4.108* NITROGEN FIXATION AND ITS EFFECT CN EUTFOPHICATION: IN-POINT AND NON-POINT SCUECE PONDS. 4.157 CHLOROPLASTS MODE OF ACTION AND INFLUENCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL PACTORS ON THE TOXICITY OF SEVERAL AQUATIC HERBICICES. 3.100, 4.218* CHLORPTRIFOS INSECTICIDES AND THEIR FORMULATIONS. 4.131 CHOLESTEFOL LIPID METABOLISM IN AQUATIC ORGANISMS. 5.053, 9.038* THE EFPECTS OF DIET ON THE RISK OF CANCER. 9.020 CHROMATOGRAP BY CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS BASED ON ALLELOPATHIC CHARACTERISTICS IN SPIKEFUSH (ELECCHAFIS SPP.). 3.007 DETECTION AND IDENTIFICATION OF MYCOTOXINS AND ALGAL TOXINS IN POODS AND FEEDS. 9.023 **BCOLOGICAL RELATIONSHIPS OF PESTICIDES.** RADIONUCLIDES & NUTRIENTS WITH ORGANISMS IN AQUATIC COMMUNIT. 4.113 IDENTIFICATION OF OFF-FLAVOR COMPOUND SOURCES FOR FISH AND WATER FROM THE UPPER WISCONSIN SIVES. 9.043 NITROGEN FIXATION AND ITS EFFECT ON EUTROPHICATION: IN-POINT AND NON-POINT SOURCE PONDS. 4.157 POISONOUS DINOFLAGELIATES AND SHELLFISH POISONING. 9.042 CERONOSONE-BANDING BIOCBEMICAL GENETICS AND CYTOGENETICS OF THOUT. 2.021 METAPHASE CHROMOSOME HANDING CP FRESHWATER FISHES. 2.026 CERONOSONES BIOCHEMICAL GENETICS AND CYTOGENETICS OF TROUT. 2.021, 2.022 BREEDING EXPERIMENTS WITH SALMONIDS: 2.024 METAPHASE CHROMOSOME HANDING OF FRESHWATER FISHES. 2.026 CEBONIC-EXPOSURE THE USE OF FISE BEHAVIOR IN TOXICITY TESTING. 1.032. 4.079* CHUBS REARING BAIT FISE IN WESTERN NEVADA. 6.061, 10.023* CIGUATORIN CIGUATERA FISE POISONING IN THE U.S. V.I.: BIOCHEMICAL, PHYSOLCGICAL, AND MICRCHICLOGICAL STUDIES. 1.059, 9.040* CILIA IMMUNOLOGIC RESPONSE OF CHANNEL CATFISH. ICTALURUS PUNCTATUS, TO HETEROLOGOUS ANTIPROTOZOAN IMMUNIZATION. 1.022 CITRUS ANALYSIS OF DOMESTIC FOOD DEMAND AND CONSUMPTION BEBAVIOF. 10.008 THE TREATMENT AND USE OF WASTE PRODUCTS AND CHEMICALS IN THE DIET OF AQUATIC ANIMALS. 5.046, 8.042*

CLADOPBORA NATURALLY OCCUBRING NOSCUITC LARVICIDES. 3.069 THE USE OF SELECTED AQUATIC ORGANISMS FOR PURPOSES OF AQUACULTURE (FOOD PRODUCTION). 3.012, 4.023*, 5.008*, 8.005* UPTAKE AND MOVEMENT OF HEREICIDES AND NUTRIENTS IN AQUATIC WEED SPECIES. 3.019 CLAMS ANALYSIS OF PREDATION OF MERCENARIA MERCENARIA BY DECAPOD CRUSTACEANS. 1.095, 3.081* ANTIBACTERIAL MECHANICS IN CLAMS; CONTRIBUTION OF THE WATES SISEAM. 1.072, 4.145* PIOLOGICAL ANALYSIS OF THE AGE AND GROWTH BATE CF THE OCEAN QUABOG ARCTICA ISLANDICA. 4.138 DIAGNOSIS AND PATHOGENESIS OF DISEASES AND PARASITES IN MAJOR MOLLUSCAN AQUACULTURE SPECIES. 3.088 ECONON. IMPOSTANT DISEASES OF BIVALVE SEFTUPISE. INCLUDING THEIR PREVENTION, CONTECL AND EEADICATION. 4.139 EQUIPMENT FOR MECHANIZATION OF PRODUCTION OF OYSTERS AND CTHER SHELLFISH. 6.083, 7.012* BUMAN NUTRITION IMPROVEMENT. 8.022 LUMINOUS BACTERIA AS INDICATORS OF SHELLFISH CONTAMINATION BY PATHOGENIC VIERICS. 4.144 NANAGEMENT AND CULTURE OF MCLLUSCAN SPECIES. 6.086 MANAGEMENT ECONOMICS OF NEW YORE'S MAKINE INDUSTRIES. 10.030 MANAGEMENT OF A MULTIPLE COBOST FISHERY: THE HASD CLAM RESCURCES IN GREAT SOUTH BAY. 10.028 MICROBIOLOGICAL ASPECTS TO SEELLFISE SANITATION AND QUALITY. 7.014, 8.047*, S.037* MOLLUSCAN BATCHERY TECHNOLOGY. 6.075 CVEEBOAED DISPOSAL STUDY. 1.066, 4.137* PHYSIOLOGY AND ECOLOGY OF THE ASIATIC CLAD, CORDICULA SP., IN THE SACRAMENTO-SAN JCACUIN DELTA. 1.004, 4.011* RECLAMATION OF PROTEIN AND FLAVOR WATERIALS FROM CLAN WASH WATER. 8.034 REGULATORY PROBLEMS OF LOUISIANA FOOD INDUSTRIES. 9.017 STUDIES OF THE ECONOMICALLY IMPORTANT SPECIES: MERCENARIA MERCENARIA AND MACROBRACHIUM ROSENBERGII. 1.094, 6.085* SURP CLAM MANAGEMENT STUDIES. 4.136, 6.063* USE OF CLAM BY-PRODUCTS. 8.037 CLARIFICATION. INTEGRATION OF A SOLAR GREENHOUSE WITH A RECIRCULATING PISE CULTURE SYSTEM, 6,003 CLASSIP ICATION ICHTEYOPATHCLCGY. 3.089 MORPHOLOGY AND TAXONOMY OF NEWATODES. 1.021 CLAY THE BOLE OF SILTS AND CLAYS IN THE NUTRITICN CP ZCOPLANETCN. 1.041 **CLEANING** CYSTER PRODUCTION EQUIPMENT DEVELOPMENT. 4.052, 6.0284 WATHE QUALITY CHANGES IN OYSTER PROCESSING. 8.025 CLIMATE ALGAL METABOLISM IN THE PRESENCE OF BERBICIDES. 4.170 WATER QUALITY STUDIES: COMPARATIVE ECOLOGY AND SYSTEMATICS OF SELECTED AQUATIC INSECTS. 4.043 CLINICAL-PATROLOGY IDENTIFICATION OF SUB-OPTIMAL ENVIRONMENTAL PARAMETEES AFFECTING AQUACULTUEE. 3.090, 4.194* CLONING DEVELOPMENT OF A SUBUNIT VACCINE TO THE SALMONID VIRUS, IENV, EY MOLECULAR CLCNING. 3.085 CLOSED-STATEMS CLOSED CYCLE FISH CULTURE WATER FILTRATION USING HIOLOGICAL SYSTEMS. 4.105, 6.053* WATER QUALITY MAINTENANCE IN CLOSED CYCLE PISE CULTURE SYSTEMS. 6.052 CLOSTRIDIUM IMPROVING THE ASSURANCE OF QUALITY AND SAFETY OF CONSUMER'S FOOD. 9.031 CLOSTRIDIUM-BOTULINUM METRODS OF MODIFIED-ATMOSPHERE PRESERVATION OF REFRIGERATED FRESH FISH. 7.016, 8.048* REGULATORY PROBLEMS OF LOUISIANA FOCD INDUSTRIES. 9.017 COAL TOXIC EFFECTS ON THE AQUATIC BICTA FROM COAL AND OIL SHALE DEVELOPMENT. 4.034 COAL-GASIFICATION

EFFECTS OF FOLLUTANTS ON GILLS OF FEESEWATEE COLOR NEW FOOD PECDUCTS FROM UNDERUTILIZED FISH SPECIES. FISHES. 3.060, 4.115* 8.033 COASTAL-AREAS A WULTI-INSTITUTIONAL APPROACE TO THE COMBUSTION TOXIC EFFECTS ON THE AQUATIC FICTA FROM CCAL AND IDENTIFICATION OF EIVALVE LARVAE. 1.067 CIL SHALE DEVELOFMENT. 4.034 AN ECCNORIC ANALYSIS OF THE ATLANTIC COAST STRIPED COMMERCIAL-FACILITIES EASS FISHERY. 10.031 ASSESSMENT OF COASTAL RECREATION RESOURCES. 10.046 CHARACTERISTICS, PREFERENCES, AND ATTITUDES DISTRIBUTION, ABUNDANCE AND ECOLOGY OF ASCOPEYLLUM CONCERNING PRIVATE FEE-FISHING OPERATIONS. NCDOSUM (1) LE JOIS. 1.052, 4.102*, 7.008* 10.048 ECOLOGY CF SALT MARSEES IN RELATION TO ESTUARIES AND ENERGY FLOW. 1.016, 4.041*, 5.011* COMMERCIAL-FIRMS ECONOMICS OF SALMONID AQUACULTURE IN NEW ENGLAND. ECCNCWIC ANALYSIS OF ALTEENATIVE VIRGINIA COASTAL VETLANDS FOLICY. 10.047 ECCNOMIC IMPACTS OF THE 200-MILE LIMIT ON RURAL 6.082, 10.038* COMMUNITIES ECONOMIC IMPACTS OF THE 200-MILE LIMIT ON RURAL NORTHEASTERN COASTAL COMMUNITIES. 10.015, NORTHEASTERN COASTAL COMMUNITIES. 10.018 FISE MCVEMENT IN PCCL 9, UPPER MISSISSIPPI RIVER. 10.018, 10.024, 10.027, 10.035 EFFECT OF EIET QUALITY CN AQUATIC ANIMALS. 5.047 1.035 FEEDING ECCLOGY OF FISHES UTILIZING MARSHES ALTERED COMMUNITIES-ECOLOGY FOR CONTROL OF SALT WARSE WOSCUITCES. 1.065, BIOLCGICAL AND RECREATIONAL ASPECTS OF WATER LEVEL WANAGEMENT CF CLEAR LAKE, IOWA. 4.081 EFFECTS CF LAND USE PRACTICES ON STREAM HIOTA. 3.065*, 4.134* PEYSIOLOGY OF CHESAPEAKE HAY PEYTOPLANETCN. 1.054, 4.107× 4.085 PRESENCE, ABUNDANCE, MOVEMENTS, AND HABITAT USAGE OF ESTUARINE-DEPENDENT FISHES AND CRUSTACEANS.. MICRCCOSM MODELING OF THE RESPONSE OF PERSISTENT AQUATIC COMMUNITIES TO A TOXICANT. 4.182 POPULATION CHARACTERISTICS OF TEXAS GULF OF NEXICO 1.045, 4.095* RESEARCE IN SYSTEMS ECOLOGY. 4.141 FISEES. 1.097 SOUTHERN NEW ENGLAND ECONOMIC INFACT PECJECT. COMMUNITY-DEVELOPMENT ECONONIC INFACTS OF THE 200-NILE LINIT ON RURAL 10.040 NORTHEASTERN COASTAL COMMUNITIES. 10.015, STATUS, ABUNDANCE AND EXPLOITATION OF THE STRIPED HASS IN THE RCANCLE FIVER, NC. 4.163 SURF CLAM MANAGEMENT STUDIES. 4.136, 6.063* 10.024, 10.027 THE IMPACT OF THE 200 MILE ECONOMIC ZONE ON EUFAL THE INPACT OF THE 200 MILE ECONOMIC ZONE ON FURAL NEW BNGLAND CCASTAL COMMUNITIES. 10.017 NEW ENGLAND COASTAL COMMUNITIES. 10.017 COMMUNITY-STRUCTURE ECOLOGY AND MANAGEMENT OF WALLEYE. 1.073. 6.065* THE STATUS AND RELATION OF THE COASTAL ZONE TO ALABAMA'S ECONOMY. 10.001 MICKOCOSM MODELING OF THE RESPONSE OF PERSISTENT AQUATIC COMMUNITIES TO A TOXICANT. 4.182 COASTAL-VATEES ECOLOGY CF SALT WARSEES IN FELATION TO ESTUATIES THE EFFECT OF STRUCTURE ON FISE BEHAVICE. 4.169 AND ENERGY FLCW. 1.016, 4.041*, 5.011* MICROBIOLOGICAL ASPECTS TO SHELLFISE SANITATION AND COMPETITION AN INVESTIGATION OF THE ADAPTIVE SIGNIFICANCE OF MELANISM IN THE MALE MOSQUITCFISE, GAMEUSIA QUALITY. 7.014, 8.047*, 9.037* THE INPACT OF THE 200 MILE ECONOMIC ZONE ON RURAL AFFINIS. 1.078 NEW ENGLAND COASTAL COMMUNITIES. 10.017 BIOLOGICAL CONTEOL OF AQUATIC WEEDS WITH INSECTS. 3.038 COD PISCINE ERYTHROCYTIC NECROSIS IN THE ATLANTIC COD. ECOLOGY AND MANAGEMENT OF WALLEYE. 1.073, 6.065* 3.056 ECOLOGY OF RARE AND ENDANGERED FISHES OF SHEAR PROPERTIES OF FECZEN FISH FILLET ELOCKS. PENNSYLVANIA. 4.191 EFFECTS OF CERCNIC TURBIDITY CN SOCIAL CONTEST IN 8.024, 8.019* COHC-SALMON JUVENILE STEELHEAD THOUT AND COHC SALMON. 4.059 CHRONIC TURHIDITY AND STRESS IN JUVENILE CCHO. FACTORS INFLUENCING TROUT PRODUCTION IN VIRGINIA SALMON AND STEELBEAD TROUT. 1.088, 4.184* STREAMS. 1.102, 4.217* COLASPIS-BEUNNEA WILD VERSUS BATCHERY TRCUT. 1.026, 4.058* MANAGEMENT STRATEGIES FCR RICE PESTS. 3.005 CONFLEMENT-FIXATION STUDIES CF BELATIONSBIPS BETWEEN MARINE AND COLCEICINE EREEDING EXPERIMENTS WITE SALMONIDS. 2.024 TEREESTRIAL FACTERIA. 1.008 COLD-TOLERANCE COMPUTER-TECHNIQUES DEVELOPMENT OF INEXPENSIVE AQUACULTURE SYSTEMS FOR COLUMBIA RIVER CHINOOK SALMON STUDY. 1.020 DEVELOPMENT AND EVALUATION OF CYSTEF BAEVESTING HOWE (SUBSISTENCE-TYPE) CULTURE IN N. C.. 6.069 COLEOPTERA EQUIFMENT AND MARICULTURE SYSTEMS. 6.084, 7.013* GROWTH AND MINERAL UPTAKE IN THE LEWNACEAE. 4.026 EIGLOGY, ECOLOGY, TAXONCHY AND DISTRIBUTION OF AQUATIC INSECTS IN WISCONSIN. 4.221 COMPARATIVE ECOLOGY OF SELECTED SPECIES OF AQUATIC RESPONSE OF FISHES AND AQUATIC SYSTEMS TO ELECTRIC SHOCK AND CAPTURE TECHNOLOGY. 6.101 INSECTS, PHASE IV. 4.039, 4.042 WATER QUALITY STUDIES: COMPARATIVE ECOLOGY AND THE IMPACT OF SALMONID INTRODUCTIONS ON NEW YORK FISEERNEN AND COMMUNITIES. 10.033 SYSTEMATICS OF SELECTED AQUATIC INSECTS. 4.043 COMPUTERS COLIFORMS ASSESSMENT OF COASTAL RECREATION RESCURCES. 10.046 MICROBIOLOGICAL ASPECTS TO SHELLFISH SANITATION AND COLUMBIA RIVER CHINOOK SALMON STUDY. 1.080 QUALITY. 7.014, 8.047*, 9.037* ECONOMIC BEBAVICE OF FOCD AND FIBER FIRMS. 10.007 COLLAGENASES EFFECTS OF THE BEUNSWICK NUCLEAS POWER-PLANTS CN LCW-TEMPERATURE STORAGE OF FRESHWATES PEAWN, THE PRODUCTIVITY OF SPARTINA ALTERNIFICKA. 4.159 MACROBRACBIUM ROSENBERGII. 8.010 SESEARCE IN SYSTEMS BCOLCGY. 4.141 COLLECTION CONCENTRATION ECOLOGY OF LARVAL SIEEAM FISEES. 1.038, 4.084* DISPOSITION OF CHEMICAL POLLUTANTS IN AQUATIC EVALUATION OF RELATIVE PROTEIN PERFORMANCE IN CRGANISMS. 4.017 PELLETER FISE RATIONS USING PRYSICLOGICAL CONFINENT INDICES. 5.055 ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS OF SALMONELLOSIS. 3.049 MORPHOLOGY AND TAXONCHY OF NEWATODES. 1.021 CONFORMATION POPULATION DYNAMICS OF LARGEMOUTH AND SMALLMOUTH SHEAR PROPERTIES OF FROZEN FISH FILLET BLOCKS. EASS IN 16 NEW YCER LARES. 1.075 8.024, 9.019* STREAMSIDE HUFFEE STRIPS FOR PROTECTING AQUATIC CCNGENITAL-MALFORMATIONS ORGANISES FROM LOGGING EFFECTS. 4.018 POSSIBLE CAUSES OF BLUBGILL LEPCHIS MARCCCHIEUS COLON-BACILLUS DEFCENITIES. 1.080, 4.161* REGULATORY PROBLEMS OF LOUISIANA FOOD INDUSTRIES. CONIDOPERTS 9.017 COLONIZATION VALUE OF TIDAL MARSBES IN RELATION TO ESTUARINE CONSERVATION ECOSYSTEM, AND EVALUATION OF FRESEWATER WETLANDS. 4.044

A CCMPARATIVE STUDY OF THE FINE STRUCTURE OF APOSTONE CILIATES. 3.076 ECONOMIC ANALYSIS OF ALTERNATIVE VIEGINIA CCASTAL WETLANDS POLICY. 10.047

EFFECTS OF SEDIMENTS ON HIOLOGICAL SYSTEMS. 4.126 CONSTRUCTION IMPACTS CF RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT AND EXPLORTATION ON NATURAL RESOURCES. 4.216 IMPACTS OF THE CONSTRUCTION AND OPERATION OF COASTAL NUCLEAR POWER PLANTS CN ESTUAFINE ECOLOGY . 4. 160 CONSUMER-ACCEPTANCE CAGE CULTURE OF TILAPIA IN THE VIRGIN ISLANDS. 6.098, 2.039* ENZYMES IN FOOD FERMENTATIONS. 9.025 MANUFACTURE OF PROCESSED MEAT AND/CR FISH PRODUCTS WITH UNDERUTILIZED MARINE SPECIES. 8.027 NEW FOOD PRODUCTS FRCM UNDERUTILIZED FISE SPECIES. 8.033 CONSUMER-BERAVIOR ANALYSIS CF DOMESTIC FOOD DEMAND AND CONSUMPTION **BEHAVIOE**. 10.008 CONSUMER-DEMAND ANALYSIS OF COMESTIC FOOD DEMAND AND CONSUMPTION BEHAVICI. 9.041, 10.008 CONSUMER-SATISFACTION PCTENTIAL CF DIFFERENT UNDERUTILIZED SPECIES OF FISH FOR CONVENIENCE FOODS. 8.035, 9.026* CONSUMBE-SURVEYS CHARACTERISTICS, PREFERENCES, AND ATTITUDES CONCEENING PRIVATE FEE-FISHING OPERATIONS. 10.048 CONSUMBRS ANALYSIS OF DOMESTIC FOOD DEMAND AND CONSUMPTION BEHAVIOR. 9.041 SCOPE OF WCEK FOR PRELIMINARY STUDY OF PRIMARY AND SECONDARY PRODUCTION OF THE ST. LAWRENCE SIVER. 4.150 CONSUMPTION ANALYSIS OF DOMESTIC FCOD DEMAND AND CONSUMPTION BEEAVIOL. 9.041 CONTABINATION INFECTIOUS PANCREATIC NECROSIS IN ATLANTIC SALMON. 3.057 CONTROL-SYSTEMS NEURAL CONTECL OF SWIMMING IN CRAYFISEES. 1.001 CONTROLLED-ATMOSPHERE METHODS OF MODIFIED-ATNOSPBERE PRESERVATION OF REFRIGESATED FRESE FISE. 7.016, 8.048* CONTROLLED-ATMOSPHERE-STORAGE EXTENDING THE SHELF-LIFE OF FISH. 8.036, 9.028* PROCESSING QUALITY AND PACKAGING FACTORS WHICH AFFECT THE UTILIZATION OF FISH AND SHELLFISH. 8.046, 9.036* CONVENIENCE-FOODS IMPROVING THE ASSURANCE OF QUALITY AND SAFETY OF CONSUMEE'S FOCD. 9.031 PCTENTIAL OF DIFFERENT UNDEBUTILIZED SPECIES OF FISE FCF CONVENIENCE FOODS. 8.035, 9.026* COOLING PREFLAVORED CHANNEL CATFISH. 8.013, S.012* SENSORY & NUTRITIONAL EVALUATION OF SEAFCODS. 8.043. 9.032* THE TREATMENT AND USE OF WASTE PRODUCTS AND CHEMICALS IN THE DIET OF AQUATIC ANIMALS. 5.046, 8.042* COOLING DEVELOPMENT OF FISH PROTECTIVE SYSTEMS FOR WATER INTAKES. 4.022 FISE BARRIER SYSTEMS FOR POWER STATICNS. 4.196 COOLING-WATEE CULTURE OF AQUATIC ORGANISMS AND EVALUATION OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS AT STEAM ELECTRIC PLANTS. 6.093 FISE HARRIER SYSTEMS FOR POWER STATICNS. 4.196 COORDINATION NEUROTRANSHITTERS, NEURONCOULATORS, AND LCCCMOTICN. 1.076 COPPER ACUTE AND CEBONIC EFFECTS ON FISH EXPOSED CONTINUCUSLY AND INTERWITTENTLY TO TOXICANTS. 4.180 DISEASES OF AQUATIC ANIMALS. 3.072 FUR ANIMAL STUDIES (MINE). 8.028 MCDE CF ACTION AND INFLUENCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS ON THE TORICITY OF SEVERAL AQUATIC HEBBICIDES. 3.100, 4.218* SUSCEPTIEILITY TO I. WILTIFILLIS OF CHANNEL CATFISH EXPOSED TO SUBLETEAL CONCENTRATIONS OF COPPER 90. 3.080 COREICULA

PHYSICLCGY AND ECCLOGY OF THE ASIATIC CLAM, CORHICULA SP., IN THE SACRAMENTO-SAN JCACUIN DELTA. 1.004. 4.011* CORNEA CIETARY FACTORS IN WHITE FISE MEAL SESPONSIBLE FOR CATARACT FORMATION IN TECUT. 3.018, 5.008*, 9.005* CORRELATION COLUMBIA RIVER CBINOOK SALNCN STUDY. 1.090 COPTISOL APPLIED PHYSIOLCGY OF ECONCMICALY IMPORTANT FISHES. 4.202 CHRONIC TURBIDITY AND STRESS IN JUVENILE COHO SALMON AND STEELHEAD TRCUT. 1.088, 4.184# DISEASE MANAGEMENT IN CULTURED CATFISH. 3.096 COST-BENEFIT-ANALYSIS ECONOMIC IMPACTS OF THE 200-MILE LIMIT ON RURAL NORTHEASTERN COASTAL COMMUNITIES. 10.018 INSECTS ATTRACTED BY LIGHT AS A SOURCE CF FCCD FCF CATFISH. 5.005 COST-REDUCTION INPROVING SURFACE WATER CONDITIONS THROUGH CONTECL AND DISPOSAL OF AQUATIC VEGETATION. 7.015 COST-SAVINGS COSTS AND RETURNS IN THE OTTER TRAWL PLEET ON LONG ISLAND, NEW YORK. 10.029 INVESTIGATION OF "IN SITU" SOLIDS DIGESTION FOR SALMONID PRODUCTION. 6.081 COSTS A PCLYCULTURE SYSTEM OF FISE PRODUCTION FOR DISADVANTAGED FARMERS IN ARKANSAS. 6.009 AN ECCNCMIC ANALYSIS OF DECISION MAKING AND POLICY FCRMULATION. 10.043 AN ECONONIC EVALUATION OF ICE FISHING IN MAINE. 10.014 ANALYSIS OF THE MARKET POTENTIAL FOR FRESE WATER AQUACULTURAL PECDUCTS PECDUCED IN NEVADA. 5.036, 8.032*, 10.022* CAGE CULTURE OF FISH IN THE VIRGIN ISLANDS UTILIZING TEETIARY TREATED WATER. 6.100 CATFISH BREEDING, PRODUCTICN, AND MARKETING. 10.003 CHANNEL CATFISH NUTRITICN. 5.033 COSTS AND RETURNS IN THE OTTER TRAVE FLEET ON LONG ISLAND, NEW YORK. 10.029 DEVELOPMENT OF INEXPENSIVE AQUACULTURE SYSTEMS FOR HOME (SUBSISTENCE-TYPE) CULTURE IN N. C.. 6.069 DEVELOPMENT OF OFTIMUM SUSTAINED YIELD OF FISBES IN FARM PONDS. 5.021, 7.004* ECONOMICS OF BIVALVE MOLLUSK AQUACULTURE IN NEW ENGLAND. 6.054, 10.016* ECONOMICS OF SALMCNID AQUACULTURE IN NEW ENGLAND. 6.082, 10.038* FISHERIES AND WILDLIFE ECONOMICS RESEARCH IN THE GREAT LAKES. 10.019 IMPROVING SUBFACE WATER CONDITIONS THROUGH CONTECL AND DISPOSAL OF AQUATIC VEGETATION. 7.015 INTEGRATION OF A SOLAR GREENHOUSE WITH A RECIECULATING FISH CULTURE SYSTEM. 6.003 INTENSIVE CULTURE OF CRAYFISH. 6.068 MANAGEMENT ECONCHICS OF NEW YORK'S MARINE INDUSTRIES. 10.030 NUTRITICN MANAGEMENT AND DISEASE OF MARINE ANIMALS. 3.055, 5.026*, 6.050* PRELIMINARY COSTS OF CATFISH PRCCESSING WASTE UTILIZATICN. 8.021, 10.013* PRODUCTION ECONOMICS OF AQUACULTURE SPECIES IN HAWAII. 10.009 WATER QUALITY STOCKING RATES AND HARVESTING SYSTEMS FOR CATFISH. 6.059 COSTS-EENEFITS ECONOMIC ANALYSES OF FISHERIES MANAGEMENT ISSUES ARISING FROM EXTENDED JURISDICTION OF NEW ENGLAND. 10.042 ECONOMIC INFACTS OF THE 200-NILE LINIT ON RURAL NORTBEASTERN CCASTAL CONMUNITIES. 10.024 COSTS-BETUENS CAGE CULTURE OF FISE IN THE VIRGIN ISLANDS UTILIZING TERTIARY TREATED WATER. 6.100 CATFISE BREEDING, PRODUCTION, AND MARKETING. 10.003 FRESHWATER FOOD ANIMALS. 3.039, 5.014*, 6.006, 6.024*, 8.001*, 9.002*, 10.002* COVER THE EFFECTS OF ARTIFICIAL STRUCTURES OF GAME FISH IN A HORRCW FIT FOND. 1.085. 4.168* CRAES ACTIVITY RHYTHMS OF THE NOATHERN ROCK CRAB IN RELATION TO ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL FACTORS. 1.057, 4.109*
- ANALYSIS OF PREDATION OF MERCENARIA MERCENARIA BY DECAPOD CRUSTACEANS. 1.095, 3.091* HEHAVIOR ECCLOGY AND EMYTHMICITY IN THE ROCK CRAES,
- CANCER IRRORATUS AND CANCER ECREALIS, PEASE II. 1.058, 5.028*
- HEHAVIOR, ECOLOGY AND RETTEMICITY IN THE COMMON ROCK CRAB. 1.059, 4.110*
- CULTURE OF AQUATIC ORGANISMS AND EVALUATION OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS AT STEAM ELECTRIC PLANTS. 6.093 DISEASES OF AQUATIC ANIMALS. 3.013
- FLAVOR DIFFERENCES OF MECHANICALLY- AND
- HAND-PRCCESSED CRAE MEATS. 8.015, 9.014*
- LABORATORY CULTURE FOR RESEARCE PURPCSES CF ESTUARINE AND MARINE LOBSTERS, CRABS AND SERINFS. 1.048, 5.024*
- MANUFACTURE OF PROCESSED WEAT AND/CE FISH PRODUCTS WITH UNDERUTILIZED MARINE SPECIES. 8.027
- PRESENCE, ABUNDANCE, MOVEMENTS, AND HABITAT USAGE OF ESTUARINE-DEPENDENT FISEES AND CRUSTACEANS .. 1.045. 4.095*
- THE TREATMENT AND USE OF WASTE PRODUCTS AND CHEMICALS IN THE DIET OF ACUATIC ANIMALS. 5.046. 8.042*
- USE OF NUTRIENT CONTAINING LIPID VESICLES AS A FOOD SOURCE FOR SHELLFISH OF PACIFIC NCETHNEST. 5.042 CRAPPIE
 - MOVEMENTS OF SONIC-TAGGED FISHES IN FELATION TO WATER QUALITY IN LOVER ATCHAFALAYA RIVER HASIN. 1.049, 4.097*
 - STUDY OF PATHOLOGY OF FISHES FROM LAKE HYCO, NOETH CAROLINA. 3.079
- THE EFFECT OF STEUCTURE CN FISH HEHAVIOR. 4.169 CRATEISH
 - CELL CULTURE STUDIES ON CELL LINES DEVELOPED FROM TISSUES OF AQUATIC ANIMAL. 3.051
 - CRAWFISH CULTURE STUDIES IN SMALL PCNDS: HURRCHING, PCLYCULTURE AND NATURAL PCND FLOODING. 1.050, 4.099*, 6.049* ECOLOGICAL STUDIES WITH RED SWAMP CRAWFISH AND

WHITE RIVER CRAWFISE. 1.042, 4.092*, 6.043* EFFECTS CF ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS AND MANAGEMENT PRACTICES ON COMMERCIAL PECEUCTION OF CRAWFISH. 4.096, 6.047*

- ENVIRONMENTAL EFFECTS ON PRODUCTIVITY OF CRAYFISE IN POND HABITATS, PHASE I, II. 5.025, 6.048*, 7.007*
- FORMULATION OF FOODS FOR AQUATIC ANIMALS OF ECONOMIC IMPORTANCE. 5.022, 8.016*
- FRESHWATER FOOD ANIMALS. 2.012, 6.045*
- INTENSIVE CULTURE OF CRAYFISE. 6.068

MANAGEMENT TECHNIQUES FOR INCREASING CRAWFISE PRODUCTICN. 6.046, 7.006*

- MECEANIZATION OF CRAWFISH HARVESTING AND PRODUCT ICN. 6.042, 7.005#
- NEURAL CONTECL OF SWIMMING IN CRAYFISHES. 1.001 PRELIMINARY STUDIES ON CRAWFISE AND FRESEWATER SERIMP DISEASES. 1.096, 3.094*
- RECOVERY AND UTILIZATION OF SERIEP AND CRAWFISE PROCESSING HYPRODUCTS. 8.017
- REGULATORY PROBLEMS OF LOUISIANA FOOD INDUSTRIES. 9.017
- CREEL-CENSUS
- THE IMPACT OF SALMONID INTRODUCTIONS ON NEW YORE FISHERMEN AND COMMUNITIES. 10.033 THE USE OF FISEING TOURNAMENT RECORDS TO ESTIMATE
- ABUNDANCE OF EASS POPULATIONS. 4.215
- SURVEY OF LARVAL FISHES IN THE NEARSHORE GULF WATERS CF LOUISIANA. 1.047
- SWIMBLADDES INFLATION IN LARVAE OF PEYSOCILISTOUS FISHES. 1.007
- CROP-PRODUCT ION
- SHALLOW-WATER POLYCULTURE OF FISHES IN PONDS DESIGNED FOR ROTATION TO GRAIN CROPS. 6.013 CROP-RESPONSE
- THE USE OF SELECTED MARINE MATERIALS AND BY-PRODUCTS FOR CERTAIN HORTICULTURAL CROPS. 8.044
- CROP-ROTATION
- MANAGEMENT STRATEGIES FOR RICE PESTS. 3.005 SHALLOW-WATER POLYCULTURE CF FISHES IN PCNDS
- DESIGNED FOR BOTATION TO GRAIN CRCPS. 6.013 CROSSBREDS FRESHWATER FOOD ANIMALS. 2.001
- CROSSBREEDING
- IMPROVEMENT OF CATFISH STCCE THROUGE SELECTIVE HREEDING. 2.011, 6.044*

CROWDING

- AN EVALUATION OF STRIPED BASS & WEITE BASS BYBEIDS AND STRIPED HASS X WHITE PERCH HYBRIDS. 2.018, 6.070*
- PERFORMANCE OF SALMONIDS: SMOLTIFICATION, STRESS AND FITNESS. 1.089, 6.077*
- TRANSMISSION AND IMMUNOLOGY OF CHANNEL CATFISE VIEUS DISEASE CF CULTUFED CATFISE. 3.002, 3.002 CRUSTACRA
 - A COMPARATIVE STUDY OF THE FINE STRUCTURE OF APOSTOME CILIATES. 3.076 ANALYSIS OF PEPDATION OF MEECENAFIA MERCENAFIA HY
 - DECAPOD CRUSTACEANS. 1.095, 3.091*
 - AQUACULTURE PATECICGY. 3.010
 - CELL CULTURE STUDIES ON CELL LINES DEVELOPED FROM TISSUES CF AQUATIC ANIMAL. 3.051
 - EFFECTS ON SELECTED ORGANISMS OF WATER PASSING THROUGH THE CEDAR HAYOU GENERATING STATICN. 4.210, 6.097*
 - IMPACTS OF THE CONSTRUCTION AND OPERATION OF COASTAL NUCLEAR POWER PLANTS CN ESTUARINE ECCLOGY. 4.160
 - LABORATORY CULTURE FOR RESEARCH PURPCSES CF ESTUARINE AND MARINE LORSTERS, CRAES AND SERIMPS. 1.048, 5.024*
 - PRODUCTION OF MACROBRACHIUM RCSENBERGII (GIANT MALAYSIAN PRAWN IN NEVADA). 6.060
 - RECOVERY AND UTILIZATION OF SHRIMP AND CRAWFISH **PRCCESSING HYPRODUCTS. 8.017**
- THE USE OF SELECTED AQUATIC ORGANISMS FOR PURPOSES OF AQUACULTURE (FOOD PRODUCTION). 3.012, 4.023*, 5.008*. 8.005* CRYOGENICS
- CRYOGENIC PRESERVATION OF SPERM FROM STRIPED HASS. 2.017
- CRYOGHNIC PRESERVATION OF SPHEN FROM WARMWATER FISHES. 2.016 CEYOPRESERVATION
 - CRYOGENIC PRESERVATION OF SPERM FROM WAENWATER FISHES. 2.016
 - DEVELOP OF AQUACULTURE SYSTEMS FOR COOL WATER FISH SPECIES. 2.028, 5.057*, 6.102*
 - BOST-PARASITE RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN THE CHANNEL CATFISE AND ICHTHYOPETBIRIUS MULTIFILIIS. 3.050
- CTENOPHARYNGODON-IDELLA ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT AND WEED MANAGEMENT STRATEGIES UTILIZING GRASS CARP (CTENCPEARYNGODON IDELLA).
- 3.030. 4.049* CULEX
 - CREWICAL CONTROL OF MOSOULTERS OF NULSANCE AND HEALTH INFORTANCE. 4.133
- CULICIDAE EIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF MOSOUITCES IN CHNTRAL AND
 - NORTBERN CALIFORNIA. 4.012 BIOLOGICAL STUDIES WITH THE MOSCUITOFISH, GAMEUSIA AFFINIS, UNDER CULTURAL SITUATIONS. 6.012
 - CHEMICAL CONTROL OF NOSQUITCES OF NUISANCE AND BEALTH INPOSTANCE. 4.133
 - INSECTICIDE AND NON-CHEMICAL CONTROL OF MOSQUITOES. 4.037
- INSECTICIDES AND THEIR FORMULATIONS. 4.131 NATURALLY OCCURRING MOSQUITC LARVICIDES. 3.069 CULTURAL-CONTROL.
- OYSTER DRILL CONTROL BY BYDRAULIC DREDGING IN DELAWARE BAY. 6.064
- CULTURAL-CONTROL-BEEDS
- WEED CONTROL IN RICE PRODUCTION. 3.006, 4.008* CULTURAL-PRACTICES
 - CRAWFISE CULTURE STUDIES IN SMALL PCNDS: HURBOWING, POLYCULTURE AND NATURAL FOND FLOCDING. 1.050. 4.099*, 6.049*
 - DEVELOP AND IMPROVE PRODUCTION AND MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS FOR FRESHWATER ANIMALS CULTURED FOR FOCD. 6.011
 - EQUIPMENT FOR MECHANIZATION OF PRODUCTION OF OYSTERS AND OTHER SHELLFISE. 6.083, 7.012*
 - GROWTE AND MINERAL UPTAKE IN THE LENNACEAE. 4.026 LIMNOLOGY OF FARM PONDS. 1.082, 6.071*
- PRODUCTION ECCNCHICS OF AQUACULTURE SPECIES IN
- EAWAII. 10.009 THE USE OF SELECTED AQUATIC ORGANISMS FCF PURPOSES OF AQUACULTURE (FCOD FRODUCTION). 3.012, 4.023*, 5.008*, 8.005* CULTURAL-SYSTEMS
- CLOSED CYCLE FISE CULTURE WATER FILTRATICN USING BICLCGICAL SYSTEMS. 4.105, 6.053*
- CRAWFISH CULTURE STUDIES IN SMALL PCNDS: EUEROWING, PCLYCULTUFE AND NATURAL FOND FLOCDING. 1.056, 4.099*, 6.049*

CROAKERS

ACCUMULATION AND DEGRADATION OF SOME BEREICIDES BY ALGAE. 4.171 BIOLCGICAL, TECHNICAL, AND ECONOMIC STUDIES OF CULTURED AQUATIC RESCURCES. 4.151, 6.066* CULTURE AND NANAGEMENT OF SELECTED GAME FISHES. 3.092, 4.203*, 6.091* ECONOMICS OF AQUACULTURE. 10.004 THE USE OF SELECTED AQUATIC OFGANISMS FOF PURPOSES OF AQUACULTURE (FOOD PRODUCTION). 3.012, 4.023*, 5.008*, 8.005* CULTURE-MEDIA ACCUMULATION AND DEGRADATION OF SOME REFRICIDES BY ALGAE. 4.171 CCMPARATIVE STUDY OF THE FLEXIBACTER-CYTCPBAGA GROUP BACTERIA. 4.104 ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS AFFECTING SURVIVAL OF THERMALLY-INJURED BACTERIA FOUND ON FISHERY PRCDUCTS. 9.008 CURCULIONIDAE OFGANISMS ASSOCIATED WITH AQUATIC WEEDS AND THE BIOLOGICAL CONTROL WATER-BYACINTE IN EGYPT. 3.105 CUTOFFS ECOLOGICAL STUDY OF CUTOFF BENDWAYS AND OXECWS WITEIN THE TENNESSEE-ICWEIGHEE WATERWAY. 4.124 CUTTING SHEAR PROPERTIES OF FROZEN FISH FILLET BLOCKS. 8.024, 8.019* CYANO-BACTERIA MECHANISTIC FACTORS DETERMINE AQUATIC FERTILITY. 4.114 NITROGEN FILATION AND ITS EFFECT ON EUTROPHICATION: IN-POINT AND NON-POINT SOURCE PONDS. 4.157 CYAROPETTA ECOLOGY OF ANAEROBIC HETEROTROPHIC BACTERIA. 4.118 LIFE BISTORY AND PHYSIOLOGICAL STUDIES OF AQUATIC AND MARCINAL WEEDS. 3.061 NITROGEN FIXATION BY MICROBES INBABITING SURFACES OF AQUATIC MACROPHYTES. 4.142 CYPRINIDAR ENVIRONMENTAL REQUIREMENTS OF POTENTIAL AQUACULTURE FISE SPECIES. 4.027 CYPRINODON-MACULARIUS OSMOREGULATCRY RESPONSES OF DESERT PUPFISH: A STUDY MODEL OF PHYSIOLOGICAL ADAPTATICN TC ENVIRONMENT. 1.003, 4.010* CYPEINODON-RADIOSUS OSMOREGULATORY RESPONSES OF DESERT PUPFISE: A STUDY MODEL OF PHYSIOLOGICAL ADAPTATION TO ENVIRCNMENT. 1.003, 4.010* CYSTEINE DIETARY FACTORS IN WHITE FISH MEAL RESPONSIBLE PCB CATARACT FORMATION IN TROUT. 3.018, 5.009*, 9.005* CYSTINE DIETARY FACTORS IN WEITE FISE MEAL RESPONSIBLE FOR CATARACT FORMATION IN TROUT. 3.018, 5.009*, 9.005* CISTS CONTROL OF WHIRLING DISEASE CF SALMONIDS. 3.063 CTTOCHEMISTRY PENAEIDAE GAMETES, THEIR STRUCTURE, ACTIVATION AND FUSION. 1.006 STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT OF MARGINAL SALT MARSH SPECIES FROM NOFTE CARCLIN. 4.158 CYTOGENETICS EIOCHEMICAL GENETICS AND CYTCGENETICS CF IFOUT. 2.021, 2.022 FISH GENETICS. 2.019, 4.183* CYTOKININS HORMONAL REGULATION OF GROWTH, DEVELOPMENT AND VEGETATIVE PRCPAGATION OF SUBMERSED AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.020 CYTOLOGY ALGAL METAFOLISM IN THE PRESENCE OF BERHICIDES. 4.170 MORPHOLOGICAL, ULTRASTRUCTURAL, AND HICCHEMICAL CHARACTEFIZATION OF NANOPLANETON FROM CHESAPHAKE BAY. 1.656. 4.108* CYTOPHAGA COMPARATIVE STUDY OF THE FLEXIHACTER-CYTCPHAGA GROUP BACTERIA. 4.104

DAIRY-CATTLE

CULTURE

EVALUATION OF AQUATIC PLANTS AS PCTENTIAL FEEDSTOFF FOR DAIRY CATTLE. 9.013 CPERATING PARAMETERS OF LAGCONS FOR DISFOSAL OF UTILIZATION OF DAIRY FARM AND PROCESSING PLANT WASTE. 8.014 DAIRY-BEIFERS EVALUATION OF AQUATIC PLANTS AS POTENTIAL FEEDSTUFF FOR DAIRY CATTLE. 9.013 DAIRY-PRODUCTS INPROVING THE ASSURANCE OF QUALITY AND SAFETY OF CONSUMER'S FOCD. 9.031 DAMAGE-ASSESSMENT DEVELOPMENT AND EVALUATION OF OYSTER BARVESTING EQUIPMENT AND MARICULTURE SYSTEMS. 6.084, 7.013* DANS EFFECT OF SEDIMENT CONTROL DAMS ON THE WATER QUALITY OF A PRAIRIE LAKE. 4.200 EFFECTS OF ADDITIONAL PEAKING FROM A FOURTE GENERATOR AT DWORSBAE DAN IN CATCEABILITY, ETC ... 4.062 FISH AND AQUATIC MACROINVERTEBRATE FAUNA IN SOUTH FORE BOISE BIVER BELCW ANDERSON GANCE CAN. 1.029 METHODOLOGY AND ASSESSMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL EFFECTS AT LCW HEAD BYDRO POWER SITES. 4.148 PRE-INFCUNDMENT ENVIRONMENTAL STUDIES OF AQUILLA LAKE. 4.209 DAPENIDS EIOLOGICAL, TECHNICAL, AND ECONCHIC STUDIES OF CULTURED AQUATIC RESCURCES. 4.151, 6.066* DATA-ANALYSIS ASSESSMENT OF COASTAL RECREATION RESOURCES. 10.046 REGULATION OF WISCONSIN'S LAKE MICHIGAN CONMERCIAL FISBERIES. 10.050 THE INFACT OF SALMONID INTECDUCTIONS ON NEW YORK FISBERMEN AND COMMUNITIES. 10.033 DATA-BANKS SENSORY & NUTRITIONAL EVALUATION OF SEAFCODS. 8.043, 9.032* DATA-COLLECTION AN ECONOMIC ANALYSIS OF DECISION MAKING AND POLICY FCRMULATION. 10.043 BIOLOGICAL DATA FOR MANAGEMENT OF WALLEYES AND OTHER FISHES. 6.037 REGULATION OF WISCONSIN'S LAKE MICHIGAN COMMERCIAL FISEERIES. 10.050 DATA-RETRIEVAL SENSORY & NUTRITIONAL EVALUATION OF SEAFOCDS. 8.043, 9.032* DAY-LENGIE FEHAVIOE ECOLOGY AND ENYTHMICITY IN THE SOCK CRAHS, CANCER IRROBATUS AND CANCER EOREALIS, PHASE II. 1.058, 5.028* BOT EVALUATION OF PESTICIDE LEVELS IN CATFISE PROCESSING WASTES. 9.001 DEBONED-MEAT THE OXIDATIVE DETERIORATION OF LIPICS IN MECHANICALLY DEBONED FOULTRY AND FISE. 9.009 DEBONING FACTORS AFFECTING THE TEXTURE OF SEAFOODS. 7.009, 8.038*, 9.029* FOOD PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT PRCM FLCRIDA UNDERUTILIZED FISE SPECIES. 8.007, 9.006* FRESEWATER FOOD ANIMALS. 6.006, 8.001*, 9.002*, 10.002* QUALITY FACTORS FOR FISH AND SHELLFISH STORAGH. 8.045, 9.035* DECARBOXYLASES **BIOLOGICALLY ACTIVE AMINES IN FOCD. 8.009** DECISION-MAKING AN ANALYSIS OF NEW ENGLAND FISEERIES INVESTMENT HEHAVIOR. 10.037 AN ECCNCMIC ANALYSIS OF DECISICN MAKING AND FOLICY FORMULATION. 10.043 ANALYSIS OF DEMESTIC FOOD DEMAND ANE CONSUMPTION HEHAVIOR. 9.041 ECONOMIC ANALYSES OF FISHEFIES MANAGEMENT ISSUES ARISING FROM EXTENDED JURISDICTICN OF NEW ENGLAND. 10.042 ECONOMIC HERAVIOR OF FOCD AND FIRES FIRMS. 10.007 ECONOMIC IMPACTS OF THE 200-MILE LIMIT ON RURAL NORTHEASTERN COASTAL COMMUNITIES. 10.024 DECOMPOSITION HISTAMINE/BONEYCOMBING IN SEIPJACE TUNA. 8.011, 9.010* MICROBIAL ECOLOGY OF METBANE PRODUCTION IN AQUATIC

ENVIEONMENTS. 4.220

NATURAL MARSHES AS NUTRIENT SINKS FOR AGRICULTURAL FUNCFF. 4.089 DEFENSE-NECHANISMS CHEMICALS THAT DIFFUSE FROM PREDATORY ASTERCIDS S TRIGGER DEFENSIVE HERAVIORS IN MARINE INVERTEERATE. 1.002 DEFOLIANTS TCXICITY AND ECOLOGICAL EFFECTS CF SELECTED INSECTICIDES AND EEFBICIDES. 4.122 DEGEADATION ACCUMULATION AND DEGRADATION OF SOME HEBBICIDES HY ALGAE. 4.171, 4.174 ECOLOGY CF ANAERCHIC EETEKOTECPHIC BACTEFIA. 4.118 EFFECTS OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS AND MANAGEMENT PRACTICES ON COMMERCIAL PEODUCTION OF CEANFISE. 4.096, 6.047= DELAWARE-BAY DISEASE-RESISTANT OYSTERS. 2.015, 3.067* NATURAL SEED OYSTER EEDS OF THE DELAWAFE BAY. 3.066, 4.135*, 6.062* DELIVERY-SYSTEMS BEHAVIOR ECCLOGY AND REYTEMICITY IN THE FCCK CRAES, CANCEF IRRORATUS AND CANCER BCEEALIS, PHASE II. 1.058, 5.028* DENAND AN ECONOMIC EVALUATION OF ICE FISEING IN MAINE. 10.014 AN ECONOMIC EVALUATION OF THE RECREATIONAL SALMON FISBING IN THE KENAL/RUSSIAN RIVER REGICN. 10.036 ANALYSIS OF DOMESTIC FOOD DEMAND AND CONSUMPTION BEHAVIOF. 9.041, 10.008 ANALYSIS OF THE MARKET POTENTIAL FOR FRESE WATER ACUACULTURAL PRODUCTS FRODUCED IN NEVADA. 5.036. 8.032*, 10.022* ECONCHICS OF BIVALVE NOLLUSE AQUACULTURE IN NEW ENGLAND. 6.054, 10.016* ECONCHICS OF PRODUCING AND MARKETING LONG ISLAND SOUND OYSTERS. 10.006 ECONOMICS OF THE COMMERCIAL PISH INDUSTRY. 10.045 NEW METHOD OF APPRAISING NUTBITICNAL STANDARDS. 10.020 THE IMPACT OF SALMCNID INTRODUCTIONS ON NEW YORK FISHERMEN AND COMMUNITIES. 10.033 DEMAND-FUNCTIONS MATHEMATICAL MODEL OF OYSTER POPULATION IN THE CHESAPEAKE HAY. 1.053, 6.051* DENOGRAPHY CHARACTERISTICS, PREFERENCES, AND ATTITUDES CONCEINING PRIVATE FEE-FISHING CPERATIONS. 10.048 DEN ITRIFICATION ALATEMENT OF EUTROPHICATION RESULTING FROM INTENSIVE ANIMAL FRODUCTION. 4.195, 6.080* UTILIZATION OF AQUATIC PLANTS FOR WASTE TREATMENT AND ANIMAL FEEDS. 1.043, 5.023* DESSITY CULTURE OF PACIFIC SALMCN. 1.087, 6.076* EVALUATION OF JUVENILE SALMON AND STEELHEAD DENSITY AS WELATED TO DENSITY OF SPAWNERS AND FRY FELEASE. 1.030, 6.035* DEPURATION ANTIBACTERIAL MECHANICS IN CLAMS; CONTRIBUTION OF THE WATER STREAM. 1.072, 4.145* LUMINOUS EACTERIA AS INDICATORS OF SBELLFISH CONTAMINATION BY PATEOGENIC VIBRICS. 4.144 DESERTS OSMOREGULATORY RESPONSES OF DESERT PUPFISE: A STUDY MCDEL OF PHYSIOLOGICAL ADAPTATION TO ENVIRONMENT. 1.003, 4.010* DESIGN FISE BARRIER SYSTEMS FOR POWER STATICNS, 4,196 DESIGN-CRITEFIA INTEGRATION OF A SOLAR GREENECUSE WITH A RECIRCULATING FISE CULTURE SYSTEM. 6.003 MECHANICAL CONTECL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.022 DETECTION DETECTION AND IDENTIFICATION OF MYCOTOXINS AND ALGAL TOXINS IN FCCDS AND FEEDS. 9.023 HOST-PARASITE RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN THE CHANNEL CATFISE AND ICETEYOPETBIRIUS MULTIFILIIS. 3.050 SEROLOGIC AND VIFUULENCE STUDIES OF AEROMONAS HYDROPHILA. 3.042 SEBOLOGICAL METBODS FOR DETECTION AND IDENTIFICATION OF VIRUS DISEASES CF FISB. 3.058 DETERIORATION DEVELOPMENT OF RAPID SEAFOOD CUALITY TESTS FOR COMMERCIAL AND REGULATORY USE. 9.015

THE OXIDATIVE DETERIORATION OF LIFICS IN MECHANICALLY DEBONED FOULTRY AND FISH. 9.008 DETOXIFICATION ACCUMULATION AND DEGRADATION OF SOME BEBEICIDES HY ALGAE. 4.172 CIETARY FACTORS IN WHITE FISH MEAL RESPONSIBLE FOR CATARACT FORMATICN IN TROUT. 3.018, 5.009*, 9.005* DETRITUS FATE AND EFFECTS OF ATRAZINE IN SALT MARSE ECOSYSTENS. 4.001 DEVELOPMENT ACUTE AND CBEONIC EFFECTS ON FISE EXECSED CONTINUCUSLY AND INTERMITIENTLY TO TORICANTS. 4.180 CULTURE OF PACIFIC SALMCN. 1.087, 6.076# LIMNCLOGICAL EVALUATION AND ZCCPLANETCN DYNAMICS OF LAKE ECCCANUSA, NORTH SETERN MONTANA. 4.077 PRODUCTION OF IDENTIFICATION CIRCULARS ON THE LARVAE OF COLCRADO FISHES. 1.014 SPAWNING, EARLY LIFE HISTORY, HABITAT SELECTION CF NORTHERN SQUAWFISH: INFER. TC COLCRADC SQUANFISH. 4.063 SWIMBLADDER INFLATION IN LARVAE OF FEYSOCILISTOUS FISHES. 1.007 THE IMPACT OF THE 200 MILE ECCNCHIC ZONE ON RURAL NEW ENGLAND COASTAL COMMUNITIES. 10.017 DEVATERING DEVELCEMENT AND APPLICATION OF A METHODOLOGY FOR RECOMMENDING SALMONIE EGG INCUEATION FICWS. 4.070 DEVELOPMENT AND VALIDATION OF BAEITAT-STANDING CECP FUNCTIONS FOR STREAM FISE AND THEIR FCCDS. 4.065 THE INPACT OF POWER PEAKING ON EGG INCUBATION OF FALL CHINCOK SALMON. 4.072 DIAGNOSIS AQUACULTURE PATHOLOGY. 3.010 EIGLOGY AND CONTECL OF AQUATIC ANIMAL DISEASES. 3.054 DETECTION TRANSMISSION AND FATHCGENESIS OF DISEASE CRGANISMS IN AQUACULTURE SPECIES. 3.087 DIAGNOSIS AND PATHOGENESIS OF DISFASES AND PARASITES IN MAJOR MOLLUSCAN AQUACULTURE SPECIES. 3.088 DIAGNOSIS OF FISH DISEASES, 3,082 DISEASES OF AQUACULTURE SPECIES. 3.044 DISEASES OF AQUATIC ANIMALS. 3.013 DISEASES CF SHELLFISH. 3.074 HOST-PARASITE RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN THE CHANNEL CATFISB AND ICHTHYCPHTHIRIUS WULTIFILIIS. 3.050 ICHTHYCPATBOLOGY. 3.089 INFECTIOUS DISEASES OF SALMCNID FISEES. 3.081 MICECHIAI DISEASES AND IMMUNE RESPONSE OF CATFISE. 3.098 SERCLOGIC AND VIRUULENCE STUDIES OF AEROMONAS HYDECPHILA. 3.042 SURVEY OF DISEASES OF CULTURED FRESHWATER FISHES OF CALIFORNIA. 3.005 DIAMINES ENZYME DEVELOPMENT FOR SEAFCOD CUALITY, 9.033 DIATONS EFFECTS OF ATMOSPHERIC INPUTS OF ACIDS AND BEAVY METALS ON LAKE PLANKTON. 4.101 NUTRIENT INTERACTIONS AND CHANGES IN ALGAL QUALITY IN CAYUGA LAKE. 4.140 DIELDEIN EFFECT OF DIET CUALITY CN ACUATIC ANIMALS, S.047 EVALUATION OF PESTICIDE LEVELS IN CATFISE PROCESSING WASTES. 9.001 DIET ANALYSIS CF DEMESTIC FOED DEMAND AND CONSUMPTION BEHAVIOR. 10.008 EEHAVIGE ECCLOGY AND RHYTBMICITY IN THE ROCK CRABS, CANCER IRRORATUS AND CANCER ECREALIS, PHASE II. 1.058, 5.028* EIOSYNTBESIS OF STEROLS IN THE CYSTER AND CORRELATION OF STEROL COMPOSITION TO CYSTER PRCDUCTIVITY. 1.055, 5.027* BREEDING, PRODUCTION, NUTRITICN AND WARBETING CF CHANNEL CATFISE 2.010, 5.020*, 6.040* CHANNEL CATFISE NUTRITICN: 5.031, 5.033 CRUSTACEAN NUTRITION AND FEED DEVELOFMENT. 5.006 DEVELOFMENT OF METHODS FOR MASS PRODUCTION AND MANAGEMENT OF BULLFROGS. 2.013, 4.093* DIETARY FACTORS IN WHITE FISH MEAL FESPONSIBLE FOR CATARACT FORMATION IN TRCUT. 3.018, 5.008*, 9.005*

EVALUATION OF A CLOSED SYSTEM FOR THE CULTURE OF FISH, SHELLFISH AND AQUATIC PLANTS. 5.001, 6.002* EVALUATION OF RELATIVE PROTEIN PERFORMANCE IN PELLETED FISH RATIONS USING PHYSICLOGICAL INDICES. 5.055 EVALUATION OF VARIOUS BATCHERY REARING CONDITIONS CN SEAWARD NIGRATION OF STEELBEAD TROUT. 1.025 FEASIBILITY OF CAGED FISE CULTURE IN NORTH CENTRAL OKLAHCMA FARM PONDS. 4.173, 6.073*, 10.035* FCRMULATION CF FOODS FOR AQUATIC ANIMALS OF ECONOMIC IMPORTANCE. 5.022, 8.016* FRESEWATER FOOD ANIMALS. 4.198, 5.048* LIPID METAEOLISN IN AQUATIC ORGANISMS. 5.053, 9.038* NITECGEN METABOLISM OF FRESHWATER PRAWNS IN RELATICN TO DIET. 5.015 NUTRITION MANAGEMENT AND DISEASE OF MARINE ANIMALS. 3.055, 5.026*, 6.050* NUTRITION OF SALMONID FISHES. 5.041 NUTRITIONAL ASPECTS OF AQUACULTURE SYSTEMS. 5.007, 6.014* RECYCLING WASTES INTO ANIMAL FEEDS. 5.029, 8.029* THE EPPECTS OF DIET ON THE RISE OF CANCER. 9.020 THE TRRAIMENT AND USE OF WASTE PRODUCTS AND CHEMICALS IN THE DIET OF AGUATIC ANIMALS. 5.046. 8.042* WEIGHT GAIN OF FISH. 5.018 DIETARY-FATS THE EFFECTS OF DIET ON THE RISK OF CANCER, 9,020 DIFFERENTIAL-MEDIA CCMPARATIVE STUDY OF THE FLEXIBACTER-CYTCPHAGA GROUP EACTERIA. 4.104 DIGESTIBILITY CHANNEL CATFISH NUTRITICN. 5.033 EVALUATION OF AQUATIC PLANTS AS POTENTIAL FEEDSTUFF FOR DAILY CATTLE. 9.013 EVALUATION OF HY-PRODUCTS FROM CATFISH PROCESSING WASTE FCE CATFISH FEED SUPPLEMENTS. 5.032, 8.030* FRESHWATER FCOD ANIMALS. 2.014, 2.023, 5.004, 5.034*, 5.045*, 6.056*, 6.079* DIGESTION CHANNEL CATFISH NUTRITICN. 5.031 FUNCTIONAL MCRPBCLCGY OF INVERTEBRATE CRGAN SYSTEMS. 1.071 INVESTIGATION OF "IN SITU" SOLIDS DIGESTION FOR SALMONIE PRODUCTION. 6.081 DIGESTIVE-TRACT USE OF CLAM EY-PRODUCTS. 8.037 DIGESTORS DEVELOPMENT OF AN INTEGRATED SYSTEM FOR TOTAL UTILIZATION OF SWINE WASTE, 6,001 DILUENTS CRYOGENIC FRESERVATION OF SPERM FROM WARWWATER FISHES. 2.016 DINETHYL-SULFOXIDE CRYOGENIC FRESERVATION OF SPERM FROM STRIPED BASS. 2.017 DINITRO-ANILINE ACCUMULATION AND DEGRADATION OF SOME BERHICIDES BY ALGAE. 4.171 ALGAL METAPOLISM IN THE PRESENCE OF BERHICIDES. 4.170 DINITRO-PHENCL ACCUMULATION AND DEGRADATION OF SOME BERHICIDES BY ALGAE. 4.171 **DINOFLAGELLATES** PCISONOUS DINOFLAGELLATES AND SHELLFISH PCISONING. 9.042 DIPTERA BIONOMICS AND CONTROL OF CHIRONOMID MIDGES (PLIND MOSQUITCES). 3.026 BLACK FLY DAMAGE TBRESHOLDS, BIOLOGY AND CONTROL. 4.103 DIQUAT NODE OF ACTION AND INFLUENCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS ON THE TOXICITY OF SEVERAL AQUATIC BERBICIDES. 3.100, 4.218* DISEASE-CONTIOL BIOLOGY ANE CONTROL OF AQUATIC ANIMAL DISEASES. 3.054 CONTROL OF WHIRLING DISEASE CF SALMONIDS. 3.063 DETERMINATION OF EFFICACY OF CERTAIN ANTI-PARASITIC DRUGS FCR FISBES. 3.041 DEVELOPMENT OF METHODS FCR WASS PRODUCTION AND MANAGEMENT OF BULLFROGS. 2.013, 4.093*

DIAGNOSIS AND PATHOGENESIS CP DISEASES AND PARASITES IN MAJOR MOLLUSCAN AQUACULTURE SPECIES. 3.088 DISEASE MANAGEMENT IN CULTURED CATFISE. 3.096 DISEASES OF AQUACULTURE SPECIES. 3.044 DISEASES OF AQUATIC ANIMALS. 3.013 DISEASES OF SHELLFISE. 3.074 ENVIRONMENTAL GILL DISEASE IN RAINBOW TROUT. 3.045 NEMATODE PARASITES OF FRESEWATER FISE: HIOLOGY AND EFFECTS. 3.014 SALMON CULTURE - DEVELOPMENT OF NUTRITIONAL AND DISEASE CONTRCL PECGRAMS. 3.064, 5.037* STUDY OF PATHCLOGY OF FISHES FRCM LAKE HYCO. NORTH CARCLINA. 3.079 THE EPPICACY OF SELECTED ANTIFICTICS IN THE PREVENTION AND CONTROL OF BACTERIAL KIDNEY DISEASE. 3.046 DISEASE-DETECTION DETECTION TRANSMISSION AND PATHCGENESIS CF DISEASE ORGANISMS IN AQUACULTURE SPECIES. 3.087 INFECTIOUS DISEASES OF SALMONID FISHES. 3.081 DISEASE-INCIDENCE EFFECTS OF AN ALTERED TEMPERATURE REGIME AND CHENICAL CONTAMINANTS ON THE AQUATIC ECOSYSTEM. 3.062, 4.127* FISH MCRHIDITY AND WORTALITY RELATED TO ENVIRONMENTAL CHANGES ANC/OR INTENSIVE CULTURE METHODS. 4.193 IDENTIFICATION OF SUB-OPTIMAL ENVIRONMENTAL PAKAMETERS AFFECTING AQUACULTURE. 3.080, 4.184* SURVEY OF DISEASES OF CULTURED FRESEWATER FISHES OF CALIFORNIA. 3.009 DISEASE-PREVENTION DISEASES OF SHELLFISH. 3.074 ENVIRONMENTAL GILL DISEASE IN FAINHOW TROUT. 3.045 INFECTICUS DISEASES OF SALMCNID FISHES. 3.081 THE EFFICACY OF SELECTED ANTIHICTICS IN THE PREVENTION AND CONTROL OF EACTERIAL BIDNEY DISEASE. 3.046 DISEASE-RESERVOIRS DETECTION OF PISCINE ERYTHRCCYTIC NECROSIS VIRUS IN OREGON FISHES. 3.083 NEWATCDE PARASITES OF FRESHWATER FISE: EICLOGY AND EFPECTS. 3.014 DISEASE-PESISTANCE DISEASE-RESISTANT OYSTERS. 2.015, 3.067* DISBASE-SURVEYS ICHTEYOPATEOLOGY. 3.089 SURVEY OF DISEASES OF CULTURED FRESHWATER FISHES OF CALIFORNIA. 3.009 DISBASE-SUSCEPTIBILITY HACTERIAL BIDNEY DISEASE IN RAINHOW TECUT: PATHOGENESIS, IMMUNITY, AND EFFECT OF WATER HARDNESS. 3.070 DISEASE MANAGEMENT IN CATPISH AQUACULTURE. 3.087 FRESEWATER FOOD ANIMALS. 3.003 INFECTIOUS PANCHEATIC NECROSIS IN ATLANTIC SALMON. 3.057 SUSCEPTIBILITY TO I. WILTIFILLIS OF CHANNEL CATFISH EXPOSED TO SUBLETHAL CONCENTRATIONS OF COPPER 90. 3.080 DISHASE-TRANSMISSION A SURVEY FOR PATHOGEN FOR AQUATIC WEEDS IN CALIFORNIA FCE USE IN BIOLOGICAL CONTROL. 3.008, 4.009* DETECTION TRANSMISSION AND PATHOGENESIS OF DISEASE CRGANISMS IN AQUACULTURE SPECIES. 3.087 FRESHWATER FOCD ANIMALS. 3.003 TRANSMISSION AND INMUNOLOGY OF CHANNEL CATFISH VIRUS DISEASE CF CULTURED CATFISH. 3.002 TRANSMISSION OF CULTURED CATFISE VIEUS: DETECTION BY INMUNCLEGICAL METBODS. 3.001 DISEASES A STUDY OF THE MICRCHIOLCGICAL FLCRA OF ORNAMENTAL FISHES. 3.040 CULTURE AND WANAGEMENT OF SELECTED GAME FISHES. 3.092, 4.203*, 6.091* ICBTHYOPATEOLOGY. 3.089 MICROHIAL DISEASES AND IMMUNE RESPONSE OF CATFISE. 3.098 STUDY OF PATHOLOGY OF FISHES FROM LAKE BYCC, NORTH CAROLINA. 3.079 DISONTCHA LIFE HISTORY AND PHYSIOLCGICAL STUDIES OF AQUATIC AND MARGINAL WEEDS. 3.061 DISONYCHA-ARGENTINENSIS LIFE BISTORY AND PBYSIOLOGICAL STUDIES OF AQUATIC AND WARGINAL WEEDS. 3.061

DISSOLVED-NUTRIENTS EFFECTS OF DISSOLVED CHEMICALS ON AQUATIC LIFE. 4.078 DISSOLVED-OXIGEN HIOLOGICAL ANALYSIS OF THE AGE AND GROWTH WATE OF THE OCEAN QUABOG ARCTICA ISLANDICA. 4.138 HIOLOGY AND CONTROL OF AQUATIC ANIMAL DISEASES. 3.054 EFFECTS OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONTAMINANTS ON GEORGIA FARM POND FISEES. 4.051, 6.025* LIMNOLOGICAL PARAMETERS. 4.066 CLTRASTRUCTURAL CHANGES IN TELEOST GILLS: EFFECTS OF SUBTLE ALTERATIONS IN THE ENVIRONMENT. 3.053, 4.098* WATER QUALITY ENHANCEMENT OF LAKES BY MECHANICAL PUMPING. 4.088, 6.039* DISTRIBUTION AN EVALUATION OF ENDANGERED MCLLUSES IN VIEGINIA. 1.100, 4.213* REHAVIOR ECCLOGY AND ENTENICITY IN THE ROCK CRAES. CANCER IRRORATUS AND CANCER HOREALIS, PRASE II. 1.058. 5.028* EURASIAN WATERMILFCIL IN CURRITUCE SOUND: ITS CONTROL AND PCTENTIAL USE. 3.077, 4.165* EXPERIMENTAL FISH ECOLOGY. 1.098, 4.207* FISE AND AQUATIC MACEOINVERTEBRATE FAUNA IN SOUTH FORK EOISE RIVER FELCW ANDERSCN RANCH DAM. 1.029 MARINE FCOD SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY. 8.003, 9.004* STOCK DYNAMICS AND ASSESSMENT IN MARINE FISHEBIHS. 1.091, 6.078* THE RELATIONSHIP OF SALINITY AND DISTANCE FROM THE SEA, TO THE DISTRIBUTION OF JUVENILE FISHES. 1.044, 4.094* UTILIZATION CF KRAFT MILL EFFLUENT FOR FISH PRODUCTION. 5.012, 6.020* DISTRIBUTION-PATTEENS ZOOGEOGRAPHY AND ECOLOGY OF FISHES IN PENNSYLVANIA. 1.093, 4.190* Distribution-eystems FRESHWATER FOOD ANIMALS. 6.006, 8.001*, 9.002*, 10.002* DIURNAL-REVIENS ECOLOGY CF SALT MARSHES IN RELATION TO ESTUARIES AND ENERGY FLCW. 1.016, 4.041*, 5.011* DIUFON MODE OF ACTION AND INFLUENCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS ON THE TORICITY OF SEVERAL AQUATIC BERBICILES. 3.100, 4.218≠ DIVERSITY HIOLOGICAL INDICATORS OF ENVIRONMENTAL CUALITY IN CALIFORNIA LAKES AND STREAMS. 4.016 DHA FISH GENETICS. 2.019, 4.183* DOLPHINS INMUNOLOGIC FACTORS IN CANDIDIASIS IN DOLPHINS. 3.031 DORMARCY BCRNCNAL REGULATION OF GROWTH, DEVELOPMENT AND VEGETATIVE PRCPAGATION OF SUBMERSED AQUATIC **VEEDS**. 3.020 DOSAGE DETERMINATION OF EFFICACY OF CERTAIN ANTI-PARASITIC DRUGS FCR FISHES. 3.041 FRESHWATER FCOD ANIMALS. 3.043 MIREX FEEDING STUDY IN CHANNEL CATFISH (ICTALURUS PUNCTATUS). 4.123, 9.022* DOUBLE-CROPPING MANAGEMENT TECHNIQUES FOR INCREASING CRAWFISH PRODUCTION. 6.046, 7.006* DRAINAGE THE EFFECTS OF AGRICULTURAL DRAINAGE OF NATURAL SYSTEMS - PHASE III. 4.036 THE EFFECTS OF IRRIGATION WASTE WATER ON AQUATIC PLANTS IN THE SACRAMENTO RIVER. 4.025 THE PHYSIOLOGICAL EASIS FOR MANAGING TIDAL MARSH VEGETATION. 4.197 DEEDGING NATURAL MASSHES AS NUTBIENT SINKS FOR AGRICULTURAL RUNOFF. 4.089 CVERBOARD DISPOSAL STUDY. 1.066, 4.137* OYSTER DRILL CONTROL BY HYDRAULIC DREDGING IN DELAWARE EAY. 6.064 DEESSING FRESEWATER FOOD ANIMALS. 2.007, 6.023* DRIED-FOOD DEVING SEAFOOD PRODUCTS WITH SCLAF ENERGY. 8.006 DRODGET

LIMNOLOGICAL PARAMETERS. 4.066 DEUG-TEERAPY FRESHWATHR FCOD ANIMALS. 3.043 DRUGS CONTROL OF WHIRLING DISEASE OF SALMONIDS. 3.063 DETERMINATION OF EFFICACY OF CERTAIN ANTI-PARASITIC DEUGS FOR FISBES. 3.041 FRESHWATER FOOD ANIMALS, 3,043 INMUNCLOGIC FACTORS IN CANDIDIASIS IN DOLPHINS. 3.031 MICRCEIAL AND PARASITIC DISEASES OF SHRIMP AND FISH. 3.095 DETING DRYING SEAFOOD PRODUCTS WITE SCLAR ENERGY. 8.006 UTILIZATION CP LATENT MABINE RESCURCES AND HY-PEODUCTS WASTE: 8.041 DRYING-HOUIPMENT DRYING SEAFOOD PRODUCTS WITH SCLAR ENERGY. 8.006 DUNES STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT OF MARGINAL SALT MARSE SPECIES FROM NORTH CAROLIN. 4.158 DYES EIOLOGY AND CONTROL OF AQUATIC VEGETATION. 3.048 BARNINGS SCUTHERN NEW ENGLAND ECCNONIC INFACT PROJECT. 10.040 BATING-QUALITY EVALUATION OF THE STABILITY AND EDIELE QUALITY OF FRESH WATER SHRIMP. 8.019 BODYSONB MOLECULAR ENDOCRINOLOGY OF MCLTING AND REPRODUCTION IN CRUSTACEANS. 1.005 BCBINOCELCA WEED CONTROL IN FICE PRODUCTION. 3.006, 4.008* **ECOLOGY** AN EVALUATION OF ENDANGERED MOLLUSKS IN VIRGINIA. 1.100, 4.213* AQUATIC RESOURCES OF SILVER CREEK AT THE NATURE CONSERVANCY SITE. 4.075 FASELINE STUDIES FOR EVALUATING THE RESPONSE OF AN ECOSYSTEM TO THE INTRODUCTION OF WHITE ANUR. 1.018, 3.028*, 4.046* EARLY LIFE HISTORY ECCLOGY AND GROWTE OF THE BIVES SHRIMF MACKOHRACHIUM CHICKE IN LOUISIANA. 1.646 ECOLOGY OF FISHES AND LINNOLCGY OF UPPER GREAT LAKES AND INTERITARIES IN BELATION TO ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS: 1.060, 4.115* ECOLOGY OF FISHES OF SACRAMENTO - SAN JCAQUIN ESTUARY, WITH EMPHASIS CN SUISUN MARSE. 4.030 ECOLOGY OF SALT MARSHES IN FELATION TO ESTUARIES AND ENERGY FLC%. 1.016, 4.041*, 5.011* ENVIRONMENTAL AND BCOLOGICAL INFLUENCES ON GENETIC VAFIABILITY. 1.009, 2.004*, 4.013* EVALUATION OF METHODS FCR INCREASING NATIVE CUTTEROAT STCCES IN NORTHEEN IDAHO. 4.074, 6.034* EVALUATION OF THE ECOLOGICAL REQUIREMENTS OF RESERVOIR FISE SPECIES. 1.101 FISH AND AQUATIC MACRCINVESTERSATE FAUNA IN SOUTH FORE HOISE RIVER HELCW ANDERSON MANCE DAM. 1.029 FISE GENETICS. 2.019, 4.183* FRESHWATER SHEINF OF THE GENUS MACRCHRACHIUM WITH SPECIAL EMPHASIS ON CULTURE. 4.205, 6.094* INVESTIGATION OF AQUATIC ECCSYSTEMS IN SMALL PCNDS. 1.031, 6.036* Physiology and ecology of the asiatic clar, COFHICULA SP., IN THE SACRAMENTO-SAN JCAQUIN DELTA. 1.004. 4.011* RESEARCH IN SYSTEMS ECOLOGY. 4.141 STUDIES IN PHYCOLOGY. 4.143 THE EFFECTS OF AGEICULTURAL DRAINAGE OF NATURAL SYSTEMS - PHASE III. 4.036 ECONOMETRIC-MODELS ECONOMIC ANALYSES OF FISHERIES MANAGEMENT ISSUES ARISING FRCM FATENDED JURISDICTICN OF NEW ENGLAND. 10.042 BCONOMBTRICS ANALYSIS OF DOMESTIC FOOD DEMAND AND CONSUMPTION HEHAVIOR. 9.041 ECCNONIC-ANALYSIS AN ECONOMIC ANALYSIS OF DECISION MAKING AND POLICY FCREULATION. 10.043 BCONONIC-DEVELOPMENT

FCONOMICS OF FISBERIES DEVELOFMENT AND MANAGEMENT FOR THE HAWAIIAN ARCHIPELAGO. 10.010

THE STATUS AND BELATION OF THE COASTAL ZONE TO ALAEANA'S ECONOMY. 10.001 ECONONIC-EVALUATION ECONCHIC ANALYSIS OF ALTERNATIVE VIRGINIA COASTAL WETLANDS FOLICY. 10.047 ECONOMIC-FEASIBILITY ANALYSIS OF THE MARKET PCTENTIAL FCR FBESH WATER AQUACULTURAL PRODUCTS PRODUCED IN NEVADA: 5.036, 8.032*, 10.022* BIOLOGY AND CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.068 ECONOMICS CF AQUACULTURE. 10.004 ECONOMICS OF BIVALVE MOLLUSE AQUACULTURE IN NEW ENGLAND. 6.054, 10.016* ECONOMICS OF FISHERIES DEVELOPMENT AND MANAGEMENT FOR THE HAWAIIAN ARCHIPELAGC. 10.010 SYSTEMS ANALYSIS OF INTENSIVE AQUACULTUBE: A CASE STUDY CF OYSTER PRODUCTION. 6.026, 10.011* ECONON IC-INPACT AN ECONOMIC ANALYSIS OF THE ATLANTIC COAST STRIPED BASS FISHERY. 10.031 ECONOMIC IMPACTS OF THE 200-MILE LIMIT CN RURAL NCETHEASTERN COASTAL COMMUNITIES. 10.015, 10.018, 10.024, 10.027, 10.039 ECONOMICS CF AQUACULTURE: 10.004 ECCNOMICS OF PRODUCING AND MARKETING LONG ISLAND SOUND OYSTERS. 10.006 EFFECTS OF THE TAX REFORM ACT OF 1976 ON NEW ENGLAND VESSEL OWNERS AND CREW. 10.041 FISHERIES AND WILDLIFE ECONOMICS RESEARCE IN THE GREAT LAKES. 10.019 SOUTHERN NEW ENGLAND ECCNOMIC IMFACT PROJECT. 10.040 THE IMPACT OF SALMONID INTRODUCTIONS ON NEW YORK FISBERMEN AND COMMUNITIES. 10.033 THE STATUS AND RELATION OF THE COASTAL ZCNE TO ALABANA'S ECONOMY. 10.001 ECONONIC-INDICATORS SCUTHERN NEW ENGLAND ECONOMIC IMPACT PROJECT. 10.040 ECONOMIC-POTENTIAL ECONOMICS OF AQUACULTURE. 10.004 ECONONIC-STRUCTURE SCUTHERN NEW ENGLAND ECONOMIC IMPACT PROJECT. 10.040 ECONONIC-TERESECLDS MANAGEMENT STRATEGIES FOR RICE PESTS. 3.005 ECONOMIC-ZONE-COASTAL AFPLICATION OF MANAGEMENT STRATEGIES TO THE MID-ATLANTIC EXTENDED JURISDICTION RECREATIONAL FISHEFIES. 10.034 ECONOMIC IMPACTS OF THE 200-MILE LIMIT ON RUBAL NORTHEASTERN COASTAL CONMUNITIES. 10.015, 10.018, 10.024, 10.027, 10.039 THE IMPACT OF TEE 200 MILE ECONOMIC ZONE ON BURAL NEW ENGLAND COASTAL COMMUNITIES, 10.017 ECONOMICS A POLYCULTURE SYSTEM OF FISH PRODUCTION FOR DISADVANTAGED FARMERS IN ARKANSAS. 6.009 AN ANALYSIS OF NEW ENGLAND FISHEFIES INVESTMENT BEEAVIOF. 10.037 AN ECONOMIC ANALYSIS OF DECISION MAKING AND POLICY FCEMULATION. 10.043 AN ECONOMIC ANALYSIS OF THE ATLANTIC CCAST STRIPED EASS PISEERY. 10.031 AN ECONOMIC EVALUATION OF ICE FISBING IN MAINE. 10.014 AN ECONOMIC EVALUATION OF THE RECREATIONAL SALMON FISEING IN THE KENAL/EUSSIAN EIVEE EEGICN. 10.036 ANALYSIS OF DOMESTIC FOOD DEMAND AND CONSUMPTION BEBAVIOF. 9.041, 10.008 ANALYSIS OF TEE MARKET PCTENTIAL FOR FEESE WATER AQUACULTURAL PRODUCTS PRODUCED IN NEVADA. 5.036, 8.032*, 10.022* ASSESSMENT OF COASTAL RECREATION RESOURCES. 10.046 CATFISE BREEDING, PRODUCTICN, AND MAEKETING. 10.003 COSTS AND JETURNS IN THE OTTER TRAVL FLEET ON LONG ISLAND, NEW YCRE. 10.029 DEVELOPMENT OF A FISH MARKETING PROGRAM. 10.032 ECCNOMIC ANALYSES OF FISEERIES MANAGEMENT ISSUES ARISING FROM EXTENDED JURISDICTION OF NEW ENGLAND. 10.042 ECONOMIC ANALYSIS OF ALTERNATIVE VIRGINIA COASTAL WETLANDS POLICY. 10.047 ECONOMIC EEEAVIOE OF FOOD AND FIBER FIRMS. 10.007 ECONOMIC DESCRIPTION OF THE NEW JERSEY COMMERCIAL

FISEING INDUSTRY. 10.025

ALASKA SBELLFISH INDUSTEY. 10.049 ECONOMICS OF AQUACULTURE. 10.004 ECONOMICS OF BIVALVE MOLLUSE AQUACULTURE IN NEW ENGLAND. 6.054, 10.016* ECONOMICS OF FISHERIES DEVELOPMENT AND MANAGEMENT FOR THE HAWAIIAN ARCHIPELAGC. 10.010 ECONCHICS OF PEODUCING AND MARKETING LONG ISLAND SOUND OYSTERS. 10.006 ECONOMICS OF SALMONID AQUACULTURE IN NEW ENGLAND. 6.082, 10.038* ECONOMICS OF THE COMMERCIAL FISH INDUSTRY. 10.044, 10.045 EFFECTS OF THE TAX REFORM ACT OF 1976 ON NEW ENGLAND VESSEL OWNERS AND CHEW. 10.041 FEASIBILITY OF CAGED FISH CULTURE IN NORTH CENTRAL OKLABOMA FARM PONDS. 4.173, 6.073*, 10.035* FISB CULTURE USING GEOTHERMAL WATER. 6.032 FISHERIES AND WILDLIFE ECONOMICS RESEARCE IN THE GREAT LAKES. 10.019 FRESHWATER FOOD ANIMALS. 2.014, 3.039, 4.198, 5.014*, 5.034*, 5.048*, 6.006, 6.024*, 6.056*, 8.001*, 9.002*, 10.002* BUMAN ECOLOGY OF NEW JERSEY FISHERIES. 10.026 MANAGEMENT ECONOMICS OF NEW YORE'S MARINE INDUSTRIES. 10.030 NANAGEMENT OF A NULTIPLE COBORT FISHERY: THE HARD CLAM RESOURCES IN GREAT SOUTE BAY. 10.028 MARKET POTENTIAL AND CURRENT MARKETING PROCEDURES AND PRACTICES OF THE CATFISE FOR FOOD INDUSTRY. 10.021 PRAWN AQUACULTURAL ENGINEERING. 6.027, 7.002* PRELIMINARY COSTS OF CATFISH PROCESSING WASTE UTILIZATION. 5.021, 10.013* PRODUCTION ECONOMICS OF AQUACULTURE SPECIES IN BAWAII. 10.005 REGULATION OF WISCONSIN'S LAKE MICHIGAN CONMERCIAL FISHERIES. 10.050 RESEARCE IN SYSTEMS ECOLOGY. 4.141 SOUTHERN NEW ENGLAND ECCNOMIC IMPACT PROJECT. 10.040 STUDY OF MANURE-ENRICHED FOOD WEES IN MARINE PCND ECOSYSTEMS. 5.016 SYSTEMS ANALYSIS OF INTENSIVE ACUACULTURE: A CASE STUDY OF OYSTER PECDUCTICN. 6.026, 10.011* THE IMPACT OF SALMONID INTECDUCTIONS ON NEW YORK FISHERMEN AND COMMUNITIES. 10.033 THE IMPACT OF THE 200 MILE ECONCMIC ZONE ON RURAL NEW ENGLAND COASTAL COMMUNITIES. 10.017 THE STATUS AND BELATION OF THE COASTAL ZCNE TC ALABAMA'S ECCNCMY. 10.001 WATER QUALITY STOCKING RATES AND BARVESTING SYSTEMS FOR CATFISH. 6.059 ECONONICS-OF-SIZE ECONOMICS OF THE COMMERCIAL FISH INDUSTRY. 10.044 BCOSYSTEMS AQUATIC RESOURCES OF SILVER CREEK AT THE NATURE CONSERVANCY SITE. 4.075 ECOLOGICAL STUDY OF CUTOPF BENDWAYS AND OXECWS WITEIN THE TENNESSEE-TOMEIGHEE WATERWAY. 4.124 ECOLOGY OF PURPLE LOOSESTRIFE (LYTERUM SALICARIA). 3.073 ENVIRONMENTAL AND ECOLOGICAL INFLUENCES CN GENETIC VARIAEILITY. 1.009, 2.004*, 4.013* INPACTS OF RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT AND EXPLORTATION ON NATURAL RESOURCES. 4.216 INVESTIGATION OF AQUATIC ECOSYSTEMS IN SMALL PONDS. 1.031, 6.036* EDUCATION-PROGRAMS DISEASES OF SHELLFISH. 3.074 BELS FRESHWATER FCCD ANIMALS. 4.198, 5.048* NEW FOOD PRODUCTS FROM UNDEBUTILIZED FISE SPECIES. 8.033 VISUAL PIGMENT CHANGES DURING THE LIFE CYCLE OF THE AMERICAN EEL, ANGUILLA FOSTRATA. 1.077 REFICACY EIGLOGY AND CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.068 DETERMINATION OF EPFICACY OF CERTAIN ANTI-PARASITIC DRUGS FOR FISHES. 3.041 EVALUATION OF EFFICACY, CROP RESPONSES AND CROP AND WATER RETENTION OF POTENTIAL AQUATIC BEREICIDES. 3.021. 4.035* EVALUATION OF FUSARIUM ROSEUM 'CULMORUM' AS A

ECCNONIC INPACTS OF THE 200-NILE LINIT CN RURAL

NORTHEASTERN COASTAL COMMUNITIES. 10.015,

10.018, 10.024, 10.027, 10.039 ECONOMIC PROFILE & REGIONAL ECONOMIC IMPACTS OF THE

EVALUATION OF FUSARIUM ROSEUM 'CULMORUM' AS A BIOLOGICAL CONTROL FOR BYDRILLA VERTICILLATA. 3.029

NECHANICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.022 INSECTICIDES AND TREIR FORMULATIONS. 4.131 RICHHORNIA-CEASSIFES TRE EFFICACY OF SELECTED ANTIRICTICS IN TRE PREVENTION AND CONTROL OF EACTERIAL KIDNEY DISEASE. 3.046 FFFICIENCY. CLOSED CYCLE FISH CULTURE WATER FILTBATICN USING BIOLOGICAL SYSTEMS. 4.105, 6.053* EQUIPMENT FOR MECHANIZATION OF PRODUCTION OF OYSTERS AND OTHER SRELLFISR. 6.083, 7.012* EFFLUENTS ABATEMENT OF EUTFOPHICATION RESULTING FROM INTENSIVE ANIMAL FROEUCTICN. 4.195, 6.080* ANALYSIS AND WODELING LAKE WICHIGAN FISE POPULATICN. 1.015, 4.032* ACUACULTURAL WASTEWAINE MANAGEMENT AND UTILIZATION IN HAWAII. 4.053, 6.029± BIOLOGICAL, TECRNICAL, AND ECCNCHIC STUDIES OF CULTUREI AQUATIC FESCURCES. 4.151, 6.066* CULTURE OF AQUATIC OFGANISMS AND EVALUATION OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS AT STEAM ELECTRIC PLANTS. 6.093 EFFECTS CF AN ALTERED TEMPERATURE REGIME AND CHEMICAL CONTAMINANTS ON THE AQUATIC ECCSYSTEM. 3.062, 4.127* EFFECTS OF AQUATIC PLANT COMMUNITIES ON WATER QUALITY IN HYPERFUTROPRIC ACUATIC ENVIRONMENT. 4.117 EFFECTS OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS AND MANAGEMENT PRACTICES ON COMMERCIAL PRODUCTION OF CRAWFISH. 4.096, 6.047* EVALUATION OF A CLOSED SYSTEM FOR THE CULTURE OF FISH, SFELLFISH AND AQUATIC PLANTS. 5.001, 6.002* FRESHWATER FOOD ANIMALS. 5.013, 6.022* INTEGRATION OF A SOLAR GREENROUSE WITE A BECIRCULATING FISE CULTURE SYSTEM. 6.003 MICRCHIOLOGICAL ASSESSMENT OF RIVER WATER CONTAMINATION. 3.084. 4.187* PRODUCTION OF MACROBRACBIUM ROSENBERGII (GIANT NALAYSIAN PRAWN IN NEVADA). 6.060 UTILIZATION OF KRAFT WILL EFFLUENT FOR FISH PECDUCTION. 5.012, 6.020* WATER QUALITY CHANGES IN CYSTER PROCESSING. 8.025 EGERIA **BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF WEEDS. 3.104** FGGS ADULT FALL CHINOCK TRAPPING FOR SNAKE RIVER EGG BANK PRCGRAM. 6.033 BREEDING EXPERIMENTS WITH SALMONIDS. 2.024 CULTURE CF PACIFIC SALMON. 1.087, 6.076* DEVELOP OF AQUACULTURE SYSTEMS FCE CCCI WATEF FISE SPECIES. 2.028, 5.057*, 6.102* DEVELOPMENT AND APPLICATION OF A METRODOLOGY FOR RECOMMENDING SALMONID EGG INCUBATION FLOWS. 4.070 EFFECTS OF INCREASED FINE SEDIMENT ON INCUEATION AND EMERGENCE OF CEINCOK SALMON AND STEELREAD **ISOUT.** 4.071 LABORATORY CULTURE FCR RESEARCE PURPOSES OF ESTUARINE AND MARINE LOESTERS, CRABS AND SHRIMPS. 1.048, 5.024* MCLECULAR ENDOCRINCLOGY OF MCLTING AND REPRODUCTION IN CRUSTACEANS. 1.005 OSMOREGULATCRY RESPONSES OF DESERT PUPFISH: A STUDY MODEL OF PHYSIOLOGICAL ACAPTATION TO ENVIRONMENT. 1.003, 4.010* POSSIBLE CAUSES OF BLUEGILI LEPCHIS MARCOCBIRUS DEFORMITIES. 1.080, 4.161* STATUS, ABUNDANCE AND EXPLOITATION OF THE STRIPED BASS IN THE ROANCKE FIVER, NC. 4.163 SURVEY OF LARVAL FISRES IN THE NEARSBORE GULF WATERS CF LOUISIANA. 1.047 THE IMPACT OF POWER PEAKING ON EGG INCUBATION OF FAIL CEINCOK SALMON. 4.072 THE STATUS, ABUNDANCE, AND YIELD OF THE STRIPED BASS IN THE ROANCKE RIVER, NORTH CAROLINA. 1.081, 4.164* EICEBORNIA BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS IN THE SCUTHEAST. 3.034 BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS WITH INSECTS. 3.038 **BIOLOGICAL CONTRCL OF WEEDS. 3.104** CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.108 EVALUATION OF AQUATIC PLANTS AS POTENTIAL FEEDSTUFF FOR DAIRY CATTLE. 9.013 IDENTIFICATION OF INSECTS FOR BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.036

BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF WEEDS WITH PATEOGENS. 3.103 IMPORTATION AND EVALUATION OF INSECTS FOR BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF WEEDS AND INSECT PESTS. 3.037 ORGANISMS ASSOCIATED WITE AQUATIC WEEDS AND TRE BICLCGICAL CONTROL WATER-RYACINTE IN EGYPT. 3.105 PHYSICLCGY AND MANAGEMENT OF ACUATIC NEEDS INTERFERING WITE THE USE OF WATER RESCURCES. 3.035 ELECTRIC-POWEE-PLANTS CULTURE OF AQUATIC ORGANISMS AND EVALUATION OF ENVIECNMENTAL CONDITIONS AT STEAN ELECTRIC PLANTS. 6.093 ECOLOGY OF FISHES AND LINNCLOGY OF UPPER GREAT LAKES AND TRIEUTARIES IN RELATION TO ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS. 1.060, 4.115# EFFECTS ON SELECTED ORGANISMS OF WATER PASSING THECUGE THE CEDAR BAYOU GENERATING STATICN. 4.210, 6.097* METECDOLOGY AND ASSESSMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL EFFECTS AT LOW HEAD RYDRO POWER SITES. 4.148 BLECTRICAL-APPLIANCES RESPONSE OF FISRES AND AQUATIC SYSTEMS TO ELECTRIC SROCK AND CAPTURE TECHNOLOGY. 6.101 ELECTRICAL-APPLICATIONS RESPONSE OF FISHES AND AQUATIC SYSTEMS TO ELECTRIC SROCK AND CAPTURE TECENCLOGY. 6.101 BLECTRICITY ENVIRONMENTAL EFFECTS ON PRODUCTIVITY OF CRAYFISE IN FCND RABITATS, PHASE I, II. 5.025, 6.048*, 7.007* RESFONSE OF FISRES AND AQUATIC SYSTEMS TO ELECTRIC SHOCK AND CAPTURE TECRNCLOGY. 6.101 RLECTRON-NICROSCOPY A MULTI-INSTITUTIONAL APPRCACE TO THE IDENTIFICATION OF HIVALVE LAEVAE. 1.067 ALGAL NETABOLISM IN THE FRESENCE OF HERBICIDES. 4.170 DETECTION OF PISCINE ERYTHECCYTIC NECROSIS VIRUS IN CREGCN FISRES. 3.083 DISEASE MANAGEMENT IN CULTURED CATFISE. 3.096 MOEPECLOGICAL, ULTRASTRUCTURAL, AND BIOCHEMICAL CHARACTERIZATION OF NANOPLANETON FECH CRESAPEAKE BAY. 1.056, 4.108* PATHOLOGY AND PATROGENESIS CF CATFISE DISEASES. 3.099 PISCINE ERYTBROCYTIC NECROSIS IN THE ATIANTIC CCD. 3.056 PRELIMINARY STUDIES ON CRAWFISE AND FRESEWATER SRRIMP DISEASES. 1.096, 3.094± THE EFFECT OF FROZEN STORAGE ON TEXTURAL QUALITY OF LCESTEE NEAT. 8.023 BLECTRON-TRANSPORT NODE OF ACTION AND INFLUENCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS ON THE TOXICITY OF SEVERAL AQUATIC BERBICIDES. 3.100, 4.218* BLECTFOPEORESIS ANIMAL BEHEDING AND GENETICS CF FISE. 2.002 EIOCHEMICAL GENETICS AND CYTOGENETICS OF TROUT. 2.022 DETECTION TRANSMISSION AND PATHOGENESIS OF DISEASE ORGANISMS IN AQUACULTURE SPECIES. 3.087 ECOLOGY OF LARVAL STREAM FISRES. 1.038, 4.084 GENETIC ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT OF CRUSTACEAN AQUACULTURE STOCES. 2.003 GENETIC ASSESSMENT OF MACRCERACRIUM CN GUAN. 1.023 GENETIC STUDIES OF ABERNATRY CREEK CBINCCK SALWON. 2.020 GENETICS OF NATURAL FISE POPULATIONS. 1.037, 2.009# NICROBIAL DISEASES AND IMMUNE RESPONSE OF CATFISE. 3.098 REPOCHARIS BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF ACUATIC WEEDS WITH COMPETITIVE SPECIES CF SPIKEBUSB (ELECCHARIS SPP.). 3.011 Phytotoxins from aquatic and terfestrial plants, BACTERIA, AND FUNGI. 3.017 USE OF SPIKERUSE (ELEOCRARIS SPF.) FCE BICICGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.016 ELECCHARIS-COLORADOENSIS

CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS EASED ON ALLELOFATRIC CRAFACTERISTICS IN SFIREFUSH (ELECCRARIS SPP.). 3.007

BLISA-ASSAT

ROST-PARASITE RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN THE CHANNEL CATFISE AND ICETEYOPETHIBIUS NULTIFILIIS. 3.050 SEROLCGICAL METHODS FOR DETECTION AND **IDENTIFICATION OF VIRUS DISEASES OF FISE. 3.058** ELODBA A SURVEY FCE PATHOGEN FOR AQUATIC WHEDS IN CALIFORNIA FOR USE IN BIOLOGICAL CONTROL. 3.008. 4.009* EVALUATION OF EFFICACY, CEOP RESPONSES AND CROP AND WATER RETENTION OF POTENTIAL AQUATIC FEBRICIDES. 3.021, 4.035* EMERYO-DEVEL CPMENT DEVELOPMENT AND APPLICATION OF A WETHODCLOGY FCE RECOMMENDING SALMONID EGG INCUEATION FLOWS. 4.070 THE IMPACT OF POWER PEAKING ON EGG INCUEATION OF FALL CHINOCK SALNON. 4.072 EMERYOS CSMOREGULATORY RESPONSES OF DESERT PUPFISE: A STUDY MODEL OF PRYSIOLOGICAL ADAPTATION TO ENVIRCHMENT. 1.003, 4.010* PRODUCTION OF IDENTIFICATION CIECULAES ON THE LARVAE CF COLORADC FISHES. 1.014 EMPERMERCPTE SA EFFECTS OF ANTIMYCIN ON STREAM INSECTS. 3.102. 4.222* EMPLOYEES EFFECTS OF THE TAX REFORM ACT OF 1976 ON NEW ENGLAND VESSEL OWNERS AND CREW. 10.041 **EMPLOYNENT** ECONCHIC DESCRIPTION OF THE NEW JERSEY COMMERCIAL FISHING INDUSTRY. 10.025 ECCNCMIC IMPACTS OF THE 200-MILE LIMIT CN RURAL NORTHEASTERN COASTAL COMMUNITIES. 10.015, 10.018, 10.024, 10.027 ECONOMICS OF PRODUCING AND MARKETING LONG ISLAND SOUND OYSTERS. 10.006 SOUTBERN NEW ENGLAND ECCNONIC INFACT PROJECT. 10.040 THE INPACT OF THE 200 NILE ECCNOMIC ZONE ON RURAL NEW ENGLAND COASTAL COMMUNITIES. 10.017 REULSIONS THE USE OF SELECTED WARINE WATERIALS AND EY-PRODICTS FOR CERTAIN BORTICULTURAL CHOPS. 8.044 ENCAPSULATION INSECTICIDES AND THEIR FORMULATIONS. 4.131 NUTRITIONAL ASPECTS OF AQUACULTURE SYSTEMS. 5.007, 6.014* ENDANGERED-SFECTES AN EVALUATION OF ENDANGERED MCLLUSKS IN VIEGINIA. 1.100, 4.213* ECOLOGICAL FACTORS AFFECTING POTENTIALLY THEFATENED OR ENCANGERED FISH SPECIES IN NY. 4.147 ECOLOGY OF FARE AND ENDANGERED FISHES OF PENNSYLVANIA. 4.191 BFFECTS OF LCGGING CN ARIZONA TRCUT AND THEIR BABITAT IN THE WHITE MOUNTAINS OF ARIZONA. 4.005 ENDOCRINOLOGY PERFORMANCE OF SALMONIDS: SWCLTIFICATION, STRESS AND FITNESS. 1.089. 6.077* ENDOTOXINS TCXICITY OF AEROMONAS HYDROPHILIA EXCTOXINS IN CHANNEL CATFISE. 3.052 ENERGY ANALYSIS AND NODELING LAKE MICHIGAN FISH POPULATION. 1.015. 4.032* DRYING SEAFOOD PRODUCTS WITH SCLAF ENERGY, 8,006 ECOLOGY OF FISHES AND LINNCLCGY OF UPPER GREAT LAKES AND TRIBUTARIES IN RELATION TO ENVIRCEMENTAL IMPACTS. 1.060, 4.115* EFFECTS OF POLLUTANTS ON GILLS OF FRESHWATER FISBES. 3.060, 4.119* NUTRITIONAL ASPECTS OF AQUACULTURE SYSTEMS. 5.007, 6.014* PBYSIOLOGY OF CBESAPEAKE BAY PBYTOPLANKTON. 1.054, 4.107* ENBEGY-BUDGET VARIABILITY IN PHYSICAL REGIME OF LAKE TITICACA: RELATION TO BIOLOGICAL PROCESSES. 4.014 ENERGY-CONSELVATION TAXONONY AND MORPHOLOGY OF NEWATODES. 3.027 ENERGY-COSTS RESEARCE IN SYSTEMS ECOLOGY, 4,141 ENERGY-FLOW ECOLCGY CF SALT MARSHES IN RELATION TO ESTUARIES

ECOLCGY CF SALT MARSHES IN RELATION TO ESTUARIES AND ENERGY FLOW. 1.016, 4.041*, 5.011*

LIMITS ON PRODUCTION OF ARCTIC CHIRCNOWIDAE: A PART OF PROJECT A. L. P. S.. 4.167 ENERGY-INPUT NICRCCCSM MODELING OF THE RESPONSE OF PERSISTENT AQUATIC COMMUNITIES TO A TOXICANT. 4.182 ENERGY-LEVELS FRESEWATER FOOD ANIMALS. 5.004, 5.013, 6.022* ENERGY-REQUIREMENTS UTILIZATION OF PROTEIN INGREDIENTS IN FISE RATIONS. 5.044 ENERGY-STORAGE INTEGRATION OF A SOLAR GREENBOUSE WITH A RECIRCULATING FISE CULTURE SYSTEM. 6.003 ENERGY-TRANSFER SCOPE OF WORK FOR PRELIMINARY STUDY OF PRIMARY AND SECONDARY PRODUCTION OF THE ST. LAWRENCE EIVER. 4.150 ENGINEERING EIOCCNVEESICN OF CHITIN WASTES. 8.004 CLOSED CYCLE FISE CULTURE WATER FILTBATICN USING EIOLOGICAL SYSTENS. 4.105, 6.053* DEVELOPMENT OF FISH PROTECTIVE SYSTEMS FOR WATER INTAKES. 4.022 EQUIPMENT FOR MECHANIZATION OF PRODUCTION OF OYSTERS AND OTHER SEELLFISE. 6.083, 7.012* FRESHWATER FOOD ANIMALS. 6.004 INSECTICIDE AND NON-CHEMICAL CONTROL OF MCSQUITCES. 4.037 INTEGRATION OF A SOLAR GREENHOUSE WITH A RECIRCULATING FISH CULTURE SYSTEM. 6.003 MECHANICAL CONTACL OF ACUATIC WEEDS. 3.022 MECHANIZATION OF CRAWFISE BARVESTING AND PRODUCTION. 6.042, 7.005* CPERATING PARAMETERS OF LAGCONS FOR DISPOSAL OR UTILIZATION OF DAIRY FARM AND PRCCESSING PLANT WASTE. 8.014 OYSTER PRODUCTION EQUIPMENT DEVELOPMENT. 4.052, 6.028* PRAWN AQUACULTURAL ENGINEERING. 6.027, 7.002* WATER QUALITY MAINTENANCE IN CLOSED CYCLE FISE CULTURE SYSTEMS. 6.052 ENTEROBACTERIACEAE ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS OF SALMCNELLOSIS. 3.049 ENTEROTOXINS IMPROVING THE ASSURANCE OF QUALITY AND SAFETY OF CONSUMER'S FOCD. 9.031 ENTERPRISE ECONOMIC BEHAVIOR OF FOCD AND FIBER FIRMS. 10.007 RNTONOLOGY EIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF MCSQUITCES IN CENTRAL AND NORTHERN CALIFORNIA. 4.012 COMPARATIVE ECCLOGY OF SELECTED SPECIES OF AQUATIC INSECTS, PEASE IV. 4.042 ECOLOGICAL RELATIONSHIPS OF PESTICIDES, FADICNUCLIDES & NUTRIENTS WITH ORGANISMS IN AQUATIC COMMUNIT. 4.113 INPORTATION AND EVALUATION OF INSECTS FOR BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF WEEDS AND INSECT PESTS. 3.037 INSECTICIDE AND NON-CHEMICAL CONTROL OF MOSCUITCES. 4.037 LIMITS ON PEODUCTION OF AECTIC CHIRONOMIDAE: A PART OF PROJECT A. L. P. S.. 4.167 ORGANISMS ASSOCIATED WITH AQUATIC WEEDS AND THE BIOLOGICAL CONTROL WATES-BYACINTE IN EGYPT. 3.105 WATER QUALITY STUDIES: COMFARATIVE ECOLOGY AND SYSTEMATICS OF SELECTED AQUATIC INSECTS. 4.043 ENVIRONMENT APPLICATION OF OTOLITH MICECSTRUCTURAL DATA TO STUDIES OF THE BARLY LIFE HISTORY CF FISHES. 1.070 APPLIED PHYSIOLOGY OF ECONOMICALY IMPORTANT FISHES. 4.202 BIOLOGY AND CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.068 CONTROL OF WEEDS AND CERTAIN CTHER AQUATIC PESIS IN THE PACIFIC SOUTHWEST. 3.015, 4.031≠ CRUSTACEAN NUTRITION AND FEED DEVELOPMENT. S.006 ENVIRONMENTAL AND ECOLOGICAL INFLUENCES CN GENETIC VARIABILITY. 1.009, 2.004*, 4.013* ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS OF SALMONELLOSIS. 3.049 ENVIRONMENTAL REQUIREMENTS OF POTENTIAL AQUACULTURE FISH SPECIES. 4.027 FATE AND EFFECTS OF TOXICANTS IN AGRICULTURAL AND ENVIRONMENTAL FOCD CHAINS. 4.154 FRESHWATER SHEINF OF THE GENUS WACRCERACHIUM WITH SPECIAL EMPHASIS ON CULTURE. 4.205, 6.094*

PARAMETERS AFFECTING AQUACULTURE. 3.090, 4.194* LIMITS ON PRODUCTION OF AECTIC CEIRCNCHIDAE: A PART OF PROJECT A. L. P. S.. 4.167 MICRCBIOLOGICAL ASPECTS TO SEELLFISH SANITATION AND QUALITY. 7.014, 8.047*, 9.037* NITROGEN FINATION AND ITS EFFECT ON EUTROPEICATION: IN-POINT AND NON-POINT SCUECE ECNES. 4.157 PHOTOSYNTBESIS AND PBOTORESFIRATION IN AQUATIC PLANTS. 1.017 PHYSIOLOGY OF CHESAPEAKE BAY PHYTOPLANKTON. 1.054, 4.107* RELATIONSHIPS HETWEEN SALT MARSH AND ESTUARINE ANIMAL COMMUNITIES AND ENERGY EXCHANGE. 4.040, 5.010* STUDIES IN PEYCOLOGY. 4.143 TOXIC EFFECTS ON THE AQUATIC HIOTA FACE CCAL AND OIL SHALE DEVELOPMENT. 4.034 TRANSMISSION AND IMMUNOLOGY OF CHANNEL CATFISH VIRUS DISEASE OF CULTURED CATFISE. 3.002 UPTAKE AND MOVEMENT CF HERBICIDES AND NUTRIENTS IN AQUATIC WEED SPECIES. 3.019 ENVIRONMENTAL-EFFECTS EFFECTS OF AN ALTERED TEMPERATURE REGIME AND CHENICAL CONTAMINANTS ON THE AQUATIC ECOSYSTEM. 3.062, 4.127* EXPERIMENTAL FISE ECCLOGY. 1.098, 4.207* INTENSIVE CULTURE OF THE WALLEYE (PEECIDAE: STIZOSTEDION VITREUN). 5.038, 6.067* METHODOLOGY AND ASSESSMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL EFFECTS AT LOW FEAD HYDRO POWEF SITES. 4.148 BHVIRONMENTAL-FACTORS BNVIRONMENTAL GILL DISEASE IN RAINHOW TECUT. 3.045 ENVIRONMENTAL-IMPACT ECOLOGY ANE TAXONOMY OF TWO MAJOE ORDERS OF AQUATIC INSECTS, EPHEMEROPTERA AND TRICHOPTERA, IN VA. 4.212 EFFECTS OF LAND USE PRACTICES CN STREAM BIOTA. 4.085 EFFECTS OF WATERSHED PRACTICES ON STREAM BABITAT AND FISH POPULATIONS. 4.181 EQUIPMENT FOR MECHANIZATION OF PRODUCTION OF OYSTEES AND OTHER SBELLFISH. 6.083, 7.012* FACTORS AFFECTING FISH POPULATIONS IN IOWA WATERS. 1.040, 4.087*, 6.038* IDENTIFICATION OF SUB-OPTIMAL ENVIRONMENTAL PARAMFTERS AFFECTING ACUACULTURE. 3.090, 4.194* PRE-IMPOUNEMENT ENVIRONMENTAL STUDIES OF ACUILLA LAKE. 4.209 THE STATUS AND RELATION OF THE COASTAL ZONE TO ALAEAMA'S ECONOMY. 10.001 ZCOGEOGRAPHY AND ECOLOGY OF FISHES IN PENNSYLVANIA. 1.093, 4.190* ENVIRONMENTAL-INFLUENCE BIOLOGY AND CONTROL OF AQUATIC ANIMAL DISEASES. 3.054 EIOLOGY, BCOLOGY, TAXONCHY AND DISTRIBUTION OF AQUATIC INSECTS IN WISCONSIN. 4.221 DEVELOPMENT AND APPLICATION OF A METHODOLOGY FOR RECOMMENDING SALMONID EGG INCUBATION FLOWS. 4.070 DISEASES OF SHELLFISE. 3.074 EEFECTS OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS AND MANAGEMENT PRACTICES ON COMMERCIAL PECDUCTION OF CRAWFISE. 4.096, 6.047* ENVIECNMENTAL AND ECOLOGICAL INFLUENCES ON GENETIC VARIABILITY. 1.009, 2.004*, 4.013* EXPERIMENTAL PISH ECOLOGY. 1.098, 4.207* INVESTIGATION OF AQUATIC ECOSYSTEMS IN SMALL PONDS. 1.031, 6.036* JUVENILE EMIGRATION OF LABONTAN CUTTEROAT TROUT IN THE TRUCKEE-PYRAMID LAKE SYSTEM. 4.055 LIMNOLOGICAL PARAMETERS. 4.066 MCLLUSCAN EATCHERY TECHNOLOGY. 6.075 PBOTOSYNTHESIS AND PBOTORESPIRATION IN AQUATIC PLANTS. 1.017 PRAWN AQUACULTURE PROGRAM - BIOLOGICAL BASIS OF PEODUCTICN. 2.008, 6.030* STEELBEAD FATCHER BY AS AFFECTED BY RELATIVELY HIGH TEMPERATURE WATER. 4.068 TEMPERATURE EPFECTS ON XENOBIOTIC ELIMINATION BY FISHES. 4.179 THE IMPACT OF POWER PEAKING ON EGG INCUEATION OF FALL CHINOOK SALMON. 4.072 ULTRASTRUCTURAL CHANGES IN TELEOST GILLS: EFFECTS

IDENTIFICATION OF SUB-OPTIMAL ENVIRONMENTAL

OF SUBTLE ALTERATIONS IN THE ENVISCIMENT. 3.053, 4.098*

VARIABILITY IN PHYSICAL REGIME OF LAKE TITICACA: RELATION TO BIOLOGICAL PLOCESSES. 4.014 ENVIRONMENTAL-QUALITY IMPACTS OF RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT AND EXPLORTATION ON NATURAL SESOURCES. 4.216 ENVIRONMENTAL-STRESS ADAPTATION FACTORS AND CONTROL CE AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.093, 4.204* DISEASE MANAGEMENT IN CULTURED CATFISE. 3.096 EFFECTS OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONTAMINANTS ON GECRGIA FARN PCND FISEES. 4.051, 6.025* FISE WORHIDITY AND WORTALITY FFLATED TC ENVIRONMENTAL CHANGES ANC/OR INTENSIVE CULTURE METHODS. 4.193 FISH PHYSIOLOGY IN RESPONSE TO WATER QUALITY AND CEENISTRY. 4.211 CSMOREGULATORY RESPONSES OF DESERT PUPFISH: A STUDY NCDEL OF PHYSIOLOGICAL ADAPTATION TO ENVIECNMENT. 1.003, 4.010* ENZYME-ACTIVITY **EIOCCNVERSION OF CHITIN WASTES. 8.004** COMPARATIVE STUDIES OF LOBSTER AND CHICKEN MUSCLE. 9.027 THE EFFECTS OF DIET ON THE RISK CF CANCER, 9,020 ENZYME-KINBTICS FIOCCNVERSION OF CHITIN WASTES. 8.004 ENZYMES ANIMAL BREEDING AND GENETICS CF FISE. 2.002 APPLIED PHYSICLCGY OF HCCNOMICALY IMPORTANT FISHES. 4.202 **BIOCONVERSION OF CHITIN WASTES. 8.004** FIOLCGICALLY ACTIVE AMINES IN FCOD. 8.009 COMPARATIVE STUDIES OF LOBSTER AND CHICKEN MUSCLE. 9.027 DEVELOPMENT OF IMPROVED BANCLING. SEIPPING/STORAGE AND MARKETING PRACTICES FOR FISHERY PECDUCTS. 7.010, 8.039*, 9.030* EFFECTS OF POLLUTANTS ON GILLS CF FEESEWATER FISHES. 3.060, 4.119* ENVIRONMENTAL AND ECOLOGICAL INFLUENCES ON GENETIC VARIABILITY. 1.009, 2.004×, 4.013* ENZYMATIC CONTROL OF QUALITY FACTORS IN MARINE FOODS. 8.026 ENZYME DEVELOFMENT FOR SEAFOOD CUALITY. 9.033 ENZYMES IN FOOD FERMENTATIONS. \$.025 FACTORS AFFECTING THE TEXTURE OF SEAFCODS. 7.009, 8.038*, 9.029* GENETIC ASSESSMENT OF MACECHRACHIUN ON GUAN. 1.023 LOW-TEMPERATURE STORAGE OF FRESEWATEE PEAWN. MACROBRACEIUM EOSENBERGII. 8.010 PROCESSING QUALITY AND PACKAGING FACTORS WHICH AFFECT THE UTILIZATION OF FISH AND SHELLFISH. 8.046, 9.036* STUDIES OF RELATIONSBIPS BETWEEN MARINE AND TERRESTRIAL BACTERIA. 1.008 TRACE MINEFAL INHALANCE IN HATCHERY FISH. 5.019 USE OF CLAM HY-PRODUCTS. 8.037 EPREMEROPTERA COMPARATIVE ECOLOGY OF SELECTED SPECIES OF AQUATIC INSECTS, PEASE IV. 4.039, 4.042 ECOLOGY AND TAXCNOMY OF TWO MAJOR OFDERS OF AQUATIC INSECTS, EPHEMEROPTERA AND TRICHOPTERA, IN VA. 4.212 WATER QUALITY STUDIES: COMPARATIVE ECOLOGY AND SYSTEMATICS OF SELECTED AQUATIC INSECTS. 4.043 BPIBIOTIC-FOULING AQUACULTURE PATHOLOGY. 3.010 EPIDENICLOGY MICEOBIAL DISEASES AND IMMUNE RESPONSE OF CATFISE. 3.098 NEWATODE PARASITES OF FRESEWATER FISH: EICLOGY AND EFEECTS. 3.014 **BPIPBYTBS** NITECGEN FIXATION BY MICROBES INHABITING SURFACES OF AQUATIC MACROPBYTES. 4.142 EPIZOOTIC-DISEASES COOPERATIVE FISH PARASITE AND DISEASE STUDY. 3.004 **EPIZOOTICS** MICROBICLOGICAL ASSESSMENT OF RIVER WATER CONTAMINATION. 3.084, 4.187* SURVEY OF DISEASES OF CULTURED FRESHWATES FISHES OF CALIFORNIA. 3.009 EPIZOOTIOLOGY DETECTION OF PISCINE ERYTHRCCYTIC NECECSIS VIRUS IN

BPOXT-COMPOUNDS THE TREATMENT AND USE OF WASTE PRODUCTS AND CHEMICALS IN THE DIET OF AQUATIC ANIMALS. 5.046; 8.042* FOUIPMENT FISRERIES FOULPMENT AND GEAR DEVELOPMENT, 7,011 ROUIPWENT-DESIGN FRESEWATER FOOD ANIMALS. 6.004 MECEANICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.022 MECHANIZATION OF CRAWFISH HARVESTING AND PRODUCTION. 6.042, 7.005* WATER QUALITY MAINTENANCE IN CLOSED CYCLE FISH CULTURE SYSTEMS. 6.052 EQUIPMENT-DEVELOPMENT DEVELOPMENT AND EVALUATION OF OVSTER BARVESTING EQUIPMENT AND MARICULTURE SYSTEMS. 6.084, 7.013* DRYING SEAFOOD PRODUCTS WITH SCLAF ENERGY. 8.006 ENZYME DEVELOPMENT FOR SEAFOCD QUALITY. 5.033 EQUIPMENT FOR MECEANIZATION OF PRODUCTION OF OYSTERS AND OTBEF SHELLFISH. 6.083, 7.012* FISHERIES EQUIPMENT AND GEAR DEVELOPMENT. 7.011 INTEGRATION OF A SOLAR GREENECUSE WITH A RECIRCULATING PISE CULTURE SYSTEM. 6.003 INTENSIVE CULTURE OF CRAYFISE. 6.068 NECHANICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.022 MECHANIZATION OF CRANFISH HARVESTING AND PRODUCT ION. 6.042, 7.005* CYSTER DRILL CONTROL BY HYDRAULIC DREDGING IN DELAWARE EAY. 6.064 OYSTER PRODUCTION EQUIPMENT DEVELOPMENT. 4.052, 6.028* REGISTON IMPACT OF EROSION SILT AND SEDIMENTATION ON FISH REPRODUCTION AND GROWTH. 4.130 EEYTEBOCYTIC-NECPOSIS-VIRUS DETECTION OF PISCINE EFYTHROCYTIC NECROSIS VIRUS IN OREGON FISHES. 3.083 ESCREPICEIA-COLI ANTIBACTERIAL MECEANICS IN CLAMS; CONTRIBUTION OF THE WATER STREAM. 1.072, 4.145* REGULATORY PROBLEMS OF LOUISIANA FOOD INDUSTRIES. 9.017 **ESTINATES** ACCOUNTING FOR VARIABILITY IN PRODUCTIVITY OF COEAN FISE IN YIELD ESTIMATION. 4.185 AN ECONOMIC EVALUATION OF THE RECREATIONAL SALMON PISEING IN THE KENAL/RUSSIAN RIVER REGION. 10.036 APPLIED LINNOLOGY AND FISHERIES STUDIES IN TROPICAL LAKES. 4.021 ECONOMIC ANALYSES OF FISBERIES MANAGEMENT ISSUES ARISING PROM EXTENDED JURISDICTION OF NEW ENGLAND. 10.042 THE USE OF FISHING TCURNAMENT RECORDS TO ESTIMATE ABUNDANCE OF BASS POPULATIONS. 4.215 WEIGHT GAIN OF FISH. 5.018 RSTROCENS AQUACULTURE FOR RESOURCE ENHANCEMENT. I.103, 5.056* THE EPFECTS OF DIET ON THE RISE CF CANCER. 9.020 ESTUARIES A MULTI-INSTITUTIONAL APPROACH TO THE IDENTIFICATION OF BIVALVE LARVAE. 1.067 ECOLOGICAL STUDIES OF THE NAVARRO AND GARCIA ESTUARIES, WITE EMPHASIS CN THE PISHES. 4.028 ECOLOGY OF FISEES OF SACRAMENTO - SAN JOAQUIN ESTUARY, WITH EMPHASIS ON SUISUN MARSH. 4.030 ECOLOGY OF SALT MARSHES IN BELATICN TO ESTUARIES AND ENERGY PLOW. 1.016, 4.041*, 5.011* ECONON. INFORTANT DISEASES OF BIVALVE SHELLPISH, INCLUDING THEIR PREVENTION, CONTROL AND ERADICATION. 4.139 EPPECTS OF BEREICIDES ON CRESAPEAKE BAY PETTOFLANKTON. 4.106 BELMINTE PARASITES OF VERTEFRATES IN NOETH CAROLINA. 3.078 IMPACTS OF THE CONSTRUCTION AND OPERATION OF COASTAL NUCLEAR POWER PLANTS ON ESTUARINE ECOLOGY . 4.160 LABORATORY CULTURE FOR RESEARCE PUBPOSES OF ESTUARINE AND MARINE LOESTERS, CRAES AND SERIMPS. 1.048, 5.024* PEYSIOLOGY OF CEESAPEAKE BAY PEYTOPLANKTON. 1.054, 4.107* PRESENCE, ABUNDANCE, MOVEMENTS, AND BABITAT USAGE OP ESTUARINE-DEPENDENT PISHES AND CRUSTACEANS .. 1.045. 4.095* RELATIONSEIPS BETWEEN SALT NARSE AND ESTUARINE ANIMAL COMMUNITIES AND ENERGY EXCHANGE. 4.040.

5.010*

RESEARCH IN SYSTEMS ECOLOGY. 4.141 SALINITY, REDCE FCTENTIAL, & MICROHIAL TRANSFORMATIONS OF MERCURY POLLUTANTS IN ESTUARINE SEDIMENTS. 4.132 STATUS, ABUNDANCE AND EXPLCITATION OF THE STRIPED HASS IN THE ROANCEE RIVER, NC. 4.163 THE EPFECTS OF AGRICULTURAL DEAINAGE OF NATURAL SYSTEMS - PHASE III. 4.036 THE RELATIONSHIF OF SALINITY AND DISTANCE FRCH THE SEA, TO THE DISTRIBUTION OF JUVENILE FISHES. I.044, 4.094* VALUE OF TIDAL WARSBES IN RELATION TO ESTUARINE ECOSYSTEM, AND EVALUATION OF FRESEWATER WETLANDS. 4.044 **ETHEOSTONA** ECOLOGY OF FARE AND ENDANGERED PISHES OF PENNSYLVANIA. 4.191 ETIOLOGY LIAGNESIS AND PATHOGENESIS OF DISEASES AND PARASITES IN MAJOR MCLLUSCAN AQUACULTURE SPECIES. 3.088 EUPEORBIA-ESULA PHYTOTCXINS FEOM AQUATIC AND TEFRESTRIAL PLANTS, BACTERIA, AND FUNGI. 3.017 EUPOPE **BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF EURASIAN WILFOIL AND OTHER** AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.106 **BUTROPHICATION** ABATEMENT OF EUTROPHICATION RESULTING FROM INTENSIVE ANIMAL PRODUCTION. 4.195, 6.080≠ EFFECTS OF AQUATIC PLANT COMMUNITIES ON WATER QUALITY IN HYPERBUTROPHIC AQUATIC ENVIRONMENT. 4.117 EFFECTS OF DISSOLVED CHENICALS CN AQUATIC LIFE. 4.078 MICROHIAL ECOLOGY OF METHANE PECDUCTION IN AQUATIC ENVIRONMENTS. 4.220 NITROGEN FIXATION AND ITS EFFECT ON EUTROPHICATION: IN-PCINT AND NON-PCINT SCURCE PONDS. 4.157 EVOLUTION **EIOCHEMICAL GENETICS AND CYTOGENETICS OF TRCUT.** 2.022 FISE GENETICS. 2.019, 4.183* **EICRETION** NITROGEN METABOLISM OF FRESHWATER PRAWNS IN RELATION TO DIET. 5.015 TEMPERATURE EFFECTS ON XENCEIOTIC ELIMINATION BY FISHES. 4.178 THE EFFECTS OF DIET ON THE FISK CF CANCER. 9.020 BIOSYSTEMS THE EFFECTS OF AGRICULTURAL DRAINAGE OF NATURAL SYSTEMS - PHASE III. 4.036 BIOTICS HIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS WITH INSECTS. 3.038 HIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF WEEDS WITH PATHOGENS. 3.103 CULTURE AND MANAGEMENT CP SELECTED GAME FISHES. 3.092, 4.203*, 6.091* EIOTOIINS TOXICITY OF AERONONAS HYDROPHILIA EXCTCXINS IN CHANNEL CATFISH. 3.052 RIPENDITURES AN ECONOMIC ANALYSIS OF THE ATLANTIC COAST STRIPED HASS PISHERY. 10.031 ECONOMIC PROFILE & REGIONAL ECONOMIC IMPACTS OF THE ALASKA SHELLFISE INDUSTRY. 10.049 EXPORTS DIAGNOSIS OF PISE DISEASES. 3.082 EIPOSURE ACUTE AND CERONIC EFFECTS ON FISH EXFCSED CONTINUOUSLY AND INTERMITTENTLY TO TOXICANTS. 4.180 RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN PESTICIDES AND GEORGIA FARM POND ECOSYSTEMS. 4.050 EXTRACTION CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS HASED ON ALLELOPATHIC CHARACTERISTICS IN SPIKEEUSE (ELEOCEARIS SPP.). 3.007 ROLE OF LIPIDS AND TEELS OXIDATION IN FISE QUALITY. 9.024 BITRACTS THE USE OF SELECTED MARINE MATERIALS AND EY-PRODUCTS FOR CERTAIN HORTICULTURAL CROFS. 8.044 ETES COMPARATIVE PHYSIOLOGICAL STUDIES OF VERTEBRATE EYES. 1.062

```
FACILITIES
  FISHERIES ECUIPMENT AND GEAP LEVELCPMENT. 7.011
  ICHTHYOPATECLOGY. 3.089
  PRAWN AOUACULTURAL ENGINEERING. 6.027, 7.002*
FARM-FIRMS.
  ECONOMIC BEHAVIOR OF FOCE AND FIELE FIRMS. 10.007
FARM-MANAGEMENT
  ECONCHIC EFHAVIOR OF FOOD AND FIBER FIRMS. 10.007
FARM-PONDS
  A COMPARISON OF THE ACCUMULATION FATES OF F
     AESORBED FY THE VITAL CRCANS OF FISE. 4.156,
     5.039*
  CHARACTERISTICS, PREFERENCES, AND ATTITUDES
     CONCERNING PRIVATE FEE-FISEING OPERATIONS.
     10.048
  DEVELCP AND IMPROVE PRODUCTION AND MANAGEMENT
     SYSTEMS FOR FRESHWATER ANIMALS CULTURED FOR
     FCOD. 6.011
  DEVELOPMENT OF MAXIMUM SUSTAINED YIELD IN KANSAS
     FARM FONDS. 6.041
  DEVELOPMENT OF OPTIMUM SUSTAINED YIELD OF FISHES IN
     FARM FONDS. 5.021, 7.004=
  EFFECTS OF WATER QUALITY PARAMETERS ON FARM FOND
     VEGETATION AND THELE INTERACTIONS. 4.176
  FEASIBILITY OF CAGED FISH CULTURE IN NORTH CENTRAL
     OKLAHCMA FARM PONDS. 4.173, 6.073*, 10.035*
  FISH PRODUCTION IN SCOTH DAKOTA FARM AND RANCH
     WATERS. 6.087
  LIMNCLOGY OF FARM PONDS. 1.082, 6.071*
  MINNEWS AS FORAGE IN THE FARM PEND PEEDUCTION CF
     FINFISH. 6.018
  PCLYCULTURAL PRODUCTION OF FISH IN FARM PONDS.
     4.007, E.010*
  QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE STUDIES OF POLLUTION
     IN SELECTED FARM FCNES. 4.155
  RELATIONSBIPS BETWEEN PESTICICES AND GEORGIA FARM
     POND ECCSYSTENS. 4.050
  THE RESOLUTION OF SOME PROBLEMS ATTENDING THE
     EMPLOYMENT OF MINNOWS AS FORAGE FOR FARMPOND
                                                          FRED-ADDITIVES
     FISHES. 6.019
  USE OF SFIREFUSH (ELEOCHARIS SPP.) FOR HIOLOGICAL
     CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEES. 3.016
PAT
  FACTORS AFFECTING THE FUNCTIONAL FROPERTIES AND
     QUALITY OF PROCESSED MUSCLE FOODS. 9.021
FATE
  FATE AND EFFECTS OF ATRAZINE IN SALT MARSH
    ECOSYSTEMS. 4.001
  THE FATE AND EFFECTS OF CHEMICALS IN AQUATIC
     ECOSYSTENS. 4.111
  WEED CONTRCL IN RICE PRODUCTION. 3.006, 4.008≠
FATTY-ACIDS
  EFFECT OF DIET QUALITY ON AQUATIC ANIMALS. 5.047
  EVALUATION OF THE STABILITY AND EDIBLE CUALITY CF
    FRESH WATER SERIMP. 8.019
  HUMAN NUTRITION IMPROVEMENT. 8.022
  MORPBOLOGICAL, ULTRASTEUCTUFAL, AND BICCHEMICAL
     CHARACTEFIZATION OF NANOPLANETON FROM CHESAPEAKE
  EAY. 1.C56, 4.108*
THE EFFECT CF FROZEN STCRAGE ON TEXTUFAL QUALITY OF
    LOHSTER MEAT. 8.023
  THE OXIDATIVE DETERICRATICN OF LIFIDS IN
     MECHANICALLY DEBONED POULTRY AND FISH. 9.009
FEASIBILITY
  BIOLOGICAL FEASIBILITY CF INTENSIFIED CYSTER
    CULTURE. 4.178, 5.040*, 6.074*
  DISTRIBUTION, ABUNDANCE AND ECCLOGY OF ASCOPHYLLUM
    NODOSUM (1) LE JOIS. 1.052, 4.102*, 7.008*
  ENVIECNMENTAL EFFECTS ON PRODUCTIVITY OF CRAYFISE
    IN POND HAHITATS, PHASE I, II. 5.025, 6.048*,
     7.007*
                                                          FEED-FORMULATION
  PRODUCTION OF MACROBRACBIUM ROSENHERGII (GIANT
     MALAYSIAN PRAWN IN NEVACA). 6.060
FECAL-COLIFOINS
  QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE STUDIES OF POLLUTICN
    IN SELECTED FARM FCNDS. 4.155
FECONDITY
  FRESHWATER FCOD ANIMALS. 2.007, 6.023*
FEDERAL-REGULATIONS
  REGULATORY PROBLEMS OF LOUISIANA FOOD INDUSTRIES.
    9.017
FEED
  ANALYSIS OF THE MARKET POTENTIAL FOR FRESH WATER
     AQUACULTURAL PRODUCTS PRODUCED IN NEVADA. 5.036,
     8.032*. 10.022*
  CULTURE AND MANAGEMENT OF SELECTED GAME FISHES.
```

DETECTION AND IDENTIFICATION OF MYCCTCXINS AND ALGAL TOXINS IN FOCDS AND FEEDS. 9.023

DEVELOP OF ACUACULTURE SYSTEMS FCR CCCL WATER FISH SPECIES. 2.028, 5.057*, 6.102*

CIETARY FACTORS IN WHITE FISH MEAL RESPONSIBLE FOR CATAFACT FORMATION IN TECUT. 3.018. 5.009#. S.00S±

EFFECTS OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS AND MANAGEMENT PRACTICES ON COMMERCIAL PRODUCTION OF CRAWFISH. 4.096, 6.047*

EVALUATION OF AQUATIC PLANTS AS PCTENTIAL FEEDSTUFF FOR DAIRY CATTLE. 9.013 FEASIBILITY OF CAGED FISH CULTURE IN NOFTH CENTRAL

CKLAHONA FARM PONDS. 4.173, 6.073*, 10.035* Formulation of foods for aquatic animals cf

ECCNOMIC IMPORTANCE. 5.022, 8.016*

FRESHWATER FCCD ANIMALS. 2.012, 2.014, 5.034*, 6.045*, 6.056*, 6.095 IMPROVING SURFACE WATER CONDITIONS THEOUGH CONTROL

AND DISPOSAL OF AQUATIC VEGETATICN. 7.015 NUTRITICNAL ASPECTS OF AQUACULTURE SYSTEMS. 5.007,

- 6.014= PRACTICAL FEED FCRMULATIONS AND FEEDING PRACTICES
- FOR CATFISE FAEMING IN MS. 5.035, 6.058*, 8.031* RECOVERY AND CONVERSION OF CATFISH FRCCESSING WASTE

INTC VALUABLE FEED SUPPLEMENTS. 8.020 RECOVERY AND UTILIZATION OF SHRIMP AND CRAWFISH

PROCESSING HYPEODUCTS. 8.017 SERINF WATURATICN, REPRODUCTION, DEVELOPMENT,

NUTRITION, INTENSIVE-EXTENSIVE CULTURE AND MARICULTURE. 5.052, 6.092*

STUDY CF MANUSE-ENRICHED PCCD WERS IN MARINE POND ECOSYSTEMS. S.016

THE USE OF SELECTED AQUATIC OFGANISMS FOR PURPOSES OF AQUACULTURE (FOCD PRODUCTION). 3.012, 4.023*, 5.008*, 8.005* UTILIZATION OF AQUATIC PLANTS FOR WASTE TREATMENT

AND ANIMAL FEEDS. 1.043, 5.023*

OPERATING PARAMETERS OF LAGCONS FOR DISPOSAL OR UTILIZATION OF DAIRY PAEM AND PROCESSING PLANT WASTE. 8.014

FEED-COMPOSITION

OPERATING PARAMETERS OF LAGCONS FOR DISFCSAL OF UTILIZATION OF DAIEY FAEM AND PROCESSING PLANT MASTE. 8.014

FEED-CONVERSION AQUACULTURE FOR RESOURCE ENHANCEMENT. 1.103, 5.056* BREEDING EXPERIMENTS WITH SALMONIDS. 2.024 CRUSTACEAN NUTEITION AND FEED DEVELOPMENT. 5.006 FRESHWATER FCOD ANIMALS. 2.007, 6.023*, 6.099

PERFORMANCE OF SALMCNIDS: SMOLTIFICATION, STRESS AND FITNESS. 1.089, 6.077* SALMON CULTURE - DEVELOPMENT OF NUTRITICNAL AND

DISEASE CONTROL PROGRAMS. 3.064, 5.037* UTILIZATION OF PECTEIN INGREDIENTS IN FISH BATIONS. 5.044

WINTER FEEDING OF CHANNEL CATFISH IN MISSISSIPPI. 4.125, 6.057*

FEED-EFFICIENCY

AQUACULTURE FOR RESOURCE ENBANCEMENT. 1.103, 5.056* EVALUATION OF HY-PRODUCTS FROM CATFISE FECCESSING WASTE FCE CATFISH FEED SUPPLEMENTS. 5.032, 8.030*

INTENSIVE CULTURE OF THE WALLEYE (PERCIEAE: STIZCSTEEICN VITREUN). 5.038, 6.067*

PERFCEMANCE OF SALMONIDS: SMOLTIFICATION, STRESS AND FITNESS. 1.089, 6.077*

UTILIZATION OF PEOTEIN INGREDIENTS IN FISH BATIONS. 5.044

CAGE CULTURE CF TILAPIA IN THE VIRGIN ISLANDS. 6.098, 9.035*

CRUSTACEAN NUTRITION AND FEED DEVELOPMENT. 5.006 EVALUATION OF BY-PRODUCTS FACE CATFISE PROCESSING WASTE FOR CATFISH FEED SUPPLEMENTS. 5.032,

8.030* INTENSIVE CULTURE OF THE WALLEYE (PERCIDAE:

STIZOSTEDICN VITREUN). S.038, 6.067* NUTRITION MANAGEMENT AND DISEASE OF MARINE ANIMALS.

3.055, 5.026*, 6.050* PRACTICAL FEED FCEMULATIONS AND FEEDING PEACTICES FOR CATFISH FARMING IN MS. 5.035, 6.058*, 8.031* FEED-NUTRITIVE-VALUE

UTILIZATION OF AQUATIC PLANTS FOR WASTE TREATMENT AND ANIMAL FEEDS. 1.043, 5.023=

FEED-OUALITY

^{3.092, 4.203*, 6.091*}

EVALUATION OF PESTICIDE LEVELS IN CATFISE PROCESSING WASTES. 9.001 FEED-SAFETY EVALUATION OF FESTICIDE LEVELS IN CATFISE PROCESSING WASTES. 9.001 FEED-SUPPLEMENTS DIETARY FACTORS IN WHITE FISH MEAL BESPONSIBLE FOR CATARACT FORMATION IN TROUT. 3.018, 5.009*, 9.005* EVALUATION OF BY-PRODUCTS FROM CATFISH PROCESSING WASTE FCR CATFISH FEED SUPPLEMENTS. 5.032, 8.030* OPERATING FARAMETERS OF LAGCONS FOR DISPOSAL OR UTILIZATION OF DAIRY FARM AND PROCESSING PLANT WASTE. 8.014 THE TREATMENT AND USE OF WASTE PRODUCTS AND CHENICALS IN THE DIET OF AQUATIC ANIMALS. 5.046, 8.042* FEED-VALUE IMPROVING SURFACE WATER CONDITIONS TERCUGE CONTROL AND DISFOSAL OF AQUATIC VEGETATION. 7.015 FEEDING AGE AND GROWTH OF FISH; A FIELD AND LABOBATORY APPROACE. 1.068 CONTROL AND ERADICATION OF AQUATIC WEEDS IN LAKES AND IMPCUNDED WATERS. 3.107 DEVELOPMENT OF AN INTEGRATED SYSTEM FOR TOTAL UTILIZATION OF SWINE WASTE. 6.001 DEVELOPMENT OF OPTIMUM SUSTAINED YIELD OF FISHES IN FARM PONDS. 5.021, 7.004# ECOLOGICAL STUDIES WITH RED SWANP CRAWPISH AND WHITE RIVER CRAWFISH. 1.042, 4.692*, 6.043* ECOLOGY AND SYSTEMATICS OF AQUATIC INSECTS. 4.177 EFFECTS OF CHRONIC TUREIDITY ON SOCIAL CONTEST IN JUVENILE STEELHEAD TROUT AND COHO SALMON. 4.059 FACTORS INFLUENCING TROUT FREDUCTION IN VIRGINIA STREAMS. 1.102, 4.217* FRESHWATER FOOD ANIMALS. 5.004 FUNCTIONAL MORPHCLCGY OF INVESTEEBATE ORGAN SYSTEMS. 1.071 INSECTS ATTRACTED BY LIGHT AS A SOURCE OF FOOD FOR CATFISE. 5.005 FOLYCULTURAL FRODUCTION OF FISH IN FARM PONDS. 4.007, 6.010* SOUTH DAKOTA FARM AND RANCH FISHERIES. 5.049, 6.088* USE OF NUTLIENT CONTAINING LIPID VESICLES AS A FOOD SOURCE FOR SHELLFISH OF PACIFIC NORTHWEST. 5.042 UTILIZATION OF AQUATIC PLANTS FOR WASTE TREATMENT AND ANIMAL FEEDS. 1.043, 5.023* WEIGHT GAIN OF FISH. 5.018 FEEDING-EEBAVIOR CONTEOL AND ERADICATION OF AQUATIC WEEDS IN LAKES AND IMPCUNDED WATERS. 3.107 ECOLCGY CF SALT WARSBES IN RELATION TO ESTUARIES AND ENERGY FLCW. 1.016, 4.041*, 5.011* FACTORS INFLUENCING TROUT PRODUCTION IN VIRGINIA STREAMS, 1.102, 4.217* FEEDING ECCLOGY OF FISHES UTILIZING MARSHES ALTERED FOR CONTRCL OF SALT MARSH MOSCUITCES. 1.065. 3.065*, 4.134# THE RESOLUTION OF SOME PROBLEMS ATTENDING THE ENFLOYMENT OF MINNOWS AS FORAGE FOR FARMPOND FISHES. 6.019 THE ROLE OF SILTS AND CLAYS IN THE NUTRITICN OF ZCOPLANEICN. 1.041 USE OF BENTHIC MACROINVERTEEBATES IN N. C. FISHERY MANAGEMENT AND WATER QUALITY ASSESSMENT. 1.084 FREDING-HABITS AN EVALUATION OF STRIPED BASS & WEITE BASS HYBRIDS AND STRIPED BASS I WHITE PERCH HYERIDS. 2.018, 6.070* EARLY LIFE HISTORY ECOLOGY AND GROWTH OF THE RIVER SHRIMP MACROBRACHIUM OHICNE IN LOUISIANA. 1.046 ECOLOGICAL STUDIES OF THE NAVAREC AND GARCIA ESTUARIES, WITH EMPHASIS ON THE FISHES. 4.028 ECOLOGICAL STUDIES WITH RED SWAMP CRAWFISH AND WEITE RIVER CRAWFISE. 1.042, 4.092*, 6.043* ECOLOGY AND SYSTEMATICS OF AQUATIC INSECTS. 4.177 ECOLOGY OF RARE AND ENDANGERED FISHES OF PENNSYLVANIA. 4.151 ECOLOGY OF SALT WARSHES IN RELATION TO ESTUARIES AND ENE MGY FLCW. 1.016, 4.041*, 5.011* EFFECTS OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS AND MANAGEMENT PRACTICES ON COMMERCIAL FRODUCTION OF CRAWFISH. 4.096, 6.047* EURASIAN WATERNILFOIL IN CURFITUCE SOUND: ITS

EURASIAN WATERWILFOIL IN CURFITUCE SOUND: ITS CONTROL AND FCTENTIAL USE. 3.077, 4.165*

FEEDING ECOLOGY OF FISHES UTILIZING WARSHES ALTERED FOR CONTECL OF SALT MARSE NOSQUITOES. 1.065, 3.065*, 4.134* REARING BAIT FISH IN WESTERN NEVADA. 6.061, 10.023* SPAWNING, EARLY LIFE HISTORY, HABITAT SELECTION OF NORTHERN SQUAWFISH: INPER. TO COLOGADO SQUAWFISH. 4.063 UTILIZATION OF REAFT WILL EFFLUENT FOR FISH PRODUCTION. 5.012, 6.020* FEEDING-SYSTEMS CAGE CULTURE OF FISH IN THE VIEGIN ISLANDS UTILIZING TEETIAEY TEEATED WATER. 6.100 CHANNEL CATFISH NUTBITICN. 5.033 DEVELOPMENT OF WETHODS FOR MASS PRODUCTICN AND MANAGEMENT OF HULLFRCGS. 2.013, 4.093* MANAGEMENT TECHNIQUES FOR INCREASING CHAWFISH PRODUCTION. 6.046, 7.006* PRACTICAL FEED FCENULATIONS AND FEEDING PRACTICES FOR CATFISE FARMING IN MS. 5.035, 6.058*, 8.031* SALMON CULTURE - DEVELOPMENT OF NUTRITICNAL AND DISEASE CONTECL PROGRAMS. 3.064, 5.037* WINTER FEEDING CF CHANNEL CATFISE IN MISSISSIPPI. 4.125, 6.057* FEEDING-TRIALS EVALUATION OF HY-PRODUCTS FECH CATFISH PROCESSING WASTE FOR CATFISH FEED SUPPLEMENTS. 5.032. 8.030* INTENSIVE CULTURE OF THE WALLEYE (PERCIDAE: STIZOSTEDION VITREUN). 5.038, 6.067* UTILIZATION OF PECTEIN INGEEDIENTS IN FISE EATIONS. 5.044 FEES ECONOMIC IMPACTS OF THE 200-MILE LIMIT ON RURAL NORTHEASTERN COASTAL COMMUNITIES. 10.039 FEN ITROTHION INSECTICIDES AND THEIR FORMULATIONS. 4.131 FERMENTED-FOODS FIOLOGICALLY ACTIVE ANINES IN FOOD. 8.009 FERRANICIDE MIREX FEEDING STUDY IN CHANNEL CATFISH (ICTALURUS PUNCIATUS). 4.123, 9.022* FERENTS FUR ANIMAL STUDIES (MINK). 8.028 FERTILITY NECHANISTIC FACTORS DETERMINE AQUATIC FERTILITY. 4.114 FERTILIZATION CRYOGENIC PRESERVATION OF SPERM FROM STRIPED BASS. 2.017 CULTURE AND MANAGEMENT OF SELECTED GAME FISBES. 3.092, 4.203*, 6.091* MANAGEMENT OF AQUATIC FLANTS FOR SPCRT FISH PREDUCTION IN PONDS. 5.002 MANURE-ENGICHED FCOD WEES IN MARINE FOND ECOSYSTEMS. 5.017 MINNEWS AS FERAGE IN THE FARM PEND PRODUCTION OF FINFISH, 6.018 FENAEIDAE GAMETES, THEIR STRUCTURE, ACTIVATION AND FUSICN. 1.006 POLYCULTURAL FRODUCTION OF FISH IN FARM PONDS. 4.007, 6.010* POND FERTILIZATION AND LINING. 4.002, 5.003* FERTILIZER-PATES MANAGEMENT OF AQUATIC PLANTS FCB SPCRT FISH FRODUCTION IN PONDS. 5.002 FERTILIZERS AN EVALUATION OF WIDELY USED HEREICIDES CN AQUATIC FLANTS, FISH AND FISH-FCCD CEGANISMS. 3.059, 4.116* INFROVEMENT OF OGO PRODUCTION AND MARKETING IN HAWAII. 6.031, 10.012* MANAGEMENT OF AQUATIC PLANIS FOR SPORT FISH PRODUCTION IN PONDS. 5.002 NATURAL MARSHES AS NUTRIENT SINES FCE AGEICULTURAL EUNCFF. 4.089 FOND FERTILIZATION AND LINING. 4.002, 5.003* THE USE OF SELECTED MARINE NATERIALS AND HY-PRODUCTS FCR CERTAIN HOETICULTURAL CROFS. 8.044 FESTUCA PHYSIOLCGICAL STUDIES OF AQUATIC AND DITCH BANK WEEDS IN THE PACIFIC NORTHWEST. 3.101 FIRES ECONOMIC HEBAVION OF FOCD AND FIBER FIRMS. 10.007 EVALUATION OF AQUATIC FLANTS AS FOTENTIAL FEEDSTUFF FOE DAIRY CATTLE. 9.013 FIELD-STUDIES

- HIOLCGY AND CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.068 ECOLOGY ANE TAXONOMY OF TWO MAJCE OFFERS OF ACUATIC INSECTS, EPHEMEROPTERA AND TRICHOFTERA, IN VA. 4.212 FILTERS CLOSED CYCLE FISH CULTURE WATER FILTRATION USING BIOLOGICAL SYSTEMS. 4.105, 6.053* DEVHLOPMENT OF FISE PRCTECTIVE SYSTEMS FOR WATER INTAKES. 4.022 FILTRATION BIOFILTER PERFORMANCE FACTORS, 4.069 EVALUATION OF A CLOSED SYSTEM FOR THE CULTURE OF FISE, SFELLFISH AND AQUATIC PLANTS. 5.001, 6.002* WATER QUALITY MAINTENANCE IN CLOSED CYCLE FISH CULTURE SYSTEMS. 6.052 FINE-STRUCTURE A COMPARATIVE STUDY OF THE FINE STRUCTURE OF APOSTONE CILIATES. 3.076 AGE AND GECWTH OF FISE; A FIELD AND LABORATORY APPROACE. 1.068 ALGAL METAECLISM IN THE PRESENCE OF HERHICIDES. 4.170 CCMPAGATIVE PHYSIOLOGICAL STUDIES OF VERTEBRATE EYES. 1.062 FUNCTIONAL MORPHOLOGY OF INVERTEBRATE CRGAN SYSTEMS. 1.071 SWIMELADDER INFLATION IN LARVAE OF PEYSOCILISTOUS FISHES. 1.007 ULTRASTRUCTURAL CHANGES IN TELEOST GILLS: EFFECTS OF SUETLE ALTERATIONS IN THE ENVIRONMENT. 3.053, 4.098* FINGERLINGS DEVELOP OF AQUACULTURE SYSTEMS FOR COOL WATER FISH SPECIES 2.028, 5.057*, 6.102* INSECTS ATTRACTED BY LIGHT AS A SCUECE CF FCOD FCR CATFISE. 5.005 INTRODUCTION OF WALLEYE AND NORLUNGE FINGERLINGS INTO A LAKE DOMINATED BY PREY SPECIES. 1.074 FIRM-BERAVIOS ECONOMIC HEHAVIOR OF FOCD AND FIELE FIEMS. 10.007 FIRM-ORGANIZATION ECCNOMIC HEHAVIOR CF FOOD AND PIBER FIRMS. 10.007 FIRMS ECCNOMIC HEHAVIOR OF FOOD AND FIBER FIRMS. 10.007 FISE-HIOLOGY AGE AND GROWTH OF FISE; A FIELD AND LABORATORY APPROACE. 1.068 AN INVESTIGATION OF THE ADAPTIVE SIGNIFICANCE OF MELANISM IN THE MALE MOSCUITOFISH, GANBUSIA AFPINIS. 1.078 BEHAVIOR OF IOWA SPORT FISHES. 1.036, 4.083* BIOLOGICAL INDICATORS OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY IN CALIFCENIA LAKES AND STREAMS. 4.016 BIOLOGICAL STUDIES OF THE SPINY LOBSTER IN SOUTH FLORIDA. 1.019 CHEONIC TURHIDITY AND STRESS IN JUVENILE CORO SALMON AND STEELBEAD TROUT. 1.088, 4.184* CLEAR LAKE ECOSYSTEM ANALYSIS: THE FISHES. 1.012. 6.016* COLUMBIA RIVER CHINOOK SALMON STUDY. 1.090 ECOLOGICAL STUDIES OF THE NAVAREC AND GARCIA ESTUARIES, WITH EMPHASIS ON THE FISHES. 4.028 BCOLOGY AND MANAGEMENT OF MISSOURI STREAM FISHES. 4.128 EFFECTS OF AN ALTERED TEMPERATURE REGIME AND CHENICAL CONTAMINANTS ON THE AQUATIC ECCSYSTEM. 3.062, 4.127* ENVIRONMENTAL REQUIREMENTS OF POTENTIAL AQUACULTURE FISE SPECIES. 4.027 FISE AND ACUATIC MACROINVERTEBRATE FAUNA IN SOUTH FORK EGISE RIVER BELCW ANDERSCN RANCH DAM. 1.029 ICHTHYCPATHOLOGY. 3.089 IMPACT OF EROSION SILT AND SEDIMENTATION ON FISH REPRODUCTION AND GROWTH. 4.130 LIMNOLOGY CF FARM PONDS. 1.082, 6.071* MCVEMENTS CF SONIC-TAGGED FISHES IN BELATION TO WATER QUALITY IN LOWER ATCHAFALAYA RIVER HASIN. 1.049, 4.097* CEGANIZATION AND RETEIEVAL OF FRESHWATHE FISHERY DATA. 1.033, 4.080* OSMOREGULATORY RESPONSES OF DESERT PUPFISE: A STUDY MODEL OF PHYSIOLOGICAL ACAPTATICN TO ENVIRONMENT. 1.003, 4.010* PRESENCE, AEUNDANCE, MOVEMENTS, AND HABITAT USAGE OF ESTUABINE-DEPENDENT FISHES AND CRUSTACEANS .. 1.045, 4.095*
- SPAWNING, EARLY LIFE HISTORY, HABITAT SELECTION OF NORTHERN SQUAWFISH: INFES. TO COLORADC SQUAWFISE. 4.063 STATUS, ABUNDANCE AND EXPLOITATION OF THE STRIPED BASS IN THE ROANCKE RIVER, NC. 4.163 STUDIES OF THE ECONOMICALLY IMPOSTANT SPECIES: MEECENARIA MERCENARIA AND MACROHFACHIUM ROSENBERGII. 1.094, 6.085* THE ECOLOGICAL IMPACT OF INTEGRATED CHEMICAL AND BIOLOGICAL AQUATIC WEED CONTECL. 4.048, 6.021* THE EFFECT OF STREAM CURRENT UPCN FISE BEHAVICE, GROWTH AND MICEOHABITAT SELECTION. 1.011 THE RELATIONSHIP OF SALINITY AND DISTANCE FROM THE SEA, TO THE DISTRIBUTION OF JUVENILE FISHES. 1.044. 4.094* VISUAL PIGMENT CHANGES DURING THE LIFE CYCLE OF THE AMERICAN EEL, ANGUILLA ECSTRATA. 1.077 FISE-DISEASES A STUDY OF THE MICROHIOLOGICAL FLCRA OF CFNAMENTAL FISBES. 3.040 AQUACULTURE. 6.007 EACTERIAL KIDNEY DISEASE IN FAINEOW TROUT: PATHOGENESIS, INNUNITY, AND EFFECT OF WATER BARDNESS. 3.070 HIOLOGY AND CONTECL OF AQUATIC ANIMAL DISEASES. 3.054 CONTECL OF WHIELING DISEASE OF SALMONIDS. 3.063 DETECTION TRANSMISSION AND FATHCGENESIS OF DISEASE ORGANISMS IN AQUACULTURE SPECIES. 3.087 DETERMINATION OF EFFICACY OF CERTAIN ANTI-PARASITIC DRUGS FOR PISHES. 3.041 CEVELOFMENT OF A SUBUNIT VACCINE TO THE SALMONID VIRUS, IENV, HY MOLHCULAR CLCNING. 3.085 DIAGNOSIS OF FISH DISEASES. 3.082 DISEASE MANAGEMENT IN CULTURED CATFISE. 3.096 **LISEASES OF AQUACULTURE SPECIES. 3.044** DISEASES OF AQUATIC ANIMALS. 3.013, 3.072 **LISEASES OF SHELLFISH. 3.074** EFFECTS OF AN ALTERED TEMPERATURE REGIME AND CHEMICAL CONTAMINANTS ON THE AQUATIC ECOSYSTEM. 3.062. 4.127# FISH MORHIDITY AND MORTALITY RELATED TO ENVIRONMENTAL CHANGES AND/OF INTENSIVE CULTURE METHODS. 4.193 FRESHWATER FCCD ANIMALS. 3.039, 3.043, 5.014±, 6.024* GENETIC STUDIES OF ABERNATRY CREEK CHINOCK SALMON. 2.020 INFECTIOUS DISEASES OF SALMCNID FISHES. 3.081 INFECTIOUS PANCREATIC NECROSIS IN ATLANTIC SALMCN. 3.057 MICROHIAL AND PARASITIC DISEASES OF SERINF AND FISH. 3.095 MICKOHIOLOGICAL ASSESSMENT OF RIVER WATER CCNTAMINATION. 3.084, 4.187* NEMATODE PARASITES CF FRESHWATER FISH: HICLCGY AND EFFECTS. 3.014 PATHOLOGY AND PATHOGENESIS OF CATFISH DISEASES. 3.099 PISCINE ERYTHROCYTIC NECROSIS IN THE ATLANTIC CCD. 3.056 SALMON CULTURE - DEVELOPMENT OF NUTRITICNAL AND DISEASE CONTECL PROGRAMS. 3.064, 5.037* SEROLOGICAL METHODS FOR DETECTION AND IDENTIFICATION OF VIRUS DISEASES OF FISH. 3.058 STUDY OF PATHOLCGY CF FISHES FRCM LAKE HYCO, NORTH CAROLINA. 3.079 SURVEY OF DISEASES OF CULTURED FRESHWATER FISHES OF CALIFCENIA. 3.009 THE EFFICACY OF SELECTED ANTIEICTICS IN THE PREVENTION AND CONTROL OF BACTERIAL KIDNEY DISEASE. 3.046 TOXICITY OF AEROBONAS HYDROPHILIA EXOTOXINS IN CHANNEL CATFISE. 3.052
 - TRANSMISSICN AND IMMUNCIOGY OF CHANNEL CATFISE VIRUS DISEASE OF CULTURED CATFISE. 3.002
 - ULTRASTRUCTURAL CRANGES IN TELECST GILLS: EFFECTS CF SUBTLE ALTERATIONS IN THE ENVIRONMENT. 3.053, 4.098* FISH-RCOLOGY
 - A COMPARISON OF THE ACCUMULATICN RATES CF P ABSORMED MY THE VITAL CEGANS OF FISH. 4.156, 5.039*
 - AGE AND GROWTH OF FISH; A FIELD AND LABORATORY APPRCACE. $1{\,{\scriptstyle\circ}\,}068$
 - HEHAVIOR OF IOWA SPORT FISHES. 1.036, 4.083* CHRCNIC TURHIDITY AND STRESS IN JUVENILE COHC SALMCN AND STEELHEAD TRCUT. 1.088, 4.184*

COLUMBIA RIVER CHINGOK SALNCN STUDY. 1.020 DEVELOP AND IMPROVE PRODUCTION AND MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS FOR FRESHWATER ANIMALS CULTURED FOR POOD. 6.011 ECOLOGICAL STUDIES OF THE NAVABRE AND GARCIA ESTUARIES, WITH ENFHASIS ON THE FISHES. 4.028 ECOLOGICAL STUDY OF CUTOFF BENDWAYS AND CXBOWS WITEIN THE TENNESSEE-TONBIGHEE WATERWAY. 4.124 ECOLOGICAL STUDY OF LAKE WALES, FLORICA AFTER INTROLUCTION OF WHITE AWUE (CTENOPBARYNGCDCN IDELLA). 4.047 ECOLOGY AND MANAGEMENT OF MISSOURI STREAM FISHES. 4.128 ECOLOGY AND MANAGEMENT OF STREAM AND STREAM FISHES. 1.061 ECOLOGY AND WANAGEMENT OF WALLEYE. 1.073, 6.065* ECOLOGY OF FISHES AND LIMNCLCGY CF UFPER GREAT LAKES AND TRIBUTARIES IN BELATION TO ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS. 1.060, 4.115* ECOLOGY OF FISHES OF SACEAMENTO - SAN JOAQUIN ESTUARY, WITH EMPHASIS CN SUISUN MARSH. 4.030 ECOLOGY OF JUVENILE FISHES IN NO ESTUARIES. 1.083. 4.166* ECOLOGY OF LARVAL STREAM FISHES. 1.038, 4.084* ECOLCGY OF FARE AND ENDANGERED FISHES OF PENNSYLVANIA. 4.191 ECOLCGY, PCPULATION DYNAMICS AND MANAGEMENT CF MULTI-SFECIES FISH RESOURCES OF LARGE LAKES. 1.063, 4.121* EFPECT OF PEAKING POWER GENERATION ON PISE. 4.056 BFFECTS OF STAMPEDE RESERVOIR ON UPSTREAM FISH POPULATIONS OF SAGEBEN CREEK. 1.010, 4.019* EVALUATION OF THE ECOLOGICAL REQUIREMENTS OF RESERVOIR FISE SPECIES. 1.101 EXPERIMENTAL FISE ECOLOGY. 1.098, 4.207* FACTORS INFLUENCING TROUT PRODUCTION IN VIRGINIA STREAMS. 1.102, 4.217* FEEDING ECCLOGY OF FISHES UTILIZING WARSHES ALTERED FOR CONTROL OF SALT MARSE MOSCUITCES. 1.065, 3.065*, 4.134* FISH MOVEMENT IN POOL 9. UPPER MISSISSIPPI RIVER. 1.035 IDENTIFICATION OF SUE-OPTIMAL ENVIRONMENTAL PAHAMETERS AFFECTING AQUACULTURE. 3.090, 4.194* INSTREAM FLOW REQUIREMENTS OF CALFORNIA FISHES. 1.013, 4.029* JUVENILE EMIGRATION OF LABONTAN CUTTHROAT TROUT IN THE TRUCKEE-PYRAMID LAKE SYSTEM. 4.055 NATURAL PECDUCTICN OF TROUT IN INFERTILE MCUNTAIN STREAMS OF PENNSYLVANIA. 4.192 ORGANIZATION AND RETRIEVAL OF FRESHWATER PISHERY DATA. 1.033, 4.080* POPULATION CHARACTERISTICS OF TEXAS GULF OF MEXICO FISHES. 1.097 PRESENCE, ABUNDANCE, NOVEMENTS, AND HABITAT USAGE OF ESTUAHINE-DEPENDENT FISHES AND CRUSTACEANS .. 1.045, 4.095* STATUS, ABUNDANCE AND EXPLOITATION OF THE STRIPED BASS IN THE ROANOKE RIVER, NC. 4.163 STREAM AND IMPOUNDMENT ECOLOGY. 4.003 STUDIES OF THE ECONOMICALLY IMPORTANT SPECIES: MERCENAEIA MERCENARIA AND MACEOERACHIUM ROSBNEEEGII. 1.094, 6.085* SURVBY OF LARVAL FISHES IN THE NEARSBORE GULF WATERS CF LOUISIANA. 1.047 THE ECOLOGICAL INPACT OF INTEGRATED CHENICAL AND BIOLOGICAL AQUATIC WEED CONTROL. 3.025, 4.045* TEB BELATIONSHIP OF SALINITY AND DISTANCE FROM THE SEA, TO THE DISTRIBUTION OF JUVENILE FISHES. 1.044, 4.094* THE STATUS, ABUNDANCE, AND YIEL? OF THE STHIPED BASS IN THE HOANOKE BIVER, NORTH CARCLINA. 1.081, 4.164* TCXICOLOGICAL AND ECOLOGICAL EFFECTS OF TOXICANTS. 4.186 ZOOGEOGRAPHY AND ECOLOGY OF FISHES IN PENNSYLVANIA. 1.093, 4.190* FISH-EGGS ADULT FALL CHINOCK TRAPPING FCR SNAKE RIVER EGG BANK PRCGHAM. 6.033 DEVELOPMENT AND APPLICATION OF A METHODOLOGY FOR RECOMMENDING SALMONID EGG INCUEATION FLOWS. 4.070 DIAGNOSIS CF FISH DISEASES. 3.082 EFPECTS OF INCHEASED FINE SEDIMENT ON INCUEATION AND EMERGENCE OF CHINCOK SALMON AND STEELHEAD TEOUT. 4.071

- EXAMINATION OF THE SPAWNING ECCLOGY AND EARLY LIFE HISTCRY CF KOKANEE SALWON IN COEUR D' ALENE LAKE. 4.054
- THE INPACT OF POWER PEAKING ON EGG INCUEATION OF FALL CHINCCK SALMON. 4.072
- FISH-FOOD ANALYSIS OF THE MARKET POTENTIAL FOR FRESH WATER
 - AQUACULTURAL PRODUCTS PECDUCED IN NEVADA. 5.036, 8.032*, 10.022*
 - APPLIED LINNOLOGY AND FISBERIES STUDIES IN TROPICAL LAKES. 4.021
 - PIOLOGICAL FEASIBILITY OF INTENSIFIED OYSTER
 - CULTURE. 4.178, 5.040*, 6.074* DIETARY PACTORS IN WHITE FISH MEAL RESPONSIBLE FOR CATARACT FORMATICN IN TRCUT. 3.018, 5.009*, 9.005*
 - ENVIRONMENTAL EFFECTS ON PRODUCTIVITY OF CRAYFISH IN POND BABITATS, PBASE I, II. 5.025, 6.048*, 7.007*
 - EVALUATION OF RELATIVE PROTEIN PERFORMANCE IN PELLETED FISE RATIONS USING PEYSIOLOGICAL INDICES. 5.055
 - FEEDING ECOLOGY OF FISHES UTILIZING WARSHES ALTERED FOE CONTEOL OF SALT MARSE MOSQUITOES. 1.065, 3.065*, 4.134*
 - FISE PRODUCTION IN SOUTH DAKOTA FARM AND RANCH WATERS. 6.087
 - FORMULATION OF FOODS FOR AQUATIC ANIMALS OF ECONOMIC IMPORTANCE. 5.022, 8.016*
 - FRESHWATER FOOD ANIMALS. 2.023, 5.045*, 6.079* INSECTS ATTRACTED BY LIGHT AS A SOURCE CF FCCD FCF CATEISH. 5.005
 - MANAGEMENT OF AQUATIC PLANTS FOR SPCRT FISH PRODUCTION IN PONDS. 5.002
 - MINNOWS AS FORAGE IN THE PARM FCND PRODUCTION OF FINFISH. 6.018
 - PRACTICAL FEED FORMULATIONS AND FEEDING PEACTICES FOR CATPISE FARMING IN MS. 5.035, 6.058*, 8.031* RECYCLING WASTES INTO ANIMAL FEEDS. 5.025, 8.029*
 - THE TREATMENT AND USE OF WASTE PRODUCTS AND CBEMICALS IN THE DIET OF AQUATIC ANIMALS. 5.046, 8.042*
- FISE-GENETICS
 - AN INVESTIGATION OF THE ADAPTIVE SIGNIFICANCE CF NELANISM IN THE MALE MOSCUITCFISH, GAMBUSIA APPINIS. 1.078
 - **BIOCHEMICAL GENETICS AND CYTOGENETICS OF TECUT.** 2.021
 - GENETIC STUDIES OF ABERNATHY CREEK CHINCON SALMON. 2.020
 - GENETICS OF NATURAL FISE POPULATIONS. 1.037, 2.009* METAPHASE CEROMOSOME BANDING OF FRESHWATER FISHES. 2.026
- FISH-HABITATS
 - A STUDY OF FISH RESOURCES OF THE GOSPEL BUMP AREA. 4.060
 - ADULT PADDLEPISE MOVEMENT IN PCCL 13, UPPER MISSISSIPPI EIVEE. 1.034
 - BEHAVIOR OF IOWA SPORT FISEES. 1.036, 4.083*
 - BIOFILTER PERFORMANCE FACTORS. 4.069
 - CARBYING CAPACITY OF STREAMS FOR REARING SALMONIDS AS APPECTED BY SEDIMENT & CTHER COMPONENTS. 1.024, 4.057*
 - DEVELOPMENT AND APPLICATION OF A METHODOLOGY FOR RECOMMENDING SALMONIC EGG INCUFATION FLOWS. 4.070
 - DEVELOPMENT AND VALIDATION CP HABITAT-STANDING CRCP FUNCTIONS FOR STREAM PISE AND THEIR FCCDS. 4.065 ECOLOGICAL FACTORS AFFECTING POTENTIALLY TEREATENED
 - OF ENDANGERED PISE SPECIES IN NY. 4.147 ECOLOGY AND MANAGEMENT OF STREAM AND STREAM FISHES.
 - 1.061
 - ECOLOGY OF JUVENILE FISHES IN NC ESTUARIES. 1.083, 4.166*
 - ECOLOGY OF LARVAL STREAM FISEES. 1.038. 4.084* ECOLOGY OF BARE AND ENDANGERED FISHES OF
 - PENNSYLVANIA. 4.191
 - ECOLOGY OF SALT WARSHES IN FELATION TO ESTUAHIES AND ENERGY PLOW. 1.016, 4.041*, 5.011* EFFECT OF PEAKING POWER GENERATION CN FISH. 4.056
 - EFPECIS OF CHRONIC TURBIDITY ON SOCIAL CONTEST IN JUVENILE STEELBEAD TEOUT AND COHO SALMCN. 4.059
 - EFPECTS OF INCREASED FINE SEDIMENT CN INCUBATION AND EMERGENCE OF CHINCOE SALNON AND STEELBEAD TROUT. 4.071
 - EFFECTS OF LAND USE PRACTICES ON STREAM FIOTA. 4.085

- EFFECTS OF LOGGING ON ARIZONA TROUT AND THEIR HABITAT IN THE WEITE MOUNTAINS OF ABIZCHA. 4.005
- EFFECTS OF REDUCED STREAM DISCHARGE ON FISH AND ACUATIC MACROINVERTEBRATE POPULATIONS. 4.073
- EFFECTS OF WATERSHED PRACTICES ON STREAM BABITAT AND FISE POPULATIONS. 4.181
- ENVIRONMENTAL EFFECTS ON PRODUCTIVITY OF CRAYFISE IN FOND HABITATS, PEASE I, II. 5.025, 6.048*, 7.007 ±
- EVALUATION OF THE ECCLOGICAL REQUIREMENTS OF RESERVOIR FISE SPECIES. 1.101
- EXAMINATION OF THE SPAWNING ECCLOGY AND EARLY LIFE BISTORY CF KOEANEE SALMON IN CCEUR D' ALENE LAKE. 4.054
- EXPERIMENTAL FISH ECCLOGY. 1.098, 4.207*
- FACTORS AFFECTING FISE POPULATIONS IN IONA NATERS. I.040, 4.087=, 6.038=
- FISE MCVEMENT IN PCOL 9, UPPER MISSISSIPPI RIVER. 1.035
- EABITAT SELECTION AND SPECIES INTERACTIONS OF JUVENILE TROUT IN FLATHEAD RIVER TRIEUTARIES. I.027, 4.064*
- IMPACT OF ERCSION SILT AND SEDIMENTATION ON FISH REPROLUCTION AND GROWTH. 4.130 INSTREAM FLOW REQUIREMENTS OF CALFORNIA FISHES.
- I.013, 4.029*
- NOVEMENTS OF SONIC-TAGGED FISEES IN RELATION TO WATER QUALITY IN LOWER ATCHAFALAYA RIVER HASIN. 1.049, 4.097*
- NAVIGATION INPACTS ON CHANNEL FISHES, UPPER MISSISSIPFI RIVER. 4.090
- POTENTIAL BARVEST OF LAKE ERIE WHITE CRAFPIE FROM AN ADJOINING ECERCY PIT. 1.086, 6.072*
- PRE-INPOUNDMENT ENVIRONMENTAL STUDIES OF ACUILLA LAKE. 4.209
- PEESENCE, ABUNDANCE, NOVEMENTS, AND BAEITAT USAGE CF ESTUARINE-CEPENDENT FISBES AND CRUSTACEANS .. 1.045, 4.095*
- SPANNING, FARLY LIFE BISTCRY, BAEITAT SELECTION OF NORTHERN SQUAWFISE: INFER. TC CCLCRADC SQUAWFISE. 4.063
- STREAM AND IMPOUNDMENT ECOLOGY. 4.003
- STUDIES OF THE ECONOMICALLY IMPOSTANT SPECIES: MERCENARIA MERCENARIA AND MACECHEACHICM
- ROSENHEFGII. 1.094, 6.085* Survey of larval fises in the neafshoff gulf
- WATERS CF LOUISIANA. 1.047 TEE ECCLCGICAL INPACT OF INTEGRATED CHEMICAL AND BIOLOGICAL AQUATIC WEED CONTROL. 3.025, 4.045*, 4.048, 6.021*
- THE EFFECT OF STREAM CURRENT UPON FISH HEHAVICR, GROWTH AND MICROBAEITAT SELECTION. 1.011 THE EFFECT OF STRUCTURE ON FISH EEHAVIOR. 4.169
- THE EFFECTS OF ARTIFICIAL STRUCTURES OF GAME FISH IN A EOFROW PIT PCND. 1.085, 4.168*
- THE EFFECTS OF LOGGING: GRAZING ON STREAMS IN THE WHITE MCUNTAINS. 4.006
- THE IMPACT OF POWER PEAKING ON EGG INCUBATION OF FALL CHINCON SALMON. 4.072
- THE RELATIONSHIP OF SALINITY AND DISTANCE FROM THE SEA, TO THE DISTRIBUTION OF JUVENILE FISHES. 1.044. 4.094*
- ZCOGECGRAPEY AND ECOLOGY OF FISHES IN PENNSYLVANIA. 1.093, 4.190*
- PISE-KILLS
- MICRCHIAL AND PARASITIC DISEASES OF SHRIMP AND FISH. 3.025
- FISH-MANAGEMENT
- APPLIED LINNOLOGY AND FISHERIES STUDIES IN TROPICAL LAKES. 4.021
- HICLOGICAL DATA FOR MANAGEMENT OF WALLEYES AND OTHER FISHES. 6.037
- CAGE CULTUFE OF FISH IN THE VIRGIN ISLANDS UTILIZING TERTIARY TREATED WATER. 6.100 COEUR D'ALENE RIVER FISHERIES INVESTIGATIONS. 4.061
- CULTURE AND MANAGEMENT OF SELECTED GAME FISHES. 3.092, 4.203*, 6.091* DEVELCP AND IMPROVE PRODUCTION AND MANAGEMENT
- SYSTEMS FOR FRESHWATER ANIMALS CULTURED FOR FCOD. 6.011
- DEVELOPMENT OF MAXIMUM SUSTAINED YIELD IN KANSAS PARM PCNDS. 6.041 DEVELOPMENT OF OPTIMUM SUSTAINED YIELD OF FISHES IN
- FARM FCNDS. 5.021, 7.004* ECOLOGY AND MANAGEMENT OF MISSOURI STREAM FISHES.
- 4.128 ECOLOGY AND MANAGEMENT OF WALLEYE. 1.073, 6.065*

- ECOLOGY, POPULATION DYNAMICS AND MANAGEMENT OF MULTI-SPECIES FISH RESCUECES OF LARGE LAKES. 1.063. 4.121*
- FISE FCPULATION AND PRODUCTION IN POND AND LAKE INFOUNDMENTS. 4.208, 6.055*
- FISH PRODUCTION IN SOUTH DAKCTA FARM AND RANCH WATERS. 6.087 FRESEWATER FOCD ANIMALS. 2.007, 2.023, 2.025,
- 2.027, 5.045*, 5.0S1*, 5.0S4*, 6.023*, 6.079*, $6\cdot090 \texttt{F}$, $6\cdot096\texttt{F}$ genetics of natural fish pcpulations. 1.037, 2.009*
- LIFE HISTORY AND POPULATION DYNAMICS OF TILEFISE, ICPECLATILUS CHAMAELCNTICUP. 1.064
- RESPONSE OF FISHES AND AQUATIC SYSTEMS TO ELECTRIC SECCE AND CAPTURE IECENOLOGY. 6.101
- SPORTFISE WANAGEMENT. 6.005 SURF CLAM MANAGEMENT STUDIES. 4.136, 6.063*
- THE FINE STRUCTURE OF FISE CTCLITES: ENDCGENOUS AND ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS. 1.069
- THE USE OF FISHING TOURNAMENT RECORDS TO ESTIMATE AEUNDANCE OF BASS POPULATIONS, 4,215
- FISH-MHAL
 - DIETARY FACTORS IN WHITE FISH MEAL RESPONSIBLE FOR CATABACT FORMATION IN TECUT. 3.018, 5.009*, 9.005*
 - EVALUATION OF PESTICIDE LEVELS IN CATFISH PROCESSING WASTES. 9.001
 - INSECTS ATTRACTED BY LIGHT AS A SOURCE OF FOOD FOR CATFISE. 5.005
 - SALMON CULTURE DEVELOPMENT OF NUTRITICNAL AND DISEASE CONTROL PROGRAMS. 3.064. 5.037*
 - THE USE OF SELECTED MARINE MATERIALS AND BY-PEODUCTS FCE CERTAIN BORTICULTURAL CROPS. 8.044
 - UTILIZATION OF PROTEIN INGREDIENTS IN FISE BATICNS. 5.044
- FISE-OIL
 - EVALUATION OF HY-PRODUCTS FROM CATFISH PROCESSING WASTE FOR CATFISE FEED SUPPLEMENTS. 5.032, 8.030*
- FISE-PONDS
 - A POLYCULTURE SYSTEM OF FISE PRODUCTION FOR DISADVANTAGED FARMERS IN AREANSAS. 6.009 ANALYSIS OF THE MARKET POTENTIAL FOR FRESH WATER AQUACULTURAL FRODUCTS PECDUCED IN NEVADA. 5.036, 8.032*, 10.022*
 - BIOLOGICAL STUDIES WITH THE MCSCUITCFISE, GAMEUSIA AFFINIS, UNDER CULTURAL SITUATIONS. 6.012
 - CAGE CULTURE OF FISE IN THE VIRGIN ISLANDS UTILIZING TERTIARY TREATED WATER. 6.100 CULTURE AND MANAGEMENT OF SELECTED GAME FISHES.
 - 3.092, 4.203*, 6.091* CULTURE SYSTEMS FOR YEAR-ROUND MARKETING OF FISH
 - FROM WATERSHED PONDS. 6.008, 7.001* DEVELOPMENT OF MAXIMUM SUSTAINED VIELD IN BANSAS
 - FARM PCNDS. 6.041 EFFECTS OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONTAMINANTS ON GEORGIA
 - FARM POND PISBES. 4.051, 6.025* EFFECTS ON SELECTED ORGANISMS OF WATER PASSING THROUGH THE CEDAR EAVOU GENERATING STATICN. 4.210, 6.097*
 - FARM FISE PCND MANAGEMENT. 4.112, 5.030*, 6.055*FRESEWATER FOOD ANIMALS. 2.012, 2.023, 5.045*,
 - 6.045*, 6.075* INSECTS ATTRACTED BY LIGET AS A SOURCE OF FOOD FOR
 - CATFISH. 5.005
 - INVESTIGATION OF AQUATIC ECCSYSTEMS IN SMALL PCNDS. 1.031, 6.036*
 - MANAGEMENT OF AQUATIC PLANTS FOR SPCRT FISH PRODUCTION IN PONDS. 5.002
 - MINNEWS AS FORAGE IN THE FARM POND PRODUCTION OF FINFISE. 6.018
 - FOND FERTILIZATION AND LIMING. 4.002, 5.003* PREFLAVORED CHANNEL CATFISH. 8.013, 9.012*

 - SPORTFISE MANAGEMENT. $6\,{\scriptstyle,}005$ The effects of artificial structures of game fish
 - IN A HORROW PIT POND. 1.085, 4.168* THE RESCLUTION OF SOME PECHLEMS ATTENDING THE EMPLOYMENT OF MINNOWS AS FORAGE FOR FARMPOND FISBES. 6.019
- FISE-POPULATION
 - BEHAVICE OF ICWA SPORT FISHES. 1.036, 4.083* BIOLOGICAL STUDIES OF THE SPINY LOBSTER IN SCUTH FLOFIDA. 1.019
 - EIOLOGY AND SPORT FISHING BARVEST OF YELLOW PERCH. 4.082
 - COEUE D'ALENE FIVER FISHERIES INVESTIGATIONS. 4.061

DEVELOPMENT AND VALIDATION OF HARITAT-STANDING CROP FUNCTIONS FOR STREAM FISE AND TREIR FCCDS. 4.065 ECOLOGICAL STUDY OF CUTOFF RENDWAYS AND CXRCWS WITEIN THE TENNESSEE-TOWRIGEEE WATERWAY. 4.124 ECOLOGY AND MANAGEMENT CF WALLEYE. 1.073, 6.065* ECOLOGY OF LARVAL STREAM FISRES. 1.038, 4.084* EFFECTS OF ACID PRECIPITATION ON ADISONDACE LARES. 4.153 EFFECTS OF LOGGING ON ARIZONA TROUT AND TREIR HARITAT IN THE WRITE MOUNTAINS OF ARIZONA. 4.005 FFFECTS OF STAMPEDE RESERVOIR ON UPSTREAM FISH POPULATIONS OF SAGEREN CREEK. 1.010, 4.019* FACTORS AFFECTING FISE PCPULATIONS IN IOWA WATERS. 1.040, 4.087*, 6.038* FISE POPULATION AND PRODUCTION IN POND AND LAKE IMPOUNDMENTS. 4.208, 6.095* GENETICS CF NATURAL FISE POPULATIONS. 1.037, 2.009* IMPACT OF EROSICN SILT AND SEDIMENTATION ON FISH REPRODUCTION AND GREWIR. 4.130 IMPACTS OF RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT AND EXPLORIATION ON NATURAL RESOURCES. 4.216 INVESTIGATION OF AQUATIC ECOSYSTEMS IN SMALL PONDS. 1.031, 6.036* SFORTFISE MANAGEMENT. 6.005 TRE ECOLOGICAL IMPACT OF INTEGRATED CHEMICAL AND RIOLOGICAL AQUATIC WEED CONTRCL. 3.025, 4.045* THE EFFECTS OF ARTIFICIAL STRUCTURES OF GAME FISE IN A EOFROW PIT POND. 1.085, 4.168* THE USE OF FISEING TOURNAMENT RECORDS TO ESTIMATE ABUNDANCE OF EASS PCPULATIONS. 4.215 ULTRASTRUCTURAL CEANGES IN TELEOST GILLS: EFFECTS CF SUETIE ALTERATIONS IN THE ENVIRONMENT. 3.053, 4.098* UTILIZATION OF KRAFT WILL EFFLUENT FCR FISE FRODUCTICN. 5.012, 6.020* ZCOGEOGRAPEY AND ECOLOGY CF FISEES IN PENNSYLVANIA. 1.093, 4.190* FISR-PRODUCTS ECONOMICS OF THE COMMERCIAL FISH INDUSTRY. 10.045 MANUFACTURE OF PROCESSED MEAT AND/CR FISE PRODUCTS WITE UNCERUTILIZED MARINE SPECIES. 8.027 FISE-SIZE THE RELATIONSEIP OF SALINITY AND DISTANCE FROM THE SEA, TO THE DISTRIBUTION OF JUVENILE FISHES. 1.044, 4.094* FISE-WASTE FCRNULATION OF FOODS FCR AQUATIC ANIMALS CF ECONOMIC IMPORTANCE. 5.022, 8.016* MANUFACTURE OF PROCESSED MEAT AND/CR FISE FECDUCTS WITE UNDERUTILIZED MARINE SPECIES. 8.027 PRELIMINABY COSTS OF CATFISE FROCESSING WASTE UTILIZATION. 8.021, 10.013* RECOVERY AND UTILIZATION OF SERIMP AND CRAWFISH PROCESSING EXPRODUCTS. 8.017 FISHEPHEN AN ECONOMIC ANALYSIS OF THE ATLANTIC COAST STRIPED BASS FISRERY. 10.031 AN ECONOMIC EVALUATION OF ICE FISHING IN MAINE. 10.014 AN ECONOMIC EVALUATION OF THE RECREATIONAL SALMON FISEING IN THE RENAL/RUSSIAN RIVER REGION. 10.036 APPLICATION OF MANAGEMENT STRATEGIES TO THE MID-ATLANTIC EXTENDED JURISDICTION RECREATIONAL FISHEFIES. 10.034 COEUR D'ALENE RIVER FISHERIES INVESTIGATIONS. 4.061 EFFECT OF PEAKING POWER GENERATICN ON FISH. 4.056 EFFECTS OF THE TAX BEFORM ACT OF 1976 ON NEW ENGLAND VESSEL OWNERS AND CREW. 10.041 REGULATION OF WISCONSIN'S LAKE MICHIGAN COMMERCIAL FISEERIES. 10.050 THE EFFECT OF STRUCTURE CN FISE REHAVICE. 4.169 THE IMPACT OF SALMONID INTRODUCTIONS ON NEW YORE FISHERMEN AND COMMUNITIES. 10.033 FISRING AN ECONOMIC EVALUATION OF ICE FISHING IN MAINE. 10.014 AN ECONOMIC EVALUATION OF THE RECREATIONAL SALMON FISEING IN THE RENAL/RUSSIAN RIVER REGICN. 10.036 ANALYSIS AND MODELING LAKE MICEIGAN FISH POPULATION. 1.015, 4.032* ASSESSMENT OF COASTAL RECREATION RESOURCES. 10.046 EIOLOGY AND SPORT FISEING RAEVEST OF YELLCW PEECE. 4.082 CHARACTERISTICS, PREFERENCES, AND ATTITUDES CONCERNING PRIVATE FEE-FISRING CPERATICNS. 10.048

COSTS AND RETURNS IN THE OTTER TRAWL PLEET ON LONG ISLAND, NEW YORK. 10.029 DEVELOPMENT OF OPTIMUM SUSTAINED YIELD OF FISRES IN

FARM PONDS. 5.021, 7.004*

ECONOMIC ANALYSES OF FISRERIES MANAGEMENT ISSUES ARISING FRCM EXTENDED JURISDICTION OF NEW ENGLAND. 10.042

ECONOMIC IMPACTS OF TRE 200-MILE LIMIT ON BUBAL NORTHEASTERN COASTAL COMMUNITIES. 10.015.

10.024, 10.038 ECONOMIC PROPILE & REGIONAL ECONOMIC IMPACTS OF TEE ALASKA SRELLFISE INDUSTRY. 10.049

ECONONICS OF SALMONID ACUACULTURE IN NEW ENGLAND. 6.082, 10.038*

EFFECTS OF ADDITIONAL PEAKING FECM A FOURTR GENRRATOR AT DWORSRAK DAM IN CATCRARILITY, ETC .. 4.062

FISRERIES AND WILDLIFE ECONCMICS RESEARCE IN TRE GREAT LAKES. 10.019

FISRERIES EQUIPMENT AND GEAR DEVELOPMENT. 7.011 IMPACTS OF RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT AND EXPLORTATION ON NATURAL RESOURCES. 4.216

INTRODUCTION OF WALLEYE AND NORLUNGE FINGERLINGS INTO A LAKE DOMINATED BY PREY SPECIES. 1.074

NICROCCSM MODELING OF THE RESECNSE OF PERSISTENT AQUATIC COMMUNITIES TO A TOXICANT. 4.182 PCPULATION DYNAMICS OF LARGEMOUTE AND SMALLMOUTE

RASS IN 16 NEW YORK LAKES. 1.075 POTENTIAL BARVEST OF LAKE ERIE WHITE CRAPPIE FROM AN ADJCINING ECREOW PIT. 1.086, 6.072*

SPORTFISE MANAGEMENT. 6.005

STOCE DYNAMICS AND ASSESSMENT IN MARINE FISHERIES. 1.091, 6.078*

THE ECOLOGICAL IMPACT OF INTEGRATED CHEMICAL AND BIOLOGICAL AQUATIC WEED CONTROL. 4.048, 6.021* THE EFFECTS OF ARTIFICIAL STRUCTURES OF GAME FISH

IN A EORROW PIT POND. 1.085, 4.168* THE IMPACT OF SALMONID INTRODUCTIONS ON NEW YORK

FISRERMEN AND COMMUNITIES. 10.033

THE IMPACT OF THE 200 MILE ECONOMIC ZONE ON RURAL NEW ENGLAND COASTAL COMMUNITIES. 10.017 TRE USE OF FISHING TOURNAMENT RECORDS TO ESTIMATE

ARUNDANCE OF EASS POPULATIONS. 4.215 TOWARDS A TREOFY OF THE REGULATED FISHERY. 10.005

FISHING-INDUSTRY EIGLOGICAL STUDIES OF THE SPINY LOESTER IN SOUTH FLORIDA. 1.019

ECONOMIC DESCRIPTION OF THE NEW JERSEY COMMERCIAL FISRING INDUSTRY. 10.025

EFFECTS OF TEE TAX REFORM ACT OF 1576 CN NEW ENGLAND VESSEL OWNERS AND CREW. 10.041

FISEERIES EQUIPMENT AND GEAR DEVELOPMENT. 7.011 BISTAMINE/BONEYCOMBING IN SEIPJACE TUNA. 8.011, 9.010≭

BUMAN ECOLOGY OF NEW JERSEY FISRERIES. 10.026 THE STATUS AND BELATION OF THE COASTAL ZONE TO ALAEAMA'S ECONOMY. 10.001

FISBING-PATTERNS

STOCK DYNAMICS AND ASSESSMENT IN MARINE FISHERIES. 1.091, 6.078*

FLAVOR EREEDING, PRODUCTION, NUTRITICN AND MARKETING OF

CEANNEL CATFISE. 2.010, 5.020*, 6.040* DEVELOPMENT OF RAFID SEAFOOD QUALITY TESTS FOR CCMMERCIAL AND REGULATORY USE. 9.015

ENZYMATIC CONTROL OF QUALITY FACTORS IN MARINE FOODS. 8.026

FLAVOR DIFFERENCES OF MECEANICALLY- AND BAND-PROCESSED CRAE MEATS. 8.015, 9.014*

FRESEWATER FOOD ANIMALS. 2.023, 5.045*, 6.006, 6.079*, 8.001*, 9.002*, 10.002*

IDENTIFICATION OF OFF-FLAVCR CCMPCUND SOURCES FOR FISE AND WATER FROM THE UPPER WISCONSIN RIVER. 9.043

NEW FOOD PRODUCTS FROM UNDERUTILIZED FISE SPECIES. 8.033

POTENTIAL OF DIFFERENT UNDERUTILIZED SPECIES OF

FISE FOR CONVENIENCE FOCES. 8.035, 9.026* ROLE OF LIPIDS AND THEIR OWIDATION IN FISH QUALITY. 9.024

FLAVOR-COMPONENTS

FLAVOR DIFFERENCES OF MECRANICALLY- AND BAND-PROCESSED CRAE MEATS. 8.015, 9.014*

FLAVOR-ENHANCERS

FLAVOR DIFFERENCES OF MECEANICALLY- AND HAND-PRCCESSED CRAE NEATS. 8.015, 9.014* FLAVOR-STABILITY

256

PREFLAVORED CHANNEL CATFISH. 8.013. 9.012* FLAVORINGS PREFLAVOREI CHANNEL CATFISH. 8.013, 9.012* FLEXIBACTER CCMPARATIVE STUDY OF THE FLEXIBACTER-CYTOPHAGA GROUP EACTERIA. 4.104 FLOCD-CONTFOL FISH POPULATION AND PRODUCTION IN POND AND LAKE IMPOUNDMENTS. 4.208, 6.095* FLOUNDER EFFECT OF DIET QUALITY ON AQUATIC ANIMALS. 5.047 PLOT PACTORS AFFECTING FISH POPULATIONS OF IOWA STREAMS. 1.039, 4.086* FLOV-RATE EFFECTS OF ADDITIONAL PEAKING FROM A FOURTH GENERATCE AT DWORSHAE DAM IN CATCHAHILITY, ETC .. 4.062 INSTREAM PLCV REQUIREMENTS OF CALFORNIA FISHES. 1.013, 4.029* THE STATUS, ABUNDANCE, AND YIELD OF THE STRIPED BASS IN THE BOANORE EIVER, NCETH CAFCLINA. 1.081, 4.164* FLOVERING THE PHYSIOLOGY AND CONTROL OF VEGETATIVE REPRODUCTION IN BYDRILLA (BYDRILLA VEFTICILLATA ROYLE). 3.024 FLUBENDAZOLE FEESEWATER FCOD ANIMALS. 3.043 FLUORESCENCE DETECTION AND IDENTIFICATION OF MYCOTOXINS AND ALGAL TOXING IN FOODS AND FEEDS. 9.023 FLUCRESCENT-ANTIHODY-TECHNIQUE DETECTION TRANSMISSION AND PATHOGENESIS CF DISEASE ORGANISMS IN AQUACULTURE SPECIES. 3.087 PLUSHING **OYSTER PRODUCTION EQUIPMENT DEVELOPMENT. 4.052.** 6.028* FOOD AN EVALUATION OF WIDELY USED HERBICIDES CN AQUATIC PLANTS, FISE AND FISE-FOOD OFGANISMS. 3.059, 4.116* ANALYSIS OF DOMESTIC FOOD DEMAND AND CONSUMPTION BEHAVIOF. 9.041 BIOCCNVERSICN OF CHITIN WASTES. 8.004 BIOLOGICALLY ACTIVE AMINES IN FOCD. 8.009 CAGE CULTURE OF TILAPIA IN THE VIRGIN ISLANDS. 6.098, £.039* CATFISH BREEDING, PRCDUCTION, AND MARKETING. 10.003 DETECTION AND IDENTIFICATION OF MYCOTOXINS AND ALGAL TOXINS IN FOODS AND FEEDS. 9.023 DEVELOPMENT OF RAPID SEAFCOD QUALITY TESTS FOR COMMERCIAL AND REGULATORY USE. 9.015 ECONOMIC BEHAVIOR OF FOOD AND FIBER FIRMS. 10.007 ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS OF SALMCNELLOSIS. 3.049 ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS AFFECTING SURVIVAL OF THERMALLY-INJURED HACTERIA FOUND ON FISHERY PEODUCTS. 9.008 ENZYMATIC CONTROL OF QUALITY FACTORS IN WARINE. FCCDS. 8.026 ENZYME DEVELOPMENT FOR SEAFOCD QUALITY. 9.033 ENZYMES IN FOOD FERMENTATIONS. 9.025 EVALUATION OF THE STABILITY AND EDIBLE QUALITY OF FRESH WATER SHRIMP. 8.019 EXTENDING THE SHELP-LIFE OF FISH. 8.036, 9.028* PACTORS AFFECTING THE FUNCTIONAL PROPERTIES AND QUALITY OF PROCESSED MUSCLE FCODS. 9.021 FACTORS AFFECTING THE TEXTURE OF SEAFOODS. 7.009, 8.038*, 9.029* FLAVOR DIFFERENCES OF MECHANICALLY- AND HAND-PRCCESSED CRAB MEATS. 8.015, 9.014* POOD PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT FRCM FLCBIDA UNDERUTILIZED FISH SPECIES. 8.007, 9.006* PRESHWATER FCOD ANIMALS. 2.027, 5.054*, 6.006, 6.096*, 8.001*, 9.002*, 10.002* BANDLING AND PROCESSING CF FISH AND SHELLFISH. 8.018, 8.016* BUMAN NUTRITION IMPROVEMENT. 8.022 IDENTIFICATION OF OFF-FLAVOR COMFCUND SCURCES FOR FISH AND WATER FROM THE UPPER WISCONSIN RIVER. 9.043 IMPROVING THE ASSURANCE OF QUALITY AND SAFETY OF CONSUMES'S FOOD. 9.031 INTEGRATION OF A SOLAR GREENBOUSE WITH A RECINCULATING FISE CULTURE SYSTEM. 6.003

LIPID METAFOLISM IN AQUATIC OFGANISHS. 5.053, 9.038*

MANUFACTURE OF PROCESSED MEAT AND/OB FISH PECDUCTS WITH UNDERUTILIZED MARINE SPECIES. 8.027 MARINE FOOD SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY. 8.003, 9.004* MARKET POTENTIAL AND CURRENT MARKETING PROCEDURES AND PRACTICES OF THE CATPISE FOR FOOD INDUSTRY. 10.021 METHODS OF MODIFIED-ATMOSPHERE PRESERVATION OF REFRIGERATED FRESH FISH. 7.016, 8.048* MICROBIOLOGICAL ASPECTS TO SHELLFISH SANITATICN AND QUALITY. 7.014, 8.047*, 9.037* NEW FOOD PRODUCTS FROM UNDERUTILIZED FISH SPECIES. 8.033 NEW METHOD OF APPRAISING NUTRITICNAL STANDARDS. 10.020 OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF THE HEPATOMA LABORATORY. 5.043 PIGNENTS OF NEAT AND FISH PRODUCTS (CFF-COLORS IN TUNA). 8.002, 9.003* POST-HARVEST HANDLING AND PRCCESSING CF MACROBRACHIUM PRAWNS. 7.003, 8.012*, 9.011* POTENTIAL OF DIFFERENT UNDERUTILIZED SPECIES OF FISH FOR CONVENIENCE FOODS. 8.035, 9.026* PREFLAVORED CHANNEL CATFISE. 8.013, 9.012* PROCESSING QUALITY AND PACKAGING FACTORS WHICH AFFECT THE UTILIZATION OF FISH AND SHELLFISH. 8.046, 9.036* QUALITY CONTROL OF CANNED SCUID. 9.018 RECLANATION OF PROTBIN AND FLAVCE MATERIALS FROM CLAM WASH WATER. 8.034 REGULATORY PROBLEMS OF LOUISIANA FOCE INDUSTRIES. 9.017 ROLE OF LIPIDS AND THEIR OXIDATION IN FISH QUALITY. 9.024 SENSORY & NUTRITIONAL EVALUATION OF SEAFCODS. 8.043, 9.032* SHEAR PROPERTIES OF FROZEN FISH FILLET HLOCKS. 8.024, 9.019* SMOKING OF SEAFOOD AND POULTRY. 8.008, 9.007* THE EFFECT OF FROZEN STCRAGE ON TEXTURAL QUALITY CF LOBSTER MEAT. 8.023 THE EFFECTS OF DIET ON THE RISK CF CANCER. 9.020 THE CXIDATIVE DETERIORATION OF LIPIDS IN MECHANICALLY DEBONED POULTRY AND FISH. 9.009 USE OF CLAM HY-PRODUCTS. 8.037 FOOD-ACCEPTANCE SENSORY & NUTRITIONAL EVALUATION OF SEAFCCDS. 8.043, 9.032* FOOD-ADDITIVES EXTENDING THE SHELF-LIFE OF FISH. 8.036, 9.028* FACTORS AFFECTING THE PUNCTIONAL PROPERTIES AND QUALITY OF PECCESSED MUSCLE FCODS. 9.021 IMPROVING THE ASSURANCE OF QUALITY AND SAFETY OF CONSUMER'S FOOD. 9.031 FOOD-ANALYSIS BOLE OF LIFIDS AND THEIR OXIDATION IN FISH QUALITY. 8.024 FOOD-CHAINS BIOACCUMULATION AND IMPACT OF BIGHWAY-GENERATED HEAVY METALS ON STREAM FISHERY RESCURCES IN VIRGINIA. 4.214 BIOSYNTHESIS OF STEROLS IN THE CYSTER AND CORRELATION OF STEROL COMPOSITION TO CYSTER PECDUCTIVITY. 1.055, 5.027* EFFECT OF DIET QUALITY ON AQUATIC ANIMALS. 5.047 EFFECTS OF SEDIMENTS ON EIOLOGICAL SYSTEMS. 4.126 ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS OF SALMONELLOSIS. 3.049 MODELS TO ASSESS BIOMAGNIFICATION POTENTIAL OF PERSISTENT TOXIC SUBSTANCES IN AQUATIC FOOD CHAINS. 4.149 STUDY OF MANURE-ENRICHED FOOD WEES IN MARINE POND ECOSYSTEMS. 5.016 FOOD-CHEMISTRY EIOLOGICALLY ACTIVE AWINES IN FCCD. 8.009 DEVELCEMENT OF RAPID SEAFOOD QUALITY TESTS FOR COMMERCIAL AND REGULATORY USE. 9.015 IDENTIFICATION OF OFF-FLAVOR COMPOUND SOURCES FOR FISE AND WATER FROM THE UPPER WISCCNSIN RIVER. 9.043 MARINE FOOD SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY. 8.003, 9.004* FOOD-COLOR PIGNENTS OF MEAT AND FISH PRODUCTS (OFF-COLORS IN TUNA). 8.002, 9.003* FOOD-CONFOSITION EVALUATION OF THE STABILITY AND EDIFLE QUALITY OF

FRESE WATEL SEFINP. 8.019 FLAVOR DIPFERENCES OF WECHANICALLY- AND HAND-PECCESSED CRAH MEATS. 8.015, 9.014*

HUMAN NUTEITION IMPROVEMENT. 8.022 MARINE FOOL SCIENCE AND TECENCLOGY. 8.003, 9.004* FOOD-CONSUMPTION ANALYSIS OF DOMESTIC FOOD DEMAND AND CONSUMPTION HEHAVIOR. 10.008 NEW METBOD OF APPRAISING NUTRITICNAL STANDARDS. 10.020 THE QUALITY OF SEAFOOD CONSUMED BY THE PECFLE CF SOUTH CAROLINA. 4.199, 9.034* FOOD-CONTANINATION MICROHIOLOGICAL ASPECTS TO SHELLFISE SANITATION AND QUALITY. 7.014, 8.047*, 9.037* THE QUALITY OF SEAFOOD CONSUMED BY THE PEOPLE OF SOUTH CAROLINA. 4.199, 9.034* FOOD-CONVERSION RECYCLING WASTES INTO ANIMAL FEEDS. 5.029, 8.029* POOD-FLAVOR FLAVCE DIFFERENCES OF MECHANICALLY- AND HAND-PRCCESSED CRAB NEATS. 8.015, 9.014* PREFLAVOREL CHANNEL CATFISE. 8.013, 9.012* FOOD-HABITS EARLY LIFE HISTORY ECOLOGY AND GROWTH OF THE RIVER SHRIMP MACROBRACHIUM CHICKE IN LOUISIANA. 1.046 ECOLOGICAL STUDIES WITH RED SWAMP CRAWFISH AND WHITE RIVER CRAWFISH. 1.042, 4.092*, 6.043* EVALUATION OF THE ECCLOGICAL REQUIREMENTS OF **RESERVOIR FISE SPECIES. 1.101** FOOD-HANDLING POST-BARVEST HANDLING AND PRCCESSING CF MACROBRACHIUN PRAWNS. 7.003, 8.012*, 5.011* REGULATORY PROBLEMS OF LOUISIANA FOOD INDUSTRIES. 9.017 FOOD-NICROORGANISMS ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS AFFECTING SURVIVAL OF THERNALLY-INJURED BACTERIA POUND ON FISHERY PRODUCTS. 9.008 ENZYMES IN FOOD FERMENTATIONS. 9.025 FOOD-NUTRITIVE-VALUE HUMAN NUTRITION IMPROVEMENT. 8.022 CFERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF THE HEPATOMA LABORATCRY. 5.043 FOOD-POISONING ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS AFFECTING SUBVIVAL OF THERMALLY-INJURED BACTERIA FOUND CN FISBERY PRODUCTS. 9.008 POOD-PRESERVATION METHODS OF MODIFIED-ATMOSPHERE PRESERVATION OF REFRIGERATED FRESE FISE. 7.016, 8.048* NEW METEOD OF APPRAISING NUTHITICNAL STANDARDS. 10.020 FOOD-PRESERVATIVES METHODS OF MODIFIED-ATMOSPHERE PRESERVATION OF REFRIGEFATED FRESE FISE. 7.016, 8.048* FOOD-PROCESSING ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS OF SALMCNELLOSIS. 3.049 PACTORS AFFECTING THE FUNCTIONAL PROPERTIES AND QUALITY OF PROCESSED MUSCLE FCODS. 9.021 FACTORS AFFECTING THE TEXTURE OF SEAFOODS. 7.009. 8.038*. 8.029* FLAVOR DIFFERENCES OF MECHANICALLY- AND HAND-FRECESSED CRAB MEATS. 8.015, 9.014* FOOD PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT FRCM FLOBIDA UNDERUTILIZED FISH SPECIES. 8.007, 9.006* FRESHWATER FOOD ANIMALS. 2.027, 5.054*, 6.006, 6.096*, 8.001*, 9.002*, 10.002* EUMAN NUTRITION IMPROVEMENT. 8.022 IDENTIFICATION OF OFF-FLAVCE COMPCUND SCDECES PCF PISE AND WATER FROM THE UPPER WISCONSIN RIVER. 9.043 MANUFACTURE OF PROCESSED MEAT AND/OR FISE PRODUCTS WITE UNDERUTILIZED MARINE SPECIES. 8.027 NEW METEOD OF APPRAISING NUTRITICNAL STANDARDS. 10.020 POST-HARVEST HANDLING AND PROCESSING OF MACROERACHIUM PRAWNS. 7.003, 8.012*, 9.011* POTENTIAL CF DIFFERENT UNDEFUTILIZED SPECIES CF FISE FOE CONVENIENCE FOODS. 8.035, 9.026* PEELIMINAET COSTS OF CATFISE PROCESSING WASTE UTILIZATION. 8.021, 10.013* PROCESSING QUALITY AND PACKAGING FACTORS WEICH AFFECT THE UTILIZATION OF FISH AND SHELLFISH. 8.046, \$.036* QUALITY CONTROL OF CANNED SQUID. 9.018 QUALITY FACTORS FOR FISE AND SHELLFISE STCRAGE. 8.045. 8.035* RECLAMATION OF PROTEIN AND FLAVCE MATERIALS FROM CLAM WASE WATER. 8.034

REGULATORY PROBLEMS OF LOUISIANA FOOD INDUSTRIES. 9.017 SENSORY & NUTHITICNAL EVALDATION OF SEAFOODS. 8.043, 9.032* SMOKING OF SEAFCOD AND FOULTRY. 8.008, 9.007* THE TREATMENT AND USE OF WASTE FRODUCTS AND CHENICALS IN THE DIET OF AQUATIC ANIMALS. 5.046, 8.042* USE OF CLAM BY-FRODUCTS. 8.037 FOOD-PRODUCTION THE USE OF SELECTED AQUATIC CRGANISMS FOR PURPOSES OF AQUACULTDEE (FOOD FECDUCTION). 3.012, 4.023*, 5.008*, 8.00S* FOOD-PRODUCTS EIOLOGICALLY ACTIVE AMINES IN FCOD. 8.009 DEVELOPMENT OF RAPID SEAFOOD QUALITY TESTS FCF COMMERCIAL AND REGULATORY USE. 9.015 MARINE FOOD SCIENCE AND TECHNCLCGY. 8.003. 9.004* NEW FOOD PRODUCTS FROM UNDERUTILIZED PISH SPECIES. 8.033 RECOVERY AND UTILIZATION OF SERINF AND CRAWFISH **PROCESSING HYFRODUCTS. 8.017** FOOD-PROPERTIES POTENTIAL OF DIFFERENT UNDERUTILIZED SPECIES CF FISE FOR CONVENIENCE FOODS. 8.035, 9.026* FOOD-QUALITY DEVELOPMENT OF RAPID SEAFOOD QUALITY TESTS FOR CCMMEECIAL AND REGULATORY USE. 9.015 DIAGNOSIS OF FISE DISEASES. 3.082 ENZYMATIC CONTROL OF QUALITY FACTORS IN MARINE FOCDS. 8.026 ENZYME DEVELOPMENT FOR SEAFOOD QUALITY. 9.033 ENZYMES IN FCOD FERMENTATIONS. 9.025 EVALUATION OF THE STAHILITY AND EDIHLE QUALITY CF FRESH WATER SHRIMP. 8.019 EXTENDING THE SHELF-LIFE CF FISH. 8.036, 9.028* FACTORS AFFECTING THE FUNCTIONAL PROPERTIES AND QUALITY OF PROCESSED MUSCLE FOODS. 9.021 FOOD PRODUCT DEVELOFMENT FROM FLORIDA UNDERUTILIZED FISH SPECIHS. 8.007, 9.006* FRESEWATER FCOD ANIMALS. 6.006, 8.001*, 9.002*, 10.002* IDENTIFICATION OF OFF-FLAVCE COMPOUND SCURCES POR PISH AND WATER FROM THE UPPER WISCONSIN RIVER. 9.043 IMPROVING THE ASSURANCE OF QUALITY AND SAFETY OF CONSUMER'S FCCD. 9.031 LIPID METAHOLISM IN AQUATIC OFGANISMS. 5.053, 9.038* LOW-TEMPERATURE STORAGE OF FRESEWATER PEAWN. MACROBRACHIUM ROSENBERGII. 8.010 NICROBIAL AND PAGASITIC DISEASES OF SERIMP AND FISH. 3.095 MICRCBICLCGICAL ASPECTS TO SHELLFISH SANITATION AND QUALITY. 7.014, 8.047*, 5.037* NEW FOOD PRODUCTS FROM UNDERUTILIZED FISH SPECIES. 8.033 FIGNENTS OF MEAT AND FISE PRODUCTS (OFF-COLORS IN TUNA). 8.002, 9.003* POTENTIAL OF DIFFERENT UNDERUTILIZED SPECIES OF FISH FOR CONVENIENCE FOODS. 8.035, 9.026* PROCESSING QUALITY AND FACKAGING FACTORS WEICE AFFECT THE UTILIZATION OF FISH AND SHELLFISH. 8.046, 9.036* QUALITY CONTROL OF CANNED SQUID. 9.018 REGULATORY PROBLEMS OF LOUISIANA FOOD INDUSTRIES. 9.017 BOLE OF LIPIDS AND THEIR OXIDATION IN FISH QUALITY. 9.024 SENSCRY & NUTRITIONAL EVALUATION OF SEAFCCDS. 8.043, 9.032* SMOEING OF SEAFOOD AND POULTRY. 8.008, 9.007* TEE EFFECT OF FROZEN STORAGE ON TEXTURAL QUALITY CF LCBSTEE MEAT. 8.023 THE OXIDATIVE DETERIORATION OF LIFIDS IN MECEANICALLY DEBONED FOULTRY AND FISH. 9.009 THE QUALITY OF SEAFOOD CONSUMED BY THE PEOPLE OF SOUTE CAECLINA. 4.199, 9.034* FOOD-SAFETY **EIGLOGICALLY ACTIVE AMINES IN FCOD. 8.009** DIAGNOSIS OF FISE DISEASES. 3.082 CISEASES OF AQUATIC ANIMALS. 3.072 ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS OF SALMONELLOSIS. 3.049 ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS AFFECTING SURVIVAL CF THERMALLY-INJUGED EACTERIA FOUND ON FISEERY PRCDUCTS. 9.008 IMPROVING THE ASSURANCE OF QUALITY AND SAFETY CF CCNSUMER'S FCCD. 9.031

METHODS OF MODIFIED-ATMOSPHERE PRESERVATION OF REFRIGEFATED FRESH FISE. 7.016, $\delta\!:\!048\pm$ MICROBIOLOGICAL ASPECTS TO SHELLFISH SANITATION AND QUALITY. 7.014, 8.047*, 9.037* MIREX FEEDING STUDY IN CHANNEL CATFISH (ICTALURUS PUNCTATUS). 4.123, 9.022* REGULATORY PROBLEMS OF LOUISIANA FOOD INDUSTRIES. 9.017 SMOKING CF SEAFOCD AND POULIEY. 8.008, 9.007* THE QUALITY OF SEAFOOD CONSUMED BY THE PEOPLE OF SOUTE CAECLINA. 4.189, 9.034* FOOD-SPOILAGE ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS AFFECTING SUBVIVAL CF THERMALLY-INJURED BACTERIA FOUND ON FISBERY PRODUCTS. 9.008 ENZYMATIC CONTROL OF QUALITY FACTORS IN MARINE FOODS. 8.026 EXTENDING THE SHELF-LIFE CF FISH. 8.036, 9.028* LCW-TEMPERATURE STORAGE OF FRESHWATER PRAWN, MACROERACBIUM ROSENBERGII. 8.010 FOOD-STANPS ANALYSIS OF DOMESTIC FOOD DEMAND AND CONSUMPTION BEEAVICE. 9.041 FOOD-STORAGE QUALITY CONTROL OF CANNED SQUID. 9.018 FOOD-SUPPLY CPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF THE HEPATOMA LABORATCRY. 5.043 FOOD-TEXTURE EXTENDING THE SHELF-LIFE OF FISH. 8.036, 9.028* FACTORS AFFECTING THE TEXTURE OF SEAFCCDS. 7.009, 8.038*, 9.029* QUALITY CONTEOL OF CANNED SQUID. 5.018 THE EFFECT OF FROZEN SICRAGE ON TEXTURAL QUALITY OF LCE STER MEAT. 8.023 FOOD-TOXICITY THE QUALITY OF SEAFOOD CONSUMED BY THE FEOPLE OF SOUTE CARCLINA. 4.199, 9.034* PORAGE TEE RESOLUTION OF SOME PRCHLEMS ATTENDING THE EMPLOYMENT OF MINNOWS AS FORAGE FOR FARMPOND FISEES. 6.019 FORAGING-BERAVIOR THE RESOLUTION OF SOME PROBLEMS ATTENDING THE EMPLOYMENT OF MINNOWS AS FCRAGE FCE FARMPCND FISHES. 6.019 FORECASTING AN ANALYSIS OF NEW ENGLAND FISBEBIES INVESTMENT EEHAVIOL. 10.037 FOREIGN-COUNTRIES ECONOMIC AMALYSES OF FISHERIES MANAGEMENT ISSUES ARISING FROM EXTENDED JURISDICTION OF NEW ENGLAND. 10.042 ECONOMIC IMPACTS OF THE 200-MILE LIMIT ON RURAL NORTHEASTERN COASTAL COMMUNITIES. 10.039 FOREIGH-MARKETS DIAGNOSIS OF FISH DISPASES, 3.082 FOREST-MANAGEMENT IMPACTS OF RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT AND EXPLORTATION ON NATURAL RESOURCES. 4.216 FOREST-BOADS A STUDY OF FISE RESOURCES OF THE GOSPEL BUMP AREA. 4.060 FORESTRY A STUDY OF FISE RESOURCES OF THE GOSPEL HUMP AREA. 4.060 EFFECTS OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONTAMINANTS ON GEORGIA FARM POND FISHES. 4.051, 6.025* EFFECTS OF INCREASED FINE SEDIMENT ON INCUEATION AND EMBEGENCE OF CEINOOK SALMON AND STEELEEAD TROUT. 4.071 EFFECTS CF LCGGING CN ABIZONA TROUT AND THEIR EABITAT IN THE WHITE NCUMTAINS CF ABIZONA. 4.005 EFFECTS OF REDUCED STREAM DISCEARGE CN FISH AND AQUATIC MACBOINVERTEBRATE POFULATIONS. 4.073 BFFECTS OF WATERSHED PRACTICES CN STREAM BABITAT AND FISE POPULATIONS. 4.181 STREAMSIDE BUFFEF STRIPS FOR PROTECTING AQUATIC **OFGANISMS FROM LOGGING EFFECTS. 4.018** FORMALDEBYDE EXTENDING THE SHELF-LIFE OF FISE. 8.036, 9.028* FORMULATIONS. EVALUATION OF FUSARIUM ROSEUM 'CULMORUM' AS A EIOLOGICAL CONTEOL FOR HYDRILLA VERTICILLATA. 3.029 FREEZING CRYOGENIC PRESERVATION OF SPEEN FROM STRIPED BASS.

2.017

ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS AFFECTING SURVIVAL OF THERMALLY-INJURED BACTERIA FOUND ON FISBERY PECDUCTS. 9.008 EXTENDING THE SHELF-LIFE OF FISE. 8.036, 9.028* **EUMAN NUTRITION IMPROVEMENT**. 8.622 POST-HAEVEST HANDLING AND PROCESSING CF MACECHRACHIUM PRAWNS. 7.003, 8.012*, 9.011* PREFLAVORED CBANNEL CATFISE: 8.013, 5.012* THE EFFECT OF FROZEN STORAGE CN TEXTURAL CUALITY CF LCHSTER MEAT. 8.023 FRESH-FISE MARINE FOOD SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY. 8.003, 9.004* FRESE-WATER ANALYSIS OF THE MARKET POTENTIAL FOR FRESH WATER AQUACULTURAL PRODUCTS PECCUCED IN NEVADA: 5.036, 8.032*, 10.022* APPLIED LINNCLOGY AND FISHERIES STUDIES IN TROPICAL LAKES. 4.021 DISEASES OF ACUACULTURE SPECIES. 3.044 EFFECTS OF POLLUTANTS ON GILLS CF FRESHWATER FISHES. 3.060, 4.119* EVALUATION OF THE STABILITY AND EDIBLE QUALITY CF FEESH WATER SHRIMP. 8.019 FRESEWATER FCCD ANIMALS. 2.014, 2.025, 5.034*, 5.051*, 6.056*, 6.090* FRESHWATER SERINP OF THE GENUS MACRCHRACHIUM WITH SPECIAL EMPHASIS ON CULTURE. 4.205, 6.094* INVESTIGATION OF "IN SITU" SOLIDS DIGESTION FOR SALMONID PRODUCTION: 6.081 LIMNOLOGICAL HASIS FOR THE PRODUCTIVITY OF INLAND WATERS. 4.206 LOW-TEMPERATURE STORAGE OF FRESEWATER PRANN. MACECERACEIUM ROSENBERGII. 8.010 MECHANISTIC FACTORS DETERMINE AQUATIC FERTILITY. 4.114 NODELS TO ASSESS BIONAGNIFICATION POTENTIAL OF PERSISTENT TOXIC SUBSTANCES IN AQUATIC FOCD CHAINS. 4.149 NITROGEN METABOLISM OF FRESHWATER PRAWNS IN RELATION TO DIET. 5.015 CRGANIZATION AND RETRIEVAL OF FRESHWATER FISHERY DATA. 1.033, 4.080* PRELIMINARY STUDIES ON CRAWFISH AND FRESHWATER SHRIMP DISEASES. 1.096, 3.094* VALUE OF TIDAL MARSHES IN RELATION TO ESTUARINE ECOSYSTEM, AND EVALUATION OF FRESEWATER WETLANDS. 4.044 FRESH-WATER-FISE EIOLOGICAL AND SECREATIONAL ASPECTS OF WATER LEVEL MANAGEMENT OF CLEAR LAKE, ICWA. 4.081 BIOLOGY AND SPORT FISEING EARVEST OF YELLOW FERCE. 4.082 CATFISE BREEDING, FRODUCTION, AND MARKETING. 10.003 DEVELOP OF ACUACULTURE SYSTEMS FCB CCOL WATER FISH SFECIES. 2.028, 5.057*, 6.102* DEVELOPMENT OF MAXIMUM SUSTAINED YIELD IN KANSAS FARM PONDS. 6.041 DISEASES OF AQUACULTURE SPECIES. 3.044 ECOLOGICAL FACTORS AFFECTING POTENTIALLY THREATENED OR ENDANGERED FISE SPECIES IN NY. 4.147 ECOLOGY OF FISEES OF SACRAMENTO - SAN JCAQUIN ESTUARY, WITH EMPHASIS CN SUISUN MARSE. 4.030 ECOLOGY OF RARE AND ENDANGERED FISEES OF PENNSYLVANIA. 4.191 EFFECTS OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONTAMINANTS ON GEORGIA FARM POND FISHES. 4.051, 6.025* EFFECTS OF POLLUTANTS ON GILLS CF FRESHWATER FISEES. 3.060, 4.119* EFFECTS OF STAMPEDE RESERVCIE ON UPSTREAM FISH POPULATIONS OF SAGEBEN CREEK. 1.010, 4.019* FACTORS AFFECTING FISE POPULATIONS OF IOWA STREAMS. 1.039, 4.086* FRESHWATER FCCD ANIMALS. 2.007, 2.012, 2.023, 2.027, 3.039, 5.004, 5.013, 5.014*, 5.045* 5.054*, 6.022*, 6.023*, 6.024*, 6.045*, 6.079*, 6.096* IMPACT OF EROSION SILT AND SEDIMENTATION ON FISH **REPRODUCTION AND GROWTH. 4.130** INPACT OF LAND USE PRACTICES ON POPULATIONS OF WILDLIFE AND FISHERY RESCURCES. 4.162 **METAPHASE CHROMOSOME BANDING OF FRESHWATER FISHES.** 2.026 NAVIGATION IMPACTS ON CHANNEL FISHES, UPPER MISSISSIPPI RIVER. 4.090 CRGANIZATICN AND BETRIEVAL CF FRESHWATER FISHERY

DATA: 1.033, 4.080* PRODUCTION OF IDENTIFICATION CIRCULARS ON THE LARVAE OF COLORADO FISHES: 1.014

SURVEY OF DISEASES OF CULTURED FRESHWATER FISRES OF CALIFCRNIA. 3.009 THE STATUS, ARUNDANCE, AND YIELD OF TRE STRIPED BASS IN THE ROANCKE RIVER, NORTE CAROLINA. 1.081, 4.164* FROGS DEVELOPMENT OF METBODS FOR MASS FRODUCTION AND MANAGEMENT OF RULLFRCGS. 2.013, 4.093* FBOZEN-FOOD IMPROVING THE ASSURANCE OF QUALITY AND SAFETY OF CONSUMER'S FOCD. 9.031 MARINE FCOD SCIENCE AND TECRNOLOGY. 8.003, 9.004* PIGMENTS OF MEAT AND FISE PRODUCTS (CFF-COLORS IN TUNA). 8.002, 9.003* SREAR PROPERTIES OF FROZEN FISE FILLET BLCCKS. 8.024, \$.019± THE EFFECT OF FROZEN STORAGE ON TEXTURAL QUALITY OF LORSTER MEAT. 8.023 FRUITS ANALYSIS OF DOMESTIC FOOD DEMAND AND CONSUNPTICN REBAVIOS. 9.041 FRYING RUMAN NUTRITION IMPROVEMENT. 8.022 FUCUS DISTRIBUTION, ABUNDANCE AND ECOLOGY OF ASCOPRYLLUM NODOSUM (1) LE JOIS. 1.052, 4.102*, 7.008* FUNCTIONAL-PROPERTIES FACTORS AFFECTING THE FUNCTIONAL PROPERTIES AND QUALITY OF PROCESSED MUSCLE FOODS. 9.021 FOTENTIAL OF DIFFERENT UNDERUTILIZED SPECIES OF FISE FOR CONVENIENCE FOODS. 8.035, 9.026* FUNCTIONAL-RELATIONSBIPS FUNCTIONAL MORPROLOGY OF INVERTEBRATE CRGAN SYSTEMS. 1.071 PUNGI RIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF WEEDS WITH PATHOGENS. 3.103 CONTROL CF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.108 DETECTION AND IDENTIFICATION OF MYCOTOXINS AND ALGAL TOXING IN FOODS AND FEEDS. 9.023 EVALUATION OF FUSARIUM ROSEUM "CULNCRUM" AS A BIOLOGICAL CONTROL FOR BYDEILLA VERTICILLATA. 3.029 PHYTOTOXINS FROM AQUATIC AND TERRESTRIAL PLANTS, RACTERIA, AND FUNGI. 3.017 UTILIZATION OF PROTEIN INGREDIENTS IN FISE FATIONS. 5.044 FUNGICIDES EVALUATION OF FUSARIUM ROSEUM "CULMORUM" AS A BIOLOGICAL CONTROL FOR RYDRILLA VERTICILLATA. 3.029 MANAGEMENT STRATEGIES FOR RICE PESTS. 3.005 PUNGUS-DISEASES-PLANTS MANAGEMENT STRATEGIES FOR RICE PESTS. 3.005 FUR-BRARING-ANIMALS FUR ANIMAL STUDIES (MINK). 8.028 PUSARIUM-ROSEUM EVALUATION OF FUSARIUN ROSEUM 'CULNORUM' AS A BIOLOGICAL CONTRCL FOR BYDEILLA VERTICILLATA. 3.029 GAFFERMIA NUTRITION MANAGEMENT AND DISEASE OF MARINE ANIMALS. 3.055, 5.026*, 6.050* GANBUSIA-AFFINIS AN INVESTIGATION OF THE ADAPTIVE SIGNIFICANCE OF MELANISM IN THE MALE MOSQUITOFISE, GAMEUSIA AFFINIS. I.078 BIOLOGICAL STUDIES WITH THE MCSQUITOFISE, GAMEUSIA AFPINIS, UNDER CULTURAL SITUATIONS. 6.012 GAME-FISE A STUDY OF FISE RESOURCES OF THE GOSPEL RUMP AREA. 4.060 ACUTE AND CERONIC EFFECTS ON FISH EXPOSED CONTINUCUSLY AND INTERMITTENTLY TO TOXICANTS. 4.180 ADULT FALL CEINOCK TRAPPING FCR SNAKE RIVER EGG EANE FRCGRAM. 6.033 AGE AND GROWTE OF FISE; A FIELD AND LARCHATCRY APPROACE. 1.068 AN ECONOMIC ANALYSIS OF THE ATLANTIC COAST STRIPED EASS FISRERY. 10.031 AN ECONOMIC EVALUATION OF THE RECREATIONAL SALMON FISEING IN THE KENAL/RUSSIAN HIVER REGICN. 10.036

ANIMAL BREEDING AND GENETICS OF FISE, 2,002

RIOLOGY AND SPORT FISBING HARVEST OF YELLOW FERCE. 4.082

CLEAR LAKE ECOSYSTEM ANALYSIS: TRE FISBES. 1.012. 6.016*

COEUR D'ALENE RIVER PISRERIES INVESTIGATIONS. 4.061 COLUMBIA RIVER CRINCOK SALMON STUDY. 1.090 CULTURE AND MANAGEMENT OF SELECTED GAME FISRES.

3.092, 4.203*, 6.091*

DEVELOFMENT AND APPLICATION OF A METBODOLOGY FOR RECOMMENDING SALMONID EGG INCUEATION FLOWS. 4.070

ECOLOGY OF FISHES AND LINNCLCGY OF UPPER GREAT LAKES AND TRIBUTARIES IN RELATION TO ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS. 1.060, 4.115*

- EFPECT OF PEAKING POWER GENERATION ON FISE. 4.056 EFFECTS OF ADDITIONAL PEAKING FROM A FOURTR GENERATOR AT DWORSHAR DAM IN CATCRARILITY. FTC...
- 4.062 EFFECTS OF CRRONIC TURBIDITY ON SOCIAL CONTEST IN
- JUVENILE STEELBEAD TROUT AND CORC SALMON. 4.058 EFFECTS OF INCREASED FINE SEDIMENT ON INCURATION AND EMERGENCE OF CHINOOK SALMON AND SIEELREAD
- TROUT. 4.071 EPFECTS OF FEDUCED STREAM DISCHARGE ON FISE AND AQUATIC MACROINVERTEBRATE POPULATIONS. 4.073
- EFFECTS CF WATERSHED PRACTICES CN STREAM RARITAT AND FISE POPULATIONS. 4.181
- EVALUATION OF THE ECOLOGICAL REQUIREMENTS OF RESREVOIS FISE SPECIES. 1.101 EXAMINATION OF THE SFAWNING BOOLOGY AND EARLY LIFE
- RISTORY OF KOKANEE SALMON IN CCEUR D' ALENE LAKE. 4.054
- FACTORS INFLUENCING TROUT PRODUCTION IN VIRGINIA STREAMS. 1.102, 4.217* FISE MOREIDITY AND MORTALITY RELATED TO

ENVIRONMENTAL CRANGES AND/OF INTENSIVE CULTURE METRODS. 4.193

- RARITAT SELECTION AND SPECIES INTERACTIONS OF JUVENILE TROUT IN FLATREAD RIVER TRIBUTARIES. 1.027, 4.064*
- INPACT OF EROSION SILT AND SEDIMENTATION ON FISE REPRODUCTION AND GROWTH. 4.130
- INSTREAM FLCW REQUIREMENTS OF CALFORNIA FISHES. 1.013, 4.029*
- INVESTIGATION OF "IN SITU" SOLIDS DIGESTION FOR SALMONID PRODUCTION. 6.081 JUVENILE EMIGRATION OF LARCHIAN CUTTEROAT TROUT IN
- THE TRUCKEE-PYRAMID LAKE SYSTEM. 4.055
- MANAGEMENT OF AQUATIC PLANTS FOR SPORT FISH FRODUCTION IN FONDS. 5.002
- NOVEMENTS OF SONIC-TAGGED FISRES IN RELATION TO WATER QUALITY IN LOWER ATCHAFALAYA FIVER BASIN. 1.049. 4.097*
- NATURAL PRODUCTION OF TROUT IN INPERTILE MOUNTAIN STREAMS OF PENNSYLVANIA. 4.192
- NEWATODE PARASITES OF FRESEWATER FISR: BIOLOGY AND EFFECTS. 3.014
- FOPULATION DYNAMICS OF LARGENCUTE AND SWALLMCUTE FASS IN IG NEW YORK LAKES. I.075 FOLE OF SEORT DISTANCE MIGRATICN OF THE HOMING OF
- SALMON AND STEELREAD. 1.028 SPORTFISE WANAGEMENT. 6.005 STEELBEAD RATCEERY AS AFFECTED EY RELATIVELY RIGE TEMPEFATURE WATER. 4.068
- TEMPERATURE EFFECTS ON XENCELOTIC ELIMINATICS BY FISRES. 4.179
- THE EPFECT OF STREAM CURRENT UPCN PISE BERAVIOR, GROWTH AND MICROBARITAT SELECTION. 1.011
- TRE EFFECT CF STRUCTURE ON FISE REHAVIOR. 4.169 THE INPACT OF POWER PEAKING ON EGG INCUEATION OP FALL CEINCCE SALMON. 4.072
- THE STATUS, ARUNDANCE, AND YIELD OF THE STEIPED BASS IN THE ROANCKE EIVEE, NOETH CAROLINA. 1.081, 4.164*
- THE USE OF FISEING TOURNAMENT RECORDS TO ESTIMATE ABUNDANCE OF BASS FOFULATIONS. 4.215
- ULTRASTRUCTURAL CHANGES IN IBLECST GILLS: EFFECTS OF SUBTLE ALTERATIONS IN THE ENVIECNMENT. 3.053, 4.098*

WILD VERSUS BATCBERY TROUT. 1.026, 4.058* GANETES

CHARACTERIZATION OF GONAD-STIMULATING SUBSTANCES IN

MARINE ANIMALS. 1.020, 2.006* PENAEIDAE GAMETES, TREIR STRUCTURE, ACTIVATION AND FUSION. 1.006

GANETOGENESIS

PENABIDAE GAMETES, THEIR STRUCTURE, ACTIVATION AND FUSICN. 1.006

GAS-CERONATOGRAPHY DEVELOPMENT OF RAPID SEAFOOD QUALITY THESE FOR COMMERCIAL AND REGULATCRY USE. 9.015 FLAVOR DIFFERENCES OF MECHANICALLY- AND HAND-PECCESSED CRAB MEATS. 8.015, 9.014* TOXIC EFFECTS ON THE AQUATIC HIOTA FROM CCAL AND OIL SHALE DEVELOPMENT. 4.034 GAS-EXCHANGE PHOTOSYNTHESIS AND PHOTORESPIRATICN IN AQUATIC PLANTS. 1.017 GASES FISH HARRIER SYSTEMS FOR POWER STATIONS. 4.196 CASTROENTERITIS ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS AFFECTING SURVIVAL CF THERMALLY-INJURED BACTERIA FOUND ON FISHERY PRODUCTS. 9.008 GELS FACTORS AFFECTING THE TEXTURE OF SEAFOODS. 7.009, 8.038*, 9.029* GENE-ENVIRONMENT-INTERACTION ENVIRONMENTAL AND ECOLOGICAL INFLUENCES CN GENETIC VARIABILITY. 1.009, 2.004*, 4.013* POSSIBLE CAUSES OF BLUEGILL LEPONIS MARCOCEIRUS DEFORMITIES. 1.080, 4.161* GENES **BIOCHEMICAL GENETICS AND CYTCGENETICS OF THOUT.** 2.022 DEVELOPMENT OF A SUBUNIT VACCINE TO THE SALMONID VIRUS, IHNV, BY MOLECULAR CLCNING. 3.C85 GENETIC-BASES PIOCEENICAL GENETICS AND CYTCGENETICS OF THOUT. 2.021 GENETIC-COPPELATION FEESEWATEE PCOD ANIMALS. 2.014, 5.034*, 6.056* GENETIC-DIVESSITY GENETICS OF NATURAL FISE POPULATIONS. 1.037, 2.009* GENETIC-ENGINEERING DEVELOPMENT OF A SUBUNIT VACCINE TO THE SALMONID VIRUS, IENV, BY MOLECULAR CLONING. 3.085 GENETIC-MARKERS GENETIC ASSESSMENT OF MACECHRACHIUM CN GUAM. 1.023 GENETIC-VABIANCE ANIMAL BRHEDING AND GENETICS CP FISH. 2.002 ENVIRONMENTAL AND HCOLOGICAL INFLUENCES ON GENHTIC VARIABILITY. 1.009, 2.004*, 4.013* GENETIC ASSESSMENT OF MACROBEACHIUM CN GUAM. 1.023 GENETIC STUDIES OF ABERNATHY CREEK CHINCCK SALMON. 2.020 PRAWN AQUACULTURE PROGRAM - BIOLOGICAL BASIS CF PECDUCTICN. 2.008, 6.030* GENETICS FRESHWATER FOOD ANIMALS, 2,001 GENONES HIOCHEMICAL GENETICS AND CYTCGENETICS OF TECUT. 2.022 GENOTTPES GENETIC STUDIES OF ABERNATEY CREEK CHINOOK SALMON. 2.020 GEOGRAPHIC-LCCATION THE QUALITY OF SEAFOOD CONSUMED BY THE PEOPLE OF SOUTH CAROLINA. 4.199, 9.034* GEOTHERMAL-ENERGY FISE CULTURE USING GEOTHERMAL WATER. 6.032 INTENSIVE CULTURE OF TILAPIA IN GEOTHERMAL WATERS IN THE SAN LUIS VALLEY, CCLCRADO. 2.005, 6.017* PRODUCTION OF MACROBRACHIUM ROSENHERGII (GIANT MALAYSIAN PRAWN IN NEVADA). 6.060 GEOTREPHAL-WATER INTENSIVE CULTURE OF TILAPIA IN GEOTHERMAL WATERS. IN THE SAN LUIS VALLEY, CCLCBADO. 2.005, 6.017* GERNINATION **HCRMONAL REGULATION OF GROWTH, DEVELOPMENT AND** VEGETATIVE PROPAGATION OF SUBMERSED AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.020 THE PHYSIOLOGY AND CONTFOL OF VEGETATIVE REPRODUCTION IN BYDRILLA (HYDRILLA VESTICILLATA ECYLE). 3.024 GIBEERELLINS BORMONAL REGULATION OF GROWTH, DEVELOPMENT AND VEGETATIVE PRCPAGATION OF SUBMERSED AQUATIC WEEDS. 2.020 GILL-DISEASES ENVIRONMENTAL GILL DISEASE IN RAINBOW TROUT. 3.045 GILLS EFFECTS OF POLLUTANTS ON GILLS OF FRESEWATER FISHES. 3.060, 4.119* ENVIRONMENTAL GILL DISEASE IN RAINHOW TECUT. 3.045

ULTRASTRUCTURAL CHANGES IN TELECST GILLS: EFFECTS OF SUBTLE ALTERATIONS IN THE ENVIRONMENT. 3.053, 4.098* GLUCANS USE CF CLAN BY-PECDUCTS. 8.037 GLUCOMASE USE OF CLAM BY-PRODUCTS. 8.037 GLUCOSE APPLIED PHYSIOLOGY OF ECONCHICALY IMPORTANT FISHES. 4.202 GLUTANINE-SYNTHASE STUDIES OF RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN MARINE AND TEREESTRIAL BACTERIA, 1.008 GOLDFISE FRESEWATER FCOD ANIMALS. 3.043 GONADOTROPHIC-BORNONES MOLECULAR ENDOCRINOLOGY OF MOLTING AND REPRODUCTION IN CRUSTACEANS. 1.005 GONADOTROPINS CHARACTERIZATION OF GONAD-STIMULATING SUBSTANCES IN MARINE ANIMALS. 1.020, 2.006* GOVERNMENT-POLICIES APPLICATION OF MANAGEMENT STRATEGIES TO THE MID-ATLANTIC EXTENDED JURISDICTION RECREATIONAL FISEERIES. 10.034 ECONOMIC ANALYSES OF FISHERIES MANAGEMENT ISSUES ARISING FROM EXTENDED JURISDICTION OF NEW ENGLAND. 10.042 HUMAN ECOLOGY OF NEW JERSEY PISEERIES. 10.026 TOWARDS A THEORY OF THE REGULATED FISHERY. 10.005 GRACILARIA IMPROVEMENT OF OGC PRODUCTION AND MARKETING IN HAWAII. 6.031, 10.012* GRADES REGULATCRY PROBLEMS OF LOUISIANA POOD INDUSTRIES. 9.017 GRADING ENZYME DEVELOPMENT FOR SEAFCOD CUALITY. 9.033 INTENSIVE CULTURE OF TILAPIA IN GEOTHERMAL WATERS IN THE SAN LUIS VALLEY, COLCEADO. 2.005, 6.017* GRAIN SHALLOW-WATER POLYCULTURE OF FISHES IN PONDS DESIGNED FOR BOTATION TO GRAIN CRCPS. 6.013 GRASSLANDS ENVIRONMENTAL AND ECOLOGICAL INFLUENCES CN GENETIC VARIABILITY. 1.009, 2.004*, 4.013* GRAVEL. CULTURE OF PACIFIC SALMCN. 1.087, 6.076* GRAZING EFPECTS OF LIVESTOCK GRAZING PRACTICES ON THE WATER QUALITY OF STREAMS. 4.223 THE EFFECTS OF LOGGING: GRAZING ON STREAMS IN THE WHITE MOUNTAINS. 4.006 GREAT-LAKES-REGION ECOLOGY OF FISHES AND LIMNCLOGY OF UPPER GREAT LAKES AND TRIBUTARIES IN RELATION TO ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS. 1.060, 4.115* POTENTIAL HARVEST OF LAKE BAIE WHITE CRAPPIE FROM AN ADJOINING EORROW PIT. 1.086, 6.072* REGULATION OF WISCONSIN'S LAKE MICHIGAN COMMERCIAL FISEERIES. 10.050 GREENBOUSES **BIOLOGY AND CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.068** CEVELOPMENT OF INEXPENSIVE AQUACULTURE SYSTEMS FOR HOME (SUBSISTENCE-TYPE) CULTURE IN N. C.. 6.069 INTEGRATION CP A SOLAR GREENBOUSE WITH A RECIRCULATING FISE CULTURE SYSTEM. 6.003 GROWTH ACUTE AND CHECNIC EFFECTS ON FISH EXPOSES CONTINUOUSLY AND INTERMITTENTLY TO TORICANTS. 4.180 **EIOLOGICAL ANALYSIS OF THE AGE AND GROWTH RATE OF** THE OCEAN QUAEOG ARCTICA ISLANDICA. 4.138 **HIOLOGICAL FEASIBILITY OF INTENSIFIED OYSTER** CULTURE. 4.178, 5.040*, 6.074* EFFECTS OF BERBICIDES ON CHESAPEAKE HAY PETTCPLANETON. 4.106 EXAMINATION OF THE SPAWNING ECCLOGY AND EARLY LIFE HISTORY OF KOKANEE SALMON IN COEUE D' ALENE LAKE. 4.054 IMPACT OF EROSION SILT AND SEDIMENTATION ON FISH REPRODUCTION AND GROWTH. 4.130 INTRODUCTION OF WALLEYE AND NORLUNGE FINGERLINGS INTO A LAKE DOMINATED BY PREY SPECIES. 1.074

NOLLUSCAN HATCHERY TECHNOLOGY. 6.075 NITROGEN FIXATION BY MICECEES INBABITING SUFFACES OF ACUATIC MACEOPEYTES. 4.142

PEYSIOLOGY AND ECOLOGY OF THE ASIATIC CLAN, CORBICULA SP., IN THE SACRAMENTO-SAN JCACUIN DELTA. 1.004, 4.011* POPULATION DYNAMICS OF LARGENCUTE AND SMALLHOUTE EASS IN 16 NEW YORK LAKES. 1.075 RECYCLING WASTES INTO ANIMAL FEEDS. 5.029, 8.029± SPORTFISE WANAGEMENT. 6.005 STEELHEAD BATCHERY AS AFFECTED BY RELATIVELY BIGH TEMPERATURE WATER. 4.068 STUDY OF MANUFE-ENRICHED FCCD WEES IN MAFINE POND ECCSYSTEMS. 5.016 SURF CLAN NANAGEMENT STUDIES. 4.136, 6.063* THE ECOLOGICAL INPACT OF INTEGRATED CBENICAL AND BICLOGICAL AQUATIC WEED CONTROL. 4.048, 6.021* THE FINE STRUCTURE OF FISH CTCLITHS: ENDCGENOUS AND ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS. 1.069 GROWTH-CONTRCL BORMONAL REGULATION OF GROWTE, DEVELOPMENT AND VEGETATIVE PRCPAGATION OF SUBMERSED AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.020 GROWTH-INHIBITORS PHYTOTOXINS FROM AQUATIC AND TERSESTRIAL PLANTS, BACTHEIA, AND FUNGI. 3.017 GROWTH-HODELS GROWTH AND MINERAL UPTAKE IN THE LEMNACEAE. 4.026 GROWTH-RATE AQUACULTURE FOR RESOURCE ENHANCEMENT. 1.103, 5.056* BREEDING, FECDUCTION, NUTRITICN AND MAFKETING CF CHANNEL CATFISB. 2.010, 5.020*, 6.040* CAGE CULTURE OF FISH IN THE VIRGIN ISLANDS UTILIZING TERTIARY TREATED WATER. 6.100 EFFECTS OF AQUATIC PLANT COMMUNITIES ON WATER QUALITY IN HYPEREUTROPHIC AQUATIC ENVIRONMENT. 4.117 FISE CULTURE USING GECTHERNAL WATER. 6.032 GROWTH AND MINERAL UPTAKE IN THE LEMNACEAE. 4.026 INPROVEMENT OF CATFISH STOCK THROUGH SELECTIVE EREEDING. 2.011, 2.011, 6.044*, 6.044* IMPROVEMENT OF OGO PRODUCTION AND MARKETING IN HAWAII. 6.031, 10.012* INTENSIVE CULTURE OF THE WALLEYE (PESCIDAE: STIZOSTEDION VITREUN). 5.038, 6.067* LIPID METAFOLISM IN AQUATIC ORGANISMS. 5.053, 9.038* MICROBIAL ECOLOGY OF NETHANE PRODUCTION IN AQUATIC ENVIRONMENTS. 4.220 PRAWN AQUACULTURAL ENGINEERING. 6.027, 7.002* PRODUCTIVITY OF THE SALINE MARSHES ON PLOBIDA'S NORTH AND WEST COASTS, PBASE II. 4.038 REARING BAIT FISH IN WESTERN NEVADA. 6.061, 10.023* RECYCLING WASTES INTO ANIMAL FEEDS. 5.029, 8.029* SOURCES AND MANAGEMENT OF MORTALITY IN BARLY LIFE STAGES CF FISBES. 4.146 SOUTE DAKCTA FARM AND RANCH FISHERIES. 5.049, 6.088* SPAWNING, EARLY LIFE HISTORY, HABITAT SELECTION CF NCRTBERN SQUAWFISE: INFER. TO COLCFADO SQUAWFISH. 4.063 STEELHEAD BATCHERY AS AFFECTED BY RELATIVELY HIGH TEMPERATURE WATER. 4.068 THE EFFECTS OF IRRIGATION WASTE WATER ON AQUATIC PLANTS IN THE SACEAMENTO RIVER. 4.025 TCHICITY AND ECOLOGICAL EFFECTS OF SELECTED INSECTICIDES AND REPREICIDES, 4,122 WINTER FEEDING OF CHANNEL CATFISE IN MISSISSIPPI. 4.125, 6.057* GROWTH-REGULATION HORMONAL REGULATION OF GROWTH, DEVELOPMENT AND VEGETATIVE PROPAGATION OF SUBMERSED AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.020 GROWTH-REGULATORS ADAPTATICN FACTORS AND CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.093, 4.204* CHEMICAL CONTROL OF MOSOUITOES OF NUISANCE AND HEALTH INFORTANCE, 4.133 CONTEOL OF WEEDS AND CERTAIN OTBER ACUATIC PESTS IN THE PACIFIC SCUTHWEST. 3.015, 4.031* HORMONAL REGULATION OF GROWTH, DEVELOPMENT AND VEGETATIVE PROPAGATION OF SUBMERSED AQUATIC WHEDS. 3.020 THE PHYSIOLOGY AND CONTROL OF VEGETATIVE REPRODUCTION IN HYDRILLA (BYDRILLA VESTICILLATA ROYLE). 3.024 THE USE OF SELECTED MARINE MATERIALS AND BY-PREDUCTS FOR CHRTAIN HORTICULTURAL CROPS. 8.044 GROWTE-RESPONSE

ECRMONAL REGULATION OF GROWTH, DEVELOPMENT AND VEGETATIVE PRCPAGATION OF SUENERSED AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.020 INTENSIVE CULTURE OF THE WALLEYE (PERCIDAE: STIZCSTEDION VITREUN). 5.038, 6.067* WANAGEMENT AND CULTURE OF NOLLUSCAN SPECIES. 6.086 STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT OF NAFGINAL SALT MARSH SPECIES FRCM NORTH CAROLIN. 4.158 GUIDEROOKS HIOLOGICAL DATA FOR NANAGEMENT OF WALLEYES AND OTHER FISHES. 6.037 GUIDELINES OPERATING PARAMETERS OF LAGOONS FOR DISPOSAL OF UTILIZATION OF DAIRY FARM AND PROCESSING PLANT WASTE. 8.014 THE EPFECTS OF AGRICULTURAL DRAINAGE OF NATURAL SYSTEMS - PHASE III. 4.036 GUTIEREZIA EIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF WEEDS. 3.104 GINOGENESIS PREEDING EXPERIMENTS WITE SALMONIDS. 2.024 HABITAT-CHARACTERISTICS A STUDY OF FISE RESOURCES OF THE GOSPEL BUNF AREA. 4.060 ECOLOGICAL FACTORS AFFECTING POTENTIALLY TEREATENED OR ENDANGERED FISE SPECIES IN NY. 4.147 EFFECT OF PEAKING POWER GENERATION ON FISH. 4.056 EXAMINATION OF THE SPAWNING ECOLOGY AND EARLY LIFE RISTCRY OF RCRANEE SALMON IN COEDE D. ALENH LAKE. 4.054 SPAWNING, BARLY LIFE HISTOFY, HAHITAT SELECTION OF NORTHERN SQUAWFISH: INFER. TC CCLCRADO SQUAWFISE. 4.063 HABITAT-NANIPULATICN EFFECT OF PEAKING POWER GENERATION CN FISE. 4.056 FACTORS AFFECTING FISH POPULATIONS IN IOWA WATERS. 1.040, 4.087*, 6.038* IMPACTS OF RESOURCE DEVELOFMENT AND EXPLORTATION ON NATURAL RESOURCES. 4.216 NATURAL PRODUCTION OF THOUT IN INFERTILE MOUNTAIN STREAMS OF PENNSYLVANIA. 4.192 OVERBOARD DISPOSAL STUDY. 1.066, 4.137* OYSTER DRILL CONTROL HY HYDRAULIC DEHDGING IN DELAWARE BAY. 6.064 BARITAT-MODIFICATION CULTURE AND MANAGEMENT OF SELECTED GAME FISHES. 3.092, 4.203*, 6.091* ECOLOGY AND SYSTEMATICS OF AQUATIC INSECTS. 4.177 ECOLOGY AND TAXCNOMY OF TWC MAJCE OFDERS OF AQUATIC INSECTS, EPHENEROPTERA AND TRICEOPTERA, IN VA. 4.212 FACTORS AFFECTING FISH POPULATIONS OF IOWA STREAMS. 1.039, 4.086* THE EFFECT OF STRUCTURE ON FISE HEHAVIOR. 4.169 BABITAT-PRESERVATION PROTECTION, REBAHILITATICN, AND ENHANCEMENT OF ANADROMOUS FISH HAHITAT IN THE PACIFIC NORTEWEST. 4.004 STREAMSIDE HUPFER STRIPS FOR PRCTECTING AQUATIC ORGANISMS PROM LCGGING EFFECTS. 4.018 HABITAT-PROUIPRMENTS DEVELOPMENT AND APPLICATION OF A METHODOLOGY FOR RECOMMENDING SALMONID EGG INCUBATION FLOWS. 4.070 ECOLOGY AND TAXONOMY OF TWO MAJCE ORDERS OF AQUATIC INSECTS, EPHEMEROPTERA AND TRICHOPTERA, IN VA. 4.212 ECOLOGY OF RARE AND ENDANGERED FISHES OF PENNSYLVANIA. 4.191 EPFECTS OF INCREASED FINE SEDIMENT CN INCUBATION AND EMERGENCE OF CHINCOK SALKON AND STEELHBAD TROUT. 4.071 EFFECTS OF REDUCED STREAM DISCHARGE CN FISH AND AQUATIC MACEOINVERTEBRATE POPULATIONS. 4.073 FACTORS APFECTING FISH POPULATIONS IN IOWA WATERS. 1.040, 4.087*, 6.038* IMPACT CF LAND USE PRACTICES CN POPULATIONS OF WILDLIFE AND FISHERY RESCURCES. 4.162 INSTREAM PLOW REQUIREMENTS OF CALPORNIA FISBES. 1.013, 4.029*

PROTECTION, REHABILITATION, AND ENHANCEMENT OF ANADROMOUS FISH HABITAT IN THE PACIFIC NORTHWEST. 4.004

THE IMPACT OF POWER PHAKING ON EGG INCUEATION OF FALL CHINOCE SALMON. 4.072

BABITAT-SELECTION DISTRIBUTION, ABUNDANCE AND ECCLOGY OF ASCOPHYLLUM HABITAT SELECTION AND SPECIES INTERACTIONS OF NODOSUM (1) LE JOIS. 1.052, 4.102*, 7.008∓ EFFECTS OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS AND MANAGEMENT JUVENILE TROUT IN FLATHEAD RIVER TEIBUTABLES. 1.027, 4.064* MOVEMENTS OF SONIC-TAGGED FISHES IN RELATION TO WATER QUALITY IN LOWER ATCHAFALAYA RIVER HASIN. 1.049, 4.097* SFAWNING, EARLY LIFE HISTORY, HABITAT SELECTION OF NORTHERN SQUAWFISH: INFER. TO COLORADO 7.007* SQUANFISH. 4.063 THE EFFECT OF STREAM CURRENT UPON FISH BEHAVIOR, GROWTH AND MICROBARITAT SELECTICS. 1.011 THE EFFECT OF STRUCTURE CN FISH BEHAVICE. 4.169 THE RELATIONSHIP OF SALINITY AND DISTANCE FROM THE SEA. TO THE DISTRIBUTION OF JUVENILE FISHES. 1.044, 4.094* BABITATS ADULT PADDLEFISH MCVEMENT IN PCCL 13, UPPER MISSISSIPPI RIVER. 1.034 ECOLOGICAL STUDIES WITH RED SWAMP CRAWPISH AND WHITE RIVER CRAWFISH. 1.042, 4.092*, 6.043* ECOLOGY AND MANAGEMENT OF STREAM AND STREAM FISHES. 1.061 ECOLCGY AND TAXONOMY OF TWO MAJOR ORDERS OF AQUATIC INSECTS, EPHENEROFIERA AND TRICHCFIERA, IN VA. 4.212 FACTORS AFFECTING FISH POPULATIONS OF IOWA STREAMS. 1.039, 4.086* INPACT OF LAND USE PRACTICES ON POPULATIONS OF WILDLIFE AND FISBERY RESCURCES. 4.162 INVESTIGATION OF AQUATIC ECOSYSTEMS IN SMALL PONDS. 1.031, €.036≠ NAVIGATION IMPACTS ON CHANNEL FISHES, UPPER MISSISSIPPI RIVER. 4.090 FEOTECTICN, SEHABILITATION, AND ENHANCEMENT OF ANADROMCUS FISH HABITAT IN THE PACIFIC NORTHWEST. 4.004 RESPONSE OF FISHES AND AQUATIC SYSTEMS TO ELECTRIC SBOCK AND CAPTURE TECHNOLOGY. 6.101 THE EFFECTS OF ARTIFICIAL STRUCTURES OF GAME FISE IN A HOREOW PIT POND. 1.085, 4.168* BAKE EXTENDING THE SHELF-LIFE OF FISE. 8.036, 9.028# MANUFACTURE OF PROCESSED MEAT AND/OR FISH PRODUCTS WITE UNCERUTILIZED MARINE SPECIES. 8.027 UTILIZATION OF LATENT WARINE RESOURCES AND HY-PECDICIS WASTE. 8.041 HANDBOOKS EIOLOGICAL DATA FOR MANAGEMENT OF WALLEYES AND OTHER FISHES. 6.037 CRGANIZATION AND RETRIEVAL OF FRESHWATER FISHERY HATCHABILITY DATA. 1.033, 4.080* BANDLING **IATCRERIES** DEVELOPMENT CF IMPROVED HANCLING, SHIPPING/STORAGE AND MARKETING PRACTICES FOR FISHERY PRODUCTS. 7.010, E.039*, E.030* ENZYMES IN FOOD FERMENTATIONS. 9.025 2.017 FACTORS AFFECTING THE TEXTURE OF SEAFOCDS. 7.009, 8.038*, 9.029* FLAVCE DIFFERENCES OF MECHANICALLY- AND HAND-PRCCESSED CRAB MEATS. 8.015, 9.014# BISTAMINE/EONEYCCMEING IN SKIPJACK TUNA. 8.011, 9.010* MARINE FCOD SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY. 8.003, 9.004* MICROBIOLOGICAL ASPECTS TO SHELLFISH SANITATION AND QUALITY. 7.014, 8.047*, 9.037* FCST-HARVEST HANDLING AND PECCESSING OF MACROBRACEIUM PRAWNS. 7.003, 8.012*, 9.011* PRAWN AQUACULTURAL ENGINEERING. 6.027, 7.002* BARVESTING ACTIVITY REVIEWS OF THE NORTHERN ROCK CRAE IN RELATICN TO BNVIRCHMENTAL AND SOCIAL FACTORS. 1.057, 4.105* BEHAVIOR ECCLOGY AND RHYTEMICITY IN THE ROCK CRAES, TAY CANCER IRRORATUS AND CANCER BOREALIS, PHASE II. 1.058, 5.028* BEHAVIOR, ECCLOGY AND REVIEWICITY IN THE COMMON BAZARDS ROCK CRAB. 1.059, 4.110* HIOLOGICAL STUDIES OF THE SPINY LOBSTER IN SCUTE BEALTH FLORIDA. 1.019 HIOLOGICAL STUDIES WITH THE MOSQUITOFISE, GAMEUSIA AFFINIS, UNDER CULTURAL SITUATIONS. 6.012 CCSTS AND BETURNS IN THE OTTER TRANL FLEET ON LONG ISLAND, NEW YCRK. 10.029 CULTURE SYSTEMS FOR YEAR-ROUND MARKETING CF FISH BEAT-INJURY FROM WATERSBED PONDS. 6.008, 7.001*

DEVELOPMENT OF OPTIMUM SUSTAINED YIELD OF FISHES IN FARM PONDS. 5.021, 7.004*

PRACTICES ON COMMERCIAL PRODUCTION OF CRAWFISE. 4.096, 6.047* ENVIRONMENTAL EFFECTS ON PECDUCTIVITY OF CRAYFISE IN POND HABITATS, PHASE I, II. 5.025, 6.048*, EQUIPMENT FOR MECHANIZATION OF FRODUCTION OF OYSTERS AND CTHER SHELLFISE. 6.083, 7.012 \pm FACTORS AFFECTING THE TEXTURE OF SEAFCODS. 7.009, 8.038÷, 9.029≠ FRESHWATER FOOD ANIWALS: 2.012, 6.045≠ IMPROVING SURFACE WATER CONCITIONS TERCUGE CONTECL AND DISPOSAL OF AQUATIC VEGETATION. 7.015 MANAGEMENT ECCNOMICS OF NEW YORK'S MALINE INDUSTRIES. 10.030 MANAGEMENT OF A MULTIPLE COBORT FISEERY: THE HAFC CLAM RESCURCES IN GREAT SOUTH DAY. 10.628 MANAGEMENT TECHNIQUES FOR INCREASING CRAWFISH PRODUCTION. 6.046, 7.006* MECHANICAL CONTRCL OF ACUATIC WEEDS. 3.022 MECHANIZATION OF CRAWFISH HARVESTING AND PRCDUCTICN. 6.042, 7.005* POTENTIAL HARVEST OF LAKE ENLE WEITE CRAFFIE FROM AN ADJOINING HORROW PIT. 1.086. 6.072* RESPONSE OF FISHES AND ACUATIC SYSTEMS TO ELECTRIC SHOCK AND CAPTURE TECHNOLOGY. 6.101 SURF CLAN MANAGEMENT STUDIES. 4.136, 6.063* THE PHYSICLCGICAL HASIS FOR MANAGING TIDAL MARSH VEGETATION. 4.197 WATER CUALITY STOCKING RATES AND HARVESTING SYSTEMS FOR CATFISH. 6.059 BARVESTING-EQUIPMENT CULTURE SYSTEMS FOR YEAR-ROUND MARKETING OF FISH FROM WATERSHED PCNDS. 6.008, 7.001* EFFECTS OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS AND WANAGEMENT PFACTICES ON COMMERCIAL PRODUCTION OF CRAWFISE. 4.096, 6.047* IMPROVING SURPACE WATER CONDITIONS THROUGH CONTROL AND DISPOSAL OF AQUATIC VEGETATICN. 7.015 NECHANICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC MEEDS. 3.022 MECHANIZATION OF CRAWFISH HARVESTING AND PECDUCTION. 6.042, 7.005* PRAWN AQUACULTURAL ENGINEERING. 6.027, 7.002* MAEVESTING-SYSTEMS CULTURE SYSTEMS FOR YEAR-ROUND MARKETING OF FISH FROM WATERSHED PONDS. 6.008, 7.001* PRAIN AQUACULTURAL ENGINEERING. 6.027, 7.002* THE IMPACT OF POWER PEAKING ON EGG INCUBATION OF FALL CHINOCE SALMON. 4.072 ADULT FALL CHINOCK TRAPPING FOR SNAKE RIVER EGG HANK PECGEAM. 6.033 CRYOGENIC PRESERVATION OF SPERM FROM STRIFED HASS. EVALUATION OF VARIOUS HATCHERY FEARING CONDITIONS CN SEAWARD NIGRATICN CF STEELBEAD TRCUT. 1.028 FISE GENETICS. 2.019, 4.183* MICROHICLOGICAL ASSESSMENT OF RIVER WATER CCNTAMINATION. 3.084, 4.187± MOLLUSCAN HATCHERY TECHNOLOGY. 6.075 PERFORMANCE OF SALMONIDS: SMOLTIFICATION, STRESS AND FIINESS. 1.089, 6.077= SHRIMP MATURATION, REPRODUCTION, DEVELOFMENT, NUTRITION. INTENSIVE-EXTENSIVE CULTURE AND NARICULTURE. 5.052, 6.092* STEELHEAD EATCHERY AS AFFECTED BY KELATIVELY HIGH TEMPERATURE WATER. 4.068 TRACE MINERAL INBALANCE IN BATCBERY FISE. 5.019 BATCHERY-PISH ▶ILD VERSUS BATCBERY TECUT. 1.026, 4.058≠ THE PHYSIOLOGICAL HASIS FOR MANAGING TIDAL WARSH VEGETATION. 4.197 DISEASES OF SBELLFISE. 3.074 IMPROVING THE ASSURANCE OF QUALITY AND SAFETY OF CONSUMER'S FCCD. 9.031 HEALTH-RELATED BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF MCSCUITCES IN CENTRAL AND NORTBERN CALIFORNIA, 4,012

ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS AFFECTING SURVIVAL CF THERMALLY-INJUKED BACTERIA FOUND ON FISHERY PRODUCTS. 9.008

REAT-STABILITY FACTORS AFFECTING THE PUNCTIONAL PROPERTIES AND QUALITY OF PROCESSED MUSCLE FCCDS. 9.021 HEAT-STORAGE DRYING SEAFOOD PRODUCTS WITH SOLAR ENERGY. 8.006 INTEGRATION OF A SOLAR GREENHOUSE WITH A RECIRCULATING FISH CULTURE SYSTEM. 6.003 BEAT-TCLERANCE EFFECTS OP AN ALTERED TEMPERATURE REGIME AND CHEMICAL CONTANINANTS ON THE AQUATIC ECOSYSTEM. 3.062, 4.127* IMPACTS OF THE CONSTRUCTION AND OPERATION OF COASTAL NUCLEAR POWER PLANTS ON ESTUAPINE ECOLOGY. 4.160 HEATING INPROVING THE ASSURANCE OF QUALITY AND SAFETY OF CONSUMEE'S FOOD. 9.031 INTEGRATION OF A SOLAR GREENHOUSE WITE A RECIRCULATING FISE CULTURE SYSTEM. 6.003 BEAVY-NETALS ACUTE AND CHEONIC EFFECTS ON FISH EXPOSED CONTINUCUSLY AND INTERMITTENTLY IC ICNICANIS. 4.180 HIGACCUMULATION AND IMPACT OF HIGHWAY-GENERATED BEAVY METALS ON STREAM FISHERY RESCURCES IN VIRGINIA. 4.214 EFFECTS OF ATMOSPHERIC INPUTS OF ACIDS AND HEAVY METALS ON LAKE PLANKTON. 4.101 FATE AND EFFECTS OF TOXICANTS IN AGRICULTURAL AND ENVIRCEMENTAL FOOD CHAINS. 4.154 PISH CULTUFE USING GEOTHERMAL WATHR. 6.032 FISE GENETICS. 2.019, 4.183* SPOKANE FIVER LIMNOLOGY. 4.067 THE PHYSIOLOGICAL BASIS FOR MANAGING TIDAL MARSH VEGETATION. 4.197 WATER QUALITY STUDY. 4.033 HEL IANTEUS PHYTOTOXINS PROM AQUATIC AND TERRESTRIAL PLANTS, HACTERIA, AND FUNGI. 3.017 BELMINTES HELMINTH PARASITES OF VERTEBRATES IN NORTH CAROLINAA 3.078 HEMATOLOGY DISEASE MANAGEMENT IN CATFISH AQUACULTURE. 3.097 ENVIRCNMENTAL REQUIREMENTS OF POTENTIAL AQUACULTURE FISH SPECIES. 4.027 FISH CULTUFE USING GEOTHERNAL WATER. 6.032 PISCINE ERYTHROCYTIC NECROSIS IN THE ATLANTIC CCD. 3.056 BEMATOPOIETIC-NECROSIS DEVELOPMENT OF A SUBUNIT VACCINE TO THE SALMCNID VIEUS, IHNV, BY NCLECULAR CLONING. 3.085 SEROLOGICAL METHODS FOR DETECTION AND IDENTIFICATION OF VIRUS DISEASES OF FISE. 3.058 **BRHOCYTES** PRELIMINARY STUDIES ON CRAWFISH AND FRESHWATER SHRIMP DISEASES. 1.056, 3.094* REMOGLORIN BIONONICS AND CONTECL OF CEIECNOMID MIDGES (ELIND MCSOUITCES). 3.026 BENORDBAGIC-SEPTICENIA DISEASE MANAGEMENT IN CATFISH AQUACULTURE. 3.097 **BEPATOPANCREAS** LCW-TEMPERATURE STORAGE OF FRESHWATER PRAWN, MACROERACHIUM ROSENHERGII. 8.010 NOLECULAR ENDOCRINCLOGY OF MOLTING AND REPRODUCTION IN CRUSTACEANS. 1.005 BEPTACELOR EVALUATION OF PESTICIDE LEVELS IN CATFISH PROCESSING WASTES. 9.001 BEEBICIDE-EVALUATION EVALUATION OF EFFICACY, CROP RESPONSES AND CROP AND WATER RETENTION OF POTENTIAL AQUATIC BERBICIDES. 3.021. 4.035* REPRICIDE-RESIDUES EVALUATION OF EFFICACY, CROP RESPONSES AND CROP AND WATER RETENTION OF POTENTIAL AQUATIC BERBICIDES. 3.021. 4.035* BEBEICIDE-BESISTANT-PLANTS EFFECTS OF BERBICIDES CN CHESAPEAKE BAY PETIOFLANKION. 4.106 PHYSIOLOGICAL STUDIES OF AQUATIC AND DITCH FANK WEEDS IN THE PACIFIC NORTHWEST. 3.101 BEBBICIDE-SELECTIVITY BIOLOGY AND CONTROL OF AQUATIC VEGETATION. 3.048 BEBEICIDE-TRANSLOCATION UPTAKE AND NOVEMENT OF BERBICIDES AND NUTRIENTS IN AQUATIC WEED SPECIES. 3.019

REPRICIPES ACCUMULATION AND DEGRADATION OF SOME HERBICIDES BY ALGAE. 4.171, 4.172, 4.174 ADAPTATION PACTORS AND CONTROL OF ACUATIC WEEDS. 3.093, 4.204* ALGAL METAHOLISM IN THE PRESENCE OF BERBICIDES. 4.170 AN EVALUATION OF WIDELY USED HERHICIDES ON AQUATIC PLANIS, FISH AND PISE-FOCD OFGANISMS. 3.059, 4.116* EIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS IN THE SOUTHEAST. 3.034 HIOLOGY AND CONTROL OF AQUATIC VEGETATICN. 3.048 HIOLCGY AND CONTEOL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.068 CONTROL AND ERADICATION OF AQUATIC WEEDS IN LAKES AND INPOUNDED WATERS. 3.107 CONTROL OP WEEDS AND CERTAIN OTHER ACUATIC PESTS IN THE PACIFIC SCUTHWEST. 3.015, 4.031* EFFECTS OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONTAMINANTS ON GEORGIA FARM FOND FISHES. 4.051, 6.025* EFFECTS OF HEBBICIDES ON CHESAPEAKE HAY PHYTCPLANKTCN. 4.106 ESTUARINE INVERTEBRATE BEHAVICR; AN INDEX OF SUBACUTE TOXICITY OF ACUATIC BERBICIDES. 1.079, 3.075*, 8.040* EVALUATION OF EFFICACY, CROP RESPONSES AND CROP AND WATER RETENTION OF POTENTIAL AQUATIC FFFFICIDES. 3.021, 4.035* FATE AND EFFECTS OF ATRAZINE IN SALT MAESH ECOSYSTEMS. 4.001 MANAGEMENT STRATEGIES PCR RICE PESTS. 3.005 NODE OF ACTION AND INFLUENCE OF ENVISONMENTAL FACTORS ON THE TOXICITY OF SEVERAL AQUATIC HERHICIDES. 3.100, 4.218* PHYSIOLOGICAL STUDIES OF AQUATIC AND DITCH HANK WEEDS IN THE PACIFIC NORTHWEST. 3.101 PHYSIOLOGY AND NANAGEMENT OF AQUATIC WEEDS INTHRPERING WITH THE USE OF WATER RESCURCES. 3.035 PHYTOTOXINS FROM AQUATIC AND TERRESTRIAL FLANTS, HACTERIA, AND FUNGI. 3.017 BELEASE OF ADSORHED PESTICIDES INTO WATER. 4.175 TOXICITY AND ECOLOGICAL EFFECTS OF SELECTED INSECTICIDES AND HERHICIDES. 4.122 UPTAKE AND NOVEMENT OF HEBBICIDES AND NUTRIENTS IN AQUATIC WEED SPECIES. 3.019 USE OF SPIKERUSH (ELECCHARIS SPP.) FOR BIOLOGICAL CONTECL CP AQUATIC NEEDS. 3.016 WEED CONTROL IN BICE PRODUCTION. 3.006, 4.008* BEREIVORES CONTROL OF WEEDS AND CERTAIN OTHER AQUATIC PESTS IN THE PACIFIC SOUTHWEST. 3.015, 4.031* DEVELOPMENT OF INEXPENSIVE AQUACULTURE SYSTEMS FOR HONE (SUBSISTENCE-TYPE) CULTURE IN N. C.. 6.069 REPITABILITY FRESEWATER FOOD ANIMALS. 2.014, 5.034*, 6.056* GENETIC ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT OF CRUSTACEAN AQUACULTURE STOCKS. 2.003 PRAWN AQUACULTURE PROGRAM - BIOLOGICAL EASIS OF PRODUCTION, 2,008, 6,030* **BERRING** PISCINE BETTHROCYTIC NECROSIS IN THE ATLANTIC CCD. 3.056 RETERANTERRA-LINOSA WEED CONTROL IN RICE PRODUCTION. 3.006, 4.008* BETEROZYGOSITY GENETIC ASSESSMENT OF MACRCHRACHIUM CN GUAN. 1.023 BIGB-ALTITUDE VARIABILITY IN PHYSICAL REGIME OF LAKE TITICACA: RELATION TO BICLOGICAL PROCESSES. 4.014 BIGE-DENSITY-CULTURE FRESEWATER FOOD ANIMALS. 5.013, 6.022* PRAWN AQUACULTURAL ENGINEERING. 6.027, 7.002# MIGH-TEMPERATURE METECDS OF WODIFIED-ATMOSPHERE PRESERVATION OF REFRIGERATED FRESH FISE. 7.016, 8.048* STEELBEAD HATCEERY AS AFFECTED BY RELATIVELY HIGH TEMPERATURE WATER. 4.068 BIGEVATS HIOACCUMULATION AND IMPACT CF BIGHWAY-GENERATED BEAVY METALS ON STREAM FISHERY RESOURCES IN VIRGINIA. 4.214 BINGES A MULTI-INSTITUTIONAL APPROACH TC THE IDENTIFICATION OF HIVALVE LAEVAE. 1.067 BISTANINE **FIOLOGICALLY ACTIVE AMINES IN FCCD. 8.009**

BISTANINE/BONEYCCMBING IN SKIPJACK TUNA. 8.011. 9.010* BISTIDINE BIOLOGICALLY ACTIVE AMINES IN FOCD. 8.009 HISTAMINE/BONEYCOMBING IN SKIPJACK TUNA. 8.011, 9.010* HISTOCHENISTEY ANIMAL EREEDING AND GENETICS OF PISE. 2.002 DISEASE MANAGEMENT IN CULTURED CATFISE. 3.096 GENETICS OF NATURAL FISH POPULATIONS. 1.037, 2.009* HISTOPATHOLOGIC AND HISTCCBEMICAL INDICES CF SUBLETHAL PESTICIDE TOXICATION IN FISH. 3.086, 4.189* STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT OF MARGINAL SALT MARSE SPECIES FROM NORTH CARCLIN. 4.158 HISTOLOGY AGE AND GROWTH OF FISE; A FIELD AND LABORATORY APPROACE. 1.068 BIOCHEMICAL GENETICS AND CYTOGENETICS OF THOUT. 2.022 COMPARATIVE PEYSIOLOGICAL STUDIES OF VERTEBRATE EYES. 1.062 FUNCTIONAL MORPBOLOGY OF INVERTEBRATE ORGAN SYSTENS. 1.071 ICHTEYCPATHOLOGY. 3.089 INTENSIVE CULTURE OF THE WALLEYE (PERCIDAE: STIZOSTEDION VITREUN). 5.038, 6.067* MIREX FEEDING STUDY IN CEANNEL CATFISE (ICTALUEUS PUNCTATUS). 4.123, 9.022* PRELIMINARY STUDIES ON CRAWFISH AND FRESHWATER SBRIMP CISEASES. 1.096, 3.094* SWIMBLADDER INFLATION IN LARVAE CF FRYSOCILISTCUS FISBES. 1.007 VISUAL PIGMENT CHANGES DURING THE LIFE CYCLE OF THE AMERICAN EEL, ANGUILLA ECSTRATA. 1.077 EISTOPATHOLOGY BISTOPATBOLOGIC AND BISTCCBENICAL INDICES OF SUBLETHAL PESTICIDE TOXICATION IN FISE. 3.086. 4.189* IDENTIFICATION OF SUB-OFTIMAL ENVIRONMENTAL PARAMETERS AFFECTING ACUACULTURE. 3.090, 4.194# INFECTIOUS FANCREATIC NECROSIS IN ATLANTIC SALMON. 3.057 PATECLCGY AND FATHOGENESIS OF CATFISE DISEASES. 3.099 BONE-RANGE EFHAVIOR OF IOWA SPORT FISHES. 1.036, 4.083* MOVEMENTS OF SONIC-TAGGED FISHES IN BELATION TO WATER QUALITY IN LOWER ATCHAFALAYA RIVER HASIN. 1.049. 4.097* HOMING RCLE OF SHORT DISTANCE MIGRATION OF THE BOMING OF SALMON AND STEELEEAD. 1.028 HONOLOGY FISE GENETICS. 2.018, 4.183* BONEVCONRS BISTAMINE/EONEYCOMBING IN SEIPJACE TUNA. 8.011, 9.010* BORIZORTAL-TEANSHISSION DETECTION OF PISCINE ERYTHROCYTIC NECECSIS VIEWS IN CREGON FISRES. 3.083 BORNONHS AQUACULTURE FOR RESOURCE ENHANCEMENT. 1.103, 5.056* CHARACTERIZATION OF GONAD-STINULATING SUBSTANCES IN MARINE ANIMALS. 1.020, 2.006* DEVELOPMENT OF METEODS FOR MASS FRODUCTION AND MANAGEMENT OF BUILFROGS. 2.013, 4.093* MOLECULAR ENDOCRINOLOGY OF MOLTING AND REPRODUCTION IN CRUSIACEANS. 1.005 THE EFFECTS OF DIET ON THE RISK OF CANCER. 9.020 HOST-INSECT-FELATIONS EIOLOGICAL CONTROL AGENTS OF BYDEILLA VERTICILLATA. 3.109 BOST-PARASITE-RELATIONS A COMPARATIVE STUDY OF THE FINE STRUCTURE OF APOSTONE CILIATES. 3.076 DISEASES OF AQUATIC ANIMALS. 3.072 BELWINTH PARASITES OF VERTEERATES IN NORTE CAROLINA. 3.078 BOST-PARASITE RELATIONSHIPS EETWEEN THE CHANNEL CATFISE AND ICETEVOPETHIBIUS MULTIFILIIS. 3.050 BOST-RANGE BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF EURASIAN MILFOIL AND OTEER AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.106 BIOLCGICAL CONTRCL OF WEEDS. 3.104 BIOLOGICAL CONTRCL OF WEEDS WITH PATEOGENS. 3.103 EVALUATION OF FUSABILM ROSEUM "CULMOBUM" AS A BIOLOGICAL CONTROL FOR BYDRILLA VERTICILLATA. 3.029

PISCINE EFYTHRCCYTIC NECROSIS IN THE ATLANTIC COD. 3.056 BOST-BESPONSE MICROBIAL AND PARASITIC DISEASES OF SERINF AND FISH. 3.095 BOST-SPECIFICITY FIOLOGICAL AGENTS FOR CONTACL OF BYDRILLA, A SUBMERSED AQUATIC WEED. 3.023 EIOLOGICAL CONTROL AGENTS OF BYDRILLA VERTICILLATA. 3.109 EIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS WITH INSECTS. 3.038 EIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF WEEDS. 3.104 IDENTIFICATION OF INSECTS FOR BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.036 IMPORTATION AND EVALUATION OF INSECTS FOR BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF WEEDS AND INSECT PESTS. 3.037 CREANISMS ASSOCIATED WITH AQUATIC WEEDS AND THE BIOLOGICAL CONTROL WATER-BYACINTE IN EGYPT. 3.105 BUMAN-BEBAVIOR AN ECCNCHIC EVALUATION OF ICE FISBING IN MAINE. 10.014 ANALYSIS OF DOMESTIC FOOD DEMANE AND CONSUMPTION EEBAVIOR. 9.041, 10.008 BUMAN-BEALTH A STUDY OF THE MICRCEIOLOGICAL FLCRA OF ORNAMENTAL FISBES. 3.040 IMPROVING THE ASSURANCE OF CUALITY AND SAFETY OF CONSUMEE'S FCCD. 9.031 OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF THE BEPATOMA LABORATORY. 5.043 THE EFFECTS OF DIET ON THE FISK CF CANCER. 5.020 THE QUALITY OF SEAFOOD CONSUMED BY THE PECFLE OF SOUTB CAECLINA. 4.199, 9.034* BUMAN-NUTRITION BUMAN NUTRITICN IMPROVEMENT. 8.022 CPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF THE HEPATCMA LABORATORY. 5.043 THE EFFECTS OF DIET ON THE EISE OF CANCER. 9.020 THE QUALITY OF SEAFOOD CONSUMED BY THE PEOPLE OF SOUTE CAROLINA. 4.199, 9.034* BUNANS OFERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF THE BEFATCMA LABCEATCEY. 5.043 HUMORAL-IMMUNITY FACTERIAL KIDNEY DISEASE IN RAINEOW TROUT: FATBOGENESIS, INMUNITY, AND EFFECT OF WATER BARDNESS. 3.070 INMUNCLOGIC FACTORS IN CANDIDIASIS IN DOLPBINS. 3.031 NYERIDIZATION AN EVALUATION OF STRIPED BASS & WHITE BASS BYBRIDS AND STRIPED BASS & WEITE PERCE BYBRIDS. 2.018, 6.070* GENETIC ASSESSMENT OF MACRCERACBIUM CN GUAM. 1.023 INTENSIVE CULTURE OF TILAPIA IN GEOTBERNAL WATERS IN THE SAN LUIS VALLEY, COLCEADO. 2.005, 6.017* EVERIDS **BIOCHEMICAL GENETICS AND CYTCGENETICS OF TROUT.** 2.022 BREEDING EXPERIMENTS WITH SALMONIDS. 2.024 CAGE CULTURE OF TILAPIA IN THE VIRGIN ISLANDS. 6.098, 9.039* CULTURE AND MANAGEMENT OF SELECTED GAME FISEES. 3.092, 4.203*, 6.091* DEVELOP AND INFROVE PRODUCTION AND MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS FOR FRESEWATER ANIMALS CULTURED FOR FOCD. 6.011 FRESHWATER FOOD ANIMALS. 3.003 INTRODUCTION OF WALLEYE AND NOBLUNGE FINGERLINGS INTO A LAKE DOMINATED BY PREY SPECIES. 1.074 BYDRAULICS DEVELOPMENT OF FISH PROTECTIVE SYSTEMS FOR WATER INTAKES. 4.022 BYDRILLA A SURVEY FOR PATHCGEN FCR AQUATIC WEEDS IN CALIFORNIA FOR USE IN BICLCGICAL CONTROL. 3.008, 4.009* BIOLOGICAL AGENTS FOR CONTRCL CF BYDRILLA, A SUBMERSED AQUATIC WEED. 3.023 **EIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS IN THE** SOUTBEAST. 3.034 FIOLOGICAL CONTECL OF ACUATIC WEEDS WITH INSECTS.

3.038 IDENTIFICATION OF INSECTS FCR BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.036

IMPORTATION AND EVALUATION OF INSECTS FOR BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF WEEDS AND INSECT PESTS. 3.037 MECHANICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.022 BYDBILLA-MYBIOPHYLLUM HIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF WEEDS WITH EMPHASIS ON AQUATIC HABITATS. 3.033 HYDRILLA-VERTICILLATA FIOLOGICAL CONTROL AGENTS OF HYDRILLA VERTICILLATA. 3.109 EVALUATION OF FUSARIUM ROSEUM "CULMOFUN" AS A BIOLOGICAL CONTROL FOR HYDRILLA VERTICILLATA. 3.029 THE PHYSICIOGY AND CONTROL OF VEGETATIVE REPRODUCTION IN HYDRILLA (BYDRILLA VERTICILLATA ROYLE). 3.024 BYDEODYNAMICS. FISHERIES EQUIPMENT AND GEAR DEVELOPMENT. 7.011 BYDROELECTRIC-PLANTS METECDOLCGY AND ASSESSMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL EFFECTS AT LOW BEAD HYDRO POWER SITES. 4.148 HYDBOGEN-SULFIDE LIMNOLOGICAL PARAMETERS. 4.066 WATER QUALITY ENHANCEMENT OF LAKES BY MECHANICAL PUMPING. 4.088, 6.039* BYDROG RAPHY SURVEY OF LARVAL FISBES IN THE NEARSBORE GULF WATERS OF LOUISIANA. 1.047 BYDROLOGY DETERMINATION OF WATER QUALITY CRITERIA FOR THE SUPPORT OF AQUATIC LIFE IN TWO SMALL BANSAS STREAMS. 4.091 INSTREAM FLCW REQUIREMENTS OF CALFORNIA FISHES. I.013, 4.029* BYDROLYSIS **BIOCONVERSION OF CHITIN WASTES. 8.004** UTILIZATION OF LATENT MARINE RESOURCES AND BY-PRODUCTS WASTE. 8.041 HYDROPSYCHIDAE TAXONCMY, BIOLOGY, AND ECOLOGICAL RELATIONSHIPS OF AQUATIC INSECTS. 4.120 RYDROSOIL CONTROL OF AQUATIC PLANT GREWIN. 3.032 EFFECTS OF AN ALTERED TEMPERATURE REGIME AND CREMICAL CONTAMINANTS ON THE AQUATIC ECOSYSTEM. 3.062, 4.127* HYPOXANTHINE ENZYME DEVELOPMENT FOR SEAFOOD QUALITY. 9.033 ICB LOW-TEMPERATURE STORAGE OF FRESBWATES PRAWN, MACROBBACHIUM ROSENHERGII. 8.010 ICE-FISEING AN ECONOMIC EVALUATION OF ICE FISHING IN MAINE. 10.014 **ICETHYOPHTRIFIES** FRESBWATER FOOD ANIMALS. 3.043 SUSCEPTIBILITY TO I. WILTIFILLIS CP CHANNEL CATPISE EXPOSED TO SUBLETBAL CONCENTRATIONS OF CCPPER 90. 3.080 ICETHYOPETHIBIUS-MULTIFILIIS BOST-PARASITE RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN THE CHANNEL CATFISE AND ICETEYOPETHIRIUS MULTIFILIIS. 3.050 IMMUNOLOGIC SESPONSE OF CHANNEL CATFISH, ICTALURUS PUNCTATUS, TO HETBROLOGOUS ANTIPEOTOZOAN IMMUNIZATION. 1.022 IDENTIFICATION A MULTI-INSTITUTIONAL APPROACE TO THE IDENTIFICATION OF BIVALVE LARVAE. 1.067 A STUDY OF THE MICROPIOLOGICAL FICRA CF CENAMENTAL FISHES. 3.040 BIONCMICS AND CONTROL OF CBIBONOMID MIDGES (BLIND MOSQUITCES). 3.026 CHENICALS THAT DIPFUSE FROM PREDATORY ASTEROIDS & TRIGGER DEFENSIVE BEBAVIORS IN MARINE INVERTBERATE. 1.002 COMPARATIVE STUDY OF THE FLEXIBACTER-CYTOPHAGA GROUP BACIERIA. 4.104 DETECTION AND IDENTIFICATION OF MYCOTOXINS AND ALGAL TOXINS IN FOODS AND FEEDS. 9.023

DISEASES OF AQUACULTURE SPECIES. 3.044

ECOLOGY AND TAXONOMY OF TWO MAJOR ORCERS OF AQUATIC INSECTS, EPBEMEROPTERA AND TRICBOPTERA, IN VA. 4.212

ECOLOGY CF LAEVAL STREAM FISHES. 1.038, 4.084*

NICROBIAL ECOLOGY OF NETHANE PRODUCTION IN AQUATIC ENVIRONMENTS. 4.220 NORPBOLOGY AND TAXONOMY OF NEWATODES. 1.021 NATURALLY OCCURFING MOSCUITC LAEVICIDES. 3.069 PBYTOTOXINS FROM AQUATIC AND TERFESTRIAL PLANTS, EACTERIA, AND FUNGI. 3.017 PRODUCTION OF IDENTIFICATION CIECULARS ON THE LARVAE OF COLORADO FISHES. 1.014 SEROLOGICAL METHODS FOR DETECTION AND IDENTIFICATION OF VIEUS DISEASES OF FISH. 3.058, 3.058 STUDY OF PATHOLCGY OF FISHES FROM LAKE HYCO, NOETH CABOLINA. 3.079 IBN-VIRUSES DEVELOPMENT OF A SUBUNIT VACCINE TO THE SALMONID VIRUS, IBNV, BY MOLECULAE CLCNING. 3.085 IMMUNE-RESPONSE FACTERIAL KIDNEY DISEASE IN MAINHOW TROUT: PATHOGENESIS, INMUNITY, AND EFFECT OF WATER BARDNESS. 3.070 BIOLOGY AND CONTROL OF AQUATIC ANIMAL DISEASES. 3.054 DISEASES OF SHELLFISH. 3.074 FUR ANIMAL STUDIES (MINE). 8.028 HOST-PARASITE RELATIONSHIPS HETWEEN THE CHANNEL CATFISH AND ICHTHYOPHTHIBIUS MULTIFILIIS. 3.050 IMMUNOLOGIC FACTORS IN CANDIDIASIS IN DELFBINS. 3.031 INMUNOLOGIC RESPONSE OF CHANNEL CATFISE, ICTALURUS PUNCTATUS, TO BETEROLOGOUS ANTIPEOTOZOAN IMMUNIZATION. 1.022 INFECTIOUS PANCREATIC NECROSIS IN ATLANTIC SALWCN. 3.057 MICROBIAL DISEASES AND INMUNE RESPONSE OF CATFISE. 3.098 SALMON CULTURE - DEVELOPMENT OF NUTRITICNAL AND DISEASE CONTROL PROGRAMS. 3.064. 5.037# INNUNITY HACTERIAL KIDNBY DISEASE IN RAINECW TROUT: PATHOGENESIS, IMMUNITY, AND EFFECT OF WATER BARDNESS. 3.070 INFECTIOUS DISEASES OF SALMCNID FISBES. 3.081 MICROBIAL DISEASES AND IMMUNE RESPONSE OF CATFISE. 3.098 IMMUNIZATION DISEASE MANAGEMENT IN CATFISH AQUACULTURE. 3.097 **BOST-PARASITE RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN THE CHANNEL** CATPISE AND ICHT HYOP BT HIF ILS MULTIFILIS. 3.050 IMMUNCLCGIC EBSFCNSE OF CHANNEL CATFISH, ICTALUEUS PUNCTATUS, TO BETEROLOGCUS ANTIPEOTOZOAN INNUNIZATION. 1.022 INFECTIOUS DISEASES OF SALMCNID FISHES. 3.081 SALMON CULTURE - DEVELOPMENT OF NUTRITICNAL AND DISEASE CONTACT PROGRAMS. 3.064, 5.037# INNUNOGLOBULINS INMUNOLOGIC FACTORS IN CANDIDIASIS IN DCLPHINS. 3.031 INNUNOLOGY BIOLOGY AND CONTROL OF AQUATIC ANIMAL DISEASES. 3.054 DISEASES OF AQUATIC ANIMALS. 3.072 FRESEWATER FOOD ANIMALS. 3.003 IMMUNOLOGIC FACTORS IN CANDIDIASIS IN DCLPHINS. 3.031, 3.031 IMMUNOLOGIC RESPONSE OF CHANNEL CATFISH, ICTALURUS PUNCTATUS, TO HETEROLOGCUS ANTIPEOTOZCAN IMMUNIZATION. 1.022 INFECTIOUS DISBASES OF SALMCNID FISHES. 3.081 MICROHIAL DISEASES AND IMMUNE RESPONSE OF CATFISH. 3.098 PATBOLOGY AND PATHOGENBSIS CP CATPISE DISEASES. 3.099 TRANSMISSION AND IMMUNOLOGY OF CHANNEL CATFISH VIBUS DISEASE CF CULTURED CATFISH. 3.002 TRANSMISSION OF CULTURED CATPISE VIBUS: DETECTION BY INMUNCLOGICAL METHODS. 3.001 INPACT AN BCONOMIC ANALYSIS OF THE ATLANTIC COAST STRIPED BASS FISEBRY. 10.031 FIOLOGICAL STUDIES OF THE SPINY LOBSTER IN SOUTH FLORIDA. 1.019 BIOLOGY AND SPORT FISBING BARVEST OF VELLOW PERCE. 4.082 DEVELOFMENT AND VALIDATION OF HABITAT-STANDING CROP PUNCTIONS POR STREAM FISE AND THEIR FOODS. 4.065 ECONOMIC IMPACTS OF THE 200-MILE LIMIT CN BURAL NOBTHEASTERN COASTAL COMMUNITIES. 10.024

EFFECTS CF ADDITIONAL PEAKING FROM A FOURTH GENERATOR AT DWORSHAR DAN IN CATCEAHILITY. FIC.. 4.062 INFACTS OF THE CONSTRUCTION AND OPERATION OF COASTAL NUCLEAR POWER PLANTS ON ESTUABINE ECOLOGY. 4.160 JUVENILE EMIGRATION OF LABORTAN CUTTERCAT INCUT IN THE TRUCKEE-PYRAMID LAKE SYSTEM. 4.055 NICROCOSM MODELING OF THE RESPONSE OF PEESISTENT AQUATIC COMMUNITIES TO A TOXICANT. 4.182 NAVIGATION IMPACTS ON CHANNEL FISHES, UPPER MISSISSIPPI RIVER. 4.090 PRE-INFOUNDMENT ENVIRONMENTAL STUDIES OF AQUILLA LAKE. 4.209 REGULATION OF WISCONSIN'S LAKE MICHIGAN COMMERCIAL FISHERIES. 10.050 THE IMPACT OF POWER PEAKING ON EGG INCUHATION OF FALL CHINOOK SALMCN. 4.072 INPLANTS. MOVEMENTS OF SONIC-TAGGED FISHES IN RELATION TO WATER QUALITY IN LOWER ATCHAFALAYA RIVER FASIN. 1.049, 4.097* INPORTS. DIAGNOSIS CF FISH DISEASES. 3.082 INPOUNDMENTS CONTROL AND ERADICATION OF ACUATIC WEEDS IN LAKES AND IMPCUNDED WATERS. 3.107 ECOLOGY AND TAXONONY OF TWO WAJOF ORDERS OF AQUATIC INSECTS, EFHEMEROPTERA AND TRICHOPTERA, IN VA. 4.212 EFFECTS CF STAMPEDE RESERVOIR CN UPSTREAM FISH FOPULATIONS OF SAGHHEN CREEK. 1.010, 4.019* EVALUATION CF EFFICACY, CROP RESPONSES AND CROP AND WATER RETENTION OF POTENTIAL ACUATIC HEFFICIDES. 3.021, 4.035* FISH POPULATION AND PRODUCTION IN FOND AND LAKE INFOUNDMENTS. 4.208, 6.095* LINNCLOGICAL EVALUATION AND ZOOPLANKTON DYNAMICS OF LAKE KOCCANUSA, NORTHWESTERN MCNTANA. 4.077 LCWER SNAKE FIVER LIMNOLOGY. 4.076 STREAM AND INFOUNDMENT ECOLOGY. 4.003 IN-VITEO CCMPARATIVE PHYSIOLOGICAL STUDIES OF VERTEERATE EYES. 1.062 EFFECTS OF POLLUTANTS CN GILLS OF FRESHWATER FISHES. 3.060, 4.119* PENAEIDAE GAMETES, TEEIR STRUCTURE, ACTIVATION AND FUSION. 1.006 INEFEEDING FRESHWATER FOOD ANIMALS. 2.007, 6.023* IMPROVEMENT OF CATFISE STOCE TEECUGE SELECTIVE HREEDING. 2.011, 6.044* INC IDENCE BELMINTH FARASITES OF VERTEERATES IN NOFTE CARCLINA. 3.078 INCOME ANALYSIS OF DOMESTIC FOOD DEMAND AND CONSUMPTION HEHAVIOL. 9.041 ECONCMIC HEHAVIOR OF FOOD AND FINER FIRMS, 10,007 HCONOMIC DESCRIPTION OF THE NEW JERSEY COMMERCIAL FISHING INDUSTRY. 10.025 ECONOMIC INFACTS OF THE 200-MILE LIMIT ON FURAL NORTHEASTERN COASTAL COMMUNITIES. 10.015 ECONOMICS OF BIVALVE NOLLUSK AQUACULTURE IN NEW ENGLAND. 6.054, 10.016* THE INPACT OF THE 200 NILE ECONOMIC ZONE ON BURAL NEW ENGLAND COASTAL COMMUNITIES. 10.017 INCOME-TAXES EFFECTS OF THE TAX REFORM ACT OF 1976 ON NEW ENGLAND VESSEL OWNERS AND CREW. 10.041 INCUBATION DEVELOPMENT AND APPLICATION OF A METHODOLOGY FCR RECOMMENDING SALMONID EGG INCURATION FLOWS. 4.070 EFFECTS OF INCREASED FINE SEDIMENT ON INCUEATION AND EMERGENCE OF CHINOOK SALMON AND STEELHEAD TROUT. 4.071 THE IMPACT OF FOWER PEAKING ON EGG INCUEATION OF FALL CHINOOK SALMCN. 4.072 INCUBATORS CULTURE OF PACIFIC SALMON. 1.087, 6.076* INDEXES ORGANIZATION AND RETRIEVAL OF FRESEWATER FISHERY DATA. 1.033, 4.080* INDICATOR-ORGANISMS AQUATIC INSECTS AS INDICATORS OF WATER QUALITY AND PRODUCTIVITY: A COORDINATED STUDY. 4.128

HIOLOGICAL INDICATORS OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY IN CALIFORNIA LAKES AND STREAMS, 4.016 COMPARATIVE ECOLOGY OF SELECTED SPECIES OF AQUATIC INSECTS, PHASE IV. 4.039 EFFECTS OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONTAMINANTS ON GEORGIA FARM FCND FISHES. 4.051, 6.025* LUNINOUS BACTERIA AS INDICATORS OF SHELLFISH CONTAMINATION BY PATHOGENIC VIERICS. 4.144 NUTRIENT INTERACTIONS AND CHANGES IN ALGAL QUALITY IN CAYUGA LAKE. 4.140 THE FATE AND EFFECTS OF CHEMICALS IN AQUATIC ECOSYSTENS. 4.111 WATER QUALITY STUDY. 4.033 INDICATORS WATER QUALITY STUDY. 4.033 INDUCTION ACCUMULATION AND DEGRADATION OF SOME HERHICIDES FY ALGAE. 4.172 INDUSTRIAL-DEVELOPMENT THE STATUS AND RELATION OF THE COASTAL ZONE TO ALAHAMA'S ECONOMY. 10.001 INDUSTRIAL-ORGANIZATION ECONOMIC DESCRIPTION OF THE NEW JERSEY COMMERCIAL FISHING INDUSTRY. 10.025 INDUSTRIAL-WASTE EFFECTS OF DISSOLVED CHENICALS CN AQUATIC LIFE. 4.078 THE FATE AND EFFECTS OF CHEMICALS IN AQUATIC ECOSYSTENS. 4.111 ZOOGEOGRAFHY AND ECOLOGY OF FISHES IN PENNSYLVANIA. 1.093, 4.190* INDUSTRIALIZATION WATER CUALITY STUDY. 4.033 INDUSTRY ECONOMIC DESCRIPTION OF THE NEW JERSEY COMMERCIAL FISEING INDUSTRY. 10.025 ECONOMIC IMPACTS OF THE 200-MILE LIMIT CN RURAL NORTHHASTERN COASTAL COMMUNITIES. 10.018, 10.024 RESEARCH IN SYSTEMS ECOLOGY. 4.141 SOUTHERN NEW ENGLAND ECONOMIC IMPACT PECJECT. 10.040 THE STATUS AND RELATION OF THE COASTAL ZCNE TO ALAEAMA'S ECONOMY. 10.001 INFECTION A SURVEY FOR PATHOGEN FOR AQUATIC WEEDS IN CALIFORNIA FOR USE IN HICLCGICAL CONTROL. 3.008, 4.009* INFECTIOUS-DISEASES DIAGNOSIS OF FISE DISEASES. 3.082 INFECTIOUS DISEASES OF SALMCNID FISHES. 3.081 INFECTIOUS-FANCEEATIC-NECROSIS INFECTIOUS FANCREATIC NECROSIS IN ATLANTIC SALMON. 3.057 SEROLOGICAL METHODS FOR DETECTION AND IDENTIFICATION OF VIRUS DISEASES OF FISH. 3.058 INFECTIVITY SEROLOGIC AND VIRUULENCE STUDIES OF AEROMCNAS HYDROPHILA. 3.042 INFORMATION AN ECONOMIC ANALYSIS OF DECISION MAKING AND POLICY FORMULATION. 10.043 HCONOMIC ANALYSES OF FISHERIES MANAGEMENT ISSUES ARISING FROM EXTENDED JURISDICTICN OF NEW ENGLAND. 10.042, 10.042 ORGANIZATION AND RETRIEVAL OF FEESEWATER FISBERY DATA. 1.033, 4.080* INFORMATION-DISSEMINATION CRGANIZATION AND RETRIEVAL OF FRESEWATER FISHERY DATA. 1.033, 4.080* INFORMATION-RETRIEVAL ORGANIZATION AND RETRIEVAL OF FRESHWATER FISHERY DATA. 1.033, 4.080* INFORMATION-SYSTEMS ANALYSIS OF DEMESTIC FOOD DEMAND AND CONSUMPTION HEHAVIOR. 10.008 INFRARED-FROTOGRAFRY DISTRIBUTION, ABUNDANCE AND ECOLOGY OF ASCOPEYILUM NODOSUM (1) LE JCIS. 1.052, 4.102*, 7.008* PRE-IMPOUNDMENT ENVIRONMENTAL STUDIES OF AQUILLA LAKE. 4.209 INBIBITORS NATURALLY OCCUERING MOSCUITC LAEVICIDES. 3.069 INJURIES ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS AFFECTING SURVIVAL OF THERMALLY-INJURED HACTHRIA FOUND ON FISHERY

```
PRODUCTS. 9.008
FISE PEYSICLCGY IN RESPONSE TO WATER QUALITY AND
CHEMISTRY. 4.211
```

INPUT-OUTPUT-ANALYSIS ECONOMIC HEBAVIOR OF FOOD AND FIBER FIRMS. 10.007 ECONOMIC PROFILE & REGIONAL ECONOMIC IMPACTS OF THE ALASKA SHELLFISH INDUSTRY. 10.049 SOUTBERN NEW ENGLAND ECONOMIC IMPACT PROJECT. 10.040 THE INPACT OF THE 200 MILE ECONOMIC ZONE ON RURAL NEW ENGLAND COASTAL COMMUNITIES. 10.017 THE STATUS AND RELATION OF THE COASTAL ZCNE TO ALABANA'S ECONOMY. 10.001 INPUTS COSTS AND RETURNS IN THE OTTER TRAWL FLEET ON LCNG ISLAND, NEW YCRK. 10.029 NATURAL WAISHES AS NUTRIENT SINKS FOR AGRICULTURAL RUNOFF. 4.089 INSECT-ANATONY TAXONOMY, HIOLOGY, AND ECOLOGICAL RELATIONSHIPS OF AQUATIC INSECTS. 4.120 INSECT-ATTEACTANTS INSECTS ATTRACTED BY LIGHT AS A SOURCE OF FOOD FOR CATFISH. 5.005 INSECT-BEHAVIOR HIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS WITH INSECTS. 3.038 HIOLOGY, ECOLOGY, TAXONOMY AND DISTRIBUTION OF AQUATIC INSECTS IN WISCONSIN. 4.221 CCMPARATIVE ECOLOGY OF SELECTED SPECIES OF AQUATIC INSECTS, PHASE IV. 4.039, 4.042 ECOLOGY OF NOSQUITOES ASSOCIATED WITH CALIFORNIA RICE FIELDS. 4.015 WATER QUALITY STUDIES: COMPARATIVE ECOLOGY AND SYSTEMATICS OF SELECTED AQUATIC INSECTS. 4.043 INSECT-BIOLOGY HIOLOGICAL CONTRCL AGENTS OF BYDEILLA VEETICILLATA. 3.109 BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS WITH INSECTS. 3.038 BIOLOGICAL CONTRCL OF EURASIAN MILFOIL AND OTHER AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.106 BIOLOGY, ECOLOGY, TAKONOMY AND DISTRIBUTION OF AQUATIC INSECTS IN WISCONSIN. 4.221 HLACK FLY DAMAGE THRESHOLDS, BIOLOGY AND CONTROL. 4.103 IMPORTATION AND EVALUATION OF INSECTS FOR HIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF WEEDS AND INSECT PESTS. 3.037 CRGANISMS ASSOCIATED WITE AQUATIC WEEDS AND THE BIOLOGICAL CONTEOL WATER-HYACINTH IN EGYPT. 3.105 TAXONONY, EIOLOGY, AND ECOLOGICAL RELATIONSHIPS OF AQUATIC INSECTS. 4.120 USE OF BENTHIC MACROINVERIEBRATES IN N. C. FISHEEY MANAGEMENT AND WATER QUALITY ASSESSMENT. 1.084 INSECT-CHENICALS ECOLOGY OF NOSQUITOES ASSOCIATED WITH CALIFORNIA RICE FIELDS: 4.015 INSECT-COLLECTION BICLOGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS WITH INSECTS. 3.038 INSECT-CONTRCL BIOLOGICAL STUDIES WITH THE MOSQUITOFISH, GAMHUSIA AFFINIS, UNDER CULTURAL SITUATIONS. 6.012 BICNCHICS AND CONTRCL OF CHIRONOMID MIDGES (PLIND MOSQUITCES). 3.026 BLACK FLY DAMAGE THRESHCLDS, HICLOGY AND CONTROL. 4.103 CHEMICAL CONTROL OF MOSQUITOES OF NUISANCE AND BEALTB INFORTANCE. 4.133 ECOLOGY CF MOSQUITOES ASSOCIATED WITH CALIFORNIA RICE FIELDS. 4.015 FEEDING ECCLOGY OF FISHES UTILIZING WARSHES ALTERED FCR CONTROL OF SALT MARSE MOSCUITCES. 1.065, 3.065*, 4.134* INSECTICIDES AND THEIR FORMULATIONS. 4.131 MANAGEMENT STRATEGIES FOR RICE PESTS. 3.005 NATURALLY CCCURRING WOSQUITO LARVICIDES. 3.069 INSECT-DAMAGE BLACK FLY DAMAGE THRESHOLDS, HIOLOGY AND CONTROL. 4.103 INSECT-DEVEL CPHENT NATURALLY OCCURRING MOSQUITC LARVICIDES. 3.069 INSECT-DISTRIBUTION EIOLOGY, ECOLOGY, TAXCNOMY AND DISTRIBUTION OF AQUATIC INSECTS IN WISCONSIN. 4.221 ECOLOGY AND TAXONOMY OF TWO MAJOE ORDERS OF AQUATIC INSECTS, EPBEMEROPTERA AND TRICHOPTERA, IN VA. 4.212

AQUATIC INSECTS. 4.120 INSECT-BCOLOGY HIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF WEEDS. 3.104 HIOLCGY, ECOLCGY, TAXONCMY AND DISTRIBUTION OF AQUATIC INSECTS IN WISCCNSIN. 4.221 HIGNCWICS AND CONTROL OF CHIRONOWID WIDGES (HLIND NOSQUITOES). 3.026 BLACK FLY DAMAGE THRESBOLDS, FIOLOGY AND CONTROL. 4.103 CBEMICAL CONTROL OF MOSQUITCES OF NUISANCE AND HEALTH INFCRIANCE. 4.133 COMPARATIVE ECOLOGY OF SELECTED SPECIES OF AQUATIC INSECTS, PHASE IV. 4.039, 4.042 ECOLOGY AND SYSTEMATICS OF AQUATIC INSECTS. 4.177 ECOLOGY AND TAXONOMY OF TWO MAJCE OFFERS OF AQUATIC INSECTS, EPHEMEROPIEFA AND IFICBOPIEFA, IN VA. 4.212 LIMITS ON PRODUCTION OF ABCTIC CHIRCNOMIDAE: A PART OF PROJECT A. L. P. S.. 4.167 TAXONOMY, BIOLOGY, AND ECOLOGICAL BELATICNSHIPS CF AQUATIC INSECIS. 4.120 NATER QUALITY STUDIES: COMPARATIVE ECOLOGY AND SYSTEMATICS OF SELECTED AQUATIC INSECTS. 4.043 INSECT-GROWTE LIMITS ON PRODUCTION OF ARCTIC CHIRONCHIDAE: A FART OF PROJECT A. L. P. S.. 4.167 INSECT-BORMONDS ECOLOGY OF NOSQUITOES ASSOCIATED WITH CALIFORNIA RICE FIELDS. 4.015 INSECT-IDENTIFICATION ECOLOGY AND TAXONOMY OF TWO MAJCE OFDERS CF AQUATIC INSECTS, EPHENERCPIERA AND ISICHOPTERA, IN VA. 4.212 IDENTIFICATION OF INSECTS FOR HIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.036 USE OF HENTHIC MACROINVERTEERATES IN N. C. FISHEEY MANAGEMENT AND WATER QUALITY ASSESSMENT. 1.084 INSECT-INTRODUCTION FIOLOGICAL CONTROL AGENTS OF BYDRILLA VERTICILLATA. 3.109 BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS WITH INSECTS. 3.038 IDENTIFICATION OF INSECTS FCR HICLOGICAL CONTRCL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.036 IMPORTATION AND EVALUATION OF INSECTS FOR HIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF WEEDS AND INSECT PESTS. 3.037 INSECT-LARVAE BIONOMICS AND CONTROL OF CHIRCNCHID MIDGES (HLIND MOSQUITOES). 3.026 BLACK FLY DAMAGE THRESHOLDS, BICLOGY AND CONTRCL. 4.103 CHENICAL CONTROL OF MOSCUITCES OF NUISANCE AND HEALTH INPORTANCE. 4.133 ECOLOGY AND SYSTEMATICS OF AQUATIC INSECTS. 4.177 LIMITS ON PRODUCTION OF ARCTIC CHIRONOMIDAE: A PART OF PROJECT A. L. P. S.. 4.167 USE OF HENTHIC MACROINVERTEBRATES IN N. C. FISHERY MANAGEMENT AND WATER QUALITY ASSESSMENT. 1.084 INSECT-PATROGENS BIONOMICS AND CONTROL OF CHIPCNOMID MIDGES (HIIND MOSCUITOES). 3.026 INSECT-PESTS-BUMANS CHEMICAL CONTROL OF MOSQUITCES OF NUISANCE AND BEALTH INPOSTANCE. 4.133 FEEDING BCOLOGY OF FISHES UTILIZING WARSHES ALTERED FOR CONTROL OF SALT MARSE MOSQUITOES. 1.065, 3.065*, 4.134* INSECT-PEYSIOLOGY ECOLOGY OF MOSQUITOES ASSOCIATED WITH CALIFORNIA RICE FIELDS. 4.015 INSECT-POPULATION ECOLOGY AND SYSTEMATICS OF AQUATIC INSECTS. 4.177 INSECT-PREDATORS AN INVESTIGATION OF THE ADAPTIVE SIGNIFICANCE OF MELANISM IN THE MALE MOSQUITCEISH, GANHUSIA AFFINIS. 1.078 BLACK FLY DAMAGE TBRESBOLDS, PICLOGY AND CONTROL. 4.103 FBEDING ECOLOGY OF FISHES UTILIZING MARSHES ALTERED FOR CONTROL OF SALT MARSH MOSQUITCES. 1.065, 3.065*, 4.134* INSECT-RELEASE BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS WITH INSECTS. 3.038

TAXCNOMY, BIOLOGY, AND BCOLOGICAL RELATIONSHIPS OF

IMPOPTATION AND EVALUATION CF INSECTS FOR BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF WEEDS AND INSECT PESTS. 3.037

OFGANISMS ASSOCIATED WITH AQUATIC WEEDS AND THE BIOLOGICAL CONTROL BATER-BYACINTE IN EGYPT. 3.105 INSECT-SURVEYS BIOLCGICAL CONTROL AGENTS OF BYDRILLA VERTICILLATA. 3.109 BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF EURASIAN MILFOIL AND OTHER AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.106 ECOLOGY AND SYSTEMATICS OF AQUATIC INSECTS. 4.177 INSECT-TAXCNCHY AQUATIC INSECTS AS INDICATORS OF WATER QUALITY AND PEODUCTIVITY: A COORDINATED STUDY. 4.129 BIOLOGICAL CONTROL AGENTS OF BYDRILLA VERTICILLATA. 3.109 BIOLOGY, ECOLOGY, TAXONONY AND DISTRIBUTION OF AQUATIC INSECTS IN WISCONSIN. 4.221 BIONOMICS AND CONTROL OF CHIRONOMID MIDGES (BLIND MOSQUITCES). 3.026 TAXONOMY, BICLOGY, AND ECOLOGICAL RELATIONSBIPS OF AQUATIC INSECTS. 4.120 USE OF BENIBIC MACROINVERTEBRATES IN N. C. FISBERY MANAGEMENT AND WATER QUALITY ASSESSMENT. 1.084 INSECTICIDE-FORMULATIONS INSECTICIDES AND THEIR FORMULATIONS. 4.131 INSECTICIDE-RESISTANCE CHEMICAL CONTROL OF MOSQUITCES OF NUISANCE AND BEALTB IMPORTANCE. 4.133 INSECTICIDE-BESISTANT-INSECTS INSECTICIDE AND NON-CHEMICAL CONTROL OF MCSQUITOES. 4.037 INSECTICIDES CHEMICAL CONTROL OF MOSQUITCES OF NUISANCE AND HEALTE IMPORTANCE. 4.133 ECOLOGICAL RELATIONSEIPS CF PESTICIDES, RADIONUCLIDES & NUTRIENTS WITE ORGANISMS IN AQUATIC COMMUNIT. 4.113 EFFECTS CF ENVIRONMENTAL CONTAMINANTS ON GEORGIA PARM FOND FISEBS. 4.051, 6.025* EVALUATION OF PESTICIDE LEVELS IN CATPISE FROCESSING WASTES. 9.001 FRESHWATER FOOD AN IMALS. 4.198, 5.048* INSECTICIDE AND NON-CBENICAL CONTROL OF MOSQUITOES. 4.037 INSECTICIDES AND THEIR FORMULATIONS. 4.131 MANAGEMENT STRATEGIES FOR RICE PESTS. 3.005 MICROCOSM MODELING OP THE RESPONSE OF PERSISTENT AQUATIC COMMUNITIES TO A TOXICANT. 4.182 RELATION SHIPS BETWEEN PESTICIDES AND GECRGIA FARM POND ECCSYSTEMS. 4.050 TOXICITY AND ECOLOGICAL EFFECTS CF SELECTED INSECTICIDES AND BEFBICIDES. 4.122 INSECTS BIOLOGICAL AGENTS FOR CONTROL OF BYDRILLA. A SUBMEESED AQUATIC WEED. 3.023 BIOLOGICAL CONTROL AGENTS OF BYDRILLA VERTICILLATA. 3.109 BIOLOGICAL CONTRCL OF AQUATIC WEEDS IN THE SOUTHEAST. 3.034 BIOLCGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS WITH INSECTS. 3.038 BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF EURASIAN MILFOIL AND OTBER AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.106 BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF WEEDS WITH EMPBASIS CN AQUATIC HABITATS. 3.033 BIOLOGICAL STUDIES WITH THE MOSQUITOFISH, GAMBUSIA AFFINIS, UNDEE CULTURAL SITUATIONS. 6.012 BIOLOGY, ECCLOGY, TAXONOMY AND DISTRIBUTION OF AQUATIC INSECTS IN WISCONSIN. 4.221 BIONOMICS AND CONTROL OF CHIRONOMID MIDGES (ELIND MOSQUITCES). 3.026 BLACK FLY DAMAGE THRESBOLDS, BIOLOGY AND CONTROL. 4.103 CBEMICAL CONTROL OF MOSQUITOES OF NUISANCE AND **HEALTE IMPORTANCE**. 4.133 CCMPARATIVE ECOLOGY OF SELECTED SPECIES OF AQUATIC INSECIS, PHASE IV. 4.039 DEVELOPMENT AND VALIDATION OF BABITAT-STANDING CRCP FUNCTIONS FOR STREAM FISE AND THEIR FCODS. 4.065 ECOLOGY AND SYSTEMATICS OF AQUATIC INSECTS. 4.177 ECOLOGY AND TAXONOMY OF TWO MAJOE ORDERS OF AQUATIC INSECTS, EPHEMEROPTERA AND TRICBOPTERA, IN VA. 4.212 ECOLOGY OF MCSQUITOES ASSOCIATED WITE CALIFCENIA RICE FIELDS. 4.015 EFFECTS CF ANTIMYCIN ON STREAM INSECTS. 3.102. 4.222*

EFFECTS CF LIVESTOCK GRAZING PRACTICES ON THE WATER QUALITY OF STREAMS. 4.223

FEEDING ECOLOGY OF FISBES UTILIZING MARSEES ALTERED FCE CONTROL OF SALT MARSE MOSQUITOES. 1.065, 3.065*, 4.134* IDENTIFICATION OF INSECTS FCR BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.036 IMPORTATION AND EVALUATION CF INSECTS FCR BIOLCGICAL CONTROL OF WEEDS AND INSECT PESTS. 3.037 INSECTICIDES AND THEIR FORMULATIONS. 4.131 INSECTS ATTRACTED BY LIGET AS A SOURCE OF FOOD FOR CATFISB. 5.005 LIMITS ON PEODUCTION OF ARCTIC CEIRCNOMIDAE: A PART OP PROJECT A. L. P. S.. 4.167 NANAGEMENT STRATEGIES FOR RICE PESTS. 3.005 NATURALLY OCCUERING MOSQUITC LAEVICIDES. 3.069 ORGANISMS ASSOCIATED WITH AQUATIC WEEDS AND THE BIOLOGICAL CONTROL WATER-BYACINTE IN EGYPT. 3.105 USE OF BENTHIC MACROINVERTEERATES IN N. C. FISHERY NANAGEMENT AND WATER QUALITY ASSESSMENT. 1.084 INSPECTION DIAGNOSIS OF FISE DISEASES. 3.082 INSTITUTIONAL-ARBANGEMENTS ECONOMIC BEHAVIOR OF FOCD AND FIBER FIRMS. 10.007 INTEGRATED-CONTROL-NENATODES TAXONOMY AND MORPBOLOGY OF NEMATODES. 3.027 INTEGRATED-CONTEOL-WEEDS BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS IN THE SOUTBEAST. 3.034 BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF WEEDS WITH EMPHASIS CN AQUATIC HABITATS. 3.033 CONTROL AND BRADICATION OF AQUATIC WEEDS IN LAKES AND IMPOUNDED WATERS. $3\cdot107$ control of weeds and certain other aquatic fests in THE PACIFIC SOUTEWEST. 3.015, 4.031* PHYSIOLOGY AND WANAGEMENT OF AQUATIC WEEDS INTERFBEING WITH THE USE OF WATER RESOURCES. 3.035. 3.035 THE ECOLOGICAL IMPACT OF INTEGRATED CHEMICAL AND BICLOGICAL AQUATIC WEED CONTROL. 3.025, 4.045*, 4.048. 6.021* WEED CONTROL IN RICE PRODUCTION. 3.006, 4.008* INTENSIVE-CULTURE BIOLOGICAL FEASIBILITY OF INTENSIFIED OYSTER CULTURB. 4.178, 5.040*, 6.074* FRESEWATER FOOD ANIMALS. 3.039, 5.014*, 6.024* INTENSIVE CULTURE OF CRAYFISB. 6.068 INTENSIVE CULTURE OF THE WALLEYE (PERCIDAE: STIZOSTEDION VITREUM). 5.038, 6.067* INTENSIVE CULTURE OF TILAPIA IN GEOTHERMAL WATERS IN THE SAN LUIS VALLEY, COLOFADO. 2.005, 6.017* SBRIMP MATURATICN, REPRODUCTICN, DEVELOPMENI, NUTRITION, INTENSIVE-EXTENSIVE CULTURE AND MARICULTURE. 5.052, 6.092* SYSTEMS ANALYSIS OF INTENSIVE AQUACULTURE: A CASE STUDY OF OYSTER PRODUCTION. 6.026, 10.011* USE OF NUTLIENT CONTAINING LIPID VESICLES AS A FOOD SOURCE FOR SBELLFISH OF PACIFIC NORTHWEST. 5.042 INTERACTIONS HABITAT SELECTION AND SPECIES INTERACTIONS OF JUVENILE TROUT IN FLATBEAD RIVER TRIBUTARIES. 1.027, 4.064* INVESTIGATION OF AQUATIC ECOSYSTEMS IN SMALL PONDS. 1.031, 6.036* TOXICITY OF AERONONAS HYDROPHILIA EXCTOXINS IN CHANNEL CATFISE. 3.052 INTERNAL-PARASITES RELMINTE PARASITES OF VERTEFRATES IN NORTH CAROLINA. 3.078 INTERNATIONAL-RELATIONS ECONOMIC ANALYSES OF FISBERIES MANAGEMENT ISSUES ARISING FROM EXTENDED JURISDICTICN OF NEW ENGLAND. 10.042 INTERPRELATIONS RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN SALT MARSE AND ESTUARINE ANIMAL COMMUNITIES AND ENERGY EXCHANGE. 4.040, 5.010* INTERSPECIFIC-EYBRIDS GENETIC ASSESSMENT OF MACROERACHIUM CN GUAN. 1.023 INTERVIEWS IMPROVEMENT OF OGO PRODUCTION AND MARKETING IN HAWAII. 6.031, 10.012* PRODUCTION ECONOMICS OF AQUACULTURE SPECIES IN HAWAII. 10.009 INVENTORY IMPACT OF LAND USE PRACTICES ON POPULATIONS OF

IMPACT OF LAND USE PRACTICES ON POPULATIONS OF WILDLIFE AND FISHERY RESCURCES. 4.162

PRE-IMPOUNDMENT ENVIRONMENTAL STUDIES OF AQUILLA LAKE. 4.208 INVERTEBRATES BLACK FLY DAMAGE TERESHOLDS, BIOLCGY AND CONTROL. 4.103 CHEMICALS THAT DIFFUSE FROM FREDATORY ASTEROIDS & TRIGGER DEFENSIVE BEBAVIORS IN MARINE INVERTEERATE. 1.002 EFFECTS OF DISSOLVED CHEMICALS ON AQUATIC LIFE. 4.078 EFFECTS OF LAND USE PRACTICES ON STREAM BICTA. 4.085 EFFECTS OF REDUCED STREAM DISCHARGE ON FISH AND AQUATIC MACROINVERIEERATE POPULATIONS. 4.073 ESTUARINE INVERTEBRATE HEHAVIOR; AN INDEX OF SUBACUTE TOXICITY OF AQUATIC BERBICIDES. 1.079, 3.075*, 8.040* FACTORS INFLUENCING TROUT PRODUCTION IN VIRGINIA STREAMS. 1.102, 4.217* FISH AND ACUATIC MACKOINVERTEBRATE FAUNA IN SOUTB FORK BOISE RIVER FELCW ANDERSON RANCE DAN. 1.029 FUNCTIONAL MORPHOLOGY CF INVERTEERATE CRGAN SYSTEMS. 1.071 NICROCOSM MODELING OF THE RESPONSE OF PERSISTENT AQUATIC COMMUNITIES IC & ICXICANT. 4.182 STREAMSIDE BUFFER STRIPS FCR PROTECTING AQUATIC ORGANISES FROM LCGGING EFFECTS. 4.018 UTILIZATION OF KRAFT MILL EFFLUENT FCF FISE Freduction. 5.012, 6.020* INVESTMENTS AN ANALYSIS OF NEW ENGLAND FISBERIES INVESTMENT BEHAVIOF. 10.037 CATFISE EREEDING, PRCDUCTION, AND MALKETING. 10.003 ECONOMIC ANALYSES OF PISHERIES MANAGEMENT ISSUES ARISING FROM EXTENDED JURISDICTION OF NEW ENGLAND. 10.042 ECONOMIC IMPACTS OF THE 200-NILE LIMIT ON RURAL NORTHEASTERN COASTAL COMMUNITIES. 10.027 ECONOMICS OF THE COMMERCIAL FISH INDUSTRY. 10.045 FEASIBILITY OF CAGED FISH CULTURE IN NORTH CENTRAL OKLAHOMA FARM PONDS. 4.173, 6.073*, 10.035* THE IMPACT OF THE 200 NILE ECONOMIC ZONE ON RURAL NEW ENGLAND COASTAL COMMUNITIES. 10.017 IREIGATION. DEVELOPMENT OF FISH FROTECTIVE SYSTEMS FOR WATER INTAKES. 4.022 EVALUATION OF EFFICACY, CRCP RESPONSES AND CROP AND WATER RETENTION OF POTENTIAL AQUATIC BERHICIDES. 3.021, 4.035* THE EFPECTS OF IRRIGATION WASTE WATER ON AQUATIC PLANTS IN THE SACKAMENTO RIVER. 4.025 IPRIGATION-CANALS EVALUATION OF EFFICACY, CROP RESPONSES AND CROP AND WATER RETENTION OF POTENTIAL AQUATIC FEREICIDES. 3.021, 4.035* IRRIGATION-SYSTEMS BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS WITH COMPETITIVE SPECIES OF SPIKERUSE (ELECCHARIS SPP.). 3.011 USE OF SPIKERUSE (ELEOCHARIS SPP.) FCR BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.016 IPRIGATION-WATER EVALUATION OF EFFICACY, CEOP RESPONSES AND CROF AND WATER RETENTION OF POTENTIAL AQUATIC BERBICIDES. 3.021, 4.035* THE EFFECTS OF IRRIGATION WASTE WATER ON AQUATIC PLANTS IN THE SACRAMENIC FIVEF. 4.025 ISOCHEYSIS. EFPHCTS CF HERHICIDES ON CHESAPEAKE HAY PETTOPLANKTON. 4.106 ISOLATES. EVALUATION OF FUSARIUM ROSEUM "CULMORUM" AS A **BIOLOGICAL CONTROL FOR BYDRILLA VERTICILLATA.** 3.029 ISCLATION A STUDY OF THE MICROBIOLOGICAL FLORA OF ORNAMENTAL FISHES. 3.040 CHARACTEFIZATION OF GONAD-STIMULATING SUESTANCES IN MARINE #NIMALS. 1.020, 2.006* COMPARATIVE STUDY OF THE FLEXIBACTER-CYTOPHAGA GROUP BACTERIA. 4.104 CCNTROL CF AQUATIC WEEDS BASED ON ALLELOPATBIC CHARACTERISTICS IN SPIKERUSH (ELECCHARIS SPP.). 3.007 DETECTION AND IDENTIFICATION OF MYCOTCXINS AND ALGAL TOXINS IN FOODS AND FEEDS. 9.023 DETECTION TRANSMISSION AND PATHOGENESIS OF DISEASE

DETECTION TRANSMISSION AND PATROGENESIS OF DISEASE ORGANISMS IN AQUACULTURE SPECIES. 3.087 DISEASE MANAGEMENT IN CATFISH AQUACULTURE. 3.097 ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS AFFECTING SURVIVAL CF THERMALLY-INJURED FACTERIA FOUND ON FISBERY PRODUCTS. 9.008

INTENSIVE CULTURE OF CRAYFISH. 6.068

- INVEST. CF THE KCLE OF LAKVAL AMERICAN CYSTEKS (CRASSOSTREA VIRGINICA) AS CAFRIERS CF OYSTEK DISEASE. 3.071
- MICROHIAL ECOLOGY OF METHANE FRODUCTION IN AQUATIC ENVIRONMENTS: 4:220
- NITROGEN FIXATION IN METHANE-CXIDIZING EACTERIA. 4.219
- FHYTCTCXINS FRCW AQUAIIC AND TEFRESTRIAL FLANTS, BACTERIA, AND FUNGI. 3.017 POISCNOUS DINOFLAGELLATES AND SHELLFISE POISONING.
- 9.042

SURVEY OF DISEASES OF CULTURED FRESHWATER FISHES OF CALIFORNIA. 3.009

ISOZYNES

BIOCHENICAL GENETICS AND CYTOGENETICS OF TROUT. 2.022

GENETIC ASSESSMENT OF MACECEMACEIUM ON GUAM. 1.023 GENETIC STUDIES OF ABERNATBY CREEK CEINCCE SALMCN. 2.020

IVA-FRUTESCENS

STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT OF MARGINAL SALT MARSE SPECIES FROM NORTH CARCLIN. 4.158

JUICES

- RECLAMATION OF PROTEIN AND FLAVCE MATERIALS FROM CLAN WASE WATER: 8.034
- JUNCUS PRODUCTIVITY CF THE SALINE WARSBES CN FLORIDA'S
 - NORTE AND WEST COASTS, PEASE II. 4.038 VALUE OF TIDAL MARSHES IN RELATION TO ESTUARINE ECOSYSTEM, AND EVALUATION OF FRESHWATEE WETLANDS. 4.044

JUVENILES

- AFFLICATION OF OTOLITH WICECSTRUCTURAL DATA TO STUDIES CF THE EAGLY LIFE HISTORY CF FISHES. 1.070
- EVALUATION CF JUVENILE SALMCN AND STEELHEAD DENSITY AS RELATED TO DENSITY OF SPAWNERS AND FRY RELEASE, 1.030, 6.035*
- RELEASE. 1.030, 6.035* FEEDING ECOLOGY OF FISHES UTILIZING MARSHES ALTERED FOR CONTROL OF SALT MARSH MOSQUITOES. 1.065, 3.065*, 4.134*
- GENETIC ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT OF CRUSTACEAN AQUACULTURE STOCKS. 2.003
- PRESENCE, ABUNDANCE, MOVEMENTS, AND BABITAT USAGE OF ESTUARINE-DEPENDENT FISBES AND CRUSTACEANS.. 1.045, 4.095*
- THE RELATIONSHIF OF SALINITY AND DISTANCE FROM THE SEA, TO THE DISTRIBUTION OF JUVENILE FISHES. 1.044, 4.094*

KABYOTYPES

EIOCHEMICAL GENETICS AND CYTOGENETICS OF TROUT. 2.021

KEYS

- AQUATIC INSECTS AS INDICATORS OF WATER QUALITY AND FRODUCTIVITY: A COORDINATED STUDY. 4.129 BIOLOGY, ECOLOGY, TAXONOMY AND DISTRIBUTION OF
- AQUATIC INSECTS IN WISCCNSIN. 4.221 PRODUCTION OF IDENTIFICATION CIRCULARS ON THE LARVAH OF COLCEADO FISHES. 1.014
- TAXONOMY AND MORPBOLOGY OF NEMATCHES. 3.027 USE OF BENTEIC MACEOINVERTEBRATES IN N. C. PISBERY MANAGEMENT AND WATER QUALITY ASSESSMENT. 1.084

HIDDEYS INFECTIOUS DISEASES OF SALMONID FISEES. 3.081 THE EFFICACY OF SELECTED ANTIBIOTICS IN THE

PREVENTION AND CONTROL OF EACTERIAL BIDNEY DISEASE. 3.046 KINETICS

ECOLOGY OF ANABECHIC BETEROTRCPHIC HACTEEIA. 4.118 PHOTOSYNTHESIS AND PHOTORESPIRATION IN ACUATIC PLANIS. 1.017

KRAFT-EFFLUENTS

UTILIZATION OF KEAFT WILL EFFLUENT FOR FISH PRODUCTION. 5.012, 6.020*

CATFISH BREEDING, PRODUCTION, AND MARKETING. 10.003 ECONOMIC BEHAVIOR OF FOOD AND FIBER FIRMS. 10.007 ECONOMIC INFACTS OF THE 200-MILE LIMIT ON RURAL NORTHEASTERN COASTAL COMMUNITIES. 10.015, 10.027, 10.039 LABORATORIES OPERATION AND WAINTENANCE OF THE BEPATCHA LABORATCRY. 5.043 LACTIC-ORGAN ISMS BIOLOGICALLY ACTIVE AMINES IN FOCD. 8.009 LAGCONS OPERATING FARAMETERS OF LAGCONS FOR DISPOSAL OF UTILIZATION OF DAIRY FARM AND PROCESSING PLANT WASTE. 8.014 LAKES ADAPTATION FACTORS AND CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.093, 4.204* ANALYSIS AND NODELING LAKE NICHIGAN FISH POPULATION. 1.015, 4.032* APPLIED LINNCLOGY AND FISHERIES STUDIES IN TROPICAL LAKES. 4.021 BASELINE STUDIES FOR EVALUATING THE RESPONSE OF AN ECOSYSTEM TO THE INTRODUCTION OF WHITE ANUR. 1.018, 2.028*, 4.046* HIOLOGICAL AND RECREATIONAL ASPECTS OF WATER LEVEL MANAGEMENT OF CLEAR LAKE, ICWA. 4.051 BIOLCGICAL CONTECL OF AQUATIC WEEDS WITH COMPETITIVE SPECIES OF SPIKERUSE (ELECCHARIS SPP.). 3.011 BIOLOGY AND SPORT FISBING HARVEST OF YELLOW PERCH. 4.082 CONTROL AND ERADICATION OF AQUATIC WEEDS IN LAKES AND IMPCUNDED VATERS. 3.107 DEVELOPMENT OF FISH PROTECTIVE SYSTEMS FOR WATER INTAKES. 4.022 EARLY LIFE BISTORY ECOLOGY AND GROWTH OF THE RIVER SERINP MACROBRACEIUM OBICNE IN LCUISIANA. 1.046 ECOLOGICAL PACTORS AFPECTING POTENTIALLY TEREATENED OR ENDANGERED FISE SPECIES IN NY. 4.147 ECOLOGICAL STUDY OF LAKE WALES, FLORIDA AFTER INTRODUCTION OF WHITE ANUS (CTENOPHABYNGCDON IDELLA). 4.047 ECOLOGY AND MANAGEMENT OF WALLEYE. 1.073, 6.065* ECOLOGY CF ANAERCHIC HETEROTRCPHIC BACTERIA. 4.118 ECCLCGY CF FISHES AND LIMNOLOGY CF UPPER GREAT LAKES AND TRIBUTARIES IN RELATION TO ENVIRCNMENTAL IMPACTS. 1.060, 4.115* ECOLOGY, PCPULATION DYNAMICS AND MANAGEMENT OF MULTI-SPECIES FISH RESCURCES OF LARGE LAKES. 1.063, 4.121* EFFECTS OF ACID PRECIPITATION ON ADIRONDACE LAKES. 4.153 EFFECTS OF ATMOSPBERIC INPUTS OF ACIDS AND BEAVY METALS CN LAKE PLANETCN. 4.101 EFFECTS OF DISSOLVED CHEMICALS CN AQUATIC LIFE. 4.078 EFFECTS OF SEDIMENTS ON BIOLOGICAL SYSTEMS. 4.126 EXAMINATION OF THE SPAWNING BCOLOGY AND BARLY LIFE **BISTORY OF KOKANEE SALMON IN COEUR D' ALENE** LAKE. 4.054 PISE MCREIDITY AND MORTALITY RELATED TC ENVIRONMENTAL CHANGES AND/OR INTENSIVE CULTURE METHODS. 4.193 FISE POPULATION AND PRODUCTION IN POND AND LAKE IMPOUND MENTS. 4.208, 6.095* LIMNOLOGICAL EVALUATION AND ZCCPLANETCN DYNAMICS OF LAKE KOCCANUSA, NORTHWESTERN MONTANA. 4.077 MECBANISTIC FACTORS DETERMINE AQUATIC PERTILITY. 4.114 NITROGEN FIXATION BY MICROHES INHABITING SURFACES CF AQUATIC MACROPHYTES. 4.142 NUTRIENT INTERACTIONS AND CHANGES IN ALGAL QUALITY IN CAYUGA LAKE. 4.140 POPULATION DYNAMICS CF LARGENCUTH AND SMALLMOUTH BASS IN 16 NEW YORK LAKES. 1.075 POTENTIAL BARVEST OF LAKE BRIE WHITE CRAPPIE FROM AN ADJOINING HORROW PIT. 1.086, 6.072* PRE-IMPOUNDMENT ENVIRONMENTAL STUDIES OF AQUILLA LAKE. 4.209 LAU STUDY OF PATHOLOGY OF FISHES FROM LAKE BYCO, NORTH CAROLINA. 3.079 THE BCOLCGICAL IMPACT OF INTEGRATED CHEMICAL AND BIOLOGICAL AQUATIC WEED CONTROL. 3.025, 4.045*, 4.048. 6.021* THE PHYSIOLOGY AND CONTROL OF VEGETATIVE Reproduction in Bydrilla (Bydrilla Vesticillata ECYLE). 3.024

LABOR

USE OF SPIKERUSE (ELEOCHARIS SPF.) FCR BICLCGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.016 VARIABILITY IN PHYSICAL REGIME OF LAKE TITICACA: RELATION TO BIOLOGICAL PRCCESSES. 4.014 WATER CUALITY ENBANCEMENT OF LAKES BY MECHANICAL PUNPING. 4.088, 6.039* LANPREYS ECOLOGY, POPULATION DYNAMICS AND NANAGEMENT CF MULTI-SPECIES FISH RESOURCES OF LARGE LAKES. 1.063. 4.121* NEUROTRANSMITTERS, NEUROMODULATORS, AND LCCCHOTICN. 1.076 LAND-NANAGENENT THE EFFECTS OF IEEIGATION WASTE WATER ON AQUATIC PLANTS IN THE SACRAMENTC RIVER. 4.025 LAND-USE ECONOMIC ANALYSIS OF ALTERNATIVE VIRGINIA COASTAL WETLANDS FCLICY. 10.047 EFFECIS OF LAND USE PRACTICES ON STREAM BIOTA. 4.085 INPACT OF LAND USE PRACTICES ON POPULATIONS OF WILDLIFE AND FISHERY RESCURCES. 4.162 PRE-INFCUNDMENT ENVIRONMENTAL STUDIES OF AQUILLA LAKE. 4.205 LAND-USE-PLANNING ECONCRIC ANALYSIS OF ALTERNATIVE VIRGINIA COASTAL WETLANDS POLICY. 10.047 LARREA **BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF WEEDS. 2.104** LARVAE A MULTI-INSTITUTIONAL APPRCACE TO THE IDENTIFICATION OF HIVALVE LAEVAE. 1.067 AGE AND GROWTH OF FISE; A FIELD AND LAECLATORY APPROACE. 1.068 APPLICATION OF OTOLITH MICECSTRUCTURAL DATA TO STUDIES OF THE EARLY LIFE BISTCRY CF FISHES. 1.070 BIONCHICS AND CONTROL OF CHIRCNCHID HIDGES (BLIND MCSCUITOES). 3.026 CULTURE OF PACIFIC SALMON. 1.087, 6.076* ECOLOGY OF LARVAL STREAM FISHES. 1.038, 4.084* ECONOM. IMPORTANT DISEASES OF PIVALVE SHELLFISH, INCLUDING THEIR PREVENTION, CONTROL AND ERADICATION. 4.139 EVALUATION OF THE BOOLOGICAL RECUIREMENTS OF RESERVOIR FISE SPECIES. 1.101 FEEDING ECOLOGY OF FISHES UTILIZING MARSHES ALTERED FOR CONTROL OF SALT WARSE MOSCUITCES. 1.065, 3.065*, 4.134* FUNCTIONAL MORPHOLOGY OF INVERTEBRATE ORGAN SYSTENS. 1,071 IMPACTS OF THE CONSTRUCTION AND OPERATION OF COASTAL NUCLEAR POWER PLANTS ON ESTUARINE ECCLCGY. 4.160 INVEST. OF THE RCLE OF LARVAL AMERICAN OVSTERS (CRASSOSTREA VIRGINICA) AS CARRIERS CF OYSTER DISEASE. 3.071 LABORATORY CULTURE FOR RESEARCH PURFCSES OF ESTUARINE AND MARINE LOBSTERS, CRABS AND SERIMPS. 1.048, 5.024* POSSIBLE CAUSES OF BLUEGILL LEPCMIS MARCCCHIRUS DEFORMITIES. 1.080, 4.161* PRESENCE, ABUNDANCE, MOVEMENTS, AND HAPITAT USAGE OF ESTUARINE-DEPENDENT FISEES AND CRUSTACEANS.. 1.045, 4.095* PRODUCTION OF IDENTIFICATION CIRCULARS ON THE LARVAE CF CCLCFADC FISHES. 1.014 PRODUCTION OF MACROBRACHIUM ROSENBERGII (GIANT MALAYSIAN PRAWN IN NEVADA). 6.060 SURF CLAM MANAGEMENT STUDIES. 4.136, 6.063* SURVEY OF LARVAL FISHES IN THE NEARSHORE GULF WATERS OF LOUISIANA. 1.047 SWIMBLADDER INFLATION IN LARVAE OF PHYSOCILISTOUS FISHES. 1.007 THE FINE STRUCTURE OF FISH CTOLITHS: ENDCGENCUS AND ENVIEONMENTAL FACTORS. 1.069 THE RELATIONSHIP OF SALINITY AND DISTANCE FROM THE SEA, TO THE DISTRIBUTION OF JUVENILE FISHES. 1.044, 4.094* ECONOMIC IMPACTS OF THE 200-NILE LIMIT ON RURAL NORTHEASTERN COASTAL COMMUNITIES. 10.024 REGULATION OF WISCONSIN'S LAKE MICHIGAN CONMERCIAL FISHERIES. 10.050 TOWARDS A THEORY OF THE REGULATED FISHERY. 10.005 LD-50 TOXICITY OF AERONONAS HYDROPHILIA EXCTOXING IN CHANNEL CATFISH. 3.052

LEACHING CRUSTACEAN NUTRITION AND FEED DEVELOPMENT. 5.006 NUTRITIONAL ASPECTS OF AQUACULTURE SYSTEMS. 5.007, 6.014* LEAD BIOACCUMULATION AND IMPACT OF HIGHWAY-GENERATED HEAVY METALS ON STREAM FISHERY RESCUECES IN VIRGINIA. 4.214 DISEASES OF AQUATIC ANIMALS. 3.072 LEAST-COST CHANNEL CATFISH NUTRITION. 5.033 FRESHWATER FOOD ANIMALS. 2.014, 5.034*, 6.056* PRACTICAL FEED FORMULATIONS AND FEEDING FRACTICES FOE CATFISH FARMING IN MS. 5.035, 6.058*, 8.031* LECITEINS USE OF NUTRIENT CONTAINING LIPID VESICLES AS A FCCD SOURCE FCR SHELLFISH OF PACIFIC NORTHWEST. 5.042 LEGISLATION AN ECONOMIC ANALYSIS OF DECISION MAKING AND POLICY FORMULATION. 10.043 ECONOMIC ANALYSES OF FISHERIES MANAGEMENT ISSUES AFISING FROM EXTENDED JURISDICTION OF NEW ENGLAND. 10.042 EFPECTS OF THE TAX REFORM ACT OF 1976 CN NEW ENGLAND VESSEL OWNERS AND CREW. 10.041 LEICSTONUS THE RELATIONSHIP OF SALINITY AND DISTANCE FROM THE SEA, TO THE DISTRIBUTION OF JUVENILE FISHES. 1.044, 4.094* L.RNNA GROWTH AND MINERAL UPTAKE IN THE LEMNACEAE. 4.026 OPERATING FARAMETERS OF LAGCONS FOR DISPOSAL OF UTILIZATION OF DAIRY FARM AND PROCESSING PLANT WASTE. 8.014 LENGTE WEIGHT GAIN CF FISH. 5.018 LEVANI SOLH INMUNOLOGIC FACTORS IN CANDIDIASIS IN DCLPHINS. 3.031 LIFE-CYCLE ACTIVITY REVIENS OF THE NOFTHERN ECCE CEAH IN RELATION TO ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL FACTORS. 1.057, 4.109* ADAPTATICN FACTORS AND CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.093, 4.204* HEHAVIOR ECCLOGY AND REYTHNICITY IN THE RCCE CRAES, CANCER IRRORATUS AND CANCER HCREALIS, PHASE II. 1.058, 5.028* HEHAVIOR, ECOLOGY AND REYTHMICITY IN THE COMMON ROCK CRAH. 1.055, 4.110* HIOLOGICAL CONTECL OF WEEDS. 3.104 HIOLOGY AND CONTROL OF AQUATIC VEGETATION. 3.048 BICLCGY, ECCLCGY, TAXONONY AND DISTRIBUTION OF AQUATIC INSECTS IN WISCONSIN. 4.221 CONTROL OF WHIRLING DISEASE OF SALMONIDS. 3.063 LIFE HISTORY AND PHYSIOLOGICAL STUDIES OF AQUATIC AND MARGINAL WEEDS. 3.061 PHYSIOLOGY AND MANAGEMENT CF AQUATIC WEEDS INTERFEFING WITH THE USE OF WATER RESCURCES. 3.035 SCURCES AND MANAGEMENT OF WORTALITY IN EARLY LIFE STAGES CF FISHES. 4.146 VISUAL PIGNENT CHANGES DURING THE LIFE CYCLE OF THE AMERICAN EEL, ANGUILLA ROSTRATA. 1.077 LIFE-HISTORY AGE AND GROWTH OF FISH; A FIELD AND LAHORATORY APPROACE. 1.068 AN EVALUATION OF ENDANGERED MCLLUSES IN VIRGINIA. 1.100, 4.213* APPLICATION OF OTOLITH MICECSTRUCTURAL DATA TO STUDIFS OF THE EARLY LIFE HISTORY OF FISHES. 1.070 HIOLOGY AND CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.068 CCMPARATIVE ECCLCGY CF SELECTED SPECIES OF AQUATIC INSECIS, PHASE IV. 4.039, 4.042 EARLY LIFE HISTORY ECOLOGY AND GROWTH OF THE EIVER SERIMF MACROBRACHIUM OBICNE IN LOUISIANA. 1.046 ECOLOGY AND SYSTEMATICS OF AQUATIC INSECTS. 4.177 EXAMINATION OF THE SPAWNING ECOLOGY AND EARLY LIFE HISTORY OF KOKANEE SALNCN IN CCEUE D' ALENE LAKE. 4.054 INSTREAM FLOW REQUIREMENTS OF CALFORNIA FISHES. 1.013. 4.029* LAHORATORY CULTURE FOR RESEARCH PURPCSES OF ESTUARINE AND MARINE LCHSTERS, CRAHS AND SHRINFS. 1.048, 5.024*

LIFE HISTOFY AND POPULATION DYNAMICS OF TILEFISH, LOPHOLATILUS CHANAELCNTICUP. 1.064 NEMATODE PARASITES OF FRESHWATER FISH: HICLOGY AND EFFECTS. 3.014

- CRGANIZATICN AND RETRIEVAL CF FIESHWATER FISHERY DATA: 1.033, 4.080*
- PERFORMANCE OF SALMONIDS: SMOLTIFICATION, STRESS AND FIINESS. 1.089, 6.077*
- POPULATION CHARACTERISTICS CF TEXAS GULF CF MEXICO FISHES: 1.097
- PRESENCE, ABUNDANCE, MOVEMENTS, AND HABITAT USAGE OF ESTUARINE-DEPENDENT FISHES AND CRUSTACEANS.. 1.045, 4.095*
- SPAWNING, EARLY LIFE HISTORY, HABITAT SELECTION CF NORTHERN SCUAWPISH: INFEL. TC COLCRADO SQUAWFISH. 4.063
- TAXONOMY, HICLOGY, AND ECOLOGICAL RELATIONSHIPS OF AQUATIC INSECTS. 4.120
- THE FINE STRUCTURE OF FISH CTOLITHS: ENDCGENOUS AND ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS. 1.069

WATER QUALITY STUDIES: CONPARATIVE ECOLOGY AND SYSTEMATICS OF SELECTED AQUATIC INSECTS. 4.043 LIGHT

- ADAPTATION FACTORS AND CONTROL CF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.053, 4.204*
 - EFFECTS OF WATER QUALITY PARAMETERS ON FARM POND VEGETATION AND THEIR INTERACTIONS. 4.176
 - INSECTS ATTRACTED BY LIGHT AS A SCUFCE OF FOCD FOR CATPISH. 5.005
 - LIFE HISTCRY AND PHYSIOLOGICAL STUDIES CF AQUATIC AND WARGINAL WHEDS. 3.061
 - MODE OF ACTION AND INFLUENCE OF ENVISONMENTAL FACTORS ON THE TOXICITY OF SEVERAL AQUATIC HERHICIDES. 3.100, 4.218*
 - NUTRITIONAL ASPECTS OF AQUACULTURE SYSTEMS. 5.007, 6.014*
 - PHYSICLCGY AND MANAGEMENT CF AQUATIC WEEDS INTERFERING WITH THE USE OF WATER RESCURCES. 3.035
- PHYSIOLOGY OF CHESAPEAKE FAY PHYTOPLANETCN. 1.054, 4.107*
- LIGHT-INTENSITY NITROGEN FIXATION AND ITS EFFECT ON EUTROPHICATION: IN-PCINT AND NON-PCINT SCURCE PONDS. 4.157
- LIGHT-MICROSCOPY DISEASE MANAGEMENT IN CULTURED CATFISH. 3.096 WORPHOLOGICAL, ULTRASTRUCTURAL, AND BICCEEMICAL CHAFACTERIZATION OF NANOPLANETON FROM CHESAPEARE EAY. 1.056, 4.108*

LIGHT-SOURCE

- INSECTS ATTRACTED BY LIGHT AS A SOURCE OF FOOD FOR CATFISH. 5.005
- LIGHT-TRAPS INSECTS ATTRACTED BY LIGHT AS A SOURCE OF FOOD FOB CATFISE. 5.005
- LINING
 - EFFECTS CF ACID PRECIPITATION ON ADIFONDACE LAKES. 4.153

PCND FERTILIZATICN AND LINING. 4.002, 5.003*

- APPLIED LIWNCLCGY AND FISHERIES STUDIES IN THOPICAL LAKES 4.021
- ECOLOGICAL STUDY CF LAKE WALES, FLOFIDA AFTES INTECDUCTION CF WHITE AMUE (CTENOPHARYNGODON IDELLA). 4.047

ECOLCGY OF FISHES AND LIMNCLCGY CF UPPES GREAT LAKES AND TRIBUTARIES IN RELATION TC ENVIRCNMENTAL IMPACTS. 1.060, 4.115*

- EFFECT OF SEDIMENT CONTEOL DAMS ON THE WATER QUALITY OF A PRAIRIE LAKE. 4.200
- EFFECTS OF AN ALTERED TEMPERATURE REGIME AND CHEMICAL CONTAMINANTS ON THE AQUATIC ECCSYSTEM. 3.062, 4.127*
- LINNCLCGICAL HASIS FOR THE PRODUCTIVITY OF INLAND WATERS. 4.206
- LIMNOLOGICAL EVALUATION AND ZOOPLANKTCN DYNAMICS CF LAKE KCOCANUSA, NORTHWESTERN MONTANA. 4.077
- LIMNOLOGICAL PARAMETERS. 4.066 LIMNOLOGY CF FARM PONDS. 1.082, 6.071*
- LINNCLUGY OF FARM PONDS. 1.082, 6.071* LOWER SNAKE RIVER LINNOLCGY. 4.076
- PRE-INPCONDENT ENVISONMENTAL STUDIES OF AQUILLA LAKE. 4.209

VARIABILITY IN PHYSICAL REGIME OF LAKE TITICACA: Relation to biological processes. 4.014

LINEAR-PROGRAMMING CHARACTERISTICS, PREFERENCES, AND ATTITUDES CONCERNING PRIVATE FEE-FISHING OPERATIONS. 10.048

ECONOMIC BEHAVICE OF FOCD AND FIBER FIRMS. 10.007

ECONOMIC IMPACTS OF THE 200-MILE LIMIT ON RURAL NUTRITICN MANAGEMENT AND DISEASE OF MARINE ANIMALS. NORTHEASTERN COASTAL COMMUNITIES. 10.039 LINKAGE-GENETICS 6.014* BIOCHENICAI GENETICS AND CYTOGENETICS OF THOUT. 2.021 LIFID-COMPOSITION MCRPHOLOGICAL, ULTRASTRUCTURAL, AND FIOCHEMICAL LOCOMOTION CHARACTERIZATION CF NANOPLANETCN FROM CHESAPEAKE 1.076 BAY. 1.056, 4.108* LIPID-METABOLISM LOGGING LIPID METABOLISM IN AQUATIC ORGANISMS. 5.053, 9.038* 4.060 LIPIDS DIETARY FACTORS IN WEITE FISE MEAL RESPONSIBLE FOR CATARACT FORMATION IN THOUT. 3.018, 5.009*, 9.005* ENZYMATIC CONTROL OF QUALITY FACTORS IN MARINE FOODS. 8.026 EVALUATION OF THE STABILITY AND EDIBLE QUALITY OF FRESH WATER SERIMP. 8.019 LIPID METAPCLISM IN AQUATIC ORGANISMS. 5.053, LOGGING-SYSTEMS 9.038* MAEINE FCCD SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY. 8.003, 9.004* MODE OF ACTION AND INFLUENCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS ON THE TOBICITY OF SEVERAL AQUATIC LONG-TERM EERBICIDES. 3.100, 4.218* RCLE OF LIFIDS AND THEIR OXIDATION IN FISE QUALITY. 9.024 THE EFFECT OF FRCZEN STORAGE ON TEXTURAL QUALITY OF LOESTER MEAT. 8.023 THE OXIDATIVE DETERICRATICN OF LIPIDS IN MECHANICALLY DEBONED POULTEY AND FISE. 9.009 USE OF NUTRIENT CONTAINING LIPID VESICLES AS A FOOD LOUVERS SOURCE FOR SHELLFISE OF PACIFIC NORTEWEST. 5.042 UTILIZATION OF PROTEIN INGREDIENTS IN FISE FATIONS. INTAKES. 4.022 LOW-INCOME-FARMERS 5.044 LIPOLYSIS ENZYMES IN FOOD FERMENTATIONS. 9.025 LIPOSOMES USE OF NUTLIENT CONTAINING LIPID VESICLES AS A FOOD SOURCE FOR SHELLFISH CF PACIFIC NCETHNEST. 5.042 FOOD. 6.011 LIQUID-FERTILIZERS LOW-TEMPERATURE POND FERTILIZATION AND LIMING. 4.002. 5.003* LIGUID-NITROGEN CELL CULTURE STUDIES ON CELL LINES DEVELOPED FROM TISSUES OF AQUATIC ANIMAL. 3.051 LITERATURE AN EVALUATION OF ENDANGERED NOLLUSKS IN VIRGINIA. 1.100, 4.213* BIOLOGICAL DATA FOR MANAGEMENT OF WALLEYES AND LTEPBOCTTES OTHER FISEES. 6.037 LITTER NATURAL MARSEES AS NUTRIENT SINKS FOR AGRICULTURAL 3.031 **EUNCFF**. 4.089 LINPROCITOSIS LITTORAL. BIOLOGICAL AND RECREATIONAL ASPECTS OF WATER LEVEL MANAGEMENT OF CLEAF LAKE, ICWA. 4.081 3.062, 4.127* LIVER LISOZINES TEMPERATURE EFFECTS ON XENOBIOTIC ELIMINATION BY FISEES. 4.179 LIVESTOCK LYTHRUN-SALICARIA AEATEMENT OF EUTROPHICATION RESULTING FROM INTENSIVE ANIMAL PRODUCTION. 4.195, 6.080* 3.073 EFFECTS OF LIVESTOCK GRAZING PRACTICES ON THE WATER QUALITY OF STREAMS. 4.223 ENVIFONMENTAL ASPECTS OF SALMONELLOSIS. 3.049 MACROBRACEIUM LORSTERS BIOLCGICAL STUDIES OF THE SPINY LOBSTER IN SOUTH FLORIDA. 1.019 COMPARATIVE STUDIES OF LOESTER AND CHICKEN MUSCLE. 9.027 CRUSTACEAN NUTRITION AND FEED DEVELOPMENT. 5.006 DISEASES OF AQUATIC ANIMALS. 3.013 ECONOMIC IMPACTS OF THE 200-MILE LIMIT CN RUFAL NORTHEASTERN COASTAL COMMUNITIES. 10.024 ECONOMICS OF AQUACULTURE. 10.004 FUNCTIONAL MORPBELLOGY OF INVERTEBRATE ORGAN MACROERACEIUM-OTEIONE SYSTEMS. 1.071 GENETIC ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT OF CRUSTACEAN AQUACULTURE STOCKS. 2.003 BUMAN NUTRITION IMPROVEMENT. 8.022 LABORATORY CULTURE FOR RESEARCH PURPOSES OF ESTUARINE AND MARINE LOESTERS, CRAHS AND SEFIMFS. 1.048, 5.024* MANUFACTURE OF PROCESSED MEAT AND/OR FISE PRODUCTS WITE UNDERUTILIZED MARINE SPECIES. 8.027 NEURCTRANSMITTERS, NEUROMODULATORS, AND LOCCMOTION. 1.076 ROSENBERGII. 1.094, 6.085*

3.055, 5.026*, 6.050* NUTRITIONAL ASPECTS OF AQUACULTURE SYSTEMS. 5.007, THE EFFECT OF FROZEN STORAGE ON TEXTURAL QUALITY OF LOESTER MEAT. 8.023 NEUROTRANSMITTERS, NEURONODULATORS, AND LCCCMCTICN. A STUDY OF FISH RESOURCES OF THE GOSPEL BUMP AREA. ECOLOGY AND SYSTEMATICS OF AQUATIC INSECTS. 4.177 EFFECTS OF LOGGING ON ARIZCNA TRCUT AND THEIR BABITAT IN THE WHITE MOUNTAINS OF ARIZONA. 4.005 EFFECTS OF WATERSHED PRACTICES CN STREAM HAEITAT AND FISE FOPULATIONS. 4.181 STREAMSIDE BUFFER STRIPS FOR PROTECTING ACUATIC ORGANISMS FECH LOGGING EFFECTS. 4.018 THE EFFECTS OF LCGGING: GRAZING CN STREAMS IN THE WHITE MOUNTAINS. 4.006 STREAMSIDE BUFFER STRIPS FOR PRCTECTING AQUATIC ORGANISMS FECH LOGGING EFFECTS. 4.018 POST-BARVEST HANDLING AND PROCESSING OF MACROBRACEIUM PRAWNS. 7.003, 8.012*, 9.011* RELATIONSELPS BETWEEN PESTICIDES AND GEORGIA FARM FOND ECOSYSTEMS. 4.050 LOPHALATILIS-CHAMAELEONTICEPS LIFE HISTORY AND POPULATION DYNAMICS OF TILEFISE, LOPECLATILUS CHANAELCNTICUP. 1.064 DEVELOPMENT OF FISE PROTECTIVE SYSTEMS FOR WATER A POLYCULTURE SYSTEM OF FISE PRODUCTION FOR DISADVANTAGED FARMERS IN ARKANSAS. 6.009 DEVELOP AND IMPROVE PRODUCTION AND MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS FOR FRESHWATER ANIMALS COLTURED FOR EXTENDING THE SHELF-LIFE OF FISH. 8.036, 9.028# METHODS OF MODIFIED-ATMOSPHERE PRESERVATION OF REFRIGERATED FRESE FISE. 7.016, 8.048* FRAWN AQUACULTURAL ENGINEERING. 6.027, 7.002* LINPHOCITE-TRANSFORMATION DETECTION TEANSMISSION AND PATEOGENESIS OF DISEASE ORGANISMS IN AQUACULTURE SPECIES. 3.087 FUR ANIMAL STUDIES (MINK). 8.028 INMUNCLOGIC FACTORS IN CANDIDIASIS IN DOLPHINS. EFFECTS OF AN ALTERED TEMPERATURE REGIME AND CEENICAL CONTAMINANTS ON THE AQUATIC ECOSYSTEM. IMPROVING THE ASSURANCE OF CUALITY AND SAFETY OF CONSUMER'S FOCD. 9.031 ECOLOGY OF PURPLE LOOSESTRIFE (LYTERUM SALICARIA).

FORMULATION OF FOODS FOR AQUATIC ANIMALS OF ECONOMIC IMPORTANCE: 5.022, 8.016* FRESHWATER SERINP OF THE GENUS MACRCHRACHIUM WITH SPECIAL EMPEASIS ON CULTURE. 4.205, 6.094* GENETIC ASSESSMENT OF MACRCERACHIUM CN GUAM. 1.023 NITROGEN METABOLISM OF FRESEWATER PRAWNS IN RELATION TO DIET. 5.015 FOST-HARVEST BANDLING AND PROCESSING OF MACEOBRACHIUM PRAWNS. 7.003, 8.012*, 9.011* EARLY LIFE HISTORY ECOLOGY AND GROWTE OF THE RIVER SERIMF MACRCERACEIUM CHICNE IN LOUISIANA. 1.046 MACROERACHIUM-BOSENEEBGII FRESEWATER FOOD ANIMALS. 4.198, 5.048* GENETIC ASSESSMENT OF MACECHEACHIUM CN GUAM. 1.023 LOW-TEMPERATURE STORAGE OF FRESEWATER PRAWN, MACROBRACHIUM ROSENBERGII. 8.010 FRODUCTION OF MACROBRACHIUM ROSENBERGII (GIANT MALAYSIAN PRAWN IN NEVADA). 6.060 STUDIES OF THE ECONOMICALLY IMPORTANT SPECIES: NERCENARIA NERCENARIA AND MACROBRACHIUM

MACBONUTRIENTS EFFECTS CF AQUATIC PLANT COMMUNITIES ON WATER QUALITY IN HYPEREUTROPHIC AQUATIC ENVIRONMENT. 4.117 MAGNESIUM BIOFILTER FERFORMANCE FACTOES. 4.069 CCMPARATIVE PHYSIOLOGICAL STUDIES OF VERTEERATE EYES. I.062 MAINTENANCE OPERATION AND NAINTENANCE OF THE HEPATOMA LABORATCRY. 5.043 MALATEION INSECTICIDES AND THEIR FORMULATIONS. 4.131 MALES AN INVESTIGATION OF THE ADAPTIVE SIGNIFICANCE OF MELANISM IN THE MALE MOSOUITOFISH, GAMEUSIA AFFINIS. I.078 MANAGEMENT APPLIED PHYSIOLOGY OF ECCNONICALY INFORTANT FISHES. 4.202 ASSESSMENT OF COASTAL RECREATION RESCURCES. 10.046 BIOLCGICAL DATA FOR MANAGEMENT OF WALLEYES AND OTHER FISHES. 6.037 BIOLOGY AND CONTROL OF AQUATIC VEGETATION. 3.048 CEARACTERISTICS, PREFERENCES, AND ATTITUDES CONCEFNING PRIVATE FEE-FISHING OPERATIONS. 10.048 CULTURE AND MANAGEMENT OF SELECTED GAME FISBES. 3.092, 4.203*, 6.091* DEVELOPMENT OF A FISE MARKETING PROGRAM. 10.032 DEVELOPMENT OF MAXIMUM SUSTAINED VIELD IN KANSAS FARM PCNDS. 6.041 DEVELOPMENT OF OPTIMUM SUSTAINED YIELD OF FISHES IN FARM FCNDS. 5.021, 7.004* ECOLOGY AND MANAGEMENT OF STREAM AND STREAM FISBES. I.061 ECOLOGY, PCPULATION DYNAMICS AND MANAGEMENT OF MULTI-SFECIES FISH RESOUNCES OF LARGE LAKES. 1.063, 4.121* ECCNOMIC ANALYSES OF FISHERIES MANAGEMENT ISSUES ARISING PROM EXTENDED JURISDICTICN OF NEW ENGLAND. 10.042 ECONOMIC ANALYSIS OF ALTERNATIVE VIRGINIA COASTAL WETLANDS FCLICY. 10.047 ECONCHIC BEBAVIOR CF FCOD AND FIBER FIRMS. 10.007 ECONOMICS OF SALMONID AQUACULTURE IN NEW ENGLAND. 6.082, IO.038[±] ECONOMICS OF THE COMMERCIAL FISH INDUSTRY. 10.044, 10.045EVALUATION OF A CLOSED SYSTEM FOR THE CULTURE OF FISH, SBELLFISH AND AQUATIC PLANTS. 5.001, 6.002÷ EVALUATION OF METHODS FOR INCREASING NATIVE CUTTBROAT STOCKS IN NORTHERN IDABC. 4.074. 6.034* FACTORS AFFECTING FISE POPULATIONS IN IOWA WATERS. 1.040, 4.087*, 6.038* FARM FISE FCND MANAGEMENT. 4.112, 5.030*, 6.055* FISE FOPULATION AND PRODUCTION IN FOND AND LAKE IMPOUNDMENTS. 4.208, 6.095# FRESEWATER FOOD ANIMALS. 2.001, 2.012, 2.014, 2.027, 3.039, 5.004, 5.014*, 5.034*, 5.054*, 6.024*, 6.045*, 6.056*, 6.096* HUMAN ECOLOGY OF NEW JERSEY FISHERIES. 10.026 LINNOLOGICAL EASIS FOR THE PRODUCTIVITY OF INLAND WATERS. 4.206 MANAGEMENT ECONOMICS OF NEW YCRK'S MARINE INDUSTRIES. 10.030 MANAGEMENT OF AQUATIC PLANTS FOR SPORT FISH PRODUCTION IN PONDS. 5.002 OPERATING FARAMETERS OF LAGOONS FOR DISPOSAL OR UTILIZATION OF DAIRY FARM AND PROCESSING PLANT WASTE. 8.014 OYSTER DRILL CONTROL BY HYDRAULIC DREDGING IN DELAWARE EAY. 6.064 PHYSIOLOGY AND ECOLOGY OF THE ASIATIC CLAN, COBEICULA SP., IN THE SACRAMENTO-SAN JCAQUIN DELTA. 1.004, 4.011* POPULATION DYNAMICS OF LARGENCUTE AND SMALLMOUTE BASS IN 16 NEW YORK LAKES. 1.075 PROTECTION, BEHABILITATION, AND ENHANCEMENT OF ANADRCMCUS FISE EABITAT IN TEE PACIFIC NORTEWEST. 4.004 RESPONSE OF FISHES AND AQUATIC SYSTEMS TO ELECTRIC SEOCK AND CAPTURE TECHNCLOGY. 6.101 SFORTFISE MANAGEMENT. 6.005 SURF CLAN NANAGEMENT STUDIES. 4.136, 6.063*

SYSTEMS ANALYSIS OF INTENSIVE AQUACULTURE: A CASE STUDY OF OYSTER PRODUCTION. 6.026, 10.011* THE FINE STRUCTURE OF PISH CTOLITES: ENDCGENCUS AND ENVIRCEMENTAL FACTORS. I.069 THE INPACT OF THE 200 MILE ECONOMIC ZONE ON RURAL NEW ENGLAND COASTAL COMMUNITIES. 10.017 THE PEYSIOLCGICAL EASIS FOR MANAGING TIDAL MARSH VEGETATION. 4.197 THE RESOLUTION OF SOME PROELEMS ATTENDING THE ENPLOYMENT OF MINNOWS AS FORAGE FOR FARMPOND FISBES. 6.019 MANAGEMENT-ALTERNATIVES. NATBEMATICAL MODEL OF OYSTER POPULATICN IN THE CHESAPEAKE BAY. 1.053, 6.051* MANAGEMENT-SYSTEMS APPLICATION OF NANAGEMENT STRATEGIES TO THE MID-ATLANTIC EXTENDED JURISDICTION RECREATIONAL FISBERIES. 10.034 APPLIED LINNOLOGY AND FISHERIES STUDIES IN TEOPICAL LAKES. 4.021 DEVELOP AND IMPROVE PRODUCTION AND MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS FOR FRESHWATER ANIMALS CULTURED FCR FOCD. 6.0I1 FRESEWATER FOOD ANIMALS. 2.023, 5.045*, 6.079* FRESHWATER SBRINP OF THE GENUS MACRCERACBIUM WITH SPECIAL EMPHASIS ON CULTURE. 4.205, 6.094* INPACT OF LAND USE PRACTICES ON POPULATIONS OF WILDLIFE AND FISHERY RESCURCES. 4.162 LINNCLCGY CF FASH PONDS. 1.082, 6.071* MATHEMATICAL NODEL OF OYSTEF POPULATION IN THE CHESAPEAKE EAY. 1.053, 6.051* PHYSICLCGY AND NANAGEMENT OF AQUATIC WEEDS INTERFERING WITE THE USE OF WATER RESCURCES. 3.035 PRAWN AQUACULTURE PROGRAM - EIOLOGICAL BASIS OF PRODUCTION. 2.008, 6.030+ WATER QUALITY STCCKING RATES AND BARVESTING SYSTEMS POR CATFISE. 6.059 MANUALS ECOLOGY AND TAXCNENY OF TWE MAJOR OFDERS OF AQUATIC INSECTS, EPEENEROPTERA AND TRICBOPTERA, IN VA. 4.212. 4.212 MANURRS EFFECTS OF LIVESTOCK GRAZING PRACTICES ON THE WATER QUALITY OF STREAMS. 4.223 FRESEWATER FOCD ANIMALS. 6.099 MANURE-ENRICHED FOOD WEBS IN NARINE POND ECOSYSTEMS. 5.017 STUDY OF MANUE-ENRICHED FOOD WEES IN MARINE POND ECOSYSTEMS. 5.016 MAPPING STOCK DYNAMICS AND ASSESSMENT IN MARINE FISBERIES. I.091, 6.078* MARGINAL-LAND SHALLOW-WATER PCLYCULTURE OF FISEES IN PONDS DESIGNED FCE ECTATION TO GRAIN CECPS. 6.013 MARICULTURE MANAGEMENT AND CULTURE OF MOLLUSCAN SPECIES. 6.086 SERIMF MATURATICN, MEPRCDUCTICN, DEVELOFMENT, NUTRITION, INTENSIVE-EXTENSIVE CULTURE AND MARICULTU≸E. 5.052, 6.092≭ MARINE-BACTERIA COMPARATIVE STUDY OF THE PLEXIEACTER-CYTOPHAGA GROUP BACTERIA. 4.104 STUDIES OF RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN MAKINE AND TERRESTRIAL BACTERIA. 1.008 MARINE-BNVIRONMENT ASSESSMENT OF COASTAL RECREATION RESCUECES. 10.046 EACTERIAL SURVIVAL AND RECOVERY MECEANISMS: SIGNIFICANCE IN MARINE ENVIRONMENT. 4.188 ECOLOGY OF SALT MARSHES IN RELATION TO ESTUARIES AND ENERGY FLCW. 1.016, 4.041*, 5.011* EFFECT OF DIET QUALITY ON AQUATIC ANIMALS. 5.047 ENVIRONMENTAL AND ECOLOGICAL INFLUENCES CN GENETIC VARIAEILITY. 1.009, 2.004*, 4.013* MANURE-ENRICEED FOOD WEES IN MARINE POND ECOSYSTEMS. 5.017 PEYSIOLOGY CF CBESAPEAKE BAY PEYTOPLANKTON. 1.054, 4.107* SALINITY, REDOX POTENTIAL, & MICEOBIAL TRANSFORMATIONS OF MERCUBY POLLUTANTS IN ESTUARINE SEDIMENTS. 4.132 STUDIES IN PEYCOLOGY. 4.143 STUDY OF MANUEE-ENRICEED FOOD WEES IN MARINE POND ECOSYSTEMS. 5.016 THE INFACT OF TEE 200 MILE ECONOMIC ZONE ON RUFAL NEW ENGLAND CCASTAL COMMUNITIES. 10.017

MARINE-FISE ACCOUNTING FOR VARIABILITY IN PRODUCTIVITY OF CCEAN FISE IN YIELD ESTIMATION. 4.185 APPLICATION OF OTOLITE MICROSTRUCTURAL DATA TO STUDIES OF THE EARLY LIFE HISTORY OF FISHES. 1.070 CIGUATERA FISE PRISONING IN THE U.S. V.I.: BIOCHENICAL, PHYSCLOGICAL, AND MICRCHIOLCGICAL STUDIES. 1.092, 9.040* ECONOMIC IMPACTS OF THE 200-MILE LIMIT ON RUBAL NORTHEASTERN COASTAL COMMUNITIES. 10.027 ECONCHICS OF THE COMMERCIAL FISH INDUSTRY. 10.044 FACTORS AFFECTING THE TEXTURE OF SEAFCCDS. 7.009, 8.038×, 9.029× FISE GENETICS. 2.019, 4.183* FUNCTIONAL MCRPECLOGY CF INVERTEERATE CRGAN SYSTEMS. 1.071 LIFE HISTORY AND POPULATION DYNAMICS OF TILEFISE, LOPBCLATILUS CHAMAELCATICUF. 1.064 NANAGEMENT ECONOMICS OF NEW YCRK'S MAFINE INDUSTRIES. 10.030 MANUFACTURE OF PROCESSED MEAT AND/OR FISE PECDUCIS WITH UNCERUTILIZED MARINE SPECIES. 8.027 MANURE-ENRICHED FOOD WEES IN MARINE POND ECCSYSTEMS. 5.017 PISCINE ERYTHROCYTIC NECROSIS IN THE ATLANTIC CCD. 3.056 POISONOUS DINOFLAGELLATES AND SBELLFISH POISONING. 9.042 PCPULATION CHARACTERISTICS OF TEXAS GULF OF NEXICO FISBES. 1.097 RESPONSE OF FISHES AND AQUATIC SYSTEMS TO ELECTRIC SHOCK AND CAPTURE TECHNOLOGY. 6.101 STOCK DYNAMICS AND ASSESSMENT IN MARINE FISHERIES. 1.091. 6.078# ULTRASTRUCTURAL CHANGES IN TELEOST GILLS: EFFECTS OF SUETLE ALTERATIONS IN THE ENVIRCEMENT. 3.053, 4.098* UTILIZATION OF LATENT MAKINE RESOURCES AND EY-PRODUCTS WASTE. 8.041 MARINE-INVERTEBRATES CHEMICALS THAT DIFFUSE FROM PREDATORY ASTEROIDS & TRIGGER DEFENSIVE EEBAVIORS IN MARINE INVERTEERATE. 1.002 MARINE-LIFE BIOLOGICAL FEASIBILITY OF INTENSIFIED OYSTER CULTURE. 4.178, 5.040*, 6.074* CHARACTERIZATION OF GONAD-STINULATING SUESTANCES IN MARINE ANIMALS. 1.020, 2.006* DEVELOPMENT OF FISH PROTECTIVE SYSTEMS FOR WATER INTAKES. 4.022 DISEASES OF AQUACULTURE SPECIES. 3.044 ECOLOGY CF SALT MARSEES IN BELATICN TO ESTUABLES AND ENEIGY FLCW. 1.016, 4.041*, 5.011* IMMUNOLOGIC FACTORS IN CANDIDIASIS IN DOLFBINS. 3.031 POISCNCUS DINOFLAGELLATES AND SHELLFISH POISONING. 9.042 POST-HARVEST HANDLING AND PROCESSING OF MACROBRACHIUM PRANNS. 7.003, 8.012*, 5.011* SURVEY OF LARVAL FISHES IN THE NEARSBORE GULF WATERS CF LOUISIANA. 1.047 MARINE-ORGANISMS A MULTI-INSTITUTIONAL APPROACE TO THE IDENTIFICATION OF BIVALVE LARVAE. 1.067 CHENICALS THAT DIFFUSE FROM PREDATORY ASTEROIDS & TRIGGER DEFENSIVE BEBAVICRS IN MARINE INVERTEERATE. 1.002 CIGUATERA FISE POISONING IN THE U.S. V.I.: BIOCHEMICAL, PHYSOLOGICAL, AND MICROFIOLOGICAL STUDIES. 1.099, 9.040* ECOLOGY OF SALT MARSEES IN RELATION TO ESTUARIES AND ENERGY FLCW. 1.016, 4.041*, 5.011* FUNCTIONAL MORPHOLOGY OF INVERTEBRATE OFGAN SYSTEMS. 1.071 PRESENCE, ABUNDANCE, MOVEMENTS, AND RABITAT USAGE OF ESTUARINE- DEPENDENT FISHES AND CRUSTACEANS.. 1.045, 4.095* STUDIES IN PBYCOLOGY. 4.143 SURF CLAM MANAGEMENT STUDIES. 4.136, 6.063* MARINE-PLANTS DISTRIBUTICN, ABUNDANCE AND ECOLOGY OF ASCOPBYLLUM NODOSUM (1) LE JOIS. 1.052, 4.102*, 7.008* IMPROVEMENT OF OGO PRODUCTION AND MARKETING IN BAWAII. 6.031, 10.012* NANUEE-ENRICHED FOOD WERS IN MARINE POND BCOSYSTEMS. 5.017

ASSESSMENT OF COASTAL RECREATION RESCURCES, 10.046 ECONCMIC DESCRIPTION OF THE NEW JERSEY COMMERCIAL FISHING INDUSTRY. 10.025 ECONOMIC IMPACTS OF THE 200-MILE LIMIT ON RUBAL NCHTEEASTEEN COASTAL COMMUNITIES. 10.015, 10.038 ECONOMICS OF THE COMMERCIAL FISH INDUSTRY. 10.045 MANAGEMENT OF A AULTIPLE COHOFT FISHERY: THE BARD CLAM RESCURCES IN GREAT SOUTH BAY. 10.028 NATBENATICAL WODEL OF OYSTER POPULATION IN THE CHESAPEAKE EAY. 1.053, 6.051* NEW METHOD OF APPEAISING NUTRITICNAL STANDARDS. 10.020 SOUTHERN NEW ENGLAND ECONOMIC IMFACT PECJECT. 10.040 MARKET-ACCEPTANCE CAGE CULTURE OF TILAPIA IN THE VINGIN ISLANDS. 6.098. 9.039* MARKET-ANALYSIS ANALYSIS OF THE WARKET POTENTIAL FOR FRESH WATER AQUACULTURAL PRODUCTS PECDUCED IN NEVADA. 5.036, 8.032*. 10.022* ECONOMIC ANALYSIS OF ALTERNATIVE VIEGINIA COASTAL WETLANDS POLICY. 10.047 ECONOMICS OF BIVALVE MOLLUSK AQUACULTURE IN NEW ENGLAND. 6.054, 10.016* MARKET-BIRANSICN CATFISE BREEDING, PRODUCTICN, AND MARKETING. 10.003 MARKET-PERFORMANCE ECONCHICS OF THE COMMERCIAL FISH INDUSTRY. 10.044 MARKET-POTENTIALS ECONOMICS OF AQUACULTURE. 10.004 ECONOMICS OF THE COMMERCIAL FISE INCUSTEY. 10.044 MARKET FOTENTIAL AND CUEBENT MAEKETING PROCEDURES AND PEACTICES OF THE CATFISH FOR FOOL INDUSTRY. 10.021 MARKET-PRICES CATFISH BREEDING. PRODUCTION. AND MAEKETING. 10.003 MAEKET-OUALITY DEVELOPMENT OF IMPROVED BANELING. SHIPPING/STCRAGE AND MARKETING PRACTICES FOR FISHERY PRODUCTS. 7.010, 8.039*, 9.030* IMPROVEMENT OF OGO PRODUCTION AND MARKETING IN HAWAII. 6.031, 10.012= MARKET-STRUCTURE ECONOMICS OF THE COMMERCIAL FISE INDUSTRY. 10.044, 10.045 MARKET FOTENTIAL AND CUERENT MARKETING PROCEDURES AND PRACTICES OF THE CATFISH FOR FCCL INDUSTRY. 10.021 MARKETING ANALYSIS OF DOMESTIC FOOD DEMAND AND CONSUMPTION BEBAVIOR. 9.041 ANALYSIS CF THE MARKET POTENTIAL FOR FRESH WATER AQUACULTURAL PRODUCTS PECDUCED IN NEVADA. 5.036. 8.032*, 10.022* BREEDING, PECDUCTION, NUTRITICN AND MARKETING CF CHANNEL CATFISH. 2.010, 5.020*, 6.040* CULTURE SYSTEMS FOR YEAR-ROUND MARKETING OF FISH FROM WATERSBED PONDS. 6.008, 7.001* DEVELOFMENT OF A FISH MARKETING PROGRAM. 10.032 ECONOMIC BEBAVIOR OF FOOD AND FIFER FIRMS. 10.007 ECONOMIC INPACTS OF THE 200-MILE LIMIT ON RURAL NORTHEASTERN COASTAL COMMUNITIES. 10.027 ECONOMICS OF FISHERIES DEVELOPMENT AND WANAGEMENT FCR THE HAWAIIAN ARCHIPELAGO. 10.010 ECONOMICS OF PRODUCING AND MARKETING LCNG ISLAND SCUND OYSIERS. 10.006 ECONOMICS OF THE COMMERCIAL FISE INDUSTRY, 10,044. 10.045 FEASIBILITY OF CAGED FISE CULTURE IN NORTH CENTRAL OKLABOMA FARM PONDS. 4.173, 6.073*, 10.035* FRESHWATER FOOD ANIMALS. 2.014, 3.039, 5.014*, 5.034*, 6.006, 6.024*, 6.056*, 8.001*, 9.002*, 10.002* BUMAN ECOLOGY OF NEW JERSEY FISBERIES. 10.026 IMPROVEMENT OF OGO PRODUCTION AND MARKETING IN BAWAII. 6.031, 10.012* MANAGEMENT ECCNONICS OF NEW YORK'S MABINE INDUSTRIES. 10.030 MARINE FCOD SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY. 8.003, 9.004* MARKET POTENTIAL AND CURRENT MARKETING PECCEDURES AND PRACTICES OF THE CATFISE FOR FOCE INDUSTRY. 10.021 MARKETING-CHANNELS

MARINE-BESOURCES

MARKET POTENTIAL AND CUERENT MARKETING PROCEDURES AND PRACTICES OF THE CATFISE FCR FCCC INDUSTRY. 10.021

MARKET ING-COSTS ECONOMICS OF HIVALVE MOLLUSE AQUACULTURE IN NEW ENGLAND. 6.054, 10.016* MARKET ING-EFFICIENCY CATFISH BREEDING, PRODUCTION, AND MARKETING. 10.003 MARKETING-FACILITIES DEVELOPMENT OF A FISH MARKETING PROGRAM. 10.032 MARKETING-PRACTICES DEVELOPMENT OF IMPROVED HANDLING, SHIPPING/STORAGE AND MARKETING PRACTICES FOR FISHERY PRODUCTS. 7.010, 8.039*, 9.030* MARKET ING-RESEARCH DEVELOPMENT OF A FISH NARKETING FROGRAM. 10.032 MARKING EVALUATION OF VARIOUS HATCHERY REARING CONDITIONS CN SEAWARD MIGRATION OF STEELHEAD TROUT. 1.025 FRESHWATER FOOD AN IMALS. $2.025,\ 5.051*,\ 6.090*$ POPULATICN DYNAMICS OF LARGEMCUTH AND SWALLWOUTH BASS IN 16 NEW YORK LAKES, 1.075 MARSH-GRASS THE PHYSIOLOGICAL HASIS FOR MANAGING TIDAL MARSH VEGETATION. 4.197 MARSH-SOILS PRODUCTIVITY OF THE SALINE MARSHES ON FLORIDA'S NORTH AND WEST COASTS, PHASE II. 4.038 VALUE OF TIDAL MARSHES IN RELATION TO ESTUARINE ECOSYSTEM, AND EVALUATION OF FRESHWATER WETLAND S. 4.044 MARSHES ECOLOGY OF FISHES OF SACRAMENTO - SAN JOAQUIN ESTUARY, WITH EMPHASIS CN SUISUN MARSH. 4.030 ECOLCGY CF FURPLE LOOSESTRIFE (LYTHRUM SALICARIA). 3.073 FCOLOGY OF SALT MARSHES IN RELATION TO ESTUARIES AND ENELGY FLCW. 1.016, 4.041*, 5.011* EFFECTS OF THE HEUNSWICE NUCLEAR POWER-FLANTS ON THE PRODUCTIVITY OF SPARTINA ALTERNIFLCEA. 4.159 FEEDING ECCLOGY OF FISHES UTILIZING MARSHES ALTERED FOR CONTROL OF SALT MARSE MOSCUITCES. 1.065, 3.065*, 4.134* FISH PRODUCTION IN SOUTH DAKOTA FARM AND RANCH WATERS. 6.087 NATURAL MARSHES AS NUTRIENT SINKS FOR AGRICULTURAL RUNOFF. 4.089 THE EFFECTS OF AGRICULTURAL DEALNAGE OF NATURAL SYSTEMS - PHASE III. 4.036 THE RELATIONSHIP OF SALINITY AND DISTANCE FROM THE SEA, TO THE DISTRIBUTION OF JUVENILE FISHES. 1.044, 4.094* VALUE OF TIDAL MARSHES IN RELATION TO ESTUARINE ECOSYSTEM, AND EVALUATION OF FRESHWATEF WETLANDS. 4.044 MASS-BEARING EVALUATION OF FUSABIUM ROSEUM 'CULMORUM' AS A BIOLOGICAL CONTROL FOR HYDRILLA VERTICILLATA. 3.029 GENETIC ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT OF CRUSTACEAN AQUACULTURE STOCKS. 2.003 MASS-SPECTRONETRY FLAVOR DIFFERENCES OF MECHANICALLY- AND HAND-PRCCESSED CRAB MEATS. 8.015, 9.014* MATERIALS FISH BARRIER SYSTEMS FOR POWER STATIONS. 4.156 MATERIALS-HANDLING DEVELOPMENT AND EVALUATION CF OYSTER BARVESTING EQUIPMENT AND MARICULTURE SYSTEMS. 6.084, 7.013* MATHEMATICAL-MODELS MATHEMATICAL MODEL OF OYSTER POPULATION IN THE CHESAPEAKE BAY. 1.053, 6.051* MATING AN INVESTIGATION OF THE ADAPTIVE SIGNIFICANCE OF MELANISH IN THE MALE NOSQUITOFISH, GANFUSIA AFFINIS. 1.078 MATURATION EVALUATION OF JUVENILE SALNON AND STEELHEAD DENSITY AS RELATED TO DENSITY OF SPAWNERS AND FRY RELEASE. 1.030, 6.035* MOLECULAR ENCOCRINOLOGY OF MCLTING AND REPRODUCTION IN CRUSIACEANS. 1.005 SHRIMP MATUFATION, REPRODUCTION, DEVELOPMENT, NUTRITICN, INTENSIVE-EXTENSIVE CUITURE AND MARICULIUSE. 5.052, 6.092* MATURITY INTENSIVE CULTURE OF CRAYFISH. 6.068 MBAL INSECTS ATTRACTED BY LIGET AS A SOURCE OF FOCD FOR CATFISH. 5.005

MEASUREMENT ADAPTATICN FACTORS AND CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.093, 4.204* EIOLCGICAL ANALYSIS OF THE AGE AND GROWTH RATE OF THE OCEAN QUABOG ARCTICA ISLANDICA. 4.138 DISPOSITION OF CHEMICAL POLLUTANTS IN AGUATIC ORGANISMS. 4.017 ECOLOGY AND MANAGEMENT OF STREAM AND STREAM FISHES. 1.061 EFFECTS OF DISSOLVED CHEMICALS CN AQUATIC LIFE. 4.078 MBAT ANALYSIS OF DOMESTIC FOOD DEMAND AND CONSUMPTICN BEHAVIOR. 9.041 FLAVOR DIFFERENCES OF MECHANICALLY- AND HAND-PRCCESSED CRAH NEATS. 8.015, 9.014* PIGMENTS OF MEAT AND FISH PRODUCTS (OFF-COLORS IN TUNA). 8.002, 9.003* SMOKING OF SEAFOOD AND POULTRY. 8.008, 9.007* THE EFFECTS OF DIET ON THE RISK CF CANCER. 9.020 THE OXIDATIVE DETERIORATICS OF LIPIDS IN NECHANICALLY DEBONED POULTRY AND FISH. 9.009 MEAT-OUALITY SMOKING OF SEAFOCD AND PCULTEY. 8.008, 9.007* THE OXIDATIVE DETERIORATION OF LIPIDS IN MECHANICALLY DEHCNED POULTEY AND FISH. 9.009 MECHANICAL-CONTROL-WEEDS FIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF WEEDS WITH EMPHASIS ON AQUATIC BABITATS. 3.033 ECOLCGY OF PURPLE LOOSESTRIFE (LYTHEUM SALICARIA). 3.073 MECHANICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.022 USE OF SPIKERUSE (ELECCHARIS SPP.) FOR FIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.016 WEED CONTROL IN FICE PECDUCTION. 3.006, 4.008* MECHANICAL-BANDLING FLAVOR DIFFERENCES OF MECHANICALLY- AND EAND-PRCCESSED CRAB MEATS. 8.015, 9.014* MECHANICAL-HARVESTING DEVELOPMENT AND EVALUATION OF OYSTER HARVESTING EQUIPMENT AND MARICULTURE SYSTEMS. 6.084, 7.013* MECHANICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.022 MECHANIZATION OF CRAWFISH HARVESTING AND PRODUCTION. 6.042, 7.005* MECHANICAL-PROPERTIES MECHANICAL CONTACL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.022 MECHANISM-OF-ACTION CHARACTERIZATION OF GONAD-STINULATING SUBSTANCES IN MARINE ANIMALS. 1.020, 2.006* POISONOUS DINOFLAGELLATES AND SEELLFISH PCISCNING. 9.042 MECHANISES COMPARATIVE ECOLOGY OF SELECTED SPECIES OF AQUATIC INSECTS, PHASE IV. 4.042 MECHANISTIC FACTORS DETERMINE AQUATIC FERTILITY. 4.114 CSMOREGULATCRY BESPONSES OF DESERT PUPFISE: A STUDY MCDEL OF PHYSIOLOGICAL ACAPTATION TO ENVIECNMENT. 1.003, 4.010* STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT OF MARGINAL SALT MARSH SPECIES FROM NORTH CAROLIN. 4.158 THE OXIDATIVE DETERICRATICN OF LIPIDS IN MECHANICALLY DEHONED POULTRY AND FISH. 9.009 TOXICCLCGICAL AND ECOLOGICAL EFFECTS OF TOXICANTS. 4.186 WATER QUALITY STUDIES: COMPARATIVE ECOLOGY AND SYSTEMATICS OF SELECTED AQUATIC INSECTS. 4.043 MECHANIZATION CHVELOPMENT AND EVALUATION OF OYSTER HARVESTING EQUIPMENT AND MARICULTURE SYSTEMS. 6.084, 7.013* EQUIPMENT FOR MECHANIZATION OF PRODUCTION OF OYSTEES AND CTHEE SHELLFISH. 6.083, 7.012* FISHERIES EQUIPMENT AND GEAR DEVELOPMENT. 7.011 MECHANIZATION OF CRAWFISH BARVESTING AND PRODUCTION. 6.042, 7.005* OYSTER PRODUCTION EQUIPMENT DEVELOPMENT. 4.052, 6.028* MELANINS AN INVESTIGATION OF THE ADAPTIVE SIGNIFICANCE OF MELANISM IN THE MALE MCSQUITCFISH, GANHUSIA AFFINIS. 1.078 MEMBRANE-TRANSPORT UPTAKE AND MOVEMENT OF BERBICIDES AND NUTRIENTS IN AQUATIC WEED SPECIES. 3.019 MEMERANES EFFECTS OF POLLUTANTS ON GILLS CF FRESEWATER FISHES. 3.060, 4.119*
ENZYMATIC CONTROL OF QUALITY FACTORS IN MARINE FCODS. 8.026 MEMBADEN FISE BARRIER SYSTEMS FOR POWER STATIONS. 4.196 MENIDIA CLEAF LAKE ECOSYSTEM ANALYSIS: THE FISHES. 1.012, 6.016* MERCENARIA-HERCENARIA ANALYSIS OF PREDATION CF MERCENARIA MERCENARIA HY DECAPCD CRUSTACEANS. 1.095, 3.091* MANAGEMENT AND CULTURE OF MOLLUSCAN SPECIES. 6.086 MANAGEMENT OF A MULTIPLE CCBCRT FISHERY: THE HARD CLAM RESOURCES IN GREAT SCUTH PAY. 10.028 CVERBOARD DISPOSAL STUDY. 1.066, 4.137* STUDIES OF THE ECONOMICALLY IMPORTANT SPECIES: MERCENARIA MERCENARIA AND MACFORRACHIUM EOSENEEEGII. 1.094, 6.085* MERCURY DISEASES OF AQUATIC ANIMALS, 3.072 SALINITY, SECON POTENTIAL, & WICKCHIAL TRANSFORMATIONS OF MERCURY POLLUTANTS IN ESTUABINE SEDIMENTS. 4.132 THE QUALITY OF SEAFOCD CONSUMED BY THE PEOPLE OF SOUTH CAECLINA. 4.195, 9.034* METABOLISM ALGAL METAFOLISM IN THE PRESENCE OF BERBICIDES. 4.170 CHANNEL CATFISE NUTRITICN. 5.031 DISPOSITICN OF CHEMICAL POLLUTANTS IN AQUATIC CRGANISES. 4.017 GENETIC ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT OF CRUSTACEAN AQUACULIURE STOCKS. 2.003 LIPID METAFOLISM IN AQUATIC ORGANISMS. 5.053, 8.038× NITROGEN METAHOLISM OF FRESHWATER PRAWNS IN RELATION TO DIET. 5.015 PEYSIOLOGICAL STUDIES OF AQUATIC AND DITCH HANK WEEDS IN THE PACIFIC NORTHWEST. 3.101 PHYSIOLOGY AND ECOLOGY OF THE ASIATIC CLAM, CORBICULA SP., IN THE SACRAMENTO-SAN JCAQUIN DELTA · 1.004, 4.011* RELATIONSHIPS FETWEEN SALT MARSE AND ESTUARINE ANIMAL COMMUNITIES AND ENERGY EXCEANGE. 4.040, 5.010* SALINITY, REDOX POTENTIAL, 6 MICROBIAL TRANSFORMATIONS OF MERCURY POLLUTANTS IN ESTUAFINE SEDIMENTS. 4.132 TEMPERATURE EFFECTS CN XENOBICTIC ELIMINATION BY FISHES. 4.179 THE EFFECTS OF DIET ON THE RISK OF CANCER. 9.020 TRACE MINERAL INBALANCE IN BATCHERY FISH. 5.019 METABOLITES EFFECTS OF BERBICIDES ON CHESAPEAKE EAY PETOFLANKTON. 4.106 FATE AND EFFECTS OF ATRAZINE IN SALT NARSE ECOSYSTENS. 4.001 METALS EFFECTS OF AQUATIC PLANT COMMUNITIES ON WATER QUALITY IN HYPEREUTROPHIC AQUATIC ENVIRONMENT. 4.117 SOURCES AND MANAGEMENT OF MORTALITY IN EARLY LIFE STAGES CF FISHES. 4.146 METAMORPHOSIS EFFECT OF DIET QUALITY ON AQUATIC ANIMALS. 5.047 VISUAL PIGNENT CHANGES DURING THE LIFE CYCLE OF THE AMERICAN EEL, ANGUILLA ROSTRATA. 1.077 METAZOA DISEASES OF AQUATIC ANIMALS. 3.072 METEANE DEVELOPMENT OF AN INTEGRATED SYSTEM FOR TOTAL UTILIZATION OF SWINE WASTE. 6.001 MICROBIAL ECOLOGY OF METBANE PRODUCTION IN AQUATIC ENVIRONMENTS. 4.220 METHANOGENIC-BACTERIA MICROBIAL ECOLOGY OF METHANE PRODUCTION IN AQUATIC ENVIECNMENTS. 4.220 NITROGEN FIXATION IN METHANE-OXIDIZING BACTERIA. 4.219 METHOFRENE INSECTICIDES AND THEIR FORMULATIONS. 4.131 METEYL-MERCULY THE QUALITY OF SEAFOOD CONSUMED BY THE PECPLE OF SCUTH CAFOLINA. 4.199, 9.034* METEYL-FARATEION RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN PESTICIDES AND GEORGIA FARM PCND ECCSYSTEMS. 4.050 TOXICITY AND ECOLOGICAL EFFECTS OF SELECTED INSECTICIDES AND BERBICIDES. 4.122

METBYLATICN RELEASE OF ADSCREED PESTICIDES INTO WATER. 4.175 SALINITY, REDOX FCTENTIAL, & MICROBIAL TRANSFERMATIONS OF MERCURY FOLLUTANTS IN ESTUARINE SEDIMENTS. 4.132 MICROBIAL-PATROGENS. MICROHIAL DISEASES AND IMMUNE RESPONSE OF CATFISE. 3.098 MECROFICEOGY FACTERIAL SURVIVAL AND RECOVERY MECHANISMS: SIGNIFICANCE IN MARINE ENVIRONMENT. 4.188 EIOLOGICALLY ACTIVE AMINES IN FCOD. 8.009 CIGUATERA FISE PCISCNING IN THE U.S. V.I.: HIOCHEMICAL, PHYSOLOGICAL, AND MICRCEICLCGICAL STUDIES. 1.099, 9.040* COMPARATIVE STUDY OF THE FLEXIBACTER-CYTOPHAGA GROUP EACTERIA. 4.104 DETECTION AND IDENTIFICATION OF MYCOTOXINS AND ALGAL TOXINS IN FOODS AND FEEDS. \$.023 DISEASES CF AQUACULTURE SPECIES. 3.044 DISEASES OF AQUATIC ANIMALS. 3.072 DISEASES OF SHELLFISH. 3.074 EFFECTS OF AN ALTERED TEMPERATURE REGIME AND CHEMICAL CONTAMINANTS ON THE AQUATIC ECOSYSTEM. 3.062, 4.127* FISE MOREIDITY AND MORTALITY FELATED TO ENVIRONMENTAL CHANGES AND/OR INTENSIVE CULTURE METHODS. 4.193 MARINE FOOD SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY. 8.003, 9.004* MICRCHIAL DISFASES AND IMMUNE RESPONSE OF CATFISE. 3.098 MICROBICLOGICAL ASSESSMENT OF RIVER WATER CONTAMINATION. 3.084, 4.187* NITROGEN FIXATION IN METHANE-CXIDIZING FACTERIA. 4.219 SALINITY, REDOX FCTENTIAL, & MICEOHIAL TRANSFORMATIONS OF MERCURY POLLUTANTS IN ESTUARINE SEDIMENTS. 4.132 SMOKING OF SEAFOOD AND POULTRY. 8.008, 9.007* MICROCLIMATE THE EFFECTS OF AGRICULTUFAL DEAINAGE OF NATURAL SYSTEMS - PEASE III. 4.036 VARIABILITY IN PEYSICAL REGIME OF LAKE TITICACA: RELATION TO BIOLOGICAL PROCESSES. 4.014 MICPOECOLOGY FATE AND EFFECTS CF ATRAZINE IN SALT WARSH ECOSYSTEMS. 4.001 MICEOHIAL ECOLOGY OF METBANE PECDUCTION IN AQUATIC ENVIFCHMENTS. 4.220 MICROECONGMICS ANALYSIS OF DEMESTIC FOOD DEMANE AND CONSUMPTION BEBAVICE. 10.008 MICROFLORA BANDLING AND PRCCESSING OF FISE AND SEELLFISE. 8.018, 9.016* REGULATORY PROBLEMS OF LOUISIANA FOOD INDUSTRIES. 9.017 MICRONUTR IENTS EFFECTS OF AQUATIC PLANT COMMUNITIES CN WATER QUALITY IN BYFEREUTROPHIC AQUATIC ENVIRONMENT. 4.117 MICPOORGANISM SALINITY, REDOX POTENTIAL, & MICHOBIAL TRANSFORMATICNS OF MERCURY POLLUTANTS IN ESTUARINE SEDIMENTS. 4.132 MICROORGANISMS ABATEMENT OF EUTROPHICATION RESULTING FROM INTENSIVE ANIMAL PRODUCTICN. 4.195, 6.080* EIOCONVERSION OF CHITIN WASTES. 8.004 FIOLOGICAL, TECHNICAL, AND ECONCMIC STUDIES CF CULTURED AQUATIC RESCURCES. 4.151, 6.066* CIGUATERA FISE POISONING IN THE U.S. V.I.: BIOCHEMICAL, PHYSCLCGICAL, AND MICROFICLOGICAL STUDIES. 1.095, 9.040* LOW-TENPERATURE STORAGE OF FRESEWATER FEANN, NACECHEACHIUM ROSENHERGII. 8.010 NITROGEN FIXATION BY MICROPES INHABITING SURFACES OF AQUATIC NACEOPEYTES. 4.142 **BELEASE OF ADSCREED PESTICIDES INTO WATER. 4.175** MICROFOGON THE RELATIONSHIP OF SALINITY AND DISTANCE FROM THE SEA, TO THE DISTRIBUTION OF JUVENILE FISHES. 1.044, 4.094* MICROSCOPY A MULTI-INSTITUTIONAL APPRCACE TO TEE IDENTIFICATION OF HIVALVE LASVAE. 1.067

APPLICATION OF OTOLITH MICRCSTRUCTUFAL DATA TC STUDIES CF THE EARLY LIFE BISTCRY CF FISHES. 1.070

BIOLOGICAL ANALYSIS OF THE AGE AND GROWTH RATE OF THE OCEAN QUABOG ARCTICA ISLANDICA. 4.138 DISEASE MANAGEMENT IN CATFISE AQUACULTURE. 3.097 MCRPEOLOGY AND TAXONOMY OF NEWATODES. 1.021 PENAEIDAE GAMETES, THEIR STRUCTURE, ACTIVATION AND FUSION. 1.006 NICROWAVES THE THEATMENT AND USE OF WASTE PACOUCTS AND CHENICALS IN THE DIET OF AQUATIC ANIMALS. 5.046, 8.042= MIGRATION A STUDY OF FISH RESOURCES OF THE GOSFEL BUMP ANEA. 4.060 COLUMBIA RIVER CBINOCK SALMON STUDY. 1.090 BFPECTS CF REDUCED STREAM DISCHARGE CN FISE AND AQUATIC MACRCINVERTEERATE POPULATIONS. 4.073 EFFECTS OF STAMPEDE RESERVOIR ON UPSTREAM FISE POPULATIONS OF SAGEHEN CREEK. 1.010, 4.019* EVALUATION OF VABIOUS HATCBERY REAFING CONDITIONS ON SEAWARD MIGRATICN OF STEELEEAD TROUT. 1.025 JUVENILE EMIGRATION OF LAHONTAN CUTTERCAT TROUT IN THE TRUCKEB-PYRAMID LAKE SYSTEM. 4.055 METHEDOLOGY AND ASSESSMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL EFFECTS AT LOW BEAD BYDRO POWER SITES. 4.148 POTENTIAL BARVEST OF LAKE ERIE WHITE CRAPPIE FROM AN ADJOINING EORROW PIT. 1.086, 6.072* FOLE OF SECRT DISTANCE MIGRATION OF THE BOMING OF SALMON AND STEELHEAD. 1.028 VISUAL FIGNENT CHANGES DURING THE LIFE CYCLE OF THE AMERICAN EEL, ANGUILLA ROSTRATA. 1.077 NILK IMPEOVING THE ASSURANCE OF QUALITY AND SAFETY OF CONSUMER'S FOOD. 9.031 OPERATING FARAMETERS OF LAGCONS FCE DISPOSAL OF UTILIZATION OF DAIRY FARM AND PROCESSING PLANT WASTE. 2.014 NILK-COMPOSITION EVALUATION OF AQUATIC PLANTS AS POTENTIAL FEEDSTUFF FOR DAIRY CATTLE. 9.013 OPERATING FARANETERS OF LAGCCNS FCR DISPCSAL CF UTILIZATION OF DAIRY FARM AND PROCESSING PLANT WASTE. 8.014 NILK-QUALITY OPERATING PARAMETERS OF LAGCONS FOR DISPOSAL OF UTILIZATION OF DAIRY FARM AND PROCESSING PLANT WASTE . 8.014 MILE-YIELDS EVALUATION OF AQUATIC PLANTS AS POTENTIAL FEEDSTUFF FOR DAIRY CATTLE. 9.013 NILT CHARACTERIZATION OF GONAD-STIMULATING SUBSTANCES IN MARINE ANIMALS. I.020, 2.006* MINE-SPOILS ZCOGEOGRAPBY AND ECOLOGY OF FISBES IN PENNSYLVANIA. 1.093. 4.190* MINERAL-NUTRITION CHANNEL CATFISE NUTRITION. 5.033 FRESEWATER FOOD ANIMALS. 5.013, 6.022* GROWTE AND MINERAL UPTAKE IN THE LEMNACEAE. 4.026 TRACE MINESAL INFALANCE IN EATCHERY FISH. 5.019 NINEBALS ALGAL METAFOLISM IN THE PRESENCE OF BEBEICIDES. 4.170 BREEDING, PRODUCTION, NUTRITICN AND WARKETING CF CHANNEL CATFISH. 2.010, 5.020*, 6.040* EFFECTS CF ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS AND MANAGEMENT PRACTICES ON COMMERCIAL PEODUCTION OF CRAWFISE. 4.096, 6.047* PRESHWATER FOOD ANIMALS. 5.004, 5.013, 6.022* BUMAN NUTRITION IMPROVEMENT. 8.022 NUTBITION CF SALMONIE FISHES. 5.041 THE PHYSICLOGICAL BASIS FOR MANAGING TIDAL MARSE VEGETATION. 4.197 MINES ZOOGEOGRAPBY AND ECOLOGY OF FISBES IN PENNSYLVANIA. 1.093, 4.190* MINING AQUATIC INSECTS AS INDICATORS OF WATER QUALITY AND PRODUCT IVITY: A CCOBDINATED STUDY. 4.129 SPOKANE RIVER LIMNCLCGY. 4.067 TCXIC EFFECTS ON THE AQUATIC BIOTA FROM COAL AND CIL SBALE DEVELOPMENT. 4.034 MINE FUR ANIMAL STUDIES (MINK). 8.028 NINNOVS A COMPARISON OF THE ACCUMULATION RATES OF P ABSOREED BY THE VITAL ORGANS OF PISE. 4.156,

5.039*

NINNOWS AS FORAGE IN THE FARM POND FRODUCTION OF FINFISE. 6.018 POLYCULTURAL PEODUCTION OF FISE IN FARM PCNDS. 4.007, 6.010* REARING BAIT FISH IN WESTERN NEVADA. 6.061, 10.023* THE RESOLUTION OF SOME PROBLEMS ATTENDING THE ENPLOYMENT OF MINNOWS AS FORAGE FOR FARMFOND FISERS. 6.019 MIBEX MIREX FEEDING STUDY IN CHANNEL CATFISE (ICTALURUS PUNCTATUS). 4.123, 9.022* STUDIES OF THE ECONOMICALLY INFORTANT SPECIES: MERCENARIA MESCENARIA AND MACSOBSACHIUM ROSENBERGII. 1.094, 6.085* TOXICITY AND ECOLOGICAL EFFECTS OF SELECTED INSECTICIDES AND BERBICIESS. 4.122 MITES BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS IN THE SCUTEEAST. 3.034 BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF WEEDS WITH EMPHASIS ON AQUATIC EABITATS. 3.033 MIXING LINNOLCGICAL EVALUATION AND ZOOPLANETON DYNAMICS OF LAKE KOOCANUSA, NORTEWESTERN MCNTANA. 4.077 MODE-OP-ACTION ADAPTATION FACTORS AND CONTROL CF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.093, 4.204* EISTOPATEOLOGIC AND EISTOCEENICAL INDICES OP SUBLETBAL PESTICIDE TOXICATION IN FISE. 3.086, 4.189* NODE OF ACTION AND INFLUENCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS ON THE TOXICITY OF SEVERAL AQUATIC BERBICIDES. 3.100, 4.218* MODE-OF-INEERITANCE AN INVESTIGATION OF THE ADAPTIVE SIGNIFICANCE OF MELANISM IN THE MALE NOSCUITCHISE, GAMEUSIA AFFINIS. 1.078 MODELING FISHERIES AND WILDLIFE ECONCHICS RESEARCE IN THE GREAT LAKES. 10.019 LIFE BISTORY AND POPULATICN DYNAMICS OF TILEFISE, LOPBOLATILUS CHAMAELCNTICUP. 1.064 MICROCCSM MODELING OF THE RESPONSE OF PERSISTENT AQUATIC COMMUNITIES TO A TOXICANT. 4.182 THE STATUS AND RELATION OF THE COASTAL ZONE TO ALAEAMA'S ECONOMY. I0.001 MODELS ACCOUNTING FCE VARIABILITY IN PECDUCTIVITY OF OCEAN FISE IN YIELD ESTIMATION. 4.185 AN ECONOMIC ANALYSIS OF DECISION MAKING AND POLICY POEMULATION. 10.043 AN ECCNOMIC ANALYSIS OF THE ATLANTIC COAST STRIPED HASS FISHERY. 10.031 AN ECONCHIC EVALUATION OF THE RECREATIONAL SALMON FISBING IN THE KENAL/RUSSIAN FIVER REGION. 10.036 ANALYSIS AND MODELING LAKE MICEIGAN FISH POPULATION. 1.015, 4.032* ANALYSIS CF DEMESTIC FOED DEMAND AND CONSUMPTION BEBAVIOR. 9.041 EASELINE STUDIES POF EVALUATING THE RESPONSE OF AN ECOSYSTEM TO THE INTRODUCTION OF WHITE AMUR. 1.018, 3.028*, 4.046* BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF WEEDS WITE EMPHASIS ON AQUATIC BABITATS. 3.033 EIOLCGICAL INDICATORS OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY IN CALIFORNIA LAKES AND STREAMS. 4.016 EIOLOGICAL, TECENICAL, AND ECONCHIC STUDIES OF CULTURED AQUATIC RESCUECES. 4.151, 6.066* COLUMBIA BIVER CBINCOK SALMON STUDY. 1.090 COSTS AND RETURNS IN THE OTTER TRAVE FLEET CN LCNG ISLAND, NEW YCEK. 10.029 DEVELOPMENT AND EVALUATION OF OYSTER HARVESTING EQUIPMENT AND MABICULTUBE SYSTEMS. 6.084, 7.013* DEVELOPMENT OF PISE PROTECTIVE SYSTEMS FOR WATER INTAKES. 4.022 ECOLCGY, PCPULATION DYNAMICS AND MANAGEMENT OF MULTI-SPECIES PISE RESCUECES OF LARGE LAKES. 1.063, 4.121* ECONOMIC ANALYSES OF PISEERIES MANAGEMENT ISSUES ARISING FEOM EXTENDED JURISDICTION OF NEW ENGLAND. 10.042 ECONOMIC BEBAVIOR OF FOOD AND FIRER FIRMS. 10.007 ECONOMIC IMPACTS OF THE 200-MILE LIMIT ON RURAL NORTBEASTERN COASTAL COMMUNITIES. 10.024, 10.039

ECONOMIC PECTIES & REGIONAL ECONOMIC IMPACTS OF THE ALASKA SHELLFISE INDUSTRY. 10.049

ECCNOMICS OF BIVALVE NOLLUSK AQUACULTURE IN NEW PERFORMANCE OF SALMONIDS: SMOLTIFICATION, STRESS AND FITNESS. 1.089, 6.077* SOURCES AND MANAGEMENT OF MCRTALITY IN EARLY LIFE ENGLAND. 6.054, 10.016* ECONOMICS OF THE CONMERCIAL FISH INDUSTRY. 10.044 STAGES OF FISEES. 4.146 EFFECTS OF INCREASED FINE SEDIMENT ON INCUBATION STEELHEAD BATCHERY AS AFFECTED BY RELATIVELY HIGH AND EMERGENCE OF CHINCOK SALMON AND STEELBEAD TEMPERATURE WATER. 4.068 TROUT. 4.071 EFFECTS CF REDUCED STREAM DISCHARGE ON FISH AND STUDY OF PATHOLOGY OF FISHES FROM LAKE BYCC, NORTH AQUATIC MACROINVERTEEBATE PCPULATICNS. 4.073 CARCLINA. 3.079 EFFECTS OF THE BRUNSWICK NUCLEAR FOWER-PLANTS CN SURF CLAM NANAGEMENT STUDIES. 4.136, 6.063* THE PECDUCTIVITY OF SPARTINA ALTERNIFLORA. 4.159 WATER CUALITY STUDY. 4.033 EXPERIMENTAL FISH ECCLOGY. 1.098, 4.207* MONOCULTURE CULTURE OF AQUATIC ORGANISMS AND EVALUATION OF FATE AND EFFECTS OF ATRAZINE IN SALT MARSH ECOSYSTENS. 4.001 ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS AT STEAM ELECTRIC GEOWTE AND MINERAL UPTAKE IN THE LENNACEAE. 4.026 PLANTS. 6.093 MANAGEMENT ECONOMICS OF NEW YORK'S MARINE MORBIDITY INDUSTRIES. 10.030 FISE NORBIDITY AND MORTALITY RELATED TO ENVIRONMENTAL CHANGES AND/CE INTENSIVE CULTURE MANAGEMENT OF A MULTIPLE COHORT FISHERY: THE HARD CLAM RESOURCES IN GREAT SCUTH EAY. 10.028 NETHODS. 4.193 NATHEMATICAL NODEL OF OYSTER POPULATION IN THE MCRFBOLOGY ALGAL METABOLISM IN THE PRESENCE OF HERHICIDES. CHESAPEAKE HAY. 1.053, 6.051* NODELS TO ASSESS BIOMAGNIFICATION POTENTIAL OF 4.170 PERSISTENT TOXIC SUBSTANCES IN AQUATIC FCOD ECOLOGY OF LARVAL STREAM FISHES. 1.038. 4.084* LABORATORY CULTURE FOR RESEARCH PURPCSES CF CBAINS. 4.149 ESTUARINE AND MARINE LCESTERS, CRAES AND POPULATION DYNAMICS OF LARGENOUTH AND SNALLMOUTH EASS IN 16 NEW YORK LAKES. 1.075 SHRIMPS. 1.048, 5.024* RELEASE OF ADSORHED PESTICIDES INTO WATER. 4.175 MORPHOLOGICAL, ULTRASTRUCTURAL, AND HIOCHEMICAL RESEARCE IN SYSTEMS ECOLOGY. 4.141 CHARACTERIZATION OF NANOPLANETCN FECE CEESAPEAKE EAY. 1.056, 4.108* MORFFOLOGY AND TAXONOMY OF NEMATODES. 1.021 STEELBEAD EATCHERY AS AFFECTED BY RELATIVELY BIGH TEMPERATURE WATER. 4.068 THE IMPACT OF THE 200 MILE ECCNONIC ZONE ON RURAL PRODUCTION OF IDENTIFICATION CIRCULARS ON THE NEW ENGLAND COASTAL COMMUNITIES. 10.017 LARVAE CF CCLCRADO PISHES. 1.014 TEB STATUS AND RELATION OF THE COASTAL ZONE TO TAXONONY AND MORPHOLOGY OF NEMATODES. 3.027 ALABAMA'S ECONONY. 10.001 ULTRASTRUCTURAL CHANGES IN TELECST GILLS: HFFECTS OF SUBTLE ALTERATIONS IN THE ENVIRONMENT. 3.053. TOWARDS A THEORY OF THE REGULATED FISHERY. 10.005 NOISTURE-CONTENT 4.098* FOOD PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT FROM FLORIDA UNDERUTILIZED MORTALITY ECOLOGICAL STUDIES WITH RED SWAMP CRAWFISH AND FISE SPECIES. 8.007, 9.006* WHITE RIVER CRAWFISH. 1.042, 4.092*, 6.043* MOLLUSCA ECOLOGY OF MOSQUITOES ASSOCIATED WITE CALIFCENIA A MULTI-INSTITUTIONAL APPRCACE TO THE IDENTIFICATION OF BIVALVE LARVAE. 1.067 RICE FIELDS. 4.015 AN EVALUATION OF ENDANGERED NOLLUSES IN VIRGINIA. EFFECTS OF ANTINYCIN ON STREAM INSECTS. 3.102, 1.100, 4.213* 4.222* CHENICALS THAT DIFFUSE FROM PREDATORY ASTEROIDS & EXAMINATION OF THE SPAWNING HCOLOGY AND EARLY LIFE TRIGGER DEFENSIVE EEHAVIORS IN MARINE HISTORY OF BOBANEE SALNCN IN COEUR D' ALENE INVERTEERATE. 1.002 LAKE. 4.054 DETECTION TRANSMISSION AND PATHOGENESIS OF DISEASE FISE NORHIDITY AND NORTALITY BELATED TO CEGANISES IN AQUACULTURE SPECIES. 3.087 ENVIRONMENTAL CHANGES AND/OR INTENSIVE CULTURE DEVELOPMENT AND EVALUATION OF OYSTER HARVESTING METECDS. 4.193 HQUIPMENT AND MARICULTURE SYSTEMS. 6.084, 7.013* INFECTIOUS PANCREATIC NECROSIS IN ATLANTIC SALMON. DIAGNESIS AND PATHOGENESIS OF DISEASES AND 3.057 FARASITES IN MAJOE MCLLUSCAN AQUACULTURE INTENSIVE CULTURE OF CRAYFISB. 6.068 SPECIES. 3.088 LIFE HISTORY AND POPULATION DYNAMICS OF TILEFISH. DISEASES OF AQUATIC ANIMALS. 3.013 LOFBOLATILUS CHANAELCNTICUP. 1.064 DISEASES OF SEHLLFISE. 3.074 METHODOLOGY AND ASSESSMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL EFFECTS AT LCW HEAD HYDRC POWER SITES. 4.148 ECONOMICS OF BIVALVE NOLLUSE AQUACULTURE IN NEW ENGLAND. 6.054, 10.016* MIREX FEEDING STUDY IN CHANNEL CATFISH (ICTALURUS MANAGEMENT AND CULTURE OF MOLLUSCAN SFECIES. 6.086 PUNCTATUS). 4.123, 9.022* WATER QUALITY CHANGES IN CYSTER FEOCESSING. 8.025 NEMATODE PARASITES OF FRESHWATER FISE: HIOLOGY AND MOLTING EFFECTS. 3.014 ACTIVITY REVTHWS OF THE NORTHERN ROCK CRAH IN POPULATION DYNAMICS OF LARGEMOUTE AND SMALLMOUTE RHLATION TO ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL FACTORS. HASS IN 16 NEW YORK LAKES. 1.075 1.057, 4.109* PRAWN AQUACULTURAL ENGINEEBING. 6.027, 7.002* HEHAVIOR ECCLOGY AND REVTHNICITY IN THE ROCK CRAES, SHRIMP MATURATICN, REPRODUCTION, DEVELOPMENT, CANCER IRRORATUS AND CANCEE BCREALIS, PHASE II. NUTRITION, INTENSIVE-EXTENSIVE CULTURE AND 1.058, 5.028* MARICULTURE. 5.052, 6.092* SOURCES AND MANAGEMENT CF MCRTALITY IN EARLY LIFE HEHAVIOR. ECOLOGY AND RHYTEMICITY IN THE COMMON ROCK CRAH. 1.059, 4.110* STAGES OF FISHES. 4.146 SURF CLAM MANAGEMENT STUDIES. 4.136, 6.063* LABORATORY CULTURE FOR RHSEARCH FURFCSES OF ESTUARINE AND MARINE LOHSTERS, CRAHS AND TOXICITY AND ECOLOGICAL EFFECTS OF SELECTED SBRIMPS. 1.048, 5.024* INSECTICIDHS AND HERHICICES. 4.122 MOLECULAE ENDOCRINOLOGY OF NOLTING AND REPRODUCTION UTILIZATION OF PROTEIN INGREDIENTS IN FISE RATICNS. IN CRUSTACEANS. 1.005 5.044 NITROGEN METABOLISM OF FRESHWATER PRAWNS IN MOSOUITOES FELATION TO DIET. 5.015 FEEDING ECOLOGY OF FISHES UTILIZING MARSEES ALTERED MONITORING. FOR CONTROL OF SALT MARSH MOSQUITOHS. 1.065, ADULT PADDLEFISH MOVEMENT IN POOL 13, UPPHR 3.065*, 4.134* MISSISSIPFI RIVER. 1.034 HEHAVIOL OF IOWA SPORT FISBES. 1.036, 4.083* MOSOUITOFISH SHALLOW-WATER POLYCULTURE CF FISBES IN PONDS EIOLOGICAL STUDIES OF THE SPINY LOBSTHE IN SCUTE DESIGNED FOR ECTATION TO GRAIN CROPS. 6.013 FLORIDA. 1.019 MOTOR-NEURONS ECOLOGICAL STUDY OF LAKE WALES, FLORIDA AFTER NEURAL CONTROL OF SWIMMING IN CRAYFISHES. 1.001 INTRODUCTION OF WHITE ANUL (CTENOPHARYNGODON MOTING IDELLA). 4.047 ECOLOGY OF PURPLE LOOSESTRIFE (LYTHRUM SALICARIA). FISH MOVEMENT IN FOOL 9, UPPER MISSISSIPPI RIVER. 3.073 1.035 NUCUS MOVEMENTS OF SONIC-TAGGED FISHES IN BELATION TO ANTIBACTERIAL NECHANICS IN CLAMS; CONTRIBUTION OF WATER QUALITY IN LOWHR ATCHAFALAYA RIVER EASIN. THE WATER STREAM. 1.072, 4.145* 1.049, 4.097*

MULTRY DRYING SEAFOOD PRODUCTS WITH SOLAR ENERGY. 8.006 FOOD PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT FROM FLOEIDA UNDEEUTILIZED FISH SPECIES. 8.007, 9.006* PRODUCTION ECONOMICS OF AQUACULTURE SPECIES IN HAWAII. 10.009 SWIMBLADDEL INFLATION IN LARVAE OF PHYSOCILISTOUS FISHES. 1.007 NULTIPLE-PHGEESSION EFFECT OP SEDIMENT CONTROL DAMS ON THE WATER QUALITY OF A PRAIRIE LAKE. 4.200 MENICIPAL-WASTE EFFECTS OF DISSOLVED CHENICALS ON AQUATIC LIFH. 4.078 SPOKANE RIVER LIMNCLCGY. 4.067 NUSCLE-PROTEINS FACTORS AFFECTING THE FUNCTIONAL PROPERTIES AND QUALITY OF PROCESSED MUSCLE FCODS. 9.021 MUSCLES COMPARATIVE STUDIES OF LOBSTER AND OBICKEN MUSCLE. 9.027 FACTORS AFFECTING THE TEXTURE CF SEAFCCDS. 7.009, 8.038*, 9.029* FISH CULTURE USING GEOTHERMAL WATER. 6.032 MUSKRLLUNGR INTRODUCTION OF WALLEYE AND NORLUNGE FINGERLINGS INTO A LAKE DOMINATED BY PREY SPECIES. 1.074 MUSSELS AN EVALUATION OF ENDANGERED NCLLUSES IN VIEGINIA. 1.100, 4.213* MICROHIOLOGICAL ASPECTS TO SHELLFISH SANITATION AND QUALITY. 7.014, 8.047*, 9.037* **MOLLUSCAN BATCHERY TECHNOLOGY. 6.075** NUTAGENS THE EFFECTS OF DIET ON THE RISE OF CANCER. 9.020 NYCOLOGY DISEASES OF AQUATIC ANIMALS. 3.072 NYCOPLASMA INFECTIOUS PANCREATIC NECROSIS IN ATLANTIC SALMON. 3.057 NYCOTOXINS DETECTION AND IDENTIFICATION OF MYCOTOXINS AND ALGAL TOXING IN FOODS AND FEEDS. 9.023 **NYOFIBRILS** CCMPARATIVE STUDIES OF LOHSTER AND CHICKEN MUSCLE. 9.027 NYOGLOHIN MARINE FOOD SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY. 8.003, 9.004* PIGMENTS OF NEAT AND FISH PRODUCTS (CFF-COLORS IN TUNA). 8.002, 9.003* NYOSINS COMPARATIVE STUDIES OF LOHSTER AND CHICKEN MUSCLE. 9.027 FACTORS AFFECTING THE TEXTURE OF SEAFOODS. 7.009, 8.038*, 9.029* NYFICA-CERTIFERA STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT OF WARGINAL SALT MARSH SPECIES FRCM NOFTH CAROLIN. 4.158 MYRIOPHYLLUM A SURVEY FOR PATHOGEN FOR AQUATIC WEEDS IN CALIFCENIA FOR USE IN BIOLOGICAL CONTROL. 3.008, 4.009* BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS IN THE SOUTHEAST. 3.034 BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS WITH INSECTS. 3.038 BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF EURASIAN WILPOIL AND OTHER AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.106 BIOLOGICAL CONTRCL OF WEHDS. 3.104 IDENTIPICATION OF INSECTS FOR BIOLOGICAL CONTECL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.036 NITROGEN FIXATION HY MICROBES INHAHITING SUFFACES OF AQUATIC MACROPHYTES. 4.142 NYRIOPEYLLUM-SPICATUM BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF EURASIAN MILFOIL AND OTHER AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.106 EURASIAN WATERMILFOIL IN CURRITUCE SOUND: ITS CONTROL AND PCTENTIAL USE. 3.077, 4.165* INFORTATICN AND EVALUATION OF INSECTS FOR BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF WEEDS AND INSECT PESTS. 3.037 MYXOSOMA-CEEFEPALIS CONTROL OF WHIRLING DISEASE OF SALMONIDS. 3.063 DISEASES OF AQUATIC ANIMALS. 3.013

NARCOSIS RESPONSE OF FISHES AND AQUATIC SYSTEMS TO ELECTRIC SHOCE AND CAPTURE THCHNCLOGY. 6.101 NATIVE-SPECIES FISH PRODUCTION IN SOUTH DAEGTA FARM AND RANCH WATERS. 6.087 NATURAL-RESOURCES AN ECONOMIC ANALYSIS OF DECISION WAEING AND POLICY FORMULATION. 10.043 ECONOMICS OF THE COMMERCIAL FISE INDUSTRY. 10.044 MANAGEMENT OP A MULTIPLE COHORT FISBERY: THE HARD CLAM RESOURCES IN GREAT SCUTE HAY. 10.028 MATHEMATICAL MODEL OF OYSTER POPULATION IN THE CHESAPEAKE BAY. 1.053, 6.051* PRODUCTION ECONCHICS OF AQUACULTURE SPECIES IN BAWAII. 10.005 NATURAL-SUBSTANCES NATURALLY OCCUBRING MOSQUITC LAEVICIDES. 3.069 NATURAL-TOXINS CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS HASED ON ALLELOPATHIC CHARACTERISTICS IN SPIKEFUSH (ELECCHARIS SPP.). 3.007 IMPROVING THE ASSURANCE CP CUALITY AND SAFETY OF CONSUMER'S FCCD. 9.031 NATURE-OF-PHSISTANCE EFFECTS OF BERHICIDHS ON CHESAPEAKE BAY PHYTOPLANKTON. 4.106 NAVIGATION ECOLOGICAL STUDY OF CUTOFF FENDWAYS AND CXHCWS WITHIN THE TENNESSEE-TCMHIGHEE WATERWAY. 4.124 FISH NOVEMENT IN POOL 9, UPPER WISSISSIPPI RIVER. 1.035 NAVIGATION IMPACTS ON CHANNEL FISHES, UPPER NISSISSIPPI RIVER. 4.090 NHETON ECOLOGY OF SALT WARSHES IN RELATION TO ESTUARIES AND ENERGY FLCW. 1.016, 4.041*, 5.011* RELATIONSHIPS HETWEEN SALT MARSH AND ESTUARINE ANIMAL COMMUNITIES AND ENERGY EXCHANGE. 4.040, 5.010* VALUE OF TIDAL MARSHES IN RELATION TO ESTUARINE ECOSYSTEN, AND EVALUATION OF FRESHWATER WETLANDS. 4.044 NHNATODE-COLLECTION TAXONONY AND MOEPHOLCGY OF MENATODES. 3.027 NEMATODE-CULTURES NORPHOLOGY AND TAXONOMY OF NEWATODES. 1.021 NHMATODE-IDENTIFICATION TAXONCHY AND NORPHOLOGY CF NEWATODES. 3.027 NEMATODES NORPHOLOGY AND TAXONOMY OF NEMATODES. 1.021 NEMATODE PARASITES OF FRESHWATER FISE: BIOLOGY AND EFFECTS. 3.014 TAXONOMY AND NOFPHOLOGY OF NEMATODES. 3.027 NERVOUS-SYSTEM NEURAL CONTROL OF SWINNING IN CRAYFISHES. 1.001 NEUROTRANSMITTERS, NEUROMODULATCRS, AND LCCCMCTICN. 1.076 NHTS CULTURE SYSTEMS FOR YEAR-ROUND MARKETING CF PISH FECN WATESSHED PONDS. 6.008, 7.001* ENVIRONMENTAL EFFECTS ON PECDUCTIVITY CF CRAYFISE IN POND HAHITATS, PHASE I, II. 5.025, 6.048*, 7.007* FISE BARRIER SYSTEMS FOR POWER STATIONS. 4.196 NEURO-TOXINS POISONOUS DINOFLAGELLATES AND SHELLFISH POISONING. 9.042 NRURONS NEURAL CONTROL OF SWIMMING IN CRAYFISHES. 1.001 NEURCTRANSMITTHES, NEURCMODULATORS, AND LOCOMOTION. 1.076 NHUROTRANSMITTERS NEUROTRANSMITTERS, NEUROMODULATORS, AND LCCONOTION. 1.076 NEVOUS-SYSTEMS NEUROTRANSMITTERS, NEUFONCOULATCRS, AND LOCOMOTION. 1.076 NEW-CHEMICALS PHYTOTOXINS PROM AQUATIC AND TERRESTRIAL FLANTS, EACTERIA, AND FUNGI. 3.017 NET-FOODS FOOD PRCDUCT DEVELOPMENT FROM FLORIDA UNDERUTILIZED FISH SPECIES. 8.007, 9.006* MANUFACTURE OF PROCESSED WEAT AND/OF FISH PRODUCTS WITH UNDERUTILIZED MARINE SPECIES. 8.027 NEW-PRODUCTS

FOOD PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT FROM FLORIDA UNDERUTILIZED FISE SPECIES. 8.007, 9.006* MANUFACTURE OF PROCESSED MEAT AND/OR FISH PRODUCTS WITE UNDERUTILIZED MABINE SPECIES. 8.027 NEW FOOD PLODUCTS FROM UNDERUTILIZED FISE SPECIES. 8.033 PCTENTIAL CP DIFFERENT UNDERUTILIZED SPECIES OF FISE FCL CONVENIENCE FOODS. 8.035, 9.026* PRELIMINARY COSTS OF CATFISE PROCESSING WASTE UTILIZATION. 8.021, 10.013* NEW-SPECIES DEVELOP AND IMPROVE PRODUCTION AND MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS FOR FRESHWATER ANIMALS CULTURED FOR FOOD: 6.011 NICKLE BIOACCUMULATION AND IMPACT OF BIGBWAY-GENERATED BEAVY METALS ON STREAM FISBERY RESOURCES IN VIRGINIA. 4.214 BITRATES BIOFILTER FERFORMANCE FACTORS. 4.069 UPTAKE AND MOVEMENT OF BERBICIDES AND NUTRIENTS IN AQUATIC WEED SPECIES. 3.019 BITRIFICATION BIOFILTER FERFORMANCE FACTORS. 4.069 CLOSED CYCLE FISH CULTURE WATER FILTRATION USING EIOLOGICAL SYSTEMS: 4.105, 6.053* INVESTIGATION OF "IN SITU" SOLIDS DIGESTION FOR SALMONID PRODUCTION. 6.081 NITRITES BIOFILTER PERFORMANCE FACTORS. 4.069 NITROGEN BIOFILTER PERFORMANCE FACTORS. 4.069 LIFE HISTOLY AND PHYSIOLOGICAL STUDIES OF AQUATIC AND MARGINAL WEEDS. 3.061 NATURAL MARSEES AS NOTRIENT SINKS FOR AGRICULTURAL **RUNOFF.** 4.089 NITEGEN FILATION BY MICROEES INBABITING SURFACES OF AQUATIC MACRCPHYTES. 4.142 NITROGEN METABOLISM OF FRESEWATER PRAWNS IN RELATION TO DIET. 5.015 QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE STUDIES OF FOLLUTION IN SELECTED FARM PONDS. 4.155 UTILIZATION OF AQUATIC PLANTS FOR WASTE TREATMENT AND ANIMAL FEEDS. 1.043, 5.023* NITROGEN-ASSINILATION NITROGEN NETAEOLISM OF FRESEWATES PRAWNS IN RELATION TO DIET. 5.015 NITEOGEN-CYCLE **BIOFILTEE FERFORMANCE FACTORS. 4.069** NITROGEN FIXATION AND ITS EFFECT ON EUTSCHEICATION: IN-POINT AND NON-POINT SOURCE PONES. 4.157 NITROGEN-FIXATION NITROGEN FIRATION AND ITS EFFECT ON EUTROPEICATION: IN-POINT AND NON-POINT SCURCE FCNDS. 4.157 NITROGEN FILATION BY MICROBES INEABITING SUBFACES OF AQUATIC MACROPETTES. 4.142 NITECGEN FIXATION IN METHANE-OXIDIZING EACTERIA. 4.219 NITROGEN-FIXING-BACTERIA NITROGEN FILATION AND ITS EFFECT CN EUTRCPBICATION: IN-POINT AND NON-POINT SOURCE PONDS. 4.157 NITROGEN FIXATION BY NICROEFS INBABITING SUBFACES OF AQUATIC MACROPHYTES. 4.142 NITROGEN FIXATION IN METBANE-CXIDIZING BACTERIA. 4.219 NITROGEN-FIXING-MICROORGANISMS LIFE HISTORY AND PHYSIOLOGICAL STUDIES OF AQUATIC AND MARGINAL WEEDS. 3.061 NITEOGEN-NETABOLISN NITECGEN NETABOLISM OF FRESEWATER PRAWNS IN RELATION TO DIET. 5.015 NON-POINT-POLLUTION EFFECT OF SEDIMENT CONTECL DANS ON THE WATER QUALITY OF A PRAIRIE LAKE. 4.200 EFFECTS OF LAND USE PRACTICES ON STREAM BIOTA. 4.085 EFFECIS CF WATER QUALITY PARAMETERS ON FARM FOND VEGETATION AND THEIR INTERACTIONS. 4.176 NON-TARGET-INSECTS EFFECTS OF ANTINYCIN ON STREAM INSECTS. 3.102. 4.222* NON-TARGET-OEGANISHS CONTROL CF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.108 EFFECTS OF ANTIMYCIN ON STREAM INSECTS. 3.102, 4.222* EVALUATION OF FUSARION RCSEUN 'CULNORUN' AS A BIOLOGICAL CONTROL FOR BYDRILLA VERTICILLATA. 3.029

TOXICITY AND ECOLOGICAL EFFECTS OF SELECTED INSECTICIDES AND BEREICICES. 4.122 NUCLEAR-ENERGY ANALYSIS AND MODELING LAKE MICHIGAN FISH PGPULATICN. 1.015, 4.032* EFFECTS OF THE BRUNSWICK NUCLEAR POWER-PLANTS ON THE PRODUCTIVITY OF SPARTINA ALTEENIFLCEA. 4.159 NUCLEAR-REACTORS IMPACTS OF THE CONSTRUCTION AND OPERATION OF COASTAL NUCLEAR POWER PLANTS CN ESTUARINE ECCLCGY. 4.160 NURSBRIRS EVALUATION OF JUVENILE SALWCN AND STEELBEAD DENSITY AS RELATED TO DENSITY OF SFAWNERS AND FEY RELEASE. 1.030, 6.035* NUTRIENT-AVAILABILITY CEANNEL CATFISE NUTEITICN. 5.033 EVALUATION OF BY-PRODUCTS FROM CATFISB FRCCESSING WASTE FOR CATFISE FEED SUPPLEMENTS. 5.032, 8.030* SENSORY & NUTRITIONAL EVALUATION OF SEAFCCDS. 8.043, 9.032* The use of selected marine materials and BY-PRODUCTS FOR CERTAIN BORTICULTURAL CRCPS. 8.044 NUTRIENT-BUDGET NATURAL MARSBES AS NUTRIENT SINKS FOR AGRICULTURAL **RUNOFF** 4.089 NUTBIENT-CONTENT SENSORY & NUTRITIONAL EVALUATION OF SEAFCODS. 8.043, 9.032* NUTRIENT-CYCLE EFFECTS OF WATER QUALITY PARAMETERS ON FARM FOND VEGETATION AND THEIR INTERACTIONS. 4.176 **MICROBIAL ECOLOGY OF NETRANE PRODUCTION IN AQUATIC** ENVIRONMENTS. 4.220 NITROGEN FIXATION AND ITS EFFECT ON EUTFOPDICATION: IN-POINT AND NON-POINT SCUECE PONDS. 4.157 NUTRIENT-CYCLING MECHANISTIC FACTORS DETERMINE AQUATIC FERTILITY. 4.114 NUTRIENT-INTAKE TEMPERATURE EFFECTS ON XENCFIOTIC ELIMINATICS EV **FISHES. 4.179** NUTRIENT-LEVELS EFFECTS OF WATER QUALITY PARAMETERS CN FARM FCND VEGETATION AND THEIR INTERACTIONS. 4.176 STUDY OF MANURE-ENRICHED FCOD WERS IN MARINE FCND ECOSYSTEMS. 5.016 NUTRIENT-LOSSES NATURAL MARSBES AS NUTRIENT SINKS FOR AGBICULTURAL RUNOFF. 4.088 NUTRITICNAL ASPECTS OF AQUACULTULE SYSTEMS. 5.007, 6.014* NUTRIENT-RECOVERY EVALUATION OF A CLOSED SYSTEM FOR THE CULTURE CF FISE, SHELLFISH AND AQUATIC PLANTS. 5.001, 6.002* NUTRIENT-REMOVAL NATURAL MARSBES AS NUTRIENT SINES FOR AGRICULTURAL EUNCFF. 4.089 NUTRIENT-REQUIREMENTS AQUACULTURE FCR RESOURCE ENBANCEMENT. 1.103, 5.056* BEBAVIOR, ECOLOGY AND REVIENICITY IN THE COMMON ECCE CEAE. 1.059, 4.110* CHANNEL CATFISE NUTRITION. 5.031, 5.033 CONTRCL OF AQUATIC PLANT GECWIB. 3.032 CRUSTACEAN NUTRITION AND FEED DEVELOPMENT. 5.006 EFFECTS OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS AND MANAGEMENT PRACTICES CN COMMERCIAL FRODUCTION OF CRAWFISE. 4.096, 6.047* FRESEWATER FOOD ANIMALS. 5.004, 5.013, 6.022* FRESEWATER SERINP OF THE GENUS WACROBRACHIUM WITH SPECIAL EMPEASIS ON CULTURE. 4.205, 6.094* MICROBIAL ECCLOGY OF METBANE PRODUCTION IN AQUATIC ENVIRONMENTS. 4.220 NUTRITION OF SALMONID FISHES. 5.041 NUTRITICNAL ASPECTS OF AQUACULTURE SYSTEMS. 5.007, 6.014* CPERATICN AND MAINTENANCE OF THE BEPATOMA LABCRATORY. 5.643 USE OF NUTFIENT CONTAINING LIPID VESICLES AS A FOOD SOURCE FOR SBELLFISE OF PACIFIC NORTHWEST. 5.042 NUTRIENT-SINKS NATURAL MARSBES AS NUTHIENT SINKS FOR AGRICULTURAL **RUNOFF**. 4.089

NUTRIENT-SOURCES

DEVELOPMENT OF AN INTEGRATED SYSTEM FOR TOTAL UTILIZATION OF SWINE WASTE. 6.001 EVALUATION OF A CLOSED SYSTEM POE THE CULTURE OF FISH, SHELLFISH AND AQUATIC PLANTS. 5.001, 6.002* FRESEWATER FOOD ANIMALS. 6.099 THE USE OF SELECTED AQUATIC CEGANISMS FOR PUPPCSES CF AQUACULTURE (FOOD PRODUCTION). 3.012, 4.023*, 5.008*, 8.005* NUTLIENT-STATUS PERFORMANCE OF SALMONIDS: SMCITIFICATION, STRESS AND FITNESS. 1.089, 6.077* NUTRIENT-SUPPLEMENTS RECOVERY AND CONVERSION OF CATFISE PROCESSING WASTE INTO VALUABLE FEED SUPPLEMENTS. 8.020 NUTRIENT-UPTAKE EASELINE STUDIES FOR EVALUATING THE RESPONSE OF AN ECCSYSTEM TO THE INTRODUCTION OF WHITE ANUR. 1.018, 3.028*, 4.046* CLOSED CYCLE FISE CULTURE WATER FILTRATICN USING BIOLOGICAL SYSTEMS. 4.105, 6.053* CRUSTACEAN NUTBITION AND FEED DEVELOPMENT. 5.006 NUTEIENT-UPTAKE-PLANTS EFFECTS OF AQUATIC PLANT COMMUNITIES ON WATER QUALITY IN BYPEREUTROPHIC AQUATIC ENVIRONMENT. 4.117 GROWTH AND MINERAL UPTAKE IN THE LEMNACEAE. 4.026 UPTAKE AND MOVEMENT OF BERBICIDES AND NUTBIENTS IN AQUATIC NEED SPECIES. 3.018 BUTRIENTS ADAPTATION FACTORS AND CONTACL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.093, 4.204* AQUATIC RESCURCES OF SILVER CREEK AT THE NATURE CONSERVANCY SITE. 4.075 CHANNEL CATFISE NUTRITION. 5.031 EFFECTS OF DISSOLVED CHEMICALS ON AQUATIC LIFE. 4.078 LINNOLOGICAL PARAMETERS. 4.066 NATURAL MAESHES AS NUTRIENT SINKS FOR AGRICULTURAL RUNOFF. 4.089 NITROGEN FIXATION AND ITS EFFECT ON EUTECFEICATION: IN-POINT AND NON-POINT SOURCE PONDS. 4.157 NUTRIENT INTERACTIONS AND CHANGES IN ALGAL QUALITY IN CAYUGA LAKE. 4.140 BUTRITION ECOLOGY OF SALT MARSBES IN RELATION TO ESTUARIES AND ENEIGY FLCW. 1.016, 4.041*, 5.011* EVALUATION OF RELATIVE PROTEIN PERFORMANCE IN PELLETER FISH RATIONS USING PHYSICLOGICAL INDICES. 5.055 FARM FISE FOND MANAGEMENT. 4.112, 5.030*, 6.055* FCRNULATICN CF FCODS FOR AQUATIC ANIMALS OF ECONOMIC IMPORTANCE. 5.022, 8.016* FRESEWATER FOOD ANIMALS. 5.004, 5.013, 6.022* NUTRITION CP SALMONID FISHES. 5.041 OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF THE BEPATOMA LABORATCRY. 5.043 THE ROLE OF SILTS AND CLAYS IN THE NUTRITION OF ZOOPLANETON. 1.041 NUTRITIVE-VALUE EVALUATION OF AQUATIC PLANTS AS POTENTIAL FEEDSTUFP FOR DAIRY CATTLE. 9.013 EVALUATION OF BY-PRODUCTS FROM CATFISE PROCESSING WASTE FCR CATHISE FEED SUPPLEMENTS. 5.032, 8.030* RECOVERY AND UTILIZATION OF SERIMP AND CRAWFISE PROCESSING BYPRODUCTS. 8.017 OCEANS DEVELOPMENT OF FISE PROTECTIVE SYSTEMS FOR WATER INTAKES. 4.022 IMPACTS OF THE CONSTRUCTION AND OPERATION OF COASTAL NUCLEAR POWER PLANTS CN ESTUAFINE ECOLOGY. 4.160 ODOR UTILIZATION OF LATENT MARINE RESOURCES AND EY-PRODUCTS WASTE. 8.041 OFF-FLAVORS

- FRESHWATER FOOD ANIMALS. 6.006, 8.001*, 9.002*, 10.002* IDENTIFICATION OF OFF-FLAVOR COMPOUND SOURCES FOR
- IDENTIFICATION OF OFF-FLAVOR COMPOUND SOURCES FOR PISH AND WATER FROM THE UPPER WISCONSIN BIVES. 9.043
- ROLE OF LIPIDS AND THEIR CXIDATICN IN FISH QUALITY- $9{\scriptstyle\,{\bullet}}024$

OFFAL EVALUATION OF PESTICIDE LEVELS IN CATFISH PROCESSING WASTES. 9.001 ECONOM. IMPORTANT DISEASES OF BIVALVE SHELLFISH, INCLUDING THEIR PREVENTION, CONTROL AND ERADICATION. 4.139 POPULATION CHARACTERISTICS OF TEXAS GULF OF MEXICO FISHES. 1.097 QUALITY CONTROL OF CANNED SQUID. 9.018 RECOVERY AND CONVERSION OF CATFISE PRCCESSING WASTE INTO VALUABLE FEED SUPPLEMENTS. 8.020 UTILIZATION OF LATENT MAKINE RESCURCES AND EY-PRODUCTS WASTE. 8.041 OIL-SHALE TOXIC EFFECTS ON THE AQUATIC BIGTA FROM COAL AND OIL SHALE DEVELOPMENT. 4.034 **OPTIMATIZATION** NECHANISTIC FACTORS DETERMINE AQUATIC FERTILITY. 4.114 **OPTINIZATION** MANAGEMENT OF A MULTIPLE CCEOFT FISHERY: THE HARD CLAM RESOURCES IN GREAT SOUTH FAY. 10.028 NATHEMATICAL MODEL OF OYSTER POPULATION IN THE CBESAPEAKE BAY. 1.053, 6.051* ORGANIC-MATTER NICROBIAL ECOLOGY OF METBANE PRODUCTION IN AQUATIC ENVIRONMENTS. 4.220 WATER QUALITY ENHANCEMENT OF LAKES BY MECHANICAL PUMPING. 4.088, 6.039* OFGANIC-PROSPEATES CBENICAL CONTROL OF NOSQUITCES OF NUISANCE AND BEALTH INFORTANCE. 4.133 ORGANIZATION ECONOMIC DESCRIPTION OF THE NEW JERSEY COMMERCIAL PISEING INDUSTRY. 10.025 ORGANS A COMPARISON OF THE ACCUMULATION RATES OF P ABSORBED BY THE VITAL OFGANS OF FISE. 4.156, 5.039* FUNCTIONAL NORPHOLOGY OF INVERTEBRATE ORGAN SYSTEMS. 1.071 ORNAMENTALS THE USE OF SELECTED MARINE MATERIALS AND EY-PRODUCTS FCR CERTAIN BORTICULTURAL CROPS. 8.044 ORTBOCLADINAE TAXONOMY, BIOLOGY, AND ECOLOGICAL RELATIONSEIPS OF AQUATIC INSECTS. 4.120 OSHOSIS OSMORPGULATORY RESPONSES OF DESERT PUPFISE: A STUDY **NODEL OF PHYSICLCGICAL ADAPTATION TO** ENVIRONMENT. 1.003. 4.010* OTOLITES AGE AND GROWTH OF FISE: A FIELD AND LAECHATCRY APPRCACE. 1.068 APPLICATION OF OTOLITE MICROSTRUCTURAL DATA TO STUDIES OF THE EARLY LIFE BISTORY OF FISHES. 1.070 THE FINE STRUCTURE OF FISE CTOLITES: ENDCGENCUS AND ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS. 1.069 OUTDOOR-RECREATION AN ECONCHIC EVALUATION OF THE RECREATIONAL SALMON FISEING IN THE KENAL/RUSSIAN FIVER REGION. 10.036 CHARACTERISTICS, PREFERENCES, AND ATTITUDES CONCERNING PRIVATE FEE-FISEING OPERATIONS. 10.048 OUTPUTS NATURAL MAESBES AS NUTRIENT SINKS FOR AGRICULTURAL RUNOFF. 4.089 OVA DEVELOP OF AQUACULTURE SYSTEMS FOR COOL WATER FISH SPECIES. 2.028, 5.057*, 6.102* OVARIES MOLECULAR ENDOCEINOLOGY OF MOLTING AND REPRODUCTION IN CRUSTACEANS. 1.005, 1.005 THE EFFECTS OF DIET ON THE RISK CF CANCER. 9.020 **OVERWINTERING** WILD VERSUS BATCHERY TRCUT. 1.026. 4.058* OWNERS EFFECTS OF THE TAX REFORM ACT OF 1976 CN NEW ENGLAND VESSEL OWNERS AND CREW. 10.041 OXBOWS ECOLOGICAL STUDY OF CUTOFF BENDWAYS AND OXBOWS WITEIN THE TENNESSEE-TOMEIGHEE WATERWAY. 4.124 OXIDATION

ENZYMATIC CONTROL OF QUALITY FACTORS IN MARINE BUMAN NUTRITICN IMPROVEMENT. 8.022 INVEST. OF THE BOLE OF LARVAL AMERICAN CYSTERS FCODS. 8.026 EVALUATION OF THE STABILITY AND EDIBLE QUALITY OF FRESH WATER SERINF. 8.019 WARINE FOOT SCIENCE AND TECENCIOGY. 8.003, S.004* (CHASSOSIBLA VIRCINICA) AS CARRIERS OF CYSTER DISEASE. 3.071 LUMINOUS FACTERIA AS INCICATORS OF SEELLFISE CPERATING FARANETERS OF LAGCONS FOR DISPOSAL OF CONTAMINATION BY PATHOGENIC VIBRICS. 4.144 MATHEMATICAL MCDEL OF OYSTER FOFULATION IN THE UTILIZATION OF DAIRY EARM AND FROCESSING PLANT CHESAPFARE EAY. 1.052, 6.051* WASTE. 8.014 FIGMENTS OF MEAT AND FISE PRODUCTS (CFF-CCLCRS IN TUNA). 8.002, 9.003* RCLE OF LIFIDS AND THEIR OXIDATION IN FISE QUALITY. 9.024 THE OXIDATIVE DETERIORATION OF LIPIDS IN MECHANICALLY DEECNED POULTRY AND FISH. 9.009 OXIDATION-REDUCTION EFFECTS OF AQUATIC PLANT COMMUNITIES ON WATER QUALITY IN HYPEREUTROPHIC AQUATIC ENVIRONMENT. 4.117 OXIDATIVE-STABILITY THE CRIDATIVE DETERICRATICN OF LIFIDS IN MECHANICALLY DEBONED FOULTRY AND FISH. 9.009 OXYGHE BIOLOGICAL ANALYSIS OF THE AGE AND GROWTH RATE OF THE OCEAN QUABOG ARCTICA ISLANDICA. 4.138 CLOSED CYCLE FISH CULTURE WATER FILTRATICN USING BIOLOGICAL SYSTEMS. 4.105, 6.053* CCMPARATIVE PHYSIOLOGICAL STUDIES OF VERTERFATE EYES. 1.062 EFFECTS CF AQUATIC PLANT COMMUNITIES ON WATER QUALITY IN HYPEREUTROPHIC AQUATIC ENVIRONMENT. 4.117 ENVIRONMENTAL GILL DISEASE IN RAINBOW TRCUT. 3.045 ENVIRONMENTAL RECUIREMENTS OF POTENTIAL ACUACULTURE PACKAGING FISH SPICIES. 4.027 FEASIBILITY CF CAGED FISH CULTURE IN NORTH CENTRAL OELAHCMA FARM PONES. 4.173, 6.073*, 10.035* PHYSIOLOGY OF CHESAPEAKE EAY PHYTCPLANETCN. 1.054, 4.107* PRAWN AQUACULTURE PROGRAM - BIOLOGICAL BASIS OF PRODUCTION. 2.008, 6.030* PACKING RESEARCH IN SYSTEMS ECOLOGY. 4.141 RESPONSE OF AQUATIC LIFE TO SALINITY, TEMPERATURE, DISSOLVED OXYGEN AND WATER FLCW. 4.024 WEIGHT GAIN OF FISH. 5.018 GITGEN-CONSUNPTION ACUACULTURAL WASTEWATER MANAGEMENT AND UTILIZATION IN HAWAII. 4.053, 6.029* PADDLEFISH ECOLOGY OF SALT WARSHES IN RELATION TO ESTUARIES AND ENERGY FLCW. 1.016, 4.041*, 5.011* NITROGEN METABOLISM OF FRESHWATER PRAWNS IN PAKISTAN RELATICN TO DIET. 5.015 OXYGEN-DEMAND AQUACULTURAL WASTEWATER MANAGEMENT AND UTILIZATION IN HAWAII. 4.053, 6.029± **GITGEN-TENSICN** CCMPARATIVE PHYSIOLOGICAL STUDIES OF VERTERATE EYES. 1.062 SWIMBLADDER INFLATION IN LARVAE OF PHYSOCILISTOUS FISHES. 1.007 TRANSMISSION AND IMMUNOLOGY OF CHANNEL CATFISH VIRUS DISEASE OF CULTURED CATFISH. 3.002 OXYGENATION ABATEMENT OF EUTROPHICATION RESULTING FROM INTENSIVE ANIMAL PRODUCTION. 4.195, 6.080* OYSTER-DRILL PARASITES CYSTER DRILL CONTROL HY BYDRAULIC DREDGING IN DELAWARE HAY. 6.064 OYSTERS BIOLOGICAL FEASIBILITY OF INTENSIFIED OYSTER CULTURE. 4.178, 5.040*, 6.074* HIOSYNTHESIS OF STERCLS IN THE OYSTER AND CORRELATION OF STEROL COMPOSITION TO CYSTER PRODUCT IVITY. 1.055, 5.027* DEVELOPMENT AND EVALUATION OF CYSTER BARVESTING EQUIPMENT AND MARICULTURE SYSTEMS. 6.084, 7.013* DIAGNESIS AND PATHOGENESIS OF DISEASES AND PARASITES IN MAJOR MOLLUSCAN AQUACULTURE SPECIES. 3.088 DISEASE-RESISTANT OYSTERS. 2.015, 3.067* DISEASES OF AQUATIC ANIMALS. 3.013 ECONCM. IMEOFTANT DISEASES OF HIVALVE SHELLFISH, INCLUDING THEIR PREVENTION, CONTROL AND ERADICATION. 4.139 ECONCHICS OF PRODUCING AND MARKETING LONG ISLAND SOUND OYSTERS. 10.006 EQUIPMENT FOR MECHANIZATION OF PRODUCTION OF OYSTERS AND OTHER SHELLFISH. 6.083, 7.012*

MICROBIOLOCICAL ASPECTS TO SHELLFISH SANITATION AND QUALITY. 7.014, 8.047*, 8.037* MCLLUSCAN BATCHERY TECHNOLCCY. 6.075 NATURAL SEED OYSTER PEDS OF THE CELAWARE FAY. 3.066, 4.135*, 6.062* CYSTER CRILL CONTROL BY BYDRAULIC PREDGING IN DELAWARE EAY. 6.Co4 CYSTER FRODUCTION EQUIPMENT DEVELOPMENT. 4.052, 6.028* PRODUCTION ECONOMICS OF AQUACULTUPE SPECIES IN BAWAII. 10.009 REGULATORY PROBLEMS OF LOUISIANA FOOD INDUSTRIES. S.017 SYSTEMS ANALYSIS OF INTENSIVE ACUACULTURE: A CASE STUDY OF CYSTER PRODUCTION. 6.026, 10.011* THE USE OF SELECTED MARINE MATERIALS AND EY-PRODUCTS FOR CERTAIN BORTICULTURAL CRCFS. 8.044 USE OF NUTRIENT CONTAINING LIFID VESICLES AS A FOOD SOURCE FOR SHELLFISH OF PACIFIC NORTHWEST. 5.042 WATER QUALITY CHANGES IN CYSTEF FROCESSING. 8.025 DEVELOPMENT OF IMPROVED BANCLING, SEIPPING/STORAGE AND MARKETING PRACTICES FCF FISHERY FRODUCTS. 7.010, 8.035*, 9.030* METHODS OF MODIFIED-ATMOSPHERE FRESERVATION OF REFRIGERATED FRESH FISH. 7.016, 8.048* FOST-BARVEST BANDLING AND PROCESSING CF MACROBRACEIUM PRAWNS. 7.003, 8.012*, S.011* PROCESSING QUALITY AND PACKAGING FACTORS WHICH AFFECT THE UTILIZATION OF FISE AND SEELLFISE. 8.046. 9.036* REGULATORY PROBLEMS OF LOUISIANA FOOD INCUSTRIES. 9.017 ADULT PADDLEFISE MOVEMENT IN FCCL 13, UPPER MISSISSIPPI RIVER. 1.034 CONTROL AND ERADICATION OF AQUATIC WEEDS IN LAKES AND INFOUNDED WATERS. 3.107 PALAEMONETES ESTUARINE INVESTEBRATE BEHAVICR; AN INDEX OF SUBACUTE TOXICITY OF AQUATIC HERBICIDES. 1.075, 3.075*, 8.040* PALATABILITY EVALUATION OF ACUATIC PLANTS AS POTENTIAL FEEDSTUFF FOR CAIRY CATTLE. 9.013 IMPRCVING SURFACE WATER CONDITIONS THROUGE CONTICL AND DISPOSAL OF AQUATIC VEGETATION. 7.015 PAROPEUS-BERESTII ANALYSIS CF PREDATION OF MERCENARIA MERCENARIA EY DECAPOD CRUSTACEANS. 1.685, 3.091* A COMPARATIVE STUDY OF THE EINE STRUCTURE CF APOSTCHE CILIATES. 3.076 A STUDY OF THE MICROHIOLOGICAL FLORA OF CRNAMENTAL FISEES. 3.040 COOPERATIVE FISH PARASITE AND DISEASE STUDY. 3.004 CULTURE AND MANAGEMENT OF SELECTED GAME EISEES. 3.092, 4.203*, 6.091* DETECTION TRANSMISSION AND FATHOGENESIS OF DISEASE CRGANISMS IN AQUACULTURE SPECIES. 3.087 DETERMINATION OF EFFICACY OF CERTAIN ANTI-PARASITIC DEUGS FOR FISHES. 3.041, 3.041 DIAGNOSIS AND PATHOGENESIS OF DISEASES AND PARASITES IN MAJOR MCLLUSCAN AQUACULTURE SPECIES. 3.088 FRESEWATER FCCD ANIMALS. 3.003, 3.043, 4.198, 5.048* BELMINTH PARASITES OF VERTEERATES IN NOWTH CAROLINA. 3.078

HOST-PARASITE RELATIONSHIPS HETWEEN THE CHANNEL CATFISH AND ICHTHYOPETHIKIUS MULTIFILIIS. 3.050 LINNOLOGY OF FARM PONDS. 1.082, 6.071*

MICRCHIAL AND PARASITIC DISEASES OF SERINF AND FISH. 3.055

NEMATODE PARASITES OF FRESHWATER FISH: BICLOGY AND EFFECIS. 3.014 STUDY OF PATEOLOGY OF FISHES FROM LAKE HYCC, NCRTH CARCLINA. 3.079 SURVEY OF DISEASES OF CULTURED FRESEWATER FISHES CF CALIFORNIA. 3.009 PARATRION BISTOPATEOLOGIC AND BISTCCBEMICAL INDICES OF SUBLETHAL PESTICIDE TOXICATION IN FISH. 3.086, 4.189* PARTICULATES THE ROLE OF SILTS AND CLAYS IN THE NUTRITICN CF ZOCPLANETON. 1.041 PASTEURIZATION EFFECIS OF LIVESTOCK GRAZING PRACTICES ON THE WATER QUALITY OF STREAMS. 4.223 PATEOGEN-BIOLOGY RIGLOGY AND CONTROL OF AQUATIC ANIMAL DISPASES. 3.054 PATHOGEN-IDENTIFICATION DETECTION TRANSMISSION AND PATEOGENESIS OF DISEASE OFGANISMS IN AQUACULTURE SPECIES. 3.087 DISEASES OF AQUATIC ANIMALS. 3.013 SURVEY OF CISEASES OF CULTURED FRESEWATER FISHES OF CALIFCRNIA. 3.009 PATHOGENESIS AQUACULTURE PATHOLOGY. 3.010 BACTERIAL MIDNEY DISEASE IN WAINECW TROUT: PATHOGENESIS, IMMUNITY, AND EFFECT OF WATER HARDNESS. 3.070 DETECTION TRANSMISSION AND PATHOGENESIS OF DISEASE ORGANISMS IN AQUACULTURE SPECIES. 3.087 DIAGNOSIS AND PATHOGENESIS CF DISEASES AND PARASITES IN MAJOR MOLLUSCAN AQUACULTURE SPECIES. 3.088 DISEASE MANAGEMENT IN CATFISH AQUACUITURE. 3.097 DISEASES OF SHELLFISE. 3.074 FISE MOREIDITY AND NORTALITY RELATED TO ENVIRONMENTAL CHANGES AND/CR INTENSIVE CULTURE METHODS. 4.193 EISTOPATHOLOGIC AND BISTCCHEMICAL INDICES CF SUBLETHAL PESTICIDE TOXICATION IN FISH. 3.086, 4.189* PATEOLOGY AND PATEOGENESIS OF CATHISE DISEASES. 3.099 TOXICITY OF AEROMONAS EYDROPHILIA EXOTOXINS IN CHANNEL CATFISH. 3.052 PATEOGENICITY COOPERATIVE FISE PARASITE AND DISEASE STUDY. 3.004 DETECTION TRANSMISSION AND PATHOGENESIS OF DISEASE ORGANISMS IN AQUACULTURE SPECIES. 3.087 PATHOGENS CCOPERATIVE FISH PARASITE AND DISEASE STUDY. 3.004 PEANUT-MEAL PRACTICAL FEED FORMULATIONS AND FEEDING PRACTICES FOR CATFISE FARMING IN MS. 5.035, 6.058*, 8.031* PRILETS CRUSTACEAN NUTRITION AND FEED DEVELOPMENT. 5.006 FEASIBILITY OF CAGED FISE CULTURE IN NORTE CENTRAL OKLAHOMA FARM PONDS. 4.173, 6.073*, 10.035* PENAEUS FORMULATION OF FOODS FOR AQUATIC ANIMALS CF ECONOMIC IMPORTANCE. 5.022, 8.016* MOLECULAR ENDOCRINOLOGY CF WCLTING AND REFECDUCTION IN CRUSTACEANS. 1.005 PENAEIDAE GAMETES, THEIR STRUCTURE, ACTIVATION AND FUSION. 1.006 SBRIMP MATURATION, REPRODUCTION, DEVELOPMENT, NUTRITICN, INTENSIVE-EXTENSIVE CULTURE AND MARICULTURE. 5.052, 6.092* PERAEUS-STYLIFOSTEIS MANURE-ENRICEED FOOD WEES IN MARINE POND ECCSYSTEMS. 5.017 STUDY OF MANURE-ENRICEED FOOD WERS IN MARINE FOND BCOSYSTEMS. 5.016 PERCA-FLAVESCENS BIOLOGY AND SPORT FISHING BARVEST OF YELLCW PERCH. 4.082 PERCE AN EVALUATION OF STRIPED EASS X WHITE BASS EVERIDS AND STRIPED HASS X WHITE PERCE HYBRIDS. 2.018. 6.070± AQUACULTURE FOR RESOURCE ENBANCEMENT. 1.103, 5.056* EIOLOGY AND SPORT FISHING HARVEST OF YELLCW PERCH. 4.082

CONTROL AND ERADICATION OF AQUATIC WEEDS IN LAKES AND IMPCUNDED WATERS. 3.107

DEVELOP OF AQUACULTURE SYSTEMS FOR CCCL WATER FISH SPECIES. 2.028, 5.057*, 6.102* INTRODUCTION OF WALLEYE AND NORLUNGE FINGEBLINGS INTO A LAKE DOMINATED BY PREY SPECIES. 1.074 PERFORMANCE DEVELOPMENT AND EVALUATION OF OYSTER HARVESTING EQUIPMENT AND MARICULTURE SYSTEMS. 6.084, 7.013* EVALUATION OF RELATIVE PROTEIN PERPORMANCE IN PELLETED FISH RATIONS USING PHYSICLOGICAL INDICES. S.055 PERFUSION CCMPARATIVE PHYSIOLOGICAL STUDIES OF VERTEPRATE EYES. 1.062 EFFECTS OF POLLUTANTS ON GILLS CF FRESHWATER FISBES. 3.060, 4.119* PERIPHYTON NECHANISTIC FACTORS DETERMINE ACUATIC FRETILITY. 4.114 PERIWINKLES **BUMAN NUTRITION INPROVEMENT. 8.022** PERNEABILITY EFFECTS OF POLLUTANTS ON GILLS CF FRESHWATER FISHES. 3.060, 4.119* PEROXIDATION MODE OF ACTICN AND INFLUENCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS ON THE TOXICITY OF SEVERAL AQUATIC HERHICIDES. 3.100, 4.218* PERSISTENCE MODELS TO ASSESS EIOMAGNIFICATION POTENTIAL OF PERSISTENT TOXIC SUBSTANCES IN AQUATIC FCCD **CHAINS**. 4.149 WEED CONTROL IN RICE PRODUCTION. 3.006, 4.008* PEST-CONTROL IMPROVEMENT OF OGO PRODUCTION AND MARKETING IN BAWAII. 6.031, 10.012*SELECTIVE CEENICALS FOR THE CONTEOL OF THE TERBESPINE STICKLEBACK. 3.047 PEST-MANAGENENT A SURVEY FOR PATHOGEN FOR AQUATIC WEEDS IN CALIFCENIA FOR USE IN HICLOGICAL CONTROL. 3.008, 4.009* EIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS WITE INSECTS. 3.038 BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF WEEDS WITH EMPHASIS ON AQUATIC BABITATS. 3.033 WANAGEWENT STRATEGIES FCR FICE PESTS. 3.005 TAXONOMY AND WOFPHOLOGY OF NEMATODES. 3.027 PESTICIDE-ACCUMULATION ACCUMULATION AND DEGRADATION OF SOME BERBICIDES BY ALGAE. 4.172 PESTICIDE-DEGRADATION ACCUMULATION AND DEGRADATION OF SOME BERFICIDES BY ALGAE. 4.171, 4.172, 4.174 PESTICIDE-FORMULATIONS INSECTICIDES AND THEIR PORNULATIONS. 4-131 PESTICIDE-METABOLISM ACCUMULATION AND DEGRADATION OF SOME BERBICIDES BY ALGAE. 4.171 EFFECTS OF BEREICIDES ON CHESAPEAKE EAY PETTOPLANKION. 4.106 FATE AND EFFECTS OF ATRAZINE IN SALT MARSH ECOSYSTEMS. 4.001 FEYSIOLCGICAL STUDIES OF ACUATIC AND DITCE BANK WEEDS IN THE FACIFIC NORTHWEST. 3.101 PESTICIDE-NOVEMENT FHYSIOLCGICAL STUDIES OF ACUATIC AND DITCH BANK WEEDS IN THE PACIFIC NORTHWEST. 3.101 RELEASE OF ADSCREED PESTICIDES INTO WATER. 4-175 PESTICIDE-PERSISTENCE ACCUMULATION AND DEGRADATICN OF SOME BEFEICIDES BY ALGAE. 4.174 RELEASE OF ADSORBED PESTICIDES INTO WATER. 4.175 PESTICIDE-RESIDUES EVALUATION OF PESTICIDE LEVELS IN CATFISE PROCESSING WASTES. 9.001 FATE AND EFFECTS OF ATRAZINE IN SALT MARSE ECOSYSTENS. 4.001 FATE AND EFFECTS OF TOXICANTS IN AGRICULTURAL AND ENVIRONMENTAL FOOD CRAINS. 4.154 BISTOPATECLCGIC AND BISTOCHEMICAL INDICES OF SUBLETHAL PESTICIDE TOXICATION IN FISE. 3.086, 4.189* IMPRCVING THE ASSURANCE OF QUALITY AND SAFETY OF CONSUMER'S FOCD. 9.031 WIREX FEEDING STUDY IN CHANNEL CATFISE (ICTALURUS

PUNCTATUS). 4.123, 9.022* PEYSIOLOGICAL STUDIES OF AQUATIC AND DITCE HANK WEEDS IN THE PACIFIC NORTHWEST. 3.101

RELEASE OF ADSORBED PESTICIDES INTO WATER, 4.175 STUDIES OF THE ECONOMICALLY IMPORTANT SPECIES: MEECENAFIA MERCENARIA AND MACROBRACHIUM ROSENBE FGII. 1.094, 6.085* TOXICITY AND ECOLOGICAL EFFECTS CF SELECTED INSECTICIDES AND EEFBICIDES. 4.122 WEED CONTROL IN MICE PRODUCTION. 3.006, 4.008* PESTICIDE-UPIAKE EFFECTS CF HERBICIDES ON CHESAPEAKE BAY PHYTOPLANKION. 4.106 PESTICIDES ACCUMULATION AND DEGRADATION OF SOME BEREICIDES BY ALGAE. 4.174 EFFECTS OF ANTIMYCIN ON STREAM INSECTS. 3.102, 4.222* EFFECTS OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS AND MANAGEMENT PRACTICES ON COMMERCIAL PECDUCTION OF CRAWFISH. 4.096, 6.047* EFFECTS OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONTAMINANTS ON GEORGIA FARM POND FISBES. 4.051, 6.025* EFFECTS OF HERBICIDES ON CHESAPEAKE EAY PRYTOPLANETON, 4,106 EVALUATION OF PESTICIDE LEVELS IN CATFISH PROCESSING WASTES. 9.001 FACTORS AFFECTING FISH PCPULATIONS OF IOWA STREAMS. 1.039, 4.086* FATE AND EFFECTS OF TOXICANTS IN AGRICULTURAL AND ENVIRONMENTAL FOOD CHAINS. 4.154 BISTOPATHCLOGIC AND HISTCCHEMICAL INDICES OF SUBLETHAL PESTICIDE TOXICATION IN FISH. 3.086, 4.189* MANAGEMENT TECHNIQUES FCF INCREASING CRAWFISE PRODUCTION. 6.046, 7.006* MICROCCSM WODELING OF THE RESPONSE OF PERSISTENT AQUATIC COMMUNITIES TO A TOXICANT. 4.182 MODELS TO ASSESS BIOMAGNIFICATION POTENTIAL OF PEESISTENT TOXIC SUBSTANCES IN AQUATIC FOOD CHAINS. 4.149 RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN PESTICIDES AND GEORGIA FARM POND ECCSYSTEMS. 4.050 RELEASE CF ADSORBED PESTICIDES INTO WATER. 4.175 TOXICOLOGICAL AND ECCLOGICAL EFFECTS OF TOXICANTS. 4.186 PETROLEUN ECONON. IMFORTANT DISEASES OF HIVALVE SHELLFISH, INCLUDING THEIR PREVENTION, CONTROL AND BRADICATION. 4.138 RESEARCH IN SYSTEMS ECOLOGY. 4.141 PETS A STUDY OF THE MICROEIOLOGICAL FLORA OF CRNAMENTAL FISHES. 3.040 PH A COMPARISON OF THE ACCUMULATION RATES OF P ABSORBED HY THE VITAL ORGANS OF FISH. 4.156, 5.039* **BIOFILTER FEFFORMANCE FACTORS. 4.065. 4.069** CLOSED CYCLE FISH CULTURE WATER FILTRATION USING BIOLOGICAL SYSTEMS. 4.105, 6.053* DISEASES OF A QUACULTURE SPECIES. 3.044 EFPECTS OF ANTIMYCIN ON STREAM INSECTS. 3.102, 4.222* EFFECTS OF A CUATIC PLANT COMMUNITIES ON WATER QUALITY IN HYPEREUTROPHIC AQUATIC ENVIRCEMENT. 4.117 EFFECTS OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONTAMINANTS ON GEORGIA FARM POND FISHES. 4.051, 6.02S* FISH PHYSICLOGY IN RESPONSE TO WATER QUALITY AND CHEMISTRY. 4.211 MODE OF ACTION AND INFLUENCE OF ENVIECEMENTAL FACTORS ON THE TORICITY OF SEVERAL AQUATIC HERBICIDES. 3.100, 4.218* ULTRASTRUCTURAL CHANGES IN TELEOST GILLS: EFFECTS OF SUETIE ALTERATIONS IN THE ENVISONMENT. 3.053, 4.098* PRALARIS-ARUNDINACEA PHYSIOLOGICAL STUDIES OF AQUATIC AND DITCH BANK WEEDS IN THE PACIFIC NORTHWHST. 3.101 PEARMACORINETICS TEMPERATURE EFFECTS ON XENOBIOTIC ELIMINATION BY PISHES. 4.179 PHARMACOLOGY TCRICOLOGICAL AND ECOLOGICAL EFFECTS OF TOXICANTS. 4.186 PHEBOLIC-COMPOUNDS TEMPERATURE EFFECTS ON RENOHIOTIC ELIMINATION BY FISHES. 4.179 PEENOLOGY

ECOLOGY OF PURPLE LCOSESTRIFE (LYTHRUM SALICARIA). 3.073 BORMONAL REGULATION OF GROWIN, DEVELOPMENT AND VEGETATIVE PROPAGATION OF SUBMERSED AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.020 PERNOXY-ACETIC-ACID ACCUMULATION AND DEGRADATION OF SOME BERBICIDES BY ALGAE. 4.171 ALGAL METABOLISM IN THE PRESENCE OF HERBICIDES. 4.170 PRENTL-ETSYLANINE EIOLOGICALLY ACTIVE AMINES IN FCOD. 8.009 PBOSPBATE UPTAKE AND NOVEWENT OF BERBICIDES AND NUTRIENTS IN AQUATIC WEED SPECIES. 3.019 PBOSPHATES A COMPARISON OF THE ACCUNULATION RATES OF P ABSORBED BY THE VITAL ORGANS OF FISH. 4.156. 5.039* PIGMENTS OF MEAT AND FISE PRODUCTS (OPF-COLORS IN TUNA). 8.002, 9.003* QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE STUDIES CF PCLLUTION IN SELECTED FARM PONDS. 4.155 UTILIZATION OF AQUATIC PLANTS FOR WASTE TREATMENT AND ANIMAL FEEDS. 1.043, 5.023* PEOSPEOLIPASE ENZYMATIC CONTRCL OF QUALITY FACTORS IN MARINE FOODS. 8.026 PROSPHORUS NATURAL MARSHES AS NUTRIENT SINKS FCK AGKICULTURAL **RUNCFF.** 4.089 NUTFIENT INTERACTIONS AND CHANGES IN ALGAL QUALITY IN CAYUGA LAKE. 4.140 PCND FERTILIZATION AND LIMING. 4.002, 5.003* PROTONICROGRAPHS COMPARATIVE PHYSIOLOGICAL STUDIES OF VERTEERATE EYES. 1.062 PEOTOPERIOD ACTIVITY REVIEWS OF THE NORTHERN FOCK CRAB IN RELATION TO ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL FACTORS. 1.057, 4.109* AGE AND GROWTH OF FISH; A FIELD AND LABORATORY APPROACE. 1.068 EEHAVIOF ECOLOGY AND RHYTHMICITY IN THE FOCK CRAES, CANCER IRRORATUS AND CANCER FOREALIS, PEASE II. 1.058, 5.028* BEHAVIOR, ECOLOGY AND RHYTHMICITY IN THE COMMON ROCK CRAB. 1.059, 4.110* DEVELOFMENT CF METHODS FOR WASS PRODUCTION AND MANAGEMENT OF EULLFROGS. 2.013. 4.093* INTENSIVE CULTURE OF TILAPIA IN GEOTHERMAL WATERS IN THE SAN LUIS VALLEY, COLCRADO. 2.005, 6.017* THE PHYSIOLOGY AND CONTROL OF VEGETATIVE REPRODUCTION IN HYDRILLA (HYDRILLA VERTICILLATA ROYLE). 3.024 PROTORESPIRATION PHOTOSYNTHESIS AND PHOTORESFIRATION IN AQUATIC **PLANTS. 1.017** PHOTOSYNTHESIS ALGAL METABOLISM IN THE PRESENCE CF BEREICIDES. 4.170 EFFECTS OF DISSOLVED CHENICALS ON AQUATIC LIFE. 4.078 EFFECTS OF HERHICIDES ON CHESAPEAKE HAY PHYTCPLANKTON. 4.106 MODE OF ACTION AND INFLUENCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS ON THE TOXICITY OF SEVERAL AQUATIC HERBICIDES. 3.100, 4.218* MORPHOLOGICAL, ULTRASTRUCTURAL, AND BIOCHEMICAL CHARACTERIZATION OF NANOPLANETCN FECH CHESAPEAKE EAY. 1.056, 4.108* PBOTCSYNTHESIS AND PHOTCRESFIFATION IN AQUATIC PLANTS. 1.017 THE PHYSICLCGICAL BASIS FOR MANAGING TIDAL WARSH VEGETATION. 4.197 THE PHYSIOLOGY AND CONTROL CF VEGETATIVE **REPRODUCTION IN HYDRILLA (BYDRILLA VERTICILLATA** ECYLE). 3.024 PETBALATE-ESTERS **WODELS TC ASSESS BICMAGNIFICATION POTENTIAL OF** PERSISTENT TOXIC SUBSTANCES IN AQUATIC FCCD CHAINS. 4.149 PHTHALIC-ACID

EFFECTS CF AN ALTERED TEMPERATURE REGIME AND CREMICAL CONTAMINANTS ON THE AQUATIC ECCSYSTEM. 3.062, 4.127* PBILOGENY

ZCOGEOGRAPHY AND ECCLOGY OF FISHES IN PENNSYLVANIA. I.093, 4.190* PHYSICAL-CHANGES DEVELOPMENT OF RAPID SEAFOOD QUALITY TESTS FOR CONMERCIAL AND REGULATORY USE. 9.015 ECOLOGICAL STUDIES OF THE NAVARRC AND GARCIA ESTUAPIES, WITH EMPHASIS CN THE FISHES. 4.028 PRYSICAL-CHARACTERISTICS ECOLOGY AND MANAGEMENT OF STREAM AND STREAM FISHES. 1.061 FISH POPULATION AND PRODUCTION IN POND AND LAKE IMPOUNDMENTS. 4.208, 6.095* PCISCNOUS DINOFLAGELLATES AND SHELLFISH POISONING. 9.042 PHYSICAL-PROPERTIES CHARACTERIZATION OF GONAD-STIMULATING SUBSTANCES IN MARINE ANIMALS. I.020, 2.006* EFFECTS OF DISSOLVED CHENICALS ON AQUATIC LIFE. 4.078 MECHANICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.022 SHEAR PROPERTIES OF FROZEN FISH FILLET HLOCKS. 8.024, 8.019* WATER QUALITY STUDY. 4.033 PHYSIOLOGICAL-RE SPON SE CHRCNIC TURHIDITY AND STRESS IN JUVENILE COHO SALMON AND STEELBEAD TROUT. 1.088, 4.184* ECOLOGY OF NOSQUITOES ASSOCIATED WITH CALIFORNIA RICE FIELDS. 4.015 EXPERIMENTAL FISH ECCLOGY. 1.098, 4.207* FISH PEYSICLOGY IN RESPONSE TO WATER QUALITY AND CHEMISTRY. 4.211 PHYSIOLOGY HACTERIAL SURVIVAL AND RECOVERY MECHANISMS: SIGNIFICANCE IN MARINE ENVIRONMENT. 4.188 ENVIRONMENTAL REQUIREMENTS OF POTENTIAL AQUACULTURE FISE SPECIES. 4.027 PRYTOPHAGOUS-INSECTS HIOLOGICAL AGENTS FOR CONTROL OF HYDRILLA, A SUBNERSED AQUATIC WEED. 3.023 HICLOGICAL CONTROL AGENTS OF BYDRILLA VERTICILLATA. 3.109 BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF EURASIAN MILFOIL AND OTHER AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.106 HIOLOGICAL CONTRCL OF WEEDS. 3.104 HIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF WEEDS WITH EMPHASIS CN AQUATIC HABITATS. 3.033 IDENTIFICATION OF INSECTS FOR BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.036 IMPORTATION AND EVALUATION OF INSECTS POR HIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF WEEDS AND INSECT PESTS. 3.037 ORGANISMS ASSOCIATED WITH AQUATIC WEEDS AND THE HIOLOGICAL CONTROL WATER-HYACINTE IN EGYPT. 3.105 PETTOPLANKTON ECOLOGICAL STUDY OF CUTOFF BENDWAYS AND OXHOWS WITEIN THE TENNESSEE-TCMBIGHEE WATERWAY. 4.124 ECOLOGICAL STUDY OF LAKE WALES, FLORIDA AFTER INTRODUCTION OF WHITE AMUE (CTENOPHARYNGCDCN IDELLA). 4.047 EFFECTS OF HERHICIDES ON CHESAPEAKE HAY PHYTCFLANKTON. 4.106 NUTRIENT INTERACTIONS AND CHANGES IN ALGAL QUALITY IN CAYUGA LAKE. 4.140 QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE STUDIES OF POLLUTION IN SELECTED FARM PONDS. 4.155 RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN SALT MAESH AND ESTUARINE ANIMAL COMMUNITIES AND ENERGY EXCHANGE. 4.040. 5.010* SCOFE OF WORK FOR FRELIMINARY STUDY OF PRIMARY AND SECONDARY PRODUCTION OF THE ST. LAWRENCE RIVER. 4.150 SPOKANE RIVER LIMNCLCGY. 4.067 STREAM AND IMPOUNDMENT ECOLOGY. 4.003 STUDY OF MANURE-ENRICHED FOOD WEES IN MARINE POND ECOSYSTEMS. 5.016 PHYTOTOXICITY EVALUATION OF EFFICACY, CROP RESPONSES AND CROP AND WATER RETENTION OF POTENTIAL AQUATIC HEBEICIDES. 3.021, 4.035* NODE OF ACTION AND INFLUENCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS ON THE TOXICITY OF SEVERAL AQUATIC HEREICIDES. 3.100, 4.218* PHYTOTOXINS CONTEOL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.108 FEYTOTOXINS FROM AQUATIC AND TERRESTRIAL FLANTS, HACTEBIA, AND FUNGI. 3.017

FICELING-FOOD HUMAN NUTRITION IMPROVEMENT. 8.022 PIGNENTS CONPARATIVE STUDY OF THE FLEXIEACTER-CYTOPHAGA GROUP HACIERIA. 4.104 MORPHCLCGICAL, ULTRASTRUCTURAL, AND HIOCHEMICAL CHARACTEBIZATION OF NANCPLANETCN FROM CHESAFEAEE HAY. 1.056, 4.108* PHYSIOLOGY OF CHESAPEAKE EAY PHYTOPLANETCN. 1.054. 4.107* VISUAL PIGMENT CHANGES DURING THE LIFE CYCLE OF THE AMERICAN EEL, ANGUILLA ECSTRATA, 1.077 PIER INTRODUCTION OF WALLEYE AND NCRIUNGE FINGERLINGS INTO A LAKE DOMINATED BY PREY SPECIES. 1.074 PISCICIDES EFFECTS OF ANTIMYCIN CN STREAM INSECTS. 3.102, 4.222* FISCINE-BRYTHROCYTIC-NECROSIS PISCINE ERYTHROCYTIC NECROSIS IN THE ATLANTIC CCD. 3.056 PISTIA **EIGLOGICAL CONTROL OF WEEDS. 3.104** FLACENTAL-TRANSPORT FUR ANIMAL STUDIES (MINE). 8.028 PLANARIA MICROCCSM NODELING OF THE RESECUSE OF FERSISTENT AQUATIC COMMUNITIES TO A TOXICANT. 4.182 PLANKTON A MULTI-INSTITUTIONAL APPROACH TO THE IDENTIFICATION OF HIVALVE LARVAE. 1.067 AFFLIED LINNOLOGY AND FISHERIES STUDIES IN TROPICAL LAKES. 4.021 HIOLOGY AND CONTROL OF AQUATIC VEGETATION. 3.048 ECOLOGY OF SALT MARSHES IN BELATICN TO ESTUARIES AND ENERGY FLCW. 1.016, 4.041*, 5.011* EFFECTS CP ATMOSPHERIC INPUTS CF ACIDS AND BEAVY METALS CN LAKE PLANKTCN. 4.101 EFFECTS OF BEREICIDES ON CHESAPEAKE BAY FETTOPLANETON. 4.106 EFFECTS OF SEDIMENTS ON BIOLOGICAL SYSTEMS. 4.126 EFFECTS ON SELECTED ORGANISMS CF WATER PASSING TEROUGE THE CEDAR BAYCU GENERATING STATICN. 4.210, 6.097* IMPACTS OF THE CONSTRUCTION AND CPERATION OF COASTAL NUCLEAR FOWER PLANTS CN ESTUABINE ECCLCGY. 4.160 INVESTIGATION OF AQUATIC ECCSYSTEMS IN SMALL PCNDS. 1.031, 6.036* LIMNOLOGICAL EVALUATION AND ZOOPLANETON DYNAMICS OF LAKE KOOCANUSA, NORTHWESTERN MONTANA. 4.077 LINNCLOGY OF FAEM PONDS. 1.082, 6.071 LOWER SNAKE DIVER LINNCLOGY. 4.076 MANAGEMENT OF AQUATIC PLANTS FOR SPORT FISE PRODUCTION IN PONDS. 5.002 MANURE-ENRICHED FCOD WEES IN MARINE FOND BCOSYSTEMS. 5.017 MECHANISTIC FACTORS DETERMINE AQUATIC FERTILITY. 4.114 MORPHCLCGICAL, ULTRASTRUCTURAL, AND BIOCHEMICAL CHARACTERIZATION OF NANOPLANETON FRCM CHESAPEAKE HAY. 1.056, 4.108* PHYSICLCGY OF CHESAPEAKE BAY PHYTOPLANKTON. 1.054. 4.107± POND FEBTILIZATICN AND LIMING. 4.002, 5.003* FRESENCE, ABUNDANCE, MOVEMENTS, AND HABITAT USAGE OF ESTUARINE-DEPENDENT FISHES AND CRUSTACEANS.. 1.045, 4.095* RECYCLING WASTES INTO ANIMAL FEEDS. 5.029, 8.029* BELATIONSHIPS HETWEEN SALT WARSH AND ESTUARINE ANIMAL COMMUNITIES AND ENERGY EXCHANGE. 4.040, 5.010* SFORANE RIVER LIMNOLOGY. 4.067 STUDY OF MANURE-ENRICHED FOOD WERS IN MARINE FCND ECOSYSTEMS. 5.016 SURVEY OF LARVAL FISHES IN THE NEARSHORE GULF WATERS CF LOUISIANA. 1.047 THE ECOLOGICAL IMFACT OF INTEGRATED CHEMICAL AND BIOLOGICAL AQUATIC WEED CONTACL. 3.025, 4.045* THE ROLE OP SILTS AND CLAYS IN THE NUTRITION OF ZOOPLANETCN. 1.041 USE OF HENTHIC MACROINVERTEBRATES IN N. C. FISHEEY MANAGEMENT AND WATER QUALITY ASSESSMENT. 1.084 VALUE OF TIDAL MARSHES IN RELATION TO ESTUARINE ECOSYSTEM, AND EVALUATION OF FRESHWATER WETLANDS. 4.044

PLANT-ADAPTATION

3.093. 4.204* PLANT-BIOCHEMISTRY PHOTOSYNTHESIS AND PHOTORESPIRATION IN ACUATIC PLANTS. 1.017, 1.017 PHYSIOLOGICAL STUDIES OF AQUATIC AND DITCH HANK WEEDS IN THE PACIFIC NORTHWEST. 3.101 PLANT-COLLECTION PHYTOTOXINS FROM AQUATIC AND TERRESTRIAL PLANTS, HACTEFIA, AND FUNGI. 3.017 PLANT-COMPETITION **BIOLCGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS WITH** COMPETITIVE SPECIES OF SPIKERUSH (ELECCHARIS SPP.). 3.011 CONTROL OF WEEDS AND CERTAIN CTHER AQUATIC PESIS IN THE PACIFIC SOUTHVEST. 3.015, 4.031* USE CF SPIKERUSH (ELECCHARIS SPP.) FCR EICLOGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.016 PLANT-DEVELOPMENT HIOLOGY AND CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.068 ECOLOGY OF PURFLE LOOSESTRIFE (LYTHRUM SALICARIA). 3.073 HORMONAL REGULATION OF GROWTH. DEVELOPMENT AND VEGETATIVE PROPAGATICN OF SUBMERSED ACUATIC WEEDS. 3.020 STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT OF MARGINAL SALT MARSE SPECIES FRCM NOFTH CAROLIN. 4.158 PLANT-DISBASE-CONTROL MANAGEMENT STRATEGIES FOR RICE PESTS. 3.005 PLANT-DISEASE-RESISTANCE MANAGEMENT STRATEGIES FOR RICE PESTS. 3.005 PLANT-DISEASES A SURVEY FCE PATHOGEN FOR AQUATIC WEEDS IN CALIFORNIA FOR USE IN BICLCGICAL CONTECL. 3.008. 4.009* CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.108 CONTROL OF WEEDS AND CERTAIN CTHER AQUATIC PESTS IN TEE FACIFIC SCUTHWEST. 3.015, 4.031* EVALUATION OF PUSARIUM RCSEUM 'CULNORUM' AS A BIOLOGICAL CONTROL FOR HYDRILLA VERTICILLATA. 3.029 PLANT-DISTRIBUTION DISTRIBUTION, ABUNDANCE AND ECOLOGY OF ASCOFHYLLUM NODOSUM (1) LE JOIS. 1.052, 4.102*, 7.008* PLANT-DORMANCY LIFE HISTORY AND FHYSIOLCGICAL STUDIES OF AQUATIC AND WARGINAL WEEDS. 3.061 PLANT-BCOLOGY BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS IN THE SOUTHEAST. 3.034 BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS WITH COMPETITIVE SPECIES OF SPIKERUSH (ELEOCHAPIS SFP.). 3.011 HIOLOGY AND CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.068 ECOLOGY OF PURFLE LOCSESTRIFE (LYTHRUM SALICAFIA). 3.073 EFFECTS OF WATER QUALITY PARAMETERS ON FARM POND VEGETATION AND THEIR INTERACTIONS. 4.176 ENVIRONMENTAL AND ECOLOGICAL INFLUENCES ON GENETIC VARIABILITY. 1.009, 2.004*, 4.013* EURASIAN WATERWILFOIL IN CURLITUCK SCUND: ITS CONTROL AND FOTENTIAL USE. 3.077, 4.165* LIFE HISTOLY AND FEYSIOLOGICAL STUDIES OF AQUATIC AND MARGINAL WEEDS. 3.061 PHYSICLOGY AND MANAGEMENT OF AQUATIC WEEDS INTERFEFING WITH THE USE OF WATER RESCURCES. 3.035 STUDIES IN PEYCOLOGY. 4.143 THE PEYSIOLOGY AND CONTROL OF VEGETATIVE REPRODUCTION IN BYDRILLA (HYDFILLA VESTICILLATA RCYLE). 3.024 TEE USE CF SELECTED AQUATIC CRGANISMS FOR PURPOSES OF AQUACULTURE (FOOD PRODUCTION). 3.012, 4.023*, 5.008*. 8.005* PLANT-ESTABL ISEMENT BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS WITH CCMPEIITIVE SPECIES OF SPIKERUSE (ELEOCHARIS SPF.). 3.011 PLANT-EXTRACTS PHYTOTOXINS FROM AQUATIC AND TERRESTRIAL PLANTS, EACTERIA, AND FUNGI. 3.017 PLANT-GENETICS ENVIRONMENTAL AND ECOLOGICAL INFLUENCES CN GENETIC VARIABILITY. 1.009, 2.004*, 4.013* PLANT-GROWTH AQUATIC RESOURCES OF SILVER CREEK AT THE NATURE CONSERVANCY SITE. 4.075

ADAPTATION FACTORS AND CONTECL OF AQUATIC WEEDS.

SPP.). 3.011 BIOLOGY AND CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3,068 CONTROL OF AQUATIC FLANT GROWTH. 3.032 DISTRIBUTION, ABUNDANCE AND ECCLCGY OF ASCOPHYLLUM NODOSUM (1) LE JOIS. 1.052, 4.102*, 7.008* ECOLCGY OF PULPLE LCOSESTAIFE (LYTHAUM SALICARIA). 3.073 EFFECTS OF ACUATIC PLANT COMMUNITIES ON WATER QUALITY IN HYPEREUTECPHIC AQUATIC ENVIRONMENT. 4.117 EFFECTS OF WATER QUALITY PARAMETERS ON FARM FOND VEGETATION AND THEIR INTERACTIONS. 4.176 GROWTH AND MINERAL UFTAKE IN THE LEWNACEAE. 4.026 HORMONAL REGULATION OF GROWTH, DEVELOPMENT AND VEGETATIVE PROFAGATION OF SUBMERSED AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.020 IMPROVEMENT OF CGO PRODUCTION AND MARKETING IN HAWAII. 6.031, 10.012* LIFE HISTORY AND PHYSIOLOGICAL STUDIES OF ACUATIC AND MARGINAL WEEDS. 3.061 PHYSICLOGY OF CEESAPEAKE HAY PHYTCFLANKTCN. 1.054, 4.107* PRODUCTIVITY OF THE SALINE MARSHES ON FLORIDA'S NORTH AND WEST COASTS, PHASE II. 4.038 STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT OF MARGINAL SALT MARSE SPECIES FECM NORTH CABOLIN. 4.158 STUDIES IN PHYCOLOGY. 4.143 THE EFFECTS OF IRRIGATION WASTE WATER ON AQUATIC PLANTS IN THE SACRAMENTC BIVER. 4.025 TEE FHYSIOLOGICAL HASIS FOR MANAGING TIDAL WARSH VEGETATION. 4.197 THE PHYSIOLOGY AND CONTROL OF VEGETATIVE REPRODUCTION IN HYDRILLA (HYDRILLA VERTICILLATA ROYLE). 3.024 THE USE OF SELECTED AQUATIC OFGANISMS FOE PURPOSES OF AQUACULTUBE (FOCD PRODUCTION). 3.012, 4.023*, 5.008*, 8.005* PLANT-BORNONES HORMONAL REGULATION OF GROWTH, DEVELOPMENT AND VEGETATIVE PROPAGATION OF SUEMERSED AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.020 PLANT-INSECT-RELATIONS BIOLOGICAL CONTROL AGENTS OF HYDRILLA VERTICILLATA. 3.109 **EIOLOGICAL CONTECL OF AQUATIC WEEDS IN THE** SOUTHEAST. 3.034 BIOLOGICAL CONTEOL OF AQUATIC WEEDS WITH INSECTS. 3.038 IDENTIFICATION OF INSECTS FOR BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.036 PLANT-METABOLISM ACCUNULATION AND DEGRADATION OF SOME REFRICIDES BY ALGAE. 4.171 PLANT-NORPHOLOGY HIOLOGY AND CONTROL OF AQUATIC VEGETATICN. 3.048 BORMONAL REGULATION OF GROWTH, DEVELOPMENT AND VEGETATIVE PROPAGATION OF SUEWERSED ACUATIC **WEEDS**. 3.020 PLANT-NEMATODES MORFEOLOGY AND TAXONONY OF NEWATORES, 1.021 PLANT-NUTRIENTS HIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS IN THE SOUTHEAST. 3.034 PLANT-BUTRITION CONTRCL OF AQUATIC PLANT GROWIE. 3.032 GROWTH AND MINERAL UPTAKE IN THE LEWNACEAE. 4.026 LIFE BISTORY AND PHYSIOLCGICAL STUDIES OF AQUATIC AND MARGINAL WEEDS. 3.061 NUTRIENT INTERACTIONS AND CHANGES IN ALGAL QUALITY IN CAYUGA LAKE. 4.140 PHYSIOLOGY AND MANAGEMENT OF AQUATIC WEEDS INTERFERING WITH THE USE OF WATER RESOURCES. 3.035 PHYSIOLOGY OF CHESAFFAKE HAY PHYTOPLANETCN. 1.054, 4.107* THE USE OF SELECTED MARINE MATERIALS AND EY-PRODUCTS FOR CERTAIN HORTICULTURAL CRCPS. 8.044 PLANT-PARASITES HIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF WEEDS WITH EMPHASIS ON AQUATIC BABITATS. 3.033 PLANT-PATHOGEN-BELATIONS

HIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS WITH

CONPETITIVE SFECIES OF SEIKEFUSH (ELECCHARIS

A SURVEY FOR PATHCGEN FOR AQUATIC WEEDS IN CALIFORNIA FOR USE IN HICLOGICAL CCN1FCL. 3.008, 4.009*

PLANT-PATHOGENS. HIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF EURASIAN MILFOIL AND CTHER AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.106 HIOLCGICAL CONTROL OF WEEDS WITH PATECGENS. 3.103 ORGANISMS ASSOCIATED WITH AQUATIC WEEDS AND THE BIOLOGICAL CONTROL WATER-BYACINTH IN EGYPT. 3.105 PLANT-PERFCRMANCE THE EFFECTS OF IBRIGATION WASTE WATER CN ACUATIC PLANTS IN THE SACRAMENTO BIVER. 4.025 PLANT-PRYSICIOGY HIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS WITH COMPETITIVE SPECIES OF SPIKERUSH (ELEOCHARIS SPP.). 3.011 HIOLOGY AND CONTFOL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.068 CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS EASED ON ALLELOPATHIC CHARACTERISTICS IN SPIKEFUSH (ELECCHAFIS SPP.). 3.007 EFFECTS OF WATER QUALITY PARAMETERS ON FARM POND VEGETATION AND THEIR INTERACTIONS. 4.176 LIFE HISTORY AND PHYSIOLOGICAL STUDIES OF AQUATIC AND MARGINAL WEEDS. 3.061 MODE OF ACTION AND INFLUENCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS ON THE TOXICITY OF SEVERAL AQUATIC HERHICICES. 3.100, 4.218* PHOTOSYNTHESIS AND PHOTORESPIRATION IN AQUATIC PLANTS. 1.017 PHYSIOLOGICAL STUDIES OF AQUATIC AND DITCH HANK WEEDS IN THE PACIFIC NORTHWEST. 3.101 PHYSIOLOGY AND MANAGEMENT OF ACUATIC WEEDS INTERFEFING WITH THE USE OF WATER RESOURCES. 3.035 PHYSICLOGY OF CHESAPEAKE HAY PHYTOPLANETON. 1.054, 4.107* THE PHYSICLOGICAL EASIS FOR MANAGING TIDAL MARSH VEGETATION. 4.197 THE PHYSIOLOGY AND CONTROL OF VEGETATIVE **BEPRODUCTION IN HYDRILLA (BYDRILLA VESTICILLATA** BOYLE). 3.024 UPTAKE AND NOVEMENT OF BEFBICIDES AND NUTRIENTS IN AQUATIC WEED SPECIES. 3.019 USE CF SPIKERUSE (ELEOCHABIS SPP.) FOR HIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.016 PLANT-PROPAGATION USE CF SPIKERUSE (ELEOCHARIS SPP.) FOR HIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.016 PLANT-PROTEINS UTILIZATION OF PROTEIN INGREDIENTS IN FISE BATIONS. 5.044 PLANT-REPRODUCTION THE PHYSIOLOGY AND CONTROL OF VEGETATIVE REPRODUCTION IN BYDRILLA (BYDRILLA VERTICILLATA ROYLE). 3.024 PLANT-RESPONSE **BIOLOGY AND CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.068** EFFECTS OF THE HEUNSWICK NUCLEAR POWEB-FLANTS CN THE PECCUCTIVITY OF SPARTINA ALTEENIFLCEA. 4.159 PLANT-STRESS ADAPTATION FACTORS AND CONTROL OF AQUATIC NEEDS. 3.093, 4.204* PHYSIOLOGY OF CHESAPEAKE HAY PHYTCPLANETCN. 1.054, 4.107* PLANT-SUCCESSION EFFECTS OF WATER QUALITY PARAMETERS CN FARM PCND VEGETATION AND THEIR INTERACTIONS. 4.176 PLANT-TOLE RANCE STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT OF MARGINAL SALT MARSH SPECIES FROM NOETH CAROLIN. 4.158 PLANT-UPTAKE ACCUMULATION AND DEGRADATION OF SOME REFRICIDES BY ALGAE. 4.171 THE PHYSIOLOGICAL BASIS FOR MANAGING TIDAL MARSH VEGETATION. 4.197 UPTAKE AND NOVEMENT OF HERBICIDES AND NUTRIENTS IN AQUATIC WEED SPECIES. 3.019 PLANTING DEVELOPMENT AND EVALUATION OF OYSTER HARVESTING EQUIPMENT AND MARICULTURE SYSTEMS. 6.084, 7.013* PLASMA APPLIED PHYSIOLOGY OF ECONOMICALY IMPORTANT FISHES. 4.202 PLASMIDS DISEASE MANAGEMENT IN CATFISE AQUACULTURE. 3.097 PLASTICIZERS EFFECTS OF AN ALTERED TEMPERATURE BEGINE AND CHEMICAI CONTAMINANTS ON THE AQUATIC ECOSYSTEM. 3.062, 4.127*

PLECOPTERA EFFECTS OF ANTINYCIN ON STREAM INSECTS. 3.102. 4.222* PLEIOTBOPIC-EFFECTS BIOCHEMICAL GENETICS AND CYTOGENETICS OF TECUT. 2.021 POISONING FISE GENETICS. 2.019, 4.183* LUMINOUS BACTERIA AS INDICATORS OF SHELLFISH CONTAMINATION BY PATHOGENIC VIERICS. 4.144 POISONOUS DINOFLAGELLATES AND SHELLFISH POISONING. 9.042 POISONS CIGUATERA FISE POISONING IN THE U.S. V.I.: BIOCHEMICAL, PHYSOLOGICAL, AND MICBOHIOLOGICAL STUDIES. 1.059, 9.040* POISONOUS DINOFLAGELLATES AND SHELLFISH PCISONING. 9.042 POLICIES ANALYSIS OF DOMESTIC FOOD DEMAND AND CONSUMPTION HEHAVIOR. 9.041 ECONOMIC ANALYSES OF FISHERIES MANAGEMENT ISSUES ABISING FECH EXTENDED JUBISDICTICN OF NEW ENGLAND. 10.042 POLICY-FORMULATION AN ECONCHIC ANALYSIS OF DECISION MAKING AND POLICY FORMULATION. 10.043 ECONOMIC ANALYSES OF FISHERIES MANAGEMENT ISSUES ABISING FROM EXTENDED JUBISDICTION OF NEW ENGLAND. 10.042 POLLUTANTS A COMPARISON OF THE ACCUMULATION RATES CF P ABSORHED BY THE VITAL CREANS OF FISH. 4.156, 5.039* ACUTE AND CHBONIC HFFHCTS ON FISH EXPOSED CONTINUOUSLY AND INTERMITTENTLY TO TOXICANTS. 4.180 CHEMICAL CONTROL OF MOSQUITCES OF NUISANCE AND BEALTH INFOSTANCE. 4.133 COMPARATIVE ECOLOGY OF SELECTED SPECIES OF AQUATIC INSECTS, PHASE IV. 4.042 EFFECTS OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONTAMINANTS ON GEORGIA FARM FOND FISHES. 4.051, 6.025* MICROCOSM MODELING OF THE RESPONSE OF PERSISTENT AQUATIC COMMUNITIES TO A TOXICANT. 4.182 NODELS TO ASSESS BIONAGNIFICATION POTENTIAL OF PERSISTENT TOXIC SUBSTANCES IN ACUATIC FCCD **CHAINS. 4.149** FATHOLOGY AND PATHOGENESIS CF CATFIEH DISEASES. 3.099 TEMPERATURE EFFECTS ON MENOFIOTIC ELIMINATION HY FISHES. 4.179 POLLUTION ABATEMENT OF EUTROPHICATION RESULTING FROM INTENSIVE ANIMAL PRODUCTION. 4.195, 6.080* APPLIED PHYSICLCGY OF BCONCHICALY IMPORTANT FISHES. 4.202 BIOACCUMULATION AND IMPACT CF HIGHWAY-GENERATED BEAVY METALS ON STRHAM FISHERY RESCURCES IN VIRGINIA. 4.214 COMPARATIVE ECCLCGY OF SELECTED SFECIES OF AQUATIC INSECTS, PHASE IV. 4.042 CONTECL OF AQUATIC PLANT GECWTH. 3.032 DIAGNOSIS AND PATHOGENESIS OF DISEASES AND PARASITES IN MAJOR MOLLUSCAN AQUACULTURE SPECIES. 3.088 DISPOSITION OF CHEMICAL POLLUTANTS IN AQUATIC OEGANIENS. 4.017 ECOLOGY AND TAXONCHY OF TWO MAJCE OFDERS OF AQUATIC INSECTS, EPHENEBOPTERA AND TRICHOPTERA, IN VA. 4.212 EFFECT OF DIET QUALITY CN AQUATIC ANIMALS. 5.047 EFFECTS OF ACID PRECIPITATION ON ADIFONDACE LAKES. 4.153 EFFECTS OF DISSOLVED CHEMICALS CN AQUATIC LIFE. 4.078 EFFECTS OF LAND USE PRACTICES ON STREAM EIGTA. 4.685, 4.085 EFFECTS OF LIVESTOCK GRAZING PRACTICES ON THE WATER QUALITY CF STREAMS. 4.223 EFFECTS OF POLLUTANTS ON GILLS CF FFESHWATER FISHES. 3.060, 4.119* EFFECTS OF THE HRUNSWICK NUCLEAR POWER-PLANTS CN THE PRODUCTIVITY OF SPARTINA ALTERNIFLERA. 4.159

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS OF SALMONELLOSIS. 3.049 ESTUARINE INVERTEBRATE BEBAVIOR; AN INDEX CF

FACTORS AFFECTING FISH POPULATIONS OF IOWA STREAMS. 1.039, 4.086* QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE STUDIES OF POLLUTION IN SELECTED FARM PONDS. 4.155 SALINITY, REDOX POTENTIAL, & WICFCHIAL TRANSFORMATIONS OF MERCURY POLLUTANTS IN ESTUARINE SEDIMENTS. 4.132 SPORANE RIVER LIMNCLOGY. 4.067 THE EBHAVICE OF FISH AS RELATED TO ARTIFICIAL COVER. 1.092 THE QUALITY CF SEAFOOD CONSUMED BY THE PEOPLE CF SOUTE CAECLINA. 4.199, 9.034* USE OF CLAM EY-PRODUCTS. 8.037 UTILIZATION OF AQUATIC PLANTS FOR WASTE TREATMENT AND ANIMAL FEEDS. 1.043, 5.023* WATER QUALITY STUDIES: COMPARATIVE ECOLOGY AND SYSTEMATICS OF SELECTED AQUATIC INSECTS. 4.043 WATER QUALITY STUDY. 4.033 ZOOGEOGRAPHY AND ECOLOGY OF FISHES IN PENNSYLVANIA. 1.093, 4.190* POLLUTION-ABATEMENT AEATEMENT OF EUTROPHICATION RESULTING FROM INTENSIVE ANIMAL PRODUCTION. 4.195, 6.080* INVESTIGATION OF "IN SITU" SOLIDS DIGESTION FOR SALMONIC PRODUCTION. 6.081 POLYBROMINATED-BIPHENYLS FUE ANIMAL STUDIES (MINE). 8.028 POLICELORINATED-EIPHENTLS EFFECT OF DIET CUALITY ON AQUATIC ANIMALS. 5.047 FACTORS AFFECTING FISH POPULATIONS OF IOWA STREAMS. 1.039, 4.086* FATE AND EFFECTS OF TOXICANTS IN AGRICULTURAL AND ENVIRONMENTAL FOOD CHAINS. 4.154 FUE ANIMAL STUDIES (MINE). 8.028 REGULATION OF WISCONSIN'S LAKE MICHIGAN COMMERCIAL FISHEFIES. 10.050 POLICULTURE CRAWFISH CULTURE STUDIES IN SMALL PONDS: BURROWING, PCLYCULIURE AND NATURAL POND FLOODING. 1.050, 4.099*, 6.049* CULTURE CF AQUATIC CEGANISMS AND EVALUATION OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS AT STEAM ELECTEIC FLANTS. 6.093 PRAWN AQUACULTURE PROGRAM - BIOLOGICAL BASIS OF PRODUCTION. 2.008, 6.030* SHALLOW-WATER POLYCULTURE OF FISHES IN PONDS DESIGNED FOR FOTATION TO GRAIN CHOPS. 6.013 POLYNORPHISM EIOCHEMICAL GENETICS AND CYTOGENETICS OF TROUT. 2.021 GENETIC ASSESSMENT OF MACROBRACEIUM CN GUAN. 1.023 GENETICS OF NATURAL FISH POPULATIONS. 1.037, 2.009* POLYPICIDY **HREEDING EXPERIMENTS WITH SALMONIDS, 2.024** POND-BABITATS QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE STUDIES OF POLLUTION IN SELECTED FARM PONDS. 4.155 PONDS AN EVALUATION OF STRIPED BASS X WHITE BASS HYBRIDS AND STRIPED BASS X WHITE PERCE HYBRIDS. 2.018, 6.070# ANALYSIS OF THE MARKET POTENTIAL FOR FRESH WATER AQUACULIURAL PRODUCTS PRODUCED IN NEVADA. 5.036, 8.032*, 10.022* AQUACULTURAL WASTEWATER MANAGEMENT AND UTILIZATION IN HAWAII. 4.053, 6.029* BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEFDS WITH COMPETITIVE SPECIES OF SPIKERUSH (ELEOCHARIS SPP.). 3.011 HICLOGY AND CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.068 CRAWFISH CULTURE STUDIES IN SMALL FCNDS: HUFECWING, POLYCULTURE AND NATURAL FCND FLOODING. 1.050, 4.099*, 6.049* CULTURE AND MANAGEMENT OF SELECTED GAME FISHES. 3.092, 4.203*, 6.091* CULTURE OF AQUATIC CEGANISMS AND EVALUATION OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS AT STEAN ELECTRIC PLANTS. 6.093 ECOLOGICAL STUDIES WITH RED SWAMP CRAWFISH AND WHITE RIVER CRAWFISH. 1.042, 4.092*, 6.043* EFFECTS CF AQUATIC PLANT COMMUNITIES ON WATER QUALITY IN HYPEREUTROPHIC AQUATIC ENVIRONMENT. 4.117 EFFECTS OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS AND MANAGEMENT PRACTICES ON COMMERCIAL PRODUCTION OF CRAMPISE. 4.096, 6.047# EFFECTS OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONTAMINANTS ON GEORGIA

FARM POND FISHES. 4.051, 6.025*

EFFECTS OF WATER CUALITY PARAMETERS ON FARM POND VEGETATION AND THEIR INTERACTIONS 4.176

- ENVIRONMENTAL EFFECTS CN PRODUCTIVITY CF CHAYFISH IN FOND HABITATS, PHASE I, II. 5.025, 6.048*, 7.007*
- FEASIBILITY OF CAGED FISH CULTUFE IN NORTH CENTRAL OKLABOMA FARM PONDS. 4.173, 6.073*, 10.035* FISE PCPULATION AND PRODUCTION IN POND AND LAKE
- FISE PCPULATION AND PRODUCTION IN POND AND LAK INPOUNDWENTS. 4.208, 6.055* BELMINTE PARASITES OF VERIFERATES IN NORTH
- CAROLINAS 3.078 INVESTIGATION OF AQUATIC ECCSYSTEMS IN SMALL PONDS.
- 1.031, 6.036* LIMNOLOGICAL BASIS FOR THE PRODUCTIVITY OF INLAND
- WATERS. 4.206
- LIMNOLOGY OF FARM PONDS. 1.082, 6.071* MANURE-ENRICHED FOOD WEBS IN MAFINE FOND
- BCCSYSTEMS. 5.017 MECHANISTIC FACTORS DETERMINE AQUATIC FERTILITY.
- 4.114 NITRCGEN FIXATICN AND ITS EFFECT ON EUTROPHICATION:
- IN-POINT AND NON-POINT SCURCE PONES. 4.157 NITROGEN FIXATION BY MICROBES INBABITING SURFACES
- OF AQUATIC MACLOPBYTES. 4.142 POND FERTILIZATION AND LIMING. 4.002, 5.003*
- PRACTICAL FEED FORMULATIONS AND FEEDING PRACTICES FOR CATFISH FARMING IN MS. 5.035, 6.058*, 8.031*
- PRAWN AQUACULTUBE PROGRAM HICLOGICAL EASIS OF PRODUCTICN: 2.008, 6.030* PRODUCTION ECONOMICS OF AQUACULTUBE SPECIES IN
- PRODUCTION ECONOMICS OF AQUACULTURE SPECIES IN HAWAII. 10.009
- QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE STUDIES OF FOLLUTION IN SELECTED FARM PONDS. 4.155
- RELEASE OF ADSCREED PESTICIDES INTO WATER. 4.175 SHALLOW-WATER POLYCULTURE CF FISHES IN PONDS
- DESIGNED FOR FOTATION TC GRAIN CRCPS. 6.013 SERIMP MATUBATICN, REPRODUCTION, DEVELORMENT, NUTRITION, INTENSIVE-EXTENSIVE CULTURE AND
- MARICULTURE. 5.052, 6.092* South dakota farm and ranch fisheries. 5.049,
- 6.085* STUDY OF MANURE-ENRICHED FOCD WERS IN MARINE PCND ECONSTENS 5.014
- ECOSYSTEMS. 5.016 THE ECOLOGICAL IMPACT OF INTEGRATED CHEMICAL AND HIOLOGICAL AQUATIC WEED CONTRCL. 3.025, 4.045*
- THE FATE AND EFFECTS OF CHEMICALS IN AQUATIC
- ECCSYSTEMS. 4.111 THE PHYSIOLOGY AND CONTROL OF VEGETATIVE
- EEPECDUCTION IN BYDEILLA (HYDFILLA VEFTICILLATA ROYLE). 3.024 THE RESOLUTION OF SOME PROBLEMS ATTENDING THE
- EMPLOYMENT OF MINNEWS AS FORAGE FOR FARMPEND FISBES. 6.018
- USE OF HENTHIC MACRCINVERTEBRATES IN N. C. FISHEKY MANAGEMENT AND WATER QUALITY ASSESSMENT. 1.084
- WATER QUALITY STOCKING RATES AND HARVESTING SYSTEMS FOR CATFISE. 6.055 POPULATION
 - APPLIED LINNOLCGY AND FISHERIES STUDIES IN TROPICAL LAKES. 4.021
 - CARRYING CAPACITY OF STEEAMS FOF BEARING SALMONIDS AS AFFECTED BY SEDIMENT & CTBEF COMPONENTS. 1.024, 4.057*
 - ECOLOGICAL STUDIES WITH RED SWAMP CRAWFISH AND WHITE RIVER CRAWFISH. 1.042, 4.052*, 6.043*
 - FACTORS AFFECTING FISE FOPULATIONS OF IOWA STREAMS. 1.039, 4.086*
 - FISH PECDUCTION IN SOUTE DAEGTA FARM AND RANCE WATERS. 6.087
 - INVESTIGATION OF AQUATIC ECCSYSTEMS IN SMAll PONDS. $1\!\cdot\!031$, $6\!\cdot\!036*$
 - MORPHOLOGY AND TAXONOMY OF NEMATCHES. 1.021 NITROGEN FIXATION HY MICROBES INBABITING SUBFACES OF AQUATIC MACEOFBYTES. 4.142
 - POPULATION DYNAMICS OF LARGEMOUTE AND SMALLMOUTE BASS IN 16 NEW YORK LAKES. 1.075
 - POTENTIAL BASVEST OF LAKE EDIE WHITE CRAPPIE FROM AN ADJOINING BCEROW PIT. 1.086, 6.072*
 - STATUS, ABUNDANCE AND EXFLCITATION OF THE STRIPED BASS IN THE ROANCYE FIVER, NC. 4.163
 - THE INFACT OF THE 200 MILE ECONOMIC ZONE ON RUPAL NEW ENGLAND COASTAL COMMUNITIES. 10.017
- THE USE OF FISHING TOURNAMENT RECORDS TO ESTIMATE AFUNDANCE OF BASS POPULATIONS. 4.215 POPULATION-CENSUS
- ECOLOGY OF LARVAL STREAM FISHES. 1.038, 4.084* THE INFACT OF SALMONID INTECDUCTIONS ON NEW YORK FISHERMEN AND COMMUNITIES. 10.033

THE STATUS, ABUNDANCE, AND YIELD OF THE STRIPED BASS IN THE ROANORE FIVER, NOFTH CARCLINA. I.081, 4.164* THE USE CF FISHING TCURNAMENT RECORDS TO ESTIMATE AEUNDANCE OF EASS POPULATIONS. 4.215 POPULATION-DENSITY A STUDY OF FISH RESOURCES OF THE GCSPEL BUMP AREA. 4.060 CARRYING CAFACITY OF STREAMS FOR REARING SALMONIDS AS AFFECTED BY SEDIMENT & CTHER CONPONENTS. I.024, 4.057* ECOLOGY ANE SYSTEMATICS OF AQUATIC INSECTS. 4.177 ECOLOGY OF LARVAL STREAM FISEES. 1.038, 4.084* EFFECTS OF STAMPEDE RESERVOIR ON UPSTREAM FISE POPULATIONS OF SAGEHEN CREEK. I.0IO, 4.019# EVALUATION OF JUVENILE SALMON AND STEELBEAD DENSITY AS RELATED TO DENSITY OF SFAWNERS AND FRY RELEASE. 1.030, 6.035* FRESEWATER FCOD ANIMALS. 2.023, 5.045*, 6.079* ULTRASTRUCTURAL CHANGES IN TELEOST GILLS: EFFECTS OF SUBTLE ALTERATIONS IN THE ENVIRONMENT. 3.053, 4.098* WEIGHT GAIN OF FISH. 5.018 POPULATION-DISTRIBUTION HEHAVICR, ECOLOGY AND RHYTENICITY IN THE COMMON ROCK CRAF. I.059, 4.110 \pm BIOLOGICAL STUDIES OF THE SPINY LOBSTER IN SOUTH FLORIDA. I.019 HIOLCGY AND SPORT FISHING HARVEST OF YELLOW PERCE. 4.082 COEUE D'ALENE RIVER FISBERIES INVESTIGATIONS. 4.061 DEVELOPMENT AND VALIDATION OF HABITAT-STANDING CROP FUNCTIONS FOR STREAM FISH AND THEIR FOODS. 4.065 ECOLOGY CF LARVAL STREAM FISBES. I.038, 4.084* POPULATION CHARACTERISTICS OF TEXAS GUIF OF MEXICO FISHES. 1.097 POPULATION-DINAMICS A STUDY OF FISH RESOURCES OF THE GOSPEL HUNP AREA. 4.060 ACCOUNTING FOR VARIABILITY IN PRODUCTIVITY OF CCEAN FISH IN YIELD ESTIMATION. 4.185 AN EVALUATION OF ENDANGEBED BOLLUSKS IN VIEGINIA. 1.100, 4.213* ANALYSIS AND MODELING LAKE WICHIGAN FISH POPULATION. 1.015, 4.032* BIOLOGICAL STUDIES OF THE SPINY LOBSTER IN SOUTH FLORIDA. 1.019 ELACK FLY DAMAGE THRESBOLDS, BIOLOGY AND CONTROL. 4.103 ECOLOGICAL STUDIES WITH BED SWAMP CRAWFISH AND WHITE RIVER CRAWFISE. 1.042, 4.092*, 6.043* ECOLCGY AND MANAGEMENT OF WALLEYE. 1.073, 6.065* ECOLOGY OF FISHES OF SACRAMENTC - SAN JOAQUIN ESTUARY, WITH EMPEASIS CN SUISUN MARSE. 4.030 EFFECTS OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS AND MANAGEMENT PRACTICES ON COMMERCIAL PRODUCTION OF CRAWFISE. 4.096, 6.047* EFFECTS OF LOGGING ON ARIZONA TROUT AND THEIR HABITAT IN THE WHITE MCUNTAINS OF ARIZONA. 4.005 EFFECTS OF REDUCED STREAM DISCHARGE ON FISE AND AQUATIC MACROINVERTEERATE POPULATIONS. 4.073 EFFECTS OF STAMPEDE RESERVOIR ON UPSTREAM FISH POPULATIONS OF SAGEBEN CREEK. I.010, 4.019* FACTORS AFFECTING PISE POPULATIONS IN IOWA WATERS. 1.040, 4.087*, 6.038* FISH AND AQUATIC WACROINVERIGERATE FAUNA IN SQUTE FORK EGISE RIVER FELOW ANDERSON RANCH DAM. 1.029 IMPACT OF EROSION SILT AND SEDIMENTATION ON PISH REPRODUCTION AND GROWTH. 4.130 IMPACT OF LAND USE PRACTICES CN PCPULATIONS OF WILDLIPE AND FISHERY RESOURCES. 4.162 INPACTS OF RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT AND EXPLORATION ON NATURAL RESOURCES. 4.216 INVESTIGATION OF AQUATIC ECOSYSTEMS IN SMALL PONDS. 1.031, 6.036* JUVENILE EMIGRATION OF LABONTAN CUTTEROAT TROUT IN THE TRUCKEE-PYRAMIC LAKE SYSTEM. 4.055 LIFE HISTCHY AND POPULATION DYNAMICS OF TILEFISH, LOPHOLATILUS CHAMAELONTICUP. 1.064 LINNOLOGICAL EVALUATION AND ZCOPLANETCN DYNAMICS OF LAKE KOCCANUSA, NOHTHWESTERN MONTANA. 4.077 MANAGEMENT AND CULTURE CF MCLLUSCAN SPECIES. 6.086 MATHEMATICAL MODEL OF OYSTER POPULATION IN THE CHESAPEAKE HAY. 1.053, 6.051* PHYSIOLOGY AND ECOLOGY OF THE ASIATIC CLAM, CORHICULA SP., IN THE SACRAMENTO-SAN JCACUIN DELTA. 1.004, 4.011*

NORTEWEST. 4.004 STATUS, ABUNDANCE AND EXFLCITATION OF THE STRIPED HASS IN THE RCANCEL FIVER, NC. 4.163 STOCE DYNAMICS AND ASSESSMENT IN MARINE FISBERIES. 1.09I, 6.078* THE EFFECTS OF AGRICULTURAL DRAINAGE OF NATURAL SYSTEMS - PHASE III. 4.036 WILD VERSUS HAICBERY IROUT. 1.026, 4.058≠ POPULATION-GENETICS FISH GENETICS. 2.019, 4.183* GENETIC ASSESSMENT OF MACRCERACHIUM CN GUAM. I.023 GENETICS OF NATURAL FISH PCPULATIONS. 1.037, 2.009* POPULATION-SUPPRESSION BIOLOGICAL CONTROL AGENTS OF BYDFILLA VEFTICILLATA. 3.109 POTABOGETON A SURVEY FOR PATHCGEN PCR AQUATIC WEEDS IN CALIFORNIA FOR USE IN BICLOGICAL CONTECL. 3.008, 4.009* NITROGEN FIXATION HY MICROBES INHAHITING SURFACES CF AQUATIC MACROPHYTES. 4.142 PHYSIOLOGICAL STUDIES OF AQUATIC AND DITCH HANK WEEDS IN THE PACIFIC NORTHWEST. 3.101 POTAMOGETON-NODOSUS EVALUATION OF EFFICACY, CROP RESPONSES AND CROP AND WATER RETENTION OF POTENTIAL AQUATIC BERHICIDES. 3.021, 4.035* BORMONAL REGULATION OF GROWIE, DEVELOPMENT AND VEGETATIVE PROFAGATION OF SUBMERSED AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.020 UPTAKE AND MOVEMENT OF HERBICIDES AND NUTRIENTS IN AQUATIC WEED SPECIES. 3.019 POTAMOGETON-PECTINATUS EVALUATION OF EFFICACY, CHOP RESPONSES AND CROP AND WATES RETENTION OF POTENTIAL AQUATIC BERBICIDES. 3.021, 4.035* POTASSIUM COMPARATIVE PHYSIOLOGICAL STUDIES OF VERTERFATE EYES. 1.062 POTASSIUN-SORHATE EXTENDING THE SHELF-LIFE OF FISH. 8.036, 9.028* POULTRY ABATEMENT OF EUTROPHICATION RESULTING FROM INTENSIVE ANIMAL PRODUCTION. 4.185, 6.080* ANALYSIS OF DOMESTIC FOOD DEMAND AND CONSUMPTION BEBAVIOR. 9.041 RECYCLING WASTES INTO ANIMAL FEEDS. 5.029, 8.029* SMOKING OF SEAFOOD AND POULTHY. \$.008, 9.007* THE EFFECTS OF DIET ON THE RISK CF CANCER. 9.020 THE OXIDATIVE DETERICRATICN OF LIPIDS IN MECHANICALLY DEBONED FOULTEY AND FISH. 9.009 UTILIZATION OF AQUATIC PLANTS FOR WASTE TREATMENT AND ANIMAL FEEDS. 1.043, 5.023* POULTRY-MEAT PACTORS APPECTING THE FUNCTIONAL PROPERTIES AND QUALITY OF PROCESSED MUSCLE FCODS. 9.021 SNOKING OF SEAFOOD AND POULTRY. 8.008, 9.007* POWER-PLANTS ANALYSIS AND MCDELING LAKE MICHIGAN FISH POPULATION. 1.015, 4.032* DEVELOPMENT OF FISH PROTECTIVE SYSTEMS PCR WATER INTAKES. 4.022 ECOLCGY OF FISHES AND LIMNOLCGY CF UPPER GREAT LAKES AND TRIBUTARIES IN BELATICN TO ENVIRCNMENTAL IMPACTS. 1.060, 4.115* EPFECTS OF THE BRUNSWICK NUCLEAR POWER-PLANTS CN THE PRODUCTIVITY OF SPARTINA ALTERNIFICRA. 4.159 FISE BARRIES SYSTEMS FOR POWER STATIONS. 4.196 IMPACTS OF THE CONSTRUCTION AND OPERATION OF COASTAL NUCLEAR POWER PLANTS ON ESTUARINE ECOLOGY. 4.160 PRODUCTION OF MACROPRACHIUM ROSENBERGII (GIANT MALAYSIAN PRAWN IN NHVADA). 6.060 THE IMPACT OF FOWER PEAKING ON EGG INCUBATION OF FALL CHINCCE SALMON. 4.072 PRAWNS FORMULATION OF PCODS FOR AQUATIC ANIMALS CF ECONOMIC IMPORTANCE. 5.022, 8.016* FRESHWATER FOOD ANIMALS. 4.198, 5.048* GENETIC ASSESSMENT OF MACROERACEIUM ON GUAM. 1.023 LOW-TENPERATURE STORAGE OF FRESEWATER PRAWN, MACROBRACEIUM BOSENEERGII. 8.010

POPULATION CHARACTERISTICS OF TEXAS GULF OF MEXICO

POPULATION DYNAMICS OF LARGEMOUTH AND SHALLNCUTH

ANADRONOUS FISE BABITAT IN THE PACIFIC

EASS IN IG NEW YORK LAKES. 1.075 PROTECTION, REHABILITATION, AND ENHANCEMENT OF

FISHES. 1.097

NITROGEN METABOLISM OF FRESHWATER PRAWNS IN RELATION TO DIET. 5.015 POST-BARVEST HANDLING AND PROCESSING OF MACROBRACEIUN PRAWNS. 7.003, 8.012*, 9.011* PRAWN AQUACULTURAL ENGINEERING. 6.027, 7.002* PRAWN AQUACULTURE PROGRAM - BIOLOGICAL BASIS CF PECDUCTION. 2.008, 6.030* PRODUCTION OF MACROBRACHIUM ROSENHERGII (GIANT MALAYSIAN PRAWN IN NEVADA). 6.060 PRECIPITATION EFFECTS OF ACID PRECIPITATION ON ADIBONDACE LARES. 4.153 EFFECTS OF ATMOSPHERIC INPUTS OF ACIDS AND BEAVY METALS CN LAKE PLANETCN. 4.101 PREDATION AN INVESTIGATION OF THE ADAPTIVE SIGNIFICANCE OF MELANISM IN THE MALE MCSQUITOFISH, GANHUSIA AFFINIS. 1.078 ANALYSIS OF PREDATION OF MERCENARIA MERCENARIA BY DECAPOD CRUSTACEANS. 1.095, 3.091^a ECOLOGY ANE WANAGEWENT CF WAILEYE. 1.073, 6.065* INSTREAM FICW REQUIREMENTS OF CALFORNIA FISHES. 1.013, 4.029* JUVENILE ENIGRATION OF LABONTAN CUTTEROAT TROUT IN THE TRUCKEE-PYRANID LAKE SYSTEM. 4.055 OYSTEE DRILL CONTROL BY HYDRAULIC DREDGING IN DELAWARE PAY. 6.064 WILD VERSUS BATCHERY IRCUT. 1.026, 4.058* PREDATOR-CONTROL ANALYSIS OF PREDATION OF MERCENARIA MERCENARIA BY DECAPOD CRUSTACEANS. 1.095, 3.091* PREDATOR-PRET-RELATIONS BIOLOGICAL CONTECL OF WEEDS WITH EMPHASIS CN AQUATIC HABITATS. 3.033 CHEMICALS THAT DIFFUSE FROM PREDATORY ASTERCIDS & TEIGGER DEFENSIVE BEBAVIORS IN MARINE INVERTEBRATE. 1.002 ECOLOGY, PCPULATION DYNAMICS AND MANAGEMENT CF NULTI-SFECIES FISE RESCURCES OF LARGE LAKES. 1.063, 4.121* INSTREAM FLCW REQUIREMENTS OF CALFORNIA FISHES. 1.013, 4.029* INTRODUCTION OF WALLEYE AND NORLUNGE FINGERLINGS INTO A LAKE DOMINATED BY PREY SPECIES. 1.074 OYSTER DRILL CONTROL BY BYDRAULIC DREDGING IN DELAWARE HAY. 6.064 THE RESOLUTION OF SOME PROBLEMS ATTENDING THE EMPLOYMENT OF MINNOWS AS FCRAGE FCE PARMPOND PISHES. 6.019 PREDATORS ANALYSIS OF PREDATION OF MERCENARIA MERCENARIA BY DECAPOD CRUSTACEANS. 1.095, 3.091* HLACK FLY DAMAGE THRESHOLDS, HIOLOGY AND CONTROL. 4.103 CHEMICALS THAT DIFFUSE FROM PREDATORY ASTEROIDS & TRIGGER DEFENSIVE BEBAVIORS IN MARINE INVERIEBRATE. 1.002 ECOLOGICAL STUDIES WITE RED SWANP CRAWFISE AND WHITE RIVER CRAWFISH. 1.042, 4.092*, 6.043* ECOLOGY, PCPULATION DYNAMICS AND MANAGEMENT CF MULTI-SPECIES FISE RESCURCES OF LARGE LARES. 1.063, 4.121* EVALUATION OF METHODS FOR INCREASING NATIVE CUTTHROAT STOCKS IN NORTHERN IDAEC. 4.074, 6.034* OYSTER DRILL CONTROL BY HYDRAULIC DREDGING IN DELAWARE EAY. 6.064 PREDATORY-AN INALS MINNOWS AS FORAGE IN THE FARM POND PRODUCTION CF FINFISH. 6.018 PREDICTION ANALYSIS AND WODELING LAKE MICHIGAN FISH POPULATION. 1.015, 4.032* HIOLOGICAL INDICATORS OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY IN CALIPORNIA LAKES AND STREAMS. 4.016 CHARACTERISTICS, PREFERENCES, AND ATTITUDES CONCEBNING PRIVATE FEE-FISHING OPERATIONS. 10.048 CCLUMBIA FIVER CHINOOK SALMON STUDY. 1.090 BFFECTS OF INCREASED FINE SEDIMENT ON INCUEATION AND EMERGENCE OF CHINOOK SALMON AND STEELHRAD TEOUT. 4.071 EVALUATION OF RELATIVE PROTEIN PERFORMANCE IN PELLETED FISE RATIONS USING PHYSICLCGICAL

PELLETED FISH RATIONS USING PHYSICLCGICAL INDICES. 5.055 IMPACT OF LAND USE PRACTICES CN POPULATIONS OP

WILDLIFE AND FISHERY RESOURCES. 4.162

NUTRIENT INTERACTIONS AND CHANGES IN ALGAL QUALITY IN CAYUGA LAKE. 4.140 RESEARCE IN SYSTEMS ECOLOGY. 4.141 PREFERENCES CHARACTERISTICS, PREFERENCES, AND ATTITUDES CONCERNING PRIVATE FEE-FISHING OPERATIONS. 10.048 CONTROL AND ERADICATION OF ACDATIC WEEDS IN LAKES AND IMPOUNDED WATERS, 3.107 EFFECT OF PEAKING POWER GENERATION ON FISH. 4.056 PRESERVATION CELL CULTURE STUDIES ON CELL LINES DEVELOPED FROM TISSUES OF AQUATIC ANIMAL. 3.051 CRYOGENIC PRESERVATION OF SPERN FROM STRIPED BASS. 2.017 CRYCGENIC PRESERVATION OF SPERM FROM WARMWATER FISBES. 2.016 DEVELOF OF ACUACULTURE SYSTEMS FC% COCL WATER FISH SPECIES. 2.028, 5.057*, 6.102* PROTECTION, REBABILITATION, AND ENHANCEMENT OF ANADROMOUS FISH HABITAT IN THE PACIFIC NORTEWEST. 4.004 PRET EFFECT OF DIET QUALITY CN ACUATIC ANIMALS. 5.047 INTRODUCTION OF WALLEYE AND NCRIDIGE FINGEBIINGS INTO A LAKE DOMINATED BY PREY SPECIES. 1.074 PRICE-ELASTICITY ECONOMICS OF THE COMMERCIAL FISH INDUSTRY, 10,045 PRICES ANALYSIS OF DOMESTIC FOOD DEMAND AND CONSUMPTION BEHAVIOR. 9.041 ECONOMICS OF BIVALVE NOLLUSK AQUACULTURE IN NEW ENGLAND. 6.054, 10.016* ECONOMICS OF PRODUCING AND MARKETING LCNG ISLAND SOUND OYSTERS. 10.006 ECONOMICS OF THE COMMERCIAL FISH INDUSTRY. 10.045 MANAGEMENT ECONOMICS OF NEW YORE'S MARINE INDUSTRIES. 10.030 PROBABILITY AN ANALYSIS OF NEW ENGLAND FISHERIES INVESTMENT HEBAVICE. 10.037 PROCAMHARUS FCEMULATION OF FOODS FOR ACUATIC ANIMALS OF ECONCHIC IMPORTANCE. 5.022, 8.016* PRELIMINARY STUDIES ON CRAWFISH AND FRESHWATER SERIMP DISHASES. 1.096, 3.094* PROCESS-DEVELOPMENT DEVELOPMENT OF A SUBUNIT VACCINE TO THE SALMCNID VIRUS, IBNV, BY MOLECULAR CLCNING. 3.085 ENZYME DEVELOPMENT FOR SEAFOOD CUALITY. 9.033 NETAPHASE CBRCMOSOME BANDING CF FRESHWATER FISBES. 2.026 NUTRITIONAL ASPECTS OF AQUACULTURE SYSTEMS. 5.007, 6.014* OYSTER PRODUCTION FOULPMENT DEVELOPMENT, 4.052. 6.028* RECOVERY AND CONVERSION OF CATFISE PROCESSING WASTE INTO VALUABLE PEED SUPPLEMENTS. 8.020 UTILIZATION OF LATENT WARINE RESOURCES AND EY-PRODUCTS WASTE. 8.041 PROCESSED-FISE PRACTICAL FEED FCENULATIONS AND FEEDING PRACTICES FOR CATFISE FARMING IN MS. 5.035, 6.058*, 8.031* PROCESSED-FOOD PRACTICAL FEED FORWULATIONS AND FEEDING PRACTICES FOR CATFISH FARMING IN MS. 5.035, 6.058*, 8.031* RHGULATORY PROHLEMS OP LOUISIANA FOCD INDUSTLIES. 9.017 PROCESSED-MEAT MANUFACTURE OF PROCESSED MEAT AND/OF FISH PRODUCTS WITH UNDERUTILIZED MARINE SPECIES. 8.027 PROCESSING CATFISH HREEDING, PRODUCTION, AND MARKETING. 10.003 DEVELOPMENT AND EVALUATION OF CYSTER HARVESTING EQUIPMENT AND MARICULTURE SYSTEMS. 6.084, 7.013* DEVELOPMENT OF AN INTEGRATED SYSTEM FOR TOTAL UTILIZATION OF SWINE WASTE. 6.001 DEVELOPMENT OF IMPROVED BANDLING, SHIPPING/STORAGE AND MARKETING PRACTICES FOR FISHERY FECDUCTS. 7.010, 8.039*, 9.030* DRYING SEAFOOD PRODUCTS WITH SOLAR ENERGY. 8.006 ECONOMIC DESCRIPTION OF THE NEW JERSEY COMMERCIAL FISBING INDUSTRY. 10.025 ECONOMIC IMPACTS OF THE 200-MILE LINIT CN RUFAL NORTHFASTERN COASTAL COMMUNITIES. 10.027 ECONOMICS OF THE COMMERCIAL FISE INDUSTRY. 10.044

ENZYMES IN FOOD FERMENTATIONS. 8.025

EQUIPMENT FOR MECHANIZATION OF PRODUCTION OF CYSTEES AND OTHER SHELLFISH. 6.083, 7.012* EVALUATION OF PESTICIDE LEVELS IN CATEISE PRCCESSING WASTES. 9.001 FRESHWATER FOOD ANIMALS. 2.014, 3.039, 5.014*, 5.034*, 6.006, 6.024*, 6.056*, 8.001*, 9.002*, 10.002* IDENTIFICATION OF OFE-FLAVOR COMPOUND SCURCES FOR FISH AND WATER FROM THE UPPER WISCONSIN RIVER. 9.043 IMPROVING SURFACE WATER CONDITIONS THROUGH CONTROL AND DISFOSAL OF AQUATIC VEGETATION. 7.015 MANAGEMENT ECONOMICS OF NEW YORK'S MARINE INDUSTRIES. IO. 030 MANUFACTURE OF PROCESSED MEAT AND/OR FISH PRODUCTS WITE UNDERUTILIZED MARINE SPECIES. 8.027 MARINE FOOD SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY. 8.003, 9.004* MARKET POTENTIAL AND CURRENT MARKETING PROCEDURES AND PRACTICES OF THE CATEISH FOR FOOD INDUSTRY. 10.021 MICRCBIOLOGICAL ASPECTS TO SHELLFISH SANITATION AND QUALITY. 7.014, 8.047*, 9.037* NEW METBOD OF APPRAISING NUTRITICNAL STANCAFCS. 10.020 FOST-BARVEST HANDLING AND PROCESSING OF MACROFRACHIUM PRAWNS. 7.003, 8.012*, 9.011* PRELIMINARY COSTS OF CATFISH PROCESSING WASTE UTILIZATION. 8.021, 10.013* RECOVERY AND CONVERSION OF CATFISH PECCESSING WASTE INTO VALUABLE FEED SUPPLEMENTS. 8.020 RECOVERY AND UTILIZATION OF SHRINF AND CRAWEISH PROCESSING HYPRODUCTS. 8.017 REGULATORY PROBLEMS OF LOUISIANA ECCD INDUSTRIES. 9.017 UTILIZATION OF LATENT MARINE RESOURCES AND HY-PRODUCTS WASTE. 8.041 WATER QUALITY CHANGES IN OYSTER PROCESSING. 8.025 PROCESSING-WASTE BIOCONVERSION OF CHITIN WASTES. 8.004 EVALUATION OF BY-PRODUCTS FROM CATFISH PROCESSING WASTE FCR CATFISH FEED SUPPLEMENTS. 5.032, 8.030* EVALUATION OF PESTICIDE LEVELS IN CATFISE PROCESSING WASTES. 9.001 EBESHWATER FOOD ANIMALS. 6.006, 8.001*, 9.002*, 10.002* PRELIMINARY COSTS OF CATFISH PROCESSING WASTE UTILIZATION. 8.021, 10.013* RECLAMATION OF PROTEIN AND FLAVOR MATERIALS FROM CLAM WASE WATER. 8.034 RECOVERY AND CONVERSION OF CATPISH PROCESSING WASTE INTO VALUABLE FEED SUPPLEMENTS. 8.020 RECOVERY AND UTILIZATION OF SERIMP AND CRAWFISH PROCESSING EXPRODUCTS. 8.017 THE TREATMENT AND USE OF WASTE PRODUCTS AND CHEMICALS IN THE DIET OF AQUATIC ANIMALS. 5.046, 8.042* USE OF CLAN BY-PRODUCTS. 8.037 UTILIZATION OF LATENT MAFINE RESCURCES AND BY-PRODICTS WASTE. 8.041 PRODUCERS PRODUCTION ECONOMICS OF AQUACULTURE SPECIES IN HAWAII. 10.005 SCOPE OF WORK FOR PRELIMINARY STUDY OF PRIMARY AND SECONDARY PRODUCTION OF THE ST. LAWFENCE RIVEF. 4.150 PRODUCT-DEVELOPMENT FOOD PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT ERCM FLCFIDA UNDERUTILIZED FISE SPECIES. 8.007, 9.006* ERBSEWATER FOOD ANIMALS. 2.027, 5.054*, 6.096* POTENTIAL CE DIFEBRENT UNDERUTILIZED SEECIES CF FISH FOF CONVENIENCE FOODS. 8.035, 5.026* RECLAMATICN OF PROTEIN AND FLAVOR MATERIALS FROM CLAM WASH WATER. 8.034 RECOVERY AND CONVERSION OF CATFISH PROCESSING WASTE INTO VALUABLE FEED SUPPLEMENTS. 8.020 PRODUCT-BVALUATION HANDLING AND PROCESSING OF FISH AND SHELLFISE. 8.018, 5.016* PRODUCT-QUALITY DRYING SEAFOOD PRODUCTS WITH SOLAF ENERGY. 8.006 FACTORS AFFECTING THE FUNCTIONAL PROPERTIES AND OUALITY OF PRCCESSED MUSCLE FCCDS. 9.021 PEOCESSING QUALITY AND PACKAGING FACTORS WHICH AFFECT THE UTILIZATION OF FISH AND SHELLFISH. 8.046, 5.036*

UTILIZATION OF LATENT MARINE RESOURCES AND BY-PRODUCTS WASTE: 8.041 PRODUCTION EIOLOGICAL INDICATORS OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY IN CALIEORNIA LAKES AND STREAMS. 4.016 CAGE CULTURE OF TILAPIA IN THE VIRGIN ISLANDS. 6.098. 9.039* CULTURE SYSTEMS FOR YBAR-RODND MARKETING OF PISH FROM WATERSHED PONDS. 6.008, 7.001* DEVELCEMENT OF A SUBUNIT VACCINE TO THE SALMONID VIRUS, IENV, BY MOLECULAR CICNING. 3.085 DEVELOFMENT OF METEODS FOF MASS PRODUCTION AND MANAGEMENT OF BUILFROGS. 2.013, 4.093* BCONOMICS OF AQUACULTURE. 10.004 ECONCHICS CE HIVALVE MOLLUSE AQUACULTURE IN NEW ENGLAND. 6.054, 10.016* ECONOMICS OF PRODUCING AND MARKETING LCNG ISLAND SOUND OYSTERS. 10.006 ECONOMICS OF SALMONID AQUACULTURE IN NEW BNGLAND. 6.082, 10.038* ECONOMICS OF THE COMMERCIAL FISH INDUSTRY. 10.045 FACTORS INELUENCING TROUT PRODUCTION IN VIRGINIA STREAMS. 1.102, 4.217* FISE PRODUCTION IN SOUTH DAKOTA PARM AND SANCE WATERS. 6.087 ERESEWATER FOOD ANIMALS. 5.004, 6.098 LIMNOLCGY OF EARM PONDS. 1.082, 6.071* MINNOWS AS FORAGE IN THE PARM POND PRODUCTION OP FINFISE. 6.018 NATURAL MARSHES AS NUTRIENT SINKS FOR AGRICULTURAL **RUNCEF**. 4.088 NEW METHOD OF APPRAISING NUTRITICNAL STANLARDS. 10.020 PRAWN AQUACULTURAL ENGINEERING. 6.027, 7.002* SHRIMP MATURATION, REPRODUCTION, DEVELOPMENT, NUTRITION, INTENSIVE-EXTENSIVE CULTURE AND MARICULTURE. 5.052, 6.082* THE USE OF SELECTED AQUATIC ORGANISMS FOF PURPOSES OF AQUACULTURE (FOOD PRODUCTION). 3.012, 4.023*, 5.008*, 8.005* WATER QUALITY STOCKING RATES AND BAEVESTING SYSTEMS FOR CATFISE. 6.059 FRODUCTION-COSTS A FOLYCULTURE SYSTEM OF EISH PRODUCTION ECR DISADVANTAGED FARMERS IN AFKANSAS. 6.009 CAGE CULTURE OF FISH IN THE VIRGIN ISLANDS UTILIZING TERTIARY TREATED WATER. 6.100 ECONOMICS OF PRODUCING AND MARKETING LONG ISLAND SOUND OYSTERS. 10.006 ECONOMICS OF SALMONID AQUACULTURE IN NEW ENGLAND. 6.082, 10.038* PRODUCTION-BCONOMICS ECONOMICS OF AQUACULTURE. 10.004 ECONOMICS OF BIVALVE MOLLUSK AQUACULTURE IN NEW ENGLAND. 6.054, 10.016* ECONOMICS OF THE COMMERCIAL PISE INDUSTRY. 10.044 PRAWN AQUACULTURAL ENGINEERING. 6.027, 7.002* PRODUCTION-EFFICIBNCY HIOLOGICAL FEASIBILITY OF INTENSIFIED OYSTER CULTURE. 4.178, 5.040*, 6.074* SURVEY OF DISEASES OF CULTURED FRESHWATER FISHES OF CALIFORNIA. 3.009 SYSTEMS ANALYSIS OF INTENSIVE AQUACULTURE: A CASE STUDY OF OYSTER PRODUCTION. 6.026, 10.011* PRODUCTION-FUNCTIONS MANAGEMENT ECONCHICS OF NEW YORK'S MARINE INDUSTRIES. 10.030 NATHEMATICAL MODEL OF OYSTER POPULATION IN THE CHESAPEAKE BAY. I.053, 6.051* PRODUCTION-MANAGEMENT IIMNCLCGY OF FARM PONDS. 1.082, 6.071* MINNEWS AS FORAGE IN THE FARM PEND PRODUCTION OF FINEISE. 6.018 WATER QUALITY STOCKING RATES AND HARVESTING SYSTEMS EOR CATFISH. 6.059 PRODUCTION-MODBLS ECONCHICS OF BIVALVE NOLLUSE AQUACULTURE IN NEW ENGLAND. 6.054, 10.016* PRODUCTION-PRACTICES DEVELOPMENT OF MAXIMUM SUSTAINED VIELD IN KANSAS EARM PONDS. 6.041 EPFECTS OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS AND MANAGEMENT PRACTICES ON COMMERCIAL PRODUCTION OF CRAWFISH. 4.096, 6.047* EFFECTS OF LAND USE PRACTICES ON STREAM BIOTA. 4.085 EISE PRODUCTION IN SOUTH DAKOTA FARM AND RANCH WATERS. 6.087 MOLLUSCAN HATCHERY TECHNOLCGY. 6.075

PEAWN AQUACULTURE PROGRAM - HICLCGICAL BASIS OF DEVELOPMENT OF A FISH MARKETING PROGRAM. 10.032 PRCDUCTICN. 2.008, 6.030* PRODUCTION ECONOMICS OF ACUACULTURE SPECIES IN PROJECTION HANAII. 10.009 PRODUCTION-SYSTEMS ANALYSIS OF THE MARKET PCTENTIAL FCR FRESH WATER AQUACULTURAL PRODUCTS PRODUCED IN NEVADA. 5.036. 6.082, 10.038* PROOXIDANTS 8.032*, 10.022* BIOLOGICAL STUDIES WITH THE MOSQUITOFISH, GAMHUSIA AFFINIS, UNDER CULTURAL SITUATIONS. 6.012 CAGE CULTURE OF TILAPIA IN THE VIRGIN ISLANDS. PROPAGULES 6.098, 8.039≭ DEVELOPMENT AND EVALUATION OF OYSTHE HARVESTING EQUIPMENT AND MARICULTURE SYSTEMS. 6.084, 7.013* ROYLE). 3.024 PROSOPIS ECCNCHICS OF AQUACULTURE. 10.004 ECONOMICS OF HIVALVE MOLLUSK AQUACULTURE IN NEW ENGLAND. 6.054, 10.016* PROTEASES ECONOMICS OF SALMONID AQUACULTURE IN NEW ENGLAND. **6.082, 10.038**≠ EQUIPMENT FCE MECHANIZATION CF PRODUCTION CF PROTECTION CYSTERS AND OTHER SBELLFISE. 6.083, 7.012* PRESHWATHE FCOD ANIMALS. 2.012, 2.023, 2.025, INTAKES. 4.022 3.039, 5.014*, 5.045*, 5.051*, 6.024*, 6.045*, PROTEIN-COMPOSITION 6.079*, 6.090* FRESHWATER SHRIMP OF THE GENUS MACROERACHIUM WITH SPHCIAL EMPBASIS CN CULTURE. 4.205, 6.094* HAY. 1.056, 4.108* IMPROVEMENT OF OGO PRODUCTION AND MASKETING IN PROTEIN-EFFICIENCY EAWAII. 6.031, 10.012* LIMNOLOGY CF FARM PONDS. 1.082, 6.071* MANAGEMENT TECHNIQUES PCF INCREASING CRAWFISE 8.030* PRODUCTION. 6.046, 7.006* PROTEIN-LEVELS PRAWN AQUACULTURAL ENGINEERING. 6.027, 7.002* PRODUCTIVITY ACCOUNTING FOR VARIABILITY IN PRODUCTIVITY OF OCEAN FISE IN YIELD ESTIMATION. 4.185 APPLIED LINNOLOGY AND FISHERIES STUDIES IN TROPICAL LAKES. 4.021 PROTEIN-RECOVERY AQUATIC INSECTS AS INDICATORS OF WATER QUALITY AND FRODUCTIVITY: A CCORDINATED STUDY. 4.129 ACUATIC RESOURCES OF SILVER CREEK AT THE NATURE CONSERVANCY SITE. 4.075 PROTEIN-REQUIREMENTS BIOLOGICAL FEASIBILITY OF INTENSIFIED OYSTER PECTEIN-SOURCES CULTURE. 4.178. 5.040*. 6.074* HIOLOGICAL INDICATORS OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY IN CALIFORNIA LAKES AND STREAMS. 4.016 BIOSYNTHESIS OF STERCLS IN THE OYSTER AND COBRELATION OF STEROL COMPOSITION TO OYSTER PRODUCT IVITY. 1.055, 5.027* ECOLOGY, PCPULATION DYNAMICS AND MANAGEMENT OF INDICES. 5.055 MULTI-SFECIES FISH RESOURCES OF LARGE LAKES. 1.063, 4.121* EFFECTS OF DISSOLVED CHEMICALS ON AQUATIC LIFE. 4.078 EFFECTS OF SEDIMENTS ON BIOLOGICAL SYSTEMS. 4.126 5.008*, 8.005* EFFECTS OF THE BRUNSWICK NUCLEAR POWER-PLANTS ON PROTEIN-UTILIZATION THE PROLUCTIVITY OF SPARTINA ALTERNIFLCEA. 4.159 ENVIEONMENTAL EFFECTS ON PRODUCTIVITY OF CRAYFISE IN FOND HABITATS, PHASE I, II. 5.025, 6.048*, PROTEINS 7.007* INPACTS OF THE CONSTRUCTION AND OPERATION OF COASTAL NUCLEAR POWER PLANTS ON ESTUABINE 2.021 ECOLOGY. 4.160 LIMNOLOGICAL HASIS FOR THE PRODUCTIVITY OF INLAND WATERS. 4.206 9.027 PHYSIOLOGY OF CHESAPEAKE BAY PHYTCPLANETCN. 1.054, 4.107* PEODUCTIVITY OF THE SALINE MARSHES ON FLORIDA'S 9.005* NORTH AND WEST COASTS, PBASE II. 4.038 QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE STUDIES OF PCLLUTION IN SELECTED FARM PONDS. 4.155 8.030* SCOPE OF WORK FOR PRELIMINARY STUDY OF PRIMARY AND SECONDALY PRODUCTION OF THE ST. LAWRENCE HIVES. 4.150 THE STATUS, AHUNDANCE, AND YIELD CF THE STRIPED BASS IN THE RCANCKE RIVER, NORTH CAROLINA. 8.038*, 5.029* 1.081, 4.164* VALUE OF TIDAL WARSHES IN RELATION TO ESTUAFINE ECOSYSTEN, AND EVALUATION OF FRESHWATER WETLANDS. 4.044 PROFITABILITY COSTS AND BETURNS IN THE CITER TRAWL FLEET ON LCNG ISLAND, NEW YCRE. 10.029 PRODUCTION ECONOMICS OF AQUACULTURE SPECIES IN HAWAII. 10.009 PROFITS 6.014* ECONOMICS OF PRODUCING AND MARKETING LONG ISLAND SCUND OYSTERS. 10.006

PROGRAMS

ECONOMICS OF PRODUCING AND MARKETING LCNG ISLAND SCUND OYSTERS. 10.006 ECONOMICS OF SALMONID AQUACULTURE IN NEW ENGLAND. THE CXIDATIVE DETERIORATICS OF LIPIDS IN MECHANICALLY DEHONED POULTRY AND FISH. 9.009 THE PHYSIOLOGY AND CONTROL OF VEGETATIVE REPRODUCTION IN HYDRILLA (HYDRILLA VERTICILLATA HIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF WEEDS. 3.104 LOW-TEMPERATURE STORAGE OF FRESHWATER PRAWN, MACROBRACBIUN ROSENBERGII. 8.010 DEVELOPMENT OF FISH PROTECTIVE SYSTEMS FOR WATER MORPHOLOGICAL, ULTRASTRUCTURAL, AND HIOCHENICAL CHARACTEBIZATION OF NANCPLANKTON FROM CHESAPEAKE EVALUATION OF BY-PRODUCTS FROM CATFISE PROCESSING WASTE FOR CATFISE FEED SUPPLEMENTS. 5.032, BREEDING, PRODUCTION, NUTRITICN AND MARKETING CF CHANNEL CATFISH. 2.010, 5.020*, 6.040* SALMON CULTURE - DEVELOPMENT OF NUTRITICNAL AND DISEASE CONTECL PROGRAMS. 3.064, 5.037* THE EFFECTS OF DIET ON THE EISE CF CANCEE. 9.020 RECOVERY AND UTILIZATION OF SERIMP AND CRAWFISH PROCESSING HYPRODUCTS. 8.017 FRESHWATER FOOD ANIMALS, 5,013, 6,022* DEVELOP OF AQUACULTURE SYSTEMS FOR COOL WATER FISE SPECIES. 2.028, 5.057*, 6.102* EVALUATION OF AQUATIC PLANTS AS POTENTIAL FEEDSTUFF FOR DAIRY CATTLE. 9.013 EVALUATION OF RELATIVE FROTEIN PERFORMANCE IN PELLETED FISH RATIONS USING PHYSICLOGICAL SALMON CULTURE - DEVELOPMENT OF NUTRITICNAL AND DISEASE CONTROL PROGRAMS. 3.064, 5.037* THE USE OF SELECTED AQUATIC OFGANISMS FOR PURPOSES OF AQUACULTURE (FOOD PRCCUCTICN). 3.012, 4.023*, NITROGEN METAHOLISM OF FRESHWATER PRAWNS IN RELATION TC DIET. 5.015 ANIMAL REEEDING AND GENETICS OF FISH. 2.002 BIOCBENICAL GENETICS AND CYTCGENETICS OF TROUT. CHANNEL CATFISH NUTRITICN. 5.031, 5.033 COMPARATIVE STUDIES OF LOBSTER AND CBICKEN MUSCLE. DIETARY FACTORS IN WHITE FISH MEAL RESPONSIBLE FOR CATARACT FORMATION IN TRCUT. 3.018, 5.009*. EVALUATION OF HY-FRODUCTS FEON CATFISH PROCESSING WASTE FOR CATFISE FEED SUPPLEMENTS. 5.032, **HVALUATION OF RELATIVE PROTEIN PERFORMANCE IN** PELLETED FISH RATIONS USING PHYSICLOGICAL INDICES. 5.055 FACTORS AFPECTING THE TEXTURE OF SEAFCODS. 7.009, FEASIBILITY OF CAGED FISE CULTURE IN NOETH CENTRAL OKLABOMA FARM PONDS. 4.173, 6.073*, 10.035* FRESEWATER FCCD ANIMALS. 4.198, 5.048* GENETIC ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT OF CRUSTACEAN AQUACULTURE STOCKS. 2.003 HUMAN NUTRITION IMPROVEMENT. 8.022 MARINE FCOD SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY. 8.003, 5.004* NUTRITICN OF SALMONID FISHES. 5.041 NUTRITICNAL ASPECTS OF AQUACULTURE SYSTEMS. 5.607,

BECLAMATION OF PROTEIN AND FLAVOR MATERIALS FROM CLAN WASE WATER. 8.034

RECOVERY AND UTILIZATION OF SHRINP AND CRAWFISH PROCESSING HYPRODUCTS. 8.017 FCLE CF LIFIDS AND THEIR OXIDATION IN FISH QUALITY. 9.024 SALMON CULTURE - DEVELOPMENT OF NUTFITIONAL AND DISEASE CONTROL PERGEAMS. 3.064, 5.037* THE EFFECT OF FROZEN SICHAGE ON TEXTURAL CUALITY OF LOESTER MEAT. 8.023 UTILIZATICN OF LATENT MARINE RESCURCES AND BY-PRODUCTS WASTE. 8.041 UTILIZATION OF PROTEIN INGREDIENTS IN FISH FATIONS. 5.044 PROTECLYSIS ENZYMES IN FOOD FERMENTATIONS. 9.025 PROTOZOA A COMPARATIVE STUDY OF THE FINE STRUCTURE CF APCSTCME CILIATES. 3.076 CONTROL OF WRITIING DISEASE OF SALMONIDS. 3.063 DETERMINATION OF EFFICACY OF CERTAIN ANTI-PARASITIC DRUGS FOR FISHES. 3.041 DISEASES OF AQUATIC ANIMALS. 3.072 BCST-PARASITE RELATIONSEIPS BETWEEN THE CHANNEL CATFISE AND ICHTEVOPHTHIKIUS MULTIFILIIS. 3.050 PROXIMATE-ANALYSIS FISH CULTURE USING GECTHERNAL WATER. 6.032 PSEUDOMONAS-FLUORESCENS DISEASE MANAGEMENT IN CULTURED CATFISH. 3.096 PSEUDOMONA S- PUTREFACIENS ENZYMES IN FOOD FERMENTATICNS. 9.025 PSYCHPOTROPEIC-BACTERIA ENZYMES IN FOOD FERMENTATIONS. 9.025 PUELIC-BEALTS A STUDY OF THE MICROHIOLOGICAL FLORA OF CRNAMENTAL FISHES. 3.040 DISEASES OF SHELLFISH. 3.074 PUBLIC-INVESIMENTS ECONOMICS OF PRODUCING AND MARKETING LONG ISLAND SOUND OYSTERS. 10.006 PUELIC-POLICIES AN ECONOMIC ANALYSIS OF DECISION MAKING AND POLICY FCRMULATION. IO.043 APPLICATION OF MANAGEMENT STRATEGIES TO THE MID-ATLANTIC EXTENDED JURISDICTICN DECREATIONAL FISHERIES. 10.034 COEUR D'ALENE RIVER FISHERIES INVESTIGATIONS. 4.061 ECONOMIC ANALYSIS OF ALTERNATIVE VIRGINIA CCASTAL WETLANDS POLICY. 10.047 ECONOMICS OF PRODUCING AND NARKETING LONG ISLAND SOUND OYSTERS. 10.006 PUEL ICATIONS BIOLOGICAL DATA FOR MANAGEMENT OF WALLEYES AND OTHER FISHES. 6.037 FISH PRODUCTION IN SCUTH DAKOTA FARM AND RANCE WATERS. 6.087 MORPHOLOGY AND TAXONOMY OF NEWATCHES. 1.021 CEGANIZATION AND RETRIEVAL OF FRESHWATER FISHERY DATA. 1.033, 4.080* PRODUCTION OF IDENTIFICATION CIRCULARS ON THE LARVAE CF COLCRADC FISHES. 1.014 TAXONOMY AND MORPEOLOGY OF NEMATODES. 3.027 PULP-WILL-EFFLUENTS UTILIZATION OF KRAFT MILL EFFLUENT FOR FISH PRODUCT ICN. 5.012, 6.020* PURIFICATION CHEMICALS THAT DIFFUSE FECH PREDATORY ASTERCIDS & TRIGGER DEFENSIVE BEBAVIORS IN MARINE INVERTEFRATE. I.002 EFFECTS CF AQUATIC PLANT COMMUNITIES ON WATER QUALITY IN HYPEREUTROPEIC AQUATIC ENVIRONMENT. 4.117 INMUNOLOGIC FACTORS IN CANDIDIASIS IN DCLFHINS. 3.031 QUALITY-EVALUATION DEVELOPMENT OF INPROVED BANCLING, SHIPPING/STORAGE AND MARKETING PRACTICES FCR FISHERY PRODUCTS. 7.010, 8.039*, 9.030* DEVELOPMENT OF RAPID SEAFOOD QUALITY TESTS FOR COMMERCIAL AND REGULATCRY USE. 9.015 DIAGNOSIS CF FISH DISEASES. 3.082 ENZYME DEVELOPMENT FOR SEAFCCD QUALITY. 9.033 EVALUATION OF THE STABILITY AND EDIBLE QUALITY OF

FRESE WATER SERIMF. 8.019 FOOD PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT FRCM FLCFIDA UNDERUTILIZED

FISH SPECIES. 8.007, 9.006*

IDENTIFICATION OF OFF-FLAVGE CONFOUND SOURCES FOR FISH AND WATER FROM THE UPPER WISCONSIN RIVER. 9.043 IMPROVING THE ASSURANCE OF QUALITY AND SAFETY OF CONSUMER'S FCCD. 9.031 MICECBICLOGICAL ASPECTS TO SHELLFISH SANITATION AND QUALITY. 7.014, 8.047*, S.037* POST-BARVEST BANDLING AND PROCESSING CF MACROBRACHIUM PRAWNS. 7.003, 8.012*, 9.011* ACLE OF LIPIDS AND THEIR CRIDATION IN FISH QUALITY. 9.024 SENSORY & NUTRITICNAL EVALUATION OF SEAFOODS. 8.043, 9.032* THE EFFECT OF FROZEN STCRAGE ON TEXTURAL QUALITY CF LCBSTER MEAT. 8.023 QUALITY-MAINTENANCE DEVELOPMENT OF IMPROVED HANDLING, SHIPPING/STORAGE AND MARKETING PRACTICES FCR FISHERY PRODUCTS. 7.010, 8.039*, 5.030* ENZYMES IN FCCD FERMENTATIONS. 9.025 EXTENDING THE SHELF-LIFE OF FISH. 8.036, 9.028* LCW-TEMPERATURE STORAGE OF FRESHWATER PRAWN, NACECHEACHIUM ROSENHERGII. 8.010 QUALITY CONTROL OF CANNED SQUID. 9.018 QUALITY FACTORS FOR PISE AND SHELLPISH STORAGE. 8.045, 9.035* QUANTITATIVE-ANALYSIS STREANSIDE HUFFEE STRIPS FCE PRCTECTING AQUATIC ORGANISMS FROM LOGGING EFFECTS. 4.018 QUARANTINES EIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS WITH INSECTS. 3.038 **OUESTICNNAIRES** AN ECONOMIC EVALUATION OF ICE FISHING IN MAINE. 10.014

RACES-GENETICS FISE GENETICS. 2.019, 4.183* PADIATION FARN FISE FOND MANAGEMENT. 4.112, 5.030*, 6.055* HANDLING AND PROCESSING OF FISE AND SEELLFISE. 8.018, 9.016* RADIO-TRACKING IMPACT OF EROSION SILT AND SEDIMENTATICN CN FISE FEFECDUCTICN AND GECWTE. 4.130 RADIOACTIVE-TRACENS EIGLOGICAL ANALYSIS OF THE AGE AND GROWTH RATE OF THE OCEAN QUABOG ARCTICA ISLANDICA. 4.138 CS&CREGULATCRY RESPONSES OF DESET PUFFISE: A STUDY MODEL OF PHYSIOLOGICAL ADAPTATION TO ENVIRONMENT. I.003, 4.010* FADIOISOTOPES ALGAL METAHOLISM IN THE PRESENCE OF BEREICIDES.

4.170 RADICTELEMETRY ADULT PADDLEPISE NOVEMENT IN POCL 13, UPPER NISSISSIPPI RIVER. 1.034 FISE MOVEMENT IN POCL 9, UPPER MISSISSIPPI RIVER. 1.035 MOVEMENTS OF SCHIC-TAGGED FISBES IN RELATION TO WATER QUALITY IN LOWER ATCHAFALAYA RIVER HASIN. 1.049, 4.097* RANCHES FISE PRODUCTION IN SOUTH DAKOTA FARM AND BANCE WATERS. 6.087 RANGES BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF WEEDS. 3.104 RATE-LINITING-REACTIONS ECOLOGY OF ANAEROBIC BETEROTROPHIC SACTESIA. 4.118 RATIONS CHANNEL CATFISE NUTRITION. 5.033 CRUSTACEAN NUTRITION AND FEED DEVELOPMENT. 5.006 EVALUATION OF AQUATIC PLANTS AS POTENTIAL FEEDSTUFF FOR DAIRY CATTLE. 9.013 FRESHWATER FOOD ANIMALS. 2.014, 5.034*, 6.056* INTENSIVE CULTURE OF THE WALLEYE (PERCIDAE: STIZOSTEDION VITREUN). 5.038, 6.067* OPERATING PARAMETERS OF LAGCONS FOR DISPCSAL OF UTILIZATION OF DAIRY FARM AND PROCESSING PLANT WASTE. 8.014

PRACTICAL FEED FORMULATIONS AND FEEDING PRACTICES FOR CATFISH FARWING IN MS. 5.035, 6.058*, 8.031* THE TREATMENT AND USE OF WASTE PRODUCTS AND

CEEMICALS IN THE DIET OF AQUATIC ANIMALS. 5.046, 8.042*

SOURCE FOR SHELLFISH CF PACIFIC NORTHWEST. 5.042 UTILIZATION CP AQUATIC PLANTS FOR WASTE TREATMENT AND ANIMAL FEEDS. 1.043, 5.023* UTILIZATION OF PROTEIN INGREDIENTS IN FISH RATIONS. 5.044 RATIOS SALMON CULTURE - DEVELOPMENT OF NUTRITICNAL AND DISEASE CONTROL PECGRAMS. 3.064, 5.037* PRARING A MULTI-INSTITUTIONAL APPRCACE TO THE IDENTIFICATION OF HIVALVE LARVAE. 1.067 HIOLOGICAL AGENTS FOR CONTACL OF HYDRILLA, A SUBMERSED AQUATIC WEED. 3.023 EARLY LIFE HISTORY ECOLOGY AND GROWTE CF THE BIVER SHEIMF MACROBRACHIUM OHICNE IN LOUISIANA. 1.046 ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS OF SALMCNELLCSIS. 3.049 EVALUATION OF VALICUS HATCHERY REARING CONDITIONS ON SEAWARD MIGRATICN CF STEELBEAD IFCUT. 1.025 GENETIC ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT OF CRUSTACEAN AQUACULTURE STOCKS. 2.003 LABORATORY CULTURE FOR RESEARCH PURPOSES CF ESTUARINE AND MARINE LCHSTERS, CRAHS AND SHEIMFS. 1.048, 5.024* MINNOWS AS FORAGE IN THE FARM POND PRODUCTION CF FINFISE. 6.018 PERFORMANCE CF SALMONIDS: SMOLTIFICATION, STRESS AND FITNESS. 1.089, 6.077* REARING HAIT FISH IN WESTERN NEVADA. 6.061, 10.023* STUDIES OF THE ECONOMICALLY IMPORTANT SPECIES: MERCENASIA MERCENARIA AND MACROHRACHIUM ECSENHE #GII. 1.094, 6.685* THE USE OF SELECTED AQUATIC CEGANISMS FCF PUEPCSES OF AQUACULTURE (FCOD PRODUCTION). 3.012, 4.023*, 5.008*, 8.005* RECEPTORS MOLECULAR ENDOCRINOLOGY OF MOLTING AND REPECTUCTION IN CRUSTACEANS. 1.005 RECOMBINANT-ENA DEVELOPMENT OF A SUBENIT VACCINE TO THE SALMONID VIRUS, IHNV, BY NCLECULAR CLCNING. 3.085 RECREATION AN ECONOMIC EVALUATION OF ICE FISHING IN MAINE. 10.014 APPLICATICN OF MANAGEMENT STRATEGIES TO THE MID-ATLANTIC EXTENDED JURISDICTION RECREATIONAL FISHEEJES. 10.034 AQUATIC INSECTS AS INDICATORS OF WATER QUALITY AND PRODUCTIVITY: A CCORDINATED STUDY. 4.129 ASSESSMENT OF COASTAL RECREATION RESOURCES. 10.046 HIOLOGICAL AND RECREATIONAL ASPECTS OF WATER LEVEL MANAGEMENT OF CLEAR LAKE, IOWA. 4.081 ECONCHICS OF SALMONID AQUACULTURE IN NEW ENGLAND. 6.082, 10.038* EURASIAN WATERMILFOIL IN CURRITUCE SOUND: ITS CONTROL AND POTENTIAL USE. 3.077, 4.165* FISHERIES AND WILDLIFE ECONOMICS RESEARCH IN THE GREAT LAKES. 10.019 IMPACIS OF RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT AND EXPLORTATION ON NATURAL RESOURCES. 4.216 STATUS, ABUNDANCE AND EXPLOITATION OF THE STRIPED BASS IN THE RCANOKE &IVEE, NC. 4.163 THE ECOLOGICAL IMPACT OF INTEGRATED CHEMICAL AND HIOLOGICAL AQUATIC WEED CONTROL. 4.048, 6.021* THE IMPACT OF SALMONID INTRODUCTIONS ON NEW YORK FISHEENEN AND COMMUNITIES. 10.033 RECREATION-FACILITIES CHARACTERISTICS, PREFERENCES, AND ATTITUDES CONCERNING PRIVATE FEE-FISHING OPERATIONS. 10.048 THE IMPACT OF SALMONID INTRODUCTIONS ON NEW YORK PISHERMEN AND COMMUNITIES. 10.033 RECEBATION-MANAGEMENT APPLICATION OF MANAGEMENT STRATEGIES TO THE MID-ATLANTIC EXTENDED JURISDICTION RECREATIONAL FISHERIES. 10.034 RECREATION-USEES AN ECONOMIC ANALYSIS OF THE ATLANTIC COAST STRIPED HASS FISHERY. 10.031 AN ECONOMIC EVALUATION OF THE RECREATIONAL SALMON FISHING IN THE KENAI/BUSSIAN RIVER REGICN. 10.036 HIOLOGICAL AND RECREATIONAL ASPECTS OF WATER LEVEL MANAGEMENT OF CLEAR LAKE, IOWA. 4.081 EFFECT OF FEAKING POWER GENERATION ON FISH. 4.056 FISHERIES AND WILDLIPE ECONOMICS RESEARCH IN THE

USE OF NUTRIENT CONTAINING LIPID VESICLES AS A FOOD

FISHERIES AND WILDLIPE ECONOMICS RESEARCH IN THE GREAT LAKES. 10.019

RECURRENT-SELECTION FRESEWATER FOOD ANIMALS. 2.007, 6.023* RECYCLING DEVELOPMENT OF AN INTEGRATED SYSTEM FOF ICIAL UTILIZATION OF SWINE WASTE. 6.001 EVALUATION OF A CLOSED SYSTEM FOR THE CULTURE OF PISE, SEELLFISE AND AQUATIC PLANTS. 5.001, 6.002* RED-RICE MANAGEMENT STRATEGIES FOR RICE FESTS. 3.005 REDOX SALINITY, REDCX FCTENTIAL, & MICECHIAL TRANSPORMATIONS OF MERCURY POLLUTANTS IN ESTUARINE SEDIMENTS. 4.132 REEFS APPLICATION OF OTCLITH MICROSTRUCTURAL DATA 10 STUDIES OF THE EARLY LIFE HISTCRY CF FISHES. 1.070 THE EFFECTS OF ARTIFICIAL STRUCTURES OF GAME FISH IN A HORECW PIT FOND. 1.085, 4.168* REPRIGERATION PREFLAVORED CHANNEL CATFISH. 8.013, 9.012* PROCESSING QUALITY AND PACKAGING FACTORS WHICH AFFECT THE UTILIZATION OF FISH AND SHELLFISH. 8.046, 9.036* REFUGES THE RESCLUTION OF SOME FROMLEMS ATTENDING THE EMPLOYMENT OF MINNOWS AS FORAGE FOR FARMPOND FISEES. 6.019 REGIONAL-ANALYSIS THE STATUS AND BELATION OF THE CCASTAL ZCNE TC ALAEAMA'S ECCNCMY. 10.001 REGIONAL-DEVELOPMENT SOUTHERN NEW ENGLAND ECCNONIC IMPACT PROJECT. 10.040 REGIONAL-ECONOMICS SOUTHERN NEW ENGLAND ECONOMIC IMPACT PROJECT. 10.040 REGIONAL-STUDIES LIMNOLOGICAL HASIS FOR THE FREDUCTIVITY OF INLAND WATERS. 4.206 SOUTHERN NEW ENGLAND ECONOMIC IMPACT PROJECT. 10.040 REGRESSION-ANALYSIS CHARACTERISTICS, PREFERENCES, AND ATTITUDES CONCERNING PRIVATE FEE-FISHING OFERATIONS. 10.048 ECONOMIC IMPACTS OF THE 200-MILE LIMIT CN RUPAL NORTHEASTERN COASTAL COMMUNITIES. 10.024 REGULATIONS COEUR D'ALENE RIVER FISHERIES INVESTIGATIONS. 4.061 ECONOMICS OF PRODUCING AND MARKETING LCNG ISLAND SCUND OYSTERS. 10.006 REGULATORY PROBLEMS OF LOUISIANA FOCD INDUSTRIES. 9.017 REEABILITATION PROTECTION, EBHAHILITATION, AND ENHANCEMENT OF ANADROMOUS FISH HAHITAT IN THE PACIFIC NORIEWESI. 4.004 RELEASE EVALUATION OF JUVENILE SALMON AND STEELHEAD DENSITY AS RELATED TO DENSITY OF SPANNERS AND FRY RELEASE. 1.030. 6.035* EVALUATION OF VARIOUS HATCHERY REARING CONDITIONS ON SEAWARD MIGRATION CF STEELHEAD TROUT. 1.025 REMOTE-SENSING DISTRIBUTION, ABUNDANCE AND ECCLOGY OF ASCOPHYLLUM NODOSUM (1) LE JOIS. 1.052, 4.102*, 7.008* PRE-IMPOUNDMENT ENVIRONMENTAL STUDIES OF AQUILLA LAKE. 4.209 VARIABILITY IN PHYSICAL REGIME OF LAKE TITICACA: RELATION TO EIOLOGICAL PROCESSES. 4.014 REMOVAL OYSTER DRILL CONTROL HY HYDRAULIC DEEDGING IN DELAWARE HAY. 6.064 RENRHACTERIUN-SALMONINARUM EACTERIAL KIDNEY DISEASE IN BAINHOW TROUT: PATHOGENESIS, IMMUNITY, AND EFFECT OF WATER HAEDNESS. 3.070 REPRODUCTION ACTIVITY REYTEMS OF THE NORTHERN ROCE CEAE IN RELATION TO ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL FACTORS. 1.057, 4.109* ADULT FALL CHINOCK TRAPPING FOR SNAKE RIVER EGG HANK PROGRAM. 6.033 ANIMAL BREEDING AND GENETICS CF FISH. 2.002

HEHAVIOR ECOLOGY AND REVIEMICITY IN THE ROCK CRABS, CANCER IRRORATUS AND CANCER ECREALIS, PHASE II. 1.058, 5.028* BEHAVIOR, ECOLOGY AND REVTENICITY IN THE COMMON ROCK CRAE. 1.059, 4.110* HIOSYNTHESIS OF STEROLS IN THE OYSTER AND CORRELATION OF STEROL COMPOSITION TO OYSTER PECDUCTIVITY. 1.055, 5.027* BREEDING EXPERIMENTS WITH SALWONIDS. 2.024 CHARACTERIZATION OF GONAD-STINULATING SUBSTANCES IN MARINE ANIMALS. 1.020, 2.006* CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.108 CEYOGENIC FRESERVATION OF SPERN FROM WARMWATER FISHES. 2.016 DEVELOP OF AQUACULTURE SYSTEMS FOR CCCL WATER FISE SPECIES. 2.028, 5.057*, 6.102* development and application of a methodology for RECOMMENDING SALMONID EGG INCUBATION FLCWS. 4.070 DEVELOPMENT OF NETHCDS FCF MASS PRODUCTION AND MANAGEMENT OF BULLFROGS. 2.013, 4.093* ECOLOGICAL STUDIES WITE RED SWAMP CRAWFISH AND WHITE PIVER CRAWFISH. 1.042, 4.092*, 6.043* ECOLOGY OF NOSQUITOES ASSOCIATED WITE CALIFORNIA RICE FIELDS. 4.015 EFFECTS OF AN ALTERED TEMPERATURE REGIME AND CEEMICAL CONTAMINANTS ON THE AQUATIC ECOSYSTEM. 3.062, 4.127* EFFECTS OF INCREASED FINE SEDIMENT ON INCUBATION AND EMERGENCE OF CHINCOK SALMON AND STEELHEAD TROUT. 4.071 EVALUATION OF JUVENILE SALWON AND STEELHEAD DENSITY AS WELATED TO DENSITY OF SPAWNERS AND PRY RELEASE. 1.030, 6.035* FUR ANIMAL STUDIES (MINE). 8.028 INTENSIVE CULTURE OF TILAPIA IN GEOTEERMAL WATERS IN THE SAN LUIS VALLEY, COLORADO. 2.005, 6.017* LIFE EISTORY AND POPULATION DYNAMICS OF TILEFISE, LOPHCLATILUS CHAMAELONTICUP. 1.064 NOLECULAR ENDOCRINOLOGY OF WOLTING AND REPRODUCTION IN CRUSTACEANS. 1.005 MCLLUSCAN FAICHERY TECHNOLOGY. 6.075 RESPONSE OF AQUATIC LIFE TO SALINITY, TEMPERATURE, DISSOLVED OXYGEN AND WATER FLOW. 4.024 SPAWNING, EARLY LIFE HISTORY, HAEITAT SELECTICN OF NORTBERN SQUAWFISE: INFER. TO COLCRADO SQUAWFISH. 4.063 THE IMPACT OF POWER PEAKING ON EGG INCUBATION OF FALL CHINOOK SALWCN. 4.072 TOXICITY AND ECOLOGICAL EFFECTS CF SELECTED INSECTICIDES AND BERBICIDES. 4.122 REPRODUCTIVE-BERAVIOR ADULT PADDLEFISH MOVEMENT IN POOL 13. UPPER MISSISSIPPI RIVER. 1.034 SFAWNING, EAKLY LIFE EISTORY, HAFITAT SELECTICN OF NORTBERN SQUAWFISE: INFER. TO COLORADO SQUAWFISH. 4.063 REPRODUCTIVE-EFFICIENCY DEVELOP OF ACUACULTURE SYSTEMS FCF CCCL WATER FISH SPECIES. 2.028, 5.057*, 6.102* REPRODUCTIVE-PERFORMANCE ANIMAL BREEDING AND GENETICS CF FISE. 2.002 EFFECTS OF INCREASED FINE SEDIMENT ON INCUEATION AND EMERGENCE OF CHINCCE SALMON AND STEELBEAD TEOUT. 4.071 FUR ANIMAL STUDIES (MINE). 8.028 IDENTIFICATION OF SUE-OPTIMAL ENVIRONMENTAL PARAMETEES AFFECTING AQUACULTURE. 3.090, 4.194* REPRODUCTIVE-SYSTEM FUNCTIONAL MCRPHOLOGY OF INVERTEERATE ORGAN SYSTEMS. 1.071 RESEARCE-FACILITIES FISHERIES EQUIPMENT AND GEAR DEVELOPMENT. 7.011 CPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF THE HEPATCMA LAEORATCRY. 5.043 RESERVOIRS BIOLOGICAL CONTRCL OF AQUATIC WEEDS WITH COMPETITIVE SPECIES OF SPIKERUSE (ELEOCHARIS SPP.). 3.011 ECOLOGY AND TAXONOMY OF TWO MAJOE CRDEES OF AQUATIC INSECTS, EPHEMEROPTERA AND TRICEOPTERA, IN VA. 4.212 EFFECT OF FEAKING POWER GENERATION ON FISH. 4.056 EFFECTS CF STAMPEDE RESERVOIR ON UPSTREAM FISH POPULATIONS OF SAGEHEN CREEK. 1.010, 4.019* EVALUATION OF THE ECOLOGICAL REQUIREMENTS OF RESERVOIR FISH SPECIES. 1.101

IMPOUNDMENTS. 4.208, 6.055* IMPACTS OF RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT AND EXPLORATION ON NATURAL RESOURCES. 4.216 LINNCLOGICAL BASIS FOR THE PRODUCTIVITY OF INLAND WATERS. 4.206 LINNOLOGICAL EVALUATION AND ZOOPLANETCN DYNAMICS CF LAKE KOOCANUSA, NORTHWESTERN MONTANA. 4.077 LINNOLCGICAL PARAMETERS. 4.066 LOWER SNAKE RIVER LIMNOLCGY. 4.076 MECHANISTIC FACTORS DETERMINE AQUATIC FERTILITY. 4.114 SPORTFISH MANAGEMENT. 6.005 THE EFFECT OF STRUCTURE ON FISH HEHAVIOR. 4.169 USE OF SPIKERUSH (ELEOCHARIS SPP.) FCR HIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.016 RESIDUR-ANALYSIS ACUTE AND CHRONIC EFFECTS ON FISE EXECSED CONTINUOUSLY AND INTERMITTENTLY TO TOXICANTS. 4.180 RESISTANCE CHRCNIC TURBIDITY AND STRESS IN JUVENILE COBO SALMON AND STEELHEAD TROUT. 1.088, 4.184* HOST-PARASITE RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN THE CHANNEL CATFISH AND ICETHYOPHTHIRIUS MULTIFILIIS. 3.050 BESISTANT-STRAINS CONTROL OF WEIRLING DISEASE OF SALMCNIDS. 3.063 RESOURCE-DEVELOPMENT AN ECONOMIC ANALYSIS OF DECISION MAKING AND POLICY FORMULATION. 10.043 AQUATIC INSECTS AS INDICATORS OF WATER QUALITY AND PRODUCTIVITY: A COORDINATED STUDY. 4.129 ASSESSMENT OF COASTAL RECREATION RESCURCES. 10.046 IMPACTS OF RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT AND EXPLORTATION ON NATURAL RESOURCES. 4.216 POPULATION CHARACTERISTICS OF TEXAS GULF OF MEXICO FISBES. 1.097 PRODUCTION ECCNOMICS OF AQUACULTURE SPECIES IN HAWAII. 10.008 TOXIC EFFECTS ON THE AQUATIC HICTA FROM CCAL AND CIL SHALE DEVELOPMENT. 4.034 RESOURCE-INVENTORY LIWNOLOGICAL BASIS FOR THE PRODUCTIVITY OF INLAND WATERS. 4.206 RESOURCE-MANAGEMENT AN ECONCHIC ANALYSIS OF DECISION MAKING AND POLICY FORMULATION. 10.043 ASSESSMENT OF CCASTAL RECREATION RESCURCES. 10.046 MANAGEMENT ECONOMICS OF NEW YORE'S MARINE INDUSTRIES. 10.030 MANAGEMENT OF A MULTIPLE COBORT FISHERY: THE BARD CLAM RESOURCES IN GREAT SCUTH BAY. 10.028 METAPHASE CBRONOSCHE BANDING CF FRESEWATER FISHES. 2.026 RASOURCE-USE ECONCHIC ANALYSIS OF ALTERNATIVE VIRGINIA COASTAL WETLANDS POLICY. 10.047 RESOURCE-UTILIZATION ECOLOGY OF FISHES AND LIMNOLOGY CF UPPER GREAT LAKES AND TRIEUTARIES IN RELATION TO ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS. 1.060. 4.115* RESPIRATION COMPARATIVE PHYSIOLOGICAL STUDIES OF VERTEBRATE EYES. 1.062 ENVIECNMENTAL REQUIREMENTS OF POTENTIAL AQUACULTURE FISH SPECIES. 4.027 RETAIL-MARKETING MARKET POTENTIAL AND CURRENT MARKETING PROCEDURES AND PRACTICES OF THE CATPISE FOR FOOD INDUSTRY. 10.021 RETINA COMPARATIVE PHYSIOLOGICAL STUDIES OF VERTERRATE EYES. 1.062 VISUAL PIGNENT CHANGES DURING THE LIPE CYCLE OF THE AMERICAN EEL, ANGUILLA RCSTRATA. 1.077 RETURN-FLOW-WATER THE EFFECTS OF IRRIGATION WASTE WATER ON AQUATIC PLANTS IN THE SACRAMENTC RIVER. 4.025 RETURNS CAGE CULTURE OF FISE IN THE VIRGIN ISLANDS UTILIZING TERTIARY TREATED WATER. 6.100 COSTS AND RETURNS IN THE OTTER TRAVE PLEET CN LCNG ISLAND, NEW YORK. 10.029 ECONCHIC IMPACTS OF THE 200-MILE LIMIT ON BURAL NORTHEASTERN COASTAL COMMUNITIES. 10.039 PRODUCTION ECONOMICS OF AQUACULTURE SPECIES IN HAWAII. 10.005

FISH POPULATION AND PRODUCTION IN POND AND LAKE

WATER QUALITY STOCKING RATES AND BARVESTING SYSTEMS FCR CATFISH. 6.059 RICE

- CRAYFISH IN CALIFORNIA RICE FIELDS: DIET, IMPACT ON RICH PECDUCTION AND POSSIBLE RETURNS IN BARVEST. 4.020, 6.015*
- MANAGEMENT STRATEGIES FOR RICE PESTS. 3.005 MANAGEMENT TECENIQUES FOR INCREASING CRAWFISE **PECDUCTION. 6.046, 7.006***
- WEED CONTROL IN RICE PRODUCTION. 3.006, 4.008* PIVERS
 - ADULT FALL CHINOCK TEAPPING FOR SNAKE RIVER EGG RANK PECGEAN. 6.033
 - AN ECONOMIC EVALUATION OF THE RECREATIONAL SALMON FISHING IN THE KENAL/RUSSIAN RIVER REGICN. 10.036
 - AN EVALUATION OF ENDANGERED MOLLUSKS IN VIRGINIA. 1.100, 4.213*
 - COEUR D'ALENE RIVER FISHERIES INVESTIGATIONS. 4.061 DEVELOPMENT OF FISE PROTECTIVE SYSTEMS FOR WATER INTAKES. 4.022
 - EARLY LIFE HISTORY ECCLOGY AND GROWTH OF THE RIVER SERIMF MACROBRACEIUM CHICNE IN LCUISIANA. 1.046
 - ECOLCGICAL STUDIES OF TRE NAVARRC AND GARCIA ESTUARIES, WITE EMPEASIS ON THE FISRRS. 4.028 ECOLOGICAL STUDY OF CUTOFF HENDWAYS AND CXEOWS
 - WITEIN THE TENNESSEE-TOMEIGHEE WATERWAY. 4.124 ECCLCGY AND TAXONOMY OF TWO MAJOR ORDERS OF AQUATIC INSECTS, EPBENERCPTERA AND TRICEOPTERA, IN VA. 4.212
 - EFPECTS OF ADDITIONAL PEAKING FROM A FOURTR GENERATCE AT DWCRSHAK DAM IN CATCRAEILITY, ETC .. 4.062
 - EFFECTS OF DISSOLVED CHEMICALS ON AQUATIC LIFE. 4.078
 - EFFECTS OF THE HEUNSWICK NUCLEAR POWER-PLANTS ON THE PRODUCTIVITY OF SPARTINA ALTEENIFLORA. 4.159
 - ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS OF SALMONELLOSIS. 3.049 FISH AND AQUATIC MACROINVERTEERATE FAUNA IN SOUTH
 - FORK EOISE RIVER FELCW ANDERSON RANCE DAM. 1.029 FISE MOVEMENT IN POOL 9, UPPER MISSISSIPPI RIVER.
 - 1.035 RABITAT SELECTION AND SPECIES INTERACTIONS OF JUVENILE TROUT IN FLATHEAD RIVER TRIBUTABLES. 1.027, 4.064*
 - LIMNCLOGICAL HASIS FOR THE PRODUCTIVITY OF INLAND WATERS. 4.206
 - LCWER SNAKE RIVES LIMNOLOGY. 4.076
 - MICROHIOLOGICAL ASSESSMENT OF RIVER WATER CONTAMINATION. 3.084, 4.187* WCVEMENTS OF SONIC-TAGGED FISHES IN BELATION TO
 - WATER QUALITY IN LOWER ATCRAFALAYA RIVER HASIN. 1.049. 4.097#
 - NAVIGATION IMPACTS ON CHANNEL FISHES, UPPER MISSISSIPPI RIVER. 4.090
 - SCOPE OF WCRK FCE PRELIMINARY STUDY OF PRIMARY AND SECONDARY PRODUCTION OF THE ST. LAWRENCE RIVER. 4.150
 - SFORANE HIVER LIMNOLCGY. 4.067 STATUS, ABUNDANCE AND EXPLOITATION OF THE STRIPPD
 - EASS IN THE ROANOKE EIVER, NC. 4.163 THE EFPECTS OF IERIGATION WASTE WATER ON AQUATIC PLANTS IN THE SACRAMENTO RIVER. 4.025
- THE ROLE OF SILTS AND CLAYS IN THE NUTRITICN CP
- ZCOPLANETON. 1.041 THE STATUS, ABUNDANCE, AND YIELD CP TRE STEIPED BASS IN THE RCANOKE BIVER, NORTH CAROLINA. 1.081, 4.164*
- WATER QUALITY STUDY. 4.033
- ROADS
- A STUDY OF FISE RESOURCES OF THE GOSPEL HUMP AREA. 4.060
- IMPACTS OF RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT AND EXPLORATION ON NATURAL RESOURCES. 4.216
- ROB
 - CHARACTEFIZATION OF GONAD-STINULATING SUBSTANCES IN MARINE ANIMALS. 1.020, 2.006*
- FOOD PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT FROM FLCRIDA UNDERUTILIZED PISH SPECIES. 8.007, 9.006*
- ROUGHAGE
- EVALUATION OF AQUATIC PLANTS AS POTENTIAL FEEDSTUFF FCE DAIEY CATTLE. 9.013
- RUNOPF
 - AQUATIC RESOURCES OF SILVER CHEEK AT THE NATURE CCNSEEVANCY SITE. 4.075
 - EFFECTS CF SEDIMENTS ON BIOLOGICAL SYSTEMS. 4.126 NATURAL MAISHES AS NUTHIENT SINKS FOR AGRICULTURAL RUNOFF. 4.089

- RELEASE OF ADSOREED PESTICIDES INTO WATER. 4.175 RURAL-AREAS
- ECONOMIC IMPACTS OF THE 200-MILE LIMIT ON RURAL NORTBEASTERN COASTAL COMMUNITIES. 10.024
- TRE IMPACT OF TRE 200 MILE ECONOMIC ZONE ON RURAL NEW ENGLAND COASTAL COMMUNITIES. 10.017 RURAL-COMMUNITIES
- ECONOMIC IMPACTS OF THE 200-MILE LIMIT CN RURAL NORTREASTERN COASTAL COMMUNITIES. 10.015. 10.018, 10.024, 10.039 TRE INPACT CF TRE 200 MILE ECONCMIC ZCNE CN RURAL
- NEW ENGLAND COASTAL COMMUNITIES. 10.017
- RURAL-DEVELOPMENT A POLYCULTURE SYSTEM OF FISH PECDUCTICN FCR
 - DISADVANTAGED FARMERS IN ARKANSAS. 6.009 SCONOMIC IMPACTS OF THE 200-MILE LIMIT CN RURAL NCRTHEASTERN COASTAL COMMUNITIES. 10.015,
- 10.018, 10.035 TRE IMPACT OF TRE 200 MILE ECONOMIC ZONE ON RURAL NEW ENGLAND COASTAL COMMUNITIES. 10.017 RUST
- BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF WEEDS WITH PATHOGENS. 3.103 RYE
- PEYTCTCXINS FROM AQUATIC AND TERRESTRIAL PLANTS, RACTERIA, AND FUNGI. 3.017
- SACCHARONYCES-CEREVISIAE
- DETECTION AND IDENTIFICATION OF MYCOTOXINS AND ALGAL TOXINS IN FOODS AND FEFES. 9.023 SAFETY
 - BIOLOGY AND CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.068
 - EVALUATION OF EFFICACY, CROP LESFONSES AND CROP AND WATER RETENTION OF POTENTIAL AQUATIC REPRICIDES. 3.021. 4.035*
 - EVALUATION OF FUSARIUM ROSEUM 'CULMCRUM' AS A BIOLOGICAL CONTROL POR BYDRILLA VERTICILLATA. 3.029
- SALINITY
 - ACTIVITY REVIEWS OF THE NOETHERN ROCK CRAE IN RELATION TO ENVIRONMENTAL ANE SOCIAL FACICES. 1.057, 4.109*
 - REBAVICE ECOLOGY AND REYTEMICITY IN THE ROCK CRAES, CANCER IRRORATUS AND CANCER FCREALIS, PBASE II. 1.058, 5.028*
 - HEHAVIOR, ECOLOGY AND REYTHMICITY IN THE COMMON ROCK CRAE. 1.059, 4.110*
 - DISEASES OF AQUACULTURE SPECIES. 3.044
 - EARLY LIFE RISTORY ECOLOGY AND GROWTH CF THE FIVE SERINP MACFOEFACHIUM CHICNE IN LOUISIANA. 1.046 INVESTIGATION OF "IN SITU" SOLIDS DIGESTICN FOR
 - SALMONID PRODUCTION. 6.081
 - MOLLUSCAN HATCRERY TECHNOLOGY. 6.075
 - OSMOREGULATORY RESPONSES OF DESERT PUPFISE: A STUDY NODEL OF PEYSIOLOGICAL ADAPTATION TO ENVIECNMENT. 1.003, 4.010*
 - PRESENCE, ABUNDANCE, MOVEMENTS, AND RARITAT USAGE OF ESTUARINE-DEPENDENT FISHES AND CRUSTACEANS .. 1.045, 4.095*
 - RESPONSE OF AQUATIC LIFE TC SALINITY, TEMPERATURE, DISSOLVED OXYGEN AND WATER FLCW. 4.024
 - SALINITY, REDOX PCTENTIAL, & MICECRIAL TRANSPORMATIONS OF MERCURY POLLUTANTS IN ESTUARINE SEDIMENTS. 4.132
 - STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT OF MARGINAL SALT MARSR SPECIES FROM NORTH CAROLIN. 4.158
 - THE PHYSIOLOGICAL HASIS FOR MANAGING TIDAL MARSH VEGETATICN. 4.197
 - THE RELATIONSHIP OF SALINITY AND DISTANCE FROM TRE SEA, TO THE DISTRIBUTION OF JUVENILE FISRES. 1.044, 4.094*
- SALMON
 - ABATEMENT OF EUTROPHICATION RESULTING FROM INTENSIVE ANIMAL PRODUCTION. 4.195, 6.080* ADULT FALL CHINOOK TRAPPING FOR SNAKE RIVER EGG BANK PROGRAM. 6.033
 - AN ECCNCHIC EVALUATION OF THE RECREATIONAL SALMON FISRING IN TRE KENAL/RUSSIAN RIVER REGION. 10.036
 - RREEDING EXPERIMENTS WITH SALMONIDS. 2.024 CRRCNIC TUREIDITY AND STRESS IN JUVENILE COBC SALNCN AND STEELREAD TRCCT. 1.088, 4.184*
 - COLUMRIA RIVER CHINOOK SALMON STURY. 1.090

 - CULTURE OF PACIFIC SALMCN. 1.087, 6.076^{\pm} ECOLOGY AND MANAGEMENT OF STREAM AND STREAM FISRES. 1.061

ECOLOGY OF FISHES OF SACRAMENTO - SAN JCACUIN ESTUARY, WITH EMPHASIS CN SUISUN MARSB. 4.030 EFFECTS OF CHRONIC TURBIDITY ON SOCIAL CONTEST IN JUVENILE STEELHEAD TROUT AND COBO SALNON. 4.059 EFFECTS OF WATERSHED PRACTICES ON STREAM BAGITAT AND FISE POPULATIONS. 4.181 EVALUATION OF JUVENILE SALMON AND STEELHEAD DENSITY AS RELATED TO DENSITY OF SPAWNERS AND FRY BELEASE. I.030, 6.035* EXAMINATION OF THE SPAWNING ECOLOGY AND EAGLY LIFE BISTORY CF KORANEE SALNCN IN CCEUS D' ALENE LAKE. 4.054 GENETIC STUDIES OF ABERNATBY CREEK CBINCCE SALMON. 2.020 INFECTIOUS PANCREATIC NECECSIS IN ATLANTIC SALMON. 3.057 SALT INSTREAM FLOW REQUIREMENTS OF CALFORNIA FISBES. 1.013, 4.029* PERFORMANCE OF SALMONIDS: SNCLTIFICATION, STRESS AND FITNESS. 1.089, 6.077* ACLE OF SHORT DISTANCE MIGRATION OF THE HOMING OF SALMON AND STEELBEAD. 1.028 SELECTIVE CHEMICALS FOR THE CONTROL OF THE **TEREESPINE STICKLEBACK. 3.047** THE EFFICACY OF SELECTED ANTIBICTICS IN THE PREVENTION AND CONTROL OF PACTERIAL KIDNEY DISEASE. 3.046 THE IMPACT OF POWER PEAKING ON EGG INCUBATION OF FALL CHINCOK SALMON. 4.072 THE INPACT OF SALNCNID INTRODUCTIONS ON NEW YORK FISHERNEN AND COMMUNITIES. 10.033 TRACE MINEFAL INBALANCE IN BATCBERY FISH. 5.019 SALMONELLA ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS OF SALMCNELLOSIS. 3.049 REGULATORY PROBLEMS OF LOUISIANA FOOD INDUSTRIES. 9.017 SALMONELLA-TYPEINURIUM ANTIBACTEFIAL MECBANICS IN CLAMS; CONTRIBUTION OF THE WATER STREAM. I.072, 4.145* DETECTION AND IDENTIFICATION OF NYCOTOXINS AND ALGAL TOXINS IN FOODS AND FEEDS. 9.023 SALMONELLOSIS ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS OF SALMONELLOSIS. 3.049 SALNON IDAE ACUTE AND CHRONIC EFFECTS ON FISH EXPOSED CONTINUCUSLY AND INTERWITTENTLY TO TOXICANTS. 4.180 BREEDING EXPERIMENTS WITH SALMONIDS. 2.024 CARRYING CAFACITY OF STREAMS FOR REAFING SALMONIDS AS AFFECTED BY SEDINENT & OTHER COMPONENTS. I.024, 4.057≭ CCEUR D'ALENE RIVER FISBERIES INVESTIGATIONS. 4.061 CONTROL OF WHIRLING DISEASE OF SALWONIDS. 3.063 DETECTION TRANSMISSION AND PATECGENESIS OF DISEASE CRGANISMS IN AQUACULTURE SPECIES. 3.067 DEVELOPMENT AND APPLICATION OF A WETHODOLOGY FOR RECONNENDING SALMONID EGG INCUBATION FLOWS. 4.070 DISEASES OF AQUATIC ANIMALS. 3.013, 3.072 ECONOMICS OF SALMONID AQUACULTURE IN NEW ENGLAND. 6.082, 10.038* EFFECTS CF CHRONIC TURBIDITY CN SOCIAL CONTEST IN JUVENILE STEELBEAD TRCUT AND CCBC SALNON. 4.059 BFFECTS OF INCREASED FINE SEDIMENT ON INCUBATION AND EMBIGENCE OF CHINCOK SALMON AND STEELBEAD TROUT. 4.071 EFFECTS CF LOGGING ON ARIZONA TROUT AND THEIR BABITAT IN THE WHITE MOUNTAINS OF ARIZONA. 4.005 EVALUATION OF JUVENILE SALWON AND STEELBEAD DENSITY AS BELATED TO DENSITY OF SPANNERS AND FEY RELEASE. 1.030, 6.035* BABITAT SBLECTION AND SPECIES INTERACTIONS OF JUVENILE TROUT IN FLATBEAD RIVER TEIBUTARIES. 1.027, 4.064* INVESTIGATION OF "IN SITU" SOLIDS DIGESTION FOR SALMONIE PRODUCTION. 6.081 JUVENILE ENIGRATION OF LABONTAN CUTTERCAT TROUT IN THE TRUCKEE-PYRANID LAKE SYSTEM. 4.055 MICROBIOLOGICAL ASSESSMENT OF RIVER WATER CONTANINATION. 3.084, 4.187* NUTRITION OF SALMONID FISHES. 5.041 OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF THE BEPATCMA LABORATCRY. 5.043 PROTECTION, REHABILITATICN, AND ENHANCEMENT OF ANADROMCUS FISH HABITAT IN THE PACIFIC NORTHWEST. 4.004 RCLE OF SHORT DISTANCE MIGRATION OF THE HOMING OF

SALMON AND STEELBEAD. 1.028

SALMON CULTURE - DEVELOPMENT OF NUTRITICNAL AND DISEASE CONTROL PROGEAMS. 3.064, 5.037# STEELBEAD BATCBEBY AS AFFECTED BY RELATIVELY BIGH TEMPERATURE WATER. 4.068 TEMPERATURE EFFECTS ON MENCEIOTIC ELIMINATION BY FISBES. 4.179 THE INPACT OF SALMONID INTRODUCTIONS ON NEW YORK FISHERMEN AND COMMUNITIES. 10.033 THE TREATMENT AND USE CF WASTE FRODUCTS AND CBENICALS IN THE DIET OF AQUATIC ANIMALS. 5.046, 8.042* UTILIZATION OF PROTEIN INGREDIENTS IN FISE RATIONS. 5.044 SALMONIDS INFECTICUS DISEASES OF SALMONID FISHES, 3,081 FACTORS AFFECTING THE FUNCTIONAL PROPERTIES AND **OUALITY OF PROCESSED NUSCLE FCODS. 9.021** FOOD PRODUCT DEVELOFMENT FLOW FLORIDA UNDERUTILIZED FISH SPECIES. 8.007, 9.006* QUALITY CONTECL OF CANNED SQUID. 9.018 SALT-MARSHES ECOLOGY OF SALT MARSBES IN RELATION TO ESTUARIES AND ENERGY FICW. 1.016, 4.041*, 5.011* EFFECTS OF THE BRUNSWICK NUCLEAR POWER-PLANIS ON THE PRODUCTIVITY OF SPARTINA ALTERNIFLERA. 4.159 FATE AND EFFECTS OF ATRAZINE IN SALT WARSE ECOSYSTEMS. 4.001 PRODUCTIVITY OF THE SALINE WARSBES ON FLORIDA'S NORTH AND WEST COASTS, PHASE II. 4.038 RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN SALT WARSH AND ESTUARINE ANIMAL COMMUNITIES AND ENERGY EXCEANGE. 4.040, 5.010* STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT OF MARGINAL SALT MARSE SFECIES FRCM NORTH CAROLIN. 4.158 THE PHYSICLOGICAL BASIS FOR MANAGING TIDAL MARSH VEGETATION. 4.197 SALT-TOLERANCE EARLY LIFE BISTORY ECOLOGY AND GROWTE OF THE RIVER SERINF MACROBEACEIUN OBICNE IN LOUISIANA. 1.046 STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT OF MARGINAL SALT MARSE SPECIES FROM NORTH CAROLIN. 4.158 SAMPLING BICACCUMULATION AND IMPACT CF HIGBWAY-GENERATED BEAVY NETALS CN STREAM FISHERY RESOURCES IN VIRGINIA. 4.214 BIOLOGICAL AND RECREATIONAL ASPECTS OF WATER LEVEL MANAGEMENT OF CLEAR LAKE, IOWA. 4.081 DIAGNOSIS AND PATBOGENESIS OF DISEASES AND PARASITES IN WAJOR NCLLUSCAN ACUACULTURB SPECIES. 3.088 ECOLOGICAL STUDY OF CUTCEF BENDWAYS AND CXECWS WITHIN THE TENNESSEE-TONBIGHEE WATERWAY. 4.124 ECOLOGICAL STUDY OF LAKE WALES, FLOBIDA AFTER INTRODUCTION OF WEITE AMUR (CTENOPBARYNGODON IDELLA). 4.047 ECOLOGY CF FISHES AND LINNCLOGY CF UPPER GREAT LAKES AND TRIBUTARIES IN RELATION TO ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS. 1.060, 4.115* ECOLCGY OF FISBES OF SACRAMENTO - SAN JOAQUIN ESTUARY, WITE EMPHASIS CN SUISUN MARSE. 4.030 EFFECTS OF REDUCED STREAM DISCHARGE CN FISH AND AQUATIC MACRCINVERTBERATE POPULATIONS. 4.073 EVALUATION OF RELATIVE PROTEIN PERFCENANCE IN PELLETED FISE RATIONS USING PEYSIOLOGICAL INDICES. 5.055 FOTENTIAL BARVEST OF LAKE EFIE WEITE CRAPPIE FROM AN ADJCINING BORROW PIT. 1.026, 6.072* PRESENCE, ABUNDANCE, MOVEMENTS, AND BABITAT USAGE OF ESTUARINE-DEPENDENT FISBES AND CRUSTACEANS .. 1.045, 4.095* STREAMSIDE BUFFEE STRIPS POE PROTECTING AQUATIC ORGANISMS FROM LOGGING EFFECTS. 4.018 TOXIC EFFECTS ON THE AQUATIC BICTA FROM COAL AND CIL SHALE DEVELOPMENT. 4.034 WATER QUALITY STUDY. 4.033 SARDINES **EUMAN NUTRITION IMPROVEMENT. 8.022** SATELLITES VARIABILITY IN PHYSICAL REGIME OF LAKE TITICACA: RELATION TO BIOLOGICAL PROCESSES. 4.014 SAUSAGE **EIOLOGICALLY ACTIVE AMINES IN FCCD. 8.009** SCALLOPS DIAGNOSIS AND PATHOGENESIS OF DISEASES AND PARASITES IN MAJOR MCLLUSCAN AOUACULTURE SPECIES. 3.088

REGULATORY PROBLEMS OF LOUISIANA FOOD INDUSTRIES. 9.017 SCANNING-BLECTEON-MICROSCOPE AGE AND GROWTH OF FISH; A FIELD AND LABCEATORY AFFROACE. 1.068 DEVELOPMENT OF RAPID SEAFOOD QUALITY TESTS FOR COMMERCIAL AND REGULATORY USE. 9.015 SCIAEN IDAE SURVEY OF LARVAL FISHES IN THE NEARSECHE GULF WATERS CF LOUISIANA. 1.047 SCIEPUS NITROGEN FIXATION BY WICEOBES INEABITING SUFFACES OF AQUATIC MACROPHYTES. 4.142 SCREEN ING MCRPHOLOGICAL, ULTRASTRUCTURAL, AND BIOCHEMICAL CBARACTERIZATION OF NANOPLANETON FFON CHESAPEAKE HAY. 1.656, 4.108* SELECTIVE CHEMICALS FOR THE CONTROL OF THE THREESPINE STICKLEEACK. 3.047 SURVEY OF DISEASES OF CULTURED FRESHWATER FISHES CF CALIFCENIA. 3.009 SCREENS DEVELOPMENT OF FISH PROTECTIVE SYSTEMS FOR WATER INTAKES. 4.022 SEAFOOD ANALYSIS OF DOMESTIC FOOD DEMAND AND CONSUMPTION HEHAVIOF. 9.041, 10.008 BEHAVIOR, ECCLOGY AND REYTEMICITY IN THE COMMON ROCK CRAB. 1.059, 4.110* EIOCONVERSION OF CHITIN WASTES. 8.004 DEVELOPMENT AND EVALUATION OF OYSTER HARVESTING EQUIPMENT AND WARICULTURE SYSTEMS. 6.084, 7.013* DEVELOPMENT OF IMPROVED HANDLING, SHIPPING/STORAGE AND MARKETING PRACTICES FCR FISHERY PRODUCTS. 7.010, £.039×, £.030× DEVELOPMENT OF RAPID SEAFOOD QUALITY TESTS FOR COMMERCIAL AND REGULATORY USE. 9.015 DRYING SEAFOOD PRODUCTS WITH SOLAR ENERGY. 8.006 ECONOMIC IMPACTS OF THE 200-MILE LIMIT CN FUEAL NORTHEASTERN COASTAL COMMUNITIES. 10.027 ENZYMATIC CONTROL OF QUALITY FACTORS IN MALINE FCCDS. 8.026 ENZYME DEVELCPMENT FCR SEAFCOD QUALITY. 9.033 FCOD PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT FROM FLORIDA UNDEBUTILIZED FISE SPECIES. 8.007, 9.006* HUMAN NUTRITION IMPROVEMENT. 8.022 IMPROVING THE ASSURANCE OF QUALITY AND SAFETY CF CCNSUMES'S FOOD. 9.031 MANAGEMENT ECONOMICS OF NEW YORK'S MABINE INDUSTRIES. 10.030 MANUFACTURE OF PROCESSED MEAT AND/OR FISE PRODUCTS WITH UNLEBUTILIZED MARINE SPECIES. 8.027 MARINE FOOD SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY. 8.003, 9.004* Microbiological aspects to shellfisb sanitation and QUALITY. 7.014, 8.047*, 9.037* NEW WEIBCD OF APPRAISING NUTRITICNAL STANDARDS. 10.020 PROCESSING QUALITY AND PACKAGING FACTORS WHICH AFFECT TEE UTILIZATION OF FISH AND SHELLFISH. 8.046, \$.036* REGULATORY PROBLEMS OF LOUISIANA FOOD INDUSTRIES. 9.017 SENSORY & NUTRITIONAL EVALUATION OF SEAFOODS. 8.043, 5.032* SNOKING CF SEAFOCD AND FOULTRY. 8.008, 9.007* THE EFFECT OF FRCZEN STORAGE ON TEXTURAL QUALITY OF LOBSTER MEAT. 8.023 THE QUALITY OF SEAFOCD CONSUMED BY THE PECPLE OF SCUTE CAROLINA. 4.195, 9.034# THE STATUS AND RELATION OF THE COASTAL ZONE TO ALAFANA'S ECONOMY. 10.001 USE OF CLAN BY-PRODUCTS. 8.037 WATER QUALITY CHANGES IN CYSTER PROCESSING. 8.025 SEAFOOD-INDUSTRY THE STATUS AND RELATION OF THE COASTAL ZONE TO ALABAMA'S ECONOMY. 10.001 SEASONAL-ABUNBANCE POPULATION CHARACTERISTICS OF TEXAS GULF OF MEXICO FISBES. 1.097 SEASONAL-ACTIVITY BIOLOGICAL STUDIES OF THE SPINY LOBSTER IN SCUTB FLCEIDA. 1.019 SEASONAL-DISTRIBUTION COMPARATIVE ECOLOGY CF SELECTED SPECIES CF AQUATIC INSECTS, PHASE IV. 4.039, 4.042 MICROBIOLOGICAL ASPECTS TO SBELLFISB SANITATION AND QUALITY. 7.014, 8.047*, 9.037*

SURVEY OF LARVAL FISHES IN THE NEARSHORE GULF WATERS CF LOUISIANA. 1.047 WATER QUALITY STUDIES: COMPARATIVE ECCLOGY AND SYSTEMATICS OF SELECTED AQUATIC INSECTS. 4.043 SEASONAL-PATTEENS CRAWFISH CULTURE STUDIES IN SMALL PONDS: BURROWING, POLYCULTURE AND NATURAL PCND FLOCDING. 1.050, 4.095*, 6.049* NOVEMENTS OF SONIC-TAGGED FISHES IN BELATICN TO WATER QUALITY IN LOWER ATCHAFALAYA RIVER BASIN. 1.049, 4.097* SEASONAL-VARIATION APPLIED LINNOLCGY AND FISHERIES STUDIES IN TROPICAL LAKES. 4.021 DEVELOF AND IMPROVE PRODUCTION AND MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS FOR FRESHWATER ANIMALS CULTURED FOR FOOD. 6.011 ECOLOGY OF SALT MARSHES IN BELATION TO ESTUARIES AND ENERGY FLCW. 1.016, 4.041*, 5.011* LIPID METABOLISM IN AQUATIC OFGANISMS. 5.053, 9.038* BELATIONSHIFS BETWEEN SALT WARSE AND ESTUARINE ANIMAL COMMUNITIES AND ENERGY EXCHANGE. 4.040, 5.010* STUDY OF PATHOLOGY OF FISHES FRCM LAKE BYCO, NORTH CARCLINA. 3.079 SBAWATER **EIGLOGICAL FEASIBILITY OF INTENSIFIED OYSTER** CULTURE. 4.178, 5.040*, 6.074* SEAVEED DISTRIBUTION, ABUNDANCE AND ECCLOGY OF ASCOPHYLLUM NODOSUM (1) LE JOIS. 1.052, 4.102*, 7.008* IMPROVEMENT OF OGO PRODUCTION AND MARKETING IN HAWAII. 6.031, 10.012≭ SECRETIONS CHEMICALS THAT DIFFUSE FROM PREDATORY ASTEROIDS & TRIGGER DEFENSIVE BEEAVICRS IN MARINE INVERTERBATE. 1.002 SECTOR-ANALYSIS FCONOMIC PROFILE & REGIONAL BOONCMIC IMPACTS OF THE ALASKA SHELLFISH INDUSTRY. 10.049 SECTORS-ECONOMICS ECONOMIC PROFILE & REGIONAL ECONOMIC IMPACTS OF THE ALASKA SHELLFISH INDUSTRY. 10.049 SEDIMENT LOWER SNAKE RIVER LIMNOLCGY. 4.076 SEDIMENT-CONTROL-DAMS EFFECT OF SEDIMENT CONTECL DANS ON THE WATER QUALITY CF & PRAIRIE LAKE. 4.200 SEDIMENT-TRANSPORT RELEASE OF ADSOUBED PESTICIDES INTO WATER. 4.175 SEDIMENTATION FASELINE STUDIES FOR EVALUATING THE RESPONSE OF AN ECOSYSTEM TO THE INTRODUCTION OF WHITE AMUR. 1.018, 3.028*, 4.046* CAFRYING CAPACITY OF STREAMS FOR REARING SALMONIDS AS AFFECTED BY SEDIMENT & CTEFR CONFONENTS. 1.024, 4.057* ECOLOGICAL STUDY OF CUTOFF BENDWAYS AND CXBOWS WITHIN THE TENNESSEE-TOMEIGEFE WATERWAY. 4.124 EFFECT CF SEDIMENT CONTROL DAMS ON THE WATER QUALITY OF A PRAIRIE LAKE. 4.200 IMPACT OF EFOSION SILT AND SEDIMENTATION ON FISH REPRODUCTION AND GEOWTB. 4.130 SEDIMENTS BIOACCUMULATION AND IMPACT OF HIGHWAY-GENERATED BEAVY METALS ON STREAM FISHERY RESOURCES IN VIRGINIA. 4.214 CAREYING CAPACITY OF STREAMS FCF REARING SALMONIDS AS AFFECTED BY SEDIMENT & CTHER COMPONENTS. 1.024. 4.057* DEVELOFMENT AND APPLICATION OF A METHODOLOGY FOR RECOMMENDING SALMONID EGG INCUEATION FLOWS. 4.070 ECOLOGICAL STUDY OF LAKE WALES, FLOFIDA AFTER INTRODUCTION OF WHITE AMUR (CTENCPHARYNGCDCN IDELLA). 4.047 ECOLOGY AND SYSTEMATICS OF AQUATIC INSECTS. 4.177 ECCLCGY OF ANAEROBIC BETERCTROPEIC EACTERIA. 4.118 EFFECT OF SEDIMENT CONTEOL DAMS ON THE WATER QUALITY OF A PRAIRIE LAKE. 4.200 EFFECTS OF ATMOSPHERIC INPUTS OF ACIDS AND BEAVY METALS CN LAKE PLANKTCN. 4.101 EFFECIS OF CBRONIC TURBIDITY ON SOCIAL CONTEST IN

JUVENILE STEELBEAD TROUT AND COHC SALMCN. 4.059 EFFECTS OF INCEFASED FINE SEDIMENT ON INCUBATION AND EMERGENCE OF OBINOOK SALMON AND STFELBEAD TROUT. 4.071

EFFECTS OF SEDIMENTS ON BIOLOGICAL SYSTEMS. 4.126 EFFECTS OF WATER QUALITY PABAMETERS ON FARM POND VEGETATION AND THEIR INTERACTIONS. 4.176 EFFECTS OF WATERSBED PRACTICES CN STREAM BABITAT AND FISE FOPULATIONS. 4.181 ENVIBORMENTAL ASPECTS OF SALMONELLOSIS. 3.049 MICROBIAL ECOLOGY OF METBANE PRODUCTION IN AQUATIC ENVIRONMENTS. 4.220 MICROBIOLOGICAL ASPECTS TO SHELLFISH SANITATION AND QUALITY. 7.014, 8.047*, 9.037* MODELS TO ASSESS BIOMAGNIFICATION POTENTIAL OF PERSISTENT TOXIC SUBSTANCES IN AQUATIC FOOD **CHAINS**. 4.149 NITECGEN FIRATION AND ITS EFFECT ON EUTROPEICATION: IN-POINT AND NON-POINT SCURCE PONDS. 4.157 RELATIONSBIPS BETWEEN SALT MARSE AND ESTUABINE ANIMAL COMMUNITIES AND ENERGY EXCEANGE. 4.040, 5.010* BELEASE OF ADSORBED PESTICIDES INTO WATER. 4.175 SALINITY, REDOX POTENTIAL, & MICROBIAL TRANSFORMATIONS OF MEBCURY POLLUTANTS IN ESTUARINE SEDIMENTS. 4.132 SPOKANE RIVER LIMNOLOGY. 4.067 SEED-BEDS DISEASE-RESISTANT OYSTERS. 2.015, 3.067* ECONOMICS OF PRODUCING AND MARKETING LONG ISLAND SOUND OYSTERS. 10.006 NATURAL SEED CYSTER PEDS OF THE DELAWARE BAY. 3.066, 4.135*, 6.062* SEED-GERMINATION STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT OF MARGINAL SALT MARSE SPECIES FBOM NORTE CAEOLIN. 4.158 SEED-PRODUCTION EFFECTS OF AQUATIC PLANT COMMUNITIES ON WATEL QUALITY IN BYPEREUTBOPBIC AQUATIC ENVIRONMENT. 4.117 USE OF SPIKERUSE (ELEOCEARIS SPP.) FCR BICLOGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.016 SERDING DEVELOPMENT AND EVALUATION OF OYSTER BARVESTING EQUIPMENT AND MARICULTURE SYSTEMS. 6.084. 7.013* SEEDING-RATE CARRYING CAPACITY OF STREAMS FOR BEARING SALMONIDS AS AFFECTED BY SEDIMENT & CTBER COMPONENTS. 1.024, 4.057* SREDS EFFECTS OF AQUATIC PLANT COMMUNITIES ON WATER QUALITY IN BYPEREUTROPBIC AQUATIC ENVIRONMENT. 4.117 SELECTION ANIMAL BREEDING AND GENETICS OF FISH. 2.002 FRESHWATER FOOD AN IMALS. 2.007, 6.023* Genetic assessment and development of crustacean AQUACULTURE STOCKS. 2.003 SELECTIVE-NECIA COMPARATIVE STUDY OF THE FLEXIBACTEB-CYTCPHAGA GROUP FACTERIA. 4.104 SELECTIVE-PESTICIDES SELECTIVE CBENICALS FOR THE CONTROL OF THE THREESPINE STICKLEFACE. 3.047 SELENIUM LIPID METAFCLISM IN AQUATIC ORGANISMS. 5.053, 9.038* SENEN CRYOGENIC FRESERVATION OF SPERM FROM STRIPED BASS. 2.017 SENECIO BIOLOGICAL CONTECL OF WEEDS. 3.104 SEMSITIVITY THE USE OF FISH EBBAVIOR IN TOXICITY TESTING. 1.032, 4.079* SENSORY-EVALUATION ENZYMES IN FOOD FERMENTATIONS. 9.025 SENSORY & NUTRITIONAL EVALUATION OF SEAFCODS. 8.043. 9.032* SENSORY-NEURCNS NEURAL CONTROL OF SWIMMING IN CRAYFISBES. 1.001 SEPTICENIA DISEASE MANAGEMENT IN CULTURED CATFISE. 3.096 SEBOLOGICAL-TESTS BACTERIAL BIDNEY DISEASE IN BAINBOW TROUT: PATHOGENESIS, IMMUNITY, AND EFFECT CF WATER BARDNESS. 3.070 DETECTION TRANSMISSION AND PATHOGENESIS OF DISEASE OFGANISMS IN AQUACULTURE SPECIES. 3.087 SEPOLOGY INFECTIOUS DISEASES CF SALMONID FISBES. 3.081

SEROLOGIC AND VIBUULENCE STUDIES OF AEBOMCNAS BYDECPBILA. 3.042 SEBOLOGICAL METHODS FOR DETECTION AND **IDENTIFICATION OF VIRUS DISEASES OF FISE. 3.058** SERVICES THE IMPACT OF SALMONID INTRODUCTIONS ON NEW YORK FISBEBMEN AND COMMUNITIES. 10.033 SESBANIA BIOLCGICAL CONTROL OF WEEDS. 3.104 WEED CONTROL IN FICE PRODUCTION. 3.006, 4.008* SETABIA-FABERI PHYTOTCHINS FECN AQUATIC AND TEEFESTRIAL PLANTS, BACTEBIA, AND FUNGI. 3.017 SEVAGE SPOKANE RIVER LIMNOLOGY. 4.067 ULTRASTEUCTURAL CHANGES IN TELECET GILLS: EFFECTS OF SUBILE ALTERATIONS IN THE ENVIRONMENT. 3.053, 4.098* UTILIZATION OF AQUATIC PLANTS FCR WASTE TREATMENT AND ANIMAL FEEDS. 1.043. 5.023* SEI ACTIVITY BEYTHMS OF THE NOFTBERN ROCK CRAB IN BELATION TO ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL FACTORS. 1.057, 4.109* BEBAVIOR ECOLOGY AND REVIEWICITY IN THE ECCK CEARS, CANCEB IBROBATUS AND CANCEB BOBEALIS, PBASE II. 1.058, 5.028* BEBAVIOR, ECCLOGY AND BEYTEMICITY IN THE COMMON ROCK CRAB. 1.059, 4.110* CAGE CULTURE OF TILAPIA IN THE VIRGIN ISLANDS. 6.098, 9.039* SET-DETERMINATION PRAWN ACUACULTURE PROGRAM - BIOLOGICAL BASIS OF PRODUCTION. 2.008, 6.030* SEX-DIFFERENTIATION AQUACULTURE FOR RESCUECE ENBANCEMENT. 1.103, 5.056# SEI-PATIO FRESEWATER FOOD ANIMALS. 6.099 INTENSIVE CULTURE OF TILAPIA IN GEOTBEBMAL WATERS IN THE SAN LUIS VALLEY, COLCEADO. 2.005, 6.017* SEX-REVERSAL AQUACULTUBE FOB BESOURCE ENEANCEMENT. 1.103, 5.056* BIOCBEMICAL GENETICS AND CYTOGENETICS OF TROUT. 2.022 SETING FRESHWATEF FOOD ANIMALS. 2.023, 5.045*, 6.079* INTENSIVE CULTURE OF TILAPIA IN GEOTBEBNAL WATEES IN THE SAN LUIS VALLEY, COLCEADO. 2.005, 6.017* SETUAL-MATURITY BREEDING EXPERIMENTS WITH SALMONIDS. 2.024 INTENSIVE CULTURE OF CHAYFISH. 6.068 SHEAR-TESTS SBEAR PROPERTIES OF PROZEN FISE FILLET BLOCKS. 8.024. 9.019* SHEARING SBEAR PROPERTIES OF FROZEN FISH FILLET PLOCKS. 8.024, 8.019* SEBATE-BLIGHT MANAGEMENT STRATEGIES FOR RICE PESTS. 3.005 SRELF-LIFE DEVELOPMENT OF IMPROVED BANGLING, SEIPPING/STOFAGE AND MARKETING PRACTICES FOR FISHERY PRODUCTS. 7.010, 8.035*, 9.030* ENZYMES IN FOOD FERMENTATIONS. 9.025 EXTENDING THE SHELF-LIFE OF FISH. 8.036, 9.028* LOW-TENPERATURE STORAGE CP FBESBWATEB PEAWN, MACROBRACHIUM ROSENPERGII. 8.010 METHODS OF MODIFIED-ATMOSPHEHE PRESERVATION OF REFRIGERATED FRESH FISE. 7.016, E.048* PIGNENTS OF NEAT AND FISE PRODUCTS (CFF-CCLCES IN TUNA). 8.002, 9.003* FOTENTIAL OF DIFFEBENT UNDEBUTILIZED SPECIES OF FISE FCR CONVENIENCE FOODS. 8.035, 9.026* PRACTICAL FEED FORMULATIONS AND FEEDING PRACTICES FOR CATFISE PARMING IN MS. 5.035, 6.058*, 8.031* **QUALITY CONTEOL OF CANNED SQUID. 9.018** THE EFFECT OF FROZEN STCRAGE ON TEXTURAL QUALITY CF LCBSTER MEAT. 8.023 SBELL-DISEASE-SYNDROME AQUACULTURE PATECIOGY. 3.010 SBELL-STRENGTE PRELIMINARY STUDIES ON CRAWFISE AND FRESEWATER SBRIMP DISEASES. 1.096, 3.094* SBELLFISH A COMPARATIVE STUDY OF THE FINE STRUCTUBE OF APOSTOME CILIATES. 3.076 ACTIVITY REVIEWS OF THE NORTHERN BOCK CHAB IN RELATION TO ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL FACTORS.

1.057, 4.109*

- AN EVALUATION OF BNDANGERED MOLLDSKS IN VIEGINIA. 1.100, 4.213* ANALYSIS OF PREDATION OF MERCENARIA MERCENARIA BY DECAPCD CRUSTACEANS. 1.095, 3.091* AQUACDLTDRE PATEOLOGY. 3.010 BEHAVIOR ECOLOGY AND REVIEWICITY IN THE RCCK CRAES, CANCER IRRORATUS AND CANCES BCREALIS, PHASE II. 1.058, 5.028* BEHAVIOR, ECOLOGY AND REVIEWICITY IN THE COMMON ROCE CRAH. 1.059, 4.110* HIOCONVEESION OF CHITIN WASTES. 8.004 BIOLOGICAL ANALYSIS OF THE AGE AND GROWTE FATE OF THE OCEAN CDAHOG AFCTICA ISLANDICA. 4.138 BIOLOGICAL FEASIBILITY OF INTENSIFIED OYSTER CDLTURE. 4.178, 5.040*, 6.074* HIOSYNTEESIS OF STERCLS IN THE OYSTER AND CORRELATION OF STEEOL COMPOSITION TO CYSTER PRODDCTIVITY. 1.055, 5.027* CHEMICALS THAT DIFFDSE FROM PREDATORY ASTEROIDS & TRIGGER DEFENSIVE BEHAVIORS IN MARINE INVERTEERATE. 1.002 CRAYFISE IN CALIFORNIA RICE FIELDS: DIET, IMPACT ON RICE PRODDCTION AND POSSIBLE RETURNS IN BARVEST. 4.020, £.015* CRUSTACEAN NUTRITION AND FEED DEVELOPMENT. 5.006 DEVELOPMENT AND EVALDATION OF CYSTEF BARVESTING EQUIPMENT AND NARICULTORE SYSTEMS. 6.084, 7.013* DEVELOPMENT OF A FISE MARKETING PROGRAM. 10.032 DEVELOPMENT OF IMPROVED HANDLING, SHIPPING/STORAGE AND MARKETING PRACTICES FOR FISHERY PRODUCTS. 7.010, E.039*, 9.030* DIAGNOSIS AND PATBOGENESIS OF DISEASES AND PARASITES IN MAJOR MCLLDSCAN AQUACULTURE SPECIES. 3.088, 3.088 DISEASE-RESISTANI OYSTERS. 2.015, 3.067* CISEASES OF AQUATIC ANIMALS. 3.013, 3.072 DISEASES OF SHELLFISH. 3.074 BARLY LIFE HISTORY ECOLOGY AND GROWTH OF THE RIVER SERIMP MACROBRACEIDM CHICNE IN LOUISIANA. 1.046 ECOLOGICAL STUDIES WITH RED SWANP CRAWFISE AND WHITE RIVER CRAWFISH. 1.042, 4.092*, 6.043* ECONOM. IMPORTANT DISEASES OF HIVALVE SHELLFISH, INCLUDING THEIR PREVENTION, CONTECL AND ERADICATION. 4.139 ECONOMIC PROFILE & REGIONAL ECONOMIC IMPACTS OF THE ALASKA SHELLFISH INDUSTRY. 10.049 ECCNOMICS OF PRODUCING AND MARKETING LONG ISLAND SOUND OYSTERS. 10.006 FCONOMICS OF THE COMMERCIAL FISH INDUSTRY, 10,044. 10.045 EFPECTS OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS AND MANAGEMENT PRACTICES CN COMMERCIAL PRODUCTION OF CRAWFISE. SERLLS 4.096, 6.047* ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS AFFECTING SDEVIVAL OF THERMALLY-INJORED EACTERIA FODND CN FISHERY PECDDCTS. 9.008 EQUIPMENT FOR MECBANIZATION OF PEODDCTION OF 8.044 OYSTERS AND OTHER SHELLFISH. 6.083, 7.012* EVALUATION OF A CLOSED SYSTEM FOR THE COLTURE OF FISE, SEELLFISE AND AQUATIC PLANTS. 5.001, 6-002* SRINERS EVALUATION OF THE STABILITY AND EDIBLE QUALITY OF FRESH WATER SHRIMP. 8.019 SHIPPING FLAVOR DIFFERENCES OF MECBANICALLY- AND BAND-PRCCESSED CRAB MEATS. 8.015, 9.014* GENETIC ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT OF CROSTACEAN SHIPS AQUACULTURE STOCKS. 2.003 HANDLING AND PROCESSING OF FISE AND SEELLFISE. 8.018, 2.016* SERINPS BUMAN NUTRITION IMPROVEMENT. 8.022 INVEST. OF THE RCLE OF LARVAL AMERICAN OVSTERS (CRASSOSTREA VIRGINICA) AS CARRIERS OF OYSTER DISEASE. 3.071 LABORATORY CULTURE FOR RESEARCH PDEFCSES OF ESTDAFINE AND MARINE LOBSTERS, CRABS AND SERIMPS. 1.048, 5.024* LIPID METABOLISM IN AQDATIC ORGANISMS. 5.053, 9.038* LOW-TEMPERATURE STORAGE CF FRESHWATER PRAWN, MACROFRACHIDM ROSENHERGII. 8.010 LUMINODS BACTERIA AS INDICATORS OF SHELLFISH CONTAMINATION BY PATEOGENIC VIEFICS. 4.144 MANAGEMENT AND CULTURE OF MGLLUSCAN SPECIES. 6.086 MANAGEMENT ECONOMICS OF NEW YORK'S MARINE INDDSTRIES. 10.030
- MATHEMATICAL MODEL OF OYSTER POPDIATION IN THE CHESAPEAKE BAY. 1.053, 6.051*

MECHANIZATION OF CRAWFISH BARVESTING AND PRCDDCTION. 6.042. 7.005*

- MICRCHIAL AND PARASITIC DISEASES OF SHRIMP AND FISE. 3.095
- MICRCHICLCGICAL ASPECTS TO SHELLFISH SANITATION AND QUALITY. 7.014, 8.047*, 5.037* MOLLUSCAN HATCHERY TECHNCLCGY. 6.075
- NATDRAL SEED CYSTER BEDS OF THE DELAWARE EAY. 3.066, 4.135*, 6.062*
- NITROGEN METABOLISM OF FRESHWATER PRAWNS IN RELATION TO DIET. 5.015
- NUTRITIONAL ASPECTS OF AQDACULTDEE SYSTEMS. 5.007, 6.014*
- OYSTER PRODUCTION ECDIPMENT DEVELOPMENT. 4.052. 6.028*
- PENAEIDAE GAMETES, THEIR STRUCTURE, ACTIVATION AND FUSICN. 1.006
- PEYSIOLOGY AND ECOLOGY OF THE ASIATIC CLAN. CORRICOLA SP., IN THE SACRAMENTO-SAN JCAQUIN DELTA. 1.004, 4.011*
- POISONOUS DINOFLAGELLATES AND SHELLFISH PCISCNING. 9.042
- PRAWN ACDACDLIDEAL ENGINEEFING. 6.027, 7.002*
- PRAWN AQUACULTORE PROGRAM BICICGICAL EASIS CF PRODDCTION. 2.008, 6.030*
- PRELIMINARY STUDIES ON CRAWFISH AND FRESHWATER SERINF DISEASES. 1.096, 3.094*
- PROCESSING QUALITY AND PACKAGING FACTORS WHICH AFFECT THE UTILIZATION OF FISH AND SHELLFISH. 8.046, 9.036*
- QUALITY FACTORS FCR FISH AND SHELLFISH STORAGE. 8.045, 9.035*
- RECLANATION OF PROTEIN AND FLAVCE MATERIALS FROM CLAM WASH WATER. 8.034 REGULATCRY PROBLEMS OF LODISIANA FOOD INDUSTRIES.
- 9.017
- SERIMP MATURATICN, REPRODUCTION, DEVELOPMENT, NDIRITICN, INTENSIVE-EXTENSIVE CULTURE AND MARICULTORE. S.052, 6.092*

STUDIES OF THE ECONOMICALLY IMPORTANT SPECIES: MERCENARIA MERCENARIA AND MACFOBRACHIDM RCSENBERGII. 1.094, 6.085*

STUDY OF MANDRE-ENRICEED FOCD WEES IN MAKINE POND ECOSYSTEMS. 5.016

SURF CLAM MANAGEMENT STUDIES. 4.136, 6.063* SYSTEMS ANALYSIS OF INTENSIVE AQDACDITORE: A CASE

STDDY CF CYSIEF PRODUCTION. 6.026, 10.011* THE EFFECT OF FROZEN STORAGE ON TEXTORAL QUALITY OF LOBSTER MEAT. 8.023

USE CF NDIBLENT CONTAINING LIPID VESICLES AS A FOOD SODACE FOR SHELLFISH OF PACIFIC NORTHWEST. 5.042

BIOLCGICAL ANALYSIS OF THE AGE AND GROWTH RATE OF THE OCEAN QUARCE ARCTICA ISLANDICA. 4.138 THE DSE OF SELECTED MARINE MATERIALS AND

- EY-PECDUCIS FCE CEETAIN BOFTICDLTDEAL CROPS.
- SRIGELLA-FLEXNERI
- ANTIEACTERIAL MECHANICS IN CLAMS; CONTRIBUTION OF THE WATER STREAM. 1.072, 4.145*
- REARING BAIT FISH IN WESTERN NEVADA. 6.061, 10.023#

FISE MCVEMENT IN PCCL 9, UPPER MISSISSIPPI RIVER. 1.035

NAVIGATION IMPACTS ON CHANNEL FISHES, DFPER NISSISSIEPI EIVRE, 4,090

- A COMPARATIVE STDDY OF THE FINE STRUCTURE OF APOSTOME CILIATES. 3.076
- ANALYSIS OF THE MARKET PCTENTIAL FOR FRESH WATER AQUACULTURAL PRODUCTS PECDUCED IN NEVADA. 5.036, 8.032*, 10.022*
- EARLY LIFE BISICEY ECOLOGY AND GROWTH OF THE RIVER SERINP MACROERACHIDM CEICNE IN LCDISIANA. 1.046
- EQUIPMENT FCE MECHANIZATION OF PRODUCTICN OF CYSTERS AND CTHEE SHELLFISH. 6.083, 7.012* FORNDLATION CF FCODS FOR ACUATIC ANIMALS CF
- ECONCHIC IMPORTANCE: 5.022, 8.016* FRESHWATER FCOD ANIMALS. 2.027, 4.198, 5.048*,
- 5.054*, 6.096* FRESHWATER SHRIMP OF THE GENDS MACRCHRACHIDM WITH SPECIAL EMPEASIS ON CULTDRE. 4.205, 6.094*
- GENETIC ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT CF CRDSTACEAN AQUACULTURE STOCKS. 2.003

BUMAN NUTRITICN IMPROVEMENT. 8.022

LABORATORY CULTURE FOR RESEARCH PURPOSES OF ESTUARINE AND MARINE LOBSTERS, CRABS AND SBRIMPS. 1.048, 5.024* SINKS LIPID METAHOLISM IN AQUATIC ORGANISHS. 5.053, 9.038* MANUFACTURE OF PROCESSED NEAT AND/OR FISH PRODUCTS WITH UNDERUTILIZED MARINE SPECIES. 8.027 NANUBE-ENRICHED FOOD WEES IN NARINE FOND ECOSYSTEMS. 5.017 MICRCBIAL AND PARASITIC DISEASES OF SHRIMP AND FISH. 3.095 MOLECULAR ENDOCRINOLOGY OF MOLTING AND REPRODUCTION IN CRUSTACEANS, 1.005 PENAEIDAE GAMETES, THEIR STRUCTURE, ACTIVATION AND FUSION. 1.006 PRESENCE, ABUNDANCE, MOVEMENTS, AND BABITAT USAGE SMBLT OF ESTUABINE-DEPENDENT FISHES AND CRUSTACEANS .. 1.045, 4.095* PROCESSING QUALITY AND PACKAGING FACTORS WHICH AEFECT THE UTILIZATION OF FISH AND SHELLFISH. 8.046. 8.036* PRODUCTION ECONOMICS OF AQUACULTURE SPECIES IN SHOKING BAWAII. 10.009 PRODUCTION OF MACROBRACHIUN ECSENBERGII (GIANT MALAYSIAN PRAWN IN NEVADA). 6.060 RECOVERY AND UTILIZATION OF SHRINF AND CRAWFISH PROCESSING HYPRODUCTS. 8.017 REGULATORY PROBLEMS OF LOUISIANA EOCD INDUSTRIES. SMOLTS 9.017 SESPONSE OF AQUATIC LIFE TO SALINITY, TEMPERATURE, DISSOLVED CAYGEN AND WATER FLCW. 4.024 SHRIMP MATURATION, REPRODUCTION, DEVELOPMENT, SNAILS NUTRITICN, INTENSIVE-EXTENSIVE COLTURE AND MARICULTURE: 5.052, 6.092* STUDY OF MANURE-ENRICHED EOOD WEES IN MARINE POND ECOSYSTEMS. 5.016 THE OXIDATIVE DETERICRATION OF LIPIDS IN MECHANICALLY DEHONED POULTRY AND EISE, 9,009 THE USE OF SELECTED MARINE MATERIALS AND BY-PRODUCTS PCR CERTAIN EORTICULTURAL CROPS. 8.044 USE OF NUTRIENT CONTAINING LIPID VESICLES AS A FOOD SOURCE FOR SHELLFISH OF PACIFIC NORTHWEST. 5.042 SHEUBS STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT OF MARGINAL SALT MARSH SPECIES FROM NORTH CAROLIN. 4.158 SILAGE EVALUATION OF AQUATIC PLANTS AS POTENTIAL FEEDSTUFF FOR DAILY CATTLE. 9.013 SILICON NUTRIENT INTERACTIONS AND CHANGES IN ALGAL QUALITY IN CAYUGA LAKE. 4.140 SILT IMPACT OF EROSION SILT AND SEDIMENTATION ON FISH REPRODUCTION AND GROWTH. 4.130 THE ROLE OF SILTS AND CLAYS IN THE NUTHITICN CF SODIUM ZCCPLANETON. 1.041 SIMAZINE NCDE OF ACTION AND INPLUENCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS ON THE TOXICITY OF SEVERAL AQUATIC BERBICIDES. 3.100, 4.218* SINULATION BASELINE STUDIES FOR EVALUATING THE RESPONSE OF AN ECOSYSTEM TO THE INTRODUCTION OF WHITE ANUE. 1.018, 3.028*, 4.046* CHARACTERISTICS, PREFERENCES, AND ATTITUDES CONCEENING PRIVATE FEE-FISHING OPERATIONS. 10.048 COSTS AND BETURNS IN THE OTTER TRAWL FLEET ON LONG ISLAND, NEW YCRE. 10.029 BCONOMIC HEBAVIOR OF FOOD AND FIBER FIRMS. 10.007 MICROCOSM MODELING OF THE RESPONSE OF PERSISTENT AQUATIC COMMUNITIES TC A TOXICANT. 4.182 RESPONSE OF FISHES AND AQUATIC SYSTEMS TC ELECTRIC SHOCK AND CAPTURE TECHNOLOGY. 6.101 SYSTEMS ANALYSIS OF INTENSIVE AQUACULTURE: A CASE STUDY OF OYSTER PRODUCTION. 6.026, 10.011* SINULATION-HCDELS FISEBRIES AND WILDLIEE ECCNOWICS RESEARCH IN THE GREAT LAKES. 10.019 INSTREAM FLOW REQUIREMENTS OF CALFORNIA FISBES. 1.013. 4.029* SYSTEMS ANALYSIS OF INTENSIVE AQUACULTURE: A CASE STUDY OF OYSTER PRODUCTION. 6.026, 10.011* SINULIIDAR

BLACK PLY DAMAGE TBRESBOIDS, BICLCGY AND CONTROL-4.103 SINGLE-CHLL-PROTHINS **BIOCONVERSION OF CHITIN WASTES. 8.004** NATURAL MARSHES AS NUTRIENT SINKS FOR ACRICULTURAL RUNOFF. 4.089 SITE-PREPARATION MANAGEMENT AND CULTURE OF MCILUSCAN SPECIES. 6.086 SITE-SELECTION IMPROVEMENT OF OGO PRODUCTION AND MARKETING IN HAWAII. 6.031, 10.012* SNALL-FARMS A PCLYCULTURE SYSTEM OF FISH PRODUCTION FOR DISADVANTAGED FARMERS IN ARKANSAS. 6.009 POLYCULTURAL PRODUCTION OF FISH IN FARM PONDS. 4.007, 6.010* ECOLOGY, POPULATION DYNAMICS AND MANAGEMENT OF MULTI-SPECIES FISH RESOURCES OF LARGE LARES. 1.063, 4.121* SMCKED-FOOD SMOKING OF SEAFOOD AND POULTRY. 8.008. 9.007* SMOKING OF SEAFCOD AND FCULTRY. 8.008. 9.007* SMOLT IF ICATION FERPORMANCE OF SALMONIDS: SMOLTIFICATION, STRESS AND FITNESS. 1.085, 6.077* STEELHEAD BATCHERY AS AFPECTED EV RELATIVELY HIGH **TEMPERATURE WATER: 4.068** BOLE OF SHORT DISTANCE MIGRATICN OF THE BOWING OF SALNCE AND STEELHEAD. 1.028 NICRCCCSN MODELING CF THE RESECUSE OF PERSISTENT AQUATIC COMMUNITIES TO A TOXICANT. 4.182 SOCIAL-DEVELOPMENT ECONOMICS OF PISHERIES DEVELOPMENT AND MANAGEMENT ECR THE HAWAIIAN ARCHIPELAGO. 10.010 SOCIAL-BCONONICS AN ANALYSIS OF NEW ENGLAND FISHERIES INVESTMENT BEHAVIOR. 10.037 AN ECCNCHIC EVALUATION OF ICE FISHING IN WAINE. 10.014 ANALYSIS OF DOMESTIC FOOD DEMANE AND CONSUNPTION EEBAVICE. 10.008 ASSESSMENT OF COASTAL RECREATION RESOURCES. 10.046 EUNAN ECCLCGY CP NEW JEFSEY FISHERIES. 10.026 REGULATION OF WISCONSIN'S LAKE WICHIGAN CONNERCIAL FISHERIES. 10.050 SOUTHERN NEW ENGLAND ECONOMIC IMPACT PROJECT. 10.040 SOCIAL-VALUES ECONOMICS OF PISHERIES DEVELOPMENT AND MANAGEMENT FCR THE HAWAIIAN AFCBIPELAGC. 10.010 SOCIOLOGY TOWARDS A TEEORY OF THE REGULATED FISHERY. 10.005 COMPARATIVE PHYSIOLOGICAL STUDIES OF VERTEBRATE EYES. 1.062 SODIUM-BISULPITE PROCESSING QUALITY AND PACKAGING FACTORS WHICH AFFECT THE UTILIZATION OF FISH AND SHELLFISH. 8.046, 9.036* SOIL-ANALYSIS PRODUCTIVITY OF THE SALINE MARSHES CN FLORIDA'S NORTH AND WEST COASTS, PEASE II. 4.038 SOIL-CHARACTERISTICS HIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS WITH COMPETITIVE SPECIES OF SPIKERUSH (ELECCHALIS SPP.). 3.011 USE OF SPIKERUSH (ELEOCHARIS SPE.) FOR HICLOGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.016 SOIL-CLASSIFICATION PRODUCTIVITY OF THE SALINE WARSEES CN FLCFIDA'S NCETE AND WEST COASTS, FRASE II. 4.038 SO IL-COMPACTION CRAWFISH CULTURE STUDIES IN SMALL PCNDS: BUBBOWING, POLYCULTURE AND NATURAL FOND FLCCDING. 1.050, 4.099*, 6.049* SO IL-BROSION ZOOGEOGEAPBY AND ECOLOGY OF PISBES IN PENNSYLVANIA. 1.093, 4.190* SOIL-PROPERTIES VALUE OF TIDAL NAESBES IN RELATION TO ESTUARINE ECOSYSTEM, AND EVALUATION OF FRESHWATEF SOIL-SURVEYS VALUE OF TIDAL MARSHES IN RELATION TO ESTUARINE ECOSYSTEM, AND EVALUATION OF FRESEWATER WETLANDS. 4.044

SOIL-TYPES PHYSICLOGY AND MANAGEMENT OF AQUATIC WEEDS INTERFEFING WITE THE USE OF WATER RESOURCES. 3.035 SOILS ECOLOGICAL STUDIES WITH RED SWAMP CRAWFISH AND WEITE RIVER CHAWFISE. 1.042, 4.092*, 6.043* EFFECTS OF ACID PRECIPITATION ON ADISCNDACE LAKES. 4.153 PRODUCTIVITY OF THE SALINE MARSHES ON FLORIDA'S NGRIH AND WEST COASTS, PEASE II. 4.038 Release of adsorbed pesticides into water. 4.175 VALUE OF TIDAL MARSHES IN RELATION TO ESTUARINE ECOSYSTEN, AND EVALUATION OF FRESEWATER WETLANDS. 4.044 SOLANUM BICLCGICAL CONTROL OF WEEDS. 3.104 SOLAR-COLLECTORS DEVELOPMENT OF INEXPENSIVE AQUACULTUBE SYSTEMS FOR BOME (SUESISTENCE-TYPE) CULTURE IN N. C.. 6.069 DRYING SEAFCOD PRODUCTS WITH SOLAR ENERGY, 8-406 SOLAR-ENBRGY DEVELOPMENT OF INEXPENSIVE AQUACULTURE SYSTEMS FOR BOME (STHSISTENCE-TYPE) CULTURE IN N. C.. 6.069 DRYING SEAFOOD PRODUCTS WITH SOLAR ENERGY. 8.006 INTEGRATICN CF A SOLAR GREENBOUSE WITH A RECIRCULATING FISE CULTURE SYSTEM. 6.003 SOLAR-BEATING INTEGRATION OF A SOLAR GREENBOUSE WITH A RECIRCULATING FISE CULTURE SYSTEM. 6.003 SOLID-WASTE AEATEMENT OF EUTBOPHICATION RESULTING FROM INTENSIVE ANIMAL PRODUCTION. 4.195, 6.080* SOLIDS INVESTIGATION OF "IN SITU" SOLIDS DIGESTION FOR SALMONID PRODUCTION. 6.081 SOLUBILITY PCND FERTILIZATION AND LIMING. 4.002, 5.003* SOLUBLE-PROTEINS BIOCHEMICAL GENETICS AND CYTOGENETICS OF TROUT. 2.021 SOLUTES TEB PHYSIOLOGICAL EASIS FOR MANAGING TIDAL MARSE VEGETATION. 4.197 SOLVENTS CONTEOL OF AQUATIC WEEDS BASED ON ALLELOPATHIC CBARACTERISTICS IN SPINERUSE (ELECCHARIS SPF.). 3.007 SOFTING INTENSIVE CULTURE OF TILAPIA IN GEOTBERNAL WATERS IN THE SAN LUIS VALLEY, COLORADO. 2.005, 6.017* SOUTB-ANERICA APPLIED LINNCLOGY AND FISHERIES STUDIES IN TROPICAL LAKES. 4.021 VARIABILITY IN PHYSICAL REGIME OF LAKE TITICACA: RELATION TO BIOLOGICAL PROCESSES. 4.014 SOTERANS MANAGEMENT TECHNIQUES FOR INCREASING CRAWFISE FRCDUCTION. 6.046, 7.006* SPACE AN EVALUATION OF STRIPED BASS & WEITE BASS EVERIDS AND STRIPED BASS & WHITE PERCE BYERIDS. 2.018, 6.070* SPARTINA-ALTERNIFLORA EFPECTS OF THE BEUNSWICK NUCLEAR POWER-PLANTS CN THE PRODUCTIVITY OF SPARTINA ALTERNIFLORA. 4.159 FATE AND EFFECTS OF ATRAZINE IN SALT MARSE ECOSYSTEMS. 4.001 THE PHYSICLOGICAL BASIS FOR MANAGING TIDAL MARSE VEGETATION. 4.197 SPARTINA-PATENS THE PHYSIOLOGICAL BASIS FOR MANAGING TIDAL MARSH VEGETATION. 4.197 SPAWNING ADULT PADDLEFISE MOVEMENT IN POOL 13, UPPER MISSISSIPPI RIVER. 1.034 CEARACTERIZATION OF GONAD-STINULATING SUFSTANCES IN MARINE ANIMALS. 1.020, 2.006* CCLUMBIA RIVER CBINOCK SALMON STUDY. 1.090 DEVELOPMENT AND APPLICATION OF A METEODOLOGY FOR RECOMMENDING SALMONID EGG INCUBATION FLOWS. 4.070 EFFECT OF FEAKING POWER GENERATION ON PISE. 4.056 BFPECTS CF INCREASED FINE SEDIMENT ON INCUBATION AND EMEIGENCE OF CBINOOK SALMON AND STEELBEAD TEOUT. 4.071 EVALUATION OF JUVENILE SALMON AND STEELBEAD DENSITY AS RELATED TO DENSITY OF SPANNERS AND FRY

RELEASE. 1.030, 6.035*

THE STATUS, AGUNDANCE, AND VIELD OF THE STRIPED BASS IN THE ROANCKE RIVER, NORTH CARCLINA. 1.081. 4.164# SPECIES A PCLYCULTURE SYSTEM OF FISH PRODUCTION FOR DISADVANTAGED FARMERS IN ARKANSAS. 6.009 MINNEWS AS FORAGE IN THE FARM PEND PRODUCTION OF FINFISH. 6.018 POPULATION CHARACTERISTICS OF TEXAS GULF CF MEXICC FISHES. 1.097 STREAMSIDE HUFFER STRIPS FOR PRCTECTING AQUATIC CEGANISMS FROM LOGGING EFPECIS. 4.018 SPECIES-COMPOSITION ECOLOGY OF LARVAL STREAM PISEES. 1.038, 4.084* EFFECT OF PEAKING POWER GENERATION CN FISE. 4.056 FISE AND AQUATIC MACROINVERTEERATE FAUNA IN SOUTE FORE BOISE RIVER BELOW ANDERSON BANCE DAM. 1.029 FISE PRODUCTION IN SCUTE DAKCTA FARM AND RANCE WAIERS. 6.087 FELATIONSHIPS HETWEEN SALT MARSE AND ESTUARINE ANIMAL COMMUNITIES AND ENERGY EXCHANGE. 4.040. 5.010* SCOPE OF WORK FOR PRELIMINARY STUDY OF PRIMARY AND SECONDARY PRODUCTION OF THE ST. LAWRENCE RIVER. 4.150 STOCE DYNAMICS AND ASSESSMENT IN MARINE PISHERIES. 1.091, 6.078* SURVBY OF LARVAL FISBES IN THE NEARSBORE GULF WATEES CF LCUISIANA. 1.047 WATER QUALITY ENHANCEMENT OF LAKES BY MECHANICAL PUMPING. 4.088, 6.039* SPECTROGRAPHY DEVELOPMENT OF RAPID SEAFOOD QUALITY TESTS FOR CONNERCIAL AND REGULATORY USE. 9.015 SPECTROPBOTOMBTRY VISUAL PIGNENT CHANGES DURING THE LIFE CYCLE OF THE AMBRICAN EBL, ANGUILLA ECSTRATA. 1.077 SPERM CEYOGENIC PRESERVATION OF SPERM FROM STELPED HASS. 2.017 CRYOGENIC PRESERVATION OF SPERM FROM WARNWATER FISHES. 2.016 DEVELOP OF AQUACULTURE SYSTEMS FOR COOL WATER FISE SPECIES. 2.028, 5.057*, 6.102* SPCILAGE ENZYMATIC CONTROL OF QUALITY FACTORS IN MARINE FOCDS. 8.026 PROCESSING QUALITY AND PACKAGING FACTORS WHICH AFFECT THE UTILIZATION OF FISE AND SHELLFISH. 8.046, 9.036* SPOILS CVERBOALD DISPOSAL STUDY. 1.066, 4.137# VALUE OF TIDAL WARSBES IN RELATION TO ESTUARINE BCOSYSTEN, AND BVALUATION OF FRESEWATER WETLANDS. 4.044 SPORES HIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF WEEDS WITH PATHOGENS. 3.103 DISEASES OF AQUATIC ANIMALS. 2.013 SQUAWPISE INSTREAM FLOW REQUIREMENTS OF CALFORNIA FISHES. 1.013, 4.029* SPAWNING, EARLY LIFE BISTORY, HABITAT SELECTION OF NORTBERN SQUAWFISH: INFER. TO COLOFADC SQUANFISE. 4.063 SOUID

EVALUATION OF THE ECOLOGICAL RECUIREMENTS OF

EXAMINATION OF THE SPAWNING ECOLOGY AND EARLY LIFE

HISTORY OF KOKANEE SALMON IN COEUR D' ALENE

FISH AND AQUATIC MACROINVERTEERATE FAUNA IN SOUTH

INTENSIVE CULTURE OF TILAPIA IN GEOTHERMAL WATERS

IN THE SAN LUIS VALLEY, COLCEADC. 2.005, 6.017* NOLECULAE ENDOCEFINOLOGY OF NOLTING AND REPRODUCTION

rearing bait fise in western nevada. 6.061, 10.023* spawning, early life history, hapitat selection cf

STATUS, AHUNDANCE AND EXFLCITATION OF THE STRIPED

THE IMPACT OF POWER PEAKING ON EGG INCUEATION OF

NCRTEERN SQUAWFISE: INFER. TC CCLCRADC

BASS IN THE RCANCKE FIVER, NC. 4.163 SURVEY OF LARVAL FISHES IN THE NEARSHORE GULF WATERS OF LOUISIANA. 1.047

FORK ECISE RIVER BELOW ANDERSON RANCH DAM. 1.029

RESERVCIE FISE SPECIES. 1.101

IN CRUSTACEANS. 1.005 MCLLUSCAN BATCHERY TECHNOLOGY. 6.075

FALL CHINCCE SALMON. 4.072

LAKE. 4.054

SQUAWFISE. 4.063

BUMAN NUTRITION IMPROVEMENT. 8.022 NEW FOOD PRODUCTS FROM UNDERUTILIZED FISE SPECIES. 8.033 QUALITY CONTROL OF CANNED SQUID. 9.018 STABILITY FACTORS AFFECTING THE FUNCTIONAL PROPERTIES AND QUALITY CF PROCESSED MUSCLE FOODS. 9.021 STABILIZATION PIGMENTS OF MEAT AND FISH PRODUCTS (CFF-COLORS IN TUNA). 8.002, 9.003* STARBS THE REPECTS OF ARTIFICIAL STRUCTURES OF GAME FISH IN A BCFROW PIT POND. 1.085, 4.168* STAPHYLOCOCCUS REGULATORY PROBLEMS OF LOUISIANA FOCD INDUSTRIES. 9.017 STARVATION HACTERIAL SURVIVAL AND RECOVERY MECHANISMS: SIGNIFICANCE IN MARINE ENVIRONMENT. 4.188 STATISTICAL-ANALYSIS ENVIRONMENTAL EFFECTS ON PRODUCTIVITY OF CRAYFISE IN PCND HABITATS, PBASE I, II. 5.025, 6.048*, 7.007* STATISTICS ANALYSIS OF DOMESTIC FOOD DEMAND AND CONSUMPTION HEHAVICE. 9.041 RESEARCH IN SYSTEMS ECCLOGY. 4.141 STOCK DYNAMICS AND ASSESSMENT IN MARINE FISHERIES. 1.091. 6.078* STEELHEAD-TRCUT CHRONIC TURBIDITY AND STRESS IN JUVENILE CCHO SALMON AND STEELHEAD TROUT. 1.088, 4.184* EFFECTS OF ADDITIONAL PEAKING FROM A FOURTH GENERATCE AT DWCRSHAE DAW IN CATCEABILITY. ETC... 4.062 ROLE OF SHORT DISTANCE MIGRATICN OF THE HOWING OF SALMON AND STEELHEAD. 1.028 STEELHEAD EATCHERY AS AFFECTED HY RELATIVELY HIGH TEMPESATURE WATER. 4.068 STEEILITY HRHEDING EXPERIMENTS WITH SALMONIDS. 2.024 STREATOS FRESHWATER FOOD ANIMALS: 2.025, 5.051*, 6.090* STREOLS BIOSYNTHES IS OF STERCLS IN THE OYSTER AND CCREELATION OF STEROL COMPOSITION TO OYSTER PRODUCTIVITY. 1.055. 5.027* MORPHOLOGICAL, ULTRASTRUCTURAL, AND EICCHEMICAL CHARACTERIZATION OF NANOPLANKICN FROM CHESAPEAKE BAY. 1.056, 4.108* STICKLEBACK SELECTIVE CHEMICALS FOR THE CONTICL OF THE THREESPINE STICKLEPACK. 3.047 STINULANTS CHARACTERIZATION OF GONAL-STIMULATING SUBSTANCES IN MARINE ANIMALS. I.020, 2.006* STOCKING ADULT FALL CHINOCK TRAPPING FOR SNAKE RIVER EGG BANK FECGEAN. 6.033 HIOLOGICAL STUDIES WITH THE MCSQUITOFISH, GAMBUSIA AFFINIS, UNDER CULTURAL SITUATIONS. 6.012 CONTROL AND ERADICATION OF AQUATIC WEEDS IN LAKES AND IMPCUNDED WATERS. 3.107 CULTURE AND MANAGEMENT OF SELECTED GAME FISHES. 3.092, 4.203*, 6.091* DEVELOPMENT CF OPTIMUM SUSTAINED YIELD OF FISHES IN FABM FONDS. 5.021, 7.604* ECOLCGY AND MANAGEMENT OF WALLEYE. 1.073, 6.065* EVALUATION OF JUVENILE SAINCN AND STEELHEAD DENSITY AS RELATED TO DENSITY OF SPAWNERS AND FRY RELEASE . 1.030, 6.035* FISH PRODUCTION IN SCUTH DAKCTA FARM AND BANCH WATERS. 6.087 FRESHWATER FCOD ANIMALS. 2.012, 6.045 INTRODUCTION OF WALLEYE AND NORLUNGE FINGERLINGS INTO A LAKE DOMINATED BY PREY SPECIES. 1.074 SPORTFISH MANAGEMENT. 6.005 WILD VERSUS HATCHERY TROUT. 1.026, 4.058* STOCKING-LEVELS FRESHWATER FOOD ANIMALS. 6.099 SOUTH DAKCIA FARM AND RANCH FISHERIES. 5.049, 6.088* WATER QUALITY STOCKING RATES AND HARVESTING SYSTEMS FOR CATFISH. 6.059 STOCKS LIFE HISTOFY AND POPULATION DYNAMICS OF TILEFISH, LCPHCLATILUS CHAMAELCNTICUP. 1.064

STOCK DYNAMICS AND ASSESSMENT IN MARINE FISBERIES. 1.091, 6.078* STORAGE BREEDING, PEODUCTION, NUTRITICN AND MARKETING OF CHANNEL CATFISH. 2.010, 5.020*, 6.040* CRYOGENIC PRESERVATION OF SPERM FROM STEIPED BASS. 2.017 DEVELOPMENT OF IMPROVED BANDLING, SHIPFING/STORAGE AND MARKETING PRACTICES FOR FISHERY PRODUCTS. 7.010, 8.039*, 9.030* ENZYWATIC CONTROL OP QUALITY FACTORS IN WARINE FOODS. 8.026 EXTENDING THE SHELF-LIFE CF FISH. 8.036, 9.028* HISTANINE/HONEYCOMBING IN SKIPJACK TUNA . 8.011, 9.010* BUMAN NUTRITION IMPROVEMENT. 8.022 LOW-TEMPERATURE STORAGE OF FRESHWATER PRAWN, MACROBRACBIUM ROSENHERGII. 8.010 METHODS OF MODIFIED-ATNOSPHERE PRESERVATION OF REFRIGERATED FEESE FISE. 7.016, 8.048* PIGMENTS OF MEAT AND FISB PRODUCTS (CFF-CCLCRS IN TUNA). 8.002, 9.003* POST-BAEVEST BANDLING AND PROCESSING OF MACRCHRACHIUM PRAWNS. 7.003, 8.012*, 9.011* POTENTIAL OF DIFFERENT UNDERUTILIZEC SPECIES CF FISH FCE CCNVENIENCE FCCDS. 8.035, 9.026* PRAWN AQUACULTURAL ENGINEBRING. 6.027, 7.002* PROCESSING QUALITY AND PACKAGING FACTORS WHICH AFFECT THE UTILIZATION OF FISH AND SHELLFISH. 8.046, 9.036* QUALITY FACTORS FOR FISH AND SHELLFISH SICRAGE. 8.045. 9.035* RELATIONSHIPS HETWEEN PESTICIDES AND GECRGIA FARM POND ECOSYSTEMS. 4.050 SENSORY & NUTBITIONAL EVALUATION OF SEAFOODS. 8.043, 9.032* SMOKING OF SBAFOOD AND POULTRY. 8.008, 9.007* THE EFFECT OF FROZEN STORAGE ON TEXTURAL QUALITY OP LCBSTER MEAT. 8.023 STORAGE-CONDITIONS HISTAMINE/HONEYCOMBING IN SEIPJACE TUNA. 8.011. 9.010* STORAGE-STABLLITY EVALUATION OF THE STABILITY AND EDIBLE QUALITY OP FRESH WATER SHRIMP. 8.019 FOOD PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT FACM FLORIDA UNDERUTILIZED FISH SPECIES. 8.007, 9.006* FRESHWATER FOCD ANIMALS. 6.006, 8.001*, 9.002*, I0.002* LOW-TEMPHRATURE STORAGE OF FRESHWATER PRAWN, MACRCHRACHIUM ROSENBERGII. 8.010 PREFLAVORED CHANNEL CATFISH. 8.013, 9.012* STORAGE-TEMPERATURE HISTANINE/HCNHYCOMHING IN SKIPJACK TUNA. 8.011. 9.010* QUALITY CONTROL OF CANNED SQUID. 9.018 STORAGE-TIME HISTAMINE/BONEYCOMHING IN SEIPJACE TUNA. 8.011, 9.010* STRAINS-GENETICS HIOCHEMICAL GENETICS AND CYTOGENETICS CF TROUT. 2.021 BREEDING, PRODUCTION, NUTRITICN AND MARKETING CF CHANNEL CATFISH. 2.010, 5.020*, 6.040* MCRPHOLCGY AND TAKONOMY OF NEMATODES. I.021 STRATEGIES APPLICATION OF MANAGEMENT STRATEGIES TO THE MID-ATLANTIC EXTENDED JURISDICTION RECREATIONAL FISHERIES. 10.034 STREAM-FLOW DEVELOFMENT AND APPLICATION OF A METHODOLOGY POR RECOMMENDING SALMONID EGG INCUBATION FLOWS. 4.070 ECOLOGY AND MANAGEMENT OF STREAM AND STREAM FISHES. 1.061 EFFECTS OF BEDUCED STREAM DISCHARGE CN FISH AND AQUATIC MACECINVERTEERATE FCFULATIONS. 4.073 INSTREAM FLOW REQUIREMENTS OF CALFORNIA FISHES. 1.013, 4.029* THE EFFECT OF STREAM CURRENT UPCN FISH HEHAVICR, GEOWTH AND MICROHABITAT SELECTION. 1.011 The impact of power peaking on egg incueation of FALL CHINCOK SALMON. 4.072 STREAMS A COMPARISON OF THE ACCUMULATION RATES OF P ABSORBED BY THE VITAL ORGANS OF FISH. 4.156, 5.039*

- A STUDY OF FISH RESOURCES OF THE GOSPEL BUMP AREA. 4.060 AQUATIC RESOURCES OF SILVER CREEK AT THE NATURE
- CONSERVANCY SITE. 4.075 BIOACCUMULATION AND IMPACT OF BIGBWAY-GENERATED BEAVY METALS ON STREAM FISBERY RESOURCES IN
- VIRGINIA. 4.214 CAREYING CAPACITY OF STREAMS FOR REARING SALMONIDS
- AS AFFECTED BY SEDIMENT & CIBER COMPONENTS. 1.024, 4.057*
- DETERMINATION OF WATER QUALITY CRITERIA FOR THE SUPPORT OF AQUATIC LIFE IN TWO SMALL KANSAS STREAMS. 4.091
- DEVELOPMENT AND VALIDATION OF HAHITAT-STANDING CROP FUNCTIONS FOR STREAM FISE AND THEIR FOODS. 4.065 ECOLOGICAL FACTORS AFFECTING FCTENTIALLY THREATENED OF ENDANGERED FISE SPECIES IN NY. 4.147
- ECOLOGY AND MANAGEMENT OF MISSCURI STREAM FISHES. 4.128
- ECOLOGY AND MANAGEMENT OF STREAM AND STREAM FISHES. 1.061
- ECOLOGY AND SYSTEMATICS OF AQUATIC INSECTS. 4.177 ECOLOGY OF LARVAL STREAM FISHES. 1.038, 4.084*
- ECOLOGY OF RARE AND ENDANGERED FISHES CF PENNSYLVANIA. 4.191
- EFFECTS OF ANTIMYCIN ON STREAM INSECTS. 3.102. 4.222*
- FFFFCTS OF CHRONIC TERBIDITY ON SOCIAL CONTEST IN JUVENILE STEELBEAD TECUT AND CCBO SALMON. 4.059
- EFFECIS OF INCREASED FINE SEDIMENT ON INCUEATION AND EMERGENCE OF CHINCOK SALMON AND STEELHEAD **TEOUT. 4.071**
- EFFECTS OF LAND USE FRACTICES ON STREAM HIOTA. 4.085
- EFFECTS OF LIVESTOCE GRAZING FRACTICES ON THE WATER QUALITY OF STREAMS. 4.223
- EFFECTS OF LCGGING ON ARIZCNA TRCUT AND THEIR
- HABITAT IN THE WHITE MOUNTAINS OF ARIZCNA. 4.005 EFFECTS OF REDUCED STREAM DISCHARGE ON FISH AND
- AQUATIC MACROINVERTEERATE POPULATIONS. 4.073 EFFECTS OF STAMPEDE RESERVOIR CN UPSTREAM FISH
- POPULATIONS OF SAGEHEN CREEK. 1.010, 4.019* EFFECTS OF WATERSHED PRACTICES ON STREAM BABITAT AND FISE POPULATIONS. 4.181
- EVALUATION OF JUVENILE SALMON AND STEELBEAD DENSITY AS RELATED TO DENSITY OF SFAWNERS AND FRY RELEASE. 1.030, 6.035*
- FACTORS AFFECTING FISH PCPULATIONS OF IOWA STREAMS. 1.039, 4.086*
- FISH MORBIDITY AND MORTALITY RELATED TC
- ENVIRONMENTAL CHANGES AND/CR INTENSIVE CULTURE METEODS. 4.193
- BELMINTH FARASITES OF VEBTEERATES IN NOFTH CAROLINA. 3.078
- IMPACT OF EROSION SILT AND SEDIMENTATION ON FISH REPRODUCTION AND GROWTH, 4,130 INSTREAM FLOW REQUIREMENTS OF CALFORNIA FISHES.
- 1.013, 4.029* JUVENILE ENIGRATION OF LABORTAN CUTTEROAT TROUT IN
- THE TRUCKEE-FYRAMID LAKE SYSTEM. 4.055 LIMNCLOGICAL BASIS FOR THE PRODUCTIVITY OF INLAND
- WATERS. 4.206 NATURAL PRODUCTION OF TROUT IN INFERTILE MOUNTAIN
- STREAMS OF FENNSYLVANIA. 4.192 SPORTFISE WANAGEMENT. 6.005
- STREAM AND IMPOUNDMENT ECOLOGY. 4.003
- STREAMSIDE HUFFER STRIPS FOR PROTECTING AQUATIC **ORGANISHS FROM LOGGING EFFECTS**. 4.018
- THE EFFECTS OF LOGGING: GRAZING ON STREAMS IN THE WHITE MCUNTAINS. 4.006 THE FATE AND EFFECTS OF CHEMICALS IN AQUATIC
- ECOSYSTEMS. 4.111
- TOXIC EFFECTS ON THE AQUATIC BIOTA FROM CCAL AND OIL SHALE DEVELOPMENT. 4.034
- STRESS
 - APFLIED PHYSIOLOGY OF ECONOMICALY IMPORTANT FISHES. 4.202
 - CHRONIC TURHIDITY AND STRESS IN JUVENILE COHO SALMON AND STEELHEAD TROUT. 1.088, 4.184*
 - EFFECTS CF STAMPEDE RESERVOIR ON UPSTREAM FISH POPULATIONS OF SAGEBEN CREEK. 1.010, 4.019*
 - FISH MORHIDITY AND MORTALITY RELATED TO ENVIRONMENTAL CHANGES AND/CR INTENSIVE CULTURE METHODS. 4.193
 - FISH FHYSICLOGY IN RESPONSE TO WATER QUALITY AND CEENISTEY. 4.211
 - FRESHWATHE FCOD ANIMALS. 3.003

BISTOPATHCLOGIC AND HISTOCHENICAL INDICES OF SUBLETHAL PESTICIDE TOXICATION IN FISE. 3.086. 4.189* IDENTIFICATION OF SUB-OPTIMAL ENVIRONMENTAL PARAMETERS AFFECTING AQUACULTURE. 3.080, 4.194* RESPONSE OF FISHES AND AQUATIC SYSTEMS TO ELECTRIC SHOCK AND CAPTURE TECHNOLOGY. 6.101 TRANSMISSICN AND IMMUNOLOGY OF CHANNEL CATFISH VIEUS DISEASE CF CULTURED CATFISE. 3.002 STRONTIUM BIOLOGICAL ANALYSIS OF THE AGE AND GROWTH RATE OF THE OCEAN QUABOG ARCTICA ISLANDICA. 4.138 STRUCTURE THE EFFECTS OF ARTIFICIAL STRUCTURES OF GAME FISE IN A BORROW FIT POND. 1.085, 4.168* STRUCTURES

FISE POPULATION AND PRODUCTION IN POND AND LAKE IMPOUNDMENTS. 4.208, 6.095* SUBSTRATES

- ACCUMULATION AND DEGRADATION OF SOME BERHICIDES BY ALGAE. 4.172
- ANALYSIS OF PREDATION OF MERCENARIA MERCENARIA BY DECAFOD CRUSTACEANS. 1.025, 3.091* FACTERIAL SURVIVAL AND RECOVERY MECHANISMS:
- SIGNIFICANCE IN MARINE ENVIRONMENT. 4.188 STREAMSIDE BUFFEF STRIPS FOL PECTECTING AQUATIC ORGANISMS FROM LOGGING EFFECTS. 4.018
- SUCKERS-FISE EFFECTS OF STAMPEDE RESERVOIR CN UPSTREAM FISH POPULATIONS OF SAGEHEN CREEK. 1.010, 4.015*
- SUNFISE CULTURE AND MANAGEMENT CF SELECIED GAME FISHES.
- 3.092, 4.203*, 6.091*
- FRESHWATER FOOD ANIMALS. 2.025, 5.051*, 6.090* SUPEROXIDE-DISMUTASE
- COMPARATIVE PHYSIOLOGICAL STUDIES OF VERTENBATE EYES. 1.062 SUPPLY
- ANALYSIS OF DOMESTIC FOOD DEMAND AND CONSUMPTION BEBAVICE. 9.041 ECONOMICS OF AQUACULTURE. 10.004
- ECONOMICS OF PECDUCING AND MARKETING LONG ISLAND SOUND OYSTERS. 10.006
- SUPPLY-AND-DEMAND FISHERIES AND WILDLIFE ECONCHICS RESEARCH IN THE GREAT LAKES. 10.019
- REARING BAIT FISE IN WESTERN NEVADA. 6.061, 10.023* SURFACE-WATER
- RELEASE OF ADSORHED PESTICIDES INTO WATER. 4.175 SURVEYS
 - A SURVEY FOR PATHOGEN FOR AQUATIC WEEDS IN CALIFORNIA FCE USE IN BICLCGICAL CONTROL. 3.008, 4.009*
 - AN ECONOMIC EVALUATION OF ICE FISHING IN MAINE. 10.014
 - AN ECONOMIC EVALUATION OF THE RECREATIONAL SALMON FISHING IN THE KENAL/RUSSIAN RIVER REGICN. 10.036
 - AN EVALUATION OF ENDANGERED MOLLUSKS IN VIRGINIA. 1.100, 4.213*
 - ANALYSIS OF DOMESTIC FOOD DEMAND AND CONSUNPTION BEBAVIOR. 9.041
 - APPLICATION OF WANAGEMENT STRATEGIES TO THE MID-ATLANTIC EXTENDED JURISDICTION RECREATIONAL FISHERIES. 10.034
 - ASSESSMENT OF COASTAL RECREATION RESOURCES. 10.046 HIOLOGICAL AGENTS FOR CONTROL OF HYDRILLA, A SUBNEESED AQUATIC WEED. 3.023
 - EIOLOGICAL AND RECREATIONAL ASPECTS OF WATER LEVEL
 - MANAGEMENT OF CLEAR LAKE, IOWA. 4.081 HIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS WITH COMPETITIVE SPECIES CF SPIKERUSE (ELECCHARIS SFP. :. 3.011
 - CHARACTERISTICS, PREFERENCES, AND ATTITUDES CONCERNING FRIVATE FEE-FISBING CFEBATIONS. 10.048
 - COEUR D'ALENE EIVER FISHERIES INVESTIGATIONS. 4.061 DISTRIBUTION, ABUNDANCE AND ECCLOGY OF ASCOPBYLLUM NODOSUM (1) LE JOIS. 1.052, 4.102*, 7.008*
 - EFFECT OF PEAKING POWER GENERATION ON FISH. 4.056
 - IMPACTS OF RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT AND EXPLORATION ON NATURAL RESOURCES. 4.216
- MANAGEMENT STRATEGIES FOR RICE PESTS. 3.005
- THE EFFECT OF STRUCTURE ON FISE EFEAVIOR. 4.165 THE IMPACT OF SALMONID INTECDUCTIONS ON NEW YORK
- FISHERMEN AND COMMUNITIES. 10.033
- SURVIVAL

ACUTE AND CBRONIC EFFECTS ON FISS EXPOSED CONTINUCUSLY AND INTERMITTENTLY TO TOXICANTS. 4.180 AN EVALUATION OF STRIPED BASS X WHITE BASS HYBRIDS AND STRIPED HASS & WHITE PERCH HYBRIDS. 2.018, 6.070* EACTERIAL SURVIVAL AND RECOVERY MECHANISMS: SIGNIFICANCE IN MARINE ENVIRONMENT. 4.188 EICLCGICAL FEASIBILITY OF INTENSIEIED OYSTER CULTUFE 4.178, 5.040*, 6.074* CULTURE OF PACIFIC SALMCN. 1.087, 6.076* ECOLOGICAL STUDIES WIIB RED SWAMP CHAWEISH AND WBITE RIVER CHAWEISH. I.042, 4.092*, 6.043* EEFECTS OF INCREASED FINE SEDIMENT ON INCUEATION AND EMERGENCE OF CHINCOL SALECN AND STEELHEAD TEOUT. 4.071 ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS AFFECTING SURVIVAL OF TBERMALIY-INJURED EACTERIA EOUND ON FISBERY PECDUCTS. 9.008 EVALUATION OF JUVENILE SALNCN AND STEELBEAD DENSITY AS FELATED TO DENSITY OF SPAWNERS AND ERY RELEASE. 1.030, 6.035* FRESEWATER EOCD ANIMALS. 2.025, 5.051*, 6.090*, 6.099 GENETIC STUDIES OF ABEENATHY CREEK CHINOCK SALMON. 2.020 HISTOFATBOLOGIC AND BISTOCHERICAL INDICES CF SUBLETHAL PESTICIDE TOXICATION IN EISB. 3.086, 4.189* INSECTS ATTRACTED BY LIGHT AS A SOURCE OF EOOD FOR CATFISE, 5,005 INTENSIVE CULTURE OF THE WALLEYE (PERCIDAE: STIZOSTEDION VITREON). 5.038, 6.067* INTRODUCTION OF WALLEYE AND NORLUNGE EINGBELINGS INTO A LAKE DOMINATED BY PREY SPECIES. 1.074 LABORATORY CULTURE FOR RESEARCH PURPCSES OF ESTUARINE AND MARINE LOBSTERS, CRAHS AND SHEINFS. 1.048, 5.024* MANAGEMENT AND CULTURE OF NOLLUSCAN SPECIES. 6.086 MOLLUSCAN FATCBERY TECHNOLOGY. 6.075 PCPULATION DYNAMICS OF LARGEMOUTE AND SNALLWOUTH BASS IN 16 NEW YORK LAKES. 1.075 SWIMBLADDER INFLATION IN LARVAE OF FBYSOCILISTCUS FISHES. 1.007 THE IMPACT OF POWER PEAKING ON EGG INCUBATION OF FALL CHINCOK SALMON. 4.072 WILD VERSUS BATCBERY TECUT. 1.026, 4.058* SUSCEPTIBILITY CELL CULTURE STUDIES ON CELL LINES DEVELOPED FROM TISSUES OF AQUATIC ANIMAL. 3.051 CHEMICAL CONTROL OF NOSQUITOES OF NUISANCE AND BEALTE INFORTANCE. 4.133 PBYSIOLOGICAL STUDIES OF AQUATIC AND DITCH BANK WEEDS IN THE PACIEIC NORTHWEST. 3.101 SUSFENDED-SEDIMENTS EFFECTS CF SEDIMENTS ON BIOLOGICAL SYSTEMS. 4.126 THE ROLE OF SILTS AND CLAYS IN THE NUTHITICN OF ZCOPLANETON. I. 041 SUSPENDED-SOLIDS ENVIRONMENTAL GILL DISEASE IN RAINEOW TROUT. 3.045 SUSTAINED-VIELDS DEVELOPMENT OF MAXIMUM SUSTAINED VIELD IN KANSAS FARM PONDS. 6.041 THE IMPACT OF THE 200 MILE ECONOMIC ZONE ON RURAL NEW ENGLAND COASTAL COMMUNITIES. 10.017 SWIN-BLADDER SWIMELADDER INFLATION IN LARVAE OF FEYSOCILISTCUS FISEES. 1.007 SWINNING NEURAL CONTROL OF SWIMMING IN CRAYFISHES. 1.001 SWINE DEVELOFMENT OF AN INTEGRATED SYSTEM FCF TCTAL UTILIZATION OF SWINE WASTE. 6.001 UTILIZATION OF AQUATIC PLANTS FOR WASTE TREATMENT AND ANIMAL FEEDS. 1.043, 5.023* SYMPATRY BABITAT SELECTION AND SPECIES INTERACTIONS OF JUVENILE TROUT IN FLATBEAD RIVER TELEUTARIES. 1.027. 4.064* SYNPTONS INFECTIOUS FANCREATIC NECROSIS IN ATLANTIC SALMON. 3.057 SYSTEMATICS ECOLOGY AND SYSTEMATICS OF AQUATIC INSECTS. 4.177 GENETICS OF NATURAL FISE POPULATIONS. 1.037, 2.009* MORPHOLOGICAL, ULTRASTRUCTURAL, AND BIOCBENICAL CHARACTEBIZATION OF NANOPLANETON EFON CEESAFEAKE BAY. 1.056, 4.108*

TAXCNCNY AND MOSPBOLOGY OF NEMATODES. 3.027 TAXONONY, BIOLOGY, AND ECOLOGICAL RELATIONSHIPS OF AQUATIC INSECTS. 4.120 VISUAL PIGNENT CHANGES DURING THE LIFE CYCLE OF THE AMERICAN EEL, ANGUILLA ECSTRATA. I.077 WATER QUALITY STUDIES: COMPARATIVE ECOLOGY AND SYSTEMATICS CE SELECTED AQUATIC INSECTS. 4.043 SYSTEMS-ANALYSIS ANALYSIS AND NODELING LAKE MICHIGAN FISH POPULATION. 1.015, 4.032* ECONOMIC DESCRIPTION OF THE NEW JERSEY COMMERCIAL FISBING INDUSTRY. 10.025 ECONOMICS OF SALMONID AQUACULTURE IN NEW ENGLAND. 6.082, 10.038± NARKET POTENTIAL AND CURRENT MARKETING PROCEDURES AND PRACTICES OF THE CATELSH FOR FOCE INCUSTRY. 10.021 NATBEMATICAL MODEL OF OYSTER POPULATION IN THE CLESAPEAKE BAY. 1.053, 6.051* RESEARCE IN SYSTEMS ECOLOGY. 4.141 SYSTEMS-DESIGN DEVELOPMENT CE FISE PROTECTIVE SYSTEMS FOR WATER INTAKES. 4.022 WATER QUALITY MAINTENANCE IN CLOSED CYCLE FISH CULTURE SYSTEMS. 6.052 TADPOLES CEVELCPMENT OF METBODS FCE MASS PRODUCTION AND MANAGEMENT OF EULLFROGS. 2.013, 4.093* TANKS FRESHWATEL ECOD ANIMALS. 2.012, 6.045* SHRIMP MATURATICN, REPRODUCTION, DEVELORMENT, NUTRITION, INTENSIVE-EXTENSIVE CULTURE AND NARICULTURE. 5.052, 6.092* TASTE-PANELS CAGE CULTURE CE TILAPIA IN THE VIRGIN ISLANDS. 6.058, 9.039* TASTE-TESTING POST-BARVEST BANDLING AND PROCESSING OF NACROBRACEIUN FRAWNS. 7.003. 8.012*. 9.011* TAX-POLICIES EFFECTS OF THE TAX REFORM ACT CE 1976 ON NEW ENGLAND VESSEL OWNERS AND CREW. 10.041 TAX-REFORM EFFECTS OF THE TAX REFORM ACT CE 1976 ON NEW ENGLAND VESSEL OWNERS AND CREW. 10.041 TAXATION EFFECTS OF THE TAX REFORM ACT OF 1976 ON NEW ENGLAND VESSEL OWNERS AND CREW. 10.041 TAIRS THE IMPACT OF THE 200 MILE ECCNCMIC ZCNE CN RURAL NEW ENGLAND CCASTAL CONMUNITIES. 10.017 TAIONONY A NULTI-INSTITUTIONAL APPRCACE TO THE IDENTIFICATION OF BIVALVE LARVAE. 1.067 ANIMAL BREEDING AND GENETICS OF FISE. 2.002 EIOLOGICAL AGENTS FCR CONTECL OF EYDRILLA, A SUBMFESED AQUATIC WEED. 3.023 Comparative study op the flexibacter-cytofeaga GROUP BACTERIA. 4.104 ECOLOGY AND TAXONOMY OF TWO MAJCE OFDERS OF AQUATIC INSECTS, EPEENEROPTERA AND TEICEOFTERA, IN VA. 4.212 GENETICS OF NATURAL FISE POPULATIONS. 1.037, 2.009* MORFEOLOGICAL, ULTRASTRUCTURAL, AND HICCBENICAL CEARACTERIZATION OF NANOPLANETON EFON CHESAPEARE EAY. 1.056, 4.108≭ NORPHOLOGY AND TAXONOMY OF NEWATCHES. 1.021 PRODUCTION OF IDENTIFICATION CIRCULARS ON THE LARVAE OF COLORADO FISBES. 1.014 STUDIES OF BELATIONSBIPS BETWEEN MABINE AND TERRESTRIAL EACTERIA. 1.008 TAXCNCMY AND MORPHOLOGY OF NEMATODES. 3.027 TAXONOMY, BICLOGY, AND ECOLCGICAL RELATIONSBIPS OF AQUATIC INSECTS. 4.120 TECHNOLOGY FCONOMICS OF THE COMMERCIAL FISH INDUSTRY, 10.044 TRLEMETRY ADULT FADDLEFISE MOVEMENT IN POCL 13, UPPER MISSISSIPPI LIVER. 1.034 EFFECTS OF ADDITIONAL FEARING FEOM A FOURTE GENERATOR AT DWORSBAR DAW IN CATCBABILITY, FTC ..

4.062 FISB MCVEMENT IN POCL 9, UFPER MISSISSIFPI RIVER. 1.035

IMPACT OF EROSION SILT AND SEDIMENTATION ON FISH REPRODUCTION AND GROWTE. 4.130 6.014* NOVEMENTS OF SONIC-TAGGED FISHES IN BELATION TO WATER CUALITY IN LOWER ATCEAFALAYA RIVER HASIN. 1.049. 4.097# TEMEPECS INSECTICIDES AND THEIR FORMULATIONS. 4.131 3.035 TEMPERATURE A COMPARISON OF THE ACCUMULATION RATES OF P AESOREED BY THE VITAL ORGANS OF FISH. 4.156, 4.107* 5.039* ACTIVITY REVIEWS OF THE NOETHEEN BOCK CRAP IN RELATION TO ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL FACTORS. 1.057, 4.109* ADAPTATICN FACTORS AND CONTROL OF ACUATIC WEEDS. 3.093, 4.204* AGE AND GROWTH OF FISH; A FIELD AND LABORATORY AFFROACE. 1.068 ANALYSIS AND NODELING LAKE MICHIGAN FISH FOFULATION. 1.015, 4.032* AQUATIC RESOURCES OF SILVER CREEK AT THE NATURE CONSERVANCY SITE. 4.075 HEHAVICE ECCLOGY AND RETTEMICITY IN THE RCCK CRAES, CANCEE IRRORATUS AND CANCER BOREALIS, PHASE II. 1.058, 5.028* HEEAVIOR, FCOLOGY AND REVTEWICITY IN THE CONMON TENOPBARYNGODON-IDELLA BECK CEARS 1.059, 4.110* BIOLOGY ANE CONTFOL OF AQUATIC ANIMAL DISEASES. TEREBROSPIRA-CHATTONI 3.054 CEEMICAL CONTROL OF MOSQUITOES OF NUISANCE AND **BEALTE INFORTANCE. 4.133** TESTS CLOSED CYCLE FISE CULTURE WATER FILTRATION USING BIOLOGICAL SYSTEMS. 4.105, 6.053* CONTROL OF WHIRLING DISEASE OF SALMONIDS. 3.063 DEVELOPMENT OF METHODS FCR MASS PRODUCTION AND MANAGEMENT OF HULLFRCGS. 2.013, 4.093* CHAINS. 4.145 TETRABYMENA-PYRIFORMIS DISEASE MANAGEMENT IN CATFISE AQUACULTURE. 3.097 DISEASE MANAGEMENT IN CULTURED CATFISE. 3.096 DISEASES OF AQUACULTURE SPECIES. 3.044 EARLY LIFE HISTORY ECCLOGY AND GROWTH OF THE RIVER SERIMF MACROBRACHIUM OBIONE IN LOUISIANA. 1.046 TEXTURE ECOLOGICAL STUDIES WITE RED SWAMP CRAWFISE AND WHITE RIVER CRAWFISH. 1.042, 4.092*, 6.043* ECOLOGY OF FISHES AND LINNCLOGY OF UFPER GREAT LAKES AND TRIEUTARIES IN SELATION TO 8.033 ENVIRONMENTAL IMFACTS. 1.060, 4.115* EFFECTS OF AN ALTERED TEMPERATURE REGIME AND CHEMICAL CONTAMINANTS ON THE AQUATIC ECCSYSTEM. 3.062, 4.127* EFFECTS OF ANTINYCIN ON STREAM INSECTS. 3.102. THATING 4.222* EFFECTS OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONTAMINANTS ON GEORGIA FARM FOND FISEES. 4.051, 6.025* EFFECTS CF LOGGING ON ARIZONA TROUT AND TEEIR BABITAT IN THE WHITE MOUNTAINS OF ARIZONA. 4.005 8.042* EFFECTS OF WATER QUALITY PARAMETERS CN FARM POND THERAPY VEGETATION AND THEIR INTERACTIONS. 4.176 EFFECTS ON SELECTED ORGANISMS OF WATER PASSING TERCUGE THE CEDAR BAYOU GENERATING STATION. 3.031 4.210. 6.097* ENVIRONMENTAL GILL DISEASE IN RAINBOW TROUT. 3.045 ENVIRONMENTAL REQUIREMENTS OF POTENTIAL AQUACULTURE FISE SPECIES. 4.027 ENZYMATIC CONTROL OF QUALITY FACTORS IN NAVINE FOODS. 8.026 FACTORS AFFECTING THE FUNCTIONAL PROPERTIES AND QUALITY OF PROCESSED MUSCLE FOODS. 9.021 FEASIBILITY OF CAGED FISE CULTURE IN NORTE CENTRAL OKLAHOMA FARM FONDS. 4.173, 6.073*, 10.035* FISH PHYSICLCGY IN RESPONSE TO WATER QUALITY AND CREMISTRY. 4.211 BELMINTE FARASITES OF VERTEERATES IN NORTH CARCLINA. 3.078 INSTREAM FLOW REQUIREMENTS OF CALFORNIA FISHES. ECOLOGY. 4.160 1.013, 4.029* LIMITS ON FRODUCTION OF ARCTIC CEIRONOMIDAE: A PART OF PROJECT A. L. P. S.. 4.167 LIMNOLOGICAL FARAMETERS. 4.066 TREPROREGULATION METHODS OF MODIFIED-ATMOSPHERE PRESERVATION OF REFRIGEFATED FRESS FISE. 7.016, 8.048* TERESBOLD NICROBIAL DISEASES AND INNUNE RESPONSE OF CATELSE. 3.098 4.103 MCDE OF ACTION AND INFLUENCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL TIDELANDS FACTORS ON THE TOXICITY OF SEVERAL AQUATIC EERBICIDES. 3.100, 4.218* WOLLUSCAN FATCEERY TECHNOLOGY. 6.075 NITROGEN FIXATION AND ITS EFFECT ON EUTECPHICATION: IN-POINT AND NON-POINT SOURCE PONDS. 4.157

347

NUTRITICNAL ASPECTS OF AQUACULTURE SYSTEMS. 5.007, CSMCREGULATORY RESPONSES OF DESERT FUPFISH: A STUDY MODEL OF PHYSIOLOGICAL ADAPTATION TO ENVISCINENT: 1.003, 4.010* PHYSICLCGY AND MANAGEMENT OF AQUATIC WEEDS INTERFERING WITH THE USE OF WATER RESCURCES. PHYSIOLOGY OF CHESAPEAKE EAY PHYTOPLANETCN. 1.054, POSSIELE CAUSES OF BLUEGILL LEPOWIS MARCCOBIRUS DEFCEMITIES. 1.080, 4.161* SNOKING OF SEAFOOD AND POULTRY. 8.008, 9.007* STEELHEAD HATCHERY AS AFFECTED BY RELATIVELY HIGH TENFERATURE WATER. 4.068 SWINELADDER INFLATION IN LARVAE OF PHYSOCILISTOUS **FISEES. 1.007** TEMPERATURE EFFECTS ON XENOPIOTIC ELIMINATION BY **FISEES. 4.179** TRANSMISSION AND IMMUNOLOGY OF CHANNEL CATFISH VIRUS DISEASE CF CULTURED CATFISE. 3.002 WEIGHT GAIN CF FISH. 5.018

WINTER FEEDING OF CHANNEL CATFISH IN MISSISSIPPI. 4.125, 6.057*

POLYCULTURAL PRODUCTION OF FISE IN FARM PCNDS. 4.007. 6.010*

A COMPARATIVE STUDY OF THE FINE STRUCTURE OF APOSTONE CILIATES. 3.076

DEVELOPMENT OF RAPID SEAFOOD QUALITY TESTS FOR COMMERCIAL AND REGULATORY USE: 9.015 NODELS TO ASSESS BIONAGNIFICATION POTENTIAL OF PERSISTENT TOXIC SUBSTANCES IN AQUATIC FCOD

IMMUNOLOGIC RESPONSE OF CHANNEL CATFISH. ICTALURUS PUNCTATUS. TO BETEROLOGOUS ANTIPROTOZOAN IMMUNIZATION. 1.022

ENZYMATIC CONTROL OF QUALITY FACTORS IN MARINE FCODS. 8.026

NEW FOOD PECDUCTS FROM UNDERUIILIZED FISH SPECIES.

POTENTIAL OF DIFFERENT UNDEBUTILIZED SPECIES OF

FISE FOE CONVENIENCE FOODS. 8.035, 9.026* THE EFFECT OF FROZEN STORAGE ON TEXTURAL QUALITY CF LCHSTEE NEAT. 8.023

POST-HARVEST HANDLING AND PROCESSING OF MACROBRACHIUM PRAWNS. 7.003, 8.012*, 9.011* The treatment and use of waste products and CEENICALS IN THE DIET OF AQUATIC ANIMALS. 5.046.

FRESEWATER FOOD ANIMALS. 3.043 INMUNOLOGIC FACTORS IN CANDIDIASIS IN DCLPHINS.

TEERMAL-POLLUTION

ANALYSIS AND MODELING LAKE MICHIGAN FISH POPULATION. 1.015, 4.032*

EFFECTS OF AN ALTERED TEMPERATURE REGINE AND CHENICAL CONTAMINANTS ON THE AQUATIC ECOSYSTEM. 3.062, 4.127*

EFFECTS OF THE BRUNSWICK NUCLEAR POWER-PLANTS CN THE PRODUCTIVITY OF SPARTINA ALTERNIFLCRA. 4.159

EFFECTS ON SELECTED ORGANISMS OF WATER PASSING THROUGE THE CEDAR BAYOU GENERATING STATICN. 4.210, 6.097* FISH HARRIER SYSTEMS FOR POWER STATIONS. 4.196

IMPACTS OF TEE CONSTRUCTION AND OPERATION CF COASTAL NUCLEAR POWER PLANTS ON ESTUARINE

THERMAL-STRATIFICATION

WATER QUALITY ENHANCEMENT OF LAKES BY MECHANICAL PUNPING. 4.088, 6.039*

EXPERIMENTAL FISE ECOLOGY. 1.098, 4.207*

FLACK FLY DAMAGE TERESHCLDS, BICLOGY AND CONTROL.

TEE PEYSIOLOGICAL EASIS FOR WANAGING TIDAL WARSE

VEGETATICN. 4.197 VALUE OF TIDAL MARSBES IN RELATION TO ESTUABINE ECOSYSTEN, AND EVALUATION OF FRESEWATER WETLANDS. 4.044

TIDES ACTIVITY REYTEMS OF THE NORTHERN ROCK CRAB IN RELATION TO ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL FACTORS. 1.057, 4.109* BEHAVIOR ECCLOGY AND REYTEMICITY IN THE RCCK CRABS, CANCER IRRORATUS AND CANCER BOREALIS, PHASE II. 1.058, 5.028* BEBAVIOR, ECOLOGY AND REYTEMICITY IN THE COMMON ROCK CRAB. 1.059, 4.110* ECOLOGY CF SALT MARSEES IN BELATICN TO ESTUARIES AND ENERGY PLOW. 1.016, 4.041*, 5.011* TILAPIA AQUACULTURE. 6.007 CAGE CULTURE OF TILAPIA IN THE VIRGIN ISLANDS. 6.028, 5.039* CULTURE AND MANAGEMENT OF SELECTED GAME FISHES. 3.092, 4.203*, 6.091* CULTURE SYSTEMS FOR YEAR-ROUND MARKETING CF FISE FROM WATERSHED PONDS. 6.008, 7.001* DEVELOPMENT OF INEXPENSIVE AQUACULTURE SYSTEMS FOR BOME (SUESISTENCE-TYPE) CULTURE IN N. C.. 6.069 FRESHWATER FOOD ANIMALS. 2.001, 2.023, 2.027, 4.198, 5.045*, 5.048*, 5.084*, 6.079*, 6.096*; 6.099 INTENSIVE COLTURE OF TILAPIA IN GEOTRERMAL WATERS IN THE SAN LUIS VALLEY, COLCRADO. 2.005, 6.017* SWIMBLADDER INFLATION IN LARVAE OF PHYSOCILISTOUS FISBES. 1.007 TILAPIA-AUREA CAGE CULTUFE OF FISH IN THE VIRGIN ISLANDS UTILIZING TERTIARY TREATED WATER. 6.100 LIPID METAPOLISM IN AQUATIC ORGANISMS. 5.053, 9.038* TILLAGE CRAWFISH CULTURE STUDIES IN SMALL FONDS: BURROWING, PCLYCULTURE AND NATURAL POND FLOODING. 1.050, 4.099*, 6.049* TIMBER-HARVESTING EFFECTS CF WATERSHED PRACTICES CN STREAM BABITAT AND FISH POPULATIONS. 4.181 TIPES THE EFFECTS OF ARTIFICIAL STRUCTURES OF GAME FISH IN A BOFROW PIT PCND. 1.085. 4.168* TISSUE-ANALYSIS FACTORS AFFECTING FISH PCPULATIONS OF IOWA STREAMS. 1.039, 4.086* SCURCES AND MANAGEMENT OF NORTALITY IN EARLY LIFE STAGES CF FISHES. 4.146 THE QUALITY OF SEAFOCD CONSUMED BY THE PECPLE OF SOUTH CAECLINA. 4.199, 9.034* TISSUE-CULTUNE BIOSYNTHESIS OF STERCLS IN THE OYSTER AND CCRRELATION OF STEROL COMPOSITION TO CYSTER PRODUCTIVITY. 1.055, 5.027* TISSUB-TESTS GENETICS OF NATURAL FISB POPULATIONS. I.037, 2.009* TISSURS DETECTION OF PISCINE BRYTBRCCYTIC NECROSIS VIEUS IN OREGON FISHES. 3.083 SOURCES AND MANAGEMENT OF MORTALITY IN EARLY LIFE STAGES CF FISHES. 4.146 TRACE MINE MAL INBALANCE IN BATCBERY FISB. 5.015 TOLEBANCE ACUTE AND CERONIC EFFECTS ON FISH EXPOSED CONTINUCUSLY AND INTERMITTENTLY TO TOXICANIS. 4.180 EFFECTS OF ACID PRECIPITATION ON ADIBONDACE LAKES. 4.153 THE INPACT OF POWER PEAKING ON EGG INCUEATION OF FALL CHINOOK SALMON. 4.072 TOIAPBENE RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN PESTICIDES AND GEORGIA FARM POND ECCSYSTEMS. 4.050 TCXICITY AND ECOLOGICAL EFFECTS OF SELECTED INSECTICIDES AND EERBICIDES. 4.122 TOXIC-METABOLITES DETECTION AND IDENTIFICATION OF MYCOTOXINS AND ALGAL TOXING IN FOODS AND FEEDS. 5.023 TOILC-SUBSTANCES MODELS TC ASSESS BIOMAGNIFICATION POTENTIAL OF PERSISTENT TOXIC SUBSTANCES IN AQUATIC FOOD CHAINS. 4.145 TOXICANTS ACUTE AND CHRONIC EFFECTS ON FISH EXPOSED CONTINUCUSLY AND INTERMITTENTLY TO TOXICANTS. 4.180 FATE AND EFFECTS OF TOXICANTS IN AGRICULTURAL AND ENVIRONMENTAL FOOD CHAINS. 4.154

BISTOPATHOLOGIC AND BISTOCHEMICAL INDICES OF SUBLETBAL PESTICIDE TOXICATION IN FISH. 3.086, 4.189*

MICROCOSM MCDELING OF THE RESPONSE OF PERSISTENT AQUATIC COMMUNITIES TO A TOXICANT. 4.182 NODELS TO ASSESS BIOMAGNIFICATION POTENTIAL OF

PERSISTENT TOXIC SUBSTANCES IN AQUATIC FCOD CHAINS. 4.149

TEMPERATURE EFFECTS ON XENOBIOTIC ELIMINATION BY FISHES. 4.179 THE USE OF FISH HEHAVIOR IN TOXICITY TESTING.

1.032, 4.079* TOXICITY AND BCOLOGICAL EPFECTS OF SELECTED

INSECTICIDES AND BEREICIDES. 4.122

TOXICOLOGICAL AND BCOLCGICAL EFPECTS OF TOXICANTS. 4.186 TOXICITY

A COMPARISON OF THE ACCUMULATION RATES OF P ABSORBED BY THE VITAL CRGANS OF FISE. 4.156, 5.039*

CIGUATERA FISE PCISONING IN THE U.S. V.I.: BIOCHENICAL, PHYSOLOGICAL, AND MICROHICLCGICAL STUDIES. 1.099, 9.040*

COMPARATIVE PHYSIOLOGICAL STUDIES OF VERTEBRATE EYES. 1.062

CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.108

CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS BASED ON ALLELOPATBIC CBARACTERISTICS IN SPIKEBUSE (ELECCBARIS SPP.). 3.007

DETERMINATION OF EFFICACY OF CERTAIN ANTI-PARASITIC DRUGS POR FISHES. 3.041

DETERMINATION OF WATER QUALITY OFITEFIA FOR THE SUPPORT OF AQUATIC LIFE IN TWO SMALL BANSAS STREAMS. 4.091

DISEASE MANAGEMENT IN CULTURED CATFISE. 3.096 ECONCH. INPOSTANT DISEASES OF BIVALVE SHELLPISH, INCLUDING THEIR PREVENTION, CONTROL AND ERADICATION. 4.139

EFFECTS OF ANTINYCIN ON STREAM INSECTS. 3.102, 4.222*

ESTUARINE INVERTEBRATE BEBAVIOR; AN INDEX OF SUBACUTE TOXICITY CP AQUATIC BERBICIDES. 1.079, 3.075*. 8.040*

FISE EARDIER SYSTEMS FCR POWER STATIONS. 4.196 FISH GENETICS. 2.019, 4.183* BISTOPATHOLOGIC AND HISTOCHEMICAL INDICES CF

SUBLETHAL PESTICIDE TOXICATION IN FISH. 3.086. 4.189*

INSECTICIDES AND THEIR FORMULATIONS. 4.131 MIREX FEEDING STUDY IN CHANNEL CATFISE (ICTALURUS PUNCTATUS). 4.123, 9.022*

RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN PESTICIDES AND GECEGIA FARM POND ECOSYSTEMS. 4.050

SOURCES AND MANAGEMENT CP NORTALITY IN EARLY LIFE STAGES OF FISBES. 4.146 SUSCEPTIBILITY TO I. WILTIFILLIS OF CHANNEL CATFISE

EXPOSED TO SUBLETBAL CONCENTRATIONS OF COPPER 90. 3.080

- THE BEBAVIOR OF FISH AS RELATED TO ARTIFICIAL CCVER. 1.092
- THE FATE AND EFFECTS OF CBEMICALS IN AQUATIC ECOSYSTEMS. 4.111 THE USE OF FISH REBAVIOR IN TOXICITY TESTING.

I.032, 4.079*

TOXICITY AND ECOLOGICAL EFFECTS OF SELECTED INSECTICIDES AND BERBICIDES. 4.122

TOXICITY OF AERONCNAS BYDROPHILIA EXOTOXINS IN CHANNEL CATFISH. 3.052

TCXICCLCGICAL AND ECOLOGICAL EFFECTS OF TCXICANTS. 4.186

UTILIZATION OF AQUATIC PLANTS FOR WASTE TREATMENT AND ANIMAL FEEDS. 1.043, 5.023* TORICOLOGY

A COMPARISON OF THE ACCUMULATION RATES OF P AESORBED BY THE VITAL OFCANS OF FISE. 4.156, 5.039*

ACUTE AND CBRONIC EFFECTS ON FISH EXPOSED CONTINUOUSLY AND INTERMITTENTLY TO TOXICANTS. 4.180

BICACCUMULATION AND IMPACT OF BIGHWAY-GENERATED BEAVY METALS ON STREAM FISHERY RESOURCES IN VIRGINIA. 4.214

DISPOSITION OF CHEMICAL POLLUTANTS IN ACUATIC ORGANISMS. 4.017

EPFECTS OF POLLUTANTS ON GILLS OF FRESHWATER FISHES. 3.060, 4.119*

ESTUARINE INVERTEBRATE BEHAVIOR; AN INDEX OF SUBACUTE TOXICITY OF AQUATIC BERBICIDES. 1.079, 3.075*, 8.040*

MIREX FEEDING STUDY IN CHANNEL CATFISH (ICTALURUS PUNCTATUS). 4.123, 9.022* CFERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF THE REPATOMA LABORATCRY. 5.043 TEMPERATURE EFFECTS ON RENOBIOTIC ELIMINATION BY PISHES. 4.179 THE FATE AND EFFECTS OF CHEMICALS IN AQUATIC ECCSYSTEMS. 4.111 TOXICITY AND ECOLOGICAL EFFECTS OF SELECTED INSECTICIDES AND REPRICIDES. 4.122 TOXICOLOGICAL AND ECCLOGICAL EFFECTS OF TOXICANTS. 4.186 TOXIGENESIS METECDS OF MCDIFIED-ATMOSPHERE PRESERVATION OF REFRIGEFATED FRESE FISE. 7.016, 8.048* TOTINS CELL CULTURE STUDIES ON CELL LINES DEVELOFED FROM TISSUES OF AQUATIC ANIMAL. 3.051 CIGUATERA FISH PCISONING IN THE U.S. V.I.: HIOCHEMICAL, PHYSCLOGICAL, AND MICRCHIOLOGICAL STUDIES. 1.059, 9.040* DETECTION AND IDENTIFICATION OF MYCOTOXINS AND ALGAL TOXINS IN FCCDS AND FEEDS. 9.023 DIETARY PACTORS IN WHITE FISH MEAL RESPONSIBLE FOR CATARACT FORMATION IN TROUT. 3.018. 5.009*. 9.005* IMPROVING THE ASSURANCE CF QUALITY AND SAFETY OF CONSUMEE'S FOOD. 9.031 LUNINOUS HACTERIA AS INDICATORS OF SHELLFISH CONTAMINATION BY PATHCGENIC VIBLICS. 4.144 POISCNOUS DINOFLAGELLATES AND SHELLFISH POISONING. 9.042 TOXICITY OF AEROMONAS HYDROPHILIA EXOTOXINS IN CEANNEL CATFISH. 3.052 TRACE-BLEMENTS DIETARY FACTORS IN WHITE FISH MEAL RESPONSIBLE FOR CATARACT FORMATICS IN TROUT, 3.018, 5.009*. 9.005* MANAGEMENT OF AQUATIC PLANTS FOR SPORT FISH PRODUCTION IN FONDS. 5.002 TRACE-MINERALS TRACE MINEFAL IMHALANCE IN BATCHERY FISH. 5.019 TRACE-NUTRIBUTS FUE ANIMAL STUDIES (MINK). 8.028 TRANSFORMATICN EFPECTS CF FOLLUTANTS ON GILLS OF FRESHWATER FISHES. 3.060, 4.119* INMUNOLOGIC FACTORS IN CANDIDIASIS IN DCLPHINS. 3-031 TEMPERATURE EFFECTS ON MENOBIOTIC ELIMINATION EV **PISHES.** 4.179 TRANSLOCATION PHYSIOLOGICAL STUDIES OF ACUATIC AND DITCH HANK WEEDS IN THE PACIFIC NORTHWEST. 3.101 UPTAKE AND MOVEMENT OF BERBICIDES AND NUTFIENTS IN AQUATIC WEED SPECIES. 3.019 TRANSMITTERS BEHAVIOR OF IOWA SPORT FISHES. 1.036, 4.083* TRANSPLANTING DEVELOPMENT AND EVALUATION OF OYSTER HARVESTING EQUIPMENT AND MARICULTURE SYSTEMS. 6.084, 7.013* EQUIPMENT FOR MECHANIZATION OF PRODUCTION OF OYSTERS AND OTHER SHELLFISH. 6.083, 7.012* TRANSPORT DIAGNOSIS CE EISE DISEASES, 3,082 EFFECTS OF POLLUTANTS ON GILLS OF FRESHWATER FISHES. 3.060, 4.119* FACTORS AFFECTING FISH POPULATIONS OF ICWA STREAMS. 1.039, 4.086* MECHANICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.022 ROLE OF SHORT DISTANCE MIGRATICN OF THE HOMING OF SALMON AND STEELHEAD. 1.028 THE PHYSIOLOGICAL HASIS FOR MANAGING TIDAL MARSH VEGETATION. 4.197 TRANSPORTATION HIOLOGICAL STUDIES WITH THE MOSQUITOFISH, GAMBUSIA AFFINIS, UNDER CULTURAL SITUATIONS. 6.012 DEVELOPMENT OF IMPROVED HANDLING, SHIPPING/STORAGE AND MARKETING PRACTICES FCk FISHERY FRCDUCTS. 7.010, £.039*, 9.030* PEAWN AQUACULTURAL ENGINEERING. 6.027, 7.002* TRAPPING ADULT FALL CHINOCK TRAPPING FOR SNAKE RIVER EGG BANK PRCGRAM. 6.033 TRAPS ENVIRONMENTAL EFFECTS ON PRODUCTIVITY OF CRAYFISH IN POND HABITATS, PHASE I, II. 5.025, 6.048*,

7.007*

FRESHWATER FOOD ANIMALS. 2.012, 6.045* MECHANIZATION OF CRAWFISH HARVESTING AND PRCDUCTICN. 6.042, 7.005* TRAVEL AN ECONOMIC EVALUATION OF ICE FISHING IN MAINE. 10.014 TRAVLERS COSTS AND RETURNS IN THE CTIER TRAWL FLEET ON LCNG ISLAND, NEW YORK. 10.029 TRAVLING FISHERIES EQUIPMENT AND GEAR DEVELOPMENT. 7.011 TRAYS OYSTER PRODUCTION EQUIPMENT DEVELOPMENT. 4.052, 6.028* TREATMENT DISEASES OF AQUACULTURE SPECIES. 3.044 TREMATODA DETERMINATION OF EFFICACY OF CELIAIN ANTI-PARASITIC DRUGS FOR FISHES. 3.041 FRESHWATER FCCD ANIMALS. 3.043 TRENDS ACCCUNTING FOR VARIABILITY IN PRODUCTIVITY OF OCEAN FISH IN YIELD ESTIMATION. 4.185 ANALYSIS CF DOMESTIC FOCD DEMAND AND CONSUMPTION HEBAVIOR. 10.008 COEUR D'ALENE HIVER FISHERIES INVESTIGATIONS. 4.061 TRIAZINES ALGAL METABOLISM IN THE PRESENCE OF HERHICIDES. 4.170 TRICELOROFON FRESHWATER FCOD ANIMALS. 3.043 TRICEOPTERA ECOLOGY AND TAXONONY OF TWO MAJCE OFDERS OF AQUATIC INSECTS, BPHENEROPTERA AND TRICHCPTERA, IN VA. 4.212 EFFECTS OF ANTINYCIN ON STREAM INSECTS. 3.102. 4.222* TAXONONY, HIOLOGY, AND ECOLOGICAL RELATIONSHIPS OF AQUATIC INSECTS. 4.120 TRIFLURALIN TOXICITY AND ECOLOGICAL EFFECTS OF SELECTED INSECTICIDES AND HERHICICES. 4.122 TROPHIC-PELATIONSHIPS EVALUATION OF THE ECOLOGICAL REQUIREMENTS OF RESERVOIR FISH SPECIES. 1.101 FACTORS INFLUENCING TROUT PRODUCTION IN VIRGINIA STREAMS. 1.102, 4.217* TROPICAL-FISH A STUDY OF THE MICROHIOLOGICAL FLORA OF CENAMENTAL FISHES, 3.040 TROPICAL-REGIONS APPLIED LIMNCLOGY AND FISHERIES STUDIES IN TROFICAL LAKES. 4.021 VARIABILITY IN PHYSICAL REGIME OF LAKE TITICACA: RELATION TC BIOLOGICAL FLOCESSES. 4.014 TROPONYOSIN COMPARATIVE STUDIES OF LORSTER AND CHICKEN MUSCLE. 9.027 TRCPOBIN COMPARATIVE STUDIES OF LOBSTER AND CHICKEN MUSCLE. 9.027 TROUT ACUTE AND CHRONIC EFFECTS ON FISH EXPOSED CONTINUOUSLY AND INTERMITTENTLY TO TOXICANTS. 4.180 ANIMAL HREEDING AND GENETICS OF FISH. 2.002 AQUACULTURE FOR RESCURCE ENHANCEMENT. 1.103, 5.056* AQUATIC RESCURCES OF SILVER CREEK AT THE NATURE CONSERVANCY SITE. 4.075 HIOCHEMICAL GENETICS AND CYTOGENETICS OF TROUT. 2.021, 2.022 EREEDING EXPERIMENTS WITH SALMCNIDS. 2.024 CHRONIC TURHIDITY AND STRESS IN JUVENILE CCHC SALECN AND STEELHEAD TRCUT. 1.088, 4.184* COEUF D'ALENE BIVER FISHERIES INVESTIGATIONS. 4.061 COMPARATIVE PHYSIOLOGICAL STUDIES OF VERTERBATE EYES. 1.062 CULTURE SYSTEMS FOR YEAR-ROUND MARKETING OF FISH FROM WATERSHED PONDS. 6.008, 7.001* DIETARY FACTORS IN WHITE FISH MEAL RESPONSIBLE FOR CATABACT FORMATION IN TECUT. 3.018, 5.009*, S.005≠ DISEASES OF AQUATIC ANIMALS. 3.013 ECCLOGY AND MANAGEMENT OF STREAM AND STREAM FISHES. 1.061

EFFECT OF DIET QUALITY ON ACUATIC ANIMALS. 5.047 EFFECTS OF ACID PRECIPITATION ON ADIFONDACE LARES. 4.153

EFFECTS OF CHRONIC TURBIDITY ON SOCIAL CONTEST IN JUVENILE STEELHEAD TROUT AND COLC SALMON. 4.059 EFFECTS OF LOGGING ON ABIZONA TROUT AND THEIR HABITAT IN THE WHITE MOUNTAINS OF ARIZONA. 4.005 EFFECTS OF STAMPEDE RESERVOIR ON UPSTREAM FISE POPULATIONS OF SAGEBEN CLEEK. 1.010, 4.019± EFFECTS OF WATERSHED PRACTICES ON STREAM BABITAT AND FISE POPULATIONS. 4.181 ENVIRONMENTAL GILL DISEASE IN RAINEOW TROUT. 3.045 EVALUATION OF JUVENILE SALNON AND STEELBEAD DENSITY AS RELATED TO DENSITY OF SPANNERS AND FRY RFLEASE. 1.030, 6.035* EVALUATION OF METRODS FOR INCREASING NATIVE CUTTEROAT STOCKS IN NORTHERN IDAEC. 4.074, 6.034* EVALUATION OF VARIOUS BATCHERY REARING CONDITIONS ON SEAWARD MICRATICN OF STEELBEAD TECUT. 1.025 FACTCES INFLUENCING TROUT PRODUCTION IN VIRGINIA STREAWS. 1.102, 4.217* FRESHWATER FOOD ANIMALS. 3.035, 3.043, 5.014*, 6.024* BABITAT SELECTICN AND SPECIES INTEBACTIONS OF JUVENILE TROUT IN FLATBEAD RIVER THIRTARIES. 1.027, 4.064* JUVENILE EMIGRATION OF LABONTAN CUTTEROAT TROUT IN THE TRUCKEE-PYRAMID LAKE SYSTEM. 4.055 METAEHASE CHECNOSOME BANDING CP FRESEWATER FISHES. 2.026 NATURAL PRODUCTION OF THOUT IN INFERTILE NOUNTAIN STREAMS OF PENNSYLVANIA. 4.192 OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF THE BEPATCHA LAHOFATCRY. 5.043 PERFORMANCE OF SALMONIDS: SMCLTIFICATION, STRESS AND FITNESS. 1.085, 6.077* SOUTH DAKCTA FARM AND RANCE FISHERIES. 5.049, 6.088* SURVEY OF DISEASES OF CULTURED FRESHWATER EISEES OF CALIFORNIA. 3.009 THE EFEECT OF STREAM CUBRENT UPON FISH EFHAVIOR, GROWTE AND MICRCEASITAT SELECTION. 1.011 THE THEATMENT AND USE OF WASTE PRODUCTS AND CHEMICALS IN THE DIET OF ACUATIC ANIMALS. 5.046, 8.042* TRACE MINEFAL IMBALANCE IN BATCHERY FISE. 5.019 UTILIZATION OF PROTEIN INGREDIENTS IN FISE BATICNS. 5.044 WEIGHT GAIN OF FISH. 5.018 WILD VERSUS BATCHERY TROUT. 1.026, 4.058# TUHERS BCRNCNAL REGULATION OF GROWTH, DEVELOPMENT AND VEGETATIVE PROPAGATION OF SUBMERSED ACUATIC WEEDS. 3.020 TURA BISTAMINE/BONEYCOMHING IN SKIPJACK TUNA. 8.011. 9.010* PIGMENTS OF MEAT AND FISH PRODUCTS (CFF-COLORS IN TUNA). 8.002, 9.003* TURBIDITY CBRONIC TUFBIDITY AND STRESS IN JUVENILH CCBO SALMON AND STEELBEAD TRCUT. 1.088, 4.184* EFFECTS OF CBRONIC TUBBIDITY ON SOCIAL CONTEST IN JUVENILE STEELHEAD TROUT AND COBO SALMON. 4.059 IMPACT CF ESCSICN SILT AND SEDIMENTATION ON FISE REPRODUCTION AND GROWTH. 4.130 LINNCLOGY OF FARM PONDS. 1.082, 6.071* THE STATUS, AHUNCANCE, AND YIELD OF THE STRIPED HASS IN THE RCANCEE RIVER, NORTH CARCLINA. 1.081. 4.164* TYPANINHS BIOLOGICALLY ACTIVE ANINES IN FCCD. 8.009 TYPESINE **BIOLOGICALLY ACTIVE AMINES IN FOOD. 8.009** ULTRA-SONIC-TAGGING BEHAVIOR OF IOWA SPORT FISHES. 1.036, 4.083* ULTRA-SOULCS BEHAVIOR OF IOWA SPORT FISHES. 1.036, 4.083* ULTRASTRUCTURE MORPHOLOGICAL. ULTRASTRUCTURAL. AND EIOCHEMICAL CHARACTERIZATION OF NANOPLANETON FROM CHESAPEAKE BAX. 1.056. 4.108* UNDERUTILIZED-SPECIES EXTENDING THE SHELF-LIFE OF FISH. 8.036, 9.028*

- FUR ANIMAL STUDIES (MINK). 8.028
- NEW FCOD P&CDUCTS FRCM UNDERUTILIZED FISH SPECIES. 8.033

POTENTIAL CE DIFFERENT UNDERUTILIZED SPECIES OE FISE FOR CONVENIENCE FOODS. 8.035, 9.026* SENSORY & NUTRITIONAL EVALUATION OF SEAFCODS. 8.043, 9.032* UTILIZATION OF LATENT MARINE RESOURCES AND BY-PRODUCTS WASTE. 8.041 UPTAKH RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN PESTICIDES AND GECEGIA FARM POND ECCSYSTEMS. 4.050 UPTAKE AND NOVEMENT OF BEBEICIDES AND NUTHIENTS IN AQUATIC WEED SEECIES. 3.019 UREA ALGAL NETABOLISM IN THE PRESENCE OF HERHICIDES. 4.170 UREDO-EICEBORNIAH EIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF WEEDS WITH PATHOGENS. 3.103 URINE EVALUATION OF BELATIVE PROTEIN PERFORMANCE IN PELLETED FISE RATIONS USING PHYSICLOGICAL INDICES. 5.055 TEMPERATURE EFFECTS ON XENOPIOTIC ELIMINATION BY FISEES. 4.179 URONYCES-PONTEDRIAE EIGLOGICAL CONTROL OF WEEDS WITH PATHOGENS. 3.103 USAGH-HVALUATION CHARACTERISTICS, PREFERENCES, AND ATTITUDES CONCERNING PRIVATE FEE-FISHING OPERATIONS. 10.048 ECONOMIC ANALYSIS OF ALTERNATIVE VIRGINIA COASTAL WETLANDS POLICY. 10.047 UTILIZATION BANDLING AND PECCESSING OF FISH AND SHELLFISH. 8.018, 9.016* IMPROVING SUBFACE WATER CONDITIONS TEROUGE CONTROL AND DISFCSAL OF AQUATIC VEGETATION. 7.015 NEW METHOD OF APPRAISING NUTRITICNAL STANDARDS. 10.020 CPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF THE BEPATCMA LABCRATCEY. 5.043 RECOVERY AND CONVERSION OF CATEISE PROCESSING WASTE INTO VALUABLE FEED SUPPLEMENTS. 8.020 VACCINATION FRESHWATER FOCD ANIMALS. 3.003 VACCINES DEVELOPMENT OF A SUBUNIT VACCINE TO THE SALMONID VIRUS, IENV, BY NOLECULAR CLCNING. 3.085 FRESHWATER ECCD ANIWALS. 3.043 BOST-PARASITE RELATIONSBIPS BETWEEN THE CHANNEL CATFISH AND ICHTHYOPHTHIRIUS MULTIHILIIS. 3.050 INFECTIOUS DISEASES OF SALWCNID FISHES. 3.081 MICROBIAL DISEASES AND IMMUNE BESPONSE OF CATFISE. 3.098 NUTRITION MANAGEMENT AND DISHASE OF MARINE ANIMALS. 3.055, 5.026*, 6.050* VALIDATION EFFECTS OF REDUCED STBEAM DISCHARGE ON EISE AND AQUATIC MACECINVERTHEBATE POPULATIONS. 4.073 VALUE-DETERMINATION AN ECONOMIC HVALUATION OF ICE FISHING IN WAINE. 10.014 VALUES AN ECCNCHIC EVALUATION OF ICE FISHING IN MAINE. 10.014 PISBERIES AND WILDLIFE ECONOMICS RESEARCE IN THE GREAT LAKES. 10.019 VARIABILITY ACCOUNTING FOR VARIABILITY IN PRODUCTIVITY CE CCEAN FISE IN YIELD ESTIMATION. 4.185 VARIABILITY IN PHYSICAL EBGINE OF LAKE TITICACA: RELATION TO BIOLOGICAL PROCESSES. 4.014 VARIATION FISE POPULATION AND PRODUCTION IN PCND AND LAKE IMPCUNDMENTS. 4.208, 6.095* VEGETABLES ANALYSIS CF DEMESTIC FOED DEMAND AND CONSUMPTION BEHAVIOR. 9.041, 10.008 THE USE OF SELECTED MARINE MATERIALS AND BY-PRODUCTS FCR CERTAIN HORTICULTURAL CROPS. 8.044 VEGETATION CULTURE AND MANAGEMENT OF SELECTED GAME FISHES. 3.092, 4.203*, 6.091*

EFFECTS OF THE BRUNSWICK NUCLEAR POWER-PLANTS ON THE PRODUCTIVITY OF SPARTINA ALTERNIFICEA. 4.159

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT AND WEED MANAGEMENT STRATEGIES UTILIZING GRASS CARP (CTENCPHARYNGODCN IDELLA). 3.030, 4.049* MANURE-ENRICHED FOCD WEBS IN MARINE POND ECOSYSTEMS. 5.017 NEWATODE PARASITES OF FRESHWATER FISH: BIOLOGY AND EFFECTS. 3.014 THE ECOLOGICAL IMPACT OF INTEGRATED CHEMICAL AND HICLOGICAL AQUATIC WEED CONTROL. 4.048, 6.021# THE PHYSICLOGICAL HASIS FOR MANAGING TIDAL MARSE VEGETATION. 4.197 VEGETATIVE-PEOPAGATION THE PHYSIOLOGY AND CONTROL OF VEGETATIVE SEPRODUCTION IN BYDFILLA (BYDRILLA VEFTICILLATA ROYLE). 3.024 VERTICAL-INTEGRATION ECONOMICS OF SALMONID AQUACULTURE IN NEW ENGLAND. 6.082, 10.038± VERTICAL-TRANSMISSION DETECTION OF PISCINE ERYTHROCYTIC NECROSIS VIRUS IN CREGON FISHES. 3.083 TRANSMISSION AND IMMUNOLOGY OF CHANNEL CATFISH VIEUS DISEASE OF CULTURED CATFISE. 3.002 VESICLES USE OF NUTRIENT CONTAINING LIFID VESICLES AS A FOOD SCURCE FOR SHELLFISH OF PACIFIC NORTHWEST. 5.042 VIABLI ITY CRYOGENIC FRESERVATION OF SPEEN FROM WARMWATER FISEES. 2.016 FRESEWATER FOOD ANIMALS. 2.007. 6.023= VIERIO BACTEBIAL SURVIVAL AND RECOVERY MECHANISMS: SIGNIFICANCE IN MARINE ENVIRONMENT. 4.188 VIERIO-ANGUIILARUM SALMON CULTURE - DEVELOPMENT OF NUTRITIONAL AND DISEASE CONTROL PROGRAMS. 3.064. 5.037# VIBRIO-BARVETI LUMINOUS BACTERIA AS INDICATORS CF SBELLFISE CONTAMINATION HY PATHOGENIC VIERIOS. 4.144 VIBRIO-PARAHAENOLYTICUS ANTIBACTERIAL MECHANICS IN CLANS; CONTRIBUTION OF **THE WATER STREAM. 1.072, 4.145*** ENVIRONMENTAL PACTORS AFFECTING SUBVIVAL CF THERMALLY-INJURED FACTERIA FOUND ON FISHERY PECDUCTS. 9.008 LUNINOUS BACTERIA AS INDICATORS OF SBELLFISH CONTAMINATION BY PATHOGENIC VIBRIOS. 4.144 MICROBIOLOGICAL ASPECTS TO SHELLFISH SANITATION AND QUALITY. 7.014, 8.047*, 9.037* VIBRIOSIS SALMON CULTURE - DEVELOPMENT OF NUTRITICNAL AND DISPASE CONTROL PROGRAMS. 3.064, 5.037* VIECLOGY DISEASES OF AQUATIC ANIMALS. 3.072 INVEST. OF THE RCLE OF LARVAL AMERICAN CYSTERS (CRASSOSTREA VIRGINICA) AS CARRIERS OF OVSTER DISEASE. 3.071 MICROBIOLOGICAL ASSESSMENT OF RIVER WATER CCNTABINATION. 3.084, 4.187* VIRULENCE. A SURVEY FCE PATHOGEN FOR AQUATIC WEEDS IN CALIFORNIA FOR USE IN BIOLOGICAL CONTROL. 3.008, 4.009* MICROBIOLOGICAL ASSESSMENT OF RIVER WATER CONTAMINATION. 3.084, 4.187* Serologic and vibuulence studies of Aeromonas EYDROPEILA. 3.042 VIRUS-CHARACTERIZATION INVEST. OF THE RCLE OF LABVAL AMERICAN OYSTERS (CRASSOSTREA VIRGINICA) AS CALLIELS OF CYSTER DISEASE. 3.071 PISCINE ERTHROCYTIC NECROSIS IN THE ATLANTIC COD. 3.056 VIEUS-DETECTION DETECTION OF PISCINE EFYTBROCYTIC NECECSIS VIEUS IN OBEGON FISHES. 3.083, 3.083 INPECTICUS PANCHEATIC NECROSIS IN ATLANTIC SALMON. 3.057 SEROLOGICAL METHODS FOR DETECTION AND IDENTIFICATION OF VIEUS DISEASES OF FISE. 3.058 TRANSMISSION OF CULTURED CATFISE VIRUS: DETECTION BY IMMUNCLOGICAL METHODS. 3.001 VIRUS-DISEASES-ANIMALS CELL CULTURE STUDIES ON CELL LINES DEVELOPED FROM TISSUES OF AQUATIC ANIMAL. 3.051 DETECTION OF PISCINE ERVIHEOCYTIC NECROSIS VIRUS IN OREGON FISHES. 3.083

DEVELOPMENT OF A SUBUNIT VACCINE TO THE SALMONID VIRUS, IBNV, EY MCLECULAR CLCNING. 3.085 FRESHWATER FCCD ANIMALS. 3.003 INFECTICUS PANCHEATIC NECECSIS IN ATLANTIC SALMON. 3.057 MICECHICLCGICAL ASSESSMENT OF SIVER WATER CCNTAMINATION. 3.084, 4.187 PATHOLOGY AND PATHOGENESIS OF CATFISE DISEASES. 3.099 PISCINE ENTERCOTIC NECROSIS IN THE ATLANTIC COD. 3.056 SEROLCGICAL METHODS FCF DETECTION AND IDENTIFICATION OF VIRUS DISEASES OF FISH. 3.058 TRANSMISSION AND IMMUNOLOGY OF CHANNEL CATFISH VIRUS DISEASE OF CULTURED CATFISH. 3.002 TRANSMISSION OF CULTURED CATFISE VIEUS: DETECTION BY IMMUNCLOGICAL METECDS. 3.001 VIRUS-IDENTIFICATION INFECTIOUS FANCREATIC NECECSIS IN ATLANTIC SALMON. 3.057 SERCLOGICAL METHODS FOR DETECTION AND **IDENTIFICATION OF VIRUS DISEASES OF FISH. 3.058** VIEUS-ISOLATION INVEST. OF THE RCLE OF LARVAL AMEDICAN OYSTERS (CRASSOSTREA VIRGINICA) AS CANFIERS OF CYSTER DISEASE. 3.071 PISCINE ENTERCOTIC NECESIS IN THE ATLANTIC COD. 3.056 VIEUS-TRANSMISSION DETECTION OF PISCINE ERYTERCOYTIC NECROSIS VIRUS IN OREGON FISHES. 3.083 VIRUSES A STUDY OF THE MICROBIOLOGICAL FLORA OF CENANENTAL FISEES. 3.040 CELL CULTURE STUDIES ON CELL LINES DEVELCEED FRCM TISSUES OF AQUATIC ANIMAL. 3.051 DETECTION OF PISCINE ERVIERCOVIC NECROSIS VIEUS IN OREGON PISHES. 3.083 DETECTION TRANSMISSION AND FATBOGENESIS OF DISEASE ORGANISMS IN AQUACULTURE SPECIES. 3.087 DEVELOPMENT OF A SUBUNIT VACCINE TO THE SALMONID VIRUS, IBNV, BY NOLECULAE CLCNING. 3.085 DISEASES OF AQUATIC ANIMALS. 3.013, 3.072 FRESHWATER FOOD ANIMALS. 3.003 INFECTICUS DISEASES OF SALMCNID FISBES. 3.081 INFECTIOUS PANCREATIC NECROSIS IN ATLANTIC SALMON. 3.057 INVEST. OF THE RCLE OF LARVAL AMERICAN OYSTERS (CRASSOSTREA VIRGINICA) AS CARRIERS OF CYSTER DISEASE. 3.071 MICROBIAL AND PARASITIC DISEASES OF SERINF AND FISB. 3.095 MICECHIOLOGICAL ASSESSMENT OF RIVER WATER CCNTANINATION. 3.084, 4.187* PATHCLOGY AND PATHOGENESIS OF CATHISE DISEASES. 3.099 PISCINE ENTEROCYTIC NECROSIS IN THE ATLANTIC COD. 3.056 SEROLOGICAL NETBODS FOR DETECTION AND IDENTIFICATION OF VIEUS DISEASES OF FISH. 3.058 SURVEY OF DISEASES OF CULTURED FRESHWATER FISHES OF CALIFORNIA. 3.009 TRANSMISSION AND IMMUNOLCGY OF CHANNEL CATFISH VIEUS DISEASE CF CULTURED CATFISE. 3.002 TRANSMISSION OF CULTURED CATFISE VIEUS: DETECTION HY INNUNOLOGICAL METECDS. 3.001 VISCERA PRELIMINARY COSTS OF CATFISE PRCCESSING WASTE UTILIZATICN. 8.021. 10.013# VISION VISUAL PIGMENT CHANGES DURING THE LIFE CYCLE OF THE AMERICAN EEL, ANGUILLA ECSTRATA. 1.077 VITAMINS EREEDING, PRODUCTION, NUTRITICN AND MARKETING OF CHANNEL CATPISE. 2.010, 5.020*, 6.040* CRUSTACEAN NUTRITION AND FEED DEVELOPMENT. 5.006 FRESHWATES FOOD ANIMALS. 5.013, 6.022* NUTRITICN CF SALMCNID FISBES. 5.041 **VITELLOGENESIS** MOLECULAR ENDCCLINOLCGY OF MOLTING AND REPRODUCTION IN CRUSTACEANS. 1.005 VOLATILE-COMPOUNDS DEVELOPMENT OF RAPID SEAFOOD QUALITY TESTS FOR COMMERCIAL AND REGULATORY USE. 9.015

IDENTIFICATION OF OFF-FLAVCE COMPOUND SOURCES FOR FISE AND WATER PROM THE UPPEE WISCONSIN FIVER. 9.043

VOLATILE-FATIX-ACIDS

ECOLOGY OF ANAERCBIC BETEROTECPBIC BACTERIA. 4.118

WALLBYR RIOLOGICAL DATA FOR MANAGEMENT OF WALLEYES AND OTHER FISHES. 6.037 ECOLOGY AND MANAGEMENT OF WALLEYE. 1.073, 6.065* INTENSIVE CULTURE OF THE WALLEYE (PEECIDAE: STIZOSTEDION VITREUN). 5.038, 6.067 TASHING RECLAMATION OF PROTEIN AND FLAVOS MATERIALS FROM CLAN WASH WATER. 8.034 WATER QUALITY CHANGES IN OYSTER PROCESSING. 8.025 VASTE AFATEMENT OF EUTROPHICATION RESULTING FROM INTENSIVE ANIMAL PRODUCTION. 4.195, 6.080* EVALUATION OF PESTICIDE LEVELS IN CATFISH PROCESSING WASTES. 9.001 CPERATING FARAMETERS OF LAGOONS FCR DISPCSAL OF UTILIZATION OF DAIRY FARM AND PROCESSING PLANT WASTE. 8.014 PRELIMINARY COSTS OF CATFISE PROCESSING WASTE UTILIZATION. 8.021, 10.013* RECOVERY AND UTILIZATION OF SHRIMP AND CRAWFISH PROCESSING BYPRODUCTS. 8.017 RECYCLING WASTES INTO ANIMAL FEEDS. 5.029, 8.029* SPOKANE BIVER LIMNCLCGY. 4.067 USE OF CLAN BY-PRODUCTS. 8.037 UTILIZATION OF AQUATIC PLANTS FOR WASTE TREATMENT AND ANIMAL FEEDS. 1.043, 5.023* WASTE-DISPOSAL OPERATING FARAMETERS OF LAGCONS FOR DISFOSAL OF UTILIZATION OF DAIRY FARM AND PROCESSING PLANT WASTE . 8.014 PRELIMINARY COSTS OF CATFISH PROCESSING WASTE UTILIZATION. 8.021, 10.013* USE OF CLAM EY-PRODUCTS. 8.037 UTILIZATION OF AQUATIC PLANTS FOR WASTE IFEATMENT AND ANIMAL FEEDS. 1.043, 5.023* WASTE-HEAT CULTURE OF AQUATIC ORGANISMS AND EVALUATION OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS AT STEAM ELECTRIC PLANTS. 6.093 WASTE-MANAGEMENT OPERATING FARAMETERS OF LAGCONS FOR DISFOSAL OF UTILIZATION OF DAIRY FARM AND PROCESSING PLANT WASTE. 8.014 WASTE-MILK CPERATING FARAMETERS OF LAGCONS FOR DISPOSAL OF UTILIZATION OF DAIRY FARM AND PECCESSING PLANT WASTE. 8.014 WASTE-REDUCT ICN PRELIMINARY COSTS OF CATFISH PROCESSING WASTE UTILIZATION. 8.021, 10.013* WASTE-RENOVAL AFATEMENT OF EUTROPHICATION RESULTING FROM INTENSIVE ANIMAL PRODUCTION. 4.125, 6.080* EFFECTS OF AQUATIC PLANT COMMUNITIES ON WATER QUALITY IN HYPEREUTROPHIC AQUATIC ENVIRONMENT. 4.117 WATEF QUALITY MAINTENANCE IN CLOSED CYCLE FISH CULTURE SYSTEMS. 6.052 WASTE-TREATMENT AEATEMENT OF EUTROPHICATION RESULTING FROM INTENSIVE ANIMAL PRODUCTION. 4.195, 6.080* BIOLOGICAL, TECHNICAL, AND ECCNOMIC STUDIES CF CULTUBEE AQUATIC RESOURCES. 4.151, 6.066* EVALUATION OF A CLOSED SYSTEM FOR THE CULTURE OF FISH, SFELLFISH AND AQUATIC PLANTS. 5.001, 6.002* INVESTIGATION OF "IN SITU" SOLIDS DIGESTION FOR SALMONIE PRODUCTION. 6.081 UTILIZATION OF AQUATIC PLANTS FOR WASTE TREATMENT AND ANIMAL FEEDS. 1.043, 5.023* UTILIZATION OF KRAFT WILL EFFLUENT FCR FISH PEODUCTION. 5.012, 6.020* WASTE-UTILIZATION **BIOCONVERSION OF CHITIN WASTES. 8.004** DEVELOPMENT OF AN INTEGRATED SYSTEM FOR TOTAL UTILIZATION OF SWINE WASTE. 6.001 EVALUATION OF A CLOSED SYSTEM FOR THE CULTURE OF FISH, SHELLFISH AND AQUATIC PLANTS. 5.001, 6.002* EVALUATION OF PESTICIDE LEVELS IN CATFISH PROCESSING WASTES. 9.001

FORMULATION OF FOODS FOR AQUATIC ANIMALS OF ECONOMIC IMPORTANCE. 5.022, 8.016* FRESHWATER FOOD ANIMALS. 5.013, 6.006, 6.022*, 8.001*, 9.002*, 10.002* OPERATING PARAMETERS OF LAGCONS FOR DISPOSAL OR UTILIZATION OF DAIRY PARM AND PRCCESSING PLANT WASTE. 8.014 PRELIMINARY COSTS OF CATFISH PRCCESSING WASTE UTILIZATION. 8.021, 10.013* RECLANATION OF PEOTEIN AND FLAVOF WATERIALS FROM CLAN WASE WATER. 8.034 RECOVERY AND CONVERSION OF CATFISH PROCESSING WASTE INTO VALUABLE FEED SUPPLEMENTS. 8.020 RECOVERY AND UTILIZATION OF SERIMP AND CRAWFISE PRCCESSING HYFRODUCTS. 8.017 RECYCLING WASTES INTO ANIMAL FEEDS. 5.029, 8.029* STUDY OF MANURE-ENRICHED FOOD WEES IN MARINE PCND ECOSYSTEMS. 5.016 THE TREATMENT AND USE OF WASTE FEODUCTS AND CHEMICALS IN THE DIET OF AQUATIC ANIMALS. 5.046, 8.042* USE OF CLAN BY-PRODUCTS. 8.037 UTILIZATION OF AQUATIC PLANTS FCF WASTE TREATMENT AND ANIMAL FEEDS. 1.043, 5.023* UTILIZATION OF LATENT MARINE RESCURCES AND BY-PRODUCTS WASTE. 8.041 WASTE-WATER ABATEMENT OF EUTROPHICATION RESULTING FECM INTENSIVE ANIMAL PRODUCTION. 4.195, 6.080≠ AQUACULTURAL WASTEWATER MANAGEMENT AND UTILIZATION IN HAWAII. 4.053, 6.029* BIOLCGICAL, TECHNICAL, AND ECCNCMIC STUDIES CF CULTURED AQUATIC RESCURCES. 4.151, 6.066* ECONOM. IMPORTANT DISEASES OF BIVALVE SHELLPISH, INCLUDING THEIR PREVENTION, CONTECL AND ERADICATION. 4.139 EFFECTS OF AQUATIC PLANT COMMUNITIES ON WATER QUALITY IN HYPEREUTRCPHIC AQUATIC ENVIRONMENT. 4.117 INVESTIGATION OF "IN SITU" SOLIDS DIGESTICN FCR SALMONID PEODUCTION. 6.081 MANUFACTURE OF PROCESSED MEAT AND/OR FISH PRODUCTS WITH UNDERUTILIZED MARINE SPECIES. 8.027 RECLAMATION OF PECTEIN AND FLAVOR MATERIALS FROM CLAN WASE WATER. 8.034 RECOVERY AND UTILIZATION OF SHEIMP AND CRAWFISH PROCESSING HYPRODUCTS. 8.017 RECYCLING WASTES INTO ANIMAL FEEDS. 5.029, 8.029* THE EFFECTS OF ISRIGATION WASTE WATER ON AQUATIC PLANTS IN THE SACRAMENTO RIVER. 4.025 UTILIZATION OF AQUATIC PLANTS FOR WASTE TREATMENT AND ANIMAL FEEDS. 1.043, 5.023* UTILIZATION OF KEAFT MILL EFFLUENT ECS FISE FLODUCTION. 5.012, 6.020* WATER ABATEMENT OF EUTEOPHICATION RESULTING FECH INTERSIVE ANIMAL PRODUCTION. 4.195, 6.080* ACCUMULATION AND DEGRADATION OF SOME BEBICIDES FY ALGAE. 4.171, 4.172 ANALYSIS AND MODELING LAKE MICHIGAN FISH POPULATION. 1.015, 4.032* AQUATIC INSECTS AS INDICATORS OF WATER CUALITY AND PRODUCTIVITY: A COORDINATED STUDY. 4.129 FIOFILTER PEEFCEMANCE FACTORS. 4.069 BIOLOGICAL AND RECREATIONAL ASFECTS CF WATER LEVEL MANAGEMENT OF CLEAR LAKE, ICWA. 4.081 BIOLOGICAL INDICATORS OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY IN CALIFORNIA LAKES AND STREAMS. 4.016 CAGE CULTURE OF FISH IN THE VIRGIN ISLANDS UTILIZING TERTIARY TREATED WATER. 6.100 CLOSED CYCLE FISE CULTURE WATER FILTRATICN USING BICLCGICAL SYSTEMS. 4.105, 6.053* CONTROL AND ERADICATION OF ACUATIC WEEDS IN LAKES AND IMPOUNDED WATERS. 3.107 CONTRCL CF AQUATIC PLANT GECWIH. 3.032 CULTURE OF AQUATIC ORGANISMS AND EVALUATION OF ENVISONMENTAL CONDITIONS AT STEAM ELECTRIC PLANTS. 6.093 ECOLOGICAL RELATIONSHIPS OF PESTICIDES, RADIONUCLIDES & NUTRIENTS WITE ORGANISMS IN AQUATIC COMMUNIT. 4.113 ECOLCGICAL STUDIES WITH RED SWAMP CRAWFISH AND WHITE RIVER CRAWFISH. 1.042, 4.092*, 6.043* ECOLOGICAL STUDY OF LAKE WALES, FLOKIDA AFTEE INTECDUCTION OF WHITE AMUR (CTENOPHARYNGODON IDELLA). 4.047

EFFECTS OF AQUATIC PLANT COMMUNITIES ON DATES QUALITY IN HYPEBEUIRCPHIC AQUATIC ENVIRONMENT. 4.117
EFFECTS OF LIVESTOCK GRAZING PRACTICES ON THE WATER QUALITY OF STREAMS. 4.223 ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS OF SALMONELLOSIS. 3.049 EVALUATION OF VARICUS BATCBERY REARING CONDITIONS CN SEAWARD MIGRATION CF STEELBEAD TROUT. 1.025 FISE PHYSICLOGY IN RESPONSE TO WATER QUALITY AND CHEMISTRY. 4.211 FISH PRODUCTION IN SOUTH DAKOTA FARM AND RANCH WATERS. 6.087 INPACT OF EROSION SILT AND SECTIMENTATICS ON FISH **REPRODUCTION AND GROWTH. 4.130** LIMNCLOGICAL BASIS FOR THE PECDUCTIVITY OF INLAND WATERS. 4.206 MICROBIOLOGICAL ASPECTS TO SBELLFISE SANITATION AND CUALITY. 7.014, 8.047*, 9.037* PRODUCTION OF MACRCBRACHIUM ROSENBERGII (GIANT MALAYSIAN PRAWN IN NEVADA). 6.060 Release of adsorbed Pesticides into water. 4.175 RESPONSE OF AQUATIC LIFE TO SALINITY, TEMPERATURE, DISSOLVED OXYGEN AND WATER FLCW. 4.024 THE BEHAVICE OF FISH AS RELATED TO ARTIFICIAL COVER. 1.092 THE EPFECIS OF AGRICULTURAL DRAINAGE OF NATURAL SYSTEMS - PHASE III. 4.036 TOXICOLOGICAL AND ECOLOGICAL EFFECTS OF TOXICANTS. 4.186 VALUE OF TIDAL MARSHES IN RELATION TO ESTUARINE ECOSYSTEM, AND EVALUATION CF FRESEWATER WETLANDS. $4 \star 0.044$ WATER-ANALYSIS ACUATIC INSECTS AS INDICATORS OF WATER QUALITY AND PRODUCTIVITY: A COORDINATED STUDY. 4.129 ECOLOGICAL STUDIES OF THE NAVARRC AND GARCIA ESTUARIES, WITH EMPHASIS ON THE FISHES. 4.028 ECOLOGICAL STUDY OF LAKE WALES, FICEIDA AFTER INTRODUCTION OF WHITE AMUR (CTENOPHARYNGODON IDELLA). 4.047 FISH WORBIDITY AND MORTALITY RELATED TO ENVIRONMENTAL CHANGES AND/OR INTENSIVE CULTURE NETHCDS. 4.193 NITROGEN FIXATION AND ITS EFPECT ON EUTROPHICATION: IN-POINT AND NON-FOINT SOURCE PONDS. 4.157 SURVEY OF LARVAL FISHES IN THE NEARSHORE GULP WATERS CF LOUISIANA. 1.047 WATER-BINDING FACTORS AFFECTING THE TEXTURE OF SEAFCODS. 7.009. 8.038*, 9.029* WATER-CEBNISTRY AQUATIC RESOURCES OF SILVER CREEK AT THE NATURE CONSERVANCY SITE. 4.075 BIOFILTER PERFORMANCE FACTORS. 4.069 ECOLOGY OF PISHES AND LINNOLCGY OF UPPER GREAT LAKES AND TRIBUTARIES IN RELATION TO ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS. 1.060, 4.115* EURASIAN WATERNILFOIL IN CURRITUCE SCUND: ITS CONTROL AND PCTENTIAL USE. 3.077, 4.165* PISH PHYSICLOGY IN RESPONSE TO WATER OUALITY AND CHEWISTEY. 4.211 IDENTIFICATION OF SUB-OPTIMAL ENVIRONMENTAL PARAMETERS AFFECTING AQUACULTURE. 3.050, 4.194* NUTRIENT INTERACTIONS AND CHANGES IN ALGAI QUALITY IN CAYUGA LAKE. 4.140 QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE STUDIES OF POLLUTION IN SELECTED PARM PONDS. 4.155 WATER QUALITY STUDY. 4.033 VATER-CONTANINATION MICROBIOLOGICAL ASSESSMENT OF RIVER WATER CCNTANINATION. 3.084, 4.187* VATER-FLOW DEVELOPMENT AND APPLICATION OF A METHODOLOGY FOR RECOMMENDING SALMONID EGG INCUEATION FLOWS. 4.070 DEVELOPMENT AND VALIDATION OF HARITAT-STANDING CROP FUNCTIONS FOR STREAM FISH AND THEIR FOODS. 4.065 DEVELOPMENT OF FISH FROTECTIVE SYSTEMS FOR WATER INTAKES. 4.022 EFFECTS CF ADDITIONAL PEAKING FRCM A FOURTH GENERATCE AT DWORSHAE DAN IN CATCHABILITY, ETC .. 4.062 EFFECTS OF LIVESTOCK GRAZING PRACTICES ON THE WATER QUALITY OF STREAMS. 4.223 EFFECTS CF REDUCED STREAM DISCHARGE ON FISH AND AQUATIC MACROINVERTEBRATE POPULATIONS. 4.073 RESPONSE OF AQUATIC LIFE TO SALINITY, TEMPERATURE, DISSOLVED OXYGEN AND WATER FLCW. 4.024 THE IMPACT OF POWER PEAKING ON EGG INCUBATION OF

FALL CHINOCK SALMON. 4.072

WATER-BARDNESS EACTERIAL KIDNEY DISEASE IN RAINECW TROUT: PATECGENESIS, INNUNITY, AND EFFECT OF WATER BARDNESS. 3.070 BIOFILTER PERFORMANCE FACTORS. 4.069 PCND FEETILIZATICN AND LIMING. 4.002, 5.003* PRELIMINARY STUDIES ON CRAWFISH AND FRESEWATER SHRIMP DISEASES. 1.096, 3.094* WATER-INTAKE DEVELOPMENT OF PISH PROTECTIVE SYSTEMS FOR WATER INTAKES. 4.022 WATER-LEVEL EIOLCGICAL AND RECREATIONAL ASPECTS OF WATER LEVEL NANAGEMENT OF CLEAR LAKE, IOWA. 4.081 FCOLOGY OF FUEPLE LOOSESTRIFE (LYTERUM SALICARIA). 3.073 ENVIRONMENTAL EFFECTS ON PRODUCTIVITY OF CRAYFISH IN FCND BABITATS, PBASE I, II. 5.025, 6.048*, 7.007* LIMNOLOGICAL PARAMETERS. 4.066 NATURAL MARSEES AS NUTRIENT SINKS FOR AGRICULTURAL **RUNOFF**. 4.089 WATER-MANAGEMENT ECOLOGY OF ANAERCHIC HETEROTECPHIC BACTHRIA. 4.118 EFFECTS OF AQUATIC PLANT CONMUNITIES ON WATER QUALITY IN HYPEREUTROPHIC AQUATIC ENVIRONMENT. 4.117 EFFECTS OF WATER QUALITY PARAMETERS ON FARM FOND VEGETATION AND THEIR INTERACTIONS. 4.176 MECHANIZATION OF CRAWFISH HARVESTING AND PECDUCTION. 6.042, 7.005* POND FERTILIZATION AND LINING. 4.002, 5.003* WATER-NOVEMENT THE EFFECTS OF AGEICULTURAL DRAINAGE OF NATURAL SYSTEMS - PEASE III. 4.036 WATER-POLLUTION ABATEMENT OF EUTFOPHICATION RESULTING FACE INTENSIVE ANIMAL PRODUCTION. 4.195, 6.080* ACCUMULATION AND DEGRADATION OF SOME BERBICIDES BY ALGAE. 4.171, 4.172, 4.174 ANTIBACTERIAL MECHANICS IN CLAMS; CONTRIBUTION OF THE WATER STREAM. 1.072, 4.145* BIOACCUMULATION AND IMPACT OF BIGBWAY-GENERATED BEAVY METALS ON STREAM FISHERY RESCURCES IN VIRGINIA. 4.214 BIOLOGICAL INDICATORS OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY IN CALIFORNIA LAKES AND STREAMS. 4.016 CHEMICAL CONTROL OF MOSCUITCES OF NUISANCE AND HEALTH IMPORTANCH. 4.133 COMPARATIVE ECOLOGY OF SELECTED SPECIES OF AQUATIC INSECTS, PHASE IV. 4.039 CONTROL OF AQUATIC PLANT GREWTH. 3.032 DETERMINATION OF WATER QUALITY CRITERIA FOR THE SUPPORT OF AQUATIC LIFE IN TWO SMALL BANSAS STREAMS. 4.091 DISPOSITION OF CHEMICAL POLLUTANTS IN AQUATIC CRGANISMS. 4.017 ECONON. IMPORTANT DISEASES OF BIVALVE SEELLFISH, INCLUDING THEIR PREVENTION, CONTROL AND ERADICATION. 4.139 EPFECTS OF AN ALTERED TEMPERATURE REGIME AND CHEMICAL CONTAMINANTS ON THE AQUATIC ECCSYSTEM. 3.062, 4.127* EFFECTS OF ANTINYCIN CN STREAM INSECTS. 3.102, 4.222* EFFECTS OF DISSOLVED CHENICALS ON AQUATIC LIFE. 4.078 EFFECTS CF BERBICIDES ON CHESAPEAKE BAY PHYTCPLANETCN. 4.106 EFFECTS CF LAND USE PRACTICES ON STREAM PIOTA. 4.085 EPFECTS OF LIVESTOCK GRAZING PRACTICES ON THE WATER QUALITY OF STREAMS. 4.223 EFFECTS OF LOGGING CN ARIZCNA TROUT AND THEIR BABITAT IN THE WHITH MCUNTAINS OF ARIZCNA. 4.005 EFFECTS OF POLLUTANTS ON GILLS OF FRESHWATER FISHES. 3.060, 4.119* EVALUATION OF EFFICACY, CFOP RESEARD CROP AND WATER RETENTION OF PCTENTIAL AQUATIC EEFBICIDES. 3.021. 4.035* FACTORS AFFECTING FISE PCPULATIONS IN IOWA WATERS. 1.040, 4.087*, 6.038* FACTORS AFFECTING FISH POPULATIONS OF IOWA STREAMS. 1.035, 4.086* FATE AND EFFECTS OF ATRAZINE IN SALT WARSE

ECOSYSTEMS. 4.001 FISH MCREIDITY AND MOFTALITY RELATED TO ENVIRONMENTAL CHANGES AND/CF INTENSIVE CULTURE NETHCOS. 4.193

IMPACTS OF THE CONSTRUCTION AND OPERATION OF CCASTAL NUCLEAR POWER PLANTS ON ESTDARINE ECOLOGY . 4.160 NATURAL WAISHES AS NUTRIENT SINKS FOR AGEICULTURAL EUNCFF. 4.089 PHYSIOLOGICAL STUDIES OF AQUATIC AND DITCE RANK WEEDS IN THE PACIFIC NORTRWEST. 3.101 QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE STUDIES OF FOLLUTION IN SELECTED FARM PONDS. 4.155 RELATIONSHIPS HETWEEN PESTICIDES AND GEORGIA FARM PCND ECCSYSTEMS. 4.050 RELEASE OF ADSCREED PESTICICES INTO WATER. 4.175 SALINITY, SEDUX POTENTIAL, & MICROEIAL TRANSFORMATIONS OF MERCDRY POLLUTANTS IN ESTUASINE SEDIMENTS. 4.132 SCURCES AND MANAGEMENT OF WORTALITY IN EARLY LIPE STAGES CF FISHES. 4.146 SPOKANE FIVER LIMNCLOGY. 4.067 STREAM AND IMPODNDMENT ECOLOGY. 4.003 THE HEHAVICF OF FISH AS RELATED TO ARTIFICIAL COVER. 1.092 THE FATE AND FEFECTS OF CREMICALS IN AQUATIC ECCSYSTEMS. 4.111 TOXICOLOGICAL AND ECCLOGICAL EFFECTS OF TOXICANTS. 4.186 DLTRASTRUCTDRAL CHANGES IN TELEOST GILLS: EFFECTS OF SUBTLE ALTERATIONS IN THE ENVIRONMENT. 3.053, 4.098≠ UTILIZATION OF AQUATIC PLANTS FOR WASTE TREATMENT AND ANIMAL FEEDS. 1.043, 5.023* WATER QUALITY ENHANCEMENT OF LAKES BY MECRANICAL PUMPING. 4.088, 6.039* ZCOGEOGRAPRY AND ECCLOGY OF FISHES IN PENNSYLVANIA. 1.093, 4.190≭ WATER-OUAL ITY AN EVALUATION OF ENDANGERED MCLLUSKS IN VIEGINIA. 1.100, 4.213* ANALYSIS AND MODELING LAKE MICRIGAN FISH POPULATION. 1.015, 4.032* AQDACOLTDRAL WASTEWATER MANAGEMENT AND UTILIZATION IN HAWAII. 4.053, 6.029* AQUACULTORE PATHCLCGY. 3.010 AQUATIC INSECTS AS INDICATORS OF WATER QUALITY AND PRODUCTIVITY: A COORDINATED STUDY. 4.129 AQUATIC RESOURCES OF SILVER CREEK AT THE NATORE CONSERVANCY SITE. 4.075 EACTERIAL KIDNEY DISEASE IN RAINROW TRODT: PATROGENESIS, INNUNITY, AND EFFECT OF WATER BARDNESS. 3.070 BIOACCUMDLATION AND INPACT OF HIGRWAY-GENERATED HEAVY METALS ON STREAM FISHERY RESCURCES IN VIRGINIA. 4.214 BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF AQDATIC WEEDS WITH COMPETITIVE SPECIES OF SPIKEBUSE (ELECCHARIS SPP.). 3.011 BIOLCGICAL INDICATORS OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY IN CALIFCRNIA LAKES AND STREAMS. 4.016 HIOLOGICAL, TECHNICAL, AND ECONOMIC STUDIES OF CULTUREE AQUATIC RESODRCES. 4.151, 6.066* BIOLOGY AND CONTROL OF AQDATIC VEGETATICN. 3.048 RFEEDING, FRODDCTION, NDTRITICN AND MARKETING CF CBANNEL CATFISH. 2.010, 5.020*, 6.040* CAGE CULTURE OF FISE IN TRE VIEGIN ISLANDS UTILIZING TERTIARY TREATED WATER. 6.100 CARRYING CAPACITY OF STREAMS FOR REARING SALMONIDS AS AFFECTED BY SEDIMENT & OTHER COMPONENTS. 1.024, 4.057* CHRONIC TURRIDITY AND STRESS IN JUVENILE COHO SALMON AND STEELHEAD TRODT. 1.088, 4.184* CLOSED CYCLE FISE CULTURE WATER FILTEATICN DSING HIOLOGICAL SYSTEMS. 4.105, 6.053* CULTDRE OF AQUATIC OFGANISMS AND EVALUATION OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS AT STEAM ELECTRIC PLANTS. 6.093 DETERMINATION OF WATER QUALITY CRITERIA FCR TRE SUPPORT OF AQUATIC LIFE IN TWC SMALL KANSAS STREAMS. 4.091 DEVELOPMENT CF METRODS FCR MASS PRODUCTION AND MANAGEMENT OF BULLFROGS. 2.013, 4.093* ECOLOGICAL STDDY OF CUTOFF BENDWAYS AND CXEOWS WITHIN THE TENNESSHE-TOMEIGHEE WATERWAY. 4.124 ECOLOGICAL STUDY OF LAKE WALES, FLORIDA AFTER INTRODUCTION OF WHITE AMUR (CTENOPBARYNGODON IDELLA). 4.047 ECOLOGY AND MANAGEMENT OF MISSOURI STREAM FISHES. 4.128 ECOLOGY OF PISHES AND LINNCLCGY OF UPPER GREAT LAKES AND TRIBUTARIES IN RELATION TO ENVIRCHMENTAL IMPACTS. 1.060, 4.115*

- ECONOM. IMPORTANT DISEASES OF RIVALVE SRELLFISR, INCLUDING THEIR PREVENTION, CONTECL AND EKADICATION. 4.139 EFFECT CF SEDIMENT CONTROL DAMS ON THE WATER QUALITY OF A PRAIRIE LAKE. 4.200 EFFECTS OF AQUATIC PLANT COMMONITIES ON WATER
- QUALITY IN HYPEREDIFCPHIC AQUATIC ENVIRONMENT. 4.117

EFFECTS OF CHRONIC TURBIDITY CN SOCIAL CONTEST IN JUVENILE STEELREAD TRCUT AND CORC SALMON. 4.059 EFFECTS OF DISSOLVED CHEMICALS ON ACTATIC LIFE.

- 4.078 EFFECTS OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS AND MANAGEMENT
- PRACTICES ON COMMERCIAL PRODUCTION OF CRAWFISH. 4.096, 6.047*

EPFECTS OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONTAMINANTS ON GEORGIA FARM POND FISRES. 4.051, 6.025*

- EFFECTS OF LAND USE PRACTICES ON STREAM BIOTA. 4.085
- EFFECTS OF LIVESTOCK GRAZING PRACTICES ON THE WATER QDALITY OF STREAMS. 4.223 EFFECTS OF WATER QUALITY PARAMETERS ON FARM FOND
- VEGETATION AND THEIR INTERACTIONS. 4.176
- EFFECTS OF WATERSRED PRACTICES CN STREAM RABITAT AND PISH POPULATIONS. 4.181
- EVALUATION OF A CLOSED SYSTEM FOR THE COLTURE OF PISH, SRELLFISH AND AQUATIC PLANTS. 5.001, 6.002*
- EVALUATION OF THE ECOLOGICAL REQUIREMENTS OF RESERVOIR PISE SPECIES. 1.101
- FISE PHYSIOLCGY IN RESPONSE TO WATER QUALITY AND CHEMISTRY. 4.211

FRESRWATER FCCD ANIMALS. 2.027, 3.039, 4.198,

- 5.014*, 5.048*, 5.054*, 6.004, 6.024*, 6.096* IDENTIFICATION OF OFF-FLAVCE COMPOUND SOURCES POP FISH AND WATER FROM THE UPPER WISCCNSIN RIVER. 9.043
- IMPACT OF ESCSION SILT AND SEDIMENTATION ON FISH **REPRODUCTION AND GROWTR. 4.130**
- INFACTS OF RESOURCE DEVELOFMENT AND EXPLORTATION ON NATURAL RESOURCES. 4.216
- INVESTIGATION OF "IN SITD" SOLIDS DIGESTION FOR SALMONID PRODUCTION. 6.081
- LINNCLOGICAL EVALUATION AND ZOOPLANETON DYNAMICS OF LAKE KOOCANUSA, NORTRWESTERN MCNTANA. 4.077
- LOWER SNAKE FIVER LINNOLOGY. 4.076
- NANAGEMENT TECHNIQUES FOR INCREASING CRAWFISH PRODUCTION. 6.046, 7.006*
- MICEOHICLOGICAL ASSESSMENT CP BIVER WATHR CONTAMINATION. 3.084, 4.187=
- MOVEMENTS OF SONIC-TAGGED FISRES IN RELATION TC WATER QUALITY IN LOWER ATCHAFALAYA FIVER RASIN. 1.049. 4.097*
- NATORAL MARSHES AS NUTRIENT SINKS FOR AGRICULTURAL RUNOPP. 4.089
- NATURAL PRODUCTION OF TRODT IN INFERTILE WODNTAIN STREAMS OF PENNSYLVANIA. 4.192
- NITROGEN FIXATION AND ITS EFFECT ON EDIBOFHICATION: IN-PCINT AND NON-POINT SCORCE PONDS. 4.157 NUTRIENT INTERACTIONS AND CHANGES IN ALGAL QUALITY
- IN CAYUGA LAKE. 4.140 NDTRITICNAL ASPECTS OF AQUACDLTDRE SYSTEMS. 5.007,
- 6.014* PHYSIOLOGY AND MANAGEMENT OF ACDATIC WEEDS INTERPHRING WITH TRE USE OF WATER DESCORCES. 3.035
- POND FERTILIZATION AND LINING. 4.002, 5.003* POSSIBLE CAUSES OF ELDEGILL LEPCHIS MARCCCRIEDS DEFCENITIES. 1.080, 4.161#
- QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE STDDIES OF POLLUTION IN SELECTED FARM PONDS. 4.155
- BELEASE OF ADSORBED PESTICIDES INTO WATER. 4.175 SCOPE OF WORK POR PRELIMINARY STDDY CF PRIMARY AND SECONDARY PRODUCTION OF THE ST. LAWRENCE BIVER.
- 4.150 SHALLOW-WATER POLYCULTURE OF FISHES IN PCNDS
- DESIGNED FCF FCTATICN TC GRAIN CROPS. 6.013 THE ECOLOGICAL IMPACT OF INTEGRATED CREWICAL AND HIOLOGICAL AQUATIC WEED CONTROL. 3.025, 4.045*, 4.048. 6.021*
- THE EFFECTS OF AGRICULTDRAL DRAINAGE OF NATORAL SYSTEMS - PEASE III. 4.036
- THE EFFECTS CP IRRIGATION WASTE WATER ON AQUATIC PLANTS IN THE SACRAMENTC RIVER. 4.025
- THE EFPECTS OF LCGGING: GRAZING ON STREAMS IN TRE WEITE MODNTAINS. 4.006
- THE FATE AND BFFECTS OF CREMICALS IN AQUATIC ECOSYSTEMS. 4.111

VEGETATION. 4.197 TCXIC EFFECTS ON THE AQUATIC BIOTA FROM CCAL AND CII SHAIF DEVELOPMENT. 4.034 USE OF SPINERUSE (ELECCHARIS SEP.) FOR BICICGICAL CCNTECL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.016 UTILIZATION OF AQUATIC FLANTS FOR WASTE IREATMENT AND ANIMAL FEEDS. 1.043, 5.023* UTILIZATICN OF KRAFT WILL EFFLUENT FCR FISH PRODUCTICN. 5.012, 6.020* WATER QUALITY CHANGES IN OYSTER PROCESSING. 8.025 WATER QUALITY ENHANCEMENT OF LAKES BY MECHANICAL FUMPING. 4.088, 6.039* WATER QUALITY MAINTENANCE IN CLOSED CYCLE FISH CULTURE SYSTEMS. 6.052 WATER QUALITY STOCKING FATES AND FARVESTING SYSTEMS FCE CATFISE. 6.059 WATER QUALITY STUDIES: COMPARATIVE BOOLOGY AND SYSTEMATICS OF SELECTED AQUATIC INSECTS. 4.043 WATER QUALITY STUDY. 4.033 WINTER FEEDING OF CHANNEL CATFISE IN MISSISSIPPI. 4.125, 6.057* VATER-BEQUIPENENTS WATER QUALITY CHANGES IN OYSTER PROCESSING. 8.025 WATER-BESOURCES DEVELOPMENT OF FISB PROTECTIVE SYSTEMS FOF WATER INTAKES. 4.022 LIMNCLOGICAL BASIS FOR THE PRODUCTIVITY OF INLAND WATERS. 4.206 LINNOLOGY CF FARM PONDS. 1.082, 6.071* PHYSICLCGY AND MANAGEMENT OF AQUATIC WEEDS INTERFEBING WITH THE USE OF WATER RESCURCES. 3.035 PRE-IMPOUNDMENT ENVIRONMENTAL STUDIES OF ACUILLA LAKE. 4.209 WATER-REUSE AQUACULTURAL WASTEWATER MANAGEMENT AND UTILIZATION IN HAWAII. 4.053, 6.029* BREEDING EXPERIMENTS WITE SALMONIDS. 2.024 INTENSIVE CULTURE OF CRAYFISE. 6.068 WATER-SAMPLES WATER QUALITY STUDY. 4.033 WATER-SUPPLY DEVELOPMENT OF FISE PROTECTIVE SYSTEMS FOR WATER INTAKES. 4.022 VATER-SYSTEMS EFFECTS OF AQUATIC PLANT COMMUNITIES ON WATER QUALITY IN BYPEREUTROPHIC AQUATIC ENVIRONMENT. 4.117 WATER-TEMPERATURE AMALYSIS OF PREDATION OF MERCENARIA MERCENARIA EY DECAPOD CRUSTACEANS. 1.095, 3.091* CHEMICAL CONTROL OF MOSQUITCES OF NUISANCE AND BEALTB IMPORTANCE. 4.133 FCOLCGICAL STUDIES WITH RED SWAMP CRAWFISE AND WHITE RIVER CRAWFISE. 1.042, 4.092*, 6.043* EFFECT OF FEAKING POWER GENERATION ON FISE. 4.056 EFFECTS CN SELECTED CEGANISMS OF WATER PASSING THEOUGH THE CEDAR BAYOU GENERATING STATION. 4.210, €.087= FISB BARRIER SYSTEMS FOR POWER STATIONS. 4.196 RESPONSE OF AQUATIC LIFE TO SALINITY, TEMFERATURE, DISSOLVED OXYGEN AND WATER FLCW. 4.024 STEELBEAD EATCHERY AS AFFECTED BY RELATIVELY BIGB TEMPERATURE WATER. 4.068 THE STATUS, ABUNDANCE, AND YIELD OF THE STRIPED BASS IN THE ROANCKE FIVEF, NCETH CAECLINA. 1.081. 4.164* WINTER FEEDING CF CBANNEL CATFISE IN MISSISSIPPI. 4.125, 6.057= WATER-TRANSPORTATION NAVIGATION INFACTS ON CHANNEL FISHES, UPFER MISSISSIPPI RIVER. 4.090 WATER-TREATMENT AEATEMENT OF EUTROPHICATION RESULTING FROM INTENSIVE ANIMAL FRODUCTION. 4.195, 6.080* CAGE CULTURE OF FISE IN THE VIRGIN ISLANDS UTILIZING TERTIARY TREATED WATER. 6.100 INVESTIGATION OF "IN SITU" SOLIDS DIGESTION FOR SALMONIC PRODUCTION. 6.081 PREFLAVORED CHANNEL CATFISE. 8.013, 9.012# VATER-USE EVALUATION OF A CLOSED SYSTEM FOR THE CULTURE OF FISH, SHELLFISH AND AQUATIC PLANTS. 5.001, 6.002* WATER QUALITY CHANGES IN OYSTER PROCESSING. 8.025 WATERSHED- MANAGEMENT

THE PHYSICLOGICAL HASIS FOR MANAGING TIDAL MARSH

EFFECTS OF WATERSBED PRACTICES ON STREAM BABITAT AND FISE POPULATIONS. 4.181 WATERSHEDS EFFECTS OF WATERSBEL PRACTICES ON STREAM BABITAT AND FISH POPULATIONS. 4.181 THE EFFECTS OF AGRICULTURAL DEALNAGE OF NATURAL SYSTEMS - PEASE III. 4.036 WATERWAYS ECOLOGICAL STUDY OF CUTOFF FENDWAYS AND CRECWS WITHIN THE TENNESSEE-TCHEICEFE WATEFWAY, 4,124 WEED-CONTROL A SURVEY FOR PATHOGEN FOR AQUATIC WEEDS IN CALIFCENIA FOR USE IN BIOLOGICAL CONTROL. 3.008, 4.009* ADAPTATICN FACTORS AND CONTROL OF ACUATIC WEEDS. 3.093, 4.204* AN EVALUATION OF WIDELY USED BERBICIDES ON AQUATIC PLANTS, FISE AND FISE-FCCC CEGANIERS. 3.059, 4.116* BASELINE STUDIES FOR EVALUATING THE RESERVE OF AN ECOSYSTEM TO THE INTRODUCTION OF WHITE ANUR. 1.015, 3.028*, 4.046* BIOLOGICAL AGENTS FOR CONTECL OF BYDRILLA, A SUBMERSED AQUATIC WEED. 3.023 EIOLOGICAL CONTROL AGENTS OF BYDRILLA VERTICILLATA. 3.109 BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEFES WITE CONFETITIVE SFECIES OF SEIKERUSE (ELECCHARIS SPP.). 3.011 BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF ACUATIC WEEDS WITH INSECTS. 3.038 BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF EURASIAN WILFCIL AND CTHER AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.106 BIOLOGICAL CONTECL CF WEEDS. 3.104 BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF WEEDS WITH EWFEASIS ON AQUATIC BABITATS. 3.033 BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF WEEDS WITH PATHCGENS. 3.103 BIOLOGY AND CONTFOL OF AQUATIC VEGETATION. 3.048 BIOLOGY AND CONTROL OF AQUATIC VEEDS. 3.068 CONTROL AND FRADICATION OF AQUATIC WEEDS IN LARES AND IMPOUNDED WATERS. 3.107 CONTROL OF AQUATIC PLANT GROWTE. 3.032 CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.108 CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS FASED ON ALLELOFATHIC CBARACTERISTICS IN SPIKEFUSE (ELECCHARIS SPP.). 3.007 ECOLOGY OF PURPLE LOOSESTRIFE (LYTHRUM SALICAFIA). 3.073 ENVIRCEMENTAL IMPACT AND WEED MANAGEMENT STRATEGIES UTILIZING GRASS CARP (CTENCPEARYNGCDCN IDELLA). 3.030, 4.049* EVALUATION OF EFFICACY, CROP RESPONSES AND CROP AND WATES RETENTION OF PCTENTIAL AQUATIC BERBICIDES. 3.021. 4.035* EVALUATION CF FUSARIUM ROSEUM 'CUIMCRUM' AS A BIOLOGICAL CONTROL FOR BYDRILLA VERTICILLATA. 3.029 BORMONAL REGULATION OF GROWTE, DEVELOPMENT AND VEGETATIVE PECPAGATION OF SUBMERSED AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.020 IDENTIFICATION OF INSECTS FOR EICLOGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.036 IMPORTATION AND EVALUATION CF INSECTS FCR BICLCGICAL CONTROL OF WEEDS AND INSECT PESTS. 3-037 MANAGEMENT OF ACUATIC PLANTS FOR SPORT FISH PREDUCTION IN FONDS. 5.002 MANAGEMENT STRATEGIES FOR RICE FESTS. 3.005 MECHANICAL CONTECL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.022 ORGANISMS ASSOCIATED WITH AQUATIC WEEDS AND THE BICLOGICAL CONTROL WATER-BYACINTE IN EGYFT. 3.105 PHYSIOLOGICAL STUDIES OF AQUATIC AND DITCE BANK WEEDS IN THE PACIFIC NORTHWEST. 3.101 POLYCULTURAL PRODUCTION OF FISH IN FARM PONDS. 4.007, 6.010* SBALLCW-WATER POLYCULTURE CF FISHES IN FONDS DESIGNED FOR RCTATION TO GRAIN CRCPS. 6.013 THE FCOLCGICAL INFACT OF INTEGRATED CHENICAL AND BIOLOGICAL AQUATIC WEED CONTECL. 3.025, 4.045*, 4.048, 6.021* THE PBYSIOLOGY AND CONTROL OF VEGETATIVE REPRODUCTION IN BYDRILLA (BYDRILLA VEGTICILLATA RCYLE). 3.024

UPTAKE AND MOVEMENT OF BEREICIDES AND NUTRIENTS IN AQUATIC WEED SPECIES. 3.018

USE OF SPIKERUSE (ELEOCHARIS SPF.) FOR BICLCGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.016

WEED CONTECL IN RICE PRODUCTION. 3.006. 4.008* BEEDS A SURVEY FCR PATHOGEN FOR AQUATIC WEEDS IN CALIPORNIA POR USE IN BIOLOGICAL CONTROL. 3.008, WRITE-CRAPPIR 4.009* ADAPTATION FACTORS AND CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. WRITEFISH 3.093, 4.204* BIOLCGICAL AGENTS FOR CONTROL OF BYDRILLA, A SUBMERSED AQUATIC WEED. 3.023 **BIOLOGICAL CONTROL AGENTS OF BYDEILLA VEFTICILLATA.** 9.005* 3.109 BIOLCGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS WITH COMPETITIVE SPECIES OF SPIKERUSH (ELEOCHARIS SPP.). 2.011 TRITING BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS WITH INSECTS. 3.038 BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF EURASIAN NILFOIL AND OTHER 8.033 AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.106 BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF WEEDS. 3.104 HIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF WEEDS WITH EMPHASIS ON 10.021 AQUATIC HABITATS. 3.033 BIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF WEEDS WITH PATHCGERS. 3.103 WILDLIFE HIOLOGY AND CONTFOL OF AQUATIC VEGETATION. 3.048 HIOLOGY AND CONTFOL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.068 4.060 CCNTFOL CF AQUATIC PLANT GROWTH. 3.032 CCNTROL OF AQUATIC WEEDS. 3.108 CCNTFOL CF AQUATIC WEEDS BASED ON ALLELOPATHIC 4.180 CHARACTERISTICS IN SPIKERUSH (ELECCHARIS SPP.). 3.007 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT AND WEED MANAGEMENT STRATEGIES UTILIZING GRASS CARP (CTENCPHARYNGCDON IDELLA). 3.030, 4.049* 10.036 EVALUATION OF EFFICACY, CRCP BESPONSES AND CROP AND WATER RETENTION OF PCTENTIAL AQUATIC HEFBICIDES. 4.082 3.021. 4.035* EVALUATION OF FUSARIDM ROSEUM "CULMORUM" AS A BIOLOGICAL CONTROL FCE HYDEILLA VEFTICILLATA. 4.070 3.029 IDENTIFICATION OF INSECTS FCR BICLOGICAL CONTROL OF ACDATIC WEEDS. 3.036 IMPOSTATION AND EVALUATION OF INSECTS FOR HIOLOGICAL CONTROL OF WEEDS AND INSECT PESTS. 3.037 LIFE HISTORY AND PHYSIOLOGICAL STUDIES OF AQUATIC AND MAEGINAL WEEDS. 3.061 MANAGEMENT STRATEGIES FOR RICE PESTS. 3.005 MECHANICAL CONTROL OF ACUATIC WEEDS. 3.022 FHYSIOLOGY AND MANAGEMENT CF AQUATIC WEEDS INTERFEBING WITH THE USE OF WATER RESCUECES. 4.085 3.035 PHYTOTOXINS FROM AQUATIC AND TERRESTRIAL PLANTS, BACTERIA, AND FUNGI. 3.017 UPTAKE AND NOVEMENT OF BERBICIDES AND NUTRIENTS IN AQUATIC WEED SPECIES. 3.019 USE OP SPIKERUSH (ELEOCHARIS SPP.) FCR BIOLOGICAL CONTRCL OF AQUATIC WEELS. 3.016 WEED CONTECL IN FICE PRODUCTION. 3.006, 4.008* VEIGHT-GAINS INSECTS ATTRACTED BY LIGHT AS A SOURCE OF FOOD FOR CATFISE. 5.005 UTILIZATION OF PROTEIN INGREDIENTS IN FISE BATIONS. 5.044 WEIGHT GAIN CF FISH. 5.018 WEIGHT-LOSS QUALITY CONTROL OF CANNED SOUID. 9.018 WETLANDS ECONOMIC ANALYSIS OF ALTERNATIVE VIRGINIA CCASTAL WETLANDS FOLICY. 10.047 THE EFFECTS OF AGRICULTURAL DRAINAGE OF NATURAL SYSTEMS - PHASE III. 4.036 VALUE OF TIDAL MARSBES IN RELATION TO ESTUARINE ECOSYSTEN, AND EVALUATION OF FEESEWATER WETLANDS. 4.044 WREY OPERATING FARAMETERS OF LAGCCNS FCR DISFCSAL OF UTILIZATION OF DAIRY FARM AND PROCESSING PLANT WASTE. 8.014 WEIELING-DISEASE-FISE CONTECL OF WHIRLING DISEASE OF SALMONIDS. 3.063 DISEASES OF AQUATIC ANIMALS. 3.013 4.186 VRITE-ANUR ACUACULTURE. 6.007 BASELINE STUDIES FOR EVALUATING THE RESPONSE OF AN 4.098* BCOSYSTEM TO THE INTECDUCTION OF WHITE ANUR. 1.018, 3.028*, 4.046* BIOLOGY AND CONTROL OF AQUATIC VEGETATICN. 3.048 CONTROL ANE FRADICATION OF AQUATIC WEEDS IN LAKES AND IMPCUNDED WATERS. 3.107 WILDLIFE-FOOD

ECOLOGICAL STUDY OF LAKE WALES, FLORIDA AFTER INTRODUCTION OF WHITE AMUR (CTHNOPHARYNGODON IDELLA). 4.047 POTENTIAL BARVEST OF LAKE ERIE WHITE CRAPPIE FROM AN ADJOINING ECRROW PIT. 1.086, 6.072* DIETARY FACTORS IN WHITE FISH MEAL RESPONSIBLE FOR CATARACT FORMATION IN TECUT. 3.018, 5.009*, BCOLOGY, POPULATION DYNAMICS AND MANAGEMENT OF MULTI-SPECIES FISH RESOURCES OF LARGE LAKES. 1.063. 4.121* EXTENDING THE SHELF-LIFE OF FISE, 8,036, 9,028* NEW FOOD PECDUCTS FROM UNDERUTILIZED FISH SPECIES. WEOLESALE-MARKETING MARKET FOTENTIAL AND CURRENT MARKETING PROCEDURES AND PRACTICES OF THE CATFISE FOR FOOD INDUSTEY. A STUDY OF FISH RESOURCES OF THE GOSPEL HUMP AREA. ACUTE AND CHRONIC EFFECTS ON FISH EXPOSED CONTINUOUSLY AND INTERMITTENTLY TO TOXICANTS. ADULT FALL CHINOCK TRAPPING FOR SNAKE RIVER EGG RANK PROGRAM. 6.033 AN ECCNCNIC EVALUATION OF THE BECREATIONAL SALMON FISHING IN THE KENAI/RUSSIAN RIVER REGICN. EIOLOGY AND SPORT FISHING HARVEST OF VELLOW PERCH. DEVELCEMENT AND APPLICATION OF A METBODOLOGY FOR RECONNENDING SALNONID EGG INCUBATION FLOWS. ECOLOGICAL FACTORS AFFECTING POTENTIALLY THREATENED OR ENDANGERED FISE SPECIES IN NY. 4.147 ECOLOGY OF RARE AND ENDANGERED FISHES CF PENNSYLVANIA. 4.191 EFFECT OF PEAKING POWER GENERATION ON FISH. 4.056 EFFECTS OF CHECNIC TURBIDITY CN SOCIAL CONTEST IN JUVENILE STEELBEAD TROUT AND CORC SALMON. 4.059 EFFECTS OF INCREASED FINE SEDIMENT CN INCUEATION AND EMERGENCE OF CHINCOR SALMON AND STEELREAD TRODT. 4.071 EFFECTS OF LAND USE PRACTICES ON STREAM HIOTA. EFFECTS OF REDUCED STREAM DISCHARGE ON FISH AND AQUATIC MACROINVERTEBRATE POPULATIONS. 4.073 EXAMINATION OF THE SPAWNING ECCLOGY AND FARLY LIFE HISTCRY OF KCEANEE SALNON IN COEDE D' ALBNE LAKE. 4.054 FARM FISH FCND WANAGEMENT. 4.112, 5.030*, 6.055* FISHERIES AND WILDLIFE ECONOMICS RESEARCH IN THE GREAT LAKES. 10.019 HABITAT SELECTION AND SPECIES INTERACTIONS OP JUVENILE TROUT IN FLATHFAD RIVER TRIBUTABLES. 1.027, 4.064* INPACT OF LAND USE PRACTICES ON FOPULATIONS OF WILDLIFE AND FISHERY RESOURCES. 4.162 JUVENILE ENIGRATION OF LABORTAN CUTTEROAT TROUT IN THE TRUCKEE-PYRANID LAKE SYSTEM. 4.055 WICKCHICLOGICAL ASSESSMENT OF RIVER WATER CONTAMINATION. 3.084, 4.187* NUTRITION OF SALMONID FISHES. 5.041 FRE-INFCUNDMENT ENVIRONMENTAL STUDIES OF AQUILLA LAKE. 4.209 SPAWNING, EARLY LIFE HISTORY, HABITAT SELECTION OF NORTHERN SQUAWFISH: INPER. TC COLCRADO SOUAWFISH. 4.063 STREAMSIDE BUFFER STRIPS FOR PRCTECTING AQUATIC CRGANISMS FRCM LOGGING EFFECTS. 4.018 TEMPERATURE EFFECTS ON XENOFIOTIC ELIMINATION BY FISHES. 4.179 THE EFFECTS OF AGRICULTURAL DEAINAGE OF NATURAL SYSTEMS - PHASE III. 4.036 TOXICOLOGICAL AND ECOLOGICAL EFFECTS OF TOXICANTS. ULTRASTRUCTURAL CHANGES IN TELECST GILLS: EFFECTS OF SDETLE ALTERATIONS IN THE ENVIRONMENT. 3.053, WILD VERSUS BATCHERY TROUT. 1.026, 4.058*

VILD VERSUS RATCHERT TROUT. T.020, 4.030*

COEUR D'ALENE RIVER FISRERIES INVESTIGATIONS. 4.061 HILDLIFE-FOOD

MINNOWS AS FORAGE IN THE FARM FOND PRODUCTION OF FINFISH. 6.018 WILDLIFE-FOOD-HABITS EARLY LIFE HISTORY ECOLOGY AND GROWTE OF THE RIVER SEFINF MACROEFACHIDM OFFICE IN LOUISIANA. 1.046 PCPULATION CHARACTERISTICS OF TEXAS GULF OF MEXICO FISEES. 1.097 WILDLIFE-HABITATS ECOLOGICAL STUDIES CF THE NAVARRC AND GARCIA ESTUARIES, WITH EMPHASIS CN THE FISHES. 4.028 ECOLOGY AND MANAGEMENT OF STREAM AND STREAM FISHES. 1.061 EFFECTS OF WATERSHED PRACTICES ON STREAM BABITAT AND FISE POPULATIONS. 4.181 FISE MOVEMENT IN POOL 9, UPPER MISSISSIPPI RIVER. 1.035 IMPACT OF LAND USE PRACTICES ON POPULATIONS OF WILDLIFE AND FISHERY RESCURCES. 4.162 PRE-IMPOUNEMENT ENVIRONMENTAL STUDIES OF AQUILLA LAKE. 4.209 PROTECTION, REHABILITATION, AND ENHANCEMENT OF ANADECHCUS FISH BABITAT IN THE PACIFIC NORTEWEST. 4.004 STREAMSIDE BUFFER STRIPS FOR PROTECTING AQUATIC ORGANISMS FROM LOGGING EFFECTS. 4.018 THE EFFECT OF STREAM CUREENT DFCN FISH HEHAVICE, GROWTH AND MICROHABITAT SELECTION. 1.011 TEE EFFECTS OF AGRICOLTUBAL DRAINAGE OF NATURAL SYSTEMS - PHASE III. 4.036 THE EFFECTS OF LCGGING: GRAZING CN STREAMS IN THE WHITE MCDNTAINS. 4.006 WILDLIFE-MANAGEMENT COEUR D'ALENE RIVER FISBERIES INVESTIGATIONS. 4.061 BCOLOGY AND NANAGEMENT OF MISSCURI STREAM FISEES. 4.128 ECOLOGY AND MANAGEMENT OF STREAM AND STREAM FISHES. 1.061 IMPACT OF LAND USE PRACTICES ON POPULATIONS OF WILDLIFE AND FISEERY RESCURCES. 4.162 MANAGEMENT OF A MULTIPLE COEORT FISHERY: THE BARD CLAM RESOURCES IN GREAT SOUTH BAY. 10.028 PEOTECTION, REHABILITATICN, AND ENHANCEMENT OF ANADRONCUS FISE HABITAT IN THE PACIFIC NORTEWEST. 4.004 WILDLIFE-FCFULATION THE EFFECTS OF AGRICULTURAL DRAINAGE OF NATURAL SYSTEMS - PHASE III. 4.036 WIRTER WINTER FEELING OF CEANNEL CATFISE IN MISSISSIFFI. 4.125, 6.057* WINTER-FREDING WINTER FEELING OF CEANNEL CATFISE IN MISSISSIPPI. 4.125. 6.057* WINTERING-RATIONS PRACTICAL FEED FORMULATIONS AND FEEDING PRACTICES

FRACTICAL FRED FORMULATIONS AND FEEDING FRACTICES FOE CATFISE FARMING IN MS. 5.035, 6.058*, 8.031* WOREN

THE EFFECTS CF DIET CN THE RISK CF CANCER. 9.020

XANTHIDAB

- ANALYSIS OF PREDATION OF MERCENARIA MERCENARIA HY DECAPOD CRUSTACEANS. 1.095, 3.091* XENGRICTICS
- MODELS TC ASSESS BIOMAGNIFICATION POTENTIAL OF PERSISTENT TOXIC SUBSTANCES IN AQUATIC FOOD CRAINS. 4.149
- TEMPERATURE EFFECTS ON XENGEIOTIC BLIMINATION HY FISBES. 4.179

TEASTS

- BIOCONVERSION OF CHITIN WASTES. 8.004
- TIELD-FOTENTIAL
- A STUDY OF FISH RESOURCES OF TEE GOSPEL HUMP AREA. 4.060 YIELDS
- ACCOUNTING FOR VARIAELLITY IN PRODUCTIVITY OF CCEAN FISE IN YIELD ESTIMATION. 4.185, 4.185 BIOLOGICAL, TECHNICAL, AND ECONOMIC STDDIES OF
- CULTURED AQUATIC RESOURCES. 4.151, 6.066* CULTURE AND MANAGEMENT CF SELECTED GAME FISHES. 3.092. 4.203*. 6.091*
- 3.092, 4.203*, 6.091* DEVELOPMENT OF OPTIMUM SUSTAINED YIELD OF FISHES IN FARM PONDS. 5.021, 7.004*

DISEASE-RESISTANT OVSTERS. 2.015, 3.067*

- LIFE EISTORY AND POPULATICN DYNAMICS OF TILEFISE, LOFECLATILUS CHAMAELCNTICUP. 1.064
- POLYCULTURAL PRODUCTION OF FISH IN FARM FCNDS. 4.007, 6.010*
- POPULATION CHARACTERISTICS CF TEXAS GULF OF MEXICO FISHES. 1.097
- THE STATUS, ABUNDANCE, AND WIELD OF THE STEIPED HASS IN THE ROANCKE RIVEF, NCETH CARCIINA. 1.081, 4.164*
- ZINC
- EIGACCUMULATICN AND IMPACT OF HIGHWAY-GENERATED BEAVY METALS ON STREAM FISHERY RESCURCES IN VIRGINIA. 4.214

SPOKANE RIVER LIMNOLOGY. 4.067 ZOONOSES

- ENVIRONMENTAL ASFECTS OF SALMONELLOSIS, 3.049 ZOOFLANKTON
 - A MULTI-INSTITUTIONAL APPROACH TO THE IDENTIFICATION OF HIVALVE LAEVAE. 1.067
 - ECOLCGICAL STUDY CF LAKE WALES, FLORIDA AFTER INTRODUCTION CF WHITE AMUE (CTENOPHABINGODON IDELLA). 4.047
 - INSECTS ATTRACTED BY LIGHT AS A SCURCE OF FOOD FOR CATFISE. S.00S LABORATCRY CULTURE FOR RESEARCH FURFCSES OF
 - LABORATCHY CULTUME FOR MESEARCH PURFCEES OF ESTUABINE AND MARINE LOESTERS, CRAHS AND SHRIMPS. 1.048, 5.024*
 - LIMNOLOGICAL EVALUATION AND ZCCPLANKTON DYNAMICS OF LAKE KOOCANUSA, NORTHWESTERN MONTANA. 4.077
 - MECHANISTIC FACTORS DETERMINE AQUATIC FERTILITY. 4.114
 - RELATIONSEIPS HEIWEEN SALT MAESE AND ESTDARINE ANIMAL COMMUNITIES AND ENERGY EXCHANGE. 4.040, 5.010*

SCOPE OF WORK FOR PRELIMINABY STUDY CF PRIMARY AND SECONDARY PRODUCTION CF THE ST. LAWRENCE FIVES. 4.150

- SPCKANE RIVER LIMNOLOGY. 4.067 STREAM AND IMPOUNDMENI ECCLCGY. 4.003
- STUDY OF MANURE-ENPICHED FOCD WEHS IN MARINE POND ECOSYSTEMS. 5.016
- THE GOLE OF SILTS AND CLAYS IN THE NUTRITION OF ZOOPLANKTCN. 1.041

2,4-D

ESTUARINE INVERTEBRATE EEHAVIOR; AN INDEX CF SUEACUTE TOXICITY CF AQUATIC HERHICIDES. 1.079, 3.075*, 8.040*

BISTOPATHOLOGIC AND HISTOCEEMICAL INCICES CF SDBLETHAL PESTICIDE TOXICATION IN FISH. 3.086, 4.189*





n

~ /